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PREFACK 

This  work  is  a  supplement  to  the  volume  entitled  '' Venezuelan 

Arbitrations  of  1903/'  prepared  by  the  same  editors  and  published 
as  Senate  Document  No.  316,  Fifty-eighth  Congress,  second  session. 
The  protocol,  by  virtue  of  which  the  Commission  acted,  whose  pro- 

ceedings are  reported  herein,  was  dated  February  19,  1902;  but 
the  Commission  sat  at  Caracas  at  the  same  time  with  the  Commis- 

sions appointed  imder  the  protocols  of  February,  1903,  and,  as  will 
be  observed,  its  work  and  the  questions  submitted  to  it  partook 
largely  of  the  same  nature  and  character. 
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full  acknowledgment  for  assistance  received  from  Mr.  W.  T.  S.  Doyle; 
Mr.  W.  B.  Turner,  printing  clerk  of  the  Senate;  Mr.  O.  T.  Cartwright, 
of  the  State  Department;  and  Mr.  C.  J.  Kappler. 

The  opinions  herein  reported  were  kindly  furnished  by  the  Umpire, 
Hon.  Frank  Plumley;  the  Venezuelan  Commissioner,  Dr.  Jos6  de 
Jestls  iPatil;  and  the  French  Commissioner,  Count  E.  de  Peretti  de  la 
Rocca.     The  headnotes  were  in  all  cases  prepared  by  Mr.  Plumley. 

Jackson  H.  Ralston. 
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FRENCH-VENEZUELAN  MIXED  CLAIMS  COMMISSION  OF  1902. 

PROTOCOL. 

Los  suscritos,  el  Sefior  H.  Mau- 
bourguet,  Plenipotenciario  de 
los  Estados  Unidos  de  Venezue- 

la, V  el  Sefior  Th.  Delcass^,  Dipu- 
tado^  Ministro  de  Negocios  Ex- 
tranjeros  de  la  Reptiblica  Fran- 
cesa,  debidamente  autorizados 

Eor  sus  respectivos  Gobiemos, 
an  convemdo  en  lo  siguiente: 

ARTfCULO   I. 

Al  propio  tiempo  que  nombren 
sus  Ministros  en  l^arfe  y  Caracas, 
los  Gobiemos  Venezolano  y 
Frances  designar6.n  cada  uno  un 
6,rbitro  y  elegirto  por  tercero  en 
discordia  al  Excelentisimo  Sefior 
F.  de  Leon  y  Castillo,  Marques 
del  Muni,  Embajador  Extraordi- 
nario  y  Plenipotenciario  de  Su 
Majestad  el  Key  de  Espafia  cerca 
del  Presidente.  de  la  Reptiblica 
Francesa. 

Los  dos  primeros  6.rbitros  se 
reunir6.n  en  Caracas  inmediata- 
mente  despufo  de  la  entrega  por 
el  Ministro  de  Francia  al  Presi- 

dente de  los  Estados  Unidos  de 
Venezuela  de  sus  credenciales,  d 
efecto  de  examinar,  de  concierto, 
las  demandas  de  indemnizaciones 
presentadas  por  Franceses,  por 
dafios  sufridcs  en  Venezuela  con 
motivo  de  los  acontecimientos 
revolucionarios  de  1892.  Las  de- 

mandas de  indemnizaciones  que 

no  pudieren  arreglarse  amigable- 
mente  entre  estos  dos  §,rbitros 

serto  sometidas  por  ellos  al  ter- 
cero en  discordia. 

a  Doc.  633—59-1   1 

Les  soussign^s,  M.  H.  Mau})our- 
guet,  Pl6nipotentiaire  des  Etats- Unis  du  \6n6zu6la,  et  M.  Th. 
Delcass6,  D6put6,  Ministre  des 
Affaires  Etrangeres  de  la  R6- 
publique  Fran^aise,  dClment  au- 
toris6s  par  leurs  Gouvemements 
respectifs,  sont  convenus  de  ce 

qui  suit : 
Article  I. 

En  m6me  temps  quails  nomme- ront  leurs  Minislres  h  Paris  et  h 

Caracas,  les  Gouvemements  V6n6- 
zu6lien  et  Fran^ais  d6si^eront 
chacun  un  arbitre  et  choisiront, 
pour  tiers  arbitre.  Son  Excellence 
M.  F.  de  Leon  y  Castillo,  Marquis 

del  Muni,  Ambassadeur  Extraor- 
dinaire et  Pl6nip6tentiairc  de  Sa 

Majesty  le  Roi  a'Espa^e  prfe  le 
President  de  la  R^publique  Fran- 

paise. Les  deux  premiers  arbitres  se 
r^uniront  h  Caracas,  aussit6t  apres 

la  remise  par  le  Minktre  de  France 
au  Pr6siaent  des  fitats-Unis  du 
V6n6zu61a  de  ses  lettres  de  cr6- 

ance,  h  Teffet  d'examiner,  de  con- 
cert, les  demandes  d'indemnit^s 

pr6sent6es  par  de  Franpais  pour 
des  dommages  subis  au  V6n6zu61a 
du  fait  des  6v6nements  insurrec- 
tionnels  de  1892.  Les  demandes 

d'indemnit^s  qui  ne  pourraient  6tre 
r6gl6es  h  Tamiable  entre  ces  deux 
arbitres  seront  soumises  par  eux 
au  tiers  arbitre. 



PROTOCOL. 

Si  no  se  hubiere  estatuido  nada 

definitivamente,  va  por  los  dos  kr- 
bitros,  ya  por  el  tercero,  dentro 
del  plazo  de  un  aiio  contado  desde 
la  llegada  del  ̂ rbitro  francos  d 
Caracas,  el  Gobiemo  Venezolano 
entregard  al  Gobiemo  Frances, 
para  distribuirse  por  61  entre  los 
derecho-habientes,  un  mill6n  de 
bolivares  en  deuda  diplomdtica- 
del  3%,  mediante  el  cual  pago 

quedardn  definitivamente  arre- 
gladas  todas  ks  reclamaciones 
motivadas  por  Ics  sucesos  revolu- 
cionarios  de  1892. 

S^il  n'a  pas  6t6  d6finitivement 
statu6,  soit  par  les  deux  arbitres, 
soit  par  le  tiers  arbitre,  dans  un 

d61ai  d^une  ann6e  k  compter  de 
rarriv^e  de  Tarbitre  fran^ais  i 
Caracas,  le  Gouvemement  V6n6zu- 
61ien  remettra  au  Gouvemement 

franpais,  pour  6tre  r^parti  par  ses 
soins  entre  les  ayants  droit,un  mil- 

lion de  bolivares  en  dette  diplo- 
matique 3  p.  100,  moyennant  quel 

versement  toutes  les  reclamations 
du  fait  des  6v6nements  insurrec- 
tionnels  de  1892  seront  d6finitive- 
ment  r6gl6es. 

ARTfCULO   II. 

Las  demandas  de  indemniza- 
ciones  extranas  k  las  que  son  ob- 
jeto  del  artlculo  I,  pero  (jue  est6n 
fundadasenhechos  anteriores  al  23 

de  mayo  de  1899,  serdn  examina- 
das  de  concierto  por  el  Ministro 
de  Relaciones  Exteriores  de  Vene- 

zuela y  por  el  Ministro  de  Francia 
en    Caracas.     Si    dentro    de    un 
[)lazo  de  seis  meses,  contado  desde 
a  entrega  de  las  credenciales  del 
Ministro  de  Francia  en  Caracas, 
no  se  pusieren  de  acuerdo  sobre  el 
monto  de  las  indemnizaciones  que 
hayan  de  concederse,  las  deman- 

das serto  sometidas  por  ellos  al 
tercero  en  discordia  designado  en 
el  articulo  precedente. 

El  Ministro  de  Relaciones  Exte- 
riores de  Venezuela  y  el  Ministro 

de  Francia  en  Caracas  podrdn 
delegar,  cada  uno  en  lo  que  le  con- 
ciema,  la  ejecuci6n  de  las  disposi- 
ciones  que  preceden  en  el  droitro 
nombrado  por  su  Gobiemo. 

Si  varias  demandas  de  indemni- 
zaciones fundadas  en  hechos  dif e- 

rentes  se  presentaren  por  el  mismo 
reclamante  y  una  de  ellas  estu- 
viere  en  el  caso  de  someterse  al 
procedimiento  establecido  en  el 
presente  articulo,  las  demds  se 
juntarto  d  ella  para  ser  objeto  de 
de  un  arreglo  tinico. 

Article  II. 

Les  demandes  d'indemnit^s  au- 
tres  que  celles  qui  sont  vis6es  h 
Tarticle  Vj  mais  fondles  sur  des 
faits  ant6rieurs  au  23  mai  1899, 
seront  examinees  de  concert  par 
le  ministre  des  affaires  6trang^res 
du  V6n6zu61a  et  par  le  ministre  de 
France  h  Caracas.  Si  dans  le 
d61ai  de  six  mois  h  dater  de  la 
remise  des  lettres  de  cr6ance  du 
ministre  de  France  h  Caracas,  ils 

ne  tombent  pas  d'accord  sur  le montant  des  mdemnit^s  k  allouer, 
les  demandes  seront  soumises  par 
eux  au  tiers  arbitre  d6sign6  h  1  ar- 

ticle precedent. 

Le  ministre  des  affaires  6tran- 
geres  du  V6n6zu61a  et  le  ministre 
de  France  k  Caracas  pourront  d6- 
16guer,  chacun  en  ce  qui  le  con- 
ceme,  pour  Tex^cution  des  dispo- 

sitions ci-dessus,  Tarbitre  nomm6 
par  leur  gouvemement. 

Si  plusieurs  demandes  d'indem- 
nit^s,  fondles  sur  des  faits  diff6- 
rents,  sont  pr6sent6es  par  le  mSme 

r^clamant  et  que  Tune  d'entre  elles 
soit  dans  le  cas  d^^tre  soumise  k  la 
procedure  6tablie  au  present  arti- 

cle, les  autres  y  seront  jointes, 

pour  faire  Tobjet  d'un  rSglement unique. 



PROTOCOL. 

Queda  entendido  aue  este  pro- 
cedimiento,como  el  adoptado  para 
las  reclamaciones  de  1892,  no  se 
instituye  sino  k  tltulo  excepcional, 
y  no  invalida  la  convenci6n  del  26 
de  noviembre  de  1885. 

ABTfCULO  III. 

El  tercero  en  discordia  decidird 
sin  apelaci6n. 

Las  indemnizaciones  se  pa^a- rto  al  Gobiemo  Frances  en  titulos 

de  la  deuda  diplomdtica  del  3% 
dentro  de  los  tres  meses  que  sigan 
al  acuerdo  6  al  fallo. 

ARTfCULO  IV. 

II  est  entendu  que  cette  proce- 
dure, comme  celle  qui  est  aaopt6e 

pour  les  reclamations  de  1892, 

n'est  institute  qu'k  titre  excep- 
tionnel  et  n'infirme  pas  la  conven-. tion  du  26  novembre  1885. 

Article  III. 

Le  tiers  arbitre  d^cidera  sans 

appel. 
Les  indemnit6s  seront  vers^es 

au  Gouvernement  Fran^ais,  en 
titres  de  la  dette  diplomatique  3 
%  dans  les  trois  mois  qui  sui- 
vront  Tentente  ou  le  prononc^  de 
la  sentence. 

El  Gobierno  Venezolano  pedird 
al  Congreso  que  inscriba  en  el 
Presupuesto  de  Gastos  las  sumas 
necesarias  para  el  pago  de  las 
mensualidades  atrasadas  de  la 

deuda  diplom§,tica,  y  los  tene- 
dores  de  titulos  de  esa  deuda  de- 

berdn,  por  lo  demds,  participar  de 
todas  las  ventajas  que  resulten 
para  ellos  de  la  estricta  aplicaci6n 
de  las  leyes  .venezolanas  org^nicas 
sobre  la  materia. 

El  presente  Arreglo  sera  ratifi- 
cado  y  las  ratificaciones  se  can- 
jearan  en  Paris  6  en  Caracas  cuan- 
to  totes  se  pueda  y  d  mas  tardar 
el  30  de  abril  de  1902. 

En  f6  de  lo  cual,  los  suscritos, 
debidamente  autorizados  por  sus 
Gobiemos  respectivos,  han  ex- 
tendido  el  presente  acto  y  puesto 
en  61  sus  sellos. 

Hecho  por  duplicado  en  Paris 
el  19  de  febrero  de  1902. 

H.  Maubourguet. 
Delcass6. 

Article  IV. 

Le  Gouvernement  V6n6zu61ien 
demandera  au  Congres  d^nscrire 
au  Budget  des  d6penses  les  sommes 
n6cessaires  au  payement  des  men- 
sualit6s  arri6r6es  de  la  dette  diplo- 

matique, les  porteurs  de  titres  de 
cette  dette  devront  d'ailleurs  b6- 
n6ficier  de  tons  les  avantages  qui 
r6sultent  pour  eux  de  la  stricte 
application  des  lois  v6n6zu61iennes 
organiques  sur  la  matiere. 

Le  present  Arrangement  sera 
ratifie  et  les  ratifications  en  seront 

6chang6es  a  Paris  ou  k  Caracas  le 
plus  t6t  que  faire  se  pourra  et  au 
plus  tard  le  30  avril  1902. 

En  foi  de  quoi,  les  soussim6s, 
dtlment  autoris6s  par  leursGou- 
vemements  respectifs,  ont  dress6 
le  present  acte  et  y  ont  appos6 
leurs  cachets. 

Fait  h  Paris,  en  double  exem- 
plaire,  le  19  ffivrier  1902. 

[l.  s.] 
[l:  s.] 



PEESONNEL  OP  COMMISSIOlf . 

Umpire.^ — Hon.  Frank  Plumley,  of  Northfield,  Vt. 
French  Commissioner. — Count  E.  de  Peretti  de  i.a  Rocca. 
Venezuelan  Commissioner. — Dr.  Josi^  de  JesXjs  Paul. 

Secretary  to  Umpire. — ^Mr.  Charles  A.  Plumley. 
French  Secretary. — ^M.  Paul  Waltz. 
Venezuelan  Secretary. — Dr.  J.  F.  Padr6n  UstXriz. 

a  By  the  protocol  the  Marquis  del  Muni,  ambassador  extraordinary  and  pl^nipotentiary  of 
Spain  to  France,  was  appointed,  but,  he  declining,  Hon.  ̂ rank  Plumley  was  finally  selected. 



CLAIM  OF  HEIE8  OF  JULES  BETJN.— No.  l.» 

HEAD  NOTES. 

A  state  of  war,  a  battle,  or  a  skirmish  excuses  only  those  casualties  which  are  unavoidable. 

A  city  not  in  revolt,  but  temporarily  occupied  by  insurgent  forces,  is  entitled  to  receive  from 

•  the  Grovemment  the  utmost  care  and  protection  not  inconsistent  with  the  retaking  of 

the  town -from  the  insurgent  forces,  and  is  subject  only  to  the  inevitable  contingencies 
attending  such  an  undertaking. 

There  is  a  presumption  that  the  Government  will  do  its  duty  in  this  regard;  but  it  is  met,  if 
not  overcome,  by  a  presumption  which  arises  from  a  refusal  of  the  Government  in  such 

a  case  to  permit  the  use  of  its  judicial  processes  to  settle  the  exact  facts  easily  ascer- 
tainable. 

If  there  is  a  claimant  rightfully  in  the  case,  however  informally  present,  it  is  sufficient  to 

permit  and  to  require  a  disposition  of  the  case  on  its  merits  and  all  parties  will  be  fully 
bound  by  the  decision. 

Whei-e  the  claimant  is  the  mother,  a  widow,  and  the  claim  is  for  the  unlawful  killing  of  her 
son,  the  measure  of  damages  is  the  amount  which  will  meet  the  pecuniary  loss  she  has 
sustained  where  there  is  no  ground  for  exemplary  damages. 

The  protocol  constituting  this  commission  having  provided  that  the  award  be  paid  in  bonds 

of  the  diplomatic  debt  of  3  per  cent  of  Venezuela,  which  are  at  present  greatly  reduced 
in  market  value,  the  umpire  can  not  because  of  this  augment  the  actual  damage  or  the 

actual  debt  in  making  his  award.  Such  a  course  would  be  unjust  to  the  respondent 

Government  and  to  every  holder  of  these  debts.  The  umpire  is  not  cx)mpctent  to  do 

this  under  the  protocol. 

a  EXTRACT  FROM   THE  MINUTES  OF  THE   SITTING   OF  MAY  27,  1903. 

Proceeded  to  examination  of  claim  presented  in  the  name  of  the  heirs  of  Mr.  Brun  (Jules), 

late  superintendent  of  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  railroads. 

Doctor  Paiil  observes  that  this  claim  is  not  presented  by  a  representative  of  Mr.  Brun  and 

in  his  opinion  this  fact  would  suffice  for  its  not  being  taken  into  consideration  by  the  com- 
mission. He  adds,  besides,  that  the  death  of  Mr.  Brun  was  caused  by  purely  accidental 

means  and  that  in  no  manner  can  it  serve  as  a  basis  for  a  claim  of  indemnity  against  the 
Venezuelan  Government. 

Mr.  de  Peretti  replies  that  in  presenting  this  claim  the  French  Government  is  substituted 
in  place  of  the  heirs  whose  interests  it  takes  in  hand,  the  mother  of  Mr.  Brun  being  aged 
and  infirm. 

Moreover,  the  responsibility  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  appearing  to  him  well  estab- 
lished he  accords  an  indemnity  of  500,000  bolivars. 

It  is  therefore  decided  that  this  claim  be  reserved  for  the  umpire  to  examine. 

Doctor  Paiil  inquires  of  his  colleague  upon  what  basis  he  has  estimated  the  amount  of 

the  indemnity  which  he  thinks  is  due  the  heirs  of  Mr.  Brun.  Mr.  do  Peretti  replies  that  in  view 

of  the  rejection  by  his  colleague  of  the  present  claim  he  does  not  feel  obliged  to  disclose  the 
reasons  which  have  led  him  to  fix  the  amount  of  500,000  bolivars.  However,  he  is  willing 

to  state  that  this  amount,  which  is  exactly  estimated  by  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan 

railroads  as  an  equitable  compensation  for  the  injury  done  to  the  family  of  its  superintend- 
ent, represents  almost  precisely  in  capital  the  annual  salary  that  Mr.  Brun  earned  by  his 

labors. 
5 



b  CASE    OF    HEIRS    OF    JULES    BRUN. 

OPINION  OF  THE  VENEZUELAN  COMMISSIONEB. 

This  claim  is  wanting  every  document  proceeding  from  the  lawful 

heirs  or  successors  to  Jules  Brun  formulating  a  claim  against  the  Gov- 
ernment of  Venezuela  for  the  death  of  said  gentleman,  so  that  all  such 

elements  are  lacking  as  are  indispensable  for  taking  into  considera- 
tion either  the  lawfulness  of  the  personality  of  the  claimant  or  the 

sum  to  which  the  claim  is  made  to  amount. 

Among  the  papers  presented  by  the  French  arbitrator  there  only 
appears  a  telegram  dated  the  4th  of  June,  1898,  addressed  by  Mr. 
Hanotaux  to  the  French  legation  in  Caracas  running  as  follows: 

Take  steps  necessary  to  protect  eventual  rights  of  the  Brun  family,  assuring  guarantee  of 
the  French  personnel  of  the  company. 

There  are  also  presented  two  rough  copies  of  writing  corresponding 
to  two  notes  addressed  to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  Venezuela 

on  the  4th  and  12th  of  June,  1898,  by  Mr.  Qui6vreux,  inviting  him  to 
ask  the  local  authorities  of  the  State  of  Zulia  to  tender  their  assistance 

to  the  officials  of  the  ''Compagnie  Franpaise  de  Chemins  de  Fer 

V6n6zu61iens,^^  with  the  purpose  of  establishing  the  exact  truth  of  the 
events  that  took  place  at  Santa  Barbara  on  the  day  Mr.  Brun  was 
wounded. 

In  reply  to  one  of  these  notes  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  on  the 
11th  of  June  of  the  same  year  expressed  himself  to  be  willing  to  take 
it  into  consideration,  foreseeing  that  the  fact  of  his  not  considering  it 

might  lend  itself  to  interpretations  alien  from  the  views  of  the  Gov- 
ernment as  to  the  death  of  a  truly  appreciated  person,  which  had  had 

its  origin  in  a  regrettable  accident  during  the  progress  of  battle. 
The  fact  of  the  wound  of  Mr.  Brun,  with  which  the  communications 

of  the  consul  of  France  deal,  occurred  under  circumstances  of  such  a 

nature  so  precise,  so  evident,  and  so  indisputably  accidental  that  all 

investigation  after  the  death  of  the  wounded  gentleman  became  unnec- 
essary. The  very  employees  of  the  company,  personal  witnesses  of  the 

fact,  narrate  with  all  its  details  the  unfortunate  accident  of  the  wound 
of  Mr.  Brun,  and  the  commissioner  for  the  Government  of  Venezuela 
will  take  precisely  those  declarations  into  consideration  to  weigh  the 
reason  and  justice  of  the  alleged  claim. 

Mr.  J.  B.  Peysselon,  representative  of  the  *'  Compagnie  Franpaise  de 
Chemins  de  Fer  V6n6zu61iens,''  after  the  death  of  Mr.  Brun,  in  a  state- 

ment which  he  ratified  before  the  consular  agent  of  France  at  Mara- 
caibo,  relates  the  facts  as  follows: 

From  the  4th  day  of  May  the  village  of  Santa  Barbara,  the  place  of  our  residence,  was 

occupied  by  a  revolutionary  troop.  On  Sunday,  the  8th,  the  legal  troops,  transported  by 
the  steamer  Progreso,  arrived  at  midday  at  the  village.  Under  these  circumstances  we  must 
foresee  a  battle  in  the  streets.  This  foresight  ordered  us  to  immediately  close  all  the  doors 

and  blinds  of  our  dwelling  house.  While  I  was  closing  a  window  overlooking  the  square 
Mr.  Brun  was  closing  that  of  his  sleeping  room,  which  overlooks  Santo  Domingo  street. 
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At  the  same  moment  the  musket  volleys  began  in  this  street;  the  window  was  already  closed; 
but  Mr.  Brun  had  no  time  to  remove  his  hand  from  the  lock  when  the  bullet  of  an  arm  of 

precision  pierced  the  blind  through,  twisted  the  lock  in  an  extraordinary  way,  pierced  Mr. 

Brun's  hand  through  and  through  and  threw  the  chips  on  his  breast.  Mr.  and  Mrs.  Crini^re, 
who  inhabit  the  house  of  the  director,  attended  Mr.  Brun  on  this  sad  circumstance.  I 

immediately  went  out  to  the  square  to  call  a  physician.  I  met  with  20  armed  men  of  the 
Government,  and  the  only  person  known  to  me  to  whom  I  could  apply  was  Gen.  Eleazar 

Montiel,  the  head  of  the  party.  As  the  physician  had  not  arrived,  I  went  out  for  a  second 
time  and  saw  the  same  Montiel  with  Messrs.  Bellais  and  Acosta,  his  lieutenants,  and  another 

troop  of  the  Government.  When  the  first  panic  was  over,  Drs.  J.  Rosales  and  J.  Cohen 
could  be  called,  and  immediately  came  to  attend  our  friend. 

Mr.  A.  Crinifere,  bookkeeper  of  the  company  at  Santa  Barbara, 
declares  before  the  same  consular  agent : 

We  were  anxious,  because  we  heard  and  saw  nothing.  When  at  midday  the  report  cir- 
culated that  the  steamer  Progreso  was  at  the  entrance  of  Santa  Barbara,  a  great  movement 

took  place,  and  we  saw  a  white  flag  at  the  station.  This  inspired  us  with  some  confidence, 
and  we  thought  that  the  two  parties  would  come  to  an  understanding.  Unfortunately  it 

did  not  happen  so,  and  at  the  same  time  a  lively  musket  firing  broke  out  in  Santo 

Domingo  street.  It  was  the  soldiers  from  Maracaibo  that  arrived  at  the  bottom  of  the  vil- 
lage and  attacked  the  forces  of  Generals  Figuera  and  Pozo  in  the  rear.  Immediately  Messrs. 

Brun,  Peysselon,  and  myself  ran  to  close  the  doors  and  windows  to  protect  ourselves  from 
the  bullets.  I  had  already  heard  the  noise  of  something  like  mortar  falling  behind  me. 
It  was  a  bullet  that  had  pierced  through  the  window  of  the  hall  overlooking  the  square 

which  had  two  flags.  Almost  at  the  same  time  I  heard  Mr.  Brun  cry,  **I  am  wounded." 
We  all  ran  to  him  to  help  him  and  saw  his  right  hand  horribly  mutilated  by  a  bullet.  All  of 

this  passed  like  a  thunderbolt.  We  rendered  the  first  attentions  required  by  so  serious  a 

wound,  and,  the  musket  firing  having  ceased,  Mr.  Peysselon  ran  in  search  of  a  physician.  I 

followed  him  and  saw  soldiers  of  the  legal  forces  with  the  French  flag  over  their  heads  guard- 
ing the  entrance  of  the  ofl&ce  in  the  street,  which  did  not  prevent  them  from  preparing 

to  fire  at  us;  but  fortunately  Mr.  Peysselon  had  suflBcient  presence  of  mind  to  cry:  "French 
company,"  which  produced  the  effect  of  changing  their  bad  intention,  and  Mr.  Peysselon 
was  able  to  go  out. 

From  the  medical  mspection  made  by  Dr.  J.  Cohen  and  reported  to 

the  consular  agent  at  Maracaibo,  it  appears  that  Mr.  Brun,  immedi- 
ately after  the  incident,  presented  a  wound  in  his  right  hand,  with  the 

following  circumstances:  On  the  pulm  side  of  the  hand  the  wound  pre- 
sented an  extent  of  from  7  to  8  centimeters  and  a  strange  appearance 

that  showed  that  it  had  been  produced  not  only  by  the  bullet,  but  also 

by  the  violent  pressure  of  a  hard  body,  with  half-cutting  edges,  which 
intersected  the  skin,  the  muscles,  and  the  artericl  arc.  It  also  appears 

that  the  physician,  in  view  of  the  dangerous  nature  of  the  wound,  pro- 
ceded  to  render  the  patient,  ih  company  with  Dr.  Paminas  Rosales, 

all  such  attention  as  medical  science  prescribed ;  that  these  cares  con- 
tinued during  all  the  days  9, 10, 11,  and  12,  in  which  nothing  particular 

occurred,  the  treatments  being  made  regularly  and  with  a  great  atten- 
tion; that  on  the  12th,  at  11  a.  m.,  Mr.  Brun  was  embarked  on  board 

the  steamer  Progreso  for  his  transportation  to  Maracaibo  without 

showing  theretofore  any  alteration ;  that  at  4  o^clock  that  day  Doctor 
Cohen  proceeded,  on  board  the  Progreso,  to  dress  the  woimd,  and 
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found  in  the  purulent  focus  formed  at  the  side  of  the  wound  on  the 
dorsal  face  of  the  hand  a  complete  absence  of  gleet  and  three  gangre- 

nous points  on  the  dorsal  face  of  the  thumb;  that  such  symptoms 
inspired  him  with  the  fear  of  a  great  danger,  for  which  reason  he  noti- 

fied the  acting  representative  of  the  rights  of  the  company  what  he 
had  seen  and  ordered  a  certain  preventive  method.  The  patient  was 
well  until  7,  when  in  a  violent  manner  the  fever  made  its  invasion 

with  a  strong  delirium  and  all  the  consequences  attending  an  infec- 
tion; that  everything  was  attempted,  but  in  vain,  for  neither 

scientific  cares  nor  those  of  friendship  were  enough  to  avoid  the 

catastrophe  that  took  place  at  8.45,  when  the  patient  died  of  a  puru- 
lent infection  of  violent  invasion,  which  could  not  be  overcome. 

The  corpse  having  been  carried  to  Maracaibo  on  the  same  steamer 
Progreso,  the  government  of  the  State  of  Zulia,  upon  learning  the 
regrettable  event,  thought  it  to  be  its  duty  to  join,  £s  it  did  in  effect, 
in  the  sorrow  produced  in  the  State  by  the  death  of  Mr.  Brun,  and 
decided  among  other  manifestations  to  assist  at  the  act  of  the  burial 
of  the  corpse  of  the  esteemable  gentleman,  who  lost  his  life  on  account 
of  a  lamentable  accident. 

Another  proof  given  by  the  government  of  the  sympathy  with 
which  it  was  inspired  by  the  fate  of  Mr.  Brun  appears  from  a  note 
addressed  by  Gen.  J.  M.  Gomez,  chief  of  the  third  military  circum- 

scription of  the  Republic  to  Mr.  Julio  d'Empiiire,  in  charge  of  the  con- 
sukr  agency  of  France  in  the  city  of  Maracaibo. 

In  that  note  a  copy  is  inclosed  of  that  which  in  the  name  of  Mr. 
Brun,  while  suffering  in  his  bed  the  consequence  of  his  wound,  was 
addressed  on  the  12th  of  May,  1898,  by  Mr.  J.  B.  Peysselon,  inspector 
of  the  exploitation,  to  Gen.  Mamerto  D.  Gonzalez,  military  agent  of 

Gen.  Garcia  Gomez  in  the  Santa  Barbara  district.  Mr.  Peysselon's 
note  runs  thus : 

Compagnie  Fran^aise  de  Chemins  de  Fer  V4n4zu^liens.  line  from  San  C&rlos  to  M4rida. 
Direction  of  the  exploitation.  L.  R.  No.  658.  Santa  B&rbara,  12th  May,  1898.  General 

Mamerto  D.  Gonz&lez.  My  dear  sir:  As  the  agent  of  the  company,  and  Mr.  Brun  being 
unable  to  do  so  himself,  I  thank  you  for  the  restoration  of  order  and  for  having  taken 

the  proper  measures  for  the  bringing  of  the  steamer  Santa  Bdrbara.  It  would  be  highly 
agreeable  to  us  to  see  you  among  us  protecting  our  persons  and  our  interests.  I  am  with 
all  consideration, 

Your  respectful  servant,  J.  B.  Peysselon, 

Inspector  of  the  Exploitation. 

This  note,  unaer  ine  circumstances  under  which  it  was  written,  Mr. 
Brun  being  already  wounded,  order  being  restored  in  the  place  by  the 
forces  commanded  by  Gen.  Mamerto  Gonz&lez,  and  the  steamer  Santa 
Barbara^  that  had  been  taken  by  the  revolutionaries,  being  returned  to 
the  company,  throws  suflScient  light  to  make  one  consider  as 
ungrounded  the  attacks  which  Mr.  Peysselon  desired  to  adduce  with 

the  purpose,  after  the  death  of  Mr.  Brun,  of  giving  the  accident  hap^ 
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pening  to  the  latter  a  character  of  aggression  against  the  building  of 
the  company,  that  is  not  in  any  way  proved. 

For  all  the  reasons  above  stated  the  claim  presented  by  the  Com- 
missioner of  France  on  accoimt  of  the  death  of  Mr.  J.  Brim  is  desti- 

tute of  any  groimd  that  may  render  it  acceptable  for  any  amomit, 
and  the  Commissioner  for  Venezuela,  therefore,  entirely  rejects  it. 

Caracas,  May  27 y  1903. 

OPINION  OF  THE  FRENCH  COMMISSIONED. 

The  8th  of  May,  1898,.  M.  Brun,  superintendent  of  bridges  and 
causeways  on  leave,  director  of  the  French  company  of  Venezuelan 
railroads  was  grievously  wounded  by  a  discharge  from  Government 
troops  which  took  place  in  the  village  of  Santa  B6,rbara  occupied  by 
the  insurgent  forces.  M.  Brun,  who  was  in  his  house,  over  which  floated 
th©  French  flag,  had  his  hand  shattered  by  a  ball,  at  the  moment  when 
he  was  closing  the  shutters  of  the  window  of  his  room,  and  died  four 
days  later  because  of  this  wound.  These  facts  have  caused  the  lodg- 

ment by  the  French  Government  of  the  claim  of  500,000  bolivars 
before  the  mixed  commission  appointed  according  to  the  protocol  of 
the  19th  of  February,  1902.  These  facts  are  well  established  by  the 
depositions  of  eyewitnesses  and  of  the  doctor  who  cared  for  M.  Brun. 
The  Venezuelan  authorities  have  by  their  attitude  confirmed  their 
correctness,  which  the  Venezuelan  Government  has  never  placed  in 
doubt.  At  the  sitting  of  the  27  th  of  May,  1903,  the  mixed  commis- 

sion considered  this  claim. 

Dr.  Patil  rejected  it,  considering  that  it  had  not  been  presented  by 
a  representative  of  M.  Brun  and  that  this  fact  suffices  for  its  not 
being  taken  into  consideration  at  all  by  the  commission;  that  the 
death  of  M.  Brun  had  a  cause  purely  accidental,  and  that  it  could 
not  in  any  way  serve  as  a  basis  for  a  demand  of  indemnity  from  the 
Venezuelan  Government.  I  replied  that  the  French  Government 
had  substituted  itself  for  the  presentation  of  this  claim  by  the  heirs 
whose  interests  it  had  taken  in  hand,  the  mother  of  M.  Brun  being 
aged  and  infirm,  and  that  besides  the  responsibility  of  the  Venezuelan 
Grovemment  seeming  to  me  established  I  accorded  a  demand  and 
indemnity  in  satisfaction  of  500,000  bolivars. 

It  is  said  nowhere  in  the  protocol  that  the  claims  must  be  presented 

by  those  having  a  right  in  themselves.  It  is  at  the  same  time  con- 
formable to  international  law  and  commanded  by  good  sense  and 

equity  that  the  French  Government  present  in  its  name  the  claims 
of  those  of  its  dependents  who  are  not  capable  themselves  of  defend- 

ing their  rights,  and  nothing  interferes  with  this.  As  for  therespon- 
sibiUty  of  the  Venezuelan  Government,  it  is  difficult  to  place  it  in 
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doubt,  even  holding  to  the  principles  generally  admitted  by  inter- 
national European  law,  the  existence  of  which  are  often  disregarded 

in  affairs  between  the  countries  of  Europe  and  certain  South  Amer- 
ican republics,  because  of  the  social  and  political  conditions  of  these 

countries. 

Immediately  after  the  decease  of  M.  Brun  M.  Hanotaui^,  minister  of 
foreign  affairs,  telegraphed  the  4th  ot  June,  1898,  to  M.  Qui^vreux, 

charg6  d'affaires  of  France  at  Caracas,  to  take  the  necessary  steps  to 
safeguard  the  eventual  rights  of  the  family.  M.  Qui6vreux  the  same 
day  wrote  to  the  minister  of  foreign  relations  of  Venezuela,  rendering 
homage  to  the  correctness  of  the  attitude  of  the  high  authorities  at 
Maracaibo,  whose  evidences  of  sympathy  were  an  undeniable  proof 
of  the  confidence  which  M.  Brun  had  inspired  and  of  the  services  which 

he  had  rendered  to  the  country  in  directing  a  great  enterprise  of  pub- 

lic utility.  Qui^vreux  made  known  that  the  local  officials  had  not  con- 
ducted themselves  so  well.  The  successor  of  M.  Brun  in  the  direction 

of  the  company  could  not  obtain  from  the  judge  of  the  district  per- 
mission to  proceed  according  to  the  legal  forms  to  make  the  different 

proofs  relating  to  this  dreadful  incident  and  to  the  circumstances 

accompanying   it. 
The  house  of  M.  Brun,  property  of  the  company,  was  connected 

with  the  shops  and  storehouse  for  material  and  the  central  office. 
But  the  doors  of  the  principal  shop  of  the  office  of  bookkeeping  and 

the  telegraph  office  were  broken  down  a.^ter  one  of  the  discharges 
fired  upon  the  property  of  the  company  had  wounded  M.  Brun. 

In  conclusion  M.  Qui6vreux  asked  relief  from  the  Federal  Govern- 
ment and  that  they  kindly  invite  the  local  officers  to  lend  their  indis- 

pensable assistance  to  an  investigation  of  this  nature  by  the  agents 
of  the  French  company. 

In  his  reply  the  minister  for  foreign  affairs  tried  to  establish  theo- 
retically that  the  judicial  authorities  were  not  obliged  to  proceed  to 

any  investigation.  He  added  that  the  death  of  M.  Brun  and  the 
breaking  of  the  doors  were  simply  accidents  of  war.  The  death  of 

M.  Brun  could  no  more  require  compensation  than  that  of  a  Vene- 
zuelan who,  crossing  a  street  in  Paris  in  1871,  during  the  struggles  of 

the  Commune,  was  killed  by  a  stray  ball. 
The  representative  ot  France  in  his  reply  called  attention  to  such 

strange  theory,  as  it  seemed  to  him.  He  suggestively  remarked  that 

the  terms  of  the  letter  of  the  minister  had  only  strengthened  his  pur- 
pose to  have  an  examination  of  the  unfortunate  incidents  which  had 

marked  the  taking  of  Santa  Barbara  by  the  troops  of  the  Govern- 
ment. It  was  inadmissible,  he  added,  that  the  department  of  foreign 

relations  should  try,  under  cover  of  the  authorities  of  international 
law,  to  liken  the  breaking  of  the  doors  of  the  buildings  of  the  French 
company  to  the  destruction  of  the  hostile  intrenchments,  which  would 
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lead  one  to  suppose  that  the  aforesaid  buildings  over  which  floated  the 
French  flag  were  occupied  by  revolutionary  forces,  but  this  hypothesis 
was  so  contrary  to  the  real  fact  that  the  Venezuelan  Goveri^ment  itself 
has  not  thought  to  claim  it.  M.  Qui^vreux  said  at  the  end  of  his 

letter — 
I  regret  that  it  does  not  seem  possible  to  your  excellency  that  the  judicial  authorities 

of  the  district  in  which  Santa  Barbara  is  situated  should  lend  to  the  officials  of  the  French 

company  of  Venezuelan  railroads  their  aid  in  view  of  establishing  the  exact  truth  about 

the  events  which  the  national  Government  deplores  with  me.  I  see  myself  obliged,  there- 

fore, to  make  all  my  reserves  fo  •  the  case  where  the  interested  party  having  to  formulate 
a  precise  claim  upon  the  subject  of  this  affair  it  would  not  be  possible  for  them  to  base  it 
upon  the  statements  made  according  to  the  usual  and  legal  forms.  This  will  not  be  in 
accordance  with  their  will  or  mine. 

In  spite  of  this  courteous  admonition  the  Venezuelan  Government 
persists  in  its  resolutions.  This  attitude  proves  clearly  that  it  feared 

the  consequences  of  a  legal  investigation  and  that  it  was  ready  to 

intrench  behind  technicalities  more  or  less  contestable  upon  expla- 
nations upon  international  law  and  upon  comparisons  not  well  justi- 

fied. We  are  convinced  besides  that  this  eagerness  to  defend  itself 
by  the  aid  of  citations  of  authorities  of  international  law  even  before 
having  been  attacked,  to  reject  a  claim  which  was  not  yet  presented, 
shows  clearly  that  the  Venezuelan  Government  itself  confessed  that  a 
compensation  for  damages  might  be  demanded  of  it  under  a  just  title. 
If  it  had  been  assured  that  an  investigation  conducted  conformably 

to  Venezuelan  laws  by  the  Venezuelan  officials  would  have  simply  per- 
mitted to  conclude  upon  the  irresponsibility  of  the  Government  for 

the  accident  of  the  war  no  doubt  but  that  it  would  have  proceeded 
immediately  to  the  aforementioned  investigation.  That  would  have 

established  the  responsibilities.  That  is  what  the  Venezuelan  Govern- 
ment wished  to  avoid.  It  has  not  recoiled  before  a  denial  of  justice 

and  it  has  thus  condemned  itself. 

In  the  several  trips  I  have  made  to  Santa  B&rbara  for  the  purpose  of 
forming  personal  opinions  upon  the  French  claims  I  have  been  able, 

although  five  years  have  passed  since  the  events,  to  make  some  obser- 
vations which  have  terminated  by  convincing  me  that  the  wounding 

of  M.  Brun  could  not  be  regarded  as  a  simple  accident  of  war.  Accom- 
panied by  the  commander  of  the  French  cruiser  Jouffroyj  by  a  repre- 

sentative of  the  French  company,  by  the  civil  head  of  Santa  Barbara, 
and  by  some  prominent  men  of  the  place,  I  visited  the  house  where  M. 
Brun  was  wounded.  The  window  of  the  room  situated  on  the  first  floor 

where  this  accident  took  place  is  pierced  by  several  balls,  the  traces  of 
which  one  sees  clearly  on  the  shutters  of  smooth  wood  and  on  the 
walls  back  of  the  chamber.  Stray  balls  do  not  converge  thus  on  a 

precise  point.  It  is  certainly  a  question  of  a  volley  fired  intentionally 
upon  a  window  which  had  just  been  closed  and  above  which  floated 
the  French  flag.     According  to  the  declarations  which  have  been 
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made  to  me  by  the  civil  chief  and  by  the  notables  who  were  at  Santa 
B&rbara  when  the  village  was  taken,  the  troops  which  fired  came  by  a 
street  perpendicular  to  the  side  of  the  house  where  the  window  of  M. 
Brun  was  located.  There  were  neither  in  the  street  nor  in  the  house 

any  insurgents,  the  presence  of  whom  could  have  explained  the  shots, 
and  the  armed  band  was  commanded  by  an  officer,  Mr.  Montiel,  and 
composed  of  soldiers  who  knew  the  house  of  M.  Brun  and  M.  Brun 
himself  very  well.  The  tone  with  which  these  declarations  were  made 
lead  me  to  believe  that  the  aggressors  knew  what  they  were  doing  and 
were  led  by  a  chief  who  profited  from  an  occasion  offered  to  satisfy  a 
former  grudge.  The  investigation  asked  for  and  refused  under  the 
conditions,  which  I  have  explained,  would  at  least  have  permitt^ 
the  Government  of  Venezuela  to  punish  those  who  thus  fixed  its 
responsibility.  These  necessary  explanations  tend  to  transform  the 
simple  accident  of  war  which  the  Venezuelan  Government  would  like 
to  content  itself  mth  deploring  into  a  murder  committed  knowingly, 

j>erhaps  premeditated,  and  in  any  case  accompanied  by  acts  of  vio- 
lence upon  foreign  property  without  any  provocation  or  any  resist- 

ance being  able  to  excuse  or  even  explain  them.  Can  one  equitably 
establish  a  parallel  between  a  like  instance  and  the  fortuitous  death 
of  a  Venezuelan  who,  in  1871,  was  hit  by  a  stray  ball  while  crossing  a 
street  during  a  combat  going  on  between  the  insurgents  and  the  army 
of  Versailles?  M.  Brun,  director  of  a  public  service,  who  was  obliged 
to  remain  at  his  post,  has  been  wounded  in  his  house  surmounted  by  a 
French  flag  by  a  volley  intentionally  aimed  at  his  window  by  a  party 

of  regular  soldiers  who  knew  him  without  one's  being  able  to  find  in  it 
any  excuse  or  provocation.  The  same  soldiers  then  broke  down  the 
doors  of  the  buildings  which  they  invaded  and  can  not  give  as  an 
excuse  for  this  violation  of  foreign  property  the  necessity  of  driving 
insurgents  from  it  and  of  making  them  cease  their  resistance. 

The  nature  of  the  acts,  the  conduct  of  the  local  authorities,  the 
attitude  of  the  Venezuelan  Government,  and  the  result  of  a  personal 
investigation  have  led  me  to  judge  that  an  indemnity  was  due  the 
family  of  the  victim.  I  have  placed  it  at  500,000  bolivars,  judging  as 
an  arbitrator  who  acts  according  to  his  conscience  without  allowing 
himself  to  be  influenced  by  the  quality  of  the  parties  which  he  has  no 
mission  either  to  attack  or  defend.  I  have  estimated,  and  still  esti- 

mate, after  having  heard  my  honorable  colleague  express  his  opinion, 
that  this  indemnity  is  an  equitable  reparation  for  the  material  damage 
suffered  by  the  family  of  M.  Brun.  This  sum  represents  in  capital  the 
annual  salary  of  the  director  of  the  French  company,  who  earned  in 
pursuit  of  his  duties  from  20,000  to  25,000  bolivars.  We  should  reach 
a  much  greater  sum  if  we  calculated  the  indemnity  at  the  normal  rate 
of  interest  in  Venezuela,  which  is  practically  12  per  cent.  We  ought 
to  consider  besides  that,  according  to  the  terms  of  the  protocol,  tliis 
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indemnity  has  to  be  paid  in  bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debts  and  not  in 
gold.  Thanks  to  this  concession  kindly  granted  by  the  French 
Government  to  the  Venezuelan  Government  to  permit  it  to  pay  its 
debts  with  greater  facility,  the  figure  of  the  indemnity  finds  itself 
singularly  reduced  in  reality.  The  bonds  issued  by  the  Venezuelan 
Gov^mment  have  an  actual  variable  value  in  fact  which  always  rests 
far  from  their  nominal  value.  In  May,  1903,  they  underwent  a  depre- 

ciation of  30  per  cent.  To-day  the  Venezuelan  Government,  having 
proceeded  to  new  issues  to  pay  the  indemnities  accorded  by  the  mixed 
commission,  the  depreciation  reaches  70  per  cent.  The  latter  can 
only  increase  still  more  by  future  issues.  It  would  be  then,  if  the 
umpire  should  partake  of  the  sentiment  of  the  French  arbitrator, 
scarcely  the  siun  of  150,000  bolivars  in  gold  which  the  heirs  of  M.  Brun 
would  receive  from  the  Venezuelan  Government. 

December  16  y  190S, 

EXHIBIT  ATTACHED  TO  THE   OPINION   OP  THE   FRENCH   COMMISSIONER. 

Under  date  of  June  17  last,  the  mother  of  M.  Brun,  having  learned  that  the  Venezuelan 

arbitrator  had  raised  a  question  of  fact  because  the  Brun  claim  was  not  directly  presented 

by  the  interested  parties,  sent  me  the  attached  letter. 
Mme.  Brun,  aged  and  infirm,  has  counted  upon  the  French  Government  to  sustain  her 

claim  against  the  Venezuelan  Government.  She  declares  that  she  approves  what  the  min- 
istry of  foreign  affairs  has  done  in  her  interest  and  requests  it  to  continue  its  proceeding  in 

the  same  manner. 

June  28, 1904. 
LODEVE    (HkRAULT), 

June  17, 1904. 

M.  DE  Pebetti  de  la  iloccA, 
French  Arbitrator  in  Venezuelan  OlaimSf 

Ministry  of  Foreign  Affairs ,  Paris ,  France. 
Sm:  I  have  learned  that  the  Venezuelan  arbitrator  at  Caracas  has  raised  some  difficulties 

with  regard  to  the  claim  which  T  have  for  the  death  of  my  son,  Jos^  Brun,  director  of  the 
Company  of  French-Venezuelan  Railways,  assassinated  at  Santa  Barbara,  Venezuela, 
because  I  have  not  acted  myself,  but  I  count  upon  what  has  been  done  by  the  French  Grov- 
emment  in  maintaining  mv  claim  to  follow  its  course. 

I  inform  jou  then  by  the  present  that  I  dve  full  approbation  to  what  the  ministrv  of 
foreign  affairs  has  done,  asking  it  to  be  pleased  to  maintain  my  claim  in  the  manner  in  wfiich 
it  has  supported  it  itself. 

Widow  Brun  (nee  Carred). 
Bouu:vABD  DE  l'H6pital. 

Maison  Laurh,  Lodeve,  HSrault. 

ADDITIONAL  OPINION  OF  THE  VENEZUELAN  COMMISSIONEK. 

As  commissioner  for  Venezuela,  I  have  held,  as  shown  by  the 
abstract  of  the  oral  proceedings  had  on  May  27,  1903,  that  the  com- 

mission should  abstain  from  considering  the  merits  of  the  documents 

produced,  as  at  first  glance  it  appeared  that  a  claim  for  indemnifica- 
tion had  not  been  properly  entered  against  the  Venezuelan  Govern- 

ment by  a  citizen  or  a  party  in  interest  of  French  nationality,  showing 
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his  capacity  as  universal  heir  to  M.  Jules  Brun,  nor  his  legal  title  to 
receive  any  sum  by  way  of  indenmification.  I  also  held  that,  from  the 
examination  of  the  documents  then  before  me,  no  cause  was  shown  to 
substantiate  the  alleged  liability  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  for 
the  death  of  M.  Bnm,  as  the  testimony  of  the  eyewitnesses  clearly 
proved  that  the  death  of  the  party  was  produced  accidentally,  was 
due  to  a  casualty,  at  the  time  an  armed  conflict  was  taking  place  near 
his  residence. 

In  support  of  the  first  point  held  in  my  opinion,  I  beg  to  call  the 
attention  of  the  honorable  imipire  to  the  precise  language  of  article  1 
of  the  protocol  made  in  Paris  on  the  17th  of  February,  1902,  to  which 
the  existence  of  the  present  commission  is  due,  and  supplemented  by 
article  2,  relating  to  claims  submitted  to  the  investigation  and  decision 
of  said  commission. 

Both  articles  refer  to  claims  for  indemnification  presented  hy  French 
citizens  only,  and  this  commission  can  not,  because  more  or  less 
plausible  reasons  of  similarity  or  inference  are  put  forth,  extend  its 
limited  powers  to  deal  with  other  matters,  except  such  as  are  hrought 
before  it  hy  French  citizens  in  the  shape  of  a  claim  demanding  a  stated 
indemnification.  Individual  action  is  one  of  the  requisites  necessary 
to  the  possibility  or  faculty  of  the  commission  to  deal  with  cases 
involving  private  interests  of  French  citizens  who  claim  as  against  the 
Venezuelan  Government  to  have  sustained  damages  or  to  be  aggrieved 

parties. 
Other  questions  exclusively  affecting  the  Governments  of  both 

countries  do  not  come  within  the  scope  of  this  commission,  in  the  same 
manner  that  the  diplomatic  action  of  the  Government  taking  in  hand 
the  representation  and  defense  of  the  rights  of  its  citizens  does  not 
extend  so  far  as  to  create  such  rights  nor  to  enforce  them  when  the 
party  concerned  has  not  made  use  of  such  right  nor  yet  to  supersede  the 
party  when  the  party  has  not  shown  signs  of  existence.  It  is  not 

amiss  to  quote,  in  this  connection,  the  opinion  of  the  learned  com- 
missioner, Mr.  Little,  in  the  claims  of  Narcissa  de  Hammer  and  Amelia 

de  Brissot,  before  the  commission  created  by  the  convention  of  Decem- 
ber, 1885,  between  Venezuela  and  the  United  States  : 

This  of  course,  is  not  saying  that  the  United  States  has  no  cause  for  reclamation  on  the  ac- 

count of  the  killing  of  her  citizens — Captain  Hammer  and  Mr.  Brissot.  It  is  only  hold- 
ing that  under  the  terms  of  the  convention  the  question  is  not  submitted  to  us.  It  would 

be  to  go  })eyond  the  limits  of  just  interpretation  and  to  enter  the  forbidden  domain  of 

judicial  legislation  to  say  that  claims  on  the  part  of  citizens  means  or  includes  claims  growing 

out  of  the  injuries  to  citizens,     (Moore,  2450-2460.) 

All  questions  relating  to  the  nationality  of  the  claimant  and  to  the 
legal  status  or  judicial  capacity  of  the  person  to  receive  an  award 
grow  out  of  the  presentation  of  such  person  as  a  claimant,  whether  it 

is  a  real  living  person  or  a  judicial  person,  which  by  law  has  a  sup- 
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posed  existence.  Oji  the  other  hand,  the  claim  must  state  the  amount 
claimed  as  a  fair  indemnification,  such  data  as  are  furnished  by  the 
claimant  being  of  great  importance  in  the  estimation  of  damages. 

None  of  the  requisites  is  found  in  the  documents  submitted  to  the 
commission,  as  such  evidence  only  consisted  of  a  collection  of  notes 

and  depositions  made  by  employees  of  the  company  and  consular  offi- 
cers in  regard  to  the  death  of  M.  Jules  Brun.  From  the  contents  of 

said  notes  in  regard  to  the  consular  action  it  appears  that  such  action 
was  reduced  to  soliciting  immediately  after  the  death  of  M.  Brun  the 

cooperation  of  the  Venezuelan  authorities  for  the  further  investiga- 
tion of  a  fact  then  made  sufficiently  clear  by  the  testimony  of  the  only 

eyewitnesses  to  the  accidental  wounding,  the  employees  of  the  com- 
pany.    Such  extreme  investigation  was  asked  for  the  sole  purpose  of — 

securing  the  possibility  that  the  parties  concerned  may  have  to  enter  a  precise  claim  on 
the  subject,  being  thus  enabled  to  base  it  upon  proofs  established  according  to  I^al 

proceedings. 

The  telegram  of  M.  Hanotaux,  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  France, 
to  the  French  legation  at  Caracas  reads  as  follows : 

Prenez  dispositions  n^cessaires  pour  sauvegarder  droits  ̂ ventuelles  famille  Brun. 

[Translation.] 

Take  necessary  steps  to  safeguard  eventual  rights  of  Brun  family. 

What  is  the  meaning  of  the  note  of  M.  Qui^vreux  and  of  this  tele- 
gram? That  it  might  be  possible  for  the  interested  parties  to  enter  a 

^precise  claim  on  this  subject  and  that  the  consular  agent  should  en- 
deavor to  safeguard  any  eventual  rights  of  the  Brun  family.  Neither 

has  the  claim  been  made  "precise j  nor  is  there  anything  to  show  that 
such  rights  of  the  Brun  family  have  passed  from  their  eventual  con- 

dition to  that  of  positive  and  distinct  rights;  nor  has  the  French 

Government  duly  entered  any  such  claim  against  the  Venezuelan  Gov- 
ernment in  behalf  of  the  Brun  family,  nor  yet  has  it  deemed  that  the 

case  has  arrived  when,  by  virtue  of  its  sovereignty  and  in  view  of  the 
testimony  furnished  by  the  employees  of  the  company,  witnesses  to  the 
wounding  of  M.  Brun,  said  Government  should  demand  a  certain 
sum  of  money  from  the  Venezuelan  Government  as  an  amend  for  a 
wrong  done  to  the  nation  or  as  a  penalty  ̂ nd  under  no  circumstances 
by  way  of  a  humanitarian  compensation  or  a  charitable  gift  made  to 
the  Brun  family.  These  courts  can  not  measure  in  money  the  wrong 
done  to  a  nation,  as  a  nation,  in  case  such  wrong  exists,  nor  have  they 
been  created  to  make  grants  in  order  to  remedy  the  needs  of  a  widow 
and  orphans  by  reason  of  the  accidental  death  of  a  beloved  husband 
and  father. 

The  honorable  commissioner  for  France  has  lately  produced  as  an 

annex  to  his  opinion  a  letter  from  M.  Brun's  relict,  dated  on  the 
17th  of  June  of  last  year — that  is,  one  year  after  having  presented  and 
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examined  the  documents  in  the  case  which  I  had  before  me  in  Caracas 

when  I  gave  my  opinion  on  the  case.  Such  letter  lacks  weight,  as  it 
only  ratifies  the  proceedings  adopted  in  this  matter  by  the  minister  of 
foreign  aflFairs  of  France,  and  it  has  been  shown  that  such  proceedings 
do  not  constitute  a  claim  for  an  indemnification  for  a  given  sum  in 
behalf  of  a  given  person.  That  which  has  had  no  existence  can  not 
be  the  subject  of  approval  or  ratification.  That  which  lacks  legal 
force  because  of  the  omission  of  an  indispensable  requisite  to  make 
the  act  or  contract  valid  may  be  ratified  or  approved  in  order  to 
make  it  valid.  To  do  this,  however,  it  is  also  indispensable  that  such 
act  or  contract  should  exist  even  in  a  weak  condition.  That  which 
has  never  existed  can  not  be  ratified  or  revaUdated,  and  the  claim  of 
Mme.  Brun  against  the  Venezuelan  Government  for  indemnification 
did  not  exist  either  prior  to  or  at  the  time  of  the  signature  of  the  pro- 

tocol of  February  17,  1902,  nor  yet  during  the  six  months  provided 
by  article  2,  as  an  extension  of  the  time  granted  for  the  presentation 
and  the  examination  in  the  first  place  by  the  French  and  Venezuelan 
commissioners  of  all  claims  for  indemnification  growing  out  of  events 
prior  to  May  23,  1899. 

In  consequence  I  maintain  the  first  point  of  my  opinion  that,  as  no 
claim  whatever  for  indemnification  was  presented  in  due  time  by  or 
in  behalf  of  a  specified  French  citizen,  this  commission  is  not  under 
obligation  to  examine  the  documents  bearing  on  the  case  in  point,  as 
the  commission  has  no  authority  in  the  premises,  and  that  the  claim 
must  therefore  be  rejected. 

In  case  the  honorable  umpire  should  deem  it  proper  to  examine  the 
documents  in  reference  on  their  merits  and  to  weigh  the  proof  of  the 
facts  in  order  to  ascertain  whether  the  conclusions  arrived  at  by  the 
honorable  commissioner  for  France  and  the  assertions  contained  in  his 

memorandum  in  regard  to  the  death  of  M.  Jules  Brun  are  justified,  I 
have  no  need  to  go  into  a  deep  analysis  of  the  testimony  introduced 
to  convince  the  honorable  umpire  of  the  sUght  connection  there  is 
between  the  opinion  of  my  learned  colleague  and  the  conclusive  proof 
shown  by  the  testimony  of  the  eyewitnesses,  MM.  A.  Crinidre,  book- 

keeper of  the  company  and  J.  B.  Peysselon,  representative  of  the  com- 
pany after  the  death  of  M.  ̂ run. 

Mr.  CriniSre's  verbatim  testimony  is  as  follows: 
Dans  la  mating  du  dimanche  8  mai,  craignant  un  engagement  s^rieux  des  deux  parties, 

nous  arborions  vers  les  dix  heures  du  matin  k  la  maison  de  la  Direction  des  drapeaux  nos 
couleurs  fran^aises,  dont  deux  k  la  fendtre  du  salon  donnant  sur  la  place,  par  M.  Brun  lui 

mdme  et  aid^  de  Idiguel  Labarca,  deux  par  moi  dont  un  tr^  grand  sur  la  rue  Santo  Domingo; 

c^est  par  cette  rue  que  les  soldais  de  la  force  ligale  ont  eniouri  le  village  et  ou  donnait  la  chambre 
dans  laqueUe  M.  Brun  a  trouv^  la  mort  en  fermant  une  fendtre.  4c  *  *  Une  vive  fusil- 

lade ^late  au  mdme  moment  dans  la  rue  Santo  Domingo;  c'^tait  les  soldats  envoy^s  de 
Maracaibo  qui  arrivaient  par  le  fond  du  village^  et  prenant  par  derri^re  les  forces  des 
genereaux  Figuera   et  Pozo,   imm^diatement  Messieurs  Brun,  Peysselon  et  moi,  nom 
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pricipitons  pour  fermer  partes  eifenitres  pour  nous  preserver  des  proyectiles.  Deja  favais 

entendu  comme  un  hruit  de  pldtre  tomber  derrihe  mot;  c'^tait  une  balle  qui  avait  travcrs^  la 
fenitre  du  salon  dormant  sur  la  place  et  munie  des  deux  drapeaux  (a  window  different  from 

the  one  where  a  few  moments  later  M.  Brun  was  wounded)  et  presque  aussitdt  j'eutendais 

Monsieur  Brun  s'^crier:  Ah,  je  suis  bless^,  nous  tous  nous  pricipitons  vers  lui  pour  lui  por- 
ter secours  et  lui  voyons  la  main.droite  horriblement  mutilde  d'une  balle.  Tout  ceci  a  dur6 

Pespace  d'un  Eclair.  *  *  *  J'ai  4t^  temoin  de  tous  ces  faits  et  je  suis  en  possession  du 
verrou  de  la  fen^tre  de  la  chambre  de  Monsieur  Brun,  et  aussi  d'une  balle  que  j'ai  ramass^ 

au  milieu  du  salon  (not  M.  Brun's  room) ;  je  Ics  tiens  k  votre  disposition  et  ils  prouveront  sur- 
ahondamment  la  v4racite  de  ces  faits  regrettables. 

[Translation.] 

On  the  morning  of  Sunday,  May  8,  fearing  a  serious  fight  between  the  two  parties,  we 

hoisted  our  French  colors  at  about  10  a.  m.  over  the  company's  house.  Two  of  said  flags 
were  placed  in  the  window  of  the  parlor  overlooking  the  square  by  M.  Brun  himself,  assisted 
by  Miguel  Labarca,  and  two  by  me,  the  very  large  one  in  the  window  facing  the  street  of 
Santo  Domingo.  It  was  by  this  street  that  the  legal  troops  surrounded  the  village  and 

which  the  window  overlooked  where  M.  Brun  met  his  death  in  closing  this  window.  A 
lively  fusillade  rang  out  at  that  moment  on  Santo  Domingo  street;  it  came  from  the  soldiers 

sent  from  Maracaibo,  who  were  arriving  at  the  rear  of  the  village,  taking  the  forces  of  Gen- 
erals Figuera  and  Pozo  at  their  back.  Messrs.  Brun,  Peysselon,  and  I  at  once  proceeded  to 

close  doors  and  windows  to  protect  ourselves  from  the  missiles.  I  had  already  heard  a 

noise  behind  me  as  of  falling  plaster;  it  was  from  a  ball  that  had  come  through  the  parlor 

window  that  overlooked  the  square  and  from  which  hung  the  two  flags;  almost  at  the  same 

instant  I  heard  M.  Brun  cry  out,  '*I  am  wounded."  We  all  rushed  to  his  aid  and  found  his 
right  hand  horribly  mangled  by  a  ball.  All  this  had  happened  in  a  flash.  I  have  been  a 

witness  to  these  events  and  have  in  my  possession  the  window  bolt  of  M.  Bnm's  room  and 
also  the  ball  which  I  picked  up  in  the  middle  of  the  salon;  they  are  entirely  at  your  dis- 

posal and  afford  abundant  proof  of  these  lamentable  facts- 

Mr.  Peysselon  states : 

Le  dimanche  8,  les  troupes  legales  amen^es  parle  vapeur  Pro^reso  arrivaient  k.midi  et  demi 

dans  '*le  pueblo."  Nous  devions  dans  cette  circonstance  prevoir  une  hataille  dans  les  rues. 
Cette  prevoyance  nous  commandait  de  fermer  immediatement  toutes  les  partes  et  volets  de  notre 

maison  d'habitation;  pendant  que  je  fermais  une  fenfitre  donnant  sur  la  place,  M.  Brun 
fermait  celle  de  sa  chambre  donnant  sur  la  rue  Santo  Domingo;  au  m^me  instant  la,  fusillade 

commenfuit  dans  cette  rue,  lafenUre  etait  dejafermee,  mais  Monsieur  Brun  n 'avait  encore 

pas  eu  le  temps  de  quitter  la  main  dessus  le  verrou,  quand  une  balle  d'arme  de  precision  est 
venue  traverser  le  volety  tordre  le  verrou  d'une  fa^on  extraordinaire,  percer  de  part  a  part  la 
main  de  Mons.  Brun,  et  lui  projeter  des  Eclats  en  pleine  poitrine.  *  *  *  Mons.  Brun 

est  rest4  k  Santa  Barbara  jusqu'^  la  premiere  occasion  pour  descendre  k  Maracaibo  et  il  a  ̂t4^ 
embarqu6  le  jeudi  matin  vers  les  dix  heures  avec  plus  grands  soins.  Son  ̂ tat  ne  nous 

permettait  pas  de  prevoir  une  issue  aussi  fatale  et  si  prompte.  II  est  mort  pendant  la 

travers4e,  le  meme  jour  k  8  heures  45  minutes  du  soir.  Tel  est  I'expos^  sincere  des  faits 

dont  j'ai  ̂ t^  temoin  oculaire  jusqu'a  I'embarquement  de  M.  Brun. . 
[Translation.] 

On  Sunday,  the  8th,  the  legal  troops  brought  on  the  steamer  Progreso  arrived  in  the 

"pueblo"  at  half-past  twelve,  noon.  Under  such  circumstances  we  anticipated  a  fight  in 
the  streets.  This  led  us  to  immediately  close  all  the  doors  and  shutters  of  our  dwelling  house. 

While  I  was  closing  a  window  overlooking  the  square  M.  Brun  uxis  closing  that  of  his  room 

facing  Santo  Domingo  street;  at  the  same  moment  firing  began  in  this  street;  the  window  had 

been  already  closed,  but  M.  Brun  had  not  had  time  yet  to  withdraw  his  hand  from  the  bolt 
when  a  bullet  from  a  rifle  {arme  de  precision)  came  and  perforated  the  shutter,  twisted  the  bolt 

in  an  extraordinary  manner  and  pierced  through  the  hand  ofM.  Brun,  sending  splints  all  over 

his  chest.  M.  Brun  remained  in  Santa  B4rbara  until  the  first  opportunity  to  go  down  to 
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Mftracaibo.  He  was  embarked  Thursday  morning  at  about  10  o'clock  with  the  greatest 
care.  His  state  did  not  warrant  our  foreseeing  such  a  fatal  and  sudden  issue.  He  died 

during  the  trip  on  the  same  day  at  8.45  in  the  evening.  This  is  a  sincere  statement  of  the 
facts  of  which  I  was  an  eyewitness  until  M.  Brun  was  put  aboard. 

After  reading  such  sincere  and  truthful  accounts  given  by  two 

responsible  parties,  emloyees  of  the  copmpany  and  fellow-countrymen 
of  M.  Brun,  how  can  it  be  explained  that  the  learned  commissioner 
should  in  his  opinion  endeavor  to  construe  a  mere  accident  of  war 
which  the  Venezuelan  authorities  were  the  first  to  deplore,  as  shown 
by  the  record  of  the  case,  into  a  murder  committed  Jcnowingly  and 
perhaps  with  premeditation,  averring  at  the  same  time  that  the  woimd 
received  by  M.  Brun  was  due  to  a  shot  from  a  voUey  designedly  aim^d 
at  the  window  hy  regular  soldiers  who  Tcnew  himf  Where  is  the  proof 
of  so  grave  an  accusation?  Inferences  like  these,  which  originate  in 
the  mind  preoccupied  with  the  idea  of  finding  guilt  where  there  is  only 
a  regrettable  incident,  as  indicated  by  the  testimony  of  M.  CriniSre, 
can  not  fail  to  bring  to  the  mind  of  an  impartial  and  upright  judge 
the  conviction  that  such  an  assertion  lacks  all  reasonable  foundation. 

So  grave  a  charge  against  the  Government  of  any  country  should  be  maintained  by 

the  most  unquestionable  proof.  It  should  be  alleged  as  a  distinct  fact  and  ground  of  recla- 
mation and  proved  by  evidence  of  the  clearest  character.  Case  of  Johnson  v.  Mexico, 

before  the  Mexican  Claims  Commission,  1849.     (Moore,  p.  3032.) 

As  a  proof  of  the  correctness  of  his  assertions  M.  de  Peretti  de  la 
Rocca  introduces  in  his  memorandum  a  statement  of  the  inspection 
he  himself  made  of  the  house  wherein  M.  Brun  was  wounded,  when 
he  went  to  Santa  B&rbara  on  board  of  the  French  cruiser  Jouffroy,  in 
the  course  of  a  trip  to  Venezuela,  five  years  after  the  incident.  M. 
de  Peretti  states  that  according  to  the  declarations  made  to  him  by  the 
civil  authority  (jefe  dvU)  and  prominent  persons  who  were  in  Santa 
Bdrbara  at  the  time  the  town  was  captured — 

The  troops  that  fired  came  through  a  street  running  at  right  angles  to  the  side  of  the 

house  where  M.  Brun's  window  lies,  and  that  there  were  neither  in  the  house  nor  in  the 
street  any  revolutionists  whose  presence  might  explain  the  firing  and  that  the  armed  troop 
was  under  the  command  of  an  officer  by  the  name  of  Montiel  and  consisted  of  soldiers  well 

acquainted  with  M.  Brun's  house  and  M.  Brun  himself. 

This  supplementary  proof  which,  for  lack  of  a  better  one,  the  hon- 
orable commissioner  for  France  endeavors  to  introduce,  a  proof  rest- 

•ing  upon  his  personal  investigation,  lacks  all  force  in  the  present 
instance  as  we,  the  commissioners,  must  give  oiu*  several  decisions 
in  strict  accordance  with  the  proofs  submitted  ex  parte,  and  we  can 
not  find  other  elements  to  form  our  opinion  imless  they  are  from  the 
documentary  evidence  submitted  to  us.  To  act  otherwise  would  be 
tantamoimt  to  changing  the  mission  of  arbitrator  and  become  an 
earnest  defender  of  one  of  the  parties.  In  order  to  show  how  easy  it 
is  to  err  when  the  field  of  sober  thought  is  left  where  the  judge  must 

preside  to  enter  into  the  arena  where  the  eager  defense  is  made  it  suf- 
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fices  to  compare   the  text  of   the  depositions  of   the  eyewitnesses 
CriniSre  and  Peysselon  with  the  report  of  the  French  commissioner. 

The  witnesses  state : 

It  was  by  Santo  Domingo  street  that  the  soldiers  of  the  legal  troops  surrounded  the  town, 

and  M.  Brun's  room,  where  he  was  wounded  when  shutting  a  window,  overlooks  the  street. 
*  *  *  A  lively  fusillade  rang  out  at  that  moment  in  Santo  Domingo  street.  It  came  from 
the  soldiers  sent  from  Maracaibo,  who  were  arriving  at  the  rear  of  the  town  and  taking  the 

revolutionary  forces  at  their  back ;  immediately  (we)  proceeded  to  close  doors  and  windows 
to  protect  ourselves  from  the  missiles.  Under  such  circumstances  we  anticipated  a  fight  in 
the  streets.    This  led  us  to  immediately  close  all  the  doors  and  shutters  of  our  dwelling  house. 

While  I  was  closing  a  window  (Peysselon  states)  overlooking  the  square,  M.  Brun  was 
closing  that  of  his  room  facing  Santo  Domingo  street,  and  at  the  same  moment  the  tiring 
began  in  this  street.  The  window  had  been  already  closed,  but  M.  Brun  had  not  yet  had 
time  to  withdraw  his  hand  from  the  bolt  when  a  bullet  from  a  rifle  perforated  the  shutter, 

twisted  the  bolt  in  an  extraordinary  manner,  and  pierced  the  hand  of  M.  Brun. 

Now,  do  not  these  two  depositions  clearly  show  the  imminent  risk 

which  £ll  the  persons  living  in  the  house  were  running  that  the  mis- 
siles might  come  in  through  doors  and  windows,  and  for  this  reason 

they  hastened  to  close  them?  And  was  it  not  precisely  in  obedience 

to  the  instinct  of  self-preservation  that  M.  Brun  went  to  the  window 
in  his  room,  which  faced  Santo  Domingo  street,  when  a  lively  fusillade 
rang  out  in  this  street,  and  while  being  precisely  there  with  his  hand 
still  on  the  bolt,  the  window  being  closed,  a  bullet  wounded  his  hand? 

Neither  the  conclusions  arrived  at  by  the  learned  commissioner 
from  France  in  the  narrative  of  his  ocular  insj>ection  nor  his  theory 
of  the  perpendicular  line  in  the  subject  of  the  direction  of  projectiles 
in  a  fight,  which  grew  to  the  proportions  of  a  battle,  can  alter  in  the 
slightest  degree  the  deep  conviction  produced  by  the  depositions  of 
Peysselon  and  CriniSre  that  the  wound  received  by  M.  Brun,  which 
some  days  later  brought  about  his  lamented  death,  was  an  accident, 
and  by  no  means  the  outcome  of  a  malicious  plan. . 

I  beg  to  call  the  attention  of  the  honorable  umpire  to  the  contents 
of  the  official  communications  addressed  by  the  president  of  the  State 
of  Zulia,  and  by  the  commander  of  the  Third  military  zone,  where  the 

town  of  Santa  Barbara  belongs,  to  M.  Jules  d^Empaire,  in  charge  of 
the  French  consular  agency  in  Maracaibo,  wherein  such  oflBcers 
express  their  earnest  regret  on  accoimt  of  the  death  of  M.  Jules  Brun, 

a  French  subject,  produced  by  a  wound  received  under  sad  and  for- 
tuitous   circumstances. 

With  the  last-named  communication,  the  military  commander  of 
the  zone  also  sends  a  true  copy  of  a  letter  M.  Peysselon,  inspector  of 

the  company,  addressed  in  behalf  of  M.  Brun  to  the  miUtary  com- 
mander of  the  district,  the  letter  in  question  being  verbatim,  as  follows : 

Como  agente  de  la  compafiia  y  por  impedimento  del  Sr.  J.  Brun  (this  is  four  days  after 
being  wounded),  doy  k  Vd.  las  gracias  por  el  restablecimiento  del  <5rden  y  por  haber  tomado 

las  disposiciones  eficaces  para  la  traida  del  vapor  Santa  Bdrbara.  Nos  complacemos  alta- 
mente  verlo  &  Vd.  entre  nosotros  para  protejer  nuestras  personas  y  nuestros  intereses. 
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[Translation.] 

As  the  agent  of  the  company  and  by  reason  of  disability  on  the  part  of  M.  J.  Bnin,  I  beg 

to  thank  you  for  the  restoration  of  order  and  for  having  taken  effective  steps  for  the  coming 
of  the  steamer  Santa  Bdrbara.  We  are  highly  pleased  to  see  you  among  us  to  protect  our 
lives  and  property. 

Could  it  be  possible  that  M.  Brun  would  instruct  M.  Peysselon  to 
thank  the  military  commander  of  the  district  having  under  command 
the  troops  which  made  the  attack  on  the  town  of  Santa  Bdrbara,  and 
to  whose  body  the  group  of  soldiers  under  the  officer  Montiel  belonged, 
if  M.  Brun  had  not  been  satisfied  that  the  wound  he  received  and  for 

which  he  was  then  suffering  had  not  been  entirely  accidental  ? 
I  come  to  a  close,  confirming  in  all  its  particulars  my  former  opinion, 

which  I  send  with  the  present  opinion,  in  which  opinion  I  differ  from 

my  learned  colleague,  rejecting  in  full  the  claim  that  the  Venezuelan 
Government  must  indemnify  with  any  amount  whatever  the  mother 
or  family  of  M.  Brun  by  reason  of  his  death,  which  was  entirely 
fortuitous  and  does  not  create  any  liability  whatsoever  on  the  part 
of  said  Government. 

NoRTHFiELD,  Vt.,  February  1,  1905. 

ADBinONAI.  OPINION  OF  THE  FRENCH  COMMISSIONER. 

After  having  heard  the  additional  opinion  drawn  up  by  my  hon- 
orable colleague  I  ought  to  declare  that  his  arguments  haye  not  in 

any  wise  weakened  my  convictions.  In  the  first  place,  I  maintain 
that  one  could  not  refuse  the  French  Government  the  faculty  of 

the  right  to  interfere  for  Mme.  Brun,  aged  and  infirm,  and  conse- 
quently incapable  of  acting  by  herself.  This  would  be  contrary  to 

humanity,  to  good  sense,  and  to  the  protocol  of  1902.  It  is  superfluous 
to  indicate  in  fact  that  the  French  Government  would  have  failed  in 

its  duty  in  not  presenting  this  claim,  but  it  is  important  to  remark 
here  that  it  has  not  in  doing  this  acted  contrary  to  the  obligations 
which  the  protocol  places  upon  it.  Article  2,  which  concerns  the 
claims  which  we  are  considering,  is  formulated  thus : 

The  demand  of  the  indemnities  other  than  those  which  are  covered  by  article  1,  but 
founded  on  acts  anterior  to  the  23d  of  May,  1899,  shall  be  examined  in  concert,  etc. 

It  is  not  said  that  these  demands  will  have  to  be  presented 
by  the  claimants  themselves,  who  are  at  liberty  to  have  them 

presented  to  the  arbitrators  by  advocates  or  by  their  natural  repre- 
sentative which  is  the  government  of  their  country.  In  the  mixed 

commissions  established  at  Caracas  by  the  protocols  signed  in  1903 
at  Washington  did  not  each  government  have  an  agent  charged  with 
presenting  the  claims  in  its  name  ?  It  is  necessary  to  remark  besides 
that  in  the  particular  case  the  French  Government  by  a  scruple  which 



OPINION    OF    UMPIRE.  21 

c?n  only  honor  it  has  not  made  itself  the  advocate  of  Mme.  Brun. 

Nothing,  however,  forbade  this,  but  it  is  content  to  serve  as  impartial 

intermediary.  On  the  contrary,  in  denying  the  French  Govern- 
ment the  faculty  of  presenting  this  claim  one  goes  against  the  spirit 

of  the  protocol,  which  has  for  its  end  the  settlement  of  all  the  claims 
of  French  citizens,  for  one  would  oblige  the  French  Government  to 

reply  to  this  claim  by  the  diplomatic  way  now  that  the  protocol  has 
been  signed,  precisely  in  view  of  removing  these  difficulties  from  the 
ordinary  course,  to  submit  them  to  arbitration.  In  the  second  place, 
in  my  opinion,  the  responsibility  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  rests 
plainly  established  by  the  incident  which  has  led  to  the  death  of  M. 
Brun.  I  remain  pursuaded  that  M.  Brun  has  not  been  the  victim  of 
a  simple  accident  of  war.  The  results  of  my  personal  investigation 
are  not  at  all  proofs,  without  doubt.  I  present  them  merely  cs  the 

basis  which  hss  permitted  me  to  form  a  conviction.  I  persist,  more- 
over, in  considering  the  refusil  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  to 

proceed  after  the  incident  to  an  investigation  upon  the  spot  by  its 
own  officers  as  a  valuable  indication  of  the  fear  which  the  result  of 

such  an  investigation  would  inspire  in  it. 

OPINION  OF  THE  UMPIBE. 

The  honorable  commissioner  for  France  asserts  a  claim  of  500,000 
francs,  while  the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  rejects  the 

claim  in  its  entirety.     Hence  it  comes  to  the  umpire  for  his  decision. 
The  unquestioned  facts  are  that  in  the  State  of  Zulia  in  the  United 

States  of  Venezuela  on  May  8,  1898,  there  was  a  railroad  extending 
from  San  Cfi-rlos  to  M6rida  and  in  San  Carlos  was  the  village  of  Santa 
Barbara  about  the  harbor  oi  the  same  name.  That  this  railroad  was 

operated  by  a  certain  French  company,  whose  superintendent  or 
director  was  Mr.  Jules  Brun.  His  residence  and  the  shops  and  offices 

oi  the  company  were  in  said  village  of  Santa  B&rbara. 
That  for  some  time  preceding  the  date  mentioned  there  had  been  a 

revolt  in  the  State  oi  Zulia  against  the  government  of  that  State  and 
of  the  Republic,  and  that  these  insurgents  had  taken  possession  of  the 

country  in  the  vicinity  of  San  Cdrlos  and  since  May  4  had  been  in 

possession  of  the  said  village  of  Santa  B&rbara.  That  the  govern- 
ment was  taking  measures  through  military  operations  to  dislodge  the 

insurgents  from  this  village  and  to  defeat  and  disperse  them;  and  for 
that  purpose  on  Simday,  May  8,  the  Gx)vemment  troops  arrived  in  the 
harbor  of  Santa  Barbara  on  the  steamer  ProgresOy  a  little  before  noon 

of  the  day.  That  about  10  o'clock  in  the  morning  Superintendent 
Brun,  his  associates,  and  those  who  were  occupants  of  the  house  with 

him,  fearing  an  engagement  between  the  two  forces,  placed  conspicu- 
ously five  French  flags  over  their  residence  to  attest  its  neutraUty  and 
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mark  it  for  protection.  Not  far  from  12,  noon,  a  battle  seemed 
imminent  between  the  two  forces  and  the  inmates  of  this  residence, 

including  the  superintendent,  made  haste  to  close  the  shutters  of  the 
house.  While  Superintendent  Bnm  was  engaged  in  closing  the 
shutters  of  the  window  overlooking  the  public  square  he  was  wounded 
by  a  rifle  ball  coming  from  the  gun  of  a  Government  soldier,  which 
penetrated  the  shutter,  struck  the  bolt  and  drove  it  into  his  right 
hand,  the  ball  passing  through.  It  proved  to  be  a  most  serious  injury, 
crushing  the  hand  and  bones  and  lacerating  the  arteries,  so  that  he 

lost  seriously  in  blood  and  had  a  very  jagged  wound.  Four  other 

rifle  bullets  penetrated  the  house,  coming  through  the  window  prac- 
tically at  the  same  time  with  this  one  which  wounded  Mr.  Brun. 

Almost  immediately  following  the  wound  two  of  the  inmates  went  to 
the  door  to  call  a  physician  and  found  standing  very  near  the  residence 
about  twenty  soldiers,  certain  minor  officers,  and  General  Montiel  in 
charge.  At  substantially  the  same  moment  of  the  firing  into  the 
house  as  aforesaid  the  doors  of  the  principal  shop  and  the  oflSce  of  the 
bookkeeper  and  the  telegraph  office  belonging  to  this  company  were 
broken  down  by  the  Government  soldiers  by  the  order  of  General 
Montiel. 

There  were  sunmaoned  as  soon  as  possible  to  the  aid  of  Mr.  Bnm 
competent  physicians  and  surgeons  who  gave  him  thereafter  so  long 
as  he  survived  skilLiil  care  and  attention.  However,  despite  the  best 
of  care,  gangrene  supervened  and  Mr.  Brun  died  from  the  effects  of  the 
wound  on  May  12,  four  days  after  the  wounding. 

May  14,  two  days  after  the  death  of  Mr.  Brun,  the  gentleman  then 

in  charge  of  the  French  company's  Venezuelan  railroad  made  applica-. 
tion  in  writing  to  the  citizen  judge  of  that  district,  praying  that 
judicial  proceedings  be  had  to  ascertain  the  facts  connected  with  the 
injury  and  death  of  Mr.  Brun  and  the  damage  to  the  railroad  property 
occurring  at  the  same  time.  There  was  no  reply  to  his  request,  but 

General  Montiel  evidenced  a  violent  hostility  to  this  request.  Follow- 

ing this  application  there  came  letters  from  the  charge  d'affaires  of 
France  at  Caracas  to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  Venezuela,  the 
first  being  written  on  June  4  and  the  second  on  Jime  12,  asking  the 
minister  to  request  the  local  authorities  of  the  State  of  Zulia  to  take 
the  proper  judicial  steps  to  ascertain  the  exact  truth  of  the  events  of 
May  8,  resulting  in  the  fatal  wounding  of  Mr.  Brun  and  the  damage  to 
the  railroad  property.  The  first  commimication  was  not  answered, 
but  to  the  second  letter  a  reply  was  made,  courteous  and  sympathetic, 
but  claiming  that  the  injiuy  arose  under  such  circumstances  as  to  free 
the  Government  of  Venezuela  of  all  liability  for  the  death  of  Mr.  Brun 
and  the  damages  to  the  railroad  property  and  declining  to  accede  to  the 

request  of  the  chargfi  d'affaires  that  the  facts  be  ascertained  by  proper 
judicial  inquiry. 
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It  appears  that  in  conversation  the  niiUtary  authorities  of  Znlia 
explained  the  attack  of  the  Government  troops  upon  the  property  of 
the  French  company,  on  the  ground  that  the  company  had  revolutionists 
concealed  in  its  office.  This  allegation  is  wholly  denied  by  the  repre- 

sentatives of  the  company. 
Mr.  Jules  Brun  was  38  years  old  at  the  time  of  his  death,  was 

unmarried,  was  a  French  citizen,  and  was  superintendent  of  a  railroad 
at  a  salary  of  25,000  francs  a  year,  and  he  left  surviving  him  as  next 
of  kin  his  mother,  a  widow  and  a  resident  citizen  of  France,  who  still 
survives.  It  is  in  her  interest  that  this  claim  is  presented  by  the 
French  Government. 

It  is  not  claimed  by  the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela,  nor 
has  it  been  claimed  in  any  of  the  correspondence  between  the  com- 

pany and  the  Government  of  Venezuela  that  either  the  French  com- 
pany or  Mr.  Brun  had  failed  to  observe  proper  neutrality;  and  no 

claim  is  made  by  the  Venezuelan  Government  that  anything  done  on 
May  8th  by  the  military  authorities  was  because  of  any  aid  given  to 
the  insurgent  forces  by  the  company  or  by  anyone  directly  or  indirectly 
in  its  behalf,  so  that  the  umpire  takes  no  account  of  the  claim  oi  the 
military  authorities  of  Zulia,  stated  above. 

There  are  certain  other  matters  of  fact  which  will  be  especially 
adverted  to  in  the  progress  of  the  opinion. 

Reference  may  be  had  to  the  very  able  opinions  of  the  honorable 
commissioners  to  learn  their  respective  positions  upon  the  facts  as 
developed;  and  the  umpire  takes  this  opportunity  to  express  his 
appreciation  of  their  great  value  to  him  in  considering  and  determining 
this  claim  and,  as  well,  his  obligation  to  the  honorable  commissioners 
for  their  valued  answers  to  the  interrogtories  submitted  by  him  to 
them. 

The  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  contends  that  the  occur- 
rence was  of  such  a  nature,  its  circumstances  so  precise,  so  evident,  that 

all  investigation  after  the  death  of  Mr.  Brun  concerning  the  manner  of 
his  death  became  lumecessary.  That  this  evidence  disclosed  indis- 

putably that  the  wound  was  an  accident  due  to  a  casualty  and  at  the 
time  an  armed  conflict  was  taking  place  near  his  residence.  In  fact, 
that  it  was  an  ordinary  hazard  of  war. 

Out  of  the  same  facts  the  honorable  commissioner  for  France  finds 
that  there  are  shown  to  have  been  no  insurgents  in  the  street  near  the 
house,  the  presence  of  whom  would  explain  the  shots  fired,  and  that 
the  troops  who  did  the  firing  were  at  the  time  under  command  of  a 
general  of  the  national  army,  and  that  the  bullets  which  struck  the 
house  and  the  bullet  which  wounded  to  his  death  Mr.  Brun  were  the 

result  of  an  unprovoked,  unnecessary,  and  murderous  attack  on  a 
well-known  neutral  who  personally  was  held  in  high  regard  by  the 
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citizens  anil  ofRcials.  He  considers  the  damage  to  the  buildings  of  the 
company  at  the  same  time  to  be  corroborative  of  this  view. 

The  umpire  does  not  see  in  the  injury  of  Mr.  Brun  and  of  the  prop- 
erty of  the  French  company  any  certain  indication  of  a  deUberately 

hostile  act  to  him  or  to  the  property.  Indeed,  the  sorrow  of  the  presi- 
dent of  the  State,  of  the  chief  of  the  national  forces,  and  of  the  inhabi- 
tants generally  was  so  marked  and  so  sincere  that  to  find  such  a  fact 

as  is  alleged  by  the  honorable  commissioner  of  France  would  require 

very  strong  and  positive  proof — proof  to  a  degree  of  which  this  case  is 
wholly  destitute. 

The  umpire  is  convinced,  however,  that  there  were  no  insurgent 
forces  in  the  immediate  vicinity  of  the  house  of  Mr.  Brun  at  the  time 
of  his  being  wounded.  The  umpire  arrives  at  this  conclusion  by  an 

anal^'sis  of  all  the  facts  which  have  come  to  his  knowledge  in  this  case. 
(a)  When  the  firing  had  ceased,  Mr.  Peysselon  ran  from  the  house  to 
call  a  doctor  and  Mr.  Crini^re  followed  to  get  water.  Mr.  Criniere  saw 
some  of  the  national  troops  near  the  entrance  to  the  house,  but  he 
mentions  no  insurgents,  (b)  Mr.  Peysselon  said  that  their  egress 
from  the  house  was  immediately  after  Mr.  Brun  was  wounded  and  that 

he  found  himself  '^face  to  face  with  about  twenty  armed  men  of  the 
Government  *  *  *,  General  Montiel  in  command."  As  the 
doctor  did  not  come,  he  went  out  a  second  time  and  saw  General  Mon- 

tiel and  two  of  his  lieutenants,  whom  he  names.  But  neither  then  nor 

before  does  he  make  mention  of  the  insurgent  forces,  nor  does  he  men- 
tion seeing  any  insurgent  forces  while  going  after  the  doctor  or  return- 
ing therefrom  on  either  occasion,  (c)  The  umpire  fails  to  find  any 

statement  by  anyone  in  any  part  of  the  papers  of  the  claim  suggesting 
the  immediate  presence  of  the  insurgents  at  these  premises  at  any 
time  before,  during,  or  after  the  battle,  (d)  It  is  accepted  apparently 
by  all  parties,  individual  and  governmental,  that  the  shots  in  question 
were  fired  by  Government  troops.  If  there  had  been  also  present  and 
engaged  in  an  armed  conflict  insurgent  troops  and  there  had  been  at 

this  point  at  the  time  in  question  a  battle  or  even  a  skirmish  in  pro- 
gress in  which  both  were  participating,  there  would  have  been  always 

a  serious  question  whether  these  shots  were  in  fact  from  national  or 

insurgent  guns,  (e)  The  fact  that  immediately  following  the  injury 
there  were  twenty  armed  soldiers  and  a  general  in  command  at  repose, 
apparently,  near  this  building;  that  the  general  and  his  lieutenants,  at 
least,  remained  there  until  such  delay  had  occurred  that  a  second 
attempt  was  made  to  call  the  doctor,  are  attitudes  and  facts  which 
remove  the  probability  that  the  shots  which  hit  the  house  and 

wounded  Mr.  Brun  were  fired  in  the  midst  of  battle  against  a  contend- 
ing or  even  a  fleeing  force,  (f )  When  Peysselon  or  Criniere  went  out 

from  the  house  there  was  no  insurgent  force  in  retreat,  there  was  no 
national  force  pursuing,     (g)  There  is  an  entire  absence  of  all  indicia 
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common  to  such  an  occasion,  if  there  had  been  at  this  point  a  battle  or 

even  a  skirmish.  The  umpire  is  satisfied,  therefore,  to  a  moral  cer- 
tainty that  no  battle  took  place  around  or  near  this  house  at  the  time 

in  question,  and  that  the  firing  which  did  occur  and  from  which  the  fatal 
wound  resulted  was  unnecessary,  and  was  in  the  presence  of  a  high 
officer  in  command  of  the  military  forces.  From  all  of  the  facts  in  the 
case  the  umpire  finds  that  the  bullet  wound  thus  inflicted  was  the 
proximate  cause  of  the  death  of  Jules  Brun,  that  the  injury  came 
under  circumstances  engaging  the  responsibility  of  the  respondent 
Government,  and  that  it  must  be  held  in  damages  for  such  sum  as  in 
equity  should  be  assessed  therefor. 

The  umpire  might  hesitate  to  adopt  these  findings  if  it  were  not 
true,,  and  had  not  been  always  true,  that  the  respondent  Government 
could  ascertain  and  produce  before  this  mixed  commission  the  exact 
facts  regarding  the  positions  and  movements  of  its  own  soldiers,  and 
the  position  and  movements  of  the  insurgent  forces  at  the  time  in 
question.  Especial  force  attaches  to  this  when  it  is  known  that  the 
respondent  Government  was  asked  and  urged  by  the  representatives 
of  the  French  company  and  by  the  representatives  of  the  claimant 
Government  to  permit  the  use  of  its  judicial  processes  and  functions, 
in  order  that  the  truth  might  be  established,  but  the  privilege  was 
denied  them. 

Hence  against  the  very  proper  presumption  that  the  Government  of 
Venezuela  will  always  do  its  duty  by  its  own  nationals  and  by  its 
neutral  friends  resident  within  its  domain  may  very  properly  be  placed 
the  presumption  which  arises  when  one  is  in  possession  of  important 
truths  essential  to  a  judicial  inquiry  and  elects  not  to  produce  them. 

It  must  be  remembered  also  that  the  vilhge  of  S~nta  Barbara  was 
not  in  revolt.  It  was  a  loyal  community  temporarily  under  the  con- 

trol of  an  enemy — ^the  insurgent  forces.  Within  this  loyal  community 
were  the  shops  and  offices  of  a  neutral  company  and  the  residence  of 
the  superintendent,  also  a  neutral,  whose  conduct  in  Venezuela  had 
been  such  as  to  gain  and  hold  universal  esteem.  This  property  was 

then  distinguished  by  a  display  of  its  national  colors.  Both  the  com- 
munity and  the  company  were  the  friends,  not  the  enemies,  of  the  Gov- 

ernment and  were  both  entitled  to  receive  from  the  Government  the 

utmost  care  and  protection  not  inconsistent  with  the  retaking  of  the 
town  from  the  hands  of  the  revolutionary  forces  and  were  subject  only 
to  the  inevitable  contingencies  attending  such  an  undertaking. 

The  umpire  considers  that  in  fixing  responsibility  upon  the  respond- 
ent Government  he  walks  in  the  path  of  conscience,  prompted  by  the 

spirit  of  justice  and  sustained  by  principle,  by  publicists,  and  by 

precedent.  He  invites  the  courteous  attention  of  the  honorable  com- 
missioners to  the  authorities  and  precedents  which  follow. 
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In  the  case  of  Terry  and  Angus  between  the  United  States  of  America 

and  Mexico,  Moore's  Arb.,  2995,  the  commissioners  found  that — 
So  far  as  the  evidence  discloses  he  had  done  nothing  which  could  be  construed  into  a 

violation  of  the  neutrality  which  his  position  required.  The  destruction  of  the  property 
was  neither  incidental  nor  a  consequence  of  the  military  operations  which  the  Mexican  forces 

adopted  to  recover  the  possession  of  the  city.  That  part  of  the  city  in  which  the  property 

was  located  was  wholly  in  the  possession  of  the  Mexican  troops,  and  it  does  not  appear  that 

its  destruction  could  in  any  manner  facilitate  their  efforts  to  dispossess  Colonel  Cliilds  of  the 

part  which  was  occupied  by  him. 

This  property  was  in  Puebla  in  Mexico,  which  city  had  been  taken 
possession  of  by  the  United  States  Army;  and  that  portion  of  the 
United  States  Army  left  in  command  had  been  forced  by  the  Mexican 
army,  seeking  to  repossess  itself  of  the  city,  into  a  remote  part  of  the 
city  from  the  property  in  question,  and  the  property  in  question  was 
wholly  within  the  zone  of  the  occupancy  of  the  Mexican  authorities. 
In  view  of  these  facts  the  commissioners  also  held  that — 

The  destruction  of  the  property  of  the  claimants,  under  these  circumstances,  in  the  opinion 

of  the  board,  constituted  a  valid  claim  for  indemnity  against  the  Mexican  Republic.  Moore's 
Arb.,  2995. 

See  the  case  of  Jaennaud  v.  United  States,  Moore's  Arb.,  3000,  where 
it  was  held  that  the  damage  was  not  done  '^  in  battle  or  as  a  necessary 
and  lawful  military  act.''  The  cotton  gin  in  which  the  cotton  was 
stored  which  was  burned  '*  had  not  furnished  a  shelter  from  which  the 
Confederates  had  fired  or  might  thereafter  fire  upon  the  United 

States  forces." 
The  evidence  shows  that  the  burning  was  a  wanton  act  of  the  soldiers  in  the  excitement  of 

the  moment,  as  they  were  marobing  back  to  their  camp  from  a  successful  battle  with  the  Con- 

federates. It  was  without  any  justifiable  excuse,  in  violation  of  order  and  discipline,  and  - 
committed  when  marching  back  to  camp  under  the  command  and  in  the  presence  of  their 
officers,  who  by  the  usual  and  ordinary  enforcement  of  military  discipline  might  and  could 
and  should  have  prevented  it,  but  who  do  not  appear  to  have  used  any  means  whatever  to 

prevent  it. 

In  such  a  case  we  think  that  an  allowance  should  be  made.    Moore's  Int.  Arb.,  3000-1. 

In  the  case  of  Alfred  Jeannotat  v.  Mexico  imder  the  convention  of 

July  4,  1868,  Sir  Edward  Thornton,  umpire,  it  was  held  by  him  that 

since — 
the  mischief  is  unnecessary  and  wanton,  the  responsibifity  must  be  accepted.  *  *  *  It 
does  not  appear  that  without  the  arrival  of  the  military  force  which  ought  to  have  protected 
the  peaceable  inhabitants  of  the  town,  there  would  have  been  any  inclination  to  commit  such 

acts  of  violence.  The  umpire  is  therefore  of  opinion  that  compensation  is  due  to  the 

claimant  from  the  Mexican  Government.    Moore's  Int.  Arb.,  3673. 

See  also  the  case  of  Edward  C.  Du  Bois  against  the  Government  of 

Chile,  Moore's  Arb.,  3712-14. 
See  Turner's  case,  Moore's  Arb.,  3684-5. 
See  HoUenbeck's  case,  Moore's  Arb.,  3716-17. 
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In  the  case  of  Greorge  Pen  Johnston  v.  Mexico,  Moore's  Arb.,  3673, 
Sir  Edward  Thornton,  umpire,  held : 

With  regard  to  the  damage  alleged  to  have  been  done  to  the  crops  of  cottoq,  barley,  and 

oats  by  General  Corona's  forces  in  the  spring  of  1866,  the  umpire  is  of  opinion  that  some 
damage  was  done,  but  not  to  the  extent  of  the  claim  made,  *  *  *;  that  as  the  defend- 

ants have  not  proved  that  the  requirements  of  war  rendered  that  damage  necessary,  it  must 
therefore  be  considered  to  have  been  unnecessary;  and  that  therefore  the  claimants  are,  on 

account  of  that  damage,  entitled  to  compensation. 

Distinctions,  however,  should  always  be  made  in  regard  to  the  character  of  the  people  in 

the  district  of  country  which  is  militarily  occupied  or  passed  over.  The  people  of  the  coun- 
try in  which  you  are  likely  to  operate  may  be  divided  into  three  classes:  First,  the  truly 

loyal,  who  neither  aid  nor  assist  the  rebels  except  on  compulsion,  but  who  favor  or  assist  the 

Union  forces.  Where  it  can  possibly  be  avoided  this  class  of  persons  should  not  be  sub- 
jected to  military  requisitions  but  should  receive  the  protection  of  our  arms. 

The  preceding  paragraph  is  taken  from  instructions  by  the  com- 
mander in  chief  of  the  armies  of  the  United  States  (Gen.  Henry  W. 

Halleck)  to  the  commanding  officer  in  Tennessee  under  date  of  March 

5,  1863.     Halleck's  Int  Law,  vol.  2,  page  56. 
The  military  commander  of  the  l^itimate  government,  in  a  war  of  rebellion,  distinguishes 

between  the  loyal  citizen  in  the  revolted  portion  of  the  cx)untry  and  the  disloyal  citizen. 

Common  justice  and  plain  expediency  require  that  the  military  commander  protect  the 

manifestly  lo3^al  citizens,  in  revolted  territories,  against  the  hardships  of  the  war  as  much 
as  the  common  mi^ortune  of  all  war  admits. 

Instructions  for  the  government  of  armies  of  the  United  States  in 

the  field,  April  24,  1863.     Halleck's  Int.  Law,  55. 
Mlitary  necessity,  as  understood  by  modern  civilized  nations,  consists  in  the  necessity  of 

those  measures  which  are  indispensable  for  securing  the  ends  of  the  war,  and  which  are  lawful 

according  to  the  modem  law  and  usages  of  war. 

Military  necessity  admits  of  all  direct  destruction  of  life  or  limb  of  armed  enemies,  and  of 
other  persons  whose  destruction  is  incidentally  unavoidaJble  in  the  armed  contests  of  the  war. 

lb.,  41,  par.  14-15. 

Even  in  bombardments  it  is  now  deemed  necessary  to  avoid  as  far 

as  possible  injuries  to  chiu*ches,  museums,  and  hospitals,  and  not  to 
direct  the  artillery  upon  the  quarter  inhabited  by  civiUans,  imless  it  is 
impossible  to  avoid  them  while  firing  at  the  fortifications  and  military 
buildings. 

But  had  the  guns  of  the  besiegers  been  deliberately  turned  upon  the  dwelling  houses  of  the 

bombarded  town,  or  had  an  open  or  undefended  villlage  been  fired  into,  the  persons  respon- 
sible for  such  proceedings  would  have  been  justly  accused  of  barbarity,  forbidden  by  modem 

usage.    Lawrence,  p.  344. 

In  further  support  of  the  finding  of  the  umpire  herein  he  cites 
Ralston,  umpire  in  the  Biajo  Cesarino  case,  Venezuelan  Arb.  of  1903, 
771.     He  also  cites  the  De  Lemos  case,  ib.,  303. 

The  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  contends  that  this  case 

lacks  the  essential  prerequisite  of  a  claimant,  who,  being  a  French 
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citizen,  by  his  individual  action  brings  his  claim  before  the  commission, 
demanding  a  stated  indemnification;  and  the  honorable  commissioner 

supports  liis  contention  by  quoting  from  the  learned  opinion  of  Com- 
missioner Little  in  the  claims  of  Narcissa  de  Hammer  and  Amelia  de 

Brissot  before  the  United  States  and  Venezuelan  Commission,  found  in 

Moore's  Int.  Arb.,  2459-2460. 
In  the  case  cited  the  two  claimants  were  widows,  respectively,  of 

Captain  Hammer  and  Mr.  Brissot,  deceased,  and  upon  the  manner  of 
whose  killing  the  claims  arose.  The  widow  de  Hammer  and  the  widow 
de  Brissot  were  each  Venezuelan  bom  and  of  Venezuelan  nationality 
until  married,  when  by  the  laws  of  both  countries  they  became 
American  citizens  and  remained  such  until  the  death  of  their  respective 
husbands,  when  they  reverted  to  their  original  Venezuelan  nationality 

and  were  Venezuelans  when  they  appeared  before  the  American- 
Venezuelan  commission  claiming  compensation  of  Venezuela  for  the 
killing  of  their  respective  husbands.  It  was  under  these  conditions 

that  Commissioner  Little  gave  his  opinion  as  to  the  scope  of  the  pro- 
tocol constituting  that  commission,  and,  as  the  umpire  understands  it, 

these  two  claimants,  widows  cs  aforesaid  and  Venezuelans,  were 

denied  place  before  that  commission,  because  they  were  Venezuelans 
and  not  Americans. 

The  difference  between  the  case  cited  and  the  case  before  the  umpire 
is  easily  seen.  The  case  for  this  claim  exists  in  the  claim  of  Jules 
Brun,  which  occurred  before  May  23>  1899,  and  at  the  time  of  his 
death,  and  always  since,  the  claimant,  Mme.  Brun,  mother  of  the 
deceased,  has  been  a  French  citizen,  resident  of  France  and  entitled 

to  invoke  the  aid  of  France,  and  under  the  protocol  of  February  17, 
1902,  to  appear  before  the  tribunal  there  constituted  to  present  her 
claim.  That  she  has  now  actually  done  this,  although  in  an  informal 
way,  can  not  be  fairly  questioned.  She  will  be  estopped  from  any 
future  right  or  claim  against  the  respondent  Government  on  account 
of  the  death  of  her  son  as  fully  and  as  completely  as  though  she  had 
appeared  earlier  in  the  case,  and  the  respondent  Government  will  be 
protected  and  the  claimant  Government  barred  as  effectually  in 
every  particular  as  though  matters  had  proceeded  more  precisely  and 
more  formally. 

In  a  case  like  the  present,  where  the  judgment  of  the  umpire  is  the 
sole  arbiter  of  amounts,  the  facts  upon  which  his  judgment  is  to  be 

predicated  are  essential,  but  the  stated  indemnification  of  the  claim- 
ant is  not  especially  important.  It  is  a  matter  of  regret  that  the 

umpire  knows  so  little  concerning  important  matters  which  would 

have  greatly  aided  him  in  arriving  at  the  sum  to  be  assessed  as  dam- 
ages, and  he  may  easily  err  because  of  such  ignorance. 

He  is  of  the  opinion  that  he  has  jurisdiction  of  the  parties  and  of  the 

subject-matter  and  must  make  a  decision  upon  the  merits. 
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There  remains  to  be  determined  th6  sum  to  be  assessed  against  the 

respondent  Government  because  of  this  unfortunate  incident,  and 

here  occurs  a  wide  divergence  of  views  between  the  honorable  com- 
missioners. In  the  opinion  of  the  umpire  it  is  such  an  amount  as  will 

meet  the  pecuniary  loss  which  the  widowed  mother  has  sustained 
through  the  death  of  her  son.  This  is  not  the  sum  which  put  at 
interest  would  earn  an  amount  equal  to  his  annual  wage.  It  is  only 
her  fair  expectancy  in  his  wage  and  from  his  accumulations,  which,  had 
he  lived,  would  reach  her  from  year  to  year.  In  the  absence  of  all 
proof  that  he  had  accumulated  aught,  or  that  he  had  contributed 
anything  to  her  comfort  and  support,  there  is  for  the  umpire  no  rule 
of  action  but  to  assume  the  ordinary  conditions  as  to  accumulations 
and  the  ordinary  willingness  of  a  dutiful  son  to  contribute  generously 
to  the  comfort  and  happiness  of  his  widowed  mother  in  her  declining 
years,  where  as  in  this  case  the  deceased  had  no  dependent  family. 

Her  age  is  not  stated,  but  to  be  the  mother  of  one  born  forty-five 

years  since,  she  is  a  woman  near  ''threescore  years  and  ten''  and  her 
expectation  of  life  is  relatively  short. 

The  honorable  commissioner  for  France  insists  with  much  learning 
and  ability  that  the  sum  which  would  otherwise  be  assessed  by  the 
umpire  in  this  case  must  be  augmented  by  the  difference  which  now 
exists  in  the  market  value  in  gold  of  the  Venezuelan  diplomatic  debt 
of  3  per  cent  which  is  the  method  of  payment  provided  in  the  protocol. 

This  proposition  is  seriously  opposed  and  with  marked  ability  by  the 
honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela.  If  the  umpire  were  to  take 
the  advice  of  the  honorable  commissioner  for  France  in  assessing  this 

sum  he  must  hold  to  the  same  rule  where  the  amounts  due  are  capa- 
ble of  exact  ascertainment  and  in  his  award  augment  these  fixed  sums 

by  the  same  ratio  of  increase.  If  he  did  not  do  this,  he  might  cause 
serious  inequity,  by  inequality,  between  the  individual  claimants  now 
before  him;  and  if  he  did  do  this,  he  would  preserve  equity  by  equality, 
among  the  claimants  directly  before  him,  but  he  would  work  injustice 
and  inequity,  by  inequality,  to  every  other  holder  of  this  diplomatic 

debt.  He  would  reduce  still  lower  the  market  value  of  such  diplo- 
matic debt  to  the  manifest  loss  of  all,  and  it  would  not  be  impossible 

to  deprive  the  diplomatic  debt  of  all  value  if  each  lowering  rate  per 

cent  in  this  diplomatic  debt  of  3  per  cent  was  followed  by  a  propor- 
tionately increased  assessment.  Aside  from  the  apparent  unwisdom 

and  inequity  of  such  a  holding,  the  umpire  is  satisfied  that  he  is  not 
competent  under  the  protocol  to  do  other  than  to  ascertain  as  nearly 
as  he  can  the  actual  sum  due  from  the  respondent  Government  in 

each  particular  case  and  to  award  that  particular  sum.  Under  the 
protocol  it  is  not  for  him  to  determine  the  means  or  the  methods  ( f 

payment;  this  is  wholly  with  the  treaty-making  power  of  the  two 
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Govemments,  and  it  has  been'  settled  by  the  protocol  in  accordance 
with  their  high  judgment. 

It  follows,  therefore,  that  the  sum  to  be  assessed  and  awarded  in 
this  case  and  in  all  others  before  this  umpire  must  be  based  on  the 
damages  actually  sustained,  and  must  be  stated  without  reference  to 
the  way  or  market  value  of  the  means  of  provided  payment. 

In  his  best  judgment  the  sum  due  from  the  respondent  Govern- 
ment to  the  claimant  Government  for  the  benefit  of  Madame  Brun  is 

100,000  francs,  and  the  award  will  be  prepared  and  signed  for  that 
sum. 

NoRTHFiELD,  July  SI,  1906. 



CLAIM  OF  FEIEEDICH  &  COMPAKY.— NO.  2.^ 

HEAD  NOTES. 

The  burden  is  upon  the  company  to  establish  clearly  and  definitely  that  the  respondent 

Government  proceeded  in  an  unlawful  manner  concerning  the  boat  of  said  company 
after  it  arrived  in  the  port  of  Guiria. 

The  initial  wrong  was  all  with  the  claimant  company  (a)  in  the  engagement  of  an  incompe- 

tent captain,  with  knowledge  of  his  incompetency,  (b)  in  the  taking  away  of  the  ship's 
papers  by  a  partner  of  the  company,  (c)  in  permitting  the  ship  thus  stripped  of  its  papers 
to  go  out  on  the  open  sea,  (d)  in  entering  the  harbor  of  GQiria  under  these  circumstances. 

The  arrival  of  this  ship  in  port  under  the  circumstances  attending  it  justified  suspicion  and 
examination  of  the  real  status  of  the  schooner  by  the  revenue  officers  of  the  port. 

The  schooner  was  not  in  the  port  of  GQiria  through  any  imperious  necessity,  but  voluntarily. 
Such  compulsion  as  existed  was  through  the  act  or  neglect  of  a  member  of  the  company ; 
and  its  unjustifiable  departure  from  the  Port  of  Spain,  its  journey  across  the  sea,  and 

its  entrance  to  the  harbor  of  Giiiria  were  wholly  attributable  to  the  company  and  its 

agents. 
In  order  that  there  may  be  intervention  on  the  part  of  France,  there  must  be  a  legal  wrong 

on  the  part  of  Venezuela. 

If  Venezuela  conforms  with  its  own  laws  in  its  own  ports,  and  if  these  laws  are  such  as  are  the 

product  of  civilization,  then  there  is  no  error,  hence  no  responsibility  on  the  part  of 
Venezuela  and  no  right  of  intervention  on  the  part  of  the  claimant  Government. 

It  appears  that  Venezuela  acted  in  this  respect  through  its  regular  officers  and,  until  the  con- 
trary is  clearly  shown,  the  acts  of  these  officers  must  be  assumed  to  be  regular  and  proper. 

Such  a  presumption  of  regularity  and  propriety  is  a  proper  protection  of  the  public  and  its 
interests. 

Venezuela  is  also  entitled  to  that  presumption  of  good  faith  in  favor  of  its  public  officers 
which  ordinarily  attends  the  acts  of  public  officials. 

So  far  as  appears,  the  court  in  proceeding  to  condemn  the  schooner  to  pay  a  fine  was  acting 
within  its  jurisdiction  and  within  its  right,  and  until  the  contrary  appears  its  acts  will  be 

presumed  to  be  regular  and  its  judgment  righteous. 

The  laws  of  Venezuela  in  regard  to  such  matters  as  are  before  the  umpire  in  this  case  appear 
to  be  in  harmony  with  the  laws  of  other  civilized  countries. 

That  the  Government  at  Caracas  permitted  the  boat  to  be  returned  to  its  owners  without 

exacting  payment  of  the  fine  is  not  an  admission  on  its  part  that  its  acts  in  reference  to 

the  schooner  had  been  irregular  and  unlawful. 

The  question  presented  here  Is  one  of  detention  only,  and  the  detention  involves  only  the 
question  of  its  rea.sonablenes8  in  point  of  time.  Sufficient  time  to  know  all  the  facts, 
to  assemble  them  before  the  court,  and  for  the  court  to  act  upon  them  was  a  necessary 

adjunct  of  the  situation. 

« EXTRACT  FROM   THE   MINUTES   OF  THE   SITTING   OF  MAT    12,  1903. 

An  examination  of  the  claim  of  the  Orinoco  Asphalt  Company,  amounting  to  176,080.10 

bolivars,  was  next  taken  up.  Doctor  Paul  rejected  it  absolutely  as  without  foundation. 
M.  de  Peretti,  considering  the  schooner  belonging  to  the  company  had  been  illegally  detained 

at  GQiria  for  thirty-four  days,  asks  therefor  an  indemnity  of  5,000  bolivars. 
Doctor  Padl  does  not  recognize  the  illegality  of  the  measure  in  question.  The  arbitrators 

not  having  beeo  ftble  to  come  to  an  agreement,  this  claim  will  be  likewise  submitted  to  the 
umpirer 

31 
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OPINION  OF  THE  VENEZUELAN  COMMISSIONER. 

This  claim,  presented  to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  France  by 

Mr.  A.  Sanary,  who  styles  himseli  liquidator  of  the  '*  Sociedad  Betunes 
del  Orinoco/'  is  destitute  of  all  documents  proving  the  juridic  person- 

ality of  such  company  or  the  capacity  of  him  who  calls  himself  its 
liquidator  as  its  trustee.  What  has  been  produced  is  a  contract 
entered  into  in  Paris,  on  the  2d  of  December,  1898,  by  which  Messrs. 
Ernesto  NicoUs  Frierdich  and  Tdcito  Delort,  on  the  one  part,  and 
Messrs.  Courtant  Bergerault  and  A.  Cremer,  on  the  other,  agree  upon 
constituting  a  commercial  partnership  on  the  part  of  Frierdich  and 
Delort,  and  a  silent  partnership  on  the  part  of  Bergerault  and  Cremer, 

the  firm-name  of  which  was  to  be  ''E.  Frierdich  &  Co.''  Messrs. 
Frierdich  and  Delort  only  were  authorized  to  manage  and  sign  for  the 
company.  Besides,  the  fact  on  which  the  claim  is  based  is  only  the 
detention  sustained  by  the  schooner  Love  and  Lulu  in  the  harbor  of 

Gtiiria  during  thirty-seven  days  on  account  of  a  confiscation  suit 
entered  against  her  before  the  finance  court  for  having  arrived  at  that 
port  without  a  matricula  or  register  and  other  papers  concerning  her 
correct  clearing,  and  in  which  suit  she  was  condemned  to  pay  a  fine, 
she  being  released  afterwards  at  the  instance  of  the  consul  of  Holland 

in  Port  of  Spain,  who  claimed  the  preferential  payment  of  debts  con- 
tracted in  said  island,  for  which  she  was  sold  to  the  highest  bidder 

there. 

As  is  seen  from  the  simple  statement  of  these  events,  there  exists  no 
ground  to  demand  an  indemnity  for  the  consequences  of  a  suit  brought 
in  conformity  with  the  laws  on  the  matter,  it  being  observed  that  it 
was  Delort  himself  who  denounced  to  the  authorities  at  Guiria  the 

want  of  papers  of  the  schooner,  alleging  that  they  had  been  violently 

taken  from  the  captain  by  his  (Delort's)  associate,  Frierdich,  when 
the  vessel  was  leaving  the  island  of  Trinidad. 

For  the  reasons  expressed  the  arbitrator  disallows  the  claim  pre- 
sented. 

Caracas,  May  12,  1903, 

OPINION  OF  THE  FRENCH  COMMISSIONEB. 

The  liquidator  of  the  French  Society  Frierdich  &  Co.,  known  also 
by  the  name  of  the  Orinoco  Asphalt  Society,  claims  of  the  Venezue- 

lan Government  an  indenmity  of  176,030.10  bolivars,  because  the 
latter  having  retained  illegally  in  the  port  of  Guiria  the  schooner  of 

this  society  for  thirty-nine  days  should  be  responsible  for  the  complete 
ruin  of  the  concern.  The  information  which  I  have  gathered  at 
Trinidad  and  in  Venezuela  about  this  company  has  convinced  me 
that  the  condition  in  which  it  operated  did  not  bring  about  such  a 
serious  result.     At  the  moment  when  the  accident  happened  which 
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incited  the  claim  it  was  already  in  insolvency.  We  can  not  argue, 

then,  that  the  intervention  of  the  Venezuelan  administration,  stop- 
ping the  affairs  of  the  company,  obhged  it  to  abandon  its  operation. 

If  the  Love  and  Lulu  had  not  been  detained  at  Giiiria  and 

could  have  been  able  freely  to  pursue  her  voyage,  the  fate  of  the 
enterprise  would  not  have  been  changed.  However,  it  seems  to  me 
that  the  administration  of  the  custom-house  of  Giiiria  committed 

an  abuse  of  power  in  retaining  for  more  than  a  month,  without  reason, 
the  schooner  Love  and  Lulu,  and  I  consider  that  the  damage  caused  the 
owners  of  a  boat  of  its  towage  by  its  lying  idle  for  more  than  a  month 
should  be  compensated  by  the  granting  of  an  indemnity  of  5,000 
bolivars.  In  fact,  the  nominal  owner  of  the  schooner,  Mr.  Tacite 
Delort,  silent  partner  of  the  firm  Frierdich  &  Co.,  was  on  board  at  the 
arrival  of  the  boat  at  Giiiria,  and  he  himself  implored  the  aid  of  the 
authorities  of  the  port  against  the  insubordinate  crew.  The  absence 

of  navigation  papers  was  due  to  a  case  oi  force  majeure  (superior  force) 
analogous  to  those  which  the  Venezuelan  law  anticipated;  the  papers 
in  question  were  besides  delivered  as  soon  as  possible;  and  finally,  the 
rigorous  measure,  the  forfeiture  and  sale  of  the  boat,  ordered  by  the 
tribunal  of  Giiiria,  were  carried  out  upon  the  order  coming  from 
Caracas.  I  have  not  taken  into  account  a  letter  which  Mr.  Frierdich 

addressed  to  me  the  28th  of  April,  1903,  to  request  me  to  withdraw 

the  claim  presented  under  the  firm-name  of  Frierdich  &  Co.,  because 
it  was  not  Mr.  Frierdich  who  presented  this  claim,  but  the  Uquidator 
01  the  company.  Mr.  Frierdich,  resident  in  Venezuela,  an  insolvent, 
it  appears,  was  on  bad  terms  with  his  former  partner,  to  whom  he  was 
indebted  for  quite  a  large  sum.  This  situation  and  also,  without 

doubt,  the  fear  of  displeasing  the  authorities  of  a  country  where  he 
has  definitely  established  his  residence,  and  where  he  has  married, 

explains  sufficiently  the  proceeding  of  Mr.  Frierdich.  In  these  con- 
ditions, this  proceeding  (the  sending  of  the  letter)  could  not  be  taken 

into  consideration.  The  indemnity  of  5,000  bolivars,  which  I  beheve 
equitable,  would  be,  it  is  necessary  to  note,  diminished  by  more  than 
hall  by  the  fact  of  payments  in  bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt,  accepted 
by  the  French  Government,  to  the  end  of  permitting  the  Venezuelan 
Government  to  pay  its  debts  more  easily. 

Paris,  August  26,  1904. 

ADDITIONAL  OPINION  OF  THE  VENEZTJEIiAN  COMMISSIONEB. 

As  stated  in  my  opinion  preceding  this  additional  opinion  the 
detention  of  the  schooner  Love  and  Lulu  by  the  authorities  of  the 
port  of  Giiiria  and  the  subsequent  legal  action  thereon  was  due,  as 
shown  by  the  documents  submitted,  to  the  fact  that  said  schooner 

arrived  in  the  above-mentioned  port  without  her  register  and  other 
S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   3 
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papers  which  the  laws  of  Venezuela  require  from  vessels  coining  into  a 
Venezuelan  port  from  foreign  ports.  Only  in  case  of  showing  proof 
that  the  arrival  of  said  schooner  at  the  port  under  said  conditions 
was  due  to  any  of  the  unforeseen  circumstances  specified  by  law, 
could  the  schooner  Love  and  Lulu  be  exempted  from  the  penalty 

imposed  by  article  48  of  the  "C6digo  de  Hacienda ''  (Code  of  Fiscal 
Laws)  of  Venezuela  then  in  force.  The  detention  of  the  schooner 

lasted  the  time  necessary  for  the  investigation  of  the  facts  and  the 

hearing  of  the  testimony  of  her  owner,  whose  defense  was  the  allega- 
tion that  the  papers  had  been  violently  snatched  from  him  in  Trini- 
dad by  his  partner,  Mr.  E.  Frierdich,  and  that  the  schooner  had 

sailed  by  order  of  the  master  and  crew  who  did  not  obey  his  (the  own- 

er's) determination  to  discontinue  the  trip. 
It  is  moreover  shown  by  the  same  documents  (see  note  of  the  con- 

sul for  the  Netherlands  in  Port  of  Spain,  dated  March  1,  1901,  to  the 
minister  of  the  Netherlands  in  London)  that  the  schooner  Love  and 

Lulu  returned  sometime  afterwards  to  Port  of  Spain,  where  she  was 
embargoed  and  sold  under  the  hammer  by  the  courts  of  the  island, 
for  the  payment  of  the  workingmen  and  other  creditors.  It  is  also 

shown  by  another  communication  bearing  the  signature  of  the  con- 
sular agent  for  the  Netherlands,  under  date  of  May  29,  1899,  to  F.  A. 

Thompson,  register,  that  on  that  date,  a  few  days  later  than  the  17th 
of  May  of  the  same  year,  when  the  schooner  was  released  by  the  courts 
of  Giiiria,  she  had  been  already  condemned  by  the  courts  of  Port  of 
Spain,  and  that  it  was  on  May  29,  1899,  that  the  public  sale  was  to 
take  place. 

The  register  was  not  the  only  document  lacking  the  schooner  when 
she  came  into  the  port  of  Giiiria.  As  shown  by  the  note  of  the  consul 
for  the  Netherlands,  under  date  March  1,  1901,  already  quoted, 

Frierdich,  Delort's  partner,  also  took  in  Trinidad  from  the  master  of 
the  Love  and  Lulu  the  permit  or  clearance  issued  by  the  Venezuelan 

consul  enabhng  the  schooner  to  go  into  Venezuelan  ports,  the  certifi- 
cate issued  by  the  same  oflScial  showing  that  the  ship  had  complied 

with  all  the  requirements,  and  other  papers. 
Article  48  of  the  Fiscal  Code  (C6digo  de  Hacienda)  then  in  force  in 

Venezuela  provides  that  should  only  the  register  be  missing,  then 
such  measures  as  are  provided  by  law  shall  be  taken  on  board  of  the 

vessel,  *  *  *  and  the  fine  of  5,000  boUvars  shall  not  be  levied 
and  collected,  nor  shall  the  bond  be  demanded  wlien  the  master  can 

prove  that  the  lack  of  the  register  is  due  to  an  accident  which  he 
could  neither  prevent  nor  foresee,  such  as  shipwreck ,  fire,  or  violence 

from  an  enemy  or  pirates,^' 

oAbt.  48.  Cuando  el  buque  traigael  sobordo  y  sus  demds  papeles  despachados  en  forma 
por  el  Cdnsul  de  la  procedencia,  y  sdlo  le  falte  la  patente  de  navegacidn,  se  tomardn  d  su 

bordo  las  precauciones  prevenidas  en  el  articulo  anterior,  y  ademds  de  imponerse  al  Capi- 
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In  the  case  of  the  schooner  Love  and  LulUj  which  came  under  the 

authorities  of  Guiria,  upon  whom  devolved  the  duty  of  strictly  com- 
plying with  the  law,  the  master  did  not  suffer  violence  from  enemies 

or  pirates,  but  it  was  Mr.  Frierdich  himself,  the  partner  of  the  plain- 

tiff, Tfi,cito  Delort,  who  took  the  schooner^s  papers,  and  it  was  the 
master,  Luis  Rodriguez,  who  of  his  own  accord  resolved  to  sail  with- 

out the  indispensable  documents  which  he  left  behind  at  the  port 
whence   he   sailed. 

Article  194  of  the  same  code  provides  that  the  ship's  master  is 
guilty  of  an  offense  and  is  liable  to  a  fine  of  10,000  bolivars  and 

other  stated  penalties  whenever  he  does  not  produce  the  other  docu- 
ments, if  during  the  trial,  as  provided,  he  fails  to  show  that  the  absence 

of  such  documents  is  due  to  any  of  the  unforeseen  circumstances 

set  forth  in  section  2  of  article  48.^  It  was  not  shown,  nor  was  any 
endeavor  whatever  made  to  show  at  the  trial  of  the  schooner  Love 

and  Lulu  that  the  absence  of  the  other  papers  was  due  £o  unforeseen 
circumstances  of  shipwreck,  fire,  or  under  duress  from  enemies  or 
pirates.  On  the  contrary,  the  proofs  then  adduced  show  the  party 

responsible  for  the  absence  of  the  ship's  papers  to  be  a  partner  of  Mr. 
Delort. 

The  Venezuelan  courts  by  virtue  of  their  rightful  and  well-estab- 
lished jurisdiction  and  in  conformity  with  the  laws  under  which  they 

are  established  were  authorized  and  under  obligation  to  bring  an 
action  against  the  schooner  Love  and  Lulu  to  hold  her  and  to  compel 
the  settlement  of  the  liability  incurred  by  her  master  for  gross  offenses 

{faUas  graves)  expressly  defined  and  punished  by  the  Venezuelan  laws. 
From  the  above  statement  of  the  facts  it  appears  that  it  was  through 

the  fault  of  the  claimant,  Mr.  Delort,  and  through  the  fault  of  the 
master  in  command  of  the  schooner  Love  and  Lulu,  and  the  fault  of 

Mr.  Delort's  partner,  Mr.  E.  Frierdich,  that  the  schooner  in  question 
was  subjected  to  legal  proceedings  before  the  fiscal  court  (tribunal 

tdn  la  multa  del  articulo  194,  ntimero  P,  se  le  exigird  una  fianza  de  cinco  mil  bolfvares,  si 

el  buque  fuere  de  vela,  <5  de  diez  mil  si  fuere  de  vapor,  otorgada  por  61  y  por  dos  comerci- 
antes  abonados,  d  satisfaccidn  del  Administrador,  la  cual  se  har6  efectiva  en  el  caso  de  que 
el  buque  saiga  del  puerto  sin  permiso  de  la  Aduana,  y  de  la  antoridad  polftica  respectiva, 
sin  perjuicio  de  las  demds  penas  &  que  haya  lugar. 

No  se  impondrd  la  multa  ni  se  exijird  la  fianza  cuando  compruebe  el  Capitdn  que  la 
falta  de  la  patente  provino  de  un  accidente  que  no  pudo  prever  ni  evitar,  como  naufragio, 

incendio  6  violencia  perpetrada  por  enemigos  6  piratas.  En  este  caso  se  dar6  cuenta  al 
^ifinisterio  de  Hacienda  con  todos  los  pormenores. 

oArt.  194.  El  Capit&n  de  un  buque  incurre  en  falta  y  paga  multa  en  los  casos 
siguientes: 

1**.  Cuando  no  presente  la  patente  de  navegacidn,  pagar^  de  cuatro  mil  d  cinco  mil 
bolfvares  en  el  caso  del  articulo  48;  dobldndose  esta  multa  y  haci^ndose  efectivas  las 

dem^  penas  k  que  haya  lugar  por  la  no  presentacidn  de  los  otros  documentos,  en  el  caso 

del  aitlculo  47,  si  en  el  juicio  respectivo  no  comprueba  el  Capiti^n  que  la  falta  proviene  de 

alaguno  de  los  accidentes  fortuitos  previstos  en  el  inciso  2**  del  articulo  48. 
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de  hacienda)  of  the  port  of  Giiiria,  and  to  be  held  and  condemned 
in  conformity  with  the  laws  in  the  premises.  It  is  to  his  own  acts  or 
negUgence,  to  say  the  least,  that  the  claimant  owes,  either  directly  or 
indirectly,  the  grievances  or  injury  he  complains  of,  if  he  ever  did 
suflFer  any  grievance  or  injury. 

I  beg  to  submit,  together  with  this  opinion,  a  letter  duly  authenti- 
cated, which  was  sent  to  Caracas  to  me  in  my  capacity  of  com- 

missioner, by  Mr.  E.  Frierdich,  a  partner  of  the  plaintiflF,  of  the 
firm  of  Frierdich  &  Co.,  in  Uquidation,  which  letter  shows,  as  does 

also  the  letter  which  the  same  Mr.  Frierdich  sent  my  learned  col- 
league, that  he  has  authorized  no  one  to  enter  a  claim  against  the 

Venezuelan  Government  by  reason  of  the  seizure  of  the  schooner  Love 
and  LulUj  and  that  he  does  not  consider  that  the  authorities  of  the 

port  of  Giiiria  have  given  any  cause  in  the  present  case  to  enter  any 
claim  whatever. 

I  beg  to  differ  completely  from  the  learned  commissioner  of 

France's  opinion,  that  the  letter  in  question  must  not  be  taken  into 
consideration  by  reason  of  certain  personal  facts  connected  with  the 

writer  thereof,  such  as  his  being  insolvent  with  his  partners,  and  a  resi- 
dent of  Venezuela  married  in  the  same  country,  and  to  be  acting  under 

fear  of  offending  the  authorities  of  the  country  where  he  resides. 
The  contention  that  he  is  insolvent  with  his  partners  and  the  facts  of 

his  having  his  residence  in  Venezuela  and  having  married  a  Vene- 
zuelan are  not,  in  my  opinion,  of  sufficient  weight  to  destroy  the  testi- 

mony of  a  person  bound  no  less  than  by  the  ties  of  business  associa- 
tion to  the  claimant,  who  makes  use  of  the  name  of  the  firm  to  enter 

the  claim  in  question.  As  regards  the  charge  of  fear,  so  far  no  proofs 
have  been  oflFered  to  show  the  fact  that  Mr.  Frierdich  is  susceptible 
to  such  fear  nor  that  he  is  actually  laboring  under  it. 

In  view  of  the  foregoing,  I  come  to  a  close  supporting  my  opinion 
that  the  claim  of  the  partnership  Frierdich  &  Co.,  in  liquidation, 

named  ''Soci6t6  des  Bitumes  de  TOr^noque,"  has  no  grounds  what- 
ever and  that  under  the  circumstances  it  should  be  disallowed.  And 

I  beg  the  honorable  umpire  to  grant  my  request. 
NoRTHFiELD,  Vt.,  February  1,  1905. 

ADDITIONAL  OPINION  OF  THE  FRENCH  COMDHSSIONEK. 

The  reading  of  the  additional  memoir  of  my  honorable  colleague  has 
not  changed  my  opinion  on  the  two  single  points  which  I  have  thought 
I  ought  to  mention  in  the  above  memoir  and  upon  which  I  am  not  in 
agreement  with  Doctor  Pa61.  In  the  first  place,  it  seems  to  me 

evident  that  the  society  of  Frierdich  &  Co.  being  in  insolvency  it  per- 
tains to  the  liquidator,  Mr.  Sanary,  whose  powers  to  represent  the 

aforesaid  society  are  contained  in  the  dossier. 
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Mr.  Frierdich,  insolvent  debtor  of  his  associates,  proves  by  his  pro- 
ceedings that,  not  content  with  not  paying  his  debts,  he  still  tries  to 

injure  his  creditors  by  preventing  them  from  getting  the  benefit  of  an 
eventual  indenmity.  I  am  not  called  upon  to  consider  this  manner 
of  action.  I  am  content  to  refuse  to  Mr.  Frierdich  the  right  which  he 
arrogates  to  himself  of  speaking  in  the  name  of  a  company  at  present 
in  insolvency  of  which  he  is  only  the  debtor.  Consequently  I  think 
the  arbitrators  have  to  take  no  account  of  his  letters. 

In  the  second  place,  I  consider  that  the  custom-house  of  Giiiria  has 

caused,  by  retaining  for  thirty-nine  days  without  reason  the  schooner 
Love  and  LulUj  an  injury  to  her  owners,  whatever  might  have  been  the 
condition  of  the  latter  at  that  moment,  a  situation  as  to  which  I  share, 

besides  the  opinion  of  my  colleague.  In  fact,  either  the  custom-house 
of  Giiiria  proceeded  according  to  the  Venezuelan  law  in  retaining 
this  vessel  and  then  should  have  inflicted  the  penalty  provided  by 

law,  and  in  case  of  nonpayment  should  have  proceeded  to  sell  accord- 
ing to  law,  or  indeed  the  law  did  not  authorize  the  retention  of  this 

vessel  after  the  delivery  of  the  papers  on  board,  and  then  it  ought 
to  have  delivered  her  immediately  to  Mr.  Delort.  But  it  stopped 
the  procedure  entered  upon,  which  seems  to  indicate  that  it  had  no 
longer  a  legal  right  to  prosecute,  but  it  continued  to  retain  the  boat, 
which  it  did  not  sufficiently  protect  against  depredations  and  which 

it  only  surrendered  thirty-nine  days  after  the  seizure. 
I  maintain,  then,  that  the  custom-house  of  Giiiria  committed  an 

error;  that  this  error  entailed  an  injury  upon  the  partnership  of  Frier- 
dich &  Co.  in  depriving  it  for  more  than  a  month  of  the  use  of  this 

schooner,  and  that  this  injury  would  be  equitably  compensated  by  an 
indemnity  of  5,000  boUvars. 

NoRTHFiELD,  February  S,  1905, 

OPINION  OF  THE  IJMPIBE. 

The  claimant  company  was  organized  in  France  and  has  unques- 
tioned French  nationality. 

Tacite  Delort  and  Ernesto  NicoUs  Frierdich  are  the  active  partners 
and  managers  of  the  company,  and  two  other  French  gentlemen  are 
silent  partners. 

The  business  of  the  company  consisted  of  mining,  refining,  export- 
ing, and  marketing  the  products  of  a  certain  asphalt  mine  situated  at 

Pedemales  in  Venezuela,  about  70  miles  from  Port  of  Spain,  Trinidad. 

The  company  entered  upon  this  business  in  1898,  and  to  aid  in  the 
importation  of  materials  and  men  for  the  works  and  in  the  exportation 
of  the  asphalt  to  Port  of  Spain  the  company  bought  a  schooner.  Love 
and  Lulu  J  which  at  the  time  of  its  purchase  and  thereafterwards  was  of 
Dutch  nationality.     It  was  registered  in  the  name  of  Tacite  Delort. 
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Owing  to  the  character  of  the  channel  through  which  Pedemaies 
was  approached,  it  was  necessary  that  the  boat  be  of  a  peculiar  build, 
which  necessity  was  fully  met  by  the  Love  and  Lulu,  Its  purchase 
price  was  $2,100. 

From  the  commencement  of  work  at  the  mines  to  April  8,  1899,  the 
company  had  exported  and  sold  about  800  tons  of  asphalt. 

On  the  date  last  named  the  Love  and  Lulu  was  in  the  harbor  of  Port 

of  Spain  and  Mr.  Delort  and  Mr.  Frierdich  were  in  the  city  of  Port  of 

Spain. 
One  Luis  Rodriguez  had  been  engaged  as  captain  of  the  boat.  This 

man  could  neither  read  nor  write,  had  been  previously  a  river  pilot, 
did  not  understand  the  laws  attending  navigation,  and  objected  to  the 

service  at  the  time  of  the  engagement,'  because  of  his  ignorance  and  of 
his  fear  that  he  would  commit  some  blunder  in  the  office.  Notwith- 

standing the  knowledge  of  the  company  of  this  ignorance  he  was  made 

captain. 
On  said  8th  of  June,  1899,  Mr.  Delort  learned  that  the  schooner  had 

received  its  clearance  papers  and  was  about  to  sail  for  Giiiria.  He 
desired  to  go  with  the  boat  when  it  sailed,  but  did  not  desire  to  go 
then.  He  undertook  to  detain  the  boat  and  obtained  an  order  from 

the  Dutch  consul  to  the  captain,  directing  him  not  to  go.  He  was 
taken  to  the  schooner  and  gave  the  captain  the  order  of  the  Dutch 
consul;  but  the  captain  refused  to  recognize  the  authority  of  the  consul 
and  upon  being  ordered  by  Mr.  Delort  not  to  sail,  the  captain  refused 

to  recognize  Mr.  Delort^s  authority  and  proceeded  to  prepare  to  s::.il. 
It  was  about  this  time  that  Mr.  Frierdich,  the  other  manager,  c::me  to 
the  schooner  in  a  small  boat  and  demanded  of  the  capt::in,  and 

received  from  him,  all  of  the  ship's  papers.  Mr.  Delort  attempted  to 
prevent  their  delivery  to  Mr.  Frierdich  by  personal  intervention  and 

the  use  of  some  violence,  but  the  captain  overcame  Mr.  Delort's 
resistance  and  delivered  the  ship's  papers  to  Mr.  Frierdich,  cs  above 
stated.  Notwithstanding  that  he  had  no  papers  permitting  him  to 
sail  and  against  the  continuing  and  earnest  protest  of  Mr.  Delort,  and 
with  him  on  board,  the  captain  set  sail  for  Giiiria,  which  port  he  reached 
some  time  that  day. 

Immediately  upon  the  arrival  of  the  schooner  at  Giiiria  Mr.  Delort 
informed  the  harbor  master  of  that  port  of  the  condition  of  aflFairs,  and 

on  the  next  morning  he  made  protest  before  the  vice-consul  of  Spain 
at  Giiiria,  and  at  the  request  of  Mr.  Delort  the  testimony  of  the  cap- 

tain and  of  the  steward  was  taken. 

Some  time  after  April  11  Mr.  Frierdich  surrendered  the  ship's  papers 
to  the  Dutch  consul  at  Port  of  Spain  and  they  were  forwarded  by 
special  messenger  to  Giiiria,  reaching  there  about  the  14th  day  of 
April,  on  which  day  they  were  brought  to  the  attention  of  the  customs 
officers  of  that  port,  and  there  being  no  Dutch  consul  at  Giiiria  the 
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vice-consul  of  Spain,  as  the  officer  of  a  friendly  nation,  on  the  same 
day  at  the  request  of  Mr.  Delort  visited  the  customs  officials  at  Guiria 
and  solicited  of  them  and  also  of  the  captain  of  the  port  that  the  Love 
and  Lulu  be  turned  over  to  Mr.  Delort.  A  formal  refusal  was  made  by 
these  officers. 

On  April  17  the  papers  had  been  sent  back  to  the  Dutch  consul  at 
Port  of  Spain  and  he  presented  them  to  the  Venezuelan  consul  of  that 
port  and  formally  asked  the  release  of  the  Love  and  Lulu  at  Guiria. 

Proceedings  were  instituted  against  the  Love  arid  Lulu  before  the 
proper  tribunal  at  Guiria  under  articles  48  and  144  of  the  Maritime 
Code  of  Venezuela.  A  fine  of  5,000  bolivars  was  duly  imposed  by  the 
court  and  due  notice  was  given  of  the  sale  of  the  schooner  for  the 
recovery  of  the  fine. 

Frierdich  &  Co.  had  no  other  boat  than  the  Love  and  Lulu  and  not 

being  able  to  obtain  one  at  Port  of  Spain  suited  to  the  channel  of 
Pedemales  they  could  not  transport  supplies  to  the  works  or  bring  out 
the  products  of  the  mines,  and,  as  a  result,  the  asphalt  works  were 

abandoned  and  the  workmen  taken  back  to  Port  of  Spain.  The  com- 
pany had  no  means  to  pay  the  workmen  for  their  labor  or  to  answer 

the  demands  of  their  other  creditors,  and  possession  was  taken  by 
these  creditors  of  such  property  of  the  company  as  they  could  find  in 
order  to  secure  their  pay. 

Pending  the  sale  of  the  schooner  at  Guiria,  the  Dutch  consul  at  Port 
of  Spain  asserted  to  the  customs  authorities  at  Guiria  a  prior  and 
superior  Uen  upon  the  schooner  and  demanded  its  return  to  Port  of 

Spain  to  answer  to  this  lien.  It  resulted  that  the  Government  of 
Venezuela,  recognizing  the  validity  of  this  claim,  directed  the  return 
of  the  Love  and  Lulu  to  Port  of  Spain,  and  the  schooner  arrived  there 
May  17.  The  fine  has  been  in  no  part  paid.  No  appeal  was  taken 
from  the  action  of  the  tribunal  imposing  this  fine,  and  it  remains  a 
final  and  imsatisfied  judgment. 

On  the  arrival  of  the  Love  and  Lulu  at  Port  of  Spain  it  was  seized 
imder  process  issuing  from  the  court  of  Port  of  Spain  and  was  sold  at 
public  auction  under  such  process.  Before  the  sale,  however,  due 
notice  was  given  by  the  Dutch  consul  to  the  proper  parties  in  charge  of 

the  sale  of  the  superior  lien  of  his  consulate,  and  he  demanded  pay- 
ment of  this  amount  before  the  purchaser  could  take  possession  of  the 

schooner. 

Later,  proceedings  in  liquidation  were  instituted  at  Havre,  France, 
and  Mr.  A.  Sanary  was  constituted  liquidator,  and  it  is  on  his  behalf, 
at  his  initiative,  and  for  the  benefit  of  the  insolvent  company  and  its 
creditors  as  such  liquidator,  that  this  claim  is  here  presented. 

Mr.  Frierdich  has  filed  with  both  of  the  honorable  commissioners  a 

protest  against  this  claim,  denying  that  there  was  any  fault  on  the  part 

of  the  authorities  at  Guiria  at  the  time  in  question,  or  that  any  respon- 
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sibility  attaches  to  Venezuela  on  account  of  what  happened  in  con- 
nection with  this  schooner. 

Quite  a  large  sum  of  money  is  claimed  by  the  company  of  Venezuela 
on  account  of  its  alleged  fault,  but  in  the  opinion  of  the  honorable 
commissioner  for  France  there  is  a  just  claim  for  5,000  bolivars  only. 
He  does  not  ascribe  the  insolvency  of  the  company  to  the  detention  of 
the  schooner  at  Gtiiria,  and  he  limits  his  award  to  a  svmi  which  he 

regards  as  not  excessive  for  the  abuse  of  power  which  he  holds  was 

committed  by  the  administrators  of  the  custom-house  at  Giiiria  and 
through  the  action  of  the  court  in  detaining  the  schooner  for  the  time 
stated,  which  detention  he  considers  imreasonable. 

The  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  sees  no  error  in  the 

action  of  the  Venezuelan  authorities  and  refuses  any  compensation. 
The  honorable  commissioners  having  failed  to  agree,  they  join  in 

sending  the  claim  to  the  umpire  for  his  decision.  They  have  rendered 

the  umpire  very  efficient  aid  in  their  opinions,  original  and  supple- 
mentary, and  by  their  courteous  answers  to  his  interrogatories. 

If  the  company  has  a  right  to  claim  anything  of  Venezuela,  it  is  the 
loss  of  use  of  the  schooner  by  its  detention  a  certain  length  of  time 
in  the  port  of  Guiria.  This  right  of  use  or  the  rental  value  of  the 

schooner  can  not  be  very  large,  since  the  value  of  the  schooner  as  deter- 
mined by  its  selling  price  was  only  $2,100.  In  order  that  the  company 

should  have  a  claim  upon  Venezuela,  the  burden  is  upon  it  to  estab- 
lish clearly  and  definitely  that  the  respondent  Government  has  pro- 

ceeded in  an  unlawful  manner  concerning  said  boat  since  it  arrived  in 
that  port  on  the  8th  of  April,  1899.  A  detention  without  reason  is 
suggested,  but  certainly  some  detention  was  not  only  reasonable  but 
necessary.  It  w«ts  at  least  six  days  before  its  papers  arrived  from 
Port  of  Spain  which  would  permit  the  company  to  justify  in  any  way 

the  right  of  the  schooner  to  be  upon  the  seas  or  in  this  port  of  Vene- 
zuela. The  spirit  with  which  this  claim  is  pressed  by  the  company  is 

manifest  from  the  fact  that  the  claim  for  detention  covers  the  entire 

thirty-nine  days  which  elapsed  from  the  time  the  schooner  sailed  from 
Port  of  Spain  and  the  day  of  its  return  to  that  port.  This  is  so  mani- 

festly wrong  that  it  raises  a  suggestion  of  insincerity  on  the  part  of  the 

claimant  which  must  necessarily  affect  the  value  of  the  company's 
assertions  in  other  particulars. 

The  initial  wrong  was  all  with  the  claimant  company.  It  began 

in  the  reckless  and  ill-advised  engagement  of  a  captain  entirely 
unfitted  for  his  place,  of  which  imfitness  they  were  advised  by  the 
captain  himself.  It  continued  in  the  serious  quarrel  which  had  some 
time  developed  between  the  two  managers  of  the  company  and,  so  far 
as  this  case  is  concerned,  first  manifested  itself  in  the  open  rupture  at 

the  schooner's  side  at  Port  of  Spain  on  April  6,  when  the  captain, 
apparently  through  the  advice  and  approval  of  one  of  the  managers, 
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openly  defied  the  other,  and  where  one  of  its  managers  was  willing  to 
see  the  schooner  leave  the  port  stripped  of  every  essential  paper  to 
protect  itself  upon  the  seas,  to  become  a  floating  derelict  without 
right,  opposed  to  the  laws  of  all  civilized  nations  and  open  to  capture 

and  condemnation  without  recourse  or  remed)^.  It  was  concluded 
when  this  same  captain,  ignorantly  riding  over  the  laws  of  every  sea 
and  the  laws  of  every  civilized  port,  sailed  into  the  harbor  of  Giiiria. 
The  statements  of  Mr.  Delort,  made  to  the  harbor  master  of  the  port 
and  to  the  customs  officials  and  before  the  consul  of  Spain,  supported 
as  they  were  in  great  part  by  the  captain  and  whilom  steward,  were  so 
improbable  as  to  stagger  belief  and  might  well  awaken  just  suspicions 
in  the  breast  of  the  revenue  officers  of  that  port  concerning  the  real 
status  of  the  schooner. 

Article  48  of  the  Fiscal  Code  then  in  force  in  Venezuela  was : 

Should  only  the  register  be  missing,  then  such  measures  as  are  provided  in  law  shall  be 

taken  on  board  the  vessel,  *  *  *  and  the  fine  of  5,000  bolivars  shall  not  be  levied 
and  collected,  nor  shall  the  bond  be  demanded  when  the  master  can  prove  that  the  lack  of 

the  register  is  due  to  an  accident  which  he  could  neither  prevent  nor  foresee,  such  as  ship- 
wreck, fire,  or  violence  from  an  enemy  or  pirates,  a 

But  more  than  the  register  was  lacking.  The  clearance  issued  by 
the  consul  of  Venezuela  at  Port  of  vSpain  was  lacking.  There  were 
lacking,  also,  the  certificate  by  the  same  consul  of  compliance  on  the 
part  of  the  schooner  with  all  the  requirements  of  the  law  and  all  other 

papers  ordinarily  belonging  to  a  ship  that  is  about  to  sail  or  that  is 
sailing  on  the  seas.  The  master  could  not  prove  in  excuse  that  he  was 
in  this  plight  through  any  lack  of  foresight  or  through  any  accident. 
By  the  statement  of  both  Mr.  Delort  and  the  master  it  was  essentially 
true  that  there  had  been  no  accident  of  any  kind,  and  they  were  not 
in  the  port  of  Giiiria  through  any  imperious  necessity  which  they 
could  not  meet  and  overcome.  They  were  there  voluntarily  so  far  as 
the  master  was  concerned,  and  such  necessity  as  attended  their  situ- 

ation and  their  presence  was  the  act  of  one  of  the  managers  of  equal 
power  with  the  other;  no  stranger  had  intervened,  no  trespasser  had 
done  them  any  evil;  their  unjustifiable  departure  upon  and  across  the 
seas  and  their  entrance  into  the  harbor  of  Giiiria  were  wholly  attribut- 

able and  only  attributable  to  the  company,  its  managers  and  agents. 
Thus  far  Venezuela  is  not  involved.  Does  it  act  without  law  after- 

wards or  without  legal  right?  If  it  does  not,  then,  even  if  it  may  be 
considered  as  acting  harshly,  which  the  umpire  does  not  assert,  the 
Republic  of  France  has  no  right  of  intervention;  for  before  there  is 

right  of  intervention  there  must  be  a  legal  wrong  on  the  part  of  Vene- 
zuela. If  it  conforms  with  its  own  laws  in  its  own  ports,  and  if  those 

laws  are  such  as  are  the  product  of  civilization,  then  there  is  no  error, 
hence  no  responsibility  upon  the  state  and  no  right  of  intervention  on 

a  See  footnote  p.  34. 
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the  part  of  the  claimant  Government.  It  appears  that  Venezuela 
acted  in  this  respect  through  its  regular  officers  and,  until  the  contrary 
is  clearly  shown,  the  acts  of  those  officers  must  be  assumed  to  be  regular 

and  proper.  There  is  a  very  proper  presumption  to  this  effect;  and 
it  is  proper  public  policy  and  a  proper  protection  of  the  public  and  its 
interests  that  such  a  presumption  should  attend  the  execution  of 
official  duties.  (120  U.  S.  Sup.  Ct.,  605;  14  Johnson  (N.  Y.),  182;  19 
Johnson  (N.  Y.),  345.) 

The  general  presumption  is  that  public  officers  perform  their  official 
duties,  and  that  their  official  acts  are  Tegular.  (American  and  Eng. 
Enc.  of  Law,  2d  edition,  Vol.  22,  page  1267,  citing  in  note  24,  a  long 
line  of  cases  in  England  and  the  United  States.) 

Where  some  preceding  act  or  preexisting  fact  is  necessary  to  the 
validity  of  an  official  act,  the  presumption  in  favor  of  the  validity  of 

the  official  act  is  presumptive  proof  of  such  preceding  act  or  preex- 
isting fact.  (lb.  1269  and  note  1  on  same  page,  citing  long  line  of 

supporting  cases  in  the  U.  S.  Sup.  Ct.  and  in  State  courts.) 
Similarly  there  is  a  presumption  of  good  faith  in  favor  of  public 

officers.  This  presumption  is  applied  to  sustain  the  regularity  of 
official  acts  in  favor  of  individuals  who  rely  thereon.  (Supra  and  note 
3,  citing  a  line  of  decisions  made  by  the  United  States  Sup.  Ct.) 

A  natural  presumption  attends  them  to  that  extent. 
So  far  as  appears,  the  court  which  proceeded  to  condemn  the 

schooner  to  pay  a  fine  was  acting  within  its  jurisdiction  and  within 
its  right,  and,  until  the  contrary  appears,  its  act  will  be  presumed  to 
be  regular  and  its  judgment  righteous. 

This  presumption,  supported  by  authorities  above  cited,  applies 
equally  to  the  actions  and  decisions  of  courts.  It  is  only  necessary 
to  show  that  jurisdiction  is  clearly  vested,  and  then  the  maxims  or 

rules  ''Omnia  praesumuntur  rite  esse  acta"  and  ** Omnia  praesumun- 
tur  legitime  facta,  donee  probetur  in  contrarium"  apply.  (See  Am. 
and  Eng.  Enc.  of  Law,  2d  edition.  Vol.  22,  pages  1270-71  and  the  cases 
cited  under  note  4  of  page  1271,  both  from  the  United  States  Sup.  Ct. 
and  from  many  of  the  State  courts.) 

The  acts  of  the  court  must,  in  the  first  instance,  be  presumed  to  be  regular  and  in  conform- 
ity with  settled  usage,  and  are  conclusive  until  reversed  by  a  competent  authority.  Wil- 

liams V.  U.  S.,  1  Howard  (U.  S.  Sup.  Ct.)  290. 

Best,  ''Principles  of  the  Law  of  Evidence/'  first  American  from  the 
sixth  London  edition.  Subsection  IV,  under  head  of  ''Presumptions  in 
favor  of  validity  of  acts,*'  the  entire  subsection  and  notes. 

So  far- as  has  appeared  before  the  umpire,  the  laws  of  Venezuela  in 
regard  to  these  matters  are  in  harmony  with  the  laws  of  other  civilized 

countries,  and  it  does  not  yet  appear  before  the  umpire  wherein  the 
fiscal  court  at  the  port  of  Guiria  committed  error  in  subjecting  this 
schooner  to  the  fine  which  had  been  voluntarily  invited  by  its  appear- 

ance in  the  condition  which  is  proven  and  adniitted. 
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That  the  Government  at  Caracas  yielded  later  to  the  strenuous 
demand  of  the  consul  of  Holland  at  Port  of  Spain  rather  than  to 
withstand  the  demand  is  not  to  the  umpire  an  admission  on  the  part 
of  the  respondent  Government  that  its  acts  in  reference  to  the  Love 
and  Lulu  had  been  irregular  and  unlawful. 

From  the  facts  appearing  in  this  case  the  umpire  is  fully  satisfied 
that  Frierdich  &  Co.  was  practically  defunct  on  the  8th  of  April,  1899, 
and  that,  regardless  of  the  incident  of  the  Love  and  Lulu,  it  would 
have  met  substantially  the  same  subsequent  conditions  and  would 
have  ended  in  as  complete  and  hopeless  failure  as  in  fact  followed. 
This  failure  was  in  no  especial  sense  hastened  by  the  incident  at  Giiiria, 
and  the  only  burden  which  the  detention  of  the  Love  and  Lulu  at 
Giiiria  placed  upon  the  company  was  the  sum  which  it  had  to  pay  for 
the  use  of  the  boat  that  took  the  workmen  from  its  asphalt  mines  back 
to  Trinidad ;  and  this  is,  of  course,  a  sum  of  no  great  significance. 

Whether  or  not  the  action  of  the  customs  officers  at  Guiria  and  of 

the  fiscal  court  were  in  fact  regular  and  necessary  is  a  matter  of  but 
slight  pecuniary  importance  to  the  claimant  company,  and  since  it 
was  the  primary  and  potent  cause  of  its  own  misfortunes  in  connection 
with  this  incident  and  by  its  own  voluntary  misconduct  brought  these 
inquiries,  vexations,  and  expenses  upon  the  customs  officers  and  the 
court  at  Guiria,  it  is  not  in  position  to  scrutinize  very  closely  what 
the  officers  or  court  of  Venezuela  did  or  did  not  do. 

Here  may  be  applied  with  a  certain  degree  of  propriety  one  of  the 

most  important  maxims  of  equity,  viz,  ''He  who  comes  into  equity 
must  come  with  clean  hands.'' 

It  certainly  has  brought  pecuniary  indebtedness  to  Venezuela  in 
virtue  of  what  occurred  at  Guiria  through  its  own  fault,  which  it  has 
not  yet  asked  the  privilege  to  discharge. 

And  in  this  connection  the  claimant  company  may  properly  consider 

the  value  of  another  of  the  maxims  of  equity,  ̂ az,  ''He  who  seeks 

equity  must  do  equity." 
As  the  question  is  presented  here,  it  does  not  involve  the  final  judg- 

ment of  the  court  condemning  the  ship  to  a  payment  of  the  fine ;  nor 
any  matter  of  restitution  of  the  ship,  for  that  occurred.  It  involves 

only  the  question  of  detention,  and  detention  involves  only  the  ques- 
tion of  its  reasonableness  in  point  of  time  consumed,  for  a  sufficient 

time  to  know  all  the  facts  and  to  assemble  them  before  the  court,  and 

for  the  court  to  act  thereon  was  a  necessary  adjunct  to  the  situation. 

If  the  conditions  on  both  sides  are  regarded  as  producing  an  equilib- 
rium, justice  is  done,  in  the  opinion  of  the  umpire;  and  he  so  holds. 

This  claim  is  dismissed  for  want  of  equity  in  the  claimant  company, 
and  the  award  will  be  diawn  accordingly. 

NoRTHFiELD,  July  31,  1905, 
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HEAT>  NOTES. 

The  respondent  Government  is  held  liable  for  injuries  suffered  by  a  Frenchman  in  the  pres- 
ence of  the  general  in  command  of  a  division  of  the  Venezuelan  army,  it  appearing  that 

the  party  injured  was  in  the  presence  of  the  commanding  general  by  his  personal  order 
and  that  the  injury  was  caused  by  a  subordinate  officer  without  justifying  reasons. 

The  injury  being  found  to  be  reprehensible  in  character  and  the  respondent  Government  for 

reasons  of  state  declining  or  neglecting  to  punish  the  guilty  persons,  it  is  chargeable 
with  the  actual  damages  suffered  by  the  injured  person  and  such  further  sum  as  is  held 

to  be  sufficient  to  make  proper  amends  to  the  claimant  Government  for  this  affront  to 

it  through  one  of  its  nationals. 

It  being  found  by  the  umpire  that  the  person  came  to  his  death  through  the  injuries  thus 

suffered,  but  before  February  19,  1902,  it  is  held  that  such  only  of  his  brothers  and 
sisters  as  are  of  French  nationality  can  present  a  claim  before  this  commission  to 
recover  for  his  death. 

This  tribunal  does  not  exist  because  of  damages  suffered  in  Venezuela,  except  these  be  dam- 

ages of  Frenchmen,  limited  in  this  case  to  the  next  of  kin  of  the  deceased,  who  are  them- 
selves Frenchmen.  If  none  be  French,  then  the  claim  falls.  It  is  not  possible  to  hold 

other  than  that  the  national  quahty  of  the  claimant  in  fact  determines  the  jurisdiction 
of  the  commission. 

It  is  elementary  that  the  burden  of  establishing  nationality  is  with  the  claimant.  It  can 
not  be  assumed  or  conjectured,  but  must  be  clearly  proven. 

Record  proof  is  not  essential  if  there  be  other  that  is  convincing. 

«  EXTRACT  FROM  THE   MINUTES  OF  THE   SFTTINQ  OF  MAY    19,  1905. 

We  then  took  up  the  examination  of  the  claim  of  the  heirs  of  Mr.  Jean  Maninat. 
The  French  arbitrator,  considering  on  one  hand  that  Mr.  Jean  Maninat  has  died  as  a  re^t 

of  a  wound  which  the  Venezuelan  officer  gave  him,  but,  on  the  other  hand,  that  Mr.  Pierre 

Maninat  does  not  prove  sufficiently  his  grievance  against  the  Venezuelan  authorities  in  the 

course  of  his  legal  proceedings  with  his  creditors,  accx)rds  to  the  heirs  of  Mr.  Jean  Maninat 
a  sum  of  500,000  bolivars  for  the  erisemhle  of  damages  which  they  have  suffered  for  the 

reparations  which  were  due  them. 
The  Venezuelan  arbitrator  is  of  the  opinion  that  Mr.  Jean  Maninat  was  cured  of  his  wound 

when  he  was  attacked  by  tetanus,  from  which  he  died;  that  none  of  the  grievances  formu- 
lated by  him  or  his  heirs  is  established  by  sufficient  proofs;  that  besides  Pierre  Maninat, 

bom  in  Venezuela,  is  a  Venezuelan  according  to  Venezuelan  law,  and  that  all  his  four  sisters, 

were  bom  without  doubt  also  in  Venezuela.  Two  are  married  to  foreigners,  and  have  conse- 
quently lost  their  French  nationality.     Wherefore  he  rejects  absolutely  the  claim  in  question. 

M.  de  Peretti  replies  that  according  to  the  French  law  M.  Pierre  Maninat  and  his  sisters, 
save  those  two  who  have  married  foreigners,  have  conserved  their  French  nationality,  besides 

the  fact  that  Mr.  Jean  Maninat,  bom  in  France,  enjoyed  incontestably  French  nationality 

justifies  in  his  eyes  the  competency  of  the  commission. 

As  he  maintained  his  opinion  previously  expressed,  it  is  agreed  that  the  claim  be  sub- 
mitted to  the  lion.  Frank  Pluraley,  Northfield,  Vt. 

44 
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The  marriage  of  a  sister  of  the  deceased  to  a  Frenchman  established  her  French  nationality 

during  marriage,  which  under  French  law  remains  after  the  death  of  her  husband. 

There  is  some  proof  that  she  was  bom  in  France,  none  that  she  was  bom  in  Venesiuela. 
Her  French  nationality  being  clearly  established  in  her  marriage,  the  burden  shifts  and 

reste  upon  Venezuela  to  show  Venezuelan  origin  to  divest  her  of  the  nationality  attaiaed 

through  her  marriage.  This  not  being  done  by  Venezuela,  she  is  declared  French  and 

competent  to  present  her  claim  as  next  of  kin  to  her  deceased  brother  for  the  damages 

suffered  by  her  because  of  his  death. 

Both  Grovemments  must  be  assumed  to  have  had  definite  knowledge  of  the  serious  disagree- 
ment between  them  in  the  matter  of  citizenship,  yet  they  agreed  upon  the  use  of  the 

expression  "  Frenchmen."  To  agree  there  must  have  been  mutual  assent  and  common 
understanding  of  the  term  employed.  It  is  not  suggested  that  either  of  the  contract- 

ing parties  yielded  any  point  of  its  difference  in  this  matter  of  citizenship.  To  agree, 
then,  they  must  meet  upon  a  common  ground.  This  common  ground  must  have  been 

the  plain  where  by  the  laws  of  both  countries  the  claimant  is  a  Frenchman. 

Two  ̂   interpretations  being  possible,  that  is  to  be  taken  which  is  least  onerous  upon  the 
party  to  be  charged  with  the  service  or  with  the  loss  resulting  from  the  agreement. 

There  is  also  the  rale  that  in  conflict  of  laws  the  law  of  the  place  of  domicile  should  prevail' 
For  France  to  intervene  where  the  claimant  is  a  Venezuelan  by  the  laws  of  Venezuela  and 

French  under  the  laws  of  France  would  make  the  law  of  France  superior  to  the  law  of 

Venezuela,  which  is  not  permissible  between  two  sovereign  nations. 

The  right  of  the  respondent  Government  to  regulate  her  own  internal  affairs  by  determining 
who  are  her  citizens,  which  involves  mutual  protection  and  support,  is  too  essential  an 

attribute  of  sovereignty  to  be  invaded  or  disturbed. 

The  rale  of  a  nation  requiring  that  one  who  is  bom  in  the  country  shall  ordinarily  be  its 
citizen  is  a  reasonable  requirement. 

To  all  the  wOrld  but  Venezuela  France  may  follow  each  succeeding  generation  bom  in  Vene- 
uela  but  of  French  origin  so  long  as  her  affections  dictate  or  her  laws  require  or  permit; 
but  not  so  as  to  Venezuela. 

The  effort  of  one  of  the  sons  to  establish  French  nationality  by  acts  of  allegiance  after  the 

death  of  the  injured  person  can  not  affect  his  right  as  a  claimant  here,  as  that  depends 

in  this  case  upon  the  national  quality  of  the  claimant  at  the  time  of  the  inception  of 
the  claim. 

The  next  of  kin  found  to  be  of  French  nationality,  being  a  widowed  sister,  r^n  properly  sus- 
tain and  maintain  a  claim  for  some  pecuniary  loss,  although  she  was  never  dependent 

upon  him  for  care  or  support  and  although  there  is  no  proof  that  he  ever  rendered  either 

and  no  proof  that  she  was  ever  so  circumstanced  as  to  need  either. 
In  this  case  the  greater  portion  of  the  damages  assessed  and  made  payable  to  the  next  of 

kin,  found  to  be  French,  is  because  of  the  unatoned  indignity  to  France  through  the 

injury  received  by  one  of  her  nationals. 
This  tribunal  has  no  part  in  the  final  allotment  or  distribution  of  the  sum  awarded  to  France 

through  the  personality  of  the  sister  for  whom  France  has  a  right  of  intervention. 
France  has  absolute  dominion  over  the  proceeds  of  the  award,  and  with  its  distribution 
this  commission  has  nothing  to  do. 

OPINION  OF  THE  VENEZUELAN  COMMISSIONER. 

Pedro  Maninat,  now  a  resident  in  Guatemala,  presented  to  the  minis- 
ter of  foreign  affairs  of  France,  on  the  19th  of  August,  1901,  a  demand 

of  indemnity  against  the  Government  of  Venezuela  for  the  sum  of 
2.,000,000  francs,  adducing  as  the  ground  thereof  that  in  the  year 

1898,  while  he,  with  his  brother  Juan  Maninat,  was  residing  and  estab- 
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lished  in  the  city  of  Valencia,  under  the  firm  name  of  "  Maninat  Her- 
manos/'  with  two  branch  houses,  one  at  Tinaquillo  and  the  other  at 
San  Cdrlos,  a  revolution  broke  out;  that  his  houses  were  robbed  and 

submitted  to  requisitions;  that  his  brother  Juan  Maninat  was  ill- 
treated  and  wounded  in  the  presence  of  General  Atilio  Vizcarrondo, 

the  second  chief  of  the  expeditionary  army  of  the  government  of  Gen- 
eral Andrade,  and  died  one  month  after  that  outrage;  that  Pedro 

Maninat  himself  was  the  victim  of  numerous  persecutions,  in  the 

subsequent  years,  which  compelled  him  to  abandon  the  country  and  ̂ 
thus  avoid  attempts  of  murder. 

Mr.  Pedro  Maninat  adds  that  the  conformity  of  the  amount  of  his 

claim  is  proved  by  the  following  documents,  deposited  with  the  lega- 
tion of  France  at  Caracas: 

A.  Declaration  written  by  his  brother  himself  before  his  death  and 
addressed  to  Mr.  Quievreux. 

B.  Declaration  signed  by  thirty-three  merchants,  witnesses  of  the 
facts  that  took  place  at  Tinaquillo. 

B  ̂'^.  Copy,  certified  and  legaHzed  by  the  legation  at  Caracas,  of  the 
final  part  of  the  declaration  B,  corroborating  its  contents. 

C.  D.  E.  F.  Declaration  of  which  the  author  of  the  outrage  pre- 
tended to  make  use  in  order  to  make  it  appear  that  he  had  been 

attacked  by  the  brother  of  Maninat.  Extract  of  the  certificate  of 
birth.     Report  of  the  physicians.     Certificate  of  death. 

G.  Petition  of  Mr.  Pedro  Maninat  to  Mr.  Quievreux  asking  him  to 
ask  for  a  certified  copy  of  several  writings  forming  part  of  the  records 

relating  to  the  bankruptcy  of  ''Maninat  Hermanos,"  existing  in  the 
archives  of  the  court  of  the  first  instance  in  civil  and  mercantile  mat- 

ters at  Valencia  mentioned  with  indication  of  sheets,  and  which  Mani- 
nat considers  indispensable  to  ask  for  the  intervention  of  the  French 

Government  and  demand  from  the  Government  of  Venezuela  the 

payment  of  a  just  indemnification,  the  justice  and  precision  of  which 
are  irrecusably  established  in  the  documents  asked  for. 

There  also  appears  among  the  papers  of  these  records  a  letter  dated 
Lima,  the  2d  of  March  of  the  current  year,  signed  by  Justina  Maninat, 
widow  of  Coss^,  addressed  to  the  minister  of  France  in  Venezuela, 
bringing  to  his  knowledge  that  she  is  one  of  the  sisters  of  the  late  Juan 
Bautista  Maninat,  whose  claim  initiated  by  him  in  1898  and  pursued 
after  his  death  by  his  brother  Pedro  Maninat  in  1901,  must  be  in  his 
possession.  The  signer  of  this  letter  asks  the  minister  of  France,  at 
the  same  time,  to  kindly  take  note  of  the  existence  of  her  sister  Clotilde 
Maninat  de  Saldias,  domiciled  in  Lima,  and  in  whose  house  she  lives 
with  her  sister  Juana  Maninat,  as  well  as  of  the  existence  of  Josefina 

Maninat  de  Beguerisse,  residing  in  Guatemala;  and  that,  as  they  are 

the  only  persons  entitled  to  the  claim  brought  against  the  Govern- 
ment of  Venezuela  for  the  robberies,  outrages,  and  chiefly  for  the 
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proved  murder  of  their  brother  Juan,  she  asked,  in  her  own  name  and 
in  that  of  her  sisters,  to  be  informed  as  to  the  present  state  of  said 
claim. 

In  this  claim  two  orders  of  facts  are  intermingled  and  confounded^ 
so  as  to  give  rise  to  a  variety  of  questions,  which,  based  only  on  the 
statement  of  the  claimant,  are  destitute  of  all  proof  and  ground. 
Some  are  relative  to  the  wound  received  by  Juan  Bautista  Maninat 
in  the  city  of  Tinaquillo  on  the  15th  of  April,  1898,  and  others  to  the 
suit  of  bankruptcy  entered  at  Valencia  in  the  year  1899,  against  the 

firm  of  "Maninat  Hermanos"  on  account  of  the  state  of  insolvency 
in  which  said  firm  was  at  the  death  of  Juan  Bautista  Maninat,  which 

took  place  on  the  13th  of  May,  1898. 

What  is  styled  "claim  initiated  by  Juan  Bautista  Maninat,  in  the 
year  1898,and  continued  after  his  death  by  his  brother  Pedro  Maninat,^' 
is  only  a  simple  statement  of  facts  narrated  by  the  former  to  Mr.  Quie- 
vreux  in  a  letter  of  seven  pages,  written  in  his  own  handwriting  by 
Juan  Bautista  Maninat  on  the  26th  of  April,  1898,  in  which,  already 
recovered  from  his  wounds,  gives  him  details  as  to  the  attempt  of 
which  he  held  that  he  was  a  victim  on  the  14th  of  April  and  asks  in 

conclusion  for  the  protection  of  the  French  Government  for  the  pun- 
ishment of  those  he  considered  guilty,  and  to  the  end  that  the  fact 

of  which  he  complained  should  not  remain  unpunished. 

As  appears  proved  by  the  letter  dated  the  26th  of  April  of  the  same 

year,  addressed  by  the  consular  agent  at  Valencia  to  the  vice-consul 
of  France  in  Caracas,  Mr.  Qui^vreux,  Mr.  Juan  Bautista  Maninat  was 

in  a  position  by  said  date  to  come  to  Caracas,  overrunning  a  distance 

of  150  kilometers,  and  to  return  soon  after  to  Valencia.  From  the  cer- 
tificate produced  by  Messrs.  Juan  Bautista  Posadas  and  Francisco 

Cisneros,  medical  doctors  who  examined  at  the  request  of  the  judge 
of  the  municipality  of  Tinaquillo,  Juan  Bautista  Maninat,  on  the  16th 
of  April,  the  following  day  after  the  occurrence,  it  appears  that  the 
wound  situated  on  the  left  temporal  auricular  region  had  aflfected  the 

skin  and  subcutaneous  tissues,  the  respective  auricular  lap  and  a  super- 
ficial part  of  the  masseteric  muscle,  wherefore  they  declared  it  to  be 

less  dangerous. 
From  the  certificate  of  death  presented,  issued  by  the  competent 

official  of  the  city  of  Valencia,  the  domicile  of  Juan  Bautista  Maninat, 

it  appears  that  the  latter  died  in  said  city  on  the  13th  of  May,  twenty- 
eight  days  after  the  medical  examination  and  sixteen  days  after  his 
trip  to  Carac9,s,  of  traumatic  tetanus,  as  was  certified  by  Dr.  J.  R. 
Revenga.  From  what  has  been  exposed  it  is  inferred  that  the  death 
of  Juan  Bautista  Maninat  was  not  caused  by  the  wound  he  received 
at  Tinaquillo,  and  that  it  was  the  consequence  of  a  disease  acquired, 
how  and  for  what  reasons  it  does  not  appear.  The  civil  responsibility 

for  indenmification  of  damages  and  prejudices  in  the  .cases  of  perpe- 



48  CASE    OF   HEIES    OF   JEAN   MANINAT. 

tration  of  an  offense  constitutes  a  claim  of  the  person  damaged  against 
the  author  of  the  damage  and  is  brought  simultaneously  with  the 
penal  action  or  separately.  There  is  no  responsibility  on  the  part  of 
the  government  of  a  country  for  such  facts,  except  in  the  case  of  denial 
of  justice  or  of  notorious  injustice  in  the  action  brought  by  the  party 
offended  against  the  author  of  the  offensive  act.  The  suit  for  civil 
responsibility  that  may  be  brought  by  everyone  that  has  sustained  a 
damage  in  his  person  or  interests  against  the  author  or  authors  of  an 

offensive  act  was  not  entered  by  Juan  Bautista  Maninat  or  by  his  law- 
ful heirs  against  the  party  suspected  of  responsibility  for  the  damage 

done  to  the  former. 

The  claim  against  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  which  can  only  be 
based  on  a  denial  of  justice,  in  the  respective  suits  in  which  both  the 

penal  and  the  civil  action  have  been  evidenced  and  decided,  simul- 
taneously or  separately,  is  therefore  destitute  of  all  ground  that  may 

render  it  admissible,  for  Juan  Bautista  Maninat,  or  the  present  claim- 
ants, who  have  not  entered  the  civil  action  pertaining  to  them  against 

General  Atilio  Vizcarrondo. 

The  civil  action  to  be  entered  for  the  reparations  and  restitutions  in 

the  cases  established  by  the  penal  law  can  not  be  decided  without  a 
firm  sentence  having  been  rendered  in  the  penal  action,  when  the 

former  has  been  entered  separately,  and  when  it  has  been  simultane- 
ously entered,  or  when  the  party  offended  has  become  a  party  in  the 

civil  suit,  then  the  condemnatory  sentence,  which  imposes  a  punish- 
ment on  the  defendant,  gives  by  itself  to  the  party  offended  a  right 

to  the  reparations  owed  him  by  the  author  of  the  offense. 
The  commission  of  an  offense  can  only  give  rise,  therefore,  to 

reparation  by  means  of  a  civil  action,  the  offended  party  constituting 
himself  a  civil  party  in  the  respective  penal  process,  or  separately 

entering  his  action  as  plaintiff,  in  which  latter  case,  that  such  repara- 
tions may  be  obtained,  the  exhaustion  must  precede  of  all  ordinary 

and  extraordinary  remedies  which  the  law  offers  the  defendant 
against  the  sentence  declaring  him  guilty. 

Nothing  of  this  appears  proved  by  the  documents  produced  before 
this  commission. 

The  declaration  which  has  been  presented  with  several  signatures  of 

private  individuals  of  Tinaquillo,  and  another  of  the  judge  of  the  muni- 
cipality of  the  district  of  Falc6n  relating  to  the  acts  which  occurred 

during  the  stay  of  the  forces  of  Gen.  Atilio  Vizcarrondo  at  Tinaquillo, 
are  destitute  of  all  evidential  force  and  are  not  authcRtic,  for  which 
reason,  besides  our  being  unable  to  take  them  into  consideration,  they 
are  not  proper  as  evidence  that  there  has  been  any  denial  of  justice 
against  Mr.  Juan  Bautista  Maninat  while  endeavoring  to  obtain 
before  the  court  the  condemnation  to  the  payment  of  damages  and 
prejudices  against  him  whom  he  considered  responsible  for  his  wound. 
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as  for  that  he  would  have  been  required  to  constitute  himself  as 
plaintiflF  in  the  respective  process. 

The  local  authorities  proceeded  to  open  the  investigation  ordered 
by  the  law  immediately  after  the  wound  of  Mr.  Maninat  had  occurred, 
and  the  national  Government,  as  appears  from  the  notes  interchanged 
between  its  minister  of  foreign  affairs  and  the  vice-consul  of  France, 

uptook,  as  soon  as  it  was  informed  of  the  occiurence,  all  the  steps  lead- 
ing to  the  investigation  of  the  particulars  of  the  case.  It  thus  appears 

from  the  proceedings  shown  by  the  records  kept  in  the  court  of  the 
district  of  Falc6n  upon  which  the  investigation  of  the  fact  was 
incumbent. 

The  Venezuelan  arbitrator,  therefore,  finds  no  groimd  for  the  con- 
cession of  an  indemnity  to  the  heirs  of  Juan  Bautista  Maninat,  even  if 

any  of  his  sisters  were  of  French  nationaUty  and  had  preserved  it,  for 
the  wound  received  by  the  former,  which  wound  was  the  object  of 
investigation  on  the  part  of  the  competent  officials  who  complied 
therein  with  the  legal  prescriptions,  whilst  it  is  not  proved  that 
Maninat  ever  brought  on  his  part  any  action  against  those  he  con- 

sidered responsible,  and  much  less  that  the  com*ts  called  to  try  and 
decide  this  demand  of  indemnification  had  committed  any  denial  of 
justice  or  notorious  injustice. 

As  to  the  acts  mentioned  by  Mr.  Pedro  Maninat  to  justify  the 
amount  of  his  claim  and  relating  to  the  bankruptcy  suit  entered  before 
the  competent  tribunals  of  the  State  of  Carabobo  against  the  firm  of 

'^  Maninat  Hermanos,"  domiciled  in  Valencia,  no  faith-deserving  evi- 
dence has  been  presented  in  support  of  the  pretensions  of  Pedro  Man- 
inat; and,  on  the  contrary,  from  the  terms  of  the  official  notes  of  the 

vice-consul  of  France,  Mr.  Qui6vreux,  inserted  in  the  records,  it  appears 
proved  that  said  official  always  considered  it  to  b^  his  duty  to  remain 
aUen  to  the  reiterated  demands  of  Pedro  Maninat,  that  he  should  inter- 

fere in  a  commercial  affair,  exclusively  submitted  to  the  tribunals  of 
the  coimtry  and  which  could  only  be  taken  into  consideration  when 
there  was  a  denial  of  justice,  after  the  exhaustion  of  all  the  legal  reme- 

dies. All  the  circumstances  of  that  suit,  presented  by  the  claimant 
himself  in  different  statements  and  letters,  tend  to  prove  the  perfect 
regularity  of  the  bankruptcy  suit  and  the  correctness  of  the  proceed- 

ings followed  by  the  tribunals  that  tried  the  case  in  conformity  with 
the  provisions  of  the  commercial  code.  It  is  to  be  observed  that  it 
is  proved  by  the  certificate  of  birth  existing  in  the  parish  church  of 
Valencia  that  Pedro  Maninat  was  bom  in  that  town  in  1868,  and  that, 
therefore,  he  is  of  Venezuelan  nationaUty,  wherefore  he  can  not  claim 
from  the  Government  of  Venezuela  before  this  commission. 

For  all  the  preceding  reasons  the  claim  of  Pedro  Maninat,  amounting 

to  the  sum  of  2,000,000  francs,  is  disallowed  in  all  its  parts,  and  like- 
S.  Ppc  533,  5»-l   4 
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wise  what  Justina  Maninat,  widow  of  Coss6,  pretends  to  adduce  con- 
cerning the  same  claim  must  be  rejected. 

Caracas,  May  19,  1903. 

NOTE  BT  THE  VENEZUELAN  CX)MMISSIONEB. 

The  French  arbitrator,  as  appears  from  the  record  of  the  proceeding,  allowed  for  this  fl^ 
claim  the  sum  of  500,000  bolivars  for  the  death  of  Maninat,  which  he  considered  to  have 

been  occasioned  by  the  wound,  and  for  the  damages  that  death  caused  the  commercial  house. 
In  the  discussion  to  which  this  opinion  gave  rise  the  Venezuelan  arbitrator  argued  that  the 

person  who  had  presented  the  claim  was  Pedro  Maninat,  a  Venezuelan  citizen  by  birth,  as  he 
could  soon  prove  it  by  producing  the  certificate  of  birth  existing  in  the  city  of  Valencia; 
that  the  sisters,  Clotilde  Maninat  de  Saldias  and  Josefina  Maninat  de  Beguerisse,  even  in 

case  of  their  having  been  French  on  account  of  their  birth  in  French  territory,  by  the  time 
of  the  facts  on  which  the  claim  is  based  and  thereafter,  had  lost  their  French  nationality 

by  their  marriages  with  persons  alien  to  that  nationality.  These  circumstances  did  not 
modify  the  opinion  of  the  French  arbitrator  and  the  decision  was  submitted  to  the  umpire. 

OPIKIOK  OF  THE  FBEKCH  COMMISSIOKEB. 

M.  Kerre  Maninat  and  his  sisters,  Mdmes.  Justine  Coss6  (n6e  Mani- 
nat), Clotilde  Saldias  (n^e  Maninat),  Josephine  Beguerisse  (n6e  Mani- 

nat) ,  and  Mile.  Jeanne  Maninat,  claim  jointly  an  indemnity  of  2,000,000 
boUvars  for  the  murder  of  their  brother,  M.  Jean  Maninat,  who  died  in 
May,  1898,  from  the  result  of  a  wound  received  at  the  headquarters  of 
the  Government  forces,  for  the  damage  which  this  death  caused  this 
house  of  commerce,  Maninat  Brothers,  which  had  to  liquidate  its  affairs 
after  the  departure  of  its  head,  for  the  requisitions  and  the  confisca- 

tions upon  the  proprietors  of  this  house  by  the  Government  and  insur- 
gent troops,  for  the  persecutions  and  denials  of  justice  of  which  M. 

Pierre  Maninat  was  Ihe  victim  in  the  years  following  in  the  course  of 
the  defense  of  his  rights.  I  have  reduced  to  500,000  boUvars  the 
indemnity  which  I  believe  in  equity  due  to  those  interested.  I  have 
considered  in  the  first  place  as  not  debatable  that  the  Venezuelan 
Government  is  responsible  for  the  death  of  M.  Jean  Maninat.  The 
15th  of  April,  1898,  an  officer  sent  by  General  Vizcarrondo,  chief  of  the 
staff  of  General  Crespo,  presented  himself  at  the  home  of  M.  Jean 
Maninat  at  Tinaquillo  and  requested  him  to  hand  over  to  him  four 
drays,  of  which  General  Vizcarrondo  had  need  to  transport  his  ammu- 

nition. This  Frenchman,  who  had  already  often  loaned  without 
remuneration  a  like  aid  to  the  Venezuelan  authorities  to  further  the 

reestablishment  of  pubUc  order  and  who  had  just  been  the  victim  of 
an  armed  invasion  and  of  the  theft  of  an  amount  of  merchandise, 
showed  himself  ready  to  conform  to  this  requisition  on  condition  that 
General  Vizcarrondo  give  him  a  written  order.  In  this  he  only 
followed  the  precepts  of  good  sense  and  conformed  to  the  recommen-^ 
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dations  given  by  the  legation  of  France  to  its  compatriots.  Then  he 
sent  to  the  general  one  of  his  employees,  who,  far  from  obtaining  a 

written  order,  was  told  to  invite  his  employer  to  present  himself  with- 
out delay  at  headquarters.  Being  questioned  by  the  general  in  the 

midst  of  his  staff  and  summoned  to  obey,  M.  Maninat  did  not  refuse, 
but  renewed  his  demand  for  a  written  order.  This  very  natural 
insistence  exasperated  this  strange  chief  of  staff.  M.  Maninat  was 
insulted,  maltreated,  threatened  with  death,  grievously  wounded  by 
a  Venezuelan  officer,  and  put  in  prison,  from  which  he  only  got  out  by 
the  intervention  of  the  French  representative  at  Caracas.  If  there 
had  been  on  his  part  the  least  provocation,  the  authorities  would  not 
have  failed  to  invoke  it  and  apply  the  penal  law  in  all  its  rigor.  The 
prompt  release  of  the  prisoner,  culpable  merely  of  having  spoken  the 
language  of  reason,  of  defending  his  rights,  and  the  absence  of  all 
further  prosecution,  sufficed  to  prove  that  the  report  of  the  victim  is 
true  in  every  point.  No  one,  besides,  has  denied  the  accuracy  and  the 
public  opinion  at  the  time  of  the  incident  and,  since  I  have  been  able  to 

verify  during  my  sojourn  at  Valencia,  has  been  on  the  contrary  unani- 
mous in  confirming  it.  In  Uke  manner  the  numerous  A^atnesses  and  the 

certificates  of  the  doctors  who  figured  in  the  dossier  confirm  it,  and  also 
the  authorized  declaration  of  Mr.  Quievreux,  representative  of  the 
French  Government  at  Caracas,  who  received  the  visit  of  the  victim  some 

days  after  the  incident.  M.  Jean  Maninat  was  wounded  by  a  blow 
from  a  saber,  which  laid  open  his  face  from  the  forehead  to  the  ear  and 
would  have  killed  him  if  the  straw  hat  which  he  wore  had  not  lessened 

the  violence  of  the  blow.  The  wound  was  dressed,  and  M.  Maninat  was 
able  to  come  to  Caracas,  but  it  was  so  little  healed  that  the  13th  of 
May  M.  Maninat  died  from  traumatic  tetanus.  He  surely  would  never 
have  been  attacked  by  this  disease,  which  one  can  not  contract  except 
as  a  result  of  a  wound,  if  he  had  not  been  wounded.  One  can  aflBrm, 

then,  that  his  death  has  certainly  been  caused  by  unqualified  violence 
committed  upon  his  person  by  a  Venezuelan  officer.  It  seems  to  me 

just  that  Venezuela  indemnify  the  family  of  the  victim  of  such  treat- 
ment, which  in  all  countries,  even  in  time  of  war.  would  have  raised  a 

universal  reprobation  and  led  to  an  immediate  reparation.  It  is  nec- 
essary to  consider  in  the  second  place  that  M.  Jean  Maninat  was  the 

elder  of  the  family.  His  untimely  death  gave  a  blow  the  more  disas- 
trous to  the  house  of  Maninat  Brothers,  because  of  the  circumstances, 

difficult  for  every  commercial  enterprise.  Even  in  the  hypothesis 
that  the  affairs  of  this  company  may  have  been  jeopardized  for  some 
time,  which  is  not  in  any  way  proven,  but  which  would  be  very 
likely  considering  the  state  of  the  country,  one  ought  to  recognize  that 
the  disappearance  of  the  head  of  the  house  was  not  calculated  to 
ameliorate  the  situation  of  the  firm.  We  know  besides,  by  the 
report  of  the  Venezuelan  commission  in  bankruptcy,  that  the  result 
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result,  but  it  lacked  penalty;  besides  it  does  not  invalidate  in  any 
way  the  statement  of  the  victim. 

Moreover  the  Venezuelan  commissioner  holds  that  the  claim  of 

Pierre  Maninat  and  his  sisters  is  not  admissible  because  they  are 

Venezuelans  by  nationality,  being  bom  in  Venezuela,  but  Jean 
Maninat,  whose  death  and  material  losses  are  the  exclusive  grounds 

of  the  indemnity  to  be  awarded,  was  bom  in  France,  of  French  par- 
ents, and  never  did  acquire  Venezuelan  citizenship,  nor  did  he  lose 

his  French  nationality,  which,  on  the  other  hand,  no  one  has  ever  dis- 
puted. This  in  itself  is  sufficient,  no  matter  what  the  condition  of  the 

heirs  might  be,  to  submit  the  claim  to  the  commission  appointed  to 
hear  and  decide  on  French  claims.  But  I  consider  that  if  one  takes 

account  of  the  character  of  the  heirs,  the  mixed  commission  remains 
with  jurisdiction.  In  fact,  Pierre  Maninat  and  his  sisters  were  bom 

in  Venezuela,  but  of  French  parents;  they  enjoyed  then  two  nationali- 
ties at  once — at  their  birth  Frenchmen,  according  to  French  law,  Vene- 

zuelans according  to  Venezuelan  law.  This  is  indisputable,  but  when 

the  protocol  mentions  '^  claims  for  indemnities  entered  by  French- 

men/' this  means  claims  presented  by  persons  whose  protection  the 
French  Government  endeavors  to  insure,  because  they  are  recog- 

nized as  French  citizens  by  the  French  laws.  The  protocol  does  not 

specify  in  any  manner  that  the  laws  of  Venezuela  should  also  recog- 
nize such  persons  as  French  citizens.  On  the  contrary,  all  the  pro- 

tocols signed  in  Washington  last  year  between  Venezuela  and  the 
foreign  powers  have  expressly  established  that  local  legislation  was 
not  to  be  taken  into  consideration.  Besides,  two  of  the  sisters  of  Jean 

Maninat  have  assuredly  lost  their  Venezuelan  nationality  and  are 
exclusively  French,  since  they  have  married  Frenchmen,  Messrs. 
Coss6  and  Beguerisse.  Mile.  Jeanne  Maninat  has  been  away  from 
Venezuela  since  her  cnildhood  and  lives  in  Peru.  M.  Pierre  Maninat 

has  never  declared  himself  Venezuelan  and  has  always  maintained 
the  title  of  a  Frenchman.  He  left  Valencia  without  intention  of 

returning  and  has  settlea  at  Guatemala.  Finally,  he  has  fulfilled  "his 
military  obligation  according  to  the  French  law,  and  the  French  con- 

sular agents  at  Caracas  and  Valencia,  at  Puerto  Cabello  and  at  Guate- 
mala, have  already  written  him  on  their  registers  of  matriculation  of 

French  citizens.  In  an  analogous  case,  that  of  M.  Piton,  Doctor  Patil 

has  recognized  without  difficulty  the  jurisdiction  of  the  mixed  com- 
mission and  M.  Piton  has  obtained  a  large  indemnity.  As  for  the 

fourth  sister,  Madame  Saldias,  she  has  married  a  Peruvian  and  she 
has  not  lost  her  French  nationality  unless  the  Peruvian  law  accords 

the  nationality  of  her  husband.  In  this  case  she  has  also  lost  her  Vene- 
zuelan nationality;  but  even  as  to  this  last  mentioned,  the  only  one 

among  the  heirs  of  M.  Maninat  whose  nationality  may  be  doubtful, 

the  commission  of  arbitration  is  competent  to  accord  to  her  an  indem- 
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My  colleague  has  not  shared  this  opinion.  He  concludes  first,  from 

the  fact  that  M.  Jean  Maninat  did  not  succumb  until  twenty-eight 
days  after  having  been  wounded,  that  the  wound  received  at  Tina- 

quillo  was  not  the  cause  of  his  death,  which  was  ''the  result  ot  a 
disease  contracted  no  one  knows  in  what  manner  nor  from  what 

causes."  The  certificate  of  Doctor  Revenga  attests,  however,  M. 
Jean  Maninat  has  died  from  traumatic  tetanus;  that  is  to  say,  of 
tetanus  following  his  wound.  We  know  that  tetanus  is  a  disease 

which  develops  only  in  those  who  are  wounded.  It  is  then  indubita- 
ble that  the  saber  blow  received  by  M.  Maninat  was  the  efficient  cause 

of  his  death,  since  the  death  was  caused  by  tetanus,  and  tetanus  is 
the  result  of  a  wound ;  but  even  if  one  refuses  to  admit  it  contrary  to 

the  declaration  of  the  Venezuelan  doctor  and  also  contrary  to  the  evi- 
dence, it  remains,  nevertheless,  that  M.  Jean  Maninat  has  been  struck 

under  circumstances  of  which  we  are  acquainted ;  that  he  was  wounded 
by  an  officer  at  headquarters  where  he  had  been  ordered  to  come  and 
where  nothing  proves  that  he  did  not  conduct  himself  confornfably 
to  the  proprieties.  Even  if  not  followed  by  the  death  of  its  victim, 
this  cowardly  deed,  which  nothing  renders  doubtful  and  which  no  one 
thinks  a  benefit,  would  it  not  have  called  for  an  indemnity  so  much 
the  more  so  as  no  procedure  has  been  set  in  motion  against  the  guilty 

one?  Why  then  reject  entirely  the  claim?  Doctor  Paxil  then  estab- 
lished that  M.  Jean  Maninat  not  having  invoked  a  civil  action  conse- 
quent upon  or  parallel  with  a  penal  action  because  of  a  tort  of  which  he 

was  the  victim,  the  responsibility  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  is 
not  involved,  that  resulting  only  from  a  denial  of  justice,  or  notorious 
injustice.  One  can  reply  that  none  of  the  numerous  strangers  injured 
in  the  course  of  the  Venezuelan  revolution  and  beneficiaries  to  this 

right  ot  indemnity  accorded  by  the  mixed  commission  have  appealed 
to  the  justice  of  the  country.  All  protocols  of  Washington,  like  the 
protocol  of  Paris,  have  had  precisely  for  their  end  to  take  away,  by  an 
exception,  entered  upon  by  its  own  free  will  so  far  as  concerns  France, 
by  the  Venezuelan  Government,  foreign  claimants  from  ordinary 

tribunals  to  international  tribunals  before  whom  Venezuela  is  repre- 
sented. One  can  not  refuse  to  M.  Jean  Maninat  and  his  heirs  the 

privilege  granted  to  several  miUion  other  foreign  claimants  who  have 
been  benefited  by  this  exception  justified  by  the  circumstances.  It 
is  to  be  noted  that  the  protocols  do  not  speak  merely  of  denials  of 

justice.  They  concern  every  claim  of  whatever  nature  it  may  be. 
In  fact,  of  about  five  hundred  French  claimants  three  only  have 
claimed  for  denials  of  justice,  the  others,  like  the  Maninats,  not 

having  commenced  by  recourse  to  the  Venezuelan  justice  and  hav- 
ing directly  addressed  themselves  to  the  commissions  of  arbitration. 

As  for  the  investigation  ordered  by  the  local  authorities,  not  only  does 
it  not  seem  to  have  been  done  intending  to  bring  about  a  serious 



54  CASE    OF    HEIRS    OF   JEAN   MANINAT. 

result,  but  it  lacked  penalty;  besides  it  does  not  invalidate  in  any 
way  the  statement  of  the  victim. 

Moreover  the  Venezuelan  commissioner  holds  that  the  claim  of 

Pierre  Maninat  and  his  sisters  is  not  admissible  because  they  are 
Venezuelans  by  nationality,  being  bom  in  Venezuela,  but  Jean 
Maninat,  whose  death  and  material  losses  are  the  exclusive  grounds 

of  the  indemnity  to  be  awarded,  was  born  in  France,  of  French  par- 
ents, and  never  did  acquire  Venezuelan  citizenship,  nor  did  he  lose 

his  French  nationality,  which,  on  the  other  hand,  no  one  has  ever  dis- 
puted. This  in  itself  is  sufficient,  no  matter  what  the  condition  of  the 

heirs  might  be,  to  submit  the  claim  to  the  commission  appointed  to 
hear  and  decide  on  French  claims.  But  I  consider  that  if  one  takes 

account  of  the  character  of  the  heirs,  the  mixed  commission  remains 

with  jurisdiction.  In  fact,  Pierre  Maninat  and  his  sisters  were  bom 

in  Venezuela,  but  of  French  parents;  they  enjoyed  then  two  nationali- 
ties at  once — at  their  birth  Frenchmen,  according  to  French  law,  Vene- 

zuelans according  to  Venezuelan  law.  This  is  indisputable,  but  when 

the  protocol  mentions  ''claims  for  indemnities  entered  by  French- 

men/' this  means  claims  presented  by  persons  whose  protection  the 
French  Government  endeavors  to  insure,  because  they  are  recog- 

nized as  French  citizens  by  the  French  laws.  The  protocol  does  not 

specify  in  any  manner  that  the  laws  of  Venezuela  should  also  recog- 
nize such  persons  as  French  citizens.  On  the  contrary,  all  the  pro- 

tocols signed  in  Washington  last  year  between  Venezuela  and  the 
foreign  powers  have  expressly  established  that  local  legislation  was 
not  to  be  taken  into  consideration.  Besides,  two  of  the  sisters  of  Jean 
Maninat  have  assuredly  lost  their  Venezuelan  nationality  and  are 
exclusively  French,  since  they  have  married  Frenchmen,  Messrs. 
Coss6  and  Beguerisse.  Mile.  Jeanne  Maninat  has  been  away  from 
Venezuela  smce  her  cnildhood  and  Uves  in  Peru.  M.  Pierre  Maninat 

has  never  declared  himself  Venezuelan  and  has  always  maintained 
the  title  of  a  Frenchman.  He  left  Valencia  without  intention  of 

returning  and  has  settlea  at  Guatemala.  Finally,  he  has  fulfilled  "his 
military  obligation  according  to  the  French  law,  and  the  French  con- 

sular agents  at  Caracas  and  Valencia,  at  Puerto  Cabello  and  at  Guate- 
mala, have  already  written  him  on  their  registers  of  matriculation  of 

French  citizens.  In  an  analogous  case,  that  of  M.  Piton,  Doctor  Paul 

has  recognized  without  difficulty  the  jurisdiction  of  the  mixed  com- 
mission and  M.  Piton  has  obtained  a  large  indemnity.  As  for  the 

fourth  sister,  Madame  Saldias,  she  has  married  a  Peruvian  and  she 
has  not  lost  her  French  nationality  unless  the  Peruvian  law  accords 

the  nationality  oi  her  husband.  In  this  case  she  has  also  lost  her  Vene- 
zuelan nationality;  but  even  as  to  this  last  mentioned,  the  only  one 

among  the  heirs  of  M.  Maninat  whose  nationality  may  be  doubtful, 

the  commission  of  arbitration  is  competent  to  accord  to  her  an  indem- 
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nity,  since  she  presents  herself  only  as  the  heir  of  a  claimant  who 
enjoyed  exclusively  French  nationality. 

Finally,  we  ought  not  to  forget  that  according  to  the  terms  of  the 
protocol  an  indemnity  ought  to  be  paid  in  bonds  of  diplomatic  debts 

and  not  in  gold.  Thanks  to  this  concession  granted  to  the  Vene- 
zuelan Government  by  the  French  Government  to  permit  her  to  pay 

her  debts  with  greater  ease,  the  figure  of  indemnities  accorded  to 

Frenchmen  finds  itself  singularly  reduced  in  reality  while  the  indem- 
nities of  other  foreigners  are  payable  in  gold  and  do  not  undergo  any 

decrease  on  the  fixed  amount.  The  bonds  issued  by  the  Venezuelan 
Government  sustain  at  this  moment  a  depreciation  of  60  per  cent  of 
their  nominal  value.  The  result  would  be  then,  if  the  umpire  shares 

the  sentiment  of  the  French  arbitrator  and  recognizes  for  those  inter- 
ested an  indemnity  of  500,000  bolivars,  a  sum  of  200,000  boUvars 

in  gold  would  be  paid  to  the  heirs  of  M.  Jean  Maninat  by  the  Vene- 
zuelan Government. 

ADDITIONAL  OPINION  OF  THE  VENEZUELAN  COMMISSIONER. 

The  claim  under  discussion  was  made  by  M.  Pedro  Maninat  on 
April  19,  1901,  as  shown  in  his  conununication  from  the  city  of  Lima, 
bearing  said  date,  addressed  to  his  excellency  the  minister  of  foreign 
affairs  for  France  (Exhibit  3,  document  59).  Subsequent  to  this,  in  a 
letter  dated  at  the  said  city  of  Lima  on  March  2, 1903,  Justina  Maninat, 
widow  of  Coss6,  informed  the  French  minister  in  Caracas,  M.  Wiener, 

that  she  was  a  sister  of  the  deceased  Juan  Bautista  Maninat,  having 
an  interest  as  such  in  the  claim  entered  by  Pedro  Maninat,  and  that 
there  were  three  other  sisters,  Clotilde  Maninat  de  Saldias,  resident  in 
Lima;  Juana  Maninat,  resident  in  the  same  city,  and  Josefina  Maninat 
de  Beguerisse,  residing  in  Guatemala  (Exhibit  3,  document  62). 

Among  the  documents  delivered  to  the  French  commissioner  sub- 
sequent to  the  meeting  of  May  19,  1903,  when  I  rendered  my  opinion 

on  the  subject — documents  which  have  now  come  to  my  notice — 
there  are  two  letters  dated  at  Lima  on  March  24  and  April  22,  1903, 
bearing  the  signatures  of  Clotilde  Maninat,  wife  of  Saldias,  and  duly 
authorized  by  her  husband,  Eulogio  S.  Saldias ;  Justina  Maninat,  widow 
of  Coss6,  and  Juana  Maninat,  who,  of  their  own  personal  accord,  and 
desirous  of  maintaining  their  legitimate  rights,  urge  upon  the  French 
minister  in  Caracas  the  continuation  to  a  successful  issue  of  the  claim 

entered  by  their  brother,  Pedro  Maninat,  now  a  resident  of  Guatemala, 
and  formerly  of  Lima.  Neither  at  the  time  of  the  meeting  of  May  19, 
1903,  nor  in  conjunction  with  the  new  documents  produced,  has  any 
proof  whatever  been  introduced  showing  that  the  aforesaid  Josefina 
Maninat  de  Beguerisse,  who,  it  is  averred,  resides  in  Guatemala,  claims 
any  sun^  whatever  from  the  Venezuelan  Government,  nor  that  either 
the  lady  herself  or  her  husband,  Charles  Beguerisse,  may  have  given 
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their  consent  and  authority  to  introduce  their  names  and  persons  in 
this  claim,  an  indispensable  requisite  to  become  a  party  to  the  case. 

It  becomes  necessary  to  point  out  the  several  groimds,  growing  out 
of  facts  of  very  different  nature,  advanced  by  Pedro  Maninat  and  his 
sisters  Clotilde,  Justina,  and  Juana,  upon  which  rest  their  claim  for 
the  sum  of  2,000,000  francs.  Some  of  these  grounds  are  made  to 
originate  at  the  death  of  M.  Juan  Bautista  Maninat,  which  took  place 
in  May,  1898,  as  it  is  averred  that  his  death  was  the  result  of  a  wound 
received  by  him  in  the  general  headquarters  of  the  Government 
troops,  and  because  of  the  damages  sustained  thereby  by  the  firm  of 

^^ Maninat  Brothers,''  which  it  is  claimed  was  compelled  to  go  into 
liquidation  after  the  death  of  the  head  of  the  firm.  Other  grounds  are 

based  upon  certain  requisitions  and  seiziu'es  made  upon  the  property 
of  the  firm  by  both  the  Government  and  the  revolutionary  troops  and 
upon  the  persecutions  and  denial  of  justice  of  which  Pedro  Maninat 
claims  to  have  been  the  victim  in  subsequent  years  and  while  he  was 
engaged  in  defending  his  rights. 

The  French  commissioner  in  his  opinion  deems  an  indemnity  of 
500,000  bolivars  to  be  a  fair  compensation  for  the  heirs  of  Juan 
Maninat,  by  reason  of  the  death  of  a  brother  and  because  of  the  dam- 

ages suffered  before  and  after  his  death;  and  as  regards  the  denials  of 
justice  of  which  Pedro  Maninat  complains  as  having  occurred  during 

the  proceedings  originating  in  the  failure  of  *^ Maninat  Brothers,"  the 
commissioner  does  not  deem  the  claim  sufficiently  substantiated  to 
affect  the  responsibiUty  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  and  to  justify 
a  demand  for  indemnification. 

Therefore  our  opinions  as  commissioners  differ  on  points  relating  to 
the  several  questions  directly  connected  with  the  woimding  and 
death  of  M.  Juan  Bautista  Maninat;  to  the  persons  of  the  claimants 
Pedro,  Clotilde,  Justina  and  Juana  Maninat,  and  in  the  matter  of  the 
liability  of  the  Venezuelan  Government.  All  these  questions  must  be 
investigated  and  decided  by  the  light  of  the  principles  and  precedents 
established  by  international  law,  the  Venezuelan  laws  applicable  to 
the  case,  and  the  sound  and  just  consideration  of  such  facts  as  are 
fully  verified. 

The  learned  commissioner  for  France  makes  the  following  state- 

ment on  page  8  of  his  opinion :  ̂ 
The  Venezuelan  commissioner  holds  that  the  claim  of  Pedro  Maninat  and  his  sisters  is  not 

admissible,  because  they  are  Venezuelans  by  nationality,  being  bom  in  Venezuela,  but  Juan 
Maninat,  whose  death  and  material  losses  are  the  exclusive  grounds  (sujet)  of  the  indem- 

nity to  be  awarded,  was  bom  in  France  of  French  parents  and  did  never  acquire  Venezuelan 
citizenship,  nor  did  he  lose  his  French  nationality,  which,  on  the  other  hand,  no  one  has 
ever  disputed.  This  in  itself  is  sufficient^  no  matter  what  the  condition  of  the  heirs  might 

he,  to  submit  the  claim  to  the  commission  appointed  to  hear  and  decide  on  '^  French 

a  Page  54. 
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According  to  the  sound  principles  of  international  law,  it  is  impos- 
sible to  admit  the  opinion  held  by  my  learned  colleague  that,  no  matter 

what  the  condition  or  nationality  of  the  claimants  or  heirs  might  be, 

it  suffices  that  the  bonds  of  kinship  exist  between  them  and  the  per- 
son wronged  and  that  such  person  be  or  might  have  been  of  French 

nationaUty  for  the  case  to  come  under  the  claims  commission,  whose 

duty  it  is  to  hear  and  decide  on  **  French  claims." 
The  jurisdiction  of  this  claims  commission,  according  to  the  plain 

and  precise  terms  of  the  Paris  protocol  of  February  17,  1902,  to  which 
it  owes  its  existence,  can  not  embrace  other  claims  for  indemnification 

beyond  those  ̂ ^  entered  by  Frenchmen,"  it  being,  therefore,  indis- 
pensable to  prove  that  the  nationality  of  the  claimant  was  solely  and 

exclusively  French. 
It  can  not  therefore  be  held  imder  any  circiunstances  whatever  that, 

no  matter  what  the  nationaUty  of  the  claimant  might  be,  the  condition 
of  being  heir  to  a  person  who  was  a  Frenchman  at  the  time  of  his  death 
is  enough  to  bring  such  claim  under  the  jurisdiction  of  this  commission. 
In  support  of  my  opinion  the  following  quotations  are  pertinent : 

Sir  Edward  Thornton,  umpire  for  the  commission  of  the  United 
States  and  Mexico,  imder  the  convention  of  July  4,  1868,  makes  the 
following  statement: 

As  therefore  Mr.  lizardi^s  niece  is  not  a  citizen  of  the  United  States,  and  as  she  would  be 
the  beneficiary  of  whatever  award  the  commissioners  might  make,  the  imipire  is  decidedly 

of  the  opinion  that  the  case  is  not  within  the  jurisdiction  of  the  commission.  Even  if  the 
uncle,  Mr.  Lizardi,  had  been  a  citizen  of  the  United  States,  which  the  umpire  does  not 

admit,  whatever  may  have  been  the  merits  of  the  case  the  jurisdiction  of  the  commission 
would  have  ceased  on  the  death  of  Mr.  Lizardi.     (Moore  Int.  Arb.,  Vol.  3,  2483.) 

In  the  case  of  Elise  Lebret  before  the  Franco- American  commission 
the  counsel  for  the  United  States  said : 

When  the  treaty  pledges  compensation  by  France  to  citizens  of  the  United  States  it  refers 

to  those  persons  only  whose  citizenship  in  the  United  States  is  not  qualified  or  compromised 
hy  allegiance  to  France,  and  that  when  the  treaty  pledges  compensation  by  the  United  States 
to  citizens  of  France  reference  is  made  to  those  persons  only  who  are  not  only  citizens  of 
France,  hut  who  are  also  not  included  among  the  citizens  of  the  United  States. 

It  can  not  be  assumed  of  either  government  that  it  intended  to  compensate  persons  whom 
it  claims  as  its  own  citizens,  and  that  through  the  agency  of  another  government.  (Moore, 

Vol.  3,  2491;  48th  Cong.,  2d  sess.  Ex.  Doc.  235  (Boutwell's  Report),  p.  129.) 

It  has  been  shown  that  there  exist  precedents  of  mixed  commissions 
in  which  France  was  represented,  when  it  was  established  that  it  does 
not  matter  whether  the  claim  has  been  or  may  have  been  originally  a 
French  claim,  if  before  or  at  the  time  the  treaty  was  concluded  it  had 
ceased  to  be  such,  and  that  the  holder  of  the  claim  can  not  invoke  his 

government's  mediation  and  protection. 
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The  following  principles  were  established  by  the  commission  cre- 
ated by  the  protocol  concluded  between  the  United  States  and  France 

July  4,  1831,  as  the  rules  governing  the  commission: 

It  was  of  course  indispensable  to  the  validity  of  a  reclamation  before  the  commissioners 
that  it  should  be  altogether  American.  This  character  was  held  by  them  to  belong  only  to 
cases  where  the  individual  in  whose  name  the  claim  vxis  preferred  had  been  an  American  citizen 

at  the  time  of  the  wroTtgful  act  and  entitled  as  such  to  invoke  the  protection  of  the  United 

States  for  the  property  which  was  the  subject  of  the  wrong,  and  where  the  claim  up  to  the  date 

of  the  convention  had  at  all  times  belonged  to  American  citizens. 
It  was  necessary  for  the  claimant  to  show  not  only  that  his  property  was  American  when 

the  claim  originated,  but  that  the  ownership  of  the  claim  was  stiii  American  when  the  con- 
vention went  into  eflfect.  *  *  *  Nor  could  a  claim  that  lost  its  American  character 

ever  resume  it  if  it  had  heretofore  parsed  into  the  possession  of  a  foreigner  or  of  one  otherwise 

incapacitated  to  claim  before  the  commission.  (Moore,  Int.  Arb.,  vol.  3,  2388;  Venezuelan 
Arbitrations  of  1903,  p.  74.) 

As  a  precedent  bearing  upon  the  personal  circumstances  of  the 
claimants,  Pedro  Maninat  and  sisters,  that  of  Julio  Alvarez  against 
Mexico,  and  the  opinion  of  Sir  Edward  Thornton,  umpire,  rendered 
October  30,  1876,  may  be  cited,  as  well  us  that  of  Herman  F.  Wulff 

against  Mexico.     (Moore,  note  pp.  1353-1354). 
*  *  *  the  mnpire  can  not  acquiesce  in  the  arguments  put  forward  by  the  counsel  for  the 
claimant,  whoever  that  claimant  may  be.  He  is  of  the  opinion  that  not  only  must  it  be  proved 

that  the  person  to  whom  the  injury  was  done  was  a  citizen  of  the  United  States,  but  also 

that  the  direct  recipients  of  the  award  are  citizens  of  the  United  States,  whether  these  benefi- 
ciaries be  heirs  or  in  failure  of  them  creditors. 

The  principle  governing  the  matter  under  discussion  of  the  nation- 
aUty  of  the  claimant  is  stated  by  Moore,  page  1353,  as  follows: 

*  *  *  where  the  nationality  of  the  owner  of  a  claim,  originally  American  or  Mexican  had 
for  any  cause  changed,  it  was  held  that  the  claim  could  not  be  entertained.  Thus,  where  the 
ancestor,  who  was  the  original  owner,  had  died,  it  was  held  that  the  heir  could  not  appear  as 
a  claimant  unless  his  nationality  was  the  same  as  that  of  his  ancestor.  The  person  who  had 

the  *' right  to  the  award"  must,  it  was  further  held,  be  considered  as  ''the  real  claimant" 

by  the  commission,  and  whoever  he  might  be  "  must  prore  himself  to  be  a  citizen  "  of  the  Gov- 
ernment by  which  the  claim  was  presented. 

Juan  Maninat  did  not  establish  any  claim  against  the  Venezuelan 
Government  because  of  his  wound,  nor  because  of  damages  to  or 

•seizure  of  his  property.  During  the  twenty-eight  days  which  elapsed 
between  his  woimding  and  May  8,  1898,  when  he  was  taken  with  trau- 

matic tetanus,  it  only  appears  from  a  long  letter  in  his  own  handwrit- 
ing, consisting  of  7  pages,  addressed  from  Valencia  on  April  26, 

1898,  to  M.  Qui^vreux,  the  French  consul  in  Caracas,  that  having 
recovered  from  the  wound  he  was  about  to  give  him  details  of  the 
attempt  at  assassination  to  which  he  was  a  victim  on  April  15,  in  the 
presence  of  General  Vizcarrondo,  chief  of  the  general  staflF  of  General 

Crespo,  and  that  lie  might  'perhaps  state  (without  affirming  the  fact, 
however),  at  the  instigation  of  said  General  Vizcarrondo.  After  a 
minute  statement  of  the  facts  leading  to  the  woimd  and  of  the  wound 
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itself,  he  asks  the  French  consul  for  the  mediation  of  the  French  Gov- 
ernment, stating  that  the  attack  upon  him  was  an  insult  and  that  the 

French  colony  of  Valencia  and  the  neighboring  towns  suffering  from 
the  evils  of  war  were  indignant  and  demanded  justice  to  be  done. 

'^If  such  deed  should  go  unpunished  our  interests  and  our  lives 

would  be  forever  jeopardized,' '  Maninat  states  at  the  end  of  the 
aforementioned  letter. 

This  letter,  as  shown  by  note  No.  19,  gave  rise  to  the  official  com- 
munication sent  by  M.  Quievreux,  vice-consul  of  France  in  Caracas, 

to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs,  transmitting  the  original  letter  of  M. 

Juan  Bautista  Maninat;  and  somewhat  later,  May^24,  the  same  con- 
sular officer  wrote  again  to  the  above-mentioned  minister,  informing 

him  of  the  death  of  M.  Maninat,  produced  by  the  disease  called  trau- 
matic tetanus.  From  that  date  to  the  day  when  the  claim  was 

entered  by  Pedro  Maninat  before  the  French  minister,  three  years 
later,  no  other  mention  whatever  was  made  of  this  matter. 

From  the  documents  submitted,  it  does  not  appear  that  Juaiji 
Bautista  Maninat,  the  aggrieved  party,  who  during  his  convalescence 

was  able  to  personally  enter  a  claim  against  the  Venezuelan  Govern- 
ment, did  ever  enter  such  claim,  naming  in  money  the  compensation  for 

the  injury  and  the  damages  sustained  by  his  person  and  his  property; 
neither  does  it  appear  that  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  France 
had  demanded  from  the  Venezuelan  Government  an  apology  to  the 

French  nation  as  a  nation,  because  of  the  wound  received  by  Mani- 
nat, nor  that  it  had  been  ever  pretended  to  make  the  Government 

authorities  responsible  for  a  deed  which  the  victim  himself  qualifies  as 
an  outrage  to  the  French  colony. 

Moreover,  it  can  not  be  claimed  that  because  the  wrong  done  to  a 

citizen  or  subject  of  another  nation  involves  a  breach  of  international 

law,  the  nationality  of  the  aggrieved  party  must  be  taken  into  con- 
sideration-to  maintain  that  the  wrong  survives,  still  preserving  its 

original  nature,  and  that  it  is  a  matter  to  be  submitted  to  a  court  of 
the  nature  of  the  present  court,  even  in  the  case  that  the  aggrieved 

party  be  dead  or  has  changed  his  nationality,  or  the  right  to  indemnifi- 
cation is  claimed  by  persons  of  a  different  nationality  in  the  capacity 

of  heirs  or  creditors. 

Ralston,  umpire  for  the  Venezuelan  and  Italian  Claims  Commission 
created  by  the  Washington  protocol  of  February  13,  1903,  in  the  case 
of  Miliani  against  Venezuela,  sets  forth: 

While  it  remains  true  that  an  oflfense  to  a  citizen  is  an  oflfense  to  the  nation,  nevertheless 
the  claimant  before  an  international  tribunal  is  ordinarily  the  nation  on  behalf  of  its  citizen. 
Rarely  ever  the  nation  can  be  said  to  have  a  right  which  survives  when  its  citizen  no  longer 

belongs  to  it.     (Venezuelan  Arbitrations  of  1903,  Ralston's  Report,  p.  762.) 

Dealing  with  the  same  subject,  the  honorable  umpire,  Mr.  Plumley, 
in  the  case  of  Stevenson  against  Venezuela,  before  the  Venezuelan  and 
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British  Claims  Commission,  imder  the  Washington  protocol,  February 
13, 1903,  makes  the  following  statement: 

While  the  position  of  the  learned  agent  for  Great  Britain  is  undoubtedly  correct,  that 

underlying  every  claim  for  allowance  before  international  tribunals,  there  is  always  the  indig- 
nity to  the  nation  through  its  national  by  the  respondent  Government,  there  is  always  in 

commissions  of  this  character  an  injured  national  capable  of  claiming  and  receiving  money 

compensation  from  the  offending  and  respondent  Government.  *  *  *  To  have  meas- 

ured in  money  by  a  third  and  different  party  the  indignity  put  upon  one's  flag  or  brought 
upon  one's  country  is  something  to  which  nations  do  not  ordinarily  consent. 

Such  values  are  ordinarily  fixed  by  the  offended  party  and  declared  in  its  own  sovereign 

voice,  and  is  ordinarily  wholly  punitive  in  its  character,  not  remedial,  not  compensatory. 

(Ralston 's  Report,  pp.  450,  451.) 

Juan  Bautista  Maninat  having  died  without  having  entered  during 

his  life  any  pecuniary  claim  whatever  against  the  Venezuelan  Govern- 
ment because  of  the  wound  and  damages  sustained  by  him,  no  actu- 

ally existing  property  or  vested  rights  which  might  be  considered  as 
having  survived  his  death  and  capable  of  conveyance  and  continuation 
were  transmitted  to  his  heirs.  The  award  in  the  case  of  Oscar  Chopin 
against  the  United  States  under  the  convention  of  January  15,  1890, 
can  not  be  applied  to  the  present  claim.  The  Chopin  claim  was 
entered  on  behalf  of  Oscar  Chopin  himself  and  three  other  heirs  to  Jean 
Baptiste  Chopin,  formerly  a  French  citizen,  resident  in  Louisiana,  and 
who  died  in  1870,  leaving  as  a  portion  of  his  estate  the  claim  in  ques- 
tion.  Boutweirs  report  refers  to  the  award  in  favor  of  the  claimants 
for  a  certain  sum  and  makes  the  following  comments : 

It  may,  however,  be  assumed  fairly  that  the  commission  were  of  opinion  that  the  children 
of  Jean  Baptiste  Chopin,  although  bom  in  this  country,  were  citizens  of  France,  and  that, 

inasmuch  as  the  death  of  Oscar  Chopin  occurred  after  the  ratification  of  the  treaty  and  after 
the  presentation  of  the  memorial^  his  right  to  reclamation  had  become  so  vested  that  it 

descended  to  his  children,  independently  of  the  question  of  their  citizenship  in  France,  a 

The  claim  first  made  before  the  Government  of  France  by  Pedro 
Maninat,  three  years  after  the  death  of  Juan  Bautista  Maninat,  and 
subsequently  supported  by  his  sisters,  does  not  constitute  the  exercise 

of  any  rights  of  inheritance  which  at  the  time  of  Maninat^  s  death  were 
a  portion  of  the  estate,  which  could  have  been  transferred  to  his  sisters 
as  heirs  independently  of  the  question  of  citizenship.  The  claim 
originated  three  years  after  the  death  of  the  de  cujus  and  is  solely 
based,  as  the  French  commissioner  says,  on  the  death  and  material  losses 
sustained  before  and  after  such  death. 

The  origin,  the  nature,  and  the  moment  when  the  pretension  of  the 
claimants  came  into  hfe  being  so  clearly  and  precisely  established,  and 
leaving  aside  the  question  of  their  capacity  as  heirs,  as  no  property  or 
right  belonging  to  the  estate  of  the  deceased  Juan  Bautista  Maninat 
is  involved,  we  have  to  deal  in  the  first  place  with  the  question  of  the 

a  French  and  American  Gaims  Commission,  House  of  Representatives  £x.  Doc.  No.  235, 

Forty-eighth  Cong.,  2d  sess.  (BoutweD's  Report),  p.  83. 
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nationality  of  the  plaintiffs  who  have  entered  the  claim  for  indemnifi- 
cation, viz,  Pedro,  Juana,  Justina,  and  Josefina  Maninat,  and  later 

with  the  question  of  the  right  they  may  show  as  the  wronged  parties 
because  of  the  death  of  their  brother,  and  the  liability  such  death  may 
cause  to  the  Venezuelan  Government  in  view  of  the  established  facts 
only. 

From  the  statements  subscribed  to  by  Pedro  Maninat  and  by 
Clotilde  Maninat  de  Saldlas,  by  Justina  Maninat,  widow  Coss6,  and  by 
Jeanne  Maninat,  marked  with  the  numbers  5  and  8,  which  documents 
are  a  part  of  those  submitted  after  the  session  of  the  commission  on 

May  19,  1903,  it  appears  from  the  confession  of  the  deponents  them- 
selves that  Pedro,  Clotilde  de  Saldlas,  and  Juana  Maninat  were  bom  in 

Venezuelan  territory,  being,  therefore,  Venezuelans  by  birth  accord- 
ing to  Venezuelan  laws. 

As  regards  Josefina  Maninat  de  Beguerisse,  a  resident  of  Guatemala, 

not  only  has  the  fact  of  her  being  born  on  French  soil  not  been  estab- 
Ushed  because  the  proper  entry  in  the  respective  registers  of  births  has 
not  been  submitted  as  required,  but  she  has  not  made  any  claim 

against  the  Venezuelan  Government,  nor  does  it  appear  that  her  hus- 
band has  authorized  the  action  which  her  sisters  residing  in  Lima  have 

taken  in  her  behalf.  A  certificate  signed  by  the  chargfi  d'affaires  of 
France  in  Guatemala  has  been  produced  to  show  that  in  the  register  of 
citizenship  of  the  legation  there  exists  an  entry  under  No.  547,  dated 

on  July  24, 1903 — that  is  to  say,  after  the  investigation  and  opinion  of 
the  arbitrators  on  this  claim  had  been  closed.  May  19,  1903 — to  the 
effect  that  Charles  Beguerisse  was  bom  in  Puebla,  a  city  of  Mexico, 
in  1859,  and  was  married  in  Panama  to  Josefina  Maninat  in  1886. 
Such  entry  does  not  in  itself  constitute  a  trustworthy  proof  of  the 
French  nationaUty  of  Charles  Beguerisse,  the  husband  of  Josefina 

Maninat;  but,  on  the  contrary,  the  fact  of  Beguerisse's  birth  in  a 
Mexican  city  shows  prima  facie  that  he  is  a  Mexican  citizen  accord- 

ing to  the  principle  jure  territorii  adopted  by  the  Central  and  South 
American  RepubUcs. 

Justina  Maninat,  widow  Coss6,  has  not  established  her  French 
nationality  and  the  authenticated  copy  of  her  certificate  of  marriage 
in  the  city  of  Panama  to  Jos6  Carlos  Coss6,  wherein  it  is  stated  that  she 
is  a  native  of  Tarbes,  France,  is  not  the  proof  of  such  fact,  but  merely 
a  reference  made  to  it  before  the  priest  of  the  parish  in  Panama,  and 
can  not  be  substituted  for  the  evidence  afforded  by  the  record  of  the 
certificate  of  birth  in  Tarbes,  which  the  claimant  could  have  well 

obtained  since  this  claim  was  introduced,  foiu*  years  ago.  In  the 
absence  of  such  document,  which  is  the  only  evidence  that  could  prove 
the  fact  of  the  birth  in  Tarbes,  the  presumption  prevails  of  her  birth  in 
Venezuela,  as  well  as  that  of  all  her  sisters  and  brothers,  except  Juan 
Bautista,  whose  birth  in  Tarbes  is  shown  by  the  certificate  of  the  mayor 
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of  that  town.  This  certificate  is  among  the  documents  lately  submit- 
ted. As  the  above-mentioned  Justina  is  at  present  the  widow  of 

Coss6,  and  was  his  widow  on  March  2,  1903,  when  she  joined  issue  in 
the  claim  entered  by  her  brother,  Pedro  Maninat,  she  comes  under  the 
provision  of  the  Venezuelan  laws,  establishing  that  a  Venezuelan 
woman  married  to  a  foreigner  recovers  her  lost  nationaUty  when  she 
becomes  a  widow. 

Besides  the  confessions  of  the  parties  themselves,  upon  whom 
devolves  the  duty  of  establishing  the  facts  of  their  nationality,  stating 
that  three  of  them  were  bom  in  Venezuela  (Pedro,  Juana,  and  Clotilde 
de  Saldlas),  the  Venezuelan  Government  has  submitted  to  me  the 
respective  certificates  which  I  append  to  this  opinion,  establishing  the 
fact  that  Pedro  and  Clotilde  Maninat  were  bom  within  Venezuelan 

territory.  Clotilde  Maninat  having  married  Don  Eulogio  S.  Saldias, 
a  lieutenant  in  the  Peruvian  navy,  has  acquired  the  nationality  of  her 
husband. 

Pedro  Maninat,  besides  being  a  Venezuelan  by  birth,  according  to 

the  Venezuelan  laws,  has  submitted  a  certificate  issued  by  the  vice- 
consul  in  charge  of  the  French  legation  in  Caracas,  by  which  it  appears 
that  on  March  23,  1899,  almost  a  year  after  the  death  of  his  brother, 

Juan  Bautista,  he  appeared  before  the  French  vice-consul  in  the  same 
city  and  made  a  declaration  to  the  effect  that  he  regretted  not  having 
complied  with  the  military  service  of  the  class  of  1883,  requesting  that 
a  certificate  be  issued  to  him  showing  that  he  had  made  such  avowal 
in  order  to  secure,  if  needed,  his  return  to  France,  binding  himself  to 

place  himself  immediately  after  his  arrival  in  France  at  the  disposal  of 
the  proper  authorities,  by  whose  decision  in  the  matter  he  would 
abide.  This  act  and  the  subsequent  declaration  made  by  him  in 

•Guatemala  at  the  French  legation  as  a  French  citizen — the  fact  of  his 
having  returned  to  France  and  fulfilled  his  military  obUgations  not 

being  established — clearly  show  that  they  were  performed  for  the  pur- 
pose of  making  out  a  case  against  the  Venezuelan  Government  and  to 

arm  himself  with  a  sham  French  citizenship — for  the  want  of  a  legiti- 

mate citizenship  of  long  standing — to  use  it  against  the  country  within 
which  he  was  bom.  The  case  of  Charles  Piton,  quoted  by  M.  de  Peretti 
de  la  Rocca,  is  in  no  way  similar  to  the  one  under  consideration  either 
from  the  standpoint  of  proofs  shown  by  M.  Piton  to  establish  his 

French  citizenship,  which  was  never  contested,  or  from  the  circum- 
stances attending  his  claim. 

The  French  commissioner  is  of  the  opinion  that  this  commission  is 

competent  to  hear  this  claim,  because,  although  Pedro  Maninat  and 
his  sisters  were  bom  in  Venezuela,  they  are  the  issue  of  French  parents 

and  had  two  nationalities  at  the  moment  of  their  birth — French, 
according  to  the  French  laws,  and  Venezuelan  in  accordance  with  the 
laws  of  Venezuela. 



4t 

ADDITIONAL    OPrNTON    OF   VENEZUELAN    COMMISSIONER.        63 

My  learned  colleague  states: 

This  is  indisputable,  but  when  the  protocol  mentions  claims  for  indemnities  entered  by 

"Frenchmen/*  this  means  claims  submitted  by  persons  whose  protection  the  French  Gov- 
ernment endeavors  to  insure,  because  they  are  recognized  as  French  citizens  by  the  French 

laws.  The  protocol  does  not  specify  in  any  manner  that  the  laws  of  Venezuela  should  also 

recognize  such  persons  as  French  citizens.  On  the  contrary,  all  the  protocols  signed  in 

Washington  last  year  between  Venezuela  and  the  foreign  p)owers  have  expressly  established 

that  ''local  legislation"  was  not  to  be  taken  into  consideration.<x 

Such  is  the  opinion  of  my  learned  colleague.  Now  let  us  see  what 
has  been  decided  by  the  learned  umpires  upon  whom  has  devolved  the 
duty  of  determining  the  question  of  conflicting  nationality  at  different 
times  and  in  different  commissions,  decisions  which,  by  reason  of  their 
uniformity  and  the  enlightened  doctrines  they  contain,  have  erected 
as  principles  of  international  law  the  ruling  that,  in  case  of  conflicting 
laws  creating  a  double  citizenship;  the  law  of  the  respondent  nation 
controls,  and  also  that,  in  cases  of  double  citizenship,  neither  country 

can  claim -against  the  other  nation,  although  it  may  claim  against  all 
other  nations.  Let  me  state  at  this  juncture  that  there  is  no  simi- 

larity between  the  Paris  protocol  of  February  19,  1902,  controlling  this 
commission,  and  the  protocols  signed  at  Washington  in  1903,  quoted 

by  my  learned  colleague  in  regard  to  the  suppression  of  the  "tech- 
nicalities of  local  legislation.'^  The  Paris  protocol  does  not  deal  with 

this  question,  and  it  is  a  well  known  fact  that  in  the  matter  of  authority 
or  powers  in  themselves  an  exception  to  the  general  rules  universally 

applied,  such  authority  or  powers  must  be  expressly  and  formally 
stipulated,  as  was  purposely  done  in  the  Washington  protocols.  The 
Paris  protocol  created  a  mixed  arbitration  court  to  hear  and  decide 
upon  all  claims  for  indemnification  entered  by  French  citizens,  but 
did  not  except  this  commission  from  making  its  awards  in  strict 
accordance  with  the  principles  of  international  law  generally  admitted 
and  with  the  local  laws  in  such  cases  as  they  may  properly  apply. 

On  the  other  hand — and  this  is  merely  a  casual  remark — the  provision 
to  which  my  learned  colleague  refers,  stipulated  in  the  Washington 

protocols,  does  not  establish  any  distinctions  between  the  local  legis- 
lation of  either  of  the  contracting  parties.  Whv  should  this  discrimi- 

nation in  regard  to  local  legislation  be  applicable  only  to  Venezuela? 
What  are  the  grounds  for  such  strange  interpretation  ? 

In  regard  to  conflicting  citizenship  the  precedents  and  opinions 
quoted  below  may  be  submitted,  deciding  the  point  always  in  favor  of 
the  country  against  which  the  claim  has  been  entered. 

Commissioner  Finlay  in  the  case  of  Hammer  et  al.  against  Venezuela 
states  the  following: 

Whatever  rights  the  United  States  has  in  its  power  to  bestow  will  unquestionably  pass 
under  the  law  establishing  the  status  of  citizenship  in  favor  of  nonresident  aliens,  including 

a  Page  54. 
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the  right  to  take  property  by  descent  and  succession  and  the  right  to  prosecute  any  claim 
against  the  United  States;  but  more  than  this  cannot  be  done  without  interfering  with  the 
rights  of  other  states  and  involving  them  and  herself  in  conflicting  claims  of  the  most  absurd 
character.     (Moore,  p.  2460.) 

The  reasons  advanced  by  the  American  commissioner  which  were 

approved  by  the  umpire,  Count  Corti,  of  the  British-American  Claims 
Commission,  are  in  toto  appUcable  to  the  question  of  a  double  citizen- 

ship.    The  opinion  referred  to  is  the  following : 

To  treat  his  grievances  (the  claimant's  grievances)  against  that  other  sovereign  as  subjects 
of  international  concern  would  be  to  claim  a  jurisdiction  paramount  to  that  of  the  other 

nation  of  which  he  is  also  a  subject.  Complications  would  inevitably  result,  for  no  Gov- 
ernment would  recognize  the  right  of  another  to  interfere  thus  in  behalf  of  one  whom  it 

regarded  as  a  subject  of  its  own.  It  has  certainly  not  been  the  practice  of  the  British  Govern- 
ment to  interfere  in  such  cases,  and  it  is  not  easy  to  believe  that  either  Government  meant 

to  provide  for  them  by  this  treaty.     (Alexander  v.  U.  S.  Moore,  p.  2531.) 

The  same  rule  is  found  in  Cogordan  (Citizenship,  p.  39),  who  has 

called  attention  to  the  eminently  practical  spirit  of  the  English  Govern- 
ment, as  shown  in  the  correspondence  between  Lord  Malmesbury  and 

Lord  Cowley,  ambassador  in  Paris,  when,  under  date  of  March  13, 

1858,  he  states  that,  if  England  did  recognize  as  British  subjects  the 
children  born  in  England  of  foreign  parents,  she  did  not  pretend  to 
protect  them  as  such  against  the  authorities  of  the  country  of  such 
parents  claiming  them,  particularly  when  they  had  voluntarily 
returned  to  such  country;  or,  in  other  words.  Frenchmen  bom  in 
England  would  be  protected  in  Germany,  Italy,  or  any  other  country 
except  France,  where  they  could  be  legally  called  to  serve  in  the  army. 

Tchemoflf  (Protection  des  Nationaux  Rfisidant  k  Tfitranger  p.  470) 
says: 

Any  person  having  a  double  citizenship  can  enjoy  but  one  within  the  territory  of  each 
of  the  states  which  hold  him  as  a  subject.     Such  is  the  practice  in  England  and  Switzerland. 

The  foregoing  opinions  agree  with  those  of  the  commissioner  of  the 
United  States  in  the  case  of  Elise  Lebret  before  the  Franco- American 
Commission,  above  mentioned.  Notice  should  be  taken  of  the 

opinions  of  Phillimore,  Blackstone  (Cooley's  Vol.  I,  p.  369)  1,  Hale's 
P.  C,  68,  Story's  Conflict  of  Law,  second  edition,  chapter  III,  section 
48,  and  the  Century  Dictionary,  all  quoted  by  the  Hon.  Mr.  Plumley 
in  his  learned  decision  as  umpire  in  the  case  of  Mathison  against 

Venezuela  before  the  British- Venezuelan  Commission  created  by  the 
Washington  protocol  of  February  13,  1903  (Venezuelan  Arbitrations, 

Ralston's  Report,  pages  433-434  and  435).  See  also  the  opinions  of 
the  above-mentioned  umpire  in  the  case  of  Stevenson  against  Vene- 

zuela (Moore,  p.  442  et  seq.)  and  Ralston,  umpire  of  the  ItaUan- 
Venezuelan  Commission,  in  the  case  of  Brignone,  Miliani,  and  Pog- 

gioU  against  Venezuela  (Venezuelan  Arbitrations  of  1903,  Ra»lgtpn'g 
JReport,  pp.  710,  754,  and  847). 
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Thus  the  conflict  of  double  citizenship  has  been  solved  by  eminent 

authorities,  establishing  that  in  the  cases  where  such  double  citizen- 
ship occurs  the  law  of  the  respondent  or  defendant  nation  prevails. 

In  the  event  of  conflict  of  laws  creating  double  citizenship,  that  of  respondent  nation  must 
control. o 

In  cases  of  double  citizenship  neither  country  can  claim  the  person  having  the  same  as 
against  the  other  nation,  although  it  may  as  against  all  other  countries. 2) 

This  condition  of  double  citizenship  occurs  in  Pedro  Maninat,  born 
in  Venezuela  of  French  parents,  a  resident  of  Venezuela  until  the 
date  of  the  death  of  his  brother  Juan  Bautista  Maninat,  a  deserter 

from  the  military  service  of  the  class  of  1883,  in  France;  in  Juana 
Maninat  and  Clotilde  Maninat  de  Saldias,  both  bom  in  Venezuela, 

according  to  their  own  confession  and  documents  produced;  in  Justina 
Maninat,  widow  Coss6,  and  Josefina  Maninat  de  Beguerisse,  who  haVe 
not  established  their  birth  in  French  territory,  as  it  is  indispensable 
to  do  before  this  commission.  The  presumption  in  the  case  of  the 
two  latter  is,  on  the  contrary,  that  they  were  born  in  Venezuela,  and 
that  the  husband  of  Josefina  Maninat,  Charles  Beguerisse,  by  reason 
of  his  birth  in  Puebla,  a  city  in  Mexico,  is  a  Mexican  citizen,  as  well  as 
his  wife.  I  beg  to  call  the  attention  of  the  honorable  umpire  most 

especially  to  the  fact  already  mentioned  that  from  the  documents  sub- 
mitted there  does  not  appear  that  Josefina  Maninat  de  Beguerisse, 

nor  her  husband  Charles  Beguerisse,  for  a  long  time  residents  of 

Guatemala,  claim  any  sum  whatever  from  the  Venezuelan  Govern- 
ment, nor  that  they  authorized  their  brothers  and  sisters  to  do  so. 

Justina  Maninat,  widow  of  Coss6,  has  recovered  her  Venezuelan 

nationality  since  the  death  of  her  husband — under  the  supposition 
that  he  was  a  French  citizen,  which  has  not  been  established — in  con- 

formity with  the  Venezuelan  laws,  which  control  in  case  of  conflict  of 
double  nationality,  according  to  the  opinions  and  decisions  above 
cited. 

In  view  of  the  foregoing,  I  hold  that  this  commission  has  no  jurisdic- 
tion to  hear  and  decide  the  claim  entered  by  Pedro  Maninat  and 

sisters,  us  their  Venezuelan  nationality  controls  in  the  conflict  of  double 
citizenship,  Venezuela  being  the  respondent  nation. 

The  plaintiffs  have  no  legal  rights  whatever  to  claim,  by  reason  of 
the  death  of  Juan  Bautista  Maninat,  damages  directly  suffered  by 
their  persons  and  property.  It  has  been  further  established  that 
Pedro  Maninat,  as  well  as  his  sisters,  all  of  whom  are  of  age,  three  of 

the  sisters  being  married  and  for  some  years  absent  with  their  respec- 
tive husbands  from  Venezuelan  territory,  have  not  depended  for  their 

means  of  sustenance  upon  the  person  and  life  of  Juan  Bautista  Maninat, 
but,  on  the  contrary,  each  and  every  one  of  them  has  had  and  still 

a  Brignone  case,  Ralston's  Report,  p.  710.         6  Miliani  case,  Ralston 's  Report,  p.  754. 
S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   5 
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has  independent  means  of  living.  They  might  be  entitled  to  claim 
damages  for  the  death  of  a  person,  if  there  is  a  party  responsible  for 
such  death,  whether  the  party  be  a  private  individual,  a  corporation, 
or  a  state,  in  case  the  damages  resulting  from  such  death  could  be 
properly  established.  Such  would  be  the  case  when  a  destitute  wife 

or  minors  or  other  persons,  either  ascendants  or  brothers  are  con- 
cerned and  the  proof  can  be  established  that  they  are  destitute  and 

suflFer  material  damages  by  reason  of  the  wanton  killing  of  a  kinsman. 
These  grounds  for  action  are  lacking  in  the  present  claim,  and  they 
are  essential  in  order  to  warrant  the  indemnification  sought,  but  such 
damages  have  not  occurred,  nor  have  the  brothers  and  sisters  of  Juan 
Bautista  Maninat  established  the  facts  beyond  all  reasonable  doubt. 
Under  the  circumstances  the  present  claim  for  indemnification  lacks 

the  essential  basis  of  such  claims,  the  damnum  emergens^  as  a  con- 
sequence of  the  death  of  Juan  Bautista  Maninat,  and  such  claim  can 

not  exist,  because  it  deals  with  brothers  and  sisters  who  did  not 

depend  for  their  living  upon  Juan  Bautista  Maninat,  nor  upon  his 
business  abilities  or  pecuniary  means. 

The  indirect  damages  which  the  mercantile  firm  of  Maninat  Broth- 
ers might  have  sustained  through  such  death  do  not  affect  the  sis- 
ters, who  were  neither  partners  of  the  firm  nor  had  any  share  or  profits 

in  the  business.  Whatever  business  Pedro  Maninat  might  have  had 

as  an  active  partner  did  not  suffer  any  damages  because  of  his  broth- 

er's death,  as  it  appears  from  the  papers  submitted  that  at  the  time 
of  the  death  the  commercial  firm  was  bankrupt  and  that  the  surviving 
partner  was  compelled  to  admit  such  bankruptcy  in  view  of  the  state 
of  complete  insolvency  in  which  the  firm  had  been  for  some  time 
previous.  The  French  commissioner  has  acknowledged  this  to  be  a 
fact  in  his  opinion. 

Now,  in  regard  to  the  liability  which  it  has  been  the  endeavor  to 

establish  against  the  Venezuelan  Government  for  the  wound — not  a 

very  serious  wound — received  by  Juan  Bautista  Maninat  at  Tina- 
quillo,  and  his  subsequent  death,  which  took  place  twenty-eight  days 
after,  superinduced  by  the  disease  called  traumatic  tetanus,  which  is 
not  necessarily  the  consequence  of  a  wound,  but  may  be  contracted 
through  several  causes,  generally  through  being  exposed  to  the  water 
and  other  sources  of  infection,  I  beg  to  submit  again  the  arguments 

advanced  by  me  in  my  opinion  rendered  at  the  session  of  the  commis- 
sion, May  19,  1903,  which  I  send  herewith  translated  into  English,  and 

wherein  I  deny  such  liability  as  wholly  unfounded,  and  entirely  reject 
the  merits  of  the  claim  for  indemnification  for  2,000,000  bolivars 
against  the  Venezuelan  Government. 

NoRTHFiELD,  Vt.,  February  S,  1905. 
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ADDITIONAL  OPINION  OF  THE  FRENCH  COMTMUSSIONEB. 

After  having  read  the  additional  memoir  presented  by  my  honorable 
colleague,  I  can  only  maintain  the  conclusions  of  the  prior  memoir.  I 
will  add,  however,  some  observations  which  seem  to  me  allow  on  my 
part  certain  consideration  of  this  additional  memoir. 

In  the  first  place  Doctor  Patil  remarks  that  one  of  the  five  heirs  of 
the  late  Jean  Maninat,  Madame  Josephine  Beguerisse  (n6e  Maninat), 
has  not  presented  any  claim  against  Venezuela.  I  know  this,  but 
since  the  four  other  heirs  have  presented  a  claim  the  default  of  the 
fifth  invalidates  the  claim  in  no  wise.  It  will  belong  only  to  the 

French  Government  if  the  umpire  accords  an  indemnity  to  the  Man- 
inat heirs  to  divide  it  conformably  to  French  laws,  among  those  of  the 

latter  who  may  have  availed  themselves  of  their  rights  at  the  proper 
time. 

In  the  second  place,  my  honorable  colleague,  returning  to  the  ques- 
tion of  nationality,  declares  that  Mr.  Pierre  Maninat  and  his  sisters, 

bom  in  Venezuela,  have  not  according  to  the  protocol  of  1902  a  right 
to  present  a  claim  against  the  Venezuelan  Government.  With  regard 

to  this,  I  could  only  reproduce  the  argument  already  presented  in  my 
memoir.  I  request,  moreover,  the  umpire  to  kindly  revert  to  text  of 
the  aforesaid  protocol,  to  which  in  section  1,  page  4,  of  his  additional 
memoir,  Doctor  Paul  gives  an  interpretation  which  I  can  not  admit. 

Article  1  speaks  in  effect  merely  of  claims  presented  ̂ *by  the  French- 
men.'^ This  term  is  very  comprehensive — '* Frenchmen.''  It  is  not 

merely  the  ̂^ French  citizens;"  there  are  also  French  subjects,  such  as 
the  Algerians  or  French  prot^g^s,  such  as  the  Tunisians — in  a  word,  all 
those  to  whom  the  French  Government  extends  its  protection,  because 
they  are  French  according  to  French  laws.  The  protocol  says  in  no 

way  that  it  is  '*  indispensable  to  prove  that  the  nationality  of  the 
claimants  was  solely  and  exclusively  French."  I  have  then  been  able 
to  conclude  with  justice  that  it  sufficed  that  the  French  Government 
consider  an  individual  as  French  and  deliver  to  him  a  certificate  of 

French  nationality  that  this  individual  be  qualified  to  benefit  from 
the  provisions  of  the  protocol  of  February  19,  1902.  The  precedents 
cited  by  my  colleague  prove  only  that  there  is  not  on  this  point  any 
fixed  rule  and  that  international  law  is,  as  almost  always,  variable.  I 
could  call  to  mind  many  examples  of  a  contrary  jurisprudence  without 
referring  to  distant  date. 

I  have  spoken  of  the  case  of  Mr.  Charles  Piton.  I  maintain  that  the 

case  is  analogous  to  the  present  case.  Mr.  Piton  was  bom  in  Venezu- 
ela of  French  parents,  one  of  which  was  bom  there  himself.  Mr. 

Piton  did  not  regularize  his  military  position  in  France  until  long 
after  the  age  required  by  the  service.  Mr.  Piton  has  even  exercised 
public  Venezuelan  functions  at  Venezuela  and  in  foreign  lands  where 
he  has  been  a  Venezuelan  consul,  and  yet  my  colleague  has  admitted 
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that  he  was  of  French  nationality  and  that  there  could  be  given  to  him 
a  large  indemnity. 

In  another  analogous  case — the  Massiani  affair — (claim  presented 
by  heirs,  enjojdng  two  nationalities,  of  a  Frenchman  who  was  exclu- 

sively French),  the  French- Venezuelan  mixed  commission  constituted 
by  the  protocol  of  Washington  and  presided  over  in  1903  at  Caracas  by 
Mr.  Filtz,  umpire,  accorded  also  the  indemnity  demanded. 

I  ought  to  call  to  the  attention  of  the  umpire  the  inconvenience 

which  could  be  presented  from  the  point  of  view  of  the  fixity  of  inter- 
national law,  which  seems  to  disturb  my  colleague  so  much,  by  the 

establishment  of  two  different  jurisprudences,  not  only  by  two  com- 
missions so  analogous  and  so  bound  together,  but  even  by  the  same 

commission. 

Doctor  Paul  seems  to  desire  to  refuse  to  Pierre  Maninat  the  char- 

acter of  a  Frenchman,  but  Pierre  Maninat  is  French  according  to 
French  law,  and  the  competent  French  authorities  having  delivered 
to  him  the  necessary  certificate  the  commission  can  not  deny  French 
nationality  to  this  claimant.  I  beg  the  umpire  to  take  notice  that  I 
do  not  refuse  in  any  way  to  admit  that  Pierre  Maninat  enjoys  equally 

Venezuelan  nationality  according  to  the  Venezuelan  law.  I  am  con- 
tent to  maintain  that,  being  French  (it  makes  no  difference  to  me  if 

he  has  two  nationalities) ,  he  can  profit  from  the  provisions  of  the  pro- 
tocol of  19th  of  February,  1902. 

In  the  third  place  my  colleague  relies,  in  order  to  reject  the  Mani- 
nat claim  upon  the  fact  that  Jean  Maninat  has  not  made  the  cl^im  in 

form  against  Venezuela.  It  will  suffice  for  me  to  call  the  attention 
of  the  umpire  again  to  the  reading  of  the  letter  of  Jean  Maninat  of 
April  26,  1898,  in  which  the  interested  party  declares  that  not  only 
he  but  the  whole  French  colony  demands  justice.  I  will  add  that 

his  death  coming  quickly  has  alone  prevented  him  from  forming  his 
dossier.  Besides,  this  death  itself  making  the  principal  subject  of 
the  claim,  one  will  grant  that  Jean  Maninat  would  with  difficulty 
have  been  able  to  make  his  claim  himself. 

In  the  fourth  place  my  colleague  quotes  decisions  rendered  within 

the  English  and  Italian- Venezuelan  commissions.  I  am  not  acquainted 
with  the  cases  in  question  and  consequently  can  not  judge  of  their 
degree  of  analogy  with  that  before  us.  In  a  general  way  I  consider 
that  in  a  matter  of  arbitration  precedents  have  no  value.  Equity, 
good  sense,  and  the  terms  of  the  protocol  are  the  only  rules  for  the 

conduct  of  an  arbitrator,  who  is  not  bound  to  conform  to  the  con- 

tradictory opinions  of  his  predecessors  any  more  than  to  the  particu- 
lar law  of  the  States,  as  the  protocols  of  Washington  have  expressly 

declared. 

In  the  fifth  place  Doctor  Patil  maintains  that  the  heirs  of  Jean 
Maninat  have  no  right  to  make  a  claim  for  the  death  of  their  brother, 
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which  would  not  have  caused  them  direct  damage.  I  will  merely 
reply  that  Pierre  Maninat  was  associated  with  his  brother  in  the  firm 

Maninat  Brothers,  and  that  the  death  of  his  elder  brother  will  culmi- 
nate the  ruin  of  this  house  of  commerce.  Is  not  this  a  direct  damage  ? 

Besides,  is  not  the  death  alone  under  such  conditions  of  a  brother  of 

whom  one  is  the  heir,  even  if  one  is  not  his  partner,  necessarily  a  cause 
of  direct  damage? 

Finally,  I  maintain  my  opinion,  supported  by  the  declaration  of  the 
Venezuelan  doctor,  and  upon  the  very  sense  of  the  words  that  the 
wound  was  indeed  the  cause  of  the  death.  It  is  evident  that  the  infec- 

tion would  not  have  been  produced  and  would  not  have  brought  on 
traumatic  tetanus  if  there  had  not  been  any  wound. 

NoRTHFiELD,  February  6 ,  1905, 

OPINION  OF  THE  XIMPIBE. 

Juan  Maninat  was  bom  at  Tarbes,  France,  November  4,  1864,  and 
died  of  traumatic  tetanus  May  13,  1898,  at  Valencia  in  Venezuela, 
unmarried,  leaving  as  next  of  kin  Rosa  Clotilde  Maninat,  bom  at 
Valencia  in  Venezuela  June  2,  1859,  wife  of  Eulogio  S.  Saldlas,  a 
Peruvian,  and  now  residing  at  Lima,  Peru ;  Josefina  Maninat,  resident 
in  Guatemala,  said  to  have  been  bom  in  France,  the  wife  of  Charles  de 

Beguerisse,  who  was  bom  in  Mexico  of  parents  having  French  nation- 
ality; Justina  Maninat,  said  to  have  been  born  in  Tarbes,  France, 

who  was  married  in  Panama  to  Charles  Joseph  Coss6,  the  latter  hav- 
ing been  born  at  Bois-Colombes,  France,  August  9, 1856,  now  deceased, 

the  said  Justina  residing  at  Lima,  Peru ;  Juan  Pedro  de  Jesils  Maninat, 
born  at  Valencia  in  Venezuela,  December  29,  1863,  also  Juana 
Maninat,  born  in  Valencia  and  now  residing  in  Lima,  Peru.  The 
father  and  mother  of  these  Maninat  heirs  were  both  of  French  nation- 

ality and  are  both  deceased.  Pedro  resided  in  France  from  the  time 
when  he  was  a  year  old  to  his  nineteenth  year,  since  which  time  until 
recently  he  has  resided  and  done  business  in  Venezuela.  Juan  came 
to  Venezuela  at  some  time  not  important  to  this  inquiry,  and  later 
entered  into  a  mercantile  relation  with  Pedro,  and  they  established 
their  principal  house  at  Valencia  and  had  branches  at  Tinaquillo  and 
San  C6,rlos.  They  were  engaged  in  these  enterprises  at  the  time 
of  the  injury  to  Juan,  hereinafter  stated,  but  had  suffered  seriously 

from  some  compulsory  loans  to  and  requisitions  by  both  the  revo- 
lutionary party  and  the  Government  troops,  and  they  also  suffered 

much  from  theft  and  pillage  and  from  injury  to  their  property  by  the 
soldiers  alike  of  the  revolutionary  forces  and  of  the  Government. 

April  15,  1898,  the  Government  troops  stationed  at  Tinaquillo 
were  under  the  command  of  General  Vizcarrondo,  chief  of  staff  of 

General  Crespo.     An  officer  under  General  Vizcarrondo  on  that  day 
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demanded  of  Juan  Maninat  certain  supplies  for  his  army  in  the  nature 
of  a  requisition.  Maninat  refused  the  requisition  except  on  the  terms 

that  an  order  be  signed  by  the  general,  and  for  the  purpose  of  obtain- 
ing this  order  Maninat  sent  an  employee  to  the  general  at  his  head- 

quarters. This  employee  was  badly  treated  and  was  sent  back  to 
Maninat  without  the  order  requested  but  with  peremptory  orders  to 
Juan  Maninat  to  present  himself  at  once  before  General  Vizcarrondo  at 
his  headquarters,  which  order  he  obeyed.  While  Maninat  was  at  the 
headquarters  of  the  general  and  in  his  presence  he  was  struck  several 
times  with  the  back  of  a  machete  by  officers  of  the  national  army, 
was  placed  under  arrest  by  the  general  and  while  under  arrest  and  on 
his  way  to  the  place  of  his  confinement  he  was  given  a  severe  machete 
wound  on  the  side  of  the  cheek  by  one  of  the  officers  then  present. 

lie  was  kept  in  close  confinement  by  the  military  authorities  at  Tina- 
quillo  and  as  late  as  the  18tli  of  the  month  had  not  been  permitted 
to  meet  his  brother  or  the  other  members  of  the  family  who  had  come 
from  Valencia  to  see  and  to  assist  him. 

The  minister  of  foreign  affairs  for  Venezuela  was  officially  informed 
of  this  matter  by  the  French  legation  at  Caracas  on  April  18,  and  it 
was  officially  asked  that  he  be  released  from  confinement,  that  there 
be  an  immediate  investigation,  a  proper  reproof  administered  to 

General  Vizcarrondo  by  the  Venezuelan  Government,  and  proper  satis- 
faction made  to  the  injured  man. 

On  April  19  Maninat  was  released  from  confinement  on  intervention 
from  Caracas.  On  April  24,  in  a  letter  from  Maninat,  he  speaks  of 

himself  as  ''a  little  recovered  of  his  wound''  and  able  to  write  to  Con- 

sul Quievreux,  charg6  d'affaires  of  France,  relating  the  occurrences  of 
April  15  an4^  those  which  followed.  In  this  communication  he  named 
the  officer  who  inflicted  the  machete  wound.  All  the  facts  necessary 
to  a  complete  history  of  the  case  were  easily  ascertainable  at  that  time. 
No  reproof  was  administered  to  General  Vizcarrondo  or  to  his  officers 

and  no  action  was  taken  by  Venezuela  in  reference  to 'the  punishment 
of  the  officer  who  inflicted  the  m&,chete  wound  and  no  reparation  was 
offered  to  France  or  to  Maninat. 

Pedro  endeavored  for  a  while  to  maintain  the  business  of  the  com- 

pany, but  it  resulted  in  failure  and  bankruptcy,  and,  later,  the 
imprisonment  of  Pedro,  and  his  release  on  terms  that  he  abandon, 
permanently,  a  residence  in  Venezuela.     He  is  now  in  Guatemala. 

There  is  no  record  proof  that  any  of  these  heirs  were  born  in  France 
except  in  the  case  of  Juan.  In  the  certificate  of  marriage,  or  the 
record  thereof,  of  Justina,  there  is  a  declaration  that  she  was  born  in 

Tarbes,  France.  Neither  Josefina  nor  her, husband  has  appeared  as 

claimant  or  in  anyway  asserted  or  presented  any  claim  against  Vene- 
zuela or  any  right  to  claim  anything  because  of  the  injury  to  or  death 

of  Juan. 
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In  the  joint  letter  of  Clotilde  Saldlas,  Justina  Maninat,  widow 
Coss6,  and  Juana  Maninat,  of  date  1903,  indited  for  use  before  the 
arbitrators  at  Caracas,  it  is  stated  that  Justina  and  Josefina  were  born 
in  France.  In  the  letter  of  Pedro  to  the  minister  of  France  at  Caracas, 

of  date  July  24,  1903,  he  states  that  Justina  and  Josefina  are  French  by- 
birth  and  have  married  Frenchmen.  The  records  of  both  countries 

are  silent,  so  far  as  appears  in  this  tribunal,  concerning  the  birthplace 
of  these  two  ladies. 

There  is  no  proof  that  any  of  the  brothers  or  sisters  of  Juan,  except 
Pedro,  ever  received  any  benefits  from  or  were  in  anyway  dependent 
upon  or  connected  with  Juan. 

The  honorable  commissioners  failing  to  agree  as  to  some  of  the  facts 
in  this  case,  and  likewise  failing  to  agree  upon  the  rule  to  be  drawn 
from  those  facts  and  applied,  joined  in  sending  this  claim  to  the  umpire 
for  his  decision.  They  have  aided  the  umpire  by  very  able  opinions, 
stating  the  reasons  for  their  respective  holdings,  and  they  have  also 
given  valued  assistance  to  the  umpire  in  their  answers  to  his  written 

questions. 
The  umpire  is  met  at  the  outset  with  the  conflicting  claims  of  the 

honorable  commissioners  concerning  the  nationality  of  the  claimants 

and  its  importance  as  a  determinative  factor  in  the  case.  The  honor- 
able commissioner  for  France  is  of  the  opinion  that  it  is  only  necessary 

to  establish  the  French  citizenship  of  Juan  Maninat  at  the  time  of  his 

death  to  give  jurisdiction  to  this  tribunal.  The  honorable  commis- 

sioner for  Venezuela  is  equally  certain  that  there  must  be  a  French* 
citizen  in  esse,  and  having  a  demand  for  indemnity  because  of  damages 
suffered  on  account  of  the  injury  to  and  death  of  Juan,  in  order  that 
this  mixed  commission  can  have  competency  to  make  an  award  in 
relation  thereto;  hence,  to  settle  this  jurisdictional  question  is  of 
primary  importance.  It  is  first  to  be  observed  that  Juan  Maninat  is 
dead.  He  is  not.  Therefore,  a  tribunal  organized  under  and  in  virtue 

of  the  convention  of  February  19,  1902,  that  it  '^  might  examine 
demands  for  indemnity  presented  by  Frenchmen  for  damages  sus- 

tained in  Venezuela,"  does  not  exist  because  of  damages  which  have 
been  suffered  in  Venezuela  but  only  in  reference  to  damages  suffered 

in  Venezuela  by  Frenchmen  who,  as  such^  are  claimants  before  this 
tribunal.  In  other  words,  it  is  not  the  injury  done  to  Juan  Maninat 
alone,  but  also  damages  suffered  by  Frenchmen,  if  such  there  be, 
through  and  because  of  the  injury  to  and  death  of  Juan,  which  give 
place  to  a  claim  under  this  protocol. 

This  particular  reclamation  rests  upon  the  right  of  the  next  of  kin  of 
Juan  to  present  a  claim.  Their  ability  to  do  so  will  depend  upon  the 
character  of  their  citizenship;  if  any  be  French  the  claim  stands;  if 
all  be  Venezuelan  there  is  no  jurisdiction. 
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The  opinion  of  the  umpire  given  in  heirs  of  Stevenson  v.  Venezuela, 

found  in  Ralston's  Venezuelan  Arbitrations  of  1903,  438,  is  referred  to 
and  the  attention  of  the  honorable  commissioners  to  this  opinion  is 

respectfully  requested.  It  is  based  on  a  protocol  of  similar  character 
in  this  regard,  although  it  might  be  held  to  present  a  greater  latitude 
to  the  claimant  than  the  one  now  under  consideration.  The  authori- 

ties referred  to  therein  are  relied  upon  by  the  umpire  as  sustaining  him 
in  this  decision. 

The  honorable  commissioner  for  France  urges  that  in  default  of 
Frenchmen  lawfully  entitled  to  the  award,  the  national  treasury  is 
competent  to  receive  the  same.  Since  this  case  is  disposed  of  without 
reaching  this  proposition,  the  umpire  does  not  stop  to  discuss  it. 

The  language  of  the  protocol  is  the  work  of  skilled  and  erudite  dip- 
lomatists. Every  word  is  weighed  and  its  force  and  significance  are 

definite  and  certain.  The  language  used  in  other  protocols  and  its 

application  by  other  tribimals  are  with  them  matters  of  common 
knowledge.  The  restrictive  interpretation  given  by  the  umpire  in  this 

opinion  follows  a  well-defined  and  quite  generally  constant  line  of 
decision  by  arbitral  tribimals  whenever  the  question  has  been  raised 
and  the  terms  of  the  convention  were  in  spirit  similar.  It  follows,  that 
if  a  different  rule  had  been  desired  by  the  high  contracting  parties,  they 
would  have  employed  words  susceptible  of  a  different  interpretation. 
They  certainly  would  not  have  made  a  different  ruling  impossible. 
To  hold  that  any  other  than  the  national  quality  of  the  person 
presenting  the  claim  is  to  determine  the  jurisdiction  of  this  commission, 
is  to  declare  that  which  is  impossible  under  the  language  here  used. 
Nothing  is  easier  than  to  walk  in  the  path  so  well  defined  by  the  able 
minds  who  planned  and  built  it.  Hence  the  rule  here  laid  down  that 
to  be  within  the  jurisdiction  of  this  tribunal  the  claim  must  be  presented 

by  or  for  a  Frenchman,  in  esse,  who  has  sustained  damages  in  Vene- 
zuela. 

For  the  rules  of  construction  and  interpretation  which  have  been  of 

great  service  to  the  umpire,  see  Ralston's  Venezuelan  Arbitrations  of 
1903,  pages  352  to  355,  both  inclusive. 

It  is  agreed  that  Juan  Maninat  was  of  French  nationality.  His 
sisters  Rosa  Clotilde  and  Juana  and  his  brother  Juan  Pedro  were 

unquestionably  of  Venezuelan  birth.  Are  Josefina  Beguerisse  and 
Justina,  or  is  either  of  them,  of  undoubted  French  nationality?  The 
umpire  holds  that  the  burden  of  estabUshing  this  essential  fact  is  with 

the  claimant;  that  such  nationality  is  not  to  be  assumed  or  conjec- 
tured, but  proved.  No  authority  needs  to  be  quoted  to  sustain  either 

of  those  propositions.     They  are  elementary. 
In  this  case  there  is  no  record  proof  concerning  the  place  of  birth  of 

either  Josefina  or  Justina,  and  there  is  no  explanation  made  for  its 
absence. 
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The  case  of  Justina  will  first  be  considered. 

In  the  record  of  her  marriage  she  is  set  down  as  having  been  bom 
in  Tarbes,  France.  This  is  a  declaration  of  fact  essential  to  the  record, 

made  at  a  time  when  there  could  have  been  no  ulterior  purpose  to  sub- 
serve. In  the  joint  written  statement  of  eJustina,  Clotilde,  and 

Juana,  made  in  1903  for  the  use  of  the  arbitrators  at  Caracas,  the 
birth  of  Justina  is  placed  in  France.  In  the  letter  of  Pedro  to  the 
minister  of  France  at  Caracas,  of  date  July  24,  1903,  he  states  that 
Justina  is  by  birth  French. 

Justina  married  Charles  Joseph  Coss6,  who  was  unquestionably 
French,  which  fixed  her  nationality  as  French  during  his  Hfe,  and  by 
French  law^ihis  nationality  continued  after  the  death  of  her  husband, 
as  she  has  done  nothing  since  to  divest  her  of  such  nationality.  By 
Venezuelan  law  if  she  were  of  Venezuelan  birth  and  Venezuelan  at  the 

time  of  her  marriage  to  Cosse  her  Venezuelan  nationality  is  restored 
to  her  after  the  death  of  her  husband.  But  there  is  no  proof  that  she 
ever  was  Venezuelan.  There  is  incontestable  proof  that  she  was 

French  by  marriage  and  by  origin,  if  not  by  birth.  To  strip  her  of 
her  French  nationality  once  attained  by  the  law  of  both  countries 
requires  definite  and  satisfactory  proof.  If  she  were  of ̂ Venezuelan 

birth,  the  respondent  Government  could  easily  have  produced  the  rec- 
ord, as  Valencia  is  near  Caracas,  and  its  records  are  easy  of  access. 

In  view  of  all  the  facts  affirmative  and  negative  the  umpire  has 
reached  a  conviction  of  moral  certainty  that  Justina  Maninat  Cosse  is 
of  French  nationality  and  competent  to  appear  as  a  claimant  before 
this  tribunal. 

Concerning  Josefina  Maninat  Beguerisse,  wife  of  Charles  de  Begue- 
risse,  it  is  sufficient  to  say  that  she  has  not  presented  any  claim  before 
this  commission  and  is  not  in  any  sense  by  any  act  or  authority  of 
hers  a  party  thereto.  She  has  apparently  refrained  from  asking  the 
intervention  of  France  in  her  behalf  in  this  matter,  and  her  right  to  do 
so  is  wholly  academic,  and  therefore  unimportant  to  this  tribunal. 

It  remains  to  determine  whether  the  other  next  of  kin,  being  with- 
out question  French  by  French  law,  and  Venezuelan  by  Venezuelan 

law,  have  rightful  place  before  this  commission. 
A  treaty  is  a  solemn  compact  between  nations.  It  possesses  in 

ordinary  the  same  essential  qualities  as  a  contract  between  individuals, 
enhanced  by  the  weightier  quality  of  the  parties  and  by  the  greater 

magnitude  of  the  subject-matter.  To  be  valid,  it  imports  a  mutual 
assent,  and  in  order  that  there  may  be  such  mutual  assent  there  must 
be  a  similar  understanding  of  the  several  matters  involved.  It  can 
never  be  what  one  party  understands,  but  it  always  must  be  what 
both  parties  understood  to  be  the  matters  agreed  upon  and  what  in 
fact  was  the  agreement  of  the  parties  concerning  the  matters  now  in 
dispute.     In  this  case  did  Venezuela  agree  in  the  protocol  that  France 
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alone  should  name  those  who  are  Frenchmen,  or  did  France  agree  in 
the  protocol  that  Venezuela  alone  should  make  the  selection;  or  does 

the  protocol,  being  an  agreement,  imply  that  the  word  Frenchman  as 
there  used  shall  mean  such  only  as  are  recognized  by  the  laws  of  both 
countries?  It  is  evident  that  the  high  contracting  parties  agreed  on 

this  point,  and  yet  both  parties  knew  that  there  was  in  fact  a  very 
essential  difference  in  the  holding  of  each  country  upon  that  question. 
How,  then,  could  they  reach  a  point  of  agreement?  Only  by  meeting 
upon  a  ground  common  to  both;  and  that  common  ground  is  the  plain 
where  by  the  laws  of  both  countries  the  claimant  is  a  Frenchman. 

This  process  of  reasoning  seems  to  dispose  of  all  genuine  doubt  as 
to  what  is  meant  by  this  term  as  used  in  the  protocol;  yet  were  there 

room  for 'doubt  the  ordinary  rules  of  interpretation  would  be  efficient 
aids.  Among  others,  there  is  the  rule  of  interpretation  that  where  the 
agreement  is  susceptible  of  two  interpretations  that  interpretation  is 
to  l)e  taken  which  is  least  onerous  upon  the  party  who  must  render 
the  service  or  suffer  the  loss  under  the  agreement. 

(Woolsey,  Intro.  Int.  Law,  sec.  113.  Bouvier  Law  Diet.,  vol.  1, 
p.  124.  lb.,  p.  1107;  ib.,  p.  429;  ib.,  416.  Bouvier  Law  Diet.,  vol.  1, 
p.  1106,  citing  71  Wisconsin,  177.) 

In  a  confhct  of  laws  as  to  nationality  the  law  of  the  place  of  domicile 
should  prevail.  Such  was  the  opinion  of  the  umpire  in  the  Mathison 

case  found  in  Ralston's  Venezuelan  Arbitrations  of  1903,  page  429, 
wherein  are  found  his  reasons  therefor  and  the  authorities  support- 

ing them,  to  which  he  respectfully  refers  without  further  allusion. 
A  similar  holding  by  him  is  found  in  the  Stephenson  case,  same 
volume,  page  438,  and  to  that  case,  his  reasons  there  given  and  his 
authorities  there  quoted  or  cited,  he  respectfully  invites  attention. 

*  *  *  So  far  as  they  apply  he  adopts  them  to  save  imnecessary 
amplification  here.  He  would  add  a  quotation  from  BluntschU  in 
a  note  which  he  places  in  his  Droit  Public  Codifi6,  sec.  374,  wherein 
he  says : 

Contrary  to  my  former  opinions,  I  think  to-day  that  in  case  of  conflict  of  law  one  ought, 
in  favor  of  the  liberty  of  emigration,  to  accord  the  preference  to  the  nationality  of  fact — 
that  is  to  say,  to  that  which  unites  itself  to  the  domicile. o 

When  by  the  law  of  the  respondent  Government  the  claimant  is  a 
Venezuelan,  France  may  not  intervene,  as  to  do  so  would  make  her 
law  superior  to  the  law  of  Venezuela,  which  is  not  permissible  as 
between  two  sovereign  nations.  The  right  of  Venezuela,  as  the 
respondent  Government,  to  regulate  her  own  internal  affairs  and  to 
determine  who  are  her  citizens,  involving  mutual  protection  and 
support,  is  too  essential  an  attribute  of  sovereignty  to  be  invaded  or 

a  Contrairement  k  mes  opinions  ant^rieures,  je  pense  aujourd'hui  qu'en  cas  de  collision 

on  doit,  en  faveur  de  la  liberty  d'^migration,  accorder  la  pr^6rence  h.  la  nationality  de  fait, 
c'est-k-dire  k  celle  ̂ ui  s'unit  au  domicile. 
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disturbed.  If  the  treaty  bore  unmistakable  evidence  that  this  attri- 
bute of  sovereignty  had  been  abdicated,  it  would  be  the  duty  of  this 

tribunal  to  act  accordingly,  but  it  bears  no  such  evidence. 
When  the  nation  insists  that  one  who  is  native  to  the  land  shall 

under  ordinary  circumstances  be  a  citizen,  it  is  such  a  reasonable 
requirement  that  all  nations  should  rest  content.  To  all  the  world 
but  Venezuela,  France  may  follow  each  succeeding  generation  bom 
in  Venezuela,  but  of  French  origin,  so  long  as  her  affections  dictate 

or  her  laws  require  or  permit,  but  to  Venezuela,  where  the  father 

established  his  domicile,  raised  his  roof-tree,  and  reared  his  family, 
the  sons  and  daughters  there  bom  are  Venezuelans  to  all  the  world, 
until  by  emigration  and  selection  they  have  foresworn  allegiance  to 
their  native  land  and  sworn  allegiance  to  some  other. 

In  this  protocol  France  is  permitted  to  intervene  only  on  behalf  of 
Frenchmen  who  are  recognized  as  such  by  the  laws  of  Venezuela, 

and  whatever  equities  may  exist  between  the  claimants  and  Vene- 
zuela, none  can  be  considered  by  this  tribunal  except  those  which  are 

thus  presented. 
Pedro  Maninat  was  bom  in  Venezuela,  passed  a  portion  of  his 

minority  in  France,  attained  his  majority  in  Venezuela,  and  there 
remained  by  choice  until  several  years  after  the  liappening  of  the 
events  giving  rise  to  this  reclamation.  Nothing  which  he  has  done 
since  in  the  way  of  asserting  French  nationality  affects  his  national 
quality  at  the  time  when  this  claim  had  its  inception,  since  his  right 
to  appear  in  this  tribunal  is  dependent  upon  the  fact  that  he  was  a 
Frenchman  when  the  injury  was  suffered  of  which  he  complains,  and 
a  Frenchman  when  this  treaty  was  perfected. 

Rosa  Clotilde  and  Juana  are  either  Venezuelans  or  Peruvians. 

They  are  not  French  in  the  meaning  ascribed  to  that  term  by  the 

umpire. 
In  the  opinion  of  the  umpire/  therefore,  Justina  Maninat  Coss6  is 

the  only  next  of  kin  of  Juan  who  under  the  protocol  of  February  19, 
1902,  has  that  quality  of  French  nationality  which  permits  a  claim 
for  indemnity  before  this  commission  because  of  the  injury  to  and 
death  of  her  brother  Juan. 

Although  alien  bom  Juan  Maninat  had  a  right  under  the  law^s  of 
Venezuela  to  the  same  protection  as  is  granted  to  its  nationals.  He 

had  promptly  complied  with  the  several  military  exactions  consequent ' 
upon  the  disturbed  condition  of  the  nation,  and  in  requiring  the  pro- 

duction of  an  order  before  complying  with  the  requisition  made  upon 
him  at  this  particular  time  he  was  taking  only  a  proper  precaution. 
When  he  entered  the  presence  of  the  Venezuelan  general  it  was  the 

duty  of  that  general  to  throw  around  him  the  protection  of  the  Gov- 
ernment and  to  make  his  person  while  there  safe — absolutely  safe. 

When  he  was  wounded  under  the  eye  and  within  the  power  of  this 
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general  a  gross ,  outrage  had  been  permitted,  the  office  of  the  com- 
manding general  had  been  perverted  or  set  at  naught,  and  the 

respondent  Government  having  intrusted  this  general  to  hold  that 
office  and  stand  in  its  stead  in  that  community  is  responsible  for  the 
unlawful  deeds  done  or  suffered  to  be  .done  by  him.  The  presence 
of  the  national  army  and  of  an  officer  high  in  command  should  have 
brought  to  that  village  and  to  all  of  its  inhabitants  a  sense  of  perfect 

security;  that  instead  it  brought  to  Juan  Maninat  threats,  harsh 
treatment,  imprisonment,  and  wounds,  is  clearly  established.  There 
results  unquestioned,  undebatable  responsibility  in  the  respondent 
Government.  The  extent  of  that  responsibility  alone  remains  to 
be  determined. 

Notwithstanding  the  apparent  convalescence  of  Juan  from  his 
woimd  of  May  15,  the  joint  certificate  of  his  two  attending  physicians, 

asserting  his  death  from  traumatic  tetanus  is  proof  that  the  conva- 
lescence was  apparent  only.  The  honorable  commissioner  for  Vene- 

zuela speaks  correctly  of  many  causes  for  tetanus  especially  existing 
in  torrid  coimtries,  but  he  has  named  no  instance  where  traumatic 

tetanus  has  been  certified  by  reputable  physicians,  except  the  primary 
cause  was  a  wound  or  an  external  injury  of  the  nature  of  a  wound. 
The  very  name  traumatic  forbids.  It  is  the  adjective  form  of  the 
noun  trauma.     Of  trauma  the  Century  Dictionary  has  this  definition : 

1.  An  abnomial  condition  of  the  living  body  produced  by  external  violence,  as  distin- 
guished from  that  produced  by  poisons,  zymotic  infections,  bad  habits,  and  other  less 

evident  causes;  traumatism;  an  accidental  wound  as  distinguished  from  a  wound  caused 

by  the  surgeon's  knife  while  in  operation.  2.  External  violence  producing  bodily  injury; 
the  act  of  wounding,  or  infliction  of  a  wound. 

Traumatic. — (1)  Of  or  pertaining  to  wounds:  as  traumatic  inflammation.  (2)  Adapted 
to  the  cure  of  wounds;  vulnerary:  as  traumatic  balsam.  (3)  Produced  by  wounds:  as 
traumatic  tetanus,  etc. 

Traumatism. — Any  morbid  conditions  produced  by  wound,  *    *    * 
Tetanus. — It  is  occasioned  either  by  exposure  to  cold  or  by  some  irritation  of  the  nerves 

in  consequence  of  local  injurj^  by  puncture,  incision,  or  laceration;  hence  the  distinction  of 
tetanus  into  idiopathic  and  traumatic. 

Lacerated  wounds  of  tendinous  parts  prove  in  warm  climates  a  very  frequent  source  of 
these  complaints.  In  cold  climates,  as  well  as  in  warm,  lockjaw  (in  which  the  spasms  are 

confined  to  the  muscles  of  the  jaw  or  throat)  sometimes  arises  in  consequence  of  the  ampu- 
tation of  a  limb  or  from  lacerated  wounds. 

Tetanic  afl'ections  which  follow  the  receipt  of  a  wound  or  local  injury  usually  prove 
fatal.     *    *    *    It  is  usually  the  sequel  of  wounds  and  injuries. 

Witthaus  and  Becker,  in  their  Medical  Jurisprudence  of  Forensic 

Medicine,  Toxicology,  vol.  1 ,  page  513,  say  that — 
Tetanus  is  an  infective  bacterial  disease,  affecting  chiefly  the  central  nervous  system  and 

almost  always,  if  not  always,  originating  from  a  wound. 

Tetanus,  like  erysipelas,  is  probably  always  traumatic  and  never  strictly  idiopathic.  The 

wound  may  be  so  slight  as  to  escaf)e  notice.  When  it  follows  such  injuries  as  simple  frac- 
ture, internal  infection  probably  occurs,  though  such  causes  are  extremely  rare.  It  is  said 

that  the  weather  influences  the  development  of  tetanus,  and  that  it  is  more  common  in  the 
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tropics.  There  are  also  certain  sections  where  tetanus  is  much  more  common  than  else- 
where and  where  it  may  be  said  to  be  almost  endemic.  *  *  *  Tetanus  usually  appears 

about  the  end  of  the  first  week  after  a  wound  has  l)een  received,  but  it  may  not  appear  for  a 
longer  period,  even  three  or  four  weeks,  so  that  the  wound  may  have  been  sometime  healed. 

To  connect  tetanus  wnth  a  particular  wound,  note  (1)  if  there  were  any  symptoms  of  it 

before  the  wound  or  injury,  (2)  whether  any  other  cause  intervened  aft«r  the  wound  or 

injury  which  would  be  likely  to  produce  it,  and  (3)  whether  tlie  deceased  ever  rallied  from 
the  effects  of  the  injury. 

In  the  work  of  Allan  McLane  Hamilton,  and  others,  entitled  ̂ ^A  Sys- 

tem of  Legal  Medicine/^  Vol.  II,  page  585,  it  is  said  that — 
Tetanus  occurs  most  frequently  in  wounds  accidentally  inflicted,  particularly  in  punctured 

and  penetrating  wounds,  and  in  those  in  which  a  foreign  body  remains  behind.  Its  exist- 
ence is  now  l>elieved  to  depend  upon  the  presence  of  a  special  organism,  the  Bacillus  tetani. 

A  variable  length  of  time  is  occupied  in  the  period  of  incubation,  according  to  the  number  of 
bacilli  introduced  (Watson  Cheyne),  the  location  of  the  point  of  infection,  the  anatomical 
characteristics  of  the  surrounding  tissues,  and  the  capacity  of  the  different  tissues  to  yield 

the  ptomaines  under  the  influence  of  the  bacillus.  It  is  also  probable  that  the  degree  of 

virulence  governs,  to  a  certain  extent,  both  the  duration  of  the  stage  of  incubation  and  the  sev- 

erity of  the  attack.  *  *  *  and  as  the  bacillus  of  tetanus  requires  the  exclusion  of  oxy- 
gen in  order  to  grow,  it  is  evident  that  a  punctured  wound  quickly  closed  offers  just  the 

conditions  appropriate  for  the  reproduction  of  the  germ,  if  it  has  been  introduced  into  the 

depths  of  the  wound. 
Trauma  means,  strictly  speaking,  a  wound.  The  term  is  used  justly  as  synonymous  with 

an  injury.     lb.,  298. 

When  it  comes  to  the  actual  trial  of  actions  for  personal  injuries, 

there  are  two  difficult  questions,  to  the  solution  of  which  the  testi- 
mony of  the  medical  expert  may  be  directed.  One  of  these  is  how  far 

the  defendant's  negligence  is  responsible  for  some  subsequently  devel- 
oped infirmity  or  disease  or,  in  other  words,  how  far  a  given  injury  may 

be  said  to  be  the  natural  and  proximate  cause  of  a  subsequently  devel- 
oped condition  and  therefore  render  the  defendant  liable  for  that  con- 

dition. 

The  general  rule  is  easily  stated,  to  wit:  if  the  subsequent  disease  or  infirmity  is  one 
which  would  occur  as  the  natural  result  of  the  injury,  anj  it  is  not  shown  that  any  other 

independent  cause  existed  of  which  it  might  have  been  the  result,  then  the  author  of  the 
original  injury  is  liable  for  the  subsequent  disease  or  infirmity.     lb.,  379. 

From  the  foregoing  authorities  it  easily  develops  that  tetanus  usu- 
ally follows  trauma,  that  it  is  a  natural  sequence  of  it,  and  that  neither 

the  severity  of  the  laceration  nor  the  length  of  time  which  had  elapsed 

in  this  case  after  the  wound  was  given,  nor  the  apparent  partial  recov- 
ery have  any  significance  in  determining  whether  the  traumatic  teta- 

nus stated  by  the  physicians  to  be  the  cause  of  Juan's  death  was  the 
result  of  the  wound  received  on  the  15tli  of  May  preceding.  Tetanus 
from  that  wound  was  a  natural  result  within  the  period  which  in  fact 
elapsed  between  May  15  and  the  beginning  of  the  tetanic  attack.  An 
early  healing  of  the  lacerated  wound  was  an  apt  aid  to  tetanus.  When 

the  physicians  in  attendance  ascribed  Juan^s  death  to  traumatic  teta- 
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nus,  they  said,  in  effect,  that  it  was  tetanus  arising  from  wounds  or 
external  injuries.  As  no  other  wound  or  injury  is  even  suggested,  they 
also  said,  in  effect,  that  the  tetanus  related  back  to  the  trauma 
inflicted  by  the  machete  of  the  officer  upon  Juan  when  he  was  under 

the  care  of  the  Government  troops  and  in  the  presence  of  the  com- 
manding general.  Since  his  death  resulted  through  a  line  of  natural 

sequences  from  a  wound  inflicted  under  the  circumstances  named,  the 
responsibility  of  the  respondent  Government  is  the  same  as  though 
death  had  been  the  immediate  result  of  the  machete  stroke. 

Whether  the  physicians  who  gave  the  certificate  were  intelligent  and 
trustworthy  is  of  course  a  proper  inquiry.  There  is  no  question  made 
by  the  respondent  Government,  and  there  is  no  indication  in  anything 
connected  with  the  facts  of  this  case  which  suggests  the  contrary. 

It  becomes,  then,  the  duty  of  the  umpire  to  hold  that  Juan  Maninat 
came  to  his  death  because  of  a  wound  inflicted  upon  him  under  such 

circumstances  as  to  impose  responsibility  upon  the  respondent  Gov- 
ernment. 

In  this  case,  unlike  that  of  Jules  Brun,  there  are  other  considerations 
than  the  loss  which  Justina  de  Coss6  has  suffered  through  the  death  of 
her  brother  Juan.  There  is  no  evidence  that  she  was  over  dependent 
upon  him  for  care  or  support,  or  that  he  ever  rendered  either,  or  that 
she  was  so  circumstanced  as  to  need  either,  or  that  he  was  of  ability  or 
disposition  to  accord  either.  Therefore  it  is  diflicult  to  measure  her  exact 

pecuniary  loss.  There  exists  only  the  ordinary  presumptions  attend- 
ing the  facts  of  a  widowed  sister  and  a  brother  of  ordinary  ability  and 

affection.  Some  pecuniary  loss  may  well  be  predicated  on  such  condi- 
tions. For  this  she  may  have  recompense.  But  the  more  important 

feature  of  this  case  is  the  unatoned  indignity  to  a  sister  Republic 
through  this  inexcusable  outrage  upon  one  of  her  nationals  who  had 
estabHshed  his  domicile  in  the  domain  of  the  respondent  Government. 

There  was  abundant  reason,  which  France  may  well  appreciate, 

why  the  respondent  Government  could  not  censure  ov  punish  the  gen- 
eral in  command  or  the  officer  who,  in  fact,  made  the  attack  upon 

Juan.  The  country  was  in  the  throes  of  a  strong  revolution,  the  sup- 
porting hand  of  every  one  loyal  to  the  titular  government  was  essential 

to  its  support.  It  could  not  meet  successfully  the  possible  results  if  it 
had  undertaken  to  censure  or  punish  the  guilty  parties.  Silence  and 

tacit  acquiescence  was  the  only  position  then  open  to  the  titular  govern- 
ment. Since  that  period  and  prior  to  the  sitting  at  Caracas  of  this 

mixed  commission  there  had  been  no  real  opportunity  for  the  two 
governments  diplomati(ially  to  consider  or  pass  upon  the  merits  of  this 
case,  and  it  remained  practically  for  this  tribunal  to  speak  the  voice  of 
regret  and  to  tender  atonement  for  a  sad  result.  Justina  de  Coss6  can 
be  the  medium  of  transmission  of  this  atonement  from  the  respondent 
Government  to  France  and  by  a  payment  of  money  honorably  answer 
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the  just  demands  of  the  claimants  and  assure  to  the  intervening  Gov- 
ernment the  constant  wilHngness  of  Venezuela  to  atone  for  this  wrong 

by  the  only  means  now  in  her  pow  er. 
The  honorable  commissioner  for  France  disclaims  all  right  to  an 

award  based  upon  the  injuries  directly  attributable  to  the  failure  of 
Maninat  Brothers  as  a  claim  consequent  upon  the  death  of  Juan  for 
reasons  which  he  succinctly  states;  but  he  holds  that  some  disastrous 
results  following  his  death  and  the  pillages  and  requisitions  preceding 
his  injury  may  properly  move  the  generous  impulses  of  the  umpire 
when  he  comes  to  make  up  his  award. 

It  is  probable  that  the  honorable  commissioner  for  France  and  the 
umpire  do  not,  in  fact,  really  differ  in  their  conception  of  what  is  equity 
in  such  a  matter.  But  to  plant  an  equity  always  requires  the  basic 
quality  of  a  right  in  the  party  receiving,  because  of  a  wrong  moving 
from  the  party  to  be  charged  with  the  onerous  conditions  of  the 
equitable  conclusion.  Generosity  is  not  equity;  equity  has  no  part  in 
generosity.  Equity  exists  when  exactly  the  right  thing  is  done 
between  the  parties..  Neither  more  nor  less  than  this  is  equit3\  A 

just  conclusion  only  opens  the  door  to  equity.  So  far  as  the  respond- 
ent Government  is  responsible  for  the  wrongs  suffered  by  the  next  of 

kin  of  Juan  who  have  a  right  to  the  intervention  of  France  because  of 
their  nationality,  so  far  and  so  far  only  does  equity  require  or  permit 
action  on  the  part  of  the  umpire.  In  every  respect  other  than  this,  he 
has  no  right  either  to  add  to  nor  subtract  from.  To  act  at  all,  he  must 
find  a  right  to  claim  on  the  part  of  the  claimant,  and  a  wrong  to  be 
redressed  on  the  part  of  the  respondent  Government.  Within  those 
circumscribed  limits  he  has  liberty  of  and  necessity  for  action;  outside 
of  those  limits  he  is  a  trespasser.  He  can  not  be  generous;  he  can  only 
deal  justly  and  equitably. 

So  far  as  the  injuries  to  the  Society  of  Maninat  Brothers  is  concerned, 
the  interest  of  Juan  in  the  requisitions  and  pillages  mentioned,  which 
occurred  prior  to  his  death,  it  is  sufficient  to  say  that  the  claimants 
have  had  the  preparation  of  this  cause  for  presentation  before  this 
tribunal.  No  reason  is  given  why  this  reclamation  did  not  include  a 
definite  and  precise  statement  under  that  head,  if  reimbursement  was 
sought.  It  was  surely  capable  of  some  degree  of  exactness  in  the 
statement  and  some  degree  of  certainty  in  the  proof.  Neither  has 
been  attempted.  By  their  own  inattention  and  inaction  they  have 
deprived  the  umpire  of  all  opportunity  to  know  anything  of  this 

branch  of  their  alleged  injuries,  and  they  must  not  ask  him  to  con- 
jecture and  estimate  when  they  might  have  permitted  him  a  settled 

judgment,  nor  can  they  at  all  expect  that  he  will  add  aught  to  his 
award  because  of  these  probable,  but  vaguely  uncertain,  losses  which 
they  project  into  this  reclamation. 
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Because  of  the  holding  by  the  umpire  that  Pedro  Maninat  is  a 
Venezuelan,  it  results  necessarily  that  nothing  can  be  considered  in  his 
behalf  on  account  of  failure  of  justice  or  denials  of  justice,  if  such 

occurred,  succeeding  the  death  of  Juan  and  personal  to  him  or  to  the 
mother  of  his  wife,  who  attempted  to  assist  him. 

In  naming  one  only  of  the  Maninat  heirs  as  competent  to  present  a 
claim  under  the  protocol  of  February  19,  1902,  no  inequity  is  done  the 
other  heirs.  It  does  them  no  harm  that  she  is  not  a  Venezuelan,  but 

of  French  nationality  only.  The  laws  of  France  governing  the  dis- 
tribution of  estates  are  not  involved  in  this  decision,  neither  are  they 

invaded  nor  disturbed.  This  tribunal  has  no  part  in  the  final  allotment 
or  distribution  of  the  sum  which  by  the  award  herein  is  made  payable 
to  France,  through  the  personality  of  Justina  de  Coss6,  for  whom  that 
country  has  right  of  intervention.  Over  the  proceeds  of  the  award 
here  made  France  has  absolute  dominion,  so  far  as  this  tribunal  is 

concerned,  and  in  the  perfect  justice  and  equity  of  her  procedure  there 
can  be  complete  content. 

It  is  the  judgment  of  the  umpire  that  a  just  compensation  which 
covers  both  aspects  of  this  case  is  100,000  francs,  and  the  award  will  be 

prepared  for  that  amount. 
NoRTHFiELD,  July  31,  1906. 



CLAIM  OF  ANTOINE  FABIAIH.— NO.  4. 

HEAD  NOTES. 

This  claim  came  to  the  umpire  after  having  beee  once  heard  and  determined  by  the  honor- 
able President  of  the  Swiss  Federation,  beipg  submitted  to  him  under  the  protocol  of 

February  19,  1891,  the  first  paragraph  of  which  reads: 

"The  Government  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  and  the  Government  of  the 
French  Republic  have  agreed  to  submit  to  an  arbitrator  the  claims  of  M.  Antonio 

Fabiani  against  the  Venezuelan  Government." 
Against  the  proposition  that  such  an  arbitrament  and  award  is  conclusive  upon  all  parties 

the  claimant  urges  that  the  Swiss  arbitrator  held  that  he  had  not  jurisdiction  over  a  large 

part  of  the  claims  and  therefore  was  incompetent  to  consider  and  to  pass  upon  them; 
that  the  Swiss  arbitrator  in  fact  extracted  and  subtracted  from  those  claims  such  as  he 

held  were  without  his  jurisdiction  and  only  awarded  concerning  the  rest. 

The  umpire  holds,  however,  that  no  jurisdictional  questions  were  before  the  wSwiss  arbi- 
trator, none  were  urged  by  either  party,  and  none  in  fact  were  determined;  that  all 

claims  of  Fabiani  were  in  fact  submitted  by  tlie  protocol  to  the  decision  of  the  Swiss 
arbitrator  and  all  were  in  fact  decided  by  him. 

That  there  were  certain  restrictions  placed  upon  the  Swiss  arbitrator  in  the  protocol  which 

had  the  effect  to  hmit  the  scope  of  the  claims  left  undisposed  of  by  the  two  Governments 
for  decision  by  the  Swiss  arbitrator. 

That  under  the  protocol  the  Swiss  arbitrator  must  first  determine  whether  (he  \'enezuelan 
Government  was  responsible  for  any  damages  to  Fabiani;  that  this  responsibility  nmst 

be  determined  in  view  of  the  limitations  of  the  protocol  which  were  to  the  Swiss  arbi- 
trator his  supreme  law.     These  limitations  were  essentially  that  the  decision  was  to  \ye 

fl  EXTRACT  FROM   THE  MINUTES  OF  THE   SESSION   OF   MAY   30,  1903. 

The  claim  of  Antoine  Fabiani  was  then  taken  up. 

Doctor  Paul  rejects  it  as  having  already  been  judged  by  the  arbitral  court  of  f5eme,  the 
award  of  which,  in  his  opinion,  has  decided  definitely  on  all  the  points  of  indemnity  presented 

by  M.  Fabiani. 
M.  de  Peretti,  on  the  other  hand,  claims  that  the  Swiss  arbitrator  has  brushed  aside  all  the 

points  represented  to-day  by  M.  Fabiani  as  not  being  covered  by  the  agreement  of  arbitra- 
tion signed  the  24th  of  February,  1891,  by  the  two  Governments.  The  President  of  the 

Swiss  Confederation  has,  then,  declared  himself  incompetent  to  examine  tfie  aforesaid 

points,  which  by  this  very  fact  have  found  themselves  reserved  for  the  examination  of  the 
commission  instituted  by  the  protocol  of  Pans.  Consequently  M.  de  Peretti  admits  the 
demand  of  M.  Fabiani,  which  he  recognizes  to  be  well  founded,  and  accords  to  him  the  sum 
which  he  claims. 

Doctor  Paul  declares  that  the  decision  taken  by  M.  de  Peretti,  according  to  M.  Fabiani  the 

sum  which  he  claims,  has  not  been  preceded  by  any  discussion  between  the  arbitrators  upon 

the  amount  of  the  claim,  which  Doctor  Paul  rejects  for  the  reason  already  expressed — 
namely,  that  all  the  claims  newly  presented  by  M.  Fabiani  have  become  res  judicata. 

This  claim  will  then  be  submitted  to  the  examination  of  the  umpire. 

S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   6  81 
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reached  in  accordance  with  "  the  laws  of  Venezuela,  the  general  principles  of  the  law  of 

nations,  and  the  convention  in  force  between  the  two  contracting  powers." 
The  convention  then  in  force  between  the  two  nations  was  that  of  November  26,  1885,  and 

had  especial  reference  to  article  5  thereof.  The  force  and  effect  of  article  5  of  said 
treaty  was  cx)nsidered  and  determined  by  the  Swiss  arbitrator,  and  his  interpretation 
thereof  is  conclusive,  so  far  as  the  claim  of  Fabiani  is  concerned. 

In  order  to  determine  the  scope,  depth,  and  breadth  of  that  treaty,  the  Swiss  arbitrator  had 

to  define  the  meaning  of  the  expression  "  denials  of  justice  "  found  in  said  treaty.  His 
definition  is  conclusive  upon  the  claim  of  Fabiani. 

When  the  Swiss  arbitrator  decided  the  principles  governing  the  claim  submitted  to  him,  he 

had  decided  affirmatively  or  negatively  the  different  claims  made  in  Fabiani 's  behalf, 
not  in  detail  but  in  principle. 

When  France  intervened  in  behalf  of  her  national,  his  claim  was  no  longer  individual  and 

private,  but  national. 
Thenceforward  it  was  national  interests,  not  private  interests,  that  were  to  be  safeguarded. 

It  was  the  national  welfare  and  national  honor  which  were  to  t)e  considered.  Should 

the  general  good  of  France  at  any  time  during  the  negotiations  with  Venezuela  require 

a  surrender  of  all  of  Fabiani's  claims,  France  may  make  such  surrender,  or  it  may  sur- 
render a  part  thereof,  and  for  such  surrender  Fabiani,  if  he  has  a  claim  anywhere,  has  it 

against  his  own  Government. 
When  a  nation  intervenes  in  behalf  of  her  national  and  finally  consents  to  arbitration  of  the 

difference,  the  primary  purpose  of  such  arbitration  is  to  remove  the  vexed  question 

from  the  arena  of  diplomatic  dissension  and  controversy.  It  is  not  to  l>e  considered 

that  France  would  consent  to  submit  to  arbitration  a  part  only  of  her  national's  claim, 
leaving  large  and  important  parts  of  it  undisposed  of,  and  to  remain  as  vexatious  ques- 

tions between  the  two  Governments. 

Neither  is  it  to  be  considered  that  Venezuela  intelligently  entered  upon  an  arbitration  of  a 

question  in  dispute  between  the  two  Governments  understanding  that  the  effect  of  the 

agreement  to  arbitrate  would  he  to  hold  her  to  make  reparation  for  such  an  amount  as 
might  be  held  to  be  denials  of  justice  by  the  arbitrator,  while  for  all  not  so  held  she  would 

later  be  compelled  to  again  oppose  them  or  to  pay  them  or  to  arbitrate  them. 
Venezuela  did  not  enter  upon  this  arbitration  by  the  Swiss  arbitrator  with  the  understanding 

that  if  he  decided  everything  against  Fabiani  all  that  had  originally  been  claimed  would 
be  left  unsettled  by  his  decision,  and  be  restored  to  their  primal  state  of  existing  claims 
for  which  the  Government  of  Frapce  could  intervene.  Equally  certain  is  it  that  she 
did  not  enter  into  the  arbitration  with  the  understanding  that  if  any  part  of  the  claim 

were  decided  in  her  favor  that  part  might  yet  be  brought  before  another  arbitral 
tribunal. 

In  that  and  in  every  similar  international  controversy  the  two  Governments  seeking  an 

agreement  look  well  for  a  common  meeting  point  which  is  usually  to  be  gained  only  by 
mutual  concession  and  mutual  remission  of  matters  which  can  yield  and  when  that 

common  meeting  pomt  is  reached  to  submit  it  to  the  arbitrator  as  the  whole  contro- 
versy; or  as  bemg  all  that  which  both  parties  will  admit  is  the  controverted  question. 

WTiich  mutual  pomt  ol  agreement  is  as  much  a  matter  of  agreement  between  the  high 
contracting  parties  as  is  the  covenant  to  arbitrate  itself  and  is  an  integral  part  of  that 
covenant. 

Each  concession  so  made  by  one  party  cancels  the  one  made  by  the  other,  so  that  outside 
the  terms  of  the  convention  there  is  nothing  left  of  the  original  contention.  All  which 

is  excluded  is  concluded  by  the  high  contracting  parties  themselves.  What  is  not 
found  of  the  original  controversy  to  be  resting  in  the  compromise  is  in  oblivion. 

Just  how  much  is  conceded  and  how  mucli  is  retained  is  left  for  the  determination  of  the 

arbitrator.  It  may  be  contended  on  the  one  hand  there  is  nothing  conceded,  on  the 
other  band  that  nothing  is  left;  but  the  arbitrator  is  to  decide  how  much  is  included 
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and  how  much  is  excluded,  and,  when  he  decides,  that  decision  is  Jinal  and  conclusive 

,up(m  the  whole  of  the  original  controversy. 

That  which  Fabiani  claims  to  have  been  a  subtraction  by  the  Swiss  arbitrator  is  in  fact 

merely  designating  the  difTerent  elements  of  his  controversy  which  in  elTect  the  high 
contracting  parties  had  agreed  to  eliminate  and  subtract  in  order  to  reach  an  agreement 
of  arbitration. 

So  far  as  tliese  concessions  approaching  and  permitting  an  agreement  to  arbitrate  finally 
afTected  the  pecuniary  interests  of  Fabiani  they  were  in  effect  the  especial  tribute 
required  of  him  by  his  Government  to  conserve  its  general  good. 

The  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne  on  his  own  initiative  eliminated  nothing,  subtracted 

nothing,  and  there  was  left  for  him  nothing  except  to  settle  the  meaning  of  the  protocol 
and  then  to  observe  its  effect  and  to  point  out  which  of  the  claims  came  within  and  which 

without  the  action  of  the  rule  agreed  upon  and  prescribed  to  him  by  the  two  honorable 

Governments,  settle  the  damages  on  what  remained,  and  make  award  accordingly. 
It  follows  that  the  protocol  arranged  between  the  honorable  Governments  of  France  and 

Venezuela  February  24,  1891,  succeeded  by  the  award  of  the  honorable  President  of 

the  Swiss  Federation  December  15,  1896,  were,  acting  together,  a  complete,  final,  and 
conclusive  disposition  of  the  entire  controversy  on  behalf  of  Fabiani. 

OPINION  OF  THE  VENZUELAN  COMMISSIONER. 

Antonio  Fabiani  has  presented  before  this  commission  a  demand  of 

indemnity  amounting  tc  9,509,728.30  bolivars,  for  losses  and  damages 
comprised  in  the  items  which,  he  says,  were  eliminated  by  the  Swiss 
arbitrator  in  his  award  rendered  in  the  French- Venezuelan  suit  called 

the  ̂ ^  Fabiani  controversy,"  on  the  30th  of  December,  1896,  and  by 
which  award  the  Government  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  was 

condemned  to  pay  to  Fabiani,  by  way  of  indemnity,  in  the  terms  of 
the  protocol  of  the  24th  of  February,  1891,  including  all  expenses, 
the  total  sum  of  4,346,656.57  bolivars,  with  interest  at  the  rate  of  5  per 
cent  a  year  from  the  date  of  the  award. 

Fabiani  argues  that  the  Swiss  arbitrator  deliberately  subtracted 
from  his  decision,  because  they  were  not  comprised  in  the  terms  of  the 
protocol,  certain  sums  demanded  by  him  in  his  claim  presented  to 
said  arbitrator  and  partly  contained  in  seven  separate  tables,  under 

the  letters  A,  B,  C,  D,  E,  F,  and  G,  which  he  presented  to  the  arbi- 
trator when  the  demand  was  formulated.  These  tables,  as  said  by 

Fabiani  himself,  in  his  statement,  page  629,  had  for  their  object  to 
facilitate  the  investigations  of  the  arbitrator  and  corresponded  to  the 
situation  that  had  been  created  to  him  in  Venezuela  by  the  series  of 
prejudicial  acts  on  which  he  based  his  claim,  and  he  adds,  on  that 
account,  the  following  consideration : 

Although  the  whole  links  together  without  solution  of  continuity,  we  have  thought  that 
it  was  convenient  to  keep  a  certain  chronological  order  and  take  into  consideration  the  time 

when  the  damages  were  caused  and  when  they  exercised  their  influence  on  our  fate  and  on 
the  destinies  of  our  commercial  estabHshments. 

The  demand  entered  by  the  Government  of  the  French  Republic, 
plaintiff,  against  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  defendant,  before  the 
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President  of  the  Swiss  Confederation,  appointed  arbitrator  by  a 
protocol  signed  in  Caracas  on  the  24th  of  February,  1891,  re.erred  to 

the  decision  of  said  arbitrator  the  question  as  to  whether — 
according  to  the  laws  of  Venezuela  the  general  principles  of  the  law  of  nations  and  the  con- 

vention (of  the  26th  November,  1885)  in  force  between  the  two  contracting  powers  the 

Venezuelan  Government  vxis  responsible  for  the  damages  which  Fabiani  claimed  he  sustained 
through  denials  of  justice, 

and  the  arbitrator  was  also  charj^ed  with  the  duty  of  determining — 
in  case  this  responsibility  was  recognized,  as  to  all  or  part  of  the  claims  in  question,  the  amount 

of  the  pecuniary  indemnity  that  the  Venezuelan  Government  ought  to  pay  into  the  hands  of 

M.  Fabiani,  which  payment  would  be  made  in  funds  of  the  Venezuelans  per  cent  diplomatic 
debt.     (Arbitration  protocol  of  1891.) 

The  demand  was  entered  to  obtain  the  reparation  of- damages 
caused  by  denials  of  justice  through  acts  imputed  to  the  administra- 

tive and  judicial  authorities  of  the  Republic  of  Venezuela,  for  which 
damages  the  state  ought  to  be  responsible  and  which  comprised : 

First.  The  reparation  ol  the  damage  sustained; 
Second.  The  gain  frustrated ; 
Third.  The  interest  calculated  from  the  date  of  the  damageable  acts; 
Fourth.  The  compound  interest; 

Fifth.  The  sacrifices  made  by  the  injured  party  for  the  maintenance 
of  his  industry; 

Sixth.  The  prejudice  deriving  from  the  expense  made  and  from  the 
time  lost  to  arrive  at  the  execution  of  the  sentences; 

Seventh.  The  damages  to  be  considered  as  the  necessary  conse- 
quence of  the  offenses; 

Eighth.  The  damage  done  by  the  privation  of  work  in  the  iiiture; 
and 

Ninth.  The  reparation  of  the  moral  prejudice. 
The  demonstrative  table  of  the  claims  of  Fabiani  was  annexed  to 

the  demand  with  determination  of  the  several  items  for  capital  and 
capitalized  interest,  amounting  to  the  total  sum  of  46,944,563.17 
francs. 

The  Swiss  arbitrator,  in  determining  the  object  of  the  demand 
referred  to  his  decision,  fixed  the  reach  that  he  considered  necessary 

to  attribute  to  the  words  ̂ 'denial  of  justice, ^^  construing  that  the 
powers  which  signed  the  compromise  had  given  to  said  words  their 

widest  meaning  and  had  meant  by  them — 
all  the  acts  of  judicial  authorities  which  might  imply  a  direct  or  disguised  refusal  to  do  justice. 

Said  arbitrator  determinately  says  in  the  award  in  question :  The  duty 

of  the  arbitrator  precisely  consists  in  deciding  whether  Venezuela — 

is  responsible  for  the  damages  which  Fabiani  says  to  have  sustained  through  denials  of  jus- 
tice. *  *  *  Thus  the  object  of  the  controversy  and  its  origin  are  acknowledged  by  the 

parties;  it  was  on  account  of  the  refusal  of  the  execution  of  the  award  of  the  15th  Decem- 
ber, 1880,  which  Fabiani  possessed  against  two  debtors  domiciled  in  Venezuela  or  on  account 
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of  the  default  of  execution  owing  to  the  admission  of  illegal  recourses  tliat  France  took  the 
interests  of  her  native  into  her  hands.    . 

The  Swiss  arbitrator  also  declares  that — 

Venezuela  does  not  incur  any  responsibility  according  to  the  protocol,  on  account  of  facts 
foreign  to  the  judicial  authorities  of  the  respondent  Government. 

Fabiani  now  maintains,  more  than  six  years  after  the  sentence  of 

Berne  became  affirmed,  that  the  Swiss  arbitrator  deliberately  elimi- 
nated the  faits  du  prince,  because  he  considered  them  excluded  from 

the  terms  of  the  protocol.  It  does  not  appear  from  the  careful 

examination  of  that  sentence  that  the  arbitrator  had  eliminated  any 
fact  directly  or  indirectly  connected  with  the  fundamental  cause  of  the 
suit  and  with  its  object,  namely,  the  denials  of  justice  and  the  claims 
that  Fabiani  had  presented,  pretending  that  the  Government  of  the 
Republic  was  responsible  for  all  of  them.  The  arbitrator  eliminated 

some  of  those  claims,  because  the  facts  on  which  they  were  based 
did  not  make  Venezuela  incur  any  responsibility,  as  they  were  strange 
to  the  judicial  authorities  of  the  respondent  state.  The  arbitrator 

expressly  declares  that  some — 
of  those  claims  based  on/aife  du  prince,  which  are  either  changes  of  legislation  or  arbitrary 

acts  of  the  executive  power,  are  al)solutely  subtracted  from  his  decision,  wherefore  he  elimi- 
nates from  the  procedure  all  the  allegations  and  means  of  proof  relating  thereto,  as  long  as 

he  can  not  reserve  them  to  establish  other  concluding  and  connected  facts  relating  to  the 
denials  of  justice. 

And  the  Swiss  arbitrator  adds  thereupon,  in  the  motives  of  the  sen- 
tence, the  following  declaration : 

It  is  certainly  the  denials  of  justice  committed  in  the  course  of  the  proceeding  for  the  exe- 
cution of  the  award  of  the  15th  of  Dec«ml)er,  1880,  and  the  eventual  appreciation  of  their 

pecuniary  consequences  that  form  the  object  of  the  present  litigation.  It  is,  however,  neces- 
sary to  remove  another  objection  of  the  petition. 

The  judicial  position  of  Fabiani  in  Venezuela  was  first  liquidated  by  the  compromise  of 

the  31st  of  January,  1873.  After  a  series  of  incidents  Fabiani  renounced  the  Ix^nefit  of  this 
act  and  signed  the  compromise  that  gave  birth  to  the  award  of  1880.  The  plaintiff  has 
stated  that  he  adhered  to  this  compromise  under  the  empire  of  main  force  and  that  it 

did  not  cover  the  prior  denials  of  justice.  But  he  (the  plaintiff)  recognizes  without  hesita- 
tion (petition,  p.  142,  et  seq)  that  Fabiani,  who  could  have  had  the  compromise  annulled 

by  the  French  courts,  preferred  to  reser\"e  the  future  of  his  commerce  in  Venezuela  by 
exhausting  all  moans  of  conciliation.  Fabiani  thus  contented  himself  with  the  state  of 

things  created  by  the  acceptance  of  the  arbitrators'  jurisdiction,  and, Ixisides, from  that  moment 
his  judicial  efforts  in  Venezuela  only  tended  to  the  execution  of  the  judgment  of  the  loth  of 
December,  1880.  The  motive  drawn  from  the  vis  major,  which  would  have  affected  the 

compromise  of  1880  and  would  remove  farther  back  the  starting  point  of  the  denials  of  jus- 
tice comprised  in  the  present  instance  can  not  be  taken,  therefore,  into  consideration. 

Denials  of  justice  in  virtue  of  which  it  would  be  possible  to  proceed  against  Venezuela  for 

responsibility  before  the  arbitrator  could  not  have  taken  place  before  the  introduction  of 
the  proceeding  for  the  execution  of  the  award  of  the  15th  of  December,  1880,  or  l^efore  the 
7th  of  June,  1881,  the  date  of  the  petition  for  the  exequatur  entered  before  the  high  federal 
court. 

The  arbitrator  has  not,  therefore,  admitted  besides  the  faits  du  prince  any  of  the  facts 

foreign  to  the  nonexecution  and  to  the  effects  of  the  nonexecution  of  the  sentence  above 
referred  to  to  be  proved. 
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It  is  seen  from  the  foregoing  insertion  that  the  arbitrator,  exercising 
his  wide  powers  of  appreciation,  left  out  of  consideration  any  fact, 
whether  a  denial  of  justice,  prior  to  the  7th  of  June,  1881,  when  the 
demand  of  execution  of  the  sentence  of  Marseilles  was  entered  bex^re 

the  high  federal  court,  or  those  called  faits  du  pAnce,  that  he  could  not 
reserve  with  a  view  to  prove  other  concluding  and  connected  facts 

relating  to  denials  of  justice.  That  elimination  of  proofs  and  allega- 
tions concerning  facts  entirely  strange  to  the  mission  of  the  arbitrator, 

which  precisely  consisted  in  deciding — 
whether  Venezuela  was  .responsible  for  the  damages  which  Fabiani  claimed  ho  sustained 
til  rough  denials  of  justice, 

does  not  constitute,  on  any  reason  of  law  or  of  procedure,  a  declara- 
tion of  incompetence  or  of  want  of  jurisdiction  on  the  part  of  the  arbi- 

trator, with  regard  to  some  particulars  of  the  demand,  but  only  estab- 
lishes that  some  of  those  particulars  or  the  facts  upon  which  they 

rested,  were  destitute  of  the  conditions  necessary  for  their  being 
accepted  as  the  consequence  of  denials  of  justice,  and,  there:ore,  for 
their  being  admitted  by  the  arbitrator  as  elements  of  appreciation 
tending  to  cause  Venezuela  to  be  declared  responsible  for  the  damages 
that  Fabiani  claimed  as  the  consequence  thereof  and  as  the  object  of 
the  demand. 

The  Swiss  arbitrator  did  not  fail  to  appreciate  some  oT  iho^e  faits  du 
prince  which,  while  not  establishing  an  intimate  connection  with  the 
acts  of  denial  of  justice,  contributed  in  the  mind  ol  the  arbitrators  to 
form  appreciations  as  to  the  extent  of  the  guilt  and  the  amoimt  of 
the  damages  recognized  in  favor  of  Fabiani.  Such  is  collected  from 
the  motives  of  the  sentence  of  the  arbitrator,  contained  in  page  30: 

Different  indications  make  one  believe  that  the  respondent  Government  openly  hostilized 

Fabiani  and  that  this  position  might  incite  or  encourage  the  judicial  authority,  at  least  in 
the  provinces  distant  from  the  capital  and  without  the  control  of  a  watchful  public  opinion, 

to  ignore  the  rights  of  a  foreign  plaintiff,  to  whom  influential  persons  of  the  state  would  not 
conceal  their  hostility.  Such  is  the  official  approval  of  the  21st  August,  188^^,  given  to  the 

cession,  consented  by  B.  Roncayolo,  of  the  contract  of  the  La  C  eiba  Railway,  although  it 
was  notorious  in  Venezuela  that  that  cession  had  for  its  object  to  diminish  or  annihilate  the 

pledges  of  a  creditor  {faits  du  prince).  Such  appears  also  to  be  the  modification  adopted  by 
the  legislation  of  the  state  of  Falcdn  in  articles  5  and  7  of  the  organic  law  of  the  judicial  power 

in  Januar}%  1883  {faits  du  prince) ;  such  was  also  the  withdrawal  of  the  towing  service  which 
under  the  circumstances  and  at  the  time  it  was  decided  had  to  be  interpreted  as  an  act  of 

reprisal  directed  against  Fabiani  {faits  du  prince). 

It  is  not  possible  to  fail  to  recognize,  according  to  a  sound  logic,  that 
the  Swiss  arbitrator  gave  those  faits  du  prince  all  the  importance  that 
he  was  permitted  to  give  them  within  the  terms  of  the  arbitration 
compromise;  that  he  consciously  appreciated  them,  inferring  from 
them  serious  consequences  to  the  extent  of  considering  them  as  a 
manifestation  of  the  fact  that  the  government  openly  antagonized 
Fabiani;  encouraging  and  inciting  the  judicial  authority  to  perform  the 
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acts  considered  by  the  arbitrator  as  denials  of  justice,  and  finally  that 
they  (the  f aits  du  prince)  under  the  circumstances  they  occurred  had 
to  be  considered  as  acts  of  reprisal  directed  against  Fabiani. 

In  virtue  of  that  appreciation  the  Swiss  arbitrator  established  that 
the  responsibility  of  Venezuela  for  the  acts  properly  called  of  denial 

of  justice  was  tantamount  to,  at  least,  the  one  deriving  from  ̂ ^  offenses 
and  quasi  delicts  ̂ ^  and  that  it  obliged  Venezuela  to  compensate  all  the 
damage  that  might  reasonably  be  considered  as  a  direct  or  indirect 
consequence  (damnum  emergens  et  lucrum  cessans) ;  and  it  was  in  virtue 
of  that  appreciation  that  the  arbitrator,  when  declaring  the  respondent 
Government  responsible  for  all  the  consequences  of  the  denials  of 
justice  imputable  to  the  judicial  authorities  of  Venezuela,  determined 
the  extent  of  those  consequences  in  the  widest  manner,  liquidating  the 

return  of  damages  and  prejudices  presented  by  the  claiming  govern- 
ment in  the  manner  determined  by  chapter  6  of  the  award,  page  42, 

estimating  the  direct  damage  and  the  moral  prejudice,  the  indirect 
damage,  the  compound  interest,  the  gain  frustrated,  the  execution 
expenses,  and  the  costs  of  the  instance. 

To  prove,  furthermore,  with  the  very  arguments  of  Fabiani  that  the 
actual  purpose  of  the  arbitration  process  at  Berne,  determined  by  the 
general  terms  of  the  compromise  of  the  24th  of  February,  entered  into 
between  France  and  Venezuela,  was  to  have  the  question  decided  as 
to  whether  there  had  been  any  denial  of  justice j  for  which  decision  the 
arbitrator  had  to  appreciate  all  the  facts  and  all  the  incidents  connected 
with  the  suit,  and,  if  there  had  been  any,  to  fix  the  amount  of  the 

pecuniary  indemnity  corresponding  to  all  or  some  of  the  claims  pre- 

sented by  Fabiani,  it  suffices  to  reproduce  the  very  ̂ statement  pre- 
sented by  the  claimant  to  the  Swiss  arbitrator,  most  properly  determin- 

ing the  object  of  the  suit.  In  page  4  of  the  replique  to  the  answer  of 
the  Government  of  Venezuela,  Fabiani  copies  the  statement  of  motives 
presented  by  the  French  Government  concerning  the  demand  of 
indemnity.  Said  insertion,  taken  from  the  note  addressed  by  the 
legation  of  France  in  Caracas  to  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  runs 
as  follows : 

In  the  opinion  of  the  French  Government,  the  reparation  ought  to  comprise,  at  least, 
in  the  first  place,  the  amount  of  the  sums,  in  capital  and  interest,  the  collection  of  which 

would  have  been  assured  by  the  execution  in  due  time  of  the  sentences  and,  besides,  the 
restitutions  ordered  by  the  judges  and  which  would  represent  about  one  million  five  hundred 

thousand  francs  (1,. ̂00,000  francs),  and,  in  the  second  place,  damages  and  prejudices,  the 

figure  of  which  vxmld  have  to  he  discussed,  for  the  damage  caused  to  Fabiani  in  his  credit  and 
in  his  commerce. 

These  three  points  are  those  comprised  in  Tables  A,  B,  C,  D,  and  E 
of  the  p>etition  (pages  644,  747,  797,  and  817  of  the  statement). 

The  French  note  adds  (page  3  of  the  defense) : 

As  to  the  rest  of  his  pretensions,  a  serious  contradictory  examination  ought  to  determine 
in  what  measure  they  are  grounded. 
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What  are  these  pretensions?  Fabiani  proceeds.  The  affairs  of  the 
tugboats  and  of  the  La  Ceiba  Railway : 

Wlmt  was  the  reason  of  so  much  reserved  a  formula?  Why  those  reticences?  The  expla- 

nation thereof  will  be  found  in  the' last  paragraph  of  page  527  of  our  report.  *  *  * 
That  fl.9  to  the  object  of  the  litigation — that  is  to  saxfy  the  claims  of  M.  A.  Fahiani  that  the 
Government  of  the  United  Staies  of  Venezuela  and  the  Government  of  France  have  agreed  to 
refer  to  an  arbitrator.     (Treaty  of  Caracas  of  the  24th  of  February,  1891.) 

In  page  6  of  the  R^pHque  Fabiani  says: 

We  shall  only  point  out,  1st,  that  the  note  on  the  opening  of  the  negotiations  designates 
all  the  commercial  prejudices  that  are  now  the  object  of  Tables  A,  B,  D,  and  E  of  the  Report; 

2d,  that  the  same  note  makes  known  that  the  rest  of  the  pretensions  of  Fabiani  must  be  sub- 
mitted to  a  serious  and  contradictory  examination;  3d,  that  the  amounts  are  undetermined 

for  all  our  claims  except  for  account  A,  the  amount  of  which  indicated  under  the  reservation 

of  the  word  "approximately"  has  not  undergone  other  modifications  than  the  increase  of 
interest,  the  reparation  of  an  omission  (No.  7  of  Table  A),  and  the  incorporation  of  dotal 
annuities. 

In  page  1 1  of  the  same  R6plique: 

It  is  important  to  observe  that  the  word  claims,  twice  enunciated  in  the  protocol, 

applies  to  the  pecuniary  claims  and  only  to  them. 

In  page  13: 

They  shall  have  to  decide,  1st,  whether,  according  to  the  laws  of  Venezuela,  the  general 

principles  of  the  law  of  nations  and  the  convention  in  force  between  the  two  contracting 
powers,  the  Venezuelan  Government  is  responsible  for  the  damages  which  Fabiani  says  to  have 

sustained  through  denial  of  justice;  2d,  to  fix,  in  case  this  responsibility  should  be  recognized 
for  all  or  part  of  the  claims  in  question,  the  amount  of  the  pecuniary  indemnity  which  the 

Government  of  Venezuela  ought  to  pay  into  the  hands  of  M.  Fabiani,  which  payment  will  • 
be  made  in  bonds  of  the  Venezuelan  3  per  cent  diplomatic  debt. 

Such  are  the  terms  of  the  protocol.  They  are  so  clear  and  precise  that  they  require  no 
interpretation.  They  give  the  arbitrator  the  right  to  search  out  the  denial  of  justice,  to  point 

out  to  it  where  he  may  find  it  and  disallow  our  demand,  if  the  denial  of  justice  does  not  exist. 
There  is  no  more  tedious  a  task  than  to  have  at  every  moment  to  demonstrate  what  is  evident. 

In  the  same  page : 

Certainly  the  refusal  of  execution  of  the  sentence  exists  in  the  process  as  an  important  ele- 
Tiicnt  among  the  numerous  denials  of  justice  that  we  denounce  against  Venezuela;  but  the 

resistances  of  the  Cabinet  of  Caracas,  unwarranted  both  as  to  their  form  and  reasons,  its  abso- 

lute refusal  to  agree  to  friendly  negotiations,  have  led  our  Government  not  to  sacrifice  any- 
thing for  the  sake  of  peace  and  to  demand  an  express  comprorr^ise  conceived  in  general  terms  in 

order  to  protect  all  the  rights,  all  the  interests  of  the  French  citizen  who  asked  for  its  protection. 

In  page  16: 

In  our  judgment  the  question  may  be  considered  from  another  point  of  view,  that  of  the 

terms  of  the  protocol,  general  terms  which  authorize  the  arbitrator  to  appreciate  any 
denial  of  justice  duly  proved,  and  permit  Fabiani  to  present  all  the  pecuniary  claims  relative 
to  damages  sustained  through  denials  of  justice. 

(The  pecuniary  reparation  is  the  effect,  the  denial  of  justice  is  the 
cause). 
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If  Fabiani  formulates  claims  having  another  cause  than  the  denial  of  justice,  or  if  it  should 

not  clearly  appear  that  they  are  imputable  to  a  denial  of  justice,  the  arbitrator  shall  purely  and 

simply  disallow  themy  because  they  vnll  be  without  the  limits  of  the  protocol, 

that  is  to  say,  without  the  law  and  not  without  his  competence;  the 
protocol  was  the  law) ; 

and,  if  he  recognizes  the  responsibility  of  Venezuela  he  will  point  out,  in  the  proportions  his 

conscience  may  suggest  him,  all  the  damages  he  may  judge  to  be  tho  direct  and  immediate  con- 
sequence of  the  infractions  committed  by  Venezuela. 

It  will  be  permitted  to  us  to  add  that,  even  if  the  protocol  instead  of  being  conceived 
in  general  terms  should  have  established  all  the  details  of  the  litigious  points,  it  would  not 

be  necessarily  inferred  therefrom  that  every  motive  or  claim  that  was  not  expressly  enun- 
ciated in  the  protocol  should  be  set  aside,  without  any  discussion,  as  being  without  the 

terms  of  that  protocol. 

If  no  other  difference  is  the  question,  or  if  th£  question  is  a  difference  posteriorly  occurred 
between  the  parties;  if  the  new  motives  of  demand,  although  they  are  not  expressly  specified 

in  the  protocol,  dre  found  therein,  however,  virtually  comprised,  whether  as  an  integral 
part  of  the  litigious  points  designated,  or  as  a  consequence  thereof;  if  the  source  of  those 

motives  is  found  in  the  compromise;  if  the  demand  is  not  different  from  those  which  the  com- 
promise has  foreseen  and  the  settlement  of  which  it  Aos  had  in  view;  and,  finally,  if  the  motives 

they  pretended  to  have  set  aside  might  later  give  place  to  tlie  same  debates  as  those  enunci- 
ated in  the  protocol,  the  arbiter  may  appreciate  the  merits  of  those  motives  and  include  them 

in  his  decision. 

The  new  Denizart  arbitration  No.  10  is  not  less  precise.  The  arbitrators  may  take  cogni- 
zance of  the  accessories  of  the  instance  and  of  all  those  incidents  in  such  a  manner  connected 

with  the  case,  that  it  would  happen,  if  the  judgment  thereof  were  omitted,  that  the  parties 

would  always  be  divided  by  the  same  question  that  had  been  the  object  of  the  protocol. 

Therefore,  when-  motives  of  demand  not  expressly  enunciated  in  the  protocol  are  con- 
nected with  the  case  itself  in  such  a  manner,  that,  if  the  judgment  thereof  were  omitted,  the 

parties  would  be  left  in  the  presence  of  the  same  litigation,  the  arbitrators  are  competent  to 

take  cognizance  thereof.  Might  it  not  be  added  that,  if  they  were  openly  set  aside,  the  decis- 
ion might  be  considered  as  rendered  without  the  terms  of  the  protocol? 

It  appears  to  us  to  be  very  difficult  to  imagine  an  arbitration  in  which  the  motives  of 
demand,  which  they  pretend  to  have  set  aside  under  the  pretext  that  the  same  ewe  without  the 

protocol,  may  exhibit  a  greater  connection  with  the  facts  that  are  found  expressly  enun- 
ciated therein.  Not  only  they  would  be  supported  in  this  judgment  on  the  same  means  and 

would  require  the  same  debates  as  the  motives,  the  admissibility  of  which  is  not  discussed,  but 
it  could  not  be  ignored  that  it  would  be  impossible  to  soundly  appreciate  the  merits  of  the  other 

motives,  if  the  first  denials  of  justice,  the  causes  which  have  been  the  motive  and  the  purpose  of 

the  denials  of  justice  and  are,  therefore,  the  essential  part,  the  ground  of  the  suit,  were  not, 

after  having  constantly  drawn  the  attention  of  the  judge,  to  be  considered  as  one  of  the  liti- 
gious points  submitted.to  his  decision. 

The  evident  purpose  of  the  arbitration,  which  purpose  is  justified  by  the  general  terms 
of  the  treaty  of  the  24th  of  February,  1891,  has  been  to  decide  whether  there  has  been 

denials  of  justice;  to  fiio,  if  there  has  been  any,  the  damages  imputable  to  the  denial  of  'justice, 
not  some  damages,  but  all  the  damages  that  Fabiani  claims  to  have  sustained;  to  determine  the 

amount  of  the  reparation  and  to  put  a  definitive  end  to  th^  difference  arisen  between  France 
and  Venezuela, 

It  is  important  that  the  decision  to  be  rendered  may,  conformably  to  the  noble  and 

pacific  formula  of  the  peace  tribunals,  declare  any  new  claim  of  Fabiani  for  denial  of  jus- 
tice inadmissible. 

Everything  tends,  therefore,  to  prove  that  the  identity  of  the  nature  of  the  demand,  the 
absolute  similitude  of  the  motives  invoked,  the  links  of  absolute  connection  uniting  the 

alleged  new  motives  with  all  the  others  would  recommend,  if  the  protocol  offered  any 
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obscurity,  thai  questions  the  inadvisibility  of  which  appears  proved  byaUthe  circumstances  of 
the  suit  should  not  be  separated. 

In  the  statement  of  Fabiani,  he  says,  in  page  615,  when  dealing  with 
the  extent  and  justification  of  the  damages  and  losses,  the  following: 

If  the  arbitrator,  after  having  examined  and  analyzed  our  different  motives  of  claim,  should 

be  induced  to  recognize  that  all  those  motives  are  justified  and  that  wchave  valued  our  dam- 
ages without  any  exaggeration,  Venezuela  could  congratulate  itself  at  its  insistence  in  having  a 

little  equitable  mode  of  payment  accepted,  since  the  sums  it  would  be  obligated  to  deliver  to  us 
would  not  represent  the  actual  amount  of  the  indemnity  that  may  be  adjudged  to  us  by  the 

award ;  so  that  it  would  not  be  exact  to  say  that  the  author  of  the  infraction  has  paid  and  we 

have  obtained  the  amount  of  the  damage  6xed  by  the  arbitrator.  And  if  it  should  be  admit- 
ted that  the  judge,  acting  either  by  way  of  elimination  or  by  way  of  reduction,  should  find  that 

there  is  a  reason  to  restrict  the  measure  of  our  damages,  valued  in  specie,  when  taking  into  con- 
sideration its  conversion  into  3  per  cent  bonds,  at  the  price  of  those  values,  he  could  not,  even 

if  he  should  allow  to  us  the  whole  of  our  demand  in  bonds,  assure  to  us  an  integral  restitution 

unless  his  valuations,  determined  absolutely  according  to  his  conscience,  cause  our  claims  to 

undergo  a  strong  reduction. 

Now,  therefore,  in  short,  if  the  arbitrator  finds  that  our  valuations  have  been  made  justly, 
measuring  the  damage  sustained,  he  will  regret  when  rendering  his  sentence  not  to  be  able  to 

assure  to  us  a  restitution  in  integrum.  And  if  he  considers  it  equitable  to  make  us  sustain  a 

reduction  in  some  of  our  claims,  or  even  if  he  holds  that  some  of  them  must  be  set  aside,  ho  will 

find  himself,  despite  of  his  taking  into  consideration  the  quotation  of  the  bonds,  in  the  pres- 
ence of  a  true  lesion,  unless  he  considers  himself  to  be  in  the  case  of  reducing,  in  a  notable 

proportion,  the  amount  of  our  claim. 

In  page  622  of  his  statement,  Fabiani,  as  if  he  prejudged  the  decis- 
ion of  the  Swiss  arbitrator,  and  as  if  he  himself  were  dictating  the 

award  that  this  commission  of  arbitration  must  render  upon  his  pres- 
ent claim,  states  the  following: 

The  arbitrator  being,  as  every  tribunal,  vested  with  a  sovereign  right  of  appreciation,  with 
a  real  discretional  power  to  fix  the  amount  of  the  reparation  without  the  obligation  of 

expressing  the  motives  that  may  induce  him  to  give  this  sum  instead  of  another,  the  arbi- 
trator, we  say,  in  allowing  a  lump  sum  is  not  obligated  to  render  his  award  in  accordance 

with  the  proofs  furnished  by  the  parties  or  to  indicate  the  details  of  the  various  elements 
serving  to  determine  the  just  measure  of  the  damage.  The  compromise  purely  and  simply 

vests  him  with  the  duty  of  fixing  the  amount  of  the  indemnity,  if  the  res}X)nsibility  of  Vene- 
zuela is  found  to  be  grounded. 

The  arbitrator  acts  with  the  plenitude  of  his  independence,  having  no  other  guide  than 
his  lights  and  his  love  for  justice, /le  inquires  ;  whether  such  a  prejudicer  or  such  a  damage  has 

been  the  direct  and  necessary  consequence  of  the  infractions  that  have  engaged  the  responsibility 
of  the  defendant,  from  the  moment  his  judgment  and  his  conscience  give  him  the  conviction 

that  the  prejudices  and  damages  can  not  be  separated  from  the  reproached  infractions,  that 
they  can  not  have  had  other  causes,  he  is  dispensed  with  deviating  into  the  labyrinth  of 
more  or  less  immediate  or  more  or  less  remote  consequences,  and  especially  in  our  afTair  it 

will  be  easy  for  him  to  convince  himself  that  no  intermediate  fact  has  come  to  divide  respon- 
sibilities; that  no  occurrences  alienate  from  the  reproachable  facts  imputed  to  the  author  of 

the  infraction  can  have  exercised  or  has  exercised  any  influence,  however  small  it  may  be,  on 
the  disastrous  consequences  of  the  facts  charged.  It  is  those  acts,  namely,  the  illegal  obstacles 

opposed  to  the  exercise  of  our  rights,  the  faits  du  prince,  in  the  most  brutal  acceptation  of 
this  word,  that  constitute  the  only  cause  of  the  losses  uye  have  sustained,  and  it  is  impossible 

even  to  suggest  that  other  causes  would  have  produced  the  same  losses  and  the  same  disas- 
trous effects,  if  those  obstacles  and  those  faits  du  prince  had  not  existed. 
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It  may  be  that  the  stvdy  of  our  affair,  and  the  detailed  examination  of  the  numerous  items 

of  our  claims  suggest  to  the  arbitrator  either  the  opinion  that  some  of  our  claims  have  no  direct 
and  immediate  connection  with  the  infractions  denounced,  or  the  opinion  that  certain  damages 

indicated  by  us  must  be  fixed  at  a  less  high  figure.  7' hat  is  the  right  of  the  arbitrator,  ami  the 
exercise  of  that  right  is  subordinated  only  to  the  inspirations  of  his  conscience. 

After  these  clear  avowals  and  clear  statement  made  by  Fabiani  of 

the  object  of  the  demand  decided  by  the  Swiss  arbitrator,  of  the  connec- 
tion of  all  the  points  of  the  claim,  of  the  possibility  that  some  of  those 

items  of  the  claim  might  not  have  a  direct  or  indirect  connection  with 
the  infractions  constituting  denials  of  justice,  of  the  power  recognized 
in  the  arbitrator  to  proceed,  by  elimination  or  reductionj  to  fix  the 

amount  that  Venezuela  was  to  pay,  in  case  its  responsibility  w^ere 
established,  setting  aside  everything  that  might  not  be  considered  as 
grounded  within  the  general  terms  of  the  protocol,  in  order  to 
arrive,  by  accejjting  all  or  part  of  the  claims  in  question  j  at  an  end  of  the 
difference  or  demand  between  France  and  Venezuela,  we  can  only 
regard  as  a  chimera  the  pretention  that  the  aw  ard  of  Berne  left  without 
a  definitive  decision  any  of  the  claims  of  Fabiani  against  Venezuela 
that  were  the  subject  of  the  suit.  The  grand  total  of  the  claim  that 
Fabiani  made  amount  to  the  sum  of  46,944,563.17  francs,  and  the 
Swiss  arbitrator  fixed  at  the  sum  of  4,346,656.51  francs,  was  the  object 

of  the  suit,  the  subject-matter  of  the  analysis,  the  proofs  and  debates, 
as  to  what  the  arbitrator  was  to  allow  for  denials  of  justice,  if  these 
were  proved.  The  facts  debated  were  all  those  that  Fabiani  alleged  as 

the  grounds  of  the  difl'erent  items  of  the  claim;  the  powers  of  the  arbi- 
trator to  judge  and  decide,  those  that  the  arbitration  protocol  of 

the  24th  of  February,  1891,  conferred  upon  him,  without  limitations  of 
appreciation ;  the  law  or  norm  to  which  he  was  to  conform  his  judgment 
and  the  decisions  of  his  conscience,  the  denial  of  justice  on  the  part  of 

Venezuela,  duly  established;  the  efi'ect  or  result  of  that  judgment  and 
of  that  sentence  being  the  object  of  the  demand ^  the  determination  of  the 

amount  of  the  indemnity,  recognizing  all  or  part  of  the  claims  in  ques- 
tion or  declaring  Venezuela  exempted  from  responsibilities. 

The  arbitrator,  exercising  his  sovereign  powers  of  appreciation, 
eliminated,  when  fixing  the  amount  of  the  indemnity,  points  or  sums  of 
the  claim  of  Fabiani,  because  he  considered  them  as  absolutely 
excluded  from  his  decision,  as  they  rested  on  facts  alien  to  the  denial 

of  justice.  In  making  this  elimination,  he  judged ̂   rejected ̂   eliminated, 
or  disallowed  them  (these  are  synonymous  words),  because  they  did 
not  represent  effects  or  consequences  of  denials  of  justice,  the  only  cause 
which,  according  to  the  protocol,  made  Venezuela  incur  responsibilities. 
Amply  exercising  also  his  powers  of  appreciation,  he  considered 

some  facts  as  denials  of  justice,  he  considered  the  responsibility  of 

Venezuela -aggravated  by  the  existence  of  certain /aifs  du  prince,  as 
indications  of  the  hostile  attitude  of  Venezuela  a^rainst  Fabiani  and 
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motives  of  incitation  for  the  judicial  authorities  to  the  denial  of  justice; 

and  he  made  use  of  the  means  of  proofs  and  allegations  with  the  pur- 
pose to  establish  the  existence  of  other  concluding  and  connected 

facts  relating  to  the  denials  of  justice. 
By  the  proceeding  of  elimination  and  reduction  of  the  several  sums 

to  which  Fabiani  made  his  claim  amoimt,  the  arbitrator  fixed,  as  the 

total  indemnity  that  Venezuela  was  to  deliver  to  Fabiani,  the  sum  of 
4,346,656.51  francs  for  the  following  respects: 

Francs. 

1.  Roncayolo's  debt    424,177.55 
2.  Income  for  pilot  service  for  December,  1877,  to  the  15th  of  July,  1882...  68, 312.  45 

3.  Income  for  towing  service  from  1880, 1881 ,  to  the  15th  of  July,  1882  ... .  2.54, 166.  51 

4.  Expenses  for  the  execution  of  the  sentences,  including  interest    200, 000. 00 

5.  Material  and  moral  damage  caused  Fabiani  by  his  bankruptcy    1, 800, 000. 00 

6.  Indirect  damage,  compound  interest,  and  an  indemnity  for  the  profit  that 
Fabiani  might  have  derived  in  his  business  from  the  investment  of  the 
sums  2  and  3,  taking  into  consideration  the  realization  of  a  mortgage  for 
120,000  francs     1,500,000.00 

7.  Casts  of  the  international  instance         100, 000. 00 

Total   :..  4,346,656.51 

It  is  evidenced  by  the  foregoing  demonstration  that  the  Swiss 
arbitrator  decided  all  the  connected  points  of  the  claim  of  Fabiani  that 
are  minutely  determined  in  the  nine  paragraphs  comprising  the  object 
of  the  demand,  according  to  the  classification  made  by  the  arbitrator 
in  page  11  of  the  sentence,  namely: 

First,  the  reparation  of  the  damage  sustained ; 
Second,  the  gain  frustrated ; 
Third,  the  interest  calculated  from  the  date  of  the  damageable  acts; 
Fourth,  the  compound  interest; 
Fifth,  the  sacrifices  made  by  the  injured  party  for  the  maintenance 

of  his  industry; 

Sixth,  the  prejudice  deriving  from  the  expense  made  and  from  the 
time  lost  to  arrive  at  the  execution  of  the  sentences; 

Seventh,  the  damages  to  be  considered  as  the  necessary  consequences 
of  the  offenses; 

Eighth,  the  damage  done  by  the  privation  of  work  in  the  future,  and 
Ninth,  the  reparation  of  the  moral  prejudice. 
The  sentence  of  the  Berne  tribunal  fixes  the  amoimt  of  the  indem- 

nity for  all  the  aforesaid  causes  in  a  less  sum  than  that  established  by 

Fabiani,  the  arbitrator  using  in  this  point  his  free  power  of  apprecia- 
tion, but  admitting  in  principle  all  the  conclusions  of  the  demand. 

Such  is  expressly  declared  by  the  sentence  in  its  final  paragraph  C, 
Part  VI,  page  47,  running  as  follows : 

As  to  the  cost  of  the  present  instance,  the  arbitrator,  making  it  to  appear  that  the  con- 
clusions of  the  petition  are  adjudged  in  principle,  but  that  the  exaggeration  of  the  claims 

put  forward  has  occasioned  useless  expense,  charges  the  respondent  Government  with  the 
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expense  of  the  claiming  government,  liquidated  at  the  sum  of  100,000  francs,  and  compen- 
sates between  the  parties  the  expense  of  the  arbitration. 

For  all  the  reasons  above  expressed  the  arbitrator  for  Venezuela  is 
of  opinion  that,  as  there  exists  an  award  passed  and  affirmed  on  all  and 
every  one  of  the  points  comprised  in  the  demand  decided  by  the  Swiss 
arbitrator,  and  originated  by  the  claims  of  Antonio  Fabiani  against  the 
Government  of  Venezuela,  in  accordance  with  the  compromise  entered 
into  between  said  Government  and  the  Government  of  France,  on  the 

24th  of  February,  1891,  every  new  demand  of  indemnity  on  the  part 
of  Fabiani  referring  or  confined  to  the  same  claims  that  were  the  object 

of  that  protocol  and  of  the  subsequent  suit  and  sentence,  tried  and  ren- 
dered by  the  tribunal  of  arbitration  at  Berne,  is  inadmissible. 

He,  therefore,  absolutely  rejects  the  demand  of  indemnity  which  has 
given  a  motive  for  this  opinion. 

Caracas,  May  SO,  1903, 

NOTE   BY   THE    VENEZUELAN    COMMISSIONER. 

The  French  arbitrator  was  of  opinion  that,  as  there  was  no  sentence  passed  and  affirmed 

on  the  points  of  this  claim,  he  admitted  it  for  its  integral  amount,  and  consequently,  as 

appears  from  the  records  of  the  proceedings,  it  was  referred  to  the  decision  of  the  umpire. 

OPINION  OF  THE  FBENCH  COMMISSIONEB. 

Doctor  Paul  has,  without  examining  it  deeply  nor  discussing  the 
figures  submitted  by  the  claimant,  rejected  the  claim  presented  by  M. 
Antoine  Fabiani  as 

having  already  been  decided  by  the  court  of  arbitration  of  Berne,  the  sentence  of  which 

has,  in  his  opinion,  passed  definitely  upon  all  the  leading  points  of  the  indemnity  presented 

by  M.  Fabiani. 

The  Venezuelan  arbitrator  considers  that  the  President  of  the  Swiss 

Confederation  has  eliminated  a  certain  number  of  the  points  of  the 
claim  because  the  facts  upon  which  these  are  founded,  being  foreign  to 

the  judicial  authorities  of  the  respondent  State,  do  not  make  Vene- 
zuela responsible.  This  elimination  does  not  constitute  in  his  eyes  a 

declaration  of  want  of  jurisdiction  based  upon  the  terms  of  the  agree- 
ment of  the  24th  of  February,  1891,  but  it  would  establish  that  these 

facts  are  not  of  a  nature  to  justify  the  demands  for  indemnity.  It  is 
upon  this  theory  that  M.  Lachenal  would  have  definitely  put  them 
aside.  Consequently  M.  Fabiani  could  not,  according  to  Doctor  Paill, 
be  admitted  to  present  before  the  court  of  arbitration  appointed  by  the 
protocol  of  the  19th  of  February,  1902,  a  new  claim,  his  cause  having 
been  already  entirely  and  definitely  settled.  Finally,  my  honorable 
colleague  observes  incidentally  that  M.  Fabiani  has  waited  six  years 
since  the  award  of  Berne  has  been  effective  for  setting  up  his  new 
claim.  On  the  contrary,  from  the  reading  of  the  award  rendered  the 
30th  of  December,  1896,  by  the  President  of  the  Swiss  Confederation, 



94  FABIANI    CASE. 

I  have  concluded  that  the  arbitrator  had  set  aside  all  the  points 

renewed  to-day  by  M.  Fabiani,  not  because  they  could  not  in  anyway 
place  the  responsibiUty  upon  Venezuela,  but  only  because  they  are  not 

in  accord  with  the  agreement  of  arbitration  signed  the  24th  of  Febru- 
ary, 1891,  by  the  two  Governments.  M.  Lachenal  has  then  contented 

himself,  in  my  opinion,  to  declare  himself  incompetent  to  examine  the 
said  claims,  which  by  this  very  fact  find  themselves  reserved  for  the 
examination  of  the  court  of  arbitration  instituted  by  the  protocol  of 

February  19,  1902.  He  has  in  no  way  decided  that  these  main  points, 
upon  which  he  has  refused  to  render  a  decision,  could  not  form  the 
object  of  any  demand  for  indemnity.  After  having  said  in  fact,  on 

page  22  of  the  award : 

It  results,  from  the  evidence  of  the  very  text  of  the  agreement  and  from  the  ensemble  of 

the  facts  of  the  case,  that  the  respondent  Government  is  sued  solely  by  reason  of  the  non- 
execution  by  the  Venezuelan  authorities  of  the  arbitral  award  rendered  at  Marseilles  on  the 
date  of  the  15th  December,  18S0,  between  Antoine  Fabiani  on  one  part,  Benoit  and  Andr6 

Roncayolo  on  the  other  part. 

M.  Lachenal  adds,  on  page  25: 

In  return  Venezuela  does  not  incur  any  responsibility,  according  to  the  agreement,  on 

account  of  facts  foreign  to  the  judicial  authority  of  the  defendant  State.  The  claims  which 

the  pt^tition  bases  upon/ai7«  du  prince,  which  are  either  changes  of  legislation  or  arbitrary 
acts  of  the  executive  power,  are  absolutely  withdrawn  from  the  decision  of  the  arbitrator, 
who  eliminates  from  the  procedure  all  the  allegations  and  means  of  pnwf  relat  ing  thereto, 

as  long  as  he  could  not  reserve  them  to  establish  other  concluding  and  connected  facts  rela- 
tive to  the  denials  of  justice. 

In  his  desire  to  state  very  precisely  the  object  of  the  litigation  follow- 
ing the  agreement,  M.  Lachenal  even  fixed  the  date  (June  7, 1881)  after 

which  the  denials  of  justice  ought  to  be  produced  in  order  that  by  their 

act  it  might  be  possible  according  to  the  agreement  to  again  hold  Vene- 
zuela to  responsibility.  Is  this  to  say  that  for  every  denial  of  justice 

previous  to  this  date  M.  Fabiani  would  not  have  been  able  to  demand 

indemnity  from  the  Venezuelan  Government  before  any  tribunal  had 
it,  like  this  one,  the  most  extended  jurisdiction?  It  would  not  be 
more  unreasonable  and  more  unjust  to  pretend  that  to  refuse  to  M. 
Fabiani  the  right  of  a  compensation  from  the  fact  of  the  main  point 

of  the  claim  which  he  raises  again  before  this  new  court.  The  decla- 
ration of  want  of  jurisdiction  of  the  arbitrator  is  clear,  but  it  does  not 

constitute  in  any  way  a  patent  of  irresponsibility  for  Venezuela 
because  of  arbitrary  acts  of  its  government  prejudicial  to  M.  Fabiani, 
who  remained  free  to  demand  reparation  before  a  court  of  which  the 
jurisdiction  would  not  be  limited,  as  that  of  the  court  of  Berne,  by  the 
terms  of  a  restrictive  compromise.  Such  is  the  case  of  the  court  of 
arbitration  instituted  by  the  protocol  of  the  19th  of  February,  1902, 
which  regards  in  a  general  way,  of  whatever  nature  they  may  be,  all 
the  demands  for  indemnities  presented  by  Frenchmen  and  founded  on 
acts  anterior  to  May  23,  1899. 
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This  time  the  Venezuelan  Government  can  not  maintain,  as  in  1891, 

that  only  denials  of  justice  of  a  special  character  can  fix  the  responsi- 
bility upon  Venezuela.  Besides,  a  great  number  of  claims  presented 

to  the  courts  of  arbitration  which  sat  last  year  at  Caracas  had  pre- 
cisely for  a  foundation,  not  denials  of  justice  chargeable  to  the  judicial 

power,  but  to  f aits  du  prince  analogous  to  those  of  which  M.  Fabiani 
has  been  the  victim,  and  there  resulted  for  the  Venezuelan  Govern- 

ment condemnations  to  very  extensive  pecuniary  reparations.  Besides, 
one  can  not  allege  a  grievance  against  M.  Fabiani  for  having  waited  to 
present  his  new  claim  until  a  court  of  arbitration  should  have  been 

formed  to  judge  it.  One  knows,  in  fact,  that  the  decision  of  the  arbi- 
trator of  Berne,  on  the  one  hand,  bears  the  date  of  the  30th  of  Decem- 

ber, 1896,  and,  on  the  other,  from  1895  to  1903  all  the  claims  of  the 

French  against  the  Venezuelan  Government  have  remained  in  sus- 
pense, the  diplomatic  relations  between  these  two  countries  being 

themselves  suspended.  I  consider  in  consequence  that  the  plea  of 
res  judicata  can  not  reasonably  be  invoked. 

The  main  points  of  the  claim  presented  by  M.  Fabiani  have  not 
been  adjudged  by  the  arbitrator  of  Berne.  He  has  not  been  able 

then  to  declare  that  they  did  not  permit  absolutely  any  demands  for 
indemnity.  M.  Lachenal  has  not  raised  the  facts  by  reason  of  which 

M.  Fabiani  demands  to-day  some  indemnities  except  as  indications 
of  the  ill  will  of  the  executive  power.  He  has  thereby  recognized 
their  existence  and  established  their  injurious  character.  M.  Fabiani 

then  only  uses  a  legitimate  right  in  reclaiming  before  this  new  juris- 
diction with  unlimited  power  in  whatever  concerns  the  French  claims 

previous  to  the  23d  of  May,  1899,  an  equitable  reparation  for  the 
large  damages  which  these  acts  have  caused  him. 

In  referring  to  the  memoirs  prepared  by  the  interested  party  one  is 
seized  with  astonishment  at  the  multitude  of  arbitrary  acts  of  every 
kind  which  M.  Fabiani  proves  by  his  invincible  arguments  and 
authentic  documents  he  has  had  to  suffer  since  his  establishment 

at  Venezuela.  During  my  sojourn  in  this  country  I  have  found, 
whether  at  Caracas  or  at  Maracaibo,  among  established  foreigners 

and  the  Venezuelans  that  no  attachment  with  the  Government  pre- 
vents from  being  impartial,  a  unanimous  agreement  in  recognizing 

that  M.  Fabiani  had  been  pursued  for  long  years  by  the  hatred  of  the 

executive  power  of  which  the  evident  end  was  to  strip  him  of  his  capi- 
tal and  the  fruits  of  his  labors  without  anything  in  the  conduct  and 

attitude  of  this  foreigner  justifying  or  even  explaining  such  animosity. 
I  have  read  with  attention  the  memoir  and  the  conclusions  remitted 

by  M.  Fabiani.  I  have  not  found  therein  any  inaccuracy  nor  any 
exaggeration.  I  have  found  to  the  contrary,  as  in  the  dossier  of  the 

proofs  furnished  in  support,  the  constant  care  to  be  minutely  precise. 
As  moreover  none  of  his  demands  have  been  contested  in  the  founda- 
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tion  and  in  the  figures  by  the  respondent  Government,  it  has  not 
appeared  possible  to  me  to  put  them  aside  or  to  reduce  the  amount. 
I  have  consequently  accorded  to  M.  Fabiani  the  indemnity  which  he 
claims. 

Doctor  Patil  has  insisted  on  having  stated  in  the  minutes  of  the 

meetings  of  the  commission  that  my  decision  had  not  been  preceded 
by  any  discussion  between  the  arbitrators  upon  the  amount  of  the 
claim  which  he  rejected  for  an  interlocutory  reason.  It  is  really  because 
my  colleague  has  not  discussed  the  figures  presented  by  M.  Fabiani 
that  I  have  been  under  the  obligation  of  accepting  them  as  a  whole. 
They  have  not  seemed  to  me  exaggerated,  and  the  interested  party 
has  naturally  not  furnished  me  with  the  means  of  contesting  them. 
I  am,  moreover,  far  from  believing,  if  I  may  judge  by  the  defense 
remitted  to  the  arbitrator  of  Berne,  that  the  Venezuelan  Government 
has  not  been  sorry  to  intrench  itself  behind  the  plea  of  res  judicata 

by  means  of  an  interpretation  of  the  award  which  seems  to  me  inad- 
missible. Conscientiously,  then,  I  judge  that  the  Venezuelan  Gov- 

ernment ought  to  turn  over  to  M.  Fabiani  as  an  indemnity  a  sum  of 
9,509,728.30  francs. 

In  conclusion,  I  think  I  ought  to  submit  two  considerations  to  the 
particular  attention  of  the  umpire. 

First,  one  can  notice  in  running  through  the  memoir  presented  by 
M.  Fabiani  to  the  arbitrator  of  Berne  and  the  award  of  M.  Lachenal 

that  all  the  figures  asked  by  the  claimant  and  retained  by  the  arbitra- 
tor as  comprised  in  or  receiving  their  source  in  the  award  of  Marseilles 

have  been  recognized  as  exact  and  admitted  by  M.  Lachenal  without 
any  reduction.  This  observation  is  not  without  value  and  ought  to 
remain  present  in  the  mind  while  one  examines  the  figures  presented 

in  course  of  this  claim.  It  is  honorable  for  M.  Fabiani,  whose  exam- . 
pie  in  this  is  very  rarely  followed  by  foreigners  who  enter  complaint 
against  Venezuela. 

Moreover,  it  is  to  be  considered  that  according  to  the  terms  of  the 
protocol  indemnity  ought  to  be  paid  in  bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt 
and  not  in  gold.  Thanks  to  this  concession,  granted  by  the  French 
Government  to  the  Venezuelan  Government  in  order  to  allow  it  to 

pay  its  debts  with  greater  ease,  the  amount  of  the  indemnity  becomes 
singularly  reduced  in  reality.  The  bonds  issued  by  the  Government 
of  Caracas  have  a  real  value,  which  is  always  very  much  less  than  their 
nominal  value.  In  May,  1903,  they  reached  a  depreciation  of  30  per 
cent.  In  December,  1903,  they  sank  to  70  per  cent  of  their  value. 
For  some  months  their  real  value  seems  to  have  stopped  at  40  per 
cent  of  the  nominal  value.  It  would  be,  then,  if  the  umpire  should 
partake  of  the  sentiment  of  the  French  arbitrator,  a  little  less  than 

4,000,000  bolivars  in  gold  which  Fabiani  would  receive  and  the  Gov- 
ernment of  Venezuela  would  have  to  remit. 

August  2,  1904. 
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Before  preparing  the  opinion  I  submitted  at  the  sitting  of  May  30, 
1903,  which  I  submit  herewith,  translated  into  EngUsh,  rejecting  the 
claim  filed  by  A.  Fabiani  against  the  Government  of  Venezuela  for  the 
amoimt  of  9,509,728.30  francs,  I  made  a  complete  investigation  of 
the  facts  upon  which  the  claimant  bases  his  contention.  It  was  after 
becoming  thoroughly  acquainted  with  the  peculiar  circumstances  of 

the  case  and  based  on  the  reason  contained  in  my  opinion  as  afore- 
said that  I  rendered  the  following  decision : 

That  because  there  existed  a  condition-  of  res  judicata  covering  each  and  every  one  of  the 
points  contained  in  the  case  decided  by  the  Swiss  arbitrator,  originating  in  the  claims  of 
Antoine  Fabiani  against  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  in  accordance  with  the  convention 

made  between  the  latter  Government  and  that  of  France  on  February  24,  1891,  any  new 
claim  for  indemnification  made  by  Fabiani  is  inadmissible  if  referring  to  or  containing  the 

same  contentions  which  originated  said  agreement  and  the  subsequent  hearing  of  the  case 
and  sentence  passed  by  the  Arbitration  Court  of  Berne. 

The  French  commissioner,  at  the  session  above  referred  to,  did  not  go 
beyond  stating  his  opinion  that  the  Swiss  commissioner  had  laid  aside 
all  the  points  originating  the  claim  entered  anew  by  Fabiani  as  not 
included  in  the  arbitration  agreement  signed  on  February  24,  1891, 

by  the  two  Governments,  and  that  the  President  of  the  Swiss  Confed- 
eration having  declared  himself  disqualified  to  examine  the  several 

complaints  on  the  same  grounds  above  mentioned,  such  contentions 
were  therefore  a  proper  subject  of  investigation  by  the  commission 
created  by  the  Paris  protocol.  M.  de  Peretti  ended  by  admitting 
Fabiani\s  claim,  acknowledging  its  soimd  basis,  and  granting  the  full 
amoimt  of  the  claim. 

In  order  to  be  able  to  fully  imderstand  the  points  relating  to  the 
convention  made  on  February  24,  1891,  between  the  French  and  the 
Venezuelan  Governments,  the  object  of  said  convention,  the  ends  both 

Governments  endeavored  to  attain,  the  extent  of  the  arbitration  agree- 
ment entered  into,  the  claims  that  were  to  be  properly  admitted  to  the 

examination  and  decision  of  the  umpire  at  Berne,  and  in  order  to  prop- 
erly establish  if  M.  Fabiani  may  or  may  not  introduce  bef dre  this  com- 

mission a  new  claim  embracing  facts  and  circumstances  antedating 

said  convention,  but  included  in  the  arbitration  agreement  and  sub- 
mitted to  examination  and  decision  at  Berne  in  compliance  with  the 

protocol  of  1891,  it  becomes  necessary  to  bring  before  us  the  precise 

language  of  said  convention  and  the  antecedents  or  official  communi- 
cations passed  through  diplomatic  channels  preceding  such  convention 

and  which  sufficiently  explain  the  causes  originating  the  arbitration 
agreement,  the  nature  and  circumstances  of  the  facts  or  claims  entered 
by  M.  Fabiani,  and  the  action  the  French  Government  deemed  proper 
to  enter  against  the  Government  of  Venezuela  in  order  to  safeguard  all 

S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   7 
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the  rights  and  all  the  interests  of  the  French  citizen  who  had  invoked  its 

protection. 
I  beg  to  submit  herewith  Spanish  and  Enghsh  copies  of  the  conven- 

tion made  in  Caracas  on  February  24,  1891,  between  the  representa- 
tives of  the  French  and  the  Venezuelan  Governments,  the  first  para- 

graph of  which  contains  the  following  language: 
The  Goverament  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  and  the  Government  of  the  French 

Republic  have  agreed  to  submit  to  an  umpire  the  claims  of  M.  Antonio  Fabiani  against  the 
Venezuelan  Government. 

It  is  not  possible  to  find  in  any  convention  of  like  nature  a  clearer 

exposition  or  a  wider  scope  as  regards  the  object  of  the  arbitration. 

The  agreement  was  to  submit  to  an  umpire  the  claims  of  M.  Antom'o 
Fabiani — that  is,  the  claims  of  M.  Fabiani  against  the  Government  of 

Venezuela  up-to  the  date  of  the  convention — and  no  doubt^ whatever 
can  exist  as  regards-this  conclusion,  as  otherwise  the  object  for  which 
the  convention  was  made  would  be  defeated. 

No  limitation  was  placed  upon  any  claims  M.  Fabiani  might  have 
had  against  the  Venezuelan  Government,  nor  can  it  be  supposed  that, 
the  object  of  the  convention  being  to  finally  close  a  long  diplomatic 
process  during  wliich  France  had  most  energetically  maintained  the 

necessity  of  Venezuela  submitting  to  arbitration  Fabiani^s  claims,  a 
protocol  should  be  concluded  between  both  countries,  the  terms  of 
which,  while  agreeing  to  arbitration  proceedings,  should  except  certain 
portions  of  claims  which  kept  their  friendly  relations  disturbed.  A 
foreign  office  as  important  and  enlightened  as  that  of  France  can  not 
father  such  absurdities. 

The  first  paragraph  of  the  convention  of  February  24,  1891,  having 

determined  the  original  object  of  the  arbitration — i.  e.,  Fabiani* s 
claims — Article!,  which  immediately  follows,  makes  the  following 
stipulation : 

The  umpire  shall  *  *  *  determine  if  in  conformity  with  the  laws  of  Venezuela,  the 

general  principles  of  the  law  of  nations,  and  the  convention  in  force  between  the  two  con- 
tracting powers,  the  Venezuelan  Government  is  responsible  for  the  damages  which  M. 

Fabiani  alleges  to  have  suffered  because  of  denial  of  justice. 

The  clear  and  precise  language  of  this  article  shows  how  far  did  both 

Governments  consider  it  necessary  to  impress  upon  the  umpire's  mind 
in  unequivocal  terms  that  the  claims  or  damages — that  is,  those  to  be 

submitted  for  his  investigation — ^which  M.  Fabiani  allegexl  to  have  suf- 
fered through  denial  of  justice,  were  to  be  determined  in  confo^'mity 

with  the  laws  of  Venezuela,  the  general  principles  of  the  law  of  nations, 
and  the  convention  in  force  between  the  two  contracting  powers,  in 
order  to  iix  the  responsibility  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  according 
to  such  laws,  principles,  and  convention. 

"  The  damages  which  M,  Fabiani  alleges-  to  have  suffered.''  Accord- 
ing to  such  language,  what  is  that  which  Fabiani  alleges  to  have  suf- 
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fered ?  Common  sense  will  say  ' '  the  damages.''  For  what  cause  does 
Fabiani  allege  to  have  suffered  such  damages?  Because  of  the  denial 
of  justice.  How  is  the  umpire  to  view  the  denials  of  justice  which 

Fabiani  alleges  have  originated  the  damages  suffered,  now  submitted 

to  the  umpire's  decision?  According  to  the  laws  of  Venezuela,  the 
general  principles  of  the  law  of  nations,  and  the  convention  in  force 

between  the  two  powers.  It  is  thus  seen  that  the  above-cjuoted  arti- 
cle clearly  specifies  the  three  elements  which  constitute  the  object  of 

the  arbitration — i.  e.,  the  damages  suffered  by  Fabiani  in  \^enezuela, 
submitted  to  the  umpire  in  the  shape  of  claims,  the  cause  of  such 
claims  or  damages  which  Fabiani  made  solely  dependent  upon  the 
denials  of  justice,  and  the  standard  which  the  umpire  must  follow  to 

find  out  whether  or  not  there  has  been  a  denial  of  justice  as  the  funda- 
mental and  only  basis  of  the  claims  or  damages  alleged  by  Fabiani  at 

the  time  of  the  convention. 
Article  II  of  the  convention  reads  as  follows : 

To  fix,  should  such  liability  be  found,  for  the  whole  of  the  claims  in  question  or  any  portion 
thereof,  the  amount  of  the  pecuniary  indemnification  that  the  Venezuelan  Government  must 

make  to  M.  Fabiani,  which  shall  be  paid  in  3  per  cent  bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt. 

According  to  this  article,  the  Berne  umpire  was  to  fix  at  a  certain 
sum  the  amount  of  the  pecuniary  indemnification  should  it  be  found 
that  Venezuela  was  liable  for  the  whole  of  the  claims  or  any  j^ortion 
thereof  entered  by  Fabiani.  That  portion  of  the  claim  for  which  the 
umpire  found  Venezuela  to  be  responsible,  fixing  the  amount  at 
4,346,656.57  francs,  was  delivered  to  M.  Fabiani  in  compHance  with 

said  Article  II  in  3  per  cent  bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt.  That  por- 
tion of  the  claim  for  which  the  umpire  found  that  Venezuela  was  not 

liable  was  rejected;  and  he  also  adjudged  that  there  was  no  denial  of 
justice  as  alleged  by  Fabiani  to  be  the  cause  of  damages  of  that  portion 
of  the  claim  rejected,  and  also  declared  that  the  amounts  claimed  for 
the  justified  damages  were  grossly  exaggerated.  He  so  declares  in  a 

conclusive  manner  in  final  Paragraph  C,  Part  VI,  page  47  of  the  origi- 
nal award,  which  reads  as  follows: 

As  regards  the  expenses  in  this  appeal,  the  umpire,  whUe  declaring  that  the  conclusions  in 

the  case  are  admitted  in  principle^  but  that  the  exaggeration  of  the  claims  made  luis  causc»d 
unnecessary  expenses,  estimates  the  liquidated  expenses  of  the  claimant  Government  against 
the  respondent  Government  in  the  sum  of  100,000  francs  and  divides  Ixitween  the  two 
the  arbitration  expenses. 

Such  declaration,  which  the  Berne  umpire  found  indispensable  to 

make,  irrevocably  fixes  the  true  condition  of  Fabiani's  claims,  which 
were  the  subject  of  arbitration,  in  respect  to  the  Government  of  Ven- 

ezuela. The  conclusions  in  the  case  were  admitted  in  principle,  but 
there  was  exaggeration  in  the  claims  made.  Fabiani  won  the  case, 
obtained  a  gain  de  canse  as  regards  the  liability  of  Venezuela  as  found 
by  the  umpire  growing  out  of  denials  of  justice  which  constituted  the 
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main  cause  of  the  claims  Fabiani  endeavored  to  establish  against 
Venezuela,  but  the  claims  made  were  found  by  the  umpire  to  be 
exaggerated,  so  he  reduced  them  to  the  amount  given  in  the  award. 

The  claims  Fabiani  has  again  presented  to  have  examined  by  this 
commission  are  the  same  as  those  submitted  to  the  Berne  tribunal, 
the  umpire  then  accepting  in  principle  the  conclusions  in  the  case, 
but  finding  that  the  claims  were  exaggerated.  My  argument  in  regard 
to  this  issue  is  more  fully  expressed  in  my  opinion  of  May  30,  1903. 

I  also  beg  to  submit  with  this  additional  opinion  copy  of  the 

diplomatic  correspondence  passed  between  the  Governments  signa- 
tory to  the  convention  of  February  24,  1891,  in  the  years  1889  and 

1890,  preceding  such  convention,  wherein  it  is  shown  that  both  Gov- 

ernments were  animated  by  the  purpose  of  definitively  settling  Fabiani^s 
claims  by  means  of  the  arbitration  agreement  made  in  1891.  I  beg  to 

call  the  honorable  umpire's  attention  to  the  following  paragraphs: 
His  excellency  M.  Blanchard  de  Farges,  minister  of  France  in  Car- 

acas, to  Mr.  P.  Casanova,  minister  of  foreign  relations,  note  of  Decem- 
ber 31,  1889: 

To  judge  from  the  very  particular  interest  taken  in  France  to  settle  this  matter  (Fabiani's 
claim)  and  the  regrettable  turn  which  unhappily  has  been  formerly  given  to  your  excellency's 
administration  and  my  arrival  in  Caracas,  I  hold  the  certainty  that  my  Government  would 

see  in  the  manifestation  of  more  favorable  dispositions  as  regards  said  claim  the  clearest  evi- 
dence of  the  desire  of  the  eminent  President  of  the  Republic  of  Venezuela  and  of  yourself  to 

establish  between  the  two  countries  a  cordiality  toward  which  all  my  efforts  are  bent. 

Mr.  P.  Casanova,  minister  of  foreign  relations  to  his  excellency  M. 
Blanchard  de  Farges,  note  of  January  14,  1890: 

After  the  consideration  of  your  excellency's  note  of  December  31,  ultimo,  wherein,  while 
referring  to  the  interviews  we  have  held  in  regard  to  several  pending  matters  between  the 
two  Governments,  but  without  expressing  the  grounds  the  French  Republic  may  have  to 

insist  upon  the  Fabiani  claim,  rejected  from  its  origin  by  Venezuela,  your  excellency  pro- 
poses to  have  it  submitted  to  arbitration,  the  President,  desirous  of  exhausting  all  efforts  in 

behalf  of  the  desired  good  harmony  between  both  countries,  has  directed  me  to  state  to  your 
excellency  that  he  is  willing  to  accept  such  in  principle,  providing  the  umpire  chosen  be 

selected  from  the  Presidents  of  the  Latin- American  Republics;  that  the  question  to  be 

decided  be  '*if  this  is  the  case  provided  for  in  article  5  of  the  French-Venezuelan  convention 

of  November  26,  1885;"  and  that  in  case  Venezuela  should  be  condemned  to  pay  any  indem- 
nification, in  view  of  the  legal  proofs  adduced  in  favor  of  the  claimant,  such  agreement  to  be 

submitted  to  the  National  Congress  as  provided  by  law,  such  indemnity  to  be  paid  in  3  per 

cent  bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt. 

M.  Blanchard  de  Farges  to  M.  Marco  Antonio  Saluzzo,  minister 
of  foreign  relations,  note  of  May  20,  1890: 

I  have  the  honor  to  acknowledge  receipt  of  your  note  dated  on  the  14th  instant  in  reply  to 

the  one  I  delivered  to  your  excellency  on  the  1st,  regarding  Fabiani's  claim.    *    *    * 
As  regards  the  second  part  of  the  conmiunication  I  now  have  the  pleasure  to  answer,  I 

notice  with  pleasure  that  the  Venezuelan  Government  does  not  further  insist  upon  the  con- 
dition that  the  election  of  the  umpire  to  be  appointed  could  not  be  made  but  in  the  person  of 

the  President  of  one  of  the  Latin-American  Republics. 
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In  the  matter  of  your  refusal  to  agree  in  the  condition  which  my  Government  now  pro- 

poses through  me  asking  that  the  umpire^s  award  shall  deal  only  with  the  amount  of  the  indem- 
nity to  he  fixed  for  M.  Fabiani,  I  can  not  but  earnestly  deplore  that  you  do  not  think  you  can 

grant  us  this  point,  and  that  you  should  permit  that  in  this  manner  there  should  be  per- 
petuated between  the  two  countries  an  element  of  dissension  to  the  obliteration  of  which  I 

am  satisfied  I  have  done  everything  in  my  power. 

Dr.  Modesto  Urbaneja,  minister  of  Venezuela  in  Paris,  to  the  min- 
ister of  foreign  relations  of  Venezuela,  note  of  July  22,  1890: 

Consequently,  for  greater  clarity  and  to  prevent  that  M.  Fabiani  should  misconstrue  the 
agreement,  thus  creating  new  difficulties,  I  told  the  minister  (M.  Ribot)  that  I  was  going  to 

inform  the  Venezuelan  Government  of  the  agreement  precisely  in  the  following  language : 

That  the  French  Government  is  willing  to  accept  that  the  question  relative  to  M.  Fabiani  be 
submitted  to  the  President  of  the  Federal  Council  of  Switzerland  as  arbitro  juris;  first,  to 

decide  if  this  be  the  case  provided  for  in  article  5  of  the  French-Venezuelan  convention  of 
November  26, 1885;  and,  second,  should  the  umpire  decide  that  such  is  the  case  provided  for 

in  article  5,  then  the  umpire  is  to^  the  sum  that  must  be  paid  to  M.  Fabiani  in  3  per  cent 
bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt. 

I  have  discussed  the  matter  with  the  director  of  the  cabinet,  who  has  told  me  that,  although 

the  French  Government  agrees  in  the  substance  of  the  two  points  mentioned,  it  is  not 

desired  that  they  should  be  stated  in  such  terms,  because  these  would,  to  a  certain  extent, 

be  little  satisfactory  to  the  French  Government,  which  has  decidedly  supported  M.  Fabiani* s 
claim  J  entering  it  energetically  through  diplomatic  channels. 

M.  Blanchard  de  Farges  to  the  minister  of  foreign  relations  of 
Venezuela,  note  of  August  12,  1890: 

Referring  to  the  last  communications  passed  between  us  dated  May  14  and  20,  ultimo, 
relating  to  the  Fabiani  matter,  I  have  the  honor  to  submit  to  your  approval  the  inclosed 

draft  of  a  statement  which  I  have  just  received  from  the  minister  of  foreign  relations  of  the 

French  Republic  to  serve  as  a  basis  to  the  arbitration  already  agreed  upon  "in  principle" 
between  the  Venezuelan  and  French  Governments. 

In  the  event  this  draft,  which  is  entirely  in  conformity,  as  I  believe,  with  the  last  statements 

your  excellency  has  made  me  in  the  name  of  your  Government,  should,  as  I  have  reasons  to 
expect,  be  favorably  accepted  and  thaX  forthvnth  an  a/freement  should  be  entered  definitively 

establishing  arbitration  under  the  terms  which  both  parties  should  deem  proper,  I  have  the 
pleasure  to  inform  your  excellency  that  I  am  authorized  to  withdraw  the  note  M.  St.  ChafTray 

addressed  to  the  Caracas  cabinet  as  a  consequence  of  the  instructions  sent  him  under  date 
of  December  24, 1888. 

The  draft  mentioned  in  the  foregoing  note  is  couched  in  the  same 
language  as  paragraph  1  and  articles  1  and  2  of  the  convention  signed 
by  France  and  Venezuela  on  February  24,  1891.  See  the  draft  of 
statement  at  the  foot  of  the  note  of  M.  de  Farges. 

The  minister  of  foreign  relations  of  Venezuela  to  M.  de  Farges, 
note  of  August  14,  1890: 

I  had  the  honor  to  receive  your  excellency's  communication,  dated  day  before  yester- 
day, wherein,  in  reference  to  the  claim  ofM.  Fabiani,  a  draft  of  a  statement  which  the  Gov- 

ernment of  the  French  Republic  has  transmitted  to  you  is  submitted  to  the  Government 
ot  Venezuela. 

It  IS  very  satisfactory  to  the  President  of  the  Republic  to  learn  that  the  Government  of 

France,  as  was  to  be  expected  from  its  enlightened  views  and  good  will,  acc^epts  the  employ- 
ment of  arbitration  to  decide  upon  the  foundation  of  such  claim  and  has  authorized  your 

excellency  to  withdraw  the  note  of  M.  St.  Chaflfray,  as  Venezuela  has  urged  as  earnestly  as 
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was  consist^jnt  with  its  desire  to  dear  the  relations  of  both  countries  of  the  embarrassing 
position  created  by  the  purport  of  its  contents. 

The  Government  of  Venezuela,  on  the  other  hand,  has  no  difficulty  in  vsubscribing  to  the 

statement  transmitted,  with  the  understanding,  however,  that  the  final  agreement  resulting 

therefrom  shall  express,  according  to  the  proposition  of  Venezuela,  that  to  fix  the  amount 

of  the  imiemmiii,  should  there  be  any,  the  umpire  will  rest  his  decision  on  the  legal  proofs 

of  the  damages  M.  Fahiani  claims  to  have  suffered;  that  such  payment  is  to  be  made  in  the 
3  per  cent  l)onds  of  the  diplomatic  debt,  as  promised,  and  that  the  agreement  is  to  l)e  subject 
to  the  approval  of  the  Congress  of  Venezuela. 

Finally,  your  excellency  can  not  fail  to  admit  the  necessity  to  indemnify  M.  Fahiani, 

not  for  the  damages  he  avers  to  have  sustained  and  which  he  estimates  at  an  extravagant  figure, 
hit  for  such  damages  as  he  has  actually  suffered,  the  estimation  of  which  does  not  depend 

upon  his  word  devoid  of  all  proof.     The  burden  of  the  proof  rests  on  him  as  the  claimant. 

As  a  complement  to  such  important  notes  which  give  sufficient 
Hght  on  the  question  of  the  agreement  for  arbitration,  showing  besides 
that  such  agreement  embodied  all  the  claims  of  M.  Fabiani  existing 
at  the  time  it  was  concluded,  as  it  did  not  have  any  other  original 

grounds  except  the  so-called  Fabiani  claim,  that  the  owner  thereof 
made  to  the  amount  of  an  extravagant  figure  which  was  reduced  to 

about  one-tenth  by  the  award  of  the  Swiss  umpire,  I  reproduce  herebe- 
low  the  argument  (exposidon  de  motivos)  made  by  the  French  Gov- 

ernment in  regard  to  the  claim  for  indemnification  entered  in  behalf 
of  Fabiani,  addressed  on  August  3,  1887,  by  the  French  legation  in 
Caracas  to  the  Venezuelan  Government  (Answer  of  A.  Fabiani  before 

the  Swiss  umpire,  page  4): 

It  is  the  opinion  of  the  French  Government  that  the  indemnity  must  embrace,  at  least 
in  the  first  place,  the  amount  of  the  sums,  l)oth  principal  and  interest,  the  collection  of 

which  would  have  been  msured  by  the  execution  of  the  sentence  in  due  and  proper  time, 
besides  the  re.stitutions  ordered  by  the  judges,  amounting  to  about  one  million  and  three 

hundred  thousand  francs,  and,  in  the  second  place,  damages  and  interest,  the  amount  of 
which  IS  to  he  discussed,  for  the  wrongs  made  to  Fabiani  in  his  credit  and  in  his  business. 

As  regards  his  other  pretensions,  a  searching  inve-stigation  and  discussion  should  deter- 
mine how  far  they  are  well  founded. 

The  foregoing  suffices  to  convince  that  the  only  and  actual  object 
of  the  arbitration  agreement  and  of  the  subsequent  investigation  and 
sentence  was  no  other  than  the  claims  of  M.  A.  Fabiani,  existing  at 
the  time  of  the  agreement,  which  the  Government  of  Venezuela  and 
the  Government  of  France  agreed  to  submit  to  the  Berne  umpire  for 

him  to  fix,  should  he  find  Venezuela's  liability  for  the  whole  of  the 
claims  or  any  portion  thereof  the  amount  of  the  pecuniary  indemnity. 

I  do  not  deem  it  necessary  to  further  dwell  in  this  additional 
opinion  on  points  so  clearly  and  so  well  supported  by  evidence  on 
the  part  of  both  Governments,  that  it  is  really  inconceivable  that  M. 
Antoine  Fabiani  should  pretend,  after  due  execution  of  the  award 

made  by  the  Berne  tribunal,  by  means  of  the  payment  made  by  Vene- 
zuela of  4,346,656.57  bolivars,  since  1896  in  bonds  of  the  diplomatic 

debt,  and  its  interest  at  the  rate  fixed  of  3  per  cent  per  annum,  not  to 
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be  compensated  for  the  damages  which  in  1891  he  claimed  the  Vene- 
zuelan authorities  had  caused  him  to  suffer,  and  which  since  1888  gave 

rise  to  the  active  diplomatic  correspondence  passed  between  the  two 
Governments  and  finally  ending  in  the  convention  of  February  24, 
1891. 

I  close  these  statements  reaffirming  in  all  its  particulars  my  opinion 
of  May  30,  1903,  by  which  I  rejected  the  claim  entered  anew  by  M.  A. 
Fabiani,  based  upon  the  same  grounds  originating  the  claim  for 
indemnification  which  produce  1  the  arbitration  agreement  between 
France  and  Venezuela  in  the  year  1891. 

ADDENDUM. 

I  submit  herewith  the  English  translation  of  the  award  of  the 
President  of  the  Swiss  Confederation  in  the  claims  of  A.  Fabiani,  made 

by  Dr.  Delicio  Abzueta,  sworn  interpreter  in  Venezuela,  whose  com- 

petency is  well  known  to  the  honorable  umpire.^ 
NoRTHFiELD,  Vt.,  Februanj  6,  1905. 

ADDITIONAL  OPINION  OF  THE  FRENCH  COMMISSIONEB. 

After  having  read  the  additional  memoir  presented  by  my  honor- 
able colleague,  I  can  only  maintain  the  conclusions  of  the  prior 

memoir,  which  sums  up  the  proper  conclusions  of  the  claimant  in  that 
which  concerns  the  plea  of  the  res  judicata.  They  are  based  upon 

this  precise  declaration  of  the  arbitrator  of  Berne,  of  which  my  col- 
league presents  an  exact  translation : 

In  return  Venezuela  does  not  incur  any  responsibility  according  to  the  compromise 
(agreement)  on  account  of  facts  strange  to  the  judicial  authorities  of  the  respondent  State. 

The  claims  that  the  petition  bases  or\  fails  du  pn'rirf,  which  are  either  changes  of  legislation 
or  arbitrary  acts  of  the  executive  power,  are  absolutely  subtracted  from  the  decision  of 
the  arbitrator,  who  eliminates  from  the  procedure  all  the  allegations  and  means  of  proofs 

relating  thereto  as  long  as  he  can  not  reserve  them  to  establish  other  concluding  and  con- 
nected facts  relating  to  the  denials  of  justice. 

I  think  I  ought  to  formulate,  however,  some  observations  which  are 
suggested  to  me  by  the  considerations  set  forth  in  this  additional 
memoir. 

In  the  first  place,  Doctor  Paill  supports  himself  upon  the  text  of  the 
convention  of  the  24th  of  February,  1891,  which  is  the  agreement  of 
arbitration,  and  upon  the  exchange  of  diplomatic  correspondence 
which  preceded  this,  in  order  to  demonstrate  that  the  intention  of  the 
two  Governments  was  really  to  determine  definitely  all  the  claims  of 
M.  Fabiani  against  Venezuela.  I  do  not  deny  this.  I  even  add  that 
the  French  Government,  faithful  to  the  spirit  which  had  inspired  the 

negotiations,  did  not  cease  to  maintain  this  interpretation  of  the  agree- 

o  A  copy  of  the  original  text  of  the  award  appears  on  pp.  147  to  184,  inclusive,  post. 
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ment  in  the  course  of  the  discussions  which  were  engaged  in  before  the 
Swiss  arbitrator.  It  was,  to  the  contrary,  the  representative  of  the 
Venezuelan  Government  at  Beme  who,  hoping  to  find  in  the  terms  of 

the  convention,  unfortunately  ambiguous,  the  possibility  for  Vene- 
zuela eluding  a  part  of  her  responsibilities,  combatted  this  broad  inter- 

pretation in  several  instances,  and  substituted  for  it  a  restrictive  inter- 
pretation. In  fact,  while  the  conclusions  of  M.  Fabiani,  supported  by 

the  representative  of  the  French  Government — conclusions  having  in 
mind  the  denials  of  justice  of  the  Venezuelan  magistrates  and,  above 

all,  the  arbitrary  acts  (faits  du  prince)  and  the  denials  of  justice 

imputable  to  the  Federal  executive — comprehended  all  the  losses  and 
all  the  injuries  which  had  been  caused  him  by  the  political,  adminis- 

trative, and  judicial  powers  of  Venezuela,  the  cabinet  of  Caracas  in  its 

"defense''  presented  a  plea  tending  to  restrict  the  sense  and  scope  of 
the  agreement,  and  develop  this  plea  in  bar  on  pages  1,  2,  3,  4,  5,  17, 
86,  85,  101,  and  102.  Also  to  the  precise  conclusions  of  the  replique 
of  M.  Fabiani  on  the  faits  du  prince  the  cabinet  of  Caracas  opposed 
anew  its  plea  in  its  rejoinder. 

It  is  absurd  and  monstrous,  from  a  judicial  point  of  view,  to  maintain  that  the  party 

signatory  of  an  agreement,  or  one  of  them,  have  had  in  view  to  settle  a  question  outside  of 
the  agreement.  The  arbitrator  can  examine  and  retain  only  that  which  forms  the  object 
of  the  agreement. 

Further: 

As  long  as  the  signers  of  the  agreement  have  not  given  to  this  accord  a  more  extended 

scope,  the  only  denial  of  justice  that  the  arbitrator  ought  to  examine  is  that  which  the 
cabinet  at  Paris  says  was  committed  after  the  6th  of  eTune,  1882,  mentioned  in  article  I  of 

the  protocol.  Every  other  question  is  foreign  to  the  agreement,  and  it  can  have  no  discus- 
sion upon  the  point  of  the  departure  of  the  litigation  submitted  to  arbitration. 

Can  he  who  interpreted  the  agreement  thus  now  pretend  that  all 
the  claims  of  M.  Fabiani  have  been  definitely  settled,  seeing  that  it  is 

precisely  this  restrictive  interpretation  which- the  arbitrator  of  Beme 
adopted?  Consequently  M.  Lachenal  has  declared  briefly  in  the  quo- 

tation cited  above,  that  he  is  incompetent  according  to  the  agreement 

to  judge  all  the  points  which  M.  Fabiani  submits  to-day  to  the  exami- 
nation of  this  commission.  The  French  Government  had  only  to  sub- 

mit, since  the  sentence  of  the  sovereign  arbitrator,  although  one  might 

consider  it  as  not  having  been  inspired  by  the  spirit  which  had  pre- 
sided over  the  diplomatic  negotiations,  could  not,  however,  be  attacked 

as  contrary  to  the  letter  of  the  protocol.  But  in  execution  of  the  arbi- 
tral award  itself,  M.  Fabiani  conserved  the  faculty  of  representing  the 

leading  points  thus  laid  aside  for  want  of  jurisdiction,  and  not  adjudi- 
cated before  every  new  court  of  arbitration  instituted  by  a  protocol 

"  more  extended,''  to  use  the  term  employed  by  the  cabinet  of  Caracas 
itself.  This  protocol  with  a  more  extended  scope  is  exactly  the  pro- 

tocol of  the  19th  of  February,  1902,  of  which  M.  Fabiani  has  been 
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obliged,  in  the  absence  of  diplomatic  relations  between  France  and 
Venezuela,  to  await  the  signing  in  order  to  present  his  new  claim. 

In  the  second  place.  Doctor  Paul  has  thought  he  ought,  in  order  to 
make  plain  the  sense  of  the  protocol  of  the  24th  of  February,  1891,  to 
present  the  diplomatic  correspondence  exchanged  before  the  signing 
by  the  two  Governments.  I  receive  a  double  impression  from  the 
reading  of  these  documents:  First,  I  should  be  much  astonished  to 
judge  them  by  the  interpretation  which  he  has  given  to  the  protocol, 
that  M.  Lachenal  knew  about  this  correspondence  which  did  not  form 

a  part  of  the  dossier,  since  I  had  not  read  it  myself,  then  I  state  that 
the  only  necessity  of  recourse  to  this  correspondence,  to  make  plain  the 

text  of  the  compromise,  determines  clearly  that  this  text  was  not  suffi- 
ciently plain,  and  that  from  its  ambiguous  terms  one  could  reasonably 

draw  two  different  interpretations.  I  note,  besides,  anew  that  it  is 
the  Venezuelan  Government  which  has  not  remained  faithful  to  the 

spirit  which  presided  over  the  negotiation,  and  that  upon  this  point  it 

received  an  advantage  with  the  Swiss  arbitrator.  The  same  Govern- 
ment is  desirous  of  pushing  aside  now  the  natural  consequences  of  this 

restrictive  interpretation  of  the  protocol. 

In  the  third  place,  my  honorable  colleague  concluded  with  a  quota- 

tion from  the  sentence  of  arbitration  that,  concerning  the  "exaggera- 
tion of  the  claims  formulated,''  all  the  claims  of  M.  Fabiani  outside 

the  main  points  recognized  as  admitting  of  indemnities  have  been 
definitely  rejected  by  M.  Lachenal.  It  suffices  to  read  this  phrase  in 
order  to  notice  that  it  concerns  only  the  expenses  of  the  proceeding. 
One  could  not  rest  himself  upon  an  incidental  expression,  the  sole 
end  of  which  is  to  explain  that  useless  expenses  have  been  engaged  in 
by  demands  arising  from  the  framework  of  the  protocol  to  try  to 
reveal  in  the  mind  of  the  arbitrator  intentions  contrary  to  those  which 

he  has  clearly  expressed  in  the  preamble  of  his  award.  Finally, 
Doctor  Paul  thinks  to  find  a  last  argument  against  the  demand  of  M. 
Fabiani  in  the  text  of  a  letter  written  the  3d  of  August,  1887,  three 

years  and  a  half  before  the  signing  of  the  protocol  by  the  legation  of 
France  at  the  ministry  of  foreign  affairs  of  Venezuela.  M.  Fabiani  has 
addressed  to  me  on  this  subject  a  note,  herewith  attached,  which  I 
received  at  New  York  the  30th  of  last  January,  the  conclusions  of 

which  I  approve,  and  which  I  beg  the  umpire  to  kindly  take  into  con- 
sideration." 

The  affair  Fabiani,  such  as  it  now  exists,  rests  entirely  upon  arbitrary 
acts,  denials  of  justice,  and  the  fraudulent  resolutions  of  the  executive 
power  of  Venezuela  which  have  caused  injury  to  the  plaintiff  or  created 
by  the  complete  destruction  of  his  only  lien  insurmountable  obstacles 

to  the  collection  of  his  enormous  debts.  The  Swiss  arbitrator,  inter- 
preting the  convention  of  arbitration  of  February  24,  1891 ,  has  limited 

a  Exhibit  to  memoir  of  the  Freoch  commissioner. — Letter  from  M.  Tabiani. 
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his  jurisdiction  to  the  denials  of  justice  imputable  to  the  judicial 

authorities  of  Venezuela  on  account  of  the  nonexecution  by  said  au- 
thorities of  the  award  rendered  at  Marseilles  December  15, 1880.  He 

has  consequently  eliminated  from  the  procedure  as  being  outside  the 
protocol  and  he  has  not  admitted  proof  of  the  arbitrary /ai^  du 
prince  y  as  also  all  the  acts  foreign  to  the  inexecution  and  to  the  effects 
of  the  inexecution  of  the  sentence  before  mentioned,  acts  and  deeds 

which  the  claimant  government  had  considered  as  coming  within 

the  terms  of  the  protocol  above  cited.  This  decision  of  the  arbi- 
trator, rendered  contrary  to  the  conclusions  of  the  French  Govern- 

ment and  conformable  to  the  conclusions  of  the  United  States  of 

Venezuela,  is  of  a  startling  clearness  as  to  everything  leading  to  the 
determination  of  the  object  of  the  litigation  and  consequently  of  the 
object  of  the  judgment.  We  have  besides  been  able  to  observe  the 

precautions  taken  by  the  judge  in  order  to  anticipate  every  equivoca- 
tion and  to  reserve  the  rights  of  the  claimant  party  for  all  the  matters 

and  points  subtracted  from  his  cognizance  by  his  interpretation  of  the 
terms  of  the  protocol.  The  conclusions  of  Fabiani  upon  the  plea  of 
res  judicata  have  superabundantly  demonstrated  that  these  matters 
and  points,  founded  upon  facts  foreign  to  the  judicial  authorities  of 
the  respondent  state  and  to  the  nonexecution  by  the  said  authorities 
of  the  arbitral  award  of  Marseilles,  forni  the  only  object  of  the  present 
litigation,  and  that  they  all  refer  to  arbitrary /ai<s  (iu  prince  and  to  the 

losses  and  injuries  which  have  been  the  consequence.  But  in  the  sup- 
port of  liis  restrictive  interpretation  of  the  agreement  the  Swiss  arbi- 

trator makes  mention  of  a  note  from  the  French  legation  of  August  3, 

1887,  cited  by  the  respondent  state,  and  that  he  has  considered,  right 
or  wrong,  as  being  able  to  give  the  measure  of  the  points  included  by 
the  protocol  of  1891,  although  this  may  be  anterior  to  this  protocol  by 
three  and  a  halfyears.  But  this  note  of  1887,  in  reserving  the  surplus 
of  the  claims  of  Fabiani,  would  suffice  to  have  the  exception  of  the 
plea  res  judicata  rejected  if  the  decisive  conclusions  of  the  plaintiff 
could  allow  the  least  doubt  in  this  regard  to  subsist.  In  fact,  not  only 
has  the  Swiss  arbitrator  abstained  from  passing  upon  the  surphis 
reserved  by  the  note  of  the  3d  of  August,  1887,  and  of  which  Fabiani, 
who  attributed  to  the  agreement  of  1891  a  much  larger  scope,  had 

made  the  principal  object  of  his  memoir,  but  he  has  expressly  elimi- 
nated it  from  the  procedure  and  not  offered  proof,  for  reason  that  the 

said  agreement  had  submitted  to  arbitration  only  the  denials  of  justice 

imputable  to  the  judicial  authorities  of  Venezuela  and  the  nonexecu- 
tion by  these  authorities  of  the  arbitral  sentence  of  Marseilles. 

To  appreciate  all  the  value  of  the  reserves  contained  in  the  note  of 
the  French  legation  of  August  3,  1887,  it  is  sufficient  to  notice  that 
these  reserves  concern  the  f aits  du  prince  and  that  at  this  time  the 
President  of  Venezuela  was  still  Gen.  Guzman  Blanco,  the  resporfeible 
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author  of  the  ruin  of  Fabiani.  If  we  add  that  his  minister  of  foreign 
affairs  was  the  too  celebrated  Diego  Bautista  Urbaneja,  the  advocate 
and  accomplice  of  the  adversaries  of  the  plaintiff,  we  shall  understand 
that,  in  taking  care,  in  view  of  an  amiable  agreement,  to  indicate  the 
ejisemhle  of  the  credits  of  Fabiani  against  the  Roncayolos,  the  note  of 
the  3d  of  August,  1887,  may  have  correctly  reserved  in  the  following 
terms  the  rights  of  the  plaintiff: 

As  for  the  surplus  of  his  claims  (which  the  dictamen  translated  thus  :  exceso  de  preten- 
siones,  p.  106)  a  serious  and  analytical  examination  will  alone  determine  just  on  what  points 

they  are  founded. 

What  were  the  claims?  Here  is  the  reply  of  Fabiani  in  his  re pliqv£. 
The  Venezuelan  arbitrator  having  omitted  in  his  mutilated  itation 
the  essential  passages  of  the  said  response,  one  may  judge  it  useful  to 

reproduce  them  as  a  whole,  italicizing  that  which  has  been  cut  out — 
that  is  to  say,  almost  all : 

What  are  these  claims  of  Fahiani?  The  affair  of  the  towage  and  that  of  the  railroad. 
What  was  the  cause  of  such  a  reserved  formula?  Why  this  reticence?  One  ̂ ill  find  the 

explanation  of  it  in  the  last  paragraph  of  page  527  of  our  memoir.  The  affairs  of  the  towage 

and  that  of  the  railroad  {that  is  to  say,  all  the  arbitrary  acts — the  denials  of  justice  and  farts 
du  prince  which  these  two  affairs  have  created)  could  not  even  he  indicated^  Ouzmdn  Blanco 

ruling.  But  our  Government,  anxious  to  reconcile  the  duty  of  protecting  its  nationals,  with 
its  ecufer  desire  to  avoid  a  new  rupture  and  grave  complication,  had  forbidden,  vnth  our  loyal 

assent,  making  allusion  to  denials  of  justice  imputable  to  the  chief  of  the  executive  power, 

resennng  to  us  the  free  exercise  of  our  rights  if  the  propositions  of  an  amiable  settlement  vere 
repulsed.     These  reserves  result  from  the  paragraph  quoted  as  to  the  surplus  of  the  claims,  etc. 

All  the  passage  italicized  has  been  omitted  in  the  dictamen  of  t!ie 

Venezuelan  arbitrator.  This  suppression  has  had  for  a  result  to  c  on- 
ceal  that  it  was  a  question  of  arbitrary  acts  or  f aits  du  prince  and  to 
allow  to  be  ignored  the  serious  motive,  which,  for  facilitating  an  amiable 
settlement,  had  caused  in  1887  the  reserving  of  the  surplus,  of  which  the 

Swiss  arbitrator  has  refused  to  take  note,  because  he  was  deeply  pos- 
sessed with  the  idea  that  the  protocol  of  1891  was  affected  by  the  same 

reservation. 

These  elisions  once  indulged  in  the  dictamen  is  restrained  to  repro- 
duce the  phrase  which  begins  thus : 

There  is  for  the  ohject  of  the  htigation,  etc. 

It  is  without  any  practical  utility  in  the  present  affair,  since,  like  all 
declarations  relative  to  the  losses  and  injuries  of  Fabiani,  it  expressed 
the  opinion  of  the  demandant  Government  on  the  sense  and  extent  of 
the  words  denials  of  justice  inserted  in  the  agreement  of  February  24, 

1891.  But  one  is  not  ignorant  that,  upon  the  formal  reply  of  Vene- 
zuela, these  conclusions  of  the  demand  were  put  aside  by  the  arbitrator 

of  Berne,  who,  after  having  determined  the  object  of  the  litigation  and 
fixed  the  matter  really  submitted  to  his  jurisdiction  by  the  agreement 
cited,  has  eliminated  from  the  procedure  and  has  not  admitted  proof 
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of  as  being  outside  the  terms  of  the  protocol  just  this  surplus  of  claims 
of  Fabianif  which  comprehended  the  arbitrary  acts  and  the  denials  of 

justice  or  ''fails  du  prince^'  upon  which  the  present  examination  is 
founded ;  that  is  to  say,  all  the  facts  foreign  to  the  judicial  authorities 
of  Venezuela  and  to  the  nonexecution  by  the  said  authorities  of  the 
arbitral  award  of  Marseilles.  The  State  of  Venezuela  had  itself  twice 

proclaimed  in  its  answer  that  these  main  points  of  the  claim  did  not 
constitute  the  matter  of  the  litigation  remitted  to  the  decision  of  the 
Swiss  arbitrator,  and  in  its  rejoinder,  that  these  same  points  foreign  to 

the  protocol,  might  form  the  object  of  a  later  examination,  whenever 
the  two  Governments  would  sign  a  more  extended  protocol,  which  was 

realized  on  February  19,  1902.  It  is  this  reasoning  which  has  con- 
vinced the  arbitrator  of  Berne  and  which  has  led  him  to  pronounce 

upon  the  above-mentioned  points  a  declaration  of  want  of  jurisdiction, 
by  which  the  rights  now  under  discussion  were  safeguarded.  It  is  not 
without  interest  to  fill  in  another  gap  in  the  dictamen  and  to  call, 

respectfully,  the  attention  of  the  arbitrators  to  the  last  paragraph  of 
page  527  of  the  memoir,  which  the  Venezuelan  arbitrator  has  not 
deigned  to  reproduce,  although  page  5  of  the  repliqu-e  has  signalized  it 
as  being  necessary  to  furnish  explanation  of  the  reserve  made,  as  to  the 
surplus  of  the  claims  of  Fabiani.     Here  is  the  paragraph: 

Our  expos^  has  made  known  our  complaints;  the  questions  ahcady  so  grave  and  so  clear 

of  denials  of  justice,  of  the  refusal  of  execution  of  award,  of  the  violent  acts  of  agents  of  all 
classes,  turn  pale  beside  the  acts,  perfidious,  malevolent,  interested  and  contrary  to  all  the 

principles  of  international  law,  of  which  we  make  with  good  right  the  whole  responsibihty  to 

rest  upon  Gen.  Guzmdn  Blanco,  President  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela.  These  numer- 
ous successive  acts  which  did  not  spring  from  civil  or  penal  justice  and  which  for  this  same 

reason  remain  without  the  provisions  of  article  5  of  the  convention  of  1885 — these  acts  which 
constitute  bold  denials  of  justice  ought  we  to  pass  them  by  in  silence  at  the  risk  of  compro- 

mising the  sacred  interests  which  we  have  the  mission  of  safeguarding?  Who  would  have 
dared  to  counsel  us  thus?  It  was  then  necessary  to  speak,  to  set  forth  the  facts,  to  make 

them  precise,  above  all  to  characterize  them,  to  demonstrate  the  intention  to  injure.  It 
was  necessary  to  put  in  relief  the  interested  passion,  the  blind  hatred,  the  fails  du  prince^ 
the  culpable  reticence  which  ought,  following  the  theory  and  practice  of  the  retaliation  of 
faults  caused  us,  to  allow  some  vindictive  interest.  Very  well!  But  here  one  sees  the 

Venezuelan  delegate  jump;  we  see  him  compelled  to  squander  the  proofs  of  his  loj^alty 
for  the  name  of  the  chief  of  state  is  Guzm4n  Blanco,  and  his  minister  of  foreign  affairs, 

specially  chosen  ad  hoc,  is  no  other  than  his  famous  uncle  Diego  Bautista  Urbaneja! 

This  passage  of  the  expos6  explains  clearly  the  surplus  of  claims  of 
Fabiani.  It  has  been  explained  since  that  the  dictamen  has  passed  it 
over  in  silence,  because  this  surplus  relative  to  the  f aits  du  prince  was 
formally  eliminated  from  the  procedure  by  the  Swiss  arbitrator  as 
foreign  to  the  judicial  authorities  of  the  respondent  State,  and  that  the 
ensemble  of  the  sentence  of  Berne,  by  the  precautions  taken  in  order 
to  leave  no  doubt  as  to  what  was  really  judged,  demonstrates  that  the 

said  sentence  has  considered  this  surplus  reserved  as  capable  of  form- 
ing and  boimd  to  form  the  object  of  a  new  litigation.     The  surplus  of 
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the  claims  of  Fabiani,  as  page  527  of  the  memoir  demonstrates,  has 
reference  to  the  faits  du  princej  and,  more  particularly,  to  the  arbitrary 
acts  which  have  so  sadly  marked  the  two  grave  affairs  of  the  towage 

and  the  railroad.  This  sm'plus  then  included  all  the  arbitrary  acts,  all 

the  denials  of  justice,  and  the  fraudulent  resolutions  ^^du  prince^^ — 
that  is  to  say,  all  that  comprises  the  object  of  the  present  examination. 
Pages  49  to  67  of  the  conclusions  of  the  plaintiff  prove  this  beyond 
peradventure.  This  long  series  of  civil  wrongs,  intentionally  injurious, 
has  created  insurmountable  obstacles  and  of  the  nature  of  force 

majeure  to  the  recovery  of  the  credits  of  Fabiani.  Independent  of  the 
arbitral  award  of  Marseilles  this  unhappy  work  has  been  completed  by 
the  fraudulent  annihilation  of  the  strong  and  only  lien  of  the  creditor, 
and  by  the  withdrawal  of  the  service  of  the  towage,  by  this  abuse  of 
right,  veritable  act  of  reprisal  of  a  venal  and  passionate  chief  of  state 
against  a  mandate  of  justice.  These  unheard  of  and  wrongful  deeds 

call  for  a  restitution  proportionate  to  the  gravity  of  all  these  infrac- 
tions. 

In  these  conditions,  in  presence  of  the  demonstration  that  the  main 

point  of  the  demand,  eliminated  from  the  procedure  of  Berne,  as  out- 
side the  terms  of  the  protocol,  concern  the  arbitrary  acts,  the  denials  of 

justice,  lato  sensu,  or  the  faits  du  prince^  which  are  the  peculiar  object 
of  the  present  litigation;  and,  finally,  in  presence  of  the  decision  of  the 
Swiss  arbitrator,  so  clearly  ordered  to  the  manifest  end  of  preventing 

every  equivocation,  as  to  the  object  of  the  litigation  and  as  to  what  was 
really  adjudged,  one  is  led  to  recognize  once  more  that  the  plea  of  res 
judicata  is  no  less  inadmissible  than  badly  founded. 

Convinced,  moreover,  that  in  order  to  know  what  was  really  adjudged 

by  the  arbitrator  of  Berne,  it  is  necessary,  first  of  all,  to  possess  one's 
self  of  the  contestation,  such  as  the  plea  of  the  defendant  determined 
it,  confirmed  by  the  judgment,  then  to  consult  the  judgment  which  has 

sustained  the  plea,  and  which,  by  the  interpretation  of  the  proto- 
col, has  Umited  the  object  of  the  litigation  and  the  jurisdiction  of  the 

judge,  following  the  conclusions  of  the  respondent  State  (denial  of 

justice,  committed  since  the  6th  of  June,  1882,  by  the  judicial  authori- 
ties of  Venezuela)  Fabiani  can  in  all  confidence  rely  upon  his  conclu- 

sions of  the  24th  of  June,  1904,  which  have  demonstrated  indubitably 

that  the  object  of  the  litigation  determined  by  the  arbitrator,  con- 
formably to  the  conclusions  of  the  defendant  and  contrary  to  the 

conclusions  of  the  prosecutor,  and  the  decisions  so  clear  and  so  precise 
of  the  Berne  award,  touching  the  matter  of  litigation  thus  determined, 
have  refuted,  in  advance,  for  all  and  for  each  of  the  leading  points  of  the 
present  contest  the  plea  of  res  judicata  developed  in  the  dictamen  of 
the  Venezuelan  arbitrator. 

The  arbitrator  of  Berne  has  passed  judgment  upon  the  acts  imput- 
able to  the  judicial  authorities  of  Venezuela  in  the  course  of  the  pro- 
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cedure  of  execution  of  the  arbitral  decision  of  Marseilles,  and  upon 
these  acts  only.  It  belongs,  then,  to  the  arbitrators  to  decide  in  their 
turn  upon  the  arbitrary  acts,  the  denials  of  justice,  the  fails  du  prince, 
and  upon  the  losses  and  damages  which  have  resulted  therefrom. 

OPINION  OF  THE  UMPIKE. 

The  case  of  i\iitoine  Fabiani  came  to  the  umpire  because  of  the 
inability  of  the  honorable  commissioners  for  France  and  Venezuela  to 
agree,  as  hereinafter  stated  more  in  detail. 

His  claim  had  been  presented  by  the  concerted  action  of  these  two 
Governments  to  the  arbitrament  and  award  of  the  honorable  President 

of  the  Swiss  Federation  by  virtue  of  and  according  to  the  terms  of  a 
compromise  had  by  and  between  these  honorable  Governments,  which 

was  conclude:!  Februarys  24,  1891,  and  is  of  the  language,  folio  wing: 

Re  Fabiani's  claims: 
The  Government  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  and  the  Government  of  the  French 

Republic  have  agreed  to  submit  to  an  arbitrator  the  claims  of  M.  Antonio  Fabiani  against 
the  Venezuelan  Government. 

It  will  be  the  duty  of  the  arbitrator: 

First,  to  decide  whether,  according  to  the  laws  of  Venezuela,  the  general  principles  of  the 

law  of  nations  and  the  convention  in  force  between  the  two  contracting  powers,  the  Vene- 
zuelan Government  is  responsible  for  the  damages  which  M.  Fabiani  says  to  have  sustained 

through  denial  of  justice. 

Second,  to  fix,  in  case  such  responsibility  is  recognized,  as  to  all  or  part  of  the  claims  in 

question,  the  amount  of  the  pecuniar\^  reparation  that  the  Venezuelan  Government  must 
deliver  to  M.  Fabiani,  and  which  will  ))e  paid  in  bonds  of  the  3  per  cent  diplomatic  debt  of 
Venezuela. 

The  two  Governments  have  agreed  to  request  the  President  of  the  Swiss  Confederation  to 

kindly  take  charge  of  this  arbitration. 

The  present  declaration  will  be  submitted  to  the  approval  of  the  Congress  of  Venezuela. 
Done  in  duplicate  at  Caracas,  the  24th  of  February,  one  thousand  eight  hundred  and 

ninety-one. 

The  '^convention  in  force  between  the  two  contracting  powers" 
was  the  treaty  of  November  25,  1885,  by  and  between  these  two  Gov- 

ernments; and,  so  far  as  the  same  has  bearing  or  value  in  aid  of  the 
compromise  above  set  forth,  is  here  set  out  as  follows: 

CONVENTION. 

The  Government  of  Venezuela  and  the  Government  of  the  French  Republic,  being  desirous 
of  reestablishing  between  the  two  countries  the  friendly  relations  interrupted  since  1881, 
have  appointed  to  be  their  respective  plenipotentiaries  the  following: 

The  President  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela,  Gen.  Guzman  Blanco,  envoy  extraordi- 
nary in  Paris,  etc. 

The  President  of  the  French  Republic,  the  Count  Tristan  dc  Montholon,  minister  plenipo- 

tentiary of  the  second  class  in  chai-ge  ad  int.  of  the  duties  of  the  director  of  political  affairs 
in  the  ministry  of  foreign  affairs,  etc. 

Who,  after  having  exchanged  their  resp«?ctive  powers,  found  in  good  and  due  fonn,  have 

agreed  upon  the  following  articles:     *     *     * 
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Article  ."tth. 

Id  order  to  avoid  in  future  everything  that  might  interfere  with  their  friendly  relations 

the  high  contracting  parties  agree  that  their  diplomatic  representatives  will  not  interfere 

in  the  matter  of  claims  or  complaints  of  private  individuals  or  on  affairs  cognizable  by  the 
civil  or  penal  justice,  according  to  the  local  laws,  unless  the  question  is  a  denial  of  justice  or 
judicial  delays  contrary  to  use  or  to  law,  the  noncompliance  with  a  definitive  sentence,  or, 

finally,  cases  in  which  in  spite  of  the  exhaustion  of  legal  remedies  there  is  an  evident  infrac- 
tion of  the  treaties  or  of  the  rules  of  the  law  of  nations. 

The  claims  presented  before  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne  on 
behalf  of  M.  Fabiani  aggregated  46,994,563.17  francs,  extended  over 
the  years  from  1878  to  1893,  were  assembled  under  the  general  term  of 
denial  of  justice  and  included  such  as  were  imputable  to*the  judicial 

authorities  of  Venezuela,  its  administrative  authorities,  and  to  dam- 
ages suffered  by  him  through  the  fault  of  its  public  powers,  claiming 

for  him  both  the  direct  and  indirect  damages  under  each  head. 
December  30,  1896,  the  award  was  made  for  4,346,656.51  francs 

with  interest  at  the  rate  of  5  per  cent  per  annum  from  that  date.  The 
honorable  arbitrator  arrives  at  this  sum  in  the  manner  hereinafter  set 
forth. 

The  decision  of  the  honorable  arbitrator,  together  with  his  reasons 
therefor,  was  rendered  in  writing,  which  award  reciting  the  essential 
facts,  as  well  as  the  reasons  of  the  honorable  arbitrator,  appears  on 

nages  4748-4915,  volume  5,  Moore's  History  and  Digest  of  Interna- 
tional Arbitration.  ** 

The  sum  of  42,647,906.66  francs  represents  that  part  of  the  total 
claim  of  M.  Fabiani  which  was  not  allowed  by  the  honorable  arbitrator 
of  Berne,  and  which  was  denied  for  the  reasons  given  in  his  award. 

It  is  claimed  by  M.  Fabiani  before  this  commission  that  of  the  sums 

denied  allowance  by  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne  there  are  cer- 
tain portions  so  disposed  of  by  him  as  to  be  still  in  force  against  the 

respondent  Government  under  the  general  terms  of  the  protocol  con- 
stituting this  commission,  aggregating  9,509,728.30  francs. 

The  reasons  given  by  Fabiani  before  this  present  commission  for 
ascribing  present  vitality  to  the  claims  now  before  this  commission 
are,  in  substance,  as  follows: 

The  decision  of  the  arbitral  statement  of  Berne  is,  in  effect,  that  all  the  chief  points  of  the 

actual  demands  and  the  arbitrary  acts  ''faiis  du  prince'^  have  been  expressly  formally 
eliminated  by  the  Swiss  arbitrator  as  subtracted  from  his  decision  by  his  interpretation  of 
the  terms  of  the  protocol  passed  between  the  Government  of  the  French  Republic  and 
the  Government  of  Venezuela; 

That  the  interpretation  of  the  treaty  of  Febmary  24,  1891,  given  by  the  said  arbitrator, 

has  placed  the  limit  of  the  questions  which  the  judge  had  the  power  to  resolve,  upon  which 
he  was  authorized  to  decide,  and  which  alone  ought  to  make  and  which  has  made  the  object 
of  his  judgment; 

That  by  the  formal  decision  which  has  eliminated  the  cause  and  the  object  of  the  ac^tual 
demand  as  not  being  included  in  the  matter  submitted  to  his  jurisdiction  the  arbitrator  [of 

a  Post  pp.  147  to  184,  inclusive. 
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Berne]  has  recognized  that  he  had  not  the  right  to  pass  judgment  upon  the  ̂ 'faiiJU  du  prince*' 
and  upon  all  the  points  by  him  eliminated  from  the  procedure  as  not  included  in  the  terms  of 
the  protocol; 

That  in  declaring  them  subtracted  from  his  decision  according  to  the  protocol  the  arbi- 
trator has  passed  judgment  upon  his  own  jurisdiction  and  has  determined  its  limit; 

That  the  doctrine  and  jurisprudence  are  for  a  long  time  unanimous  upon  this  incontestable 
principle  that  a  declaration  of  incompetency  can  never  produce  the  effect  of  res  judicata  upon 
the  foundation  of  the  law; 

That  the  *' fails  du  prince''  and  all  the  points  of  the  present  instance  [have]  been  expressly 
eliminated  from  the  procedure  by  the  decision  of  the  arbitrator  of  Berne,  because  they  were 
not  included  by  the  terms  of  the  protocol,  and  consequently  were  subtracted  from  its 

competence;    *    *    * 
That  he  has  eliminated  it  as  not  making  a  part  of  the  matter  remitted  to  his  decision,  and 

that  he  would  not  have  been  able  to  retain  it  without  violating  his  own  interpretation  of  the 

treaty  of  February  24,  1891 ;  *  *  *  The  most  scrupulous  examination  of  the  arbitral 
decision  of  December  31,  1896,  determines  that  the  arbitrator  has  strictly  conformed  to  his 

interpretation  of  the  protocol,  and  that  he  has  not  passed  judgment  byway  of  the  declara- 
tion of  right  and  responsibility  upon  any  of  the  matters  eliminated  by  him  as  subtracted 

from  his  right  to  judge  by  the  terms  of  the  protocol; 
That  consequently  these  matters  not  having  been,  and  not  having  been  able  to  be,  the  object 

of  a  decision  upon  the  bases  of  law  one  could  not  pretend  that 

they  are 

res  judicata; 
That  to  be  convinced  of  it  it  is  sufficient  to  refer  to  the  procedure  before  the  President  of 

the  Swiss  Confederation  to  the  plea  proposed  by  the  defendant  party  against  the  actual 

demand  as  arises  frogi  the  terms  of  the  protocol,  then  to  the  former  and  reiterated  decision 

which  the  arbitrator  [of  Berne]  had  rendered  in  giving  to  the  protocol  of  February  24, 

1891 ,  the  sense  claimed  by  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  and  in  eliminating  from  the  pro- 

cedure as  subtracted  from  his  decision — that  is  to  say,  from  his  jurisdiction — the  "fails  du 

prince"  and  all  the  points  foreign  to  the  inexecution  and  of  the  effects  of  the  inexecution  by 
the  tribunals  of  Venezuela  of  the  arbitral  sentence  of  MarseiUes  of  December  15, 1880 — that 
is  to  say,  precisely  all  the  points  upon  which  the  arbitrators  authorized  by  the  treaty  of 
February  19,  1902,  are  called  upon  to  decide. 

In  execution  of  the  protocol,  whose  terms  gave,  in  Fabiani's  opmion,  plenitude  of 
jurisdiction  to  the  arbitrator  [of  Berne]  and  conferred  upon  him  the  right  to  decide  upon  all 
the  denials  of  justice,  whether  they  were  imputable  to  the  judicial  authorities  or  to  the 

administrative  authorities  of  Venezuela  (these  latter  naturally  including  the  arbitrary 

acts  or  "fails  du  prince"  attributable  to  the  Federal  executive)  and  lipon  all  the  damages 
which  Fabiani  says  to  have  suffered  through  the  fault  of  the  public  powers  of  this  country, 
the  French  Government  charges  the  claimant  to  present  the  demand  before  the  President  of 
the  Swiss  Confederation. 

Fabiani  established  the  general  table  of  losses  and  prejudices  of  damages  and  interests,  the 

responsibility  of  which  he  imputed  to  the  public  powers  of  Venezuela;  but  the  defendant 

party,  for  reasons  easy  to  suspect,  preferred  a  solution  which  would  leave  the  parties  always 
divided  by  the  difference  which  the  French  Republic  had  proposed  to  avoid  in  a  complete 
fashion. 

Fabiani,  as  results  from  the  ensemble  of  his  expose  before  the  arbitrator  of  Berne,  had  always 

considered  the  arbitrary  acts  and  the  denials  of  justice  "fails  du  prince"  imputable  to  the 
administrative  authorities  as  the  principal  cause  of  his  misfortunes  in  Venezuela. 

Of  the  505  pages  of  the  said  expos6  of  facts,  more  than  two-thirds 
treated  of  the  direct  interference  of  the  Federal  executive  in  a  conflict 

between  foreigners,  notably  the  following  pages:  41  to  50,  52  to  55, 
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57  to  60,  69,  92  to  98,  100  to  103,  108  to  115,  123  to  124,  129,  1^1  to 
139,  158  to  165,  174  to  178,  181,  183,  199  to  204,  206,  207,  242,  255, 
259,  261  to  267,  272  to  274,  276,  284  to  290,  294,  297,  298,  300,  304, 
305,  312  to  320. 

It  is  Fabiani's — 

conviction  that  the  term  "denial  of  justice,"  employed  in  the  protocol  included  all  denials 
of  justice,  those  of  the  judicial  authorities,  and,  above  all,  those  imputable  to  the  admin- 

istrative and  political  authorities  of  Venezuela. 

The  Swiss  arbitrator — 

has  given  his  interpretation  of  the  terms  of  the  protocol,  determined  exactly  the  object 
of  the  difference  submitted  to  arbitration,  and  has  expressly  eliminated  from  the  procedure, 

as  subtracted  from  his  decision,  and  consequently  from  his  competency,  all  of  the  allega- 
tions and  means  of  proof  relative  to  claims  founded  upon  the  arbitrary  acts  of  the 

executive  powers  or  upon  the  "fails  du  prince"  and  upon  all  the  fails  foreign  to  the 
inexecution  of  the  arbitral  sentence  of  Marseilles  of  December  15,  1880. 

In  further  support  of  his  contention  that  the  claims  specified  by  him 
are  still  of  vitality  and  force  and  competent  to  be  passed  upon  by  this 
commission,  he  quotes  several  passages  from  his  expose. 

Page  542: 

If  we  do  not  possess  the  formal  and  written  avowal  of  our  implacable  enemy,  we  have, 

aside  from  his  official  acts,  which  bring  prejudice  to  us,  the  acts,  also  official,  perfidiously 
calculated  to  strangle  us  between  two  doors,  if,  trusting  to  false  appearances  of  justice, 

we  thought  to  make  our  rights  of  value. 

The  executive  power  coming  to  the  aid  of  the  judicial  power  to  condemn  us  to  powerless- 
ness  by  the  aid  of  fraudulent  maneuvers,  which  resulted  in  the  spoliation  of  October  26, 
1885,  is  an  undeniable  fact  which  will  not  escape  the  scrutinizing  eye  of  the  judge. 

Page  545 : 

The  ensemble  of  our  grievances  against  Venezuela  engages  the  responsibility  of  the  judges 
and  of  the  public  powers  of  this  country.  The  judges  have  been  guilty ;  they  have  surpassed 
themselves  in  the  art  of  adapting  the  laws  to  the  annulment  of  justice;  the  public  powers 
have  been  unworthy;  in  any  civilized  country  they  would  not  have  been  able  to  escape 

chastisement;  but  in  the  long  run  we  would  have  been  able,  perhaps,  to  triumph  over 

their  venality  and  ill-will  if  we  had  not  been  forced  to  struggle  against  the  personal  and 

interested  hostility  of  the  chief  of  state.  This  personal  hostility,  a  veritable  "fait  du 
prince,'*  has  established  before  us  the  case  of  force  majeure. 

Page  552: 
The  acts  for  which  we  reproach  Gen.  Guzmdn  Blanco  are  of  the  resort  neither  of  the  civil 

justice  nor  of  penal  justice  of  his  country.  These  acts,  veritable  denials  of  justice,  have 
been  committed  by  the  President  of  the  Republic  in  this  quality. 

The  laws  of  Venezuela,  conformable,  moreover,  to  the  general  principles  of  public  law, 
authorize  no  action  against  the  chief  of  state  save  in  one  of  the  three  cases  provided  for  by 

the  constitution.  But  if  these  acts  escape  all  civil  or  penal  jurisdiction,  this  does  not  sig- 
nify in  any  way  that  they  engender  no  responsibility  and  that  this  responsibility  can  never 

produce  its  results.  According  to  the  law  of  nations,  there  is  a  responsibility  which  substi- 
tutes itself  for  the  personal  responsibility  of  the  chief  of  state;  it  is  that  of  the  country 

which  he  represents,  when  the  acts  of  the  executive  power  constitute  with  regard  to  a 
foreign  nation  or  its  dependents,  violations  of  the  principles  of  public  international  law. 

S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   8 
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Pages  553  to  554: 

But  in  our  unfortunate  affair,  the  ''fails  du  prince,"  which  have  constituted  denials  of 
justice,  are  well  established.  We  have  no  need  to  refer  to  them,  nor  even  to  group  them, 
in  order  to  enlighten  the  conscience  of  the  arbitrator.  Our  general  expose  relieves  us  from 

insisting.  All  these  facts,  taken  together  or  separately,  establish  the  direct  intervention 
of  the  chief  of  state  in  a  conflict  between  individuals  to  prepare,  to  consummate,  a  great 

injustice.  If  these  considerations,  which  we  believe  in  perfect  harmony  with  the  theory 

and  practice  of  the  law  of  nations  among  civilized  countries,  are  accepted  by  the  arbitrator, 

the  iniquity  of  the  judges,  their  denials  of  justice,  and  the  question  of  retroactivity,  rele- 
gated to  the  second  place,  will  no  longer  offer  anyithing  but  a  secondary  interest. 

We  have  furnished  all  the  proofs  of  the  malevolent  action  of  the  chief  of  state,  now  direct, 
now  indirect,  continued  for  more  than  six  years,  striking  us  in  front  and  behind,  raising 
themselves  before  us  as  an  insurmountable  obstacle  to  paralyze  us,  when,  in  spite  of  his 

venality,  justice  was  impressed  for  continuing  his  guilty  work.  If  the  arbitrator  retains 

the  ''fails  du  prince,"  as  these/aite  have  had,  as  a  consequence,  a  series  of  denials  of  justice, 
he  will  find,  in  these  evident  violations  of  the  principles  of  the  law  of  nations,  the  direct 

reply  to  the  arguments  of  the  cabinet  of  Caracas  and  the  juridical  elements  of  a  decision 
which  will  retain  the  responsibility  of  Venezuela  without  its  being  even  necessary  to  refer 
to  the  complicity  of  the  judicial  and  administrative  authorities  of  the  country.  And  we 
are  persuaded  that  this  decision,  having  reference  to  all  the  fails  since  the  origin  of  our 
troubles,  and  retaining  all  the  violences  of  which  we  have  been  the  object,  Mrill  proportion 

the  reparation  of  the  prejudice  caused  to  the  premeditation,  to  the  gravity,  to  the  tenacity, 
and  to  the  extent  of  the  offense.  However,  need  we  insist  upon  the  infractions  and  upon 

the  denials  of  justice  which,  exclusive  of  the  "fails  du  prince,"  might  be  of  the  resort  of  the 
civil  or  penal  justice? 

Fabiani  follows  these  quotations  with  the  statement  that — 
these  extracts  offer  the  advantage  of  determining  the  sense  which  he  attaches  to  the  words 

**denialsof  justice"  according  to  the  protocol,  which,  in  his  opinion,  included  not  only 
denials  of  justice  imputable  to  the  judicial  authorities,  but  still,  and  above  all,  denials  of  jus- 

tice imputable  to  the  Federal  executive  and  all  the  arbitrary  acts  connected.  That,  in 

effect,  if  the  plaintiff  (Fabiani)  recognized,  as  he  still  recognizes,  the  right  of  the  sovereign 

appreciation  of  the  judge,  he  counted  that  this  right  would  be  exercised  upon  the  ensemble  of 

his  demand,  and  more  especially  upon  the  arbitrary  acts  of  *'/ai^«  </w  prince,"  denials  of 
justice  imputable  to  the  Federal  executive;  that  if  the  arbitrator  (of  Berne)  has  disposed  of 
them  otherwise,  if  he  has  interpreted  the  protocol  in  a  way  to  limit  and  determine  the 
object  of  the  difference  submitted  to  his  decision,  he  has  thereby  still  reserved  the  rights  of 
the  plaintiff  (Fabiani)  for  all  the  matters  which  he  has  declared  stranger  to  the  object  of  the 
litigation  and  which  he  has  eliminated  from  the  procedure  as  subtracted,  etc. 

In  signalizing  the  denials  of  justice  of  the  magistrates  of  Venezuela  in  all  that  which  had  ref- 
erence to  the  inexecution  of  the  sentence  of  Marseilles,  the  demand  for  damage,  and  interest 

was  founded  especially  upon  the  injurious  results  of  the  arbitrary  acts  and  denials  of  jus- 
tice of  the  Federal  executive. 

In  these  conditions  it  is  natural  that  the  plaintiff  (Fabiani)  should  have  anticipated  an 
adjudication  en  bloc. 

Fabiani  urges  that  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne,  in  proceeding 
to  set  forth  his  reasons  and  to  separate  the  claims  allowed  from  those 

disallowed,  has  "in  effect''  proceeded  **contrary  to  custom,  not  to  an 
adjudication  en  bloc,  but  to  a  detailed  adjudication  clear  and  precise, '' 

and — 
has  evidently  held  to  anticipate  every  equivocation,  to  cut  short  all  chicanery,  and  to  re- 

serve to  the  demandant  party  the  free  exercise  of  all  his  rights  for  all  the  matters  and  for 
all  sums  which  he  had  just  declared  subtracted  from  his  decision. 
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To  elucidate  the  meaning,  force,  and  effect  of  the  acts  of  the  honor- 
able arbitrator  of  Berne  and  to  bring  out  more  clearly,  as  he  would  con- 

tend, the  elimination  and  subtraction  suggested,  and  to  show  that  the 
reason  therefor  is  as  claimed  by  Fabiani,  he  quotes  from  the  defense 
of  the  respondent  Government  made  before  the  honorable  President 
of  the  Swiss  Federation,  stating  that  such  defense  begins  as  follows: 

The  demaodaot  party  gives  itself  up  contiDually  from  the  beginning  of  its  expose  to  the 

interminable  digressions  which  have  no  relation  to  the  affair  under  discussion,  in  the  diplo- 
matic discussion  maintained  by  the  cabinets  of  Caracas  and  Paris  upon  the  subject  of  the 

Fabiani  claim.  The  object  of  this  claim  and  its  points  of  departure  have  been  determined. 

The  object  is  the  denial  of  justice  alleged  by  Fabiani  for  the  nonexecution,  according  to  him, 
of  the  arbitral  sentence  rendered  in  his  favor  at  Marseilles  December  15, 1880,  analogous  to 

the  civil  tribunal  of  the  first  instance  and  confirmed  by  the  court  of  appeal  of  Aix,  and  the 

point  of  departure  can  not  be  any  other  than  the  decree  by  which  on  the  d&te  of  June  6, 1882, 

the  high  Federal  court  of  Venezuela  gave  executory  force  in  the  country  to  the  sentence  of  the 

court  of  appeal  of  Aix. 

Page  4: 
That  which  is  important  to  fix  now  is  that  all  which  is  anterior  to  the  decision  of  the  high 

Federal  court  of  the  date  of  June  6,  1882,  and  the  other  digressions  which  the  plaintiff  has 

added  to  his  exposd,  do  not  constitute  the  matter  of  actual  litigation.     '*''''     '*' 
Moreover,  the  diplomatic  discussion  having  determined  that  the  Fabiani  claim,  which  was 

about  to  bo  submitted  to  arbitration,  was  the  claim  presented  and  supported  by  the  French 

Government,  and  not  the  claims  which  Fabiani  should  present  ulteriorly,  the  compromise 
between  the  two  Governments  has  for  an  end  only  the  facts  relating  to  the  pretended  denials 

of  justice  beginning  from  1882. 

In  Fabiani^s  replique  to  the  defense  of  Venezuela,  from  which  the 
following  quotations  are  taken,  he  vigorously  opposed  this  claim  of 
Venezuela,  and  again  explained  the  sense  which  he  attached  to  the 

words  *' denials  of  justice.'' 
Page  62: 
Our  voluminous  memoir  is  occupied  principally  with  Mr.  Guzman  Blanco,  whose  name 

finds  itself  repeated  on  each  page  several  times.  The  denials  of  justice,  the  violences, 

excesses,  by  us  denounced  in  the  memoir,  are  attributed  to  this  cause  almost  exclusively 

— the  passionate  and  interested  hostility  of  Mr.  Guzm&n  Blanco. 
The  judges  who  receive  the  price  of  their  venality,  the  officials  who  harass  us  without  ceas- 

ing, are  represented  by  us  as  mere  instruments  of  the  chief  of  executive  power. 
On  almost  every  page  our  accusations  are  very  precise.  We  explain  the  numerous  and 

grievous  facts.  We  make  known  the  prime  mover,  his  financial  dickerings  with  our  adver- 
saries,his  acts  of  direct  hostility,his  fraudulent  manoeu  vers  to  injure  us,his  odious  outrages,  his 
repeated  denials  of  justice  to  conserve  for  his  associates  and  himself  the  profits  of  the  railroad. 

Guzm&n  Blanco  (ex-Oeiba)  and  the  cabinet  of  Caracas  maintains  a  religious  silence.  Sa  ve  in 
two  citations,  from  our  memoir  it  does  not  pronounce  even  once  the  name  of  Mr.  Guzm&n 
Blanco. 

Page  63: 
We  understand  the  embarrassment  of  the  cabinet  of  Caracas.  The  subject  was  rugged 

and  the  way  very  slippery.    *    ♦    * 
We  retain  in  this  debate  not  certainly  Mr.  Guzm&n  Bianco,  whom  international  law 

defends  against  our  investigations,  but  the  chief  of  the  executive  power  whose  acts  have 
engaged  the  responsibility  of  bis  country. 
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Venezuela  ought  to  take  account  of  the  ''fails  du  prince  '*  and  denials  of  justice  imputable 
to  its  former  master,  as  well  as  the  denials  of  justice  anticipated  by  the  convention  of 

November  26,  1885,  in  the  affairs  which  are  the  resorts  of  the  civil  or  penal  justice. 

The  personal  acts  of  the  chief  of  executive  power  are,  moreover,  grave  as  the  denials  of 

justice  imputable  to  a  district  judge,  and  even  to  a  court  of  cassation. 
The  flagrant  violation  of  the  law  of  nations  by  the  chief  executive  power  of  a  country 

offers  another  interest  for  the  peace  of  nations  than  the  injury  brought  to  the  rules  of  inter- 
national law  by  the  brutality  or  the  venality  of  some  graduates  of  the  University  of  Caracas. 

Page  65: 
The  faithful  executor  of  the  constitution  was  held  to  demand  without  delay  the  respect 

of  the  Federal  compact,  and  his  calculated  inaction  constituted  a  denial  of  justice.  In  refus- 
ing to  intervene  and  in  shifting  upon  the  high  Federal  court  the  obligation  which  was  strictly 

incumbent  upon  him  the  executive  power  committed  knowingly  and  with  premeditation  a 
denial  of  justice,  the  consequences  of  which  have  been  decisive,  and  this  denial  of  justice 
has  had  for  an  end  to  safeguard  the  persona]  interests  of  the  chief  of  state. 

Page  78: 
If  the  denial  of  justice  which  we  impute  to  the  chief  of  executive  power  of  Venezuela  is 

established,  the  gravity  of  this  infraction  will  occupy  with  good  right  the  attention  of  the 
arbitrator.  In  fact  more  than  half  our  memoir  concerns  the  acts  and  deeds  of  Mr.  Guzman 
Blanco. 

From  these  copious  excerpts  it  is  easily  seen  that  the  demandant, 
Fabiani,  came  before  the  Mixed  Commission,  sitting  at  Caracas  in 
1903,  under  the  convention  of  February  19,  1902,  with  the  claim  that 
the  act  of  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne  in  dismissing  the  grciater 
part  of  his  case,  was  solely  a  jurisdictional  decision,  leaving  unaffected, 
as  though  never  presented  to  him,  the  claims  thus  dismissed. 

The  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  rejected  the  case  as 

presented  in  all  and  every  part,  for  the  reason  that,  in  effect,  the 
entire  Fabiani  controversy  was  submitted  to  the  final  and  conclusive 
arbitrament  and  award  of  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne  by  the 

high  contracting  parties  in  their  protocol  at  Caracas  of  date  Feb- 
ruary 24,  1891,  and  that  when  .the  controversy  was  submitted  under 

said  protocol  and  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne  had  assumed 
and  accomplished  his  important  trust  the  entire  Fabiani  contention 
was  at  an  end. 

Since  the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  had  not  consented 

to  discuss  the  figures  presented  by  M.  Fabiani,  the  honorable  commis- 

sioner for  France  has  regarded  himself  as  ̂ ^under  the  obligation  of 
accepting  them  as  a  whole."  The  honorable  commissioner  for  France 
also  states : 

As,  moreover,  none  of  his  (Fabiani 's)  demands  have  been  contested  in  the  foundation  and 
in  the  figures  by  the  respondent  Government,  it  has  not  appeared  possible  to  me  to  put 

them  aside  or  to  reduce  the  amount.  1  have  consequently  accorded  to  M.  Fabiani  the  indem- 

nity which  he  claims.^ 

o  Page  95. 
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The  honorable  commissioners,  finding  themselves  hopelessly  in  dis- 
agreement, reserve  this  claim  for  the  consideration  and  determination 

of  the  umpire,  to  whom  it  has  been  submitted  with  the  very  helpful 
opinions  rendered  by  each,  setting  forth  very  clearly  the  points  for  and 
against  the  claims  of  Fabiani  and  his  right  thereon  to  be  heard  again 
before  an  arbitral  tribunal. 

First  to  be  determined  is  the  issue  whether  there  is  or  is  not  aught  to 
be  produced  before  this  tribunal  of  the  matters  once  submitted  to  the 
arbitrament  and  award  of  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne  under  the 

protocol  effected  by  the  two  nations  at  Caracas,  February  24,  1891. 

An  analysis  of  this  treaty  discloses,  in  its  first  paragraph,  that — 
the  Government  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  and  the  Government  of  the  French 

Republic  have  agreed  to  submit  to  an  arbitrator  the  claims  of  M.  Antonio  Fabiani  against 
the  Venezuelan  Government. 

It  will  be  observed,  then,  that  the  matter  to  be  submitted  for  arbitra- 

tion is  the  ̂^ claims^'  of  Fabiani — not  certain  claims  of  Fabini,  not  a 
part  of  his  claims,  but  his  claims,  which  clearly  and  definitely  includes 
all  his  claims  against  the  respondent  Government.  It  would  not  be 

more  sure,  more  precise,  had  it  been  written  *^all  of  the  claims  of  M. 
Antonio  Fabiani,^'  etc.  This  is  the  position  taken  by  M.  Fabiani  him- 

self, who  presented  all  of  his  claims  against  the  respondent  Govern- 
ment to  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne,  and  urged  upon  him  that  it 

was  his  right  and  duty  to  consider,  pass  upon,  and  allow  them  as  all 
coming  within  the  terms  of  the  protocol;  and  who,  consistent  with 
his  former  position,  but  respectful  to  an  adverse  decision,  still  insists 
that  such  was  its  true  scope  and  spirit.  Had  nothing  posterior  to  this 
first  paragraph  been  written,  the  way  of  the  claimant  would  have 
been  easy  and  the  hearing  unrestricted.  Such,  however,  was  not  the 
agreement  of  the  two  honorable  Governments.  Restrictions  are 
imposed  and  must  be  heeded.  When  understood  they  must  be 

respected  and  obeyed,  for  they  are  to  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne 
and  to  all  who  come  after  him  the  supreme  law  of  his  tribunal. 

Two  principal  duties  were  presented  to  the  arbitrator  by  the  proto- 
col of  February  24,  1891. 

He  was,  first,  to  decide  under  certain  limitations,  hereinafter  to  be 
stated,  whether  the  Venezuelan  Government  was  responsible  for  the 
damages  which  Fabiani  claims  to  have  sustained  at  its  hands. 

This  was  the  logical  course  ol  procedure  had  no  direction  been  given, 

but  it  is  made  obligatory  and  imperative  by  the  terms  of  the  conven- 
tion. It  is  not  permitted  that  the  honorable  arbitrator  shall  make  his 

decision  without  the  definitive  aid  of  the  high  contracting  powers. 
They  do  not  consent  that  he  pursue  his  own  course  and  use  his  own 
tests  in  arriving  at  his  conclusions  upon  the  question  thus  submitted; 
neither  do  they  admit  that  the  honorable  arbitrator  may  classify  and 
designate  the  quality  and  character  of  the  claims  which  are  submitted 
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to  his  decision;  on  the  contrary,  they  assume  positively  and  finally  to 
make  for  themselves  and  for  him  a  definition  which  shall  cover  and 

include  the  claims  of  Fabiani,  which,  by  agreement  of  the  two  parties, 
had  been  and  then  were  before  them,  and  were  by  this  protocol  to  be 

passed  into  the  hands  of  the  honorable  President  of  the  Swiss  Federa- 
tion as  arbitrator,  and  the  phrase  thus  used  by  them  for  his  guidance 

was  neither  obscure  nor  indefinite,  but  was  one  common  to  the  tongues 

of  nations,  viz.,  ''denials  of  justice/'  It  did  not  comport  with  the 
wishes  and  purposes  of  these  two  Governments  nor  with  the  treaty 

relations  then  existing  between  them  that  this  phrase  should  be  inter- 
preted and  applied  unaided  by  the  terms  of  the  convention  consti- 

tuting the  tribunal.  The  arbitrator  was  directed  to  call  to  his  aid  and 
submit  himself  to  the  government  and  control  of  and  was  to  render 

his  decisions  thereon  according  to — 

the  laws  of  Venezuela,  the  general  principles  of  the  law  of  nations,  and  the  convention  in 
force  between  the  two  contracting  powers. 

Through  these  three  sources  of  information  the  arbitrator  was  to 
determine  the  responsibility  of  the  respondent  Government  in  the 

Fabiani  controversy.  This  compelled  an  interpretation  by  the  arbi- 
trator of  article  5  of  the  convention  of  November  26,  1885,  which  was 

the  treaty  then  in  force  between  the  two  contracting  powers.  When 
thus  interpreted  it  settled  its  meaning  finally  and  conclusively,  as 
applied  to  the  Fabiani  controversy,  and  in  that  respect  and  to  that 
extent,  at  least,  it  has  conclusive  and  final  force  upon  the  question 
pending  before  the  umpire.  This  is  true  because  he  was  expressly 
directed  and  empowered  to  make  this  interpretation  by  the  two 

powers  whose  treaty  it  was.  His  interpretation,  thus  made,  deter- 
mined for  this  case  the  scope  and  depth,  the  spirit  and  purpose,  the 

meaning  and  effect  of  the  limitations  self-imposed  by  these  two  nations 
in  their  high  compact  regulating  and  defining  the  right  of  diplomatic 
intervention.  It  also  effected  a  similar  decision  concerning  the  term 

''denials  of  justice,^'  which  term  was  employed  in  said  treaty  in  con- 
nection with  the  limitation,  by  their  own  agreement,  placed  upon 

their  future  action  in  reference  to  the  claims  and  claimants  of  each 

nation.  This  limitation  upon  diplomatic  action  was  stated  by  the 
high  contracting  parties  to  be  in  the  interest  of  peace,  harmony,  and 
concord  between  them,  evidently  believing,  on  their  part,  that  such 
injuries  and  damages  as  might  befall  their  respective  nationals  in  the 
land  of  the  other,  which  were  not  included  in  the  terms  of  the  conven- 

tion, were  better  ignored  than  pursued;  that  the  general  and  common 
welfare  of  the  two  nations  was  of  chief  importance,  and  could  not 

wisely  be  jeopardized  through  international  differences  and  diplo- 
matic contentions  not  resting  upon  or  growing  out  of  the  causes  spe- 

cifically  assigned.     For   these   laudable   reasons   and   motives   this 
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restriction  was  solemnly  declared  to  be  the  settled  conviction,  pur- 
pose, and  future  policy  o;  these  two  nations. 

The  protocol  of  February  24, 1891,  was  made  not  only  in  view  of  the 
existing  treaty,  but  that  there  might  be  no  question  in  the  mind  of  the 
honorable  arbitrator  as  to  their  purpose  scrupulously  to  regard  and  be 
governed  by  its  provisiqns  in  its  application  to  the  case  in  hand,  the 

compromise  incorporated  its  terms  and  made  them  fast  to  his  con- 
science and  judgment.  Examination  of  his  award  and  a  careful 

review  of  his  reasons  therefor  indicate  clearly  his  thorough  apprecia- 
tion of  the  language  and  spirit  of  the  compromise  and  the  scope  and 

purview  of  his  trust. 
Coincident  with  his  interpretation  of  article  5  of  the  convention  of 

November  26,  1885,  correlated  thereto  and  commingled  therewith, 
there  came  the  duty  to  interpret  the  meaning  of  the  protocol  of 
February  24,  1891,  when  it  defined  his  limit  of  action  to  be  within  such 
circumscribed  bounds  as  are  contained  in  the  laws  of  Venezuela  and 

the  general  principles  of  the  law  of  nations,  as  well  as  in  the  terms  of 
article  5,  above  alluded  to.  He  must  determine  whether  the  denials 

of  justice,  to  be  operative  in  the  case  before  him,  must  be  such  as 

respond  to  each  one  of  these  tests;  in  other  words,  such  as  are  not  con- 
trary to  any  one  of  them,  or  if  responsive  to  any  one,  although  opposed 

to  the  others,  it  is  sufficient.  He  must  determine  the  breadth  of  the 

reference  to  the  laws  of  Venezuela,  and,  giving  the  reference  its  proper 
significance  and  limitations,  must  seek  out  and  apply  to  the  case 
before  him  the  Venezuelan  laws  which  he  has  held  to  be  within  the 

meaning  of  the  reference,  and  he  must  summon  before  him  and  apply 
to  the  elucidation  of  the  question  so  much  of  the  law  of  nations  as  he 
deems  applicable  thereto. 

The  second  line  of  action  assigned  him  necessarily  followed,  depended 
upon,  and  was  limited  by  his  disposition  of  the  first  duty  placed  in  his 
charge.  If  he  found  no  responsibility  in  Venezuela  for  the  damages 
claimed  by  Fabiani  because  of  denials  of  justice,  then  his  duty  was 
done  and  the  arbitration  was  closed  when  he  made  his  declaration  of 

such  finding. 

He  can  arrive  at  this  conclusion  by  one  of  two  ways,  or  by  the  meet- 
ing of  both.  It  is  one  way  if  he  finds  there  have  been  in  fact  no 

denials  of  justice.  It  is  the  other  way  if  he  finds  denials  of  justice, 
but  also  finds  that  they  are  not  such  as  attached  responsibility  to 

Venezuela.  Either  finding  absolves  Venezuela.  If  he  holds  Vene- 
zuela responsible  in  any  part,  it  must  be  upon  the  bases  that  in  his 

sound  judgment  there  are  denials  of  justice  and  that  they  are  of  a 
character  to  fix  responsibility  upon  Venezuela.  A  concurrence  of  these 
two  conditions  must  exist  or  the  award  must  always  be  for  Venezuela, 
and  to  the  extent  that  there  is  nonconcurrence  the  award  must  be  for 
Venezuela. 
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Examination  of  the  award  of  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne,  and 

a  study  of  the  reasons  he  sets  forth  to  justify  his  findings,  discloses  that 

he  entered  upon  the  discharge  of  his  high  duty  with  thorough  appre- 
ciation of  the  character  and  the  importance  of  his  trust. 

On  page  22  of  his  award  he  said : 

In  the  very  first  place  it  is  important  exactly  to  determiife  the  object  of  the  controversy  sub- 
mitted for  arbitration.  According  to  the  compromise  of  the  24th  of  February,  1801,  the 

question  at  issue  is  that  of  knowing  whether,  according  to  the  laws  of  Venezuela,  the  prin- 
ciples of  the  law  of  nations  and  the  convention  of  the  26th  of  November,  1885,  in  force 

between  the  two  contracting  powers,  the  Venezuelan  Government  is  responsible  for  the 

damages  which  Fabiani  says  to  have  sustained  for  denials  of  justice.  Even  independently 

of  the  intention  of  the  parties  manifested  during  the  negotiations  to  which  the  Franco- 
Venezuelan  Convention  of  1885  gave  rise  it  evidently  appears  from  the  very  text  of  the 

compromise  and  from  the  union  of  the  facts  of  the  case  that  the  respondent  Government  is 

proceeded  against  only  on  account  of  the  nonexecution  by  the  Venezuelan  authorities  of  the 
award  rendered  at  Marseilles  on  the  15th  of  December,  1880,  between  Antonio  Fabiani  on 

the  one  hand  and  B.  and  A.  Roncayolo  on  the  other.  The  claimant  Government  even 

appears  to  acknowledge  that  the  initial  denial  of  justice  is  the  decision  of  the  11th  of  Novem- 
ber, 1881  (rdplique,  p.  2);  and,  as  will  hereinafter  be  seen,  it  is  useless  to  investigate  whether 

one  must  consider  the  decision  of  the  1 1th  of  November,  1881,  rather  than  that  of  the  6th  of 

June,  1882,  as  the  starting  point  of  the  eventual  responsibilities  incurred  in  the  sense  of  the 

compromise. 

He  decides  that  the  act  must  be  considered  a  denial  of  justice  if  it 

be  such  under  the  laws  of  Venezuela,  the  law  of  nations,  or  the  con- 

vention of  the  26th  of  November,  1885.  He  holds  that  the  ̂ 'absolute 

concordance  of  these  juridical  sources ^^  is  not  necessary.  This  is  a 
liberal  construction  and  is  very  favorable  to  the  claimant  Government. 
After  a  careful  study  and  an  assembling  of  the  laws  of  Venezuela, 
which  he  considers  in  point,  and  as  a  result  of  his  study  of  them  he 
holds  that  there  is  no  essential  or  even  notable  difference  between  any 

of  the  three  juridical  sources  and  the  others  on  this  subject.  He  fur- 
ther holds  that  the  convention  of  1885  settles  the  right  of  diplomatic 

intervention  between  the  two  nations;  that — 

in  fact  an  international  act  substituted  on  this  point  a  purely  national  law  (see  Article  X  of 

the  Venezuelan  Constitution  of  1881) ;  and  although  the  compromise  reserves  the  application 
of  the  Venezuelan  laws  it  only  refers  to  such  of  those  laws  as  are  opposable  to  the  claimant 
Government;  now  that  of  1873  was  modified  for  the  French  citizens  in  its  Article  V,  at  least, 

by  a  posterior  convention,  binding  for  the  two  States  that  sign  a  compromise. 

His  study  of  this  branch  of  the  case  leads  him  to  conclude  and  to 

hold  that — 

the  only  definition  which  it  is  possible  to  take  into  consideration  in  the  Venezuelan  law  is  that 

of  articles  282  and  288  of  the  penal  code  of  1873,  which  assimilate  with  the  denial  of  justice 
any  act  of  a  judicial  auMonti/constitutmg  a  refusal  to  execute  a  sentence  rendered  executory, 

an  illegal  delay  in  the  dispatch  of  business,  a  default  to  render  orders  and  sentences  within 
the  terms  established,  an  undue  extension  or  reduction  of  the  t^rms  established  by  the  law  or 

any  delay  in  the  determination  of  a  process.  The  refusals  of  execution,  the  inobservance  of 
peremptory  terms,  and  the  illegal  delays  with  which  the  judges  may  be  reproached  in  the 
exercise  of  their  duties  are  therefore  the  three  orders  of  facts  characterizing  the  denial  of 

justice  in  the  legislation  of  Venezuela. 
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He  then  proceeds  to  consider  and  define  the  meaning  of  the  phrase 

*^ denials  of  justice"  and  in  that  connection  employs  the  language  and 
reaches  the  decision  which  appears  in  a  quotation  taken  from  page  24 
of  his  printed  award,  viz: 

A  direct  definitioD  of  the  denial  of  justice  is  not  given  by  Article  V  of  the  French- Vene- 
zuelan convention.  This  text  points  it  out  only  among  the  causes  for  diplomatic  interven- 

tion, and  one  might  even  believe  that  it  distinguishes  it,  in  a  certain  way,  from  the  other 

causes  of  intervention — delays,  nonexecution  of  a  definitive  sentence,  etc.,  or  that  it  dis- 
tinctly separates  it  from  them.  But  without  any  necessity  for  examining  whether  the 

parties  employed  in  the  compromise  the  expression  "d^n^gation  de  justice"  as  the  exact 
equivalent  of  the  expression  "d6ni  de  justice,"  which  is  generally  adopted  by  legislation, 
jurisprudence,  and  doctrine,  it  is  permitted  to  aflarm  that  Article  V  above  mentioned  fully 

assimilates  with  the  "d6ni  de  justice"  as  to  their  effects,  the  illegal  delays  of  the  proceed- 
ing, the  nonexecution  of  definitive  sentences,  the  flagrant  violations  of  the  law  committed 

under  the  appearance  of  legality.  In  all  these  cases  the  diplomatic  intervention  is  declared 

admissible,  provided  the  question  may  be  any  affair  falling  within  the  "competence  of  the 
civil  or  penal  justice."  The  condition  established  by  the  decree  of  1873,  of  the  exhaustion 
of  the  legal  resources  before  the  courts,  is  not  recalled  in  the  convention  of  1885,  and  it 

would  be  excessive  to  say  that  Article  V  in  fine  of  this  international  act  (*' notwithstanding 

the  compHance  with  all  the  legal  formalities")  refers  to  the  actions  for  responsibility  di- 
rected against  the  guilty  authorities;  these  "legal  formalities"  mean  those  to  the  observa- 

tion of  which  is  subjected  the  performance  of  the  judicial  act  that  may  have  determined 

a  denial  of  justice  or  one  of  the  other  causes  for  the  diplomatic  intervention ;  they  are,  there- 
fore, prior  to  the  denial  of  justice  itself. 

By  reference  to  the  general  principles  of  the  law  of  nations  on  the  denial  of  justice,  i.  e.,  to 

the  rules  common  to  most  legislations  or  taught  by  doctrines,  one  comes  to  decide  the  denial 

of  justice  comprises  not  only  the  refusal  of  a  judicial  authority  to  exercise  its  duties,  and 
especially  to  render  a  decision  on  the  petitions  submitted  to  it,  but  also  the  obstinate  delays 
on  its  part  in  rendering  its  sentences. 

After  citing  numerous  authorities  to  sustain  his  position  the  hon- 
orable arbitrator  proceeds  to  say  further  concerning  this  same  subject- 

matter,  as  found  on  pages  24  and  25,  as  follows: 

In  truth,  the  compromising  powers  appear  to  have  desired  to  give  the  words  "  d^n^ations 

de  justice"  their  widest  extent  {justitia  denegata  vel  protracta)  and  include  therein  all  the 
acts  of  judicial  authorities  implying  a  direct  or  disguised  refusal  to  administer  justice. 

Instead  of  textually  reproducing  the  terms  of  the  convention  of  1885,  they  chose  a  general 

formula  comprismg  within  the  limits  of  said  convention  the  complaints  for  judicial  griev- 
ances of  Fabiani  agamst  Venezuela,  which  complaints,  if  they  are  valid,  have,  partially, 

at  least,  the  extent  of  denials  of  justice,  both  according  to  Article  V  of  this  international 
act  and  according  to  the  Venezuelan  law  and  the  law  of  nations.  It  was,  in  effect,  the 

claims  of  Fabiani,  communicated  to  his  government,  that  must  have  inspired  the  wording 

of  the  compromise,  and  the  duty  of  the  arbitrator  precisely  consists  in  deciding  whether 

Venezuela  ''is  responsible  for  the  damages  which  Fabiani  says  to  have  sustained  for 

denials  of  justice." 
It  is  not  doubtful  that  at  the  time  the  compromise  was  signed  the  claims  of  Fabiani 

tested,  i.  e.,  both  upon  denials  of  justice  sensu  stricto  and  upon  other  facts,  such  as  the 
denials  of  justice  aensu  latOy  indicated  in  the  convention  of  1885. 

In  all  of  these  findings  he  accepts  and  adopts  the  broadest  and  most 
liberal  construction  permissible  under  either  of  the  juridical  sources 
given  him  for  guidance.     In  all  this  his  holdings  are  very  favorable  to 



122  FABTANl   CASE. 

the  claimant  government  and  give   the  controversy  of  Fabiani  its 
widest  possible  application  within  the  terms  of  the  convention. 

On  page  25  the  honorable  arbitrator  discusses,  determines,  and  set- 
tles once  for  all  the  origin  and  the  object  of  the  Fabiani  controversy, 

and  he  bases  his  decision  upon  the  fact  found  by  him  that  the  object 

and  origin  were  acknowledged  by  the  parties — i.  e.,  by  ̂^  France  and 
Venezuela" — to  be  as  held  by  him.     This  is  the  finding  referred  to: 

Thus,  the  object  of  the  controversy  and  its  origin  are  acknowledged  by  the  parties.  It 
was  on  account  of  the  refusal  of  the  execution  of  the  award  of  the  15th  of  December,  1880, 

which  Fabiani  possessed  against  the  two  debtors  domiciled  in  Venezuela,  or  on  account  of 

the  default  of  execution  owing  to  the  admission  of  illegal  means,  that  France  took  the  inter- 
ests of  her  native  into  her  hands.  The  Venezuelan  Government  contests  the  right  of  its 

adversary  to  proceed  against  it  for  responsibility,  not  because  it  did  not  regard  the  judicial 

facts  alleged  by  Fabiani,  if  they  were  true,  as  implying  denials  of  justice,  but  because  it 
sees  the  absence  of  denials  of  justice  in  the  inaccuracv  of  these  facts  or  in  the  desertion  of 

the  proceeding  before  the  exhaustion  of  the  legal  resources.  The  parties,  supporting  them- 
selves in  the  treaty  of  arbitration  on  the  convention  of  1885,  have  considered,  although 

they  only  spoke,  in  the  protocol,  of  "denials  of  justice,"  that  the  arbitrator  could  reserve 

as  elements  of  the  suit  the  facts  falling  within  the  scope  of  the  above-mentioned  convention" 
and  constituting  denials  of  justice  both  according  to  the  Venezuelan  law  and  to  the  law 

of  nations.  In  the  judgment  of  the  parties  concerned,  therefore,  and  according  to  the 

applicable  texts,  "denials  of  justice,"  in  the  sense  of  the  protocol,  mean  all  the  direct 
or  disguised  refusals  to  judge,  all  illegal  delays  in  the  proceedings  and  nonexecutions  of 

definitive  sentences,  provided  the  facts  concern  affairs  of  the  civil  or  penal  justice,  are  imput- 
able to  judicial  authorities  of  Venezuela,  and  have  taken  place  in  spite  of  the  compliance 

with  all  the  legal  formalities  by  the  prejudiced  party. 

On  page  26  of  his  award,  he  says : 

It  is  certainly  the  denials  of  justice,  committed  in  the  course  of  the  proceeding  for  the 

execution  of  the  award  of  the  15th  of  December,  1880,  and  the  eventual  appreciation  of 
their  pecuniary  consequences  that  form  the  object  of  the  present  litigation. 

The  claimant  contended  before  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne 

that  Fabiani  might  go  back  of  the  award  of  December  15,  1880,  to 
marshal  his  demands  for  indemnity,  because,  it  was  urged,  he  signed 
the  compromise  at  Caracas  under  the  dominion  of  force  majeure  and 
that  it  did  not  cover  the  prior  denials  of  justice.  But  the  honorable 
arbitrator  considers  this  contention  ill  founded,  holding,  on  page  26  of 

his  award,  that — 
Fabiani,  who  could  have  had  the  compromise  annulled  by  the  French  courts,  preferred 

to  conserve  the  future  of  his  commerce  in  Venezuela  by  exhausting  all  means  of  conciliation. 

Fabiani  contented  himself  with  the  state  of  things  created  by  the  acceptance  of  the  arbitrator's 
jurisdiction,  and,  besides,  from  that  moment,  his  judicial  efforts  in  Venezuela  only  tended 
to  the  execution  of  the  judgment  of  the  15th  of  December,  1880.  The  motives  drawn  from 

the  VIS  major,  which  would  have  affected  the  compromise  of  1880,  and  would  remove  further 

back  the  starting  point  of  the  denials  of  justice  compnsed  in  the  present  instance,  can  ndt 
be  taken,  therefore,  into  consideration.  Denials  of  justice,  in  virtue  of  which  it  would  be 

possible  to  proceed  against  Venezuela  for  responsibility  before  the  arbitrator,  can  not  have 
taken  place  before  the  introduction  of  the  proceeding  for  the  execution  of  the  award  of  the 

15th  of  December,  1880,  or  before  the  7th  of  June,  1881,  the  date  of  the  petition  for  exe- 
qiiatur,  entered  before  the  high  federal  court. 
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Similarly,  the  honorable  arbitrator  proceeds  to  dispose  of  the  con- 
tention that  there  were  denials  of  justice  in  reference  to  the  award  of 

December  15,  1880,  and  its  execution  from,  substantially,  June  18, 
1881,  and  determines,  after  all,  from  the  proper  union  of  the  facts  and 
law,  that  there  were  no  denials  of  justice  until  after  June  6,  1882,  the 
day  on  which  such  award  was  made  executory  in  Venezuela  by  the 
decision  of  the  high  federal  court  of  that  country. 

In  regard  to  this  he  says : 

The  series  of  denials  of  justice  begins  almost  from  the  very  moment  Fabiani  endeavored 
to  obtain  at  Maracaibo  the  execution  of  the  award  provided  thenceforward  by  an  order  of 

exequatwr  in  due  form. 

Notwithstanding  the  terms  of  the  convention  of  February  24, 1891, 
wherein  and  whereby  the  high  contracting  parties  invoked  as  an  aid 
to  the  arbitrator  the  provisions  of  the  convention  then  in  force 
between  them,  the  claimant  Government  raised  before  the  honorable 
arbitrator  of  Berne  the  claim  that  Article  V  of  said  convention  was  not 

applicable  to  the  Fabiani  controversy,  because  all  of  his  claims  for 
indemnity  had  arisen  before  November  26,  1885,  and  that  to  apply  it 
in  such  a  case  would  be  to  give  it  retroactive  effect,  which  is  contrary 

to  fundamental  principles  in  the  administration  of  justice.  This  con- 
tention the  honorable  arbitrator  held  to  be  ineffective  for  the  reasons 

stated  by  him  on  pages  23  and  24  of  his  award,  viz : 

But  in  the  present  instance  it  is  not  Fabiani  personally  who  is  a  party  in  the  issue.  The 

arbitration  was  concluded  not  between  him,  but  between  the  French  Republic  and  Vene- 
zuela. The  claimant  state  is  bound  by  the  above-mentioned  international  act  for  all  the 

international  interventions  to  come.  For  the  rest,  it  is  expressly  acknowledged  that  the 

convention  is  applicable  to  the  present  contestation  by  the  compromise  of  the  24th  of 

]^ebruary ,  1891 ;  it  is  a  law  as  between  the  two  countries. 

The  nonresponsibility  of  Venezuela,  as  established  by  the  honorable 
arbitrator  of  Berne,  so  far  as  and  to  the  extent  which  he  foimd  such 
nonresponsibility,  is  clearly  set  forth  by  him  on  pages  25  and  26  of  his 
award,  viz: 

In  return  Venezuela  does  not  incur  any  responsibility,  according  to  the  compromise, 
on  account  of  facts  strange  to  the  judicial  authorities  of  the  respondent  State.  The  claims 

that  the  petition  bases  on  "/aite  du  prince/'  which  are  either  changes  of  legislation  or 
arbitrary  acts  of  the  executive  power,  are  absolutely  subtracted  from  the  decision  of  the 
arbitrator,  who  eliminates  from  the  procedure  all  the  allegations  and  means  of  proof  relating 

thereto,  as  long  as  he  can  not  reserve  them  to  establish  other  concluding  and  connected 
facts  relating  to  the  denials  of  justice. 

In  another  place,  on  page  26,  after  having  set  the  earliest  limit  when 
denials  of  justice  could  have  place  before  him,  as  against  the  respond- 

ent Government,  be  says: 

The  arbitrator  has  not,  therefore,  admitted,  besides  the  ̂' fails  du  prince,' '  all  of  the  facts 
strange  to  the  nonexecution  and  to  the  effects  of  nonexecution  of  the  sentence  above 
referred  to,  to  be  proved. 
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Having  determined  in  his  award  in  what  particulars  denials  of  jus- 
tice consisted,  and  when  they  began,  and  how  they  arose,  he  proceeds 

to  fix  the  measure  of  responsibility  attaching  to  Venezuela  therefor; 
and  then  to  measure  and  assess  the  damages  which  had  occurred 
because  of  such  denials  of  justice. 

On  the  30th  day  of  December,  1896,  the  honorable  arbitrator  of 
Berne  renders  his  award  and  delivers  the  same  in  writing,  with  his 
reasons  therefor,  to  the  respective  representatives  of  the  claimant  and 

the  respondent  Governments. 

Following  the  award  and  its  publication,  the  respondent  Govern- 
ment entered  upon  the  discharge  of  the  requirements  thereof  and  has 

fully  complied  therewith.  The  amounts  so  awarded  and  so  paid  have 
been  accepted  by  M.  Fabiani  under  the  implied  consent  and  approval 
of  his  government.  No  evidence  is  adduced,  no  suggestion  is  made, 
that,  following  the  award,  the  Government  of  France,  on  its  part,  has 
filed  with  the  Government  of  Venezuela  any  dissent  to  or  protest 
against  the  decision  of  the  honorable  arbitrator,  or  has  in  any  manner 
addressed  itself  to  the  respondent  Government  to  ask  a  rehearing,  a 
further  hearing,  or  the  opening  of  said  cause  in  whole  or  in  any  part,  or 
to  manifest  the  unacceptability  of  the  award  as  made  or  to  express  or 
to  intimate  any  dissatisfaction  therewith,  or  any  purpose  or  desire  on 

its  part  to  have  the  Fabiani  controversy  regarded  by  the  two  govern- 
ments as  a  pending  and  open  question  in  any  particular  or  in  any  part. 

In  all  respects,  and  in  every  respect,  so  far  as  appeared  before  the 

umpire,  there  has  been  apparent  assent  to,  acceptance  of,  and  acquies- 
cence in  the  award  on  the  part  of  the  Government  of  France,  and,  on 

its  part,  an  apparent  treatment  of  the  Fabiani  incident  and  contro- 
versy as  satisfactorily,  finally,  and  conclusively  closed.  Such,  also, 

has  appeared  to  be  the  position  of  the  Government  of  Venezuela  in 
relation  thereto.  Neither  does  it  appear  before  the  umpire  that 
Fabiani,  prior  to  the  sitting  of  the  honorable  commission  at  Caracas, 

had  evidenced  to  the  Government  of  Venezuela  through  his  own  Gov- 
ernment or  otherwise,  that  he  regarded  the  decision  at  Berne  as  set- 

ting at  rest  a  part  only  of  his  claim  or  that  he  asked  of  his  Government 
or  expected  of  his  Government  further  intervention  on  his  behalf  in 
reference  to  the  same.  Nothing  appears  in  the  case  to  indicate  that 
the  Fabiani  controversy  has  been  treated  or  considered  diplomatically 
between  the  two  governments,  as  to  any  phase  thereof,  since  the  award 
at  Berne,  nor  that  the  same  was  referred  to  as  such  when  the  conven- 

tion of  February  19,  1902,  was  in  progress  or  under  consideration;  and 
the  umpire  understands  the  claim  to  be  that  it  is  within  the  terms  of 
that  convention  solely  because,  and  only  because,  of  the  unrestricted 
character  of  those  terms;  because,  and  only  because,  this  commission  is 

said  to  be  open  to  the  claims  of  Frenchmen,  without  having  any  words 
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of  definition  or  restriction  other  than  the  nationality  of  the  claimant 
and  the  time  of  its  origin. 

The  umpire  is  compelled  respectfully  to  dissent  from  the  proposition 
made  by  Fabiani  that  such  parts  of  his  claims  as  were  not  allowed  by 

the  honorable  arbitrator  were  not  allowed  through  the  lack  of  compe- 
tency to  dispose  of  them  through  lack  of  jurisdiction  over  them.  It  is 

the  opinion  of  the  umpire  that  the  honorable  arbitrator  had  complete 
and  absolute  dominion  over  the  whole  Fabiani  controversy;  that  it 
was  given  him  by  the  purposed  and  carefully  considered  concordant 
action  of  the  two  Governments  by  their  compromise  of  February  24, 
1891,  in  order  that  a  matter  which  for  some  years  had  vexed  and 
troubled  them  might  thereby  attain  eternal  rest  and  be  no  longer  a 
disturbing  element,  a  serious  cause  of  dissension  between  them. 

Concerning  this  the  honorable  commissioner  for  France  in  his  supple- 

mentary opinion  has  said:* 
In  the  first  place  Doctor  Padl  supports  himself  upon  the  text  of  the  convention  of  the 

24th  of  February,  1891,  which  is  the  agreement  of  arbitration,  and  upon  the  exchange  of 

diplomatic  correspondence  which  has  preceded  this,  in  order  to  demonstrate  that  the  inten- 
tion of  the  two  Governments  was  really  to  determine  definitely  all  the  claims  of  M.  Fabiani 

against  Venezuela.  I  do  not  deny  this.  I  even  add  that  the  French  Government,  faithful 

to  the  spirit  which  had  inspired  the  negotiations,  did  not  cease  to  maintain  this  interpreta- 
tion of  the  agreement  in  the  course  of  the  discussions  which  were  engaged  in  before  the  Swiss 

arbitrator.  It  was,  to  the  contrary,  the  representatives  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  at 

Berne  who,  hoping  to  find  in  the  terms  of  the  convention  unfortunately  **  ambiguous,"  the 
possibility  for  Venezuela  of  eluding  a  part  of  her  responsibilities,  combated  this  broad  inter- 

pretation in  several  instances  and  substituted  for  it  a  restrictive  interpretation. 

There  is,  then,  no  disagreement  between  the  parties  that  the  purpose 

of  the  compromise  of  February  24,  1891,  was  to  settle  the  whole  mat- 
ter contained  in  the  Fabiani  controversy.  The  contention  before  the 

umpire  rests  upon  a  different  basis.  The  respondent  Government 
claims  that  not  only  was  the  purpose  of  the  compromise  as  stated,  but 
also  that  this  purpose  was  effected  and  the  Fabiani  incident  closed. 

Fabiani  claims  that  because  of  the  holding  of  the  honorable  arbi- 

trator of  Berne  that  denials  of  justice  as  such  applied  to  matters  judi- 
cial; that  in  the  case  before  him  denials  of  justice  were  only  found  in 

the  nonexecution  of  the  sentence  of  Marseilles;  that  they  began  after 

June  6,  1882;  that  there  was  no  recourse  by  Fabiani  to  judicial  tribu- 
nals other  than  those  connected  with  this  sentence,  and  hence  no 

other  opportunity  for  denials  of  justice;  that  such  ̂ 'faits  du  prince^^ 
as  bore  so  immediately  or  approximately  upon  the  execution  of  said 

sentence  as  to  have  an  appreciable  effect  thereon,  were  the  only  *  ^ fails 
du  prince'^  to  be  considered  under  the  compromise;  that  because  of 
these  decisions  the  purpose  entertained  by  the  two  Governments  at 
the  time  of  their  convention  of  February  24,  1891,  to  thereby  settle 

through  the  arbitration  there  provided  for- all  of  the  Fabiani  contro- 

oPage  103. 



126  FABIANI    CASE. 

versy  was  frustrated,  and  that  the  honorable  arbitrator,  in  effect,  at 

least,  eliminated  and  subtracted  all  else  as  not  being  within  his  com- 
petency imder  the  protocol,  and  thereby  especially  reserved  all  these 

for  the  use  of  Fabiani  under  some  later  conventioil,  the  terms  of  which 
should  be  more  liberal. 

To  the  contrary,  the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  holds 
the  opinion  that  in  making  the  decisions  referred  to  the  honorable 

arbitrator  proceeded  strictly  in  accordance  with  the  terms  of  the  pro- 
tocol, which,  while  submitting  all  the  claims  of  Fabiani  to  his  conclu- 

sive and  final  determination,  required  and  permitted  an  award  against 
the  Government  of  Venezuela  for  such  of  those  claims  only  as  resulted 
from  or  grew  out  of  the  denials  of  justice,  and  for  such  of  these  only  as 
found  responsibility  in  such  Government.  He  alleges  as  truth  that 
the  claimant  Government  before  the  Swiss  arbitrator  pressed  with 

vigor  and  to  the  end  that  every  item  presented  in  Fabiani's  tables  of 
claims  was  properly  classed  as  a  denial  of  justice  and  was  a  just 
demand  against  the  respondent  Government  under  the  terms  of  the 
protocol,  and  in  general  that  the  reparation  to  be  made  by  the 

responding  Government  should  be  found  by  the  arbitrator  to  com- 

prise— 
all  the  denials  of  justice,  whether  they  were  imputable  to  the  judicial  authorities  or  to 
the  administrative  authorities  of  Venezuela  (these  latter  naturally  including  the  arbitrary 

acts  of  fails  du  'prince  attributable  to  the  Federal  executive),  and  all  the  damages  which 
Fabiani  says  to  have  suffered  through  the  fault  of  the  public  powers  of  Venezuela, 

and  strenuously  urges  upon  the  arbitrator  that  he  was  given  ̂ 'pleni- 
tude of  jurisdiction  '^  to  determine  all  of  these  questions.  He  also  admits 

as  truth  that  the  responding  Government,  while  insisting  that  the 
whole  controversy  of  Fabiani  was  before  the  arbitrator  for  his  final 

disposition  and  while  denying  emphatically  that  there  had  been  '*any 
denial  of  justice  or  any  cause  of  resort  to  diplomatic  intervention,'^ 
asserts  affirmatively  that  denials  of  justice  are  limited  to  judicial  pro- 

ceedings and  do  not  at  all  include  administrative,  legislative,  or  execu- 
tive acts. 

It  is  thus  the  two  Governments  clash;  it  is  thus  they  contend  before 
the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne.  But  it  is  not  over  the  question  of 
jurisdiction;  it  is  not  over  the  question  of  his  competency.  Both 
admit  his  jurisdiction;  both  adhere  to  his  competency.  The  contest 
is,  first,  over  the  right  of  the  claimant  Government  to  demand  any  sum 
in  damages  of  the  respondent  Government  on  behalf  of  Fabiani  under 

the  protocol  which  involved  two  inquiries — first,  the  inclusiveness  of 

the  term  '^denial  of  justice^'  chosen  concordantly  to  define  the  claims 
which  are  in  dispute;  second,  the  responsibility  of  the  respondent 
Government.  When  this  question  of  right  was  decided  then  ̂ the 
measure  of  damages  came  to  be  allowed,  if  any. 
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When  in  the  course  of  his  decision  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne 

sets  aside  a  claim  of  Fabiani  or  eliminates  it,  it  is  because  in  principle 
and  in  law  the  arbitrator  has  first  disallowed  it  and  adjudged  against 
it,  through  his  sovereign  power  to  decide  the  basic  question  submitted 
to  him  and  over  which  the  contest  has  been  made.  When  he  decides 

this  basic  question  he  settles  the  fate  of  and  effectually  determines  a 
large  part  of  the  claims  of  Fabiani.  He  did  not  extract  them  from 

the  case,  he  did  not  subtract  them;  he  decided  against  them  and  dis- 
posed of  them  adversely,  not  in  detail,  but  as  not  beingclaims  for  which, 

in  principle,  Venezuela  was  responsible  under  the  terms  of  the  pro- 
tocol. He  eliminated  them  from  his  consideration  only  when  he 

reached  the  question  of  damages.  Up  to  that  point  they  had  been 
before  him  and  had  been  passed  upon  by  him.  Examination  of  the 

arbitrator's  award  shows  that  nothing  escaped  his  attention,  that 
everything  submitted  was  carefully  considered  and  adjudged.  He 
allowed  some  things  and  disallowed  others,  over  all  of  which  he  had 
rightful  and  exclusive  dominion  and  sovereignty.  He  did  just  what 
Fabiani  assured  him  he  ought  to  do,  and  to  the  doing  of  which  Fabiani, 

in  advance  of  the  arbitrator's  action,  bowed  in  assent. 
That  he  may  do  Fabiani  no  injustice  by  this  statement,  the  umpire 

will  present  a  few  excerpts  from  the  replique  of  Fabiani  before  the 
honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne,  and  later  from  his  expos6  before  the 
same  person,  and  first  from  page  16  of  his  replique: 

In  our  opinion  the  question  can  be  considered  under  another  aspect,  that  of  the  terms 

of  the  protocol — general  terms  which  authorize  the  arbitrator  to  retain  all  denials  of 
justice  duly  established,  and  which  permit  Fabiani  to  present  all  pecuniary  claims  relative 
to  damages  sustained  for  denial  of  justice. 

If  Fabiani  formulates  claims  which  have  another  cause  than  the  denial  of  justice  or  the 

imputahility  of  which  to  the  denial  of  justice  should  not  appear  certain,  the  arbitrator  will 

reject  them,  purely  and  simply  as  proceeding  from  the  terms  of  the  protocol, the  same  as  if  he 
recognizes  the  responsibility  of  Venezuela  he  will  retain  in  the  proportions  which  his  con- 

science shall  dictate  to  him,  all  the  damages  which  he  shall  judge  to  be  a  direct  and  imme- 
diate result  of  infractions  committed  by  Venezuela. 

It  will  be  permitted  us  to  add  that  even  if  the  protocol,  instead^ of  being  conceived  in 

general  terms,  had  given  the  full  detail  of  all  the  litigious  points,  it  would  not  be  necessary  to 
conclude  from  it  that  the  whole  motive  of  the  claim  not  expressly  enumerated  in  the  com- 

promise ought  to  have  l^>ecn  brushed  aside  without  discussion  as  being  found  outside  the 
terms  of  the  protocol. 

If  it  is  not  a  question  of  another  difference,  or  of  a  difference  arising  posteriorly  between 

the  parties;  if  the  new  motives  of  claim  although  they  may  not  be  expressly  specified  in  the 
protocol,  find  themselves,  nevertheless,  virtually  included  in  it,  whether  as  an  integral 
part  of  the  litigious  points  designated,  or,  as  a  consequence,  if  some  of  these  motives  of 

demand  are  found  in  the  protocol;  if  the  demand  is  no  other  than  that  which  the  pro- 
tocol has  foreseen  and  has  had  for  a  purpose  to  settle,  and,  finally,  if  the  motives  which 

one  would  wish  to  have  set  aside  should  later  give  place  to  the  same  debates  as  the  motives 

set  forth  in  the  protocol,  the  arbitrator  can  appreciate  the  merit  of  these  new  motives 
and  include  them  in  his  decision. 
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On  page  615  of  Fabiani's  expos6  he  says: 
In  this  situation  if  the  arbitrator,  after  having  examined  and  analyzed  our  different  motives 

of  claims,  were  led  to  recognize  that  all  these  motives  are  justified  and  that  we  have  esti- 
mated our  damages  without  any  exaggeration,  Venezuela  would  be  able  to  felicitate  herself 

upon  her  insistency  in  causing  a  mode  of  payment  hardly  equitable  to  be  accepted,  etc. 

And  if  it  should  be  admitted  that  the  judge,  proceeding  either  by  way  of  elimination  or  by 

way  of  reduction,  considers  that  there  is  reason  to  restrain  the  measure  of  our  damages  esti- 
mated by  him  upon  the  usual  but  converted  monetary  basis,  etc. 

On  pages  616  and  617  of  his  expos6  Fabiani  says  in  part: 

And  if  he  considered  it  equitable  to  make  a  reduction  in  any  of  our  claims  or  if  he  considers 

that  certain  of  them  ought  to  belaid  aside,  he  will  find  himself,  in  spite  of  the  taking  into  con- 
sideration the  course  of  the  bonds  in  the  presence  of  a  certain  lesion,  unless  he  is  led  to  dimin- 

ish in  notable  proportions  the  total  amount  of  our  claims. 

On  page  622  of  his  expos6  Fabiani  says  in  part : 

The  compromise  confers  upon  him  purely  and  simply  the  mission  of  fixing  the  amount  of 
the  indemnity  if  he  considers  Venezuela  responsible.  The  arbitrator  acts  in  the  plenitude  of 

his  independence,  having  no  other  guide  than  his  intelligence  and  his  love  for  justice.  He 

asks  himself  if  such  a  prejudice  or  such  a  damage  has  been  the  direct  and  necessary  conse- 
quence of  the  infractions  which  have  engaged  the  responsibility  of  the  defendant  party. 

On  page  624  of  his  expos6  Fabiani  says: 

It  may  be,  however,  that  the  study  of  our  affair  and  the  detailed  examination  of  the  nume- 
rous items  of  our  claims  suggest  to  the  arbitrator  either  the  opinion  that  some  of  our  claims 

have  no  direct  and  immediate  connection  with  the  infractions  set  forth  or  the  opinion  that  cer- 
tain prejudices  declared  by  us  ought  to  be  reduced  to  a  lower  figure.  That  is  the  right  of 

the  arbitrator,  a  right  whose  exercise  is  subordinate  only  to  the  inspirations  of  his  con- 
science. We  have  not  to  prejudge  his  decision.  We  know  that  it  will  be  conformable  to 

justice  and  equity,  but  we  are  convinced  that  if  some  of  our  demands  appear  to  him  subject 

to  a  reduction  the  arbitrator,  taking  account  both  of  the  manner  of  payment  and  of  the  cir- 
cumstances of  the  case,  will  accord  to  us  by  title  of  supplement  of  indemnity  exemplary 

Fabiani  urges  the  nonretroactivity  of  the  treaty  of  1885  through 
many  pages  of  his  expos6  and  claims  that  this  date  is  thirty  days  after 
the  last  of  the  acts  of  violence  upon  which  his  claims  rest.  On  page 
522  of  his  expos6  he  declares  that  Article  V  of  the  convention  of  1885 
governs  the  future  only;  that  Article  III  of  the  same  convention  is 
the  one  governing  the  past.  In  the  course  of  this  discussion  Fabiani 

is  appreciative  of  the  magnitude  and  persistency  with  which  Vene- 
zuela had  opposed  his  claim,  and  of  the  possibility  that  if  he  had 

pressed  his  claim  through  the  treaty  of  1885  it  might  have  been  an 
insurmountable  obstacle  to  the  reestablishment  of  the  good  relations 
between  the  two  countries  and  that  therefore  no  treaty  could  have 
been  consummated. 

On  page  526  of  his  expos6  he  begins  a  discussion  of  his  claims  in  ref- 
erence to  the  mixed  commission  which  was  provided  for  by  the  con- 

vention of  November  26,  1885,  to  determine  the  liability  of  Venezuela 

for  acts  posterior  to  1867-68  and  anterior  to  the  date  of  the  conven- 
tion, and  in  this  communication  he  uses  the  following  language: 
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Our  chiim  haying  reference  to  acts  posterior  to  1867-68  and  anterior  to  November  26, 
1885,  we  evidently  had  the  right  to  appear  before  the  mixed  commission.  Why  did  we  not 

do  so?  And,  moreover,  why  did  not  the  Venezuelan  Government  in  the  presence  of  the 

intervention  of  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  the  French  Republic  itself  demand  the  send- 
ing to  this  mixed  commission,  which  did  not  begin  to  do  business  until  two  years  after? 

Let  us  examine  the  first  and  latter  point.  Venezuela,  represented  by  Guzman  Blanco 

opposed  an  absolute  non  possumus.  It  denied  formally  the  possibility  of  a  claim  on  our 
part,  and  it  contested  even  the  existence  of  our  right,  pushed  it  aside  without  examinaticn 
and  with  the  most  remarkable  bad  faith.  The  mixed  commission,  then,  would  not  have 

been  able  to  occupy  itself  with  our  affair.  There  is  then  arbitracio,  because  the  discussion 

bears  upon  the  admissibility,  the  extent,  or  the  reality  of  the  damages.  When  the  right  is 
litigable,  and,  above  all,  when  it  is  absolutely  contested,  there  is  arbitrium.  It  is  a  case  of 

arbitration,  properly  called,  or  of  mediation. 
In  the  matter  of  damages  the  mediator  generally  takes  upon  himself  to  give  his  opinion 

upon  the  question  of  right  and  leaves  to  the  mixed  commission  the  care  of  deciding  upon  the 
extent  of  damage.  The  mission  of  the  arbitrator  is  determined  by  the  protocol,  and 

more  often  he  is  charged  with  the  pronouncing  upon  the  right  and  upon  the  act.  We  do 

not  suppose  that  these  rules  can  be  seriously  contested. 

In  discussing  on  page  529  of  his  expos6  the  convention  of  November 
26,  1885,  and  in  insisting  upon  the  nonretroactivity  of  the  terms  of 
Article  V,  he  says : 

If,  finally,  the  words  and  the  intention  did  not  lend  to  each  other  a  mutual  assistance  for 
protesting  against  the  idea  of  retroactivity,  one  would  find  himself  in  a  strange  situation. 

On  the  one  hand  a  Government  which  stipulates  'n  good  faith  and  which  for  causes  which  are 
useless  to  refer  to  ignores  that,  during  the  rupture  of  international  relations  one  of  its  nation- 

als has  been  on  a  large  scale  the  unfortunate  victim  of  the  hostility  of  the  public  powers  of 

Venezuela,  the  Turk's  head  of  an  incensed  chief  of  state,  *  *  *  is  it  necessary  to  recall 
that  mental  reservations  jsught  to  be  energetically  laid  aside?  In  that  which  concerns  us 
we  have  suffered  too  much  in  Venezuela  not  to  protest  against  this  attempt  to  make  an 

attack  upon  the  principle  of  the  nonretroactivity  of  the  laws.  We  hold  essentially  to  prove 
to  Mr.  Blanco  that  his  last  blow  has  not  succeeded.  He  has  failed  in  discernment  when  he 

has  not  considered  the  convention  of  November  26,  1885,  as  his  supreme  work,  destined  to 

serve  his  anger  and  to  create  for  us  new  difficulties.  The  conscientious  study  of  our  affair 

leaves  no  doubt  upon  the  intention;  *  *  *  personal  interest  made  him  lose  all  interest 
in  truth  and  justice.  His  diplomatic  instrument  came  thirty  days  too  late.  And,  besides, 

even  had  he  signed  it  earlier  our  sad  and  venal  enemy  would  not  have  been  able  to  get  any 
profit  out  of  it  Our  affair  entered  into  all  the  cases  reserved,  and  there  is  not  a  single  one 
of  our  grievances  which  is  outside  the  provision  of  Article  V,  as  one  may  be  convinced  by  the 

study  of  our  expose  of  facts. 

On  page  559  Fabiani  says: 

We  believe  that  we  have  sufficiently  demonstrated  in  our  general  expose  that  whether  by 

*^ fails  du  prince^*  or  by  insurmountable  obstacles  opposed  by  the  judges  and  the  public 
power  to  the  execution  of  our  sentences  or  by  the  successive  denials  of  justice  or  by  the 
numerous  acts  contrary  to  the  right  of  nations,  the  responsibility  of  Venezuela  finds  itself 

directly  engaged.  There  can  be  no  divergences  upon  the  extent  of  the  power  of  the  arbi- 
trator in  respect  to  all  that  which  has  reference  to  the  appreciation  of  the  circumstances  and 

of  the  facts  which  ought  to  determine  his  conviction  in  favor  of  one  or  the  other  party.  In 
that  which  concerns  us  we  recognize  this  sovereign  faculty,  submitting  ourselves  without 
mental  reservations  to  the  intelligence,  the  prudence,  and  the  conscience  of  our  judge.  We 

have  full  faith  in  the  justice  of  our  cause,  in  the  reality  and  exactness  of  the  facts  which  we 
have  maintained,  but  we  shall  hold  for  true  and  just  that  which  the  judge  shall  recognize  as 

true  and  just. 

S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   9 
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We  leave,  then,  to  the  arbitrator  to  consider  the  facts  which  are  submitted  to  him,  accord- 
ing to  the  light  of  reason  and  justice,  aided  by  the  knowledge  of  the  right  and  general 

duties  of  administration  which  his  long  practice  in  public  or  international  affairs  has  given 
him.  He  knows  that  in  virtue  of  principles  admitted  by  doctrine  and  jurisprudence  of  all 

people  bn  must  in  such  a  matter  move  in  the  plenitude  of  the  independence  of  the  judge  who 
conforms  only  to  his  conscience. 

In  another  part  he  says: 

This  part  of  our  work  being  exclusively  reserved  for  juridical  development  we  are  forbid- 
den from  entering  into  a  discussion  or  even  an  indication  of  figures.  We  place  the  principles; 

if  the  arbitrator  accepts  them  his  experience  and  his  proud  intelligence  in  affairs  will  suggest 

to  him  the  application  which  he  ought  to  make  to  the  different  points  of  our  pecuniary  claim. 

On  page  575  of  his  expos6  Fabiani  says: 

It  will  belong  to  the  arbitrator  to  extend  his  judgment  upon  what  shall  appear  to  him 

legitimate  or  illegitimate,  just  or  excessive,  in  the  claims  which  we  produce.  *  *  *  His 
intelligence,  his  prudence,  his  conscience  will  be  the  most  sure  guide  for  him,  a  guide  formally 

provided  for  and  authorized  by  the  legislation  of  the  two  countries. 
We  know  well  that  the  party  of  which  we  demand  the  damages  and  interest  will  endeavor 

to  diminish  the  amount  of  them.  We  see  no  inconvenience  in  accepting  the  discussion.  We 

are,  on  the  contrary,  pursuaded  that  in  going  to  the  depths  of  things  we  shall  win  ground 
instead  of  losing  it.  The  essential  thing  was  to  localize  this  discussion,  to  avoid  theoretical 
controversies  on  the  kind  of  damage,  to  prescribe  in  this  affair  at  the  beginning  a  distinction 

between  direct  and  indirect  damages,  and  to  constrain  the  adverse  party  to  confine  itself 

exclusively  to  proving  the  exaggeration  of  our  demand.  It  does  not  enter  into  our  intention 
to  examine  here  the  different  points  of  our  claim.  We  have  made  in  this  regard  a  separate . 

work,  which  will  come  before  the  eyes  of  the  arbitrator.  No  figures  ought  to  disturb  a  dis- 
cussion of  right  already  too  long  and  which  we  are  in  haste  to  terminate.  It  is  evident  that 

if  the  responsibility  of  Venezuela  he  retained  no  doubt  could  be  raised  as  to  the  absolute  legiti- 
macy of  our  claims  in  that  which  concerns  the  liquidation  of  our-sentences  in  the  sums  of 

which  the  instance  formed  before  the  French  tribunals  ought  to  assure  the  recovery.  *  *  * 
The  principle  of  the  responsibility  once  admitted  it  will  belong  to  the  arbitrator  to  scrutinize, 
to  analyze  our  claims  upon  these  three  points  and  to  retain  only  the  losses  or  the  damages 
which  shall  appear  to  be  justified. 

On  page  794  of  his  expos6  Fabiani  says : 

The  arbitrator  has  the  right  of  sovereign  appreciation.  We  do  not  suppose  that  this  prin- 
ciple can  be  contested.  Without  doubt  an  impartial  and  intelligent  judge  admits  only  that 

which  appears  to  him  legitimate;  he  rejects  the  damages  which  in  his  opinion  have  not  a 
direct  lien  with  the  incriminating  facts. 

The  intervention  of  France  on  behalf  of  Fabiani  began  not  long  after 

the  treaty  of  1885,  and  the  first  reference  which  is  of  importance,  per- 
haps, contains  the  following  statement  by  the  French  Government  in 

regard  to  its  claims  for  indemnification  on  account  of  Fabiani,  addressed 
by  the  French  legation  in  Caracas  to  the  Venezuelan  Government,  on 

August  3,  1887: 

It  is  the  opinion  of  the  French  Government  that  the  indemnity  must  embrace,  at  least 

in  the  first  place,  the  amount  of  the  sum,  both  principal  and  mterest,  the  collection  of  which 
would  have  insured  the  execution  of  the  .sentence  in  due  form  and  proper  time,  besides  the 

restitutions  ordered  by  the  judges,  amountmg  to  altout  1 ,  300,000  francs,  and,  in  the  second 
place,  damages  and  mterest,  the  amount  of  which  is  to  be  discussed,  for  the  wrongs  done 
to  Fabiani  in  his  credit  and  in  his  business. 
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As  reffords  his  oth<ir  pretensionSj  a  searching  investigation  and  discussion  should  determine 

how  far  they  are  well  founded. 

Perhaps  the  first  expli:it  reference  thereto  on  the  part  of  Venezuela 
is  found  in  the  letter  of  Gen.  Guzman  Blanco  to  his  Government,  of 
date  November  14,  1889,  in  which,  after  referring  to  other  matters 
with  which  he  had  been  employed  in  his  office  as  plenipotentiary, 
he  says : 

In  that  which  has  reference  to  the  Fahiani  claim,  with  which  the  Government  has 

charged  me  recently,  I  have  been  able  to  do  nothing  to  the  day  of  my  resignation,  because 
I  had  not  yet  received  the  information  which  is  necessary  to  the  defense  of  our  rights.  The 

point  is  so  grave  that  it  implies  almost  the  annulment  of  the  treaty  of  1885.  The  French 
Groverament  demands  that  Fabiani  be  indemnified  for  something  which  remains  due  to 

him  from  his  father-in-law,  Roncayolo,  in  the  liquidation  of  personal  affairs  in  which  they 
were  associated.  Having  opened  thus  the  breach  in  the  treaty,  we  shall  lose  all  the  progress 
which  we  have  made  with  it. 

By  his  statement  that  the  point  is  so  grave  that  it  almost  implies 
the  annulment  of  the  treaty  of  1885,  and  by  the  further  statement 

that— 
a  breach  being  thus  opened  in  the  treaty,  we  shall  lose  all  the  prepress  which  we  have  made 

with  it — 

it  is  quite  evident  that  the  claims  presented  covered  more  than 
denials  of  justice  as  understood  by  him,  because  these  were  recognized 
in  the  treaty  referred  to. 

'  Reference  to  this  claim  next  appears  in  the  correspondence  between 
the  two  Governments,  beginning  December  31,  1889,  and  continuing 
to  August  14,  1890,  which  is  set  out  in.  the  additional  memorandum 
of  the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela,  accompanying  his 
opinion  to  the  umpire,  from  which  it  is  learned  that  the  Government 

of  France  had  particular  interest  to  settle  the  claim;  that — 
my  Government  would  see,  in  the  manifestation  of  more  favorable  dispositions  as  regard 
said  claimj  the  clearest  evidence  of  the  desire  of  the  eminent  President  of  the  Republic  of 
Venezuela  and  of  yourself  to  establish  between  the  two  countries  a  cordiality  toward 

which  all  my  efforts  are  bent. 

This  is  from  a  communication  from  His  Excellency,  Mr.  Blanchard 

de  Farjes,  minister  of  France  in  Caracas,  to  Mr.  P.  Cassanova,  min- 
ister of  foreign  relations  for  Venezuela,  of  date  December  31,  1889. 

It  is  further  learned,  from  a  study  of  the  correspondence  referred  to, 
that  France  proposed  arbitration;  that  Venezuela  declared  to  France 
that  it  rejected  the  Fabiani  claim  Jrom  its  origiuy  but  that  the  President 

was  desirous  of  exercising  all  efforts  in  behalf  of  the  desired  good  har- 
mony between  both  countries,  and  therefore  accepted  the  proposal  to 

arbitrate,  in  principle^  providing  the  umpire  be  one  of  the  Presidents  of 
the  South  American  Republics  and  that  the  question  to  be  decided 

be— 
\t  this  is  the  case  provided  for  in  Article  V  of  the  French- Venezuelan  convention  of  Novem^ 
ber  26, 1885,  and  that,  in  case  Venezuela  should  be  condemned  to  pay  any  indemnific»tioQ, 
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in  view  of  the  legal  proofs  adduced  in  favor  of  the  claimant,  *  ♦  *  g^^jj  indemnity  to 
be  paid  in  3  per  cent  bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt. 

Subsequently  the  President  receded  from  his  requirement  that  the 

arbitrator  be  a  President  of  the  Latin-American  RepubHcs.  France 
asked  that  the  award  of  the  umpire  deal  only  with  the  amount  of 
indemnity  to  be  fixed  for  M.  Fabiani;  in  other  words,  that  Venezuela 

concede  the  right  to  some  indemnity,  and  urged  upon  Venezuela, 

inferentially,  that  by  her  refusing  to  consent  to  this  proposition  Vene- 
zuela was  perpetuating  an  element  of  dissension  between  the  two 

countries.  This  was  the  status  in  May,  1890.  In  July  of  the  same 
year  the  minister  of  Venezuela  in  France  informed  the  minister  of 
foreign  relations  in  Venezuela  as  follows: 

Consequently,  for  greater  clarity  and  to  prevent  M.  Fabiani  from  misconstruing  the  agree- 
ment, thus  creating  new  difficulties,  I  told  the  minister  (M.  Ribot)  that  1  was  going  to  inform 

the  Venezuelan  Government  of  the  agreement  precisely  in  the  following  language: 

"That  the  French  Government  is  willing  to  accept  thai  the  question  relative  to  M.  Fabiani 
be  submitted  to  the  President  of  the  Federal  Council  of  Switzerland  as  arhitro  juris y  first, 

to  decide  if  this  be  the  case  provided  for  in  Article  V  of  the  Franco- Venezuelan  convention 
of  November  26, 1885,  and,  second,  should  the  umpire  decide  that  such  is  the  case  provided 
for  in  Article  V,  then  the  umpire  is  to  fix  the  sum  that  must  he  paid  to  M.  Fabiani  in  the  3 
per  c^nt  bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt.  1  have  discussed  the  matter  with  the  director  of 

the  cabinet,  who  has  told  me  that,  although  the  French  Government  agrees  to  the  substance 

of  the  two  points  mentioned,  it  is  not  desired  that  they  should  be  stated  in  such  terms, 
because  these  would  to  a  certain  extent  be  little  satisfactory  to  the  French  Government, 

which  has  decidedly  supported  M.  Fabiani's  claim^  entering  it  energetically  through  diplomatic 

channels." 

It  will  be  especially  noted  that,  according  to  this  communication, 
France  agreed  in  substance  to  the  two  propositions  as  stated,  but 
opposed  their  being  submitted  in  the  language  suggested. 

August  12,  1890,  the  minister  of  France  at  Caracas  forwarded  to  the 

minister  of  foreign  relations  for  Venezuela  a  draft  of  the  protocol — 

to  serve  as  the  basis  of  the  arbitration  already  agreed  upon  "  in  principle  "  between  the  Vene- 
zuelan and  French  Governments — 

which  draft,  in  the  language  chosen  by  France,  the  umpire  is  assured 
by  the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela,  is  Articles  I  and  II  of 
the  convention  of  February  24,  1891,  as  finally  accepted  by  the  two 
Governments. 

Having  thus  brought  upon  the  record  the  matters  essential  to  the 
development  of  this  claim,  it  is  now  ready  to  be  considered  in  all  its 
bearings  for  the  final  determination  of  the  umpire  upon  its  merits. 

In  the  judgment  of  the  umpire,  the  case  may  properly  turn  upon  the 
answer  to  be  given  the  inquiry.  Was  it  the  intent  and  purpose  of  the 
high  contracting  parties,  in  their  agreement  of  February  24,  1891,  by 
and  through  its  terms  to  submit  to  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne 
the  entire  Fabiani  controversy? 

When  France  intervened  in  behalf  of  her  nat'onal,  t'  c  daims  cf 
Fabiani  were  no  longer  individual  and  private  claims;  they  became 
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national.  The  right  to  intervene  exists  in  the  indignity  to  France 
through  her  national.  Thenceforward  it  is  national  interests,  not 
private  interests,  that  are  to  be  safeguarded.  It  is  the  national  honor 
which  is  to  be  sustained.  It  is  the  national  welfare  also  which  must 

be  considered.  In  protecting  Fabiani  and  his  interests  the  general 
welfare  must  be  kept  in  the  foreground.  To  the  extent  that  his 

interests  and  the  common  welfare  of  France  are  in  accord  his  par- 
ticular claims  can  be  pressed,  but  no  further.  If  at  any  time  the  gen- 

eral good  of  France  requires  a  surrender  of  all  his  claims,  such  sur- 
render it  is  expected  France  will  make,  and  after  that  if  Fabiani  has  a 

claim  it  is  against  his  own  Government,  not  against  Venezuela.  From 

the  time  her  intervention  began  it  was  undoubtedly  the  constant  pur- 
pose of  France  to  remove  as  quickly  and  as  effectually  as  possible  this 

occasion  of  international  dissension.  It  is  not  to  be  believed  that 

France  would  consent  to  submit  to  arbitration  a  part  only  of  a 
nationaPs  claim,  leaving  large  and  important  portions  of  it  undisposed 
of  and  to  be  still  matters  of  international  intervention.  Nothing, 
nationally,  is  gained  thereby.  The  dignity  of  the  tribunal  thus 
invoked,  the  eminent  character  of  the  parties  litigant,  the  importance 
to  these  countries,  greater  than  any  possible  interests  of  the  national, 

that  peace  and  harmony  be  the  assured  result  of  their  action — all  these 
considerations  forbid  the  contemplation  even  of  such  a  thought. 
Such  is  the  approach  to  this  question  through  the  medium  of  general 
considerations.  When  view  is  had  of  this  particular  contention,  the 

parties  and  the  protocol,  there  is  added  light.  Both  of  the  high 
contracting  parties  affirm  it  to  be  their  purpose  to  close  the  contro- 

versy by  the  arbitraticyi.  The  protocol  in  effect  so  states.  As  it 
seems  to  the  umpire,  the  honorable  arbitrator  so  understood  the 
scope,  purpose,  and  intent  of  the  protocol.  The  text  of  his  award 

charged  him  with  the  duty — 

first,  to  decide  whether,  according  to  the  laws  of  Venezuela,  the  general  principles  of  the  law 
of  nations,  and  the  convention  in  force  between  the  two  contracting  powers,  the  Venezuelan 

Government  is  responsible  for  the  damages  which  M.  Fabiani  claims  be  sustained  through 
denial  of  justice. 

This  duty  was  placed  upon  the  honorable  arbitrator  for  one  of  two 

reasons — either  that  his  determination  might  end  the  controversy  or 
simply  as  an  academic  proposition.  The  latter  reason  needs  only  to 
be  stated  to  be  denied. 

It  is  also  impossible  for  the  umpire  to  accredit  the  two  nations  with 
the  purppse  and  intent  to  consider  such  of  the  claims  as  the  honorable 
arbitrator  fails  to  recognize  responsibility  for  in  Venezuela  as  simply 
eliminated,  subtracted,  and  reserved  from  the  effect  of  the  protocol, 
to  remain  as  vital  claims  in  the  hands  of  France  as  a  continuing 
cause  of  discussion  and  dissension  between  the  two  Governments,  or 
to  believe  that  Venezuela  should  have  consented  to  arbitrate  these 
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points  of  difference,  knowing  that  when  the  award  was  made  all  of 

Fabiani's  claims  not  held  to  be  well  founded  were  to  be  pending 
against  her;  knowing  that  for  such  as  were  held  to  be  denials  of  justice 
she  must  make  reparation  then  and  for  all  such  as  were  not  so  held  she 
must  oppose,  or  pay,  or  arbitrate  at  some  later  time. 

It  is  impossible  for  the  umpire  to  appreciate  the  reason  for  the 
prolonged  diplomatic  controversy  over  the  terms  of  the  protocol^  the 
anxiety  of  France,  on  the  one  hand,  that  Venezuela  should  admit  her 
liability  in  principle  and  arbitrate  only  the  damages  to  be  assessed, 
and,  on  the  other  hand,  the  tenacity  with  which  Venezuela  clung  to 

her  early  offer  to  submit  first  this  question — 

if  this  is  the  case  provided  for  in  Article  V  of  the  French- Venezuelan  convention  of  Noveni- 

ber26, 1885— 

had  either  of  these  Governments  understood  that  the  arbitration  pro- 

posed was  only  a  preliminary  skirmish  to  feel  the  enemy *s  lines  in 
order  to  prepare  the  way  for  the  real  battle  which  was  to  come  after, 
or  if  both  these  Governments  had  not  been  controlled  by  a  settled 
conviction  that  the  award  to  be  rendered  was  the  end  of  the  Fabiaiii 

controversy. 

It  can  not  be  gainsaid  that  if  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne  had 
accepted  as  correct  the  full  contention  of  France  before  him  he  would 
have  amerced  the  Governmeijt  of  Venezuela  in  the  sum  of  46,994,563. 17 
francs.  This  was  her  hazard  when  she  trusted  her  cause  to  the  arbi- 

trator. If  such  had  been  his  award,  therb  was  for  Venezuela  no 
redress.  It  can  not  be  claimed  that  if  the  honorable  arbitrator  had 

included  every  item  to  the  extent  demanded  that  Venezuela  had  relief 

before  any  tribunal  or  that  for  her  there  could  have  been  by  any  tri- 
bunal subtracted  from  the  sum  total  a  single  figure  or  a  single  centime. 

If  the  present  contention  of  Fabiani  is  correct,  that  there  is  a  relief  for 

him  before  this  tribunal,  then  the  respondent  Government  in  an  arbi- 
tration takes  a  hazard  peculiar  to  itself  of  paying  the  award  to  the 

extent  of  the  entire  demand  of  the  claimant  Government,  if  such  be 

the  award,  or  a  part  thereof  if  successful  in  preventing  an  award  for 
all,  and  then  resisting  at  some  later  day  or  paying  or  arbitrating  such 
elements  of  the  claims  as  it  had  been  successful  in  opposing  before  the 
first  tribunal ;  while  the  claimant  Government  enjoys  the  privilege, 
peculiar  to  itself  of  consenting  to  such  restrictions  in  the  proto<!5ol 
as  it  can  not  avoid  if  it  is  to  obtain  arbitration,  and  later  presenting 
to  a  tribunal  not  hampered  by  such  restrictions  the  elements  of  its 

claim  refused,  because  of  the  restrictions  in  the  protocol  at'  the  first 
hearing. 

If  the  judgment  of  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne  had  been  that 

under  the  protocol  the  Government  of  Venezuela  had  no  responsi- 

bility, would  it  have  resulted  that  all  the  claims  of  Fabiani  were  left' 
unsettled  by  his  decision  and  were  restored  to  their  primal  state  of 
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existing  claims  for  which  the  Government  of  France  could  intervene  ? 
If  not,  then  what  claims  would  be  held  to  be  settled  and  what  still 
pending?  If  the  position  of  Fabiani  is  correct,  which  is  the  better 

result  for  the  respondent  Government  in  an  arbitration,  to  defend  suc- 
cessfully in  part  or  in  all  or  to  lose  in  all  or  in  part  ?  Rather,  which 

makes  the  respondent  Government  suffer  most  and  longest,  since  in 
such  a  case  there  is  for  the  defendant  Government  no  surcease? 

These  inquiries  have  value  only  in  the  fact  that  by  considering  them 
one  is  irresistibly  impelled  to  the  sane  and  safe  conclusion  that,  in 

every  intetnational  controversy  of  like  import  with  this,  the  two  Gov- 
ernments honestly  and  carefully  seek  a  common  meeting  point,  which 

is  to  be  gained  usually,  as  in  this  case,  by  mutual  concession  and 
mutual  remission  of  matters  which  can  yields  and,  when  that  common 
ground  of  consent  is  reached,  to  submit  it  as  the  whole  controversy;  or 
ds  being  all  that  both  parties  will  admit  is  the  controverted  questiony  and 
that  this  mutual  point  of  agreement  is  as  much  a  matter  of  agreement 
between  the  high  contracting  parties  as  is  the  covenant  to  arbitrate 
itself  is  an  integral  part  of  that  covenant  gives  it  its  final  character  and 

provides  for  it  its  name — which  is  compromise.  The  process  by  which 
this  agreement  is  reached  being  concessions  by  each,  each  concession 

cancels  the  other,  so  that,  outside  the  protocol,  of  the  original  con- 
tention there  is  left  nothing.  All  of  the  original  controversy  is  found 

finally  resting  in  the  protocol  or  in  oblivion.  Thus,  when  Vene- 
zuela and  France  first  compared  their  views  on  the  Fabiani  matter, 

France  claimed  that  there  was  unquestioned  liability  on  the  part  of 
Venezuela,  and  during  the  discussion  named  in  general,  at  least,  the 
grounds  thereof,  and  the  amount,  in  part,  at  least,  that  she  should 
receive.  Venezuela  denied  all  liability  in  every  particular.  As  they 
pursued  their  efforts  to  reach  an  agreement  France  admitted  that 
there  might  be  a  question  as  to  amounts,  but  no  question  as  to  the  fact 
orresponsibility,  and  proffered  to  Venezuela  arbitration  of  the  amovnU 
Venezuela  consented  to  arbitrate,  provided  that  the  arbitrator  might 
be  a  President  of  a  South  American  Republic,  and  provided  also  that 
the  question  of  liability  be  i\ie  first  question  determined. 

Later  Venezuela  tendered  a  recession  from  her  demand  that  the  arbi- 

trator must  be  the  Preisident  of  a  South  American  Republic  and  con- 
sented that  the  President  of  the  Swiss  Federation  might  take  charge 

of  such  arbitration,  but  insisted  that  the  arbitrator  be  asked  to  decide, 

first,  if  this  is  the  case  provided  for  in  Article  V  of  the  French- Vene- 
zuelan convention  of  November  26,  1885.  Finding  that  arbitration 

could  only  be  had  by  conceding  this  last  point  France  ma<de  the  conces- 
sion in  principle,  but  asked  that  it  be  not  thus  worded  and  in  the  end 

submitted  for  the  acceptance  of  the  Government  of  Venezuela  the 
compromise  substantially  as  it  was  when  it  became  the  treaty  between 
them.     Nothing  on  either  side  of  the  claims  thus  conceded  survived. 
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They  were  all  mutually  agreed  to  be  perpetually  abandoned.  It 

matters  not  that  each  of  the  agreeing  parties  believes  that  much,  per- 
haps all,  of  its  earl}^  contention  is  still  left,  and  is  comforted  in  the 

thought  that  nothing  has  been,  in  fact,  conceded,  and  that  all  really 
exists  under  the  terms  agreed  upon.  This,  however,  remains  certain 
that  they  have  agreed  to  submit  the  whole  question  to  the  arbitrator. 
They  may  contend  before  him,  on  the  one  hand,  that  all  is  included, 
and,  on  the  other  hand,  that  nothing  can  be  found  under  its  terms. 
Concerning  the  meaning,  form,  and  effect  of  their  agreement,  they  may 
essentially  and  antipodally  disagree,  but  that  they  have  agreed  that 
their  contention  is  all  included  within  the  terms  of  the  protocol,  is  not, 
and  never  can  be,  a  matter  of  disagreement.  That  the  compromise  has 

been  made  in  order  that  the  arbitrator  shall  make  a  final  and  con- 

clusive award  upon  the  whole  of  the  original  controversy  ''not  buried 
in  mutual  concession,''  is  the  most  solemn  covenant  of  all. 

If  France  had  made  the  award  at  Berne  the  subject  of  diplomatic 
protest  before  the  convention  of  February  24,  1902,  or,  in  connection 
with  that  event,  had  submitted  its  grievance,  there  would  have  been 

an  opportunity  for  Venezuela  to  make  answer  through  the  same  chan- 
nels. If,  after  such  diplomatic  interchange  of  opinion,  it  had  seemed 

best  to  resubmit  the  question  which  had  once  been  heard,  or  any  part 
thereof,  it  would  come  before  the  tribunal  then  constituted  to  hear  ib^ 
with  the  knowledge  on  its  part  that  the  hearing  had  been  consented  to 
by  both  of  the  Governments  involved  therein.  This  protest  it  did  not 
make.  There  is  nothing  to  indicate  that  it  desired  so  to  do,  or  had 

aught  to  say  why  it  should  not  accept  as  final  and  conclusive  the  award 
of  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne,  unless  it  be  found  in  the  fact  that 

Fabiani  is  permitted  to  present  his  claims,  in  the  manner  he  has  pre- 
sented them,  before  this  Mixed  Commission.  So  far  as  the  umpire  is 

advised  the  Government  of  France  has  not  assumed  responsibility  for^ 
or  attempted  to  dictate  as  to,  the  claims  which  might  come  before 
this  tribunal.  So  far  as  he  is  advised,  the  actual  relation  of  France  is 
found  in  the  fact  that  it  has  sought  and  obtained  a  tribunal  where  its 
nationals  may  be  heard,  but  has  not  passed  at  all  upon  the  claims, 
sought  to  refuse,  or  to  limit;  the  presence  of  any  who  considered  that 
they  had  an  international  grievance  for  which  the  Government  of 
Venezuela  had  responsibility.  It  is  believed  by  the  umpire  that  this 
accounts  for  the  presence  of  this  claim  before  this  tribunal.  The  large 

intelligence,  the  high  honor,  the  scrupulous  integrity,  the  sensitive  per- 
ceptions of  the  diplomats  of  France  are  assurances  to  the  umpire  either 

that  they  have  carefully  and  purposely  presented  this  claim,  regarding 
it  as  entirely  outside  of  the  attributes  and  relations  given  it  by  the 

umpire,  or  that  it  is  wholly  the  work  of  an  individual,  who  had  pre- 
sented his  claim  on  his  own  initiative,  because  he  feels  that  in  the  deci- 

sion at  Berne  he  suffered  a  too  serious  diminution  in  his  honest  damages 
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by  the  application  of  the  rule  established  by  the  honorable  arbitrator, 

and  who  hopes  that  there  may  be  a  chance  for  revision  and  reimburse- 
ment before  the  present  tribunal. 

The  umpire  holds  further  that  the  honorable  Governments,  in  estab- 
lishing the  standard  of  measurement  which  was  to  be  used  by  the  hon- 

orable arbitrator  of  Berne  in  fixing  the  responsibility  of  the  respondent 

Government,  established  at  the  same  time  the  measurewhich,  when  ap- 
plied by  the  arbitrator,  was  to  determine  alike  the  extent  and  the  limit 

of  Fabiani's  claims.  When,  therefore,  the  honorable  arbitrator  made  use 
of  this  standard,  so  provided  him,  the  claims  of  Fabiani,  by  their  own 
weight,  fell  within  or  without  the  line  of  demarkation  so  drawn.  The 

honorable  arbitrator,  on  his  own  initiative,  eliminated  nothing,  sub- 
tracted nothing,  from  these  claims;  there  was  left  for  him  nothing  but 

first  to  settle  the  meaning  of  the  protocol,  and  then  to  observe  its 
effect,  and  to  point  out  which  of  the  claims  came  within,  and  which 
without,  the  action  of  the  rule  agreed  upon  and  prescribed  to  him  by 
the  two  honorable  Governments.  In  other  words,  when  he  seems  to 
eliminate  or  to  subtract  from  the  claims  of  Fabiani,  or  mayhap,  so 
states  in  his  arbitral  decision,  he  is  in  fact  simply  pointing  out  and 
designating  the  different  elements  of  the  Fabiani  controversy,  which, 
in  effect,  the  high  contracting  parties  had  agreed  to  eliminate  and 
subtract  in  order  to  reach  an  agreement  that  permitted  the  protocol 
and  the  arbitration.  The  moment  the  honorable  arbitrator  of  Berne 

settles  the  pivotal  question  of  the  protocol,  by  defining  the  term 

''denial  of  justice,''  around  which  the  storm  clouds  of  conflict  quickly 
gathered  and  the  battle  was  fiercely  waged,  these  claims  fell  into  the 
lethe  prepared  for  all  such  by  the  two  Governments  when  they  agreed 
to  and  accepted  the  protocol  of  February  24,  1891 . 

It  is  also  true  that  this  was  not  the  beginning  of  such  eUminations 
and  subtractions  by  and  between  these  honoraole  Governments. 
They  began  November  26,  1885,  in  the  solemn  compact  then  made 
between  them,  and  thenceforward  these  nations  rested  upon  their 
valued  agreement  to  include  within  their  diplomatic  cognizance  and 
intervention  the  same  matters  only  as  are  accepted  in  the  protocol 

of  1891,  which  substantially,  even  emphatically,  reaffirms  this  pre- 
vious convention  and  applies  it  to  the  concrete  case  in  hand,  hence 

if  there  were  any  difficulty  in  understanding  the  protocol  when 
standing  alone,  by  the  light  of  the  treaty  of  1885,  such  difficulties  are 
all  removed,  and  one  is  permitted  to  pass  within  the  veil  and  catch 

the  genuine  spirit  which  inspired  it,  as  we  hear  the  thoughtful  pleni- 
potentiaries declare  on  the  part  of  their  respective  Governments  that 

it  is  done — 

in  order  to  avoid  in  the  future  everything  which  might  interfere  with  their  friendly  relations. 

What  they  agreed  to  in  order  to  avoid  in  the  future  a  disturbance 
of  friendly  relations  was  done  February  24,  1891,  in  order  to  avoid 



138  FABIANI    CASE. 

and  to  remove  the  very  thing,  which,  until  removed,  did  disturb  the 
friendly  relations  of  the  two  Governments;  and  in  the  agreement 
which  was  merged  in  the  protocol  such  concessions  as  were  made 
on  the  part  of  both  Governments  were  the  price  which  each  paid  for 
the  restoration  and  continuance  of  friendly  relations,  so  essential  to 
the  highest  welfare  of  both  nations.  So  far  as  these  concessions 
affected  the  pecuniary  interests  of  Fabiani  they  were  the  especial 
tribute  required  of  him  by  his  Government  to  conserve  its  general 
good.  How  great  was  this  price  was  hot  known  until  the  judgment 

of  the  arbitrator  was  obtained,  defining  the  inclusiveness  of  the  stand- 
ard agreed  upon.  When  that  was  known,  in  so  far,  if  at  all,  as  this 

limited  his  claims  within  what  he  could  have  obtained  under  an  unre- 

stricted submission,  the  draft  had  been  made  upon  him  in* the  interest 
of  the  common  weal  of  his  nation,  which  draft  it  was  his  patriotic  duty 
to  honor,  and  thereafterwards,  toward  the  respondent  Government, 
to  seek  no  recourse. 

The  umpire  may  be  permitted  at  this  time  to  refer  to  decisions  made 
in  the  courts  and  international  tribunals  and  to  the  opinion  of  Count 
Lewenhaupt  and  to  quote  from  the  reasons  given  for  the  judgments 

rendered  and  the  opinions  held,  the  subject-matter  being  similar  in 
many  aspects  to  the  present  case.  They  illustrate  and  support  the 

positions  taken  by  the  umpire  and  are,  in  his  judgment,  ample  in  prin- 
ciple and  precedent. 

There  is  the  Machado  claim  before  the  mixed  commission  of  the 

United  States  of  America  and  Spain,  of  February  12,  1871,  presented 

by  memorial  in  1871,  being  No.  3  of  the  claims  before  said  commis- 
sion.    It  was  dismissed  for  want  of  prosecution  December  20,  1873 — 

the  commission  reserving  to  itself  the  right  to  reinstate  the  said  case  on  motion  by  the  advo- 

cate for  the  United  S^tes,  sufficient  causes  being  shown  in  support  thereof. 

In  1879  he  filed  another  memorial,  being  No.  129  upon  the  docket. 
March,  1880,  the  advocate  for  Spain  moved  to  strike  it  from  the 
docket  on  the  ground  that  it  was  the  same  case  as  No.  3.  The  advocate 
for  the  United  States  contended  that  the  claim  was  different,  and 

claimed  that  the  motion  of  the  advocate  for  Spain  might  be  dismissed. 
The  arbitrators  being  unable  to  agree,  the  question  was  referred  to 

the  umpire,  Lewenhaupt,  who,  i^n  July  12, 1880,  rendered  the  following 
decision: 

The  umpire  is  of  opinion  that  the  question  whether  case  No.  3  may  be  reopened  has  not  been 

referred;  that  the  question  whether  this  claim,  No.  129,  is  a  new  one  or  the  same  as  No.  3 
does  not  depend  upon  whether  the  items  included  be  the  same  in  both  cases,  but  the  test 
is  whether  both  claims  are  founded  on  the  same  injury;  that  the  only  injury  on  which  claim 
No.  129  is  founded  is  the  seizure  of  a  certain  house;  that  this  same  injury  was  alleged  as 
one  of  the  foundations  for  claim  No.  3,  and  that  in  consequence  claim  No.  129,  as  being  a 
part  of  an  old  claim,  can  not  be  presented  as  a  new  claim  in  a  new  particular.  For  these 
reasons  the  umpire  decides  that  this  case,  No.  129,  be  stricken  from  the  docket. 
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This  case  is  found  in  Moore's  Int.  Arb.  2193.  See  also  decisions 
similar  in  principle,  Danford  Knowlton  &  Co.,  and  Peter  V.  King  & 

Co.,  before  the  same  commission,  found  in  Moore's  Int.  Arb.  2193- 
2196.     See  Delgado  case,  Moore  Int.  Arb.  2196. 

See  the  case  of  McLeod,  Moore  Int.  Arb.  2419. 
McLeod,  a  British  subject,  set  up  a  claim  against  the  United  States 

of  America  for  his  arrest  and  imprisonment  in  the  State  of  New  York 
on  a  charge  of  murder  committed  at  the  destruction  of  the  steamer 
Caroline  in  the  port  of  Schlosser  in  that  State  on  December  29,  1879. 
This  claim  was  presented  by  the  British  agent  to  the  commission  under 
the  convention  between  the  United  States  and  Great  Britain  on  Feb- 

ruary 8,  1853.  The  agent  of  the  United  States  maintained  that  the 
case  was  finally  settled  between  the  two  Governments  by  Lord  Ash- 
burton  and  Mr.  Webster  in  1842.  The  British  commission  thought 
that  the  adjustment  made  between  the  two  Governments  was  merely 
a  settlement  of  certain  national  grievances  and  that  any  claim  on  the 
part  of  McLeod  must  be  considered  as  one  of  the  unsettled  questions 
existing  at  the  date  of  the  convention  of  February  8,  1853.  Mr. 

Upham,  commissioner  for  the  United  States,  was  of  a  different  opin- 
ion, and,  among  other  things,  says  that  two  questions  arise  in  the  case: 

I.  Whether  the  settlement  made  by  the  Grovemments  precludes  our  jurisdiction  over 

the  claim  now  presented. 

II.  Whether,  independently  of  such  exception,  the  facta  show  a  ground  of  claim  against 
the  United  States. 

*  *  *  No  claims  can  be  sustained  before  us  except  those  which  the  Grovemmenta 
can  rightly  prefer  for  our  consideration.  With  matters  settled  and  adjusted  betwe»en 
them,  we  have  nothing  to  do. 
A  settlement  by  the  Governments  of  the  ground  of  international  controversy  between 

them,  ipso  facto  J  settles  any  claims  of  individuals  arising  under  such  controversies  against 

the  Grovemment  of  the  other  country,  unless  they  are  especially  excepted,  as  each  Gk)vem- 
ment  by  so  doing  assumes,  as  principal,  the  adjustment  of  the  claims  of  its  own  citizens 

and  becomes  itself  solely  responsible  for  them.     *    ♦    *  ^ 
These  subjects  of  difficulty  and  controversy  between  the  two  countries  were  thus  fully 

and  finally  adjusted,  so  that  the  able  and  patriotic  statesmen  by  whom  this  settlement  was 

effected  trusted,  in  the  words  of  Lord  Ashburton,  "that  these  truly  unfortunate  events 

might  thenceforth  be  Juried  in  p^ZttTUw. "    *    *    * 
In  my  view,  the  entire  controversy,  with  all  its  incidents,  was  then  ended;  and  if  the  citizens 

of  either  Government  had  grievances  to  complain  of  they  could  have  redress  only  on  their 

own  governments,  who  had  acted  as  their  principals  and  taken  the  responsibility  of  making 
the  whole  matter  an  international  affair  and  had  adjusted  it  on  this  basis. 

The  umpire,  Mr.  Bates,  sustained  the  position  of  the  commissioner 
for  the  United  States  and  rejected  the  claim. 

John  Emile  Houard  was  arrested  in  Cuba  and  imprisoned  withbut 
right,  as  it  always  appeared.  Spain  voluntarily  released  Mr.  Houard 
and  restored  his  property  to  him,  requesting  of  the  United  States,  as  a 
condition  of  the  pardon  and  restoration,  that  an  end  should  thereby 
be  put  to  all  discussion  concerning  this  case.     This  proposition  was 
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accepted  by  the  United  States.  Mr.  Houard  came  before  the  inter- 
national commission  between  the  United  States  and  Spa»i  and 

claimed  damages  for  the  wrong  done  him  through  his  imprisanment 

and  the  consequences  naturally  flowing  therefrom.  The  umpif»>made 
the  decision  as  follows : 

The  umpire  does  not  deem  it  consistent  with  the  character  of  his  office,  nor  requiri9<J"'by  the 
interests  of  either  party,  that  the  questions  involved  in  the  sentence^  thus  disposed  of  hereto- 

fore and  intended  to  be  closed  by  conditional  pardon  granted  as  the  result  of  an  international 

agreement,  should  now  be  reopened.     (Moore's  Int.  Arb.,  2429). 

See  Bours^  case,  Sir  Edward  Thornton  umpire,  Moore^s  Int.  Arb., 
2430. 

Illustrative  of  the  position  which  the  United  Sti^tes  Government 
has  taken  in  reference  to  the  finality  and  conclusiveness  of  i: wards  by 
commissions  and  by  arbitration,  reference  may  be  hid  to  the  action 
of  that  Govemmejit  with  Mexico  under  the  convention  of  April  11, 

1839.  Under  said  commission  three  claims  were  rejected  by  the  com- 
missioners on  their  merits  and  four  on  the  ground  of  jurisdiction. 

The  umpire  rejected  five  claims  on  their  merits  Lnd  six  on  jurisdic- 
tional grounds.  After  the  termination  of  the  commission  Lttomeys 

for  claimants  whose  demands  had  been  rejected  LskeA  that  the  con- 
vention and  all  the  proceedings  under  it  be  decLred  null  and  void, 

while  the  attorneys  for  the  more  fortunate  claimants  strongly  objected 
to  such  a  course. 

The  Government  of  the  United  States  determined  to  treat  as  final 

and  conclusive  the  decisions  that  had  already  been  rendered  and  to 
enter  into  negotiations  for  the  adjustment  of  the  unfinished  business. 
Under  this  decision  there  was  a  new  claim  convention  of  November 

20,  1843,  which  by  its  first  article  provided  that  all  cLims  of  the  citi- 
zens of  Mexico  against  the  United  States  and  all  claims  of  citizens  of 

the  United  States  against  Mexico — 

which  for  wh*atever  cause  were  not  submitted  to  nor  considered  nor  finally  decided  by  the 
commission  nor  by  the  arbiter —     (Moore's  Int.  Arb.,  p.  1249,  note.) 

imder  the  convention  of  1839  should  be  referred  to  a  board  of  four 
commiasionere. 

Under  the  commission  of  1839,  wherein  it  was  agreed  that  the  deci- 
sion of  the  umpire  should  be  final  and  conclusive,  and  wherein  the  United 

States  agreed  forever  to  exonerate  the  Mexican  Government  from  any 
further  accountability  for  claims  which  would  either  be  rejected  by 
the  board  or  by  the  arbitrator,  or  which,  being  allowed  by  either, 
should  be  provided  for  by  the  said  Government  in  the  manner  before 
mentioned,  there  was  presented  the  claim  of  Manuel  de  Gala,  growing 
out  of  his  imprisonment  and  the  confiscation  of  his  vessel  and  cargo. 
The  American  commissioner  of  1839  allowed  $52,000,  the  Mexican 

commissioner  nothing,  the  umpire  $5,867.  It  w~s  c  lleged  before  the 
commission  of  1849  that  this  award  was  made  solely  on  account  of  the 
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confiscation  of  the  vessel  and  the  imprisonment  of  de  Cala,  and  that 
the  value  of  the  cargo  was  by  some  imaccountable  oversight  wholly 
overlooked  by  the  umpire.     The  commission  ruled  against  it,  saying: 

lys  board  has  no  means  of  knowing  upon  what  grounds  the  decision  of  the  umpire  was 

made,  nor  has  it  any  power  of  correcting  his  errors,  mistakes,  or  omissions,  even  if  there  was 
clear  evidence  of  the  existence  of  such  errors  or  omissions.  The  whole  claim  of  de  Cala  was 

submitted  to  the  umpire,  and  in  his  decision  he  recapitulated  minutely  the  several  items 

allowed  by  the  American  commissioners,  and  immediately  states  the  amount  for  whiph,  in 

his  <4)inion,  Mexico  should  be  held  responsible.  *  *  ♦  The  board  is  of  opinion  that  the 
decision  of  the  umpire  was  final  and  conclusive,  and  that,  by  the  terms  of  the  convention  of 

1839,  Mexico  was  released  from  any  further  claim  or  liability  growing  out  of  the  transactions 

upon  which  it  was  founded.     (Moore  Int.  Arb.,  1274). 

See  the  Leggett  case,  Moore  Int.  Arb.,  127 Qet  seq. 
In  Moore  Int.  Arb.,  1408,  Sir  Frederick  Bruce  says: 

In  civil  courts  an  appeal  lies  to  a  superior  tribunal;  in  international  courts,  which  recog- 
nize no  superior  judge,  fresh  negotiations  are  opened,  and  a  fresh  commission  appointed,  to 

which  the  disputed  cases  are  referred.     *     *     * 
I  am  of  opinion  that  these  claims  must  be  submitted  de  novo  to  the  actual  commission, 

with  a  view  to  a  fresh  reexamination  and  decision  on  their  merits. 

Under  the  United  States  and  Venezuela  Claims  Commission  of  1868 

gross  frauds  were  alleged  to  be  perpetrated,  and  a  protest  of  the  Vene- 
zuelan Government  was  filed  with  the  Secretary  of  State  for  the  United 

States  of  America  February  12,  1869,  alleging  irregularity  of  the 
umpire  and  fraud  in  the  proceedings  and  findings.  After  careful 
inquirer  by  the  United  States  Government  it  was  found  that  there  had 
been  fraud.  The  decisions  were  rejected  and  a  new  commission  was 
formed  by  the  joint  action  of  both  countries  to  rehear  all  of  the  cases. 

Moore  Int.  Arb.,  1660-1675. 
Where  a  party,  with  full  knowledge  of  the  facts  on  which  he  relies  for  the  impeachment  of 

the  award,  has  nevertheless  accepted  and  executed  the  award,  it  will  not  be  set  aside  because 
of  the  objections  made  by  him.     (2  Am.  and  Eng.  Kncycl.  of  Law,  789.) 

A  valid  award  creates  a  complete  obligation,  and  need  not  be  ratified  by  the  parties  in 
order  to  give  it  operative  force.     (Id.,  806.) 

But  where  an  award  is  voidable,  either  because  the  arbitrators  have  exceeded  their 

authority  or  because  all  matters  submitted  have  not  been  considered  by  them,  or  for  any 

other  reason,  the  parties  may  ratify  it  expressly  or  by  implication  arising  from  their  acts,  and 
after  such  ratification  they  will  be  estopped  from  objecting  to  it.     (Id.,  806.) 

The  acceptance  of  the  benefits  of  an  award,  as  accepting  the  performance  from  the  other 

party  to  the  submission  of  the  obligations  imposed  by  the  award,  is  a  ratification  and  estops 
the  party  so  accepting  from  afterwards  denying  its  validity.     (Id.,  807,  note.) 

Acquiescence  in  an  award  has  the  effect  of  a  ratification.     (Id.,  807.) 

In  a  case  before  the  Supreme  Court  of  the  United  States  entitled 
United  States  ex  rel.  Lutzarda  Angarica  de  la  Rua,  executrix  of  Joaqufn 
Garcia  de  Angarica,  deceased,  plaintiff  in  error  v.  Thomas  F.  Bayard, 
Secretary  of  State  (127  U.S., 251  (L.  R.,  32, 159)),  there  appears,  in  the 
course  of  the  decision,  this  quotation  from  the  answer  of  the  Secretary 
of  State  for  the  United  States: 
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And  this  respondent,  further  answering,  saith  that  the  said  petition  proceeds  upon  a 
ground  whidi  wholly  ignores  certain  grave  international  elenients  and  considerations  that 

entered  into  the  claim  of  the  petitioner's  testator  so  soon  as  the  Government  of  the  United 
States  began  and  assumed  to  urge  and  prosecute  the  same,  and  that  thenceforth  the  said 

claim  became,  in  contemplation  of  law,  subject  to  the  will  of  the  Government  of  the  United 

States  and  entirely  beyond  the  control  of  the  said  petitioner's  testator. 

On  July  4,  1868,  a  convention  was  concluded  between  the  United 
States  of  America  and  Mexico  for  the  adjudication  of  claims  of  citizens 
of  either  country  upon  the  Government  of  the  other.  Article  II  of 
the  treaty  contains  this  clause: 

The  President  of  the  United  States  of  America  and  the  President  of  the  Mexican  Kepublic 

hereby  solemnly  aflfNincerely  engage  to  consider  the  decision  of  the  commissioners  conjointly , 
or  of  the  umpire,  as  the  case  may  be,  as  absolutely  final  and  conclusive  upon  each  claim 

decided  upon  by  them  or  him,  respectively,  and  to  give  full  effect  to  such  decisions  without 
any  objection,  evasion,  or  delay  whatsoever.     (15  Stat.  L.,  682.) 

And  also  in  Article  V  there  appeared  the  following: 

The  high  contracting  parties  agree  to  consider  the  result  of  the  proceedings  of  this  com- 
mission as  a  full,  perfect,  and  final  settlement  of  every  claim  upon  either  Government  arising 

out  of  any  transaction  of  a  date  prior  to  the  exchange  of  the  ratifications  of  the  present  con- 
vention; and  further  engage  that  every  such  claim,  whether  or  not  the  same  may  have  been 

presented  to  the  notice  of,  made,  preferred,  or  laid  before  the  said  commission,  shall  from 
and  after  the  conclusion  of  the  proceedings  of  the  said  commission,  be  considered  and  treated 

as  finally  settled,  barred,  and  thenceforth  inadmissible.     (15  Stat.  L.  684.) 

This  was  a  case  of  petition  for  mandamus,  entitled  United  States  ex 

rel,  Sylvanus  C.  Boynton,  plaintiff  in  error,  v,  James  G.  Blaine,  ̂ cre- 
tary  of  State.     (U.  S.  Sup.  Court  Reports,  139,  306;  L.  R.  35,  183.) 

The  payment  of  the  sum  awarded  had  been  withheld  by  the  Gov- 
ernment of  the  United  States  because  that  Mexico,  while  complying 

with  the  terms  of  the  award  and  paying  in  accordance  therewith,  had 

solemnly  protested  to  the  Government  of  the  United  States  that  delib- 
erate fraud  had  been  practiced  upon  the  commission  and  that  without 

it  there  would  have  been  no  award  against  Mexico  and  asking  that 
the  United  States  Government  consent  to  reopen  the  case  and  to  set 
aside  the  award.  This  petition  wts  brought  to  com{>el  the  Secretary 
of  State  to  make  payment  of  the  sums  due  to  the  relator,  notwith- 

standing the  sij^uation  suggested. 
President  Ha-yee  caused  the  charges  of  fraud  to  be  investigated,  and 

Mr.  Evarts,  then  Secretary  of  State  and  a  profound  lawyer  and  emi- 
nent jurist,  made  a  careful  examination  of  all  the  matters  concerned 

and  submitted  his  conclusions  to  the  President,  of  which  we  quote  in 

part: 
That  neither  the  principles  of  public  law  nor  considerations  of  justice  and  equity  required 

or  permitted,  as  between  the  Uiiited  States  and  Mexico,  that  the  award  should  be  opened 

and  the  cases  retried  before  a  new  international  tribunal,  or  under  any  new  convention  or 

negotiation  respecting  the  same;  *  *  *  that  the  honor  of  the  United  States  required 
that  these  two  cases  should  be  further  investigated  by  the  United  States  to  ascertain 

whether  this  Government  had  been  inade  the  means  of  enforcing  against  a  friendly  power 
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claims  of  our  citizens  based  upon  or  exaggerated  by  fraud.  ( 139  U.  S.  pp.  306-326;  L.  R. 
vol.  35  p.  186.) 

In  August,  1880,  Secretary  Evarts — 

having  been  notified  through  the  Mexican  legation  of  the  intention  of  the  Mexican  Govern- 

ment to  commence  suits  to  impeach  and  set  aside  the  two  awards,  objected  to  such  a  pro- 
ceeding as  in  contradiction  to  the  whole  purpose  of  the  convention,  as  well  as  of  explicit 

provisions  thereof;  and  accordingly  no  further  steps  were  taken  in  that  direction.     (Id.  ibid.) 

Chief  Justice  Fuller  delivered  the  opinion  of  the  court,  and  we  quote 
briefly  therefrom : 

The  Government  assumed  the  responsibility  of  presenting  his  claim,  and  madeit  its  own  in 
seeking  redress  in  respect  to  it. 

The  Chief  Justice  makes  reference  to  Frelinghuysen  v..  Key  (110 
U.  S.,  63),  in  the  following  language: 

In  Frelinghuysen  v.  Key,  while  conceding  the  essential  value  of  international  arbitration 

to  be  dependent  upon  the  certainty  and  finality  of  the  decision,  the  court  adjudged  that  this 

Government  need  not  theicfore  close  its  doors  against  an  investigation  into  the  question 

whether  its  influence  had  been  lent  in  favor  of  a  fraudulent  claim.  It  was  held  that  no  appli- 
cable rule  was  so  rigid  as  not  to  be  suflBciently  flexible  to  do  justice,  and  that  the  extent  and 

character  of  any  obligation  to  individuals,  growing  out  of  a  treaty,  an  award,  and  the  receipt 
of  money  thereon,  were  necessarily  subject  to  such  modiflcation  as  circumstances  might 

require. 

Cornelius  Comegys  and  Andrew  Pettit,  plaintiffs  in  error,  v.  Ambrose 
Vasse,  defendant  in  error,  before  the  United  States  Supreme  Court, 

and  reported  in  volume  26,  page  193  (L.  R.  7,  108),  was  a  case  grow- 
ing out  of  the  award  of  commissioners  constituted  under  the  treaty  of 

the  United  States  of  America  with  Spain  on  the  22d  of  February,  1819. 
In  the  ninth  article  of  the  treaty  it  provides  that  the  high  contracting 

parties —  >. 

reciprocally  renounce  all  claims  for  damages  or  injuries  which  they,  themselves,  as  well  as 

their  respective  citizens  and  subjects,  may  have  sufl'ered  until  th6  time  of  signing  of  this 
treaty.     (8  Stat.  L.  258.) 

and  they  then  proceed  to  enumerate  in  separate  clauses  the  injuries  to 
which  the  renunciation  extends. 

The  eleventh  article  provides  that  the  United  States,  exonerating 
Spain  from  all  demands  in  future  on  account  of  the  claims  of  their  citi- 

zens to  which  these  renunciations  extended — 

and  considering  them  entirely  canc^/Ze^f,  undertake  to  make  satisfaction  for  the  same,  to  an 
amount  not  exceeding  five  millions  of  dollars.     (8  Stat.  L.  2i0.) 

To  ascertain  the  full  amount  and  validity  of  these  claims  a  commis- 
sion, to  consist  of  three  commissioners,  was  appointed,  which  within 

three  years  from  the  time  of  its  first  meeting  should — 
receive,  examine,  and  decide  upon  the  amount  and  validity  of  all  the  claims  included  within 
the  descriptions  above  mentioned.     (Id.  ibid.) 

There  seems  to  be  no  especial  agreement  or  covenant  concerning  the 
finality  and  conclusiveness  of  the  awards,  and  they  seem  to  stand  upon 
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the  common  basis  ascribed  to  awards  in  general.  Mr.  Justice  Story  of 

the  Supreme  Court  delivered  its  opinion.  Among  other  things  decided 

by  the  court  there  appears  this: 

The  object  of  the  treaty  was  to  invest  the  commissioners  with  full  power  and  authority  to 
receive,  examine,  and  decide  upon  the  amount  and  validity  of  the  asserted  claims  upon 

Spain,  for  damages  and  injuries.  Their  decision,  within  the  scope  of  this  authority,  is 

conclvsive  and  final.  If  they  pronounce  the  claim  valid  or  invalid,  if  they  ascertain  the 
amount,  their  avxird  in  the  premises  is  not  reexaminable.  The  parties  must  abide  by  it,  as 
the  decree  of  a  competent  tribunal  of  exclusive  jurisdiction.  A  rejected  claim  can  not  he 

brought  again  under  review,  in  any  judicial  tribunal;  an  amount  once  fixed,  is  a.  final  ascer- 
tainment of  the  damages  or  injury.     This  is  the  obvious  purport  of  a  language  of  the  treaty. 

See  the  case  familiarly  quoted  as  Frelinghuysen  v.  Key,  found  in  the 
United  States  Supreme  Court  Reports  1 10,  p.  63  (L.  R.  28,  p.  71 ),  where 
the  Supreme  Court  decided  the  awards  to  be  final  and  conclusive  as 
between  the  United  States  and  Mexico  until  set  aside  by  agreement 
between  the  two  Governments,  or  otherwise,  and  that  the  United 

States  had  right  to  treat  with  Mexico  for  a  retrial  for  particular 

awards  because  of  the  alleged  fraudulent  character  of  the  proof  given 
in  their  support,  and  that  the  President  of  the  Senate  might  conclude 
another  treaty  with  Mexico  in  respect  to  any  claims  allowed  by  the 
commission.  Mr.  Chief  Justice  Waite  delivered  the  opinion  of  the 
Supreme  Court,  in  which  opinion  we  find  and  quote  the  following: 

No  nation  treats  with  a  citizen  of  another  nation  except  through  his  government* 

The  treaty,  when  made,  represents  a  compact  between  the  governments  and  each  govern- 
ment holds  the  other  responsible  for  everything  done  by  their  respective  citizens  under  it. 

The  citizens  of  the  United  States  having  claims  against  Mexico  were  not  parties  to  this  con- 
vention. They  induced  the  United  States  to  assume  the  responsibility  of  seeking  redress  for 

injuries  they  claim  to  have  sustained  by  the  conduct  of  Mexico,  and  as  a  means  of  obtaining 
such  redress  the  convention  was  entered  into,  by  which  not  only  claims  of  citizens  of  the 
United  States  against  Mexico  were  to  be  adjusted  and  paid,  but  those  of  citizens  of  Mexico 

against  the  United  States  as  well.  *  *  *  Thus,  while  the  claims  of  the  individual  citi- 
zens were  to  be  considered  by  the  commission  in  determining  amounts,  the  whole  purpose  of 

the  convention  was  to  ascertain  how  much  was  due  from  one  Government  to  the  other  on 
account  of  the  demands  of  their  respective  citizens. 

See  also  United  States  v,  Throckmorton,  98  U.  S.  Sup.  Court  Reports, 

61  (L.  R.  25:  93);  U'.  S.  Appt.  v.  Diekelman,  92  U.  S.  Supreme  Court Reports,  520  (L.  R.  23:  742) ;  Choctaw  Nation,  appellant,  v,  U.  S.,  119 
U.  S.  Sup.  Ct.,  1  (L.  R.  30:  306). 

Chapter  18,  Book  2,  of  Vattel  on  the  Law  of  Nations,  Chitty's  Edi- 
tion, treats  of  the  mod?  of  terminating  disputes  between  nations,  and 

the  entire  chapter  is  referred  to  by  the  umpire  as  furnishing,  in  his 
judgment,  a  basis  for  this  case.  The  umpire  will  quote  but  limitedly. 
Section  326  says  in  part: 

If  neither  of  the  nations  who  are  engaged  in  a  dispute  thinks  proper  to  abandon  her  ri^t 

or  her  pretensions,  the  contending  parties  are,  by  the  law  of  nature,  which  recommends  peace, 
concord,  and  charity,  bound  to  try  the  gentlest  methods  of  terminating  their  differences. 

♦    *    *    Let  each  party  coolly  and  candidly  examine  the  subject  of  the  dispute,  and  do 
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justice  to  the  other;  or  let  him  whose  right  is  too  uncertain ,  voluntarily  renounce  it.  There 

are  even  occasions  when  it  may  be  proper  for  him  who  has  the  clearer  right,  to  renounce  it,  for 

the  sake  of  preserving  peace — occasions  which  it  is  the  part  of  prudence  to  discover. 

Section  327  is  entitled  '^Compromise/'  concerning  which  he  says: 
Compromise  is  a  second  method  of  bringing  disputes  to  a  peaceable  termination.  It  is 

an  agreeiHent,  by  which,  without  precisely  deciding  on  the  justice  of  the  jarring  pretensions, 
the  parties  recede  on  both  sides,  and  determine  what  share  each  shall  have  of  the  thing  in 

dispute,  or  agree  to  give  it  entirely  to  one  of  the  claimants  on  condition  of  certain  indemni- 
fications granted  to  the  other. 

Section  329  is  entitled  ''Arbitration/'  Concerning  this  he  says,  in 

part: 
When  sovereigns  cannot  agree  about  their  pretensions,  and  are  nevertheless  desirous  of 

preserving  or  restoring  peace,  they  sometimes  submit  the  decision  of  their  disputes  to  arbi- 
trators chosen  by  common  agreement.  When  once  the  contending  parties  have  entered 

into  articles  of  arbitration,  they  are  bound  to  abide  by  the  sentence  of  the  arbitrators.  They 

have  engaged  to  do  this;  and  the  faith  of  treaties  should  be  religiously  observed.  *  *  * 
For  if  it  were  necessary  that  we  should  be  convinced  of  the  justice  of  a  sentence  before  we 

would  submit  to  it,  it  would  be  of  very  little  use  to  appoint  arbitrators.  *  *  ♦  In  order 
to  obviate  all  difficulty,  and  cut  off  every  pretext  of  which  fraud  might  make  a  handle,  it  is 

necessary  that  the  arbitration  articles  should  precisely  specify  the  subject  in  dispute,  the 
respective  and  opposite  pretensions  of  the  parties,  the  demands  of  the  one, and  the  objections 
of  the  other.  These  constitute  the  whole  of  what  is  submitted  to  the  decision  of  the  arbitrator; 

and  it  is  upon  these  points  alone  that  the  parties  promise  to  abide  by  their  judgment.  If,  then, 
their  sentence  be  confined  within  these  precise  bounds,  the  disputants  must  acquiesce  in  it. 

They  can  not  say  that  it  is  manifestly  unjust,  since  it  is  pronounced  on  a  question  which  they 
have  themselves  rendered  doubtful  by  the  discordance  of  their  claims,  and  which  has  been 

referred,  as  such,  £o  the  decision  of  the  arbitrators.  Before  they  can  pretend  to  evade  such 
a  sentence,  they  should  prove,  by  incontestable  facts  that  it  was  the  offspring  of  corruption 
or  flagrant  partiality. 

Mr.  Bayard,  Secretary  of  State  for  the  United  States  of  America,  a 
very  eminent  and  able  lawyer,  acting  in  his  ofRce  aforesaid,  gave  this 
official  opinion  on  May  12,  1886: 

Motions  to  open  or  set  aside  international  awards  are  not  entertained  unless  made  promptly, 

and  upon  proof  of  fraudulent  concoction  or  of  strong  after-discovered  evidence.  Wharton's 
Int.  Law  Digest,  sec.  316,  vol.  3,  page  81. 

The  award  not  having  been  vacated,  opened,  or  set  aside  during  the  lifetime  of  the  former 
conunission,  and  the  claimant  having  done  nothing  since  to  waive  his  rights  thereunder,  it 

was  further  ruled  that  such  award  should  be  treated  by  our  Government  as  a  valid  and 

conclusive  ascertainment  of  his  claim  against  New  Granada.  Wharton's  Int.  Law  Digest, 
sec.  328,  vol.  2,  page  672. 

Mr.  Seward,  Secretary  of  State  for  the  United  States,  in  correspond- 
ence July  17,  1868,  referring  to  the  Alaba/ma  claims  and  to  an  effort  to 

adjust  them  which  had  been  mad«  by  both  Governments  and  review- 
ing the  situation,  says: 

In  the  first  place,  Her  Majesty's  Govemment  not  only  denied  all  national  obligation  to 
indemnify  citizens  of  the  United  States  for  these  claims,  but  even   refused  to  entertain 

them  for  discussion.    Subsequently  Her  Majesty's  Government  upon  reconsideration  pro- 
posed to  entertain  them  for  the  purpose  of  referring  them  to  arbitration,  but  insisted  upon 

8.  Doc.  533,  59-1   10 
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making  them  subject  of  special  reference,  excluding  from  the  arbitrators'  consideration  cer- 
tain grounds  which  the  United  States  deem  material  to  a  just  and  fair  determination  of 

the  merits  of  the  claims.  The  United  States  declined  this  special  exception  and  exclusion, 

and  thus  the  proposed  arbitration  has  failed.     Id.,  sec.  221,  vol.  2,  p.  568. 

On  p^ge  569  of  the  same  volume  there  is  a  statement  by  Mr.  Frelmg- 
huysen,  Secretary  of  State,  to  Mr.  Rosecrans,  October  17,  1883,  as  to 
the  action  of  the  United  States  concerning  arbitration,  the  finaUty  of 
the  decisions,  and  the  solemnity  of  the  agreement  which  authorizes  the 
arbitration. 

Mr.  Fish,  Secretary  of  State  for  the  United  States,  to  Minister  Rus- 
sell, of  Venezuela,  June  4,  1875,  says  in  part: 

That  if  a  State,  after  having  submitted  a  controversy  regarding  claims  and  debts  due  to 

individuals,  to  arbitration,  whether  by  another  State  or  by  a  commission,  refuses  to  pay  the 
award,  it  loses  credit  and  leaves  no  alternative  with  other  powers  than  that  of  refusing 

intercourse,  or  of  an  ultimate  resort  to  war.     Id.,  sec.  220,  vol.  2,  p.  550. 

Mr.  Frelinghuysen,  Secretary  of  State  for  the  United  States,  Feb- 
Tuary  11,  1884,  says  in  part: 

The  claims  presented  to  the  French  commission  are  not  private  claims  but  governmental 

claims,  growing  out  of  injuries  to  private  citizens  or  their  property,  inflicted  by  the  govern- 
ment against  which  they  are  presented.  As  between  the  United  States  and  the  citizen,  the 

claim  may  in  some  sense  be  regarded  as  private,  but  when  the  claim  is  taken  up  and 
pressed  diplomatically,  it  is  as  against  the  foreign  government  a  national  claim. 

Over  such  claims  the  prosecuting  government  has  full  control;  it  may,  as  a  matter  of 

pure  right,  refuse  to  present  them  at  all;  it  may  surrender  them  or  compromise  them  with- 
out consulting  the  claimants.  Several  instances  where  this  has  been  done  will  occur  to  you, 

notably  the  CAse  of  the  so-called  "French  spoliation  claims."  The  rights  of  the  citizen  for 
diplomatic  redress  are  as  against  his  own  not  the  foreign  government.  *  ♦  *  The  com- 

mission is  not  a  judicial  tribunal  adjudging  private  rights,  but  an  international  tribunal 
adjudging  national  rights.    Id.,  sec.  220,  vol.  2,  p.  558. 

Should  the  Government  of  the  United  States,  either  by  its  neglect  in  pressing  a  claim 
against  the  foreign  government  or  by  extinguishing  it  as  an  equivalent  for  concessions  from 

such  government,  impair  the  claimant's  rights,  it  is  bound  to  duly  compensate  such  claim- 
ant.    Id.,  sec.  220,  vol.  2,  p.  566. 

On  a  careful  review  of  the  history  of  this  claim  from  its  origin  to  this 
day,  enlightened  by  study  and  reflection,  fortified  in  principle,  and 
controlled  by  reason,  responsive  to  his  conscientious  conception  of 

duty,  the  judgment  of  the  umpire  is  clear  and  positive  that  the  com- 
promise arranged  between  the  honorable  Governments  February  24, 

1891,  followed  by  the  award  of  the  honorable  President  of  the  Swiss 

Federation,  December  15,  1896,  were,  ''acting  together,'*  a  complete, 
final,  and  conclusive  disposition  of  the  entire  controversy  on  behalf  of 

M.  Antoine  Fabiani.  Therefore  the  claim  presented  before  this  tri- 
bunal, and,  on  disagreement  of  the  honorable  commissioners,  coming 

to  the  umpire,  and  there  entitled  '^Antoine  Fabiani  No.  4,''  is  dis- 
allowed, and  the  award  will  be  prepared  accordingly. 

NoETHFiELD,  July  31,  1906. 
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EXHIBIT   IH   FABIANI   CASE— AWAED  ITHDEE   CONVEH- 
TION  OF  1891/ 

lie  President  de  la  Confederation  Snisse,  arbitre  design^  ponr  trancher 

le  diff^rend  existant  (AfTaire  Fabiani)  entre  Le  Gouverncnient  de  la  R^pn- 
blique  Franvaise,  partie  demanderesse,  et  Le  Gouvernenieut  des  Etate-Unis 

dii  Vdn^znc^la,  partie  ddfenderesse. 
Yn  les  exposes  et  les  conclusions  des  parties,  ainsi  que  les  preuves 

administrdes. 

Considdrant  qn'il  en  resulte : 
A.— £n/ai<. 

I.  Les  Gouvernements  de  la  Rdpublique  Fran^aise  et  des  Etats-Unis  du 
y^ndzu^la  sent  convenus,  par  compromis  signd  h  Caracas  le  24  f^vrier 

1891,  de  soamettre  h  I'arbitrage  du  Pr<^sideut  de  la  Confederation  Suisse, 
la  question  de  savoir  si,  ''d'apres  les  lois  du  Venezuela,  les  principes 

'generaux  du  droit  des  gens  et  la  Convention  (du  26  novembre  1885)  en 
vigneur  entre  les  deux  Puissances  contractantes,  le  Gouvernement  vene- 
zneiien  est  responsable  des  doinmages  que  Fabiani  dit  avoir  eprouves  ponr 

denegations  de  justice,'^  et  de  charger  Tabitre  ̂ 'de  Hxer,  au  cas  oil  cett« 
responsabilite  serait  reconnue  pour  tout  ou  partie  des  reclamations  dont 

il  s'agit,  le  luontant  de  rindemnite  pecuniaire  que  le  Gouvernement  vene- 
zueiien  devrait  verser  entre  les  mains  de  M.  Fabiani,  et  qui  effectuerait  en 

titres  de  la  dette  diplomatique  de  Venezuela  3  %,*' 
L'arbitrage  ay  ant  ete  accepte,  la  procedure  fut  instruite  par  voie 

d^echange  de  memoires  et  par  radministration  de  preuves  tant  litteraleH 
que  testimoniales  offertes  par  les  Gouvernements  interesses. 

II.  Les  faits  aliegues  dans  la  demande  sont  les  suivants: 
M.  Antoiue  Fabiani  epousa,  en  avril  1867,  la  tille  de  M.  Benolt  Ronoayolo, 

chef  d'une  maison  d*armement  de  voiliers,  h  Marseille.  Roncayolo  suspen- 
dit  ses  paiements,  le  31  aoi^t  de  la  m6me  ftotiee,  et  fut  declare  en  etat  de  fail- 

lite.  Son  gt»ndro  Fabiani,  qui  etait  alors  avocat  prs  la  cour  de  Bastia, 

s'eft'orva  desuuver  la  situation.  Au  bout  de  deux  ans,  il  put  informer  son 
beau-pore,  etabli  a  MaracaTbo,  <ju  il  avail  <ibtenu  un  conconlat  pour  ce 
dernier;  il  paya  Ini  mOnie  le  dernier  dividende  de  10%. 

Fabiani  fixa  son  domicile  i\  Marseille.  Uu  oncle  lui  avanya  de  fortes 

somnies  d'argent,  et  lui-nn'nie  chercha  di'sormais  a  recoutjui'rir  la  fortune 
perdue  par  Benoit  Koncayolo.  Dans  ce  but,  et  atiu  de  conserver  le  mono- 
pole  presque  exclusif  des  rapportn  niaritinies  et  oommerciaux  de  Mara- 
calbo  avec  la  France,  monopolo  exerce  uagu^re  par  Roncayolo,  il  acheta 

d'aboi'd  lo  navite  Pauline;  il  devel^ppa  ensuite  se.s  aff;iii*e«  d'exportation 
et  <rimportation  et  atlecta  cinq  trois-ni&ts  a  ce  service,  sans  farler  d'un 
puissant  reuiorqueur  destine  k  la  barre  et  au  lac  de  MaracaTbo.  Trois 
maisons  furent  successivement  fondees  an  Venezuela,  k  Caracas,  k  Mara- 

>  The  President  of  the  Swiss  Confederation  was  authorized  by  the  federal 
committee  November  1,  1892,  to  accept  the  post  of  arbitrator  under  the 
convention.  (Rapport  du  Departement  Federal  des  Affaires  £trang&res, 
189^,  p.  34.)  A  statement  of  the  claim  was  filed,  and  a  period  was  then 

fixed  for  the  presentation  of  the  Venezuelan  answer.  The  French  Govern- 
ment submitted  a  reply.  These  papers  having  been  exchanged,  an  order 

was  made  by  the  arbitrator  in  regard  to  the  taking  of  proofs.  (Id.  1894, 

p.  38. 



148  FABIANl    CASE. 

caibo,  h  La  Gaayra;  Fabiani  y  int^ressa  son  beaa-p^re  et  son  beau-fr^re 
Andr^  Roncayolo,  qui  re^urent  rattribution  de  la  moiti^  des  b^n^fices. 

Mais  bient6t  Fabiani  d^couvrit  que  les  Roncayolo  avaient  commis  des 

malversations  h,  sod  prejudice,  au  V^n^zu^la.  II  se  vit  oblige  d'interdire 
h  son  bean-pere  toute  participation  officielle  aux  operations  de  la  maison 
Fabiani  et  de  restreindre  les  pouvoirs  du  fils  Roncayolo.  Le  7  d^ceinbre 

1874,  B.  Roncayolo  n'en  renouvela  pas  moins,  en  son  nom,  le  contrat  do 
remorqnage  pass^  avec  le  President  de  TEtat  v^n^zndlien  de  Zulia,  en 

engageant  la  responsabilit^  de  <'ses''  ̂ tablissements  de  commerce  fond^s 
sons  la  raison  sooiale  Antoine  Fabiani  et  C'**.  Fabiani  arrdta  net  tontes 

les  affaires  d'exportatiou,  prohiba  tons  tirages  de  traites,  exigea  la  resti- 
tution de  ses  avances  et  la  prompte  liquidation  de  ses  int^r^ts.  II  dut 

n^anmoins  Be  convaincre  que  les  Roncayolo  travaillaient  a  '^une  spoliation 

qui  serait  faoilit^e  par  la  v^^.nalit^  des  pouvoirs  judiciaires  du  \6ii6zn6\&J* 
II  se  disposait  a  recuurir  aux  tribunaux  frau^ais,  les  conditions  de  Tasso- 
oiatiou  ayant  ̂ t^  arrdt^es  h  Marseille,  quand,  sur  les  instances  de  Ronca- 

yolo filS)  il  consentit  h  une  solution  amiable  du  conflit. 

Lft  transaction,  sign^e  k  cette  occasion,  date  du  31  Janvier  1878.  Inter- 
venue  entre  Antoine  Fabiani  et  Andr6  Roncayolo,  elle  constat  que  B.  Ron- 

cayolo n'a  jamais  fait  d'apports  en  argent,  elle  d^f^re  au  Tribunal  de 
Marseille  toutes  les  difficult^s  qui  pourraient  s'^lever  an  sujet  de  son  ex^ 
cution,  elle  constltue  Roncayolo  fils  d^biteur  de  la  somme  de  617,895  fr. 

10,  valeur  au  31  Janvier  1878.  D'autre  part,  la  maison  Roncayolo  de  Mara- 
caibo  devait  etre  remplac<^e  par  une  succursale  de  la  maison  Fabiani,  de 

Marseille,  succursale  qui  serait  dirig^e  par  A.  Roncayolo,  i\  I'exclusion  de 
toute  ing^rence  de  Roncayolo  pt^re. 

Les  anciennes  irr^gularit^s  reproch^es  aux  Roncayolo  se  renouvel^rect. 

Fabiani  r^voqua  les  pouvoirs  de  Ronpayolo  tils  et  lui  substitua  ub  sons- 

agent,  auquel  Roncayolo  pere  s'empressa  de  marier  sa  fille  cadette.  II  y 
avait  6  k  700,000  fr.  de  traites  k  payer.  Fabiani  coniprit  que  sa  presence 

au  V^n^zu^la  ^tait  ni^cessaire.  II  partit  le  3  novembre  1879,  non  toute- 
fois  sans  avoir  introduit  instance  h  Marseille  contre  ses  deux  fond^s  de 

procnration;  les  tribunaux  de  Marseille  ^talent  conip^tents,  en  effet,  etdn 
reste,  B.  Roncayolo  avait  ̂ crit,  le  14  juin  1879,  que  la  justice  v^n^zu^lienne 

se  laissait  eorrompre  a  prix  d'argent. 
An  Ydndzu^la,  Fabiani  r^clama,  en  toute  premiere  ligne,  le  paiement 

d'nne  somme  de  105,458  fr.  75,  representee  par  cinq  traites  que  lui  avaient 

6t6  deiivr^es,  pour  des  transports  d'^migrants,  par  les  consuls  du  Vene- 
zuela k  Marseille  et  k  Teneriffe.  MM.  Roche  et  Cie.,  auxquels  ces  traites 

avaient  ete  remises  pour  I'encaissement,  refuserent  de  les  restituer,  sous 

prctexte  qu^elles  avaient  ete  donnees  en  gage  par  acte  du  6  mars  1877, 
acte  fraud aleux  d'apr^s  la  demande.  Le  dossier  de  ces  traites  avait 
d*ailleurs  disparu  et  le  cabinet  de  Caracas  annula  ses  ordres  de  paiement 

anterieurs.  Si  Fabiani  ue  poursuivit  pas  Taffaire  au  criminel,  c'est  qu'on 
Ten  dissuada  vivemeut.  Les  Roncayolo,  le  directenr  du  Ministere  des 

Finances  et  un  comparse  auraient  collabore  k  cette  machination. 
On  meconnut  egalement  les  droits  de  Fabiani,  comme  proprietaire  du 

vapeur  Pauline,  pour  services  reudus  k  I^tat  par  ce  navire  pendant  la 
revolution  qui  ramena  M.  Guzman  Blanco  an  pouvoir.  B.  Roncayolo  avait 

touche  55,000  fr.  sur  ce  qui  etait  di!^  k  Fabiani,  au  liea  des  30,000  fr.  qn'il 
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aTOtUkit  avoir  per^ns ;  le  Miniature  d«8  Finances  ne  permit  pas  an  verita- 
ble or^ancier  de  faire  constater  ce  d^toumement. 

Fabiani  tenta  en  vain  d'obtenir  da  tribunal  de  oommerce  de  Caracas 
la  nollite  da  gage  invoqu^  par  MM.  Roche  et  Cie.  La  restitution  des 
traites  fat  bien  ordonD^e,  mais,  anssitdt  apr^s,  le  tribunal  rejeta  une 

requite  k  fin  d'ex^cution  provisoire  du  jugement,  par  la  raison  quo 
Fabiani,  stranger  an  pays^devait,  au  pr^alable,  foumir  un.cautionnemeDt. 

Fabiani  annon^a  qu'il  ̂ tait  en  mesure  d'offrir  toutes  les  garanties  d^ira- 
bles,  son  vapeur  Pauline  ̂ tant  arriv6  k  La  Guayra.  Mais,  quand  11  voulnt 

verser  an  dossier  sa  patente  de  navigation,  11  d^couvrit  qu'elle  ̂ tait  au 
nom  de  ''Roncayolo-Fablani''  bien  qu'elle  lui  eiit  ̂ t^  accordde  k  lui, 
comme  propri^taire  unique,  en  avril  1879.  II  y  avait  1^  un  audacieux 

abu8  de  pouvolr  co'tnmis  par  A.  Roncayolo  junior,  au  m^pris  de  la  transac- tion de  1878. 

Le  vapeur  Pauline,  r^quisitionn^  par  le  Gouvemement  v^n^zuelien  pour 

alder  k  la  repression  d'une  ̂ meute,  allait  regagner  son  port  d'attache. 
B.  Roncayolo,  comme  repr^sentant  de  Roncayolo- Fabiani,  solllcitait  le 

paiement  d'une  somme  de  63,000  fr.  due  de  ce  chef.  Fabiani  s'y  opposa  et 
le  montant  de  la  reclamation,  arr^te  par  I'Etat  au  chiffre  de  57,780  fr.,  fut 
consigue  en  mains  tierces  pour  le  compte  de  la  maison  Antoine  Fabiani  de 
Maracaibo,  car,  selon  la  demande,  les  Roncayolo  etaient  plus  stirs  des 
autoritds  judiciaires  de  cette  dernl^re  ville  que  celles  de  Caracas.  An 

demeurant,  M.  Guzman  Blanco,  chef  de  l*£tat,  qui  etalt  associe  dans  de 
grandes  entreprises  avec  B.  Roncayolo,  son  agent  politique,  s'appr^talt  k 
intervenir  directement  dans  le  conflit. 

De  graves  soucis  appelant  Fabiani  k  Maracaibo,  11  s'y  rendit  en  avril 
1880,  mais  11  y  trouva  presque  vide  la  caisse  de  son  agence ;  Andre  Ron- 

cayolo I'avait  pilie.  Apr^s  bien  des  pourparlers  et  des  dem^ies  avec 
oelul-ci,  Fabiani  comprit  qu'il  serait  oblige  de  capltuler,  tant  le  terrain 
etait  bien  prepare  contre  lui  k  Maracaibo. 
En  revanche,  B.  Roncayolo  etait  de  plus  en  plus  en  faveur  aupr^s  de 

M.  Blanco,  avec  lequel  11  etait  interesse  dans  la  grosse  affaire  du  chemin 
de  fer  de  laCeiba  k  Sabana  de  Mendoza;  Tobstination  que  Fabiani  mettait 

k  defendre  ses  droits  derangeait  des  combinaisons  politico-financl^res 

importantee.  M.  Stamman,  ministre  pienipotentiaire  d'Allemagne  k  Cara- 
cas, aura,  dit  la  demande,  renseigne  son  Gouvemement  sur  les  attenta1» 

et  les  Injustices  dont  Fabiani  fut  vlctime  durant  ce  sejour  k  Maracaibo. 

£n  attendant,  on  lui  avait  enleve  le  service  du  remorquage,  on  s'etait 
empare  de  ses  navires,  et  la  cour  supreme  avait  confirme  la  sentence  qui 

depossedait  Fabiani.  II  ne  restait  plus  k  ce  dernier  qu'^  retoumer  en 
France  et  k  implorer  la  protection  de  son  Gouvemement,  si  les  autorites 
judlciaires  et  administratives  du  Venezuela  contlnuaient  k  se  liguer  contre 

lui.  C'est  alors  qu'un  ami  vint  lui  proposer  de  le  sortir  d'embarras,  moyen- 
nant  qu'llconsen tit  a  une  revision  de  la  transaction  de  1878  par  un  arbi- 

trage. Fabiani,  cedant  k  la  force  majeure,  accepta  de  suspendre  toutes 

poursuites  et  actions,  et  de  signer  un  compromis  qui  sanverait  peut-^tre 
Tavenlr  de  son  commerce  au  Venezuela. 

Le  tribunal  arbitral,  reuni  k  Marseille,  statua  en  date  du  15  decembre 
1880;  ses  decisions,  aux  termes  du  compromis,  etaient  executoires  au 

Venezuela,  sans  deiai  et  sans  qu'on  pdt  admettre  contre  elles  aucun 
recours.    La  sentence  qu'il  rendit  pent  se  resumer  alnsi : 

1<^.  Les  oomptes  de  Fabiani  furent  reconnus  exacts ;  le  debit  d'Andre 

'^-^v.. 
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Roneayolo  tat  fix^  h,  la  somme  de  538,359  fr.  07  cent.,  tonte  r^lamation  Ini 
^tant  interdite  au  snjet  des  dits  comptes ; 

2^.  L'enterprise  da  remorqaage  fat  d^clar^  la  propri^^t^  excloaive  de 
Fabiani,  depais  le  30  novembre  1877,  comme  aossi  lea  vapears  Eclair, 
Mara,  Pauline,  et  lea  engine  et  accessoires  destines  au  service  da  remorqaage. 

Fabiani  fat  antoris^  h  reprendre  radministration  de  ce  service,  *'  ponr  en 
r^gler  la  gestion  k  sa  convenance,  sans  que  M.  Benolt  Roncayolo,  ni  M. 

Andr^  Roncayolo,  ni  aucun  tiers  puissent  s'y  immiscer  directement  ou 
indirectement/'  Pinsertion  du  nom  de  B.  Roncayolo  dans  Tacte  de  con- 

cession ''ay ant  ̂ t^  la  consequence  d'ane  faute/'  B.  Roncayolo  etait  tenn 
cependaut,  h  peine  de  dommages  et  int^rdts,  de  laisser  son  nom  tigurer 

dans  Tentreprise,  si  Fabiani  le  jageait  pins  conforme  ^ses  int<^r^ts,  ou  si  le 
Gk>avememeut  v^n^za^lien  se  refusait  k  modifier  la  concession  snr  ce  point; 

3°.  Tons  les  produits  da  remorqaage,  depuis  le  30  novembre  1877,  y  com- 
pris  les  benefices  du  pilotage  d^s  lam^me  date,  furent  attribu<5s  k  Fabiani; 
les  personnes  qai  les  avaient  touches  avaient  Tobligation  de  les  lui  restituer ; 

4<^.  B.  et  A.  Roncayolo  furent  condamnds  solidaireiuent  au  cofit  de  I'en- 
registrement  de  la  sentence  arbitrale  et  de  ses  annexes. 

Le  compromis  liait  Fabiani,  de  m^me  que  Roncayolo  p^re  et  fils,  qui  y 
avaient  adb^r^  tons  les  deux.  La  sentence,  rendue  par  deux  arbitres,  qui 
<$taient.  Tun,  le  frere  et  cr^ancier  de  B.  Roncayolo,  Tautre,  Toncle  et 
cT^ancier  de  Fabiani,  fnt  enregistrde  h  Marseille  le  17  d6cembre  1880  et 

d^clar^e  ex^cntoire  le  21  mSme  mois  par  le  president  du  tribunal  de  pre- 
miere instance  de  cette  ville. 

Les  Roncayolo  form^rent  opposition  k  Tex^cution  de  la  sentence  arbi- 
trale, en  requ^rant  Fannulation  da  compromis  de  Caracas  et  la  revocation 

de  Tordonnance  d'exequatnr.  Ddbout^s  par  jngenient  du  tribunal  de 

premiere  instance  de  Marseille,  du  1*'''  avril  1881,  ils  interjet^rent  appel ;  mais 
la  coar  d^appel  d'Aix  confirma  la  decision  du  tribunal  de  Marseille  par 
son  arrSt  du  25  jnillet  suivant,  et  il  n'y  eut  pas  de  pourvoi  en  cassation. 

Avant  le  prononc6  de  Farr^t  d'appel,  Fabiani,  qui  etait  retourne  en 
Europe,  repartit  pour  Caracas  dans  le  but  d'introduire  et  de  diriger  la  pro- 

cedure d'execution.  Mais  divers  indices  et  renseignements  lui  firent 
craindre  de  nonvelles  difficnltes.  Trois  jours  apr^s  son  arrivde  k  Caracas 
vers  la  fin  de  mai  1881,  Fabiani  ecrivit  k  M.  Guzman  Blanco  x>our  lui 

annoncer  que  le  paiement  d*une  somme  de  plus  de  40,000  fr.,  reclame  an  Goa- 
vemement  par  B.  Roncayolo,  devait  ̂ tre  effectne  entre  ses  mains  k  Ini, 
Fabiani,  en  vertu  do  la  sentence  arbitrale  du  15  decembre  1880;  11  le  priait, 
en  m^me  temps,  de  difierer  le  paiement  de  la  dite  somme.  Cette  lettre 
deraenra  sans  reponse.  Le  7  juin  1881,  il  deposa  au  greffe  de  la  baute 

conr  federale  Toriginal  et  la  traduction  du  dossier  de  I'arbitrage,  ainsi 
qu'une  demande  d'exequatur. 

II  ne  s'agissait,  en  Pesp^ce,  que  d'nne  simple  formalite,  k  nioins  d'nne 
veritable  denegation  de  justice  de  la  part  de  la  baute  cour  (art.  556  et 

suiv.  C.  proc.  civ.  venez.).  Des  renvois,  des  incidents,  des  intrigues  retar- 

d^rent  la  solution  de  I'aifaire.  En  fin  de  compte,  bien  qu'il  eftt  ete  etabli 
au  cours  des  plaidoyers,  par  des  documents  irrecosables,  que  Tordonnance 

d'execution  du  president  du  tribunal  de  Marseille  avait  ete  confirmee 
ansai  bien  en  appel  qu'en  premiere  instance,  la  baute  cour  federale,  le  11 
novembre  1881,  se  declara,  par  cinq  voix  contre  quatre,  incompetente  pour 

donner  force  executoire  Ji  la  sentence  arbitrale,  attendn,  ''qu'on  ne  peat 
considerer  comme  an  tribunal  de  France  la  reunion  des  arbitres  qni  a  en 
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lieaii  Marseille/' et  qa'ane  ordonnance  judiciaire  d'exdciition  ^'ne  peut 

convertir  en  juges  de  la  nation  ceux  qui  ne  le  soot  pas  et  en  sentence  d'lin 
tribunal  Stranger  ce  qui  est  siniplement  le  complement  d^in  contraf 
{Annexe  1,  <le  la  defense,  p.  23  et  suiv.). 

Les  quatre  jnges  formant  miooritd  proteaterent,  dans  des  ''reserves'' 
inotiT^es,  la  sentence  arbitral e  satisfaisant,  selon  enx,  ̂   toutes  les  condi- 

tions prescrites  par  Tart.  557  du  Code  de  procedure  civile  vdn^zu^lien  et 
son  assimilation  a  un  jugement  ordinaire  nVtaut  pas  contestable. 

Une  nouvelle  instance  fut  introduite,  et,  le  6  juin  1882,  la  haute  cour 

fi^d^rale,  dont  la  composition  avait  partiellement  chaag6  dans  rintervalle, 

"d^clarait  ex^cutoire  au  V^n^zu^la  la  sentence  de  la  cour  d'app.  1  d'Aix." 
Fabiani,  sur  le  conseil  d'un  ami,  commuiiiqua  ce  r<^su]tat  h  M.  Blauco,  qui, 
an  lieu  de  respecter  les  decisions  judiciaires  intervennes,  commenva  par 
mander  b,  sou  ministre  des  finances  de  verser  h  B.  Roncayolo  une  sommo 
de  28,000  fr.  due  h  Fabiani  pour  emploi  r<^cent  du  vapeur  Pauline  dans 

rintdrot  de  I'Etat.  Fabiani  ue  s'empressa  pas  moins,  malgr6  rbo8tilit6  dn 

pouvoir,  de  requ<rrir  Texdcution  effective  du  jugement  arbitral.  II  s'em- 
barqua  pour  Maraca7bo;  uno  inscription  hypotb^caire  fut  prise,  di'S  le  14 
juin  1882,  contre  B.  et  A.  Roncayolo  sur  tous  les  droits  lenr  appartenant 

dans  le  cbemin  de  fer  et  sur  la  douaue  de  la  Ce'iba,  et  une  autre  inscrip- 
tion, de  120,000  fr..  sur  la  section  Tmjillo  du  chemin  de  fer.  Mais  les  Ron- 

cayolo, Boutenus  au  reste  par  le  president  de  TEtat  de  Triijillo,  venaient, 

par  un  contrat  frauduleux,  de  cinder  tous  leurs  droits  h  un  tiers. 

Lo  juge  de  premiere  instance,  h  Maracaibo,  ordonna  Fcxc'cution  de  la 
sentence  au  b^n^^fice  de  laqnelle  se  tronvait  Fabiaui;  les  Roncayolo 

demand^rent  alors  sa  r^^cusation.  II  se  rdcusa  d'abord,  puis  so  ravisaut, 

d^bouta  les  opposants  de  leurs  conclusions  formulif'os  contre  sa  deruiere 
decision  et  ddcreta  I'envoi  en  possession  des  nav  ires,  le  14  juillet  1882. 

Sur  ces  entrefaites,  Fabiaui  tomba  malade  de  la  fiovre  janne.  La  pro- 

c<^dure  d'ex^cution  fut  suspendue  sans  raisous  plausibles;  cu  particulier, 

le  jnge,  qui  n'aurait  dft  admettre  aucun  pourvoi  contre  le  mandat  d*ex^.cn- 
tionpar  lui  d^cern^,  acoueillit,  avec  effet  d^volutif  seulemeut,  il  est  vrai, 

Tappel  int>erjete  contre  son  d^cret.  Les  adver::iaires  de  Fabiaui  recou- 
mrent  au  juge  snp^rieur,  qui  attribna  h  Pappel  un  double  elfet,  dJvolutif 
et  Buspensif.  Tout  acte  de  procedure  ̂ tait  interdit  jusqu^\  oe  qu41  edt  6t6 

prononc<^  en  instance  d'appel. 
L'admission  de  I'appel  h  deux  effets  violait  la  loi,  ainsi  quo  la  haute 

cour  fed<Srale  le  reconnut,  dans  son  arret  du  8  d<^xerabre  1883,  en  declarant 

(lue  rex(^cution  avait  6t6  interrompue  par  ''des  recours  ilL'gaux  lorsqu'il 
s*ngtt  de  Texdcution  d*nne  sentence.''  Aux  yeux  de  Fabiani,  le  juge-prdsi- 
dent  de  la  cour  sup^rieure  <^tait  rinstrument  des  Roncayolo.  Fabiani 
Rouleva  le  recours  de  fait  devant  la  cour  supdrieure  contre  la  decision  de 

ce  magistrat  et  le  rdousa  du  m6me  coup.  II  rentra  bidntot  apr^s  en  Europe, 
en  coufiant  la  garde  de  ses  int^r^ts  h.  ses  amis  et  reprdscntants. 

Trois motifs  der<Sousationavaient  6t6  invoqui^s.  Les  enncmisde  Fabiani, 

ddsireux  dVn  fiuir,  parviurent  h  fairc  modifier  la  constitution  de  I'Etat  de 
Falcon-Znlia,  daus  le  sens  que,  ''  pour  les  cas  de  r<^cusation  du  juge  sup6- 

rienr,  son  suppliant  n'aurait  plus  bcsoin  d'etre  docteur  en  jurisprudence," 
et  que,  pour  connaitre  de  la  recusation,  la  cour  supreme  furmerait  nne 

liste  d'avo(  ate  et  de  citoyeus,  parmi  lesquels  le  gouverueur—qui  dtait  le 
fr^re  d'un  des  avocats  des  Roncayolo— choisirait  le  suppliant. 

Le  jage-snppieant  design^  pour  statner  sur  le  premier  motif  de  rdcusa- 
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tioD;  r^carta,  et  se  retira  dha  qn^l  eut  k  se  prononcer  snr  le  deaxit^me.  II 
fat  remplac^  par  uue  creature  des  Roncayoloet  de  leurs  allies,  qui  d^bonta 
Fabiaiii.  line  troisieme  r^cusatiou  ayaut  ̂ t^  propos^e  pour  manifestation 

d^opiuion  le  magistrat  la  d<Sclara  irrecevable,  parce  qu^ine  formalit^^  de 
proo<^dare  ne  fut  pas  remplie  ensuite  d'on  oubli.  La  ddcisioD  fnt  aussit^jt 
frappde  d'appel ;  11  refusa  d'admettre  le  pourvoi  et  la  conr  supreme  fut 
saisie. 

Entre  temps,  les  autorit^S;  k  en  croire  les  lettres  des  fond^s  de  pou- 
voirs  de  Fabiani,  consid^raient  les  vapours  de  celui-ci  ( omuio  leur  bien. 

On  escomptait  rannnlation  du  mandat  d*ex6cution  et  Ton  se  promettait 
d'^craser  Fabiani  en  exigeant  de  lui  le  rembonrsement  imm^diat  des 
recettes  du  remorquage,  les  frais  jndiciaires  et  les  bonoraires  des  avocats 

poursuivants. 
11  y  avait  un  moyen  encore  de  conjurer  les  efforts  des  Ronoayolo: 

provoquer  Tintervention  de  I'exi^xutif  f^d^ral,  qni,  d'apr<^8  le  sec.  17  de 
I'art.  13  de  la  constitution,  devait  Teiller  k  Fexdcution  "des  d<^crets  et 
ordres''  que  les  '^tribunaux  de  la  f^d^ration  reudraient  dans  Texercice  de 

leurs  attributions  et  de  leurs  facnlt^s  Mgales.''  Le  miuistre  de  Flnt^rieur, 

invit<5  a  agir,  le  2  juillet  1883.  rc'pondit,  le  9  m^me  mois,  que  "lExdcutif 
national  a  d<5cldd  que  c'est  li  la  baute  cour  f^d^rale  qu'il  appsirtient  de 
faire  observer  ses  dispositions  et  que  c'est  k  elle  que  doit  s'adresser 
rint^ressd.'V 

Fal.ianl  revlut  devant  la  haute  cour.  Mais,  dans  Fintervulle,  pour 

d^truire  par  anticipation  Teffet  d'une  decision  nouvelle,  le  Pr<:^sident  de 
la  R^publiquc,  M.  Guzman  Blanco,  par  une  resolution  du  21  aoftt  1883, 
approuva  la  cession  frauduleuse  du  contrat  de  cbemin  de  fer  do  la  Ceiba 

consentie  par  B.  Koncayolo,  soustrayant  ainsl  les  biens  d*iin  d^^blteur  a 
raction  d'un  crdancler.  Enfin,  le  8  d^cembre  1883,  la  haute  cour  d^olda 

que  le  juge  de  premiere  instance  devait  con  tinner  uue  ex('cution  lUegale- 
ment  arretj'e  depuls  ie  14  juillet  1882.  ^ 

Le  28  junvier  1884  le  juge  competent  dccema  un  mandat  d'exc'cution,  qui 
visait  spi^cialement  les  droits  et  actions  de  B.  Roncayolo  dans  le  chemin 
de  fet  et  sur  la  douane  de  la  Ceiba.  Cette  decision  du  juge  de  Maracaibo 
devait  prt^cipiter  les  <^vdnements.  La  Gaceta  Ofivial,  dn  21  fd\^ier  1884, 
notlfia  que,  par  un  contrat  dat^  de  la  veille,  lo  service  du  remorquage,  des 
bouses  et  dn  pilotage  dans  la  lagune  et  sur  la  barre  de  Maracaibo,  dont 

Fabiani  venait  d'etre  remls  en  possession  palsible,  <$tait  oonc^d^  k  un 
prete-nom  de  13.  Roncayolo.  Or,  ce  contrat  ai>parai8sait  comme  un  acte 
de  vengeance;  coincidence  singnli^re,  il  fut  8ign6  le  jour  meme  oii  M. 
Blanco  avait  dn  rdsig^er  ses  fonctions  pr^sidentielles  entre  les  mains  de 
son  ftticcessenr. 

D^s  qu'on  oonnnt  k  Maracaibo  le  contrat  du  20  fdvrier  1884,  qui  causait 
un  prejudice  materiel  et  moral  considerable  k  Fabiani,  le  credit  de  celuici 

fut  scrieosement  6branie  et  sa  malson  menac^e  d'tine  catastrophe. 
Bien  plus,  au  m^uie  moment,  le  23  f^vrier  1884,  la  cour  supreme  do 

Falcon-Zulia,  sonlevant  un  conflit  de  competence,  d^niait  k  la  haute  <  our 
federalo  le  droit  de  fnlre  exdcuter  la  sentence  arbitraie  et  ordonn:nt  la 

transmission  du  dossier  k  un  tribunal  special,  pour  voir  annuler  Tarrdt  du 
8  ddcembre  1883. 

Cet  arrH  de  conflit,  sulvant  de  si  pp^s  le  retrait  du  remorqiiage,  niettait 

Fabiani  en  presence  d'un  tribunal  qui  n'avait  jamais  fouctionnd  et  dunt 
la  composition  etait  k  la  discretion  du  pouvoir  executif ;  il  etait  d'aillenrs 
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entach^  d^arbitraire,  comme  le  Gonvemeraent  et  la  haate  cour  Favaiont 

reconna  implicitement,  Tim  le  9  juillet,  I'autre  le  8  d^cerabre  1883.  Mais 
on  esp^rait  ramener  ainsi  la  procedure  h  sou  point  de  d<Spart;  an^antir  tons 
les  actes  poet^rieurs  au  9  jnillet  1883,  et  livrer  Fabiani  h  des  Juges 

complaisants. 
Le  4  mars  1884,  le  Gouveruement  accordait  en  outre  k  B.  Roncayolo,  pour 

le  chemin  de  fer  de  la  Ce'iba,  une  subvention  mensuelle  de  2,000  fr.,  qui, 
toute  minime  quelle  fdt,  n*en  ̂ tait  pas  moius  destin<-e  h  montrer  oil  allaient 
les  sympathies  officielles.  Le  chemin  de  fer  avait  bien  6t6  c^dd  par  Ron- 
cayolo  six  semaines  anparavant,  mais  la  cession,  rev^tne  cependant  de 

Fapprobation  du  chef  de  I'Etat,  s'dvanouissait,  car  Roncayolo  avait  ton- 
jours  6i6  en  fait  le  propridtaire  de  la  ligne.  Senlement,  11  nfft^ait  plus 
rieu  h  craindre  de  Fabiani,  et,  par  un  subterfuge,  les  droits  de  Roncayolo 
pouvaient  ̂ tre  rend  us  illnsoires,  sHl  le  fallait,  pour  contrecarrer  son 
adversaire. 

Fabiani  retourna  au  Vdndzn^la  en  mai  1884.  Le  tribunal  d'exception, 
qui  aurait  dd  statuer  d'office  et  sans  d<^lai  sur  I'arret  de  conflit,  ne  se 
r^nnissait  point.  L'inflnence  de  M.  Blanco  demeurait  prdpond^^rante  et 
sa  haine  s'acharnait  contre  Fabiani.  Tout  6tait  perdu,  d'autant  plus  que, 
le  26  octobre  1885,  B.  Roncayolo  devait  odder  h  nonveau  ses  droits  sur  la 
ligne  la  Ceiba  pour  la  somme  de  298,600  fr.,  dont  178,600  d^jk  re^ns,  en 

sorte  qu'il  ne  restait  plus  que  120,000  fr.,  juste  la  valeur  de  Tinscription 
hypothdcaiie  incomplete,  prise  au  nom  de  Fabiani  le  16  juin  1883,  et  dee 

terrains  qu'on  eiit  vendns  pour  rien  an  cours  d'une  exprojiriation  forc<^c. 
Seule,  une  donation  ddguisde,  on  toute  autre  machiuation,  pouvnit  expliqiu-r 

Tabandon,  k  ce  prix,  d'une  ligne  de  50  kilometres,  qni  avait  dtd  construite 
k  grand  frais  et  qui  devait  donner,  pour  Pexercice  de  1890  k  1891,  un  bdnd- 
fice  net  de  pr^s  de  400,000  fr. 

Le  Gonvernenient  npprouva  ce  transfert,  bien  qu*il  ftit  notoire  au  V6n6- 
zndla  que  Fabiani  avait  des  reclamations  trrs  considerables  k  faire  valoir 

contre  les  Roncayolo  et  que  le  contrat  dn  26  octobre  1895  ddponillAt  b(>6 
ddbiteurs.  II  ne  fallait  pas,  poursult  la  demande,  songer  i\  intenter  une 

action  paulienne,  devant  les  tribunaux  de  I'Etat  de  Trujillo,  au  fond  des 

Cordillieres,  puisque  apres  des  anndes,  Fabinni  n'avait  pu  obtenir,  k  Cara- 
cas and  MaracaTbo  rexdcntion  de  jugements  inattaquables.  Plus  tard,  B. 

Roncayolo  rdnssit  k  se  faire  octroyer  une  autre  concession  de  chemin  de 
fer,  qni  a  represents,  pour  Ini,  nn  bdndfice  annuel  do  225,000  fr.  en  1892 

La  demande  rappelle  encore  que,  le  21  novembre  1885,  la  France  et  Vdnd- 
zndla  sign^rent  une  convention  pour  la  reprise  des  ndgociatlons  diplo- 
matiques  et  qutf  Fabiani  fut,  quelque  temps  apres  declard  en  dtat  de 

faillite  au  Vdndzndla,  pour  ddfaut  de  paiement  immddiat  d'nn  montaiit 
infdrieur  au  tiers  des  sommes  induement  retenues  par  le  Governemeut 

ddfendeur.  Elle  cherche  k  pronver  que  la  convention  de  1885  est  inap- 
plicable an  diffdrend  Fabiani  et  conclut  ti  la  rdparation  du  dommaf^e 

causd,  pour  faits  dn  prince  et  ddnis  de  justice,  irM'  les  autoritds  adwini- 
stratives  et  judiciaires  de  TEtat  du  Vdndzudia,  dommage  dont  TEtat  est 
responsable,  et  qui  comprend : 

1°.  La  rdparation  du  tort  dprouvd; 
2°,  Le  gain  manqud ; 

3<>.  Les  intdrets  calcnlds  d^s  la  date  des  actes  dommageables ; 
4<».  Les  intdrdts  composds; 



154 FABtANl   CASE. 

5°.  Les  sacrifices  faits  par  la  partie  l^s<^e  poor  ]e  maiotien  de  son 
Industrie ; 

6^.  Le  prejudice  resultant  des  d^penses  faites  et  dn  temps  perdu  pour 
arriver  ii  TexdcutioD  des  sentences; 

7<*.  Les  dommages  h  considdrer  comnie  la  suite  n^cessaire  des  ddlits; 
8<».  Le  dommage  oaus^  par  la  privation  du  travail  k  Pavenir ; 
9'\  La  reparation  du  pr^yudioe  moral. 

L'^tat  des  reclamations  Fabianaest  specific  oomme  suit  dans  ledemande 
en  capital  et  intdr^ts  capitalises : 

3". 

Etat  A.  JAquidation  des  sentences, 
^  Francs. 

Soldo  crediteur  au  31  aotit  1879,  r6duit  k        509, 183.70 
Interdts        630, 966.  Oi 

Annuites  totales  en  vertu  du  contrat  de  mariage  du  20 
avril  1867,  du  24  avril  1877  k  pareille  date  de  1892,  la 

transaction  de  1878  ayant  liquids  la  situation  aute- 
rieure,  en  capital         150, 000. 00 

Interns          96,70L00 

Perteeprouvee  sur  la  vente  de  la  moitie  des  march andises 

qui  restaient  k  liquider  k  Marseille — poste  dfi,  d'apr^s 
la  transaction  du  31  Janvier  1878          24,296.72 

Interfits          33,926.58 

Kecettes  du  pilotage,  suivant  sentence  arbitrale: 

(a)  du  1«'  decembre  1877  au  30  novembre  1878          16, 000.  (0 
Intdrdts          21,428.58 

(6)  du  1^'  deoembre  1878  au  30  novembre  1879           16, 000. 0(» 
Inter^ts          19,310.00 

(c)  du  l*"^  decembre  1879  au  30  novembre  1880          16, 000. 00 
JhUtHb           17,311.32 

(d)  du  1««^  decembre  1880  au  30  novembre  1881           12, 500. 00 
Interets           12.05L38 

(e)  du  1«  decembre  1881  au  16  juillet  1882    7,812. 4f^ 
Interfits    6,981.23 

Indemnitd  pour  emploi  du  vapeur  Pauline,  soldo  (abus  de 
confianoe  B.  Roncayolo),  annde  1879          25, 000. 00 

Iiitdr^ts          31,517.50 

Indemni  t6  pour  services  rendus  par  les  vapours  de  Fabiani 
(abus  de  confiance  B.  Roncayolo),  annde  1879          45, 385. 00 

Inter^ts          56,239.80 

Remuneration  due  pour  vapeur  Paulinef  ensuite  du  sauve- 
tage  du  navire  anglais  Angel  (abus  de  confiance  B. 
Roncayolo),  annde  1879          47,653.32 

Inter^ts          59,563.63 
Somme  payde  pour  le  compte  de  B.  Roncayolo  et  comprise 

dans  le  montant  des  condamnations  pecuniaire«  pro- 
noncdes  par  le  tribunal  de  commerce  de  Marseille, 
mais  ne  faisant  pas  double  emploi  aveo  des  sommes  dues 

en  vertue  de  la  transaction  de  1878 — annee  1879    8, 363. 84 
Intdrfits          10,734.38 
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Francs. 

^.  D^toarnement  d'une  somme  pay^  par  TEtat,  poor  yapear 
Pauline  (voyage  de  mai  1879  k  La  Gaayra)    10. 000. 00 

Int^rets    12,176.38 

10».  D^tourDement  d'une  somme  pay^e  par  TEtat  de  Zulia 
poui^N^apeur  Pauline  (voyage  k  Coro),  ann^e  1879    9, 100. 00 

Int^r^ts    11,080.49 

11°.  Frais  du  vapear  Pauline  employ^  h  la  r^.pression  de  I'in- 
sarrectloo  de    Pio-Rebollo  (d6toamement  B.  Ronca- 

yolo),  ann^e  1880    28,000.'00 
Int^r^ts    31,716.67 

12".  Inti^rfets  1%  par  inois  du  l^'f  juiUet  1879  au  31  ootobre 
1880,  per;u8  sar  les  30,000  fr.  de  titres  d^tourn^  par  B. 
Koncayolo  (p.  639  et  647  de  la  demaode)    4, 800. 00 

Interots    5,242.14 

13°.  Assaraiices  du  vapeur  Pauline  du  1^^  jan'vier  1880  an  15 
juilletl882,  pendant  la  spoliation    19,333.33 

Int^rets    19,238.45 

14°.  Produitnet  du  remorquage  en  1880    100,000.00 
Int^r^ts    107,180.33 

150.  Produit  net  du  remorquage  en  1881    100,000.00 
Int^rets    94,453.13 

16«.  Produit  net  du  l^"^  anvier  jau  15  juillet  1882    54, 166. 51 
Int^rfets    48,403.73 

17^.  Somme  d^.tourn^e  par  les  Roncayolo  pour  service  des 
vapeurs,  en  1879    42,550.00 

lut^rets    38,023.10 

18 '.  Somme  alloui'e  pour  services  du  vapeur  Pauline  pendant 
I'insurrection  d'avril  et  mai  1882    28,000.00 

Intercts    25>485.07 

19».  Soldo  restant  dft  sur  les  17,880  fr.  allou^s  par  TEtat  pour 
le  vapeur  Pai/ZiiK',  ann^e  1880    9,780.00 

Intorots    10,084.94 

20°.  Frais  j udiciaires  jusqu'au  30  j uin  1882,  reduits  k  ..\    100, 000. 00 
Int.rpts    89,712.96 

Total  de  I'Etat  A    2,877,129.10 
D^uctions  h  faire  avec  int^rSts,  et  comprenant,  entre  autres, 

uiie  somme  de  79,536  fr,  12  relative  au  post^No.  1  ci-dessus.  204, 954. 96 

Montant  du  compte  des  sentences   2,672,174.14 

EtaC  B.  Get  ̂ tat  forme,  plus  on  moins,  un  supplement  du  pr^oddent;  il 
se  r^f^re  nnssi  en  partie  h.  des  decisions  j  udiciaires  non  connexes  avec  la 
sentence  arbitrale,  mais  demeur^es  sans  effet  par  la  faute  des  pouvoirs 
publics  du  V^n^zudla. Francs. 

1".  Verseuieiit  du  capitaine  Santi  non  entr^  en  caisse,  anuee 

1878    8,000.00^ 
lut^rets    11,385.58 

2^.  Montant  de  traites  fournies  de  Maracaibo  et  Caracas  sous 

la  signature  de  Fabiani  et  non  vers^  h  la  caisse  de 

l'agenoe,ann6el878.    90,701.64 
Int^rets   *..    128,867.36 



156  VAiaANI    CASE. 

.'».  Franca. 

3«..Jil^oiir8  d^tournds  par  B.  Roucayolo,  aun^e  1879    31, 009.  24 
.^^*     Int^rdte    38,545.56 

4<>.  D6bit  persoonel  de  B.  Roncayolo  en  vers  I'agence  Fabiani, 
ann;<e  1879    24,985.80 

Intr^r^ts    '^   30,154.74 
5°.  Deficit  de  caisse  imputable  h  A.  Roncayolo,  31  Janvier 

1879    29,610.44 
Int^rfets    39,198.47 

6<h  Pr^l^vements  avoa6s  et  illicites  de  A.  Roncayolo  31  mars 
1880    35.136.44 

IntdrMs   .'    43,161.83 

7®  Sar  primes  pay^s  h  la  caisse  gdn^rale  des  families,  l""  oc- 
tobre  1879  et  l«f  mai  1881,  de  4,000  fr.  I'une,  pour  les 
risqnes  resultant  des  voyages  de  Fabian i  au  y6n6zn6\a,.  8, 000. 00 

Int6r6t8    9,038.28 

8°.  5  novembre  1880,  frais  de  s^jour  k  Caracas,  avec  famille. .  11, 250. 00 
Int^.rfits    12,267.78 

9".  M6me  date,  frais  de  voyage  et  re  tour  avec  famille    18, 000. 00 
Int^^rets    19,629.38 

10".  31  aoftt  1880,  frais  de  voyage  et  sdjour  h  Caracas,  avec 
M.Tede8chi,enjuilietetaofttl880    4,800.00 

Int6r6ts    5,339.63 

11".  7  novembre  1882,  frais  de  s^jour  k  Caracas  avec  famille 
pendant  14  mois    37,000.00 

Int^rdts    35,317.65 

12".  Frais  de  voyage  aller  et  retoar  avec  famille,  5  novembre 
1882    18,500.00 

Int6r6ts   :    17,658.80 

13".  Credits  r^^'cls  on  supposc^s  faits  induements  par  A.  Ron- 
cayolo et  dont  le  recouvrement  a  ̂ t6  impossible,  annde 

1880    120,000.00 
Intdrets    139,657.79 

14".  Staries  et  snreetaries  de  Maihieu-Orenga,  dn  24  mai  an  15 
aoat  1880,  sor  166  tonnes  de  jauge,  suivant  tarif  Idgal.  12, 948. 00 

Int^rets    14,535.18 

15".  Staries  et  surestaries  du  Cesar- Eiienne,  318  tonnes,  da  24 

jninaul'^oc  tobre  1880    29,910.00 
Int^rdts    32,968.96 

16".  Staries  et  surestaries  des  Deux-AmiSf  24  juillet  an  9  oc- 
tobrel880,  1«6  tonnes    13,734.00 

Int^rfits    15,105.91 

17".  Staries  et  surestaries  des  DeuxAmiSy  V'^  avril  au  15  juillet 
1882,  186  tonnes    18,786.00 

Int<^r6t8    16,706.92 

18".  Remise  k  A.  Roncayolo,  5  novembre  1880    4, 800. 00 
Tnt^rAtB    5,185.24 

19".  Complement  do  frais  j  udiciaires  de  1883  h  1886    160, 000. 00 
Intdrfets  .......      135,023.56 

20".  Perte  des  capitaux  detenus  par  Roche  &  C'«  et  montant 

des  traites  d'immigration  (assignations  23  mai  1877) . . .  347, 814. 32 
Int^rdtSy  y  oompris  oeux  du  poste  n"  21  ci-dessous. . .  583, 716. 68 
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Francs. 

2V*.  Frais  jadiciaires,  etc.  (lea  int^^rets  sont  portds  an  nam^ro 
pr^c^dent)....          28,000.00 

TotalderEtatB..    2,386,451.18 
Deductions  consenties  (avec  inter^ts)         234, 304. 96 

Montant  du  compte  B      2,152,146.22 

L'Etat  C  concerne  le  service  du  remorquage;  11  se  moute, 
valeur  au  30  juin  1893,  i\  la  somme  de    1, 916,^48. 35 

Le  retrait  du  service  du  remorquage  ̂ quivant  k  une  d^n^gation^dl^  jus- 

tice, pnisque  le  Gouvernement  restituait,  par  I'interm^diaire  d'uil  fir^te- 
nora,  anx  Roncayolo,  une  source  de  revenus  annuels  considerables  ^e  le 
jugement  arbitral  avait  attribn^s  h  Fabiani.  Le  contrat  de  remoifi[|nage 
du  7  d^cembre  1874  avait  6t6  conclu  pour  une  dur^e  de  dix  ans;  i^  non- 
renouvellement  du  contrat,  en  1884,  ne  fut  quMn  acte  de  represailles  dirig^ 

par  les  pouvoirs  publics  centre  I'adversaire  des  Roncayolo. Francs. 

Pfaf  n       J  En  capital   4,200,00<».00 
i!.taxu...  ̂ Eni„t^rf.ts    3,544,369.12 

Les  dommages  et  int^r^ts  compris  dans  cet  <Stat  correspondent  aux  sacri- 

fices faits  pour  le  maintien  de  I'industrie  do  Fabiani  et  au  gain  dont  il  a 
6t6  frustre.  Les  frais  g^neraux  de  la  maison  de  Maracaibo  etaient  de 
52,720  fr.  par  an,  soit  plus  de  350,000  fr.  pour  sept  ann6es.  A  cela  il  faut 

ajouter,  par  172,571  fr.  93,  les  frais  g^n^raux  de  la  maisou  de  Marseille,  par 
102,660  fr.  18,  les  ddpenses  personnelles  du  manage  Fabiani,  par  589,425  fr. 

39,  le  compte  d'agios  et  int^rets,  plus  le  fret  de  plusieurs  milliers  de  tonnes 
perdu  par  suite  du  mauvais  vouloir  des  autorit^s,  soit  100,000  fr.  au  mini- 

mum, le  deficit  de  100,000  fr.  sur  le  produit  de  la  vente  des  navires,  le 
maintien  de  rindustrie  huili^re  exploitee  par  Fabiani  (au  moins  100,000 

fr.),  et  d'autres  pertes  et  sacrifices  pecuniaires  representant  un  capital 
de  plus  d'un  million  et  demi  et  de  pr^s  de  2,800,000  fr.  avec  les  int^rSts 

caicuies  d^s  le  1*'  Janvier  1883.  D'un  autre  c6te,  Fabiani  aurait  pu,  dans 
des  conditions  ordinaires,  r^aliser  un  benefice  net  de  200,000  fr.  par  an,  si 

sou  commerce  d'importation  n'avait  pas  6t6  arrets  par  Tacte  deiictueux  du 
7  decembre  1874  jusqu'^  la  transaction  de  1878  et  repris  ensuite  dans  des 
circonstances  particuli^rement  difficiles.  L'industrie  liuili6re  aurait 
rapporte,  en  outre,  pr^s  de  200,000  fr.  par  an. Francs. 

T?+o^*  T?       i  En  capital    6,500,000.00 
J!.tat  i^-'-^EniuUieU   2, 847,^995. 01 

Ce  poste  se  r^f^re  k  la  reparation  du  prejudice  immediat  et  direct,  cause 
depuis  le  30  avril  1886,  epoque  k  laquelle  Fabiani  etait  pr6t  h  reduire 
amiablement  ses  reclamations  aux  pertes  eprouvees,  en  eiirainant  tous  les 
dommages  et  interets  qui  derivaient  des  actes  deM.  Blanco.  Celui-ci  refusa 

d'entreren  matiere.  La  faillite  de  Fabiaui  fut  dedaree  pour  non-paiement 
d'nne  somme  de  70,000  fr.  au  plus,  alors  qu'on  lui  devait  des  millions  au 
Venezuela;  et  les  juges  de  Maracaibo  all^rent  meme  jusqu'^  soUiciter  les 
presidents  des  tribunaux  de  premiere  instance  de  Paris  et  de  Marseille  de- 
faire  publier  Tavis  de  faillite  dans  les  journaux  les  plus  repandus.  de.  ces 
deux  villes.     Cette  faillite  a  eu  de  desastreiises  consifqueuces  et  le  Gou- 
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▼emement  v^n^za^ien  est  responsable  des  d^nis  de  justice  qui  I'ont 
d^termin<$e. 

Francii. 
EtatF.  Frais  dn  proems  international    200,000 

Dans  cette  somme  sont  compris,  entre  antres,  les  f^ais  d'installation  de 
Fabiani  et  de  sa  famille,  h  Paris,  depnis  1886. 

A  ces  pr^jadioes  commerciaux  vient  s'ajouter  le  dommage  6proav^  dans 

Taftaire  du  chemin  de  fer 'de  la  Ceiba ;  Tex^cution  des  sentences  aurait  permiM 
a  Fubiaui  de  se  sabstitner,  d^  1881,  h  sea  d^bitears,  en  exer^ant  tons  lenrs 
droits  et  actions  (concession  de  la  ligne,  exploitation  de  la  douane,  etc.)- 
Cetto  entreprise,  qne  Fabiani  edt  men^  k  bien,  a  prodnit,  dans  les  oondi 
tions  les  plus  d^favorables,  an  b^n^fioe  net  sap^rienr  k  250,000  fr.  par  an ; 
lo  revenu  net  a  6t6  de  389,164  fr.  87  pour  Texeroice  1890  k  1891  et  il  doit  Stre 

aujonrd'hni  de  plus  d'nn  million.  Or  la  concession  ^tait  accordee  pour 

une  p^riode  de  pr^s  d'nn  si^cle. 
La  partie  demanderesse  r^capitule  ses  ̂ tats  de  dommages  et  int^rdts  et 

arrive  anx  totanx  snivants,  valear  an  30  Jain  1893: 
Franci. 

1°.  Pr^jadices  commerciaax   22, 944, 563. 17 
2«.  Affaire  de  la  ligne  de  la  Ceiba   24,000,000.00 

Total  g^n^ral    46,944,563.17 

III.  Dans  sa  defense,  le  Gouvemement  v^n^za^lien  relive  d'abord  le  fait 
que  Tobjet  du  litigeest  "le  ddni  de  justice  a]l<^ga6  par  Fabiani,  ponr  non- 
ex^cntion,  selon  lui,  de  la  sentence  arbitrale  rendu  en  sa  favour  h  Marseille, 
le  15  d^cembre  1880,  bomoiogu^e  par  le  tribunal  civil  de  premii^re  instance 

et  conftrm^e  par  la  cour  d'appel  d'Aix;  et  le  point  de  depart  ne  pent  etre 
autre  quo  Tarr^t  par  lequel,  k  la  date  du  6  juin  1882,  la  haute  cour  f6d6rale 
du  V^n^zu61a  k  donn6  force  ex^cutoire  dans  le  pays  k  la  sentence  de  la 

cour  d'appel  d'Aix." 
Or  la  sentence  arbitrale  d6cidait :  1°,  que  Tentreprise  du  remorquage 

devait  Hte  mise  sous  le  nom  de  Fabiani ;  2°,  qne  les  vapeurs  EclaiVf  MarOf 
ct  Pauline  et  tout  Ton  tillage  de  Tentreprise  du  remorquage  apparte- 

naient  k  Fabiani;  3**,  que,  ponr  r^glement  de  compte,  Andr^  Roncayolo 
restait  d^biteur  de  Fabiani  de  la  somme  de  538,539  fr.  07  cent.  Les  faits 

ant^rieurs  k  la  decision  de  la  haute  cour  f^d^rale  du  6  juin  1882  ne 
rentreut  point  dans  Fobjet  du  litige  aotnel,  en  sorte  qne  toute  la  question 
k  trancher  tient,  en  somme,  dans  ces  mots:  la  Sentence  arbitrale  a-telle 
^t^  ex^cntde  conform^ment  aux  lois  v€n6za^liennes,  et  la  suspension  du 

la  procedure  d*ex^cution  est-elle  imputable  aux  autorit^s  de  TEtat  d^fen- 
deur,  on  k  Fabiani  f 

£n  particulier,  Fabiani  a  tort  de  oonsid^rer  comme  un  d^ni  de  justice 

I'arrdt  du  11  novembre  1881,  ̂ man4  de  la  haute  codr  f^d^rale.  La  juris- 

prudence frangaise  elle-m^me  reconnalt  que  I'arbitre  volontaire  ^tant  nn 
mandataire  et  non  un  magistrat,  cette  circoustauce  enl^ve  k  sa  sentence 

le  caractl^re  d'un  Jugement  proprement  dit.  £t  si  cet  aiTdt  reposait  sur 

de  fausses  appreciations  juridiques,  il  ne  faut  pas  oublier,  qu*^  la  date 
du  6  Juin  1882,  la  haute  cour  d^clara  les  sentences  frangaises  ex^cutoires, 
lorsque  Fabiani  eut  d^pos^  en  forme  authentique  la  d^ision  de  la  cour 

d'appel  d'Aix  (art.  558  C.  proc.  civ.  v^n^z.). 
Les  clauses  du  oompromis  de  Caracas,  du  7  aoftt  1880,  qui,  en  prescrivant 
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rex^cution  immMiate  et  saus  reconrs  possible  aa  V^ni^zu^la,  rendaient, 

d'apr^s  la  demaude,  toute  companition  iuutile  devant  la  ]iaate  conr  fed^- 
rale,  sont  uianifestemeQt  contraires  aux  principes  g<^o<^raux  du  droit,  car 

aucnu  Etat  ne  renonce,  en  favear  des  institutions  d'un  autre  Etat  on  de 
conventions  eutro  parties,  aux  regies  Ibndamen tales  de  sa  Legislation. 
U exequatur  doit  ̂ tre  ordonn<^,  d^s  lors,  suivant  la  procedure  lixde  par  la 
loi  du  pays  dans  lequel  il  est  requis.  La  cour  avait  Tobligatiou  de  citer 

Tadversaire  de  Fabiani,  et,  s*il  Texigeait,  do  Ventendre. 
Quant  anx  d^nis  de  justice  rentrant  dans  les  termes  du  coiupromis,  ils 

n'existent  pas.  L'arr^t  du  6  jnin  1882  a  <5t(S  ex:'cut6;  les  tribnnaux  v^n6- 
zu^liens  on t  accord^  h,  Fabiani  tout  ce  qu'il  a  r^clam(5;  8'il  y  a  en  des 
retards,  c*est  qa41  s'en  produit  dans  toute  execution  entrav^e  par  un 
d^fendeur  qui  chercbe  k  faire  valoir  ses  droits  ou  h  gagner  du  temps,  et 

que  Fabiani  les  a  provoqu^s  lui-m^me,  soit  par  ded  recusations  intempes- 
tives,  soit  par  son  ignorance  des  lois  applicables  en  Tesp^ce;  et  eniin,  la 

sentence  arbitrale  e  6t6  ex<^cut(5e  en  conformity  du  droit  vdutfzuc'lieu,  jus- 
qu'au  moment  ou  Fabiani  ddserta  la  procedure.  Effect  ivcmont,  Ic  6  jnillet 
1882,  le  juge  Mendez  ordonne  rex<5oution  a  Maracaibo,  sur  requete  de 

Fabiani.  Les  Roncayolo  forment  opposition,  mais  ils  sont  d6bout<^s  des 

le  11  jnillet,  et  le  magistrat  dispose:  ''Ce  jour  ̂ tunt  le  quutrit  me  depuis 
que  Pordonnauce  d'ex^cution  a  €t6  rendue  (art.  301  C.  proc.  civ.),  un 
mandement  sera  adres8(S  an  juge  du  nrinicipede  San-Rapbai>]  en  d(^signant 
les  immeubles  et  antres  objets  que  Roncayolo  p/re  et  fils  doivent  remettre 

li  Fabiani  ....  pour  qu'il  le  mette  en  possession  des  dits  obJcts,  faisant 
usage  de  la  force  en  cas  de  n^cessit^."  Le  12  juillet,  le  tribunal  du  mimi- 
cipe  de  San-Uaphael  met  Fabiani  en  possession  di>s  vaju'urs  Eclair f  Mara 
et  Pauline;  le  14  meme  mois,  lentreprise  du  remorquage  ]iasse  entre  ses 

mains.  Si  le  juge  de  premiere  instance  admit  Tappel  d'Andro  Roncayolo 
avec  effet  seulement  d^volutif,  si  le  juge  8up;jrieur  Vaccueillit,  Ini,  h  deux 

effets,  et  si  Vex^cution  dcmeura  naturellement  suspendue  jusquau  juge- 

ment  sur  Tincident,  il  n'y  a  I^  rien  d'illdgal.  Ce  sonl  los  rt^cusations  non 
inotiv<^es  de  Fabiani  qui  ont  entrain^  des  retards,  en  arr.  tant  toute  la 

procedure  pendant  pns  d*une  annde.  Apr^s  avoir  teuto,  par  truis  loin,  de 
r^cuserle  jugesup^rieur,  ilr/cusait  encore  le  president  de  la  cour  supreme 

qui  venait  d*autoriser  son  appel  a. regard  de  la  sentence  prouonc^e  snr  la 
troifii^me  recusation. 

£n  soinme,  Fabiani  envisagea  qu'il  avait  tout  gain  k  interrompre  la  pro- 
cedure el  il  n'exer^a  coutre  les  juges  dont  il  tidtrit  apr^s  coup  les  actes 

pretenduement  iliegaux  et  criminels,  aucun  des  recours  donnds  par  les 

loin  nationales.  Les  erreurs  qn'il  a  pu  commettre  n'en^agent  pus  non  plus 
la  responsabllite  de  TEtat  defendeur;  Fart.  2  du  Code  civil  vcndzueiien 

porte  que  'Tignorance  des  lois  ne  dispense  pus  de  I'obligatiou  de  les 
observer." 
Fabfaui  affirme  bicn,  sans  prenves  serieuses,  que  le  ponvoir  exdcutif 

federal  intervenait  abusivement  dans  la  procedure  d'execution.  Mais 
c'est  lui-mdme  qui  sollicita  I'intervention  du  Gouvernement,  en  se  fondant 
sur  une  interpretation  erronee  du  sec.  17  de  Fart.  13  de  la  coustitution. 

La  separation  des  pouvoirs  existe  an  Venezuela  comme  en  Suisse  et  ail- 
leniB.    Fabiani  a  ete  nial  conseilie  ou  mal  inspire. 

Le  10  juillet  1883,  le  fonde  de  pouvoirs  de  Fabiani  s'adresse  de  nou- 
veaa  k  la  haute  oour  federale  pour  qu'elle  eigoigne  au  juge  d'execnter 
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rarr^t  da  6  jain  1882;  le  8  d^cembre,  la  ooar  fait  droit  k  ces  conclusions. 

C*<^tait,  aa  dire  de  Fabiani,  la  condamnatlon  du  syst^me  de  tergiversa- 
tions inaagur^  par  le  juge  sup^rienr;  s'il  en  est  ainsi,  11  devait  proc<$der 

contre  ce  dernier  en  application  de  1'  art.  341  da  Code  p^ual  y^n^zu^lien, 
sons  peine  de  perdre  son  reconrs.  Les  strangers  ne  sanraient  se  rdclamer . 

de  privileges  que  leM  nationaux  n'ont  point.  D'aillenrs,  le  19  Janvier  1884, 
le  tribunal  de  Maracaibo  ordonue  rex^cution  des  sentences  fran^aises; 

le  8  fcvrier,  le  repr^sentant  do  Fabiani  requiert  I'embnrgo  sur  les  droits 
et  actions  de  Roncayolo  dans  la  douane  et  le  cbemin  de  fer  de  la  Ce7ba;  le 

leudemain,  le  mandataire  d'Andr^  Boncayolo  forme  opposition,  en  all6- 
guaut  que  la  haute  conr  f^d^rale  n'^tait  pas  comp^teute;  lo  13  fcvrier, 
le  tribunal  de  premiere  instance  ^carte  la  demande  de  Fopposaut;  le  23 

cei>endaut,  sur  requite  d'Andr^  Roncayolo,  la  cour  supreme  de  justice  de 
TEtat  rend  son  arrdt  de  conflit,  et,  en  se  basant  sur  Fart.  50  C.  proc.  civ. 
v^n^z.,le  tribunal  suspend  Tex^cution. 
An  lieu  de  faire  trancher  le  conflit  de  competence  par  lo  tribunal 

extraordinaire  que  prdvoit  I'art.  16  de  la  loi  du  16  mai  1882,  Fabiani 
abandonnala  procedure,  en  pretextant  qu'il  chercherait  en  vain  a  obtenir 
justice  au  Venezuela.  Or  la  cour  supreme  de  TEtat  Falcon  avait  unique- 
nient  revendiqae  (cfr.  art.  89  de  la  Const,  venez.)  Tautonomie  judiciaire 

dun  des  Etats  confederes,  comme  elle  en  avait  le  droit;  tant  que  la  ques- 

tion de  competence  n'etait  pas  rdsolue,  Fabiani  ne  poavait  se  plaindre  d'un 
deni  de  j ustice.  Et  11  avait,  au  snrplas,  la  faculte  de  recberober  le  tribunal 
en  dommages  et  interets,  si  Farret  de  conflit  avait  ete  injustement  rendu 

(art.  57  C.  proc.  civ.  venez. ).  A  ce  moment,  en  effet,  il  n'avait  pas  d'action 
contre  le  Venezuela,  mais  contre  la  cour  supreme  de  I'Etat  Falcon.  II 
avait  k  suivre  la  voie  que  la  loi  trace  aux  etrangers  comme  aux  nationaux ; 

et  il  lui  etnitinterdit  d'exiger  une  indemnite  de  la  nation,  avant  d'avoir 
«^puis6  les  recoars  legaux. 

Relativement  au  service  du  remorquage,  le  Venezuela  pouvait  denoncer 

le  contrat  dn  7  decembre  1874  pour  son  ecbeance;  ce  qu*il  a  fait,  en  dis- 

posaut  que  le  nouveau  contrat  n'entrerait  en  vigueur  qu'^  I'expiratiou  des 
dix  annees  <le  la  conceMion  anterienre,  soit  des  le  8  decembre  1884.  L'Etat 

n'avait  pas  perda  son  droit  soaverain,  parce  que  Fabiani  avait  des  contes- 
tations judiciaires  au  Venezuela  avec  des  particuliers. 

I/bypotb^que  prise  sur  la  douane  de  Ceiba,  mdme  en  admettant  que 

les  droits  des  Roncayolo — au  roste,  c^des  h  un  tiers — fusseut  susceptibles 

«rhypoth^que,  ne  pouvait  produire  d'elfets  legaax  avant  un  jugement 
rendu  sur  Topposition  formee  par  le  gonvernement  de  lu  s(  ction  de  Zulia. 
I/iuscription  bypothecaire,  de  120,000  fr.,  radiee  lo  3  septembre  1887,  par 

les  syndics  definitifs  de  la  faillite  Fabiani,  n'entre  plus  en  ligne  de  compte, 
d'autant  plus  qu'une  inscription  resultant  d'une  sentence  etraugere  ne 
saurait  6tre  la  consequence  immediate  de  celle-ci,  mais  seulemeut  de  Vexe- 
quatur  accorde  par  les  tribunaux  nationaux.  Quant  au  contrat  du  21 
octobrc  1885,  Fabiani  devait  Fattaqner  an  moyon  de  Taction  pnulienne, 

s41  le  lenait  pour  frauduleux ;  il  s'en  est  bien  garde,  et  il  crie  au  deni  de 

Justice  avant  memo  d'avoir  saisi  les  autorites  judiciaires. 
En  outre,  la  convention  franco-venezueiienne  de  1885  n'est  nuUement 

eontraire  au  principe  de  la  non-retroactivite  des  lois.  Conforme  h  tons 
egards  aux  lois  anterieures  (art.  10  de  la  Const.,  art.  5  du  decret  du  14 
fevrier  %91S),  elle  ne  donne  ouverture  h  Taction  diplomatique  que  lorsque 



AWARD    OF    SWISS    ARBITRATOR.  161 

les  strangers  ont  ̂ puis^  les  recours  l^gaux.  Le  ministre  de  France  k  Cara- 

cas, dans  sa  note  du  3  aortt  1887,  a  reconnu  "que  les  rtSclamatious  ^lev^es 

de  ce  chef  (poar  ddnis  de  justice)  rentrent  dans  les  provisions  de  I'art.  5 
de  la  convention  du  26  novembre  1885."  Get  acte  est,  de  plus,  rOservO 

dans  le  conipromis  du  24  fcvrier  1891,  et,  s'il  n'<^tait  pas  applicable  h  Paf- 
faire  Fabiani,  toutes  les  reclamations  de  ce  dernier  seraient,  aux  termes  du 

dOcret  du  14  fdvrier  1873,  jiisticiables  de  la  hautt)  cour  fedOrale. 
Le  Gouvernement  dofendeur  critique  ensuite  Tdtat  de  dommages  et 

intOrSts  de  la  ]>  irtie  demanderesse.  La  plupart  des  indemnitOs  ri^clamOes 

sont  exclues  par  les  termes  momes  du  coinproniis.  Fabiani  n'est,  au 
demeurant,  croancier,  quo  des  Roncayolo.  La  faut'e  des  autoritt^s  vOnO- 

zuelienofB  n'est  pas  mieux  <^tablie  que  la  responsabilit<S  de  TEtat.  Toute 

la  dem.inde  repose  sur  des  atlirmatious  de  Fabiani  qui  n'ontaucune  valeur, 
ni  en  fait  ni  en  droit. 

La  defense  conclut  di'S  lorg  a  ce  qu'il  plaise  h  Tarbitre  de  d<^cider  que 

le  Vdnozudla  n'est  pas  responsable  des  dommages  que  Fabiani  dit  avoir 
Oprouv^'s  pour  dcnogations  de  justice. 

IV.  Dans  sa  r^plique,  le  Gouvernement  demandeur  constate,  entre  autres, 

quMl  appartient  h  Tarbitre  de  dotcrminer  souveraitiement  le  point  de 

d<^part  des  deii<^<<:ations  de  justice  jirdtendues  par  Fabiani,  le  conipromis 
Otant  r«Migt^  vn  t«'rmes  tri-s  genoraux.  Le  d(^ni  de  justice  est  nettement 

dOtini  a  Tart.  288  <lu  C.  p<^n.  v<^n»'*z.,  et  la  dt^tinition  en  est  tri'a  large. 
II  couvieut  de  remarquer  encore  que  I'arrcH  du  11  novembre  1881,  qui  est 

en  contradiction  flagrante  avec  celni  du  6  juin  1882,  oquivaut  k  une  d6n6- 

gation  de  justice  dont  les  const'^quences  ont  <^te  trcs  graves;  les  motifs  de 
cet  arret  sont  inadmissibles.  II  y  a  eu  violation  des  art.  5.56  a  558  C.  proc. 

civ.  vr'ni'^z.  et  refiis  d  ex<^cntion  d'nne  sentence  definitive  dans  le  sens  de  la 
conventiim  du  26  novembre  1885.  Larbitre,  en  consultant  le  Diario  de 

la  haute  cour  f«d/rale,  poiirra  v(^riHer  uicme  si  elle  a  teuu  du  12  au  31 
octobre  1881,  les  deux  audiences  prcvues  par  la  loi  (art.  Ill,  ibid.et  288  C. 

p«^n.  v^noz.). 

Tout.ce  que  dit  la  defense  au  sujet  de  I'opposition  des  Roncayolo  et  des 
rt^cusat'ons  de  Fabiani,  est  sans  concluance  au  vu  de  I'arr^t  de  la  haute 
cour  f  dtrale  du  8  di'ccnibre  1883,  qui  declare  cpie  rex<5cution  des  sen- 

tences francaiscH  a  <' t '  iuteirompiie  pur  des  recoiirw  illdgaux.  Grjlce  j\  des 
retards  coutraires  aux  lois,  Fabiani  ii'a  pu  iiiettre  IVinlmrgo  siir  les  droits 
et  a<'ti"nM  de  sen  dObiteurs.  II  a  fallii  des  :iuii.  es  pour  ne  pas  rendre  une 

ordonnaiice  d'ex<?cution,  (pii  ilevait «  trc  piononcce  si  an«  e  teiiante. 

Jl  n*  tait  pas  possible  de  recliercher,  au  prcalable,  en  responsabilit'e  le 
jiige  stiporieur  de  M.iracaibo  et  la  cour  supr.iue  de  I'Ktat  de  Falcon, 
puisque,depuiM  pr  s  de  quatre  an»,  Fabiani  n  clamait  vainemeut  Vejcequa- 

tiir  d'un  jugeui  ut  inattaquable. 

Suit  uu  **<'tat  d  Hniiif^'  des  prenves  invoqu<^es. 
V.  Le  Oouverncuient  <l(^fendeur  in-siste,  <lans  sa  duplique,  sur  la  circon- 

stance  que  des  nogociations  auxquellcs  1*^  coinproniis  a  ilonn(^  lieu  et  de 
sen  tcrmcH  in  lues  il  resulte  ̂ \\\o  cet  actc  se  ref  re  exclusivement  a  »x  fails 

posi  rie  rs  a  lairrt  du  6  juin  1882.  L'arrct  du  11  n«'verabre  18X1  <^tait 
partaiteineiit  correct,  puisque  fhouiologation  de  la  sentence  arbitrale 
n\  ta>t  pas  dotiuitive,  le  7  juin  precedent,  date  du  dopot  de  la  requ.  te  a 
fin  d  rsequaiur. 

£n  ce  qui  conceme  le  confiit  de  compi'tence,  ni  Fabiani  lui-meme,  ni  sa 
S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   11 



162  FABIANI    CASE. 

partie  adverse  ne  sont  adress^  h  la  coar  de  cassation  ou  k  la  haute  cour 

fM^rale,  pour  provoquer  la  solution  dn  confiit  et  ils  n'ont  pas  foomi  le 
papier  timbr^  necessaire  h.  la  proc<^dure,  qui  a  ̂ 16  abaudoun^^e. 

La  dnplique  poHe  en  principe:  quMl  n'y  a  pas  eu  de  d^ni  de  justice,  pas 
plus  d'apn^s  les  lois  v^nc^zu^liennes  que  d'apres  Tart.  506,  C.  proo.  civ.  fr., 
on  les  lois  allemande  et  Suisse ;  que  TEtat  n'est  point  responsable  des  aotes 

de  ses  fonctionnaires  de  Tordre  judiciaire,  si  cette  responsabilit^  n'est  for- 
melleinent  consacr^e  par  la  loi,  et  que  le  droit  v<^n(^zu^lien  ne  la  proclame 

pas,  taut  que  les  Strangers  lesos  n'out  pas  port^.  leurs  deniandes  d'indem- 
nit<S  devant  la  haute  cour  ft^ddrale;  que  rintervention  diplomatique  enHn 
est  inadmissible,  anssi  longtemps  que  les  recours  pr^vus  par  les  lois 

territoriales  n'ont  pas  6%6  ̂ puist^s. 
VI.  Par  son  ordonnance  de  juillet  1895,  Varbitre  a  invito  le  Gouvernement 

demandeur  k  produire  divers  documents  et  renseignements  compl^men- 

taires,  et  present  I'audition  de  diftV^rents  t'^^moins  invoqut'^s  en  demande. 
De  ces  tk^moins,  trois  senlement,  MM.  Plumacher,  R.  Seijjvs  et  F.  Osio  out 

pu  6tre  entendus,  en  presence  des  parties,  par  les  soins  de  M.  le  repre^sen- 

tant  des  Etats-lnis  d'Anic^rique  i\  Caracas;  il  a  fallu  pris  d'une  annde 
pour  recueillir  ces  tonioignages.  Des  quatre  autres  tdmoins,  Tun  est  d(5c«^d^ 

an  cours  du  proc<s,  deux  n'ont  pu  6tre  atteints  et  le  qnatri^me  a  refuse  de 
rdpondre  aux  questions  qui  lui  ̂ taient  posdes,  vu  sa  quality  d'ancien  Presi- 

dent de  Tun  des  denx  Etats  en  cause. 

line  partie  des  documents  et  renseignements  compl^mentaires  requis  par 

Tordonnance  de  juillet  1895  out  616  i'ouruis.  II  n'a  pas  ̂ te  pris  de  conclu- 
sions centre  Tanthenticite^  des  pieces  produites  de  part  et  d'autre ;  Parbitre 

appr<^ciera  librement,  en  consequence,  leur  valenr  probante  et  bur  force 

obligatoire.  Les  ditfioult^s  soulev^es  par  I'apport  meme  des  prenves 
litt^rales  ont  6t6  ̂ cart^es,  ainsi  que  cela  resort  des  d(^cIaratious  dis  Gou- 
veruements  int^^ress^s. 

VII.  La  procedure  a  6t6  declar^e  close  par  I'arbitre  le  21  octobre  1896. 

B.—En  droit. 
I. 

II  importe,  en  tonte  premiere  ligne,  de  d^terro  ner  exactement  Fobjet 
du  differend  soumis  k  Tarbitrage.  Aux  termes  dn  compromis  dn  24  f(6vrier 

1891,  la  question  litigieuHe  est  de  savoir  si,  *'d*apr^s  les  lois  du  Vdn^zu^la, 
les  principes  g(^n<^raux  du  <lroitdes  gens  et  la  convention  (du  26  novenibre 
1885)  en  vigueur  entre  les  denx  puissances  contractantes,  le  Gouvernement 
v<^n<^zu61ien  est  responsable  des  dommages  que  Kabiani  dit  avoir  ̂ pronv^s 

pour  d6n^gations  de  justice. ''  Inde^pendamment  meme  de  Tintentiou  des 
parties  manifest<^e  durant  les  n^gociations  auxquelles  a  donn6  lien  la 

convention  franoo-v6n6zu61ienne  de  1885,  il  r^snlte  a  I'^vidence  du  texte 
m^medu  compromis  et  de  rensemble  des  fairs  de  la  cause,  que  leGonveme- 
meut  d<Sfendeur  est  actionn^  uniquement  k  raison  de  la  non-execution, 
pur  les  antorit^  v6n<^zu6liennes,  dn  jugement  arbitral  rendu  k  Mar- 

seille, en  date  du  15  d<^cenibre  1880,  entre  Antoine  Fabiani,  d^ine  part, 

Benoit  et  Andr(S  Roucayolo,  d'autre  part.  L'Etat  ilemandeur  "ienible  income 
reconnattre  que  la  divulgation  de  justice  initiale  est  I'arret  dn  1 1  noveuibre 
1881  {liipUqi(ey  p.  2);  et,  coiunie  on  la  verra  plus  loin,  il  est  inutile  de 

rechercher  s'il  faut  cousidc^rer  plut6t  I'arretdu  11  novenibre  1881  que  celui 
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du  6  jain  1882,  comme  point  de  depart  des  re8pon8abilit<^8  ̂ ventuelles 
encourues  dans  le  sens  dii  compromis. 

D^uu  autre  c6t^,  la  signification  du  mot  ̂ *d6n^gation  de  justice"  vent 

Htq  pn^cisi^e.  II  convient  d'entendre  par  la  toute  acte  qui  devra  ̂ tre 
envisagd  comme  une  denc^gation  de  justice,  soit  d'apres  les  lois  du  V6nd- 
zu^^la,  soit  d'aprt^s  les  principes  gi^ndraux  du  droit  des  gens,  soit  d'apr^s 
la  convention  du  26  novembre  1885,  le  compromis  n'exigeant  pas  la 
concordance  absolue  de  ces  trois  sources  juridiques  et  des  differences 

essentielles,  ou  meme  notables,  n'existaut  d'ailleurs  pas  entre  elles  sur  la 
mati^re. 

La  legislation  venezuelienne  ne  fournit  pas  une  definition  directe  de  la 

denegation  do  justice.  Cependant  le  ddcret  du  U  f^vrier  1873,  sur  les 
droits  et  devoirs  des  strangers,  dispose  h  cet  ̂ ganl,  dans  son  art.  5,  que 

les  etrangers  out  le  droit  de  recourir  a  rintervi-ntion  diplomatique 
**lorsque,  ayant  epuisd  les  recours  b^ganx  devant  les  tribunanx  competeus, 

il  apparait  clairement  qu'il  y  a  eu  ddui  de  justice  ou  injustice  notoire.'^  Et 
les  art.  282  et  288  du  C.  pdn.  ven^z.,  du  27  avril  1873,  sont  ainsi  con^us: 

*'Tout  juge  exdcuteur  d'une  sentence  rendue  executoire,  qui  refasera 
ouvertement  tie  raccomnlir,  sera  puni  de  la  merae^peine  ediitee  par  rarticle 
precedent  (amende  ou  detention),  sans  prejudice  des  poursuites  auxquelles 

il  5^  aura  lieu  de  proce^^ler  de  ce  fait  (282).  Les  magistrate  d'nn  tribunal 
agrege  et  autres  jugesqui  n'expedieront  pas  les  affaires  avec  la  ceierite 
presciiie  par  les  lois,  qui  ne  dicteront  point  les  ordonnances «t  sentences 
dans  les  tieiais  impartis  par  ces  monies  lois,  qui  prorogeront  ou  abregeront 

induement  les  deiais  accordos  aux  parties,  ou  qui,  d'une  mani>re  quel- 
conque,  retarderont  la  solution  des  proc;  s  civils  ou  criminels,  seront  punis 

de  la  suspension  de  Teuipioi  pendant  une  durde  de  uu  h  six  moi8''(288). 
On  pent  pretendre  que  le  decret  <le  1873  ne  saurait  etre  invoque  dans  ce 

cas,  attendu,  qu'entre  la*  France  et  le  Venezuela,  la  question  du  droit  h 
rintervention  diplomatique  a  cte  rogloe  par  la  convention  precitee  de 
1885.  En  verito,  un  acte  international  a  etc  substitue,  sur  ce  point,  k  une 

loi  purement  nationale  (erf.  art.  10  de  la  Const,  vt'nez.  de  1881),  et,  bien 
que  le  compromis  r^-serve  Tapplicatiou  des  lois  venezueiiennes,  il  ne  vise 
que  celles  de  ces  lois  opposables  au  Gouvernement  demandenr;  or,  celle 
de  1873  a  ete  modifioe,  pour  les  ressortissants  franraiH,  dans  son  art.  5  du 
moins,  par  une  convention  jxisterieure,  obligatoire  pour  les  deux  Etats 
signataires  du  compromis. 

S'il  en  est  ainsi,  la  seule  definition  dont  il  est  possible  de  tenir  oompte, 
en  droit  venezueiien,  est  celle  des  art.  282  et  288  de  Code  penal  de  1873, 

qui  assimilent  a  une  tlrnegation  de  justice,  tout  faits,  d'une  autoritd  judi- 
ciairej  constituant  un  refus  d'exccution  d'une  sentence  rendue  executoire, 
an  retard  illegal  dans  I'expeditiou  des  affaires,  un  defaut  de  prononcer  les 
ordonnances  et  sentences  dans  les  deiais  fixes,  nne  prorogation  ou  une 

reduction  indue  des  deiais  etablis  par  la  loi,  ou  encore  tout  retard  quel- 

conque  apporte  a  la  solution  d'un  proces.  Les  refus  d'execution,  I'inob- 
servation  de  dolais  pereniptoires  ct  les  retards  iliegaux  qui  peuvent  ctre 

reprocbes  aux  jugrs  dans  I'exercice  de  leurs  fonctions  sont  done  les  trois 
ordres  de  faits  caractt-ristique  de  la  dendgation  de  justice,  dans  la  legisla- 

tion du  Venezuela. 

La  convention  du  26  novembre  1885  porte  ce  qui  suit,  en  son  art.  5 :  "Afin 

d'eviter  k  I'avenir  tout  ce  qui  pourrait  troubler  leurs  relations  amicales, 
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leshautes  parties  con tractantes  conviennent:  que  leurs  repr^sentants  diplo- 

matiques  n*intervien(lront  point  en  matiere  de  reclamations  on  de])lninte8 
des  particiiliers  dans  les  affaires  qni  sunt  de  la  comp<5tence  <le  la  justice  civile 

ou  pt^nale,  conform^ment  aux  lois  locales;  k  mpins  cependant  qu'il  ne 
s'agisse  de  dt^ui  de  justice  ou  de  retard  dans  la  procedure  contraire  h  la 
coutume  ou  a  la  loi,  ou  d'iuexecution  d'uu  arret  ddfinitif,  ou  enfin  de  la 
violation  6vidente  des  trait«%  ou  des  regies  du  droit  des  geus^  malgr^ 

raccomplissement  de  toiites  les  formalit^s  legales/'  On  a  paru,  dans  la 
deniande  tout  au  nioins  contester  Tapplicabilit*^  de  la  dite  convention  au 

litige  actuel,  en  invoquant  le  principe  de  la  non-ri'^troactivit<^  des  lois  et 
en  rsippelant  que  Taffaire  Fabiani  remonte  a  une  pci  iode  ant^rieure  i\  la 

date  du  26  noveuibre  1885.  Mais,  en  Tespeee,  ce  n'est  point  Fabiani  ])er- 

sonuelletuent  qui  est  partie  au  proces;  I'arbitvage  est  coiiclu  uon  pas 

entre  lui,  mais  entre  la  R^publique  Franvaise  et  le  Venezudla.  L'Etat 
demandeur  est  \i6  par  Vacte  international  susmentionnt^,  pour  toutes  les 
interventions  diplomatiques  a  venir.  Au.  demeurant,  la  convention  est 

express<^ment  reconnue  applicable  a  la  pr^^seute  contestation  par  le  com- 
promis  du  24  fevrier  1891;  elle  fait  loi  entre  les  deux  i»ay8. 

Une  d<51inition  directe  du  d^^ni  de  justice  n'est  point  denude  par  Tart.  5 
de  la  Convi'ution  franco- v<^n<5zu^lienue;  le  texte  le  signale  seulenient 

p.iniii  les  causes  d'une  intervention  <liplouiati(iue,  et  on  pourrait  nt^nie 
cniire  qu'il  le  distingue  en  qnelque  sorte  des  antres  causes  d'iuterventiou — 
retards,  inex^cution  d*uu  arret  d<^tinitif,  etc. — ou  qu'il  Ten  st^pare  nette- 
nient.  Mais,  sans  qu'il  soit  besoiu  d'examiner  ni  les  parties  out  employ^, 
dans  le  coniproniis,  I'expression  de  *' d^ui^gation do  justi<e "  coiume equiva- 

lent exact  du  terme  de  d<^ni  de  justice,  qui  est  g^'-nr^'ralement  adopte  par  la 
Igislation,  la  jurisprudence  et  la  doctrine,  il  est  perniis  d'aflirnier  que 

Tart.  5  ci-dessus  assiinile  pleineinent  au  dt'ni  de  justice,  (piant  a  leurs  ett'ets, 
les  retards  ilK^gaux  de  procMure,  rinext'cutiou  d'arrcts  dc'tinitifs,  les  vio- 
lati(»ns  flagrantes  du  droit  coininises  sons  I'apparcnce  de  la  l<^galitd;  dans 
tons  ces  cas,  Fintervention  diplomatique  est  doclari^e  admissible,  pourvu 

qu'il  s'agisse  d'affaires  rentrant  dans  *Ma  competence  de  la  justice  civile 
ou  p^nale."  La  condition,  pos^e  par  le  decret  de  1873,  de  I't-puisement  des 
ponrvois  logaux  devant  les  tribunaux,  n'est  pas  rappeloe  dans  la  Conven- 

tion de  1885,  et  il  serai t  excess!  fde  dire  que  Fart.  5  in  fine  de  cet  acte  inter- 

national C'malgre  I'acconiplissement  de  tontes  les  fornialites  l^gales'' )  se 
rapporte  aux  actions  en  responsabilite  dirigt'es  contre  les  autorit^s  fau- 
tives;  ces  **formalites  l^gales"  s'entendent  de  cellea  j\  I'observation 
desquelles  est  subordonn^  raccomplissement  de  Facte  judiciaire  qni  vent 

avoir  determine  un  dcni  de  justice,  ou  I'une  des  antres  canses  de  Fintcr- 
ventiou  diplomatique;  elles  sont,  par  consequent,  antcrienres  au  dcni  de 

justice  lui-mdme. 
En  consultant  les  principes  g^n^raux  du  droit  des  gens  sur  le  d^ni  de 

jnstice,  c'est-ti-dire  les  regies  commmes  j\  la  x»l"part  des  legislations  ou 
enseignees  par  la  doctrine,  on  arrive  a  decider  que  le  deui  de  justice  com- 

prend  non  sen  lenient  le  refus  d'nne  antorit^  judiciaire  d'exercer  ses 
fonctious  et,  notamment,  de  statuer  sur  les  requetes  (|ui  lui  sont  8ouniiS(>8, 
mais  aussi  les  retards  obstines  de  sa  part  a  prononcer  ses  sentences  (cfr. 
arrets  du  tribunal  federal  Suisse  des  11  jnin  1880  et  7  niai  1884,  dans  Ic 
Journal  des  Tribunaux^  ann(5e  1880,  p.  801.  et  aun  e  1884,  p  402;  Co<le  de 
proc.  civ.  franyais,  art.  506  et  507;  Garsonnet,  Traiie  thevrique  et  pratique 
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deprocedure^  vol.  I,  p.  225  et  229;  Hue,  Commenfaire  theorique  et pratique  du 

Code  civil,  vol.  I,  n^  180;  Holtzendorff,  ReckUlexikon,  article  "Rechtsver- 
weigerung;"  Wetzell,  System  dee  ordentlivhen  CivilproceeseSf  5™^  61.,  p.  815 
et  463;  Labainl,  Dae  Staaterecht  dee  Deuteohen  Reichs,  vol.  II,  n^*  242  et  243: 
Holtzendorff,  Handbuch  dee  Volkerrechtey  vol.  II,  p.  74  et  note  5  p.  75). 

Eu  r^alit<^,  les  puissances  compromettantes  semblent  avoir  voalu  attri- 

baer  anx  mots  '*d6nt5gations  de  justice'*  leur  signiHcatiou  l;i  plus  <5tendue 
(justitia  denegata  vel  proiracia)  et  y  faire  rentrer  tons  les  actes  d'autorit^^s 
judiciaires  impliqnant  uq  refus  direct  ou  dcguis^  de  rendre  la  justice.  Au 
lieu  de  reproduire  textuellement  les  termes  de  la  Convention  de  1885,  elles 
ont  choisi  une  formule  g(^noraIe  embrassant,  dans  les  limites  de  ladite 
Convention,  les  griefs  judiciaires  de  Fabiani  contre  le  V^ndzudla,  griefs 
qui,  sMls  sont  fondes,  ont,  en  partie  du  moins,  la  port^e  de  d(^nis  de  justice, 

tant  d'apr«>8  Tart.  5  de  cet  acte  international,  que  d'apr^s  les  lois  v^n6zn6- 
liennes  et  ie  droit  des  gens.  Ce  sont,  effectivement,  les  r^^claniations  de 
Fabiani,  coiuniuniqudes  h  son  gou  verneraent,  qui  devaient  inspirer  la  reac- 

tion du  c'ompromis;  et  la  mission  de  I'arbitre  consiste  pr^cis6ment  h 
decider  si  le  V6n(^zu<^la  est  '^responsable  des  dommages  que  Fabiani  dit 

avoir  <^prouvd8  pour  d<Sn<^gati(>ns  de  justice/' 
11  n'est  pas  donteux,  qn'^  T^poquo  o\  le  compromis  a  6iA  sign^,  les  recla- 

mations de  Fabiani  reposaient,  entre  autres,  i\  la  fois  snr  des  d^nis  de  jus- 

tice seiMit  etrictOf  et  sur  d'autres  faits,  tels  que  les  d^^nis  de  justice  eeneu 

lata  indiqu(^s  dans  la  Convention  de  1885.  Et  I'Etat  d^fendenr,  apr^s  avoir 
cite  une  note  du  3  aodt  1887,  ou  la  legation  fran^aise  h  Caracas,  r^duisant 

les  pretentions  de  Fabiani  h  "  ce  qu'elles  coinportent  en  droit,"  tout  en 
r^servant  'Me  surplus,"  et  invoquant  h  I'appni  de  sa  demaude  en  dommages 

et  interets  le  ''  refus  d*ex<^cntion  des  sentences,"  ainsi  que  le  defaut  "d'ex- 
ecution  des  sentences  en  temps  utile,"  —  I'Etat  defendeur  ajoute  ceci: 
''  Le  Gonvemement  du  Ven^zui^la  tronva  sans  fondement  les  pretentions  de 

Fabiani  a  redamer  nne  r.^'paration,  parce  qu*il  n'y  avait  pas  eu  deni  de 
justice,  ni  lien  de  recourir  h  I'intervention  diplomatique"  {D^fense^  p.  3). 
Ainsi,  Tobjet  du  diff«^rend  et  ees  origines  sont  reconnus  des  parties;  c'est 

pour  refus  d'execution  du  jugement  arbitral  du  15  decembre  1880  que 
Fabiani  pos8;'^dait  contre  deux  debit*?nrs  douiicilies  au  Venezuela,  ou  pour 
defaut  d'exncution  par  suite  de  I'admission  de  moyens  ilieganx,  qne  la 
France  a  pris  en  mains  les  interets  de  son  national.  Le  Gonvemement 

venezueiien  conteste  le  droit  de  son  adversaife  de  Pactiotmer  en  respcmMa- 

bilite,  non  point  parce  qu'il  n'envisagerait  pas  les fai ts  judiciaires  aliegnes 
par  Fabiani,  s'ils  etaient  vrais,  comme  emportant  des  denis  de  justice, 
mais  parce  qu/il  voit  Pabsence  de  denis  de  justice  dans  IMnexactitnde  de 
ces  faits  ou  dans  la  desertion  de  la  procedure  avant  Tepuisement  des 

reconrs  legaux.  Les  parties,  en  s'appuyant,  dans  le  traite  d'arbitrage,  sur 

la  Convention  de  1885,  ont,  quoiqu'elles  ne  parlassent  au  compromis  que 
de  "denegatious  de  justice,"  coD8id(<re  que  Tarbitre  pouvait  retenir  commo 
des  elements  du  proces  les  faits  rentrant  dans  le  cadre  de  la  convention 

prerappi'lde  et  constitutifs  de  denis  de  justice  en  droit  venezueiien  comme 

d'apr  8  le  droit  des  gens:  de  I'avis  meme  <les  interesses,  d^slors, et  confor- 
mt-ment  anx  text«8  applicables,  les  denegations  de  justice,  dans  le  sens  du 

compromis,  s'entendent  de  tous  refus  directs  ou  degnises  de  juger,  de  tons 
retards  de  procedure  iliegaux  et  de  toutes  inexecntions  d'arrcts  definitifs, 
moyennant  que  oes  faits  concernent  des  affaires  de  la  justice  civile  ou  pinole, 
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soient  impntables  k  des  auioriida  judiciaires  da  V6n6zu^la  et  se  soient 

produitH  "inalgr^  I'accomplissement  de  toutes  les  formalites  l^gales''  par 
la  partie  \6%ve. 

£u  revanche,  le  V^n^zu^la  n'encourt  ancune  responsabilH^,  selon  ]e 
compromia,  a  raisou  de  faits  otrungers  aux  antoritr^s  Judiciaires  de  TEtat 
d6fendeur.  Les  reclamations  que  le  demande  foiide  sur  des  '' fails  du 

prince,"  qui  sont,  soit  des  changoments  de  lejj^islatiou,  soit  des  actes  arbi- 
traires  du  pouvoir  ex^cutif,  sont  absolimient  sons  traites  a  la  d^^cision  de 

Tarbitre,  qui  ̂ limine  de  la  procedure  tons  les  all<5guds  et  nioyens'de  preuvo 
y  relatifs,  en  tant  qu'il  ne  pourrait  pas  les  retenir  en  vue  d'otablir  d'autres 
faits  concliiants  et  conneses  relatits  aux  d^n  gations  de  justice. 

II.  Ce  sont  bien  les  d^ndgatious  de  justice,  commises  an  cours  de  la  pro- 

cedure d^execntion  de  la  sentence  arliitrale  du  15  ddccmbre  1880,  et  Tap- 
pr6ciation  eveutuelle  de  leurs  consequences  pecuuiaires,  qui  forment 
Fobjet  du  litige  actuel.  II  est  cependant  nccessaire  de  relever  encore  une 
objection  de  la  demande. 

La  situation  judiciaire  de  Fabiaui  au  Venezuela  fut  liquidise,  d'abord, 

par  la  transaction  du  31  Janvier  1878.  Apres  une  sdrie  d'incidents 
Fabiaui  renon^ait  au  benefice  de  cet  acte  et  signait  le  compromis  qui  a 
donne  naissance  k  la  sentence  arbitrale  du  15  decembre  1880.  La  partie 

demanderesse  a  expose  qu'elle  avait  adhere  h  ce  compromis  sous  Tempire 

d*ane  force  majeure  et  qu'il  ne  couvrait  pas  les  dendgations  de  justice 
anterieures.  Mais  elle  reconnait  sans  detour  {demande^  p.  142  et  s.)  que 

Fabiani,  qui  aurait  pu  faire  casser  le  compromis  par  les  tribunaux  fran^ais, 

prefera  reserver  I'avenir  de  son  commerce  au  Venezuela  en  epuisant  tons 
les  moyens  de  conciliation;  Fabiani  se  contentait  ainsi  de  retat  de  choses 

cree  par  Tacceptation  de  la  Jnridiction  arbitrale,  et  d'ailleurs,  depnis  ce 
moment, ses  efforts  juiiiciaires  au  Venezuela  tendirent  uniquemeut  h  Vex4- 
cntion  du  jngement  du  15  decembre  1880.  Le  motif  tire  de  la  vis  nuijor, 
qui  aurait  affecte  le  compromis  de  1880  et  qui  reculeraitle  point  de  depart 
des  dencgattous  de  justice  comprises  dans  la  presente  instance,  ne  saurait 
done  etre  pris  en  consideration.  Des  denegations  de  justice,  en  vertu 

desquelles  il  serait  possible  de  rechercber  le  Venez^ieia  en  responsabi.'ite 
devant  Tarbitre,  n'ont  pu  se  produire  avant  rintro<luction  de  la  procedure 
d^execution  de  la  sentence  du  15  decembre  1880,  soit  avant  le  7  juin  1881, 

date  de  la  demande  d^exequatur  formee  aupn^s  de  la  haute  cour  fedc'rale. 
Aus8i  Tarbitre  n*a-t-il  pas  admis-i\  la  preuve,  outre  les  **  faits  du  prince," 

tons  les  faits  etrangers  a  I'inexecution  et  aux  effets  de  Tinexecution  de  la 
sentence  prerappeiee  f 

III.  La  procedure  d'execution,  introduite  par  Fabiani  au  Venezuela, 
remonte  aux  premiers  jours  du  uiois  de  juin  1881 ;  intenompue  k  plusieurs 

reprises  par  des  incidents  divers,  elle  fut  definitivement  suspendue  par 

I'arret  de  conflit  du  23  fevrier  1884  et  Tinactiou  du  tribunal  extraordinaire 
charge  par  la  loi  de  trancher  la  question  de  competence  que  sou  leva  la 

cour  supreme  d©  I'Etat  de  Falcon,  en  sorte,  qxCk  cette  heure,  la  sentence 
arbitrale  du  15  decembre  1880  n'est  point  ex(fcutee.  Les  denegations  de 
justice,  dont  Fabiani  pent  avoir  etc  victiine,  out,  en  conseciuence,  dft  se 
produire  depnis  le  commencement  de  juin  1881  jusque  dans  les  premiers 
mois  de  Pannee  1884. 

C'est  par  une  requite  k  fin  d^ejcequatur  des  3  et  7  juin  1881  que  Fabiani 
accomplit  le  premier  aotc  de  sa  procedure;   celle-ci  n'etait,  snivant  la 
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demande  (p.  165),  qu'une  "  simple  formality."  Assur^ment;  le  compromiB 
dc  1880  stipnlait  que  la  sentence  qui  serait  rendnepar  les  arbitresdevien- 

drait  immMiatemeut  ex^cutoire  au  V^ndzu^la,  sans  qu*on  pAt  admettre 
coutre  elle  aacun  recoars.  Mais  les  conventions  des  parties  ne  peiivent 

d^roger  k  des  regies  d*ordre  public,  comme  le  sont  celles  relatives  h 
l'ex<^cution  de  jugemeuts  Strangers;  cette  niati^re  se  rattacbe  h  la  souve- 
rainet»%  et  lea  principes  qui  la  regisseut  sont  du  droit  le  plus  strict  (cfr. 

Calvo,  Le  droit  international  iheorique  et  pratiquCf  5'"®  ̂ d.,  vol.  Ill,  p.  366). 

A  d'autres  ̂ gards.  ce  sont  les  lois  territoriales  qui  dt^terininent  exclusive- 
nient  les  formalit^s  et  conditions  n^cessaires  pour  obtenir  Vexequatur,  Ces 
formality  et  conditions  se  trouvaient  fixoes,  en  Tespece,  par  les  art.  557 
et  558  C.  proc.  civ.  v^n^z.,  et  en  particulier,  par  Tart.  558,  ainsi  conyu: 

•'Pour  que  la  sentence  soit  d^clar^e  exdcutoire,  il  faut  citer  le  dixienie 
jour  la  personue  contre  laqaelle  la  sentence  a  ̂t<5  prononc<^e,  et  que  les 
parties  soieut  admises  b,  discute^  verbalement,  en  audience  publique,  ce 

({u'elles  croieut  convenable  pour  la  defense  de  leurs  droits.  La  partie  qui 
introduit  Faffaire  doit  pr<^senter  la  sentence  en  forme  authentique.''  C'est 
h  tort  que  la  demande  critique  la  proc<5dure  suivie  par  la  haute  coar 
f^d^rale,  k  laqnelle  sV.tait  adress6  Fabiani  et  qui  a,  de  par  Tnrt.  556  C.  proc. 

civ.  v6n6z.,  "fonction  de  donner  force  ex^cutoire  aux  sentences  rendues 

par  lies  autoritos  ^trang^res ;''  la  haute  cour  avait  I'obligation  de  citer  et 
d'entendre.lesadversaires  de  Fabiani,  nouobstant  les  termes  du  compromis 

de  1880,  et,  ce  faisant,  elle  ne  s'est  point  rendue  coupable  d'ane  d^n<Sgation 
de  justice. 

II  n'est  pas  possible  non  plus  de  voir  un  d6ni  de  justice  dans  la  d^^cision  sur 
incident,  du  27  septembre  1881,  car  le  fond  de  la  contestation  n'^tait  pas 
abord^  et  il  n'y  a  pas  de  contradiction  insoluble  entro  elle  et  Parrot  du  11 

novembre,  ni  dans  la  circonstance  que  la  haute  cour  n'a  pas  si^g^,  du  14 
octobre  1881,  jour  de  la  cloture  des  d^bats,  jnsqa'au  31  m6nie  mois,  I'art. 
Ill  C.  proc.  civ.  v^n^z.  ne  prescrivant  aux  juges  de  rendre  leurs  sentences 

dans  les  deux  joars  k  compter  de  celui  ou  ''sont  terminus  les  exposes  des 
parties,"  qae  **sou8  reserve  de  dispositions  spi^ciales,"  anxquelles  11  a 
fallu  recourir  {Annexe  /,  de  la  ddfense,  p.  20  et  s.). 

L'arret  du  11  novembre  1881  ne  constitne  pas  davantage  un  d<^ni  de  jus- 

tice, un  refus  d^guis^  de  statuer.  Fabiani  s'adressait  k  la  haute  cour 
f6d^rale,  pour  qn'elle  ddcLirat  «x6cutoire  au  V^n^zu<^la  Tordonnance  du 
president  du  tribunal  de  premiere  instance  de  Marseille,  du  21  d^oembre 
1880,  mise  au  pied  de  la  sentence  arbitrale  du  15  meme  mois.  Benolt  et 

Andr^  Roncayolo  contestaient  la  compt^tence  de  la  cour  et  la  valeur  juri- 

dique  de  Fordonnance  da  juge  franyais.  Au  moment  mome  oil  la  proc<S- 

dure  d*ex<$cuti6n  fut  introdaite  par  Fabiani,  celui  ci  ne  poss<^dait,  ni  ne 
pouvait  possdder,  ane  copie  anthentique  du  jugement  d^finitif  dont  il 

requ^rait  I'ex^cution,  puisque  Fordonnance  du  21  d^cembre  1880,  port^e, 
par  voie  d'oppoaition  devant  le  tribunal  de  premiere  instance  de  Mar- 

seille puis  confirmee  le  1*'<'  avril  1881,  mais  d^f6r^e  aussitAt  apres  a  Fin- 
stance  sup^rieure,  ne  devenait  definitive  que  par  Farret  de  la  cour  d^appel 
d'Aix  du  25  juillet  de  cette  derni^re  annde. 

Aussi  longtemps  que  la  question  de  la  va1idit<^  de  Fordonnance  d'exdcu- 
tion  du  21  ddcembre  1880  restait  en  suspens,  la  haute  cour  f^ddrale 

n'dtait  pas  tenne  d'accorder  Vexequatur  requis.  II  est  vrai,  qu'eu  '^termi- 
nant  ses  plaidoiries/'  Favocat  de  Fabiani  a  produit  une  expedition  de 
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Farr^t  rendu  par  la  conr  d'Aix  (Annex  /.,  de  la  defense,  p.  18, 21, 32);  mais 
le  Gouvernoment  demandeur  n'a  mis  sous  lea  yeux  de  Tarhitre  aucun  texte 

]<^gal  qui  pOt  faire  considt^rer  ce  cotupldment  dn  dossier  conime  n'^taut 
pas  tardif,  et  Fabiani  lui-m^me  ne  parait  pas  y  avoir  attach^  d'inipor- 
taiico;  eflfectivemeut,  le  12  novembre  1881,  il  i>riait  la  haute  cour  fM^rale 

de  ''doniier  ex<^cution  k  I'arr^t  de  la  cour  d'appel  d'Aix^'  da  25  juillet, 
apr  8  avoir  6t6  d^.boul^,  comme  il  le  rappelle,  des  tins  de  sa  re«)nAte  tendant 

}\  obtenir  Vexeqnatur  de  la  sentence  arbitrale  doclar  e  exf'cntoire  par  Tor- 
douuauce  dn  21  d^cembre  1880.  Si  Tarret  d'Aix  rentrait  dans  Tobjet  de  la 
d^^.cision  de  la  baute  cour  f6d(^rale,  dn  11  novembre  18S1,  la  nouvelle 

reqnete  du  lendemain  aurait  dft  etre  forc^ment  ocartre,  attemlu  qn'il  y 

anraiteu  rtB  judicata  sur  ce  point  roniuie  kui*  les  antres;  .s'il  n'y  rentrait 
pas,  la  haute  cour  n'avait  ptiint,  le  11  novembre  1881,  Fobligatiou  d'ac- 
coruer  lexeqitatur  a  nue  sentence  (pii  n'avait  pan  encore  la  valeur  d'un 
jugenient  stranger  passe  en  force  de  chose  ju»;:fe.  Partant,  il  est  siiperilu 
de  discnter  le  mcrite  des  motits  invo<]U08  h  Tappni  de  Tarrct  prdcit^  de  la 

baute  conr  f«'dorale,  par  la  majorite  des  mcmbres  de  celle-ci.  11  ne 
pouvail,  an  reste,  y  avoir  de  <ldnegation  de  Justice  dans  le  cas  purticulier, 

spccialement  en  vertu  de  la  Convention  tianco-v<^u<^zuolieniie  de  1885, 

qu'aiitant  que  toutes  les  formalitcs  Icgales — soit,  notamment,  le  d6p6t 
r^gulier  d'uue  sentence  arbitrale  mnnie  il'uneordoiiuaDced^exiCution  non 
frapp^e  de  recours— auraient  (to  prralablement  accomplieH  par  Fabiani; 

ce  qui  n'a  pas  en  lieu,  ainsi  que  les  actes  ult«  rieurs  de  la  procedure  per- 
mettent  de  la  constuter. 

II  n  est  pas  intlispeosable  de  rcchercher  si  Tarret  de  la  Haute  Cour  f^de- 

rale,  du  6  juin  1882,  qui  decr^ta  lexrcuiion  de  I'arr.  t  de  la  cour  d'appel 
d'Aix  du  25  juillet  1881,  h.  6t6  ren<lu  dans  un  seuH  favorable  h  Fubiatii, 
parce  qu'on  redoutait,  an  V^n6zu<^la,  que  la  question  internationale  ne  Itlt 

posc^e.  Cette  diScision  n'implique  oviliMiiment  aucune  d<^negation  de  jus- 

tice; mais  il  couvient  d'examine  si  ses  etl'ets  n'ont  pas  dt^  compromis  d'une 
maniere  illicite  par  les  autorit^  s  judiciaires  de  TEtat  dc^lendeur. 

Certains  faits  exposes  en  demande  (p.  285  et  b.  )  laissent  supposer  que 

Tarrct  du  juin  1882  n'aurait  donu<>  qu'en  apparence  gain  de  cause  h  Fabiani 
et  qu'on  se  r^servait  de  rendre  illusoire,  k  Maracalbo,  on  elle  devait  etre 
ex^cut<^,  la  decision  de  la  haute  cour  federate.  Mais  ces  faits,  que 
devaient  prouver  les  declarations  de  MM.  Palacois  et  Kojas  Paiil,  ne  sont 

pas  6tablis,  Tun  des  t^moius  ayant  refuse  de  rdpondre  et  Tautre  n'ayant 
pu  etre  atteint. 

Qnoi  qu'il  en  soit,  la  s6rie  des  d<^n<^gation8  de  justice  commence  presque 
des  rinstant  ofi  Fabiani  tenta  d'obteiiir,  h  Maracaibo,  Texdcution  de  la 
sentence  arbitrale  pourvue  d^sormais  d'une  ordonnance  d^exequatur  en  due 
forme;  il  sied  de  remarquer,  avant  tout,  qne  la  defense  n'a  pas  m(>me 
all6gue  que  Fabiani  n'ent  point  satisfait  a  toutes  les  ̂ ^formalit^s  l^gales" 
pr^vues  x>ar  la  Convention  de  18^<5,  ])Our  arriver  h  Texecution  de  ses  sen- 

tences de  la  part  des  autorit^^s  judiciaires  auxquelles  il  s'est  adress^,  et  qne 
celles-ci  n'en  ont  pas  signals  1  insnffisance  on  I'absence. 

L'existence  de  d6n6g2;tions  de  justice,  h  compter  de  cette  dpoque,  rc^sulte, 
entre  antres,  de  Parret  de  la  haute  cour  f^ddrale,  du  8  ddcembre  1883, 

reconnaissant  que  Pex6cution  a  ̂ t^  arrdt^e  par  ̂ Tadmission  de  recours 

ill^ganx^'  (Annexe  II,  de  la  defense,  p.  187).  II  est  clair  que  I'incident 
soolev^  k  Maracaibo  par  la  partie  adverse  de  Fabiani,  4  savoir  qne  le  juge- 
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ment  h  ex^ciiter  n'dtait  pas  la  seiftence  arbitrale  mais  bien  I'arr^^t  de  la 

conr  d*appel  d'Aix,  "^tait  certaineriient  absarde,^'  comiiie  le  (lit  la  di^lense 
{DupUque,  p.  34);  Tautorit^  judiciaire  cluirgde  de  rex<^cution  aiirait  dft 
passer  outre.  Mais  si  Andre  Roucayalo  est  dtboutd  de  son  opposition,  si 
le  Tribunal  de  premiere  instance  au  civil  de  MaracaTbo  refuse  de  se  r^eiiser, 

le  m-rae  tribunal  n'en  accueille  pas  moins,  avec  effet  siuipleuient  d^voiutif 

d'abonl,  Tappel  interjet^  centre  ses  dc^cisions,  pour  le  recevoir  k  double 
eftet,  sur  Pordre  dujuge  superienr. 

Or,  Poppositiou  et  le  pourvoi  de  Roncayolo  devaient  Hre  <5cart<^8  sans 
examen.  ainsi  que  la  haute  cour  fdderalo  la  proclam^  dans  son  arr^t  dn 

8  Decembre  1883.  En  permettent  aux  adversaires  de  Fabiani  d'entraver 
sans  droit  Texecution  <les  Kentenees  franv'^ises,  les  autoriti  s  Judiciaires  du 
Vt  n<^zueIaontcominis  h  Tencontredece  dernier  desdenegatiousdejustiee, 

consacrt'^es  essentielleinent  par  radmission  do  I'appel  des  Roncavolo  avec 
ertet  snspensif;  il  y  a  eu  n*fu8  dr«jui8(^  <Ie  stateur.  Et  cette  opinion  est 

IbrtiHt'e  encore  par  le  fait  de  la  deniisHiou  du  jn«;e  Mendez;  il  est  au  moins 
vraiseinblable  que  ce  ma«i;istrat,  (jui  avait  ordonn^  les  premi  Tes  mesures 

dVxi'cution,  8e  sera  d6mis  de  ses  fbnc lions  pour  sortir  d'une  situation 
fausse  dans  laquelle  il  ne  voulait  pas  as^aIuer  plus  longtemps  nue  part  de 
resp<»nsil)ilii<5. 

Le  dt'^fendeur  reproche  vivement  h  Fabiani  d'avoir  cans4  lui-ra/^me  de 
jrraves  retanls,  h  raison  des  <lernandes  de  recusation  qu'il  a  prc'sentres 

centre  le  juge  sup'rieur.  Abstraction  faite  du  bien  fondtS  de  Tune  au 
nioins  des  causes  de  n^cusation  (Annexe  If,  de  la  defense,  p.  61  ets. ;  cfr. 

art.  59,  $  18,  et  art.  60  C.  proc.  civ.  v<^n(^z.),  et  <lu  dt'^sir  tout  naturel  que 
<levait  <^prouver  Fabiani  de  ne  pas  accepter  la  justice  <run  niagistrat  qui, 

t<»ut  en  se  rendant  Tnateur  dill.  galit«  s  manifestes,  s'obstinait  a  exercer 
sou  inandat,  il  sufiit  de  rappeler  que  toute  la  procedure  otait  arbitraire- 
nient  arnt  e,  contrairement  aux  v(eux  de  Fabiani,  par  radmission  de 
nioyens  irrecesables;  la  faute  originaire  retombait,  en  tons  cas,  sur  les 

autoriti<>8  judiciaires  qui  n'avaient  pas  repoussd  d  limine  de  sembbibles 
m<\veus. 

Des  mois  se  passaient  sans  qu'il  fAt  possible  a  Fabiani  d'exercer  les  droits 
ddrivant  pour  lui  de  la  sentence  arbitrale  du  15  d  cemhre  1880.  II  soUi- 

cita,  sur  ces  entrefaites,  Tintervention  du  pouvoir  ex<^cutir,  en  se  basaut 

sur  la  §  17  de  Tart.  13  de  la  Constitution,  par  letiuel  I'Etat  est  tenu  '*d'ac- 
complir  et  de  laire  aceomplir  et  ex«^cuter  ....  les  decrets  et  ordres  que 
....  les  tribunaux  de  la  Fc^doration  rendraient  dans  I'exereice  de  leurs 

attributions  et  <le  leurs  facultrs  L'gales.'^  Cette  dcman-be,  longuement 
critiqude  dans  la  d<^lense,  etait  a  la  fois  prudente  et  correcte,  ])uisque 

aussi  bien  Tordonnauce  iV exequatur  de  la  haute  conr  fdd^rale  u'otait  )>as 

respeet^Se,  et  qu'en  pareil  ctis  le  Gouvernement  a  le  devoir  constitutionnel 
d'assurer  radministration  de  la  justice.  Si  nieme  la  $  17  de  I'art.  13  precit^ 
ij'avait  point  cette  portde  et  si  I'cn  so  refiisait  a  voir,  avec  la  dem.-inde,  de 
la  malveillance  ou  de  IMncurie  dans  la  rrsolution  du  Pouvoir  exi  cutit  <lu  9 

juillet  1883,  Tarn^t  de  la  haute  cour  fedorale  du  8  ddcembre  suivant  pres- 

crivit  la  continuation  de  la  proctHlure  d'exdcution  snspeudue  par  des  **re- 
cours  ill^gaux."  et  ddcr^ta  implicitemeut  que  toute  la  responsabilit^  des 
retards  incombait  aux  autorites  Judiciaires  qui  ̂ taient  entn  es  eu  mati  re 

sur  ces  recours.  Cn  r^alitc,  les  retards  considerables  (^prouv^s  par  le  pro- 

cedure d'execution  sent  bien  le  fait  de  juges;  et  si  Fabiani  a  pa  on  dQ  en 
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occasionner  lai-m^me,  il  db  serait  pas  <^qaitable  de  les  lui  impiiter  h  faute, 
parce  qiril  n  tentc  de  inoditier  ane  sitnation  contraire  aax  lois,  qui  ̂ tait 

I'wuvre  des  tribunaux  v^.n^zu^liens. 
Divers  iudices  donnent  ^  peDser  qae  le  Gonvernement  d^fendeur  prenait 

ouvertenient  parti  coutr©  Fabiani,  et  que  cette  attitude  pouvait  inciter  on 

encoiirager  I'autorit^  judiciaire,  du  iiioins  dans  des  provinces  eloi«;n<5e8  de 
la  capitale  et  sonstraites  au  contr61e  d'une  opinion  publiqne  vigilante,  a 
mdconnaltre  les  <lroit8  d'on  demandenr  Stranger  auquel  des  personnes 
influentes  de  FEtat  ne  nK^nageaient  point  leiir  hostility.  Telle  est  1  appro- 

bation offlcielle  dii  21  aoftt  1883  donn^e  h.  la  cession,  consentie  par  B. 
Roncayoloi  du  contrat  de  cbemin  de  fer  de  la  Ceiba,  bien  qtiMl  fClt  notoire 

au  V^n^zu61a  que  cette  cession  avait  pour  but  de  diminner  ou  d'an^antir 
les  gages  d'un  crdancier;  telle  paratt  ̂ tre  encore  la  modification  adoptee 
par  la  l^giHlation  de  TEtat  Falcon  aux  art.  5  et  7  de  la  loi  organique  du 
pouvoirjudiciaire,  en  Janvier  1883;  tel  sera  aussi  le  retrait  du  service  du 

remorquage  qui,  dans  les  circonstauces  et  a  I'epoque  on  il  fut  ddcid<^,  devait 
6tre  interpr^t^  comme  nn  acte  de  reprosailles  dirig<S  contre  Fabian i. 

Une  nouvelle  dendgation  de  justice,  du  caracti're  le  plus  grave,  allait  se 
produire.  Le  jnge  de  premiere  instance  de  Maracaibo,  se  conformant  k 
Farret  do  la  haute  cour  f^d^rale  du  8  ddoembre  1883,  avait  ordonn^  la 

continuation  de  le  procedure  d'ex^cution,  lorsque,  le  9  fdvrier  1884,  Andr^ 
Roncayolo  demande  que  le  dossier  fdt  transmis  k  la  cour  supreme  de  I'Etat 
Falcon,  qui,  seule,  ̂ tait  investie  l^galement  de  la  juridiction  en  la  matit  re. 
Cette  requAte  fut  repous8<^e,  mais  Roncayolo  saisit  directement  la  cour 

supreme;  celle-ci,  par  arret  du  23  du  mrme  mois,  et  d'office,  '^d^cida,  en 
representation  du  pouvoir  judiciaire  de  TEtat  Falcon,  de  contester,  conime 
elle  le  fait  d^s  k  pr<5sent,  k  la  haute  cour,  par  devant  la  cour  de  casnation, 
constitute  en  la  forme  susmentionui^e,  la  competence  deconnaltie  dans 

Faffaire  de  Fexdcution  de  la  sentence  de  la  cour  d^appel  d'Aix,  rendue 
exdcutoire  au  Venezuela,  dans  la  cause  poursuivie  par  Antoine  Fabiani 

contre  Andre  et  Benoit  Koncayolo." 
Cet  arrSt  de  conflit  suspend  ait,  une  fois  de  plus,  le  cours  de  la  procedure, 

n  se  fondait  sur  Fart.  88  de  la  Constitution  du  27  avril  1881,  dispo»ant 

que  *Mout  ce  qui  n'est  pas  expressement  attribue  k  la  F  Ad  ministration 
genorale  de  la  Nation,  par  cette  constitution,  est  de  la  competence  des 

Etats.'^  L'autonomie  judiciaire  des  Etats  qui  font  partie  de  la  Federation 

venezueiienne  n'existe  toutefois,  d'apr^s  ce  texte,  qu'autant  qu'elle  n'est 
pas  restreinte  par  la  Charte  da  pays.  Mais  elle  est  limitee,  notamment, 
par  le  $  17  dejfi  cite  de  Fart.  13  de  la  Constitution,  par  les  art.  556  et  suiv. 
du  code  de  procedure  civile,  qui,  bien  que  promulgurs  anterieurement, 

n'ont  ete  abroges— le  gonvernement  defendeur  le  reconnalt  d'une  mani^re 
implicite — ni  formellement,  ni  virtuellement,  par  celle-ci,  et  par  la  loi  con- 
stitutiunnelle  du  2  juin  1882  relative  k  Forganisation  de  la  haute  oonr 
federale  (cfr.  Const,  du  27  avril  1881,  art.  80,  chiffre  11). 

C'est  bien  aussi  la  doctrine  consacree  par  la  haute  cour,  dans  ses  denx 
arrets  du  6  juin  1882  et  du  8  decembre  1883,  ainsi  que  par  le  Gouverne* 

ment  dans  sa  resolution  du  9  juillet  de  cette  derni^re  aunce.  Assun'ment, 
une  minorite  des  membres  de  la  haute  cour  opina,  et  la  defense  a  repris 
son  argumentation,  (^ue  la  competence  de  ce  tribunal  cessait  des  le  mo- 

ment oil  il  avait  accorde  Vexequatur  aux  sentences  fran^aises.  Cette  theo- 

rie,  cependant.  est  contredite  par  la  loi  organique  du  2  juin  1882,  qui 
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porte  en  son  art.  8,  chiffre  11,  que  la  hante  conr  a  mission  de  **provoqurr 
la  plus  pronipte  administration  de  la  justice — sans  doute  nussi  de  la  jus- 

tice qn'elle  est  appellde  h  prononcer— afm  qu'elle  soit  strictement  renduc 
paries  jugeset  les  tribunaux  nationaux  infdrieurs"  (cfr.  ladite  loi.  art. 
18,  chitfresi  et  5,  art.  5,  chiffre  9,  combines  avec  les  art.  556  et  suiv.  C. 

proc  civ.  v<^n^z.).  Et  le  niinistre  de  I'iut^rieur,  par  sa  resolution  du  9 

juillet  1883,  a  expressdment  ddclare  que  ̂ ^c'est  h  la  hante  cour  fdd^rale 
quMl  appartieut  de  faire  observer  ses  dispositions."  An  surplus,  le  ̂   17 
de  Tart  13  de  la  Constitution  existe;  comme  les  autorit<^s  judiciaires  supd- 

rienres,  le  pouvoir  ex<5cutif  <^tait  averti  des  illegalities  commises  et  il  n^i 

rien  fait  pour  les  emp^cher,  ni  alors,  ui  plus  tard,  quoiqn'il  efit  le  devoir 
d'assurer  Tex^cution  des'^ddcrets  et  ordres"  emands  des 'tribunaux  de 

la  Federation." 

La  partie  defenderesse  pretend  bien  que,  raisonner  ainsi,  c'est  confondre 
VexequatuVy  mati^re  feddrale,  avec  Texecution,  mati^re  de  la  jurisdiction 

de  FEtsit  reqnis.  L'execution  est  deferee,  h  la  vdrite,  anx  autorites  judi- 
ciaires  des  divers  Etats  de  la  Federation,  mais,  en  tant  que  chargdes  de 
faire  executer  des  sentences  etrang^res  ensuite  de  decisions  de  la  haute 
conr,  elles  se  trouvent  placees  sous  le  controle  de  ce  tribunal  et  elles  en 

apparaissent  comme  les  organes  d'executiou.  Accepter  uno  tht'se  dilferente 
equivaudrait  h  couvertir  en  decrets  illusoires  les  ordounances  d^exequatur 

de  la  haute  cour,  qui  n*aurait  aucun  inoyen  de  lenr  proter  un  effet  quel- 
couque  et  qui  remplirait  a  cet  egard  des  fonctions  de  pure  forme.  II  est 

plus  logique,  et  il  est  dans  Tesprit  de  la  legislation  venezuclienne,  de  con- 
siderer  comme  des  juges  et  des  tribunaux  de  la  nation,  places  sous  la 

surveillance  de  la  haute  cour  et  agissant  sur  ses  odres  (loi  organique  de 
1882,  art.  8,  chiffre  11),  les  autoritrs  jndiciaires  auxquelles  est  deieguee, 
dans  les  Etats,  Texecutiou  des  jugements  etrangers  {ibid.  art.  18,  chiffres 
4et5). 

La  cour  supreme  de  I'Etat  Falcon,  en  soulevant  un  conflit  de  competence 
dans  une  procedure  dont  la  partie  adverse  de  Fabiani  entravait  le  cours, 

pour  un  motif  que  FElat  defendeur  qnalitie  de  '*certainement  absurd," 
a  commis  une  dc^nogation  de  justice  dans  le  sens  du  compromis;  en  encou- 

ragement I'opposition  mal  fondee  d^un  debiteur,  elle  a,  siuon  determine 
un  refus  de  statuer,  du  moins  provoque  un  retard  injustitie,  et  apn^s  tant 

autres  fa  its  de  meme  nature,  la  di^cisiou  qu'elle  a  prise  a  dft  fortifier  en 
Fabiani  la  conviction  que  Tevidence  de  son  droit  ue  le  protegeait  pas  cen- 

tre I'arbitraire  des  juges. 
Fabiani,  dit  la  defense,  d^serta  la  procedure ;  elle  ajoute  quMl  ne  pouvait 

se  plaindre  de  denegations  de  justice  aussi  longtemps  qu'il  n'avait  pas 
opuise  ses  moyens  d'action  judiciaire  au  Venezuela,  et  provoque,  en  par- 
ticulier,  une  s(dution  du  contlit  de  competence,  on  invoque  les  dispo- 

sitions legaies  que  permettent  de  faire  condamner  les  magistrats  fautifs 

ji  *^rembourser  les  douimages  et  prejudices  causes."  Mais,  d^vbord,  si 
Fabiani  sV-tait  prcvalu  de  ces  tlispositions  legales,  il  se  serait  heurte  ̂  

I'objection  que  le  tribunal  extraordinaire,  au({uel  est  attribnee  la  con- 
naissance  des  contlits  de  competence  et  qui  doit  les  traucher  d'otidce, 

u  avait  pas  rendu  sa  decision  ;  ce  tribunal  ne  s'est  d'ailleurs  jamais  reuni. 
Ensnite,  Fabiani  avait  des  raisous  do  croire  que,  ail  ue  pouvait  obtenir 

justice  aa  Venezuela  centre  des  debiteure  etrangers  au  pays,  il  I'obtien- 
drait  moins  encore  centre  des  autorites  jndiciaires  memes  de  TEtat. 
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liens*';  qu'il  avait  "  enteodu  de  M.  William  MollmaDn,  pr^c^demment  em- 
p]o,v6  dans  la  maison  Roncayolo,  ensnite  employed  dii  consulat  am^ricaiu, 

que  M.  Guzman  Blanco  et  Beuoit  Honcayolo  avaieiit  des  iut^rcts  d'aflaires 
ensemble  et  que  M.  Guzman  Blanco  aiderait  Roncayolo  en  toute  oircon- 

stance";  qu'au  reste,  'Hout  le  monde  lY  Maraca'ibo,  savait  cela,  et  qu'on 
disait  couramment  parmi  les  <5tranger8  que  M.  Roucayolo  gagnerait  le 

proces,  puisqu'il  avait  la  protection  de  M.  Guziiian  Blanco";  qu'il  est,  lui, 
t(5moin,  ''posltivement  convaincu  que  M.  Fabiani  n'^tait  pas  bien  vu  par 

les  tribunaux  et  autorit^s".  Ces  declarations  sont  tr?*s  gone' rales,  il  est 
vrai,  et  ne  reposent  pas  sur  des  faits  prdcis  d<mt  M.  Plnmacber  aurait  eu  la 

perception  directe;  elles  u'en  sont  pas  moins  Topinion  d'un  observateur 

competent  et  dc^8int6re68(5,  en  sorte,  qu^\  ce  titre,  elles  ne  laissent  pas  d'avoir 
une  ri5elle  valeur. 

Enfin,  la  conviction  morale  de  TArbitre  est  que  les  dt^no^ations  de  justice 

qui  se  aont  produite«  h  I'encontre  de  Fabiani  out  un  caract  re  exc^tionnel 
de  gravity,  en  ce  qu'elles  ne  sont  pas  la  suite  de  simples  n<^gli;iences  ou  d'in- 
terprt^tations  erront^es  de  textes  Icganx,  mais  apparaissent  coinme  inten- 
tionnelles.  Certes,  en  droit  commun  allemand  comnie  en  droit  frauQiUs 

(cfr.  JVetzellf  op.  cit.,  3'"«  <^d.  ̂   43;  Holtzendorff,  Rechtslexicon,  article  *'Pro- 
zessleitiing";  von  Bar,  dans  V Encyklopddie  der  RechfwiaHenschafKVUoltzen- 
dorff,  S'""  dd.,  p.  779;  Qarsonnet,  op.  cit.,  Vol.  II,  ̂   211  et  vol.  I  $  55  in  fine; 
Aiihry  et  Rau,  4'""  M.,  Vol.  VIII,  $  749,  n'  2),  il  est  de  principe  que  le  juge 
ne  doit  prendre  en  consid*^ration  que  les  faits  articules  et  les  moyens  de 
prenve  invoqu<^s  par  les  parties.  Cependent  la  doctrine  moderne  va  plus 
loin  (cfr.  Kohler,  Gesammelte  Beitrdye  zinn  Ci'tiprozesSy  p.  361  et  s. ;  Ency- 

clopddie  der  Rechtswissenschaftf  d'Holtzendorft*,  1.  c),  et  Ton  admet,  entre 
autres,  que  les  tribunaux  ordinaires  peuvent  retenir  des  faits  assez  notoires 

pourqu'ilsjugent  inutile d'euadmiuistrer  la  prenve  (C  pn>r.  civ.  allem.  art. 
264 ;  cfr.  JVetzell,  op.  cit.,  }  43  ad  n(»te  30,  et  i  20,  ad  notes  40  h,  43).  A  plus 

forte  raisoii  en  est-il  ainsi,  en  maticre  d'arbitrage,  surtout  l(>rs(]ue  les  par- 

ties n'ont  point  present  h  I'arbitre  la  procj'dure  h  suivre  (cfr.  Wach,  Hand- 
buch  deadeutschen  Civil  processes  ̂   Vol.  I,  p.  73,  et  Fuchsbet-ger's  EnUcheidungeny 
Reich^oivilprozesaordnungf  Supi>l.-Band,  note  1  ad  art.  866,  et  notes  4  et  6  ad 
art.  867  C.  proc.  civ.  allem.) 

L'Arbitre  est  investi  d'un  pouvoir  discrdtionnaire,  limits  seulement  par 
Tobligation  de  se  conformer  anx  principes  essentieU  de  la  proc<^dure  civile 

(Blnutschli,  Droit  internatioyial  codifie'y  W  495);  il  n'est  pas  forc^  de  s'en 
tenir  anx  all^gu^s  et  moyens  de  preuve  des  parties,  ni  d^indiqner  tons  les 
dl6ments  dans  lesquels  il  puisc  sa  conviction.  La  niaxime  des  dobats  et  le 

principe  de  la  publicito,  qui  lient  les  juges  permanets,  et  dont  I'inobserva- 
tiou  pourrait  constituer  un  danger,  ne  licnt  pas  dans  la  mome  mesure  uu 

arbitre,  qui  remplitdes  fonctions  temporaireset  qui  est  investi  d'une  magis- 
trature  de  confiance. 

Spdcialement,  lorsque  le  compromis  est  muet  snr  la  question  de  la  pro- 

c<?dnre  a  suivre,  comme  en  I'espbce,  on  pent  envisager  que,  dans  Tintention 
memo  des  parties,  une  grande  liberty  lui  est  laissoe  quant  an  cboix  des  ele- 

ments dont  il  formera  sa  conviction.  Cette  conviction,  dict^e  d^jh  par  les 
r^sultats  de  Tadministration  de  la  preuve,  a  6t6  renforc^e,  dans  le  sens 

marqu*'^  pins  baut,  par  Tetude  de  documents  que  T Arbitre  s'est  fait  un  de- 
voir <le  consnlter  et  d*approcier  au  plus  pres  de  sa  conscience. 

Des  d^negations  de  justice  ayant  et(^  commises,  k  r<^gard  de  Fabiani, 
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porte  en  son  art.  8,  chiffre  11,  que  la  hante  conr  a  mission  de  *'provoqnrr 
la  plus  pronipte  admiiiistratiou  de  la  justice — saus  donte  nimsi  de  la  jus- 

tice qu^elle  est  appellde  ji  prononcer— alin  qu'elle  soit  strictement  renduo 
paries  juges  et  les  tribuuaux  natiouaux  iiifdrieurs"  (cfr.  ladite  lot.  art. 
18,  clii fires  4  et  5,  art.  5,  chiffre  9,  couibiues  avec  les  art.  556  et  suiv.  C. 

proc  civ.  v6n6z.).  Et  le  ininistre  de  Tintdrieur,  par  sa  resolution  du  9 

juillet  1883,  a  express^uient  ddclare  <iue  ̂ 'c'est  h  la  haute  cour  fdd^rale 
qu'il  apparttent  de  faire  observer  scs  dispositions."  An  surplus,  le  $  17 
de  Tart  13  de  la  Coustitution  existe;  comme  les  autorit(^s  judiciaires  Bup(^- 

rieures,  le  pouvoir  executif  <^tait  avert i  des  illegalities  commises  et  il  n'a 

rien  fait  pour  les  emp^cher,  ni  alors,  ui  plus  tard,  quoiqu'il  eat  le  devoir 
d'assurer  rexecation  des 'Mdcrets  et  ordres"  e manes  des  **tribunaux  de 

la  Fe<ieration." 

La  partie  defeuderesse  pretend  bleu  que,  raisonner  ainsi,  c'est  confoudre 

VexequatuVj  mati^re  f^d^rale,  avec  I'exdcution,  mati^re  de  la  jnristliction 
de  FEtat  requis.  L'exdcution  est  deferde,  h  la  vt^rite,  aux  autorit^s  judi- 
ciaires  des  divers  P^tats  de  la  Federation,  mais,  en  tant  que  cbargees  de 
faire  executer  des  sentences  etrang^res  eusuite  de  decisions  de  la  haute 
cour,  elles  se  trouveut  placeos  sous  le  eoutrole  de  ce  tribunal  et  elles  en 

a])paraissent  comme  les  organes  d'executiou.  Accepter  une  thrse  ditfereute 
equivaudrait  k  convertir  en  decrets  illusoires  les  ordouiiances  (V exequatur 

de  la  haute  cour,  qui  n*aurait  aucuu  nioyeu  de  leur  proter  un  effet  quel- 
couque  et  qui  remplirait  a  cet  ogard  des  fonctions  de  pure  forme.  II  est 

plus  logique,  et  il  est  dans  Tesprit  de  la  logislatiou  venezuolienne,  de  con- 
siderer  comme  des  juges  et  des  tribunaux  de  la  nation,  placds  sous  la 
surveillance  de  la  haute  cour  et  agissaut  sur  ses  odres  (loi  organique  de 

1882,  art.  8,  chitt're  11),  les  autoritt's  jndiciaires  auxquelles  est  deieguee, 
dans  les  Etats,  I'execution  des  jugemeuts  etraugers  {ihid.  art.  18,  chififres 
4et5). 

La  cour  supreme  de  I'Etat  Falcon,  en  soulevant  un  conflit  de  competence 
dans  une  procedure  dout  la  partie  adverse  de  Fabiani  entravait  le  cours, 

pour  un  motif  que  TEtat  defemleur  qualifie  de  **certainement  absurd," 
a  commis  une  drnogation  de  justice  dans  le  sens  du  compromis;  en  encou- 

ragement I'opposition  mal  fondee  d'un  debiteur,  elle  a,  siuon  determine 
un  refus  de  statuer,  du  moins  provoque  un  retard  injustifie,  et  apres  tant 

autres  faits  de  meme  nature,  la  decision  qu'elle  a  prise  a  dft  fortifier  en 
Fabiani  la  conviction  que  IVvidence  de  son  droit  ue  le  protegeait  pas  cen- 

tre I'arbitraire  des  juges. 
Fabiani,  dit  la  defense,  d^serta  la  procedure ;  elle  ajoute  quMl  ne  pouvait 

se  plaindre  de  denegatious  de  justice  aussi  longtemps  qu'il  n'avait  pas 
opuise  ses  moyens  d'action  judiciaire  au  Venezuela,  et  provoque,  en  par- 
ticulier,  une  solution  du  conflit  de  competence,  ou  iuvoque  les  dispo- 

sitions legales  que  permettent  de  faire  condamner  les  magistrats  fautifs 

a  "rembourser  les  doinmuges  et  ])rojudico8  causes."  Muis,  d'abor<l,  8i 

Fabiani  s'etait  prevalu  de  ces  clispositions  legales,  il  se  serait  heurte  h 

I'objection  que  le  tribunal  extraordinaire,  auquel  est  uttribuee  la  con- 
naissance  des  contlits  de  compt'tence  et  qui  doit  les  traucher  d'office, 
n  avait  pas  rendu  sa  decision  ;  ce  tribunal  ne  s'est  d'ailleurs  jamais  reuni. 

Ensuite,  Fabiaui  avait  des  raisous  de  croire  que,  s'il  ne  pouvait  obteuir 
justice  au  Venezuela  centre  des  debiteurs  etraugers  au  pays,  il  I'obtien- 
drait  moins  encore  centre  des  autorites  judioiaires  memes  de  I'Etat. 
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L'art.  16  de  la  loi  orc^aDique  de  la  oour  de  cassatioD,  dn  16  mai,  188?, 
r^gle  l:i  composition  du  Tribunal  extraordinaire  (conr  de  cassation  et 
hautH  cour  f6d<^rale  si^geant  ensemble)  qui  avait  k  liquider  le  couflit  de 

competence.  Lea  art.  54  et  suiv.  dn  Code  de  proc(Sdure  civile  prescrivent 

que  *M'antorit<?  sup^rieure  que  cela  concerne  procddera  au88it6t  qu'elle 
aura  re^u  les  actes  desjuyeSf  h  la  determination  de  la  competence  dans  les 

vingt-quatre  heurea,  de  preference  h  toute  autre  affaire,'*  et  que  "  Farrfit 
snr  la  competence  sera  prononce  sana  citation  ni  momoires.'^  Conform d- 
ment  &  ces  textes,  Parret  dn  23  Fevrier  1884  ordonne  {Annexe  7/,  de  la 

defense,  p.  338)  que  *Me  dossier  sera  envoye  a  la  cour  de  cassation  et  la 
preseute  decision  notifiee  a  la  haute  cour  federale  aux  effete  de  la  compe- 

tence provoqu^;*^  la  cour  de  cassatiou  a  re^u  le  dosnier  le  24  murs  1884 

(ibidf  p.  379)  et  Fabiaui  devait  admettre  que  I'arret  du  23  Fevrier  avnit 
ete  communique  immediatement  ii  la  Haute  Conr  federale.  II  n  est  nulle- 
ment  etabli,  ni  meme  aliegue,  dans  la  defense,  que  le  tribuual  extraor- 

dinaire eCit  besoiu,  avant  de  pouvoir  statuer,  de  renseignements  comple- 

mentaires,  qu'il  est  autoriso  k  redamer  en  vertu  de  Fart.  55  du  Code  de 

procedure  civile,  ni  qu'il  se  soit  jamais  reuni. 
La  procedure  instituee  par  la  loi  du  16  mai  1882,  et  les  art.  54  et  sniv. 

du  Code  ])Tecite,  qui  sout  applicables  en  Vesp^ce  aux  termes  de  I'art.  12  de 
la  meme  loi,  est  uue  procedure  d^ office.  La  cour  de  cassation  et  la  haute 

cour  reunies  devaient  prouoncer,  dans  les  vingt-quatre  heures  k  compter 
dn  24  mars  1884,  sur  le  coatlit  de  competence.  En  ne  le  faisant  pas,  elles 

se  sont  rendues  coupables  d  une  denc'gation  de  justice  bien  caracterizee. 
Quant  h.  Targument  du  Gouveruement  defendeur  {Uuplique,  p.  50), 

d'aprea  lequel  les  art.  54  et  55  dn  Code  do  procedure  civile  ne  seraient 
pas  applicables,  la  procedure  etant  tracee  par  Tart.  16  de  la  loi  organique 

de  la  haute  cour  federale,  elle  est  refi.:;oe  par  I'arret  meme  du  23  fevrier 
1884 ;  et  le  dit  art.  16  ne  corrobore  pas  davantage  cet  argument  que  les 

dispositions  trau^it'Oires  de  la  loi  dout  il  s'agit. 
II  n^y  a  pas  lieu  d'attacher  plus  d'importance  k  nn  autre  moyen  avance 

daus  la  dnplique:  le  tribunal  extraordinaire  don t  il  a  ete  question  u'au- 
rait  en  robligation  de  juger,  qu'une  fois  que  les  parties  auraient  fourni 
**  le  papier  timbre  ni'cessaire"  {ibid,  p.  50).  La  formalite  du  timbre  exigee 
par  Tart.  16  de  la  loi  organiquedu  2  juin  1882,  se  rapporte  uniquement  anx 

affaires  traitees  devant  la  haute  cour  fdderale;  elle  derive  d'un  preserip- 
tiou  legale  qui  ne  pent  etre  etendue,  par  analogic,  anx  conflits  de  compe- 

tence deferes  au  Tribunal  extraordinaire  souveut  mentionne,  ear  Tanalo- 
gie,  exclue  en  principe  duns  une  pareille  materiere,  Test  formcllemeut  par 
la  nature  meme  de  la  procedure  determinee  aux  art.  54  et  suiv.  du  Code  de 
procedure  civile;  on  ne  concevrait  point,  h  defant  de  disposition  contraire 

expresse,  que  les  parties  eussent  ii  supporter,  en  acquittement  de  droits  de 

timbre,  les  frais  d'une  instance  qui  est  ouverte  d'office,  A.  raison  du  fait  de 
juges  qui  se  sera  ent  declares  faussement  com pe tents  on  dout  la  compe- 

tence aurait  ete  coutestee  h  tort  par  d'autres  juges,  et  qui  se  deronleen 
dt-boi-s  de  toute  participation  des  plaideurs.  Fabiaui,  qui  n'a  pas  ete  cite 
(levant  la  cour  supreme  de  I'Etat  Falcon,  qui  ne  pouvait  ni  ne  devait  etre 
assigne  devant  le  tribuual  extraordinaire,  etait  absolument  etranger  au 

C(mflit  de  comptteuce;  ce  tribuual  avait  Pobligation  de  statuer  d'otUce, 
dans  lea  vingt-quatre  heures,  sans  que  les  parties  eusseut  a  accomplir 
quelque  diligence  on  formalite  que  ce  fdt. 
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En  somme,  Fabiani  a  6t6  victime  de  plusienrs  d<^n6gations  de  justice, 

consommdes  par  celle  qu'implique  TinactioQ  illegale  de  ia  cour  de  cassa- 
tion et  de  la  haute  cour  16d6rale;  cette  derni^re  d6u6gatiou  de  justice 

saule  satiisait  a  cr6er,  au  profit  de  Fabiaui,  le  droit  ̂   riDterveutiou  diplo- 
matique et  ii  lai  assurer  un  recours  eu  doinmages  et  iutcrctscontre  leGou- 

vernement  d^fendeur,  s'ildoit  etrereconnu  que  celui-ci  est responsable  des 
fautes  de  ses  autorit68  judiciaires  et  si  Fabiaui  prouve  qu'il  a  subi  un 
prejudice  de  ce  chef. 

Dans  les  circonstances  qui  ont  6t6  exposdes,  T intervention  diplomatique 
^tait  aatorisde  ddj^  par  les  turmes  formels  de  Tart.  5  de  la  Convention 

franco-v6n^za«51ieune  de  1885,  et  ellen'avaitrien  de  contraireauxdt^cisions 
de  la  doctrine  (cfr.  notamment,  Holtzendorff,  Handbuch  des  FolkeirechtH, 

Vol.  II,  p  74;  Fiore,  Droit  international  codijie'y  n'>*  339  et340;  voir  aussi, 
CalvOfO^.  cit.,  Vol.  I,  n^  348;  Pradier-Foddre,  Traits  de  droit  international 
public,  Vol.  I,  no*  402 et  s. ;  Bluntschliy  op.  cit.,  n"  380).  II  serai t,  effective- 

ment,  inadmissible  d'exiger  de  Fabiani  qu'il  eftt  fait,  en  outre,  constater 
ces  dcnei^ations  de  justice  uotoires  par  les  tribunaux  v<^ndzudlieDS  comp^- 

tents,  lui  qui,  pendant  des  anuses,  avait  demand^  en  vain  Texc^cution 

d'une  sentence  iuattaquable  et  pourvue  de  {'exequatur  requis  par  les  lois 
terri  tori  ales,  bieu  que  les  autoritds  admuiistratives  et  judiciaires  snpdri- 

eures  de  surveillauce  easseut  H6  averties  des  iildgalit<?8  commises.  L'in- 
ex6cution  des  sentences  franyaises,  provoqude  par  les  magistratures  in- 

fdrieures,  tol^rde  par  la  haute  cour  f6d<^.rale  et  le  Gouvemement,  consa- 
cr<5e  par  le  tribunal  extraordinaire,  eulevait  h  Fabiani  la  disposition  d  uue 
fortune  consid^rJible,  Tentrainait  dans  des  proems  coftteux  et  sans  issue, 

r.icrulait  finalement  h  la  faillite  et  justiiiait  amplement  une  action  Inter- 
nationale. 

11  semble  bien,  k  considdrer  la  sdrie  des  ddnis  de  justice  dont  Fabiani 

avait  le  droit  de  se  plaindre,  et  mAme  Tune  ou  I'autre  des  ddcisions  judici- 
aires qui  lui  donu^rent  momentau6ment  ;::aiu  de  cause  en  apparance,  que 

ses  adversaires  ^taient  protdgds,  au  Veu6zudla,  par  des  influences  assez 

puissantes  pour  entraver  I'activitd  normale  des  tribnnaux  du  pays.  Cette 
hypothese  repose,  au  surplus,  sur  trois  faits  prdcddemuient  rappelds; 
approbation  officielle  du  21  aodt  1883,  modificatiou  des  art.  5  et  7  de  la  loi 

orgauique  du  pouvoir  judiciaire  de  I'Etat  Falcon,  et  retrait  du  service  du 

remorquage.  Elle  est  fortifide  encore  par  d'autres  circonstances,  parmi 
lesqnelles  il  suffira  de  mentioner  les  suivantes: 

Deux  des  troix  tdmoins  dont  les  ddclarations  out  6t4)  recneillies  pendant 

rinstrutrtion  de  Paffaire,  en  presence  des  parties,  n'ont  fourni  aucun  ren- 
seignement  de  nature  h  faire  douter  de  Timpartialitd  des  tribunaux  vdn^- 
zudliens;  mais  le  troisrme  tdmoin,  M.  E.-H.  Plumacher,  consul  des  Etats- 

Unis  d'Amdrique  h  Maracaibo,  qui  a  bien  <5tft  charge  par  interim  du  consulat 
de  Fran<'e  dans  cette  ville  et  qui  fnt  un  teraps  le  maudataire  spdcial  de 

Fabiani,  contre  leqnel  toutefois  ancnne  cause  de  suspicion  n'a  6t6  relevde 
et  qui  est  le  ressortissant  d'un  Et.-it  non  imnliqud  dans  le  litige  actuel,  a 
ddposd  devant  le  miuistre  d'une  nation  neutre,  rhargo  de  I'entendre  au  nom 
de  TArbitre:  qu'il  avait  'Tirapression",  qu'en  1880,  M.  Guzman  Blanco 
avait  provoqud  ou  suggdrd  des  d-marches  destiudes  t\  exercer  une  pression 

snr  Fabiani,  a  I'occasion  des  ddraelds  decelui  ci  avec  les  Roncayolo;  qu'a 
CO  nioni»*nt,  **M.  Blanco  dtait  le  pouvoir  dans  le  pays";  qu'il  "arriva  dee 
choses  qui  donn^reut  lieu  de  douter  I'impartialitd  des  tribunaux  v^ndzu^- 
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liens";  qu'il  avait  "  entenda  de  M.  William  Mollmann,  pr^c<?deinment  em- 
p]o,v6  dans  la  maison  Roncayolo,  ensuite  employ<^  du  consulat  ani^ricain, 

que  M.  Guzman  Blanco  et  Beuoit  Roucayolo  avaient  des  intdrets  d'affaires 
ensemble  et  que  M.  Guzman  Blanco  aiderait  Koncayolo  en  tonte  oircon- 

stauce";  qu'au  reste,  "tout  le  monde  a  Maracaibo,  suvait  cela,  et  qa'on 
disait  couramraent  parmi  les  (5tranger8  que  M.  Koucayolo  gagnerait  le 

proces,  puisqu'il  avait  la  protection  de  M.  Guzman  Blanco";  qu'il  est,  lui, 
tdmoin,  **po8itivement  convaincu  que  M.  Fubiani  n'(^tait  pas  bien  vu  par 
les  tribunaux  et  autorit^s".  Ces  declarations  sont  tr?'S  gcuf" rales,  il  est 
vrai,  et  ne  reposent  pas  sur  des  faits  precis  dont  M.  Plumacber  aiirait  eu  la 

X>erceptioQ  directe;  elles  u'en  sont  pas  moins  Topinion  d'nn  observateur 
competent  et  d^'sintdress^,  en  sorte,  qu'i\  ce  titre,  elles  ne  lai^sent  pas  d'avoir 
une  rdelle  valeur. 

Entin,  la  conviction  morale  deTArbitre  est  que  les  d(^n«^ffation8de  justice 

qui  se  sont  produite«  h,  rencontre  de  Fabiani  out  un  caract^Te  exc^tionnel 

de  gravity,  en  ce  qu'elles  ne  sont  pas  la  suite  de  simples  ueglijrences  on  d'in- 

terpr^^tations  erron(^es  de  textes  b'ganx,  mais  apparaissent  comme  inten- 
tionnelles.  Certes,  en  droit  commun  allemand  comme  en  droit  fraugais 

(cfr.  JVetzellf  op.  cit.,  3'"'=<^d.  $  43;  Holtzendorff,  Rechtslexicon,  article  'Tro- 

zessleitung" ;  von  Bar,  dans  VEncyklopddie  dei'  Rechtwissenschaft  d'iioltzen- 
dorif,  3"'«  6d.,  p.  779;  Gavsonnet,  op.  cit.  Vol.  II,  ̂   211  et  vol.  I  $  55  in  fine; 
Auhry  et  Ran,  4'"e  M.,  Vol.  VIII,  $  749,  n*  2),  il  est  de  principe  que  le  juge 
ne  doit  prendre  en  consid<^ ration  que  les  faits  articulds  et  les  moyens  de 
preuve  invoques  par  les  parties.  Cependent  la  doctrine  moderne  va  plus 

loin  (cfr.  Kobler,  Gesammelte  Beitrmje  sum  Ci'ilprozess,  p.  361  et  s. ;  Ency- 

clopddie  der  Rechtswissensohaft,  d' Holtzendorff,  1.  c),  et  Ton  admet,  eutre 
autres,  que  les  tribuuaux  ordinaires  peuvent  retenir  des  faits  asse/  notoires 

pourqn'ilsjugent  inutile  d'euadmiuistrer  la  preuve  (C  proc.  civ.  allem.  art. 
264 ;  cfr.  Weizell.  op.  cit.,  $  43  ad  note  30,  et  $  20,  ad  notes  40  h  43).  A  plus 

forte  rnisoii  eu  est-il  ainsi,  en  maticre  d'arbitrage,  surtont  lorscjue  les  par- 

ties n'ont  point  present  h  Tarbitre  la  procrdure  h  suivre  (cfr.  Wa<ih,  Hand- 
buch  desdentachen  CiHlprocesses,  Vol.  I,  p.  73,  et  Fuchsbfn'gei-'s  EntHcheidungeHy 
Rtichsoivilprozessordnung^  Suppl.-Band,  note  1  ad  art.  866,  et  notes  4  et  6  ad 
art.  867  C.  proc.  civ.  allem.) 

L'Arbitre  est  investi  d'un  pouvoir  discri^tionnaire,  limits  seulement  par 
I'obligation  dese  conformer  anx  principes  essentiels  de  la  proc(^dure  civile 
(Bluutschli,  Droit  international  codifiCf  n"  495);  il  n'est  x>a8  forc^  de  s'en 

tenir  aux  all^^gues  et  moyens  de  preuve  des  parties,  ni  d'indiquer  tons  les 
dli^meuts  dans  lesquels  il  piiise  sa  conviction.  La  maxime  des  debats  et  le 

principe  de  la  publicite,  qui  lient  les  Juges  permanets,  et  dont  I'inobserva- 
tiou  pourrait  constituer  un  danger,  ne  lient  pas  dans  la  meme  mesure  un 

arbitre,  quiremplitdes  fonctions  temporairesetquiest  investi  d'une  magis- 
tratnre  de  confiance. 

Sp6cialement,  lorsque  le  compromis  est  muet  sur  la  question  de  la  pro- 
cedure a  suivre,  comme  en  Pesp^ce,  on  pent  envisagerqne,  ilans  Fintention 

memo  des  parties,  une  grande  libert<5  lui  est  laisst'^e  quant  au  cboix  des  ele- 
ments dont  il  formera  sa  conviction.  Cette  conviction,  dict^e  d^jh  par  les 

r^^sultats  de  Tadministration  de  la  preuve,  a  6t6  renforcde,  dans  le  sens 

marqu<^  plus  haut,  par  Tdtude  de  documents  que  I'Arbitre  s'est  fait  un  de- 
voir de  consulter  et  d'appr(^cier  au  plus  pres  de  sa  conscience. 

Des  d^uegations  de  justice  ayant  6t<S  commises,  h  Tdgard  de  Fabiani, 
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par  des  autorit^s  judiciaires  dn  V^n^zu^la,  dans  les  cas  exposes  et  lea  cir- 

constaoces  relat^es  ci-dessus,  il  y  a  lieu  d'examiner  si  I'Etat  d^fendeur  en 

est  responsablo;  et,  dans  Faffirmative,  quelle  est  I'^tendue  <le  sa  responsa- 
bilitd. 

C'est  une  question  trfes  controvers^e,  en  droit  public,  que  celle  de  savior 
si  un  £tat  r^pond  du  prejudice  caust^  par  ses  ageuts,  et  spc^cialement  par 

ses  autorit^s  judiciaires,  k  raison  d'actes  rentraut  dans  Texercice  de  leurs 
functions. 

En  France,  la  doctrine  et  la  jurisprudence  sont  divis^es.  La  jurispru- 

dence elle-mdme  u'est  pas  unanime  dans  I'opinion,  g^n^ralement  consacr^e 
toutefois,  que  les  fautes  commises  par  des  fo not ionu aires,  dans  les  limites 

de  leurs  attributions  l^gales,  u'engagent  pas  la  responaabilitd  de  TEtat, 
du  moins  d'une  inani^re  absolue  et  en  I'absence  de  lois  positives  sur  ce 
point  (cfr.  Fuzier- Herman,  Code  dvil  annoU,  Vol.  Ill,  ad.  art.  1382  et  1383, 
nO"  767  et  suiv.) ;  mais  la  cour  de  cassation,  par  exemple,  a  reconnu,  dans 

un  arret  du  l^"^  avril  J845  (cfr.  arrets  des  30  juillet  et  16  aortt  1877, 
ainsi  que  Pandectes  frangaisesj  ann^e  1896,  IV'"^  partie,  p.  8,  note  1,  et  Lau- 

rent, Vol.  XX,  no592),  que  r£tat,  reprdsent6  par  les  ditferentes  branches 

de  I'administration  publique,  est  passible  des  condamnatious  auxquelles 
le  dommage  caus6  par  le  fait,  la  negligence,  ou  Timprudence  de  ses  agents, 

pent  donner  lieu.  En  tout  cas,  les  fonctionnaires  de  I'ordre  judiciaire 
n'^tant  pas  tenus  de  leur  faute  l^g^re  (cfr.  Fazier-Hermxan^  op.  cit..  Vol. Ill, 
ad.  art.  1382  et  1383,  n«"  505  et  suiv. ;  Deniohmbe,  Vol.  XXXI,  n^  519;  Gar- 
sonnet,  op.  cit..  Vol.  I,  $  57,  notes  12  et  18),  la  responsabilit^  de  TEtat  ne 

pourrait  s'^tendre  an-dela.  La  doctriue  enseigne,  de  son  c6t6,  (Aubry  et 
Ran,  op.  cit..  Vol.  IV,  J  447,  n^  2;  Demolombe,  Vol.  XXXI,  n^  63;  Baudry- 
La^antinerie,  Vol.  Ill,  n^  1352),  que  I'Etat,  reprc^seut^  par  les  divers  minis- 

t^res  et  administrations  publiques,  doit,  a  I'egal  de  tout  commettatit,  r<S- 
pondre  du  prejudice  occasionn^  par  ses  employes  ou  agents  dans  Texercice 

de  leurs  fonctions  ou  services,  ind^pendamment  de  Texistence  d'une  loi 
sp^ciale,  ou  encore  (cfr.  Laurent,  vol.  XX,  no*  419  et  s.,  444, 591  et  s.),  que  la 
responsabilite  de  TEtat  est  exclue,  lorsquo  le  fonctionnaire  agit,  non  comme 

propose  et  instrument  de  I'Etat,  mais  comme  accomplissant  la  mission  so- 
ciale  qui  lui  est  d<Siegn<^e. 

S'il  r^gne,  en  France,  une  assez  r;rande  incertitude,  notamment  en  ce 

qui  concerne  la  responsabilit^  de  I'Etat  pour  les  dommages  causes  par  ces 
fonctionnaires  de  Tord re  judiciaire,  et  si  cetteresponsabilit^paralt  plut6t 

devoir  6tre  d^ni^e  en  th^se  g^n^rale,  il  n'eu  est  pas  autrement  en  AUemagne. 
La  question  y  est  resolue  n^gativement  par  Loening  (Die  Hajtung  des 

StaateSf  etc.,  92  et  s.),  affirmativement  par  H.-A.  Zacbariae  (Zeifschrift  fur 
die  gesammte  Staaiswiasenschaft,  ann^e  1863,  p.  582  et  s.),  par  Stobbe  {Hand- 

buch  des  deutschen  Privatreohts,  vol.  Ill,  ̂   201,  N°.  6),  par  Gorber  (GrundzUge 

des  deutschen  Staatsrechts,  2"'®  ̂ d.,  p.  207  et  s. ),  par  Bluntschli  Cop.  cit.,  n«  467), 
par  Wiudscheid  {Pan  deck  ten, yo\,  II,  ̂   470,  note  4 ;  cfr.  les  anteurs  cit<?8  dans 
cette  note),  avec  cette  reserve  que  Windscheid,  dans  la  sixi^me  Edition  de 

son  traits,  expose,  en  modifiant  son  opinion  premiere,  que  laresponsabilitd 

de  I'Etat,  eusuite  de  prejudices  imputables  a  ses  fonctionnaires,  n'est  pas 

un  principe  de  droit  commun  en  AUemagne,  et  que,  d'apres  Holtzendorfi' 
{Encyklopadie  der  Recht»wissenschaft,  p.  1113),  cette  responsabilit6  n'est 
admissible  que  dans  certain^  cas.  Mais  la  jurisprudence  allemande,  qui 

etait  plut6t  favorable  a  la  solution  affirmative  jusqu'en  1884,  applique 
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anjourclTiui  la  th^orie  du  tribunal  de  PEmpire,  selon  laquelle  I'Etat  n'est 
responsable  qu'en  vertu  d'uue  dispositioD  legale  expresse  ( Entscheidungen 
dee  Reichsgerichts  in  Civilsachen,  Yoi.  XI,  ̂ .206]  cfr.  Windscheid,  op.  cit., 
vol.  II,  ̂   470,  uote  4). 

Cette  derniere  thdorie  est  adoptee  par  la  jurisprudence  et  la  doctrine 

suisses  (cfr.  Blumer-Morel,  Handbuch  des  aohweizeriachen  BundeastaatsrechiSy 

2"«  6d.,  Vol.  III.  p.  230  et  s. ;  Hafner,  Da^  schwdzerische  Obligationenrecht, 
2'"*'  ̂ d.,  ad  art.  64,  note  4,  ainsi  que  les  arrets  du  Tribunal  f^d^ral  cites 

dans  ces  deux  ouvrages),  tandis,  qu'en  Italie,  la  doctrine  centraire  seiiible 
prevaloir  (cfr.  Fussier  Herman ,  op.  cit.,  Vol.  III.  ad,  art  1382  et  1383,  n"  786). 
On  pent  ajouter  que  les  auteurs,  qui  ont  fait  du  droit  international  lenr 

speciality,  reconnaissent  que  TEtat  est  responsable  des  douis  de  justice 
commis  par  ses  autorittSs  jndiciaires,  k  tout  le  moins  loistiue,  dueinent 

inform^  ou  averti,  il  n'aura  rien  entrepris,  ni  pour  en  euipcchei  les  eflfets, 

ui  pour  en  suspendrele  cours  (C.  p.  Holtzendorrt',  Handbuch  des  Folkerrechts, 
Vol.  II.  p.  74;  Fiore,  Droit  international  codifie,  n"«  339  et  340;  voir  aussi, 
CalvOf  dp.  cit..  Vol.  I.  n^  348  in  fine;  Pradier  Fod^r^,  Traite  de  droit  inter- 

national publiCj  Vol.  I.  n***  402  et  s. ;  Bluntschliy  op.  cit.,  n"  340). 
En  droit  v6n6zn6lieu,  la  question  est  rdsolue  par  la  loi ;  elle  Test  <5gale- 

ment,  eiitre  les  parties  en  cause,  par  la  Convention  de  1885. 

Le  ddcret  du  14  F<Svrier  1873,  sur  les  indemnitees  k  allouer  anx  dtrangers, 

n'a  pas  6t6  abrog^  par  Tacte  international  pr(5cit6,  en  ce  qui  touche  les  con- 
ditions g^n^rales  de  la  responsabilit^  de  TEtat  pour  des  dominages  occa- 

sionn^s  par  ses  fonctionnaires ;  il  dispose,  en  son  art.  1"*:  ''Tous  les 
individus,  soit  nationaux  ou  Strangers,  qui  intenteront  centre  la  Nation 

des  actions  en  dommages  et  int^rets  ou  expropriations,  provenant  d'  aetes 
d^employ^  de  la  Nation  ou  des  Etats  .  .  .  devront  s'en  tenir  aux  formalites 
6tablies  par  la  prdsente  loi" — formalit.'^s  qui,  entre  la  France  et  lo 
V'^m  zuela,  sont  r^glees  aujourd'hui,  en  ce  qui  comerne  notamment  les 
prt'^judices  d^rivant  de  don  is  de  justice,  par  la  Convention  de  1885. 

L'art.  7  pr<^voit  que  **la  Nation  aura  le  droit  de  se  faire  rembonrser  par 
I'eniploy^  responsable,  ou  par  FEtat  duquel  releverait  le  dit  employ^ 
an  moment  de  la  fante,  la  souime  que  le  Tr^sor  national  debourserait 

par  suite  de  I'arret  condauinatoire."  il  ressort  de  ces  textes  que  le 

Vi'ndzu^la  reoonnait  express^ment,  en  principe,  sa  responsabilit^,  pour 
des  donuiiages  imputables,  soit  h  des  fonctionnaires  nationaux,  soit  h 
des  fonctionnaires  de  Tun  ou  Tautre  des  Etats  de  la  Fddoration;  cette 

respoiisabiliti^  est  din-cte,  t-lle  donne  action  centre  I'Etat  devant  la  Haute 
Cour  ft  dorale.  Quant  aux  fonctionnaires  (empltados),  la  loi  entend  ]»ar  la 
non  point  senlement  les  agents  du  ponvoirexocntif  ou  les  pr(  ]>os  8  dans  le 

sens  de  Tart.  1384  C.  civ.  f.,  mais  toutes  Jes  autorites  qui,  investies  d'nne 
part'de  la  puissance  publique,  reprdsentent  TEtat  et  le  personnilient. 
L'art.  9  du  d^cret  de  1873  le  montre  ciairement:  '^Dans  aucnn  cas,  dit-il, 
on  ne  pourra  preteudre  que  la  Nation  ou  les  Etats  indeniniscnt  a  raison 

des  dommages  et  interdts  on  expropriations  qui  n^iuraieut  pas  ̂ t^  caus(^s 

par  des  autorit^  Uyitimes  agissant  en  vertu  de  lenr  caractirc  public"  Cett« 
interpr«'tation  est  contirm^e,  en  outre,  par  le  Code  p^nal  du  27  Avril  1873, 
qui,  apres  avoir  traite,  en  ses  art.  258  et  259,  des  infractions  dout  laajngen 

peuvent  se  rendre  coupables,  ajoute,  en  son  article  260:  "Les  employ  a 

publics  d'nne  autre  administration  quelconque,  etc." 
En  matiere  de  responsubilit^  de  TEtat,  il  n*y  a  done  pas  lieu  d't'tablir  de 
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distinction,  en  droit  v6n<^zn<^lien,  entre  les  fonctionnaires  de  I'ordre  jndici- 
aire  et  cenx  de  I'ordre  admin istratif,  puisqne  la  loi  les  assimile  express^- 

ment  les  una  aux  antres,  et,  qu'au  luoiue  <logr(5,  bien  que  dans  des  spheres 
d'activit6  di verses,  ils  agissent  an  noni  de  I'Etat.  Et,  h  nn  point  de  vue 

general,  on  ne  voit  pas  ponrqnoi  I'Etat  r<^pondrait,  dans  une  mesure  diflfdr- 
ente,  des  prc^judices  cansds  par  ses  fonctionnaires,  selon  que  les  auteursdn 
dommage  seraient  employees  dans  Tadniinistration  proprement  dite  on  dans 
la  justice  (cfr.  Slohhcy  op.  cit.,  vol  111,  vS  201,  ad  note  53;  H,'A,  Zaehariae, 

op.  cit.,  p.  637;  Windscheidj  op.  cit.,  vol.  I.  §  59  in  fine;  Blumer- Morel,  op. 
cit.,  vol.  Ill,  p.  230  et  suiv.). 

Un  d^cret  vcn(^zu<^lien  de  mcme  data  que  le  pr^c^dent,  sur  les  droits  et 

les  devoirs  des  Strangers,  tout  en  disposant,  en  son  art.  6,  que  *Mes  Strang- 
ers n'ont  le  droit  de  deinander  des  indemnitees  an  Gouvernement"  que, 

*^dans  les  monies  cas  que  les  v<^n<^zu<^lien8" — ceci  est  toutefois  modifiS 
envers  les  Fran? ais  par  la  Convention  de  1885— proclaime  aussi,  en  prin- 

cipe,  la  responsabiliti^  de  I'Etat  dcfendenr  pour  les  actes  de  ses  fonction- 
naires. II  la  reconuait  mcme  expressed  men  t,  a  raison  des  faits  illicites  des 

autorite^s  judiciaires,  en  rSsorvant,  dans  son  art.  5,  la  voie  diplomatique 

pour  les  caff  de  **d(fni  de  justice  ou  injuxtice  notoire;"  et  la  condition  de 
Tepuisement  pr^alable  de  toutes  les  voies  Icgales  tie  recours  a  6t6  sup- 

primce  par  la  Convention  de  1885  i\  I'cgard  des  Franvais. 
Cette  responsabilitS  directe  de  I'Etat,  (^dictce  par  la  legislation  vSn(^zn6- 

lienne,  n'est  pas  contraire  au  droit  des  gens;  elle  est,  de  plus,  affirm^e 

dans  la  Convention  du  26  Novembre  1885,  qui  permet  I'intervention  diplo- 
matique ct  consacre  implicitement  la  responsabilitd  de  I'Etat  pour  ton te  la 

sSrie  des  irr^gularitos/wdte iaires  J^nunn^rt^s  dans  I'art.  5  de  ce  document. 
L'Etat,  d'autre  part,  ne  saurait  di'cliner  sa  responsabilit(S  par  la  motif 

qne  les  fautcs  de  ses  agents  ou  fonctionnaires  ne  prcscnteraient  pas  nn  cer- 

tain caract  »re  de  gravitiS  (voir,  d'ailleurs,  sub.  V  ci-apres).  L'art.  1  du 
dScret  du  14  Ft^vrier  1873,  sur  ies  indemnitees  a  allouer  aux  6tran;;ers,  est 

C0U9U  en  terms  si  gt^ndraux,  que  I'Etat  y  apparalt  responsable  exactement 

comme  ses  employes;  et  rien  n'est  plus  rationnel,  puisqueTacte  dommage- 
able  est  alors  cens<S  provenir  de  I'Etat  lui-nicme  (cfr.  H.-A.  Zaehariae^  op. 
cit.,  p.  632;  Stohbej  op.  cit.,  vol.  Ill,  $  201,  note  53).  Le  de^ni  de  justice, 
sous  quelque  forme  (juil  se  produise,  constitue  un  cas  de  responsabilitS  da 

fonctionnaire,  partant,  de  TEtat.  Des  lors,  Fabiani,  victime  de  dSnSga- 

tions  de  justice  duement  prouvees,  pouvait  actionner  le  -Gonvemement 
d<efendeur»  sans  observer  d'ailleurs  l'art.  5  du  dccret  du  14  P^Svrier  1873 
concernant  les  devoirs  et  les  droits  des  ctrangers,  qui  pose  comme  condi- 

tion de  Fintervention  diplomatique,  rcpuisement  prealable  **des  voies 

h' gales  aupr.  sdes  autorit  sco  np/^tences"  (cfr.  Convention  de  1885,  art.  5); 
et  la  nienure  de  son  action  contre  I'Etat  est  la  meme  que  centre  les  fonc- 

tionnaires fantifs. 

V.  Les  (lt''iii'g}itiou8  de  justice  qu'a  <:^prouv<^e8  Fabiani  soiit  ponr  le  moins 

des  delits  civils  ou  des  (piasi-dclits.  Ku  droit  nioderne,  I'auteur  d'une 
faute  ii(|nilieiine  est,  en  prinuipe,  lenu  de  rep:irer<OM(  le  prejudice  qui  pent 

raisonnablenient  en  etre  envisa;;^  comme  la  consequence  directe  ou  indi- 
recte  {damnum  emergens  et  lucrum  cessans),  certaines  legislations,  comme 

celles  de  la  France  et  de  rAlIemagne,  ne  faisant  pas  de'pendre  la  quotit^ 
des  douimages  et  int^^rets  de  la  gravite  de  la  faute,  d'autres,  comme  le 
Code  civil  autricbien  et  le  Code  f^d^ral  des  obligations;  n  accordant  1ft 
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reparation  int^grale  qn'en  cas  de  dol  oa  de  I'aate  lourde.  An  demeurant,  lea 
dominates  et  intdrets  ne  doi  vent  pas  etre  la  sonrce  d'nii  profit  pour  celni  qui 
les  obtient  (cfr.  Fuzier-Herman^  op.  cit.,  vol.  Ill,  ad.  art.  1382  et  1383,  n*** 
1065  et  suiv. ;  Aubry  et  Rau,  vol.  IV,  $  445  et  446;  Dololomhe,  vol.  XXXI,  n«*685 
etsiiiv. ;  Laurent,  vol.  XX,  n"  529;  Zachariae,  Handbuch  dea  franzosischen 
Civilrechts,  l"'""  <5dit.,  ̂ 44S  et  445;  Windtvheid,  op.  cit.,  6'"«  ed.,  vol.  II, 
$  451,  n«  1,  4.55,  No.  5,  258,  notes  10  et  suiv. ;  Stohhe,  op.  cit.,  vol.  Ill,  $  200, 

n<*6;  Hoi tzendorff /Jec/fteZexicow,  article  **  Schadensersatz;"  Holtzendorff, 
Handhuch  des  VoJkerreehtSf  vol.  II,  p.  74,  75;  Motive  du  projet  du  Code  civil 

allemand,  vol.  II,  p.  724  et  suiv.;  Schneider  et  Fick.  Daa  schweizerische 

ObHgationenrechty  3""^  ed.,  notes  ad.  art.  50  et  51  C.  V^d.  des  obi. ;  Hafner, 

op.  cit,,  2^^  ed.,  notes  ad.  art.  50  et  51  C.  IV^d.  des  obi. ;  Rossel,  Manuel  du 
droit  federal  dea  obligations^  p.  88  et  suiv.) 

Encequi  regarde  spdcialement  les  fonctionaircs  de  Tordre  judiciaire, 
leur  responsabilitiS  embra^se,  en  droit  commun  allemand,  tout  le  dommage 

resultant  de  leur  dol  on  d'une  faute  lourde  de  leur  part ;  le  point  de  savoir 

si  cette  responsabilitcS  existe  <^^alement  dans  les  cas  de  f'aut<3  16g('>re  est 
controversy,  mais  la  solution  affirmative  prdvaut  (cfr.  Windscheid,  op.  cit., 

vol.  II,  470;  Dernbnrg,  Pandekten,  3'"«ed.,  vol.  II,  $  135;  Wetzell,  op.  cit., 
$36,  note  14).  La  responsabilit^  du  pouvior  judiciare  est  aussi  admise 
en  France  (C.  proc.  civ.  fr.,  art.  505;  cfr.  Garsonnet,  op.  cit.,  vol.  I,  $54; 

Laurent,  op.  cit.,  vol.  XX,  n^  447),  mais,  comme  11  a  6t4>  expliqu^  plus  haut, 

elle  n'est  pas  entra1n(5e  par  une  faute  l^gere. 
An  Venezuela,  ce  sont  les  art.  341,  255  k  259,  282,  288,  297  et  339  du  Code 

p<^nal  du  27  avril  1873  qui  r^glent,  d'nne  mani^re  ap^ciale,  la  mati^re  de 
la  responsabilite  civile  d'nne  autorit^  judiciaire.  Les  juges  peuvent  ̂ tre 
actiouu^s  en  dommages  et  int^r^ts,  noii  seulement  ensuite  de  leur  dol  on 

de  leurs  fantes  lourdes,  mais  encore  pour  des  fan  ted  Idg'^res,  et  le  texte  de 
Tart.  341  semble  indiquer  que  la  rdparatiop  doit  etre  complete  dans  tons 

les  cas.  II  n'est  pas  besoin,  an  reste,  d'appuyer  sur  cette  derni^re  question, 
attendu  que  les  ddnc^gatious  de  justice  dont  se  plaint  Fabiani  procedent,  h 
tout  le  moins,  de  fantes  lourdes  et  que,  dans  ces  circonstances,  le  pr^jndioe 

^  rdparer  s'entend,  et  du  damnum  emergenSf  et  du  lucrum  cessans;  il  com- 
porte,  en  outre,  le  tort  moral  oomme  le  dommage  matdriel  (Laurent,  vol. 

XX,  n"*  393,  395  et  suiv. ;  Jubry  et  Rau,  vol.  IV,  $  445;  Hue,  op.  cit.,  VIII, 
n"  413;  Demolombe,  vol.  XXXI,  n**  672;  Code  Ud,  des  oblig.,  art.  65  et  les 
onvrages  citiSs  de  Schneider  et  Fick,  Hafner  et  Rossel;  C.  oiv.  autr.  art.  1329, 
1330).  Relativement  au  dommage  indirect  cependaut  et  i\  la  ndcessitd 

d'6tablir  nn  rapport  de  cause  h  etfet  entre  le  fait  iliicite  et  le  dommage 
pr6tendn,  le  demandeur  prouvera  que,  soit  en  consultant  le  cours  ordinaire 

des  cboses,  soit  en  s'attachaut  aux  affaires  de  la  partie  Idsde  ou  aux  dispo- 
sitions prises  par  elle,  11  est  probable — non  pas  seulement  possilile— que 

oelle-ci  anralt  rdalfsd  tel  ou  tel  profit  si  le  fait  iliicite  ne  s'<5tait  pas  pro- 
duit,  la  prenve  ̂ tant  d'ailleurs  sonmise  k  des  conditions  moins  strictes  en 
cas  de  faute  lourde  ou  de  dol  et  le  juge  oonservant  nne  entidre  liberty 

d'apprdoiation. 
Si  Ton  doit  decider  que  le  gonvemement  ddfendenr  est  responsable  des 

consequences  des  dendgations  de  justice  imputables  aux  autorites  jndioi- 
ares  venezueiiennes  envers  Fabiani,  11  reste  ̂   determiner  Tetendue  de  ces 

consequences  en  application  des  principes  exposes  plus  haut. 
Le  dommage  materiel  direct  subi  par  Fabiani  oomprend  les  valours  non 
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recouvr^es  et  les  biens  perdus  dont  il  serai t  rentrd  en  possession,  si  la  sen- 
tence aibitraie  dii  15  ddcciubre  1880  avait  pa  Hre  execatde  contre  les  Ron- 

cayolo;  il  comprend  dgaleiiieut,  en  priucipe,  les  frais  de  la  procedure d'ex6- 
cutiou  (voir  sub.  VI.,  11  tt.  a,  chiftVee  3).  Fabiani  n'eflt-il  pas  6t6  victime 
de  ddnis  de  justice,  et  rexrcutiou  de  la  dite  seutence  n'eftt-elle  pas  ̂ te 
entravde,  puis,  rendue  illusoire,  il  an  rait  pu  obtenir  paiement  de  ton  tea 

les  condamnatious  pronoiici'es  contre  ses  ddbiteurs.  Effectivement,  B.  et 
A.  Roucayolo  <^taient  solvables  Jusqu'<\  concurrence  an  moins  des  restitu- 

tions di verses  ordonnres  par  le  jiigement  du  15  decembre  1880.  Ce  fait 

d^coule  df'jfi  de  ce  que  le  Gouvernment  Vendzudlien  n'a  jamais  all<^gu6 
meme  que  les  r.^clamations  de  Fabiani  fussent  irrecouvrablea  contre  les 

Roncayolo,  et  qu'il  s'est  bornd  a  contester  I'existence  des  dc^ndgations  de 
justice,  ainsi  que  la  responsabilito  de  PKtat.  En  outre,  B.  Roncayolo,  de 
la  vue  de  la  partio  dofenderesse,  a  dto  agrde  par  les  pouvoirs  publics  du 
V6n67A\6]A,  conime  coucessionnaire  dMniportantes  entreprises,  et  il  <?tait 

fermier  de  la  douane  de  la  CeTba.  Andrd  Roncayolo  a  pu,  lui,  pendant  plus 
de  trois  ans,  taut  en  en  son  noni  personnel  que  comme  fcndd  de  procuration 

desou  ptre,  faire  les  frais  de  nombreuses  et  coftteuses  oppositions  a  I'ex^- 
cution  de  la  sentence  arbitrale,  cboisir  ses  avocats  parmi  les  juriconsultes 

notoirement  les  plus  rer.ommds  du  pays,  sans  compter  qu'il  s'dtait  enrichi 
d'une  sorame  de  plus  d^in  demi-million  de  francs  an  detriment  de  Fabiani. 
Et  c'est  vraiscmblablenieut  pour  mettre  h  Tabri  des  poursuites  de  leur 

crdancier,  les  droits  et  inti^rots  con sidt' rabies  qu'ils  avaieut  an  Y6u4zn6\a, 
que  les  adversaires  do  Fabiani  out  empecbe  avec  taut  d'acharnementrex^- 
cution  de  la  sentence  du  15  decembre  1880.  La  sol vabi lite  de  B.  et  A.  Ron- 

cayolo, partant,  la  recouvrabilit.^  des  valeurs  an  remboursement  desqnelles 

ils  avaient  4t6  condamnds,  ne  sanraient  vtve  s(^rieusement  mises  en  doute, 

d'autant  plus  que,  comme  on  vient  de  le  dire,  le  Vcnt^zudla  ne  les  a  point 
dduides. 

En  debors  du  dommage  materiel  direct,  Fabiani  a  ̂ prouv6  nn  tort  ma- 

teriel et  surtout  moral  tri'S  grave,  en  ce  que  les  ddndgations  de  justice  out 
ported  a  tons  <^gards  une  profoude  atteintej\  sa  situation  personnelleetont 
meme  6t6  la  cause  de  la  faillite  prouonc<^e  contre  lui  an  Vdn^zudla  (voir 
sub.  VI,  litt.  a,  cbiftVe  6  ci-apns). 

Le  dommage  indirect  en  (in  a  sa  source  dans  lo  fait  que  les  sommes  pay- 

ables par  les  Roncaj'olo  en  vertu  de  la  sentence  arbitrale,  out  6t6  soustrai- 

tes  au  cr<?ancier  pendant  un  grand  nombre  d'anndes  et  quMl  n'a  pu  ni  les 

employer  dans  sou  commerce,  ni  les  faire  fructifier  d'uue  mani^re  quelcon- 
que;  il  ne  s'agit  pas  ici  de  b<^ndfices  on  de  pertes  purement  hypothdtiques, 
dans  lestjuels  certains  publicistes  (Calvoy  op.  cit.,  IV,  477)  se  refusent  h 

voir  'Ma  maticTC  dune  action  prcuniaire  de  gouvernement  h  gouveme- 

ment,"  mais  d'un  manque  a  gagner  dont  les  elements  reposent  siir  des  faits 
concluants,  et  il  serait  souverainenient  contraire  h  I'dquitd  et  ̂   la  justice 

de  n'en  point  tenir  compte  dans  le  pr<^8ent  jiroc^'S  (voir  sub.  VI,  litt.  b). 
Et  maintenaut,  deux  c^ventualitos  pouvaieut  se  presenter;  ou  bien,  les 

d(5bitears  de  Fabiani  s'accjuittaient  cnvers  lui,  ou  bien,  soit  h  Tamiable, 
soit  par  voie  d'exdcution,  il  se  substituait  a  tons  les  droits  de  concessions, 
de  douanes  et  autres  qu'ils  possedaient  au  Vt^ndzudla.  Entre  ces  deux 
hypotbeses,  plausibles  Fuuc  et  I'autre,  il  faut  nocessairement  cboisir  celle 
qui  est  la  moins  defavorabie  a  TEtat  dcfeudeur  et  qui  est  aussi  la  plus 
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admissible  d'apr^s  le  coiirs  ordinaire  des  choses,  c'est-^-dire  ^hypoth^8e  dn 

paienient.  Ceti  d'antimt  plus  qu'il  n'a  6te  iii  otfert,  ni  admiiiistr>  aiicune 
prenve  teudant^dtablir  que  cette  hypoth^sede  la  solution  la  plus  normule 

du  ditf^rend  Fabiani-Koncayolo  ne  seserait  point  rt^jilisr e;  il  resulte  rafme 

do  I'ezpostS  du  gouvernement  deinandenr  que  les  d^biteurs  do  Fiibiani 

avaient  un  intdret  majeur,  s'ils  <5taieut  contraints  d'executer  la  sentence 

arbitrale,  i\  so  lib<Srer  purement  et  slmplenieut  eutre  ses  mains,  pint H  qu'^ 
se  laisser  enlevet-  des  droits  d  uue  valeur  bien  snpdrieure  a  celle  des  con- 
damnations  prononcdes — sans  parler  memo  des  obstarles  auxquels  se  serait 
heurtiS  sans  doote  le  transfert  de  tout  ou  partie  de  ces  droits  a  Fabiani,  et 

sans  appr^cier  1  efficacito  des  sflret^s  rdelles  obteuues  au  cours  de  la  pro- 

cedure d'ex^cution. 

La  question  du  mod-^  de  paiement  de  I'indemnit^  a  6t6  discutf^e  dans  la 
demande,  mais  elle  n'est  point  litigieuse;  le  compromis  I'a  rc^gloe  d'une 
mani^re  obligatoire  pur  les  parties  et  pour  I'Arbitre. 

VI.  La  liquidation,  d'apres  les  principes  ci-dessus,  de  I'etat  de  dom- 
mages  et  inter^ts  presents  par  le  Gouvernement  demaudeur  fournit  les 
r^sultats  Buivants: 

a.  Dommage  direct  et  tort  moral » 
(1)  La  sentence  arbitrale  fixait  h>  la  somme  de  538,359  fr.  .07, 

valeur  au  31  Janvier  1878,  le  d^bit  de  Andr^   Roncayolo 

envers  Fabiani.     Ce  poste  est  rMuit,  en  capital,  d'apres  la      Francs. 
demandec^   429,G»>8. 10 

II  y  a  lieu  de  teuir  comte  d'un  versement  de          5, 490. 55 

Reste    424,177.55 

(2)  Outer  cette  somme,  due  par  A.  Roncayolo,  la  sentence  arbitrale  con- 

ffere  h  Fabiani  le  <iroit  de  r<5clamer  "  tons  les  produits,  sans  aucune  exeep- 

tion  et  sans  aucuue  r/serve,  donnos  par  I'entreprise  du  remorquage  depnis 
le  30  novembre  1877,  y  compris  les  bdndHces  du  pilotage,"  des  la  mdme 
^poque,  en  taut  que  ces  profits  auraient  et>  encaissc^s  par  IJ.  ou  A.  Ronca- 

yolo; les  autres  condamnations  derivant  de  la  sentence  du  15  ddcembre 

1880,  out  et6  executives,  au  moins  dans  une  certaine  niesure,  puisque  Fabi- 
ani a  repris,  des  le  mois  de  juillet  1882,  soit  avant  le  d^but  des  den^gations 

de  Justice,  le  service  du  pilotage  et  du  remorquage,  et  que  des  preuves 

positives  concernant  les  effets  de  rinexdcution  de  ces  autres  condamna- 
tions font  defaut  dans  la  procedure. 

Du  chef  du  dispositif  pr^cite  de  la  sentence  arbitrale,  la  demande  porte 

au  compte  de  **  liquidation  des  sentences,"  en  capital : Francs. 

Recettes  du  pilotage  du  1"  d^cembre  1877  au  30  decembre  1878 . .  16, 000. 00 

Recettes  dii  pilota«re  du  1"'"  d<5eembre  1878  au  30  ddcenibre  1879. .  16, 000. 00 
Recettes  du  pilotage  <lu  l^^  dt^cembre  1879  au  30  decembre  1880. .  16, 000. 00 
Recettes  du  pilotage  du  V^  ddcembre  1880  au  30  decembre  1881 . .  12, 500. 00 
Recettes  du  pilotage  du  l«r  decembre  1881  au  15  juillet  1882       7, 812. 45   1   

Total    68,312.45 

Le  Gouvernement  d^fendeur  n*a  ni  contests  le  bien  fonde  de  eette  dette, 
provenant  des  encaissements  faits  sans  droit  par  la  partie  adverse  de  Fabi- 

ani, ni  critique  ces  chitires  qui  ne  paraissent  pas  exager^s. 
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II  en  eat  dememe  pour  les  restitutions  qui  se  rapportent  an  remorquage; 
elles  sont  ainsi  formulees  dans  la  demande,  en  capital : 

France. 

Produit  net  de  rann^e  1880    100,000.00 

Produit  net  de  I'annde  1881     100, 000.  00 
Prodiiit  du  l^r  Janvier  aa  15  juillet  1882       54, 165. 51 

Total    254,166.51 

Le  produit  net  6valu6  annuellement  a  100,000  francs  n^est  qn'approxi- 

matiflf ;  mais  ce  chifFre,  qui  n'a  pas  6t^  contests  dans  la  defense,  peut  etre 
admis  au  vn  des  documents  prodnitt*.  <^uant  aux  **al)ns  de  confiance  "  et 
''d^tournements"  des  Roncayolo,  qui  ue  visent  pas  directenient  le  pilot- 

age ou  le  remorquage,  ils  ne  sont  pas  compris  dans  la  sentence  arbitrale, 

ni,  par  consequent,  dans  le  compromis  de  1891. 

(3)  II  y  a  lieu  d'ajouter  au  compte  de  '*  liquidation  des  sentences"  les 
frais  iraportauts  occasionnds  par  la  procedure  d'ex^cution  depuis  le  15 
d<5cembre  1880,  frais  que  le  Gouvernement  demandeur  fait  figurer  sous 
diverses  rubriques  de  son  ̂ tat  de  dommages  et  int<^rct8;  les  autres  frais 

jndiciaires  r^clamds  ne  peuvent  rentrer  dans  rindemnit^  h  fixer  par  I'Aj- 
bitre  Ce  poste  embrasse  les  frais  d'enregistrement  de  la  sentence  arbitrale, 
les  frais  de  jtistice  et  de  partie  tant  de  la  procedure  devant  les  tribunaux 
frangais  que  devant  les  tribunaux  v^n^zu^liens,  soit  que  la  party  adverse 

de  Fabiani  ent  I'obligation  de  les  rembonrser,  soit  qu'ils  aient  6t6  causes 
inutilement  h  ce  dernier. 

line  somme,  int^rets  compris,  de   fr..  200,000 

ne  semble  pas  excessive,  si  Ton  tient  compte,  entre  autres,  des  nombreux 
et  coitteux  d^placements  que  la  sauvegarde  de  ses  droits  a  imposes  k 
Fabiani,  et  mrme  si  Von  porte  en  deduction  les  frais  qui  peuvent  ̂ tre 
envisages  comme  ayant  6t6  faits  sans  motifs  legitimes. 

Toutes  les  autres  reclamations  de  Tdtat  consacr^  k  ''la  liquidation  des 

sentences"  sont  dtrang^res  au  litige  actuel ;  c'est  le  cas  des  *'abus  de  con- 
fiance"  et  ''d^^tournements"  dont  il  a  6t6  parl6  plus  bant,  ainsi  que  des 
"  annuit^s  dotales"  en  vertu  du  contrat  de  mariage  du  20  avril  1867,  de  la 

perte  ̂ prouv^e  sur  la  vente  des  marcbandises  d'apr<'S  la  transaction  du  31 
Janvier  1878,  etc.  Ces  sommes  n'^tant  pas  comprises  dans  la  sentence 
arbitrale  n'out  pu  provoqner,  de  la  part  des  tribunaux  v^n^zu^liens,  des 
d^n^-gations  de  justice  dont  le  Gouvernemeut  d^fendeur  serait  responsable 
aux  termes  du  compromis  de  1891. 

La  question  des  intdrots  est  r<^8ervee  (voir  sub.  litt.  b  ci-apr^s), 

(4)  Parmi  les  reclamations  figurant  dans  I'^tat  B.  dommages  et  Int^rdts, 
les  seules  qui  puissout  etre  prises  en  consideration,  dans  Tesp^ce,  sont 

celles  mentionnoes  sous  chiff'res  11,  12  et  19  de  Texpos^  des  faits  qui  pre- 
cede; or  elles  sont  entrees  en  ligne  de  compte,  d^j^  lors  de  la  fixation  (voir 

sub.  3)  des  frais  d'execution  de  la  sentence  arbitrale.  Les  autres  indem- 
uit«58  n'ont  pas  leur  source  dans  ladite  sentence,  ni,  par  consequent,  dans 
son  d(5faut  d  execution  ensuite  de  donegations  de  justice  imputables  aux 

tribunaux  du  Venezuela;  il  est  superflu,  dans  ces  conditions,  de  s'occuper 

des  deductions  consenties  dans  Tetat  B.,  atteudu  qu'elles  ont  trait  k  des 

postes  eiimines  par  I'Arbitre. 
(5)  L'etat  C.  se  ref^re  au  service  du  remorquage,  et  les  dommages  et 

interdts  qu'il  comporte  ont  leur  origine  dans  le  retrait  de  ce  service  en 
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1884  Cette  question  a  6t6  tranchde  a  propos  de  celle  des  **  faits  du 

prince;"  sans  disciiter  nieme  le  point  de  savoir  si  le  Gouvernement  d^fen- 
deur  n'6tait  pas  en  droit  de  d^ooncer  le  coiitrat  dii  7  d^cembre  1874,  il  est 
Evident  que  les  gains  dont  Fabiani  pr<Stend  avoir  H6  fnistrd  par  cet  acte, 
ne  lui  ont  pas  6t6  enlevds  h  raison  de  denogations  de  justice  qui,  seules, 

peuvent  engager  la  responsabilite  du  V^nczu^la  dans  Tinstance  actuelle. 

II  s'agit  ici  pr^cis^ment  d'un  de  ces  '*  faits  du  prince,"  sur  la  l(^gitimit^  et 
les  effets  duquel  VArbitre  n'a  pas  a  se  pronoucer;  il  ne  lui  etait  permis  de 
rappr<^cier  que  comme  un  indice  des  dispositions  de  I'autorite  v^n6zu61- 
ienne  envers  Fabiani  (voir  sub.  Ill,  ci-devant). 

(6)  Un  tort  considerable,  mat(^riel  et  surtout  moral  (^tat  E.),  a  et6  caus6 
^  Fabiani  par  sa  declaration  de  failite  au  Venezuela,  la  fermeture  de  ses 
etablissenients  commerciaux  a  Maracaibo,  les  embarras  financiers  dans 

lesquels  il  a  ete  fatalement  plough  et  Tabandon  forc6  de  ses  entreprises. 
Ce  dommage  peut  etre  envisage  comme  la  constMiueuce  immediate  des 
denogations  de  justice,  puisquo  aussi  bien  Fabiani  a  H6  mis  en  faillite  ̂  
Maracaibo  pour  defaut  do  paiement  de  sommes  inforieures  de  beauconp  il 

celles  que  I'executiou  de  la  sentence  arbitrale  lui  anrait  fait  recouvrer. 

Le  Gouvernement  defendeur  ne  conteste  pas  que  Fabiani  possr'dait  des 
maisous  prosperes  au  Venezuela  et  a  Marseille,  du  moinsavant  les  dOmeles 

judiciaires  dont  est  i\6  le  present  litige;  et  les  motifs  de  la  sentence  arbi- 

trale, ainsi  que  d'autres  elements  de  la  cause,  montrent  puele  ressortissant 
fran^ais,  dont  I'Etat  demandeur  a  pris  les  interets  en  mains,  etait  un 
negociant  serieux  et  honnete,  auquel  le  recouvrement  de  ce  que  les  Ron- 

cayolo  lui  devaient  aurait  permis  d'escorapter  largement  Tavenir.  Sa 
faillite,  determinee  par  les  denegations  de  justice  souvent  rapi)eie8,  Pa 
profondement  atteint,  tant  dans  sa  situation  economi()ue  que  dans  sa 

persounalite  tout  enti^re,  si  bien  (jue  rallocatiou  d'une  indemnite  propor- 

tionnee  an  dommage  subi  s'impose  de  ce  chef.  Au  reste,  Fabiani,  grdce 
k  ses  conn aissan ces,  h  son  activite,  ji  ses  nioyens  d'action,  ne  pouvait  man- 

quer,  dans  des  conditions  normales,  d'accroitre  encore  la  consideration  et 
le  credit  dont  il  jouissait,  de  donuer  i\  ses  entreprises  un  plus  grand  essor, 
et,  tres  probablement,  de  faire,  en  sus  du  gain  perdu  et  dont  il  sera  parle 

ci-apr68,  d'antres  benefices  par  I'exploitatiou  d'autres  sources  de  revenus; 
par  la  faute  des  antorites  jndiciares  du  Venezuela,  il  a  perdu  tout  ensemble 
ses  biens  et  son  bonneur,  et  il  a  traverse  de  tres  peniblcs  epreuves.  Ce 

sent  \h  des  circonstances  exceptionnelles,  dont  il  serait  injuste  de  mOcon- 

naltre  la  gravite  et  d'ecarter  les  eonsequenees  dommageables,  en  iuvoquant 
le  caract^re  international  de  la  eoiitestation  actuelle. 

Des  renseiguements  precis  font  necessairement  defaut,  sur  certains 

points,  pour  etablir  avec  uue  exactitude  absolue  le  niontant  de  la  repara- 

tion qui  est  legitemeraent  due  a  Fabiani,  dans  les  limites  de  I'etat  E  de  la 
demande.  L'Arbitre,  appreciant  librement  les  faits  de  la  cause,  evalue  k 
tr.  1,800,000  le  chiftre  des  donimages  et  interets  representant  le  prejudice  • 
eprouve,  independameut  de  celui  reconnu  sous  litt.  b. 

b,  Dommage  indirect, 

(1)  Les  dommages  et  interAts  reclames  dans  I'etat  D  correspondent  aux 
sacrifices  faits  pour  le  maintien  de  Tindustrie  de  1  abiani  et  au  gain  dont 

il  a  ete  frnstre.  La  non-execution  de  la  sentence  arbitrale,  non-execution 
provoqneepardesdenisde  justice,  a  cause  k  Fabiani  nu  prejudice  indirect 
fix6  daus  la  demande  a  la  some  de  4^200,000  francs;  mais  il  importe  de  ne 
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pas  confondre  ce  dommage  avec  celui  dont  il  vient  d'^.tre  apl^r,  sous  litt.  a, 
chiffre  6. 

Aussi  bieo,  il  y  a  lien  d^admettre  ici,  h  titre  de  compensation,  uniqaemeut 
r^qaivalent  du  dommage  qui  pent  etre  cousid^rcS  comme  une  suite  de 

rimpossibilitd  dans  laquelle  s'est  trouv^  Fabiaui,  araison  <le  Tiuex^cution 
du  jugemeut  du  15  d^cembre  1880,  de  faire  fractifier  les  capitaux  importants 

qui  lui  <^taient  dns  et  qu'il  aurait  recouvres.  Le  moyen  le  plus  siir 
d'arriver  ii  un  Evaluation  certaine,  eQt  6t6  de  consulter  les  livres  de  la 
maison  Fabiani  et  de  verifier  jusqu'a  quel  point  ses  b^n^fices  avielut 
siiccesRivemeot  dimiuu6  par  Peffet  du  refus  d^guisE,  mais  persistant,  des 
autorit^s  vEn6zuEliennes,  de  proc^der  ou  do  laisser  proceder  h,  TexEcution 

de  la  sentence  arbitrale.  Ces  livres  n'ont  pas  6t6  produits,  et,  quoique  le 
d^iaut  de  production  de  ces  documents  paraisse  excusable,  les  indications 

fournies  dans  I'Etat  D  ne  constituent  pas  des  justifications  suffisantes 

de  tonte  I'indemnit^  r6clamde.  L'existeuce  d'un  dommage  indirect  n'en 
est  pas  moins  indubitable.  Ce  prejudice  consiste  essentiellemcnt,  non  pas 

dans  les  sacrifices,  prouv^s  d'une  mauiere  incomplete,  que  Fabiani  aurait 
faits  pour  le  maintien  de  son  Industrie  et  dans  des  profits  plus  ou  moins 
probables,  mais  dans  la  circonstance  que  les  sonimes  dues  en  vertu  de  la 

sentence  arbitrale  sont  demeurdes  inproductives  pendant  nombre  d'ann^es, 
de  par  les  d^^n^gationsde  justice  commises  a  son  encontre  au  Vdn^zudla. 

Dans  la  demande,  on  a  ajoutE  constamment  au  capital  des  r<Sclamations 
formuldes,  les  iut^rcts  composes  qui  rentrent  plutAt  dans  les  indemnit^s  h 
allouer  pour  dommage  indirect.  II  convient,  h.  ce  propos,  de  faire  observer 

que  les  arguments  invoqut^s  par  le  Gouvernement  ddfendeur  (Dcfensej  p. 

97  et  suiv.)  contre  la  pr<5tention  de  la  partie  adverse  d'exiger  des  intdrets 
ne  sont  nnllement  fond<5s;  la  reuonciation  que  I'on  oppose  au  Gouverne- 

ment de  la  REpublique  franvaise  ne  coucerne  pas  la  prison te  contestation 

et  no  naurait  etre  entendue  au-del:i  de  ses  termes;  de  plus,  les  considera- 

tions juridiques  d6velopp(?e8  h  I'appui  de  la  these  de  TEtat  vEnEzuElien  ne 
sont  pas  concluantes,  pour  les  motifs  pr^c^demment  expos^^s  et  qui  mon- 

trent  que  la  mesure  de  la  responsabilitE  de  I'Etat  est  adequate  k  celle  de 
la  responsabilite  des  antoritos  fautives  elles-memes. 

S'il  en  est  ainsi,  on  doii  recounaitre  que  Fabiani  aurait  pu  faire  fructi- 
fier,  dans  ses  entreprises,  les  iut^rets  simples  du  montant  des  condamna- 

tions  de  la  sentence  arbitrale,  dans  re.ventualit<5  ofi  il  n'aurait  pas  6t6  vic- 

time  de  d 'nt^gations  de  justice.  La  capitalisation  d'intt^rets  est  autoria^e 
en  matii're  de  comptes-courants  et  d'op<^rations  analogues,  parce  que  le 

lEgislateur  presume  cjue,  dans  le  commerce,  I'argent  ne  reste  pas  impro- 
ductif  (cfr.  art.  335,  C.  f6d.  des  oblig.  et  Laurent,  op.  cit.,  Vol.  XVI,  n"348). 
Mais  Fabiani  n'a  droit  k  des  int^rets  composers  que  pour  les  ri^clamations 

admises  sous  litt.  a,  chittres  1  et  2,  qui  s*61  invent  h  la  somme  totale  de 
746,656  fr.  51,  car  il  n'en  saurait  etre  question,  ni  h.  regard  des  200,000 
francs  allou^s  pour  fiais  judiciaires,  ni  i\  regard  de  TindemnitE  ferme  de 
1,800,000  francs  accordee  sous  litt.  a,  chiffre  6.  Les  interets  composes  de 

la  somme  de  746,656  fr.  55  ne  reprdsentent  toutefois  pas,  dans  I'opinion  de 
TArbitre,  le  gain  integral  dont  Fabiani  a  6i6  frustre  par  le  non-recouvre- 
nient  des  sommes  comprises  dans  la  sentence  arbitrale.  Si  Fabiani  avait  pu 

tirer  parti  de  ces  sommes  et  les  employer  dans  son  n^goce,  il  est  vraisem- 
blable  qn'il  aurait  fait  des  b^ndfices  8up6rieurs  aux  interets  composes  de 
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06  capital  pendant  le  laps  de  temps  dnrant  leqnel  il  serait  antoris^  h  lea 

porter  en  coiupte.  Ainsi  qu'il  r^sulte  de  circonstances  i\6jd,  relat^es,  il  avait 
des  luuisons  de  coiuinerce  prospi^res,  son  credit  ̂ tait  bien  ̂ tal>]i,  ses  res- 
sources  ̂ tuient  con8id6rables,  toutes  ses  entreprisett  paruissaieiit  asMurdes 

d'un  rapport  exceptionneilemeut  6\ev6;  lea  d^n^gations  de  justice  dont  il 
a  6t6  la  victime  lui  out  caust^  les  pertes  tres  graves  qui  vienneut  d'etre 
rappeldes.  Ici,  de  nouveau,  I'Arbitre  doit  appr<^cier  libreuient,  suivant  la 
conviction  qu'il  a  pu  ho  former,  et  11  Juge  equitable  d'dvaleur  }\  Fr.  1,500.000 
ledomm  i\;e  indirect  snbi  par  Fabiaui,  en  tenant  compte  de  la  realisation 

de  I'hypoth^que  de  120,000  francs. 
(2)  Sur  les  pr;^judices  commercianx  de  Fabiana  viendrait  se  jjreflfer,  sui- 

vant la  demande,  le  dommage  ̂ prouv^  dans  Tatfairo  du  cheuiin  de  fer  de 

la  Ce^b.u  Coiume  Li  moutreut  les  cousidc^rations  d/'veloppoes  sous  chiffre 

V  in  fine,  il  n'est  point  ̂ tabli  ({ue  B.  et  A.  Koucayoio  tie  se  seruieut  pas 
lib^rds,  atin  pr^cis^meut  d'arreter  route  procedure  dirig<^e  coutre<leH  droits 
et  actions  d'unegrandevaleur  It  n'est  pasprouve  davautage  quele  trans- 
fert  de  ces  droits  et  actiims,  k  d.  faut  meuie  de  paiement,  se  serait  n  ces- 

sairment,  et  pour  leur  totalito,  et!ectu<S  au  proHr  de  Fabiaui.  L'bypoth6se 
sur  laquelle  repose  cette  r*^clamafion  de  24,000,000  de  fraucs  ayaut  6i6 

^carti'e,  il  convieut  de  faire  coiupMtement  abstraction  de  I'indemnitd  qui 
s'y  Tapporte. 

0.  En  ce  qui  concerne  lesfrais  de  la  pr^sente  instance,  I'Arbitre,  constatant 
que  lee  conclusions  de  la  demaude  sou t  ad ju goes  en  principe,  mais  que 

I'exagdration  des  reclamations  f  »ruiul6es  a  entrain^  des  d*  pens  inutiles, 
met  les  frais  du  Qouvernemeut  deuiaudeur,  liquid^s  h  la  somme  de  Ft, 

100,000 — 4  la  cbarge  dn  Gouvernement  d^fendeur  et  compense  entre  les 

parties  les  d^pens  de  I'arbitrage. 
VII.  De  ce  qui  pr^cMe,  il  rdsnlte  que  le  chiflfre  integral  de  I'indemnite 

allonge  s'^tablit  comme  suit : Francs. 

1.  Debit  A.  Roncayolo        424,177.55 

2.  Recettesdu  pilotage          68,312.45 

3.  Recettes  du  remorquage         254, 166. 51 

4.  Frais  d'exdcutiou        200,000.00 
5.  Dommnge  cause  par  la  faillite   *    1, 800, 000. 00 
6.  Dommage  indirect    1, 500, 000. 00 
7.  Frais  du  demaudenr        100,000.00 

En  tout    4,346,656.51 

Par  ces  motifs. 
Prononce : 

Le  Gouvernement  des  Etats-Unis  du  Venezuela  paiera  h  Fabiaui,  k  titre 

d'iudemnite,  dans  les  tenues  du  compromis  du  24  Fevrier  1891,  tons  frais 
compris,  la  somme  totale  de  quatre  millions  trois  cent  qnarante-six  mille 
cinq uant4i'8ix  francs  cinquante  et  un  centimes  (Fr.  4, 346, 656. 51),  avec  interets 
k  cinq  ponr  cent  Tan  d^s  la  date  de  la  presente  sentence. 

Les  depens  de  I'arbitrage  sent  compenses  entre  les  parties. 
Ainsi  fait  k  Berne,  le  trente  Decembre  1896. 

A.  Lachrnal, 

President  de  la  Confederation  Suisse, 
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HEAD   NOTES. 

Prevention  by  the  chief  of  the  custom-house  at  Carupano  of  the  beneficial  use  of  the  tram- 
way enterprise  by  the  claimant  was  without  right  and  the  injuries  resulting  are  properly 

chargeable  to  the  resfK)ndent  Government. 

Suspension  of  the  tramway  traffic  by  order  of  the  municipal  council  of  Carupano  is  equally 

without  right,  and  the  injuries  resulting  are  properly  chargeable  to  the  respondent  Gov- 
ernment through  this  municipal  division  thereof. 

Suspension  of  the  tramway  traffic  by  order  of  the  municipal  council  of  Carupano  that  the 

private  aqueduct  company  might  use  its  streets  to  lay  the  pipe  lines  of  the  company 
whereby  serious  injury  resulted  to  the  claimant  must  be  met  with  a  proper  recompense 
by  the  city  and  is  here  properly  chargeable  to  the  claimant  Government  through  and 
because  of  said  municipality. 

The  defects  and  faults  of  the  street  following  and  resulting  from  the  laying  of  these  pipe  lines 

by  the  aqueduct  company,  after  their  condition  was  known  to  the  city  and  they  were 
accepted  in  that  condition,  and  which  defects  and  faults  resulted  in  serious  injury  to  the 

claimant,  the  damages  resulting  are  properly  chargeable  to  the  respondent  Govern- 
ment through  this  municipality,  having  special  reference  to  the  fact  that  the  claimant 

had  resumed  use  of  the  streets  on  the  formal  statement  of  the  municipality  that  they 

were  in  proper  condition  therefor. 

O  EXTRACT   FROM   THE   MINUTES   OF  THE   SITTING   OF   MAY    12,  1903. 

The  arbitrators  proceeded  then  to  the  examination  of  the  claim  presented  by  Messrs. 
Fieri  and  Nasica,  of  which  the  different  parties  are  the  object  of  the  following  decisions: 

The  claim  of  Mr.  Nasica,  amounting  to  1,500,000  bolivars,  is  rejected  by  the  commission; 
the  claim  of  the  Messrs.  Fieri  &  Co.,  amounting  on  the  one  hand  to  3,730,000  bolivars  and 

on  the  other  for  acts  posterior  to  May  23,  1899,  to  280,400  bolivars,  is  accepted  in  its  en- 
semble for  600,000  bolivars  by  M.  de  Feretti. 

The  French  arbitrator  considers  that  the  continual  hindrances  brought  by  the  municipal 

authorities  of  Cariipano  to  the  exploitation  of  the  line  of  tramways  have  rendered  the  latter 
so  difficult  that  the  rescission  of  the  contract  ought  to  be  pronounced.  In  exchange  for  the 

indemnity  which  he  demands  for  the  concessionary  the  city  of  Cariipano  will  remain  in 

possession  of  the  line,  of  the  depot,  and  of  the  cars  which  constitute  the  actual  material 
existing. 

M.  de  Feretti  adds  that  he  has  been  able  during  his  trip  to  Carupano  to  prove  that  the  last 
war  had  completely  stopped  the  exploitation;  the  line,  of  which  the  rails  have  been  torn  up 

in  several  places,  is  cut  in  two  by  four  barricades;  the  depot,  which  has  served  as  a  military 
hospital,  is  partly  demolished  and  the  cars  have  almost  all  l>een  put  out  of  service. 

Doctor  Faul  is  in  favor  of  according  only  20,000  bolivars  to  Mr.  Fieri  for  the  destruction 

of  the  printing  office  and  150,000  bolivars  for  the  damage  caused  to  the  company  of  tram- 

ways by  the  last  war  and  for  the  abandonment  which  M.  Fieri  had  to  make  to  the  munici- 
pality of  Cariipano  of  the  concession  of  the  tramway,  of  the  depot,  and  of  the  material 

which  makes  up  the  exploitation  of  the  said  line.  He  refuses  to  acknowledge  for  the  inter- 
ested party  the  right  to  an  indemnity  from  the  fact  of  his  dispute  with  the  municipal 

authorities. 

Doctor  Faul  presents  the  reading  of  the  memoir  containing  the  arguments  upon  which  he 

bases  his  opinion.    After  the  discussion,  the  arbitrators  each  maintaining  his  opinion,  it  is 
agreed  that  this  claim  will  be  submitted  to  the  umpire. 

185 



186  DOMINIQUE    &    CO.   CASE. 

The  aiTest  and  imprisonment  of  the  claimant  on  the  oral  order  of  the  civil  chief  without  war- 

rant, his  detention  for  twenty-four  hours  in  prison,  and  his  subsequent  discharge  on  pa}^- 
raent  of  the  jail  fee  without  intervention  of  court  or  tribunal  of  any  character  is  wholly 

unjustifiable  and  is  a  proper  subject  of  indemnity. 

The  losses  accruin<;  to  the  claimant  through  the  sale  of  his  houses  not  being  the  direct  and 
approximate  result  of  any  cause  for  which  the  respondent  Government  is  responsible  no 

damages  can  accrue. 
Because  the  claimant  Government  and  the  respondent  Government  agreed  in  the  protocol 

constituting  this  commission  that  payment  of  awards  made  should  be  in  the  3  per  cent 

diplomatic  debt  of  Venezuela  and  because  that  such  diplomatic  debt  has  a  value  at 

present  very  much  below  par,  it  is  urged  by  the  claimant  Government  that  the  umpire 
add  a  sufficient  amount  to  his  award  to  make  it  as  valuable  to  the  claimant  as  though 

the  award  was  payable  in  gold.  This  interference  with  the  solemn  compact  made 
between  the  two  nations  is  justified  on  the  part  of  the  claimant  Government  upon  the 

ground  of  the  inequality  which  exists  between  it  and  the  other  governments  which  have 

recently  had  arbitral  relations  with  the  respondent  Government.  Tl\e  arrangement  for 

paj^ment  in  the  one  case  permitted  a  long  celay  in  payment,  without  interest.  This 
arrangement  requires  innnediate  payment  through  its  diplomatic  debt  with  interest  at 

a  low  rate.  The  inequity,  therefore,  is  not  very  pronounced,  and  if  it  were  the  umpire 
regards  himself  incompetent  to  make  the  award  suggested. 

OPINION  OF  THE  VENEZUELAN  COMMISSIONER. 

These  claims  amount  to  5,510,400  francs,  made  up  as  follows : 
Francs. 

Claim  of  Fieri  Dominique    3, 730, 000 
Claim  of  A.  L.  Nasica     1,  .500, 000 

Claim  of  Fieri  Dominique  &  Co         280,  400 

Total     .5,  510,  400 

In  the  recorc's  of  these  claims  there  are  connected  two  ckims  for 
indemnity  against  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  presented  on  the  6th 
of  July,  1895,  to  the  governor  of  Martinique  by  L.  Nasica  for  the  sum  of 
1,500,000  francs  and  by  Fieri  Dominique  for  the  sum  of  3,730,000 
francs,  for  outrages  committed  against  their  persons  and  property  by 
the  people  and  authorities  of  Carupano,  on  the  21st  of  June,  1895. 
Besides,  other  documents  have  been  presented  according  to  which 

Fieri  Dominique  &  Co.  claim  the  sum  of  280,400  francs  for  several 
acts  originated  by  the  war  during  the  years  1901  and  1902  in  the  city 
of  Carupano,  and  which,  it  is  alleged,  caused  damage  to  the  Tramways 
Enterprise,  the  property  of  Fieri  Dominique. 

Faragraph  3,  article  2,  of  the  proctocol  of  Fans,  dated  the  19th  of 

Febniary,  1902,  provides — 

that,  if  several  claims  for  indenmities  based  on  different  facts  are  presented  by  the' same 
claimant,  and  one  of  them  is  in  the  case  of  being  s^ibmitted  to  the  proceedimj  established  in 
article  2,  the  other  shall  be  added  to  it  to  be  the  object  of  one  only  settlement. 

The  two  claims  for  indemnity  presented  by  Fieri  Dominique  are 
based,  the  one  on  facts  that  took  place  in  the  years  1895  to  1896  and 
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the  other  on  different  facts  occurred  in  1901  to  1902;  but,  as  the 
former  is  in  the  case  of  being  submitted  to  the  proceeding  estabhshed 

in  article  2  of  the  protocol,  the  btter  must  be  the  object  of  the  simul- 
taneous examination  of  this  commission,  that  one  same  decision  may 

be  rendered  concerning  both  of  them. 

The  claim  of  A.  L.  Nasica  is  based  on  the  following: 
Annex  No.  55: Francs. 

1.  The  destruction  of  a  printing  press  and  the  robbery  of  all   the   material 
and  merchandise         600, 000 

2.  The  blows  and  wounds  received         600, 000 

3.  The  physical  and  moral  sufferings  undergone  on  account  of  the  persecu- 
tion of  which  he  was  a  victim         300, 000 

Total     1,  500, 000 

That  of  Fieri  Dominique : 
*  Francs. 

1.  The  abandonment  of  the  Tramways  Enterprise,  the  exclusive  privilege  of 

which  was  to  last  38  years  and  the  average  revenue  of  which,  taking  as  a 

basis  the  progressive  increase,  may  be  valued  at  80,000  francs  a  year   3, 000, 000 
Annex  No.  55: 

2.  Damage  done  on   the  day  of   the  outrage,  destniction  of  the  printing 
press,  of  a  large  part  of  the  tramway  material,  robbery  of  different 
objects,  and  demolition  of  a  part  of  the  immovable           70, 000 

3.  Forcible  and  difficult  realization,  in  view  of  the  absolute  want  of  security, 
of  twelve  houses,  the  yearly  rent  of  which  is  9,000  francs         300, 000 

4.  The  physical  and  moral  sufferings,  traveling  expense,  and  residence  out 
of  Venezuela,  far  from  his  family         360, 000 

Total    3, 730, 000 

The  evidence  presented  with  regard  to  the  facts  to  which  these  two 
claims  are  confined  having  been  examined,  it  is  found:  Thcit  Fieri 
Dominique  bought  this  enterprise  at  a  public  auction  on  the  8th  of 
May,  1891,  in  the  town  of  Carupano,  from  the  liquidator  of  the  joint 

stock  company,  'Tranvias  de  Carupano,^'  for  the  sum  of  38,500  bolivars. 
Fieri  Dominique  continued  the  exploitation  of  the  Carupano  Tramway 
without  any  obstacle  until  early  in  March,  1895,  when  he  desired  to 

build  a  branch  line  to  have  wagons  pass  before  the  custom-house,  and 
carrying  out  this  purpose,  he  laid  the  rails;  that  this  being  done,  the 
collector  of  customs,  who  was  absent  from  the  place,  notified  him  on  liis 
return  from  Caracas,  of  the  order  to  remove  the  rails,  because  they 

obstructed  the  traffic  indispensable  for  the  operations  of  the  custom- 
house; that  at  the  same  time  the  municipal  council  ordered  Fieri  to 

stop  the  works  he  was  doing  on  the  tramway  line  until  after  the  com- 
mission of  surveyors  appointed  to  that  purpose  should  report  as  to 

whether  said  works  did  or  not  interfere  with  the  free  traffic;  that  Fieri 

obeyed  the  order  of  the  council  and  even  requested  it  that  the  com- 
mission appointed  should  be  at  once  directed  to  examine  the  points  of 

the  line  that  he  would  indicate  and  that  required  to  be  repaired  in 
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order  to  render  traffic  comfortable  and  secure ;  that  the  commission 

rendered  its  report  and  expressed  the  opinion — 
that  the  portion  of  the  line  lying  between  the  wharf  and  the  custom-house  must  be  restored 

to  its  primitive  state — that  is  to  say,  to  that  m  which  it  was  before  the  contract  with  Messrs. 
D.  Fieri  &  Co.  had  been  entered  into;  that  the  municipal  council  approved  said  report  and 
ordered  the  same  to  be  transmitted  for  their  compliance  therewith  to  D.  Fieri  &  Co., 

said  company  being  free  to  establish  the  branch  line  in  the  lower  part  of  the  mound,  which 
it  was  its  duty  to  previously  bring  to  the  knowledge  of  the  council,  as  well  as  any  other 
reformation  it  might  in  the  future  pretend  to  make  on  the  general  line. 

It  also  appeared  to  be  proved  thiit  Fieri  Dominique,  who  considered 
himself  prejudiced  in  the  rights  gn^nted  him  by  his  concession,  did  not 

proceed  to  adduce  those  rights  in  a  contentious  action  before  the  com- 
petent tribunals  of  the  State^  in  conformity  with  article  8  of  his  con- 

triict,  but  on  the  10th  of  June,  1895,  he  issued  a  flying  sheet,  entitled: 

'To  the  public  and  to  justice, '^  in  which  he  qualified  in  insolent  terms 
the  action  of  the  collector  of  customs  and  of  the  municipal  council; 
that  a  few  days  after,  Fieri  Dominique,  being  associated  to  A.  L. 
Nasica,  placed  him  in  charge  of  the  direction  of  a  printing  office  he  had 
in  the  same  house  of  the  tramway  station,  and  there  the  first  issue  was 

edited  of  a  newspaper  entitled  ̂ 'El  Eco  del  Oriente,^^  which  contained 
an  editorial  article  written  by  Nasica,  offensive  to  the  local  constituted 
authorities  and  especially  depressive  for  the  people  of  Carupano;  that 

on  the  21st  of  June,  two  days  after  the  appearance  of  said  news- 
paper, the  place  where  the  printing  press  was  was  invaded  by  a  group 

of  people,  who  had  a  quarrel  with  Nasica,  the  result  of  which  was  that 
the  types  of  the  printing  press  were  thrown  to  the  street,  cs  well  as  its 
materials;  that  Nasica  fled  with  some  confusion;  that  Fieri  hid  in  the 

house  of  a  friend,  and  that  both  of  them  cautiously  embarked  two  or 
three  days  after  for  the  island  of  Trinidad. 

The  alarm  consequential  to  these  occurrences,  which  assumed  an 
especially  serious  character  for  the  numerous  French  colony,  that,  as 

is  well  known,  forms  the  principal  portion  of  the  merchants  of  Carti- 
pano,  gave  occasion  to  the  fact  that,  the  very  day  said  occurrences  took 
place,  said  colony  published  a  manifestation  signed  by  its  principal 
members  (Annex  No.  57),  in  which  the  following  protest  was  made: 

And  as  those  assertions  (those  copied  from  the  editorial  article  of  the  first  issue  of  El 

Eco  del  Oriente)  are  absolutely  untnie,  as  far  as  the  French  residing  in  this  region  of  the 

Republic  are  cxincemed,  we,  as  citizens  of  France,  declare  that  far  from  l)eing  the  objects 

of  hatred  and  persecutions  we  have  been  treated  by  the  authorities  of  the  nation,  of  the 
state,  and  of  the  municipalities,  with  the  same  consideration  they  bestowed  upon  us  before 
the  lamentable  interruption  of  the  diplomatic  relations  between  Venezuela  and  our  beloved 
native  land.  We  make  this  protest  becau.se  we  believe  that  man  must,  in  all  the  acts  of 

his  life,  profess  fealty  to  truth  and  justice. 

On  the  same  date  another  manifestation  was  published,  signed  by 
the  same  French  citizens,  together  with  some  Venezuelans  (Annex  No. 
57)  in  which  it  is  stated : 

The  undersigned,  French  and  Venezuelan  citizens,  believe  it  to  be  their  duty  to  make 
it  to  appear  that  we  are  satisfied  with  the  actions  and  conduct  of  Gen.  Froilan  Caliman, 
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the  collector  of  customs,  in  the  maritime  custom  office  at  this  port,  who,  without  depart- 

ing from  the  route  of  the  law,  makes  efforts  to  contrive  the  means  of  facilitating  our  opera- 
tions with  said  office,  for  which  reason  we  recognize  in  this  official  a  good  servant,  who 

tries  to  maintain  the  national  Government  the  confidence  of  which  he  enjoys,  in  high  repute; 
and  we  are  persuaded  that  his  presence  at  the  post  he  holds  constitutes  a  guaranty  for  our 
interests  and  a  security  for  the  honest  merchants  of  the  East. 

The  aforesaid  protest  and  manifestation  are  signed  by,  besides  other 
respectable  members  of  the  French  colony,  Messrs.  Franceschi  &  Co., 
Joucla  &  Co.,  Raf^lli  Hermanos,  Augustin  Lucca  &  Co.,  A.  VicentelU 
O.,  Vicentelli  &  Sintelli,  Federico  Benedetti,  Andres  Pietri,  and  Juan 
A.  Auberon,  and  it  is  to  be  observed,  as  a  very  especial  circumstance, 
that  Messrs.  Franceschi  &  Co.  were  at  the  time  partners  of  Pietri 
Dominique  &  Co.  in  the  enterprise  of  the  Tramway  of  Carupano. 

It  appears  proved  by  the  investigation  made  by  the  consular  agent 

of  France  at  Cartipano,  by  order  of  the  vice-consul  of  the  same  nation 
in  Caracas,  and  by  the  answers  given  to  said  consular  agent  by  Messrs. 
F.  Benedetti,  Dr.  B.  Bermtidez,  J.  Bk  scini,  F.  Massiani,  Santos  Ermini, 
J.  Vicentelli  O.,  and  Joaquin  Hiques  (Annex  D  No.  7) : 

First.  That  a  mob  penetrated  the  house  where  Pieri's  printing  press 
was  and  threw  all  the  utensils  of  the  printing  press  into  the  streets. 

Second.  That  the  enterprise  of  the  Tramway  suffered  nothing  by 
that  event,  it  being  untrue  that  a  part  of  the  tramway  station  was 
destroyed. 

Third.  That  what  happened  to  Pieri's  printing  press  was  due  to  an 
insulting  and  degrading  editorial  article  of  the  paper  edited  at  said 
printing  office  and  directed  against  the  local  and  national  authorities 
and  the  citizens. 

Fourth.  That  it  was  the  people  who,  in  a  moment  of  indignation 
against  those  who  injured  it,  exercised  that  vengeance. 

Fifth.  That  it  is  untrue  that  the  mob  went  to  and  entered  the 

private  house  of  Fieri  Dominique. 

Sixth.  That  no  superior  officii.  1  of  the  custom-house,  no  member  of 
the  municip:.l  council,  no  local  authority  was  among  the  assailants  of 
the  printing  press. 

Seventh.  That  the  police  only  arrived  too  late  at  the  place  where  the 
event  took  place  and  that  it  did  not  know  how  to  show  the  energy  or 

the  activity  necessary  to  prevent  the  disorder. 
Eighth.  That  Fieri  and  Nasica  were  hidden  for  two  or  three  days  in  a 

private  house  and  then  abandoned  the  country,  going  by  land  via  Rio 
Caribe  and  Yaguaraparo. 

Ninth.  That  there  was  no  arrest  and  no  investigation  made  by  the 
local  authorities;  and 

Tenth.  That,  in  view  of  the  condition  of  the  printing  press,  that  was 
worked  by  the  hands  and  the  long  time  it  had  been  in  use  those  who 
knew  it  only  give  it  a  value  of  4,000  francs. 
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For  the  best  appreciation  of  these  events  the  Venezuelan  arbitrator 

considers  the  definition  given  by  the  vice-consul  of  France  in  Caracas 
in  an  ollicial  note  dated  the  5th  of  May,  1896,  addressed  to  his  excel- 

lency Mr.  Hanotaux,  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  France^  of  the 
character  of  the  two  parties  interested  in  the  claim,  Messrs.  Fieri  and 
Nasica,  in  the  following  words: 

Mr.  Fieri  has  a  pretty  great  natural  intelligence,  very  little  instruction,  an  iron  temper, 

and  an  obstinacy  equal  to  his  temper.  He  posse&ses  a  most  inveterate  sentiment  of  prop- 
erty, and  openly  resists  whomsoever  violates  his  rights,  and  that  Avith  very  little  patience, 

for  his  violent  temper  is  not  guided  by  learning  or  prudence. 
Mr.  Nasica  is  little  recommendable  a  personage,  who  puts  his  intelligence  and  learning 

to  the  service  of  all  his  vices.     Wherever  he  has  been  he  has  left  victims. 

And  further  on  the  same  note  says: 

As  \fr.  Fieri  had  a  printing  press,  Nasica,  who  has  an  easy  pen,  advised  Fieri  to  establish 
a  newspaper  to  defend  his  interests  and  those  of  the  colony.  No  mem})er  of  the  colony 

approved  this  idea,  but  Mr.  Fieri,  mastered  by  Nasica  and  feeling  aggrieved  in  his  interests, 
accepted  the  projwsal,  and  El  Eco  del  Oriente  was  established.  The  terms  of  its  articles 

are  very  violent  and  could  only  be  permitted  to  the  natives. 

The  opinion  expressed  by  the  vice  consul  of  France  regarding 
Nasica  is  ratified  in  more  vivid  colors  in  the  statement  made  by  Mr. 

Jean  Toussaint  Santi,  a  proprietor  at  Ajaccio  (Corsica),  before  the 
minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  Venezuela  on  the  18th  of  August,  1895, 

a  copy  of  which  is  inserted  in  these  records.     Santi  states  therein — 
that  he  knew  Nasica  as  l)eing  a  man  capable  of  all  the  acts  of  meanness  that  a  perverse 

mind  might  perform,  and  that  he  knew,  moreover,  that  he  belongs  to  a  family  of  outlaws 
and  criminals. 

It  does  not  appear  in  the  records  that  Nasica  took  any  other  step 
after  he  presented,  in  company  with  Mr.  Fieri,  to  the  governor  of 
Martinique  his  claim  for  a  part  of  the  indemnity,  amounting  to 
1,500,000  francs,  in  which  he  entered  as  pertaining  to  him  the  same 
printing  press  pertaining  to  Fieri  and  valued  it  at  the  sum  of  600,000 

francs.  After  having  taken  into  consideration  all  the  foregoing  state- 
ments, wdiich  are  proved  by  the  records,  the  Venezuelan  arbitrator  is 

of  opinion  that  the  destruction  of  the  printing  press  of  Mr.  Fieri 

Dominique  was  the  deed  of  a  popular  vengeance  against  those  appear- 
ing responsible  for  the  injurious  writings  of  the  newspaper  which  was 

edited  in  said  printing-press;  that  the  enterprise  of  the  tramway  did 
not  sustain  any  damage  through  those  occurrences,  and  it  appears 
from  the  records  that  the  service  of  the  enterprise  was  not  interrupted ; 
that  the  damage  done  to  Fieri  by  the  destruction  of  the  printing  press 
does  not  exceed  4,000  bolivars,  and  that  for  said  damage  only  the 
authors  of  or  accomplices  in  the  aggression  were  responsible ;  that  this 
responsibility  ought  to  have  been  alleged  in  pleading  by  the  owner  of 

the  printing  press  against  those  condemned  as  authors  of  or  accom- 
plices in  the  facts  occurred  on  the  21st  of  June,  1895;  that  the  want  of 
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energy,  of  which  the  poUce  gave  proofs,  to  stop  or  prevent  the  aggres- 
sion of  the  mob,  and  the  omission  on  the  part  of  the  competent 

authorities  to  have  the  preparatory  proceedings  instituted  in  order  to 
prosecute  the  respective  criminal  suit  against  those  appearing  to  be 
guilty,  render  them  liable  to  responsibiUty  for  noncompliance  with 
their  duties;  that  it  must  also  be  taken  into  consideration  that  the 
conduct  of  Fieri  and  Nasica  renders  them  largely  responsible  for  the 
provocation  that  gave  rise  to  the  popular  mob. 

Appreciating  in  a  spirit  of  justice  all  these  circumstances,  the  Vene- 
zuelan arbitrator  is  therefore  of  opinion  that  the  largest  indemnity  to 

be  allowed  to  Fieri  Dominique  for  the  destruction  of  his  printing  press 
and  the  damages  which  were  the  consecfuence  thereof  is  the  sum  of 
20,000  bolivars,  and  he  hereby  allows  it  for  this  respect. 

In  regard  to  the  other  facts  and  conseciuences  alleged  by  the  claim- 
ant relative  to  the  enterprise  of  the  tramway,  to  the  abandonment 

thereof,  the  forcible  and  difiicult  disposal  of  the  houses  pertaining  to 
him,  and  to  moral  sufferings  proceeding  from  his  being  far  from  his 
family,  they  are  destitute  of  all  ground  and  proof  and  are  inconsistent 
to  serve  as  the  basis  of  the  claim  he  pretends. 

Far  from  proving  that  Fieri  Dominicjue  abandoned  his  enterprise 
on  account  of  the  events  of  the  21st  of  June,  1895,  the  documents 

produced  show  that  the  tramway  continued  to  run  without  interrup- 
tion immediately  after  those  events  and  that  the  exploitation  of  the 

business  was  continued  for  several  years;  that  Fieri  Dominique 

returned  to  Carupano  in  March,  1890,  and  resumed  the  management 
of  his  enterprise  without  any  menace  or  aggression  against  his  person ; 
that  according  to  the  avowal  made  by  Fieri  before  this  tribunal,  as 
appears  from  the  records  of  the  proceedings  of  the  sitting  of  the  9th 

instant,  Fieri  bought  five  or  six  years  ago — that  is  to  say,  after  the 
occurrences  of  the  21st  of  June,  1895 — from  the  firm  of  Franceschi  & 
Co.,  which  was  associated  in  the  enterprise  of  the  tramway,  the  interest 
of  the  latter  in  the  business  for  the  sum  of  24,000  francs,  which  fact 

evidently  proves  that  the  assertion  is  groundless  that  Fieri  was  com- 

pelled to  give 'up  the  enterprise,  for  the  abandonment  of  which  he 
claims  the  sum  of  3,000,000  francs. 

The  questions  arisen  between  the  municipal  council  of  Carupano  and 
the  enterprise  of  the  tramway  on  account  of  the  drawing  of  the  line, 

of  the  construction  of  the  watervv^orks  and  the  breaking  of  a  bridge  by 
the  rains,  which  have  been  allegec!  to  show  the  animosity  of  the  author- 

ities against  the  enterprise,  do  not  absolutely  prove  that  attitude. 
These  questions  are  those  that  ordinarily  occur  between  municipal 
corporations  and  the  enterprises  directly  connected  with  the  traffic  and 

public  works  in  the  streets  of  a  town.  The  local  laws  and  the  con- 
tracts provide  the  manner  in  which  they  are  to  be  determined,  the 

interested  parties  applying  in  due  time  to  the  competent  judicial 



192  DOMINIQUE    &    CO.    CASE. 

officials.  It  appears  from  the  records  that  Fieri  Dominique  abstained 

from  following  the  procedure  established  by  the  laws  and  by  his  con- 
tract and  accepted  the  facts,  continuing  the  exploitation  of  the  tram- 
way under  the  conditions  and  circumstances  that  were  the  result  of 

the  report  of  the  commission  of  surveyors  and  of  the  orders  of  the 
municipal  council  of  Cartipano.  As  regards  the  construction  of  the 

waterworks,  if  they  temporarily  prejudiced  the  interests  of  the  tram- 
way company,  it  had  an  action  against  the  joint  stock  company 

*' Acueducto  de  Cartipano,'^  of  which  Mr.  Vicente  Giuliani  Franceschi, 
a  member  of  the  firm  Franceschi  &  Co.,  associated  in  the  enterprise 
of  the  tramway,  was  the  president.     (Annex  50.) 

For  all  the  reasons  aforesaid  the  Venezuelan  arbitrator  considers 

entirely  groundless  the  claim  for  indemnity  entered  by  Fieri  Dominique 

against  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  as  far  as  it  concerns  the  enter- 
prise of  the  tramway  of  Carupano  up  to  the  23d  of  May,  1899,  amount- 

ing to  the  sum  of  3,660,000  bolivars. 
Posterior  to  that  date  it  appears  proved  that  from  March,  1902,  on 

account  of  the  several  attacks  that  the  town  of  Carupano  has  suffered 
on  the  part  of  revolutionary  troops  and  of  the  National  Government 
the  enterprise  of  the  tramway  has  sustained  damages,  its  traffic  having 
been  completely  interrupted;  that  at  several  points  the  rails  have  been 
forced  out  and  the  line  cut  by  barricades;  that  the  draft  animals  of  the 
tramway  were  taken  by  the  military  forces  commanded  by  Gen. 

Calixto  Escalante ;  that  the  wagons  and  carts  have  sustained  deterior- 
ations and  are  unserviceable  on  account  of  the  occupation  of  the  sta- 

tion and  depot  buildings  by  troops  of  the  government  quartered 
therein.  It  also  appears  proved  that  Fieri  Dominique  is  compelled 

to  abandon,  as  lie  did,  the  exploitation  of  his  contract  by  the  circum- 
stances narrated  and  that  in  virtue  of  that  abandonment  he  has  offered 

before  the  legation  of  France  to  leave  the  depot  building,  the  rails, 
wagons,  and  all  the  materials  and  implements  used  in  the  exploitation 
to  the  benefit  of  the  municipal  council  of  Carupano,  putting  an  end 
to  the  concession  and  waiving  any  claim  that  might  derive  therefrom 
in  his  behalf.  Appreciating  in  their  just  value  the  damages  sustained 
by  the  enterprise /rom  the  interruption  of  the  traffic  in  March,  1902,  and 
the  seizure  of  its  animals  up  to  the  last  occurrences  the  equitable  and 
proved  value  of  the  materials,  deposit,  and  of  all  that  constituted  its 
working  capital,  which,  as  appears  from  the  records,  cost  for  Fieri  the 
sum  of  62,000  bolivars,  as  well  as  of  the  other  circumstances  which 
represent  for  Fieri  the  gain  frustrated  of  his  enterprise,  and  in  view  of 
the  circumstances  under  which  the  town  of  Cartipano  had  been  placed, 
on  accoimt  very  especially  of  the  continued  revolutions  which  from  four 
years  ago  have  rendered  that  kind  of  enterprise  almost  unproductive, 
even  in  towns  like  Caracas,  which  have  not  been  the  theater  of  deeds 

of  arms,  the  arbitrator  is  of  opinion  that  the  largest  indenmity  that 
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may  be  allowed  to  Fieri  Dominique  for  all  those  reasons  is  the  sum  of 
150,000  bolivars. 

As  to  the  claim  of  L.  Nasica  for  the  sum  of  1,500,000  francs,  Nasica 

having  no  right  to  the  printing  press  destroyed,  no  share  pertains  to 
him  in  the  indemnity  allowed  for  said  destruction;  and  as  the  other . 
particulars  on  which  he  bases  his  claim  for  indemnity  are  entirely 
groundless  and  show  by  themselves  the  indecorous  condition  of  this 
claim,  it  is  absolutely  disallowed. 

In  short,  the  Venezuelan  arbitrator  is  of  opinion  that  as  full  indem- 
nification the  sum  of  170:000  bolivars  should  be  allowed  to  Fieri,  with 

the  declaration  of  his  abandoning  in  faxor  of  the  municipal  council  of 
Carupano  the  concession  of  the  tramway,  the  depot,  the  stock  in 
hand,  and  all  the  material  of  exploitation. 

Caracas,  May  12,  1908. 

NOTE   BY  THE  VENEZUEIJVN   COMMISSIONER. 
Francs. 

This  claim,  in  its  part  concerning  Pieri  Dominique  &  Co.  and  Fieri  Dominique, 

for  the  suras  of    3, 730, 000 
and....        280,400 

Total    4, 010,  400 

was  accepted  by  the  French  arbitrator  for  the  sum  of  600,000  bolivars,  rejecting  the  claim 

of  Nasica  for  1,500,000  francs.  The  part  relative  to  Fieri  was,  therefore,  referred  to  the 
decision  of  the  umpire. 

Caracas,  the  date  above  written.  , 

OPIKIOK  OF  THE  FBEKCH  COMMISSIONEB.. 

As  is  shown  by  the  minutes  of  the  session  of  the  mixed  commission 
of  May  12,  1903,  the  Venezuelan  and  French  arbitrators  have  both 

considered  that  Mr.  Pieri  had  presented  a  well-founded  claim  and  that 
he  was  entitled  to  an  indemnity.  But  Doctor  Patil  and  myself  have 
differed  in  opinion  upon  the  amount  of  this  indemnity.  While  I  have 
reduced  to  600,000  bolivars  the  sum  of  4,010,400  bolivars  claimed 
by  the  party  interested,  my  colleague  has  reduced  it  to  170,000  bolivars. 
It  is  to  be  noted  that  the  Venezuelan  arbitrator,  in  conformity  with  the 

opinion  of  the  French  arbitrator,  has  pronounced,  like  him,  the  rescis- 
sion of  the  contract  which  bound  the  contractor  to  the  municipality  of 

Cartipano  to  abandon  to  this  latter  in  exchange  for  an  indemnity  ' '  the 
concession  of  the  tramway,  the  depot,  and  the  material  which  consti- 

tutes the  exploitation  of  the  line.  ̂   ̂  Doctor  Patil  is  then  convinced  that 
Mr.  Pieri  finds  himself,  not  through  his  own  fault,  but  because  of  a 

position  he  has  been  compelled  to  assume,  unable  to  recommence 
work  in  his  concession,  and  this  inability,  in  my  opinion,  is  not  due  to 

a  state  of  war.  It  is  solely  based  upon  the  malevolence  of  the  munici- 
pality of  Cartipano  and  the  determination  of  the  authorities  of  the 

S.  Doc.  533,59—1   13 
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State  and  the  city  to  deprive  Mr.  Fieri  of  a  concession  they  wish  to 
operate  themselves.  At  the  time  of  my  visit  to  Cartipano  I  was 
able  to  prove  de  visu  that  the  last  war  had  completely  arrested  the 
exploitation ;  the  rails  had  been  torn  up  and  in  several  places  had  been 
cut  in  two  by  four  barricades.  The  depot,  which  had  been  used  for  a 

military  hospital,  was  partly  demolished  by  shells,  and  the  cars  had 
nearly  all  been  put  out  of  service,  but  all  these  damages  were  reparable. 

Since  March,  1903,  Cariipano  has  been  cleared  of  revolutionary 
bands.  Since  the  month  of  July  last  the  present  Government  has 
finally  triumphed  over  the  revolution  and  caused  peace  to  reign 
throughout  the  Venezuelan  territory.  Dossier  No.  8,  prepared4  after 

May  12,'  1903,  proves  that  Mr.  Fieri  was  not  able  to  take  up  the 
exploitation  of  his  enterprise  because  of  the  hostility  of  a  part  of  the 
population,  hostility  which  has  the  same  causes  as  the  malevolence  of 
the  State  and  municipal  authorities,  if  indeed  the  latter  does  not 
explain  and  has  not  created  the  former. 
Why,  then,  after  having  recognized  implicitly  the  impossibility  of 

Mr.  Fieri^s  renewing  the  exploitation,  does  Doctor  Faul  refuse  ̂ ^to 
acknowledge  for  the  interested  party  the  right  to  an  indemnity,  from 

the  fact  of  his  dispute  with  the  municipal  authorities,^'  when  the  said 
*' disputes''  (d^m^l6s)  have  truly  caused  this  impossibility?  More- 

over, does  not  this  refusal,  following  the  payment  of  the  indemnity  of 
170,000  bolivars  for  damages  caused  by  the  incident  of  1895  and  the 

civil  war,  show  clearly  that  even  in  the  mind  of  the  Venezuelan  arbi- 
trator the  170,000  bolivars  do  not  represent  an  indemnity  sufficient 

for  all  the  damages  of  every  nature  to  which  Mr.  Fieri  was  subjected, 

including  the  loss  of  the  concession  ? 
In  fixing  at  600,000  bolivars  the  indemnity  to  be  accorded  to  Mr. 

Fieri,  who  claimed  4,010,400  bolivars,  I  have  desired  to  accord  him  a 
sum  which  might  represent  exactly  the  material  damage  which  has  been 
caused  him.  I  have  not  wished  to  increase  it  by  a  special  indemnity, 
which  would  be  of  a  penal  character  for  the  State  and  municipal 

authorities.  The  latter,  however,'  would  have  merited  it  because  of 
the  stubbornness  with  which  they  have  unjustly  pursued  and  tor- 

mented a  citizen  stranger,  the  possessor  of  a  perfectly  regular  con- 
tract. It  seems  from  numerous  authentic  pieces  of  evidence  contained 

in  the  dossier  and  from  information  that  I  have  gathered  on  the 

spot  that  the  enterprise  of  the  tramway  of  Cartipano  has  brought  in 
and  can  bring  in  for  the  future  to  the  concessionary  from  30,000  to 
40,000  bolivars  a  year.  If  one  does  not  take  into  account  the  high 
return  of  money  in  Venezuela,  more  than  a  million  of  capital  should  be 
allowed  to  Mr.  Fieri.  On  the  other  hand,  it  is  well  to  remark  that 

according  to  the  common  opinion  of  the  two  arbitrators  Mr.  Fieri 
ought  to  abandon  the  concession  to  the  municipality.  The  latter  will 

be  anxious  to  exploit  it,  and  the  benefits  which  it  will  receive  will  rep- 
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resent  almost  exactly  in  capital  the  indemnity  accorded  to  Mr.  Fieri. 

Venezuela  would  thus  withdraw  without  disadvantage  from  the  unfor- 
tunate position  in  which  the  actions  of  the  local  authorities  of  Cartipano 

have  thrust  her. 

Finally,  it  is  to  be  considered  that  according  to  the  terms  of  the 
protocol  this  indemnity  must  be  paid  in  bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt 
and  not  in  gold.  From  the  fact  of  this  concession  consented  to  by  the 
French  Government  to  permit  the  Venezuelan  Government  to  settle 
its  debts  with  greater  ease  the  amount  of  the  indemnity  is  found  to  be 
really  reduced.  The  real  amount  of  these  bonds  is  far,  at  this  time, 
from  reaching  half  their  nominal  value.  The  granting  to  Mr.  Fieri  of 
an  indemnity  of  600,000  bolivars  would  then  permit  the  Venezuelan 
Government  to  free  itself  for  240,000  or  250,000  bolivars  from  a  claim 
the  settlement  of  which  would  assure  to  the  Venezuelan  administra- 

tion an  annual  income  of  30,000  to  40,000  bolivars. 
March  25,  1904. 

ADDITIONAL  OPINION  OF  THE  VENEZUELAN  COMMISSIONEB.. 

I  must  call  the  honorable  umpire's  attention  to  the  fact  that  when  I 
agreed  in  the  opinion  of  the  French  commissioner  declaring  the 
rescission  of  the  contract  binding  the  claimant  to  the  municipality  of 
Carupano,  and  the  abandonment  to  the  latter,  for  an  indemnification 
of  the  concession,  such  as  it  is,  the  deposit  made  and  the  materials 
destroyed  or  damaged,  for  which  in  my  opinion  I  stated  that  Mr. 
Fieri  should  also  be  indemnified,  I  was  not  prompted  by  the  fact,  as 

the  French  commissioner  avers,  that  I  was  convinced — 

that  Mr.  Fieri  finds  himself,  not  through  his  own  fault,  but  because  of  a  position  he  has 
been  compelled  to  assume,  unable  to  recommence  work  in  his  concession, 

and — 
that  inability  is  not  due  to  a  state  oi  war,  adds  my  colleague,  but  is  solely  based  upon  the 
malevolence  of  the  municipality  of  Carupano,  and  the  determination  of  the  authorities  of 

the  State  and  the  city  to  deprive  Mr.  Fieri  of  a  concession  they  wished  to  operate  themselves. 

In  my  written  opinion  read  at  the  meeting  of  May  12,  1903,  which, 
translated  into  English,  I  submit  herewith  to  the  honorable  umpire, 
there  is  nothing  whatever  to  show  the  conviction  ascribed  to  me  by 

my  learned  colleague,  and  I  can  not  let  such  statements  go  unchal- 
lenged, as  such  motives  are  entirely  foreign  to  the  reasons  I  had  to 

form  my  opinion  in  this  case. 
I  have  declared  the  rescission  of  the  contract  between  Mr.  Fieri  and 

the  municipality  of  Carupano,  because  from  the  statements  made  by 
Mr.  Fieri  in  his  claim,  his  decided  will  to  discontinue  the  operation  of 
the  Cartipano  tramway  is  clearly  shown,  and  because  about  the  time 

the  claim  was  entered  (February,  1903)  and  at  the  time  we — the  two 
commissioners — rendered  our  decision  (May  12,  1903),  Cartipano  was 
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in  a  state  of  siege  because  of  the  continuation  of  the  revolutionary 
movement  led  by  General  Rolando,  which  ended  in  July,  after  the 
attack  and  capture  of  Ciudad  Bolivar.  These  facts  are  universally 
known. 

I  have  endeavored,  in  my  opinion,  since  Mr.  Fieri  showed  his  pur- 
pose to  abandon  the  operation  of  the  tramway  and  in  view  of  the  fact 

that  the  circumstances  at  the  time  did  not  permit  the  immediate 

renewal  of  the  operation  of  the  line  because  of  the  seizure  and  destruc- 
tion of  the  materials,  to  conciliate  the  private  interests  of  the  claimant 

and  his  manifest  will  to  abandon  the  business,  with  the  interests  of  the 

community,  which  could  not  be  left  at  the  mercy  of  a  person  who, 
during  his  intercourse  with  the  local  authorities,  had  shown  himself  not 
to  be  animated  by  a  conciliatory  spirit,  but,  on  the  contrary,  by  the 
earnest  desire  to  constantly  provoke  disagreements  and  scandals. 

To  estimate  the  amount  of  a  just  indemnification,  I  have  used  the 
data  furnished  by  the  documents  submitted  on  the  real  cost  of  the 
business,  the  value  of  the  building  or  depot  and  that  of  the  rolling 

stock,  cars  in  use,  and  animals.  I  have  not  estimated  any  exag- 
gerated, imaginary,  or  eventual  profits,  because  the  determination  of 

Mr.  Fieri  to  discontinue  the  operation  of  the  tramway  line  plainly 
showed  that  the  business  does  not  yield  profits,  but  losses,  because  of 

the  decline  of  business  in  Venezuela  by  reason  of  continued  revolu- 
tions and  the  considerable  falling  off  in  price  of  the  principal  export 

product  of  the  country.  In  proof  of  this,  there  is  the  fact  that  the  two 
tramway  lines  existing  in  Caracas,  where  there  has  been  no  fighting 
and  where  there  is  a  population  of  80,000  inhabitants,  have  not  been 
able  to  pay  dividends  to  their  stockholders  for  the  last  four  years,  and 
that  the  stock  is  quoted  below  50  per  cent. 

The  decided  purpose  the  French  commissioner  ascribes  to  the 
authorities  of  the  State  and  the  city  of  depriving  Fieri  of  the  grant 

they  wish  to  operate  themselves  does  not  seem  to  have  other  founda- 
tion than  the  statement  made  by  the  French  consular  agent  in  a  com- 

munication to  his  minister  in  Faris  February  10,  1897,  to  the  effect 
that  General  Rolando,  then  Fresident  of  the  State  of  Bermtidez,  had 

made  Mr.  Fieri  a  proposition  to  buy  the  tramway  for  a  sum  in  the 
neighborhood  of  35,000  francs.  General  Rolando  ceased  to  be  the 
chief  authority  of  the  State  of  Bermudez  eight  years  ago,  and  it  has 
not  been  established  that  the  authorities  which  succeeded  him  in  the 

State  and  city  of  Cariipano  have  desired  either  to  buy  or  to  take  the 
business.  The  sum  of  35,000  francs  which  we  are  told  General 
Rolando  offered  during  an  era  of  peace  and  prosperity  in  the  State  of 
Bermtidez  being  far  below  the  sum  I  have  granted,  plainly  shows  how 
exaggerated  is  the  estimate  made  by  my  learned  colleague,  fixing  in 
the  sum  of  600,000  bolivars  the  indemnification  of  Mr.  Fieri. 
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I  had  not  in  mind,  as  my  learned  colleague  implies  in  his  brief,  when 

I  declared  for  the  abandonment  by  Mr.  Fieri  of  the  tramway  conces- 
sion to  the  municipahty,  that  the  latter  would  hasten  to  operate  it  and 

that  the  profits  derived  from  such  operation  should  approximately 
represent  the  indemnity  granted  Mr.  Fieri.  Far  from  this,  my  sincere 
belief,  which  no  one  can  suspect  of  being  biassed,  is  that  under  the 
present  condition  of  business  in  Venezuela,  and  especially  in  the  towns 

of  the  eastern  section  of  the  countr}^,  which  have  suffered  more  than 
any  others  from  the  effects  of  the  last  revolution,  the  operation  of  a 

tramway  line  in  a  town  like  Carupano  is  unproductive  and  that  neither 
the  authorities  nor  the  municipality  of  that  city  have  any  interest 
whatever  in  becoming  the  owners  of  such  line.  I  make  this  statement, 
in  case  the  honorable,  umpire  should  in  his  award  deem  .t  more 
equitable  for  both  parties  that  Mr.  Fieri  continue  the  operation  of  the 
concession  of  the  Carupano  tramway,  since  he  now  desires  it,  during 
the  years  his  contract  has  to  run  and  to  limit  the  indemnification  which 
should  then  be  granted  to  him  to  the  value  of  the  mules  and  material 
either  lost  or  damaged  by  the  Government  forces  during  the  military 
operations  of  the  last  war. 

This  statement,  which  I  make  as  the  commissioner  for  Venezuela,  is 
the  more  indispensable,  as  in  the  latest  brief  submitted  by  the  French 

commissioner  it  is  not  only*stated,  but  affirmed,  that  according  to 
evidence  obtained  after  May  12, 1903 — date  of  our  respective  opinions — 
Mr.  Fieri  has  been  prevented  from  renewing  the  operation  of  the  tram- 

way because  of  the  hostility  shown  by  a  portion  of  the  inhabitants  of 
Carupano.  While  this  assertion  has  no  other  support  than  the  word 

of  the  party  concerned  and  lacks  corroboration  by  trustworthy  evi- 
dence to  give  it  weight,  it  shows  the  intention  to  convey  to  the  mind  of 

the  honorable  umpire  an  impression  different  from  the  true  situation 
which  the  Carupano  tramway  concern  occupies  as  a  profitable  business 
in  order  to  obtain  a  compensation  for  future  profits  entirely  unjustified. 
On, the  other  hand,  the  notes  and  letters  appended  to  the  brief  of  the 
French  commissioner,  as  Exhibit  8,  deal  with  facts  subsequent  to 
May  12,  1903,  when  the  two  commissioners  investigated  and  rendered 

their  decision  on  Mr.  Fieri's  claim,  and  the  production  of  the  same  at 
this  time  before  the  honorable  umpire  is  contrary  to  the  rules  of  pro- 

cedure governing  this  commission,  since  it  can  not  deal  with  facts  other 

than  those  which  have  taken  place,  according  to  the  extended  juris- 
diction granted  by  paragraph  2,  article  2,  of  the  Faris  protocol,  up  to 

the  date  of  the  23rd  of  May,  1903. 

I  must  take  advantage  of  this  opportunity  to  challenge  the  state- 
ment made  by  the  French  commissioner  at  the  end  of  every  one  of  his 

briefs  of  the  fact  that,  according  to  the  terms  of  the  protocol,  the 
indemnities  awarded  by  this  commission  are  payable  in  3  per  cent 
bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt,  and  that  from  this  concession  granted  by 
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the  Government  of  France  to  that  of  Venezuela  to  facihtate  the  pay- 

ment of  the  latter's  debts,  it  appears  that  the  amount  of  the  indemnity 
is  greatly  reduced  at  present,  as  the  real  value  of  said  bonds  is  not  one- 
half  of  their  nominal  value.  The  honorable  umpire  will  find  on  page 

499,  Venezuelan  Arbitrations  of  1903,  Ralston's  Report,  in  the  case  of 
the  Decauville  Company  before  this  same  <;ommission,"  my  opinion  as 

the  Venezuelan  commissioner,  altogether  rejecting  the  claimant's  con- 
tention that  an  allowance  should  be  made  to  compensate  for  the  lowest 

cash  value  the  bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt  might  obtain.  The  P>ench 
commissioner,  in  his  decision,  concurred  in  my  opinion,  by  which  it 
was  acknowledged  that  the  commission  had  no  jurisdiction  to  alter  or 

change  the  method  of  payment  established  by  the  protocol,  by  advanc- 
ing theories  which  might  affect  the  nominal  value  of  the  bonds  of  the 

diplomatic  debt,  as  such  method  of  settlement  on  the  part  of  Vene- 
zuela of  the  sums  awarded  by  the  commission  was  a  matter  exclusively 

concerning  the  two  contracting  parties  and  in  no  wise  subject  to  the 
jurisdiction  of  the  arbitration  commission,  called  upon  to  examine 
only  the  proofs  of  the  facts  and  the  justice  and  sound  foundation  of  the 
claims  for  indemnification,  estimating  the  measure  of  damages  by  the 
established  proof  of  such  damages  and  not  by  the  kind  of  money, 
whether  cash  or  bonds,  in  which  Venezuela  is  to  discharge  the  awarded 
liability. 

In  regard  to  the  other  points  covering  my  estimation  of  the  damages 
which  I  deem  justified  in  the  claim  of  Mr.  Fieri,  the  liability  affecting 
the  Venezuelan  Government  by  reason  of  certain  established  facts  and 

the  amount  of  indemnity  I  have  granted  for  the  abandonment  or  rescis- 
sion of  the  tramway  contract,  taking  into  consideration  the  value,  as 

appearing  from  the  proofs,  of  such  business  and  the  fair  compensation 
for  the  price  of  the  concession  as  an  industrial  investment,  I  hereby 
ratify  in  all  its  parts  my  opinion  of  May  12,  1903,  whereby  I  allow  for 
all  indemnification  the  sum  of  170,000  bolivars. 

NoRTHFiELD,  Vt.,  February  8]  1905. 

ADDITIONAL  OPINION  OF  FRENCH  COMMISSIONER. 

After  having  reaci  the  additional  opinion  of  my  honorable  colleague, 
I  can  only  maintain  the  conclusions  of  my  memoir.  I  think  I  ought, 
moreover,  to  make  the  following  observations : 

My  honorable  colleague  declares  that  in  his  opinion  one  can  not  raise 
anything  which  indicates  his  conviction  that  Mr.  Fieri  finds  himself, 
not  by  his  own  fault,  but  from  the  fact  of  the  situation  which  is  thrust 
upon  him,  unable  to  renew  the  exploitation  of  his  concession.  It  is, 
however,  it  seems  to  me,  the  logical  conclusion  which  can  be  cirawn 

o  Appendix  herein,  p.  456. 
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from  the  decision  rendered  by  Doctor  Pati].  If  he  does  not  have  this 

conviction,  why  has  he  accepted  the  rescission  of  the  contract  which  I 

have  judged  equitable  and  necessary  ?  It  is  not,  I  imagine,  merely  to 
be  agreeable  to  Mr.  Fieri.  It  is  really  because  my  honorable  colleague 
has  thought,  as  I  have,  that  the  position  of  the  claimant  was  such  that 

circumstances  independent  of  his  will  prevented  him  absolutely  from 
renewing  the  exploitation  of  his  concession.  Only  Doctor  Paul  is  of 
the  opinion  that  the  ruin  of  Mr.  Pieri  is  due  merely  to  the  hindrances 
which  the  revolution  has  placed  in  the  way  of  the  exploitation,  while  I 
consider  that  to  these  hindrances  has  come  to  be  added  the  open  and 
declared  hostility  of  the  Venezuelan  authorities  which  was  manifested 
repeatedly  several  years  before  the  commencement  of  the  revolutions. 

If  one  refers  to  the  text  of  the  minutes  of  the  sitting  of  May  12,  1903, 

he  may  read  there  the  phrase  which  I  have  cited.  Doctor  Patil  '^re- 
fuses to  acknowledge  for  the  interested  party  the  right  to  an  indemnity 

from  the  fact  of  his  dispute  with  the  municipal  authorities.^^  I  have 
the  right  to  conclude  from  this  that  the  indemnity  accorded  by  Doctor 
Paiil  represents  merely  the  damages  caused  by  the  revolution  and  is 
not  a  sufficient  compensation  for  the  losses  sustained  by,  Mr.  Pieri.  It  is 
sufficient  to  review  the  dossier  to  note  the  fact  that  from  1895  to  1899 — 

that  is  to  say,  during  a  period  previous  to  the  revolution — Mr.  Pieri  was 
the  butt  of  continual  persecutions  from  the  Venezuelan  authorities. 

At  every  moment  they  stopped  his  tramways  under  difi*erent  pretexts, 
they  created  difficulties  for  him  at  pleasure,  they  chose  as  if  by  chance 
the  place  where  the  tracks  were  established  to  pass  canals  which  they 
might  have  placed  farther  away,  etc. 

The  umpire  will  be  able  to  convince  himself  of  these  facts  by  perus- 
ing the  dossier.  It  is  these  repeated  manifestations  of  the  municipal- 
ity of  Carupano  which  have  convinced  me  that  the  latter  wished  to 

exploit  itself  the  line  of  tramways,  and  that  it  was  trying  by  all  possible 
means  to  dispossess  the  concessionary.  I  have  nowise  been  brought 
to  this  opinion,  as  my  colleague  thinks,  by  the  fact  that  General  Rolando 
offered  to  purchase  the  concession  for  a  sum  of  35,000  bolivars.  This 
offer  is  but  one  proof  the  more  in  support  of  my  opinion,  but  it  has  not 
been  the  determining  proof.  Doctor  Paul  concludes,  moreover,  from 
this  amount  that  the  concession  was  not  worth  more.  But  it  is  well  to 

remark  that  the  proposition  of  General  Rolando  was  not  followed  by 
any  result,  Mr.  Pieri  having  without  doubt  judged  the  offer  to  be 
derisory ;  it  is  clearly  seen  that  according  to  the  documents  contained 
in  the  dossier  this  sum  of  35,000  bolivars  represents  the  income  which 
the  enterprise  of  the  tramway  might  yield  tanually. 

The  documents  presented  after  May  12,  1903,  have  no  other  end 
than  to  demonstrate  that  there  exists  in  fact  a  declared  hostility 
against  Mr.  Pieri,  since  peace  has  now  reigned  in  Venezuela  for  long 
months.     This  unfortunate  concessionary  is  prevented  from  gaining 
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his  livelihood  by  taking  up  again  the  management  of  his  concession. 
They  also  demonstrate  that  the  concession  has  no  such  low  value  as 
my  colleague  would  like  to  have  believed,  since  without  the  persistent 
ill  will  of  the  municipality  and  of  the  population  Mr.  Fieri  would  find 

an  advantage  in  again  taking  up  the  exploitation  of  his  line.  What- 
ever Doctor  Patil  may  say  about  it,  Mr.  Fieri  was  perfectly  right, 

according  to  the  protocol,  in  submitting  these  documents  to  the  um- 
pire. I  searched  in  vain  in  section  2  of  article  2,  quoted  by  my  col- 

league, the  provision  which  would  prevent  Mr.  Fieri  from  presenting 
the  documents  because  they  are  posterior  to  May  12,  1903.  On  the 
contrary,  I  find  that  section  3  of  the  same  article  formally  authorized 
him  to  do  so. 

I  would  particularly  call  the  attention  of  the  umpire  to  the  enor- 
mous reduction  which  I  have  made  in  my  decision  from  the  amount  of 

indemnity  demanded,  and  I  persist  in  thinking  that  the  sum  of  600,000 

bolivars  is  the  minimum  which  can  be  given  to  Mr.  Fieri  in  compensa- 
tion for  vexations  and  losses  which  he  has  suffered  and  in  exchange  for 

his  concession  and  his  material.  This  reduction  appears  still  more 
considerable  if  we  take  into  account  the  depreciated  currency  with 
which  the  Venezuelan  Government  is  to  pay  its  indemnity.  In  regard 
to  this  I  ought  to  bring  up  the  manner  in  which  my  honorable  colleague 
looks  at  this  public  debt.  I  should  prefer  not  to  be  obliged  to  say 

that  the  Venezuelan  Government  wished  to  profit  from  the  condescen- 
sion, which  alone  among  all  the  foreign  governments  the  French  Gov- 

ernment has  shown  toward  it,  to  allow  it  to  free  itself  from  its  debts  at 
a  reduced  rate  and  not  to  pay  them  integrally.  In  consenting  to  this 
concession  of  not  being  paid  in  gold  the  French  Government  has  in  no 
way  wished  to  place  its  nationals,  the  victims  of  pillage  or  of  denials  of 
justice,  in  a  position  inferior  as  compared  to  the  nationals  of  other 
countries  placed  imder  the  same  circumstances;  it  has  wished  only  to 
permit  Venezuela  to  acquit  itself  more  easily  in  giving  to  the  claimants 
in  place  of  gold  these  bonds  redeemable  after  a  long  time. 

Can  we  conclude  from  this  fact  that  it  is  forbidden  the  arbitrators 

in  the  fixing  of  an  indemnity  in  equity  to  take  into  account  the  depre- 
ciation of  the  money  which  is  to  be  given  in  payment  ?  Can  we  say 

that  this  changes  the  mode  of  payment  established  by  the  protocol? 
The  arbitrators  have,  to  the  contrary,  a  strict  duty,  and  they  can  not  fail 
without  wounding  equally  equity  and  good  sense  to  take  account  of  the 
manner  in  which  their  award  will  be  executed  in  such  fashion  that  the 

sum  which  they  have  awarded  shall  be  in  fact  paid.  Otherwise  their 
awards  would  be  only  deceptive.  When  my  Government  invested  me 
with  the  duties  of  arbitrator  it  remitted  entirely  to  my  conscience  in 
all  that  which  considers  fundamentally  the  claims  which  I  might  have 
to  examine;  it  has  only  remarked  that  equity  commanded  me  to  take 
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account  in  the  fixing  of  indemnities  of  the  depreciation  of  the  bonds  of 
the  diplomatic  debt. 

The  protocol  would  in  fact  be  vitiated  if  the  arbitrators  did  not  take 
account  of  this  article  3,  which  declares  that  the  indemnities  will  be 

paid  in  bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt.  In  reading  this  article  the  arbi- 
trators are  informed  that  the  indemnities  will  be  paid  in  a  certain 

money ;  they  ought  to  take  notice  of  this  to  conform  to  the  letter  of  the 
protocol  and  also  to  its  spirit,  which  is  a  spirit  of  equity.  So  I  can 
not  help  express  my  profound  astonishment  to  read  in  the  additional 

memoir  of  my  honorable  colleague  the  phrase  which  begins  thus:  ̂ ^  The 
French  commissioner  in  his  decision  (Decauville  affair)  concurred  in 

my  opinion/'  etc.  In  the  matter  of  the  Decauville  affair  I  have  given 
no  other  opinion  than  that  which  is  laconically  expressed  in  the  min- 

utes of  the  sitting  of  June  15^  1903,  which  is  as  follows: 

The  examination  of  the  claim  of  Mr.  Decauville  is  then  taken  up,  in  favor  of  which  is  recog- 
nized hy  common  agreement  a  sura  of  41,400  bolivars. 

On  the  contrary,  my  colleague  will  kindly  remember  that  I  have  in 
every  affair  which  has  been  submitted  to  us  each  time  demanded  that 
account  must  be  taken  of  the  depreciation  of  the  diplomatic  debt.  And 
at  every  time,  to  arrive  at  an  agreement,  he  has  consented  to  raise 
slightly  the  amoimt  of  the  indemnity,  declaring  that  this  should  not  be 

mentioned  either  in  the  minutes  or  in  the  report  which  he  would  pre- 
sent to  his  Government.  I  hold,  in  principle,  that  this  correction  should 

be  made,  and  I  should  consider  myself  as  having  failed  in  my  duty  and 
having  been  forgetful  of  equity  if  I  had  neglected  a  single  time  to  take 
account  of  the  manner  of  payment  of  indemnities  and  tolerated  that 
the  Venezuelan  Government  should  thus  receive  an  unjust  benefit,  to 
the  detriment  of  the  victims  of  the  abuses  of  power,  of  pillages,  and  of 
denials  of  justice. 

NoRTHFiELD,  February  11,  1905- 

OPINION   OF  THE   UMPIBE. 

On  the  2d  of  May,  1882,  a  lawful  contract  of  concession  was  made 
by  and  between  the  president  of  the  State  of  Bermtidez,  of  the  United 

States  of  Venezuela,  and  Jos6  Gabriel  Nunez  Romberg,  of  the  city  of 
Cumand,  of  said  State,  for  the  purpose  of  promoting  and  encouraging 
the  means  of  communication  in  that  section,  which  contract,  among 

other  things,  provided  that  the  government  of  the  State  granted  per- 
mission to  the  concessionary  to  construct  tramways  or  railways  in  the 

cities  of  Cumand,  Cartipano,  and  Maturin  of  that  State,  and  also  to 
establish  ways  of  communication  under  the  system  named  between 
different  points  of  the  sections  referred  to,  the  works  to  be  the  property 

of  the  enterprise,  but  with  the  obligation  to  devote  them  to  the  trans- 
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portation  of  passengers  and  merchandise  at  prices  lower  than  those 

then  existing  between  those  sections  and  in  those  cities  and  in  accord- 
ance with  tariffs  to  be  approved  by  the  government  of  the  State  of 

Bermiidez. 

The  concessionary  was  authorized  to  transfer  to  others,  in  whole  or 
in  part,  the  rights  passing  to  him  under  the  contract;  also  to  use  for 
the  railways  aforesaid  the  necessary  streets  or  public  walks,  but  in  a 
way  not  to  cause  injury  or  obstruction  to  traffic.  The  enterprise  was 
exempted  from  all  State  and  national  taxation,  with  the  privilege  of 
obtaining  like  exemption  from  municipal  taxation  through  the  action 
of  the  respective  municipal  councils.  This  concession  was  to  continue 

for  the  term  of  fifty  years,  to  be  reckoned  from  the  date  of  the  inau- 
guration of  the  first  line  of  tramways  or  railways  created  under  this 

contract,  and  when  said  fifty  years  had  terminated,  the  enterprise, 
with  all  its  property,  was  to  pass  to  and  become  the  property  of  the 
State  of  Bermiidez. 

On  the  20th  of  the  same  month  the  enterprise  was  duly  exempted 
from  municipal  taxation  by  the  city  of  Carupano. 

Thereafter  the  anonymous  company  of  ''Tramways  of  Carupano" 
was  duly  organized,  the  privileges  herein  named  were  duly  ceded  to 

the  said  company,  and  the  enterprise  of  the  tramways  was  inaugu- 
rated and  installed  in  the  city  of  Carupano. 

At  a  date  not  material  this  company,  the  '*  Tramways  of  Carupano," 
went  into  Hquidation,  and  its  liquidator,  on  the  8th  day  of  May,  1891, 
sold  at  auction  to  Fieri  Dominique  the  said  enterprise,  including  the 
privileges  contained  in  the  concession  aforesaid,  so  far  as  the  same 
referred  to  the  city  of  Cariipano.  The  price  paid  therefor  was  38,500 
bolivars.  It  became  the  property  of  Fieri  Dominique  &  Co.,  the 
other  member  being  the  house  of  Franchessi  &  Co.,  of  the  city  of 

Carupano,  Fieri's  interest  in  the  company  being  much  the  larger  part. 
Under  the  management  of  Fieri  Dominique  &  Co.  the  enterprise  was 

extended  and  enlarged,  and  for  some  four  years  proved  quite  successful. 

The  income  for  the  year  1891-92  Wcis  30,232  bolivars,  and  there  was  a 
steady  increase  to  1894-95,  when  it  had  reached  47,200  bolivars. 

It  was  in  the  year  1895  that  difficulties  began,  culminating  in  the 

very  serious  affair  of  June  21,  1895,  which  continued  through  the  inter- 
vening years  up  to  the  sitting  of  this  mixed  commission  in  Caracas  in 

1903,  of  a  degree  more  or  less  troublesome  each  year,  to  the  great  det- 
riment and  loss  of  the  company. 

Before  the  sitting  of  this  mixed  commission  at  Caracas  in  1903 
Fieri  Dominique  had  become  the  sole  owner  of  the  tramwc.ys  and  of 
the  concession,  paying  for  the  share  of  Franchessi  &  Co.  the  sum  of 
24,000  bolivars. 

The  claim  of  A.  L.  Nasica  was  dismissed  by  the  honorable  commis- 
sioners of  France  and  of  Venezuela  at  their  sitting  in  Caracas,  and 
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there  was  reserved  for  the  umpire  only  the  claim  of  Fieri  Dominique 
for  himself  and  for  Fieri  Dominique  &  Co.,  he  being  the  only  person 

interested  at  the  time  this  claim  was  presented  before  the  mixed  com- 
mission and  the  only  person  interested  at  the  present  time  in  the  claim. 

The  award  is  to  be  for  his  sole,  benefit. 

The  nationality  of  the  claimant  is  unquestionably  French,  and  there 
is  a  difference  of  opinion  between  the  honorable  commissioners  only 
as  to  the  amount  which  should  be  awarded  the  claimant  for  the  dam- 

ages and  indemnities  to  which  he  is  entitled. 
The  aggregate  claim  submitted  by  Fieri  Dominique  in  his  own 

behalf  and  as  the  successor  of  Fieri  Dominique  &  Co.  is  4,010,400 
francs,  covering  injuries  cUeged  to  have  been  committed  on  liis  person 
and  property  commencing  June  21,  1805,  and  continuing  from  time  to 
time  up  to  the  conclusion  of  peace  in  1903.  After  submitting  this 
claim,  and  wliile  the  mixed  commission  was  sitting  at  Caracas  in  1903, 
Fieri  Dominique  appeared  before  the  commission  and  suggested  and 
consented  that  the  award  be  made  on  the  basis  that  he  surrender  the 

enterprise,  including  all  the  privileges  of  the  concession,  to  the  munici- 
pal council  of  Cartipano. 

When  the  case  came  on  for  hearing  before  the  honorable  mixed 
commission  it  was  the  opiuion  of  the  honorable  commissioner  for 
Venezuela  that  the  sum  of  20,000  francs  was  a  sufficient  indemnity  for 
the  damages  suffered  in  the  person  and  in  the  property  of  the  claimant 
on  account  of  the  events  of  June  21,  1895,  and  those  which  are  prior  or 
subsequent,  but  immediately  connected  therewith  or  naturally  flowing 

into  or  therefrom.  For  so  much  of  the  damages  suffered  by  the  claim- 

ant during  the  revolution  of  1901-1903  as  he  regarded  to  be  properly 
chargeable  to  the  respondent  Government  and  for  the  enterprise  itself, 
including  the  privileges  of  the  concession,  he  allowed  the  sum  of 
150,000  francs,  making  in  all  the  sum  of  170,000  francs.  He  finds  no 

occasion  to  allow  any  iudemnity  for  the  action  of  the  customs  author- 
ities at  Carupano  and  later  on  for  the  action  of  the  city  council  in  pro- 

hibiting and  preventing  the  carrying  on  of  the  tramway  freight  traffic, 
for  the  forced  interruption  by  the  municipal  council  of  Carupano  of  the 

entire  traffic  for  a  period  of  three  months  in  1896  during  the  installa- 
tion of  the  aqueduct  system  in  that  city;  for  the  defects  and  faults  of 

certain  portions  of  the  streets  on  which  was  laid  the  tramway  of  the 
claimant  through  the  inefficient  use  and  management  of  the  same  by 
said  aqueduct  company  while  making  its  house  connections,  whereby 
was  ruined  one  of  the  horses  of  the  tramway  system  belonging  to  the 
claimant ;  for  the  forcible  suspension  of  the  passenger  traffic  by  order 

of  the  municipal  council  at  another  time;  for  the  arrest  and  imprison- 
ment for  twenty-four  hours  of  the  claimant,  without  warrant  or  any 

subsequent  charge  or  trial,  on  the  oral  order  only  of  the  civil  chief  of 

the  district  of  Bermtidez;  for  the  delay  and  final  neglect  of  the  munici- 
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pality  of  Cartipano  to  rebuild  a  bridge  carried  away  by  a  freshet,  upon 
which  rightfully  rested  the  railway  of  the  claimant,  inducing  serious 

loss  in  receipts  through  inability  to  conduct  the  enterprise  and  entail- 
ing upon  the  claimant  the  expense  of  rebuilding  the  bridge;  or  for  the 

losses  resulting,  as  claimed,  in  the  alleged  compulsory  sale  by  the 
claimant  of  his  twelve  houses  at  great  sacrifice. 

It  was  the  opinion  of  the  honorable  commissioner  for  France  that 
the  claim  of  4,010,400  francs  ought  to  be  reduced  to  600,000  francs, 
which  includes  the  compensation  to  be  paid  the  claimant  for  the 

enterprise  of  the  tramways,  its  privileges  and  franchises.  He  consid- 
ers this  sum  to  be  no  more  than  just  for  all  the  losses  suffered  by  the 

claimant  for  which  he  holds  the  respondent  Government  liable.  He 
especially  urges  the  allowance  of  this  sum,  because  the  payment  is  to 
be  made  not  in  gold  but  in  bonds  of  diplomatic  debt  at  3  per  cent, 
which  manner  of  payment  he  regards  as  a  more  favorable  proposition 
to  the  respondent  Government  than  that  made  by  any  other  claimant 
Government,  and  he  is  therefore  of  the  opinion  that  in  making  the 
award  the  reduced  market  value  of  these  diplomatic  debts  should  be 
met  by  an  award  sufficiently  enhanced  to  meet  the  deficit.  He  is  also 
of  the  opinion  that  the  vexations,  difficulties,  and  injuries  brought 
upon  the  claimant  by  the  officers  of  the  nation,  state,  or  municipality, 
or  suffered  by  them  to  be  brought  upon  him,  without  rebuke  or  attempt 
at  prevention  were  the  result  in  part  of  a  prejudice  on  the  part  of  the 
nationals  against  all  foreigners,  and  especially  against  those  of  French 
citizenship,  and  also  in  part  were  a  result  of  a  studied  attempt  of  the 
President  of  the  State  of  Bermiidez  and  of  certain  officers  of  the  city 
of  Cartipano  to  compel  an  abandonment  of  the  enterprise  by  the 
claimant  to  them.  He  does  not,  however,  claim  that  there  should  be 

any  punitive  proposition  in  the  award  to  be  made,  but  that  it  should 
contain  simply  the  material  damage  which,  in  his  judgment,  the 

claimant  has  suffered  if  he  now  relinquishes  the  property  and  privi- 
leges of  the  concession  to  the  municipality  of  Carupano. 

The  honorable  commissioners  having  disagree!  in  the  manner  above 
stated,  by  their  joint  action  the  claim  comes  to  the  umpire  for  his 
decision  and  award. 

He  finds  himself  greatly  indebted  to  both  of  the  honorable  commis- 
sioners for  the  care  and  skill  with  which  they  have  presented  their 

respective  opinions,  shedding  much  light  upon  the  questions  at  issue 
and  greatly  aiding  the  umpire  in  his  efforts  to  determine  the  equities 
of  the  case. 

After  a  careful  study  of  these  respective  opinions  and  of  the  facts 

involved  the  umpire  finds  himself  compelled  to  hold  (a)  that  the  inter- 
ference of  the  chief  of  the  custom-house  with  the  enterprise  of  the  tram- 

ways, and  especially  in  the  part  covered  by  his  order  to  the  claimant, 

that  he  desist  from  all  freight  transportation,  were  acts  wholly  unwar- 
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ranted,  in  direct  antagonism  to  the  clear  right  of  the  concessionary, 

and  that  this  interference  resulted  in  very  serious  damage  to  the  claim- 
ant; (b)  that  the  order  of  the  municipal  council  to  the  same  effect, 

made  in  January,  1897,  was  without  right,  very  unjust,  strictly 
against  the  terms  of  the  concession,  and  resulted  in  serious  loss  and 
damage  to  the  claimant;  (c)  that  the  suspension  of  the  tramway 

service  by  the  municipal  council  at  the  request  of  the  aqueduct  com- 
pany for  the  installation  of  its  pipe  line  was  within  the  power  of  the 

municipal  coimcil  to  be  followed  by  a  sufficient  indemnity  to  the  claim- 
ant for  the  losses  sustained  by  him  in  the  interest  of  the  aqueduct  com- 

pany, and  that  this  indemnity  is  primarily  due  from  the  municipality  to 
the  claimant,  since  the  aqueduct  company  sought  the  intervention  of 
the  municipality.  The  orders  to  suspend  the  tramway  traffic  came 
from  the  municipality.  It  was  the  order  of  the  municipality  which  was 
obeyed,  and  it  is  therefore  to  the  municipality  that  the  claimant  may 
properly  look  for  his  com{>ensation.  Whether  the  city  did  or  did  not 
obtain  indemnity  from  the  aqueduct  company  in  order  to  meet  this 
proper  claim  of  Fieri  Dominque  &  Co.  is  a  matter  not  important  to 

this  inquiry,  since  it  can  not  affect  the  claimant's  right  in  the  premises; 
(d)  that  the  defects  and  faults  of  the  street  caused  through  the  action 
of  the  aqueduct  company  in  making  its  house  connections  with  the 
main  line  were  properly  chargeable  to  the  municipality  as  the  party 
primarily  liable  for  the  injuries  which  might  result  therefrom  to  the 
lawful  users  of  the  street,  it  being  borne  in  mind  that  the  traffic  of  the 
tramways  had  been  resumed  on  formal  notice  from  the  city  authorities 
that  the  conditions  would  permit  its  resumption;  (e)  the  arrest  and 
imprisonment  of  the  claimant,  on  the  8th  day  of  October,  1896^,  on  the 

oral  order  of  the  civil  chief  without  warrant,  his  detention  for  twenty- 
four  hours  in  prison,  and  his  subsequent  discharge  on  payment  of  the 
jail  fees  without  intervention  of  a  court  or  tribunal  of  any  character  is 
a  serious  assault  upon  the  liberty  of  the  individual  and  the  sacredness 
of  his  person,  is  wholly  imjustiafible,  and  is  the  proi>er  subject  of 
indemnity;  (f)  the  staying  of  the  traffic  of  the  tramways  by  the  order 
of  the  municipal  council  as  it  occurred  on  June  14,  1896,  can  only  be 
justified  as  a  matter  of  municipal  right  for  the  public  good  and  can 
only  be  met  properly  by  a  charge  upon  the  public  to  compensate  the 
individual  for  his  sacrifice  to  the  public  interests;  (g)  the  allowance 
made  by  the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  of  20,000  francs 
for  the  incidents  of  Jime  21,  1895,  and  the  injuries  and  damages  which 
are  the  approximate  results  or  antecedents  of  those  incidents  in  the 
judgment  of  the  umpire  is  a  sufficient  sum  to  be  allowed,  and  in  the 

judgment  of  the  umpire  covers  such  damages  as  accrued  because  of  the 
interference  of  the  chief  of  customs  with  the  tramway  service;  but 
there  should  be  added  thereto  interest  at  the  rate  of  3  per  cent  from 
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June  21,  1896,  at  which  time  it  is  certain  that  the  respondent  Govern- 
ment had  due  notice  of  those  incidents  and  of  the  justice  of  this  claim; 

(h)  the  sum  set  by  the  honorable  commissioner  of  Venezuela  of  150,000 

francs  in  the  judgment  of  the  umpire  is  ample  to  cover  the  revolu- 
tionary incidents  of  1901-1903  for  which  the  respondent  Government 

may  be  held  liable,  and,  in  addition,  for  the  purchase  price  of  the 

tramway  enterprise  and  the  privileges  of  the  concession ;  but  it  is  equit- 
able to  relate  back  this  purchase  to  the  time  when  this  property  was 

taken  by  the  Government  for  barricades  and  hospitals,  which  the 
umpire  assumes  to  be  January  1,  1902,  and  interest  should  be  allowed 
on  the  sum  of  150,000  francs  from  that  date  to  the  31st  day  of  July, 
1905,  the  anticipated  conclusion  of  this  arbitration;  (i)  there  can  be  no 
allowance  for  any  losses  accruing  to  the  claimant  in  the  sale  of  his 
houses,  such  losses  not  being  the  direct  and  approximate  result  of  any 
cause  for  which  the  respondent  Government  has  responsibility,  and  it 
is  only  for  such  results  that  indemnity  can  be  awarded. 

Concerning  the  responsibility  of  the  national  Government  for  the 
acts  and  neglects  of  the  State  of  Bermudez  and  the  municipality  of 
Carupano,  the  umpire  holds  here,  as  he  did  in  the  claim  of  Davey,  in  the 

British- Venezuelan  mixed  commission  of  1903,  found  in  Ralston  and 

Doyle^s  Venezuelan  Arbitrations,  page  410. 
Before  coming  to  his  decision  in  that  case  the  umpire  gave  much 

time  and  thought  to  tliis  question  of  national  responsibility,  and  his 
opinion  there  given  is  the  result.  Further  study  and  reflection  adds  to 

his  conviction  that  his  position  then  taken  was  tenable,  just,  and  neces- 
sary. He  respectfully  refers  the  honorable  commissioners  to  the 

opinion  above  cited  for  an  elucidation  of  his  views  on  that  subject. 

He  would  also  cite  the  opinion  of  Patil,  commissioner  in  the  French- 

Venezuelan  commission  of  1902,  in  the  claim  of  Battistini,"  Id.  503,  as 
bearing  upon  this  question  of  national  liability  for  State  indebtedness; 

the  opinion  of  Dufiield,  umpire  in  the  German-Venezuelan  commission 
of  1903,  case  of  Beckman  &  Co.,  Id.  598;  also  the  opinion  of  Bunch, 

umpire  in  the  Montijo  cise,  Moore's  Arb.  1421-1447. 
It  is  the  opinion  of  the  umpire,  however,  that  the  decision  in  this 

case  does  not  rest  upon  the  ordinary  postulates.  It  is  here  proposed 

that  the  claimant  abandon,  transfer,  and  make  over  to  the  municipal- 
ity of  Carupano  his  enterprise  of  the  tramway,  his  concessions  and 

privileges  in  consideration  of  payment  to  be  made  therefor  and  to  be 

included  in  the  award.  To  put  the  municipality  of  Carupano  in  pos- 
session of  this  enterprise  as  sole  owner  thereof  to  the  entire  exclusion 

of  the  claimant  while  the  municipality  is  unquestionably  the  debtor 

of  the  claimant  for  its  acts  and  neglects  in  connection  witli  this  enter- 
prise would  be  so  manifestly  unjust  and  inequitable  as  not  to  permit  a 

a  Page  459,  post. 
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moment's  favorable  consideration.  Whatever  may  be  the  usual  rela- 
tion of  the  nation  to  and  with  its  municipal  subordinate  divisions,  it 

is  certain  that  in  this  case  it  can  and  will  be  so  related  to  the  munici- 

pality of  Cariipano  as  to  exact  and  require  full  repayment  to  itself  for 

all  it  shall  undertake  and  expend  in  behalf  of  that  municipality  in  con- 
nection with  this  enterprise  of  the  tramways.  Whatever  hesitancy, 

if  any,  there  might  be  ordinarily  in  making  such  acts  and  neglects  of 
the  municipality  a  matter  of  international  award  is  dissipated  by  the 
peculiar  facts  incident  to  this  claim,  as  above  stated. 

So  much  of  the  award  as  corrects  the  wrong  done  the  claimant  by 

his  arbitrary  arrest  and  imprisonment  stands  solely  upon  the  recog- 
nized and  rightful  responsibility  of  the  nation,  internationally,  for  the 

unlawful  and  injurious  acts  of  its  subordinate  officials  and  is  on  all 
fours  with  the  case  of  Davey  first  above  cited. 

Concerning  the  allegation  of  prejudice  on  the  part  of  the  nationals 
of  the  respondent  Government  toward  foreigners,  and  especially  the 
French,  and  also  the  allegation  that  there  was  a  studied  attempt  of 
the  President  of  the  State  of  Bermudez  and  of  certain  oflicers  of  the  city 
of  Cartipano  to  compel  abandonment  of  his  tramway  enterprise  by  the 

claimant,  it  is  sufficient  to  say  that  these  allegations  are  not'  material 
to  the  inquiry,  since  there  is  no  claim  for  punitive  or  exemplary  dam- 

ages and  since  all  essential  facts  bearing  upon  the  question  of  the 
actual  damages  suffered  are  found  without  involving  the  consideration 
of  these  questions. 

The  honorable  commissioner  for  France  again  urges  upon  the  umpire 
the  propriety  and  duty  of  increasing  the  sum  which  he  otherwise  would 
award  the  claimant  by  an  amount  equal  to  the  diminished  value  of  the 

diplomatic  debt  of  3  per  cent  as  compared  with  gold,  and  in  this  opin- 
ion he  gives  especial  prominence  to  the  claimed  inequality  of  the  plan 

accepted  by  the  high  contracting  parties  in  the  protocol  providing  for 
this  commission  with  the  plan  adopted  by  the  t  laimant  Governments 
and  the  respondent  Government  in  the  several  protocols  of  1903.  This 
particular  reason  was  not  passed  upon  by  the  umpire  in  his  opinion 

given  in  the  claim  of  Jules  Brun,^  if  it  were,  in  fact,  then  pressed  upon 
his  consideration  by  the  honorable  commissioner  for  the  claimant 
Government. 

In  the  motion  for  allowance  of  interest  on  awards  from  their  date 

until  payment,  which  was  made  in  the  British- Venezuelan  Commission 
of  1903  and  which  on  the  disagreement  of  the  honorable  commissioners 
came  to  the  umpire  for  his  decision,  a  careful  and  painstaking  study 
was  made  by  him  of  the  basic  principles  underlying  this  question,  and 

while  the  exact  proposition  now  before  him  is  not  identical  with  that,  • 
yet  the  principles  which  govern  him  in  his  decision  are  in  large  part 
the  same. 

oPage  5. 
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Here,  as  there,  the  warrant  for  such  action  must  be  found,  if  found, 
in  the  protocol  which  constitutes  this  tribunal  and  defines  its  duties, 
its  powers,  and  its  limitations.  There,  as  here,  the  protocol  determined 
the  manner  and  means  of  pajmient,  and  over  that  matter  gave  the 
tribunal  no  jurisdiction.  Here,  as  there,  the  functions  of  this  tribunal 
end  when  it  has  determined  the  damages  sustained  by  the  claimant. 
The  reasons  stated  by  the  umpire  in  that  case  are  applicable  here,  and 
the  attention  of  the  honorable  commissioners  is  respectfully  invited 

to  it  as  found  in  Ralston  and  Doyle^s  Venezuelan  Arbitrations  of  1903, 
page  413.  It  will  be  observed  that  there,  as  here,  the  alleged  ground 
for  the  requested  award  was  a  claimed  equity.  The  long  delay  in 
payment  which  seemed  probable  was  urged  as  the  reason  for  the 
allowance  of  interest;  here,  by  the  terms  of  the  treaty,  the  award  draws 
interest,  but  its  value  in  the  market  is  below  par,  and  hence  the  opinion 
of  the  honorable  commissioner  for  France  that  the  umpire  should 
increase  the  sum  awarded  to  meet  this  lessened  value.  It  will  be 

noted  especidly  that  the  very  terms  of  payment  provided  for  in  the 

protocols  of  1903,  and  which  are  considered  by  the  honorable  com- 
missioner of  the  claimant  Government  to  be  so  much  more  favorable 

for  the  claimants  than  the  plan  evoked  by  the  convention  controlling 
this  tribunal  as  to  work  injustice  and  inequity  to  the  claimants 
before  this  commission  by  the  inequality  which  it  produces,  were 

regarded  by  the  British  Government  so  onerous  as  to  require  the  effi- 
cient aid  of  the  umpire  to  maintain  justice  and  equity  through  an 

allowance  of  interest.  In  the  one  case  a  certain  method  of  assured 

payment  without  interest  was  devised  and  preferred  by  the  high  con- 
tracting parties;  in  the  other  the  high  contracting  parties  preferred  a 

certain  method  of  payment  with  interest  in  bonds  circulating  in  the 
markets  of  the  world.  In  the  one  case  the  award  is  not  rated  at  par 
because  of  the  necessary  delay  attached  to  its  payment;  in  the  other 
it  is  not  rated  at  par  for  reasons  satisfactory  to  the  world  of  finance. 

The  inequality  produced  by  the  two  methods  of  payment  is  there- 
fore not  very  striking,  nor  is  the  inequity  resulting  therefrom  very  pro- 

nounced, and  taken  together  they  are  insufficient  to  move  the  umpire 
to  accord  with  the  opinion  of  the  honorable  commissioner  for  France, 
even  if  the  umpire  were  competent  under  the  terms  of  the  protocol  to 
rnake  such  an  award,  and  concerning  that  question  the  review  which 
he  has  just  made  confirms  his  judgment  as  expressed  by  him  in  the 
claim  of  Jules  Brun. 

In  order  to  compensate  the  claimant  for  his  material  damage  suf- 
fered in  all  of  the  ways  herein  referred  to,  including  interest  at  3  per 

cent  where  interest  is  proper,  there  should  be  added  to  170,000  francs 
allowed  by  the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  the  sum  of 
180,000  francs,  which  makes  in  all  the  sum  of  350,000  francs,  for 
which  amount  the  award  will  be  drawn. 
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ADDENDUM. 

After  this  opinion  was  written,  but  before  the  award  had  been  made, 
it  was  brought  to  the  attention  of  the  umpire  that  conditions  had 
materially  changed  in  CartSpano  since  the  sitting  of  the  honorable 
commission  at  Caracas.  At  the  time  named  the  revolution  was  still 

rampant  in  that  part  of  the  respondent  Government,  with  the  latter  in 
possession  of  Carupano,  holding  it  under  martial  law,  and  with  its 
troops  occupying  for  military  purposes  the  station  of  the  tramways 
and  for  barricades  portions  of  the  tramway  itself.  The  Government 

of  Venezuela  was  then,  in  fact,  in  occupancy  of  the  tramway  system  to 
the  exclusion  of  the  owner.  There  seemed  to  both  commissioners  no 

better  way  to  dispose  of  the  claim  than,  on  the  one  hand,  finally  to  sur- 
render what  was  lost  and,  on  the  other,  fully  to  accept  what  had  been 

taken.  They  did  not  agree  upon  the  terms,  however,  and  the  claim 
had  to  come  before  the  umpire. 

It  transpired  in  the  meanwhile  that  the  revolution  was  quelled, 
peace  was  restored,  and  the  claimant  had  entered  into  undisturbed 
possession  of  his  franchise  and  such  of  his  properties  as  he  chose  to 
make  use  of;  had  occupied  the  station  house,  regained  a  part  of  the 

movable  property  of  the  enterprise,  and  had  begun  again  its  exploita- 
tion. By  the  terms  of  the  contract  the  tramway  system  was  eventu- 

ally to  become  the  property  of  the  municipality  and  was  at  all  times 
under  its  civil  control.  Hence  it  had  seemed  to  the  honorable  com- 

missioner for  Venezuela  very  unwise  and,  in  a  sense,  not  within  its 
competency,  for  the  respondent  Government  to  interfere  with  either  the 
ownership  of  the  claimant  or  the  present  civic  control  and  the  ultimate 
municipal  ownership  of  the  city  of  Carupano,  and  for  these  reasons  he 
declined  to  accede  to  the  proposition  of  abandonment  on  the  part  of  the 
claimant  and  on  the  part  of  the  respondent  Government  of  acceptance 
and  payment  of  his  franchises  and  properties.  The  whole  question 
was  thoroughly  and  ably  presented  to  the  umpire  at  a  sitting  of  this 
honorable  commission,  held  on  the  12th  day  of  August,  instant,  the 
honorable  commissioner  for  France  believing  and  urging  that  the  plan 

adopted  at  Caracas  was  the  better  and  should  be  adhercvl  to  in  the  dis- 
position of  the  claim.  The  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela 

held  and  insisted  that  the  arbitral  tribunal  constituted  at  Paris  Feb- 

ruary 19,  1902,  had  no  authority  to  do  other  than  to  award  indemni- 
ties for  damages  suffered  by  Frenchmen  in  Venezuela  and  that  it 

could  not  compel  abandonment  of  property  by  its  owner  or  acceptance 

of  it  by  the  respondent  Government.  To  this  position  the  honorable 
commissioner  for  France  demurred  and  urged  that  it  had  authority  to 
so  award. 

To-day,  having  carefully  considered  the  questions  iavolved  and 
having  reflected  upon  the  opinions  respectively  held  and  ably  declared 
to  him  by  his  able  and  learned  associates,  the  umpire  has  concluded, 

S.  Doc.  533,  59—1   14 



210  DOMINIQUE    &    CO.   CASE. 

and  hence  holds,  that  the  safe,  sane,  and  wise  course  for  this  tribunal 

to  pursue  is  to  pay  scrupulous  regard  to  the  terms  of  the  protocol 
which  constituted  it  and  to  place  the  entire  responsibihty  in  that 
behalf  upon  the  high  contracting  powers  which  arranged  and  settled 
those  terms.  He  is  confident  that  the  language  of  that  compact  does 

not  permit  the  use  of  any  such  powers  as  will  be  involved  in  a  com- 
pulsory award  of  the  character  proposed  by  the  honorable  commis- 

sioner for  France,  holding  that,  in  this  respect,  the  claim  under  con- 
sideration is  identical  in  that  regard  with  the  claim  of  the  French 

Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads,  and  the  reasons  there  given  ̂   by  the 
umpire  are  here  referred  to  for  an  elaboration  of  his  opinion.  He 
therefore  decides  that  it  is  only  for  damages  suffered  in  Venezuela 
that  the  claimant  has  recourse  to  this  tribunal,  and  for  those  the 

umpire  will  award  the  sum  of  300,000  francs. 
NoRTHFiELD,  August  14,  1905. 

aPage367. 



CLAIM   OF  THE  HEIRS   OF  MASSIANI.— No.  6.« 

HEAD  NOTES. 

An  indebtedness  of  the  respondent  Government  to  the  late  Thomas  Massiani  in  his  Ufetime 

is  a  part  of  the  patrimony  which  descends  to  his  widow  and  children,  to  be  distributed 
in  accordance  with  the  laws  of  Venezuela. 

The  widow  of  Thomas  Massiani  was  bom  in  Venezuela,  acquired  French  nationality  by  the 

laws  of  both  countries  by  her  marriage  to  Thomas  Massiani,  by  the  laws  of  France 

retained  that  nationality  after  his  decease,  but  by  the  laws  of  Venezuela  was  restored 
by  his  death  to  her  quality  of  a  Venezuelan  citizen. 

During  their  marriage  and  since  his  death  she  has  been  domiciled  in  Venezuela.  The  law  of 

her  domicile  prevails  in  this  conflict  and  her  nationality  before  this  tribunal  is  Vene- 
zuelan. 

The  children  were  all  bom  in  Venezuela  and  it  has  always  been  their  domicile.  While  by  the 
laws  of  France  they  are  Frenchmen,  being  the  children  of  a  Frenchman,  they  are  by  the 
laws  of  Venezuela  citizens  of  that  country.  As  in  the  case  of  the  widow,  the  law  of  the 

domicile  prevails,  and  before  this  tribunal  they  are  Venezuelans. 
Thomas  Massiani  deceased  prior  to  the  convention  of  February  19,  1902;  therefore  neither 

of  the  high  contracting  parties  could  have  had  him  in  mind  as  a  possible  claimant  at  the 
time  of  said  convention. 

His  widow  and  children  being  Venezuelans  in  the  contemplation  of  the  respondent  Govern- 
ment, their  right  to  the  intervention  of  France  was  not  agreed  to  by  Venezuela  in  said 

protocol. 

« EXTRACT  FROM   THE  MINUTES   OF  THE   SITTING   OF   AUGUST  28,  1903. 

The  commission  then  proceeded  to  the  examination  of  the  Massiani  claim. 
Doctor  Paul  rejects  it,  and  bases  his  opinion  upon  the  following  considerations:  The 

heirs  of  Thomas  Massiani  are  all  Venezuelans  by  Venezuelan  law.  The  mixed  commission 

of  1890  has  already  rejected  the  claim  in  question,  and  the  present  commission  would  not  be 

able  to  revise  a  judgment  of  the  fomier  commission.  Finally,  the  very  documents  upon 

which  the  Massiani  heirs  base  their  right  to  the  payment  of  the  sum  which  they  claim  does 
not  seem  sufficient  to  prove  the  existence  of  the  debt  in  a  decisive  manner. 

M.  de  Peretti  replies  that  M.  Massiani  (Thomas)  enjoyed  exclusively  French  nationality,  and 
that  his  heirs,  if  they  are  Venezuelans  according  to  Venezuelan  law,  arc  considered  as  French- 

men by  French  law;  that  if  the  commission  of  1890  has  rejected  the  claim  in  question,  it  is 
because  the  Venezuelan  Govemment  did  not  give  an  acknowledgment  to  a  document  of 

which  M.  Philippe  Massiani  has  been  able  to  obtain  an  authentic  copy  only  in  1903;  that  the 
present  commission  seems  to  him  competent  to  revise  a  judgment  of  the  earlier  commission 

if  a  new  fact  has  been  presented,  which  is  the  case  in  the  Massiani  claim ;  finally,  that  the 
credit  seems  well  established  by  the  document  delivered  to  M.  Philippe  Massiani  by  the 
Venezuelan  administration. 

He  is,  then,  in  favor  of  granting  to  the  Massiani  heirs  a  sum  of  270,813.56  bolivars,  repre- 
senting the  capital  of  the  debt,  and  not  according  interest  because  of  the  negligence  during 

long  years  by  the  claimants  in  the  defense  of  their  rights. 

The  arbitrators  not  being  able  to  agree,  the  claim  of  the  Massiani  heirs  will  be  submitted 
to  the  examination  of  the  umpire. 211 
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The  indebtedness  of  Venezuela  to  the  estate  of  Thomas  Massiani  may  still  remain,  but  the 
forum  is  certainly  changed.  The  present  forum  is  the  one  constituted  for  Veneiiuelans. 
This  forum  is  the  result  of  the  selection  of  their  pateraal  ancestor  and  their  own  siilection 
after  attaining  majority. 

Having  French  paternity,  and  thereby  having  French  nationality  in  France,  they  needed 
only  to  be  domiciled  therein  to  have  a  nationality  which  all  the  world  must  maintain  to 

be  French.  They  have  preferred  to  remain  in  Venezuela;  its  laws  and  its  courts  are 

theirs;  these  they  may  invoke;  with  them  they  must  be  content. 

To  be  sovereign  and  independent,  each  country  must  l)e  master  of  its  internal  policy  and  sul> 
ject  neither  to  advice  nor  control  by  any  other  country. 

The  laws  of  Venezuela  concerning  citizenship  are  not  peculiar  or  offensive,  but  are  in  accord 
with  the  law  of  nations  in  general. 

OPINION  OF  THE  VENEZUELAN  COMMISSIONER. 

This  claim  has  been  presented  in  the  name  of  Mrs.  Carmen  Silva  de 
Massiani,  widow  of  Tomds  Massiani,  of  FeUpe  A.  Massiani,  Ascenci6n 
Massiani  de  Phelan,  Nuncia  Massiani  de  Orsini,  Luis  A.  Massiani, 
children  of  Tomds  Massiani,  and  Isabel  PavAn  de  Massiani,  acting  in 
behalf  of  her  minor  children,  Antonio  Jos6,  Tomds  Maria,  Mercedes, 

Luis  Enrique,  Carmen  de  Lourdes,  and  Gloria,  issue  of  her  marriage 
with  Mr.  Antonio  Massiani,  now  deceased,  son  of  Tomds  Massiani,  and 
therefore  those  minors  being  grandchildren  of  the  latter. 

The  claim  proceeds  from  debts  which,  the  claimants  sustain,  were 
contracted  by  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  in  favor  of  him  from 
whom  they  derive  their  rights,  Mr.  Tom^s  Massiani,  by  the  years  1864 
to  1869. 

The  documents  presented  prove  that  Tom4s  Massiani  died  in  the 
city  of  Car6pano  on  the  9th  of  October,  1901,  leaving  as  his  lawful 
heirs  his  wife,  Carmen  Silva  de  Massiani,  and  his  children  Felipe  A. 
Massiani,  Antonio  A.  Massiani,  Ascension  Massiani,  Nuncia  Massiani, 
and  Luis  A.  Massiani;  that  these  children  have  married  as  follows: 

Ascensi6n  Massiani  to  a  Mr.  Phelan,  Nuncia  Massiani  to  Agustin 
Orsini,  and  Antonio  J.  Massiani  to  Isabel  Pavdn,  of  which  latter  mar- 

riage there  are  under  the  parental  control  of  Isabel  Pavdn  de  Massiani, 
her  husband  being  dead,  six  minor  children. 

From  the  certificates  of  birth  presented  of  Mrs.  Carmen  Silva  de 
Massiani,  widow  of  Tomds  Massiani,  and  of  her  children,  Felipe  A. 
Massiani,  Antonio  Jos6,  Ascensi6n,  Nuncia,  and  Luis,  it  appears  that  all 
of  them  are  of  Venezuelan  nationality,  they  having  been  bom  in  the 
city  of  Cartipano,  State  of  Sucre,  United  States  of  Venezuela,  and  that 
the  same  circumstance  exists  respecting  the  minor  children  of  Antonio 
Jos6  Massiani,  represented  by  their  mother,  Isabel  Pavto  de  Massiani. 

With  reference  to  Mrs^.  Carmen  Silva  de  Massiani,  while  by  articles  19 
of  the  Venezuelan  civil  code  and  12  of  the  French  civil  code  the  woman 

married  to  a  foreigner  follows  the  condition  of  her  husband,  the  final 
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provision  of  the  Venezuelan  civil  code,  which  establishes  that  that 
change  only  subsists  during  the  marriage,  is  conclusive. 

Mrs.  Carmen  Silva  de  Massiani,  having  become  a  widow,  has  recov- 
ered, according  to  the  Venezuelan  law,  which  governs  her  personal 

status,  her  Venezuelan  nationality;  and,  even  if  it  might  be  sustained 
that,  according  to  the  French  law,  she  continues  to  be  French,  this 
commission,  in  determining  the  conflict  of  nationality  arising  from  the 

two  laws,  must  take  into  consideration  the  especial  circumstances  and 
the  facts  showing  the  real  condition  in  which  Mrs.  Carmen  Silva  de 
Massiani  has  maintained  herself  with  reference  to  her  nationality,  as 

well  as  with  respect  to  the  nationality  of  her  children. 
It  is  not  proved,  nor  has  it  been  attempted  to  prove,  that  Mrs.  Silva 

de  Massiani,  after  she  became  a  widow,  or  her  children  of  full  age,  have 

ever  pretended,  by  acts  proving  such  circumstance,  to  obtain  and  pre- 
serve a  nationality  different  from  that  which  the  Venezuelan  law 

attributes  to  them,  under  which  law  they  have  performed  all  the  most 

important  acts  of  life  connected  with  the  personal  statute,  status  civi- 
tatiSj  and  governed  by  the  especial  laws  of  that  statute,  such  as  those 
relating  to  successions,  inheritances,  guardianships,  and  marriage. 
It  is  not  proved  either  that  the  male  children  of  Tom4s  Massiani  have 
rendered  France  the  military  service  obligatory  for  every  Frenchman, 
or  in  any  way  contributed  to  the  satisfaction  of  other  charges  that 

would  procure  the  protection  due  to  those  who  do  not  abstain  in  an 
unjustifiable  way  from  the  compliance  with  their  duty  to  their  native 
land. 

On  the  contrary,  all  the  especial  circumstances  and  precedents  con- 
nected with  the  persons  of  the  claimants  show  that  they  have  during 

all  their  life  remained  in  the  territory  of  Venezuela;  that  there  they 
have  had  for  three  generations  the  business  and  the  principal  and 

only  seat  of  their  interests,  and  they  have  contracted  in  the  same  terri- 
tory marriages  w4th  pereons  of  different  nationalities,  enjoying  imder 

the  protection  of  the  Venezuelan  laws  the  security  they  grant  and  the 
services  which  the  authorities  of  their  residences  were  called  upon  to 
render  to  them  in  order  to  safeguard  their  persons  and  interests. 
From  those  facts  it  is  deduced  that  the  permanent  settlement  of  the 
widow  and  children  of  ToniAs  Massiani,  in  the  territory  of  Venezuela, 
of  which  they  are  all  natives,  is  the  result  of  a  reasoned  and  persisting 
will  and  the  manifestation  of  a  free  and  spontaneous  purpose  which 
makes  the  law  of  domicile  prevail  over  any  other  law  when  determining 
the  question  of  nationalitv. 

Mrs.  Carmen  Silva  de  Massiani,  her  children,  who  have  been  bom 

and,  one  of  them,  died  in  Venezuela,  and  her  grandchildren,  all  bom 
in  Venezuela,  are  Venezuelans,  not  only  by  the  law  of  Venezuela,  but 

in  virtue  of  all  the  especial  personal  circumstances  of  continued  resi- 
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dence,  business  ties  with  the  Venezuelan  soil,  which  has  given  them 

everything,  including  their  national  character. 

It  is  doubtless  that  when  a  group  of  men  are  considered,  and  the  aptitudes,  habits,  and 

attributes  of  each  individual  are  studied,  it  is  found  that  each  person  pertaining  to  a  group 

possesses  certain  common  characters  that  are  like  a  common  property  of  all  the  members 

belonging  to  the  same  group.  Hence  it  results  that,  if  attention  is  paid  to  the  common 

attributes  pertaining  to  all  the  individuals  of  each  group,  it  may  rightly  be  said  that  these 

individiuds  belong  to  this  or  that  nation.^ 

In  view  of  the  aforesaid  circumstances,  the  arbitrator  for  Venezuela 

is  of  opinion  that  this  tribunal  has  no  jurisdiction  to  take  cognizance 
of  and  decide  the  claim  in  question,  and  that  there  is,  besides,  with 
respect  to  it  a  precedent  that  renders  it  equally  inadmissible. 

Said  precedent  consists  in  the  fact  that  the  same  claim  was  presented 
by  Tom^s  Massiani,  from  whom  the  present  claimants  derive  their 

rights,  against  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  before  the  mixed  com- 
mission sitting  at  Caracas  from  1888  to  1890,  instituted  in  accordance 

with  the  Venezuelan-French  convention  of  1885. 
Tom^s  Massiani  claimed  from  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  before 

the  said  commission,  the  sum  of  351,449.80  bolivars.  As  appears  from 
the  certificate  issued  by  the  citizen  minister  of  foreign  affairs  on  the 
20th  of  the  present  month,  annexed  to  this  opinion,  the  members  of 

said  commission  in  the  sitting  of  the  7th  of  July,  1890,  gave  the  follow- 
ing award  with  reference  to  the  claim  in  question: 

The  first  part  of  the  claim  of  Mr.  Massiani,  of  whicli  mention  is  made  in  the  record  of  the 

proceedings  of  the  19th  of  May  of  the  present  year  for  49,666.84  bolivars,  was  accepted  by 

the  commission,  the  question  being  a  credit  already  recognized  by  the  Government  of  Vene- 
zuela, and  the  present  commissioner  being  authorized  by  a  note  addressed  to  him  by  the 

minister  of  foreign  affairs  on  the  18th  of  July  last,  No.  643,  to  examine  the  claims  that  had 
been  presented  to  the  commission  of  1879,  and  the  second  part  of  the  same  claim  amounting 

to  301 ,784.96  bolivars  was  disallowed,  because  the  interested  party  did  not  produce  a  suffi- 
cient document  in  support  of  his  claim. 

The  reason  on  which  was  based  the  disallowance  of  the  claim,  in  the 

part  above  determined,  which  is  tantamount  to  its  having  been  denied 
or  rejected,  was,  as  expressed  in  the  same  award,  the  want  of  sufficient 

proof  to  justify  it. 
The  successors  to  Tomds  Massiani  now  pretend  that  this  commission 

should  examine  and  decide  again  what  was  already  the  object  of  the 

decision  of  the  mixed  commission  of  1888  to  1890,  and  base  their  pre- 
tention on  a  certificate  from  the  centralization  board  of  the  general 

o687.  II  est  hors  de  doute,  lorsque  Ton  considfere  une  reunion  d'hommes  et  qu'on  ̂ tudie 
les  aptitudes,  les  habitudes  et  les  attributs  de  chaque  individu,  on  trouve  que  chaque  per- 

sonne,  que  appartient  k  cette  reunion,  a  certains  caract^res  individuels  et  certains  carac- 
t^res  communs,  qui  sont  comme  la  propri^t^  commune  et  de  tous  les  membres  qui 

appartiennent  au  mfime  groupe.  De  1^  il  r^ulte  que,  si  on  porte  son  attention  sur  les 
attributs  communs  qui  sont  propres  k  tous  les  individus  de  chaque  groupe,  on  pent  dire 
avec  raison  que  ces  individus  appartiennent  k  t«lle  ou  telle  nation.  (Fiore,  Nouveau 
Droit  International  Public,  sec.  687.) 
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provision  of  the  Venezuelan  civil  code,  which  establishes  that  that 
change  only  subsists  during  the  marriage,  is  conclusive. 

Mrs.  Carmen  Silva  de  Massiani,  having  become  a  widow,  has  recov- 
ered, according  to  the  Venezuelan  law,  which  governs  her  personal 

status,  her  Venezuelan  nationality;  and,  even  if  it  might  be  sustained 
that,  according  to  the  French  law,  she  continues  to  be  French,  this 
commission,  in  determining  the  conflict  of  nationality  arising  from  the 
two  laws,  must  take  into  consideration  the  especial  circumstances  and 
the  facts  showing  the  real  condition  in  which  Mrs.  Carmen  Silva  de 
Massiani  has  maintained  herself  with  reference  to  her  nationality,  as 
well  as  with  respect  to  the  nationality  of  her  children. 

It  is  not  proved,  nor  has  it  been  attempted  to  prove,  that  Mrs.  Silva 
de  Massiani,  after  she  became  a  widow,  or  her  children  of  full  age,  have 

ever  pretended,  by  acts  proving  such  circumstance,  to  obtain  and  pre- 
serve a  nationality  different  from  that  which  the  Venezuelan  law 

attributes  to  them,  under  which  law  they  have  performed  all  the  most 

important  acts  of  life  connected  with  the  personal  statute,  status  dvi- 
tatiSy  and  governed  by  the  especial  laws  of  that  statute,  such  as  those 
relating  to  successions,  inheritances,  guardianships,  and  marriage. 
It  is  not  proved  either  that  the  male  children  of  Tom4s  Massiani  have 
rendered  France  the  military  service  obligatory  for  every  Frenchman, 
or  in  any  way  contributed  to  the  satisfaction  of  other  charges  that 
would  procure  the  protection  due  to  those  who  do  not  abstain  in  an 
unjustifiable  way  from  the  compliance  with  their  duty  to  their  native 
land. 

On  the  contrary,  all  the  especial  circumstances  and  precedents  con- 
nected with  the  persons  of  the  claimants  show  that  they  have  during 

all  their  life  remained  in  the  territory  of  Venezuela;  that  there  they 

have  had  for  three  generations  the  business  and  the  principal  and 

only  seat  of  their  interests,  and  they  have  contracted  in  the  same  terri- 

tory marriages  with  persons  of  difi*erent  nationalities,  enjoying  under 
the  protection  of  the  Venezuelan  laws  the  security  they  grant  and  the 
services  which  the  authorities  of  their  residences  were  called  upon  to 
render  to  them  in  order  to  safeguard  their  persons  and  interests. 
From  those  facts  it  is  deduced  that  the  permanent  settlement  of  the 
widow  and  children  of  Tomds  Massiani,  in  the  territory  of  Venezuela, 
of  which  they  are  all  natives,  is  the  result  of  a  reasoned  and  persisting 
will  and  the  manifestation  of  a  free  and  spontaneous  purpose  which 
makes  the  law  of  domicile  prevail  over  any  other  law  when  determining 
the  question  of  nationalitv. 

Mrs.  Carmen  Silva  de  Massiani,  her  children,  who  have  been  bom 

and,  one  of  them,  died  in  Venezuela,  and  her  grandchildren,  all  bom 
in  Venezuela,  are  Venezuelans,  not  only  by  the  law  of  Venezuela,  but 

in  virtue  of  all  the  especial  personal  circumstances  of  continued  resi- 
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is  destitute  of  decisive  force  in  favor  of  the  creditor,  for  it  is  nothing 

but  a  certificate  issued  by  the  general  auditor^s  office  to  the  effect  that 
according  to  the  books  of  the  custom-house  at  Carupano  it  appeared 
that  on  the  23d  of  June,  1869,  there  was  a  balance  in  favor  of  TomAs 

Massiani,  without  determining  in  a  decisive  manner  that  he  was  cred- 
itor for  that  sum  on  the  date  of  the  certificate,  the  12th  of  August,  1890, 

or  twenty-two  years  thereafter.  No  data  have  been  furnished  with 
reference  to  the  fluctuation  of  that  account  in  the  intervening  twenty- 

two  years,  during  which  Mr.  'Pi  Massiani  continued  his  importations 
through  the  custom-house  at  Cartapano,  and  transfers  were  made 
decreed  by  special  laws  for  the  conversion  of  the  balances  against  the 
States  into  bonds  of  national  debt. 

The  apparent  abandonment  in  which,  according  to  the  pretention 

itself  of  Mr.  Massiani,  his  credit  was  left  during  twenty-one  years  with- 
out any  explanation;  the  lack  of  steps  to  obtain  its  payment  or  at 

least  to  procure  proofs  that  might  safeguard  his  rights,  constitute  so 
strong  a  presumption  against  the  subsistence  of  that  credit  that  i% 

suffices  to  strengthen  the  opinion  expressed  that  the  certificate  pro- 
duced is  an  inefficient  document  and  is  destitute  of  the  decisive  force 

that  the  law  and  common  sense  require  for  the  invalidation  of  a  sen- 
tence that  was  rendered,  because  the  claimant  did  not  produce  a  suffi- 

cient document  in  support  of  his  claim. 
The  decisions  of  tribunals  of  the  nature  of  these  commissions  are 

conclusive  and  final,  and  such  tribunals  are  constituted  in  order  pre- 
cisely that  their  decisions  liave  that  force  with  the  purpose  of  putting 

an  end  to  long-pending  and  vexing  questions  which  generally  disturb 
the  progress  of  international  relations. 

W  hen  a  court  of  arbitration  rejects,  for  lack  of  proofs,  a  claim,  or 
when  it  admits  it  in  its  entirety  or  in  part,  its  decision  is  a  law  which 

binds  t'  e  two  contracting  nations. 
In  the  same  case  of  the  ( laim  of  Tomas  Massiani,  that  of  being 

admitted  in  part  and  in  part  rejected,  were  many  others  submitted 
to  the  examination  of  the  commission  of  1888  to  1890,  and  that  com- 

mission was  given  the  power  of  fixing  or  appreciating  according  only 

to  the  documents  produced  in  each  case,  the  just  value  of  each  recla- 
mation. 

In  execution  of  that  power  it  examined  and  decided  more  than  one 

hundred  and  foj*ty  claims,  rejecting  many  of  them  for  lack  of  proofs, 
so  that  of  the  sum  of  1 1 ,284,532.37  bolivars  to  which  the  claims  having 
a  c!etermined  value  amounted  the  commission  only  admitted  as  lawful 
and  proved  the  sum  of  1,109,615.50  bolivars. 

For  the  reasons  stated  I  am  of  opinion  that  this  commission  must 
declare  itself  incompetent  to  take  cognizance  of  the  claim  entered, 
because  the  claimants  are  Venezuelans,  and,  besides,  that  it  must 
declare  said  claim  to  be  inadmissible,  as  far  as  the  sum  of  301,784.76 
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bolivars  and  the  interest  thereon  are  concerned,  because  respecting 
that  part  of  the  claim  there  is  a  sentence  passed  and  affirmed. 

As  to  the  new  promissory  notes  presented  as  a  complement  of  the 
said  claim,  they  are  not  covered  by  this  opinion,  because  as  they  are 
not  authenticated  they  do  not  meet  the  requisite  indispensable  for 
their  being  taken  into  consideration  according  to  the  rules  of  procedure 
established  by  this  commission. 

The  French  arbitrator  was  of  opinion  that  the  claim  was  to  be 
admitted  for  the  sum  of  270,813.56  bolivars  without  interest,  and  an 

agreement  not  having  been  arrived  at,  the  claim  was  referred  to  the 

umpire. 
Caracas,  August  28 ̂   1903, 

OPINION  OF  THE  FRENCH  COMMISSiONEB. 

According  to  the  exposition  made  in  his  letters  of  April  6  and  May 
13,  1903,  by  M.  Philippe  Massiani,  son  of  M.  Thomas  Massiani,  French 
citizen,  who  lived  in  Cariipano  and  died  there  October  9,  1901,  the 
Venezuelan  Government  would  have  been  answerable  to  the  latter 

for  a  sum  of  728,476.48  bolivars.     This  amount  is  made  up  as  follows: 

First,  341,737.36  bolivars,  loaned  from  1863  to  1869  to  the  adminis- 

tration of  the  custom-house  of  Carupano  and  to  General  Acosta,  chief 
of  the  Constitutional  army  of  the  east,  this  administrator  and  this 
general  being  duly  authorized  by  the  national  Government  to  contract 
loans  in  its  name. 

Second,  351,003.12  bolivars  representing  the  interest  on  the  sum 
loaned  from  the  date  of  the  obligation  to  June  30,  1903. 

Third,  3,200  bolivars  handed  over  in  1885  upon  the  requisition  of 
Generals  Urdaneta,  Pietri,  and  Rojas. 

Fourth,  14,136  bolivars  loaned  to  the  Legalista  revolution  of  1892. 
Fifth,  18,400  bolivars  furnished  the  Restaurador  revolution  in  1^99. 

The  amount,  which  appears  under  No.  5,  formed  the  object  of  the 

demand  for  indemnity  presented  to  the  mixed  commission  estab- 
lished by  the  protocol  signed  at  Washington  February  27,  1903.  This 

commission  allowed  to  the  Massiani  heirs,  taking  account  of  interest, 
an  indemnity  of  19,900  bolivars,  as  results  from  the  extract  below 
froin  the  minutes  of  the  sitting  of  September  10, 1903: 

Doctor  Paiil  declarcs  that  M.  Massiani  (Thomas)  being  to-day  deceased  and  having  left 
as  heirs  his  wife  born  in  Venezuela,  of  Venezuelan  parents  and  four  children  bom  in  Vene- 

zuela, he  sees  himself  obliged  to  refuse  consideration  of  the  claim  presented  by  this  French- 
man because  his  heirs  are  all  Venezuelans  according  to  Venezuelan  law,  and  the  advantage 

of  the  arbitral  tribunal  is  reserved  by  the  protocol  for  Frenchmen. 
M.  do  Peretti  replies  that  M.  Massiani  (Thomas)  who  has  himself  addressed  before  his  death 

his  letter  of  claim  to  the  legation  of  France  enjoyed  exclusively  French  nationality,  and  that 
consequently  the  commission  is  competent  to  examine  this  claim  without  its  being  necessary 
to  look  into  the  question  of  knowing  if  the  heirs  who  are  all  considered  as  Frenchmen  by  the 
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French  law  and  enjoy  in  reality  two  nationalities,  have  manifested  in  the  course  of  their  life 
the  intention  of  remaining  French. 

The  commissioners  not  being  of  accord  remit  the  dossier  to  the  umpire  and  ask  him  to 
decide  if  the  claim  in  question,  and  of  which  they  do  not  discuss  the  amount,  enters  into  the 

category  of  those  which  are  included  by  the  terms  of  the  protocol. 
Mr.  Filtz  pronounced  the  following  sentence: 

The  umpire,  the  commissioners  being  heard  and  after  the  examination  of  the  dossier  of  the 
claim  of  Massiani  (Thomas)  and  son,  considering  that  the  character  of  Frenchman  is  not 

denied  to  Massiani  senior,  that  the  claim  was  pre^sented  by  him  and  not  by  his  heirs  and  that 
there  was  no  occasion  to  examine,  consequently  if  the  said  heirs  who  enjoy  in  fact  two 

nationalities  have  evidenced  in  the  course  of  their  life  their  preference  for  one  of  the  two, 

decides  that  the  claim  in  question  certainly  enters  into  the  category  of  those  which  are  pro- 
vided for  by  the  protocol  and  consequently  accords  to  Massiani  (Thomas)  and  son  the 

indemnity  of  19,900  bolivars. 

The  credit  which  is  set  forth  in  number  four  enters  into  the  category 
of  claims  provided  for  by  article  1  of  the  protocol  of  February  19,  1902, 
in  that  the  Venezuelan  Government  has  accorded  a  round  sum  of 

1,000,000  bolivars.  The  commission  which  met  at  Paris  to  make  a 
division  of  this  sum,  considering  that  the  claim  had  been  formulated 
by  M.  Thomas  Massiani,  who  enjoyed  incontestably  French  nationality, 
accorded  to  his  heirs  the  indemnity  demanded.  The  credit  which 

appears  in  No.  3  is  established  by  a  ̂ 'vale''  dated  June  28, 1885,  and 
signed  by  the  three  generals  who  made  the  requisition.  My  colleague 
concludes  to  reject  this  demand,  because  aside  from  the  reasons 
which  caused  him  to  refuse  all  the  claims  presented  in  the  name  of 
Massiani  thought  the  latter  ought  to  have  been  presented  to  the 
mixed  commission  which  sat  from  1888  to  1890  and  was  competent 
to  examine  the  claims  arising  between  1869  to  1886,  and  again  that 

the  ''vale^*  presented  no  authentic  character,  the  signatures  not 
being  legalized. 

I  partook  in  these  latter  points  of  the  opinion  of  Doctor  Patil  and  we 
rejected  this  demand.  The  credits  which  appear  under  Nos.  3,  4, 
and  5  are  then  out  of  the  cause. 

There  remains  the  credit  which  appears  under  Nos.  1  and  2  and 

which  amounts  to  692,740.48  bolivars.  When  this  claim  was  pre- 
sented to  the  mixed  commission  in  the  course  of  the  sitting  of  May  14, 

1903,  M.  Massiani  (Philippe)  had  not  yet  obtained  from  the  Venezue- 
lan Government  the  documents  which  seemed  to  establish  in  an  incon- 

testable manner  the  credit  of  his  father.  The  dossier  did  not  then 

establish  the  credit  until  after  the  taking  up  of  the  accounts  of  the 
Massiani  house.  Doctor  Patil  asked  Philippe  Massiani,  who  was 
heard  by  the  commission  at  its  meeting  of  May  23,  1903,  to  show  that 
after  the  decease  of  his  father  he  had  acquired  all  the  rights  of  the  firm 
Massiani  &  Co.,  and  that  his  mother,  his  brothers,  and  his  sisters  had 
executed  regular  warrants  of  attorney.  M.  PhiUppe  later  remitted  a 
dossier  which  satisfied  this  request. 
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Of  a  common  accord  my  colleague  and  myself  postponed  the 
examination  of  this  affair  to  a  later  date,  M.  Massiani  having  informed 

us  that  he  was  soliciting  from  the  Venezuelan  administration  a  recog- 
nition of  the  debt.  He  obtained,  in  fact,  this  instrument  May  27, 1903, 

but  the  amount  of  the  debt  recognized  was  only  270,813.56  bolivars. 
This  figure  did  not  agree  with  that  of  the  claim.  The  interested  party 
declared  that  he  would  solicit  a  rectification.  He  did  not  remit  until 

August  4,  1903,  the  document  which,  according  to  him,  justifies  his 
claim  in  its  integral  amount. 

The  affair  entered  into  discussion  at  the  sitting  of  August  6,  1903,  as 
the  register  of  the  proceedings  of  the  commission  bears  witness : 

The  arbitrators  then  took  up  the  study  of  the  Massiani  claim,  which  in  the  course  of  the  sit- 
ting of  May  23  had  been  postponed  to  a  later  examination. 

After  having  passed  over  in  review  the  complementary  pieces  addressed  by  the  interested 

parties,  and  having  exchanged  views  with  his  colleague,  Doctor  Paul  expressed  the  desire  to 
study  the  dossier  anew,  and  it  was  agreed  that  the  arbitrators  would  render  their  decision  on 

this  claim  at  the  next  meeting. 

At  the  meeting  of  August  24,  1903,  ̂ ^after  a  new  exchange  of  views 
and  a  long  discussion,''  as  the  minutes  say,  the  affair  was  again 
reserved.  Finally  at  the  sitting  of  August  28,  1903,  Doctor  Patil 
having  concluded  to  reject  the  demand,  I  appealed  to  the  umpire. 

I  have  accorded  to  the  Massiani  heirs  an  indemnity  of  270,813.56 
bolivars,  because  after  having  read  the  documents  sent  May  27,  1903, 
to  M.  PhiUppe  Massiani  by  the  minister  of  foreign  relations  it  seems 
impossible  to  me  that  the  credit  should  be  contested.  This  document 
is  an  authentic  copy  delivered  to  M.  Philippe  Massiani  upon  his  request 
by  the  director  of  public  law  to  the  minister  of  foreign  relations  with 

the  authority  of  the  minister  of  the  liquidation  of  the  credit  of  Mas- 
siani effected  August  12,  1890.  This  liquidation  concerns  a  table  of 

loans,  with  their  dates  and*  their  amounts,  extracted  from  the  books  of 
pubUc  accounts  and  closed  with  the  following  declaration  of  Gen.  T.  B. 
Arismendi,  contador  general  de  la  S;la  de  centralizaci6n  : 

Consequently  and  as  results  from  the  former  administration,  it  appears  that  M.  Thomas 
Massiani  is  the  creditor  of  the  Government  for  the  sum  of  67,703.39  pesos,  or  270,813.56 
bolivars. 

It  is  undeniable  that  on  the  date  August  12,  1890,  the  Venezuelan 
Government  owed  this  sum  to  M.  Thomas  Massiani.  If  the  payment  had 
been  made  since  to  the  interested  parties  it  would  have  been  very  easy 
for  the  Venezuelan  administrator  to  prove  it  by  producing  the  receipt* 
It  is  then  beyond  doubt  that  the  debtor  is  still  at  the  present  hour 
responsible  for  this  sum  to  the  personal  representatives  of  M.  Massiani. 

The  rights  of  succession  have  only  seemed  to  me  completely  estab- 
lished for  this  sum.  M.  Philippe  Massiani  argues  that  the  said  liqui- 
dation does  not  include  a  sum  of  30,971.40  bolivars,  which  caused  the 

credit  of  270,813.65  boUvars  to  amoimt  to  301,784.96  boUvars,  a  sum 
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already  claimed  in  vain  from  a  preceding  mixed  commission  by  M. 
Thomas  M  ssi-ini.  He  h:s  demanded  of  the  minister  of  finances  an 

officiiil  rectification  and  he  flatters  himself  of  having  obtained  it. 

Not  sharing  his  opinion  on  this  point,  I  have  not  been  able,  while 

recognizing  for  the  interested  parties  only  the  right  rigorously  estab- 
lished, to  accord  this  supplementary  indemnity. 

I  ought  to  note  here,  for  the  information  of  the  umpire,  the  notable 
contradiction  which  exists  between  the  liquidation  of  August  12,  1890, 
and  the  official  report,  of  which  a  copy  certified  by  the  director  of  the 
budget  was  sent  to  the  minister  of  finances  June  27,  1903,  as  a  result  of 
the  demand  for  rectification  of  M.  Philippe  Massiani.  Not  only  are  the 
amoimts  produced  by  the  latter  document  not  in  accord  either  with 
those  of  the  demands  nor  with  those  of  the  liquidation  of  August  12, 
1890,  but  the  uncontested  and  uncontestable  existence  of  this  latter 

liquidation  suflSces  to  prove  the  inexactness  of  the  conclusion  of  this 
offici::l  report.  It  concludes,  in  fact,  that  in  the  books  of  account  one 
can  follow  the  trace  of  the  credit  only  as  far  as  April,  1870,  and  that 

the  liquidation  remitted  by  the  minister  of  foreign  relations  in  a  certi- 
fied copy  is  dated  August  12,  1890.  Is  this  only  an  error?  Does  not 

this  inexact  report  betray  the  predetermination  of  the  minister  of 
foreign  affairs  to  efface  the  impression  which  ought  to  be  produced  on 
the  arbitrators  by  the  reading  of  the  liquidation  of  1890,  the  copy  of 
which,  vainly  sought  for  during  long  years,  seems  to  have  been  obtained 

only  by  a  surprise,  thanks  to  the  friendly  relation  between  the  inter- 
ested parties  and  certain  officials  of  the  ministry  of  foreign  relations. 

M.  Philippe  Massiani  claimed,  moreover,  a  sum  of  39,952.40  boli- 
vars, represented  by  receipts  analogous  to  those  which,  remitted  to  the 

Venezuelan  administration,  had  permitted  him  to  establish  notably 
the  liquidation  of  1890.  Why  have  these  receipts,  which  besides  do 
not  present  suflScient  authentic  character,  been  thus  preserved  ?  Why 
did  not  M.  Thomas  Massiani  present  them  to  the  mixed  commission 
of  1888?  Have  they  not  already  been  settled?  All  these  questions 
not  having  received  satisfactory  answers,  I  have  not  been  able  to 
admit  this  part  of  the  claim. 

Finally  M.  Philippe  Massiani  claimed  351,003.12  bolivars  of  interest 
reckoned  at  3  per  cent  from  the  date  of  the  obligation  to  June  30, 1903. 
I  have  not  believed  I  ought  to  receive  this  demand  even  for  the 

270,813.56  bolivars,  which  I  consider  indisputably  due  by  the  Vene- 
zuelan Government.  Messrs.  Massiani,  father  and  son,  appear  in 

effect  to  have  taken  no  steps  before  the  Venezuelan  administration  to 
obtain  from  it  the  reimbursement  of  their  credit.  They  have  both 

waited  before  filing  their  claim  for  the  meeting  of  the  mixed  commis- 
sions. They  have  then  waited. of  their  own  free  will  rnd  huve  thus 

lost  the  chance  to  see  themselves  rewarded  by  a  judge  basing  himself 
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upon  equity  alone  for  the  interest  which  in  right  they  ought  not  to 
have  counted  upon. 

I  have  already  explained  why  I  could  not  share  the  opinion  of  my 
honorable  colleague  upon  the  value  of  the  document  remitted  to 

M.  Philippe  Massiani  May  27,  1903,  a  document  which,  in  my  opin- 
ion, proves  superabundantly  the  credit  of  the  Massianis.  Besides  the 

fact  the  document  does  not  seem  to  him  '^ sufficient  to  prove  the 

existence  of  the  debt  in  a  decisive  manner,^'  Doctor  Patil  justifies 
the  rejection  of  this  claim  by  considerations  drawn  from  the  nation- 

ality of  the  Massiani  heirs  and  by  the  fact  that  the  mixed  commission 

of  1888-1890  has  already  rejected  the  demand  in  question.  M.  Thomas 
Massiiini,  bom  in  France  of  French  parents,  enjoyed  incontestably 
and  exclusively  French  nationality.  His  title  of  French  citizen  has 
been  certified  by  the  legation  of  France  at  Caracas  and  recognized 

by  the  Venezuelan  commissioner  at  the  mixed  commission  of  1888- 
1890.  The  claim  was  bom  during  the  life  of  Thomas  Massiani.  It 

is  the  right  of  a  French  citizen  who  has  been  injured,  and  conse- 
quently the  mixed  commission  appointed  by  the  protocol  of  Paris, 

which  includes  ''the  demands  for  indemnities  presented  by  French- 
men,''  is  indeed  competent  to  consider  this  claim. 

One  might  insist  upon  that,  as  the  mixed  commission  appointed  by 

the  protocol  of  Washington  has  done  successively  for  the  same  inter- 
ested party  for  part  No.  5  of  their  claim  and  the  commission  of 

repartition  appointed  by  the  French  Government  for  No.  4. 
One  would  place  then  out  of  the  case  as  the  umpire,  Mr.  Filtz,  has 

done  in  his  award,  the  nationality  of  the  heirs.  But  I  consider  that 
even  if  one  takes  this  latter  into  consideration  the  arbitral  commission 

created  by  the  protocol  of  Paris  has  jurisdiction.  The  widow  of 

Thomas  Massiani,  bom  in  Venezuela,  of  Venezuela  parents,  but  mar- 
ried to  a  Frenchman,  and  her  children,  bom  in  Venezuela  of  French 

parents,  all  enjoy  incontestably  two  nationalities.  They  are  French 
according  to  French  law  and  Venezuelans  according  to  Venezuelan 

law.  It  results  that  when  the  protocol  speaks  of  ''demands  for  indem- 
nities presented  by  Frenchmen' '  it  has  in  mind  claims  presented  by 

individuals  to  which  the  French  Government  assures  its  protection 
because  the  French  law  recognizes  them  as  Frenchmen.  It  is  in  no 
way  specified  in  the  protocol  that  the  Venezuelan  law  will  be  obliged 
also  to  recognize  these  individuals  as  Frenchmen.  On  the  contrary, 
all  the  protocols  signed  last  year  at  Washington  between  Venezuelan 
and  foreign  powers  to  regulate  analogous  difficulties  have  declared 
expressly  that  local  legislation  ought  not  to  be  taken  into  account. 
Then,  even  if  the  heirs  of  Mr.  Thomas  Massiani  had  presented  a  claim 

in  their  personal  name,  the  arbitral  commission  would  have  been  quali- 
fied to  examine  it.  It  is  so  with  much  greater  reason,  since  this  claim 

concerns  a  credit  of  Mr.  Thomas  Massiani  himself. 
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On  the  other  hand,  it  is  true  that  the  mixed  commission  of  1888-1890 
rendered,  at  its  sitting  of  July  7,  1890,  the  following  award : 

The  second  part  of  the  same  claim  (claim  Thomas  Massiani),  amounting  to  301,784.96 

bolivars,  is  definitely  rejected,  the  interested  party  not  supporting  his  demand  by  a  suflS- 
cient  document. 

But  it  is  necessary  to  know  that  this  ''sufficient  document''  was  in 
the  hands  of  the  Venezuelan  Government,  which,  being  requested  by 
the  interested  party,  did  not  make  it  out  until  the  12th  of  August,  1890, 
after  the  close  of  the  labors  of  the  commission,  and  did  not  deliver  a 

copy  to  Mr.  Philippe  Massiani  until  May  27,  1903.  One  can  then  dis- 
cuss in  what  case  and  by  what  tribunal  may  an  award  rendered  by  the 

mixed  commission  of  1888-1890  be  revised. 

One  could,  however,  remark  that,  this  commission  having  rendered 
irrevocable  decisions,  these  decisions  could  not  be  submitted  to  a 

revision  unless  a  new  fact  unknown  to  the  arbitrators  has  appeared  to 
modify  the  appearance  of  the  affair  in  such  a  manner  that  the  decision 

may  have  been  entirely  different  if  the  arbitrators  had  knowledge  of  it. 
One  might  establish  then  that  this  is  precisely  the  case  of  the  Massiani 
claim.  Finally,  one  might  maintain,  with  reason,  that  no  tribunal 
would  be  better  qualified  than  the  present  arbitral  commission  to 
examine  anew  an  aflFair  already  submitted  to  the  mixed  commission  of 

1888-1890,  and  that  even  the  protocol  giving  it  competency  to  regu- 
late all  the  claims  of  Frenchmen,  whether  they  were  directed  against  a 

former  award  or  caused  by  an  entirely  different  motive,  this  arbitral 
commission  is  alone  in  position  to  decide  if  there  is  room  to  revise  such 
or  such  decision  of  the  preceding  conmaission. 

In  equity,  the  document  sent  May  27,  1903,  to  M.  Philippe  Massiani 
establishing  incontestably  the  existence  of  his  credit,  and  the  arbi- 

trators of  1890  having  only  rejected  the  Massiani  claim  for  lack  of 
probative  document  retained  by  the  Venezuelan  administration,  an 
arbitrator  can  but  condemn  the  Venezuelan  Government  to  reimburse 

the  Massiani  heirs  for  the  sum  which  it  has  recognized  itself  as  due  him. 
In  the  course  of  our  discussions  relative  to  this  claim  Doctor  Paxil 

declared  to  me  that  he  would  have  been  disposed  to  accord  an  indem- 

nity equal  to  the  sum  included  in  the'liquidation  of  1890  if  the  inter- 
ested party  had  filed  a  new  claim  bearing  upon  the  refusal  of  the 

Government  to  deliver  the  document  which  was  demanded  of  it. 

I  replied  that  this  was  a  simple  question  of  form,  that  the  expose 
made  in  the  letters  of  M.  Massiani  of  his  numerous  proceedings  take 
the  place  pf  the  formal  claim,  and  that  one  could  not,  in  order  to  reject 
his  prove^;^^plaim,  base  his  action  upon  the  moderation  the  claimant 
had  displayed  in  not  asking,  besides  the  sum  due,  a  special  indemnity 

for  the  veritable  denial  of  justice  which  this  refusal  in  question  con- 
stituted. In  according  to  the  heirs  of  Massiani  only  270,813.56  boli- 

vars of  the  692,740.48  bolivars  demanded,  I  have  sought  to  restore 
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them  possession  of  that  which  is  incontestably  due  them.  I  have  laid 

aside  all  the  demands  which,  not  being,  perhaps,  without  some  founda- 
tion, are,  however,  not  established  by  sufficient  proofs. 

We  ought  to  consider  that,  according  to  the  terms  of  the  protocol, 
this  indemnity  must  be  paid  in  bonds  of  diplomatic  debt  and  not  in 

gold.  From  the  fact  of  this  concessioji,  graciously  granted  to  the 
Venezuelan  Government  by  the  French  Government,  to  allow  it  to 
settle  its  debts  with  more  facility  the  amount  of  the  indemnity  finds 
itself  in  reality  reduced. 

At  this  time  the  true  value  of  these  bonds  is  half  their  nominal  value. 

The  payment  of  the  Massiani  heirs  of  the  indemnity  of  270,813.56 
bolivars  would  then  permit  the  Venezuelan  Government  to  free  itself 
by  125,000  bolivars  of  a  debt  amounting  in  reality  to  270,813.56 
bolivars. 

March  12,  1904.    ^ 

ADDITIONAL  OPINIOK  OF  THE  VEKEZTJELAK  COMICISSIONEB. 

From  the  extract  of  the  oral  proceedings  at  the  sitting  held  in 
Caracas  on  August  28,  1903,  when  the  commissioners  for  France  and 
Venezuela  heard  the  claim  entered  by  FeUpe  A.  Massiani  for  the  sum 
of  692,740.80  bolivars,  it  appears  that  the  French  commissioner  held 
that  the  sum  of  270,813.56  bolivars,  representing  the  principal,  should 
be  awarded  without  interest,  because  of  the  negligence  for  many  years 

shown  by  the  claimants  in  defense  of  their  rights.  The  same  commis- 
sioner also  rejected  other  specifications  contained  in  the  claim,  as  he 

did  not  consider  them  sufficiently  established.  The  undersigned,  as 
the  commissioner  for  Venezuela,  then  and  there  rejected  the  claim  in 

its  entirety,  basing  my  contention  as  shown  in  the  opinion  which, 
translated  into  English,  I  submit  herewith,  in  these  three  main  points, 
to  wit: 

•  First.  Incapacity  for  want  of  proper  jurisdiction  of  this  arbitration 
commission  to  hear  the  claim  in  question,  because  Felipe  A.  Massiani 

and  the  rest  of  the  claimants  represented  by  him  are  Venezuelans,  hav- 
ing been  bom  within  Venezuelan  territory. 

Second.  Because  there  exists  a  condition  of  res  judicata  as  regards 
the  object  of  the  claim  in  that  portion  dealing  with  the  capital  of 
270,813.56  bolivars  as  submitted  by  the  French  commissioner;  and 

Third.  Because  the  document  produced  by  Felipe  A.  Massiani  to 
prove  the  existence  of  the  debt  lacks  sufficient  force  to  establish 

beyond  dispute  the  validity  of  the  claim,  such  document  being  insuffi- 
cient to  overrule  the  award  of  the  French- Venezuelan  mixed  com- 

mission of  1888-1890,  decreed  in  the  matter  of  the  claim  entered  before 
said  commission  by  the  father  of  Felipe  A.  Massiani,  demanding  the 
same  amount. 

The  Venezuelan  citizenship  by  birth  of  the  claimants.  Carmen  Silva 

de  Massiani,  the  widow  of  Tomfi;S  Massiani;  FeUpe  A.  Massiani,  Ascen- 
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ci6n  Massiani  de  Phelan,  Nuncia  Massiani  de  Orsini,  and  Luis  A.  Mas- 
siani;  children  of  Tomfi;S  Massiani;  and  the  minor  children  of  Isabel 
Paran  de  Massiani,  Antonio  Jos6,  Tom6.s  Maria,  Mercedes,  Luis 

Enrique,  Carmen  de  Lourdes,  and  Gloria,  bom  during  her  marriage  to 
Antonio  Massiani,  deceased,  the  son  of  Tom6.s  Massiani,  such  minors 

being  the  grandsons  of  the  l&,tter,  is  fully  established  in  this  case  and 
is  not  a  point  open  to  discussion.  All  of  them,  during  a  succession  of 
years  embracing  three  generations,  have  not  only  had  one  common 
native  land,  but  one  common  city  of  birth,  Cartipano,  formeriy  a 

fishermen's  town,  where  Tom^s  Massiani  met  and  married,  in  1858, 
Carmen  Silva.  The  domicile  of  the  widow  has  always  continued  to 
be  the  same  as  that  of  her  forefathers  and  that  of  all  her  children  and 

grandchildren.  From  the  moment  of  her  widowhood  she  recovered 
her  Venezuelan  nationaUty,  according  to  the  provisions  of  article  19, 

section  2,  Title  I,  Book  I  of  tjje  civil  code  of  Venezuela,^  in  force  at  the 
time  of  the  death  of  Tom6.s  Massiani,  which  took  place  in  Carfipano  on 
October  9,  1901.  Her  daughters,  Ascenci6n  Massiani  de  Phelan  and 
Nuncia  Massiani  de  Orsini,  do  not  appear  to  have  lost  their  original 
nationality,  as  the  foreign  nationality  of  their  respective  husbands  has 
not  been  established. 

It  is  a  generally-established  principle  that  the  individual  status  is 
governed  by  the  laws  of  the  countr>^  of  which  a  man  or  woman  is  a 
citizen  or  subject,  and  the  nationality  in  the  case  of  the  widow  and 
children  of  Tom^  Massiani  as  regards  Venezuela  is  fixed  by  birth  or 
lex  lod.  The  conflict  between  French  legislation  which  maintains  the 

principle  of  descent,  or  lex  sanguinis j  and  the  Venezuelan  laws,  which 
support  the  principle  of  the  birthplace,  has  already  been  the  subject 
of  learned  discussions  by  mixed  tribunals,  when  it  has  been  invariably 
decided  that  the  conflict  is  controlled  by  the  law  of  domicile,  and  in 
conjunction  with  this  ruling  the  no  less  weighty  doctrine  that  in  such 
controversies  the  principle  that  in  the  event  of  double  citizenship,  no 
country  can  claim  for  a  person  having  the  nationality  of  the  respondent 
country,  but  it  may  claim  against  all  other  countries. 

Bluntschli  (International  Law.  section  374)  states  the  following: 

Certain  persons  or  families  may  in  rare  instances  be  under  the  jurisdiction  of  two  or 
even  a  larger  number  of  different  states.  In  case  of  conflict  the  preference  will  be  given 
to  the  state  in  which  the  individual  or  family  in  question  have  their  domicile;  their  rights  in 

the  state  where  they  had  no  residence  will  be  considered  suspended,  b 

a  Art.  19.  La  venezolana  que  se  casare  con  un  extranjero  se  reputar&  como  extranjera 

respecto  de  los  derechos  propios  de  los  venezolanos,  siempre  que  por  el  hecho  del  matri- 
monio  adquiera  la  nacionalidad  del  mai  ido  y  mientras  permanezca  casada. 

ftCertaines  personnes  ou  families  peuvent  exceptionnellement  6tre  ressortissauts  de 

deux  ̂ tats  diff brents  ou  m6me  d'un  plus  grand  nombre  d'^tats. 

En  cas  de  conflit,  la  pi^f^rence  sera  accord^e  h  I'^tat  dans  lequel  la  personne  ou  la 
famiUe  en  question  ont  leur  domicile;  leur  droits  dans  les  4tats  oil  elles  ne  rodent  pas 
seront  consid^r^  comme  suspendus. 
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The  same  opinion  is  held  by  Twiss,  '^Law  of  Nations/^  pages  231- 
232. 

Moore,  Int.  Arbit.,  vol.  3,  page  2454,  in  the  cases  of  Lucien  Lavigne, 
No.  11,  and  Felix  Bister,  No.  20;  decision  of  Arbitrators,  Spanish 
Commission,  (1871),  April  27,  1878,  says: 

The  act  of  Congress  of  February  10,  1855  (10  U.  S.  Stat.  L.,  604),  which  provides  that 
persons  heretofore  bom,  or  hereafter  to  be  bom,  out  of  the  limits  and  jurisdiction  of  the 
United  States,  whose  fathers  were  or  shall  be  at  the  time  of  their  birth  citizens  of  the  United 

States,  shall  be  deemed  and  considered  and  are  hereby  declared  to  be  citizens  of  the  United 

States,  can  not  operate  so  as  to  interfere  with  the  allegiance  which  such  children  may  owe 
to  the  country  of  their  birth  while  they  continue  within  its  territory. 

Supposing,  finally,  that  one  individual  united  in  his  person  several  nationalities,  it  would 

be  necessary  to  apply  the  law  best  eup-eeing  with  his  actual  position,  otherwise  the  question 
would  be  insoluble.     (Heffter,  Paris,  1866,  p.  74.)  a 

It  was  under  circumstances  similar  to  those  of  the  present  claimants 
that  the  mixed  American  and  Venezuelan  commission,  acting  under 
the  protocol  of  December  5^  1885,  settled  the  question  of  double 
nationality  in  the  case  of  Narcissa  de  Hammer  and  Amelia  de  Brissot, 
both  bom  in  Venezuela,  both  widows  of  United  States  citizens,  and 

both  having  resided  in  Venezuela  during  their  married  lives,  both 
having  had  children  bom  in  the  same  country,  both  claiming  in  behalf 
of  their  respective  children,  and  both  having  continued  to  reside  in 

Venezuela  after  the  death  of  their  respective  husbands.  The  unani- 
mous decision  of  the  commission  was  that  they  had  no  jurisdiction  to 

hear  and  decide  the  claim.  (See  Moore,  Int.  Arbit.,  vol.  3,  pp.  2456- 
2461.) 

Many  other  analogous  cases  could  be  cited  to  corroborate  the  prin- 
ciple involved  in  this  question  of  jurisdiction,  but  they  are  well  known 

to  the  honorable  umpire,  who  has  quoted  them  in  enlightened  awards 
that  in  his  capacity  of  umpire  he  had  occasion  to  render  in  the  claims 

of  Mathison  against  the  Venezuelan  Government  before  the  British- 
Venezuelan  commission,  created  by  the  protocol  of  Washington  on 
February  13,  1903,  and  in  his  award  in  the  case  of  Stevenson  against 
that  Government  before  the  same  commission.  (Venezuelan  Arbi- 

trations of  1903,  Ralston's  Report,  pp.  433-438  and  442-455.)  The 
Hon.  Jackson  H.  Ralston,  umpire  in  the  Italian- Venezuelan  Commis- 

sion under  the  Washington  protocol  of  February  13,  1903,  rendered 
similar  decisions  in  the  claims  of  Miliani,  Brignone,  and  Poggioli. 

(Ralston^s  Report,  pp.  715-720,  759-762,  866.) 
The  learned  commissioner  for  France  makes  an  issue  of  the  French 

nationality  of  Tomds  Massiani,  who  was  the  husband  of  Carmen  Silva 
de  Massiani  and  the  father  of  Felipe  A.  Massiani  and  his  brothers  and 
sisters,  to  maintain  that  the  claim  entered  by  the  latter  before  this 

a  Suppose  enfin  qu'  un  individu  r^untt  en  sa  personne  plusieurs  nationalit^s  distinctes, 

il  faudrait  appliquer  les  lois  qui  s'accorderaient  le  mieux  avec  sa  position  actuelle;  autre- 
ment  la  question  serait  insoluble. 

S.  Doc.  633, 59—1   15 
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commission  originated  during  the  life  of  their  father ;  that  the  injured 
rights  are  those  of  a  French  citizen,  and  the  mixed  commission  created 
by  the  Paris  protocol  dealing  with  the  claims  for  indemnification 

entered  by  French  citizens  **is  qualified  to  hear  the  present  claim 
without  taking  into  consideration  the  citizenship  of  the  heirs  of  Tomds 

Massiani.^^  Such  opinion  can  not  be  maintained  in  the  presence  of 
the  strict  terms  of  the  Paris  protocol,  which  vest  this  commission  with 
but  limited  authority  to  investigate  and  decide  the  indemnification 
claims  entered  by  Frenchmen.  When  the  terms  of  a  convention  have 
been  clearly  and  precisely  stated,  there  is  no  room  for  interpretation, 
but  they  must  be  applied  with  strict  adherence  to  the  meaning  of  the 

words.  The  respective  article  of  the  protocol  states  ̂ ^  claims  for 
indemnification  entered  by  Frenchmen.''  Entered  before  whom? 
Before  the  commision.  Entered  by  whom?  By  Frenchmen,  and 
under  no  condition  by  the  heirs  of  French  citizens,  no  matter  what  the 
nationality  of  such  heirs  may  be.  Nor,  how  could  it  be  possible  that 
because  there  exists  a  right  which  has  passed  to  a  Venezuelan  citizen 
or  an  English  or  Chinese  subject  by  descent  from  a  French  citizen,  the 
country  of  which  the  deceased  was  a  citizen,  should  arrogate  to  itself 
the  authority  to  enter  an  action  as  a  claimant  against  Venezuela,  if  the 
claimant  is  a  Venezuelan,  or  to  invoke  the  protecting  action  of  England 
or  China  in  case  the  owners  of  the  credit  or  of  the  injured  right  be  an 
English  or  Chinese  subject  ?  Such  anomalies  can  not  exist  within  the 
precedents  and  principles  of  international  law.  It  is  indispensable 
that  the  claim  in  its  origin  should  have  belonged  to  a  French  citizen; 
and,  furthermore,  that  it  has  continued  to  be  the  property  of  a  French 
citizen  until  the  very  moment  in  which  by  virtue  of  a  convention 
entered  into  by  the  two  countries  such  claim  is  entered  before  the  proper 
commission  to  be  investigated  and  decided  upon.  Countless  decisions 
of  international  commissions  confirm  this  as  the  only  possible  rule  to 
maintain  the  jurisdiction  of  such  courts  within  the  limits  which  their 
own  nature  and  thB  ends  to  be  served  by  them  mark  as  indispensable 
for  the  performance  of  their  legal  functions. 

The  right  of  France  to  intervene  on  behalf  of  a  French  citizen,  in 
case  Tom^  Massiani  should  have  entered  before  his  death  a  claim 

against  the  Venezuelan  Government,  would  have  ceased  to  exist  on 

the  day  the  claimant  died,  if  he  had  not  left  either  ascendants,  descend- 
ants, or  collateral  heirs,  or  if  he  had  not  been  married.  It  would  also 

have  ceased,  if  his  widow  or  the  ascendant  or  descendant  heirs  should 
have  deprived  the  country  of  the  husband  or  father  of  the  right  to 

intervene  by  acts  of  their  own  volition  or  because  they  lack  the  per- 
sonal status  indispensable  to  appear  before  this  commission  and  be 

awarded  indemnities  which  the  commission  can  not  grant  to  other  than 
such  persons  as  enjoy  solely  French  nationality  established  beyond 
dispute. 
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The  commissioner  for  Venezuela,  in  support  of  this  right  application 
of  Article  I  of  the  Paris  protocol,  adduces  the  following  authorities : 

Sir  Edward  Thornton,  umpire  in  the  case  of  M.  J.  de  Lizardi  against 
Mexico,  entered  by  his  niece  Maria  de  Lizardi  del  Valle,  wife  of  Pedro 
del  Valle,  makes  the  following  statement: 

As,  therefore,  Mr.  IJzardi's  niece  is  not  a  citizen  of  the  United  States,  and  as  she  would  be 
the  beneficiary  of  whatever  award  the  commission  might  make,  the  umpire  is  decidedly  of 

opinion  that  the  case  is  not  within  the  jurisdiction  of  the  commission.  Even  if  the  uncle  of 
Mr.  Lizardi  had  been  a  citizen  of  the  United  States,  which  the  umpire  does  not  admit, 
whatever  may  have  been  the  merits  of  the  case,  the  jurisdiction  of  the  C/Ommission  would 

have  ceased  on  the  death  of  Mr.  Lizardi.     (Moore's  Int.  Arbit.  vol.  3,  p.  2483.) 

In  the  claim  of  Oscar  Chopin  against  the  United  States,  °  under  the 
convention  of  January  5,  1870,  entered  in  his  own  behalf  and  the  name 
of  three  heirs  to  Jean  Baptiste  Chopin,  a  French  citizen,  resident  of 
Louisiana,  who  died  in  1870,  leaving  three  other  heirs,  all  bom  in  the 
United  States,  as  a  portion  of  his  estate,  the  claim  in  question,  the 
counsel  for  France  withdrew  that  portion  of  the  claim  representing  the 
share  of  one  of  the  four  heirs  of  Jean  Baptiste  Chopin  on  the  grounds 
that  such  heir  had  married  a  citizen  of  the  United  States,  thus  clearly 
recognizing  the  principle  that  the  right  to  an  indemnification  is  gov- 

erned by  the  legal  and  individual  interest  of  the  beneficiary  and  not  by 
the  original  wrong  or  the  damages  sustained  by  the  Frencn  nationality. 

In  the  case  of  Jos6  Maria  Jarrero  under  the  resolution  of  Congress 
March  3,  1849,  for  the  settlement  of  the  claims  of  the  United  States 
against  Mexico,  the  original  claim  was  in  favor  of  a  citizen  of  the 
United  States,  but  before  the  conclusion  with  Mexico  of  the  treaty 
which  created  the  commission  such  claim  passed  to  a  Mexican  citizen. 
The  commission  disallowed  the  claim  and  made  the  following  statement : 

It  matters  not  that  the  claim  was  American  in  its  origin.  It  had  ceased  to  be  American 

at  the  date  of  the  treaty,  and  the  holder  of  it  could  not  invoke  the  interposition  of  our  Gov- 
ernment for  his  protection.     (Moore,  Int.  Arbit.  vol.  3,  p.  2325.) 

Particular  mention  should  be  made  of  the  excerpts  found  in  Moore's 
International  Arbitration,  vol.  3,  page  2388  of  the  *^ notes''  published 
by  one  of  the  members  of  the  commission  created  by  the  convention 
between  the  United  States  and  France  July  4,  1831,  showing  that  this 
matter  was  considered  by  said  commission. 

It  was  of  course  indispensable  to  the  validity  of  a  reclamation  before  the  commissioners 
that  it  should  be  altogether  American.  This  character  was  held  by  them  to  belong  only  to 
cases  where  the  individual  in  whose  right  the  claim  was  preferred  had  been  an  American 
citizen  at  the  time  of  the  wrongful  act,  and  entitled  as  such  to  invoke  the  protection  of  the 
United  States  for  the  property  which  was  the  subject  of  the  wrong  and  where  the  claim  up 
to  the  date  of  the  convention  had  at  all  times  belonged  to  American  citizens. 

Again — It  was  necessary  for  the  claimant  to  show  not  only  that  his  property  was  American  when 

the  claim  originated,  but  that  the  ownership  of  the  claim  was  still  American  when  the  con- 

a  Moore,  Int.  Arb.,  p.  2506;  page  83,  Boutwell's  report,  House  Ex.  Doc.  No.  235,  Forty- 
eighth  Congress,  second  session. 
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vention  xoent  into  effect.  *  *  *  Nor  could  a  claim  that  had  lost  its  American  character 
ever  resume  it  if  it  had  heretofore  passed  into  the  possession  of  a  foreigner  or  of  one  otherwise 
incapacitated  to  claim  before  this  commission. 

The  umpire  above  mentioned,  Sir  Edward  Thornton,  in  the  case  of 
Herman  F.  Wulff  against  Mexico  (Moore,  pp.  1353-1354,  note), 
decided : 

The  umpire  can  not  acquiesce  in  the  arguments  put  forward  by  the  counsel  for  the  claimant, 
whoever  that  claimant  may  he.  He  is  of  opinion  that  not  only  must  it  be  proved  that  the 

person  to  whom  the  injury  was  done  was  a  citizen  of  the  United  States,  but  also  that  the 
direct  recipients  of  the  award  are  citizens  of  the  United  States,  whether  these  henejiciaries 
be  heirs  or,  in  failure  of  them,  creditors. 

In  the  case  of  Silvio  and  Americo  Poggioli,  a  native  of  Italy  and  an 
Italian  subject,  before  the  Italian- Venezulean  commission  under  the 
protocol  of  February  13,  1903,  the  umpire,  the  Hon.  Jackson  H. 
Ralston,  decided  in  the  matter  of  the  claim  of  Americo  Poggioli,  who 
died  before  the  convention  took  place,  as  follows: 

However  this  may  be,  the  claim  of  Americo  Poggioli  died  with  him,  so  far  as  this  commis- 
sion is  concerned,  as  his  only  heirs  consist  of  his  widow  and  children,  and  all  of  whom  are 

Venezuelans  by  birth.  The  claim  of  his  heirs  is  therefore  Venezeulan,  under  the  rules  here- 
tofore adopted  by  the  umpire,  particularly  in  the  Brignone  and  Miliani  cases.  (Venezuelan 

Arbitrations  of  1903,  Ralston 's  Report,  p.  866.) 

The  decision  quoted  by  my  learned  colleague  in  his  brief,  rendered 

by  Mr.  Filtz,  umpire  in  the  French- Venezuelan  mixed  commission, 
which  met  in  Caracas  under  the  Washington  protocol  of  February, 

1903,  establishing  that — 
the  condition  of  French  citizenship  of  Tom^  Massiani  had  not  been  disputed;  that  the  claim 
in  reference  had  been  entered  by  him  and  not  by  his  heirs,  and  that  there  was  no  need  to 

examine  whether  said  heirs,  who,  in  effect,  have  a  double  citizenship,  have  shown  or  not 
during  their  life  their  preference  for  one  or  the  other,  and  that  therefore  he  adjudged  the 

claim  to  belong  to  the  class  under  the  Washington  protocol  and  accordingly  awarded  Tom&s 

Massiani  and  sons  an  indemnification  of  19,900  bolivars — 

is  not  a  precedent  to  be  invoked.  Such  a  decision  is  exclusively  based 
upon  the  fact  that  the  claim  was  presented  to  the  minister  of  France 
in  Caracas  by  Tom^  Massiani,  father  himself,  and  such  is  not  the  case 
with  the  present  claim  entered  before  this  commission  by  the  widow 
and  children  of  Tomds  Massiani.  On  the  other  hand,  the  awards  of 

Mr.  Filtz,  as  umpire  in  the  French- Venezuelan  Commission,  be  it  said 
without  the  desire  to  cast  the  slightest  reflection  upon  his  integrity, 
are  noticeable  because  they  are  based  solely  on  his  own  appreciation 
of  the  facts,  without  expounding  any  doctrine  whatever,  without  rea- 

soning the  conclusions,  which  in  the  majority  of  cases  are  contrary  to 
the  rules  and  precedents  established  as  fundamental  principles  of  inter- 

national law  by  the  most  eminent  authors,  expounders,  and  authori- 
ties on  the  subject  having  a  universal  reputation.  Such  decisions 

lack  force  as  compared  with  the  opinions  quoted  from  among  many 
others  no  less  weighty  that  could  be  cited. 
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Tom^  Massiani  died  in  the  city  of  Cartipano  during  the  month  of 
October,  1901,  as  shown  by  the  death  certificate  in  this  case,  before 
the  conclusion  of  the  Paris  protocol  of  February  19,  1902,  creating  this 
commission,  and  without  having  entered  before  any  representative  of 

France,  nor  later  before  the  mixed  commission  of  1888-1890,  any 
claim  whatever  that  may  be  construed  to  be  the  same  entered  before 
this  commission  by  his  widow  and  children  in  their  capacity  of  heirs. 

The  present  claim,  as  regards  that  portion  of  the  same  for  270,813.56 

bolivars,  which  has  been  admitted  by  the  French  commissioner,  origi- 
nated, and,  it  may  be  said,  was  bom  in  Felipe  A.  Massiani,  in  his  own 

behalf,  and  in  behalf  of  his  mother.  Carmen  Silva  de  Massiani,  and  his 

brothers  and  sisters,  on  May  27, 1903,  date  of  the  document  or  certifi- 
cation issued  by  Mr.  Manuel  Fombona  Palacio,  chief  of  the  bureau  of 

foreign  public  law  (director  de  derecho  publico  exterior)  in  the  ministry 

of  foreign  relations  of  Venezuela.  The  claimants  base  their  preten- 
tions in  such  documents,  and  as  Felipe  Massiani  states  in  the  commu- 

nication to  the  French  minister  in  Caracas,  dated  on  August  4,  1903, 

that  the  mixed  commission  of  1888-1890  not  having  passed  judgment 

upon  his  father's  claim,  because  of  the  facts  and  causes  stated,  it 
becomes  necessary  to  conclude  that  those  same  facts  are  at  present 
the  object  of  a  new  claim,  and  ends  by  asking  the  French  minister 
to  transmit  to  the  commissioners  the  subjoined  document,  which  is 
sujBBicient  to  establish  the  proof  of  the  grounds  for  the  claim  he  had 
entered  before  the  commission  in  behalf  of  his  mother ,  his  brothers  and 
sisters  J  and  in  his  own  behalf 

The  foregoing  shows  that  neither  as  heirs  of  Tom^  Massiani, 
because  he  was  a  French  citizen,  his  widow  and  children  being  of 
Venezuelan  nationality,  in  the  case,  which  has  never  nor  could  ever 
have  existed,  of  Tomfi,s  Massiani  having  presented  such  claim,  because 
he  died  before  the  date  of  the  Paris  protocol,  nor  entering  the  claim 
on  their  own  behalf,  as  the  case  is,  the  widow  and  children  of  Tom6^ 

Massiani  are  not  qualified  to  appear  before  this  commission  as  claim- 
ants against  the  Venezuelan  Government,  which  is  that  of  their  own 

nation  and  to  which  they  owe  allegiance  in  conformity  with  the  law. 
The  eommission  therefore  has  no  jurisdiction  to  hear  the  claim  for 
indemnification  that  such  Venezuelan  citizens  have  entered  before  the 

commission  in  their  own  name  and  in  behalf  of  the  estate,  based  upon 
certain  vested  rights  originating  in  the  deceased. 

Now  the  commissioner  for  Venezuela  will  discuss  the  second  point 
upon  which  he  has  based  his  opinion,  i.  e.,  that  because  there  exists  a 
condition  of  res  judicata  as  regards  the  object  of  the  claim  in  that 
portion  dealing  with  the  capital  of  270,813.56  bolivars,  as  admitted  by 
the  French  commissioner,  such  portion  of  the  claim  must  also  be 

rejected.  As  it  has  been  shown  by  the  opinion  rendered  at  the  session 
of  August  28,  1903,  FeUpe  A.  Massiani,  in  his  own  behalf  and  as  the 
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representative  of  his  mother  and  children,  pretends  that  this  commis- 
sion should  examine  some  new  documentary  evidence  he  has  obtained 

after  his  father's  death  to  the  end  of  establishing  that  the  Government 
of  Venezuela  owed  his  predecessor  in  interest  a  certain  sum,  object 
of  the  claim  entered  before  the  French- Venezuelan  Commission  which 

met  in  Caracas  in  1888-1890  in  compliance  with  the  convention 
entered  into  between  Venezuela  and  France  in  November,  1885,  said 

commission  having  disallowed  the  claim  because — 
the  said  claim,  amounting  to  301,784.96  lK)livars,  was  disallowed  because  the  interested 
party  did  not  produce  a  sufficient  document  on  which  to  base  his  pretention. 

I  submit  herewith  copy,  both  in  Spanish  and  in  English,  of  the  min- 
utes of  the  oral  proceedings  of  said  mixed  commission,  had  on  July  7, 

1890,  when  all  the  claims  of  Mr.  Tom4s  Massiani  were  examined,  the 
commissioners  dismissing  one  for  301,784.96  bolivars  for  the  reasons 

before  stated.  The  disallowance,  as  shown  by  the  arguments  in  sup- 
port of  such  ruling,  was  not  based  upon  want  of  jurisdiction,  nor  on  any 

other  grounds  which  may  give  rise  to  the  contention  that  the  claim 
had  not  been  examined  on  its  merits.  It  was  based  upon  no  other 

grounds  than  the  failure  of  the  claimant  to  establish  the  pretended 

right  or  indebtedness,  as  the  document  submitted  did  not  have  suffi- 

cient weight  to  operate  against  the  respondent  party.  Such  c'ecision 
constitutes  the  res  jvdicata,  which  all  the  positive  as  well  as  the  com- 

mon law  of  nations  hold  to  have  an  irresistible  force,  as  shown  by 

the  principle  res  judicata  pro  veritate  habetur. 
The  internal  legislation  of  Venezuela  affords  a  remedy  against  any 

judgment  passed  by  the  courts  of  the  country  to  obtain  in  specified 
cases  the  reversal  of  such  judgment,  provided  the  remedial  action  is 
entered  within  three  months  after  notice  has  been  had  of  the  sentence 

making  the  award,  when  the  grounds  for  reversal  are  based  upon  the 
fact  that  the  other  party  withholds  or  retains  in  his  possession  a  decisive 
document  favorable  to  the  action  or  exception  taken  by  the  plaintiff 
or  based  upon  an  act  of  the  opposing  party  which  prevented  that  such 
decisive  document  was  produced  in  due  and  proper  time.  In  such 
cases,  upon  introducing  the  allegation  of  the  retention  or  act  on  the 
part  of  the  other  party  preventing  the  production  of  the  document,  if 
such  decisive  document  is  not  produced,  a  statement  must  be  made 
of  its  contents  and  of  the  name  of  the  person  who  should  deliver  up 
the  same.  (All  codes  of  civil  procedure  of  Venezuela  have  uniformly 
had  the  same  provisions.) 

The  remedy  against  the  judgment  of  a  court  having  local  jurisdic- 
tion only  can  not  find  application  when  dealing  with  an  award  made 

by  an  international  court  specially  constituted  by  the  agreement  of 
the  high  contracting  parties  to  settle  in  a  definite  manner  the  claims  of 
the  subjects  of  one  country  against  another,  claims  that  have  already 
been  prepared,  with  the  proper  documents,  by  the  interested  parties, 
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and  which,  upon  being  filed  before  the  arbitration  commission,  must  be 
submitted  with  l\\  the  necessary  evidence,  or  produce  such  evidence 
during  the  proceedings  or  hearings  of  the  claim,  atid  to  this  end  such 
courts  appoint  certain  fixed  dates  within  which  such  testimony  or 
evidence  must  be  duly  submitted. 

Article  3  of  the  convention  between  France  and  Venezuela  of 

November  26,  1885,  under  whose  provisions  the  mixed  commission  of 

1888-1890,  which  met  in  Caracas,  disallowed  the  claim  of  Tomds 
Massiani,  reads  as  follows: 

Claims  subsequent  to  1867-68  will  be  definitely  settled  by  a  mixed  commission  con- 
sisting of  one  member  for  each  part. 

As  soon  as  the  work  of  the  commission  ends,  and  within  three  months  following  its  adjourn- 
ment, the  Government  of  Venezuela  shall  issue  a  sufficient  number  of  new  bonds  to  equal 

the  amount  of  the  indemnities  awarded,  drawing  the  same  amount  of  interest  (3  per  cent) 
from  date  of  issue.  Said  bonds  shall  be  redeemed,  when  the  holders  desire  it,  at  the  same 

time  as  the  original  bonds,  and  in  all  cases  in  accordance  with  the  prescriptions  of  Article 
II  of  this  convention. 

It  appears  from  even  a  cursory  glance  at  the  foregoing  article  that 

the  intention  of  the  high  contracting  parties  was  that  the  claims  sub- 

sequent to  1867-68  should  be  definitely  settled  by  a  mixed  commis- 
sion, and  the  bond  issue  to  be  made  by  the  Government  of  Venezuela 

to  meet  such  obligation  was  limited  to  the  amoimt  that  said  commis- 
sion should  award  the  claimants. 

It  is  a  well-established  principle,  admitted  in  all  legislation,  and 
peculiarly  and  more  forcibly  applicable  to  the  awards  of  arbitration 

courts  created  solely  for  the  purpose  of  deciding  definitely  the  settle- 
ment of  pending  questions  or  claims,  that  the  authority  of  the  res 

judicata  applies  in  the  first  instance  to  that  which  is  the  object  of  the 
claim,  when  a  judgment  has  been  passed  upon  the  essential  points  of 
such  claim. 

It  is  therefore  evident  that  this  commission  can  not  assume  author- 

ity to  review  the  award  or  sentence  passed  by  the  mixed  commission 

of  1888-1890  upon  the  claims  of  Tom^  Massiani,  wherein  the  claim 
against  the  Venezuelan  Government  for  301,784.96  bolivars  was 
rejected  because  the  liability  had  not  been  sufficiently  established,  and 
that  same  claim  is  the  object  of  the  present  action  of  the  heirs  of  Tom6s 
Massiani.  Under  such  circumstances  the  claim  must  be  entirely 
disallowed. 

In  regard  to  the  third  point  in  my  opinion,  that  the  document  pro- 
duced by  Felipe  A.  Massiani  is  not  a  decisive  document  to  establish  the 

existence  of  the  debt  or  hability  in  question,  it  suffices  to  compare  the 
two  balance  sheets  produced,  the  one  essentially  diflFerent  from  the 
other,  and  to  take  into  consideration  that  the  certificate  of  the  auditor 
of  the  central  bureau  of  accounts  (Contador  de  la  Sala  de  Centralizacidn 
de  Cuentas)  at  the  bottom  of  the  balance  from  the  books  in  his  archives 

can  only  be  construed  as  an  evidence  that  said  books  showed  that  on 
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the  23d  of  June,  1869,  the  date  of  the  last  entry  in  the  account  cur- 
rent, there  was  a  credit  in  favor  of  Tom&s  Massiani  and  against  the 

Venezuelan  Government  for  the  sum  of  270,813.56  bolivars.  The 
certificate  in  question  does  not  throw  any  light  on  further  transactions 
on  the  same  account  current  from  June  23,  1869,  until  August  12, 
1890,  date  of  the  certificate,  or  a  lapse  of  time  covering  a  period  of  over 
twenty-one  years.  It  is  not  possible  to  admit  that  during  that  period 
the  account  was  inactive,  or  that  Tomds  Massiani  did  not  take  any 
steps  to  collect  the  balance  due  him,  or  that  he  did  not  get  any  voucher 
to  safeguard  his  rights.  Notice  should  be  taken  of  the  fact  that  such 

period  of  twenty-one  years — which  in  all  legislations  is  sufficient  to 
make  null  by  prescription  any  personal  liability  or  debt,  and  which  is 
more  than  sufficient  to  prescribe  a  debt  growing  out  of  a  balance  in  a 

current  account — lapsed  before  the  meeting  at  Caracas  of  the  mixed 
commission  of  1888-1890,  and  that  Felipe  Massiani  was  unable  to  pro- 

duce before  the  commission  sufficient  proof  to  establish  his  credit, 
which  should  have  appeared  from  his  own  books  and  papers.  If  such 
omissions  are  to  be  ascribed  to  negligence,  as  stated  by  the  French 
commissioner,  it  is  culpable  negligence  in  the  case  of  such  an  important 
amount,  subject,  according  to  the  codes  of  laws  of  all  countries,  to 
suffer  the  consequences  of  the  abandonment  of  property  or  private 
rights,  and  such  consequences  are  to  be  declared  by  the  courts  to  have 
lapsed  or  to  be  nonexistent.  Such  was  the  case  in  the  matter  of  the 
claim  of  Tom6s  Massiani  before  the  mixed  commission  of  1888-1890, 
which  released  the  Venezuelan  Government  from  the  payment  of  the 
amount  claimed  and  definitely  settled  all  further  controversy  in  the 
matter. 

Before  coming  to  a  close  I  wish  to  rectify  the  statement  made  by 
by  learned  colleague  in  his  opinion,  that  during  our  discussion  I  had 
stated  that  I  should  have  been  disposed  to  grant  an  indemnification 
equal  to  the  amount  shown  by  the  balance  sheet  of  1890,  if  the  parties 
concerned  had  entered  a  new  claim  based  on  the  refusal  of  the  Govern- 

ment to  deliver  the  document  which  had  been  asked  for.  There 

exists,  no  doubt,  a  misunderstanding  of  what  I  may  have  said  to  my 
learned  colleague  in  reference  to  the  faulty  presentation  of  the  claim, 
such  as  it  had  been  made,  as  I  must  have  limited  myself  to  saying  that 
a  new  claim  based  upon  the  fact  of  the  refusal  of  the  Venezuelan  Gov- 

ernment to  deliver  a  decisive  document j  which,  it  could  be  established, 
was  deliberately  withheld  from  a  creditor,  might  have  been  admissible 
on  the  part  of  the  Massiani  heirs,  putting  aside  the  question  of  nation- 

ality, and  in  that  case  such  claim  might  have  been  for  an  indenmifica- 
tion  for  damages,  as  in  such  form  it  did  not  conflict  with  the  validity  of 
the  sentence  of  the  mixed  commission  of  1888-1890,  which  is  beyond 
our  commission.  Between  such  a  statement  made  during  our  discus- 

sion q^d  to  admit  as  established  the  allegations  of  the  claimants  and 
to  be  willing  to  allow  an  indemnity  there  is  a  remarkable  difference. 
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I  therefore  maintain  in  all  its  points  my  opinion  that  this  commis- 
sion has  no  jurisdiction  to  hear  the  claim  of  Felipe  A.  Massiani  entered 

in  his  own  behalf  and  as  the  representative  of  his  brothers  and  sisters, 
because  they  are  all  Venezuelan  citizens,  and,  in  the  second  place, 
because  there  is  a  condition  of  res  judicata  as  regards  the  object  of  the 
claim  in  that  portion  admitted  by  the  French  commissioner,  and  that 
the  document  on  which  the  claim  is  based  lacks  the  necessary  force  to 
establish  a  decisive  proof,  and  for  this  reason  it  must  be  rejected  on  its 
merits. 

NoRTHFiELD,  Vt.,  February  9y  1905, 

ADDITIONAL  OPINION  OF  THE  FRENCH  COMMISSIONEB. 

After  having  read  the  additional  memoir  presented  by  my  honorable 
colleague  I  can  only  maintain  the  conclusions  of  the  prior  memoir. 
To  reply,  it  would  be  necessary  for  me  to  reproduce  the  explanation 
which  I  have  already  given  superabundantly.  I  will  confine  myself, 
then,  to  a  few  observations. 

This  commission  seems  to  me  competent  to  pronounce  upon  the 
Massiani  affair  for  the  very  reason  of  the  French  nationality  of  all  the 
members  of  the  Massiani  family.  All  the  Massianis  are  incontestably 
French;  it  would  be  then  contrary  to  the  protocol  of  February  19, 
1902,  which  speaks  of  all  the  claims  presented  by  Frenchmen,  to 
refuse  them  the  benefit  of  this  exceptional  jurisdiction  opened  by  the 
very  protocol  to  all  those  who  are  French,  without  there  being  need  of 
examining  if  they  enjoyed  concurrently  another  nationality. 

My  colleague  tries  to  combat  my  opinion,  based  upon  the  strict  text 
of  the  protocol  by  a  great  number  of  citations  of  authors  and  of 
precedents:  I  will  content  myself  by  remarking  to  the  umpire  that 
the  precedents  of  international  law  have  no  value  except  in  so  far  as 
has  been  demonstrated  by  a  parallel  expos^  of  the  facts  that  the  cases 
are  identical.  I  have,  then,  judged  it  useless  to  refer  to  treatises  of 
international  law  with  a  view  of  looking  for  precedents  favorable  to 
my  argument,  which  I  should  have  been  able  without  doubt  to  find  in 
as  large  numbers  as  has  my  colleague.  I  have  considered  it  sufficient 

to  produce  one  precedent,  the  value  of  which  is  singular  and  incom- 
parable, since  the  persons  considered  are  exactly  the  same,  and  I  call 

the  attention  of  the  honorable  Mr.  Plumley  to  the  grave  inconven- 
iences which  would  result  from  varying  the  jurisprudence  in  like  con- 

ditions. There  would  be  reason  to  deprive  the  arbitral  decisions, 
which  one  might  tax  with  a  lack  of  seriousness  and  inconsistency,  of 
all  their  authority.  This  precedent  has  consequently  disturbed  my 
honorable  colleague,  since  he  has  thought  he  ought  to  declare,  to 
lessen  its  value,  that  the  awards  rendered  by  Mr.  Filtz  had  not  the 
same  value  as  the  awards  by  the  other  arbitrators.     I  think  I  ought 
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to  protest  against  this  allegation.  Mr.  Filtz,  a  magistrate  who  has 
grown  gray  in  the  service,  has  shown  himself  a  perfect  arbitrator, 
having,  as  he  claims,  for  the  only  rules  of  conduct  good  sense,  equity, 
and  the  protocol. 

The  awards  rendered  by  him  are  unattackable  and  have  the  same 

authority  as  every  other  arbitral  sentence ;  they  have  a  greater  author- 
ity, perhaps,  here  since  they  have  been  rendered  in  favor  of  the  same 

persons  with  w^hom  we  are  concerned.  But  since  Doctor  Paul 
attaches  a  particular  importance  to  precedents  and  thinks  that  one 

just  cause  does  not  defend  itself  sufficiently  by  its  expose  alone,  I  pre- 
sent another,  whose  authority  I  think  he  will  not  contest,  since  it  has 

been  established  by  himself.  In  the  course  of  the.  sitting  of  August  6, 
1903,  of  the  commission  of  which  we  both  had  the  honor  to  join,  and 

of  which  the  present  commission  is  but  the  natural  conclusion,  we  ren- 
dered the  following  sentence : 

Tliere  is  accorded  Mr.  Charles  Daniel  Piton,  and  to  the  Misses  Emilie  Alexandrine  and 

Isabelie  Eugenie  Piton,  the  sum  of  228,714.64  bolivars. 

But  I  will  remark  to  the  umpire  that  Mr.  and  Mrs.  Piton  claimed 

this  sum  on  the  part  of  their  maternal  grandfather  because  of  a  con- 
tract of  the  date  of  July  28,  1856,  and  a  ministerial  decision  of  January 

7,  1868.  This  grandfather,  Mr.  Lemoine,  a  Frenchman  by  birth,  had 
been  dead  for  many  years  when  his  grandchildren,  in  1903,  presented 

their  claim  as  heirs,  but  these  three  grandchildren — all  three  bom  in 

Venezuela  of  a  Venezuelan  mother — like  the  Massiani  heirs,  were 
all  three  Venezuelans  by  the  Venezuelan  law.  Why  then  refuse  to 
the  Massianis  that  which  has  been  accorded  to  the  Pitons? 

The  umpire  will  kindly  note,  also,  that  not  only  from  the  point  of 
view  of  nationality,  but  also  from  the  point  of  view  of  the  date;  the 
Piton  claim  is  like  the  Massiani  claim.  So  far  as  concerns  the  plea  of 
res  judicata  raised  by  my  honorable  colleague,  I  am  content  to  recall 
to  the  umpire  that  the  arbitrators  of  1890  were  not  able  to  take  it 
into  consideration,  since  the  interested  parties  were  unable  to  obtain 

until  thirteen  years  afterward,  by  surprise,  without  doubt,  the  docu- 
ment which  permitted  them  to  make  their  claim  of  value.  They 

had  no  appeal  from  the  mixed  commission  of  1890  to  the  Venezuelan 

tribunals,  which  would  not  have  had  jurisdiction,  but  to  this  commis- 
sion, appointed  to  examine  all  the  claims  of  Frenchmen,  of  whatever 

nature  they  might  be.  It  is  not  possible  to  forget  that  the  Venezuelan 

Government  had  been  put  upon  notice  by  the  interested  parties  to 
submit  at  the  right  time  the  said  document  and  that  it  has  not  done  so. 
Is  not  this  point  a  denial  of  justice  of  the  first  class  ? 

Finally,  I  consider  that  it  is  superfluous  to  discuss  the  value  of  the 
document  which  constitutes  the  acknowledgment  of  the  debt.  It  is 
sufficient  to  read  it  to  be  convinced. 

NoRTHFiELD,  February  11,  1906. 
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OPINION  OF  THE  T7MPIBE. 

Thomas  Massiani  and  Benito  Massiani,  both  Frenchmen,  married, 
and  residing  in  Cartipano,  State  of  Sucre,  in  the  United  States  of 
Venezuela,  formed  a  copartnership  in  trade  at  said  Cartipano  under 
the  name  and  style  of  Massiani  Brothers,  on  the  14th  day  of  June, 
1864,  which  continued  until  its  dissolution  by  mutual  consent  on  the 
17th  of  May,  1868,  which  dissolution  of  partnership  was  by  lawful 
procedure.  Thomas  Massiani  remained  in  charge  of  the  business, 
assuming  all  partnership  liabilities  and  enjoying  all  partnership  assets, 
agreeing  to  pay  to  Benito  Massiani  for  his  share  of  the  company  assets 
82,000  pesos,  to  be  paid  in  the  city  of  Paris  within  the  term  of  five 
years  in  five  annual  equal  parts,  with  interest  annually  at  5  per  cent. 

Prior  to  the  year  1870  Benito  Massiani  died.  His  widow  and  chil- 
dren, resident  in  Paris,  received  of  Thomas  Massiani  the  sum  of 

230,000  francs,  being  the  sum  due  for  the  remaining  interest  of  the 
estate  of  the  deceased  Benito  in  the  aforesaid  assets.  This  payment 
is  shown  by  a  receipt  signed  by  the  widow,  Mercedes  Cova,  at  Paris, 
in  France,  on  September  21,  1871;  also  signed  by  Emilio  Massiani, 
son  of  Benito,  who  had  attained  his  majority. 
During  the  years  1863  to  1869,  both  inclusive,  and  as  well  in  the 

years  1870,  1871,  1872,  1879,  1885,  1892,  and  1899,  the  Government 
of  Venezuela  enjoyed  loans  and  pajrments  on  requisition  or  otherwise 
from  the  said  Massiani  Brothers,  the  said  Tholnas  Massiani,  and  the 

Thomas  Massiani  Company,  which  latter  existed  part  of  the  period 
covered  by  the  years  aforesaid. 

The  principal  sum  in  issue,  and  in  fact  the  only  sum,  by  the  hold- 
ing of  the  honorable  commissioner  for  France,  now  in  issue,  accrued 

between  the  years  1863  and  1869,  both  inclusive,  and  amounted  to 
the  sum  of  270,813.56  bolivars,  this  sum  being  for  supplies  and  cash 

furnished  to  the  maritime  custom-house  of  Cartipano  and  to  certain 
chiefs  of  the  national  forces,  both  having  authority  to  pledge  the  credit 
of  the  Government. 

Doctor  Urbane j a,  attorney  for  Thomas  Massiani,  in  1890,  July  19, 
stated  to  the  honorable  mixed  commission  of  France  and  Venezuela, 
then  sitting  in  Caracas,  that  the  sum  due  to  Thomas  Massiani  at  that 
time  was  301,784.96  bolivars. 

The  sum  presented,  in  fact,  to  the  mixed  commission  of  1888-1890 
was  351,449.80  bolivars,  and  on  the  7th  of  July,  1890,  the  said  com- 

mission awarded  to  Thomas  Massiani  49,666.84  bolivars,  and  at  the 
same  sitting  the  said  commission  disallowed  the  claim  for  301,784.96 
bolivars  for  the  reason  that  the  claimant  had  not  produced  a  sufficient 

document  in  support  of  his  claim.  The  sum  allowed  by  the  commis- 
sion was  one  recognized  as  existing  by  the  Government  of  Venezuela, 

and  there  was  then  pending  with  the  minister  of  hacienda  that  por- 
tion of  the  claim  which  was  disallowed  bv  that  commission.     The 
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minister  of  hacienda  was  asked  for  the  dossier  containing  the  necessary 

proofs  and  for  his  authentication  thereof,  but  on  a  too  casual  exami- 
nation, he  had  reported  to  that  commission  that  there  were  no  such 

papers  in  his  office.  It  was  on  receiving  this  information  that  the 
commission  dismissed  the  case.  Doctor  Urbaneja,  attorney  aforesaid, 
learning  of  this  statement  of  the  minister  of  hacienda  and  of  the  action 
of  the  commission  on  the  claim,  asked  the  commission  to  delay  their 

final  action  on  the  case  and  repaired  directly  to  the  office  of  the  haci- 
enda and  insisted  upon  further  examination,  which  was  had,  and  in 

the  archives  the  accounts  were  found.  Doctor  Urbaneja  further 
insisted  that  the  minister  of  hacienda  correct  his  erroneous  statement 

to  the  conunission  and  that  he  also  send  the  accounts,  duly  liquidated, 
to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  as  the  competent  medium  for  their 

transmission  to  the  commission.  Doctor  Urbaneja  notified  the  com- 
mission of  these  supplementary  facts  and  requested  it  to  ask  the  senor 

minister  for  foreign  affairs  to  produce  the  papers  then  in  his  possession. 
He  urged  a  reconsideration  by  the  commission  of  the  case  and  gave 
cogent  reasons  why  it  should  thus  act.  This  request  to  reopen  the 
case  and  receive  this  new  proof  was  made  July  17,  1890. 

The  important  papers,  properly  certified  to,  were  sent  by  the  min- 
ister of  hacienda  to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs,  but  they  did  not 

leave  the  foreign  office,  were  not  presented  or  considered  by  the  mixed 
commission,  and  there  was  no  reconsideration  of  the  case,  and  the 

commission  dissolved  without  changing  its  first  action.  During  all 
of  the  time  of  its  sitting  the  accounts  required  were  in  the  archives 
of  the  minister  of  hacienda  and  under  the  control  of  the  ministry  of 
Venezuela,  and  there  was  no  reason  why  they  were  not  produced,  except 
that  the  examination  made  by  the  minister  had  been  too  casual  to 
develop  the  accounts  as  being  in  the  archives. 

These  papers  were  not,  in  fact,  passed  by  the  minister  of  hacienda 
to  the  foreign  office  until  August  23,  1890. 

In  accordance  with  the  arrangement  with  Massiani  Brothers  and 

Thomas  Massiani,  made  by  the  maritime  custom-house  of  Cartipano, 
these  credits  were  to  be  reduced  and  canceled  by  an  allowance  on  the 

import  and  export  duties  otherwise  payable  to  the  custom-house  by 
Massiani  Brothers  and  Thomas  Massiani,  and  this  plan  of  payment 
existed  until  October  22,  1872,  when  the  minister  of  hacienda  passed 
a  resolution  suspending  the  payment  of  all  obligations  based  upon  the 

custom-houses  of  the  east,  including  the  custom-house  of  Carupano. 
Up  to  that  date  Massiani  had  been  receiving  pay  in  small  amounts 
from  time  to  time. 

When  the  society  of  Massiani  &  Co.  was  organized  at  Cartipano 

the  umpire  has  not  learned,  but  on  May  8,  1893,  this  company,  com- 
posed of  Thomas  Massiani  and  his  three  sons,  Luis  Antonio,  Antonio 

Jos6,  and  Felipe  Antonio,  was  dissolved  by  mutual  consent  under 
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lawful  proceedings  had,  and  the  business  continued  under  the  mer- 
cantile name  of  Thomas  Massiani. 

On  October  9,  1901,  the  said  Thomas  Massiani  deceased  at  Carti- 
pano,  leaving  a  widow,  Carmen  de  wSilva,  the  two  sons,  Felipe  A.  and 
Luis  A.,  his  two  married  daughters,  Ascensi6n  N.  Phelan  and  Nuncia 
de  Orsini,  and  the  widow  and  children  of  Antonio  Jos^.  Antonio 
Jos6  died  March  12,  1900. 

On  the  30th  day  of  May,  1903,  Luis  Antonio,  in  his  own  right, 

Augustine  Orsini,  in  representation  of  his  wife,  Senora  Nuncia  Mas- 
siani, Isabel  Pavta  de  Massiani,  widow  of  Antonio  Jos^,  proceeding 

in  representation  of  her  minor  children,  Thomas,  Maria,  Mercedes, 
Antonio  Jos6,  Gloria  Margarita,  Luis  Enrique,  and  Carmen  de  Lourdes, 
acting  with  Sefiora  Carmen  de  Silva  Massiani,  widow  of  the  late 

Thomas  Massiani,  and  Felipe  Antonio  Massiani,  gave  full  power  of 
attorney  to  Dr.  Cfi,rlos  F.  Grisanti  against  the  respondent  Govern- 

ment in  the  matter  of  the  claim.  The  widow  of  Thomas,  Carmen  de 
Silva  Massiani,  at  this  time  resided  in  Port  of  Spain,  Trinidad. 

The  amount  claimed  of  the  respondent  Government  was  301,784.96 
bolivars,  and  to  this  it  is  claimed  should  be  added  39,952.40  bolivars, 
also  35,786  bolivars,  made  up  of  3,200  bolivars,  for  cash  and  supplies 
furnished  in  18S5  to  the  titular  Government,  14,136  bolivars  to  the 
successful  Legalista  revolution  of  1892,  and  18,400  bolivars  furnished 
in  1899  to  the  successful  Restaurador  revolution. 

On  May  27,  1903,  the  certified  copy  of  liqxiidation  prayed  for  by 
Thomas  Massiani  May  8,  1890,  and  passed  into  the  hands  of  the 
minister  of  foreign  affairs  by  the  minister  of  hacienda  on  the  23d  of 
August,  1890,  was  furnished  to  Felipe  A.  Massiani  and  by  him  was 
presented  to  the  commission  sitting  in  Caracas  in  1903. 

But  there  were  certain  errors  in  the  dossier  as  then  presented  to 
Felipe,  as  he  claimed,  and  he  presented  a  corrected  copy  to  the  citizen 
minister  of  hacienda  on  the  30th  day  of  May,  1903,  calling  attention 
to  the  errors  which  were  marked  in  red  ink  on  the  copy  accompanying 
his  communication,  and  he  prayed  that  a  certified  copy,  corrected 
in  accordance  with  his  suggestions,  be  returned  to  him.  This  request 
was  referred  by  the  minister  of  hacienda  to  the  office  of  foreign  affairs 
for  the  rectification  desired. 

It  is  claimed  by  Felipe  Massiani,  and  is  not  questioned,  that  Thomas 
Massiani  and  his  wife  were  married  without  any  special  agreement 
having  been  made  as  to  the  management  of  their  property,  and  that 
in  consequence  there  existed  between  them  a  conjugal  society  which 
makes  common  by  halves  to  each  the  gains  or  benefits  obtained 

during  marriage.     He  refers  for  his  authority  to  article  1369°  of  the 

oArt.  1369.  Entre  marido  y  raujer,  si  no  hubiere  convencidn  en  contiario,  existe  la 

sociedad  conyugal,  cuyo  cfecto  es  hacer  comunes  de  ambos  por  mitad  las  ganancias  6 

beneficios  obtenidos  durante  el  matrimonio,  segiin  lo  establecido  en  el  pdrrafo  3®  de  esta 
seccidn. 
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civil  code  of  Venezuela,  in  force  May  18,  1903,  which  is  said  to  corre- 
spond with  1393  of  the  French  civil  code.  The  claim  before  the 

present  commission  is  property  gains  and  is  controlled  by  that  law. 
Under  these  circumstances  the  wi(low  is  entitled  by  the  Venezuelan 

law  to  six-twelfths  of  Thomas  Massiani's  estate  as  her  half  thereof 
and  to  one-sixth  part  of  the  remainder  of  his  estate  by  inheritance,  she 
taking  equally  with  each  of  the  five  children.  He  refers  to  articles 
717  and  718  of  the  Venezuelan  code  for  his  authority. 

The  marriage  of  Thomas  Massiani  and  of  Carmen  de  Silva  occurred 
Januarys,  1855,  as  is  duly  established  by  authenticated  registration 
of  the  same. 

By  the  duly  authenticated  registration  of  births  at  said  Cartipano 
there  were  proven  to  be  born  to  Thomas  Massiani  and  Carmen  de 
Silva  as  the  fruit  of  such  marriage  Felipe  Antonio  in  1855;  Ascension 
del  Carmen,  1859;  Luis  Antonio,  1866;  Maria  de  La  Mercedes  in  1871, 
and  of  Antonio  Jos6  there  is  no  record  proof.  Antonio  Jos6  Massiani 
and  Isabel  Pav6-n  were  married  April  23,  1883,  and  the  birth  and  date 
of  birth  of  each  of  their  children  named  in  the  power  of  attorney  to 
Doctor  Grisanti  are  fully  established  by  lawful  evidence. 

Senora  Carmen  de  Silva,  widow  of  Thomas  Massiani,  was  of  Vene- 
zuelan parentage,  and  up  to  the  date  of  her  marriage  with  Thomas 

she  was  a  Venezuelan.  They  ever  thereafterwards  resided  in  Vene- 
zuela; their  children  were  all  born  to  them  there  and  have  continued 

to  reside  in  Venezuela  and  were  so  residing  at  the  time  of  the  presen- 
tation of  this  claim  to  the  mixed  commission  at  Caracas  in  1903. 

It  is  asserted  by  Felipe  that  this  claim  against  the  respondent  Gov- 
ernment is  a  part  of  the  patrimony  of  Thomas  and  that  the  same  was 

transmitted  at  his  death  to  his  universal  successors,  his  widow  and 
children. 

It  is  agreed  that  by  the  law  of  both  countries  her  marriage  with 
Thomas  gave  her  French  nationality,  which  continued  until  the  death 
of  her  husband.  At  his  death,  by  French  law,  the  widow  retained 
her  French  nationality,  and  by  the  law  of  Venezuela  she  was  restored 
to  her  former  estate  as  a  Venezuelan. 

The  claimants  insist  that,  upon  the  facts  existing  in  this  case,  to 
deny  them  a  right  of  recovery  before  this  tribunal  is  equivalent  to 

saying  that  the  indebtedness  of  Venezuela  to  Thomas  and  his  suc- 
cessors was  extinguished  by  his  death. 

In  presenting  this  claim  to  the  legation  of  France,  at  Caracas,  Doctor 

Grisanti  makes  the  claim  that  the  adjudication  of  the  mixed  commis- 
sion in  1 890,  dismissing  this  claim,  was  passed  on  an  error  of  fact,  which 

error  of  fact  arose  through  the  statements  of  the  respondent  Govern- 
ment to  the  said  commission,  and  through  its  retention  of  the  accounts 

which  it  then  disclaimed  to  possess.  He  cites  article  695  of  the  Code 
of  Civil  Procedure  No.  4. 
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The  retention  in  possession  of  the  opposing  party  of  decisive  documents  in  favor  of  the 
action  or  exception  of  the  claimant,  or  act  of  the  opposing  party  which  has  impeded  the 

opportune  presentation  of  such  decisive  document. o 

This,  as  he  claims,  is  cause  for  the  invalidation  of  the  judgment 
which  follows  such  a  situation. 

The  claim,  18,400  bolivars,  furnished  in  1899  has  been  presented 
before  the  mixed  commission  sitting  at  Caracas  and  established  under 

the  Washington  protocol  of  February  27,  1903,  and  is  no  longer  a  fit 
subject  for  the  consideration  of  this  tribunal. 

The  sum  of  14,136  bolivars  paid  on  account  of  the  I^galista  revolu- 
tion of  1892  was  cared  for  by  the  round  sum  of  100,000,000  bolivars, 

which  was  accorded  to  the  Government  of  France  by  Venezuela  in 

bonds  of  diplomatic  debts  for  the  ''insurrection  events"  of  1892,  as  it 
was  provided  might  be  done  in  article  1  of  the  Paris  protocol  of  1902. 

The  claim  for  3,200  bolivars  arising  through  requisition  of  the  titular 

Government  in  1885,  and  approved  by  certain  generals  having  author- 
ity on  June  26th  of  that  year,  was  disallowed  by  the  mutual  agreement 

of  the  honorable  commissioners  at  the  sitting  in  Caracas  for  reasons 
to  them  sufficient  and  satisfactory. 

This  cause  came  before  the  honorable  commissioners  sitting  at 
Caracas  as  a  claim  for  341,737.36  bolivars  as  the  principal  sum  against 

the  respondent  Government  and  351,003.12  bolivars  as  accrued  inter- 
est on  the  same  to  June  30,  1903.  For  reasons  which  were  satisfactory 

and  controlling  to  the  honorable  commissioner  for  France  he  dismisses 
the  claim  for  30,971.31  bolivars,  which  the  immediate  representatives 
of  the  claimants  insist  were  errors  of  omission  and  should  have  been 

added  to  the  certified  allowance  by  the  Government  of  270,813.65 
bolivars^  as  he  also  dismisses  the  claim  for  the  additional  sum  of 

39,952.40  bolivars,  which  sum  was  not  presented  to  the  mixed  com- 
mission of  1888-1890,  although  existing  at  that  time  and  capable,  as  is 

insisted  by  the  claimants,  of  being  substantiated  by  receipts  analogous 

to  those  passed  upon  by  the  Venezuelan  Government;  so  by  this  hold- 
ing of  the  honorable  commissioner  for  France  the  claim  is  stripped  of 

all  accessories  and  stands  at  270,813.65  bolivars,  as  acknowledged  by 
the  auditors  of  the  Venezuelan  treasury. 

The  honorable  commissioner  for  France,  governed  by  the  reasons 
which  he  names,  is  of  the  opinion  that  there  should  be  no  allowance 
for  interest  on  this  sum,  and  that  the  only  claim  which  he  recognizes 
as  a  rightful  demand  upon  Venezuela  is  the  said  sum  of  270,813.65 
bolivars,  without  interest. 

The  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  rejects  the  claim  in  its 
entirety,     (a)  Because  the  claim  is  res  judicata,  having  been  refused 

a4a.  Retencidn  en  poder  de  la  parte  contraria  de  documento  decisivo  en  favor  de  la 
accidn  6  excepcidn  del  reclamante,  6  acto  de  la  parte  contraria  que  pidi<5  la  presentacidn 

oportuna  de  tal  documento  decisivo. 
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for  want  of  sufficient  proof  to  sustain  it ;  that  the  claimant's  position, 
holding  that  the  decision  of  the  said  mixed  commission  ou^ht  to  be 
invalidated  because  of  the  retention  in  its  possession  by  the  Venezuela 
Government  of  the  dossier  approved  by  its  officers  and  through  its 
statement  to  the  honorable  commissioners  of  1890  that  it  held  no  such 

document,  is  not  well  taken  and  can  not  be  sustained  for  reasons  which 
are  in  part  as  follows :  That  the  certified  document  produced  is  not  a 
decisive  document  showing  the  real  relation  of  Venezuela  to  the 

claimants,  since  it  only  purports  to  establish  by  the  certificate  of  the 

general  auditor's  office  that  according  to  the  books  cf  the  custom- 
house at  Cartjpano  it  appeared  that  on  the  23d  of  June,  1869,  there 

was  a  balance  in  favor  of  Thomas  Massiani  of  the  certain  amount 

named ;  and  that  the  production  of  this  document  before  this  commis- 
sion is  inefficient  to  overcome  the  decision  of  the  mixed  commission 

of  1890,  when  especially  there  are  to  be  considered  all  of  the  presump- 
tions which  arise  to  meet  the  document,  which  are  suggested  some- 
what in  detail  by  the  honorable  conamissipner  for  Venezuela ;  (6)  That 

this  commission  has  no  jurisdiction  over  this  claim,  because  neither  of 
the  successors  of  Thomas  Massiani  is  French  by  Venezuelan  law,  and 
hence,  since  this  commission  was  formed  only  to  settle  claims  of 
Frenchmen,  it  has  no  jurisdiction  of  a  claim  which  is  solely  for 
Venezuelans. 

The  honorable  commissioner  for  France  regards  the  position  of  res 
judicata  as  not  well  taken  for  the  reasons  stated  by  him  in  detail;  and 
he  considers  the  jurisdiction  of  this  commission  as  unquestionable, 
holding  that  the  widow  of  Thomas  Massiani  and  his  children  and 
representatives  being  French,  under  French  law,  they  are  those  for 
whom  France  intervened  by  the  protocol  of  February  19,  1902.  He 
regards  the  document  in  question  as  undeniably  decisive  and  asserts 
that  if  payments  had  since  been  made  it  would  have  been  very  easy  to 
prove  it  by  books  and  papers.  He  considers  that  Thomas  Massiani 

having  birth  in  France  of  French  parents  always  enjoyed  incontest- 
able and  exclusive  French  nationality;  that  the  claim  in  question  had 

birth  during  his  life,  and  it  is  consequently  the  right  of  a  French  citizen 
who  has  been  injured  in  his  property,  and  hence  this  commission, 
which  is  to  consider  the  demands  of  indemnities  by  Frenchmen,  is 
wholly  competent  to  consider  and  determine  it.  He  is  of  the  opinion 
that  the  nationality  of  the  heirs  should  be  put  out  of  the  case,  as  is 
asserted  by  Mr.  Filtz  under  the  protocol  of  Washington. 

The  honorable  commissioner  for  France  is  also  of  the  opinion  that,  if 
the  nationality  of  the  heirs  is  to  be  considered,  this  commission  is  still 

competent.  He  reasons  that  the  heirs  enjoyed  two  nationalities — 
French  by  French  law,  Venezuelan  by  Venezuelan  law — and  that  the 
protocol  in  providing  for  the  consideration  of  demands  for  indemnities 
presented   by  Frenchmen  was  providing  for  claims    presented   by 
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individuals  to  whom  the  French  Government  assured  its  protection 
because  they  were  recognized  by  the  French  law  as  Frenchmen.  It  is 
his  opinion  that  it  is  only  necessary  that  the  claimant  is  one  whom  the 
laws  of  France  recognize  as  French,  although  at  the  same  time  the  law 

of  Venezuela  makes  the  claimant  a  Venezuelan.  He  calls  to  his  sup- 
port in  this  opinion  the  peculiar  wording  of  the  Washington  protocols 

of  1903,  in  regard  to  local  legislation,  and  holds  that  the  meaning  and 

effect  of  the  language  of  those  protocols  are  to  exclude  from  the  con- 
sideration of  the  several  tribunals  constituted  thereunder  all  recogni- 

tion of  Venezuelan  law ;  and  hence,  what  Venezuela  recognizes  in  the 
matter  of  citizenship  is  not  important  to  the  determination  of  this 

question. 
To  the  position  of  the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  that  one 

commission  has  not  authority  to  revise  the  proceedings  of  another,  he 
introduces  the  new  fact,  unknown  to  the  arbitrators  of  1890,  which  is 
the  fact  that  in  the  archives  of  the  Venezuelan  ministry  there  was  then 

an  approved  dossier  fully  supporting  the  claim  of  Thomas  Massiani, 
the  existence  of  which  the  Venezuelan  Government  had  denied,  and 

upon  which  denial  the  commission  had  dismissed  the  claim.  He  also 
urges  that  this  commission  has  especial  power  to  examine  anew  the 

affair  submitted  to  the  mixed  commission  of  1888-1890,  because  the 
protocol  gives  it  jurisdiction  to  pass  upon  all  the  claims  of  Frenchmen, 

and  since  the  sentence  anterior  was  caused  by  a  reason  entirely  dif- 
ferent from  what  in  fact  existed ;  and  that  in  equity  there  being  incon- 

testable evidence  that  the  credit  in  fact  existed  at  the  time  of  its 

rejection,  which  fact  was  retained  from  the  consideration  of  the 

previous  commission  through  the  action  or  nonaction  of  the  Venezue- 
lan Government,  the  heirs  of  Massiani  should  receive  the  sum  which 

the  Government  of  Venezuela  has  recognized  to  be  due. 
The  honorable  commissioners  having  disagreed  as  hereinbefore 

stated  and  having  failed  to  reconcile  their  disagreements,  they  join  to 
send  the  claim  to  the  umpire  for  his  determination  and  award. 

An  indebtedness  of  the  respondent  Government  to  the  late  Thomas 
Massiani  in  his  lifetime  is,  without  doubt,  a  part  of  the  patrimony 
which  descends  to  his  widow  and  children  to  be  distributed  in  accord- 

ance with  the  laws  of  Venezuela. 

But  the  important  question  to  be  determined  is,  has  this  tribunal 
jurisdiction  over  this  claim?  Neither  the  widow  nor  the  children  are 
of  French  nationality  as  recognized  by  the  laws  of  Venezuela.  The 
widow  was  bom  in  Venezuela,  achieved  French  nationality  by  the  laws 
of  both  countries  when  she  married  Thomas  Massiani,  but  by  the  laws 
of  Venezuela  was  restored  to  her  quality  of  a  Venezuelan  citizen  at  his 
death.  During  their  married  life  they  remained  in  Venezuela;  they 
were  there  domiciled  when  he  died.  It  always  has  been  her  domicile. 
It  is  therefore  her  nationahty,  since  such  is  the  law  of  her  domicile, 

S.  Doc.  533,  69—1   16 
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which  law  prevails  when  there  is  a  conflict  as  held  by  the  umpire  in  the 
claim  of  Maninat  heirs'*  before  this  same  tribunal.  The  children  of 
this  marriage  were  all  born  in  Venezuela.  By  the  voluntary  action  of 

the  father  this  was  their  birthplace.  It  has  always  been  their  domi- 
cile, first  through  the  paternal  selection  and  later  through  their  own 

choice.  Hence,  governed  by  the  laws  of  their  domicile,  they  are 
Venezuelans. 

Thomas  Massiani  deceased  prior  to  the  convention  of  February  19, 
1902.  Therefore  he  could  not  have  been  considered  as  a  possible 

claimant  by  either  of  the  high  contracting  parties  at  the  time  of  that 

convention.  His  widow  and  children  being  Venezuelans  in  the  con- 

templation of  the  respondent  Government,  their  right  to  the  interven- 
tion of  France  was  not  agreed  to  by  Venezuela  under  the  terms  of  the 

protocol  as  held  by  the  umpire  in  the  claim  of  the  Maninat  heirs.  His 
reasons  for  his  opinion  in  that  regard  and  the  authorities  sustaining 
him  in  his  reasoning  and  in  his  opinion  having  been  therein  stated  and 
adduced,  they  need  no  further  amplification  here. 

This  case  is  on  all  fours  with  that  of  the  estate  of  Stevenson,  decided 

by  the  mnpire  in  the  British- Venezuelan  mixed  commission  of  1903,  and 

reported  in  Ralston  and  Doyle's  Venezuelan  Arbitrations  of  1903,  page 
438.  The  reasons  there  given  and  the  authorities  there  accumulated 
are  directly  in  point  in  this  case,  and  he  respectfully  refers  the  parties 
interested  for  further  elucidation  of  these  points  to  the  opinion  there 
found.  His  opinion  then  expressed  is  only  confirmed  and  established 
by  his  subsequent  study,  and  his  reasons  there  given  are  to  him  as 
convincing  and  controlling  now  as  then. 

The  indebtedness  may  indeed  remain,  but  the  form  of  action  and 
the  forum  are  changed.  The  forum  to  which  they  must  now  repair  is 
the  forum  of  the  country  Thomas  Massiani  chose  for  his  domicile,  for 

his  marriage,  and  for  the  birthplace  of  his  children ;  there  death  over- 
took him  and  his  ashes  are  there. 

He  voluntarily  selected  Venezuela  as  the  country  in  which  to  make 

his  fortune  and  to  gain  the  properties  for  which  the  respondent  Gov- 
ernment is  now  the  alleged  lawful  debtor  to  his  estate.  His  life  in 

that  country  was  voluntary,  free,  a  matter  of  choice.  After  weighing 
probabiUties  and  anticipating  results  he  remained.  His  children  have 
attained  full  age  and  have  also  remained.  The  ties  of  race  on  the 
paternal  side  have  been  to  them  less  strong  than  the  ties  which  bound 
them  to  the  country  of  their  birth  and  the  land  of  their  maternal 
nationality.  They  have  for  their  recourse  the  forum  constituted  for 
Venezuelans.  They  have  all  the  rights,  opportunities,  and  privileges 
common  to  their  brethren  of  that  nation.  They  easily  could  have 
been  French  had  they  preferred  life  in  France  to  life  in  Venezuela. 
Having  French  paternity,  and  thereby  having  French  nationality  in 

oPage  44. 
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France,  they  needed  only  to  be  domiciled  therein  to  have  a  nationality 
which  all  the  world  must  maintain  to  be  French.  For  reasons  domi- 

nant with  them  they  have  preferred  to  remain  in  Venezuela.  Its  laws 
and  its  courts  are  theirs.  These  they  may  invoke;  with  them  they 
must  be  content. 

The  umpire  recognizes  the  position  of  the  honorable  commissioner 
for  France  that  the  laws  of  Venezuela  upon  the  question  of  nationality 
of  its  own  inhabitants  may  be  ignored  and  the  laws  of  France  be  made 
paramount.  He  is  also  not  unmindful  of  the  reference  made  by  the 
same  honorable  commissioner  to  the  provisions  of  the  protocols  drawn 

up  at  Washington  in  1903  in  their  allusion  to  the  effect  of  local  legis- 
lation. The  definition  of  that  particular  provision  in  those  protocols 

is  not  germane  to  any  inquiry  under  the  protocol  of  February  19,  1902, 
which  has  no  such  restrictive  clause  and  which  in  no  way  and  in  no 

part  suggests  that  each  country  is  not  entitled  in  every  particular  to 
equal  place  before  the  international  tribunal  thus  constituted.  The 

umpire  has  already  held,  in  effect,  in  the  Maninat  case,"  that  to  be  sover- 
eign and  independent  each  country  must  be  master  of  its  internal 

policy  and  subject  neither  to  advice  nor  control  by  any  other  country 
nor  by  all  other  countries  in  respect  to  such  matters.  France  would 
not  brook  that  Venezuela  should  name  to  her  who  are  her  citizens 

within  her  domain;  she  must  be  content  to  ascribe  equal  privilege  of 
selection  to  her  sister  Republic,  certainly  while  Venezuela  in  this 
regard  has  no  peculiar  or  offensive  laws,  but  rather  has  those  which 
accord  with  the  laws  of  nations  in  general. 

A  large  number  of  questions  naturally  arising  out  of  the  facts  which 
are  grouped  together  in  this  case  do  not  become  important  matters  of 
consideration,  since  in  the  opinion  of  the  umpire  the  claim  does  not 
come  within  the  provisions  of  the  protocol. 

This  claim  is  to  be  therefore  entered  dismissed  for  want  of  jurisdic- 
tion, but  clearly  and  distinctly  without  prejudice  to  the  rights  of  the 

claimants  elsewhere,  to  whom  is  especially  reserved  every  right  which 
would  have  been  theirs  had  this  claim  not  been  presented  before  this 
mixed  commission. 

NoRTHFiELD,  July  31,  1905. 
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HEAD  NOTES. 

If  there  were  irregularities  in  the  procedure  of  the  respondent  government  in  its  suit  for 
rescission  in  the  matter  of  notice  to  the  defendant  company  therein,  these  were  all 

cured  by  the  subsequent  appearance  of  its  attorney  in  said  court  and  by  its  participa- 
tion in  the  subsequent  proceedings. 

a  EXTRACT  FROM   THE   MINUTES   OF  THE   SESSION   OF  MAY   5,  1903. 

The  examination  of  the  claim  of  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco  was  then  entered 

upon. 
Doctor  Paul  read  the  memoir  which  he  drew  up  after  having  gained  a  knowledge  of  the 

dossier.  His  conclusion  is  that  the  claim  of  the  company  is  not  well  founded,  and  he  rejects 
it  absolutely. 

M.  de  Peretti  asks  his  colleague  to  let  him  take  the  memoir  to  study  it  before  giving  his 

opinion.  Doctor  Patil  agrees,  and  it  is  understood  that  the  French  arbitrator  will  give  his 
opinion  during  the  next  meeting. 

EXTEACT  FROM  THE  MINUTES  OF  THE   SESSION   OF  MAY   7,  1903. 

M.  de  Peretti  returns  to  his  coUeague  the  memoir  which  Doctor  Paul  kindly  let  him  take 

at  the  last  meeting.  He  declares  that,  after  having  read  it  with  the  interest  which  a  remark- 
able argument  demands,  he  persists  in  the  opinion  which  he  had  formed  in  studying  the 

dossier  of  the  claim  of  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco,  namely,  that  there  ought  to  be 

accorded  to  the  latter  an  indemnity  of  7,000,000  bolivars.  He  bases  his  judgment  upon  the 
fact  that  the  Venezuelan  Government  has  brought  in  its  defense  no  document,  no  proof  of 

a  nature  to  weaken  what  is  said  by  the  company. 

The  amount  claimed  by  the  company  amounted  to  7,616,098.62  bolivars,  of  which 
5,616,098.62  bolivars  represent  money  expended  and  2,000,000  bolivars  benefits  not  realized. 

The  French  arbitrator  does  not  accord  at  all  the  second  of  these  sums,  and  of  the  first  he 

takes  out  540,000  bolivars.  The  company  claiming  upon  this  capital  an  interest  of  6  per 
cent;  while  the  commission  has  decided  that  it  would  reckon  int<3rest  at  the  rate  of  3  per 

Ctint,  it  is  to  be  remarked  that  the  company  having  paid  interest  at  6  per  cent  to  its  lenders 
and  holders  of  obligation,  there  is  no  reason  for  a  reduction  on  the  amount  which  it  claims 
under  this  head.  There  remains,  then,  a  sum  of  5,076,098.62  bolivars,  of  \^hich  M.  de  Peretti 

demands  the  increase  to  the  amount  of  7,000,000  bolivars,  that  account  may  be  taken,  first, 

of  the  use  of  the  interest  from  July  1,  1902,  to  the  day  of  the  award,  and  second,  of  the 

depreciation  of  bonds  with  which  the  payment  of  the  indemnity  is  to  be  effected. 
Doctor  Patil  expresses  to  his  colleague  the  desire  that  he  present,  as  he  himself  has  done, 

an  exposition  of  arguments  upon  which  he  bases  his  judgment  and  by  which,  at  the  same 

time,  he  would  reply  to  the  arguments  presented  by  the  Venezuelan  arbitrator.  Doctor 
Paul  would  be  able  to  take  these  into  consideration  and  see  if  it  would  be  possible  to  reach 

an  agreement. 
M.  de  Peretti  replies  that  he  has  no  other  arguments  to  give  than  those  furnished  by  the 

company  itself,  whose  argument  he  considers  as  sufficient,  and  that  consequently  if  his 
colleague  does  not  agree  to  the  amount  of  7,000,000  bolivars,  which  is  demanded,  he  appeals 
to  the  umpire. 

Doctor  Paiil  maintains  his  opinion,  and  it  is  agreed  that  this  claim  be  submitted  to  the 

judgment  of  the  umpire  provided  by  the  protocol. 

244 
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If  there  were  error  in  the  manner  of  issuing  and  handing  out  the  rogatory  commissions  called 

for  by  the  claimant  company,  it  was  cured  by  the  acceptance  of  those  commissions  by 
the  attorney  of  the  claimant  company  in  the  manner  and  form  as  issued  and  handed 
out  without  objection  and  by  his  proceeding  to  make  use  of  them  for  the  purposes  for 

which  they  were  issued.  Failure  to  educe  evidence  by  means  of  these  commissions 

must  be  charged  to  the  action  or  inaction  of  the  company's  attorney,  and  not  to  the 
high  Federal  court  of  the  government  under  all  the  circumstances  detailed  in  this  case. 

If  there  were  error  in  the  action  of  the  high  Federal  court  in  proceeding  to  final  decree  with- 

out serving  special  notice  upon  counsel  for  the  defendant  company  therein  and  in  pro- 
ceeding to  enter  up  such  dercee  without  notice  in  fact  to  said  company  or  its  attorney, 

it  was  cured  by  the  neglect  of  the  company  to  avail  itself  of  its  statutory  remedies  by 
petition  for  invalidation  to  the  high  Federal  court.  Failure  to  seek  such  invalidation 

through  the  proper  statutory  methods  precludes  the  claimant  government  from  asserting 
any  denial  of  justice  because  of  such  decree  whereas  if  an  invalidation  had  been  sought 

and  it  had  been  denied  and  the  grounds  therefor  were  clearly  established,  it  might 

be  a  sufficient  cause  for  the  action  of  this  commission  on  the  ground  of  denial  of  justice. 

Held  that  there  was  in  said  decree  no  denial  of  justice  under  the  treaty  of  1885  or  in  virtue 
of  th^  rules  or  principles  of  public  law. 

Edd  that  every  matter  and  point  distinctly  in  issue  in  said  cause,  and  which  was  directly 

based  upon  and  determined  in  said  decree,  and  which  was  its  ground  and  basis,  is  con- 
cluded by  the  judgment  of  the  high  Federal  court  in  said  cause;  and  the  claimant  itself, 

and  the  claimant  government  in  its  behalf,  are  forever  estopped  from  asserting  any  right 

or  claim  based  in  any  part  upon  any  fact  actually  and  directly  involved  in  said  decree. 
EM  that  if  the  treaty  of  1885  were  applicable  to  this  case,  then  there  has  been  no  denial 

of  justice  or  such  a  delay  of  justice  according  to  usage  or  to  law,  nor  such  exhaustion  of 
the  legal  means  available  to  the  claimants,  nor  such  a  violation  of  treaty  or  the  rules  of 

the  right  of  nations  as  would  admit  of  a  favorable  award  if  the  jurisdiction  of  the  com- 
mission were  thus  limited. 

In  the  suit  for  rescission  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  plead  no  counterclaims  or  claims 
in  offset;  hence  they  were  not  in  issue,  were  not  litigated,  and  therefore  are  not  concluded 

by  the  decree. 

Such  claims  as  might  have  been  plead  as  counterclaims  or  claims  in  offset  to  the  suit  in  rescis- 

sion, or  which  might  have  constituted  a  ground  for  an  independent  action,  can  be  pre- 
sented here  as  substantive  grounds  for  an  award. 

The  date  when  the  suit  for  rescission  was  entered  in  court  is  the  day  on  which  the  issues  are 

considered  as  formed  between  the  parties.  The  cause  of  action  had  then  accrued. 

For  such  causes  as  accrued  after  that  date  the  court  gained  no  jurisdiction  in  virtue  of 
the  suit  then  pending. 

The  actions  of  the  claimant  company  and  the  respondent  government  posterior  to  that  date 
are  all  proper  subjects  of  inquiry  and  of  award. 

The  refusal  of  the  respondent  government  to  recognize  or  permit  the  properties,  franchises, 

rights,  and  privileges  of  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  to  pass  to  the  English  com- 
pany which  was  ready  to  take  them,  was  a  fatal  breach  of  the  contract  and  charges  the 

respondent  government  with  all  loss  and  damage  which  accrued  to  the  claimant  com- 
pany on  account  thereof. 

The  fact  that  there  was  ample  justification  to  the  respondent  government  for  taking  this 

position  as  a  government  does  not  change  its  relation,  as  the  other  party  to  a  contract, 

with  the  claimant  company,  and  as  such  other  party  it  must  stand  m  the  same  relation 
as  though  it  were  not  also  exercising  governmental  functions  requiring  it  to  prevent 

the  claimant  company  from  completing  its  contract  of  cession. 

The  claimant  company  had  several  grounds  of  defense  to  the  suit  for  rescission;  among  them 
these: 

(a)  No  offer  to  restore  to  the  company  the  benefits  conferred  by  it  upon  the  plaintiff,  it  being 

easily  susceptible  of  proof  that  it  had  conferred  many  such  benefits,  capable  of  being 
measured  in  money. 
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(b)  The  respondent  government  could  not  have  sustained  its  position  that  it  was  without 
fault  in  the  premises.  The  opinion  gives  in  detail  the  instances  falling  under  each  of 
these  heads. 

None  of  these  facts  being  brought  to  the  attention  of  the  high  Federal  court,  it  could  only 

pass  the  decree  which  it  finally  registered. 
The  respondent  government  having  prevented  the  completion  of  the  contract  between  the 

Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  and  the  British  company,  as  heretofore  stated,  it  became 

responsible  for  the  value  of  the  concession,  since  this  action  of  the  respondent  govern- 
ment resulted  in  practically  a  total  loss. 

Approximate  equity  is  all  that  can  be  attempted  in  a  case  so  indefinite  in  many  of  its 

important  facts. 
When  this  sovereign  act  of  the  respondent  government  was  interposed,  the  company  was 

in  shape  to  be  relieved  of  all  its  indebtedness  through  the  action  of  the  British  com- 
pany. There  is  no  inequity  in  holding  that  the  value  of  the  concession  was  the  sum 

which  the  British  company  was  then  ready  to  pay. 

This  proceeding  may  be  considered,  in  a  limited  sense,  as  in  the  nature  of  a  creditor's  bill, 
the  purpose  of  which  is  to  recover  that  which  is  due  for  the  benefit  of  the  creditors. 

OPINION  OF  THE  VENEZUELAN  COMMISSIONER. 

Under  date  of  July  10,  1902,  Messrs.  Louis  Roux,  Felix  Joseph  Vial, 

and  Andr6  Emile  Belicam,  liquidators  of  the  ̂ 'Compagnie  G^n^rale  de 
rOr^noque,*'  addressed  a  memorial  to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs 
of  France,  in  which  they  state  the  following: 

That  in  consequence  of  the  sentence  given  by  the  high  Federal  court  in  1891,  without  the 

appearing  in  court  of  the  plaintiff  company  (pard^faut),  the  creditors  of  the  said  company 

were  obliged  to  apply  to  the  liquidators  for  the  vindication  of  their  rights  against  the  Gov- 
ernment of  Venezuela. 

Following  this  the  liquidators  present  a  statement  of  their  claims, 
as  per  items  below : 

Francs. 

1.  Capital  of  the  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de  TOr^noque     1,  500, 000. 00 
Francs. 

2.  To  the  company  called  '*  La  Monnaie  "    609, 030.  91 
Interest  at  6  per  cent  from  1892  to  date  and  other  expenses. .  655, 659.  45 

  1,264,690.36 

3.  To  "La  Banquede  Consignations''    236,356.00 
Interest  at  6  per  cent  from  April  1 ,  1890,  to  date    248, 753. 00 

       485, 109. 00 

4.  To  Mr.  Alfred  Chauvelot    345,976.00 

Interest  at  6  per  cent,  as  per  account   292, 102. 00 
       638,078.00 

5.  To  Mr.  Eugene  Ferminac    101,000.00 
Interest  for  twelve  years  at  6  per  cent     100, 340. 00   201,340.00 

6.  To  Mr.  Louis  Roux       30,  504. 00 

Interest  at  6  per  cent,  as  per  account       24, 071. 00 
         54, 575. 00 

7.  To  Mr.  Albert  de  Suin         6,264.00 
Interest         5,083.00 

         11,347.00 
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Francs. 

8.  To  Mr.  Theodor  Delort       14,641.26 

Interest,  ten  years  at  6  per  cent         8, 402. 00  Francs. 
         23,043.26 

9.  Liquidation  bonds         157, 916. 00 

10.  Expenses  of  the  English  company       25, 000. 00 
Expenses  of  the  Belgian  company     100, 000. 00 
Interest       90,000.00 

       215,000.00 

11.  Sundry  expenses  and  unpaid  salaries  of  1891           75, 000. 00 
12.  Interest  on  the  capital  of  the  company  from  1891  at  6  per  cent         990, 000. 00 

Total    5,616,098.62 

To  this  amount  the  liquidators  further  add  the  sum  of  2,000,000 
francs  under  the  head  of  eventual  profits,  thus  bringing  up  the  total 
to  7,616,098.62  francs. 

To  this  statement  the  liquidators  annex  nine  abstracts  of  accounts, 
referring  to  seven  items  of  the  claim,  Nos.  7,  9,  10,  and  11  being 
referred  to  as  copies  taken  from  the  books  of  the  company. 

In  another  memorial,  presented  in  Paris  on  September  12,  1901, 
by  the  same  liquidators  to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs,  they  annex 
two  documents,  one  of  which  contains  the  declaration  of  Mr.  Andres 

Fiat,  the  former  attorney  of  the  company  at  Caracas,  who  was  acting 
as  such  at  the  time  the  company  was  sued  before  the  high  Federal 

court,  in  which  Mr.  Fiat  affirms — 
that  the  sentence  of  said  court  was  given  without  having  served  previous  legal  summons  to 

him  or  to  the  counsel  of  the  company,  which  was  thus  really  a  sentence  pronounced  with- 
out hearing  one  of  the  parties  concerned. 

The  liquidators  further  state  in  said  memorial  that  of  the  two  lawyers 
who  acted  as  counsels  for  the  company,  viz..  Dr.  Diego  B.  Urbaneja 
and  Dr.  Ram6n  F.  Feo,  the  first  is  dead,  but  the  second  of  them  is  still 

alive,  practicing  in  Caracas,  and  in  capacity  to  make  a  declaration 

similar  to  that  of  Mr.  Fiat's. 
Together  with  the  aforesaid  two  memorials  and  annexed  documents 

referred  to  there  is  a  letter  from  Mr.  Theodor  Delort,  dated  April 

14, 1903,  to  the  French  minister  at  Caracas,  in  which  he  says: 

Before  my  departure  from  Paris,  the  liquidators  have  conferred  on  me  the  power  of  attorney 

of  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  I'Or^noque,  and  I  hold  such  power  at  the  disposal  of  the 
legation.  All  the  books,  documents,  and  accounts  of  said  company  are  in  the  keeping  of  the 

liquidators,  who  can  not  let  them  out  of  their  possession,  as  the  work  of  liquidation  is  yet 
going  on,  and  they  may  be  at  any  time  summoned  before  the  commercial  tribunal  of  the 
Seine,  by  reason  of  the  liability  of  the  company  in  case  that  the  result  of  the  claim  now 
presented  against  the  Government  of  Venezuela  should  not  be  sufficient  to  wipe  out  those 
liabilities. 

They  also  produce  a  report  or  memorial  of  1 1 1  pages,  which  was 

deposited  with  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  in  Paris  on  Decem- 
ber 3,  1895,  containing  a  general  description  of  the  enterprise  of 



248  COMPANY    GENERAL    OF   THE    ORINOCO    CASE. 

''La  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de  TOr^noque'^  and  a  compendium  of  the 
documents  which  constitute  the  action  entered  on  behalf  of  the  Gov- 

ernment of  Venezuela  on  the  28th  May,  1890,  by  the  financial  repre- 
sentative (fiscal  nacional  de  hacienda)  against  the  company  for  the 

rescission  of  its  contract  and  for  damages.  Annexed  to  this  report 
the  liquidators  presented  128  documents,  the  greater  part  of  which  are 
private  letters,  memorials,  and  notes,  very  many  of  which  are  void  of 
legal  authenticity. 

The  Venezuelan  commissioner  has  examined  all  and  every  one  of 
these  memorials,  notes,  papers,  and  private  letters  presented  to  him 

by  the  French  commissioner,  and  he  has  also  examined  the  process  car- 
ried on  before  the  high  Federal  court  against  the  said  company  during 

the  years  1890  and  1891,  as  well  as  all  the  documents  filed  in  the 
ministry  of  fomento  regarding  the  several  concessions  of  the  contracts 
made  by  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  thus:  In  1885,  with  Mr.  Miguel 
Tejera  for  the  exploitation  of  the  natural  products  of  the  territory  of 
the  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas;  and  in  1887,  with  Mr.  Theodor 
Delort  for  the  exploitation  of  tonca  bean  (sarrapia)  in  the  territory 
comprised  between  the  Orinoco  River,  Brazil,  and  British  Guiana;  all 
of  which  contracts  were  transferred  to  the  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de 

rOrfinoque.  A  process  took  place  between  the  Government  of 
Venezuela  and  the  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de  FOr^noque,  entered  upon 
by  the  financial  representative  of  Venezuela  (fiscal  nacional  de 
hacienda)  on  behalf  of  said  Government,  said  action  having  begun 
before  the  high  Federal  court  on  the  19th  June,  1890,  and  the  object 
of  same  being  the  following:  First,  the  rescission  of  the  contract  signed 
on  the  17th  December,  1885,  between  Gen.  Guzmdn  Blanco,  envoy 
extraordinary  and  minister  plenipotentiary  to  several  courts  of  Europe, 
and  Mr.  Miguel  Tejera,  for  the  exploitation  of  all  the  vegetable  and 
mineral  products  of  the  territories  of  the  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas 

during  a  period  of  thirty-five  years;  second,  the  rescission  of  the  con- 
tract signed  on  the  1st  April,  1887,  between  the  minister  of  fomento  of 

the  United  States  of  Venezuela  and  Mr.  Theodor  Delort  for  the  exploita- 
tion of  tonca  beans  (.sarrapia)  during  a  period  of  twenty-five  years  on 

the  Government  lands  which  lie  between  the  extreme  eastern  boundary 
of  the  territories  of  the  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas  and  British 
Guiana  and  between  the  Orinoco  and  the  Brazilian  boundary  line ;  and 
third,  for  payment  by  the  company  of  the  sum  of  40,048.62  francs  for 
damages  owing  to  the  nonfulfillment  of  said  contracts  and  expenses 
and  costs  incurred  in  this  process. 

This  suit  was  ended  by  final  judgment  passed  by  the  high  Federal 
court  on  the  14th  of  October,  1891,  against  the  company,  which  was 
condemned  to  pay  the  sum  of  40,048.62  francs  as  well  as  expenses  and 
costs  incurred  in  the  process. 
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The  claim  which  the  Uquidators  of  the  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de 

rOrfinoque  pretend  to  make  good  against  the  Government  of  Vene- 
zuela is,  therefore,  based  on  a  judgment  passed  by  the  high  Federal 

court  since  October,  1901,  which  has  been  affirmed  and  has  the  sanc- 
tion of  chose  jugee. 

The  contracts  between  the  Government  of  Venezuela  and  Messrs. 

Miguel  Tejera  and  Doctor  Delort,  which  were  afterwards  ceded  to  the 

Compagnie  G6n6rale  de  POr^noque,  were  signed  under  the  constitu- 
tion of  27th  of  April,  1881,  and  the  civil  code  which  entered  into  oper- 

ation on  the  27th  of  January  of  the  same  year.  Article  26  of  said 

civil  code  states — 

that  any  party,  even  if  not  resident  in  Venezuela,  can  be  sued  in  the  Republic  for  obliga- 
tions contracted  for  in  the  Republic  or  the  fulfillment  of  which  has  to  be  carried  on  in  Vene- 

zuela.a 

Article  14  of  the  contract  signed  with  Mr.  Tejera  for  the  exploitation 
and  colonization  of  the  territories  of  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas,  and 

article  15  of  the  contract  signed  with  Mr.  Th.  Delort  for  the  exploita- 

tion of  all  the  tonca  beans  existing  on  the  Government's  lands  men- 
tioned in  said  contract,  both  expressly  stipule. te — 

that  all  doubts  and  controversies  arising  from  the  fulfillment  of  both  agreements  are  to  be 

decided  by  the  tribunals  of  the  Republic  according  to  its  laws. 

In  the  memorial  presented  on  the  12th  of  September,  1901,  to  the 
minister  of  foreign  affairs  in  Paris  the  liquidators  of  the  Compagnie 
G6n6rale  de  TOr^noque  contend  that,  according  to  a  document  which 
they  annex  thereto,  containing  a  declaration  of  their  former  attorney 
at  Caracas,  Mr.  Andres  Fiat,  who  was  acting  as  such  at  the  time  of  the 

suit,  judgment  was  passed,  by  the  high  Federal  court  without  sum- 
mons having  been  served  either  on  him  or  on  the  counsel  of  the 

company,  which  is  equivalent  to  a  sentence  pronounced  without  hear- 
ing one  of  the  parties  concerned.  This  aforesaid  document  is  signed 

by  Mr.  Fiat  in  St.  Cloud  on  the  1st  of  May,  1901,  and  is  legalized  by 
the  prefect  of  the  said  city  and  by  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of 
France.     Mr.  Fiat  therein  certifies — 

that,  while  residing  in  the  city  of  Caracas  in  1 890  and  1891 ,  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  l'0r6- 
Doque  conferred  to  him  the  necessary  power  of  attorney  that  ho  might  represent  the  com- 

pany at  Caracas  in  all  matters. 

He  also  certifies — 

that  with  reference  to  the  suit  entered  hy  the  fiscal  nacional  de  hacienda  on  the  23d  of  May, 

1890,  before  the  high  Federal  court,  against  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  I'Or^noque,  for 
rescission  of  the  concessions  of  the  17th  of  December,  1885,  and  of  the  1st  of  April,  1887,  he 
WCL8  never  summoned  nor  did  he  ever  receive  an  order  to  appear  in  court,  and  that  the  counsel 

of  the  company,  Messrs.  Di^o  B.  Urbaneja  and  Ramdn  F.  Feo,  were  never  summoned 
either. 

a  Art.  26.  Pueden  ser  demandados  en  Venezuela  aun  los  no  domiciliados  en  ella,  por 
obligaciones  contrafdas  en  la  Repilblica,  6  que  deben  tener  ejecucidn  en  Venezuela. 
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He  further  certifies — 

that  consequently  the  judgment  of  the  high  Federal  court  was  passed  during  his  absence  on 

the  14th  of  October,  1891,  and  that  neither  he  nor  the  two  aforesaid  counsel  of  the  com- 
pany ever  received  any  advice,  and  in  this  way  they  never  knew  that  such  sentence  had 

been  pronounced  until  three  days  after,  when  they  saw  it  published  in  the  OflScial  Gazette 
of  the  17th  of  October,  1891. 

The  declarations  of  Mr.  Fiat  contained  in  this  document  are  inac- 
curate, as  will  now  be  proved.  The  suit  was  entered  on  the  28th  of 

May,  1890,  by  the  fiscal  nacional  de  hacienda  before  the  high  Federal 
court,  and  on  the  30th  of  the  same  month  the  president  of  the  court 
issued  a  writ  thus : 

Considering  that,  according  to  the  document  annexed  to  the  suit,  Messrs.  Andres  Fiat  and 

Bemab^  Planas  appear  to  be  the  representatives  of  the  company  in  Venezuela,  order  is 

hereby  given  for  them  to  be  summoned  in  order  that  they  may  declare  if  they  are  still  hold- 
ing the  power  of  the  company,  and  in  order  to  appoint  a  counsel  for  the  defendant,  in  case 

they  are  no  longer  attorneys  of  the  company,  in  accordance  with  the  law. 

There  is  legal  proof  in  the  papers  of  the  suit  that  they  were  both 
summoned  on  the  same  30th  day  of  May,  and  they  both  appeared  in 
court  on  the  2d  of  June  and  declared : 

The  only  representative  now  of  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  I'Ordnofiue  is  Mr.  Andres 
Fiat,  who  will  duly  produce  his  power  of  attorney  in  court  on  Wednesday,  the  4th  of  June. 

On  the  said  4th  of  June  Mr.  Fiat  presented  to  the  court  his  power  of 

attorney  and  a  translation  of  the  same  was  ordered.  On  the  16th  of 
June  the  interpreter,  Mr.  Veloz  de  Goiticoa,  presented  the  power  of 
attorney  duly  translated,  and  on  the  same  date  the  court  issued  a 
writ  ordering  that  the  original  power  of  attorney  be  returned  to  its 
owner  and  to  summon  the  same  in  due  form.  On  the  19th  of  Jime  the 

fiscal  nacional  de  hacienda  altered  the  terms  of  the  suit,  limiting  the 
sum  demanded  from  the  company  for  damages  to  40,048.62  francs, 

as  per  account  annexed.  On  the  same  19th  of  June  Mr.  Fiat,  as  rep- 
resentative of  the  company,  gave  a  receipt  for  the  document  contain- 

ing the  plaintiff's  suit  (libelo  de  demanda),  which  was  handed  to  him, 
and  said  receipt  was  filed  in  court.  On  the  same  day  the  court  issued 
a  decree  (folio  88)  by  which  order  was  given  to  notify  Mr.  Fiat  that 
the  terms  of  the  suit  had  been  altered,  and  a  copy  of  which  alteration 
was  handed  to  him. 

Mr.  Fiat  was  to  give  a  receipt  for  this  copy  and  he  was  to  present  in  court  bis  answer  to 
the  suit  ten  days  after  this  date. 

This  writ  was  carried  into  execution  on  the  same  day,  and  Mr.  Fiat 
gave  a  receipt  on  the  20th  of  June,  which  receipt  is  filed  in  court. 
On  the  2d  of  July,  which  was  the  day  appointed  for  answering  the 
suit,  there  appeared  in  court  the  fiscal  nacional  de  hacienda  and  Mr. 

Fiat,  accompanied  by  his  counsel,  D.  B.  Urbaneja  and  R.  F.  Feo, 
and  then  and  there  all  the  parties  agreed  to  defer  the  answering  of  the 
suit  to  a  date  fixed  at  eight  days  after  the  presentation  of  the  docu- 
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ments  to  which  reference  is  made  in  the  suit  by  the  plaintiff,  in  order 
that  the  company  should  have  time  to  examine  these  documents.  On 
the  22d  of  July,  Mr.  Fiat,  accompanied  by  his  two  counsel,  Doctors 
Urbaneja  and  Feo,  appeared  in  court  and  filed  their  answer  to  the  suit, 
petitioning  the  court  at  the  same  time  for  an  extraterritorial  term 
in  order  to  obtain  evidence  from  France  f.nd  Rome.  The  suit  then 

followed  its  ordinary  legal  course,  during  which  the  parties  were  to 
produce  their  respective  evidence,  and  the  court  reserved  its  right  to 

decide  on  Mr.  Fiat's  petition  regarding  an  extra  territorial  period  of 
time.  Later  on  the  president  of  the  court  granted  one  hundred  days 
to  obtain  the  extraterritorial  evidence,  and  Mr.  Fiat  having  appealed 
from  this  decision,  considering  that  the  term  granted  was  too  short, 
the  court  then  extended  it  to  one  hundred  and  thirty  days.  On  the  5th 
of  September  Mr.  Fiat  was  notified  that  the  fisc^.l  had  petitioned  the 
court  that  the  suit  be  registered  in  Ciudad  Bolivar,  in  order  to  avoid 

any  transfer  intended  by  the  company.  Mr.  Fiat  duly  received  this 
notice,  at  the  foot  of  which  he  set  his  signature,  and  on  the  8th  of 
September  he  appeared  in  court,  accompanied  by  his  coimsel.  Doctors 

Urbaneja  and  Feo,  and  siid — 
that  he  did  not  1)elieve  that  he  could  make  any  legal  opposition  to  the  Government,  which  is 

a  party  in  this  suit,  for  the  recording  of  the  suit  with  the  alterations  which  were  made  to  it 
afterwards. 

On  the  same  day  order  was  issued  by  the  court  that  a  copy  of  the 
suit  be  sent  to  the  judge  of  first  instance  of  Ciudad  Bolivar  for  its 
being  recorded  in  the  registry  office  in  that  city,  and  said  order  was 
carried  into  effect  on  the  same  15th  day  of  September. 

In  the  course  of  the  suit  Mr.  Fiat  presented  the  court  a  petition 
dated  August  7,  1900,  in  order  that  such  evidence  might  be  advanced 
as  he  thought  convenient  to  the  case  of  the  company.  Among  this 
evidence  were  declarations  to  be  made  by  witnesses  resident  in  Paris, 

Rome,  Port  of  Spain,  Rio  Chico,  Barcelona,  San  Fernando  de  Apure, 
and  Caracas.  The  president  of  the  court  issued  a  writ,  dated  August 

12,  admitting  the  presentation  of  such  evidence,  as  far  as  the  law  per- 
mitted, and  commissioned  the  several  civil  judges  of  first  instance  of 

the  localities  of  the  respective  witnesses  to  hear  their  declarations, 
and  petitioned  and  issued  rogatory  commissions  to  the  competent 
judges  of  Paris,  Rome,  and  Port  of  Spain  for  the  same  purpose.  On 
the  11th  of  October  of  the  same  year  Mr.  Fiat  appeared  in  court  and 

stated — 

that  by  virtue  of  the  authority  conferred  on  him  by  power  of  attorney  from  the  company, 

he  conferred  special  power  to  Dr.  Ramdn  Feo  and  Dr.  Martin  F.  Feo,  so  that  both  together 

or  any  one  of  them  separately  may  intervene  in  the  collecting  of  evidence  that  is  to  be  made 
by  the  fiscal  in  this  capital  city;  that  he  also  conferred  special  power  to  Mr.  Armando  F. 
Larrouget,  of  Porto  Rico,  for  the  collecting  of  evidence  on  behalf  of  the  company  in  that 
district  and  to  intervene  in  the  collecting  of  evidence  by  the  plaintiff;  that  he  conferred 

special  power  on  Mr.  Julio  Philipe,  of  Barcelona,  for  all  the  evidence  that  is  to  be  collected  in 
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that  city;  that  he  conferred  special  power  on  Dr.  Brigido  Natera,  of  Ciudad  Bolfvar,  for  the 
collection  of  the  evidence  in  Ciudad  Bolivar  and  the  Territorio  Orinoco;  that  he  conferred 

special  power  on  Mr.  Casto  Rodriguez,  of  San  Fernando  de  Apure,  for  all  the  evidence  to  be 
collected  in  that  city;  that  he  conferred  special  power  on  Mr.  E.  R.  Mason,  of  Port  of  Spain, 
Trinidad,  for  all  the  evidence  to  be  collected  in  that  city,  and  that  he  conferred  special  power 
to  Mr.  Andrfo  Lend  Gutierrez  for  all  the  evidence  that  is  to  be  collected  in  the  Territories 
Orinoco  and  Amazonas. 

By  order  of  the  11th  of  October,  1890,  the  president  of  the  court 
ordered  that  commissions  and  petitions  be  issued  to  the  difTerent 
parties  residing  in  the  different  locaHties  where  the  evidence  was  to 
be  collected,  and  that  in  said  petitions  and  commissions  the  insertion 
of  the  powers  conferred  on  them  be  made,  as  requested  by  Mr.  Fiat. 
The  said  order  was  carried  into  execution  on  the  13th  of  October, 
as  it  is  proved  in  the  records  by  a  note  signed  by  the  secretary  of  the 
court  to  the  effect  that  all  the  commissions  and  petitions  issued  had 
been  handed  to  the  defendant.  All  these  commissions  and  petitions 
were  duly  returned,  after  having  been  carried  into  operation,  and 
exist  in  the  records  of  the  court,  with  the  exception  of  those  addressed 
to  the  judges  of  Paris  and  Trinidad  and  to  His  Excellency  Cardinal 
Limeoni,  of  Rome,  which  were  not  returned  by  the  representative  of 
the  company,  although  he  received  them. 

In  page  No.  56  of  the  document  containing  the  evidence  presented 
by  the  attorney  of  the  company  there  is  a  note  signed  by  the  secretary 
of  the  court  on  the  24th  of  March,  1891,  in  which  it  is  stated  that 

after  due  computation  both  the  ordinary  and  the  extraordinary  period 
of  time  granted  for  the  collecting  of  evidence  expires  on  that  same 
24th  of  March,  1891.  On  the  same  day  the  president  of  the  court 
ordered  that,  the  probatory  period  having  expired  that  day,  the 
papers  and  records  of  the  suit  were  to  be  sent  to  the  full  court,  which 
was  duly  effected. 

On  the  29th  of  April  the  fiscal  stated  that,  this  being  the  time  for 
the  court  to  study  the  papers  and  records  of  the  suit,  order  be  issued 
for  the  same  to  be  effected.  On  the  21st  of  May  the  fiscal  reiterated 
his  petition,  and  on  the  23d  order  was  issued  to  begin  the  study  of  the 

papers  and  records  on'  the  30th.  The  study  of  the  papers  and  evi- 
dence commenced  on  the  16th  of  June  and  proceeded  on  the  24th 

of  June,  as  the  court  did  not  meet  on  the  17th,  18th,  19th,  20th, 
21st,  22d,  and  23d.  On  the  1st,  4th,  and  7th  of  August  the  court 
called  suppletory  judges  to  fill  the  vacancies  of  Dr.  Chuecos 
Miranda  and  Mr.  C&rlos  Hemaiz,  who  were  absent,  and  that  of  Dr. 

J.  P.  Rojas  Patil  and  General  Velutini,  who  had  petitioned  to  be 
excused  from  attending  to  court.  On  the  16th  of  September  the 
suppletory  judge,  Dr.  C&rlos  Grisanti,  was  called,  and  the  19th  day 
of  the  same  month  was  appointed  for  the  study  of  the  process.  Doctor 
Grisanti  joined  the  court  on  the  day  fixed,  and  the  study  of  the  papers 

and  records  was  commenced  on  the  following  day.     The  same  pro- 
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ceeded  on  the  21st  of  September  and  following  days  until  the  25th; 

and  the  29th  day  of  the  same  month  was  appointed  to  hear  the  reports 
or  pleadings  of  the  plaintiff  and  defendant.  On  this  29th  day  of 
September  the  fiscal  nacional  de  hacienda  appeared  in  court,  but  no 
representative  or  counsel  on  behalf  of  the  defendant,  the  court  then 
proceeding  to  sit  in  conference.  According  to  notes  set  in  the  records 
by  the  secretary  of  the  court  in  chronological  order,  it  is  evidenced 
that  from  Sept^iber  30  to  October  13  only  one  sitting  of  the  court 
took  place,  on  the  3d  of  October,  during  which  the  judges  conferred 
on  the  judgment  to  be  passed  and  agreed  as  to  the  same.  On  the 
14th  of  October  the  sentence  was  drawn  and  signed  by  the  members 
of  the  court  on  the  same  day. 

From  the  foregoing  it  is  clearly  evidenced  that  the  Compagnie 

G6n6ra]e  de  TOr^noque  was  duly  summoned,  through  their  representa- 
tive in  Caracas,  Mr.  A.  Fiat,  to  appear  in  court  to  answer  the  suit 

entered  against  them  before  the  high  Federal  court  by  the  financial 
representative  of  Venezuela  (Fiscal  de  la  Naci6n);  that  Mr.  Fiat  did 
appear  in  court,  accompanied  by  his  counsel,  Drs.  D.  B.  Urbaneja  and 

Ram6n  F.  Feo;  that  he  made  such  contentions  as  he  deemed  con- 
venient on  behalf  of  the  defendant  company;  that  he  petitioned  for  an 

extraterritorial  term  in  order  to  collect  evidence  in  various  foreign 
localities,  and  the  same  was  granted  to  him;  that  he  appointed  special 
attorneys  for  the  collection  of  such  evidence  within  and  without  the 
territory  of  Venezuela;  that  the  commissions  and  petitions  issued  by 
the  court  to  the  different  judges  and  public  officials  of  the  various 
localities  where  the  evidence  was  to  be  collected  were  handed  to  him 

in  due  time;  that  he  forwarded  to  their  destinations  these  petitions  and 
commissions,  which  were  all  returned  to  the  court,  after  a  part  of  the 
evidence  had  been  collected;  that  another  part  of  the  evidence  was 

not  collected,  either  through  negligence  of  the  company  or  because  it 
desisted  voluntarily  of  doing  so,  as  there  is  no  proof  in  the  record  that 
this  was  due  to  any  cause  beyond  the  control  of  the  representative  of 
the  company ;  that  after  the  expiration  of  the  extra  term  granted  by 
court  for  the  collection  of  evidence^  on  the  24th  of  March,  1891,  the 
fiscal  de  hacienda  immediately  petitioned  that  the  court  proceed  to 
the  examination  and  study  of  the  papers  and  record  of  the  suit  in  order 

that  judgment  be  passed,  for  which  purpose  he  continually  applied  to 
court,  both  plaintiff  and  defendant  being  present  as  according  to  law 
and  there  being  no  necessity  of  their  being  newly  summoned  for  the 
complementary  acts  of  the  suit  required  to  arrive  to  its  final  stage  of 
being  sentenced. 

The  sentence  was  thus  pronounced  by  the  high  Federal  court,  after 
complying  rigorously  with  the  legal  prescriptions  and  with  all  the 
formalities  of  the  proceedings  as  established  by  law  on  behalf  of  both 
parties  interested  for  the  defense  of  their  respective  rights. 
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In  the  memorial  or  report  presented  by  the  liquidators  of  the  com- 
pany to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  Paris,  on  the  3d  of  December, 

1895,  they  pretend  that  on  the  25th  of  September  ̂   1891  j  the  high  Federal 
court  issued  an  order  that  the  contending  parties  be  advised  that  the  29th 
September  had  been  appointed  as  the  date  on  which  they  (plaintiff  and 
defendant)  were  to  present  their  respective  reports  or  pleadings,  and  that 

neither  the  representative  of  the  company  nor  his  counsel  were  sum- 
moned or  advised,  which  lack  of  notice  was  in  violatimi  of  articles  109 

and  162  of  the  Code  of  Civil  Procedure  of  Venezuela,  and  sufficient 
cause  to  invalidate  the  sentence. 

This  is  inaccurate,  as  there  was  no  such  decree  of  the  court  ordering 
that  the  contending  parties  be  notified ;  nor  is  there  any  violation  of 
articles  109  and  162  of  the  Code  of  Civil  Procedure  as  alleged  for  the 
nullity  of  the  sentence. 

In  the  papers  and  record  no  decree  of  the  court  exists  under  date  of 

25th  of  September,  ordering  the  parties  to  be  notified,  there  being  sim- 
ply a  note  sent  by  the  secretary  of  the  court,  which  reads  thus: 

Caracas,  25th  September^  1891. 

In  the  sitting  of  this  day  the  study  and  examination  of  the  papers  and  record  by  the  court 
was  completed  and  the  sitting  of  the  29th  current  is  appointed  for  plaintiff  and  defendant 

to  present  their  respective  reports  or  pleadings. 
Let  the  parties  be  notified.  O.  Burgos. 

As  may  be  seen  from  the  draft  of  the  foregoing  note  and  from  the 

phrase  '4et  the  parties  be  notified,'^  which  may  be  seen,  at  first  sight, 
was  forcibly  inserted  between  the  last  line  and  the  signature  of  the 
secretary,  the  said  note  was  a  fabrication  of  said  secretary,  conforming 
to  no  legal  prescription,  and  in  no  way  was  it  an  order  or  decree  of  the 
judgesLof  the  court,  who  are  the  only  parties  authorized  by  law  to  issue 
such  orders. 

Article  287  of  the  Code  of  Civil  Procedure  in  force  at  that  time 

(chapter  fourth,  on  the  study  and  sentences  of  suits)  directs  the 
following: 

After  the  completion  by  the  judges  of  the  study  and  examination  of  all  the  papers  and 
record  of  the  suit  they  will  hear  the  reports  which  the  contending  parties  may  address  to 
the  court  verbally  or  through  their  representatives  and  counsels,  and  they  will  also  read  such 

reports  as  said  parties  may  address  in  writing  which  will  be  filed  in  the  ̂ -ecord.o 

It  may  be  gathered  from  this  that,  once  the  study  and  examination 

of  the  papers  and  records  has  been  completed,  there  is  no  need  of  sum- 
moning the  parties  for  them  to  present  their  reports.  Article  89  of 

the  same  code  reads  thus : 

The  summons  to  the  defendant  for  answering  the  said  (demand)  having  been  served  there 

is  no  need  for  serving  any  further  summons  for  any  act  during  the  course  of  the  litis,  nor 

o  Art.  287.  Concluida  esa  relacidn  se  oirfin  los  informes  que  de  palabra  dirijan  las  partes, 
sus  apoderados  6  patrocinantes  y  se  leer&n  los  que  presenten  por  escrito,  los  cuales  se 

agregar&n  k  los  autos. 
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any  summons  which  may  need  to  be  served  will  suspend  the  proceedings,  unless  there  be  a 

special  legal  prescription  to  the  contrary. a 

The  words  of  this  article  are  so  conclusive  that  they  exclude  any 

possibility  that  the  court  might  have  considered  it  necessary,  after 

studying  and  examining  the  papers  and  records,  to  summon  the  con- 
tending parties  to  present  their  reports  on  the  process,  which  had  not 

been  in  suspense  at  any  time. 
Article  No.  109,  quoted  by  the  liquidators  of  the  company,  reads 

thus: 

When  a  litis  be  in  a  state  of  suspense,  owing  to  motives  caused  by  the  contending  parties, 

it  will  remain  in  this  state  until  any  one  of  the  interested  parties  petitions  for  its  continua- 

tion. In  this  case  the  other  party  or  his  representative  will  be  summoned,  but  the  pro- 
ceedings can  not  follow  their  course  until  this  summons  be  effected.  & 

The  process  to  which  I  am  now  referring  was  never  in  this  case  and 
far  from  its  ever  having  been  in  suspense  owing  to  motives  caused  by 

the  contending  parties,  it  appears  from  the  records  that  on  the  same 
day  that  the  probatory  term  expired  the  fiscal  petitioned  for  the 
active  continuation  of  the  case  and  several  orders  (seiialamientos) 

were  then  and  there  issued  for  the  study  and  examination  of  the  papers 
and  records  and  in  order  to  complete  the  court  by  the  appointment  of 

adjunct  judges,  all  of  which  is  evidenced  by  the  respective  notes  set  in 
the  records  by  the  secretary  of  the  court.  The  other  article  quoted  as 
having  been  violated  is  No.  162  of  the  same  code,  and  it  reads  thus : 

When  the  tribunal  be  so  taken  up  with  business  as  not  to  be  able  to  commence  the 

process  on  the  day  appointed,  or  on  any  of  the  following  eight  days  or  by  any  other  cause 

and  the  process  be  thus  delayed  indefinitely,  the  contending  parties  or  their  representa- 
tives shall  be  notified  of  the  new  date  appointed  for  commencing  the  same,  in  the  manner 

established  by  article  109,  but  the  term  fixed  by  this  article  being  liable  to  be  reduced.c 

It  is  evidenced  from  the  notes  set  in  the  records  that  the  first  act  of 

examining  and  studying  the  papers  and  records  took  place  on  the  16th 
of  June ;  that  the  same  followed  its  course  on  the  24th  of  June,  before 

eight  sittings  of  the  court  had  transpired,  an  adjunct  judge  was  ap- 
pointed on  the  1st  of  August  to  fill  the  vacancy  caused  by  the  absence 

of  Dr.  Chuecos  Miranda ;  that  Mr.  Carlos  Hemaiz,  who  had  been  ap- 
pointed as  adjunct,  being  away  from  the  city.  Dr.  J.  P.  Rojas  Pa6l  was 

o  Art.  89.  Hecha  la  citacidn  para  la  litis-contestacidn,  no  habr&  necesidad  de  practicarla 
de  nuevo  para  ningtin  acto  del  juicio,  ni  la  que  se  mande  verificar  suspenderd  el  procedi- 
miento  6,  menos  que  resulte  lo  contrario  de  alguna  disposicidn  especial. 

6  Art.  109.  La  causa,  cuyo  curso  est^  en  suspenso  por  motivos  imputables  k  las  partes, 

permanecerd  en  el  mismo  estado  hasta  que  algunos  de  los  interesados  en  ella  pida  su  con- 
tinuacidn.  En  este  caso  se  citard  d  la  otra,  d  d  su  apoderado  sin  que  corra  ningun  t^rmino 
mientras  no  conste  haberse  practicado  estas  diligencias. 

cArt.  162.  Cuando  por  ocupacidn  del  ribunal  u  otro  motivo  no  principiare  k  verse  la 
causa  el  dla  designado  ni  en  nlnguno  de  los  ocho  siguientes,  y  tenga  que  sufrir  una  demora 

indefinida,  se  avisardn  las  partes  d  sus  representantes  el  nuevamente  sefialado  para  prin- 
cipiar  su  vista,  de  la  manera  establecida  en  el  artlculo  109,  pero  pudiendo  reducirse  el 
t^nnino  que  ̂ ste  fija. 
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appointed  to  replace  him  on  the  4th  of  August;  that  Dr.  Rojas  Patil 
having  tendered  his  resignation,  another  appointment  was  made  on 
the  7th  of  August  in  the  person  of  Gen.  J.  A.Velutini,  who  was  notified 
of  same,  and  that  the  1 6th  day  of  September  had  been  fixed  for  the  study 

of  the  process. 
It  is  to  be  noted  that  the  sitting  of  court  of  the  16th  of  September 

proximo  was  the  first  sitting  after  the  vacation  of  the  tribunals  which 
runs  from  the  15th  of  August  to  15th  of  September,  and  that  from 
the  7th  to  the  15th  of  August  no  sittings  transpired. 

On  the  16th  of  September  the  tribunal  met  and  took  cognizance  of 
a  communication  from  General  Velutini,  in  which  he  stated  that  he 
could  not  accept,  as  he  had  to  leave  the  city,  and  the  court  then 
appointed  Dr.  Carlos  Grisanti,  who  was  duly  notified,  and  the  19th 
of  the  same  month  was  appointed  for  the  examining  and  studying 

of  the  case,  three  days  after  Doctor  Grisanti^s  appointment.  On 
the  appointed  date  Doctor  Grisanti  took  his  seat  in  court  and  the 
process  began  and  followed  its  course  on  the  21st  and  25th,  on  which 

last-mentioned  day  it  terminated.  It  is  thus  evident  that  the  process 
was  never  under  indefinite  delay,  and  that  the  court  acted  on  the  case 
at  intervals  of  from  two  to  three  days,  appointing  adjuncts  to  fill 
the  vacancy  of  some  of  the  judges,  the  interested  parties  being  in  the 
obligation  of  calling  on  the  secretary  of  the  court  in  order  to  take 
knowledge  of  the  acts  of  same. 

In  the  notes  contained  in  the  memorial  presented  by  the  liquidators 
of  the  company  to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  at  Paris,  referring  to 
the  evidence  to  be  collected  by  the  representative  of  the  company 
regarding  the  process  before  the  high  Federal  court,  it  is  stated: 

Mr.  Fiat  was  taken  unaware  by  the  suit  entered  at  court  by  the  fiscal  against  the  com- 

pany for  rescission  of  its  concessions  and  had  no  time  to  ask  for  orders  or  to  cpUect  informa- 
tion, and  as  no  memorial  had  ever  been  communicated  to  him  and  it  was  impossible  1o 

foresee  that  such  action  would  be  entered  against  the  company,  he  had  received  no  instruc- 
tions from  Paris.  Mr.  Fiat,  being  very  much  perplexed,  presented  a  list  containing  the  names 

of  all  the  employees  of  the  company  to  be  examined  by  the  court,  but  not  knowing  their 
whereabouts  he  set  them  all  as  residing  in  Paris.  The  petition  of  Mr.  Fiat  was  inspired  by 
the  report  which  the  administration  of  the  company  had  just  forwarded  to  the  ministry  of 

fomento.  The  tribunal  accepted  Mr.  Fiat's  petition,  but  instead  of  forwarding  the  com- 
missions to  Paris,  as  was  done  with  those  to  Rome,  by  the  diplomatic  channel,  according  to 

international  rules,  they  were  handed  directly  to  Mr.  Fiat  for  transmission  to  Mr.  Delort. 
Nothing  could  be  more  strange,  and  side  by  side  to  a  proceeding  which  appears  to  be  regular 
at  first  sight  there  are  irregularities  which  nullify  the  defense,  and,  finally,  the  judgment  was 

passed  without  summoning  the  defendant,  as  has  been  seen  by  the  document  No.  1.  Mr. 

Delort  delivered  the  commissions  issued  by  the  court  to  the  board  of  directors  of  the  com- 
pany, who  were  unable  to  do  anything  with  them  and  returned  them  to  their  counsel  in 

Caracas,  Dr.  D.  B.  Urbaneja,  and,  following  the  advice  of  their  counsel,  the  board  had  affi- 
davits made  by  such  witnesses  as  could  be  found,  on  the  subject  of  the  conunission  issued 

by  court  to  the  judge  of  first  instance  of  Paris. 

The  statement  that  Mr.  Fiat  was  taken  imawares  by  the  suit  enterv3d 
by  the  fiscal  before  the  high  Federal  court  and  that  he  had  no  time  to 
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ask  for  order  and  information  regarding  the  evidence  is  contradictory 
of  the  fact  that  Mr.  Fiat  was  summoned  on  the  30th  of  May,  1890, 
to  appear  in  court  and  take  cognizance  of  the  action  entered  against 
the  company,  and  that  it  was  only  on  the  7th  of  August,  two  months 
and  eight  days  after  he  had  been  summoned,  that  he  entered  a  petition 
to  the  tribunal  for  the  collection  of  evidence.  As  to  the  action  of  the 

court  in  handing  over  to  Mr.  Fiat  the  commissions  to  Paris  and  Rome, 
instead  of  forwarding  same  through  the  diplomatic  channel  it  is  simply 

reckless  and  capricious  to  consider  such  action  as  an  irregular  omis- 
sion. The  Code  of  Civil  Procedure,  in  article  205,  on  the  extraordi- 

nary term  for  collecting  evidence,  says: 

If  one  of  the  contending  parties  who  has  obtained  permission  for  collecting  evidence,  as 
per  the  terms  of  the  foregoing  article,  fails  to  do  the  necessary  to  obtain  same,  or  if  it  appear 

from  the  records  that  be  made  a- malicious  petition  in  order  to  extend  the  duration  of  the  suit, 
he  shall  be  fined  with  an  amount  equivalent  to  one-fifth  of  the  value  of  the  suit,  which  sum 
will  be  applied  to  pay  to  the  other  party  whatever  damages  he  may  have  suflfered  by  the 

delay.a 

It  was  the  interested  party  who  should  have  taken  the  necessary 
steps  in  order  to  have  forwarded  the  commissions  to  the  judge  of  the 
Seine  through  the  diplomatic  channel,  and  his  having  neglected  to  do 
so  could  have  been  cause  of  his  being  fined,  as  per  the  article  205 
quoted,  as  he  petitioned  for  the  collection  of  evidence  which  required 
an  extraterritorial  term  and  thus  lengthened  the  period  of  the  suit, 
and  he  did  not  do  the  necessary  to  collect  the  evidence.  It  is  well 
known  that  these  commissions  are  accepted  by  the  judges  to  whom 
they  are  addressed  by  courtesy  in  accordance  with  international  use. 
In  some  international  treaties  these  commissions  have  been  regulated, 

but  failing  this  the  rule  to  be  followed  is  that  of  reciprocity.  There 
is  no  agreement  on  this  point  between  Venezuela  and  France,  and  it 

was  therefore  necessary  to  adhere  to  Venezuela's  legislation  on  the 
subject,  to  which  article  559  of  the  Code  of  Civil  Procedure  at  the 
time  in  force  is  pertinent.     This  article  states: 

Conmiissions  issued  by  foreign  tribunals  for  the  examination  of  witnesses  for  valuations, 

.  oaths,  interrogatories,  and  any  other  such  acts  to  be  effected  in  the  Republic,  will  be  car- 
ried into  execution  by  virtue  of  a  simple  decree  from  the  judge  of  first  instance  of  the  locality 

where  such  acts  are  to  take  place,  ft 

a  Art.  205.  Si  el  litigante  que  ha  obtenido  concesidn  para  evacuar  las  pruebas  de  que 

habla  el  articulo  precedente  no  practicaro  las  diligencias  consiguientes,  6  de  lo  actuado 

apareciere  que  la  solicitud  fu6  maliciosa,  con  el  objeto  de  alargar  el  pleito,  se  le  impondrd 

una  multa  equivalente  k  la  quinta  parte  del  valor  de  lo  que  se  litigue,  y  se  aplicard  k  la 

parte  contraria  en  indemizacidn  de  los  perjuicios  sufridos  con  la  dilacidn.  Si  ni  aproxima- 
damente  fuere  conocido  este  valor,  ser&  la  multa  de  una  cantidad  que  no  baje  de  quinientos 
bollvares  ni  exceda  de  cinco  mil,  con  la  misma  aplicacidn. 

&Art.  559.  Las  providencias  de  los  tribunales  extranjeros  concernientes  al  ex4men  de 

testigos,  experticias,  juramentos,  interrogatories  y  otros  actos  de  mera  instruccidn  que 

hayan  de  practicarse  en  la  repiiblica,  se  ejecutardn  con  el  simple  decreto  del  juez  de  pri- 
mera  instancia  que  tenga  jurisdiccidn  en  el  lugar  en  que  hayan  de  verificarse  tales  actos, 

S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   17  ^ 
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This  is  in  accordance  with  the  most  advanced  principles  of  jurispru- 
dence oa  the  matter. 

The  Institute  of  International  Law,  during  the  Zurich  session,  has 

established  the  following  principles  and  rules,  which  are  highly  favor- 
able to  the  prompt  expedition  of  justice : 

Any  judge  may  in  any  process  address  himself  by  rogatory  commissions  to  any  foreign 
judge,  requesting  him  to  carry  into  execution  in  his  jurisdiction  any  act  of  instruction  or 

any  other  judicial  acts  to  which  the  intervention  of  a  foreign  judge  may  be  useful  or  indis- 
pensable. A  judge  to  whom  a  petition  is  addressed  in  order  that  he  may  issue  a  rogatory 

commission  has  to  decide  in  the  following  points:  First,  of  his  capacity  in  the  matter;  sec- 
ond, on  the  legality  of  the  petition;  third,  whether  or  not  it  is  opportune  in  cases  where  the 

acts  petitioned  for  can  be  effected  by  the  judge  under  whose  guidance  the  suit  is,  such  as  the 

examination  of  witnesses,  ta}dng  of  oaths  of  one  of  the  parties,  etc.  The  rogatory  com- 
mission shall  he  sent  directly  to  the  foreign  tribunal  unless  the  interested  governments  may 

afterwards  intervene  in  case  it  he  necessary.  The  tribunal  which  receives  the  conmiission  is 

under  obligation  to  comply  with  it  after  having  ascertained  the  following:  First,  the  authen- 
ticity of  the  document;  second,  its  own  capacity,  ratione  materiaB,  according  to  the  laws  of 

the  country.  (Annual  of  the  Institute  of  International  Law,  Volume  II,  1878,  pp.  150 

and  151  .)o 

There  was,  consequently,  nothing  irregular  in  the  proceedings  of  the 
court  in  addressing  directly  the  judge  of  the  first  instance  of  the  Seine 

and  in  handing  the  commissions  to  the  interested  party  for  its  compli- 

oTlie  rules  proposed  by  the  Institute  of  International  Law  at  Zurich  in  1877,  were  as 
follows: 

1.  L'^tranger  sera  admis  k  ester  en  justice  aux  mfimes  conditions  que  le  r^gnicole. 
2.  Les  formes  ordinatoires  de  linstruction  et  de  la  procedure  seront  regies  par  la  lot  du  lieu  od  le 

procfes  est  instruit.  Seront  consid^r^s  comme  telles,  les  prescriptions  relatives  aux  formes  de 

I'assignation  (sauf  de  qui  est  propose  ci-dessous,  2'"«  al.),  aux  d^lais  de  comparution,  k  la  nature  et  k 
la  forme  de  la  procuration  ad  litem,  au  mode  de  recueillir  les  preuves  k  la  reaction  et  au  prononc^ 

du  jugement,  k  la  passation  en  force  de  chose  jug6e,  aux  d^lais  et  aux  formalit^s  de  I'appel  et  autres 
voies  de  recours,  k  la  peremption  de  I'instance. 

Toutefois,  et  par  exception  k  la  rfegle  qui.pr&jfede,  on  pourra  statuer  dans  les  trait^s  que  les  assig- 
nations et  autres  exploits  seront  signifies  aux  personnes  ̂ tablies  k  1  Stranger  dans  les  formes  pre- 

scrites  par  les  lois  du  lieu  de  destination  de  I'exploit.  Si,  d'aprfes  les  lois  de  ce  pays,  la  signification 
doit  6tre  faite  par  I'lnterm^diaire  de  juge,  le  tribunal  appel6  k  connaltre  du  proc6s  requerra  I'inter- 
vention  du  tribunal  Stranger  par  la  voie  d'une  commission  rogitoire. 

3.  L'admissibilit(^  des  moyens  de  preuve  (preuve  litt^rale,  testiinoniale,  serment,  livres  de  com- 
merce, etc.)  et  leur  force  probante  seront  d6termin6es  par  la  loi  du  lieu  oil  s'est  passe  le  fait  ou  I'acte 

qu'il  s'agit  de  prouver. 
La  mfime  rftgle  sera  appliqu^e  k  la  capacity  des  t<?moins,  sauf  les  exceptions  quo  les  Etats  contrac- 

tants  jugeraient  convenable  de  sanctionner  dans  les  trait^s. 

4.  Le  juge  saisi  d'un  proems  pourra  s'adresser  par  commission  rogatoire  k  un  juge  Stranger,  pour  le 
prier  de  faire  dans  son  ressort  soit  un  acte  d'instslietion,  soit  d'autres  actes  judiciaires  pour  lesquels 
Tinterventlon  du  juge  stranger  serait  indispensable  ou  utile. 

5.  Le  juge  k  qui  Ton  demands  de  d^livrer  une  Commission  rogatoire  d6cide:  (a)  de  sa  propre  compt^- 

tence;  (b)  de  la  l^alit^  de  la  requite;  (c)  de  son  opportunity  lorsqu'il  s'agit  d'un  acte  qui  l<^galement 
pent  aussi  se  faire  devant  le  juge  de  procfes,  p.  ex.  d'entendre  des  t^moins,  de  faire  prfiter  serment  k 
I'une  des  parties,  etc. 

0.  La  commission  rogatoire  sera  adress^e  directement  au  tribunal  stranger,  sauf  intervention  ult^ 

rieure  des  gouvemements  int^ress^s,  s'il  y  a  lieu. 
7.  Le  tribunal  k  qui  la  commission  est  adress^  sera  oblige  d'y  satisfaire  ap^^8  s'^tre  assure^:  1«»  de 

I'authenticite  du  document,  2°  de  sa  propre  competence  ratione  materix  d'aprfes  les  lois  du  pays  oCl 
il  si^ge. 

8.  En  cas  d'incomp^tence  mat^rielle,  le  tribunal  requis  transmettra  la  commission  rogatoire  au  tri- 
bunal competent,  aprfts  en  avoir  inform^  le  requ4rant. 

9.  Le  tribunal  qui  procfede  k  un  acte  judiciaire  en  vertu  d'une  commission  rogatoire  applique  les  lois 
de  son  pays  en  ce  qui  conceme  les  formes  du  procfes,  y  compris  les  formes  des  preuves  et  du  serment. 

(Annuaire  de  I'Institut  de  Droit  International,  Tom.  ii,  p.  150;  Revue  de  Droit  International,  etc  ̂  
Vol.  Ix,  p.  308.) 
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ance.  If  the  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de  TOr^noque  did  not  in  due  time 
see  that  its  representatives  in  Paris,  Rome,  and  Port  of  Spain  attended 
to  the  execution  of  the  commissions  and  allowed  them  to  keep  the 
documents  in  their  possession  for  an  indefinite  period,  it  is  an  act  for 

the  consequences  of  which  the  company  is  solely  and  exclusively  respon- 
sible. To  pretend  that  the  other  party  in  the  litis  shall  bear  any 

responsibility  on  the  matter  is  entirely  contrary  to  common  sense  and 
to  equity. 

As  has  been  shown,  besides  the  absolute  lack  of  legal  basis  of  the 
charges  preferred  by  the  liquidators  of  the  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de 
rOr^noque  against  the  proceedings  of  the  court  and  the  judgment 
passed  by  that  high  tribunal  on  the  14th  of  October,  1891,  there  is  the 

remarkable  circumstance  that  neither  the  company  nor  its  legal  repre- 
sentatives denounced  the  sentence  as  null  and  void  within  the  period 

and  in  the  form  established  in  Part  XVII  of  the  Code  of  Civil  Proce- 
dure then  in  force.     Article  538  of  said  code  says : 

Suits  may  be  invalidated  by  the  following  causes:  First,  when  one  of  the  contending 

parties  has  not  had  a  hearing  in  the  suit  whose  invalidation  is  intended  or  by  the  want  of 
summons  in  cases  where  such  sunamons  is  necessary  for  the  continuation  or  for  the  decision 

of  the  suit  and  whenever  this  fault  has  not  been  remedied  by  the  party  alleging  the  same.o 

Article  549  says: 
The  claim  of  invalidation  by  any  of  the  parties  shall  not  interfere  with  the  execution  of 

the  sentence.  & 

Article  550  says: 
The  claim  of  invalidation  can  not  be  made  six  months  after  the  party  has  had  knowledge 

of  the  suit  in  which  he  has  not  obtained  a  hearing  or  of  the  sentence  or  order  issued  in  the 

suit  when  it  was  in  suspense.c 

And  article  551  runs  thus  : 

When  an  invalidation  is  pronounced,  the  trial  shall  commence  again  from  the  beginning 

in  case  there  may  have  be«n  a  lack  of  hearing  of  the  claiming  party,  and  from  the 
moment  that  a  lack  of  summons  took  place  in  case  this  lack  of  summons  be  the  cause  of  the 

invalidation.  <i 

a  Art.  538.  Son  causas  para  la  invalidacidn  de  los  juicios: 

la.  La  falta  de  audiencia  en  el  juicio  cuya  invalidacidn  se  pretende,  6  la  falta  de  cita- 
cidn  cuando  ̂ sta  sea  necesaria  para  continuarlo  6  decidirlo,  si  no  ha  sido  cubierta  la  falta 

por  la  parte  que  la  alega. 
bArt.  549.  El  reclamo  de  invalidacidn  no  impide  la  ejecucidn  de  la  sentcncia. 

cArt.  550.  Tampoco  puede  intentarse  trascurridos  seis  meses  desde  que  se  descubrid  la 

falsedad  del  documento,  d  se  tuvo  prueba  de  la  retencidn  d  del  hecho  de  la  parte  contra- 
ria,  d  desde  el  dia  en  que  se  pronuncid  la  sentencia  en  caso  de  pronunciamiento  sobre  cosa 

no  demandada  u  omisidn  respecto  de  lo  demandado,  d  desde  que  llegd  ̂   noticia  del  recla- 
mante  el  juicio  en  que  no  fu^  oldo,  d  la  sentencia  d  auto  que  se  dictd  en  el  juicio  que  estaba 

paralizado,  d  desde  que  se  tuvo  conocimiento  de  la  sentencia  anterior  que  estd  en  colisidn 

con  la  pronunciada. 

d  Art.  551.  Declarada  la  invalidacidn,  el  juicio  se  repone  al  estado  de  demanda  cuando 

ha  habido  falta  de  audiencia  del  reclamante,  y  el  estado  en  que  se  cometid  la  falta  de  cita- 
cidn,  cuando  c«  ̂ ta  la  fundamento  de  la  invalidacidn.  En  el  caso  de  colisidn  dc  senten- 
cias,  quedam  con  su  fuerza  la  primera.  En  los  demds  casos,  se  repondrd  al  estado  do 
sentencia. 
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In  the  memorial  presented  by  the  liquidators  of  the  company  to  the 
minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  France  on  the  3d  of  December,  1895,  they 
state,  on  page  69,  the  following: 

Nothing  exists,  therefore,  which  may  give  light  on  the  sentence  pronounced  by  the  high 
Federal  court  on  the  14th  of  October,  1891,  which  was  published  on  the  17th,  three  days 
after,  in  the  Official  Gazette,  No.  53S5.  It  was  by  this  publication  that  the  counsel,  Drs.  D. 
B.  Urbaneja  and  Ram6n  F.  Feo,  came  to  know  of  it.  When  Mr.  Delort  arrived  at  Caracas 

on  the  26th  of  October,  the  whole  matter  had  been  completed.  Mr.  Delort  hastened  to 

Doctors  Urbaneja  and  Feo  for  advice,  and  these  counsel  told  him  that  there  was  nothing 
to  do  but  to  apply  to  the  French  Grovemment,  which  had  authority  to  intervene  and  to  present 
a  claim  through  the  diplomatic  channel  by  virtue  of  article  5  of  the  diplomatic  convention 
of  1885. 

It  was  therefore  the  opinion  of  the  counsel  of  the  company  that 
according  to  the  law  on  this  matter  no  claim  of  invalidation  of  the 
sentence  could  be  entered  in  court,  although  the  term  of  six  months 
granted  by  law  for  for  this  purpose  was  still  running.  Mr.  Delort,  as 
well  as  the  other  representatives  of  the  company,  submitted  to  this, 
opinion  of  the  counsel,  and  in  no  time  did  they  take  action  to  enter  a 
claim  of  invaUdation,  thus  affirming  the  sentence  pronounced  by  the 
court. 

According  to  the  liquidators,  when  referring  to  Mr.  Delort  the  coun- 
sel advised  the  company  to  make  use  of  the  diplomatic  channel  by 

virtue  of  article  5  of  the  diplomatic  convention  of  1885,  not  taking  into 
account  that  article  5  of  said  convention  runs  thus: 

The  representatives  of  the  high  contracting  parties  shall  not  int-ervene  in  claims  or  griev- 
ances of  private  parties  referring  to  matters  pertaining  to  the  civil  or  penal  administration 

of  justice,  according  to  the  local  laws  unless,  in  case  of  denial  of  justice  or  of  judicial  delays 
contrary  to  use  and  to  law,  or  in  case  of  the  noncompliance  with  an  affirmed  sentence,  and, 
finally,  in  case  there  be  an  evident  violation  of  a  treaty  or  of  the  rules  of  international  law 

in  spit«  of  the  exhaustion  of  the  legal  remedies. 

The  invalidation  of  the  judgment  passed  by  the  high  Federal  court 
was  a  matter  pertaining  to  the  jurisdiction  of  the  civil  justice  of 
Venezuela,  according  to  its  legislation.  The  company  did  not 
exhaust  all  the  legal  means  which  the  laws  of  the  country  offered  for 
the  mvalidation  of  the  sentence,  acting  on  the  advice  of  her  coimsel, 
in  whose  opinion  it  was  useless  to  do  anything  in  the  matter.  Although 
the  company  did  not  exhaust  these  legal  means  and  although  the 

sentence  was  not  in  violation  of  any  treaty  nor  of  any  rule  of  inter- 
national law,  article  5  of  the  convention  of  November  26,  1885,  was 

invoked  four  years  after,  thus  pretending  to  insure  the  possibihty  of 
intervention  by  the  diplomatic  representatives  of  France. 

From  the  documents  presented  by  the  liquidators  of  the  company  it 

appears  that  from  the  14th  of  October,  1891,  on  which  day  the  sen- 
tence was  pronounced  by  the  high  Federal  court,  until  the  day  when 

the  French  commissioner  handed  over  to  the  Venezuelan  commissioner 

copies  of  the  memorial  presented  by  the  said  liquidators  to  the  minis- 
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ter  of  foreign  affairs  of  France  on  the  3d  of  December,  1895,  together 
with  annexed  papers,  the  diplomatic  representatives  of  France  in 
Venezuela  never  intervened  in  favor  of  any  claim  whatever  presented 
by  the  liquidators  of  the  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de  TOrfinoque.  It  is  to 
be  observed,  on  the  other  hand,  that  in  a  dispatch  addressed  by  said 

liquidators  on  the  12th  of  September,  1901,  to  his  excellency  the 

minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  France,  they  say — 

that  they  have  been  informed  from  Caracas  that  Mr.  Qui^vreux,  the  vice-consul  of  France 
in  that  city,  who  is  in  charge  of  all  the  business  of  the  French  legation,  is  possessed  of  no 

document  whatever  concerning  the  claim  of  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  I'Or^noque,  for  whicli 
reason  he  has  been  unable  to  attend  to  it,  and  they  therefore  request  his  excellency  kindly 
to  transmit  to  Caracas,. if  necessary,  all  the  papers  referring  to  their  claim. 

It  is  therefore  perfectly  evident  that  the  diplomatic  representatives 

of  France  have  abstained  from  all  intervention  tending  to  the  invali- 
dation of  the  aforesaid  sentence  during  a  long  period  of  years,  and 

especially  so  during  the  term  of  four  years  that  elapsed  from  the  day 
on  which  the  sentence  was  pronounced  to  that  on  which  political 

relations  were  suspended  between  France  and  Venezuela  in  1895. 

What  action  did  the  liquidators  or  the  representatives  of  the  com- 
pany ever  take  during  all  the  years  following  that  of  the  sentence  to 

make  good  their  assumption  that  the  judgment  passed  was  a  notorious 
injustice  or  a  denial  of  justice  ? 

The  liquidators'  memorial  of  December,  1895,  to  the  minister  of 
foreign  affairs  of  France  states  the  facts  of  the  case  in  a  precise  man- 

ner and  defines  the  attitude  assumed  by  the  company  during  several 
years  in  consequence  of  the  sentence  that  rescinded  her  concessions 
and  condemned  her  to  the  payment  of  a  sum  of  money  and  the  costs 

of  the  suit.  Under  the  title  of  ''Applications  made  by  the  Company 
to  the  Government  of  Venezuela,''  the  aforesaid  memorial  contains 
the  following  narrative: 

From  the  year  1891,  or  nearly  four  years  hack,  all  applications  made  to  the  Venezuelan 
Grovemment,  in  order  to  obtain  &  friendly  compromise,  that  is  to  say,  to  obtain  an  indemnity, 
have  been  of  no  avail.  In  1892  there  was  a  revolution  in  Venezuela  and  the  Government 

declined  to  transact  any  business  on  the  plea  of  the  political  situation.  In  1893  General 

Crespo  came  into  power,  and  during  his  first  year  of  provisional  government  all  applications 
made  by  the  company  were  deferred  until  the  establishment  of  a  constitutional  government. 
Greneral  Crespo  was  elected  as  constitutional  president  for  a  term  of  four  years  on  the  20th  of 
February,  1894.  In  the  month  of  May  of  that  same  year  Mr.  Delort,  who  was  going  to  the 

Pacific  coast,  called  at  Carac^  to  present  his  salutations  to  General  Crespo  and  to  General 
Velutini.  .This  last  named  was  at  the  time  very  powerful,  and  Mr.  Delort  explained  to  him 

the  desirability  of  arriving  to  a  friendly  understanding  and  to  come  to  terms  as  to  the  indem- 
nity whicn  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  TOr^noque  pretended.  General  Velutini  expressed 

to  Mr.  Delort  his  willingness  to  assist  him  in  this  direction,  and  suggested  that  Mr.  Delort 

procure  from  France  the  necessary  power  of  attorney  which  would  give  him  sufficient 
authority  for  dealing  with  this  matter.  On  the  25th  of  October,  1894,  Mr.  Delort  returned 

to  Caracas,  where  full  power  of  attorney  had  been  sent  to  him,  but  General  Velutini  was  then 

in  a  very  different  frame  of  mind  and  Mr.  Delort  was  unable  to  secure  the  slightest  coopera- 
tion from  him.    Mr.  Delort  then  decided  to  apply  directly  to  General  Crespo,  who  at  the  time 
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was  in  his  country  seat  at  Maracaibo.  General  Crespo  assured  Mr.  Deloi  t,  that  if  the  com- 
pany had  really  any  rights,  justice  vxmld  he  done  to  it.  At  this  juncture  Mr.  Delort  presented 

to  Dr.  P.  E.  Rojas,  the  then  minister  of  foreign  affairs,  a  report  briefly  stating  all  the  facts 

and  the  rights  claimed  by  the  company.  Doctor  Rojas  promised  to  examine  said  document 

carefully,  for  which  purpose  he  asked  for  a  time  of  two  months.  As  Mr.  Delort  could  not 
await  in  Caracas,  he  informed  the  minister  that  he  would  come  back  to  Caracas  in  February 

or  March,  1895.  He  did  return  to  Venezuela  on  the  24th  of  May,  and  heard  at  La  Guayra 

when  he  landed  of  the  ruptui-e  of  diplomatic  relations  between  France  and  Venezuela,  which 
had  just  taken  place.  A  translation  of  this  document  presented  by  Mr.  Delort  to  the  min- 

ister of  foreign  affairs  of  Venezuela  in  November,  1894,  has  been  deposited  at  the  ministry 
of  foreign  affairs  in  Paris.  That  document  was  drafted  without  possessing  full  knowledge 

of  all  the  records  of  the  trial  that  took  place  before  the  high  Federal  court  against  the  Com- 
pagnie  G^n^rale  de  POr^noque,  and  certain  details  are  therefore  wanting  in  said  document 
(which  are  contained  in  this  memorial),  although  the  conclusions  of  said  petition  remain  in 
their  full  force. 

From  the  foregoing]:  quotation  it  will  be  seen  that  the  action  taken 

by  the  representatives  of  the  Compagnie  G^nerale  de  I'Orenoque  in 
liquidation  in  the  four  years  subsequent  to  the  sentence,  during  which 
time  the  diplomatic  relations  between  France  and  Venezuela  were  on  a 

friendly  footing,  was  simply  of  a  friendly  and  private  nature  with  pri- 
vate and  influential  individuals  and  oflicials  for  the  purpose  of  obtain- 

ing a  friendly  compromise  of  pecuniary  advantage  to  the  company,  no 
diplomatic  action  whatever  having  taken  place  during  thut  time. 
The  record  presented  to  Dr.  P.  E.  Rojas,  minister  of  foreign  affairs,  was 
not  effected  in  an  official  manner,  and  no  allusion  whatever  is  made 
which  may  convey  the  idea  that  it  was  presented  by  the  representative 

of  France  in  Venezuela,  who  was  the  properly  qualified  party  to  com- 
municate on  this  matter  with  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs.  The 

document  in  question  does  not  exist  in  the  archives  of  the  ministry  o- 
foreign  affairs,  and  it  is  to  be  presumed  that  a  document  annexed  to 

the  record  presented  to  this  commission,  marked  '^No.  106, '^  contain- 
ing 37  pages  written  in  Spanish  without  any  signature,  dated  r2th  of 

November,  1894,  which  is  said  to  have  been  addressed  to  the  minister 

of  foreign  affairs,  is  the  very  same  report  presented  by  Mr.  Delort  to 
Doctor  Rojas,  who  may  have  returned  it  to  the  former. 

This  document,  which  is  not  even  signed  by  the  person  who  pre- 
sented it,  is  simply  a  narrative  of  facts  which  took  place  from  the  time 

of  the  concessions  from  which  the  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de  TOr^noque 
originated  and  of  comments  on  the  diplomatic  incident  between 
Venezuela  and  Colombia  caused  by  the  publication  made  in  Paris  by 
the  Compagnie  Gen^rale  de  TOrfcoque  of  a  report  and  geographical 
chart  which  comprised  a  zone  of  land  which  was  sub  litis  between 
Venezuela  and  Colombia,  on  the  real  ownership  of  which  judgment  was 
pending  from  the  Spanish  Government  according  to  the  treaty  of 
arbitration  juris  of  the  14th  of  September,  1881.  This  document  of 
report  contains  the  following  among  other  statements: 

In  short,  an  association  was  formed  by  a  group  of  well-known  honorable  French  citizens 
who  placed  reliance  on  the  good  faith  of  Venezuela,  whose  word  was  solemnly  pledged  by  a 
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contract  drawn  according  to  its  laws  for  carrying  into  execution  an  arduous  onterprise, 

which  was  chiefly  to  be  to  the  honor  and  benefit  of  the  country.  Some  very  important  work 
was  done,  as  well  as  the  very  difficult  task  of  establishing  steam  navigation  between  Ciudad 

Bolivar  and  Brazil.  But  the  Venezuelan  Grovemment,  which  had  pledged  their  signature 
either  by  error  or  by  omission,  realizing  then  by  the  urgent  claims  of  Ck)lorobia,  as  well  as 

by  the  arbitration  sentence  pronounced  by  Spain,  that  they  had  had  no  right  to  grant  con- 
cessions on  territory  which  they  did  not  possess,  found  no  other  way  for  withdrawing  from 

an  awkward  position  than  to  rescind  their  contract  with  the  company,  taking  no  heed  of 

the  serious  damages  caused  by  such  an  action  to  the  other  party  in  the  contract.  It  is  there- 
fore but  just  and  equitable  as  well  as  honorable  for  the  Republic  that  this  group  of  foreigners 

who  brought  their  capital  to  this  country  in  good  faith  under  a  contract  should  receive  an 

indemnity  for  damages  they  have  sustained. 

Further  in  the  report  it  is  stated : 

There  can  be  no  doubt  as  to  the  responsibility  inherited  by  this  Government  from  the  for- 
mer administration,  orving  to  the  want  of  loyalty  shown  at  the  time  the  contract  was  drawn  where 

the  Colombian  claim  was  kept  in  concealment  and  allowing  the  company  to  proceed  with  its 

work  to  invest  its  capital  and  to  make  colossal  efforts  in  order  to  comply  with  its  obliga- 
tions, and  owing  to  the  proceedings  of  the  Government  even  before  the  malicious  and  baseless 

suit  for  rescission  of  the  contract  was  entered  and  had  been  sentenced  by  the  high  Federal 

court  proceedings,  which  were  contrary  to  law,  to  universal  justice,  to  all  sound  principles, 
and  to  the  very  interest  of  the  country,  and  by  the  force  of  which  the  company  was  ruined 

and  all  the  elements  of  progress  and  civilization  which  were  to  benefit  and  improve  those 

territories  were  misapplied  and  frittered  away. 

The  violent  language  used  in  this  report  and  the  oflFenses  therein 
addressed  to  the  Government  of  the  Republic  explain  why  it  was  that 
the  same  was  returned  to  its  author  and  why  no  traces  were  left  of  its 
passage  through  the  hand  of  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs. 

To  refute  the  assertions  contained  in  said  report  with  reference  to 
the  boundary  question  with  Colombia,  it  will  be  sufficient  to  quote  in 
extenso  the  reply  of  Mr.  Delort  on  the  23d  of  September,  1888,  to  the 
minister  of  f  omento,  when  the  former  was  asked  by  the  latter  to  explain 
the  cause  of  the  publication  made  by  the  company  in  Paris  of  a  report 
and  a  map  in  which  a  certain  territory  which  had  been  submitted  to  the 
decision  of  an  arbitrator  appointed  by  Venezuela  and  Colombia  appeared 
as  having  been  granted  to  the  Compagriie  GeneraU  de  VOrenoque  by  the 
Government  of  Venezuela, 

The  dispatch  of  the  minister  of  fomento  to  which  Mr.  Delort  replied 
is  as  follows : 

No.  452.]  Department  op  Territorial  Wealth, 
Caracas,  18  September,  1888, 

To  Mr.  Delort, 

Concessionary  for  the  Exploitation  of  the  Territories  Upper  Orinoco  and  Arrmzonas. 
Under  date  of  15th  instant  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  has  officially  transmitted  the 

following  to  this  ministry: 
"Caracas,  15th  September,  1888. 

"  Sir  :  The  envoy  extraordinary  of  Colombia  has  entered  a  claim  against  the  publica- 
tion of  a  geographical  chart  and  a  report  by  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  POr^noque  of  the 

Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas,  containing  a  description  of  the  boundaries  of  their  conces- 
sions in  which  are  comprised,  as  granted  to  said  company,  vast  territories  which  are  sub 
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lite  between  Colombia  and  Venezuela.  Consequently  and  with  a  view  to  examine  said 

report  and  chart,  I  trust  that  you  will  remit  them  to  me,  if  you  are  possessed  with  them,  or 

that  you  will  kindly  request  the  representative  of  the  company  to  fqmish  you  with  same, 
as  well  as  with  his  own  report  on  the  subject,  should  these  documents  not  exist  in  your 

(office.  I  transmit  this  communication  to  you  in  order  that  you  remit  to  me  the  informa- 
tion  required. 

* '  ( Signed )  Coronado.  ' ' 
Mr.  Delort's  reply  is  as  follows: 

"  Caracas,  Wth  September,  1888. 
''To  Minister  of  Fomento. 

"  Monsieur  le  Ministre:  I  have  had  the  honor  to  receive  youY  dispatch  dated  the  18th 
instant,  to  which  I  now  reply.  When  the  company  of  the  Upper  Orinoco  was  formed  a 

report  was  drafted  in  Paris  for  distribution  only  among  the  shareholders.  In  said  report 
the  concessions  tran^erred  to  the  company  by  Mr.  Tejera  were  inserted  as  well  as  an  abstract 
of  the  articles  of  association  and  divers  information  on  the  natural  products  to  be  exploited 

as  per  the  terms  of  the  contract.  To  that  report  a  map  was  annexed  in  order  that  the  share- 
holders should  know  the  location  of  the  territories  granted  to  the  company /or  exploitation. 

That  map  is  a  copy  of  the  one  annexed  to  the  statistical  bulletin  published  in  several  lan- 
^ages  by  the  Government  of  Venezuela.  This  report  does  not  deal  with  the  boundaries 

l)etween  Colombia  and  Venezuela  nor  vnth  a  va^st  expanse  of  territory  granted  to  the  company, 
but  only  vnth  the  natural  products  of  the  extensive  region  of  the  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas. 

The  company  knows  that  the  boundaries  between  Colombia  and  Venezuela  are  sub  litis,  sub- 
mitted to  the  arbitration  of  the  Spanish  Government.  The  company  therefore  lays  no  claim 

on  this  point;  and  as  she  holds  her  concession  from  the  Government  cf  Venezuela,  she  is  well 
aware  that  she  has  to  conform  to  the  final  boundary  fixed  to  the  Republic.  Up  to  the  present 

time  the  company  has  extended  her  exploitation  only  to  localities  under  the  jurisdiction  of 
Venezuelan  authorities  and  her  agencies,  stores  and  others  are  situated  at  Atines,Maipures, 
San  Fernando,  San  Cdrlos,  and  the  Brazilian  boundary,  and  our  steamboats  are  plying  only 
on  the  Orinoco,  the  Casiquaipe,  and  the  Guainia.  I  regret  not  to  be  able  to  send  you  the 

report  referred  to,  but  two  copies  of  same  must  have  been  forwarded  to  you  by  the  agent 
of  the  company  in  this  city  and  should  be  in  your  possession.  I  trust.  Monsieur  le  Ministre, 
that  the  explanation  which  I  have  the  honor  to  submit  to  you  will  be  satisfactory,  and  I  trust 

as  well  that  you  will  appreciate  our  good  faith  on  this  matter. 

"  With  the  highest  consideration,  I  remain,  Monsieur  le  Ministre. 

"  (Signed. )  Th.  Delort."  ' 
If  the  wording  of  this  communication  is  compared  with  that  of  the 

report  addressed  by  the  very  same  representative  of  the  company  in 
1894  to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  Venezuela  and  with  that  of 
the  memorial  addressed  in  1895  by  the  liquidators  of  the  company 
to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  France,  when  reference  is  made 
in  both  documents  to  the  boundary  question  with  Colombia,  the  acts 
of  the  representatives  of  the  company  may  be  appreciated  in  their 
true  meaning  and  value;  but  in  spite  of  all,  the  plain  and  steadfast 
avowal  made  by  the  representative  of  the  company  remains  unaltered, 

viz — 
that  the  company  knows  that  the  boundaries  between  Colombia  and  Venezuela  are  sub  lite 
submitted  to  the  arbitration  of  the  King  of  Spain,  and  that  the  company,  therefore,  lays  no 

claim  on  this  heading  and  is  well  aware  that  she  has  to  conform  to  the  boundaries  which 
may  be  definitely  fixed. 

Nor  could  the  company  be  ignorant  of  this,  as  she  had  been  finally 
constituted  on  the  12th  of  March  of  that  same  year  and  she  had  been 
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formed  according  to  the  articles  of  association  published  in  Paris  with 

the  property  of  the  concession  belonging  to  Mr,  Tejera^  a  Venezuelan 
citizen,  who  had  acquired  it  from  Gen.  Guzman  Blanco,  an  interest 
on  40  per  cent  of  the  profits  having  been  adjudged  to  Mr.  Tejera, 
according  to  articles  6  and  9  of  said  articles  of  association.  Could 

it  be  likely  that  Mr.  Tejera,  a  Venezuelan  engineer  and  ex-minister 
of  public  works,  during  one  of  the  terms  of  power  of  Gen.  Guzmdn 
Blanco,  from  whom  he  had  obtained  the  said  concession,  would  not 
be  well  aware  of  all  the  details  referring  to  the  boundary  question 
with  Colombia  which  had  been  submitted  since  1881  by  Gen.  Guzmdn 

Blanco  to  the  arbitrio  juris  of  the  King  of  Spain  ? 
The  author  of  the  report  addressed  to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs 

of  Venezuela  on  the  12th  of  November,  1894,  asserts,  on  page  25 — 
that  the  Government  of  Dr.  Andueza  Palacio  blundered  in  like  manner  to  his  predecessors, 

that  nothing  had  been  communicated  to  the  company  with  the  intention  of  keeping  from  her  all 
knowledge  of  the  claim  of  Colombia,  and  that  it  was  evident  that  the  Venezuelan  Government 
knew  they  were  wrong  on  this  point  toward  the  company  and  toward  Colombia. 

But  it  was  necessary  to  give  some  reply  to  Colombia,  whose  protests 

and*  claims  were  daily  growing  more  pressing,  and  a  means  was  devised 
for  withdrawing  from  the  embarrassing  position  caused  by  the  con- 

tract of  1885. 

These  assertions  were  repeated  later  on  in  December,  1895,  in  the 
memorial  presented  in  Paris  by  the  liquidators  of  the  company  to  the 
minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  France  and  were  complemented  with  the 

following  statements: 

Equity  and  justice,  as  well  as  the  honor  of  Venezuela,  impose  on  thfe  government  of  Caracas 

the  obligation  to  pay  an  indemnity  to  those  parties  who  in  good  faith  have  invested  their 

capital  in  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  I'Or^noque  and  who  have  been  deceived  from  beginning 
to  end. 

The  grave  nature  of  these  charges  preferred  against  the  Govern- 
ment of  Venezuela,  in  order  to  base  on  them  the  right  to  a  pecuniary 

indemnity  in  favor  of  certain  parties  pretending  to  have  been  the 
victims  of  deceit  from  beginning  to  end,  imposes  on  the  Venezuelan 
commissioner  the  task  of  throwing  full  light  on  the  truth  of  this  matter 
as  to  what  refers  to  the  claim  of  Colombia,  which  the  company  alleges 
was  kept  in  concealment  by  the  governments  preceding  that  of  Dr. 
Andueza  Palacio. 

It  is  altogether  inaccurate  that  the  governments  preceding  that 
of  Dr.  Andueza  Palacio  had  communicated  nothing  to  the  Orinoco 

Company  with  the  purpose  of  Tceeping  from  her  Tcnowledge  the  claim 

of  Colombia, 
Shortly  after  the  formation  in  Paris  of  the  syndicate  which  was 

to  be  the  J)asis  for  the  constitution  of  a  limited  company  in  favor 
of  which  the  concession  of  Mr.  Tejera  was  to  be  transferred,  a  report  of 
fifteen  pages  was  published  in  the  city  of  Paris  on  the  concessions  of  the 
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Compagnie  Generale  de  VOrenoque  under  formation,  and  annexed  to  it 
was  an  abstract  of  the  articles  of  association  of  said  company,  together 
with  a  map  comprising  the  navigable  waterways  within  the  territory 
granted.  This  report  on  the  territory  granted  was  drawn,  as  stated, 
by  Mr.  Delort  in  his  reply  to  the  minister  of  fomento  of  Venezuela, 

under  date  of  25th  of  September,  1888,  solely  for  the  use  of  the  share- 
holders of  the  company  which  they  had  the  intention  of  forming,  and 

the  geographical  chart  was  annexed  to  it  with  the  purpose  that  said 

shareholders  should  know  where  the  territory  granted  to  the  com- 
pany was  located. 

In  a  dispatch  dated  in  Bogota,  on  the  28th  of  October,  1887,  the 
minister  of  Colombia  called  the  attention  of  the  minister  of  foreign 

affairs  of  Venezuela — 

to  a  report  published  in  Paris  by  a  French  company  on  the  subject  of  certain  concessions 
which  were  said  to  have  been  granted  by  the  Grovernraent  of  Venezuela  on  the  territories  of 

the  upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas  belonging  to  the  Republic  of  Venezuela  and  to  a  chart 
annexed  to  that  report,  in  which  the  western  boundaries  of  said  territories  were  fixed  in  such 

a  manner  as  to  comprise  within  them  the  large  zone  which  was  sub  litis  between  Venezuela 
and  Colombia,  the  real  ownership  of  which  was  yet  to  be  decided  by  the  sentence  of  the 

Spanish  Government  according  to  the  terms  of  the  treaty  of  arbitration  juris  of  the  14th  of 
December,  1881. 

This  dispatch  ends  as  follows: 

It  is  clear  that  neither  of  the  two  Governments  can  grant  any  valid  concession  on  these 

lands,  and  it  is  likewise  evident  that  the  error  of  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  I'Or^noque  is 
due  to  their  having  made  reference  to  geographical  or  statistical  data  previous  to  the  treaty 

of  1881  aforesaid,  by  virtue  of  which  that  zone  is  not  only  made  debatable,  but  is  to  be  defined 

by  a  special  arbitration  in  exclusive  manner. 

The  importance  of  these  observations  from  the  minister  of  Colombia 

could  not  escape  our  then  minister  of  foreign  affairs,  Dr.  Diego  Bau- 
tista  Urbaneja,  who  had  been  counsel  to  the  company  from  the  very 
beginning,  as  evidenced  from  the  payments  made  to  him  by  the  mint 
of  Caracas  on  the  28th  of  February,  1888,  28th  of  April,  and  30th  of 
May,  and  at  the  end  of  each  successive  month  for  professional  services, 

(account  of  the  Company  *^  La  Monnaie  ̂ '  with  the  Compagnie  G6n6rale 
de  rOr6noque,  voucher  3),  and  consequently  a  dispatch,  dated  the 
25th  of  November,  1887,  was  addressed  to  the  minister  of  fomento 
requesting  the  necessary  information  and  report  aforesaid  for  replying 
to  the  minister  of  Colombip,.  The  minister  of  fomento  replied  to  the 
minister  of  foreign  affairs  that  the  aforesaid  report  had  never  been 

sent  to  his  department.  (Secretary's  record  of  the  ministry  of  fomento 
referring  to  the  contract  Guzmto-Tejera,  transmitted  to  the  high  fed- 

eral court  to  be  annexed  to  the  record  of  the  suit  against  the  Com- 
pagnie G^n^rale  de  TOr^noque.)  / 

Mr.  Delort,  who  was  director  in  Venezuela  of  the  works  started  by 
the  syndicate  and  the  only  representative  of  the  company  with  whom 
the  Government  of  Venezuela  had  had  any  dealing  up  to  the  present, 
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was  in  Paris  at  the  time  these  events  were  taking  place.  When  he 

returned  to  Caracas  in  December,  1887  (memorial  of  the  3d  of  Decem- 
ber, 1895,  p.  24),  where  he  remained  a  few  days,  he  proceeded  to  Ciudad 

Bolivar,  there  to  attend  to  the  work  of  organization. 
Since  February,  1888,  Doctor  Urbaneja  was  receiving  from  the 

^^Soci^te  de  la  Monnaie  (the  mint)  the  payment  of  fees  for  professional 
services  rendered  to  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  TOr^noque  during  the 
administration  of  General  Lopez,  and  it  is  therefore  not  likely  that 
from  that  period  of  transition  to  the  coming  into  power  of  Dr..Rojas 

Paul,  which  took  place  in  July  of  same  year,  Mr.  Delort  would  be  igno- 
rant of  the  claim  of  Colombia,  his  own  counsel  being  the  identical 

person  who  had  received  the  dispatch  on  the  subject  from  the  foreign 
office  of  Colombia.  As  soon  as  Dr.  Rojas  Paul  had  been  installed  in 
power  his  minister  of  foreign  affairs  received  on  the  9th  of  August,  1888, 
a  confidential  memorandum  from  the  minister  of  Colombia  in  Caracas, 
in  which  he  was  reminded  of  the  dispatch  of  the  28th  of  October, 
1887,  for  replying  to  which  Doctor  Urbaneja,  when  minister  of  foreign 
affairs  in  November,  1887,  had  solicited  from  the  minister  of  fomento 
the  map  and  report  referred  to  in  said  dispatch,  which  map  and  report 
the  said  minister  of  fomento  had  been  unable  to  remit  because  they 

did  not  exist  in  his  department.  For  replying  to  the  confidential 
memorandum  of  the  9th  of  August,  1888,  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs 
addressed  another  dispatch,  under  date  of  the  15th  of  September,  1888, 
to  the  minister  of  fomento,  requesting  once  more  the  remittance  of  the 
said  report  and  map  in  case  these  had  already  reached  his  department, 
and,  if  not,  requesting  that  he  would  ask  the  representative  of  the 
company  for  said  documents  and  a  report  on  this  subject.  (Dispatch 
previously  inserted) .  This  was  transmitted  by  the  minister  of  fomento 
to  Mr.  Delort  under  date  of  the  18th  of  September,  1888,  to  which  he 
replied  in  the  terms  of  his  communication  of  the  20th  of  the  same 

month,  which  has  already  been  reproduced  in  extenso.  This  exchange 
of  dispatches  was  taking  place  at  the  beginning  of  the  administration 
of  Dr.  Rojas  Patil,  one  year  and  a  half  befbre  Dr.  Andueza  Palacio 
came  into  power  in  March,  1890,  and  in  spite  of  this  the  representative 
of  the  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de  TOr^noque  and  the  liquidators  of  the 
same  have  not  hesitated  to  assure  to  a  high  official  of  the  French 

Republic,  its  minister  of  foreign  affairs,  in  the  memorial  before  men- 
tioned— 

that  the  Goverament  of  Dr.  Andueza  Palacio  blundered  in  like  manner  as  his  predecessors, 

that  nothing  had  been  communicated  to  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  I'Or^noque,  not  wish- 
ing to  bring  to  her  knowledge  the  claim  of  Colombia. 

A  claim  which  is  based  on  this  sort  of  argument  is  judged  and  sen- 
tenced by  itself. 

Apart  from  the  inconsistency  and  lack  of  truth  of  the  assumption 

of  the  company  that  the  Venezuelan  Governments  kept  in  conceal- 
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ment  the  claim  of  Colombia  with  reference  to  publications  made  by 

the  syndicate  of  the  company  of  the  Orinoco  what  took  place  between 
the  Venezuelan  and  the  Colombian  foreign  offices  did  not  in  any  way 
alter  the  essence  of  the  contract  between  the  Government  of  Venezuela 

and  Mr.  Miguel  Tejera,  which  was  simply  for  the  exploitation  of  the 
natural  products  of  the  territories  of  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas,  and 
which  neither  meant  to  convey  the  alienation  of  any  lands  nor  fixed 

any  boundaries. 
This  concession  comprised  an  extension  of  territory  several  times 

larger  than  the  zone  of  land  coterminous,  on  the  western  part  of  the 
Republic,  with  Colombia,  submitted  to  the  award  of  the  King  of  Spain. 
The  extension  of  those  territories  comprised  very  nearly  25,000,000 
hectares,  thickly  wooded  from  the  rapids  of  Maipures  to  the  BraziUan 
boundary  toward  the  south  and  to  the  Republic  of  Colombia  toward 

the  east.  The  justice  and  the*accuracy  of  this  appreciation  are  acknowl- 
edged by  the  very  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de  TOr^noque  in  the  reply  of 

her  representative  to  the  minister  of  f  omen  to,  in  which  they  say: 

The  company  lays  no  claim  whatever  with  reference  to  the  boundary  question  with  Colom- 
bia, as  she  is  well  aware  that  she  has  to  conform  to  the  limits  which  may  ultimately  be  fixed 

to  the  Republic  of  Venezuela. 

The  good  faith  with  which  Venezuela  held  in  her  possession,  as 
belonging  to  her,  a  certain  zone  of  lands  which  was  afterwards  awarded 
by  the  arbitrator  to  Colombia  precludes  all  responsibility  from  the 
Government  in  the  concession  in  question,  which  was  never  intended 

to  convey  any  definite  alienation,  but  simply  the  exploitation  of  nat- 
ural products  in  those  localities  where  Venezuelan  settlements  existed 

under  the  jurisdiction  of  Venezuelan  authorities. 

This  declaration,  which  is  altogether  in  accordance  with  the  princi- 
ples of  international  law,  is  concretely  embodied  in  the  award  of  the 

arbitrator  on  the  boundary  question  with  Colombia  in  the  following 
words: 

Whereas,  according  to  the  agreement  signed  by  the  parties  the  award  is  to  fix  the  limits  or 
boundaries,  which  in  the  year  1810  existed  between  the  then  general  captaincy  of  Venezuela, 

to-day  the  United  States  of  Venezuela,  and  the  viceroyalty  of  Santa  F6,  to-day  the  Republic 
of  Colombia; 

Whereas  the  law  functions  assigned  to  the  arbitrator  by  the  treaty  of  Caracas  of  the  14th 
of  September,  1881,  were  enlarged  by  the  declaration  of  Paris  of  the  15th  of  February,  1886, 

so  that  the  boundary  line  should  be  fixed  in  the  best  manner,  as  nearly  as  possible,  according 
to  the  existing  documents,  whenever  these  documents  throw  not  sufficient  light  on  a  given 

point; 
Considering  that,  for  the  better  understanding,  section  6  (Orinoco  and  Rio  Negro  line)  can 

be  divided  into  two  parts,  viz,  from  the  Meta  to  Maipures,  and  from  Maipures  to  the  bowlder 
called  Cocuy; 

Considering  that  the  starting  point  and  the  legal  base  for  determining  the  boundary  line 

in  part  second  of  the  6th  section  is  the  real  c^dula  (royal  decree)  of  the  5th  of  May,  1768, 

on  the  real  meaning  of  which  there  is  a  disparity  of  opinion  between  the  two  high  con- 
tracting parties; 
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Considering  that  the  terms  of  the  aforesaid  real  c^dula  are  not  as  clear  and  precise  as  nec- 
essary in  this  class  of  documents  so  as  to  base  exclusively  on  same  a  decision  juris; 

Considering  therefore  that  the  arbitrator  is  confronted  with  the  case  foreseen  by  the  decla- 
ration of  Paris  before  mentioned; 

Considering  that  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  possess  in  good  faith  territories  to  the 

west  of  the  OrinocOf  the  Casiquiare  and  the  Rio  Negro,  which  rivers  form  the  boundaries 

assigned  on  that  side  to  the  province  of  Guayana,  by  the  said  real  c^dula  of  1768; 
Considering  that  in  said  territories  there  exist  very  important  Venezuelan  settlements  which 

have  been  fostered  in  the  bona  fide  belief  that  they  were  located  within  the  dominions  of  the 
United  States  of  Venezuela,  and  lastly, 

Considering  that  the  rivers  Atabapo  and  Rio  Negro  form  a  natural,  clear,  and  precise  fron- 
^.  tier,  with  the  only  interruption  of  a  few  kilometers  from  Yavita  to  Pimichfn  thus  to  keep 

clear  of  the  respective  boundaries  of  these  two  villages; 

I  have  to  come  to  declare  that  the  boundary  line  debated  between  the  Republic  of  Colom- 
bia and  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  is  now  defined  in  the  following  manner:    *    *    * 

Section  6,  Part  I.  From  the  mouth  of  the  river  Meta  in  the  Orinoco  down  the  stream  of 

this  last  to  the  rapids  of  Maipures,  but  always  having  consideration  to  the  fact  that  the  village 
of  Aturesfrom  the  time  of  its  foundation  has  made  use  of  a  road  which  is  on  the  left  bank  of 
the  Orinoco  f9r  the  purpose  of  turning  the  rapids  from  the  said  village  ofAtures  to  the  harbor 

or  port  situated  to  the  south  of  Maipures,  opposite  to  the  hill  called  Macuriana,  toward  the 

north  of  the  mouth  of  river  Vichada;  the  aforesaid  incumbrance  or  right  of  way  is  here  expressly 

assigned  in  favor  of  Venezuela,  the  same  incumbrance  to  cease  twenty-five  years  after  the  publi- 
cation of  this  award  or  as  soon  as  a  road  be  made  in  Venezuelan  territory  which  may  render 

unnecessary  the  traffic  along  the  Colombian  road,  the  two  interested  parties  having  the  right 
to  regulate  by  common  consent  the  use  of  this  incumbrance.  (From  the  Official  Gazette  of 
Madrid,  7th  of  March,  1891.) 

As  may  be  seen  from  the  preceding  award,  the  arbitrator  expressly- 
acknowledged  that  Venezuela  had  possessed  in  good  faith  a  portion  of 
the  territory  ndjudged  to  Colombia,  and  in  consequence  he  established 
in  favor  of  Venezuela  the  use  of  way  between  Atures  and  Maipures 

along  the  left  bank  of  the  Orinoco  for  a  period  of  twenty-five  years,  to 
be  counted  from  the  publication  of  the  award.  This  decision  would 

have  given  full  security  of  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  TOr^noque,  had 
it  at  the  time  carried  out  her  obligation  to  construct  a  railway  line 
which  was  to  divert  the  hindrance  of  the  rapids  of  Atures  and  Maipures 
and  to  facilitate  the  steam  navigation  of  the  Orinoco. 

Having  demonstrated  that  the  charges  preferred  against  the  Vene- 
zuelan Governments  and  their  proceedings  toward  the  Compagnie 

G6n6rale  de  POr^noque  with  reference  to  the  Colombian  boundary 
question  are  devoid  of  all  bases,  and  having  also  demonstrated  that 
the  judgment  passed  by  the  high  Federal  court  in  the  suit  entered  for 
rescission  of  the  contracts  granted  to  said  company  for  the  exploitation 

of  the  natural  products  of  the  territories  of  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazo- 
nas  and  for  the  exploitation  of  the  tonca  beans  (sarrapia)  on  the  terri- 

tories conterminous  with  Brazil  and  British  Guiana,  was  a  sentence 

pronoimced  by  that  tribunal  after  having  complied  with  all  the  legal 
prescriptions  of  the  code  of  procedure  then  in  force,  and  in  everyway 
in  accordance  with  the  fundamental  laws  then  in  force  in  Venezuela, 
the  Venezuelan  commissioner  considers  that  said  sentence  is  valid  and 
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affirmed,  and  that  it  has  been  acknowledged  and  accepted  by  the  Com- 
pagnie  G6n6rale  de  TOr^noque,  since  this  company  did  not  in  due  time, 

according  to  the  law,  make  use  of  her  right  to  appeal  in  order  to  invali- 
date same. 

After  due  examination  of  the  fundamental  part  of  this  sentence,  and 

after  analyzing  all  the  evidence  produced  by  the  contending  parties,  it 
is  evident  that  the  verdict  of  the  high  Federal  court,  in  administering 
justice  on  behalf  of  the  Republic  and  by  authority  of  the  law,  was 
entirely  adjusted  to  the  prescriptions  of  the  civil  code  on  rescission  of 

contracts,  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  I'Or^noque  not  having  complied 
with  any  of  the  obligations  under  Nos.  1,  2,  3,  4,  5,  6,  7,  and  9  of  article 
2  of  the  contract  of  the  17th  of  December,  1885,  nor  with  any  of  the 

stipulations  3d,  4th,  and  5th  of  the  contract  of  the  1st  of  April,  1887, 
and  as  a  consequence  of  which  rescission  the  tribunal  condemned  the 

Compagnie  G6n6rale  de  I'Or^noque  to  pay  to  the  Venezuelan  Govern- 
ment the  sum  of  40,048.62  francs  for  damages,  besides  the  eosts  of  the 

suit. 

Two  days  after  the  financial  representative  of  the  Government 
(fiscal  nacional  de  hacienda)  entered  before  the  high  Federal  court  the 

suit  against  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  TOrfeoque  a  general  meeting 
of  shareholders  of  said  company  was  taking  place  in  Paris,  on  the  30th 

of  May,  1890,  in  which  a  resolution  was  passed  for  the  purpose  of  con- 

veiting  the  Compagnie  Gen^rale  de  TOr^noque  into  an  English  com- 

pany, under  the  name  of  ''Orinoco  Exploration  and  Trading  Com- 
pany," which  meeting  likewise  resolved  to  dissolve  and  wind  up  the 

company  and  appointed  liquidators.  In  the  memorial  presented  by  the 
licjuidators  of  the  company  on  the  5th  of  December,  1895,  reference  is 
made  to  the  aforesaid  dissolution,  after  the  following  statements: 

The  board  of  directors  had  many  debtors  and  they  hesitated  therefore  to  collect  the  har- 
vest of  1890,  but  yielding  to  the  representations  of  their  agents  they  furnished  the  necessary 

funds  in  agreement  with  a  Liverpool  firm  who  sent  out  their  special  agent,  Mr.  Staedelli. 

The  position  of  the  company  in  Paris  was  very  painful,  as  its  credit  had  been  totally 
exhausted.  All  efforts  made  in  France  proved  to  be  of  no  avail,  while  in  England  confidence 
was  not  lost  and  it  was  possible  to  go  on  there  with  the  business.  The  board  of  directors 
therefore  willingly  considered  a  proposition  from  England  for  the  cx)nstitution  of  a  company 
in  London,  to  which  all  the  assets,  contracts,  material,  works,  etc.,  of  the  Compagnie  G6n^ 

rale  de  I'Or^noque  would  be  transferred. 

No  mention  is  made  in  this  memorial  of  the  liabilities  of  the  com- 

pany, although  it  may  be  inferred  from  their  own  statements  that  they 
must  have  been  considerable,  as  the  credit  of  the  company  was  exhausted 
in  Paris  and  all  efforts  in  France  seemed  of  no  avail. 

In  the  accounts  annexed  to  the  petition  presented  by  the  Uquidators 
of  the  company  on  the  10th  of  July,  1902,  to  the  minister  of  foreign 

affairs  of  France,  which  fixes  their  claim  against  the  Venezuelan  Gov- 
ernment in  the  sum  of  7,616,098.62  francs,  will  be  found  the  following 
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items  referring  to  the  liabilities  of  the  company  on  the  30th  of  May, 
1890: 

Francs. 

1 .  To  the  shareholders    1 ,  500, 000. 00 

2.  To  the  Soci^t^  de  la  Monnaie    722, 851 .  56 
3.  La  Banque  de  Consignations    236, 356. 00 

4.  Mr.  Alfred  Chauvelot    191, 176. 00 

5.  Mr.  Eugene  Ferminac    63, 000. 00 
6.  Mr.  Louis  Roux    13, 059.  55 
7.  Mr.  Theodor  Delort    14, 641.  26 

Total    2 ,  74 1 ,  084 .  37 

In  this  amoimt  interest  on  the  different  credit  balances  is  not 

included.  The  company  had,  therefore,  on  the  30th  of  May,  1890, 

debits  amounting  in  total  to  almost  as  much  as  the  capital  of  the  com- 
pany, equal  to  1^500,000  francs. 

Out  of  thfc  capital,  600,000  francs  had  been  allotted  to  Mr.  Chauve- 
lot, in  1,200  shares  (fully  paid)  of  500  francs  each,  which  were 

deducted  from  the  3,000  shares  which  formed  the  capital  of  the 
company. 

Mr.  Bricard,  who  had  been  appointed  auditor  in  the  first  general 
meeting  of  the  9th  of  March,  1888,  presented  a  report  dated  in  Paris 
the  10th  of  March,  1888,  in  which  he  emits  his  opinion  in  reference  to 
the  valuation  given  to  the  contributions  brought  to  the  company  by 
Messrs.  Miguel  Tejera,  Chauvelot,  and  Th.iDelort. 

The  contribution  of  Messrs.  Tejera  and  Delort  consisted  in  the 

concesisons  granted  by  the  Government  of  Venezuela  for  the  exploita- 
tion of  the  natural  productions  of  the  Territories  of  the  Upper  Ori- 
noco and  Amazonas,  and  for  the  exclusive  purchase  and  sale  of  all  the 

tonca  beans  (sarrapia)  of  the  territory  between  the  Orinoco,  Brazil, 
and  British  Guiana.  In  consideration  of  these  contributions  Messrs. 

Tejera  and  Delort  had  an  interest  of  40  per  cent  and  20  per  cent,  res- 
pectively, on  the  dividends  to  be  distributed. 

The  contribution  of  Mr.  Alfred  Chauvelot  consisted  in  the  following: 

First.  The  plant  belonging  to  him,  and  principally  the  steam 
laimches  and  boats  of  other  kind,  the  rolling  stock,  etc.,  in  short,  all 
the  goods  bought  by  him  for  the  intended  exploitation. 

Second.  All  the  works  already  completed,  such  as  houses,  stores, 

offices,  shops,  etc.,  erected  on  the  different  agencies,  and  the  actual 
organization  of  the  exploitation,  which  included  the  contracts  and 
agreements  with  the  various  agents  and  employees. 

Third.  The  assets  and  UabiUties  of  the  company,  including  all  goods 
on  deposit  or  in  transit,  as  well  as  the  ingress  and  egress  necessary  for 
the  purchase  or  sale  of  goods,  or  effects,  etc.,  for  the  upkeep  of  the 

personnel. 
Fourth.  The  agreement  signed  with  several  commercial  agents  for 

the  purchase  and  sale  of  goods  in  Europe  and  America. 
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The  opinion  of  the  auditor  with  reference  to  the  contribution  of  Mr. 
Chauvelot,  in  consideration  of  which  he  was  allotted  1,200  shares  of 

500  francs  each,  is  expressed  in  the  following  words: 

A  sum  of  300,000  francs  without  any  interest  and  without  any  guaranty  was  placed  at 

the  disposal  of  the  explorers,  and  in  consideration  of  this  loan  and  of  the  penalties  and  priva- 
tions suffered  by  Mr.  Chauvelot  and  his  friends  (who  had  derived  from  this  enterprise  no  bene- 

fit whatever,  either  direct  or  indirect,  and  who  relinquished  in  favor  of  the  company  any 
benefits  accruing  from  the  sale  of  products  exported  up  to  date)  1,200  shares  were 

allotted  to  him.  I  must  add  that  the  expenses  incurred  up  to  date  far  exceed  the  said 

sum  of  300,000  francs,  but  said  expenses  are  already  incurred  and  they  are  repre- 
sented by  the  plant  and  the  work  performed.  These  expenses  had  to  be  made  and  they 

will  be  beneficial  to  the  company,  who  would  have  been  obliged  to  incur  the  same  after  she 

had  been  constituted.  It  is  therefore  only  right  that  the  company  liquidate  these  supple- 
mentary expenses  at  her  own  risk  and  peril  and  take  them  over. 

The  amount  of  these  expenses,  which  were  represented  by  plant  and 
work  performed,  is  said  far  to  exceed  the  sum  of  300,000  francs  loaned 

by  Mr.  Chauvelot,  but  the  exact  figure  is  not  given.  From  the  exami- 
nation of  the  accounts  presented  by  the  Soci6t6  de  la  Monnaie  it 

appears  that  on  the  10th  of  March,  1888,  when  the  auditor  presented 
his  report,  the  syndicate  of  the  Haut  Or6noque  was  raising  the  sum  of 
491,846  francs,  not  counting  interest  from  the  1st  of  January  of  same 
year ;  that  on  that  date  the  account  was  commenced  with  a  debit  balance 
of  499,523.69  francs;  that  the  account  of  theBanque  des Consignations 
commenced  on  the  1st  oKJanuary,  1890,  with  a  debit  balance  of 
285,900.70  francs  and  was  increased  with  interest  to  the  31st  of  March, 
1890,  amounting  to  3,849.59  francs,  and  with  31.75  francs,  Mr. 

Brumeaux's  fees  for  a  summons,  and  with  13  francs  for  dispatches  to 
London  and  to  New  York. 

The  foregoing  shows  that  when  the  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de  TOr^no- 
que  was  constituted  with  a  capital  of  1,500,000  francs,  a  sum  of 
600,000  francs  in  fully  paid  up  shares  was  allotted  to  Mr.  Chauvelot  in 
consideration  of  his  loan  of  300,000  francs,  which  was  represented  in 
plant,  steam  launches,  and  preliminary  work  for  establishing  the 
navigation  of  the  Orinoco,  which  really  constituted  the  working  capital 
of  the  company;  that  this  working  capital  had  really  cost  a  suta  in 
excess  of  the  300,000  francs  loaned  by  Mr.  Chauvelot  and  that  the 

company  undertook  to  liquidate  the  same  and  to  take  it  over  at  her 
own  risk  and  peril;  that  according  to  the  abstract  of  account  of  the 
Soci6t6  de  la  Monnaie,  the  syndicate  was  owing  to  that  society  the  sum 
of  491,486  francs,  which  was  partially  paid  off  during  the  course  of 
that  year  with  bills  of  exchange  and  cash,  and  that  said  account  was 
thus  reduced  on  the  31st  of  December,  1888,  to  the  sum  of  284,673.29 
francs,  inclusive  of  interest  amoimting  to  28,427.85  francs.  The  sum 
of  900,000  francs  paid  in  by  the  shareholders,  besides  the  600,000  francs 
allotted  to  Mr.  Chauvelot,  were  absorbed  by  the  Uquidation  of  the 
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debts  of  the  syndicate  and  by  the  requirements  of  the  trading  of  the 

society  in  buying  and  seUing  goods,  exporting  products,  employees,  and 
general  expenses ;  and  no  evidence  exists  to  show  that  any  part  of  that 
sum  of  money  had  been  invested  as  contracted  by  the  company  in  the 

construction  of  two  railway  lines,  in  the  sending  out  of  a  scientific  com- 
mission for  the  study  of  the  natural  products  and  minerals  existing  in 

the  territories,  nor  in  the  introduction  of  immigrants,  or  the  building  of 
chapels  and  schools  in  every  village  that  the  company  was  bound  to 
found,  nor  in  the  construction .  of  barracks,  nor  the  introduction  of 
Catholic  missionaries,  nor  in  the  hospitals  and  drug  shops  for  the 

attendance  of  natives  and  immigrants,  nor  in  colonizing  the  tonca- 
bean  territories,  nor  in  establishing  navigation  in  the  principal  affluents 
of  the  Orinoco. 

This  sum  of  900,000  francs,  paid  into  the  treasury  of  the  company, 
as  well  as  the  sum  of  1,241,000  francs,  which  she  was  owing  to  several 
parties  two  years  after  starting  her  operations,  after  having  exhausted 
her  credit  and  being  unable  to  proceed,  appear  to  have  been  all  spent 
without  any  other  apparent  result  than  the  exportation  during  the 
same  lapse  of  time  of  73,992.20  kilograms  of  rubber  and  44,569.70 
kilograms  of  tonca  beans,  according  to  the  official  figures  mentioned 
in  page  68  of  the  memorial  of  the  liquidators. 

The  explanation  of  the  result  of  the  commercial  operations  of  the 
company  is  furnished  by  the  very  figures  taken  from  her  books  and 
reproduced  in  the  memorial  so  often  quoted.  (See  p.  66.)  This 
demonstration  or  abstract  is  headed  thus: 

General  account  of  expenses  of  the  Conipagnie  G^n^rale  de  I'Or^noque,  from  the  original 
syndicate,  September,  1886,  to  the  14th  of  October  1891  (on  which  day  judgment  was 
passed  by  the  high  Federal  court),  after  deducting  the  moneys  received  for  sale  of  products 
by  the  company. 

Items  referring  to  expenses: 

Expenses  of  first  establishment,  viz: 
Francs. 

Expenses  of  syndicate         290, 995. 88 
Cindad  Bolivar: 

Expenses  of  administration,  agencies,  employees,  navigalion  expenses,  trav- 
eling expenses,  etc         487, 263. 09 

Furniture  and  naval  stores,  shop  and'  transport  stores,  sawmill,  utensils, 
etc         425,040.66 

Atures  and  Maipures: 

Work  on  hoais  and  transportation  of  same  over  the  rapids,  mounting,  re- 
mounting, repairing  and  maintaining  same,  railroad  for  the  carrying 

over  of  the  hoais.    Surveys  of  both  banks  of  the  river  for  the  constmc- 
tion  of  a  final  line,  roads,  bridges,  rafts,  buildings,  etc         629, 080.  37 

Punta  Brava: 

Expenses  of  agency  and  of  installation,  harbor,  road,  and  other  work         1 17, 708. 01 
San  Fernando  and  San  C&rlos: 

Expenses  of  agency  and  installation,  buildings,  watch  posts,  ett-         360,  .521 .  80 
Cattle  ranch  on  the  Vichada           62,708.08 

S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   18 
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Paris:  • 
General  expenses  of  administration,  board  of  directors,  employees,  traveling  Francs. 

expenses,  etc    118,628.19 
Stamps  and  registration    6, 821. 80 

Total   2,498,767.88 

Considering  the  amounts  of  these  items  and  all  that  is  revealed  by 

them,  and  taking  into  account  the  capital  with  which  the  company  was 
founded  and  the  colossal  magnitude  of  the  enterprise  it  entered  upon 
unaware  of  the  diflSculties  of  same,  as  has  been  repeatedly  acknowledged 
by  her  principal  directors,  it  must  be  admitted  that  what  happened 
was  only  natural  and  inevitable,  viz:  That  the  company  exhausted 
its  credit ;  that  it  was  imable  to  proceed  with  its  operations  or  to 

comply  with  its  engagements  and  to  pay  its  debts;  that  the  general 
meeting  of  shareholders  of  the  30th  of  May,  1890,  resolved  to  dissolve 
and  wind  up  the  company  before  they  had  any  knowledge  of  the  action 
suit  entered  by  the  representative  of  the  Government  of  Venezuela, 
and,  lastly,  its  attempts,  twice  baffled,  to  convert  itself,  first,  into  an 

English  company  with  the  name  of  ''The  Orinoco  Exploration  and 
Trading  Company,'^  and  later  on  into  a  Belgian  limited  company 
under  the  name  of  ̂ 'Compagnie  Internationale  des  Caoutchoucs,'' 
both  attempts  having  been  made  with  the  object  of  obtaining  an 
increase  of  (xish  capital  to  pay  off  debts  and  proceed  with  the  business. 

The  declarations  of  several  parties  who  had  held  important  posts  in 
the  employ  of  the  company  can  be  made  good  as  further  evidence  of 
the  real  situation  of  the  company  in  May,  1890,  which,  being  in  want  of 
funds  and  having  totally  exhausted  its  credit  in  Paris,  was  unable  to 
comply  with  its  engagement  toward  the  Grovemment  of  Venezuela  and 
to  continue  the  exploitation  of  the  concessions  transferred  to  it  by 
Messrs.  Tejera  and  Delort,  by  reason  of  which  the  general  meeting  of 
shareholders  resolved  on  the  dissolution  and  winding  up  of  same. 
These  declarations  are:  First,  the  declaration  made  before  the  judge 
of  first  instance  of  San  Fernando  de  Apure  by  Mr.  Enrique  Ligeron, 
submanager  of  the  company  in  the  Upper  Orinoco,  which  declaration 
is  a  part  of  the  evidence  procured  and  presented  by  the  representative 
of  the  company  before  the  high  Federal  court  in  the  action  entered  by 

the  fiscal  de  la  hacienda  ptibUca  (financial  representative  of  the  Gov- 
ernment) ;  and,  second,  the  report  presented  by  the  liquidators  of  the 

company  to  the  meeting  of  shareholders  held  in  Paris  on  the  27th  of 
December,  1890,  as  well  as  the  minutes  of  said  general  meeting. 

Mr.  Enrique  Ligeron's  declaration  of  the  13th  of  November,  1890, 
before  the  said  judge  is  as  follows: 

I  was  submanager  of  the  company  in  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo  more  than  four  years, 
hence  when  I  went  to  that  place  the  steam  launches  which  the  company  had  taken  there  for 
navigating  the  river  above  the  rapids  had  been  carried  above  these  rapids.  These  steam 
launches  had  been  transported  on  rails  provisionally  laid,  and  when  I  arrived  there  no  railway 
line  existed  and  the  rails  had  been  scattered  in  different  parts.    In  the  present  condition  of 
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the  river  above  the  rapids  no  steamboat  can  navigate  on  those  vxiters,  as  the  obstacles  offered 

by  the  rapids  are  insurmountable.  The  more  convenient  way  of  covering  that  space  vxmld 

be  the  construction  of  railway  lines  over  ground,  which  offers  no  great  difficulties,  the  most 
diflBcult  part  of  which  being  the  construction  of  bridges  on  the  affluents  of  the  Orinoco,  which 
run  across  these  lands.  It  is  evident  to  me  that  the  company  made  all  efforts  in  order  to 

comply  with  the  engagements  of  its  concessions,  hut  in  my  opinion  it  could  not  do  more 
than  what  it  performed,  owing  to  the  insufficiency  of  its  capital  for  carrying  out  the  different 

enterprises  of  its  contract. 

The  abstract  of  the  minutes  of  the  general  meeting  of  shareholders 
of  the  29th  of  December,  1890,  contains  the  following:  ! 

The  meeting  having  been  regularly  constituted,  the  liquidators  read  the  following  report : 

''  In  our  meeting  of  the  23d  of  June  last  you  were  acquainted  with  the  agreement  signe4  with 

the  Gold  Trust  and  Investment  Company  for  cx)nverting  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  I'Or^ 

noque  into  an  English  company  called  'Orinoco  Exploration  and  Trading  Company/  This 
agreement  having  been  approved  by  the  general  meeting,  the  dissolution  and  winding  up  of 

the  company  was  resolved  and  I  had  the  honor  to  be  appointed  liquidator. "  , 
The  agreement  with  the  Gold  Trust  having  been  definitely  sanctioned  by  the  shareholders, 

the  new  company  was  formed  and  registered  in  England;  but  political  differences  having  in 
the  meantime  arisen  between  England  and  Venezuela,  this  last  power  has  absolutely  refused 
to  acknowledge  the  new  company  and  to  transfer  to  same  the  rights  and  concessions  of  the 
French  company.  It  was  but  very  late  that  I  was  made  acquainted  with  the  causes  which 

were  opposed  to  the  formation  of  the  English  company,  and  this  delay  was  the  cause  of  my 
losing  very  valuable  time;  but  the  moment  I  knew  of  these  causes  I  took  steps  conducive  to 

a  result  which  might  save  our  company.  I  have  appealed  for  assistance  to  the  former  direc- 
tors of  the  company  who  are  now  negotiating  with  the  Government  of  Venezuela  and  have 

looked  toward  another  solution  of  the  problem,  which  is  the  only  means  of  insuring  the  future 
of  the  company,  viz,  the  reconstruction  of  the  present  company  with  an  increase  of  fresh  capital 
in  cash.  These  gentlemen  will  now  submit  their  views  to  you  and  will  bring  to  your  knowl- 

edge the  result  of  their  negotiations. 

The  chairman  then  said  that  owing  to  the  facts  which  had  just  been  mentioned  by  the 
liquidator  the  board  of  directors  had  sent  to  Caracas  Mr.  Berthier,  who  had  been  a  former 

agent  of  the  company,  with  the  following  mission :  to  obtain  from  the  Government  the  revision 

of  the  old  concessions,  which  evidently  contained  clauses  which  were  embarrassing  to  the  Govern- 
ment as  well  as  to  the  company.  Mr.  Berthier  was,  besides,  to  make  sure  that  the  Govern- 
ment would  make  no  difficulties /or  the  transfer  to  a  new  company  (provided  this  be  not  an 

English  company)  of  all  the  rights  and  concessions  accruing  from  the  new  contract.  The 

double  purpose  of  Mr.  Berthier^s  mission  has  been  obtained,  the  terms  of  the  new  contrac'l 
proposed  have  been  accepted,  and  one  of  its  clauses  will  allow  the  transfer  to  a  new  company. 

The  new  company  will  be  French-Belgian,  formed  unth  the  assistance  of  a  powerful  Belgian 

group. 
The  chairman  then  read  the  draft  of  the  Articles  of  Association  of  the  French-Belgian 

Cbmpany  in  formation. 

The  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de  TOr^noque  having  ceased  to  exist  in 
May,  1890,  by  virtue  of  the  dissolution  voted  by  the  shareholders,  the 
administrators  had  no  longer  power  to  transact  any  business,  and  the 
authority  of  the  liquidators  was  reduced  to  the  collection  of  moneys 
owing  to  the  company,  to  wipe  off  former  debts  and  liabilities,  and  to 

conclude  whatever  operations  were  pending  at  the  time  of  the  dissolu- 
tion. The  liquidators  had  also  to  appear  in  court  in  whatever  actions 

existed  against  the  company,  as  the  Umited  company  called  ̂ 'Com- 

pagnie Generale  de  TOrenoque"  had  ceased  to  exist  by  virtue  of  her 
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dissolution,  and  there  had  likewise  ceased  to  exist,  from  the  moment 
that  the  liquidators  had  been  appointed,  all  the  powers  and  authority 
of  the  board  of  directors,  as  well  as  all  the  powers  that  might  have 
been  conferred  by  said  directors. 

From  the  minute  examination  of  all  the  papers  and  documents 

referring  to  this  matter,  made  by  the  Venezuelan  commissioner  it  is 
evident  that  at  no  time  whatever  was  the  knowledge  of  the  dissolution 

and  liquidation  of  the  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de  TOr^noque  conveyed  to 
the  high  Federal  court,  and  that  the  liquidators  never  took  any  steps 
for  the  purpose  of  being  represented  in  the  action,  neither  at  the  time 
when  the  suit  entered  by  the  representative  of  the  Government  of 
Venezuela  was  to  be  answered  (on  the  22d  July,  1890),  nor  on  the  7th 

of  August,  1890,  when  Mr.  Fiat  entered  his  petition  for  the  collection 
of  evidence,  nor  in  any  other  circumstance  whatever  during  the  whole 
course  of  the  process.  It  is  likewise  evident  from  said  examination 
that  the  dissolution  of  the  company  was  never  officially  communicated 
to  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  and  it  is  natural  to  infer  that  the 
cause  of  this  omission  was  to  keep  this  fact  from  the  knowledge  of  the 
Venezuelan  authorities,  a  fact  which  in  itself  was  sufficient  for  the 

complete  success  of  the  action  entered  by  the  representative  of  Vene- 
zuela in  the  high  court  for  the  rescissipn  of  the  contracts  upon  which 

the  company  was  formed,  since  the  dissolution  and  liquidation  of  the 

company  frustrated  the  object  to  be  obtained  by  the  working  of  the 

concessions  granted  and  made  it  materially  impossible  for  the  con- 
cessionaries to  comply  with  their  obligations,  which  was  the  legal 

basis  of  the  suit. 

It  is  equally  evident  from  the  avowals  of  the  liquidators,  in  their 
memorial  to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  France,  and  Mr.  Alfred 

de  Berthier's  correspondence  annexed  to  same,  that  Mr.  Fiat,  who  had 
been  representing  the  company  before  the  court  up  to  the  11th  of 
October,  1890,  Tidd  sent  his  resignation  to  Paris,  and  that  Mr.  Bemab6 
Planas  was  then  appointed  as  attorney,  but  this  gentleman  having 
declined  the  appointment,  it  was  decided,  on  the  advise  of  Mr.  Delort, 

to  send  out  a  special  agent.  Mr.  Berthier  was  appointed  for  this  mis- 
sion, as  he  was  acquainted  with  all  the  details  of  the  matter.  Mr. 

Berthier,  who  was  at  the  time  in  Martinique,  was  notified  to  proceed 
to  Caracas,  where  he  arrived  on  the  25th  of  October,  1890.  (Page  47 
of  the  memorial.)  Mr.  Berthier  remained  in  Caracas  from  the  end  of 

October,  1890,  to  the  month  of  July,  1901,  and  the  action  taken  by 
him  tended  solely  to  the  obtaining  of  an  extra  judicial  understanding 
with  the  fiscal  de  hacienda  (the  representative  of  the  Government)  in 

the  suit  pending  before  the  high  Federal  court — 
m  order  to  put  a  st/)p  to  the  process  and  the  relinquishment  on  the  part  of  the  Government  to 
demand  an  indemnity,  and  the  company,  on  the  other  hand,  to  renounce  to  its  concession, 
in  phice  of  which  another  would  be  granted  which  would  be  immediately  transferred  to  the 
new  company. 
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Mr.  Berthier,  in  a  letter  dated  the  16th  of  December,  transmits  to 
Count  de  Ker  Daniel,  the  liquidator  of  the  company,  the  following: 

I  am  not  yet  sure  of  this  result,  which  has  not  so  far  been  agreed  to,  but  it  is  useless  to 

deceive  ourselves  on  it,  as  after  all  it  does  not  amount  to  much.  What  we  vxmld  really  gain  is 
the  cessation  of  the  action  entered  against  vs.  All  else  is  a  chimera  (leurre).  I  do  not, 

however,  believe  that  I  can  obtain  anything  better,  and  I  consider  it  lucky  if  we  obtain  this. 

According  to  the  scheme  proposed  to  the  Government  of  Venezuela 
for  a  new  contract — 

the  company  was  to  relinquish  her  former  concessions  and  the  Government  was  to  desist  from 

the  action  entered  before  the  high  court,  each  party  to  pay  their  own  costs,  and  the  Govern- 

ment was  to  grant  to  the  company  for  a  period  of  twenty-five  years  the  exclusive  right  for 
steam  navigation  on  the  waterways  of  the  Federal  Territories  Upper  Orinoco  andAmazonas, 
and  on  the  rivers  Caura  and  Cuchivero,  during  which  period  the  Government  would  not 
grant  a  similar  concession  to  any  other  party  or  company. 

The  steamers  of  the  company  were  to  navigate  under  the  Venezue- 
lan flag.     (Annexed  document  No.  92.) 

It  is  to  be  observed  that  this  scheme  commences  in  this  way: 

The  Compagnie  G^^rale  de  I'Or^noque,  represented  by  her  legal  attorney,  as  per  an- 
nexed power,  which  will  be  certified. 

No  mention  whatever  is  made  that  the  company  was  in  liquidation, 

and  all  along  this  document  she  is  simply  called  the  ''Compagnie 
G6n6rale  de  TOr^noque.^^ Article  10  of  this  scheme  is  worded  thus: 

This  contract  can  be  transferred  to  any  other  party  or  company  with  the  previous  cx)nsent 

of  the  Federal  Government,  without  which  formality  the  transfer  can  not  be  effected;  how- 
ever, as  an  exception  this  contract  can  be  transferred  in  part  or  in  whole  to  the  Belgian 

company  called  '^Compagnie  Internationale  des  Caoutchoucs  et  Produits  Naturels  au  Bassin 
de  I'Or^noque." 

According  to  article  3  of  said  scheme  the  company  had  the  right  to 
construct  within  the  territories  mentioned  the  railway  and  telegraph 
lines  which  it  might  think  convenient. 

Mr.  Berthier  went  on  with  his  extra  judicial  negotiations  until  May, 
1891.  On  the  17th  of  the  same  month  this  gentleman  (as  confirmed 
by  his  letter  of  28th  of  May  to  the  liquidators)  transmitted  to  the  said 
liquidators  the  following  cablegram : 

Contract  accepted  on  best  terms,  navigation  included;  no  special  commission.     I  await 

instructions  to  proceed.     Don't  you  wait  longer,  as  time  is  very  limited.     If  you  can  not 
remit  one  hundred  thousand,  send  by  cable  whatever  you  can  with  authority  to  draw  on 

,  you  for  the  balance. 

He  again  telegraphed  on  the  2 2d  of  May  as  follows: 

On  receipt  of  my  letter  of  the  7th  of  May  (which  has  not  been  presented),  reply  by  cable. 

The  tenth  word  of  my  telegram  should  have  been  "pullcinetto"  (£600,000).  Give  your 
approval  to  contract,  which  comprises  the  free  navigation.  I  have  sent  you  a  copy.  I  will 
not  weary  of  pressing  you,  as  there  is  no  time  to  be  lost. 
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Again,  a  third  cablegram  of  the  25th  of  May  reads  thus: 

As  you  have  not  telegraphed  to  me,  the  negotiation  has  collapsed.  It  is  useless  to  pro- 
ceed, there  being  no  probability  of  doing  any  business  for  some  time.  I  am  unable  to  do 

anything  for  the  present.  I  will  leave  on  the  6th  June.  I  can  not  remain  here  any  longer. 
Congress  dissolves  shortly. 

Mr.  Berthier's  letter  continues  in  this  way: 
I  have  received  your  last  telegram  one  day  after  I  had  transmitted  to  you  mine  of  the  25th. 

This  is  equivalent  to  telling  you  that  said  telegram  arrived  too  late.  I  therefore  confirm  the 
contents  of  said  telegram,  but  I  shall,  however,  await  for  the  arrival  of  Doctor  Morisse,  as 

per  your  advice. 
I  considered,  by  the  contents  of  the  letters  you  have  written  to  me,  that  you  were  in  a 

position  to  reply  immediately  on  receipt  of  my  first  telegram.  The  deciphering  you  made 
of  same  was  nearly  correct,  and  it  should  have  given  you  to  understand  the  danger  incurred 

by  waiting.  In  truth  I  was  careful  to  tell  you  that  the  Government  maintained  the  nullity 

of  the  former  contract  to  be  replaced  by  a  new  one.  You  ought  to  have  known,  in  conse- 
quence,  that  this  entirely  new  decision  required  a  certain  time  and  that  by  means  of  the  rail- 

road wc  evaded  the  trouble  of  having  to  wait  for  Congress.  I  am  still  going  to  make  a  last 

attempt  in  order  to  prevent  that  the  new  company  be  annulled  in  consequence  of  the  nonfulJUl- 
ment  of  the  contracts  by  the  old  company.  There  wiU  be  an  extraordinary  session  of  Congress 

which  lasts  for  some  weeks.  I  will  try  to  obtain  a  solution  of  the  process,  whichever  it  may 

he.  *  *  *  If  I  fail  in  my  last  attempt,  there  will  be  no  other  way  but  to  lodge  a  claim 
against  the  Government.  It  follows,  of  course,  that  a  counteraction  (cross  demand)  may  be 
entered.  Two  facts  have  now  taken  place  on  the  Orinoco  which  will  give  us  considerable 

power  later  on.  The  first  is  that  the  steamer  Meta  was  put  out  of  service  without  any  cause 
by  order  of  the  governor  of  the  territory,  an  action  which  constitutes  an  outrage  against 
private  property.  The  second  is  an  armed  aggression  against  the  steamer  El  Libertnd,  which 

was  nearly  captured.  All  this  may  serve  as  a  basis /or  demanding  a  large  indemnity j  but 
when  would  such  a  cause  come  to  an  issue?  Before  I  leave  I  will  settle  this  matter  so  a^  to 

give  to  my  successor  the  starting  point  for  a  claim.  It  would  likewise  be  the  oflScial  verification 
of  those  deeds  which  may  be  considered  as  worthy  of  a  savage  country.  Resuming  what 
precedes  I  am  going  to  try  to  obtain  a  solution  which  will  countenance  the  existence  (la  raison 

d'Hre)  of  the  new  company.  In  case  I  fail ,  I  shall  make  preparations  for  obtaining  the  required 
matter  (elements)  for  the  process  which  we  must  necessarily  enter  into.  I  wrll  associate 

with  Maiz,  by  private  agreement,  for  obtaining  the  concession  on  the  rapids  and  sell  out  the 

same.  In  this  way  we  shall  Jceep  our  hands  on  the  business.  I  will  conclude  by  saying  that  I 
rely  on  the  sincerity  of  the  promises  made  to  me  and  that  the  political  situation  has  been  the 

only  cause  of  our  failure.  It  is  probable  that  a  satisfactory  result  may  be  obtained,  pro- 
vided you  can  wait  and  spend  some  money  at  the  proper  moment ;  but  as  I  can  see  no  issue 

for  the  present,  and  I  must  necessarily  return  to  France,  I  request  you  to  relieve  me  from 
this  post. 

In  page  49  of  the  memorial  addressed  to  the  minister  of  foreign 
affairs  of  France  the  liquidators  express  themselves  as  follows: 

When  Mr.  Berthier  saw  that  he  could  obtain  nothing,  he  looked  to  a  solution  of  the  matter 

by  means  of  contract  for  a  railroad  on  the  right  bank;  but  we  did  not  understand  his  cable-' 
gram,  and  this  solution,  on  the  other  hand,  was  not  acceptable.  In  short,  Mr.  Berthier  had 

proved  very  expensive  and  had  achieved  no  sort  of  success.  But  what  was  more  grave  than 

all  this  is  that,  on  his  advice,  the  Belgian  company  called  "Compagnie  Interaationale  des 
Caoutchoucs  et  Produits  Naturels  du  Bassin  de  TOr^noque  "  had  been  constituted  at  Brussels 
in  May  in  order  to  transfer  to  the  same  the  new  contract  (article  10  of  the  final  scheme). 

What  was  now  to  become  of  that  company? 
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The  immediate  consequence  of  Mr.  Berthier^s  return  to  Paris  was 
that  the  liquidators  left  the  company  without  any  attorney  to  repre- 
resent  it  in  the  suit  before  the  high  Federal  court,  there  being  no 
document  in  existence  to  prove  that  the  liquidators  took  the  necessary 
steps  for  their  representation  at  Caracas  after  Mr.  Berthier  had  left. 

From  the  examination  of  all  the  documents  presented  it  appears 

likewise  that  the  company  had  no  official  representative  in  the  ter- 
ritories of  upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas  and  that  it  limited  its  action 

there  to  entrusting  to  four  employees  (two  in  San  Fernando  and  two 
in  San  C6,rlos)  the  collection  of  moneys  owing  to  it  and  to  keep  an 
employee  at  Atures  and  another  one  at  Maipures. 

More  or  less  than  three  years  after  the  company  had  been  put  into 
liquidation,  and  owing  to  the  abandonment  or  desertion  in  which  the 
company  had  left  all  its  goods  and  chattels,which  consisted  of  personal 

property,  some  goods,  effects,  and  a  few  buildings  made  of  earth,  tim- 
ber, and  iron  roofing,  and  which  were  scattered  in  different  places  on 

the  banks  of  the  Orinoco,  the  governor  of  the  territory  Upper  Orinoco 
issued  a  decree  laying  an  embargo  on  all  these  goods  and  chattels 
(under  date  of  8th  of  March,  1893),  giving  notice  to  the  national 
executive  of  this  decree  and  remitting  the  inventory  of  said  goods  to 
the  representative  of  the  company  at  Caracas  for  his  knowledge  and 

purposes. 
The  allegation  set  forth  that  the  governor  of  the  Upper  Orinoco 

had  no  authority  to  carry  into  execution  the  sentence  of  the  high 
Federal  court  without  an  order  to  the  effect  from  said  court  does  not 

imply  that  this  governor  had  no  authority  to  decree  the  inventory  of 

the  goods  and  chattels  of  the  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  I'Or^noque  in 
liquidation,  which  were  entirely  abandoned  and  were  suffering  con- 

siderable damage,  owing  to  the  special  condition  of  same  and  to  the 
wide  expanse  of  territory  over  which  they  were  scattered. 

From  the  evidence  of  document  No.  2  of  the  records  in  the  archives 

of  the  high  Federal  court  and  from  the  memorial  addressed  on  the  3d 

of  November,  1895,  by  the  liquidators  of  the  company  to  the  minister 
of  foreign  affairs  of  France,  it  is  proved  that  the  acts  of  the  governor 

of  the  aforesaid  territory  were  limited  to  the  following :  To  the  appoint- 
ment of  the  persons  that  were  to  make  the  inventory  at  Maipures  and 

San  Fernando  de  Atabapo,  for  which  purpose  the  chief  civil  official 
was  commissioned,  as  well  as  for  acting  as  receiver,  there  being  no 

legal  representative  of  the  company  to  deal  with;  to  issue  instruc- 
tions to  the  same  official,  under  date  of  8th  of  May  of  same  year,  for 

the  preservation  of  the  real  and  personal  property,  for  the  caretaking 
of  the  machinery,  hulks,  tools,  and  other  effects,  and  for  the  tending 
and  care  of  the  cattle  and  stock;  to  issue  a  decree  appointing  citizens 
Julito  Franklin,  Juli&n  Rivero,  Sergio  Lira,  and  Pablo  Sanchez  to 
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take  charge  of  all  the  stock  and  cattle  that  were  under  the  care  of 
Braulio  Valiente. 

It  is  therein  stated  that  the  firm  of  Messrs.  Dalton  &  Co.  had  pre- 
sented a  petition  or  memorial  requesting  the  payment  of  expenses 

and  salaries  which  they  had  incurred  on  behalf  of  the  Orinoco  com- 
pany.    Messrs.  Dalton  &  Co.  say  in  said  memorial: 

During  our  commercial  relations  with  the  company  of  the  upper  Orinoco  and  Amazons  we 

have,  during  more  than  one  year,  paid  all  expenses  of  the  caretaking  and  preservation  of  the 

property  of  the  company,  including  expenses  caused  hy  Mr.  Marcelo  Chiarelli.  Without  our 
intervention  and  without  the  interest  which  we  took  in  the  matter  the  property  aforesaid 

would  have  been  completely  ruined,  as  it  had  been  notoriously  left  in  ahaTidonment,  owing  to  the 
difficulties  which  the  company  experienced  latterly. 

Messrs.  Dalton  concluded  by  requesting  the  payment  of  4,000 
francs,  as  per  account,  which  they  annex. 

Pages  8  and  10  of  the  aforesaid  document  No.  2  contains  the  inven- 
tory of  the  property  of  the  company  at  Perico,  consisting  of  1  house 

roofed  with  iron,  several  tools  and  pieces  of  furniture,  6  mules,  1 

horse  (all  in  bad  condition),  and  1  donkey;  page  11  contains  the  receipt 
of  Braulio  Valiente  for  the  cattle  of  the  company  at  Santa  Catalina, 
which  consisted  of  23  cows,  26  calves,  1  horse,  1  mule,  and  1  donkey. 
Page  the  12th  contains  a  declaration  from  the  same  Valiente,  in  which 
he  states  the  following:  That  besides  these  animals  he  had  delivered 
the  following  during  the  revolution:  To  Santiago  Hidalgo  20  head, 
to  Mr.  Horacio  Luzard  3  oxen,  and  to  Mr.  Pedro  Quifiones  2  head, 
making  a  total  of  25  head  in  all ;  that  he  has  in  his  possession  3  head 
belonging  to  Mr.  Julian  Rivero,  3  cows  and  2  calves  belonging  to  Mr. 
Sergio  Lira,  12  head  belonging  to  Mr.  Juan  Figarella  and  1  more  head 
belonging  to  Mr.  Boulissiftre;  that  7  bullocks  have  died  and  1  has 
gone  astray;  that  2  bullocks  were  slaughtered  by  Gen.  Venancio 
Pulgar,  jr.,  and  2  by  General  Anselmo,  governor  of  the  Upper  Orinoco; 
that  Mr.  Juan  Figarella  sold  5  cows  at  $25  each,  5  bullocks  at  $30 

each,  1  lean  bullock  for  $25,  1  calf  for  $8,  and  1  bullock  to  Mr.  BouHs- 
si^re  for  $41;  that  the  cattle  belonging  to  Julito  Rivero  and  Sergio 
Lira  were  delivered  to  them  by  order  of  Mr.  Chiarelli,  liquidator  of  the 
company. 

Page  13  contains  another  declaration  of  the  same  VaUente  to  the 
effect  that  the  house  of  Messrs.  Dalton  &  Co.  was  owing  him  salaries 
as  caretaker  of  the  cattle  of  the  company  to  the  amount  of  $333.75, 
$30  for  a  hut  and  corral  built  by  him,  and  $31  for  payment  to  laborers, 
making  in  all  a  total  of  $396.75. 

Page  16  contains  the  declaration  of  the  French  citizen  G.  Aubey, 
as  follows : 

Question.  From  whom  did  you  receive  the  property  of  the  company  in  San  Fernando  de 

Atabapo  in  order  to  become  their  agent  in  that  place?  Reply.  The  agent  of  the  company 
in  that  place  was  the  French  citizen  Mr.  Eduardo  Marie,  but  he  had  been  obliged  to  leave  on 
important  business  and  he  had  commissioned  to  put  me  in  charge  the  Belgian  subject, 
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Eugenio  Halveich,  from  whom  I  received  all  the  property  under  inventory,  Mr.  Kamdn 

Orosco  being  present  and  signing  the  same  as  witness 

Question.  To  whom  does  the  house  called  "  Casa  Amarilla  "  belong  r  Reply.  The  house 

belongs  to  me  conditionally.  I  will  explain  this  to  you.  The*liquidator  of  the  company, 
called  Mr.  Roux,  who  resided  in  Paris,  wrote  to  me  in  August,  1891,  to  say  ''that  I  was  to 

consider  all  the  bonos  (promissory  notes)  which  T  held  from  the  company  as  hard  cash.*'  I 
then  took  the  house  in  guarantee  with  the  intention  of  turning  over  the  same  to  the  company 

in  case  she  might  need  it,  and  provided  I  was  paid  the  sum  of  6,002  francs,  which  the  com- 
pany was  owing  me. 

Question.  What  goods  are  there  now  in  the  Oasa  Amarilla?  Reply.  There  are  some 
pieces  of  furniture  and  some  goods. 

Pages  18,  19,  and  20  contain  the  declaration  of  Juan  Figarella,  a 
French  citizen  in  the  employ  of  Mr.  Chiarelli,  who  had  been  intrusted 
with  the  liquidation  of  the  property  of  the  company  by  Mr.  Edmundo 
Kiiots.  This  declaration  is  in  every  way  identical  to  that  of  Braulio 
Valiente  with  reference  to  the  cattle. 

Pages  21,  22,  23,  and  24  contain  the  inventory  of  the  goods  in  the 
Casa  Amarilla,  which  was  an  erection  in  pretty  good  condition,  built 
of  earth  with  a  thatch  roof.  These  goods  consisted  of  woven  stuffs, 
haberdashery,  and  ironmongery,  and  the  inventory  of  same  was  made 
in  the  presence  of  G.  Aubey,  Pedro  Nicco,  R.  Orosco,  and  Nieves 
Arrabache. 

Page  26  contains  the  declaration  of  Horacio  Luzard,  similar  to  that 
of  Braulio  Valiente,  in  what  refers  to  the  number  of  cattle. 

Page  29  contains  a  receipt  from  Luis  A.  Ortega  in  favor  of  Gen. 
Juan  Anselmo,  governor  of  the  Territory,  for  the  amount  of  $131.43 
on  account  of  work  as  caretaker  of  the  property  of  the  company. 

Page  30  contains  a  receipt  from  Braulio  Valiente  for  $108.63  in 
favor  of  same  governor  for  salaries  as  caretaker  of  the  cattle  of  the 
company. 

Page  31  contains  a  petition  addressed  to  the  judge  by  the  aforesaid 
governor,  requesting  the  payment  of  expenses  incurred  in  taking  the 
inventory  of  the  property  of  the  company,  as  per  vouchers  of  Luis  A. 
Ortega  and  Braulio  Valiente  for  the  sum  of  959.24  bolivars  and 
requesting  that  orders  be  issued  for  the  sale  of  part  of  the  property  to 
cover  said  expenses.  Then  follows  the  record  of  the  sale  of  the  goods 
of  the  Casa  Amarilla,  as  per  inventory  of  12th  of  April  last,  effected  in 
public  auction  on  the  22d  of  May,  at  which  sale  bids  were  made  by  the 
Vinciquina  for  360  bolivars,  by  Nieves  Arrabache  for  400  bolivars,  by 
Ram6n  Orosco  for  800  bolivars,  and  by  Juan  Anselmo  for  900  bolivars; 
and  no  higher  bid  being  obtainable  the  goods  were  allotted  to  Gen. 
Juan  Anselmo. 

It  is,  therefore,  inaccurate,  as  asserted  in  the  aforesaid  memorial, 
that  the  governor,  Juan  Anselmo,  had  declared,  on  his  own  authority, 
that  he  had  a  right  to  an  indemnity  in  consideration  of  his  labors,  nor 

that  all  the  property  of  the  Compagnie  Generale  de  VOrenoque  was  sold 
and  adjudged  to  Gov.  Juan  Anselmo  for  the  sum  of  900  bolivars. 
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In  appreciating  the  true  and  real  situation  in  which  the  property  of 

the  Compagnie  G6n6rale  de  I'Or^noque  had  been  left  after  and  by 
virtue  of  the  dissolution  of  the  company,  and  in  consequence  of  the 
abandon  in  which  the  said  property  appears  to  have  remained  for 
years  exposed  to  the  inclemency  of  the  weather  in  localities  the  natural 
conditions  of  which  cause  very  serious  damage  to  buildings,  goods, 
utensils,  tools,  steamboats,  and  others,  it  is  the  conviction  of  the 
Venezuelan  arbitrator  that  all  this  property  did  not  represent  at  the 
end  of  the  period  elapsed  a  value  sufficient  to  cover  the  sum  of  40,048.62 
francs,  which  the  company  had  been  condemned  to  pay  for  damages  by 
the  sentence  of  the  high  Federal  court,  and  the  further  sum  which 
the  company  was  likewise  to  pay  to  the  Government  for  costs  of  the 
suit,  which  have  not  as  yet  been  liquidated. 

By  virtue  of  this  and  of  the  reasons  set  forth  in  this  opinion  the 

Venezuelan  arbitrator  considers  that  the  claim  lodged  by  the  liquida- 
tors of  the  company  against  the  Government  of  Venezuela  for  the 

amount  of  7,616,098.62  francs  is  totally  devoid  of  basis  and  disallows 
it  absolutely. 

NoRTHFiELD,  February  9,  1905. 

Note  by  the  Venezuelan  Commissioner. 

The  foregoing  is  a  faithful  translation  of  my  opinion  rendered  at  Caracas  in  session  of 
the  Venezuelan-French  Commission  of  May  5,  1903,  as  it  appears  from  the  report  called 

*'  Comisidn  Mixta  Venezolana-Francesa,  protocolo  de  19  de  Febrero  de  1902.  Dictdmenes 
del  Arbitro  Venezolano." 

OPINION  OF  THE  FBENCH  COMHISSIONEB. 

The  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  claims  on  the  date  of  July  10, 
1902,  a  sum  of  7,616,090.62  bolivars,  which  is  made  up  as  follows: 
One  million  five  hundred  thousand  bolivars  for  its  capital, 

1,701,680.17  bolivars  for  the  debts  contracted  in  view  of  the  service  of 
the  concession,  2,414,410.45  bolivars  for  interest  at  6  per  cent  on  these 
two  sums  for  twelve  years,  and  finally  2,000,000  bolivars  for  the 
eventual  profits  which  it  has  lost.  After  having  examined  the  dossier 
and  studied  the  memoir  presented  by  Doctor  Paiil,  I  have  judged  that 

the  Venezuelan  Government  ought  to  pay  to  the  company  an  indem- 
nity of  7,000,000  bolivars.  In  failing  in  the  obligations  which  it  had 

assumed,  in  deceiving  the  company  by  its  dissimulation  which  changed 

the  substance  of  its  agreements,  and  in  interfering  with  the  manage- 
ment of  the  concession  by  its  vexations  and  abuses  of  power  the 

Venezuelan  State  has  brought  about  the  ruin  of  the  company.  Its 
responsibility  is  then  involved,  in  my  opinion,  to  the  amount  of  sums 
disbursed  by  the  company.  These  sums  including  the  capital,  the 
debts,  and  obligations  contracted  for  the  service,  and  the  interest, 
amount  to  a  total  of  5;616;098.62  bolivars. 
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To  arrive  at  this  amount  the  company  has  reckoned  the  interest  at 
the  rate  of  6  per  cent.  While  this  rate  may  be  moderate  considering 
the  nature  of  the  enterprise  and  the  value  of  money  in  Venezuela,  a 
rate  of  3  per  cent  must  be  allowed  in  the  calculation  of  interest  to  be 

granted  to  the  capital.  In  fact  my  colleague  and  myself  have  agreed 
that  interest  given  by  the  commission  should  be  calculated  at  a  rate  of 
3  per  cent,  this  rate  being  fixed  by  the  Venezuelan  code  as  a  legal 
rate  the  contract  being  silent,  and  being  accepted  for  the  already 
existing  French  diplomatic  debt. 

There  is  then  reason  to  diminish  the  sum  claimed  by  the  difference 
obtained  in  reckoning  interest  at  3  per  cent  instead  of  6  per  cent,  or 
540,000  bolivars.  This  decrease,  on  the  other  hand,  ought  only  to 
relate  to  the  interest  on  the  capital ;  in  fact  the  company  being  obliged 
to  pay  an  interest  of  6  per  cent  to  its  lenders  and  holders  of  obligations 
it  would  be  unjust  to  make  a  reduction  on  the  sum  claimed  under  this 
head  and  which  enters  entirely  into  the  disbursements  of  the  company. 

I  have  not  thought  at  all  that  I  ought  to  accord  to  the  company  the 
indemnity  of  2,000,000  bolivars  which  it  claims  for  the  eventual 
profits  which  it  has  lost.  It  has  not  been  in  business  long  enough  to 
arrive  at  a  time  of  profit,  and  no  one  can  know  if  it  would  ever  have 
reached  a  point  greater  than  the  normal  interest  on  the  capital 
invested,  the  interest  of  which  I  take  into  account  in  the  reckoning  of 

the  indemnity.  That  remains  very  doubtful  if  we  consider  the  burden- 
some obligations  which  the  company  allowed  to  be  imposed  upon  it  in 

the  contract.  It  would  not  be  equitable  that  it  owed  to  the  situation 
of  claimant  the  advantage  of  taking  from  Venezuela  benefits  upon 
which  it  could  not  have  counted  truly,  considering  the  conditions  of  its 
management,  if  the  latter  had  been  developed  without  interference.  It 
is,  then,  a  sum  of  5,078,098.62  bolivars  that  in  equity  the  Venezuelan 
Government  ought  to  pay  to  the  company  for  losses  suffered.  But  I 
have  had  to  take  account  on  the  one  hand  of  the  use  of  the  interest 

since  July  1,  1902,  the  day  on  which  the  calculation  prepared  by  the 
company,  stopped;  and,  on  the  other  hand,  of  the  depreciation  of  the 

bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt.  Twenty-seven  months  have  already 
passed  since  the  first  of  July,  1902,  and  this  lapse  of  time  increases  the 
amount  claimed  by  the  company  more  than  800,000  bolivars,  which 

will  continue  to  accrue  until  the  day  of  the  final  award.  Up  to  to-da}^ 
this  will  be  a  sum  of  at  least  6,000,000  bolivars,  which  ought  to  be  paid 
to  the  company  for  reimbursement  of  its  expenses. 

Finally,  the  indemnity,  according  to  the  terms  of  the  protocol,  hav- 
ing to  be  paid  in  bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt,  and  not  in  gold,  in 

virtue  of  the  concession  consented  to  by  the  French  Government  in 
favor  of  the  Venezuelan  Government,  to  allow  it  to  pay  its  debts  with 
greater  facility,  and  the  depreciation  of  these  bonds  being  at  the  present 
moment  about  60  per  cent;  I  have  judged  it  equitable  to  increase  this 
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indemnity  of  6,000,000  bolivars  by  1,000,000  bolivars,  which  thus 
reaches  the  sum  of  7,000,000  bolivars  in  bonds  of  diplomatic  debt. 
These  7,000,000  bolivars  represent  merely  2,800,000  bolivars  in  gold. 

This  is  the  sum  which  the  company  ought  to  receive  and  the  Venezue- 
lan Government  pay  if  the  umpire  should  share  the  opinion  of  the 

French  arbitrator.  This  sum  represents  only  a  little  more  than  half 
of  the  disbursements  of  the  company. 

The  Venezuelan  arbitrator,  playing  the  part  of  a  lawyer  rather  than 
that  of  an  impartial  arbitrator  in  the  brief  submitted  to  me,  undertakes 
to  dispute  the  arguments  of  the  company,  and  to  demonstrate  that 
the  Venezuelan  Government,  far  from  having  anything  to  be  censured 

for,  was,  to  the  contrary,  in  a  position  to  bring  suit  against  the  com- 
pany for  not  having  fulfilled  its  obligations.  The  minutes  of  the 

session  of  the  commission  of  May  7,  1903,  mentions  that — 
Doctor  Paiil  expresses  to  his  colleague  the  desire  that  he  present,  as  he  himself  has  done, 

an  exposition  of  arguments  upon  which  he  bases  his  judgment  and  by  which,  at  the  same 
time,  he  would  reply  to  the  arguments  presented  by  the  Venezuelan  arbitrator.  Doctor 
Paul  would  be  able  to  take  these  into  consideration  and  to  see  if  it  would  be  possible  to  reach 

an  agreement. 

I  have  refused  to  follow  my  colleague  into  this  field,  believing  that 
in  my  capacity  of  an  arbitrator  I  am  not  called  upon  to  present  any 
arguments  in  favor  of  or  against  one  of  the  two  parties,  but  only  to 
examine  their  statements  and  decide  in  favor  of  the  one  or  the  other. 

One  of  the  lawyers  of  the  Paris  bar,  Maitre  Poincar6,  has  undertaken 
to  defend  the  company  in  the  field  of  law,  answering  Doctor  PaflFs 
arguments. 

The  reading  of  the  brief  prepared  by  Mr.  Poincar6  has  but  strength- 
ened me  in  the  opinion  which  I  had  formed  after  having  studied  the 

dossier  and  the  plea  of  my  colleague. 
Doctor  Patil  was  so  convinced  that  he  was  taking  the  part  of  the 

lawyer  rather  than  that  of  an  arbitrator,  that  he  made  the  statement 
to  me  at  the  session,  as  shown  by  the  minutes,  that  he  would  take  my 

arguments  into  consideration  if  I  was  willing  to  submit  them  and  ''  see 
if  it  would  be  possible  to  reach  an  agreement.'' 

Has  not  my  colleague  confessed  by  these  words  that  an  agreement 
is  possible  and  that  consequently  the  company  has  a  right  to  an 
indemnity?  I  do  not  see,  in  fact,  how  we  would  have  been  able  to 
arrive  at  an  agreement  unless  he  recognized  the  principle  of  an  indem- 

nity, contrary  to  his  decision  to  reject  the  claim  entirely.  I  am  still 
persuaded  that  my  colleague  would  have  changed  his  absolute  opinion 
if  I  had  consented  to  diminish  in  notable  proportions  the  indemnity 
which  I  have  fixed.  But  conscientiously  I  have  not  been  able  to  decide 
to  do  it.  It  is  not  my  intention  to  censure  Doctor  Paul,  because  his 
patriotism  may  have  led  him  to  become  a  lawyer  representing  his 
country  instead  of  the  man  who  was  called  upon  to  pass  judgment.     I 
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am  contented  to  make  mention  of  it,  and  to  the  contrary  I  seize  this 

occasion  with  pleasure  to  render  homage  to  the  courtesy  and  the 
breadth  of  mind  he  has  shown  in  the  course  of  the  numerous  sittings 
of  the  commission  during  which  Ve  have  examined  neariy  four  himdred 
claims,  of  which  I  understand  that  the  expose  and  the  discussion  must 
have  been  grievous  many  times  to  his  Venezuelan  sentiments. 

But  Doctor  Patjl  would  not  have  been  the  only  one  among  his  author- 

ized compatriots  who  would  have  consented  to  recognize  the  respon- 
sibiUty  of  his  Government  in  this  affair  and  consequently  to  admit  that 
an  indemnity  is  due  to  the  company.  In  1897  the  President  of  the 
United  States  of  Venezuela  sent  to  Paris  a  semiofficial  plenipotentiary, 

General  Pietri,  to  endeavor  to  renew  the  diplomatic  relations  inter- 
rupted between  the  two  coimtries  since  the  departure  in  1895  of  the 

Marquis  de  Monclar,  French  minister,  because  of  an  incident  which 

to  reopen  here  is  unnecessary.  Mr.  Pietri  opened  negotiations  with 

the  Quai  d^Orsay,  and  such  negotiations  resulted  in  the  signing  of  a 
protocol  by  virtue  whereof  normal  relations  between  France  and 
Venezuela  were  to  be  reestablished,  provided  such  diplomatic  act  was 
ratified  by  the  Congress  of  Venezuela.  Annexed  to  said  protocol 
there  was  a  convention  concluded  on  June  24,  1897,  between  the 

plenipotentiary  of  Venezuela  and  the  liquidators  of  the  Company  Gen- 
eral of  the  Orinoco,  the  text  of  said  convention  being  attached  to  the 

papers  (dossier)  in  the  claim.  It  was  stipulated  by  the  convention 
that  said  company  by  way  of  a  compromise  agreed  to  rehnquish  any 
further  claims  upon  payment  by  the  Venezuelan  Government  of  an 
indemnity  of  3,600,000  bolivars. 

The  Venezuelan  Congress  did  not  ratify  said  protocol,  the  conven- 
tion remaining,  therefore,  null  and  void.  However,  it  may  be  inferred 

from  such  fruitless  endeavors  to  come  to  an  agreement  that  there  has 
been  a  Venezuelan  plenipotentiary,  who  eight  years  ago  recognized  the 

right  on  the  part  of  the  Conipany  General  of  the  Orinoco  to  a  consid- 
erable indemnity. 

The  Venezuelan  Congress  having  met  in  secret  session  to  examine 

the  protocol  signed  by  Messrs.  Hanotaux  and  Pietri,  I  have  been 
unable  to  learn  the  reasons  of  its  rejection  by  said  assembly.  It  is 

possible  that  the  convention  subscribed  to  by  the  company  may  have 
had  something  to  do  with  such  rejection.  But,  even  admitting  that 
the  existence  of  said  convention  had  been  the  only  cause  of  the  refusal 
of  Congress  to  ratify  the  piotocol,  said  convention  does  not  lose  by 
that  fact  its  character  as  a  document  of  great  value,  for  all  those  who 
know  by  experience  that  the  facility  with  which  the  Venezuelan 

administration  despoil  foreigners  of  rights  acquired  by  mutual  con- 
sent is  only  equalled  by  the  difficulty  which  the  Government  and 

public  opinion  in  Venezuela  experience  in  admitting  for  injured  stran- 
gers the  legitimacy  of  equitable  compensation. 

Paris,  September  2,  1904, 
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I  must  express  at  this  point  surprise  to  see  how  my  colleague  has 
construed  the  statements  I  made  to  him  at  the  sitting  of  May  7,  1903, 

that  I  would — 

take  these  [arguments]  into  consideration  and  see  if  it  would  be  possible  to  reach  an 

agreement. 

To  deduce  from  such  statement,  inspired  only  by  my  desire  to  become 

acquainted  with  the  arguments  of  my  colleague,  to  see — if  I  was  con- 
vinced by  them — whether  we  could  reach  an  agreement  or  find  out 

whether  it  was  established  that  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco 
was  entitled  to  an  indemnification,  is  equivalent  to  deriving  from  the 

question  put  by  one  person  to  another,  ''What  reasons  have  you  to 
demand  from  me  the  payment  of  that  bill?"  that  such  question  estab- 

lishes the  fact  that  the  debt  has  been  acknowledged. 

That  my  learned  colleague  should  appeal  to  such  a  line  of  circum- 
locutory arguments  in  support  of  his  opinion  in  favor  of  the  General 

Company  of  the  Orinoco  plainly  shows  that  in  the  store  of  arguments 
used  by  the  company,  and  which  my  learned  colleague  produces  as  his 
own,  there  are  not  many  weighty  enough  to  bring  conviction  to  the 

honorable  imapire^s  mind  of  the  sound  foundation  of  the  claim. 
The  French  commissioner  reaffirms  his  determination  in  the  brief 

under  discussion,  when  he  avers  that  he  abstains  from  following  me 
into  the  field  of  argument, 

believing  that  in  his  capacity  as  an  arbitrator  he  is  not  called  upon  to  present  arguments  in 
favor  or  against  one  of  the  two  parties,  but  only  to  examine  their  statements  and  to  decide 
in  favor  of  the  one  or  the  other. 

My  learned  colleague  adds: 

One  of  the  lawyers  of  the  Paris  bar,  Mattre  Poincar^,  has  undertaken  to  defend  the  com- 
pany in  the  field  of  law,  answering  Doctor  Paiirs  arguments.  The  perusal  of  the  brief 

(plaidoirie)  prepared  by  M.  Poincar^  has  but  strengthened  me  in  the  opinion  which  I  had 
formed  after  having  studied  the  dossier  and  the  plea  of  my  colleague. 

Consequently,  M.  de  Peretti,  in  his  brief,  limits  himself  to  explaining 

his  reasons  for  granting  the  company  any  indemnification  for  eventual 
profits;  for  reducing  the  rate  of  interest  claimed  to  3  per  cent  until 
July  1,  1902,  when  the  estimate  made  by  the  company  ends;  and  for 

granting  besides  a  supplementary  indemnification  for  interest  from 
that  date  until  the  day  of  the  final  decision,  fixed  at  1,000,000  bolivars, 
and  another  milUon  because  of  the  depreciation  of  the  bonds  of  the 
diplomatic  debt,  making  a  total  of  7,000,000  bolivars. 

I  deny,  as  it  is  my  bounden  duty  to  do,  most  emphatically,  the 
unfounded  conjecture  my  learned  colleague  has  made  in  his  brief,  when 
he  states  that  I  would  not  be  the  only  one  among  my  enlightened 

countrymen  who  would  have  consented  to  acknowledge  my  country^s 
liability  in  this  case,  and  consequently  admitted  that  an  indemnifica- 

tion is  due  the  company.    It  is  also  indispensable,  since  the  honorable 
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am  contented  to  make  mention  of  it,  and  to  the  contrary  I  seize  this 

occasion  with  pleasure  to  render  homage  to  the  courtesy  and  the 
breadth  of  mind  he  has  shown  in  the  course  of  the  immerous  sittings 
of  the  commission  during  which  we  have  examined  nearly  four  himdred 
claims,  of  which  I  understand  that  the  expos6  and  the  discussion  must 
have  been  grievous  many  times  to  his  Venezuelan  sentiments. 

But  Doctor  Pafll  would  not  have  been  the  only  one  among  his  author- 

ized compatriots  who  would  have  consented  to  recognize  the  respon- 
sibiUty  of  his  Government  in  this  affair  and  consequently  to  admit  that 
an  indemnity  is  due  to  the  company.  In  1897  the  President  of  the 
United  States  of  Venezuela  sent  to  Paris  a  semiofficial  plenipotentiary, 

General  Pietri,  to  endeavor  to  renew  the  diplomatic  relations  inter- 
rupted between  the  two  countries  since  the  departure  in  1895  of  the 

Marquis  de  Monclar,  French  minister,  because  of  an  incident  which 

to  reopen  here  is  unnecessar}^.  Mr.  Pietri  opened  negotiations  with 

the  Quai  d'Orsay,  and  such  negotiations  resulted  in  the  signing  of  a 
protocol  by  virtue  whereof  normal  relations  between  France  and 
Venezuela  were  to  be  reestablished,  provided  such  diplomatic  act  was 
ratified  by  the  Congress  of  Venezuela.  Annexed  to  said  protocol 
there  was  a  convention  concluded  on  June  24,  1897,  between  the 

plenipotentiary  of  Venezuela  and  the  liquidators  of  the  Company  Gen- 
eral of  the  Orinoco,  the  text  of  said  convention  being  attached  to  the 

papers  (dossier)  in  the  claim.  It  was  stipulated  by  the  convention 
that  said  company  by  way  of  a  compromise  agreed  to  relinquish  any 
further  claims  upon  payment  by  the  Venezuelan  Government  of  an 
indemnity  of  3,600,000  bolivars. 

The  Venezuelan  Congress  did  not  ratify  said  protocol,  the  conven- 
tion remaining,  therefore,  null  and  void.  However,  it  may  be  inferred 

from  such  fruitless  endeavors  to  come  to  an  agreement  that  there  has 
been  a  Venezuelan  plenipotentiary,  who  eight  years  ago  recognized  the 

right  on  the  part  of  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  to  a  consid- 
erable indemnity. 

The  Venezuelan  Congress  having  met  in  secret  session  to  examine 
the  protocol  signed  by  Messrs.  Hanotaux  and  Pietri,  I  have  been 
unable  to  learn  the  reasons  of  its  rejection  by  said  assembly.  It  is 
possible  that  the  convention  subscribed  to  by  the  company  may  have 
had  something  to  do  with  such  rejection.  But,  even  admitting  that 
the  existence  of  said  convention  had  been  the  only  cause  of  the  refusal 
of  Congress  to  ratify  the  piotocol,  said  convention  does  not  lose  by 
that  fact  its  character  as  a  document  of  great  value,  for  all  those  who 
know  by  experience  that  the  facility  with  which  the  Venezuelan 

administration  despoil  foreigners  of  rights  acquired  by  mutual  con- 
sent is  only  equalled  by  the  difficulty  which  the  Government  and 

public  opinion  in  Venezuela  experience  in  admitting  for  injured  stran- 
gers the  legitimacy  of  equitable  compensation. 

Paris,  September  2,  1904, 
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ADDITIONAL  OPINION  OF  THE  VENEZUELAN  COMMISSIONEB. 

I  have  read  the  brief  lately  prepared  by  the  commissioner  for  France 

explanatory  of  his  opinion  rendered  at  the  sittings  held  by  the  com- 
mission in  Caracas  on  May  5  and  7,  1903,  averring  that  the  Govern- 

ment of  Venezuela  ought  to  indemnify  the  General  Company  of  the 
Orinoco  to  the  amount  of  7,000,000  bolivars  in  3  per  cent  bonds  of  the 

diplomatic  debt. 

The  gallant  expressions  used  by  the  French  commissioner  in  speak- 
ing of  my  position  on  the  mixed  commission  where  I  have  had  the  most 

signal  honor  of  sharing  the  arduous  task  with  so  distinguished  and 

learned  a  colleague,  I  appreciate  as  a  compensation  for  the  mortifica- 
tions which  M.  de  Peretti  justly  believes  my  patriotic  sentiments  have 

suffered  while  examining  the  332  claims  submitted  to  our  investigation 
and  decision,  representing  in  the  aggregate  the  enormous  sum  of 
80,000,000  bolivars,  a  sum  which  is  about  equivalent  to  the  capital 

actually  represented  by  the  French  colony  in  Venezuela. 
Moved  by  a  critical  spirit,  my  learned  colleague  makes  the  following 

statements: 

The  Venezuelan  commissioner,  playing  the  part  of  a  lawyer  rather  than  that  of  an  impar- 
tial arbitrator,  in  the  brief  submitted  to  me  undertakes  to  dispute  the  arguments  of  the  com- 

pany.    *    *    * I  have  refused  to  follow  my  colleague  into  this  field,  believing  that  in  my  capacity  of  an 

arbitrator  I  am  not  called  upon  to  present  any  arguments  in  favor  of  or  against  one  of  the  two 

parties,  but  only  to  examine  their  statements  and  to  decide  in  favor  of  the  one  or  the  other. 
♦     ♦     ♦ 

Doctor  Paul  was  so  convinced  that  he  was  taking  the  part  of  the  lawyer  rather  than  that  of 

an  arbitrator,  that  he  made  the  statement  to  me  at  the  session,  as  shown  by  the  minutes, 
that  he  would  take  my  arguments  into  consideration,  if  I  was  willing  to  submit  them  and 

and  see  if  it  would  be  possible  to  reach  an  agreement.    *    *    * 
It  is  not  my  intention  to  censure  Doctor  Paiil,  because  his  patriotism  may  have  led  him 

to  become  a  lawyer  representing  his  country  instead  of  the  man  who  was  called  upon  to  pass 

judgment      *     *     * 

M.  de  Peretti  de  la  Rocca,  called  upon  to  pass  judgment  on  the  claims 

of  his  countrymen,  believes  himself  to  be  authorized  under  the  Paris  pro- 
tocol to  pass  judgment  upon  the  manner  in  which  I  have  performed 

my  work  on  the  commission.  I  do  not  think  that  the  protocol  gives 
his  authority  so  wide  a  scope,  but  I  believe  that  I  am  obliged  to  state 
that  his  opinions  as  to  the  method  I  have  deemed  best  to  follow  in  the 
discharge  of  my  duties  and  functions  as  an  arbitrator,  are  entirely 

foreign  to  the  impersonal  character  which  discussions  between  arbi- 
trators must  have  when  a  difference  of  opinion  divides  them  while 

investigating  and  deciding  upon  a  case. 
The  work  I  have  helped  to  perform  as  the  commissioner  (arbitrator) 

for  Venezuela  on  the  two  French- Venezuelan  Commissions,  in  connec- 
tion with  the  severe  judge  of  my  country,  is  well  demonstrated  by  the 

f ̂cts  that  out  of  332  French  claims  submitted  to  our  decision,  amount- 
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ing  to  the  sum  of  77,477,409.47  bolivars,  306  were  definitively  settled  or 
decided  by  mutual  agreement,  reducing  the  sum  claimed  from 

34,127,226.10  bolivars  to  3,950,731.14  bolivars,  or  about  one-ninth 

part  of  the  sum  claimed ;  16  claims  were  submitted,  because  of  disagree- 
ment, to  the  final  decision  of  the  umpire,  Mr.  Filtz,  who  awarded  the 

sum  of  153,369.38  bolivars,  and  the  other  8  claims,  representing  the 
sum  of  42,988,047.50  bolivars,  are  subject  to  the  investigation  of  the 

honorable  umpire,  Mr.  Frank  Plumloy,  in  this  city  of  Northfield. 
If  through  the  bandage  covering  the  eyes  of  justice,  as  she  is  always 

represented,  the  French  commissioner  has  been  able  to  discover  that 
in  the  claims  of  his  countrymen,  as  submitted  to  our  joint  examination, 
the  amount  had  been  inflated  in  the  proportion  of  9  to  1 ,  what  could 
the  Venezuelan  commissioner  not  have  discovered,  animated,  as  it  is 

justly  surmised,  by  his  patriotic  sentiments,  which  had  been  submitted 

to  the  hardship,  as  my  colleague  justly  remarks  of — 

discussion  [which]  must  have  been  grievous  many  times  to  his  Venezuelan  sentiments 

from  those  332  claims  which  offer,  as  shown,  the  plainest  evidence  that 
it  has  been  pretended  that  Venezuela  should  pay  for  indemnity  for 
damages  an  amount  tenfold  greater  than  the  value  of  the  actual 
damages  sustained?  If,  because  in  order  to  succeed  in  preventing 
that  such  gross  injustice  be  done  by  the  mixed  commissions  to  which 
I  have  been  a  party,  my  colleague  considers  that  I  have  played  the 

part  of  a  lawyer  in  defense  of  my  country,  instead  of  that  of  an  impar- 
tial judge,  then  I  have  done  my  duty,  and  I  do  not  think  I  deserve  on 

that  score  the  censure  of  those  who  have  no  reason  to  desire  that  I 

should  not  have  defended  my  country. 
As  regards  the  method  adopted  by  the  French  commissioner  of  not 

supporting  his  decisions  and  opinions  by  arguments  in  order  to  dis- 
tinguish his  system  of  defense  from  mine,  I  have  nothing  to  say.  It 

is  enough  for  me  to  be  satisfied  that  I  have  fulfilled  my  duties  to  the 

-utmost,  and  that  I  have  in  my  opinions  endeavored  to  follow  the 
standard  set  by  eminent  jurists  who  have  discharged  these  same  duties 

of  arbitrators  and  who  did  not  think  that  they  were  to  pass  their  sen- 
tences as  imperial  ukases,  but  that  such  sentences  were  to  be  based 

upon  the  exposition  of  the  principles  involved  and  upon  a  line  of  argu- 
ment growing  out  of  the  examination  of  such  principles,  laws,  and 

precedents.  Such  arguments  have  come  to  be  a  source  of  light  to 
those  who,  like  myself,  desirous  of  learning  how  not  to  err,  have  gone 
thither  to  dispel  shadows  of  darkness  in  their  intellectual  labors. 

Among  other  authorities,  see  the  six  large  volumes  of  Moore's  Inter- 
national Arbitrations;  the  volume  containing  the  enlightened  opin- 

ions of  the  commissioners  in  the  United  States  and  Venezuelan  Claims 

Commissions,  1889-1890,  and  Ralston's  Report,  Venezuelan  Arbi- 
trations of  1903. 
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I  must  express  at  this  point  surprise  to  see  how  my  colleague  has 
construed  the  statements  I  made  to  him  at  the  sitting  of  May  7,  1903, 

that  I  would — 

take  these  [arguments]  into  consideration  and  see  if  it  would  be  possible  to  reach  an 

agreement. 

To  deduce  from  such  statement,  inspired  only  by  my  desire  to  become 

acquainted  with  the  arguments  of  my  colleague,  to  see — if  I  was  con- 
vinced by  them — ^whether  we  could  reach  an  agreement  or  find  out 

whether  it  was  established  that  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco 
was  entitled  to  an  indemnification,  is  equivalent  to  deriving  from  the 

question  put  by  one  person  to  another,  ' '  What  reasons  have  you  to 
demand  from  me  the  payment  of  that  bill?"  that  such  question  estab- 

lishes the  fact  that  the  debt  has  been  acknowledged. 

That  my  learned  colleague  should  appeal  to  such  a  line  of  circum- 
locutory arguments  in  support  of  his  opinion  in  favor  of  the  Greneral 

Company  of  the  Orinoco  plainly  shows  that  in  the  store  of  arguments 
used  by  the  company,  and  which  my  learned  colleague  produces  as  his 
own,  there  are  not  many  weighty  enough  to  bring  conviction  to  the 

honorable  imapire's  mind  of  the  sound  foundation  of  the  claim. 
The  French  commissioner  reaffirms  his  determination  in  the  brief 

under  discussion,  when  he  avers  that  he  abstains  from  following  me 
into  the  field  of  argument, 

believing  that  in  his  capacity  as  an  arbitrator  he  is  not  called  upon  to  present  arguments  in 
favor  or  against  one  of  the  two  parties,  but  only  to  examine  their  statements  and  to  decide 
in  favor  of  the  one  or  the  other. 

My  learned  colleague  adds: 

One  of  the  lawyers  of  the  Paris  bar,  Mattre  Poincar^,  lias  undertaken  to  defend  the  com- 
pany in  the  field  of  law,  answering  Doctor  PatiFs  arguments.  The  perusal  of  the  brief 

(plaidoirie)  prepared  by  M.  Poincar^  has  but  strengthened  me  in  the  opinion  which  I  had 
formed  after  having  studied  the  dossier  and  the  plea  of  my  colleague. 

Consequently,  M.  de  Peretti,  in  his  brief,  limits  himself  to  explaining 
his  reasons  for  granting  the  company  any  indemnification  for  evenj^ual 
profits;  for  reducing  the  rate  of  interest  claimed  to  3  per  cent  until 
July  1,  1902,  when  the  estimate  made  by  the  company  ends;  and  for 
granting  besides  a  supplementary  indemnification  for  interest  from 
that  date  until  the  day  of  the  final  decision,  fixed  at  1,000,000  bolivars, 
and  another  million  because  of  the  depreciation  of  the  bonds  of  the 
diplomatic  debt,  making  a  total  of  7,000,000  bolivars. 

I  deny,  as  it  is  my  bounden  duty  to  do,  most  emphatically,  the 
unfounded  conjecture  my  learned  colleague  has  made  in  his  brief,  when 
he  states  that  I  would  not  be  the  only  one  among  my  enlightened 

countrymen  who  would  have  consented  to  acknowledge  my  coimtry's 

liability  in  this  case,  and  consequently  admitted  that  an  indemm'fica- 
tion  is  due  the  company.     It  is  also  indispensable,  since  the  honorable 
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French  commissioner  is  willing  to  use  it  in  support  of  his  opinion,  that 
I  shotild  take  into  consideration  the  incident  of  the  Pietri-Hanotaux 
protocol  and  the  draft  of  an  agreement  signed  in  Paris  by  M.  Juan 
Pietri,  which  M.  de  Peretti  has  submitted  as  a  part  of  his  brief. 

The  incident  in  question,  as  it  appears  in  the  opinion  of  my  learned 

colleague  is  as  follows  :«* 
In  1897  the  President  of  the  United  States  of  Venezeula  sent  to  Paris  a  semiofficial  pleni- 

potentiary, General  Pietri,  to  endeavor  to  renew  the  diplomatic  relations  interrupted 
between  the  two  countries  since  the  departure,  in  1895,  of  the  Marquis  de  Monclar,  French 

minister,  because  of  an  incident  which  to  reopen  here  is  unnecessary.  Mr.  Pietri  opened 

negotiations  with  the  Quai  d'Orsay  and  such  negotiations  resulted  in  the  signing  of  a  pro- 
tocol by  virtue  whereof  normal  relations  between  France  and  Venezuela  were  to  be  reestab- 

lished, provided  such  diplomatic  act  was  ratified  by  the  Congress  of  Venezuela. 
Annexed  to  said  protocol  there  was  a  convention  concluded  on  June  24,  1897,  between 

the  plenipotentiary  of  Venezuela  and  the  liquidators  of  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco, 

the  text  of  said  convention  being  attached  to  the  papers  (dossier)  in  the  claim.  It  was  stipu- 
lated by  the  convention  that  said  company  by  way  of  a  compromise  agree  to  relinquish  any 

further  claims  upon  payment  by  the  Venezuelan  Government  of  an  indemnity  of  3,600,000 

bolivars.  • 

The  Venezuelan  Congress  did  not  ratify  said  protocol,  the  convention  remaining  therefore 

null  and  void.  However,  it  may  be  inferred  from  such  fruitless  endeavors  to  come  to  an 
agreement  that  there  lias  been  a  Venezuelan  plenipotentiary  who  eight  years  ago  recognized 
the  right  to  a  considerable  indemnity  on  the  part  of  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco. 

The  Venezuelan  Congress  having  met  in  secret  session  to  examine  the  protocol  signed  by 
Messrs.  Hanotaux  and  Pietri,  I  have  been  unable  to  learn  the  reasons  of  its  rejection  by  said 
assembly.  It  is  possible  that  the  convention  subscribed  to  by  the  company  may  have  had 

something  to  do  with  such  rejection.  But,  even  admitting  that  the  existence  of  said  con- 
vention had  been  the  only  cause  of  the  refusal  of  Congress  to  ratify  the  protocol,  said  conven- 

tion does  not  lose  by  that  fact  its  character  as  a  document  of  great  value.    *    ♦    *     . 

So  much  for  the  history  of  the  incident  of  the  Pietri-Hanotaux 
protocol.  The  other  portion  of  the  document,  replaced  by  the  dots, 
with  which  my  colleague  ends  the  paragraph,  I  shall  not  reproduce 

in  this  answer.  They  belong  to  that  class  of  arguments  called  *'a5 

homine/^  so  generally  used  in  French  parliamentary  oratory,  but 
which  are  misplaced  in  abstract  and  severe  debates  before  a  court 
like  this  one.  Whatever  be  the  opinion  the  French  commissioner 

may  Have  formed  of  the  administration  and  public  opinion  in  Vene- 
zuela, will  surely  not  have  the  slightest  weight  in  the  mind  of  the 

honorable  umpire  when  he  shall  render  his  decision  in  the  case. 

M.  de  Peretti  is  in  the  right  when  he  states  that  the  convention  con- 
cluded between  Mr.  Pietri  and  the  liquidators  of  the  General  Com- 

pany of  the  Orinoco  acknowledging  to  the  latter,  by  way  of  a  com- 
promise, 3,600,000  bolivars,  had  something  to  do  with  the  refusal 

of  the  Congress  of  Venezuela  to  ratify  the  Pietri-Hanotaux  protocol, 
the  object  of  which  was  the  renewal  of  diplomatic  relations  between 
the  two  countries.  It  not  only  had  something  to  do  with  the  refusal, 
but  was  the  sole  cause  thereof.     Even  if  Venezuela  had  solicited  the 

o  Page  285. 
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renewal  of  the  relations,  for  which  Mr.  Pietri  had  received  instructions, 

Congress  was  compelled  to  refuse  to  ratify  the  protocol  tending  to 
such  renewal,  because  the  convention  annexed  as  a  condition  to  the 

end  in  view  represented  for  Venezuela  a  sacrifice  of  such  magnitude 
and  so  unjustified,  that  Congress  preferred  to  continue  depriving  the 

country  of  friendly  relations  with  France  to  subjecting  it  to  a  cen- 
surable negotiation.  General  Pietri  lacked  the  necessary  authority 

and  instructions  to  negotiate  with  the  General  Company  of  the  Ori- 
noco, and  even  the  officious  negotiations  which  were  intrusted  to  him 

in  France  for  the  renewal  of  diplomatic  relations  were  ad  referendurrij 
because,  such  relations  being  interrupted,  he  could  not  have  been 
invested  with  the  character  of  minister  plenipotentiary  to  the  Quai 
d'Orsay. 

If  from  the  officious  capacity  of  Mr.  Pietri  to  treat  with  the  Quai 

d'Orsay  of  the  renewal  of  the  diplomatic  relations  between  Venezuela 
and  France  and  from  the  character,  as  minister  plenipotentiary,  which 
was  vested  in  Mr.  Pietri  by  the  administration  of  1897  to  represent 
Venezuela  in  other  States  of  Europe,  the  Frehch  commissioner  draws 
a  favorable  conclusion  when  he  says: 

It  may  be  inferred  from  such  fruitless  endeavors  to  come  to  an  agreement,  that  there  has 

been  a  Venezuelan  plenipotentiary,  who  eight  years  ago,  recognized  the  right  on  the  part 
of  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco  to  a  considerable  indemnity. 

what  may  I  not  deduce,  as  the  Venezuelan  commissioner,  against  the 
justice  of  such  indemnification,  following  the  same  style  of  argument, 
upon  considering  that  it  has  not  been  a  Venezuelan  plenipotentiary, 

but  the  National  Congress,  consisting  of  eighty  plenipotentiaries  rep- 
resenting the  will  of  three  millions  of  inhabitants,  who  disapproved 

the  convention  signed  by  Mr.  Pietri,  because  they  believed  it  to  be 
unla^vful  ? 

M.  de  Peretti  states  in  his  brief  that  the  perusal  of  the  pleadings 

(plaidoirie)  of  Maitre  Poincare,  counsel  for  the  company,  who  dis- 
cusses my  arguments,  has  come  to  confirm  him  in  his  opinion.  I  have 

read  the  brief  of  the  eminent  member  of  the  French  bar  and  lawyer 
of  the  court  of  appeals,  and  since  his  opinion  has  been  sought  for  by 
the  claimant  company  to  impugn  my  opinion,  I  must  examine  it  and 
reply  to  its  allegations. 

The  first  part  of  the  brief  and  opinion  of  Maitre  Poincar^,  called 

*' Exposition  of  Facts,''  contains  a  relation  based  upon  the  documents 
and  notes  produced  by  the  claimant  company,  making  a  better  pres- 

entation of  the  same  papers,  statements,  and  letters  found  in  the 

case  (dossier)  of  the  company.  Of  such  exposition  of  facts  the  hon- 
orable umpire  can  only  take  into  consideration  for  his  decision  such 

facts  upon  which  both  parties  have  agreed  or  the  accuracy  of  which 
has  been  duly  established,  based  on  trustworthy  documents  showing 
the  facts  to  be  true. 
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The  second  part  of  the  brief  under  consideration  is  called  *' Dis- 

cussion" and  is  divided  by  Maitre  Poincar^  into  several  chapters  and 
sections  dealing  with  the  different  grounds  upon  which  the  company 
has  based  its  claim  for  indemnification,  classified  as  follows: 

First.  Legal  and  decisive  efficacy  of  the  judgment  rendered  by  the 

high  Federal  court  against  which  the  company  opposes  denial  of  justice, 

based  upon  the  following  facts:  Irregularities  in  the  summons,  irregu- 
larities in  the  letters  rogatory,  irregularity  in  the  pleadings  (plai- 

dories). 

Second.  Good  grounds  for  the  claim  for  indemnification,  based  upon 

substantial  error  vitiating  the  consent,  failure  to  execute  its  obliga- 
tions on  the  part  of  Venezuela,  and  fulfillment  of  its  obligations  on 

the  part  of  the  company. 
Third.  Conclusions:  The  amounts  of  the  claims  have  been  duly 

established  by  means  of  documentary  evidence.  The  existing  dip- 
lomatic debt  is  now  worth  from  40  to  42  per  cent.  That  which  is  to 

be  created  for  the  indemnifications  resulting  from  the  protocol  of 
1902  shall  be  worth  even  less. 

For  the  sake  of  brevity,  in  this  additional  opinion  I  shall  examine 

only  such  points  of  the  opinion  of  Maitre  Poincar^  as  are  indispensa- 
bje  to  strengthen  the  arguments  in  my  first  opinion  and  shall  also 
point  out  whatever  may  be  conducive  to  a  clearer  exposition  of  the 
juridical  doctrine  or  international  principles  invoked,  as  well  as  to 
the  first  estimation  of  the  facts. 

The  question  advanced  as  the  fundamental  grounds  for  this  case 
is  in  the  first  place  whether  the  sentence  of  the  Venezuelan  Federal 

court,  declaring  the  rescission  of  the  contracts  under  which  the  Gen- 
eral Company  of  the  Orinoco  operated  and  condemning  said  company 

to  the  payment  of  a  certain  sum  and  judicial  costs,  is  a  final  or  decisive 
sentence  having  the  force  of  the  res  judicata  and  therefore  binding  and 
subjecting  the  company  to  all  its  consequences. 

The  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco,  four  years  after  such  sentence 
has  been  passed,  invoked  the  action  of  the  French  Government  in 

order  to  enter  a  protest  against  said  judgment,  claiming,  as  Mr.  Poin- 
car6  states — 

that  it  has  been  the  victim  of  an  actual  denial  of  justice,  because,  in  the  first  plac^,  all  remedies 

against  administrative  and  governmental  action  being  withheld  from  it,  mainly  by  reason 

of  the  decree  of  August  8, 1890,  issued  under  pressure  by  Colombia,  and  the  arbitrary  seizure 
of  1893,  and  in  the  second  place  because  of  the  violations  of  lx)th  pubHc  and  private  law 
executed  not  only  during  the  proceedings  but  also  oustide  of  any  judicial  action. 

The  company  produces  no  proof  whatever  to  show  that  all  legal 
remedies  against  administrative  and  governmental  action  have  been 
withlield  from  it.  The  decree  of  August  8,  1890,  as  evidenced  by  its 
own  terms,  was  issued  in  behalf  of  the  large  interests  of  the  inhabitants 

of  the  region  where  the  tonca  bean  is  gathered  and  because  the  com- 
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pany  had  suspended  the  purchase  of  the  bean  for  want  of  resources, 
and  the  Government  could  not  permit  the  destruction  of  the  interests 

and  means  of  subsistence  of  that  territory  abeady  threatened  with 
abandonment  on  the  part  of  the  company  and  an  absolute  business 

stagnation.  In  regard  to  the  seizure  of  1893,  subsequent  to  the  judg- 
ment, the  copies  subjoined  to  the  present  additional  opinion  in  support 

of  the  arguments  of  my  first  opinion  will  shed  sufficient  light  to  bring 
conviction  to  the  mind  that  the  property  the  company  had  abandoned 
on  the  banks  of  the  Orinoco  River  because  the  company  had  gone  into 

liquidation  and  was  unable  to  even  take  care  of  and  try  to  preserve 
said  property  has  not  sufficed,  because  of  its  state  of  deterioration  and 
ruin  to  pay  for  the  debts  contracted  in  the  locality,  let  alone  those  for 
which  the  company  was  liable  to  the  nation  by  virtue  of  the  sentence 
of  the  Federal  court. 

Against  the  argument  I  have  put  forth  in  my  opinion  that,  according 
to  the  Venezuelan  Code  of  Procedure,  the  General  Company  of  the 
Orinoco  had  six  months  after  date  of  sentence  within  which  to  demand 

that  it  be  invalidated,  if  the  company  had  or  believed  itself  to  have 
sufficient  grounds  to  ask  for  such  reversal,  Mr.  Poincar6  advances  the 
argument  that  the  sentence  of  the  court  was  in  itself  indisputably  a 
sovereign  decision,  not  open  to  any  remedy  or  appeal  whatever  before 
a  higher  court.  It  is  true  that  such  decision  was  not  subject  to  appeal 
before  a  higher  court,  because  the  high  Federal  court  is  the  highest 

judicial  tribunal;  but  such  decision  was  open  to  the  remedy  of  invali- 
dation before  the  same  court,  according  to  Case  I,  article  538  of  the 

Code  of -Civil  Procedure  then  in  force,  or,  in  other  words,  the  failure  to 
issue  such  summons  when  they  are  necessary  to  continue  the  case,  if 
the  failure  has  not  been  remedied  by  the  party  invoking  the  same. 

Article  539,  quoted  in  his  opinion,  clearly  stipulates  that — 

such  case  shall  be  tried  in  the  same  manner  as  the  case  upon  which  the  sentence  whose  invali- 
dation is  sought  was  tried  before  (he  court  which  has  decided  the  case  in  the  last  resort 

(instance). a 

J     M.  Poincar^  adds : 

There  was  nothing  to  be  gained  therefore  in  asking  the  invalidation,  as  this  could  not  be 

granted  except  for  a  special  cause,  and  the  most  important  grounds  of  complaint  could  not 
contribute  to  justify  such  a  step. 

One  of  these  grounds,  as  will  be  hereafter  shown,  was  failure  to 

notify  the  company^s  attorney  to  make  his  pleadings.  The  learned 
and  expert  counsel  for  France  has  already  stated  that  such  failure, 
which  is  a  most  important  ground  for  complaint  against  the  judgment, 
as  believed  by  the  claimant  party,  does  not  constitute  one  of  the  special 
causes  to  demand  the  invalidation  of  the  sentence,  according  to  the 

a  Art.  539.  Este  juicio  se  promover&  del  mismo  modo  que  la  demanda  sobre  que 
recayd  la  sentencia  cuya  invalidacidn  se  pide,  ante  el  tribunal  que  la  dict<5  en  tlltima 
instancia. 



ADDITIONAL   OPINION   OF    VENEZUELAN   COMMISSIONER.       293 

provisions  of  article  538  of  the  Code  of  Civil  Procedure.  ̂   Notwith- 
standing that  such  notification  is  unnecessary  and  not  required  by  the 

Venezuelan  law  of  procedure,  the  company  uses  it  as  the  basis  upon 
which  rests  its  main  argument  to  claim  that  the  sentence  of  the  Federal 
court  was  issued  against  it  without  previous  hearing  of  its  defense  and 
that  consequently  the  sentence  is  invalid. 

The  first  cause  of  invalidation  invoked  by  Maitre  Poincar6  in  his  brief 
as  vitiating  the  form  or  proceedings  is  the  irregularity  of  the  summons 

to  answer  the  complaint.  The  counsel  for  the  defense  of  the  company^s 
rights  bases  his  contention  to  that  effect  on  the  testimony  of  Mr.  Fiat, 

a  former  employee  of  the  company,  who  affirms  that  when  the  State's 
attorney  for  the  treasury  (Jiscal  nadonal  de  Jiadenda)  entered  his 

action  before  the  high  Federal  court  for  the  rescission  of  certain  con- 
tracts and  the  payment  of  an  indenmification  he  received  no  summons 

or  order  requiring  him  to  appear. 

It  is  true^  that  in  the  records  of  the  high  court — the  brief  avers — 
tiXention  is  made  of  the  letter  of  the  secretary  of  that  jurisdiction,  dated  on  May  30,  1890, 
addressed  to  Messrs.  Fiat  and  Planas,  informing  them  that  the  company  had  been  sued 

before  the  high  court. 

But  Messrs.  Fiat  and  Planas  have  always  declared  that  they  had  not  received  such  letter 

and  Mr.  Fiat  has  added  that  it  was  only  while  reading  a  Caracas  newspaf>er  that  he  l)ecame 

aware  that  the  company  had  been  summoned  to  appear  before  the  Federal  court.  It  was 

then  that  he,  of  his  own  accord  and  without  any  previous  summons,  went  to  the  secretary's 
office. 

It  can  not  be  doubted,  that  if  a  regular  summons  had  been  issued  to  Mr.  Fiat  or  Mr.  Planas 

or  if  any  notice  by  letter  had  been  given  to  them  of  the  action  entered  by  the  **  fiscal,"  a 
receipt  should  have  been  demanded,  as  was  done  in  the  case  of  all  subsequent  summonses. 
It  is  thus  shown  that  the  proceedings  were  irregularly  commenced. 

What  appears  from  the  minutes  in  the  case  which  may  offer  reason- 
able grounds  for  the  deductions  of  the  attorney  presenting  the  brief 

under  consideration  ? 

At  the  end  of  the  complaint  entered  by  the  fiscal  the  following  reso- 
lution appears : 

Presidency  op  the  High  Federal  Court, 

Caracas,  May  SO,  1890. 
[27  and  32.     Entered.] 
Summon  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco,  defendant,  whose  domicile  is  outride  of  the 

Republic,  and  serve  a  copy  of  the  foregoing  complaint,  to  appear  before  this  court  at  the 
sitting  of  the  tenth  working  day  after  summoned  to  answer  the  action,  which,  in  the  name 

of  the  national  Government,  the  State's  attome}'  for  the  treasury  (Jiscal  nadonal  de  hacienda) 
has  entered.  And  whereas  it  appears  from  the  documents  produced  that  Messrs.  Andr^ 
Fiat  and  Bemab^  Planas  have  held  powers  of  attorney  from  said  company,  let  them  be 
notified,  that  they  may  state  whether  they  still  exercise  such  duties,  and  if  not,  a  counsel  for 
the  defense  {defensor  de  ausentes)  shall  be  appointed  as  requested. 

(Signed)  Carlos  Urrutia. 
Manuel  Rend6n  Sarmiento. 

oFor  text  of  Art.  538  see  p.  259,  note. 
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On  the  same  day  and  date  the  summonses  were  issued  to  Messrs.  Fiat  and  Planas  to  appear 

at  the  first  sitting  of  the  court  after  being  summoned  for  the  purpose  aforesaid,  the  sum- 
monses iHMng  delivered  to  the  baihflf  of  this  high  court. 

(Signed)  Rendon  Sarmiento. Secretary. 

At  the  session  of  this  day,  June  2  (two  days  after  the  summonses  were  issued),  there 

appeared  Messrs.  Andrfe  Fiat  and  Bernab^  Planas  and  stated  that  Mr.  Andres  Fiat  is  now 

the  representative  of  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco  and  offers  to  produce  the  power  of 

attorney  at  the  session  of  next  Wednesday,  the  fourth  day  of  the  present  month. 

Subscribed  to — 
(Signed)  Carlos  Urrutia. 

Andres  Fiat. 
B.  Planas. 

Rendon  Sarmiento,  Secretary. 

These  are  followed  by  others  referring  to  the  filing  of  the  power  of 
attorney  in  the  French  language;  appointment  of  an  interpreter  to 
translate  the  same;  his  acceptance  and  oath;  the  transla^on  of  the 
power  of  attorney,  and  the  order  of  the  presidency  of  the  high  Federal 
court  directing  that  the  original  power  of  attorney  be  returned  to  Mr. 
Fiat,  and  that  he  be  duly  summoned  to  appear  as  the  attorney  for  the 
company. 

Then  follows  an  entry  of  the  secretary,  whereby  it  appears  that  a 
certified  copy  of  the  complaint  was  made  and  delivered  to  the  bailiff 
to  execute  the  summonses  issued  to  the  defendants. 

As  a  part  of  the  record,  the  following  entry  appears: 

I  have  received  the  complaint  in  the  action  entered  by  the  national  Government  against 
the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco,  of  which  I  am  the  representative.  Caracas,  June  19, 
1890.  (Signed)  Andres  Fiat.  (Minutes  of  the  proceedings  had  before  the  high  Federal 
court,  a  certified  copy  of  which  I  submit  to  the  honorable  umpire,  in  Spanish  and  English, 
consisting  of  6  exhibits,  numbered  1,  2,  and  3,  respectively.) 

The  testimony  furnished  by  the  minutes  of  the  proceedings  shows 
that  due  regularity  in  conformity  with  the  legal  precepts  was  observed 

in  summoning  Mr.  A.  Fiat  as  the  representative  of  the  General  Com- 
pany of  the  Orinoco,  and  also  establishes  the  fact  that  there  is  no  i  ruth 

in  the  declaration  of  Mr.  Fiat,  serving  as  a  basis  to  the  company's 
counsel  to  aver  that  the  proceedings  were  irregularly  commenced. 
In  regard  to  the  statement  which,  it  is  affirmed,  Mr.  Bemabe  Planas 

made  to  the  same  effect,  it  is  not  fc  und  among  the  numerous  docu- 
ments submitted  by  the  company,  so  that  no  other  conclusion  can  be 

drawn  except  that  the  writer  of  the  brief  was  induced  to  aflSrm  a  most 
serious  fact  affecting  an  old  friend  of  the  company,  which  is  contrary 
to  actual  events. 

The  line  of  argument  contained  in  the  rest  of  this  chapter  of  the 
brief  dealing  with  the  delay  in  summoning  Mr.  Fiat  and  answering  the 
complaint  because  of  the  preliminary  proceedings  of  giving  notice,  the 
filing  and  translating  of  the  power  of  attorney,  and  the  amendment  of 
a  part  of  the  case  by  fixing  the  amount  of  the  indenmification  asked 
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for  is  so  inadequate  to  arrive  at  the  conclusion  that  Mr.  Fiat  found 
himself  deprived  of  all  means  of  defense,  and  that  such  condition  of 
inability  permeated  the  whole  proceedings,  that  I  do  not  deem  it  my 
duty  to  undertake  its  discussion,  such  assertions  clearly  revealing  the 

fact  that  Maitre  Poincare  is  not  familiar  with  the  method  of  pro- 
cedure in  contentious  cases  before  our  Venezuelan  courts,  and  that  his 

learning  and  talents  can  not  bridge  over  his  deficient  knowledge  in  the 
matter  of  our  adjective  legislation.  All  the  proceedings  of  the  high 

court  from  the  origin  of  the  case  in  all  matters  pertaining  to  the  sum- 
mons of  Mr.  Fiat,  the  representative  of  the  company,  are  strictly  in 

accordance  with  the  provisions  of  the  Code  of  Civil  Procedure  in  force 
at  the  time,  as  the  honorable  umpire  may  see  by  an  examination  of  the 
legal  provisions  referred  to  in  conjunction  with  the  proceedings  in  the 
case,  a  copy  of  which  I  subjoin  hereto. 

The  next  section  of  the  brief  in  question  deals  with  the  irregularity 
of  the  letters  rogatory  issued  by  the  president  of  the  high  Federal 
court  to  the  civil  judge  of  the  first  instance  of  the  city  of  Paris  and  to 
his  eminence  the  Cardinal,  chief  of  the  propaganda  in  Rome,  which 
letters  rogatory  were  delivered  to  the  representative  of  the  company, 
Mr.  Fiat,  personally  to  obtain  the  extraterritorial  evidence  he  had 
requested,  consisting  of  afiidavits  of  witnesses  residing  in  Paris,  and  a 
statement  of  facts  requested  from  his  eminence  the  Cardinal. 

Maitre  Poincar6  maintains  that  diplomatic  channels  should  have 

been  used  to  forward  to  their  respective  destinations  the  letters  roga- 
tory, and,  as  the  Government  of  Caracas  knows  what  is  the  regular 

way  to  be  followed  to  obtain  the  desired  ends,  both  such  Government 
and  the  high  Federal  court  are  to  blame  if  the  interrogatories  were  not 
made  in  Paris  and  Rome;  that  such  conduct  could  not  have  been 

prompted  but  by  the  desire  to  prevent  that  the  requested  evidence  be 
obtained,  and  so  it  follows  that  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco 

was  deprived  of  its  most  essential  means  of  defense,  and  that  the  taking 

of  the  evidence  for  which  the  high  court  had  fixed  a  time — which  was 
insufficient — was  then  incomplete  of  necessity. 

The  counsel  defending  such  theory  adduces  in  its  support  the  prin- 
ciples laid  down  by  the  Institute  of  International  Law  in  its  session  at 

Zurich  in  1877,  which  I  have  already  had  the  opportunity  to  quote  in 

my  former  opinion,  to  wit : 

As  the  opinion  of  the  Institute  was  that  letters  rogatory  should  be  sent  directly  to  the  for- 
eign court  by  the  court  issuing  the  same.o 

The  learned  counsel  also  quotes  the  opinion  of  Mr.  Carlos  Calvo, 
who  makes  the  following  statement  in  his  Treatise  on  International 

Law,  Volume  II,  section  889:  ̂  

o  Page  258. 

ft  II  rdsulte  de  principe  de  Pinddpendance  des  nations  que  le  juge  stranger  n'est  pas 
oblige  d'accepter  la  commission  rogatoire;  mais  I'usage  des  nations  a  introduit  la  r^gle 
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From  the  principle  of  the  independence  of  nations  it  follows  that  the  foreign  court  is  not 
obliged  to  accept  letters  rogatory,  but  usage  amopg  nations  has  introduced  the  rule  that 

foreign  courts  accept  such  request  and  proceed  to  take  the  necessary  steps  in  the  matter, 

except  in  such  cases  where  such  acts  may  impair  the  sovereignty  of  the  country  or  the  rights 
of  its  citizens.  This  is  why  letters  rogatory,  as  a  general  rule  are  not  sent  to  the  courts  directly 

but  through  diplomatic  channels,  so  that  the  Government  may  examine  the  same  before 

directing  their  execution,  in  order  to  become  satisfied  that  they  do  not  contain  anything  ' 
contrary  to  the  laws  of  the  State.  In  case  letters  rogatory  should  be  sent  directly  from 

abroad  to  a  court  they  must  be  forwarded  immediately  to  the  minister  of  justice. 

M.  Poincar6  adds: 

And  let  us  remark  that  Mr.  Calvo's  opinion  is  later  than  that  of  the  Institute  of  Inter- 
national I^aw,  because  Mr.  Calvo  in  section  894  makes  reference  to  that  authority  errone- 

ously quoted  by  Venezuela. 

The  learned  counsel  also  invokes  the  opinion  of  Dalloz,  Repertoire 
G6n6ral,  Instruction  Civile,  No.  83,  as  follows: 

Our  courts  are  frequently  called  upon  by  foreign  courts.  An  order  of  the  minister  of 

justice  {Garde  des  Sceaux)  contains  the  following  rules  to  be  observed  in  .similar  cases: 

Courts  must  not  comply  with  any  lett^i-s  rogatory  in  civil  matters  coming  from  abroad 
unless  they  are  transmitted  to  them  through  the  ministry  of  justice,  who  in  turn  receives  them 

from  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  with  the  translation,  as  the  case  may  be,  after  examina- 

tion. *  *  *  Letters  rogatory  in  civil  matter  must  be  executed  by  the  court  without 
necessary  intervention  of  the  parties  concerned.  Notwithstanding  this  such  parties  are/r^e 
to  intervene  and  in  order  to  foster  the  proceedings  may  ask  the  clerk  to  issue  letters  rogatory. 

Beyond  such  cases  of  spontaneous  intervention  of  the  parties  or  one  of  them  the  letters  rogatory 
are  executed  upon  request  of  the  proper  judicial  authorities.  The  acts  performed  in  the 

execution  of  the  letters  rogatory  are  sent  by  the  court  to  the  minister  of  justice  with  a  cer- 
tified memorandum  of  the  costs,  and  the  document-s  are  forthwith  transmitted  to  the  minister 

of  foreign  afTairs.o 

M.  Poincar6  concludes — 
Thus  the  parties  are  not  called  upon  to  transmit  the  request.  They  have  only  power  of 

intervention  during  the  execution  of  the  letters  rogatory. 

que  les  juges  strangers  acceptent  cetto  mission  et  proc^dent  aux  actes  d'instruction 
qu'elle  a  pour  objet,  excepts  dans  le  cas  oil  ces  actes  porteraient  atteinte  aux  droits  de 
souverainet^  du  pays  ou  aux  droits  des  nationaux.  C'est  pouiquoi  les  commissions  roga- 
toires,  en  g^n^ral,  ne  se  transmettent  pas  aux  tribunaux  ou  aux  magistrats  Strangers 

directement,  mais  par  la  voie  diplomatique,  de  mani^re  que  le  gouvernement  puisse  les 

examiner  avant  d'cn  autoriser  I'ex^cution  pour  s'assurer  qu'elles  ne  contiennent  rien  de 
contraiie  aux  lois  de  I'Etat.  Dans  le  cas  oCl  une  commission  rogatoire  serait  transmise 

directement  de  I'^tranger  k  un  magistrat,  celui-ci  doit  I'envoyer  imm^diatement  au 
ministre  de  la  justice.  (Calvo,  Le  Droit  International  Th^orique  et  Pratique,  5®  Edition, 
sec.  889.) 

aNos  ttibunaux  sont  souvent  d^l^gu^  par  les  juges  strangers;  une  instruction  de  M. 
le  garde  des  sceaux  contient  les  regies  k  suivre  en  pareil  cas.     Elle  est  ainsi  con^ue: 

Les  magistrats  ne  doivent  d^f^rcr  aux  commissions  rogatoires,  en  matidre  civile  qui  viennent  de 

i'dtrarger,  autant  qu'elles  leur  sont  transmises  par  le  ministre  de  justic?,  qui  los  r  Qoit  du  mi  istra  des 
affaires  ̂ tra:  g&res,  avoc  la  traduction,  s'il  y  a  lieu,  apr^s  examen.  *  *  *  Les  commissions  roga- 
toirrs  en  mati^r?  civile  ou  pour  des  faits  qui  pourraient  donner  lieu  kvlnc  action  civil \  doivent  6tre 

ex^juttes  par  1  s  magistrats  sans  intervention  n^ssaire  des  parties  int^ress^  s.  Tout  fois,  les  par- 
ties sont  libres  d  intervonir,  et  alors,  pour  motiver  leurs  diligences, elles  peuvcnt  dimdnderaugrcffier 

une  rxp<^dition  de  la  commission  rogatoire.  Hors  le  cas  de  I'intervention  spontan<^  des  parties  ou 
de  Tune  d'elles,  les  commissions  rogatoires  sont  ex^cutoires  2i  la  requite  du  minist^re  public.  Les 
actes  qui  constatent  lex^cution  d'une  commission  rogatoire  sont  en  voyds  par  le  parquet  auminist^re 
do  la  justice,  avec  un  ̂ tat  de  frais  visd  les  pitees  sont  ensuite  transmises  au  minist^re  des  affaires 
dtrang^res. 
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The  authorities  quoted,  far  from  destroying  what  I  have  maintained 
in  my  opinion  in  support  of  the  doctrine  estabUshed  by  the  Institute 
of  International  Law  in  its  meeting  in  Zurich,  comes  to  confirm  my 
argument  in  all  its  conclusions. 

There  are  two  orders  of  facts  of  an  entirely  different  character 
which  Maitre  Poincare  confounds  to  the  extreme  of  pointing  out  a 
difference  between  the  Institute  of  International  Law  and  Mr.  Calvo, 

which  does  not  really  exist  in  this  matter. 
One  of  these  points  is  the  act  of  a  court  addressing  to  a  foreign  court 

a  petition  praying  it  to  perform  within  its  jurisdiction  certain  acts 
or  proceedings,  and  to  this  end  the  letters  rogatory  are  addressed 
directly  from  one  court  to  the  other.  The  other  point  is  that  of  the 
transmittal  of  said  letters  rogatory  addressed  by  a  court  to  another, 
which,  according  to  the  Institute  of  International  Law,  may  he  made 
through  diplomatic  channels,  and  according  to  Calvo  must  he  always 
made  through  such  channels  and  not  otherwise. 

Calvo,  in  section  889,  already  quoted,  further  says:^ 
The  request  for  such  cooperation  is  made  by  a  special  letter  whereby  the  court  or  judge 

concerned  asks  the  cooperation  of  a  foreign  court  or  judge  or  jirays  such  court  or  judge  to 

perform  within  the  proper  jurisdiction  certain  acts  or  proceedings  that  the  petitioner  is 
unable  to  perform. 

To  solicit  or  pray  for  the  cooperation  of  such  foreign  judge  it  is 
necessary  to  address  him  directly  in  writing  a  letter  rogatory  as  done 
by  the  high  court  to  the  judge  of  the  Seine  in  the  following  form  quoted 
by  Maitre  Poincarfi. 

United  States  of  Venezuela:  In  their  name  the  president  of  the  high  Federal  court  to  the 

citizen  civil  judge  of  the  first  instance  of  the  city  of  Paris. 

And  at  the  end  of  the  petition — 
Now,  therefore,  I  pray  the  citizen  judge  of  the  first  instance  of  the  city  of  Paris  to  be 

pleased  to  have  the  present  petition  (letters  rogatory)  executed,  pledging  reciprocity  in 
similar  cases  from  the  courts  of  the  Republic. 

To  this  M.  Poincar6  says  that  '*it  is  nothing  but  a  mere  courtesy.'' 
Exactly ;  such  courtesy  is  what  is  expected  to  be  used. 

•  The  petition  or  letters  rogatory  which  a  court  or  judge  addresses  to 
another  being  prepared,  for  which  it  is  necessary  that  the  party  con- 

cerned should  go  to  the  office  of  the  secretary  (clerk)  of  the  court  and 
furnish  the  sam^  with  the  necessary  stamped  paper  upon  which  to 

extend  the  writ  in  reference  to  the  evidence  required,  the  correspond- 

ing revenue  stamps,  fees  for  copies  and  translation  when  such  is  neces- 
sary; then  such  acts  should  be  performed  as  are  necessary  for  the 

oLa  demande  de  cette  cooperation  se  fait  au  moyen  d'une  lettre  sp^ciale  par  laquelle  le 
tribunal  ou  le  magistral  qui  se  trouve  dans  ces  circonstances  sollicite  le  concours  d'un  tri- 

bunal ou  d'un  magistral  Stranger,  ou  le  prie  d'accoraplir  dans  I'^tendue  de  son  ressort 

quelque  acte  de  procedure  ou  d'instruction  qu'il  ne  peut  faire  lui-mfime.  (Calvo,  Le  Droit 
International  Th^orique  et  Pratique,  5®  edition,  sec.  889.) 
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transmission  of  the  letters  rogatory  addressed  to  the  foreign  court  or 

judge  tlu-ough  the  diplomatic  channels.  All  these  acts  should  be  per- 
formed by  the  interested  party,  who  receives  the  papers  in  order  to 

foster  their  transmittal  by  applying  to  the  department  of  foreign 
affairs. 

On  what  principle  of  international  law  or  on  what  authority,  ancient 
or  modem,  could  the  theory  be  founded  that  it  behooves  the  judge  in 

the  case  or  the  contrary  party — as  in  the  case  in  point,  the  Govern- 
ment of  Venezuela — to  perform  officiously  acts  which  only  the  inter- 
ested party  is  able  to  attend  to  with  due  diligence,  defraying  the  neces- 
sary expenses  and  fostering  their  execution?  And  so,  Mr.  Fiat,  the 

attorney  for  the  company,  assisted  in  its  defense  by  two  of  the  most 
distinguished  lawyers  of  Caracas,  Drs.  Diego  Bautista  Urbaneja 
and  Ram6n  F.  Feo,  who  received  the  petitions  or  letters  rogatory 
addressed  to  Paris  and  Rome,  does  not  incur  any  liability  because  he 

did  not  employ  in  the  transmittal  of  such  papers  the  diplomatic  chan- 
nels, nor  did  he  use  the  good  offices  of  the  department  of  foreign  affairs 

in  Caracas,  nor  did  even  apply  to  such  office,  and  the  Govemmeilt  of 

Venezuela,  the  contrary  party,  is  to  be  made  liable  for  such  a  negli- 
gence, since  it  can  not  be  supposed  it  was  ignorance  or  the  deliberate 

purpose  of  not  giving  the  letters  rogatory  the  proper  course  so  as  to 
claim  later  on  that  the  proceedings  were  vitiated. 

According  to  M.  Poincar^'s  theory,  the  Government  of  Venezuela 
and  the  high  Federal  court,  the  contrary  party  and  the  judge  in  the 

case,  should  perform  in  regard  to  Mr.  Fiat,  the  attorney  for  the  com- 
pany, the  duties  of  counselors  at  law,  and  taking  him  by  the  hand,  to 

go  with  him  to  the  Venezuelan  foreign  office,  legations,  or  consulates, 

which  were  to  attest  to  the  respective  signatures  and  then  to  the  post- 
office  where  the  papers  were  to  be  stamped,  certified,  and  mailed,  not- 

withstanding the  clearly  manifested  purpose  of  Mr.  Fiat  when  he  per- 
sonally received  the  letters  rogatory  of  not  trusting  to  others  such 

steps  for  the  transmission  of  the  documents. 
Our  Code  of  Civil  Procedure  contains  an  article,  reproduced  in  all 

such  codes,  which  has  been  in  force  in  the  Republic,  to  this  effect :  ̂ 
In  ciWl  matters  the  judge  can  not  take  action  against  a  party  except  at  the  request  of  the 

other  party,  unless  authorized  by  law  to  proceed  otherwise. 

Another  analogous  article  provides  that — ^ 
The  court  shaU  maintain  the  parties  in  the  enjoyment  of  such  rights  and  titles  as  are  com- 

mon to  both  without  preference  or  inequality,  as  well  as  in  the  enjoyment  of  such  rights  and 

titles  as  are  privative  to  each  party,  respectively,  according  to  the  provisions  of  law  or  the 

different  conditions  represented  in  the  action.    But  the  court  shall  not  aUow  such  parties 

o  Art.  14.  En  materia  civil  el  Juez  no  puede  proceder  sino  &  instancia  de  parte,  salvo  el 
caso  en  que  la  ley  lo  autorice  para  obrar  de  oficio. 

bArt.  27.  Los  tribunales  mantendrdn  6,  las  partes  en  los  derechos,  facultades  y  goces 
que  son  comunes  &  ellas,  sin  preferencia  ni  desigualdades,  y  en  los  privativos  de  cada  una 

de  ellas,  respectivamente,  segtin  los  acuerde  la  ley  &  la  diversa  condicidn  que  tengan  en  el 

iuicio.    Pero  no  podran  permilir  ni  permitirse  ellos  extralimitaciones  de  nigiin  g^nero. 
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nor  allow  herself  to  exceed  the  authority  of  their  respective  rights  or  jurisdiction  in  any  case 
whatever.     (Arts.  14  and  27,  Code  of  Civil  Procedure,  1897.) 

It  was  not  facultative  of  the  high  Federal  court  to  perform  of  its 
own  accord  acts  tending  to  the  transmittal  of  the  letters  rogatory,  but 
in  this  case,  as  well  as  in  all  proceedings  in  the  action,  the  court  had  to 
act  by  request  of  one  of  the  parties,  as  the  law  does  not  authorize  it  to 
act  on  its  own  authority.  To  act  otherwise  would  be  to  exceed  its 
authority,  an  act  punishable  by  our  laws. 

Mr.  Fiat  has  not  even  pretended  to  maintain  the  fact  that  he 
endeavored  to  obtain  from  the  court  the  transmission  of  the  letters 

rogatory  through  diplomatic  channels,  but,  on  the  contrary,  he  has 
confessed  that  he  requested  and  obtained  said  letters  and  sent  them 

directly  to  Paris  to  Mr.  Delort,  without  he  or  his  legal  advisers — who 
could  not  have  been  ignorant  of  such  means  of  procedure — ever  think- 

ing that  diplomatic  channels  should  be  employed.  The  consequences 
of  such  omission,  if  it  had  any  consequences  on  the  legal  action,  must 
be  suffered  solely  by  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco  and  in  no 
way  by  the  opposite  party  or  the  Government  of  Venezuela. 

The  brief  of  the  company's  counsel  now  deals  with  the  third  cause 
or  grounds  for  invalidation  of  the  sentence — i.  e.,  irregularity  in  the 
pleadings  (plaidoiries) .  M.  Poincar6  stops  to  discuss  the  fact  that 
the  representative  of  the  company  was  not  summoned,  nor  were  his 
counsel  to  enter  their  pleadings,  and  the  only  party  present  at  the 
time  set  for  such  pleadings,  according  to  the  records  of  the  case,  was 

the  State's  attorney  {iiscal  nacional  de  hacienda) .  I  have,  in  my  first 
brief,  most  carefully  examined  the  matter  and  have  established,  by 
quoting  the  respective  articles  of  the  Code  of  Civil  Procedure,  and  the 
chronological  examination  of  the  minutes  of  the  case,  that  the  action 
was  never  suspended  for  motives  which  were  imputable  to  the  parties 
and  that  consequently,  in  conformity  with  the  provisions  of  law, 
the  high  Federal  court  directed  that  the  pleadings  should  be  entered 

without  the  necessity  of  issuing  summons  to  the  parties  or  their  repre- 
sentatives. Had  the  court  acted  or  decreed  otherwise  it  would  have 

been  contrary  to  a  provision  specifically  set  forth  by  the  same  code,  to 
this  effect : 

After  summons  have  been  issued  to  answer  the  complaint  there  is  no  ne^d  of  further  sum- 

mons for  any  other  incident  of  the  proceedings  nor  the  summons  issued  shall  suspend  the  pro- 
ceedings, unless  specially  provided  for  to  the  contrary.a 

Such  action  on  the  part  of  the  court  would  have  been  contrary  to 

the  provisions  of  article  394  of  the  same  code,  reading  thus:^ 

a  Art.  146.  Hecha  la  citacidn  para  la  litis-contestacidn,  no  habrd  necesidad  de  practi- 
carla  de  nuevo  para  ningun  otro  acto  del  juicio,  ni  la  que  se  mande  verificar  suspenderd  el 

proc^dimiento,  d  menos  que  resulte  lo  contrario  de  alguna  dispsicidn  especial  de  la  ley. 

b  Art.  394.  Concluida  la  relacidn  se  oirdn  los  informes  verbales  de  las  partes,  de  sus  abo- 
gados  6  apoderados,  y  se  leerdn  los  que  presentaren  por  escrito,  los  cuales  se  agregardn  d 
los  autos. 
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Upon  the  conclusion  of  the  reading  of  the  papers  in  the  case  (expediente) ,  the  oral  state- 
ments of  the  parties  or  their  attorneys  or  representatives  shall  be  made  or  read,  if  in  writing, 

as  the  case  may  be,  and  added  to  the  record. 

This  article  does  not  direct  that  the  parties  be  summoned,  and  no 

such  provision  is  made,  because  the  parties  to  the  action  are  construc- 
tively present  during  the  hearing  from  the  day  they  are  summoned  to 

answer  the  complaint  Without  further  sunmions,  except  in  such  cases 

as  are  specially  provided  for  by  the  law. 
The  high  Federal  court  is  not  authorized  to  alter  or  modify  the 

method  laid  down  by  our  laws  of  procedure,  but,  on  the  contrary,  must 
adhere  strictly  to  its  provisions.  Any  act  whatever  in  violation  of 

such  provisions  is  null  and  void.  It  was  based  upon  such  considera- 
tions, and  in  view  of  the  original  record  of  the  case  existing  in  the 

archives  of  the  liigh  Federal  court  that  I  stated  in  my  former  opinion 

that,  in  view  of  the  fact  that  the  sentence  ^ '  that  the  parties  be  notified  *' 
was  not  duly  authorized  by  the  president  of  the  court  by  means  of  a 

legal  writ,  order,  or  decree  under  his  signature,  but  was  only  a  state- 
ment under  the  signature  of  the  clerk  of  the  court  (secretario)  who,  in 

conformity  with  the  laws  governing  our  method  of  procedure,  has  no 
other  powers  beyond  the  act  of  attesting  or  certifying  to  any  judicial 
acts,  decrees,  orders,  or  judgments  of  the  justices  of  the  court,  which 

should  always  be  made  in  writing  and  under  their  hand,  I  was  con- 
vinced that  the  Federal  court  had  not  ordered  such  notification  to  be 

made. 

Maitre  Poincar6  profits  by  this  remark,  which  I,  in  my  capacity 
of  an  arbitrator  was  entitled  to  make,  to  affirm  that  the  Venezuelan 

Government — 

found  itself  obliged  to  make  the  unfortunate  admission  that  the  sentence  ''that  the  parties 
be  notified"  has  been  the  exclusive  act  of  the  clerk  (secretario)  and  that  the  court  was  not  a 
party  to  the  order. 

It  was  not  the  Government  of  Venezuela  that  made  the  statement 

in  question,  but  the  commissioner  for  Venezuela,  in  view  of  the  legal 
provisions  governing  the  case  and  of  the  minutes  in  the  record.  My 
opinion  was  based  upon  the  fundamental  fact  that  the  law  does  not 
provide  that  the  parties  be  summoned  when  the  hearing  has  not  been 
suspended  because  of  acts  of  commission  or  omission  for  which  the 

parties  are  answerable.  My  opinion  points  out  the  way  to  demon- 
strate that  the  high  Federal  court  did  not  infringe  any  provisions  of 

law,  as  might  be  apparent  from  the  sentence  in  reference,  which  is 
due  to  an  error  of  the  clerk,  having  no  validity  whatever. 

Mr.  Poincarr6  states  in  his  brief  that  the  Venezuelan  lawyers,  Drs. 
Diego  B.  Urbaneja  and  Ram6n  F.  Feo,  agree  in  their  statement  that 
the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco  not  having  been  summoned  to 
appear  on  the  day  set  for  the  pleadings,  articles  109  and  162  of  the 

Code  of  Civil  Procedure  (1880)  ®  had  been  violated.     I  have  not  found 

oSee  p.  255,  note. 
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among  the  documents  and  papers  produced  by  the  company  any  writ- 
ten opinion  prepared  or  signed  by  said  jurists  to  which  credit  might 

be  given. 
The  company  has  pretended  in  several  documents  that  said  lawyers 

had  rendered  a  favorable  opinion  on  this  and  other  important  matters, 
but  such  opinions  duly  signed  and  verified  have  not  been  produced. 
The  fact  is  worthy  of  consideration  that  Dr.  Ram6n  F.  Feo  being  still 
in  Caracas,  and  it  being  an  easy  matter  for  the  company  to  obtain  a 
statement  from  him  during  the  sittings  of  the  commission  in  that 
city  and  his  testimony  on  the  facts  relating  to  the  action  before  the 

high  Federal  court,  such  steps  have  not  been  taken.  It  can  not,  there- 
fore, be  accepted  that  the  authority  and  learning  of  such  lawyers 

be  invoked  when  no  proofs  are  offered  that  they  are  or  have  been  of 
the  opinion  ascribed  to  them  in  this  matter. 

The  writer  of  the  brief  states  that  the  sentence  passed  was  not 
notified  either  to  the  representative  of  the  company,  Mr.  Fiat,  who 
remained  in  Caracas  for  over  a  year  after  the  sentence  wa^  passed  ̂   or  to 
the  lawyers  of  the  company,  who  lived  in  that  city,  nor  even  to  the 
liquidators.  This  requisite  of  notification  is  not  prescribed  by  our 
law  of  procedure,  except  in  criminal  cases.  In  civil  actions,  as  it 

has  been  shown,  the  parties  are  deemed  to  be  present  at  the  trial 
from  the  time  they  are  first  summoned  to  answer  the  complaint  and 
must  be  aware  either  personally  or  through  their  attorneys  of  all  the 
stages  of  the  proceedings.  It  should  be  noticed  that  at  the  date  of 
the  sentence,  October  14,  1891,  Mr.  Fiat,  although  still  residing  in 
Caracas,  was  not  the  representative  of  the  General  Company  of  the 
Orinoco,  in  liquidation,  as  he  had  resigned  since  October  11,  1890; 
that  the  company  appointed  Mr.  Bemab6  Planas  its  representative, 
and  that,  this  gentleman  having  refused  to  accept  such  commission, 

the  company  then  decided  to  send  Mr.  Berthier,  who  arrived  at  Cara- 
cas about  the  end  of  October,  1890,  leaving  some  time  in  July,  1891. 

Messrs.  Urbaneja  and  Feo  do  not  appear  as  being  representatives  of 
the  company  during  the  proceedings  before  the  high  Federal  court, 
but  simply  the  coun$el  for  Mr.  Fiat  at  the  beginning  of  the  action. 

(See  complaint  to  the  minister  for  foreign  affairs  in  France  by  the  liqui- 
dators of  the  company,  folio  47,  and  the  minutes  of  the  proceedings.) 

As  regards  the  notice  to  the  liquidators  residing  in  Paris,  the  Fed- 
eral court  must  have  been  ignorant  of  the  fact  that  such  liquidators 

existed,  as  it  does  not  appear  that  the  court  was  informed  that  the 
company  had  gone  into  liquidation,  notwithstanding  the  fact  that 
such  steps  were  taken  on  May  30,  1890,  two  days  after  the  filing  of 

the  complaint  before  the  high  court.  The  company  kept  the  Vene- 
zuelan authorities  and  especially  the  high  Federal  court  ignorant  of 

the  fact  that  it  hd,d  gone  into  liquidation — a  grave  omission  which 
sufficiently  explains  the  abandonment  of  its  representation  during 



302  COMPANY   GENERAL   OF   THE   ORINOCO    CASE. 

the  proceedings,  the  want  of  unity  and  cohesion  in  the  acts  for  the 

defense,  the  dilKcuhies  had  with  the  letters  rogatory,  and  the  non- 
appearance of  the  new  attorney,  Mr.  Berthier,  at  the  hearing,  as  he 

was  then  exclusively  engaged  in  effecting  an  extra-judicial  compro- 
mise wliich  would  put  an  end  to  the  legal  action  and  insure  a  new 

contract  to  the  company  in  liquidation. 
In  the  second  chapter  of  the  brief  under  consideration,  under  the 

head  of  ''Bien  fonde  de  la  demande,^^  the  author  directs  all  his  efforts 
in  support  of  the  following  claims: 

First.  That  the  agreements  entered  into  by  the  Government  of 
Venezuela  and  the  company  are  vitiated  from  their  origin,  because 
of  dissimulations  which  have  substantially  altered  the  convention 

and  which  permitted  the  Venezuelan  Government  to  impose  upon  the 
consent  of  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco. 

Second.  That  in  the  execution  of  the  contract  the  Government  has 

not  kept  the  contracted  obligations. 

By  way  of  introduction,  the  author  of  the  brief  lays  down  the  fol- 
lowing premises : 

It  is  upon  the  basis  of  equity  that  the  arbitration  commission  must  pass  sentence. 

It  has  been  admitted  that  such  should  be  the  rule  controlling  matters  pending  between 
Venezuela  and  other  States,  and  the  protocol  relating  to  those  of  the  United  States  has 

established  in  this  connection  a  rule  applicable  in  this  instance  by  assimilation:  ''The  com- 
missioners, or  in  case  of  their  disagreement,  the  umpire,  shall  decide  all  claims  upon  a  basis 

of  absolute  equity,  without  regard  to  objections  of  a  technical  nature  or  of  the  provisions  of 

local  legislation." 

It  is  not  possible  to  admit  the  principle  of  assimilation  advanced  by 
Maitre  Poincar6  in  regard  to  the  claims  submitted  to  the  decision  of 

the  umpire,  according  to  the  terms  of  the  Paris  protocol  of  February 
19,  1902.  The  terms  of  such  agreement  and  those  ot  the  Washington 
protocol  of  190«3  have  no  similarity  whatever;  on  the  contrary,  the 
contracting  parties  were  very  careful  to  declare  in  the  final  paragraph 
of  article  2  of  the  Paris  protocol  controlling  the  present  commission, 
that  the  procedure  adopted  for  the  examination  and  settlement  of  the 
claims  referred  to  in  articles  1  and  2,  were  not  instituted  but  as  an 

exception,  and  did  not  invalidate  the  convention  of  1885 ;  and  that  by 

article  5  of  this  convention  the  high  contracting  parties  agreed  that : — 

leurs  repr^ntants  diplomatiques  n'interviendront  point  au  sujet  des  reclamations  ou 
plaintes  des  particuliers  concemant  les  affaires  qui  sont  du  ressort  de  la  justice  civile  ou 

p^nale,  d'apr^  les  lois  locales,  a  mains  qu'il  ne  s'agisse  de  denis  de  justice  ou  de  retards  en 
justice,  contraires  h  I'usage  ou  k  la  loi,  de  I'inex^ution  d'un  jugement  ddfmitif,  ou  en  fin,  des 

cas  oCi,  malgr^  I'^puisement  des  moyens  l^gaux,  il  y  a  violation  dvidente  des  traits  ou  des 
regies  du  droit  des  gens.a 

a  Their  diplomatic  agents  shall  not  interfere  in  the  claims  or  complaints  of  private  parties 
relating  to  such  matters  as  come  under  the  jurisdiction  of  the  civil  or  penal  laws,  according 
to  local  legislation,  unless  in  cases  of  denial  o/ justice  or  delay  in  the  administration  of  justice 
contrary  to  usage  or  law,  or  failure  to  execute  a  final  judgment,  or,  in  fine,  in  such  cases  where, 

notwithstanding  the  fact  that  all  legal  means  have  been  exhausted,  there  is  an  evident  viola- 
tion of  the  treaties  or  of  the  rules  of  the  law  of  nations. 
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If  the  declaration  that  the  procedure  adopted  to  submit  to  the 
examination  of  a  mixed  commission  the  claims  of  French  citizens  as  an 

exceptional  method,  which  was  not  to  invalidate  the  convention  of  1885 ^ 
means  anything,  then  it  is  as  plain  as  daylight  that  this  commission  is 
bound  to  respect  the  sentences  or  decisions  passed  by  the  Venezuelan 
courts  in  accordance  with  local  legislation  in  such  matters  as  come 
under  the  jurisdiction  of  the  civil  or  penal  laws,  and  only  in  such  ca^es 

in  which  there  is  a  denial  of  justice  or  delay  in  the  administration  of  jus- 
tice, contrary  to  usage  or  law,  or  failure  to  execute  a  final  judgment,  or, 

in  fine,  in  such  cases  where,  notwithstanding  the  fact  that  all  legal 
means  have  been  exhausted,  there  should  exist  an  evident  violation  of 

the  treaties  or  rules  of  the  law  of  nations,  that  this  commission  may 
approve  of  diplomatic  interference  and  so  fix  the  liability  of  the 
Government  of  Venezuela,  if  any. 

In  the  claim  entered  by  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco  there 
has  been  submitted  to  this  commission  a  matter  which  comes  under  the 

jurisdiction  of  the  Venezuelan  civil  courts,  as  the  rescission  of  the  con- 
tracts obtained  by  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco  for  the  exploi- 
tation of  all  mineral  and  vegetable  products  of  the  alto  (upper)  Orinoco 

and  th^'Amazonas  for  a  term  of  thirty-five  years  and  that  of  the 
tonca  bean  for  a  term  of  twenty-five  years  upon  the  vacant  lands  lying 
between  the  eastern  boundaries  of  the  Federal  territories  Alto  Orinoco 

and  Amazonas,  and  between  the  Orinoco  and  the  boundaries  of  Vene- 
zuela and  Brazil,  because  it  is  thus  estabUshed  by  the  constitution,  the 

laws  of  the  Republic,  and  the  fourteenth  clause  of  the  contract  of 
December  17,  1885,  reproduced  in  that  of  April  1,  1887,  reading  as 
follows: 

Any  doubts  or  controversies  that  may  arise  in  the  execution  of  the  contract  shall  be 

decided  by  the  proper  courts  in  the  Republic  in  conformity  with  the  laws  tliereof. 

The  sentence  passed  by  the  high  court,  as  coining  under  its  civil 
jurisdiction,  in  conformity  with  local  legislation  and  in  compliance 
with  the  solerim  agreement  entered  into  by  the  contracting  parties, 
which  is  the  supreme  law  controlling  bilateral  contracts,  can  not  give 

rise  to  diplomatic  intervention  nor  impose  upon  the  Venezuelan  Gov- 
ernment any  liability  growing  out  of  said  sentence,  unless  it  is  estab- 

lished beyond  doubt  that  there  ha^  existed  a  denial  of  justice  or  delays  in 
the  administration  of  justice,  contrary  to  usage  or  a  law,  or  tliat  a  final 

judgment  has  not  been  executed,  or  that  there  exists  an  evident  viola- 
tion of  the  treaties  or  rules  of  the  law  of  nations.  In  order  to  enter 

the  action  the  only  plea  that  it  has  been  possible  to  advance  is  that  of 
denial  of  justice,  as  regards  the  form  of  proceedings  and  the  substance 
of  the  action. 

In  regard  to  the  first  contention,  i.  e. — irregularity  in  the  form  of  the 
proceedings,  it  has  been  sufficiently  shown  that  the  grounds  advanced 

by  the  claimant  company  are  wholly  without  foundation.     In  refer- 
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ence  to  the  second  contention,  i.  e. — the  decision  on  the  substance  of  the 
action  for  rescission  of  the  contracts  entered  by  the  fiscal  de  hacienda 
before  the  high  Federal  court,  it  suffices  to  transcribe  the  very  same 
terms  employed  by  the  author  of  the  brief  to  come  to  the  conclusion 
that  the  high  Federal  court  in  adjudging  the  rescission  of  the  contracts 

did  so  by  virtue  of  legal  provisions  governing  such  conventions  as  con- 
tain reciprocal  obUgations,  in  view  of  and  upon  investigation  of  the 

proofs  produced  by  the  claimant  in  case  the  defendant  fails  to  show 

proof  in  support  of  the  exception  taken  at  the  hearing  of  the  case. 
Maitre  Poincarfi  says,  page  78  of  his  brief: 

Elle  (la  Compagnie  G^n^rale  de  TOr^noque)  n'a  pu  prouver  qu'elle  avait  remplie  sea 

obligations,  sauf  cas  de  force  majeure,  elle  n'a  pu  montrer  que  c'^tait  le  Gouvemement  qui 
avait  manqu^  k  ses  devoirs;  elle  n'a  pu  printer  les  tr^  nombreuses  et  tr^s  int^ressantes 

attestations  writes  qu'd  d^faut  d'enqu^te  rdguliferement  ouverteen  France,  elle  avait  r^unies, 
qu'elle  ̂ tait  pr^te  d  foumir,  que  nous  rdsumerons  ou  citerons  plus  loin  et  qui  ont  6t4>  totale- 
ment  ignores  de  la  Haute  Cour.o 

Whose  fault  was  it  and  whose  the  liability  for  the  consequences  if 
the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco  did  not  know  how  or  did  not  wish 

to  defend  its  case  and  prove  its  exceptions  when  it  had  at  its  dis- 
posal all  the  legal  means  offered  by  the  Venezuelan  codes,  so  that  such 

proofs  and  testimony  would  not  be  wholly  ignored?  If  she  had  Mr. 
Fiat  as  her  representative  and  Drs.  Diego  B.  Urbaneja  and  Ram6n  F. 
Feo  as  her  legal  counsel,  why  did  she  not  make  use  of  her  means  of 

defense  ?  If  the  representative  or  the  counsel  did  find  any  difficulty, 
any  obstacle  having  the  color  of  denial  of  justice  or  of  delay  in  its 
administration,  why  is  it  that  they  did  not  enter  such  complaint 
before  the  same  court  or  did  not  file  a  protest  showing  such  irregular 
method  of  procedure?  Is  it  possible  that  at  the  end  of  four  years 
after  the  sentence  was  passed  such  experienced  lawyers  should  find 
omission  in  the  proceedings  and  denials  of  justice  which  they  did  not 
detect  during  the  hearing  of  the  case  ? 

On  the  other  hand,  the  Government  of  Venezuela  established  with 

sundry  proofs,  not  objected  to,  the  truth  of  its  statements,  and  the 
high  court  of  justice,  by  means  of  personal  inspection  of  the  territory 
which  is  the  object  of  the  controversy,  investigates  and  weighs  such 
proofs  which  are  found  sufficient  to  adjudge  by  virtue  of  its  legal 
authority  has  not  fulfilled  the  obligations  created  by  the  contracts; 
and  m  conformity  with  article  1110  of  the  civil  code,  which  deals  with 
the  resolutory  conditions  of  contracts,  and  articles  1256  and  1163,  does 
declare  that  there  are  great  grounds  for  an  action;  that  the  contracts 
of  May  24,  1886,  and  May  31,  1887,  made  between  the  national  Gov- 

a  It  (the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco)  has  been  unable  to  prove  that  it  had  ful- 
filled its  obligations  except  in  case  of  force  majeure.  It  has  not  been  able  to  show  that  it 

was  the  Government  which  failed  to  do  its  duty.  It  could  not  produce  the  inmiense 

amount  of  most  interesting  written  evidence  which  in  the  absence  of  depositions  regularly 
made  in  France  it  had  gathered  and  was  ready  to  furnish,  and  which  we  will  quote  later  or 
epitomize  further,  evidence  which  was  totally  ignored  by  the  high  court. 
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emment,  on  the  one  part,  and  Miguel  Tejera  and  Th.  Delort  on  the 
other,  of  which  the  company  was  the  assignee,  should  be  dissolved,  and 
condemns  said  company  to  pay  the  national  Government  the  sum  of 

40,048.62  bolivars  for  damages  to  the  State,  because  of  the  company's 
failure  to  execute  the  aforesaid  contracts,  besides  the  costs  of  the 

action.  Such  judgment,  rendered  by  the  highest  court  of  the  Republic 
and  for  fourteen  years  having  had  the  weight  of  res  judicatay  can  not 
be  reviewed,  except  to  the  grave  detriment  of  the  sovereignty  of  the 
nation,  by  any  court  of  arbitration  unless  such  judgment  contains  an 
essential  denial  of  justice  fully  established.  The  honorable  umpire  has 
at  his  disposal  abundant  material  to  arrive  at  a  conclusion  in  regard 
to  such  denial  of  justice.  The  honorable  umpire  well  knows  what 
such  phrase  means  when  dealing  with  a  sentence  rendered  by  a  court 
having  full  powers  to  pass  final  judgment  on  a  matter  submitted  by 
positive  law  and  by  the  will  of  the  parties  to  investigation  and  decision. 

The  honorable  umpire  is  well  aware  that  neither  sophisms  nor  far- 
fetching  arguments  nor  yet  more  or  less  specious  pretexts  can  annul 
the  action  of  the  res  judicata  and  brand  those  who  by  fundamental 

laws  have  been  intrusted  with  the  highest  offices  and  powers  to  admin- 
ister justice  to  have  been  guilty  of  denial  of  justice. 

There  are  proofs — there  are  documents  and  memoranda — to  show  that 
the  company,  at  the  time  of  the  filing  of  the  suit  for  resolution  of  the 

contract,  was  in  a  state  of  bankruptcy ;  that  it  was  powerless  to  con- 
tinue the  attempts  at  development  and  steam  navigation  undertaken 

four  years  before ;  the  own  confession  of  the  company  to  the  effect  that 
it  had  engaged  in  a  venture  without  knowing  either  its  extent  or  its 

diflSculties;  the  balance  sheet  presented  at  the  meeting  of  the  share- 
holders on  May  30,  1890,  showing  liabilities  three  times  as  large  as  the 

assets;  the  necessity  to  go  into  liquidation,  which  in  all  languages 

means  a  complete  paralyzation  of  business  operations;  the  company's 
schemes  of  becoming  first  an  English,  then  a  Belgian  association,  in 
search  of  new  capital,  the  loan  of  which  it  was  impossible  to  obtain  in 
France ;  the  sending  to  Caracas  of  Mr.  Berthier,  eager  to  obtain  a  new 
contract  releasing  the  company  in  liquidation  of  the  former  contractual 
obligations,  freeing  the  company  of  the  suit  then  pending  before  the 
high  Federal  court  and  saving  it  from  the  wreck;  there  are,  in  fine,  the 
last  letters  of  Agent  Berthier,  in  which,  after  losing  all  hope  of  making 
a  new  contract  with  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  he  prepares  the 

ground  for  a  large  claim,  giving  out  as  its  main  foundation,  not  denials 
of  justice,  which  was  an  afterthought,  but  two  facts  which  had  just 
taken  place  on  the  Orinoco  River  and  which  in  time  would  give  them 
considerable  grounds.  The  first  was  that  the  governor  of  the  territory 

placed  out  of  commission  the  steamer  Meta  by  the  dismounting  of 
certain  valves  to  prevent  their  capture  by  the  revolutionists;  and  the 
second  event  was  an  armed  attack  against  the  small  steamer,  which  was 

on  the  point  of  being  captured.  All  this  will  be  examined  by  the  honor- 
S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   ^20 
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able  umpire,  who  is  to  decide  whether  the  sentence  of  the  high  Federal 

court  of  Venezuela  ordering  the  resolution  of  the  contracts  and  con- 
demning the  company  to  the  payment  of  an  indemnity,  very  small, 

however,  to  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  has  no  value,  as  claimed  by 
the  liquidators  of  the  company,  because  it  involves  a  denial  of  justice. 

In  connection  with  said  sentence  it  only  remains  for  me  to  analyze 
the  facts  which  constitute  the  first  of  the  causes  of  the  good  groimds 
for  the  indemnity  claim  before  mentioned,  which  the  author  of  the 
brief  bases  upon  the  dissimulations  which  altered  the  substance  of  the 
contract  and  permitted  the  Government  of  Venezuela  to  obtain  the 
consent  of  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco. 

Maitre  Poincar6  devotes  this  section  to  the  boundary  question 
between  Venezuela  and  Colombia,  which  the  King  of  Spain  decided,  as 
mnpire,  by  the  award  published  in  the  Gaceta  de  Madrid,  March  17, 
1891.  This  event  has  come  to  be  the  main  stronghold  of  the  General 
Company  of  the  Orinoco,  which  has  gone  so  far  as  to  charge  Venezuela 
with  fraud  in  the  contracts  made  with  Miguel  Tejera  and  Th.  Delort, 
which  were  subsequently  conveyed  by  them  to  the  company.  In  my 
former  brief  I  dealt  with  these  singular  pretensions,  and  I  believe  I 
have  fully  confuted  all  the  assumptions  and  charges  that  Mr.  Delort 
in  the  first  place,  and  then  the  liquidators  of  the  company,  and  finally 
Maitre  Poincar6,  have  pretended  and  still  pretend  to  maintain  against 
the  different  administrations  of  Venezuela,  from  Guzman  Blanco  to 

Andueza  Palacio  alleging  that  the  company  was  kept  in  ignorance  of 
the  question  with  Colombia  involving  a  portion  of  the  vast  expanse  of 
territory  subject  to  the  concession. 

From  the  extensive  discussion  of  the  subject  by  Maitre  Poincarfi  I 
will  note  the  following  points: 

The  Venezuelan  Government  says  now 

(It  is  not  the  Venezuelan  Government  that  says  it,  but  the  commis- 

sioner for  Venezuela  in  his  opinion,  page  31 — Opinion  of  the  Vene- 
zuelan commissioner  and  supported  by  indisputable  proof) — 

the  good  faith  in  which  Venezuela  was  possessing  a  certain  belt  of  her  territory,  which  was 

afterwards  adjudicated  by  the  umpire  to  the  Republic  of  Colombia,  relieves  its  Govern- 
ment of  all  responsibility  in  the  concession  under  discussion,  the  object  of  which  never  was  a 

definitive  conveyance  but  the  development  of  natural  products  in  places  where  Venezuelan 

interests  had  already  been  created  and  the  authorities  of  the  country  discharged  their  respec- 
tive duties. 

The  following  is  from  Maitre  Poincar^: 
Entendons  nous.  II  est  possible  que  vis-li-vis  de  la  Colombie  le  V^n^zu^la  ait  6t4  posse»- 

seur  de  bonne  foi,en  ce  sens  quMl  esp^rait  obtenir  gain  de  cause  devant  I'arbitre.  Nous 
croyons  volontiers  que  c'est  \k  la  raison  du  silence  gard^  par  M.  le  Docteur  Urbaneja,  par  M. 
Tejera  et  par  le  G^n^ral  Guzmdn  Blanco. a 

oLet  us  come  to  an  understanding.  It  may  be  possible,  that  as  far  as  Colombia  is  con- 
cerned, Venezuela  has  been  a  bona  fide  possessor  in  the  sense,  that  Venezuela  expected  to 

gain  her  point  before  the  umpire.  We  are  willing  to  believe  that  such  is  the  reason 
of  the  silence  of  Doctor  Urbaneja,  Mr.  Tejera,  and  General  Guzmdn  Blanco. 
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It  is  not  only  before  Colombia  that  Venezuela  has  been  a  honajide 
possessor,  nor  that  it  has  been  such  because  she  expected  to  gain  the 
point  before  the  umpire.  This  last  circumstance  we  do  not  find 
adopted  in  any  positive  legislation  nor  by  any  commentator  on  civil 
law  as  a  determining  condition  of  the  possessor  in  good  faith  against 
the  opposing  party. 

Let  us  see  the  award  of  the  King  of  Spain  as  the  arbiter  juris: 
Whereas  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  are  the  possessors  in  good  faith  of  territories  lying 

west  of  the  Orinoco,  Casiquiare,  and  the  Rio  Negro  rivers,  forming  the  boundaries  on  this 

side  as  assigned  by  the  aforesaid  "real  c^dula"  of  1768  to  the />r<winc«q/'^ttiana,  and  whereas 
there  exist  in  said  lands  numerous  Venezuelan  properties  developed  in  the  loyal  belief  that  they 

lie  in  the  domain  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela,  *  *  *  it  is  expressly  assigned  to 
Venezuela  the  right  of  way  over  the  aforesaid  road,  it  being  understood  that  such  easement 

shall  cease  twenty-five  years  after  the  publication  of  this  award. 

How  does  civil  law  define  the  honajide  possession  ?  The  possessor  in 

good  faith  is  he  who  possesses  as  an  owner  by  virtue  of  a  just  title — 
that  is  to  say,  a  title  capable  of  conveying  ownership  even  if  the  title 
is  vitiated,  provided  such  vitiation  is  unknown  to  the  possessor.  As  a 
complement  to  such  definition,  civil  law  has  established  the  following 
principles,  which  are  a  part  of  the  substantive  legislation  of  both 
France  and  Venezuela,  to  wit: 

Good  faith  is  always  presumed  and  whoever  alleges  bad  faith  must  prove  that  such  exists. 
It  suflRces  that  good  faith  existed  at  the  time  of  the  acquisition. 

The  de  facto  possession,  when  it  is  continued,  uninterrupted,  peace- 
ful, public,  unequivocal,  and  with  the  purpose  to  hold  the  thing  as 

one^s  own,  is  also  established  by  both  civil  and  natural  laws  as  a  title  of 
possession  capable  of  conveyance,  thirty  years  being  sufficient 
between  private  individuals  even  in  cases  where  there  is  no  title.  If 
Venezuela,  who  possessed  in  good  faith  the  territories  west  of  the 
Orinoco,  Casiquiare,  and  Rio  Negro,  and  there  developed  numerous 
properties  in  the  loyal  belief  that  they  lie  within  its  domain,  as  formally 
alleged  by  the  award  of  the  King  of  Spain,  at  least  since  the  date  of  the 

**real  c6dula''  of  May  5,  1768,  establishing  as  the  boundaries  of  the 
province  of  Guiana  the  rivers  Orinoco,  Casiquiare,  and  Rio  Negro, 
could  not  gain  the  point,  notwithstanding  the  fact  of  interrupted 
possession  in  good  faith  for  over  one  hundred  years  of  the  disputed 
territories  Venezuela  has  at  least  remained  in  the  enjoyment  coram 
gentibus  et  nationibus  by  the  just  award  of  the  umpire  the  title  of  bona 

-fide  possessor  of  said  territory,  because  she  had  established  therein 
valuable  properties  and  developed  them  in  the  loyal  belief  that  she 
exercised  over  them  immanent  sovereignity. 

After  the  preceding  demonstration  of  facts,  based  upon  indisputable 
documents,  what  is  the  weight  of  the  following  conclusion  of  Mattre 
Poincar6? 

Venezuela  could  not  guarantee  the  company  the  peaceful  possession  of  a  territory  under 

dispute.  Thus  she  granted  a  thing  which  was  tainted  with  a  concealed  vice,  since  it  was 
doubtful  whether  it  belonged  to  Venezuela,  and  she  knew  it. 
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By  all  these  reasons  which  belong  both  to  the  realm  of  natural  as  well  as  positive  law^  Vene- 
zuela is  liable  to  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco.  The  latter  must  obtain  the  annul- 
ment of  the  contract  of  concession  because  of  substantial  errors  and  vice  in  the  consent,  and 

therefore  is  entitled  to  an  indemnity  for  all  the  damages  caused  by  such  nullity. 

Let  US  compare  this  conclusion  with  the  statement  made  by  Mr.  Th. 

Delort,  the  company^s  representative,  on  September  20,  1888,  in  a 
letter  addressed  to  the  minister  of  fomento  of  Venezuela,  who  had 

asked  him  certain  explanations,  transcribing  the  following  communi- 
cation of  the  department  of  foreign  relations  of  Venezuela: 

Sir:  The  envoy  extraordinary  of  the  Republic  of  Colombia  has  lodged  a  complaint  against 

the  publication  of  a  geographical  chart  and  a  report  of  the  company  of  the  upper  Orinoco 

and  Amazonas  in  which,  while  describing  the  boundaries  of  such  possessions,  a  i^ast  expanse 
of  the  territory  in  dispute  between  tht  two  countries  has  been  included  as  having  been  granted. 

In  consequence  thereof  and  in  view  of  the  necessity  of  examining  the  chart  and  report  in 

reference,  I  beg  to  request  that  you  send  them  to  this  office,  if  you  have  them  in  your  depart- 
ment, and  if  not,  I  beg  that  you  request  from  the  representative  of  the  company  a  report  on 

whatever  has  been  done  in  this  matter,  as  well  as  the  chart  and  report  in  question. 

(Signed)  Ystubiz. 

The  statement  of  Mr.  Delort  in  answer  to  said  note  and  in  reference 
to  the  concealed  vice  and  error  in  the  consent  to  wliich  M.  Poincarfi 

refers,  is  as  follows: 

The  company  is  not  ignorant  of  the  fact  that  the  frontier  between  Venezuela  and  Colombia 
is  in  dispute,  and  submitted  to  the  decision  of  the  Government  of  Spain.  In  consequence 

the  company  has  no  claim  whatever  to  make  in  this  respect  and  as  the  concession  originated 

from  the  Venezuelan  Government  it  {the  company)  is  well  aware  that  it  must  abide  by  the 

definitive  boundaries  that  may  be  fixed  for  this  Republic.  Up  to  the  present  the  com- 
pany has  not  extended  its  operations  but  to  such  points  as  are  occupied  by  Venezuelan 

authorities;  and  the  offices,  warehouses,  and  dependencies  are  in  Atures,  Maipures,  San  Fer- 
nando, San  Cdrlos,  and  the  Brazilian  frontier  and  the  steamers  have  only  navigaied  on  the 

Orinoco,  Casiquiare,  and  Guainia. 
(Signed)  Th.  Delort. 

Verba  volant^  scripta  manent. 
Maitre  Poincar6  claims  that  that  evidently  important  portion  of 

the  letter,  as  he  states,  was  not  spontaneously  introduced  in  Mr. 

Delort's  answer.  So  we  have  now  that  it  is  not  the  alleged  ignorance 
in  which  the  company  was  kept  of  the  existence  of  the  question 
between  Colombia  and  Venezuela,  as  Mr.  Delort  declares  that  the 
company  wa^  not  ignorant  of  such  fact;  it  is  not  the  concealed  vice 
in  the  substance  of  the  contract,  since  Mr.  Delort  himself  states  that 
the  company  has  tw  claims  to  make  in  this  regard,  and  finally,  it  is  not 
error  in  the  consent,  because  Mr.  Delort  avers  that  the  company  is 

well  aware  that  it  must  accept  the  frontier  which  shall  be  defi- 
nitively awarded  to  the  Republic.  The  lack  of  spontaneity  of  such 

statements  can  not  rob  them  of  their  intrinsic  value.  Is  it  perchance 
spontaneously  that  the  man  caught  in  the  very  act  of  putting  his 

hand  into  some  one  else's  trunk — as  in  the  case  of  the  company,  which 
in  the  map  and  report  offered  to  the  stockholders,  when  about  to 
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form  the  company,  shows  as  her  own  definitive  grant  of  land  defining 

its  boimdaries  a  territory  disputed  by  Venezuela  and  Colombia— con- 
fesses, when  compelled  to  apologize,  that  appearances  may  be  against 

him,  but  that  he  simply  wanted  to  find  out  whether  the  trunk  was 
empty?  Whether  spontaneous  or  not,  the  statements  of  M.  Delort, 

in  reference  to  his  knowledge  of  the  arbitration  proceedings  the  igno- 
rance of  which  was  alleged  and  in  regard  to  the  fact  that  they  had  to 

abide  by  the  consequences  of  the  award  and  had  rw  claim  on  this 
score,  are  decisive  and  cut  short  the  handy  boundary  question  between 

Venezuela  and  Colombia,  on  which  the  General  Company  of  the  Ori- 

noco finds  the  gf'ounds  to  pretend  a  large  indemnity  from  the  Vene- 
zuelan Government. 

As  a  final  statement  on  this  point  and  not  to  leave  unanswered  a 
question  of  law  to  which  M.  Poincar6  refers  in  his  brief,  that  of  the 
indemnification  the  vendor  owes  the  vendee,  the  concessions  being 
comparable  from  the  standpoint  of  the  obligations  of  the  assignor 

to  the  sale  of  incorporeal  rights,  I  will  only  say,  admitting  the  com- 
mon principle  that  the  assignor  is  liable  to  the  assignee,  in  assign- 

ments for  a  consideration  for  any  indemnification  growing  out  of 
concealed  defects  or  faults  in  the  thing  assigned  and  for  the  peaceful 

possession  of  the  thing  sold  or  conveyed,  which  is  a  principle  estab- 
lished in  the  Venezuelan  Civil  Code,  that  in  the  concessions  made  by 

the  Government  of  Venezuela  to  Messrs.  Miguel  Tejera  and  Th. 
Delort,  there  are  no  concealed  defects  or  vitiations,  because,  as  such 
grants  only  dealt  with  the  exploitation  of  mines  and  development 
of  the  natural  products  which  lay  within  a  certain  belt  of  land,  such 
operations  have  not  offered  nor  could  they  offer  any  concealed  defects 
or  vice  for  which  the  grantor  is  responsible.  And  as  regards  the 
peaceful  possession  of  the  grant  made  with  reference  to  the  boimdary 

question  with  Colombia,  the  grants  do  not  fix  any  particular  bound- 
aries, but  simply  mention  the  territories  of  Upper  {Alto)  Orinoco 

and  Amazones  in  the  first  contract  and  the  vacant  lands  lying  between 
the  eastern  boimdaries  of  the  Federal  territories  Alto  Orinoco,  and 
Amazonas,  and  British  Guiana,  and  between  the  Orinoco  and  the 
limits  of  Venezuela  and  Brazil. 

The  good  faith  declared  in  favor  of  Venezuela  by  the  umpire,  who 

decided  the  boundary  dispute,  in  regard  to  that  portion  of  the  terri- 
tory Venezuela  was  occupying  with  animus  domini  and  the  award 

fixing  the  boundary  between  both  countries,  establish  as  regards  the 
extent  of  territory  the  development  of  which  was  the  subject  of  the 
contracts,  the  condition  juris  between  Venezuela  and  the  grantees 

in  the  matter  of  the  boimdaries  of  the  territories  granted  to  be  devel- 
oped, which  are  only  designated  by  their  known  names,  without 

specifying  their  extent  or  their  precise  boimdaries  in  the  contracts 
imder  review. 
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On  the  other  hand,  the  question  of  indemnification  lies  between 

the  grantor  or  assignor  and  the  grantee  or  assignee,  and  in  the  devel- 
opment contracts  under  discussion  the  assignors  to  the  General  Com- 

pany of  the  Orinoco  were  Messrs.  Miguel  Tejera  (a  Venezuelan)  and 

Th.  Delort,  who  in  turn  had  obtained  such  contracts  from  the  Vene- 
zuelan Government.  All  questions  relating  to  the  concealed  defects 

of  the  thing  which  was  the  subject  of  the  contract  or  the  lack  of  title 
of  the  vendor  or  assignor  which  may  invalidate  it  grow  out  of  the 
contract  itself  and  at  the  Very  moment  when  such  contract  was 
made. 

The  Government  of  Venezuela  never  discussed  with  the  General 

Company  of  the  Orinoco  the  question  of  the  development  of  the  ter- 
ritories of  Alto  Orinoco  and  Amazonas.  The  stipulations  to  that 

effect  in  the  respective  contracts  were  agreed  upon  by  the  Venezuelan 

Government  and  Messrs.  Tejera  and  Delort,  and  it  is  from  said  stipu- 
lations that  the  question  dealing  with  the  responsibility  of  the  con- 

tracting parties  may  originate.  The  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco 
could  only  claim  from  Messrs.  Tejera  and  Delort,  the  assignors  who 
made  the  transfer  in  favor  of  the  syndicate,  for  a  40  and  20  per  cent, 
respectively,  of  the  amounts  that  might  be  paid  out  as  dividends. 

It  is  also  worthy  of  notice  that  notwithstanding  the  knowledge  the 
General  Company  of  the  Orinoco  had  of  the  boundary  question  before 

September  28,  1888,  as  evidenced  by  the  above-mentioned  letter 

from  the  company's  representative,  Mr.  Delort,  the  company  did  not 
enter  before  the  liigh  Federal  court  in  the  proceedings  had  two  years 

later  for  the  rescission  of  the  contracts  any  exceptions  whatever  grow- 
ing out  of  the  boimdary  question,  nor  advanced  any  claim  against 

the  grantors  or  assignors  for  a  guarantee  or  liability.  The  case  ended 
with  the  final  judgment  awarding  the  rescission  of  the  contracts  on 

October  14,  1891 — that  is,  seven  months  after  the  award  of  the  King 
of  Spain — and  such  declaration  of  rescission  for  failure  of  the  assignee 
company  to  carry  out  the  contracted  obligations  destroys  or  invali- 

dates any  importance  the  liability  question  may  claim  as  affecting 
the  Government  of  Venezuela. 

Section  II,  Chapter  II,  of  Maitre  Poincar^'s  brief  deals  with  the  fail- 
ure on  the  part  of  Venezuela  to  execute  her  contractual  obligations,  a 

question  which  was  examined  in  the  action  before  the  high  Federal 

court  of  Venezuela,  as  it  was  one  of  the  exceptions  filed  by  Mr.  Fiat,  the 

company's  representative,  who  answered  the  action  for  rescission. 
The  company  could  establish  nothing  in  favor  of  its  claims,  as  shown 

by  the  minutes  of  the  proceedings,  and,  quite  to  the  contrary,  the  sen- 
tence passed  adjudged  that  it  appeared  from  the  proceedings  that  the 

Government  of  Venezuela  had  fulfilled  on  its  side  all  the  obligations 
devolving  upon  the  Government  by  virtue  of  the  contracts  in  reference. 

The  charges  the  coimsel  for  the  company  accumulates  in  his  brief 



ADDITIONAL   OPI]SION    OF  VENEZUELAN   COMMISSIONER.       311 

against  the  Venezuelan  Government  are  in  their  large  majority  foreign 
to  the  obligations  entered  upon  by  the  Government  as  regards  the 

grantees  or  concessionaries  to  allow  them  to  carry  out  the  develop- 
ment of  the  natural  products  and  the  mines  lying  within  the  territories 

in  the  contract  mentioned  by  their  names.  Such  exploitation  and 
development  operations  were  carried  on  by  the  assignee  company,  as 
far  as  their  limited  resources  would  allow,  as  shown  by  the  documents 
submitted,  and,  if  such  operations  were  not  favorable  to  the  ends  of  the 
company,  it  was  not  the  fault  of  the  Venezuelan  Government,  but  of 
the  company,  which  accepted  the  execution  of  the  obligations  and 
agreements  contained  in  the  contracts,  which  absorbed,  nobody  knows 
how,  considerable  sums  for  administration  and  installation  expenses, 

and  expensive  and  inefficient  attempts  to  establish  navigation  on  the 

upper  Orinoco.  The  colossal  scheme,  as  confessed  in  several  docu- 
ments by  the  representatives  of  the  company,  was  imdertaken  without 

knowledge  of  its  immense  difficulties  nor  of  the  territory  and  river 
network  which  were  to  be  the  object  of  the  improvements  to  be  made 
in  compensation  for  the  development  of  the  natural  products  and 
the  monopoly  of  steam  navigation  on  the  river  Orinoco  and  some 
of  its  affluents.  The  representatives  of  the  company  have  tried  to 
cast  the  blame  for  such  want  of  knowledge  and  for  the  castles  in  the 
air  built  by  the  promoters  of  the  company,  Messrs.  Miguel  Tejera  and 
Guzmdn  Blanco,  because  they  did  not  show  them  in  due  time  all  the 
difficulties  to  be  met  later  on  in  the  execution  of  the  contracted  obli- 

gations. Such  charges,  however,  do  not  affect  in  the  least  the  respon- 
sibility of  the  Venezuelan  Government,  which  had  no  dealings  with  the 

General  Company  of  the  Orinoco,  nor  was  bound  to  make  for  the  com- 
pany the  previous  survey  necessary  to  find  out  exactly  which  were  the 

obligations  contracted,  or  whether  it  was  possible  or  not  with  the  lim- 
ited capital  the  company  had  to  undertake  and  carry  to  a  successful 

issue  the  vast  plan  of  improvements  which  represented  for  the  com- 
pany, as  compensation,  the  right  to  develop  the  natural  products,  and 

to  enjoy  the  monopoly  of  steam  navigation  through  the  network  of  the 

Orinoco  rivers,  when  such  was  established  in  conformity  with  the  con- 
tract. To  such  considerations  we  must  add  the  fact  that  Mr.  Miguel 

Tejera  and  M.  Th.  Delort  were  the  promoters  of  the  syndicate  of  the 
General  Company  of  the  Orinoco,  setting  aside  for  themselves  40  and 

20  per  cent,  respectively,  on  the  profits  of  the  company  as  a  compensa- 
tion for  their  concessions. 

I^et  us  see  how  Maitre  Poincar6  describes  the  combination: 

The  beneficiary  in  the  contract  of  December  17,  1885,  Mr.  Miguel  Tejera,  had  close  rela- 
tions with  Greneral  Guzm^  Blanco.  He  had  been  connected  with  the  general  in  several 

important  business  tiansactions,  principally  in  the  Carenero  and  the  coinage  deals,  and 
without  wishing  to  offend  the  memory  of  these  gentlemen  (both  having  died),  it  might  be 

added  that  he  (Tejera)  passed  as  the  figurehead  (prite-nom)  of  Greneral  Guzm^  Blanco. 
He  could  not  under  circumstances  take  personal  charge  of  the  Alto  Orinoco  scheme,  so  he 
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immediately  formed  the  means,  if  not  to  convey  it  to  another  grantee,  at  least  to  trust  it^ 
keeping  to  himself  certain  advantages  in  the  hands  of  a  French  syndicate. 

It  was  thus  that  the  syndicate  of  the  Alto  Orinoco  was  established  in  Paris  in  Septem- 
ber, 1886. 

Su.h  candid  confession  plainly  reveals  the  origin  of  the  General 

Company  of  the  Orinoco.  It  was  the  outcome  of  tacit  understanding 
between  the  two  grantors  of  the  contract  of  December  17,  1885, 
wherein  the  grantee  was  the  figurehead  of  the  grantor,  according  to 
the  statement  of  the  representative  and  coimsel  for  the  company. 
Such  crooked  contract  concealing  material  frauds,  according  to  the 

representative  and  counsel  already  mentioned,  was  accepted  by  a  finan- 
cial organization,  abandoning  to  the  beneficiary  40  per  cent  of  the 

profits.  It  is  not  necessary  to  be  a  financier  to  afib-m  that  such  organ- 
ization was  doomed  to  death  from  its  inception,  and  that  under  the 

conditions  of  the  deal  and  the  contract  the  child  of  the  combination, 

the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco,  created  one  year  and  a  half  after- 
wards, or  on  March  10, 1888,  could  not  possibly  live.  Legitimate  busL 

ness  transactions  can  not  prosper,  unless  in  that  piu'e  atmosphere  of 
credit  and  trust,  which  is  only  foimd  in  the  road  labor  and  capital 
follow,  leading  to  wise  management  and  legitimate  though  moderate 
gain.  If  Messrs.  Tejera  and  Delort  had  appropriated  to  themselves, 

according  to  the  statutes  of  the  syndicate,^60  per  cent  of  the  profits, 
simply  because  they  had  transferred  to  the  syndicate  two  written  con- 

tracts without  any  positive  value,  could  it  be  expected  that  French 
capitalists,  who  are  as  conservative  as  clever,  wpuld  contribute  to 
make  up  the  business  capital  indispensable  to  the  development  of  the 
scheme  within  its  proper  proportions  ?  Undoubtedly  it  could  not  be 
so,  and  that  is  why  the  company,  which  could  scarcely  get  together  a 
capital  of  1,500,000  francs,  when  it  was  established  in  March,  1888, 
had  liabilities  exceeding  800,000  francs,  made  up  of  a  debt  to  the 

coinage  association  of  491,486  francs  and  another  debt  due  M.  Chau- 
velot,  a  member  of  the  syndicate,  of  300,000  francs,  and  for  which 
600,000  francs  in  unassessable  stock  were  delivered  to  him.  Under 
such  circumstances  the  capital  on  hand  to  continue  the  colossal  scheme 
was  reduced  when  the  company  began  operations  to  the  amoimt 
of  400,000  francs.  Two  years  later  the  company  failed  with  liabilities 
amounting  to  2,741,084.27  francs,  its  credit  being  totally  exhausted 

(see  report  of  liquidation),  so  that  it  was  forcibly  driven  to  go  into  liqui- 
dation on  May  30,  1890.  Such,  and  no  other,  could  be  the  end  of  the 

company  when  the  beginning  was  tainted. 

I  beg  to  submit  to  the  honorable  umpire  with  this  additional  opinion 
and  an  annexed  portion  of  it  an  aflSdavit  duly  attested  containing  the 
deposition  made  in  Paris  on  June  6,  1903,  by  M.  Joseph  Hippolyte 
Andrau-Maural,  a  former  representative  and  attorney  in  Venezuela 
for  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco,  in  liquidation  from  the  latter 
part  of  1890  imtil  April,  1893. 
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Such  affidavit  contains,  in  confirmation  of  all  the  foregoing,  the  cir- 
cumstances and  the  facts  that  have  led  the  General  Company  of  the 

Orinoco  to  its  complete  disorganization  and  the  impossibility  to  con- 
tinue to  exist;  and  as  a  r&um6  of  the  causes  which  produced  such 

results,  the  following  may  be  transcribed : 

The  scheme  was  neither  well  investigated  nor  seriously  prepared,  and  was  put  into  execu- 
tion in  the  worst  possible  manner.  The  scheme  fell  fatally  under  the  weight  of  universal 

reprobation,  a  bad  financial  position  from  the  start,  through  reprehensible  dealings  and 
detestable  management. 

This  affidavit  is  accompanied  by  several  letters  addressed  to  M. 

Andrau-Maural  by  M.  Roux,  liquidator  of  the  company,  and  M. 
Delort,  its  general  representative  in  Venezuela,  relating  to  the  liquida- 

tion operations  of  the  pending  transactions  in  the  Orinoco  region,  and 
instructions  to  open  with  the  Government  of  Venezuela  negotiations 
for  an  indemnification.  M.  Delort,  in  his  letter  of  November  25, 
1891,  states  (that  is,  one  month  after  the  sentence  of  the  high  court  had 
been  passed  adjudging  the  rescission  of.  the  contracts  and  condemning 
the  company  to  the  payment  of  a  certain  amount)  in  part,  as  follows: 

Third.  The  sentence  of  the  high  court  has  condemned  the  company  to  the  payment  of  the 
sum  of  40,048.62  bolivars,  which  constitutes  a  new  credit  to  he  met  hy  the  liquidation. 

Will  the  Grovemment  collect  such  sum?  In  such  case  it  is  necessary  to  answer  imme- 
diately that  the  liquidation  belongs  in  the  first  place  to  the  creditors  recognized  before  the 

sentence  vxis  passedy  and  thereupon  to  claim  from  the  Government  the  amounts  due  to  the 

company  by  the  Departments  of  War  and  Navy.  (See  Planas's  letters  in  the  documents 
delivered  to  the  legation  and  Richard's  letters  on  the  requisitions  (seizures)  of  the  Lihertady 
a  small  steamer,  December,  1888,  and  January,  1889.  A  first  seizure  of  the  Lihertad  took 

place  in  November,  1888,  to  carry  troops  from  Ciudad  Bolivar  to  Guayana  Vieja.) 

It  is  more  than  probable  that,  if  the  Govehmient  does  not  make  a  claim  before  the  diplo- 
matic reclamation  is  entered,  it  will  do  all  that  is  possible  to  enter  such  claim  afterwards.  It 

is,  then,  an  advantage  not  to  execute  any  liquidation  operations  until  the  moment  the  claim  is 
filed  so  as  not  to  put  the  Government  on  its  guard,  as  it  may  then  pretend,  because  of  its  credit 

either  to  follow  or  else  to  inspect  the  liquidation  operations. 

Then  follows  a  description  of  the  assets  of  the  liquidation  in  Vene- 
zuela, consisting,  as  stated,  of  the  following: 

1.  Floating  property.  5.  Furniture,  writing  materials,  etc. 

2.  r*roperty  in  the  warehouses.  6.  Animals,  carts,  wagons,  etc. 
3.  All  kinds  of  merchandise  in  stock.  7.  The  cattle  ranch. 

4.  Real  property.  8.  Bills  for  collection. 

The  same  letter,  further  on,  states: 

It  is  very  difficult,  almost  impossible,  to  issue  a  priori  instructions;  it  is  necessary  to  follow 
the  events  and  to  know  how  to  get  the  best  out  of  them.  It  suffices  to  establish  on  the  one 

hand  the  basis  of  the  compromise,  in  case  such  may  be  agreed  upon,  and  on  the  other  hand 
the  direction  matters  should  take,  in  case  the  Venezuelan  Government  should  be  obstinate 

and  not  accept  a  friendly  settlement. 
I.  In  case  of  compromise: 

In  our  position  before  the  French  legation  we  can  not  undertake  to  do  anything  without 

its  consent  from  the  moment  the  diplomatic  claim  has  been  entered.  • 
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(Such  claim  was  never  directly  entered.  It  is  now  that  it  has  been 

entered  before  the  mixed  commission,  but  not  by  the  French  Govern- 
ment directly.) 

The  letter  of  instructions  further  says : 

It  seems  to  me  clear  that  the  Government  will  do  nothing  and  will  hear  nothing  before 
such  claim  has  been  presented,  that  is,  delivered. 

Only  in  that  case  the  Government  would  perhaps  like  to  enter  into  a  compromise.  In 
that  case,  with  whom  shall  the  Grovemment  enter  negotiations? 

With  the  French  legation  it  would  be  difficult  (for  the  Government)  to  enter  into  a  scheme 

of  underhand  negotiations  {tripotages)  and  clandestine  commissions  which  are  the  basis  of  all 
transactions  and  the  reason  of  all  dealings.  This  is  why  direct  negotiations  with  the  legation 

may  very  probably  fail.  But  the  men  in  power  are  too  shrewd  to  make  a  mistake  and  they 

will  probably  try  to  negotiate  directly  or  indirectly  by  any  means  with  the  representative  of 
the  company.  In  this  case  you  must  keep  the  legation,  which  will  certainly  not  interfere, 
informed  of  all  the  negotiations. 

To  give  the  honorable  umpire  an  idea  of  the  methods  employed  to 
get  a  heavy  indemnity,  the  foregoing  paragraphs  are  quite  sufficient. 

As  a  further  complement  to, this  brief,  I  beg  to  submit  another  affi- 
davit of  the  same  gentleman,  M.  Andrau-Maural,  stating  which  was  the 

property  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco  in  liquidation  was  pos- 
sessed of  in  the  Orinoco  region  in  1891,  when  said  Andrau-Maural  was 

appointed  as  its  representative.  After  that  date  two  years  elapsed  in 
the  condition  expressed  in  the  testimony  bearing  number  3,  to  which 
I  have  referred  in  this  writing,  as  abandoned,  left  in  the  open,  and 
exposed  to  the  destructive  action  of  the  climate  and  the  elements  in 
such  remote  countrJ^  I  conscientiously  took  into  consideration  the 

deterioration  and  natural  loss  suffered  by  the  property  and  for  what- 
ever the  Government  of  Venezuela  might  be  responsible  on  account  of 

the  established  seizure  of  a  small  portion  of  the  property.  I  found 
the  positive  value  of  such  to  be  sufficiently  compensated  with  the  sum 
of  40,448.62  bolivars,  which  the  company  in  liquidation  should  have 
paid  for  damages  according  to  the  sentence  of  the  high  Federal  court, 
besides  costs  of  the  action  which  the  company  was  also  condemned 
to  pay. 

For  the  reasons  stated  in  my  former  brief  and  for  the  reasons  I  now 

state  I  maintain  my  opinion  that  the  claim  entered  against  the  Gov- 
ernment of  Venezuela  is  totally  unfounded  and  must  be  rejected. 

NoRTHFiELD,  Vt.,  February  9,  1906, 

ADDITIONAL  OPINION  OF  THE  FRENCH  COMMISSIONER. 

After  having  read  the  additional  memoir  of  my  honorable  colleague 
I  can  only  maintain  the  conclusions  of  the  prior  memoir.  Faithful  to 
the  rule  of  conduct  which  I  have  traced  for  myself  to  remain  within  thjB 

field  of  impartiality  which  is  suitable  to  an  '* arbitrator^'  (for  that  is  the 
title  which  the  protocol  gives  me)  I  shall  not  follow  Doctor  Paul  m  the 
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discussion  which  he  engages  with  M.  Poincare,  advocate  of  the  plain- 
tifl  party.  Besides,  this  would  be  useless,  the  umpire  having  in  hand 
the  two  briefs,  and  being  able  as  well  as  myself  to  form  an  opinion 

after  having  read  them.  I  shall  content  myself  then  with  present- 
ing to  the  Hon.  Mr.  Plumley  a  few  observations  which  are  suggested 

to  me  by  this  additional  memoir  upon  some  points,  foreign,  however, 
in  their  very  foundation,  to  the  matter,  but  upon  the  subject  of  which  I 
differ  absolutely  from  the  opinion  of  my  honorable  colleague.  In  the 
first  place  it  is  a  question  of  the  manner  in  which  we  have  understood, 

my  colleague  and  myself,  the  r61e  of  '^ arbitrators^'  which  has  been 
intrusted  to  us  by  our  respective  Governments.  I  have  not  at  all 
wished  to  censure  Doctor  Paiil  about  the  manner  in  which  he  has  under- 

stood his  duties;  he  had,  according  to  the  protocol,  the  entire  freedom 
to  understand  them  as  he  has  done.  I  have  only  wished  to  state  to  the 
umpire  that  I  was  not  placed  upon  the  same  ground.  I  have  insisted 

upon  remaining  an  ̂ 'arbitrator''  and  not  to  become  the  advocate 
of  one  of  the  parties;  I  have  pronounced  m^^self  conscientiously  with 
all  impartiality,  without  being  afraid  to  reject  the  pretensions  which  I 
found  without  foimdation  or  exaggerated.  It  is  because  I  have  fixed 
for  myself  this  line  of  conduct  that  I  have  not  been  able  to  give  to  my 

honorable  colleague  as  he  requests  of  me  the  ''arguments"  on  which  I 
base  my  ideas.  An  arbitral  award,  like  an  ordinary  judgment,  ought 

not  and  can  not  rest  itself  upon  ''arguments."  The  arbitrator,  like 
the  judge,  ought  only  to  give  the  reasons  which  have  convinced  him 
and  led  to  his  decision,  but  in  this  particular  case  I  have  stated  the 

reasons  for  my  decision  since  I  have  said : " 
In  failing  in  the  obligations  which  it  had  assumed,  in  deceiving  the  company  by  its 

dissimulation  which  changed  the  substance  of  its  agreements,  and  in  interfering  with  the 
management  of  the  concession  by  its  vexations  and  abuses  of  power,  the  Venezuelan  State 
has  brought  about  the  ruin  of  the  company. 

I  did  not  think  I  had  the  power  to  say  more.  I  have  thought 
that  in  explaining  thus  my  position  I  gave  to  my  decisions  an  authority 
which  they  would  not  have  had  if  I  had  supported,  as  an  advocate, 
the  cause  of  the  claimants  as  my  colleague  has  sustained  that  of  the 
Venezuelan  Government.  I  have  not  bettered  the  arguments  of  the 
claimants;  I  have  contented  myself  with  weighing  them.  When  I 

have  accorded  indemnities  it  is  because  I  have  considered  these  argu- 

ments acceptable.  I  have  not  furnished  personal  "arguments.^'  I 
add  that  nothing  prevented  the  Venezuelan  Government,  defendant, 
from  imitating  the  claimants,  plaintiffs;  it  could,  in  order  to  relieve  its 

arbitrator  from  being  at  the  same  time  its  advocate,  positions  diffi- 
cult to  unite,  have  appointed  special  advocates  in  each  case  to  produce 

documents  and  to  call  upon  witnesses.  It  does  not  belong  to  me  to 
seek  for  the  reasons  why  it  has  not  done  so. 

a  Page  282. 
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In  the  second  place  I  maintain,  in  spite  of  the  explanations  given  by 

my  honorable  colleague,  that  the  phrase  of  the  minutes  ̂ ^  to  see  if  it 
might  be  possible  to  arrive  at  an  agreement ''  can  not  have  any  other 
sense  than  that  which  I  have  given  it  in  my  memoir.  To  refuse  this 
would  be  the  same  as  to  declare  that  it  has  no  sense,  that  which  I  can 

not  admit.  To  arrive  at  an  agreement  after  we  have  given  opinions  so 
diametrically  opposite,  it  would  be  necessary  that  each  of  us  grant 
concessions.  On  my  side  I  would  have  to  lessen  the  amount  of  the 
indemnity;  on  his  side.  Doctor  Patil  would  have  to  consent  to  accord 
one.  In  pronouncing  this  phrase,  which  he  himself  had  inscribed 
in  the  minutes,  my  colleague  then  considered  himself  the  possibility  of 
according  an  indemnity  to  the  company ;  there  is  no  getting  around  it. 

In  the  third  place,  I  agree  that  Mr.  Pietri,  Venezuelan  plenipoten- 

tiary had,  like  other  plenipotentiaries,  only  powers  ''ad  referendum.'' 
This  does  not  avoid  the  fact  that  Mr.  Pietri  was  a  Venezuelan  vested 

with  high  official  character,  and  that,  despite  his  well-known  patriot- 
ism, despite  the  high  functions  with  which  his  Govermnent  had 

honored  him,  despite  his  knowing  the  judgments  of  the  high  court 

condemning  the  company,  Mr.  Pietri  recognized  the  right  of  the  com- 
pany to  receive  eight  years  ago  an  indemnity  of  3,600.000  bolivars  in 

gold.     That  is  all  I  wish  to  establish. 
The  argument  that  my  honorable  colleague  gathers  from  the  refusal 

of  Congress  to  ratify  the  diplomatic  act  signed  by  Mr.  Pietri  has  in  my 
opinion  no  value.  In  fact,  it  is  true,  that,  if  instead  of  having  been 
accorded  by  sentences  of  arbitral  tribunals,  the  indemnities  fixed  by 
the  umpires  in  the  mixed  commission  had  been  the  result  of  diplomatic 
agreements  submitted  to  the  ultimate  ratification  of  Congress,  the 

latter  would  have  rejected  them  all  as  it  rejected  the  Pietri-Hanotaux 
protocol;  it  is  just  because  the  claims  of  foreigners  force  Venezuela  to 

such  a  plea  in  bar  that  it  has  been  necessary  to  have  recourse  to  arbi- 
tration, and  in  truth  I  do  not  think  that  one  can  demand  of  the  elected 

representatives  of  a  country  who  have  to  reckon  with  the  legitimate 

susceptibility  of  national  self-love  that  they  condemn  their  own 
country  with  the  impartiality  and  indifference  which  foreign  umpires 
alone  can  show. 

Then  my  honorable  colleague  maintains  that  it  is  the  large  amount 

of  the  indenmity  accorded  by  the  Pietri-Hanotaux  protocol  that  pre- 
vented Congress  from  ratifying  this  act.  I  admit  that  willingly,  but  I 

ought  to  remark  without  insisting  that  there  can  be  other  reasons  of 
which  we  are  ignorant  since  the  sitting  of  Congress  in  the  course  of 
which  this  protocol  was  examined  was  a  secret  session  and  no  journal, 
so  far  as  I  know,  has  been  published. 

In  the  fourth  place  I  ought  to  remark  in  the  additional  memoir  of 
my  honorable  colleague,  an  interpretation  of  the  protocol  of  February 

19,  1902,  entirely  imexpected.    Doctor  Patil  maintains  that  the  pro- 
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tocol  of  Paris  and  the  protocols  of  Washington  are  not  alike;  that  the 
first  does  not  give  the  arbitral  commission  the  same  powers  as  the 
second.  I  find  to  the  contrary  that  from  the  point  of  view  of  the 
extent  of  powers  the  protocol  of  Paris  being  less  precise  is  by  that 
very  reason  broader  than  the  protocols  of  Washington. 

As  the  protocol  signed  at  Paris,  February  19,  1902,  the  protocol 

signed  at  Washington,  February  27,  1903,  has  suspended  the  applica- 
tion of  the  French-Venezuelan  convention  of  1885  which,  during  all 

the  time  that  the  effect  of  these  two  protocols  remain  in  force,  is  a  dead 
letter.  Both  to  an  equal  degree  have  been  exceptions  to  common  law 
represented  by  this  convention,  which  has  regained  its  force  only 
when  the  operations  are  ended  of  an  exceptional  order  provided  by 

the  protocols.  Only  while  the  protocol  of  Paris  announced  this  evi- 
dent truth,  the  protocol  of  Washington  considered  it  as  so  evident  that 

it  did  not  think  it  necessary  to  speak  of  it.  To  uphold  the  contrary 

would  be  to  maintain  that  the  protocol  of  Washington  abrogated  for- 
ever the  convention  of  1885,  that  which  would  not  be  the  business  of 

the  Venezuelan  Government,  would  not  displease  the  French  inhabiting 
Venezuela,  who  consider  that  this  convention  of  1885  deprives  them 
of  the  effective  protection  of  their  legation. 

This  sentence 

it  is  understood  that  this  procedure  *  *  *  is  instituted  only  as  an  exceptional  act  and 
does  not  invalidate  the  convention  of  November  26,  1886, 

signifies  that  as  soon  as  the  protocol  of  1902,  which,  having  created 
a  procedure  of  exceptional  arbitration,  shall  have  brought  forth  all 
its  effects,  the  convention  of  1885  will  remain  the  only  convention 
in  force  between  the  two  high  contracting  parties.  To  give  any  other 
sense  to  this  phrase  and  to  make  it  say  that  the  said  convention  is 
opposed  to  the  protocol  while  the  latter  is  in  application  is  to  put 
the  protocol  in  opposition  to  itself  and  to  take  from  it  every  kind 

of  significance.  Then,  like  the  commission  appointed  by  the  pro- 
tocol of  Washington,  like  the  arbitral  tribunal  which  rendered  its 

award  on  the  Fabiani  affair  at  Berne,  and  based  it  upon  denials 
of  justice  imputable  to  the  Venezuelan  tribunals  of  all  grades,  this 
commission  has  full  powers  to  examine  all  the  judgments  rendered 
by  all  the  Venezuelan  tribunals,  and  to  aocord  indemnities  if  it  finds 

that  there  have  been  denials  of  justice.  To  adopt  any  other  inter- 
pretation, as  my  honorable  colleague  has  done,  refusing  to  this  com- 

mission the  power  to  review  a  judgment  of  the  high  Federal  court, 
would  be  to  take  away  from  the  protocol  of  Paris  its  efficiency,  which 
protocol  has  for  a  purpose  to  correct  failures  of  Venezuelan  justice. 
There  can  not  be  the  shadow  of  a  doubt  of  this,  and  in  the  course  of  our 
labors  at  Caracas  my  colleague  admitted  it  himself  when  he  consented 
to  accord  an  indenmity  to  the  claimant  Mr.  Rog6,  who  had  been 
imduly  condemned  by  a  Venezuelan  tribunal. 
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In  the  last  place  I  am  obliged  to  give  my  idea  of  one  of  the  dossiers 
which  my  honorable  colleague  has  joined  to  his  additional  memoir. 
This  dossier  represented  by  papers  forwarded  by  Mr.  Andrau  Moral 

was  handed  to  me  to-day,  February  10,  for  the  first  time.  I  have  the 
right  to  ask  myself  what  are  the  reasons  which  have  led  this  former 
representative  of  the  company  thus  to  betray  the  company  which  he 
formerly  served.  Has  Mr.  Andrau  Moral  been  guided  only  by  the  love 
of  truth  and  the  search  for  justice?  Does  not  his  treason  result, 
rather,  from  positive  advantages  upon  the  nature  of  which  I  can  not 
insist?  Or,  indeed,  is  it  the  manifestation  of  a  hostility  which  might 
have  for  its  foundation  the  refusal  of  the  company  to  pay  certain 
sums  to  the  interested  party,  or  the  manner  in  which  the  latter  may 
have  thanked  him  for  his  services  ?  Of  these  three  reasons,  which  is 
the  one  which  has  induced  Mr.  Andrau  Moral  to  take  such  a  step  for 

the  purpose  of  injuring  the  company?  I  have  not  the  means  of  infor- 
mation sufficient  to  be  well  informed.  So  I  can  only  ask  the  umpire 

to  kindly  wait,  before  taking  into  consideration  the  statements  of  Mr. 
Andrau  Moral,  giving  no  value  whatever  to  his  insinuations,  the 

arrival  of  information  which  I  have  demanded  from  Paris  by  tele- 
graph upon  the  integrity  of  this  person  thus  appearing  at  the  last 

moment  and  upon  the  conditions  under  which  he  left  the  service  of 
the  company.  On  the  nature  of  this  information  will  depend  the 
credit  which  is  suitable  to  attach  to  his  statements.  As  for  the  letters 

of  Mr.  Delort  joined  in  the  original  to  the  factum  of  Mr.  Andrau  Moral 
we  can  see  only  the  manifestation  of  the  desire  of  the  company  to 
settle  this  claim  by  a  compromise  which  Mr.  Delort  with  his  experience 

of  men  and  things  in  Venezuela  thought  only  possible  after  a  diplo- 
matic action  should  have  been  engaged  in.  Besides,  the  letter  of  JMr. 

Delort,  referred  to  by  my  colleague,  if  anyone  wishes  to  read  it  from 
first  to  last  and  not  to  consider  it  as  an  extract,  is  not  intended  in 

truth  to  edify  one  with  regard  to  the  habits  of  the  '^  men  in  power  '^  in. 
Venezuela,  but  it  is  in  no  way  of  a  nature  to  spread  doubts  upon  the 

right  of  the  company  to  receive  the  indemnity  which  I  persist  in  con- 
sidering as  due  it. 

NoRTHFiELD,  February  10,  1905, 

EXHIBIT  TO  THE  FOREGOING  OPINION. 

Reverting  to  the  "P.  S."  joined  to  my  memoir  sent  to  the  umpire  to  explain  my  opinion 
on  the  claim  of  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco,  I  have  the  honor  to  ren  it  to  the  Hon. 
Mr.  Plumley  the  following  telegram,  which  I  received  this  day  from  Mr.  Delort.  I  translate 
it  from  the  telegraphic  style  to  facilitate  the  reading. 

Paris,  February  13,  1905. 

I  became  acquainted  with  Mr.  Andrau  Moral  at  Caracas  in  1880.  He  asked  me  for  employ- 
ment. The  minister  of  France,  Mr.  de  Tallenay,  gave  me,  as  information,  that  he  had  been 

obliged  to  leave  the  French  army  for  misdemeanor.    He  then  came  to  seek  his  fortune  at 
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the  mines  of  Callao,  married  at  Ciudad  Bolivar,  entered  the  company  of  the  Orinoco  in  1891, 

being  chosen  by  the  agent  of  the  company  at  Ciudad  Bolivar  without  the  director  of  the 

company  at  Paris  being  informed,  to  take  command  of  the  boat  Libertad,  which  he  lost  the 
same  year  in  a  strange  manner.  I  found  him  at  Caracas  in  October,  1891,  and  his  relations 

represented  him  as  the  representative  of  the  liquidation  during  a  very  short  time.  He 

demanded  money  continually  and  was  a  very  active  agent  for  the  claim  against  the  Venezue- 
lan Grovemment.  We  do  not  then  understand  his  protest.  In  1893  he  received  the  order  of 

the  liquidators  to  transmit  his  power  and  documents  to  Mr.  Maninat,  a  new  representative. 
lie  left  the  company,  taking  away  important  pieces  from  the  dossier  and  was  sent  from 
Venezuela  in  1893  by  President  Crespo  for  an  act  of  indelicacy  notoriously  well  known.  He 

came  to  Paris  to  ask  me  for  a  loan  and  forgot  to  pay  me.  I  have  not  seen  him  since  and  the 

liquidators  remain  without  news  from  him.  His  protest  without  right,  value,  or  reason  is 

an  infamous  and  inexcusable  act.  Wait  the  dossier  which  we  are  forwarding  you  and  which 

wiU  furnish  proofs.     Please  send  copy  of  the  protestation. 

(Signed)  Delort. 

When  the  dossier  mentioned  reaches  me,  I  will  present  it  as  a  second  annex  to  my  memoir 
after  having  shown  it  to  my  honorable  colleague. 

E.  DE  Peretti  de  Ija  Rocca. 

NoRTHFiELD,  February  13, 1905. 

The  French  arbitrator  has  the  honor  to  remit  to  the  umpire  a  dossier  of  twelve  exhibits 

which  has  just  been  sent  to  him  by  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  in  view  of  destroy- 
ing the  effect  which  may  have  been  produced  by  the  protestation  of  Mr.  Andau  Moral 

remitted  by  the  Venezuelan  arbitrator.  It  will  Ix?  enough  for  Mr.  Plumley  to  read  the  letter 
of  Mr.  Andau  Moral  of  the  date  of  June  19, 1893,  and  to  compare  it  with  his  letter  of  1904  to 

take  account  of  the  authority  which  the  declarations  of  this  person  may  have  that  the  com- 
pany seems  justified  in  accusing  him  of  having  written  his  protestation  for  money.  In  fact 

the  19th  of  June,  1893,  Mr.  Andau  Moral  wrote  to  the  liquidators  of  the  company: 

"I  put  myself  at  your  disposal  for  the  steps  to  l^e  taken  to  obtain  from  the  Government 
the  support  which  is  necessary  for  the  liquidation  to  bring  to  a  head  the  legitimate  claims 

against  Venezuela." 
As  for  the  letter  of  Mr.  Delort  of  November  25,  1891,  which  my  colleague  tries  to  use  as  a 

weapon  against  the  company,  I  will  remark  to  Mr.  Plumley  that  the  company  itself  produces 
a  copy  of  it  in  the  support  of  this  claim.  I  maintain  that  there  has  not  l)een  any  line  of  this 

letter  from  which  one  can  raise  an  argument  against  the  legitimacy  of  the  claim  in  question. 
E.  DE  Peretti  de  La  Rocca. 

NOETHFIELD,  MoTch  1,  1905. 

NOTE   WITH   REGARD  TO  M.  ANDRAU   MORAL  FOR   M.  DE   PERETTI    DE   I^    ROCCA. 

On  his  arrived  in  Caracas,  October  25,  1891,  he,  M.  Delort,  was  received  by  M.  Andrau 
Moral,  and  groat  was  his  surprise  for  ho  bolieved  him  to  l)e  on  the.  Orinoco  on  board  the 

Liberia^,  which  he  commanded.  He  was  ignorant  in  fact  of  the  loss  of  this  steamer  of  which 

he  had  not  yet  received  the  news  on  his  departure  from  France.  M.  Andrau  Moral  was  not 
unknown  to  M.  Delort  of  whom  he  had  asked,  in  1880,  to  be  appointed  on  the  mission  which 

the  Messrs.  Perifere  had  sent  to  Venezuela  to  study  the  resources  of  this  country  and  the 

business  enterprises  which  might  succeed  there. 

M.  Delort  had  been  placed  at  the  head  of  this  mi&sion.  In  the  programme  of  the  investi- 
gation were  included  the  four  mines  of  Callao  and  M.  Andrau  Moral  had  come  from  Callao, 

where  he  had  been  employed,  to  Caracas  to  offer  his  services,  but  the  information  gained 

with  regard  to  him  by  the  Marquis  de  Tallenay,  charg6  d'affaires  of  France  in  Venezuela, 
prevented  the  acceptance  of  these  offers.  M.  de  Tallenay  informed  M.  Delort  that  M.  Andrau 
Moral  had  been  obliged  to  leave  the  French  army  for  misdemeanor.  In  1883  M.  Delort  ran 

across  M.  Andrau  Moral  at  Panama,  where  he  was  in  the  employ  of  the  Inter-Oceanic  Canal, 
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and  since  that  time  he  had  not  seen  him.  After  the  failure  of  the  enterprise  of  the  canal, 

M.  Andrau  Moral  had  come  back  to  Ciudad  Bolivar,  where  he  had  married  a  Venezuelan  girl 
in  1879.  He  obtained,  in  1891,  from  the  agent  of  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  in 

liquidation,  M.  Boulissi^re,  the  command  of  the  steamer  Lihertad.  M.  Boulissi^re  did  not 

infonn  the  people  at  Paris  of  this  nomination,  so  that  the  liquidators  found  it  out  only 
through  the  report  of  the  said  agent  relative  to  an  attack  on  this  steamer  in  April,  1891,  by 
the  armed  bands  of  Valentini  Perez. 

After  the  loss  of  the  Lihertad  in  August  M.  Andrau  Moral  had  come  back  to  Caracas.  He 

explained  to  M.  Delort  that  going  up  the  Orinoco  August  6,  at  5.15  in  the  morning  at  about 
8  miles  from  Buenavista,  the  Lihertad  had  encountered  a  squall  from  the  east  so  violent 

that  the  steamer  had  capsized  in  a  moment  and  was  wrecked  by  the  explosion  of  the  boiler  a 
moment  later.  It  was  a  great  loss  to  the  company,  the  steamer  having  cost  a  hundred 

thousand  francs.  At  any  other  time  M.  Delort  would  have  wished  to  make  an  investigation 
with  regard  to  the  responsibility  of  M.  Andrau  Moral  in  the  loss  of  the  said  steamer  of  which 

he  was  the  captain;  but  he  was  so  preoccupied  with  the  situation  that  the  judgment  of  the 

high  court,  rendered  October  14,  1891 ,  was  going  to  cause  to  the  liquidation  of  the  company 
that  he  laid  aside  this  investigation  for  the  time.  He  had  taken  counsel  of  the  advocates  of 

the  company  as  to  the  measures  to  be  taken  and  as  the  latter  saw  no  other  action  possible 
than  a  claim  through  diplomatic  means,  it  was  necessary  to  prepare  this  by  evidence  for  the 

charge  d'affaires  of  France  at  Caracas,  M.  de  Lacvivier.  M.  Andrau  Moral  was  at  that  time 

on  excellent  terms  with  the  said  charge  d'affaires.  He  offered  M.  Delort  to  aitl  him  in  his 
work  which  he  was  rushing  as  much  as  possible  in  order  to  return  to  Paris  where  his  presence 

was  necessary.  It  was  necessary  to  be  acquainted  with  Venezuela  and  Caracas  to  under- 
stand the  position  in  which  M.  Delort  was  placed.  The  president.  Dr.  Andueza  Palacio, 

whom  he  knew  very  well  and  for  whom  he  had  even  had  the  opportunity  to  render  a  service 
some  years  before  when  he  was  in  a  precarious  position,  refused  to  receive  him,  and  the 
ministers  followed  his  example.  The  representative  of  the  liquidation,  M.  Fiat,  who  had 

become  an  employee  of  the  Government,  had  handed  in  his  resignation  and  wished  to  with- 
draw through  fear  of  compromising  himself.  For  M.  Delort  personally,  it  was  all  right,  but 

it  was  not  necessary  that  he  should  speak  of  the  Orinoco.  No  merchant  would  have  accepted- 
the  representation  of  the  company  through  fear  of  the  Government.  In  such  circumstances 

M.  Delort  was  well  pleased  at  finding  in  M.  Andrau  Moral  a  person  who  did  not  fear  to  com- 
promise himself  in  openly  supporting  the  company,  and  as  M.  Delort  did  not  wish  to  remain 

at  Caracas  more  than  one  month  he  had  with  the  said  Andrau  Moral  the  advantage  of  the 

man  already  acquainted  with  the  affair  and  being  able  to  prosecute  it  effectively  with  the 

French  legation  where  he  was  very  well  regarded.  M.  Delort  then  thought  no  more  about 

an  investigation  with  regard  to  the  loss  of  the  Lihertad.  He  considered  the  faults  of  youth 

as  peccadillos  to  be  forgotten,  and  he  prepared  M.  Andrau  Moral  to  continue  in  the  business 
of  which  he  had  laid  the  foundation. 

Moreover,  M.  de  Lacvivier  encouraged  M.  Delort  in  this  respect.  On  going  away  the 

latter  left  to  M.  Andrau  Moral  the  instructions  of  which  a  copy  is  here  attached,  but  not  wish- 

ing, however,  to  invest  him  with  powers  of  attorney  without  the  approbation  of  the  liqui- 
dator, M.  Roux,  he  remitted  in  blank  the  said  powers  to  the  legation  of  France,  awaiting  the 

decision  of  the  liquidator. 

M.  Andau  Moral  was  known  to  Doctor  Urbaneja,  legal  counsel  of  the  company,  whose 
advice  he  was  to  follow.  M.  Delort  went  back  to  France  and  arrived  in  Paris  the  16th  of 

December.  He  had  to  explain  first  the  situation  of  the  company  in  Venezuela  and  the 

liquidator  wished  to  call  a  meeting  of  the  stockholders  to  explain  it  to  them.  M.  Delort  had 
brought  to  M.  Roux  a  letter  from  M.  Andau  Moral,  dated  November  15,  offering  him  his 

services,  a  copy  of  the  reply  of  M.  Roux,  dated  the  24th  of  December,  1891,  being  annexed. 
M.  Andau  Moral  wrote  again  to  the  liquidator  offering  once  more  his  services,  dated  the  17th 
of  November. 

January  5  M.  Roux  telegraphed  to  M.  Andrau  Moral  that  he  agreed  to  give  him  the  powers 

of  attorney.    M.  Andau  Moral  wrote  to  M.  Delort  the  5th  of  January  a  letter  to  be  for- 
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warded  to  the  liquidator,  in  which  he  declared  that  he  would  demand  payment  of  a  regular 

salary  and  otherwise  he  spoke  of  accepting  other  offers  which  were  made  him.  M.  Roux 

replied  to  him  by  a  first  letter  of  the  25th  of  January  and  then  by  a  second  letter.  As  a 
result  of  this  correspondence  M.  Andrau  Moral  had  represented  the  liquidation  provisionally 
from  the  date  of  the  departure  of  M.  Delort  the  15th  of  November,  to  January  5,  1892,  and 
officially  from  January  5,  1892,  to  February  25,  1892,  on  which  date  he  received  the  letter 

informing  him  that  M.  Maninat  had  been  selected  and  that  he  was  to  turn  over  his  powers 
to  him. 

But  M.  Maninat  to  whom  they  had  written  at  the  same  time  to  represent  the  company, 
did  not  put  himself  forward  in  this  affair,  at  this  time,  made  no  reply,  and  took  no  steps  with 

M.  Andrau  Moral  who  continued  to  represent  the  company  voluntarily, hut  he  had  really  noth- 
ing to  do.  Affairs  remained  thus  during  the  whole  year  of  1892,  which  was  exceedingly 

troublesome  in  Venezuela  because  of  the  civil  war,  the  fall  of  Doctor  Palacio,  and  the  final 

victory  of  General  Crespo.  M.  Maninat  had  come  to  France  toward  the  close  of  1892  and 

they  had  prevailed  upon  him  to  accept  the  power  of  attorney  of  the  company.  A  letter  was 
written  to  him,  of  which  a  copy  is  added.  M.  Maninat  on  his  arrival  at  Caracas  went  to  the 

legation  to  demand  the  dossier  of  the  documents  relative  to  the  claims  of  the  Company  Gen- 
eral of  the  Orinoco  in  liquidation.  He  was  then  informed  that  M.  Andrau  Moral  had  taken 

possession  of  some  important  exhibits  and  had  gone  away  without  returning  them,  and  of 
this  act  M.  Maninat  informed  those  at  Paris.  M.  Delort  demanded  these  documents  of 

M.  Andrau  Moral,  who  replied  that  he  had  left  them  with  his  cousin  Mathew  Valery,  at  La 
Guaira  M.  Delort  then  communicated  with  this  said  Valery  who  pretended  to  have  sent 
them  back  again  to  M.  Andrau  Moral  and  sent  a  letter  herewith  attached,  a  copy  of  which 

was  transmitted  to  M.  Andrau  Moral  who  declared  that  the  agent  of  the  post  in  question  had 
remitted  nothing  to  him. 

Finally  M.  Andrau  Moral  has  restored  nothing.  M.  Andrau  Moral  was  without  personal 
resources  and  he  expected  to  receive  regularly  from  the  liquidator  a  monthly  allowance 
which  would  permit  him  to  live.  He  complained  much  because  the  liquidator,  M.  Roux,  had 

not  wished  to  assist  him.  But  at  this  time  the  liquidation  had  some  heavy  expenses  to 
meet  in  regulating  other  affairs  more  important  than  a  salary  to  M.  Andrau  Moral.  On  the 

other  hand,  the  dossier  of  the  company  ought  first  of  all  to  have  been  examined  at  the  min- 
istry of  foreign  affairs.  There  was  really  nothing  to  be  done  at  Caracas,  as  M.  Andrau  Moral 

himself  knew.  They  did  not  see  under  these  conditions  the  necessity  of  paying  him,  and 
the  offer  which  M.  Roux  had  made  him,  placing  to  his  credit  some  settlements  to  be  made 

later,  was  a  gratuitous  kindness.  Nevertheless  he  drew  several  checks  upon  M.  Roux  and 

M.  Delort,  together  2,500  francs,  drafts  which  were  paid.  That  could  not  continue  and  M. 

Delort  urged  him  while  waiting  to  take  some  employment.  M.  Andrau  Moral  had  been  able 
to  win  the  good  will  of  M.  de  Monclar,  so  that  he  got  him  the  appointment  of  consular 

agent  of  France  at  La  Guaira,  to  which  he  added  the  consular  agency  of  Colombia  in  this 

same  port.  So  in  this  manner  he  found  the  means  of  existence.  Unfortunately  he  had 
many  political  friendships  and  in  this  time  of  troubles  of  expulsions  and  of  flighfs  he  aided 

in  the  flight  of  certain  compromised  men.  M.  de  Monclar  did  not  pardon  him  for  this  fault 

and  had  him  replaced.  He  then  went  to  ask  M.  Orsi  de  Monbello  to  take  him  into  his  busi- 
ness in  order  to  help  him  to  get  a  living.  M.  Orsi  de  Monbello  was  in  high  favor  of  General 

Crespo,  who  placed  him  in  charge  of  certain  works,  for  which  he  was  paid  in  advance  to  a 
certain  amount,  which  is  not  common  in  Venezuela.  M.  Andrau  Moral,  who  was  notorious  at 

Carcacas,  got  rid  of  part  of  these  advances  for  him,  and  General  Crespo  learning  about  it 
sent  him  out  of  Venezuela,  causing  him  to  embark  officially  at  La  Guaira.  M.  Andrau  Moral 
came  to  Paris.  This  was  in  April,  1893.  M.  Delort  welcomed  him  kindly  and  aided  him  so 
far  as  he  could  in  his  plans,  which  he  continued  to  pursue.  M.  Roux  also  welcomed  him  and 

remitted  to  him  what  he  could.  But  the  question  of  money  always  being  the  main  thing, 
M.  Andrau  Moral  drew  upon  M.  Roux  from  Ajaccio,  where  he  had  gone.  M.  Roux  refused 

to  accept  and  then  received  a  letter  of  regular  blackmail. 

S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   21 
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But  M.  Andrau  Moral  changed  his  mind,  and  June  18,  1893,  he  wrote  to  the  liquidators, 

again  offering  them  his  services,  but  this  time  for  proceedings  to  be  made  at  the  ministry  of 
foreign  affairs,  where  he  pretended  to  have  influence  powerful  enough  to  act  and  to  bring  to 
a  successful  end  the  legitimate  claims  of  the  liquidations  in  Venezuela.  And  it  is  after  such 

a  letter  that  M.  Andrau  Moral  protests  against  the  claims  of  the  Company  Greneral  of  the 
Orinico. 

The  liquidators  of  the  company  heard  nothing  further  from  M.  Andrau  Moral  after  this 
letter  of  June  18,  1893,  and  M.  Delort  has  had  no  news  from  him  since  1896.  How,  under 

these  conditions,  could  M.  Andrau  Moral  make  a  protest  and  to  what  end  ?  It  can  not  be  for 
the  remainder  of  the  credit  which  he  may  have  upon  the  liquidation,  for  it  is  to  that  alone 

that  he  ought  to  have  addressed  himself.  He  has  no  cause  of  complaint  against  the  liquida- 
tion nor  against  M.  Delort ;  however  the  protestation  which  he  has  made  has  for  an  end  to 

injure  the  liquidation  and  M.  Delort ;  but,  then,  what  object  was  he  pursuing  ?  M.  Andrau 
Moral  is  not  a  man  to  act  without  interest,  and  for  him  interest  is  money. 

That  is  why  his  action  aside  from  its  lack  of  right,  value,  and  reason  is  contemptible 
and  can  only  place  in  confusion  those  who  search  to  use  it,  making  in  a  way  a  common  cause 
with  him. 

Th.  Dbloet. 
Pakis,  February  17 y  1906. 

OPINION  OF  THE  TJMPIKE. 

The  liquidators  of  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco,  a  French 
company,  presented  their  claim  through  the  Government  of  France 
before  this  honorable  commission  at  its  sitting  in  Caracas  in  1903, 
claiming  indenmity  in  the  sum  of  7,616,098.62  francs  of  date  July  10, 
1902. 

The  claim  having  received  the  careful  consideration  of  the  honorable 
commissioners,  they  found  themselves  in  serious  disagreement,  the 
honorable  commissioner  for  France  deeming  it  just  that  there  be 
awarded  the  liquidators  the  sum  of  7,000,000  francs,  while  the  hon- 

orable commissioner  for  Venezuela  refused  them  any  sum.  The  claim 
was  therefore  reserved  for  the  consideration  of  the  imipire,  to  whom 
it  was  presented  at  the  sitting  of  the  commission  at  Northfield  on  the 
13th  day  of  February  last. 

Nothing  is  in  controversy  but  the  merits  of  the  claim. 

It  arises  out  of  two  concessions  granted  by  the  respondent  Govern- 
ment. The  earlier  was  to  Miguel  Tejera,  a  Venezuelan,  through 

Gen.  Guzmta  Blanco,  plenipotentiary  of  the  Republic  of  Venezuela, 
at  Paris,  France,  on  the  17th  day  of  December,  1885,  and  was  approved 
by  the  Congress  of  the  conceding  Government  May  21,  1886,  made 
executory  May  24,  and  published  in  the  Official  Gazette  of  June  5 
of  the  same  year.  The  other  was  from  the  respondent  Government 
to  Theodore  Delort,  made  at  Caracas  April  1,  1887.  It  was  approved 
by  the  Federal  council,  later  by  the  national  Congress,  May  26,  1887, 
became  executory  May  31,  and  was  promulgated  June  13  of  the  same 

year. The  concession  to  Miguel  Tejera  was  contained  in  fifteen  articles 

and  comprised  certain  valuable  privileges  to  and  certain  compensa- 
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tory  requirements  of  him  in  substance  as  next  hereinafter  stated. 
To  the  concessionary  was  granted  the  exclusive  right  to  exploit  all 
the  mineral  and  vegetable  productions  of  the  territories  of  Upper 
Orinoco  and  Amazonas;  to  construct  railroads,  telegraph  lines,  and 
canals,  such  as  he  might  think  suitable  for  the  development  of  the 
territories  and  the  expansion  of  the  enterprise,  giving  notice  always 
to  the  national  Government  of  the  time  when  such  works  were  to  be 

commenced  and  submitting  to  the  Government  the  plans  thereof; 
the  free  importation  of  all  material,  implements,  and  instruments 
necessary  for  the  construction  and  maintenance  of  the  railroads  and 
their  equipments  and  the  boats  and  their  equipments;  a  rebate  of 
10  per  cent  from  the  regular  customs  duties  on  all  other  imports  by 
the  concessionary;  the  ownership  in  fee  of  all  lands  occupied  by  the 

concessionary  for  farms,  pasturage,  or  industrial  purposes;  6  hec- 
tares of  land  in  fee  to  the  concessionary  for  each  immigrant  intro- 
duced into  the  said  territories  as  provided  for  in  said  concession,  the 

same  in  all  cases  to  be  taken  out  of  Government  lands;  immunity 
to  the  enterprise  from  any  and  every  impost  or  contribution  to  or 
for  Governmental  support;  right  of  navigation  of  the  lower  Orinoco 
and  of  exit  or  entry  for  his  boats  by  the  canal  Macareo;  that  during 
the  term  of  the  concession  the  Federal  Government  was  not  to  treat 

with  any  other  person  or  company  for  the  exploitation  of  mineral 
or  vegetable  products,  steam  navigation,  and  railroads,  these  being 
declared  to  be  the  basis  of  the  contract;  the  privilege  of  assigning 
the  concession  in  whole  or  in  part  to  any  other  person,  persons,  or 

company,  limited  only  to  giving  notice  of  such  transfer  and  assign- 
ment to  the  Government  of  the  Republic;  the  concession  to  continue 

for  thirty-five  years  from  the  date  of  its  ratification ;  at  the  expiration 
of  this  time  all  railroads  of  more  than  10  kilometers  constructed  by 

the  enterprise,  all  Knes  acquired  by  the  enterprise,  arid  all  mines  ex- 
ploited by  it  were  to  continue  to  be  its  property  until  the  end  of 

ninety-nine  years  from  the  date  of  ratification. 
The  obligations  imposed  upon  the  concessionary  by  the  terms  of 

the  contract  were  in  substance  these : 

To  construct  narrow-gauge  railroads  around  the  rapids  of  the  Atures 
and  the  Maipures  in  the  Orinoco,  the  construction  to  be  commenced 
within  eight  months,  counting  from  the  date  on  which  the  ratification 
of  this  contract  should  be  communicated  to  the  concessionary;  to 
establish  steam  navigation  on  the  upper  Orinoco,  the  Casicjuiare,  and 
the  Rio  Negro,  the  first  boat  to  be  in  those  waters  within  six  months, 
counting  from  the  date  when  the  construction  of  the  railroad  should 
be  begun;  to  introduce  at  his  own  expense  into  the  said  Territories  an 
annual  number  of  immigrants  not  less  than  500;  to  erect  a  building 
for  a  school  and  a  chapel  in  each  of  the  new  villages  which  should  be 
founded  at  his  expense;  to  construct  at  his  expense  two  barracks 
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suitable  to  accommodate  200  men  each,  one  of  which  should  be  near 
the  frontier  of  Colombia  and  the  other  in  the  neighborhood  of  the 
Brazilian  frontier,  both  at  points  which  should  be  selected  by  the 
Federal  Government  and  for  whose  approbation  the  plans  were  to  be 
submitted ;  to  introduce  into  the  said  Territories  at  least  three  Catholic 
missionaries  each  year  during  a  period  of  ten  years;  to  support  at  his 

expense,  at  the  most  suitable  places,  hospitals  and  pharmacies  for  the 
assistance  of  the  natives  and  immigrants  who  might  fall  sick  in  the 
work  of  the  enterprise ;  to  pay  to  the  national  Government  during  the 
existence  of  this  contract  the  sum  of  40  bolivars  for  each  46  kilograms 
of  india  rubber  which  should  be  exported  to  a  foreign  country;  to  send 

a  scientific  commission  to  explore  the  two  Territories  and  to  communi- 
cate to  the  Government  the  result  of  its  labors;  to  maintain  at  his 

expense  a  body  of  police  for  the  protection  of  his  works,  the  chief  to 

be  appointed  by  the  Federal  Government ;  to  proceed  to  the  exploita- 
tion of  the  vegetable  materials  in  such  manner  that  the  natural  plan- 

tations existing  might  be  preserved  in  good  condition;  to  be  respon- 
sible for  the  trees  which  might  be  destroyed  in  the  exploitation  of  the 

india  rubber  and  that  he  improve  and  benefit  these  natural  planta- 
tions; to  yield  up  to  the  Government  all  the  property  of  the  enter- 

prise, which  was  to  become  the  property  of  the  nation,  at  the  expira- 
tion of  the  general  term  of  thirty-five  years,  excepting  the  properties 

named  heretofore,  which,  under  the  privileges  of  the  concession,  were 

to  belong  to  the  company;  to  permit  that  all  differences  and  contro- 
versies, which  the  carrying  out  of  the  concession  might  cause,  should 

be  resolved  by  the  tribunals  of  the  Republic  conformably  to  its  laws. 
The  enterprise  contemplated  by  the  Government  of  the  Republic 

and  by  the  concession  was  indeed  colossal. 
The  two  territories  included  in  the  concession  had  an  area,  as  stated 

by  Mr.  Tejera,  of  600,000  square  kilometers.  It  was  understood  to 
contain  vast  and  fertile  plains,  forests  covered  with  wood,  rare  and 
rich;  extensive  mines  of  gold  and  silver;  other  metals  and  precious 
stones,  and  for  immediate  exportation  and  profit  great  quantities 
of  india  rubber,  sarrapia,  and  oil  of  copaiba.  The  Orinoco,  2,000 
miles  long,  received  within  these  Territories  its  largest  tributaries,  and 
with  these,  above  the  Maipures  rapids,  had  thousands  of  miles  of 
navigable  waters,  extending  west,  east,  and  south,  and  beyond  the 
boundaries  of  Venezuela.  It  was  a  land  little  known  by  the  world 

at  large,  but  it  bore  the  charm  of  great  attributed  wealth  of  vege- 
table and  mineral  products,  the  exclusive  exploitation  of  which  passed 

to  the  concessionary  by  the  terms  of  the  contract. 
From  the  map  of  Venezuela,  as  then  constituted,  the  Orinoco  and 

its  eastern  confluents  were  all  within  the  domain  of  Venezuela,  while 
important  sections  of  the  western  affluents  lay  likewise  within  the 
Republic  and  under  its  control.     The  concessionary  saw  in  these  facts 
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far-reaching  opportunities  for  exclusive  navigation  over  many  waters 
and  through  immense  regions,  and  there  came  to  him  visions,  not 

fanciful,  of  giant  fortunes.  There  was,  however,  little  genuine  knowl- 
edge of  these  Territories;  they  were  largely  unexplored  and  in  detail 

unknown.  It  afterwards  appeared  that  the  population  had  been 
decreasing  for  some  time  through  different  causes,  and  many  villages 

once  fairly  populous  were  reduced  to  very  few  inhabitants.  The 
rapids,  which  it  was  the  plan  of  this  concession  to  avoid  by  means  of 
railroads,  had  been  the  sufficient  cause  both  of  the  ignorance  of  the 
outside  world  concerning  lands  lying  beyond  them  and  of  a  paucity  of 
inhabitants,  of  enterprise,  and  of  improvements  therein. 

The  conditions  peculiar  to  a  tropical  country  had  added  to  the  usual 
factors,  making  early  explorations  and  investigations  dependent 
exclusively  upon  waterways.  The  rapids  had  cut  off  approach  from 
the  north  to  the  upper  Orinoco,  as  well  as  descent  therefrom.  The 
Casiquiare  joined  together  the  Amazon  and  the  Orinoco,  and  by  this 
means  the  sea  could  be  reached  with  freight  carrying  traffic  from 
these  Territories,  and  it  was  the  only  way  by  which  the  Territories  had 
been  open  to  navigation.  It  was  only  foresight  and  patriotism  which 
suggested  the  plan  proposed  in  the  concession  to  unite  these  separated 
sections  of  Venezuela  by  means  of  steamboats  and  railways  on  and  by 
the  Orinoco. 

While  the  enterprise  promised  much  to  its  promoters  financially,  it 
bade  fair  to  be  of  untold  value  to  the  Republic  of  Venezuela. 

A  French  syndicate  was  formed  September  1,  1886,  to  take  over 
this  concession,  which  was  merged  in  the  Company  General  of  the 
Orinoco.  This  company,  was  organized  at  Paris,  France,  March  28, 
1887,  with  a  capital  of  1,500,000  francs,  composed  of  3,000  shares  of 

500  francs  each.  This  company  beame  the  legal  assignee  of  the  con- 
cession of  December  17,  1885. 

April  1,  1887,  at  Caracas,  the  Government  of  Venezuela  entered 
into  a  contract  with  Theodore  Delort,  a  French  citizen,  for  the  exclu- 

sive exploitation  of  sarrapia  for  a  term  of  twenty-five  years  within  the 
Government  lands  which  are  included  between  the  eastern  boundaries 

of  the  Federal  Territories  of  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas  and  British 
Guiana  and  between  the  Orinoco  and  the  Venezuelan-Brazilian  fron- 
tier. 

In  addition  to  the  provision  concerning  sarrapia  there  was  granted 
by  the  Government  the  right  to  construct  railroads  and  telegraph 
lines  wherever  deemed  necessary  for  the  development  of  its  works  and 
to  establish  rates  of  transportation  subject  to  the  approval  of  the 
Government;  to  become  the  proprietor  in  fee  of  the  lands  occupied  by 
these  establishments;  to  receive  in  fee  one  hectare  of  land  for  each 
immigrant  introduced ;  to  import  free  of  duty  all  materials,  mcchinery, 

and  tools  necessary  for  the  exploitation  of  sarrapia  r.nd  for  the  con- 
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struction  of  steamers,  houses,  railroads,  and  telegraph  lilies;  the  right 
to  cut  in  the  national  forests  the  wood  and  timber  to  be  used  in  all 

such  constructions;  to  have  all  these  privileges  exclusively  during  the 
term  of  the  concession;  to  have  the  unlimited  right  to  assignment  or 
transfer  of  said  contract  by  simply  advising  the  Government  thereof. 

In  return  for  these  privileges  there  were  certain  compensatory  obli- 
gations resting  upon  the  concessionary  in  said  contract,  such  as  that 

Mr.  Delort  was  to  organize  a  company  with  sufficient  capital  to  carry 

on  the  exploitation  named;  also  imposing  these  duties — to  pay  the 
National  Government  in  specie  50  bolivars  for  each  kilogram  of  sarra- 
pia  which  should  be  exported;  to  introduce  at  the  expense  of  the 
concessionary  immigrants  to  colonize  the  Territories  in  which  the 
exploitation  of  sarrapia  was  to  take  place;  to  establish  hospitals  and 
pharmacies  sufficient  for  the  immigrants  and  workmen  who  might  fall 
sick ;  to  introduce  Catholic  missionaries  to  catechise  the  natives  of  the 

Territories  where  the  exploitation  was  to  take  place ;  to  establish  steam 

navigation  on  the  principal  branches  of  the  Orinoco  where  it  was  pos- 
sible within  the  Territories  included  in  the  contract;  totcarry  on  the 

exploitation  of  sarrapia  in  such  a  manner  as  to  keep  in  good  condition 

the  existing  plantations;  to  transmit  gratuitously  postal  correspond- 
ence. 

This  contract  was  also  taken  over  by  the  Company  General  of  the 
Orinoco,  and  it  became  the  lawful  assignee  thereof. 

Of  both  these  assignments  to  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco 
the  respondent  Government  had  due  and  sufficient  notice  and  advices. 

Prior  to  the  organization  of  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco 
the  syndicate  heretofore  referred  to  did  much  toward  preparing  the 

way  for  performing  the  duties  and  gaining  the  privileges  of  the  conces- 
sion; but  immediately  following  the  organization  of  the  company  the 

enterprise  was  pressed  faithfully  and  with  measurable  success.  Unex- 
pected difficulties  and  obstacles  were  met  and  overcome  so  far  as  the 

conditions  would  permit.  Steamboats  were  placed  on  the  lower 
Orinoco  for  navigation  between  Ciudad  Bolivar  and  the  Atures; 
between  the  rapids  of  the  Atures  and  the  Maipures  and  above  the  upper 

falls  for  the  service  of  the  upper  Orinoco.  By  May  2, 1887,  regular  com- 
munication had  been  established  between  Atures  and  Ciudad  Bolivar, 

the  trip  down  taking  five  days  and  the  trip  up  about  ten.  By  the 
latter  part  of  1887  the  boats  on  the  upper  Orinoco  were  plying  between 
San  Fernando  de  Atabapo  and  Maipures  with  reasonable  regularity, 
accomplishing  the  service  in  about  twelve  days  from  San  Fernando 
to  Ciudad  Bolivar,  where  before  it  had  taken  three  months.  The 
distance  from  Ciudad  Bolivar  to  Atures  is  about  900  kilometers,  and 
from  Atures  to  Maipures  is  about  60  kilometers,  and  from  Maipures  to 
San  Fernando  de  Atabapo  is  about  400  kilometers. 

The  discovery  of  two  rapids  between  the  Atures  and  the  Maipures, 
not  named  in  the  contract  and  apparently  not  known,  practically 
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negatived  the  idea  of  a  successful  scheme  consisting  solely  of  two 

narrow-gage  railroads  of  about  10  miles  each,  one  passing  by  the  lower 
and  the  other  by  the  upper  rapids  with  carriage  by  boats  between 
these  two  points,  as  was  contemplated  by  both  parties  to  the  conces- 

sion. It  was  essential  to  a  wise  issue  that  there  be  one  railroad  only 
of  sufficient  length  to  include  both  rapids,  built  at  such  distances  from 
the  river  as  the  topography  of  the  adjacent  territory  required.  This 
would  necssitate  the  crossing  of  wide  and  deep  rivers,  affluents  of  the 
Orinoco,  and  would  entail  expensive  bridges  and  viaducts. 

Such  railway  would  cover  a  distance  of  60  kilometers.  One  feature 
of  the  Orinoco  not  understood  by  either  party  to  the  concession,  as 
it  would  seem,  was  the  mighty  flow  of  waters  in  a  certain  part  of  the 
season,  reaching  forty  feet  in  height  above  low-water  mark  and 
inundating  the  country  for  leagues,  especially  on  its  western  side, 

with  a  corresponding  paucity  of  the  waters  during  the  opposing  sea- 
son. The  successful  navigation  of  the  Orinoco  was  seriously  impaired 

by  these  facts  in  the  matter  of  accessible  ports  and  towns  of  stable  and 
organized  character  and  by  the  lack  in  parts  of  a  sufficient  depth 
of  water  at  its  lowest  ebb  for  the  passage  of  such  boats  as  the  general 
condition  of  navigation  in  the  upper  Orinoco  seemed  to  demand.  It 
also  prevented  the  railroads,  which  by  the  terms  of  the  concession 
were  to  be  built  around  the  upper  and  lower  rapids,  from  being  located 
near  the  banks  of  the  river  as  they  existed  in  the  ordinary  flow. 

A  temporary  railway  was  constructed  around  the  lower  rapids  on 
the  right  and  around  the  upper  rapids  on  the  left  of  the  Orinoco  in 
order  to  lift  the  steamers  overland  and  to  points  where  they  could 
be  again  placed  upon  the  river  for  purposes  of  navigation  between 
the  rapids  and  above.  By  this  means  steam  navigation  was  estab- 

lished on  the  upper  Orinoco. 
These  railways  were  built  and  used  for  no  other  purpose.  They 

could  not  be  permanently  maintained  at  these  places  because  the 
annual  floods  would  lay  them  deep  beneath  the  waters. 

Instead,  pending*  the  building  of  a  satisfactory  railroad  line,  cart roads  were  built  around  each  of  the  rapids;  carts,  mules,  and  other 
draft  animals  were  secured  and  maintained,  and  in  this  way  and  by 
these  means  and  by  the  aid  of  an  adequate  ferry  upon  the  Cataniapo, 
and  by  a  raft  upon  the  Tuparo,  the  products  from  the  Territories 
were  carried  by  the  rapids  and  taken  up  by  the  steamers  in  the  lower 
Orinoco,  and  similarly  transportation  was  effected  from  the  lower 
to  the  upper  Orinoco.  It  was  not  transportation  by  railroads  around 
the  rapids,  but  it  linked  together  steam  navigation  on  the  Orinoco 
and  opened  up  the  Territories  of  the  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas  and 
this  outer  world  by  way  of  northern  Venezuela. 

Important  steps  in  the  construction  of  the  railroads  were  taken 
and  while  in  fair  progress  the  work  was  interrupted  and  prevented  by 
serious  inundations  covering  quite  a  period  of  time. 
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During  the  years  1887-^8  the  company  entered  upon  the  construc- 
tion of  a  railroad  from  the  mouth  of  the  Cano  Meta  to  the  Rio  Ventu- 

ario  above  the  great  rapids,  uniting  the  Caura  with  the  upper  Orinoco. 
The  progress  of  this  work  was  interrupted  when  twelve  leagues  had 
been  completed  by  the  impressment  of  the  workmen,  under  order  of 
the  Government  of  Caura,  to  be  used  as  troops  in  the  defense  of  the 
Government  against  the  revolution.  The  work  thus  interrupted  was 
never  completed. 

Contrary  to  the  early  expectations  of  the  projectors  of  the  enter- 
prise, it  was  impossible  to  obtain  the  requisite  labor  in  the  country 

where  the  work  was  to  be  performed,  and  it  became  necessary  to 
obtain  workmen  from  Ciudad  Bolivar  and  even  from  Trinidad. 

In  the  Upper  Orinoco  a  census  of  all  the  workmen,  including  men, 
women,  and  children,  did  not  exceed  one  thousand. 

Stations  and  depots  were  duly  established  by  the  company  at 
Punta  Brava,  at  the  mouth  of  the  Caura,  at  the  ports  of  Perico, 
Salvajito,  Atures,  Maipures,  Vichada,  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo,  San 
Cdrlos,  and  at  the  Brazilian  frontier;  storehouses,  workshops,  and 

supplies  were  at  the  stations  Atures  and  Maipures;  there  were  phar- 
macies at  all  the  stations  centralized  at  Puerto  Perico;  there  was  a 

chapel  and  home  for  the  priest  at  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo.  The 
company  also  established  herding  and  agriculture  at  La  Vichada. 

The  flora  of  the  territories  was  carefully  studied  and  reported  upon 

by  Doctor  Gaillard,  a  distinguished  expert,  the  result  of  his  investi- 
gations being  printed  in  two  volumes  and  presented  to  the  Venezuelan 

Government.  Explorations  were  made  on  the  rivers  Vichada,  Guavi- 
are,  Inirida,  Ventuario,  Atabapo,  Guainia,  and  the  Casiquiare. 
When  the  steamers  were  all  placed  as  used  in  the  enterprise  of  the 

company,  there  were  the  Lihertad,  Caroniy  Caura y  and  the  Maipire 
for  navigation  between  Ciudad  Bolivar  and  the  lower  rapids;  the 
Meta  and  Maipures  between  the  rapids;  the  Atures y  Naroa,  Eva^  and 
San  Fernando  for  the  traffic  of  the  upper  Orinoco,  of  which  steamers 
the  first  two  made  occasional  trips  to  the  Brazilian  frontier  and  on 

the  river  Atabapo  as  far  as  Javita  when  the  condition  of  water  per- 
mitted. By  means  of  the  boats  between  the  rapids  the  journey, 

which  formerly  occupied  three  or  four  days,  was  accomplished  by 
them  in  six  hours. 

The  company  made  careful  reports  of  its  proceedings  annually,  in 

1888,  1889,  and  1890,  and  these  reports  were  furnished  to  the  Vene- 
zuelan ministers  of  public  works  and  of  fomento,  so  that  they  were 

fidly  advised  of  the  doings  of  the  enterprise. 
Agencies  were  established  by  the  company  at  San  Fernando  de 

Atabapo,  San  Carlos,  and  at  the  Brazilian  frontier. 

During  the  earlier  stages  of  the  enterprise  it  depended  for  infor- 
mation, to  a  large  degree,  upon  its  assignor,  Mr.  Tejera,  who,  in  addi- 



OPINION    OF    THE    UMPIRE.  329 

tion  to  a  familiarity  with  the  general  characteristics  of  the  country, 
gained  in  his  department  of  minister  of  public  works  of  the  Republic 

of  Venezuela,  had  paid  official  visits  to  the  parts  involved  in  this  con- 
cession. Much  of  his  information  must  have  been  obtained  at  second 

hand,  after  all,  for  it  was  seriously  inexact  and  proved  so  misleading 
as  to  be  very  expensive  to  the  company. 

Experience  gave  the  enterprise  to  know  that  in  the  upper  part  of 
the  Orinoco  its  banks  and  the  banks  of  the  Casiquiare  and  of  the 
Atabapo  were  completely  inundated  during  the  seasons  of  high  water, 
which  extended  over  a  period  of  four  or  five  months  and  attained  a 
very  serious  maximum  every  ten  or  twelve  years.  As  a  result  they 
are  uninhabitable,  except  at  certain  elevated  points,  and  the  distance 
between  these  points  is  sometimes  as  great  as  200  kilometers.  The 

company  foimd  the  native  population  very  much  scattered  and  estab- 
lished at  places  in  the  interior  both  above  and  beyond  the  reach  of  the 

annual  floods.  It  was  also  learned  that  there  was  no  agriculture  and 
no  live  stock;  that  even  to  sustain  life  in  these  regions  was  difficult  and 
many  died  of  hunger. 

The  annual  production  of  rubber  in  these  Territories  at  the  begin- 
ning of  the  exploitation  of  the  Orinoco  did  not  exceed  40  tons.  There 

were  also  50  to  60  quintals  of  copaiba  oil  and  a  few  tons  of  piassava, 
although  m  the  interior  there  were  great  opportunities  for  obtaining 
much  larger  products  of  all  these,  the  development  of  which  was  a 
part  of  the  plan  and  the  hope  of  the  company. 

Except  at  Atures  with  three  families  and  Maipures  with  one  family 
there  was  no  village  upon  the  banks  of  the  Orinoco  from  Cariben  to 
San  Fernando  de  Atabapo. 

In  February,  1889,  application  was  made  by  the  manager  of  the 
enterprise  to  the  minister  of  fomento  for  lands  which  had  been  visited 
and  selected  on  which  to  place  the  immigrants  who  were  expected  in  a 
few  months.  It  was  explained  in  this  communication  that  any  earlier 

bringing  of  immigrants  had  been  impossible,  since  the  company's 
means  of  transportation  had  been  inadequate  to  supply  their  needs,  as 
everything  on  which  they  were  to  subsist  at  first  must  be  brought  into 
the  country.  The  lands  selected  and  applied  for  were  situated 
opposite  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo.  No  reply  was  received  to  this 

application. 
In  the  early  part  of  the  year  1889, 370  head  of  live  stock  were  obtained 

in  Buena  Vista  and  were  sent  across  the  savannas  to  the  Vichada, 

where,  as  has  been  previously  stated,  an  hito  had  been  established. 
The  necessity  of  building  one  railroad  of  60  kilometers  to  go  round 

the  four  rapids  was  fully  developed  to  the  national  Government  by 

the  manager  of  the  enterprise  as  early  as  February  4,  1889.  A  state- 
ment of  the  probable  expense  was  given  at  the  same  time  and  the 

proposition  was  made  to  the  Government  that  a  7  per  cent  guarantee 
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be  made  to  secure  its  construction.  The  estimated  cost  was  60,000 

francs  to  each  kilometer.  No  reply  was  made  by  the  national 
authorities. 

For  the  two  years  of  1888  and  1889  the  company  had  a  regular 
monthly  service  from  Ciudad  Bolivar  to  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo, 

and  without  accident  carried  every  paying  passenger  who  offered  him- 
self for  transportation.  In  1888  General  Silva,  governor  of  the  Terri- 

tories Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas,  with  his  general  secretary  and  a 
large  staff,  went  from  Ciudad  Bolivar  to  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo  to 
take  up  his  office  under  the  national  Government  in  the  boats  of  the 

company,  taking  with  him  also  his  troops,  thirty  soldiers,  his  baggage, 
and  his  provisions;  similarly  General  Silva  descended  the  Orinoco  in 
1889,  and  General  Cabellero,  receiving  his  appointment  as  governor 
to  succeed  General  Silva,  went  from  Ciudad  Bolivar  to  the  capital  of 
these  Territories  in  the  boats  of  the  company;  later  he  came  down  on 
leave  in  these  boats  and  again  went  back  to  his  post  in  the  same  way, 
the  company  receiving  no  compensation  for  all  the  service  above 
stated. 

It  was  the  universal  custom  of  the  company  to  receive  as  passengers 
without  pay  all  employees  of  the  Government.  It  carried  the  mail 
free  from  Ciudad  Bolivar  to  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo,  and  by  means 
of  its  agencies  performed  the  service  of  the  budget  of  these  Territories 
without  commission  or  compensation. 

September  15,  1888,  the  steamer  Libertad  was  requisitioned  by 
lawful  authorities  to  transport  troops,  material,  and  provisions  to  the 

fort  of  Guyana  Vieja  in  defense  of  the  national  Government.  Reim- 
bursement was  demanded  of  these  authorities  by.  the  company,  but 

was  refused.  The  fuel  for  the  steamers  and  even  the  board  of  the 

crew  during  the  trip  was  furnished  without  recompense  by  the 
company. 

In  December,  1888,  the  lawful  authorities  again  requisitioned  the 
steamer  Libertad,  which  during  the  whole  of  that  month  made  trips 
loaded  with  troops  between  Caicare  and  Rio  Caura.  To  the  request 
of  the  company  for  an  indemnity  there  was  a  refusal.  It  was  at  this 
time  that  the  workmen  upon  the  railroad  running  out  from  Caura,  an 
incident  previously  mentioned,  as  well  as  the  agricultural  laborers  of 
the  company,  were  impressed  by  the  Government  to  march  against 
the  revolutionists.  None  of  the  workmen  ever  returned  to  the  service 

of  the  enterprise. 
October  31,  1888,  the  pro  tempore  governor  of  Upper  Orinoco  and 

Amazonas  Territories  issued  a  decree  annulling  all  of  the  accoimts  of 
the  Indians  with  the  company  wherein  they  were  debtors.  This  was 
done  in  the  especial  interest  of  Valentin  Perez  and  other  like 
contractors. 
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Governor  d^Aubeterre  carried  with  him  to  San  Fernando  de 
Atabapo,  his  capital  city,  a  considerable  stock  of  different  kinds  of 
merchandise  for  the  purpose  of  traffic  in  india  rubber,  which  traffic  he 
entered  upon  openly,  in  so  far  opposing  the  rights  of  the  company  in 
exploitation  of  this  product. 

In  December,  1889,  the  same  governor  caused  a  petition  to  be  signed 

against  the  company  by  persons  of  little  standing,  in  this  way  attack- 
ing the  company  instead  of  assuring  the  execution  of  its  contract. 

At  the  same  time  a  similar  petition  was  passed  among  the  merchants 
of  Ciudad  Bolivar.  The  claimants  assert  that  it  was  done  at  the 

instigation  of  the  minister  of  the  interior. 

Early  in  the  year  1890,  Governor  d'Aubeterre  made  a  long  journey 
into  the  interior  of  the  Territories  in  order  to  gather  up  the  largest 
quantity  possible  of  india  rubber  which  had  been  harvested  by  means 
of  advances  made  to  the  harvesters  by  the  company. 
May  17,  1890,  a  ministerial  decree  authorized  the  proprietors  of 

sarrapia  and  other  natural  products  to  export  them  freely,  paying  the 
same  duty  as  the  company. 

The  historical  order  is  here  interrupted  to  name  a  very  important 

matter,  which  may  well  be  under  consideration  as  having  explanator>' 
value  in  connection  with  the  events  of  1888  to  1891,  both  inclusive. 

The  Venezuelan-Colombian  boundary  question,  which  for  a  long 
time  had  been  a  matter  of  diplomatic  controversy  between  these  two 
countries,  by  a  treaty  executed  by  them  September  14,  1881,  was 
submitted  to  the  arbitration  of  his  Majesty  the  King  of  Spain.  Gen. 
Guzmto  Blanco  was  then  President  of  the  Republic  of  Venezuela  and 
executed  on  its  behalf  the  treaty  aforesaid.  On  February  15,  1885, 
at  PariSy  for  and  on  behalf  of  his  Government  he  signed  a  declaration 
extending  the  time  within  which  the  award  could  be  made. 

October  28,  1887,  the  minister  for  foreign  affairs  for  Colombia  wrote 
from  Bogota,  to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  for  Venezuela  asking  for 
explanations  concerning  the  prospectus  with  map  accompanying 
which  had  been  published  in  the  interests  of  the  concession.  The 
nature  of  his  communication  can  best  be  gained  from  the  letter  itself, 
which  is  here  reproduced : 

Bogota,  October  28,  1SS7. 

Mb.  Minister:  A  French  society  known  as  the  "Company  General  of  the  Upper  Orinoco" 
has  published  a  memoir  or  description  upon  the  concessions  which,  it  says,  the  Government 
of  your  excellency  has  granted  to  it  of  certain  rights  within  the  Territories  Upper  Orinoco 
and  Amazonas  of  the  Republic  of  Venezuela. 

Annexed  to  the  memoir  concerned  is  a  geographical  map  in  which  the  boundaries  of  the 

said  territories  on  the  western  side  are  marked  in  such  a  manner  that  they  include  the  large 
tract  of  land  which  in  this  part  is  in  litigation  between  Colombia  and  Venezuela,  and  of  which 

in  virtue  of  the  treaty  of  arbitration  (arbitramiento  juris)  of  December  14,  1881,  the  true 
ownership  is  to  be  settled  bv  the  sentence  of  the  Government  of  Spain. 

I  have  the  honor  to  call  the  attention  of  your  excellency  to  this  point,  being  convinced 

that  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  in  accord  with  the  Republic  of  Colombia,  will  rpcogniz<« 
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that  the  error  of  the  Company  of  the  Upper  Orinoco  can  not  be  passed  over  in  silence,  consid- 
ering that  it  afTects  a  solemn  agreement  between  the  two  nations,  in  which  is  ceded  in  an 

absolute  manner  to  a  third  party  the  right  as  arbitrator  to  define  the  boundary  which  sepa- 
rates Colombia  and  Venezuela. 

It  is  evident  that  neither  of  our  Governments  can  make  any  valid  concession  upon  the 

said  land:  it  is  equally  evident  also  that  the  error  of  the  Company  General  of  the  Upper 
Orinoco  can  have  no  other  cause  than  that  of  agreeing  with  geographical  or  statistical  data 

anttM-lor  to  the  above-mentioned  treaty  of  1881,  which  places  this  zone  of  territory  in  a 
condition  not  only  litigious,  but  about  to  be  settled  in  an  exclusive  manner  by  an  arbitrator 

already  appointed. 
I  have  the  gratification  to  profit  from  this  circumstance  to  renew  to  your  excellency  the 

expression  of  my  most  distinguished  consideration. 
(Signed)  F.  Anqulo. 

To  Ills  Excellency  the  Minister  of  Foreign  Affairs  of  the  United  States  of 
Venezuela. 

It  does  not  come  to  the  knowledge  of  the  umpire  that  any  reply  was 
made  by  the  Government  of  Venezuela  to  this  note  from  Colombia; 
neither  is  there  anything  to  indicate  that  the  attention  of  the  Company 
General  of  the  Orinoco  was  immediately  called  to  the  questions  raised 

l)y  the  note. 
The  first  official  attention  given  to  its  contents,  so  far  as  is  known  to 

the  umpire,  is  found  in  the  action  of  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  for 
Venezuela  in  addressing  a  communication  to  the  minister  of  fomento, 
in  substance  following: 

Caracas,  November  25,  1887. 

The  minister  of  foreign  relations  of  the  Republic  of  Colombia  has  brought  to  the  knowl- 

edge of  this  department  that  the  French  company  known  as  the  ''Company  General  of  the 
Orinoco"  has  published  a  memoir  with  a  map  annexed  in  which  is  included  in  the  limits  of 
the  territory  conceded  to  the  said  society  the  territory  in  litigation  between  the  two  countries. 

To  be  able  to  reply  to  the  said  note  of  the  Colombian  minister  it  is  necessary  to  have 
before  us  the  said  memoir,  which  I  pray  you  to  send  me  by  right  of  devolution  if  it  is  found 

in  the  department  under  your  charge. 
I  am,  etc.,  Diego  B.  Urbaneja. 

To  this  there  was  a  reply  on  the  next  day,  as  follows : 

Sir:  As  it  has  never  been  remitted  to  this  department  I  find  it  impossible  for  me  to  remit 

to  the  ministry  over  which  you  preside  so  worthily  the  memoir  of  the  Company  General  of 

the  Upper  Orinoco,  of  which  your  communication  of  the  25th  of  the  present  month  treats. 

This  seems  to  be  the  end  of  progress  in  this  line  until  about  August, 
1888,  when  the  minister  of  Colombia  renews  his  inquiries,  as  appears 
from  the  communication  of  the  minister  of  fomento,  as  follows: 

Caracas,  August  10,  1888. 

In  order  to  examine  and  resolve  a  claim  of  the  Republic  of  Colombia  I  have  need  to  have 

l)efore  my  eyes  a  copy  of  the  contract  passed  with  the  Company  General  of  the  Upper 
Orinoco  and  Amazonas. 

That  is  why  I  pray  you  to  give  me  information  of  the  concessions  and  privileges  made  to 
the  said  company. 

I  am,  etc.,  A.  Ysturiz. 
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To  this  there  is  a  reply  on  the  day  succeeding  in  these  terms: 

Caracas,  Augusi  11,  1888. 

Sir:  In  reply  to  your  letter  of  the  10th  of  the  present  month,  No.  293,  I  have  the  honor 

to  send  you  the  Official  Gazette  of  February  26,  1886,  No.  3,698,  in  which  is  published  the 
contract  with  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco. 

I  am,  etc.,  Fombona  Palacio. 

There  follow  successive  communications  between  these  oiFicials  of  the 

Government  relative  to  this  affair  which,  perhaps,  are  better  quoted 
in  full  than  placed  in  abstract.     They  are  therefore  subjoined : 

Caracas,  August  IS,  1888. 

Sm:  Besides  the  contract  of  the  Company  of  the  Upper  Orinoco  andAmazonas  constituted 
in  virtue  of  the  concession  made  to  Mr.  Tejera,  which  you  have  kindly  remitted  to  me  in 

the  corresponding  number  of  the  Official  Gazette,  I  should  be  very  grateful  to  you  to  send 

me  a  general  report  upon  the  proceedings  of  this  company  to  the  department  under  your 

worthy  charge,  as  also  every  communication  which  this  company  may  have  made  upon  our 
maps,  notices,  or  memoirs  relative  to  the  privilege  which  the  said  contract  gives  it. 

YSTURIZ. 

Caracas,  August  21,  1888. 

Sm:  In  reply  to  your  note  of  the  13th  instant.  No.  297, 1  have  the  honor  to  inform  you 
that  the  company  which  has  been  exploiting  the  Territories  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas 
since  the  date  of  its  contract,  December  17,  1885,  has  asked  of  this  department  exemptions 
from  import  duties  at  different  dates  upon  the  objects  destined  for  its  works ;  that  it  announced 
November  14,  1887,  that  the  steamers  Atures  and  Eva  had  passed,  above  the  rapids  of 
Maipures,  and  that  the  latter  steamer  arrived  at  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo  the  30th  of 
August,  1887,  and  as  to  that  which  concerns  the  memoir  published  by  this  company  relative 
to  the  said  territories  I  remit  it  to  you  mclosed  with  its  map  annexed. 

I  am,  etc.,  Gil. 

Caracas,  September  Jo,  1888. 

Sm:  The  envoy  extraordinary  of  the  Republic  of  Colombia  has  made  a  claim  against  the 

publication  of  a  geographical  map  and  of  a  memoir  of  the  Company  of  the  Upper  Orinoco 
and  Amazonas,  in  which  in  describing  the  limits  of  its  concession  it  has  included  as  having 
been  ceded  vast  extents  of  land  in  litigation  between  the  two  countries. 

Consequently,  considering  the  necessity  of  examining  the  said  map  and  memoir,  I  hope 
that  you  will  kindly  send  them  to  this  ministry  if  they  exist  in  your  department,  and  if  not 

I  pray  you  to  ask  the  representative  of  the  company  mentioned  for  information  as  to  what 
has  been  done  in  this  regard  and  also  the  map  and  memoir  concerned. 

YSTI'RIZ. 

On  the  18th  of  September,  1888,  the  minister  of  fomento  advises  the 
minister  for  foreign  relations  by  note  in  part  as  follows: 

I  am  addressing  myself  this  very  day  to  Mr.  Th.  Delort,  contractor  of  the  Territories  Upper 

Orinoco  and  Amazonas,  asking  him  for  information  as  to  the  contents  of  your  said  communi- 
cation, and  as  soon  as  I  shall  receive  them  it  will  be  very  agreeable  to  me  to  send  it  to  the 

ministry  over  which  ypu  preside  so  worthily. 
I  am,  etc., 

CORONALIX). 
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The  letter  addressed  to  Th.  Delort,  the  manager  of  the  compan}^  by 
the  minister  of  fomento  is  here  quoted: 

Sir:  In  an  official  note  of  the  15th  of  this  month  the  ministry  of  foreign  relations  says  to 

this  department  that  which  follows.     (Here  is  a  reproduction  of  the  letter  of  the  15th.) 
I  communicate  to  you  this  note  in  order  that  you  may  give  me  information  on  the  subject 

of  which  it  treats. 
CORONALDO. 

The  reply  of  Mr.  Delort  was  made  two  days  later  and  is  of  the  tenor 
following: 

Caracas,  September  20,  1888. 

The  Minister  of  Fomento:  I  have  just  had  the  honor  of  receiving  your  note  of  the  18th 

instant,  to  which  I  reply  as  follows: 
In  forming  the  Company  of  the  Upper  Orinoco  there  was  made  at  Paris  a  memoir  for  the 

shareholders  only  in  which  was  reproduced  the  contract  which  M.  Miguel  Tejera  had  trans- 
ferred to  the  company,  and  furthermore  an  extract  from  the  statutes  and  different  informa- 

tion on  the  natural  products  which  according  to  the  contract  were  to  be  exploited.  This 
memoir  was  accompanied  by  a  map  in  order  that  the  shareholders  might  know  where  the 

territories  conceded  for  their  exploitation  were  situated.  This  map  was  copied  from  that 
which  accompanies  the  statistics  which  the  national  Government  has  published  in  different 

languages. 
The  memoir  does  not  treat  of  the  frontiers  between  Colombia  and  Venezuela  nor,  more- 

over, of  the  vast  extent  of  territories  conceded  to  the  company;  it  treats  only  of  natural 
products  of  the  vast  region  which  forms  the  Territories  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas. 

The  company  is  not  ignorant  that  the  boundaries  between  Venezuela  and  Colombia  are 

found  in  litigation  and  submitted  to  the  arbitraton  of  the  Government  of  Spain.  Conse- 
quently it  has  no  pretension  on  this  subject,  and  holding  the  concession  from  Venezuela  it 

knows  very  well  that  it  ought  to  conform  itself  to  the  frontiers  which  shall  be  definitely 
fixed  by  this  Republic. 

Up  to  the  present  the  company  has  extended  its  exploitation  only  upon  the  points  occu- 
pied by  the  Venezuelan  authorities.  Its  agencies,  its  shops,  and  dependencies  are  situated 

at  Atures,  Maipures,  San  Fernando,  San  Cirlos,  and  the  frontier  of  Brazil,  and  its  steamers 

have  navigated  only  upon  the  Orinoco,  Casiquiare,  and  the  Guainia.  I  regret  not  being 
able  to  send  you  the  memoir  in  question,  but  two  copies  ought  to  exist  in  your  iriinistry, 
sent  by  the  agent  of  the  company  in  this  city. 

I  hope  that  the  explanations  which  I  have  the  honor  of  sending  you  will  satisfy  you,  so 

that  you  can  render  justice  to  our  right  conduct  in  such  circumstances. 
With  sentiments,  etc.,  Delort. 

In  this  connection  the  umpire  decides  to  accept  as  the  truth  the 
statement  of  Mr.  Delort  and  his  associates,  which  is  found  as  a  part  of 
the  testimony  in  this  case,  that  the  18th  day  of  September,  1888,  was 
the  first  day  on  which  either  he  or  the  company  knew  that  the 

Venezuelan-Colombian  boundary  line  was  then  in  process  of  settlement 
by  arbitration.  Not  only  are  they  entitled  to  belief  since  no  one  dis- 

putes them  further  than  Mr.  Delort^s  own  statement  of  the  20th  instant, 
but  many  of  the  previous  acts  of  Mr.  Delort  and  of  the  company  were 
entirely  inconsistent  with  such  knowledge.  It  is  easier,  therefore,  to 
reconcile  his  words  with  the  fact  of  ignorance  than  his  acts  with  the 
fact  of  knowledge. 

The  Government  of  Venezuela  remitted  to  the  Government  of 

Colombia  the  letter  of  Mr.  Delort  above  quoted. 
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Colombia,  however,  was  not  satisfied,  and  January  24,  1890,  it 
again  returned  to  the  subject.  The  position  of  Colombia  upon  this 
matter  was  imambiguous,  indeed  positive,  and  there  is  no  question  in 

the  mind  of  the  umpire  that  the  situation  had  become  very  embarrass- 
ing and  tf  oublesome  to  the  Government  of  Venezuela. 

In  the  judgment  of  the  umpire  it  was  not  ignorance  nor  forgetf ulness 
on  the  part  of  General  Blanco  or  Mr.  Tejera  which  kept  them  silent 
concerning  the  boundary  question,  in  their  intercourse,  not  infrequent, 
with  the  company  and  its  officers  and  manager.  The  umpire  believes 
that  they  both  regarded  the  matter  as  unimportant  in  its  probable 
eflFect  upon  the  enterprise  of  the  concession,  for  the  reason  that  both 

considered  a  decision  in  any  considerable  degree  unfavorable  to  Ven- 
ezuela as  practically  impossible.  This  explanation,  most  favorable  to 

them,  and  at  the  same  time  most  probably  the  truth,  is  the  one  ac- 
cepted by  the  umpire. 

May  28,  1890,  the  national  attorney  of  the  exchequer  of  the  United 
States  of  Venezuela,  by  direction  of  the  president  of  the  Republic, 
through  the  minister  of  fomento,  entered  in  the  high  Federal  court  of 
the  Republic  a  suit  against  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  for  the 
rescission  of  the  contracts  of  concession  which  this  company  had  taken 

over  respectively  from  Miguel  Tejera  and  Theodore  Delort.  The  peti- 
tion or  declaration  alleges  in  substance  and  in  general  terms  that  the 

Government  on  its  part  had  fulfilled  the  stipulations  agreed  to  in  both 
of  the  said  concessions;  and  in  like  general  terms  that  the  company,  on 

its  part,  had  not  fulfilled  its  obligations;  first,  as  to  the  contract  of 
December  17,  1885,  in  Nos.  1,  2,  3,  4,  5,  6,  7,  and  9,  of  Article  II,  and 
all  of  Articles  V and  X;  second,  as  to  Nos.  2,  3,4, 5,  and  6  of  Articles  III 

of  the  contract  of  April  1 , 1 887 .     The  petition  specifically  alleges  that — 
the  Government  has  not  received  any  notice  that  the  cessionary  company  has  begun  its 
works,  and  it  is  a  fact  that  no  railway  line  has  been  offered  to  the  public,  nor  any  steam 

launch  nor  steamship  line. 

It  is  also  alleged  specifically  in  said  petition  that  the  cessionary 

company  exported  through  the  custom-house  in  Ciudad  BoHvar 
during  the  years  1887,  1888,  and  1889,  india  rubber  weighing 
73,292.20  kilograms,  and  had  paid  accordingly  to  the  Government 
the  sum  of  63,740  bolivars  at  the  rate  of  40  bolivars  for  each  46 

kilograms,  as  provided  in  the  contract  of  concession  of  December  17, 

1885,  and  that  the  quantity  of  sarrapia  exported  by  the  said  com- 

pany through  the  same  custom-house  and  in  the  same  years  was 
44,569.76  kilograms,  for  which  there  was  paid  to  the  Government 

the  sum  of  84,445.74  bolivars,  at  the  rate  of  56  bolivars  for  46  kilo- 
grams, as  agreed  in  the  contract  of  April  1,  1887,  making  in  all  the 

sum  of  148,186.74  bolivars.  It  is  also  alleged  in  the  petition  that  a 
contract  is  not  deemed  fulfilled  by  the  obligee  save  when  it  has  been 
so  fulfilled  in  all  the  stipulations  which  it  contains  and  that  specially 
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in  this  case  in  which  they  are  so  linked  between  themselves  that  fail- 
ing one  the  whole  or  object  of  the  contract  does  not  exist,  and  hence 

the  conclusion  drawn  by  the  said  Government  that  said  convention 
has  not  been  fulfilled.  That  the  inexecution  of  these  contracts  on 

the  part  of  the  cessionary  company  has  caused  the  Government  very 
grave  damages  and,  therefore,  it  is  obliged  to  ask  before  the  high 
Federal  court  its  solution. 

The  especial  damages  named  in  the  petition  are  the  losses  which  the 
Government  had  suffered  from  the  duties  remitted  under  the  contract 

upon  articles  imported  by  the  company,  as  well  as  the  loss  of  duties 

on  the  India  rubber  and  sarrapia  exported.  The  domicile  of  the  com- 
pany is  alleged  to  be  in  Paris  and  that  it  is  without  a  legal  representa- 

tive in  Venezuela.  The  Government  asks  for  procedure  in  accordance 

with  Article  XXVIII  of  its  civil  code;  alleging  further  that  the  com- 
pany may  be  sued  under  such  circumstances  as  exist  in  this  case  by 

virtue  of  the  provisions  made  in  both  contracts  in  reference  thereto 
and  in  virtue  also  of  Article  XXVI  of  the  civil  code,  which  applies  to 

suits  where  the  contracts  are  to  be  executed  in  Venezuela.  The  peti- 
tioner also  asks  that  the  formalities  be  observed  provided  for  in  such 

cases  in  Article  XCIII,  XCIV,  and  XCV  of  the  Code  of  Civil  Procedure. 
Reliance  is  had  in  the  petition  on  Articles  MCX,  MCLXIII,  and 

MCLXXII  of  the  civil  code  as  justifying  fully  the  procedure  on  the 

part  of  the  Government  for  the  annulment  and  rescission  of  said  con- 
tracts and  for  the  recovery  of  the  losses  and  damages  suffered  by  it 

from  their  nonexecution  by  the  cessionary  company. 
The  suit  was  duly  entered  in  the  high  Federal  court  on  May  28, 

1890,  and  on  the  30th  day  of  the  same  month  the  president  of  the  said 

court  issued  a  writ  stating  therein  that- 
Considering  that  according  to  the  documents  annexed  to  the  suit  Messrs.  Andr^  Fiat 

and  Bemab^  Planaa  appear  to  be  the  representatives  of  the  company  in  Venezuela,  order  is 

hereby  given  for  them  to  be  summoned  in  order  that  they  may  declare  if  they  are  still  hold- 

ing the  power  of  the-  company,  and  in  order  to  appoint  a  counsel  for  the  defendant  in  case 
they  are  no  longer  attorneys  of  the  company,  in  accordance  with  the  law. 

The  proceedings  show  that  both  of  these  gentlemen  were  duly  sum- 
moned on  that  same  day  and  that  on  June  2  following  they  appeared 

in  court  and  declared  that  Mr.  Andres  Fiat  was  then  the  only  repre- 
sentative of  the  company  in  Caracas  and  that  he  would  appear  in 

court  on  the  4th  day  of  that  month  and  produce  his  power  of  attorney. 
This  was  done  and  a  translation  of  the  same  was  ordered,  and  on  the 
16th  day  of  June  this  was  completed  and  accepted  by  the  court  and  a 
summons  ordered  upon  Mr.  Fiat. 

On  the  19th  day  of  June  the  claim  for  damages  was  reduced  by  the 

attorney  of  the  Government  from  600,000  bolivars  to  40,048.62  boli- 
vars, and  on  the  same  day  Mr.  Fiat  received  and  receipted  for  the  copy 

of  the  petition.  On  the  same  day  the  court  issued  a  decree  by  which 
an  order  was  made  to  notify  Mr.  Fiat  of  the  amendment  to  the  petition 
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above  stated  and  to  give  him  a  copy  of  the  amendment.  Mr.  Fiat  was 

also  directed  in  the  order  to  receipt  for  this  copy  and  to  present  in 
court  his  answer  to  the  petition  after  ten  days  from  June  19.  This 

order  was  duly  served  on  Mr.  Fiat  on  the  day  of  its  issue  and  he  gave 
his  receipt  to  that  effect  on  June  20.  July  2,  the  day  appointed  for 
the  answer,  Mr.  Fiat  appeared,  accompanied  by  his  counsel,  D.  B. 
Urbaneja  and  R.  F.  Feo,  and  as  well  appeared  the  fiscal  nacional  de 
hacienda.  It  was  then  and  there  agreed  to  defer  the  answering  of  the 
suit  to  a  date  fixed  at  eight  days  after  the  presentation  of  the  docu- 

ments to  which  reference  is  made  in  the  suit  by  the  plaintiff,  in  order 
that  the  company  should  have  time  to  examine  these  documents. 

On  July  22  Mr.  Fiat  with  his  counsel,  above  named,  appeared  in 
court  and  filed  his  answer  to  the  suit ;  at  the  same  time  he  preferred 
his  petition  for  an  extraterritorial  term  in  order  to  obtain  evidence 

from  France  and  Rome.  The  suit  progressed  in  ordinary  course, 
during  which  the  parties  were  to  produce  their  respective  evidence, 
the  court  reserving  its  right  to  decide  on  the  petition  of  Mr.  Fiat  in 
regard  to  an  extraterritorial  period  of  time.  Later  on  the  president 
of  the  court  granted  one  hundred  days  to  obtain  this  extraterritorial 
evidence,  and  Mr.  Fiat  having  appealed  from  this  decision  on  the 
grounds  that  the  term  granted  was  too  short,  the  court  then  extended 
it  to  one  hundred  and  thirty  days. 

September  5,  Mr.  Fiat  was  notified  that  the  fiscal  had  petitioned  the 
court  that  the  suit  might  be  registered  in  Ciudad  Bolivar,  in  order  to 
avoid  any  transfer  intended  by  the  company.  That  he  received  this 

notice  is  established,  because  at  the  foot  of  it  is  set  his  signature,  and 

on  September  8  he  appeared  in  court,  accompanied  by  his  said  coun- 
sel, and  declared  that  he  had  no  opposition  to  make  to  the  recording 

of  the  suit,  with  the  alterations  which  were  made  to  it  afterward. 

The  court  issued  an  order  on  the  same  day  that  a  copy  of  the  suit  be 
sent  to  the  judge  of  the  first  instance  of  Ciudad  Bolivar,  that  it  might 

be  recorded  in  the  registry  oflSce  in  that  city,  and  said  order  was  car- 
ried into  effect  on  the  same  day. 

August  7,  1890,  Mr.  Fiat  presented  the  court  with  a  petition  asking 
that  evidence  might  be  promoted  as  he  thought  convenient  to  the 
case  of  the  company.  As  a  part  of  this  evidence  were  declarations  to 
be  made  by  witnesses  resident  in  Paris,  Rome,  Port  of  Spain,  Rio 
Chico,  Barcelona,  San  Fernando  de  Apure,  and  Caracas. 

The  president  of  the  court  issued  a  writ,  dated  August  12,  admitting 

the  promotion  of  such  evidence  as  far  as  the  law  permitted,  and  com- 
missioned several  civil  judges  of  first  instance  of  the  residences  of  the 

respective  witnesses  to  hear  their  declarations;  he  also  issued  rogatory 
commissions  petitioning  the  competent  judges  af  Paris,  Rome,  and 
Port  of  Spain  for  the  same  purpose.  October  1 1  of  the  same  year,  Mr. 

Fiat  appeared  in  court  and  stated  that  by  virtue  of  the  authority  con- 
S.  Doc.  533,  59—1   22 
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ferred  on  him,  by  his  power  of  attorney  from  the  company,  he  conferred 
a  special  power  on  Dr.  Ram6n  Feo  and  Dr.  Martin  F.  Feo,  so  that  both 

together,  or  either  one  of  them  separately,  might  intervene  in  the  col- 
lecting of  evidence  that  had  to  be  made  by  the  fiscal  in  the  city  of 

Caracas,  and  also  stating  that  he  conferred  special  power  on  persons 
resident  at  Porto  Rico,  Barcelona,  Ciudad  Bolivar,  San  Fernando  de 

Apure,  Port  of  Spain,  and  for  the  territories  of  Orinoco  and  Amazonas, 

for  the  collecting  of  evidence  on  behalf  of  the  company  in  their  respec- 
tive districts,  and  to  intervene  in  the  collecting  of  evidence  by  the  plain- 

tiff in  the  same  districts.  October  1 1 ,  1890,  the  president  of  the  court 

ordered  that  commissions  and  petitions  be  issued  to  the  different  par- 
ties named  by  Mr.  Fiat  as  aforesaid,  and  that  said  petitions  and  com- 

missions contain  the  powders  conferred  on  them  as  requested  by  Mr. 
Fiat.  The  said  order  was  carried  into  execution  October  13,  and  the 
said  commissions  and  petitions  being  issued  were  handed  to  the 
defendant. 

All  these  commissions  and  petitions  were  duly  returned  after  having 
been  carried  into  operation,  with  the  exception  of  those  addressed  to 
the  judges  of  Paris  and  Trinidad  and  to  His  Excellency  Cardinal 
Simeoni  of  Rome,  which  were  not  returned  by  the  representative  of 
the  company,  although  they  were  given  him. 

March  24,  1891,  marked  the  expiration  of  the  time  given  for  the  col- 
lecting of  testimony,  and  on  that  date  the  president  of  the  court  ordered 

that  the  papers  rnd  records  of  the  suit  be  sent  to  the  full  court,  which 
was  duly  effected. 

April  29,  the  fiscal  moved  the  court  to  begin  the  study  of  the  papers 
and  records  of  the  suit  and  that  an  order  be  issued  for  that  purpose. 
On  May  21,  1891,  the  fiscal  renewed  his  motion,  and  on  May  23,  an 
order  was  issued  to  begin  the  study  of  the  papers  and  records  on  the 

30th  of  that  month.  This  study  begun  in  fact  on  June  16,  and  pro- 
ceeded on  June  24,  the  court  not  being  in  session  on  the  17th  to  23d, 

inclusive. 

On  the  1st,  4th,  and  7th  of  August  suppletory  judges  were  called  to 
fill  the  vacancies  existing.  Two  of  those  selected  were  excused  on 

their  own  petition.  On  September  16,  the  full  court  was  made  by  the 
suppletory  judge,  Dr.  Carlos  F.  Grisanti,  and  the  19th  was  appointed 
for  the  study  of  the  process.  The  study  was  begun  as  ordered,  and 
proceeded  on  the  21st  of  September  and  following  days  until  the  25th. 

The  29th  of  September  was  appointed  to  hear  the  reports  or  proceed- 
ings of  the  plaintiff  and  defendant.  The  records  of  the  25th  of  Sep- 

tember show  this  note  by  the  secretary : 

Caracas,  September  25,  1891. 

In  the  sitting  of  this  day  the  study  a  ̂   examination  of  the  papers  and  records  by  the  court 
was  completed,  and  the  sitting  of  the  20th  current  is  appointed  for  plaintiflF  and  defendant  to 
present  their  respective  reports  or  pleadings.     Let  the  parties  be  notified. 

O.  Burgos. 
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There  was  no  decree  of  the  court  ordering  the  i)arties  to  be  invited, 

as  appears  of  record. 
September  29,  the  fiscal  nacional  de  hacienda  appeared  in  court,  but 

no  representative  or  counsel  on  behalf  of  the  defendant.  The  court 
proceeded  to  sit  in  conference. 

From  September  30  to  October  13,  only  one  sitting  of  the  court  took 

place,  which  was  on  the  3d  of  October,  on  which  day  the  judges  con- 
ferred on  the  sentence  to  be  passed  and  agreed  as  to  the  same.  October 

14  the  sentence  was  drawn  and  signed  by  the  members  of  the  court. 

As  appears  from  the  history^  already  given,  the  suit  for  rescission 
was  begun  in  1890,  May  28;  summons  to  the  defendant  was  issued  Mii\ 
30;  and  on  June  2  Mr.  Fiat  appeared  in  the  high  Federal  court  iuid 
avowed  and  acknowledged  himself  the  legal  representative  in  Caracas 

of  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco.  On  the  next  dry,  the  min- 
ister of  foreign  relations  at  Caracas,  wrote  the  minister  plenipotentiary 

of  the  Republic  of  Colombia  to  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  as 
follows : 

TiiE  Minister  of  Foreign  Relations, 
Caracm,  June  3,  1890. 

Mr.  Minister:  Relative  to  the  confidential  memorandum  of  August  9,  1888,  and  to  tlie 

note  of  your  excellency  of  January  24,  concerning  a  memoir  published  by  the  Company 

Greneral  of  the  Orinoco,  I  have  the  honor  to  communicate  to  your  excellcncy.tliat  the  Govern- 
ment has  resolved  to  demand  of  the  said  company  the  rescission  of  the  original  contract. 
Please  accept,  etc., 

M.  a.  Sall'zzo. 
The  most  excellent  Dr.  J.  F.  Insignaries, 

Envoy  Extraordinary  and  Minister  Plenipotentiary  of  the  Republic  of(Jolomlrixi. 

The  Colombian  minister  did  not  accept  the  proposed  action  of  the 
Government  of  Venezuela  as  an  earnest  of  sufficient  protection  to  the 
interests  of  his  Government,  as  is  made  evident  by  liis  reply,  which 
follows: 

Legation  of  Coix>mbia  at  Venezuela, 
Caracas,  June  6,  1890. 

Mr.  Minister:  I  have  the  honor  to  reply  to  the  note  of  your  excellency  of  the  3d  of  th«^ 

present  month,  in  which  your  excellency  deigns  to  communicate  to  me  relative  to  the  conh- 
dential  memorandum  of  August  9,  1888,  and  to  my  note  of  January  24  last,  which  refers  to 

memoir  published  by  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco,  that  the  Government  of  your 
excellency  has  resolved  to  demand  the  rescission  of  the  contract  madt^  with  the  said  company. 
I  shall  transmit  the  said  note  to  my  Government,  but  I  ought  to  manifest  to  your  excellency, 
as  I  am  doing  very  respectfully  by  means  of  the  present,  that  the  fact  which  it  conmiunicatos 
can  not  modify  in  any  way  the  state  of  the  claim  in  which  in  a  matter  so  grave  was  initiated 
before  the  Government  of  your  excellency  by  that  of  Colombia  in  a  note  of  October  28,  1887, 

to  which  there  has  yet  to-day  been  no  reply.  In  fact,  as  your  excellency  will  clearly  mider- 
stand,  in  spite  of  the  demand  of  rescission  proposed  and  while  waiting  for  it  to  be  decided 

favorably  the  Company  General  of  the  Upper  Orinoco  will  continue  to  enjoy  the  contract  in 
virtue  of  which  the  Government  has  made  concessions  in  the  teiritories  of  the  Upper  Orinoco 

and  Amazonas,  a  concession  which  the  said  company  extends  through  error  or  unjustly  to  the 
lands  which  on  this  side  are  in  litigation  between  Colombia  and  Venezuela  as  it  appears  with 

all  clearness  in  the  geographical  map  annexed  to  the  memoir  of  the  relation  which  has  set  in 

motion  the  claim  of  my  Government  w^ithout  formal  rectification  on  the  part  of  the  Govern- 
ment of  Venezuela. 
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Favorable  as  the  sentence  may  l>e  to  the  Government  of  Venezuela  there  will  still  exist 

powerful  reasons  of  equity  and  justice  with  which  the  Government  of  Colombia  has  solicited 
the  said  rectification  because  this  act  is  notoriously  in  violation  of  the  treaty  of  arbitration 

of  September  14,  1881,  by  which  the  two  nations  submitted  their  diflFerences  with  regard  to 
the  frontiers  to  the  decision  of  the  Government  of  Spain.  Consequently  it  is  my  duty  to 

insist,  as  I  am  doing,  with  the  greatest  respect,  before  the  Government  of  your  excellency 
for  the  said  claim  of  my  Government,  reproducing  to  this  effect  the  contents  of  the  note  of 

October  28,  1887,  mentioned,  which  was  the  origin  of  my  memorandum  of  August  9,  1888, 

and  of  my  note  of  January  24  of  the  present  year. 

I  profit,  with  pleasure,  from  this  occasion,  etc. 
(Signed)  J.  E.  Insignaries. 

To  Doctor  SoLUZzo, 

Minister  of  Foreign  Relations  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela. 

Eleven  days  prior  to  the  date  of  the  suit  for  rescission  the  minister 

of  the  interior  at  Caracas  issued  a  statement  authorizing  the  propri- 
etors of  sarrapia  and  other  natural  products  in  the  Federal  Territories 

Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas  to  export  them  freely  on  paying  the 
same  duties  as  the  company.  During  the  same  month  the  agent  of 
the  company  at  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo  and  the  engineer  of  the 
Naroa  were  threatened  with  death  and  were  forced  to  take  refuge  at 
the  home  of  a  habitant.  Frightened  by  the  conditions  surrounding 
them,  they  declared  they  could  no  longer  remain  on  the  upper  river 

and  asked  to*  be  relieved. 
The  4th  of  June  Governor  d^Aubeterre  left  his  capital,  descended 

the  river,  and  arrived  at  Ciudad  Bolivar  June  27.  The  day  of  his 

departure  from  his  capital  he  sent  a  long  telegram  to  the  Government 
at  Caracas,  stating  that  the  company  did  not  have  funds  wherewith 
to  pay  for  the  india  rubber  which  was  gathered  and  demanded  that 
authority  be  given  to  those  who  possessed  this  product  to  export  it 

directly  either  by  way  of  Ciudad  Bolivar  or  through  the  custom- 
house at  San  Carlos.  The  custom-house  of  San  Cdrlos  had  been 

closed  by  the  Government  since  1886  and  had  never  been  opened 
for  the  use  of  the  company,  thus  compelling  it  to  use  the  Orinoco 
exclusively  for  the  shipment  of  the  products  obtained  by  it. 

On  the  departure  of  Mr.  d^Aubeterre  from  San  Fernando  de  Ata- 
bapo Mr.  Henry  Page  became  governor  pro  tempore.  June  16,  1890, 

upon  his  own  authority,  he  issued  a  decree  which  annulled  the  con- 
tract of  December  17,  1885,  and  he  sent  Valentin  Perez  and  Sinforiano 

Orosco  to  Caracas  with  this  decree  to  obtain  for  it  the  approval  of  the 
Government.  He  based  his  action  upon  the  anticipated  damages 
which  the  agents  of  the  company  might  cause  the  inhabitants  and 
that  through  them  the  public  order  might  be  endangered.  At  this 

time  there  were  three  agents  of  the  company  in  Upper  Orinoco.  They 
were  Messrs.  Calvkras  and  Nary  at  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo  and 
Mr.  Oudart  at  San  (-arlos. 
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The  Government  decided  not  to  approve  of  the  decree  of  June  16, 
issued  by  pro  tempore  Governor  Page,  and  on  August  8,  1890,  there 
was  issued  the  following: 

The  President  of  the  Republic: 

Whereas  the  decree  rendered  by  the  governor  ad  interim  of  the  Federal  Territories,  Upper 
Orinoco  and  Amazonas,  of  June  16  last,  in  which  he  declares  the  caducity  of  the  contract 

passed  by  the  Federal  executive  with  Mr.  Miguel  Tcjera  for  the  exploitation  of  all  the  mineral 
and  vegetable  productions  of  this  Territory  and  of  which  (contract)  the  Company  General  of 
the  Orinoco  is  the  cessionary;  and  whereas,  also,  the  demand  which  the  inhabitants  of  tlie 

same  Territory  addressed  to  the  said  official,  in  which  they  set  forth  the  prejudices,  for  their 
own  interests  and  for  the  maintenance  of  the  public  order  in  these  large  and  rich  regions, 

caused  by  the  acts  of  the  agents  of  the  company  cessionary,  conjointly  with  the  acts  of 
adhesion  of  the  municipal  councils  of  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo  and  of  that  of  La  Urbana,  to 

the  manifestations  made  by  the  population ;  and 
Considering: 

1.  That  the  Federal  executive  can  not  give  his  approbation  to  the  said  decree  of  the 

governor  of  the  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas,  inasmuch  as  this  official  by  such  an  act  has 
exercised  a  function  which  is  attributed  by  the  constitution  and  the  laws  to  the  Federal 

power; 
2.  That  the  Federal  executive  has  already  submitted  to  the  high  Federal  court,  through 

the  agency  of  the  fiscal  nat'onal  de  hacienda  the  rescission,  not  only  of  the  contract  passed 
with  Mr  Miguel  Tejera,  but  also  of  that  passed  with  Mr.  Delort  for  the  exploitation  of  the 

sarrapia  (feve  tonka),  basing  his  action  upon  the  fact  that  the  company  cessionary  has  not 

accomplished  on  its  part  the  obligations  to  which  it  is  bound  by  these  contracts  of  establish- 
ing steam  navigation  upon  the  Upper  Orinoco,  of  constructing  railroads,  of  introducing 

immigrants  to  found  colonies;  of  building  churches,  hospitals,  barracks  for  the  police;  of 

establishing  the  postal  service,  and  of  founding  missions; 

3.  That  by  the  "  documentacidn  aducida'*  (allegations  furnished  by  the  documents)  it  is 
demonstrated  that  the  acts  of  the  agents  of  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco,  aside  from 

the  grave  prejudices  which  they  are  causing  to  the  inhabitants  of  the  Territories  Upper  Ori- 
noco and  Amazonas  in  their  legitimate  interests,  are  going  so  far  as  to  threaten  the  public 

security  which  the  executive  is  bound  to  protect  with  the  vote  of  the  Federal  council; 
Be  it  decreed: 

Article  1.  The  decree  of  June  16  of  the  current  year  rendered  by  the  governor  ad  interim 
of  the  Federal  Territories  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas  is  disapproved,  becomes  null,  and 

will  produce  no  effect. 

Art.  2.  The  Federal  executive  will  dictate  through  the  agency  of  the  ministers  of  the 
interior,  of  hacienda,  and  of  fomento,  in  all  the  extension  necessary,  the  provisions  tending 
to  satisfy  the  just  demands  made  by  the  inhabitants  of  the  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas, 

while  waiting  for  the  high  Federal  court  to  decide  whatever  is  just  in  the  demand  brought 
before  it. 

Given,  signed  by  my  hand,  marked  with  the  great  national  seal,  and  countersigned  by  the 
ministers  of  the  interior,  of  hacienda,  and  of  fomento,  in  the  Federal  palace  at  Caracas,  August 

8, 1890. 
R.  Andueza  Palacio. 

Countersigned:  S.  Cabanas. 
Vincent  Coronado, 

Minister  of  Hacienda . 
Francisco  Balaelo, 

Minister  of  Fomento. 
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On  the  next  day  the  minister  of  interior  issued  the  administrative 
order,  No.  1011,  as  follows: 

[Administrative  order,  No.  1011.] 
Caracas,  9th  of  August,  1890.     (27  and  32.) 

Citizen  Governor  of  the  Federal  Territory  Amazonas:  Accompanying  I  send  to  you 

a  ropy  of  No.  5016  of  the  Official  Gazette,  containing  a  decree  issued  by  the  President  of 

the  Republic  with  date  of  yesterday,  in  which  he  annulled  that  which  the  Government  pro- 
nounced on  the  17th  of  last  June,  relative  to  declaring  the  defunct  condition  of  the  contract 

celebrated  by  the  national  executive  with  the  Senor  Miguel  Tejera,  of  which  the  cessionary 
is  the  General  Company  of  the  Orinoco,  remaining  consequently  null  and  without  any 

value  or  effei't,  and  in  which  it  was  decided  (or  determined)  that  until  the  high  Federal 

court  may  decide  what  may  lx»  justice  the  national  executive  will  dictate,  through  means 
of  this  ministry  and  those  of  hacienda  and  fomento,  to  all  necessary  length,  the  arrange- 

ments (orders)  necessary  for  satisfying  the  just  exigencies  manifested  by  the  inhabitants 
of  that  Territory. 

Consequently  you  will  please  not  to  give  any  permission  to  the  agents  of  the  exprt^ssed 
company  to  continue  exploiting  the  products  of  that  territory  and  give  large  franchises  in 
order  that  the  inhabitants  can  without  hmdrances  undertake  the  work  of  exploitation  upon 

the  pro<lucts  referred  to. 
God  and  federation. 

S.  Casanas. 

It  will  be  observed  that  the  provision  in  the  decree  of  August  8 
that  the  national  executive  would  act  through  the  ministries  therein 
named  took  effect  in  the  last  paragraph  of  the  above  order. 

On  the  29th  of  August  the  minister  of  the  interior  sent  a  telegram 
of  advice  to  the  governor  of  the  Federal  Territories  Upper  Orinoco 
and  Amazonas  through  Mr.  Valentin  Perez  of  the  following  tenor: 

Caracas,  ̂ th  August,  1890. 
SeAor  Valentin  Perez: 

The  governor  ought  to  enforce  the  decree  suspending  the  prerogatives  of  the  Alto  Orinoco 
and  Amazonas. 

It  can  not  continue  exploiting  the  natural  products  of  the  Territories  nor  collect  reward 

upon  those  which  it  expected  to  obtain  by  its  proper  work. 
S.  Casanas. 

By  a  letter  of  later  date  he  again  brought  the  attention  of  the  citi- 
zens of  those  territories  to  the  situation,  as  existing  under  the  decrees 

of  August  8  and  9,  by  means  of  a  letter,  which  is  as  follows: 

Caracas,  September  10, 1890. 
Seflor  SoNFORiANO  Orosco: 

By  resolution  of  the  ministry  of  hacienda,  dated  May  27,  1890,  it  is  ordered  that  the 
owners  of  sarrapia  and  other  natural  products  which  the  company  exports,  to  which  you 

refer  in  a  telegram  of  day  before  yesterday,  can  export  them  freely,  paying  the  same  duties 

as  said  company,  and  by  the  decree  of  the  8th  of  August  it  prohibits  to  the  company  the 
absolute  (unconditional)  exportations  and  exploitations  which  it  had  of  those  products,  all 

which  orders  were  transmitted  to  the  custom-house  opportunely  by  the  ministers  of  hacienda 
and  of  fomento  in  order  for  their  fulfillment.  You  and  the  rest  are  interested  in  this  matter 

on  account  of  the  la.st  urgent  orders. 
God  and  federation. 

S.  Casanas. 
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Having  followed  the  process  of  the  high  Federal  court  from  the 
inception  of  the  suit  for  rescission,  May  28,  1890,  to  the  sentence  of 
the  high  Federal  court,  given  October  14,  1901,  having  traced  the 

progress  of  the  administrative  department  in  its  relation  to  the  com- 
pany to  September,  1890,  it  is  well  to  examine  into  the  condition 

and  history  of  the  Company  General  of  the  Upper  Orinoco  during 
the  same  time. 

May  30,  1890,  the  same  day  on  w^hich  Mr.  Fiat  was  summoned  to 
appear  before  the  high  Federal  court  to  answer  to  the  suit  of  the 
national  Government  for  rescission  of  both  concessions,  the  Company 

General  of  the  Orinoco  met  in  a  shareholders'  general  meeting  at 
Paris,  in  which  meeting  a  resolution  was  passed  for  the  purpose  of 
converting  the  company  into  an  English  company  with  the  name 

of  Orinoco  Exportation  and  Trading  Company,  which  meeting  like- 
wise determined  to  dissolve  and  wind  up  the  Company  General  of 

the  Orinoco  and  appoint  a  liquidator. 
It  is  said  in  behalf  of  the  company  by  the  liquidator  in  a  memorial 

of  date  December  5,  1895,  that — 
the  board  of  directors  had  many  debtors  and  they  hesitated  therefore  to  collect  the  harvest 

of  1890,  but  yielding  to  the  representations  of  their  agents  they  furnished  the  necessary 
funds  in  agreement  with  a  Liverpool  firm,  who  sent  out  their  special  agent,  Mr.  Staedelli. 

The  position  of  the  company  in  Paris  was  very  painful,  as  its  credit  had  been  totally 
exhausted.  All  efforts  made  in  Franc*  seemed  to  })e  of  no  avail,  while  in  England  confidence 

was  not  lost  and  it  was  possible  to  go  on  there  with  the  business.  The  board  of  directors 
therefore  willingly  considered  a  proposition  from  England  for  the  constitution  of  a  company 
in  London  to  which  all  the  assets,  contracts,  material,  works,  etc.,  of  the  Company  General 
of  the  Orinoco  would  be  transferred. 

It  is  ascertained  that  the  liabilities  of  the  company,  as  j^tated  by 
it,  were  on  May  30,  1890,  as  follows: 

Francs. 
To  the  shareholders      1,  500, 000. 00 

To  the  Society  (La  Monnaio)    722, 851.  56 
La  Banque  de  Consignations         236,  356. 00 
Mr.  Alfred  Chauvelot    191, 176. 00 

Mr.  Eugene  Ferminhac    63, 000. 00 
Mr.  Louis  Roux    13,059.  .55 
Mr.  Th .  Delort    14, 641 .  26 

Total    2,  741, 084. 37 

It  is  an  agreed  fact  that  the  company  had  no  knowledge  or  intima- 
tion of  the  pending  suit  in  Caracas  at  the  time  of  this  meeting  of  May 

30,  1890,  and  that  its  proceedings  on  that  day  were  without  any  rela- 
tion thereto  and  not  in  any  way  influenced  thereby.  June  23,  1890, 

at  a  general  meeting  of  the  shareholders  of  the  Company  General  of 
the  Orinoco  at  Paris,  a  liquidator  was  appointed,  and  in  the  third 
resolution  of  the  shareholders  his  powers  were  defined  as  follows: 

Confers  upon  the  liquidator  its  full  powers  to  the  effect  of  realizing  the  social  assets  by 

way  of  fusion  or  union  in  another  French  or  foreign  society,  existing  or  to  be  created,  to 
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receive  whether  in  specie  or  obligations  or  stock,  free  or  not  free,  to  have  recourse  to  actions 
and  deliberations  which  shall  have  for  their  object  the  formation  and  constitution  of  a  new 

society  to  sell  the  stock  or  obligations  received  until  the  concurrence  of  the  sums  necessary 

for  the  payment  of  the  liabilities  and  to  turn  over  the  surplus  in  conformity  with  the  statutes. 

Also  to  take  all  the  measures  possible  for  the  continuation  of  the  business  until  the  realiza- 

tion of  the  assets,  to  exercise  in  this  regard  all  the  powers  conferred  upon  the  council  of  admin- 
istration by  article  22  of  the  statutes. 

Further,  to  negotiate  and  conclude  all  contracts,  whether  for  the  purchase  and  sale  of  the 
merchandise  and  other  objects  or  for  the  exploitation  of  all  or  part  of  the  social  capital  by 

lease  or  otherwise,  by  forfeit  or  by  means  of  fines  or  parts  of  the  benefits;  to  borrow  all  sums 

necessary  for  meeting  the  engagements  of  the  society;  to  confer  all  guaranties  upon  the 

lenders — in  a  word,  to  do  all  which  circumstances  require  in  the  interest  of  the  society,  tlie 
powers  above  mentioned  not  being  limited. 

The  general  meeting  of  the  shareholders  of  the  company  was  held 

December  27,  1890.  From  the  liquidator's  report  made  to  this  meet- 
ing it  was  learned  that  the  approval  given  by  the  shareholders  at  their 

meeting  of  June  23  to  an  arrangement  that  would  merge  the  Company 
General  of  the  Orinoco  in  a  new  English  company,  as  is  previously 
stated  herein,  was  so  far  completed  on  June  7,  1890,  that  an  agreement 

had  been  signed  by  the  company  with  the  ' '  Gold  Trust  and  Invest- 
ment Company*'  providing  for  such  transfer.  Following  the  approval 

of  the  shareholders,  as  above  stated,  the  new  company,  the  Orinoco 
Exploration  and  Trading  Company,  was  formed  and  registered  in 
England.  Owing,  however,  to  the  political  relations  then  existing 
between  England  and  Venezuela  over  the  boundary  line  between  the 

latter  country  and  British  Guiana,  involving,  among  other  questions, 
claims  on  the  part  of  England  in  connection  with  the  outlets  of  the 
Orinoco,  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  from  reasons  of  state,  as  it  is 

understood — 

absolutely  refused  to  acknowledge  this  new  company  and  to  transfer  to  the  same  the  rights 
and  concessions  of  the  French  company. 

This  quotation  is  taken  from  the  report  of  the  liquidator  at  the 

shareholders*  meeting  of  December  27,  1890. 
He  goes  on  to  say  in  his  report : 

It  was  but  very  late  that  I  was  made  acquainted  with  the  causes  which  were  opposed  to 

the  formation  of  the  English  company,  and  this  delay  was  the  cause  of  my  losing  very  valu- 
able time ;  but  the  moment  I  knew  of  these  causes  I  took  steps  conducive  to  a  result  which 

might  save  our  company. 

I  have  appealed  for  assistance  to  the  former  directors  of  the  company  who  are  now  nego- 
tiating with  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  and  have  looked  toward  another  solution  of  the 

problem,  which  is  the  only  means  of  assuring  the  future  of  the  company,  viz,  the  recon- 
struction of  the  present  company  with  an  increase  of  fresh  capital  in  cash. 

Following  the  report  of  the  liquidator  the  chairman  of  the  meeting 
announced — 

That  owing  to  the  facts  which  had  just  been  mentioned  by  the  liquidator  the  board  of 

directors  had  sent  to  Caracas  Mr.  Berthier,  who  had  l>een  a  former  agent  of  the  company, 
with  the  following  mission: 



OPINION    OF    THE    TTMPIRE.  345 

To  obtain  from  the  Government  the  revision  of  th?  old  concessions,  which  evidently  con- 
tained clauses  which  were  embarrassing  to  the  Government,  as  well  as  to  the  company.  Mr. 

Berthier  was,  besides,  to  make  sure  that  the  Government  would  make  no  difficulties  for  the 

transfer  to  a  new  company  (provided  this  be  not  an  Ens^lish  company)  of  all  the  rights  and 

concessions  accruing  from  the  new  contract.  The  double  purpose  of  Mr.  Berthier's  mission 
has  been  obtained;  the  terms  of  the  new  contract  proposed  have  been  accepted,  and  one  of 

its  clauses  will  allow  the  transfer  to  a  new  company.  The  new  company  will  be  French- 
Belgian,  formed  with  the  assistance  of  a  poweiful  Belgian  group. 

The  chainnan  then  read  the  draft  of  the  articles  of  concession  of  the 

French-Belgian  company  information. 
At  some  time  succeeding  October  1 1 ,  1890,  on  which  day  he  appeared 

in  the  high  Federal  court  as  the  attorney  of  the  company,  Mr.  Andres 
Fiat  resigned  his  position  as  such  attorney,  and  Mr.  Bemab^  Planas 

was  appointed,  but  he  declined  the  appointment. 
On  the  advice  of  Mr.  Delort  it  was  then  determined,  as  above  stated, 

to  send  Mr.  Berthier  to  Caracas  as  a  special  agent  of  the  company,  he 
being  well  acquainted  with  all  details  of  the  matter.  He  arrived  in 
Caracas  October  25,  1890,  and  remained  until  July,  1891. 

His  mission,  as  disclosed  by  the  statement  of  the  chairman  above 
quoted,  was  to  be  confined  to  negotiations  with  the  Government 
looking  to  a  discontinuance  of  its  suit  without  costs  to  the  defendant, 
a  relinquishment  on  the  part  of  the  company  of  the  concessions  it 

held,  the  Government  to  grant  to  the  company  for  a  period  of  twenty- 
five  years  the  exclusive  right  of  steam  navigation  on  the  waterways  of 
the  Federal  Territories  Upper  Orinoco  and  Amazonas  and  in  the  rivers 
Caura  and  Cuchiroro,  during  which  period  the  Government  would  not 
grant  a  similar  concession  to  any  other  person  or  company.  This 
arrangement  was  put  into  writing;  and  in  article  10  of  tliis  agreement 
there  is  found  the  following : 

This  contract  can  be  transferred  to  any  other  party  or  company  with  the  previous  assent 
of  the  Federal  Government,  without  which  formality  that  transfer  can  not  l>e  effected. 
However,  as  an  exception,  this  contract  can  be  transferred  in  part  or  in  whole  to  the  Belgian 
company  called  Compagnie  Internationale  des  Caoutchoucs  et  Produits  Naturels  au  Bassin 
de  rOr^noque. 

In  another  part  of  the  agreement  the  company  was  accorded  the 
right  to  construct  within  the  Territories  mentioned  such  railways  and 
telegraph  lines  as  it  might  think  convenient  or  valuable. 

Through  misadventures  this  agreement  was  not  effected. 

In  the  meantime,  anticipating  success  in  the  above-mentioned 
negotiations,  the  Belgian  company  had  been  constituted  to  take  over 
the  new  contract.  In  the  end  there  was  no  new  contract  and  the 

Belgian  company  did  not  become  effective.  The  departure  of  Mr. 
Berthier  for  Paris  July,  1891 ,  left  no  attorney  to  represent  the  company 
before  the  high  Federal  court,  and  it  does  not  appear  that  another  was 

appointed. 
March  17,  1891,  His  Majesty  the  King  of  Spain  published  his  award 

settling  the  boundary  dispute  between  the  Republics  of  Venezuela 
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and  Colombia.  It  was  unfavorable  to  the  first-named  country  and 
sustained  the  contention  of  the  latter.  It  gave  to  Colombia  more  than 

one-half  of  the  area  of  the  Federal  Territories  Upper  Orinoco  and  Ama- 
zonas  as  claimed  by  Venezuela  up  to  the  date  of  the  royal  award.  It 
made  the  Orinoco  south  of  its  junction  with  the  Meta,  the  Casiquiare, 
and  the  Rio  Negro  the  line  between  the  two  countries,  giving  both  of 
them  ecjual  rights  therein.  It  removed  from  the  control  of  Venezuela 
tlie  Rio  Guaviare,  Vichada,  Inrida,  Atabapo,  and  Guainia.  Of  these 
the  last  four  were  wholly  and  the  first  was  largely  in  the  territory  of 
Venezuela,  as  claimed  by  that  Government  in  her  contention  before 
the  royal  arbitrator  and  as  it  appears  from  its  oflicial  maps.  Similarly 
the  maps  current  in  the  United  States  of  America  prior  to  1891 

allotted  this  territory  to  Venezuela.  Under  the  rectified  boundar}^ 
these  rivers  are  wholly  within  Colombian  territory. 

On  the  territory  thus  removed  from  the  dominion  of  Venezuela  the 
company  had  established  on  the  left  bank  of  the  Vichada  an  Jiato,  where 
had  been  installed  300  cows,  12  bulls,  mules,  and  donkeys,  and  had 
there  prepared  lands  for  cultivation;  on  the  left  bank  of  the  Guaviare 
it  had  begun  the  cultivation  of  sugar  cane,  had  built  a  sugar  house  and 
a  still ;  on  the  left  bank  of  the  latter  river  and  also  of  the  Orinoco  had 
been  begun  improvements  of  the  cacao.  Of  these  enterprises  the 
Government  of  Venezuela  had  received  due  and  seasonable  notice. 

The  company  considered  a  valuable  part  of  its  concession  to  be  the 
marble  deposits  on  the  Inrida,  the  minerals  in  the  region  of  the 
Guaviare,  and  above  all  the  great  savannas  west  of  the  Meta,  regarded 

as  very  valuable  for  cattle  raising. 
It  is  now  time  to  bring  forward  the  decree  of  rescission  pronounced 

by  the  high  Federal  court.  The  amendment,  previously  named, 
which  was  made  by  the  fiscal  nacional  de  hacienda  of  June  19  was  to 
the  effect  that  examination  of  the  documents  relating  to  the  articles 

imported  by  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  disclosed  that  the 

unpaid  duties  on  these  articles  by  reason  of  the  company's  exemption 
amounted  to  40,048.62  bolivars,  which  sum  is  demanded  in  damages 
as  a  substitute  for  600,000  bolivars,  which  appeared  in  the  original 

petition. 
The  answer  which  was  made  by  Andr6s  Fiat  to  the  suit  in  question 

on  July  22,  1890,  is  in  substance  and  effect  summarized  in  that  portion 
of  the  decree  which  is  herein  quoted,  and  therefore  need  not  be  set 
forth  here. 

Upon  the  issues  formed  and  upon  the  testimony  adduced  before  the 
high  Federal  court  it  proceeded  in  due  course  to  the  consideration  and 
determination  of  the  cause  and  to  the  pronouncing  of  its  sentence. 

The  decree  of  the  high  Federal  court  is  a  carefully  considered  and 
carefully  written  document  of  many  pages,  but  that  which  is  essential 

to  the  questions  here  involved  can  be  easily  abbreviated.    After 
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having  brought  into  the  decree  the  essential  facts  connected  with  the 
process  and  proceedings  anterior  to  the  settHng  of  its  decision  the 
court  says: 

6.  That  it  appears  from  the  documents  that  the  Government  has  fulfilled  on  its  part  all 
the  obligations  which  the  contracts  already  mentioned  imposed  upon  it. 

And  considering  that  from  the  documents  result  the  proof  of  the  failure  of  accomplishment 

by  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  of  the  obligations,  1  2,  3,  4,  5,  (>,  7,  and  9  of  the  first 

contract,  and  also  that  it  has  not  carried  out  the  stipulations  3, 4,  and  5  of  the  st»cond  contract , 
the  Government  having  brought  to  an  end  the  perfect  execution  of  the  said  contract;  that 
the  representative  of  the  said  company  luis  alleged,  in  reply  to  the  demand  of  the  present 

process,  that  "the  facts  on  which  they  pretend  to  base  themselves  are  not  certain,  or  are 
inexact,  and  those  which  really  can  be  established  prove  that  the  company  has  fulfilled  with 

extraordinary  efiFort  and  diligence  and  with  enormous  expenses  up  to  the  point  where  there 

have  appeared  insurmountable  difficulties,  which  constitute ^r^^  majeuie,  or  acts  of  author- 

ities dependent  upon  the  Government  itself  and  contrary  to  the  stipulations  of  the  contract." 
That  these  exceptions  offered  by  the  company  do  not  appear  to  be  proven  by  the  docu- 

ments of  the  present  process,  and  that  finally  the  lack  of  accomplishment  on  the  part  of  the 

company  of  the  two  contracts  referred  to  is  an  evident  fact  l)eing  given  that  in  the  present 
case  are  applicable  the  provisions  of  article  1149  of  the  civil  code,  in  virtue  of  which  the 

omission  in  the  accomplishment  of  any  one  of  the  requirements  of  a  contract  is  equivalent 

to  its  absolute  inexecution  when  there  is  no  agreement  to  the  contrary,  and  it  has  not  Ix^en 
alleged  nor  proven  that  any  compact  of  this  nature  exists;  that  article  1 1 10  of  the  civil  code 

establishes  that  "the  resultory condition  is  always  implicit  in  bilateral  contracts  in  the  case 

where  one  of  the  two  contracting  parties  does  not  accomplish  its  obligation;"  that  as  for  the 
resolution,  it  has  the  effect  which  article  12«'56  of  the  same  code  provides;  that  article  1163 
of  the  said  code  imposes  the  payment  of  damages  and  prejudices  to  the  debtor  who  does  not 
execute  his  obligation,  damages,  and  prejudices  which  in  the  present  case  amount  to  40,048.62 
bolivars,  according  to  the  liquidation  produced  by  the  demander,  a  sum  to  which  the  claim 

of  the  treasury  on  this  subject  is  limited.  For  such  reasons  the  high  Federal  court,  admin- 
istering justice  in  the  name  of  the  Republic  and  by  authority  of  the  law,  declares  to  allow 

the  claim  presented  in  the  present  process  by  the  fiscal  nacional  de  hacienda  jigainst  the 

Company  General  of  the  Orinoco,  and  consequently  is  declared  the  resolution  of  the  con- 
tracts of  May  24,  1886,  and  May  31,  1887,  passed  by  the  National  Government  with  Messrs. 

Tejera  and  Delort,  respectively,  of  which  the  company  named  is  cessionary. 

The  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  is  sentenced  to  pay  to  the  National  Government  the 

sum  of  40,048.62  bolivars  for  damages  and  prejudices  caused  to  the  nation  from  the  non- 
accomplishment  on  the  part  of  the  company  of  the  contracts  named,  together  with  the 

expenses  of  this  process. 

There  was  no  appearance  on  the  part  of  the  company  on  September 

29, 1891,  at  which  time  the  National  Government  was  proper!}^  repre- 
sented and  was  heard  ui  oral  pleading  before  the  court.  No  notice 

was  served  or  summons  made  upon  the  counsel  who  had  appeared  in 
the  case  for  Mr.  Fiat.  Indeed,  since  he  was  attorney  of  the  company, 
and  they  were  his  counsel  only,  their  relation  to  the  company  and  to 
the  case  since  he  had  resigned,  their  right  to  appear  and  to  be  heard, 
or  the  duty  of  the  Government  to  have  them  cited  in,  had  such  a  duty 
rested  upon  the  Government  at  that  stage  of  the  cause,  is  in  none  of 
these  respects  very  clear  to  the  umpire.  There  was  no  attorney  of  the 
company  then  resident  in  Venezuela,  and  there  had  been  none  since 
July  previous,  but  whether  this  fact  was  known  to  the  Government 
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or  to  the  court  does  not  appear.  The  evidence  of  two  witnesses 
adduced  by  the  company  is  referred  to  by  the  court  in  its  decree  as 
having  been  considered  by  it  in  coming  to  its  final  judgment.  Aside 

from  this  evidence  the  court  was  not  assisted  by  the  company  in  any- 
way after  the  court  began  its  consideration  of  the  faeis,  the  law,  and 

the  equity  of  the  cause,  nor  were  the  interests  of  the  company  in  any- 
way subserved  or  protected  at  this  time  by  the  presence  in  court  of 

attorney  or  counsel.  In  a  very  few  days  the  company  had  knowledge 
of  the  action  of  the  court ;  but  it  did  not  then  or  ever  take  any  steps  to 
be  heard  on  any  question  or  motion  proper  to  have  been  taken  on  its 
part  under  the  law  of  the  Republic  or  the  procedure  of  the  court. 
Neither  does  it  appear  from  the  attitude  of  the  company  toward  the 

suit  for  quite  a  period  prior  to  October  14,  1890,  and  for  years  there- 
after that  it  desired  to  be  heard  in  the  high  Federal  court  on  the  matter 

of  the  final  decree.  The  tenor  of  the  proceedings  of  the  company 
after  it  passed  into  liquidation  is  clearly  that  it  depended,  not  on  a 
successful  defense  to  the  suit,  but  solely  upon  negotiations  with  the 
Government  for  its  existence  and  prosperity.  No  other  version  can 

be  given  to  the  acts,  declarations,  and  apparent  animus  of  its  mov- 
ing and  managing  spirits  and  agents. 

At  the  time  this  decree  was  passed  the  Company  General  of  the 
Orinoco  had  actually  brought  into  Venezuela  and  expended  in  and 
about  its  enterprise  the  sum  of  2,373,317.89  francs,  after  deducting 
from  the  total  expenses  the  sums  actually  received  for  products 
exported  under  its  concessions. 

Certain  conditions  of  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  and  cer- 
tain administrative  acts  in  relation  to  it  will  now  be  considered. 

It  was  in  March,  1888,  that  the  company  took  possession  of  the 
lands  granted  by  Mr.  Vemet  and  formed  on  the  Vichada  the  hato 
which  bore  the  name  of  Santa  Catalina.  It  was  here  that  the  cattle 

obtained  at  Buena  Vista  were  placed,  the  chief  purpcse  of  this  hato 
being  to  prepare  for  the  necessities  of  the  immigrants,  since  there  wes 
not  in  all  the  region  of  the  Maipures  so  much  as  one  single  animal  of 
the  cow  kind. 

The  minister  of  fomento  was  advised  of  the  establishment  of  the 

hato,  and  later  a  concession  of  lands  was  demanded  of  him  to  be  located 
on  the  Vichada  for  similar  purposes.  To  this  demand  there  was  no 

reply  by  the  Government. 
The  action  of  the  governors  of  the  Territories  Upper  Orinoco  and 

Amazonas,  and  of  persons  representatives  of  the  Federal  Government 
in  that  locality,  was  such  concerning  the  exploitation  and  expDrtation 
of  the  natural  products  of  those  Territories,  which  were  exclusively  the 
property  of  the  company,  that  it  resulted  in  depriving  the  company 
of  any  benefits  of  its  concessions  for  the  year  1890  and  thereafterwards, 
notwithstandiug  adequate  provisions  had  been  made  by  the  company 
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with  a  Liverpool  firm  to  furnish  the  requisite  funds  to  complete  the 

payment  for  thoeer  products  and  the  agent  of  the  firm  had  been  sent 
out  to  Venezuela  for  that  purpose,  and  in  spite  of  the  fact  that  much 
of  the  india  rubber  had  been  harvested  by  means  of  advances  which 

the  company  had  made  aforetime. 
Mr.  Valentin  Perez,  the  trusted  representative  and  agent  of  the 

Government  at  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo  in  the  summer  and  early 
autumn  of  1890,  returned  to  his  home  in  La  Urbana  late  in  that  year 

or  early  in  1891,  organized  an  armed  force  and  began  an  expedition  up 
the  river.  April  28,  1891,  he  attacked  the  steamer  Libertad,  at  the 
mouth  of  the  river  Meta,  with  firearms.  The  steamer  escaped  without 
loss  of  life  to  its  crew,  although  the  marks  of  many  bullets  were  found 
upon  the  boat.  The  doings  of  Perez  came  to  the  knowledge  of  the 
governor  at  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo,  who,  fearing  an  attack,  took 
away  the  valves  from  the  boiler  of  the  Meta  and  removed  different 
parts  of  the  engine,  rendering  her  useless  should  she  fall  into  the  hands 
of  Perez,  but  it  had  a  similar  effect  upon  her  usefulness  and  value  to 
the  company. 

The  governor  also  took  by  main  force  the  arms  and  munitions  which 
the  company  had  a  lawful  right  to  keep  at  its  agencies  and  which  were 
necessary  for  its  protection  in  that  part  of  the  country.  Perez  took 
possession,  consecutively,  of  Atures,  Maipures,  and  San  Fernando  de 
Atabapo,  and  seized  everything  of  value  which  lay  in  his  way;  and, 
from  his  home  at  La  Urbana  to  the  capital  of  the  Territories  he  burned 

all  the  wood  sheds  of  the  company,  some  seventeen  in  number,  includ- 
ing the  fuel  contained  therein.  About  this  time  Mr.  Calvaras,  agent  of 

the  company  at  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo,  attempting  to  escape  to 
Ciudad  Bolivar,  died  at  Maipures  of  fatigue  and  privation.  Mr.  Mary, 
another  agent,  descended  the  river  to  Ciudad  Bolivar.  Mr.  Oudart 
tried  to  escape  from  San  Carlos,  but  he  was  attached  and  robbed.  He 

gathered  together  a  few  men  and  attacked  the  troops  of  Perez  by 

night,  seized  about  one-fourth  of  his  india  rubber,  threw  it  into  boats, 
and  went  to  Brazil..  This  practically  ended  the  exploitation  of  these 
Territories  by  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco. 

Perez  captured  the  governor  and  detained  him  as  a  prisoner.  To 
reestablish  order  in  the  Territories  the  Government  sent  troops  from 
Ciudad  Bolivar  to  San  Fernando  de  Atabapo.  To  accomplish  this,  it 

requisitioned  the  Libertad  to  carry  its  soldiers  to  Atures.  Above  the 
rapids  the  Government  used  the  steamers  of  the  enterprise  to  take  the 
soldiers  to  the  capital  of  the  Territories.  At  Maipures  the  troops  were 
fed  with  meat  from  the  cattle  of  the  company.  For  the  service  of  the 
Libertad  the  company  received  2,000  bolivars,  but  for  the  rest  nothing. 

The  years  1892  and  1893  witnessed  the  successful  revolution  of  Gen. 
Joaquin  Crespo.  As  a  consequence,  public  and  private  business  and 
the  processes  of  the  courts  and  the  administration  of  the  Government 
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were  seriously  interrupted  and  obstructed.  It  was  not  until  February 
20,  1894,  that  General  Crespo  was  named  constitutional  President. 

The  matters  of  the  Company  Gerteral  had  suffered  seriously  through 

this  revolutionary  crisis.  No  execution  had  been  issued  for  the  dam- 
ages and  costs  awarded  the  Government  in  its  suit  of  rescission  against 

the  company.  March  8,  1893,  the  new  governor  of  the  Federal  Ter- 
ritories, Gen.  Juan  Anselmo,  issued  a  decree  of  suquestration  against 

the  property  of  the  company  in  the  Territory  of  Upper  Orinoco,  to 
make  effective  the  judgment  of  October  14,  1891,  by  recovering  the 
amovmt  thereof;  and  to  that  end  he  asserted  the  lien  of  the  Government 

upon  both  the  movable  and  the  iimnovable  property  of  the  company, 

whether  in  its  possession  or  in  the  hands  of  those  who  had  appropri- 
ated it  to  their  ow^l  use,  appointed  a  depositary,  and  allowed  thirty 

days  during  which  time  all  persons  who  had  anything  belonging  to  the 
Comj^any  General  of  the  Orinoco  were  to  bring  it  to  the  depositary  or 
to  pay  him  the  value  of  the  same.  After  this  delay  of  thirty  days, 
judicial  proceedings  were  to  be  taken  conformable  to  the  laws  against 
delinquents. 

This  decree  was  disaffirmed  by  the  high  Federal  court  because  no 
such  power  was  vouchsafed  the  governor  by  the  decree  which  created 
and  organized  the  Territor\\  The  court  held  that  this  could  issue 
solely  through  the  judiciary  department,  citing  articles  298,  299,  300, 
301,  302, 303,  304,  305,  and  306  of  the  Code  of  Civil  Procedure.  It  goes 
on  to  say: 

That  which  the  governor  ought  to  havo  done  was  to  bring  to  the  knowledge  of  the  judges 

of  the  l<x'ality  of  the  eiiTumspection  of  his  command,  in  which  were  the  interests  of  the  com- 
pany, tlie  complaints  of  the  interested  parties,  in  order  that  according  to  the  reasons  alleged 

tli'Mr  acxpiired  rights  might  be  guanmteed,  etc. 

It  resulted  that  all  of  the  Company's  property  which  at  that  time 
could  be  assembled  in  tliat  Territory  was  sold  at  a  nominal  figure. 

July  10, 1902,  the  liquidators  of  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco 
addressed  a  memorial  to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  France  in 
which  they  stated  their  case  as  follows: 

That  in  consequence  of  tlie  sentence  given  by  the  high  Federal  court  October  14,  1891, 

without  the  ap|X'aring  in  court  of  the  plaintiff  company  the  creditors  of  the  said  company 
were  obliged  to  apply  to  the  liquidators  for  the  vindication  of  their  rights  against  the  Gov- 
eniment  of  Venezuela. 

This  was  followed  by  a  statement  of  their  claim  in  detail. 
In  1894,  shortly  after  General  Crespo  became  the  constitutional 

President  of  the  Republic,  Mr.  Theodore  Delort  came  to  Caracas  in  the 

interest  of  the  liquidators  in  an  effort  to  adjust  the  matters  of  differ- 
ence then  existing.  While  at  Caracas  he  addressed  a  communication, 

in  the  nature  of  a  r^um6,  to  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  Vene- 
zuela.    Among  other  things  of  value  is  found  this: 

The  honor  and  standing  of  the  meml)ers  who  form  this  enterprise,  our  credit  being  under- 

stood and  our  proceH»dingH  correct,  arc  the  i*easons  which  compel  me  to  act  to-day  in  the  pres- 
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ent  claim,  not  to  regain  our  capital  lost,  if  it  is  understood  that  \\\e  Venezuelan  Grovern- 
nient  wishes  to  render  us  justice,  but  to  take  into  consideration  the  said  credits  and  that  we 

may  be  able  to  fulfill  our  engagements  honorably. 

Earlier  in  the  communication  Mr.  Delort  had  stated  the  indebted- 
ness of  the  company. 

The  purpose  of  the  company  to  obtain  means  whereby  to  cancel  its 

indebtedness  is  ascribed  to  it  by  the  honorable  commissioner  for  Vene- 
zuela in  his  opinion  in  this  case,  where  he  says: 

And  lastly,  their  attempts,  twice  baffled,  to  convert  first  into  an  Englisli  company  witli 

the  name  of  **The  Orinoco  Exploration  and  Trading  Company,"  and  later  into  a  Belgian 

limited  company,  under  the  name  of  'Tompagnie  International  des  Caoutchoucs/'  l)oth 
attempts  having  been  made  with  the  object  of  obtaining  an  increase  of  cash  capital  to  pay 

off  debts  and  proceed  with  the  business. 

The  liquidators  of  the  company  presented  a  further  memorial  of 
their  difficulties  to  the  minister  of  forei^  affairs  for  France,  December 

5,  1895. 
For  quite  a  portion  of  the  time  elapsing  between  October  14, 1891 ,  and 

the  treaty  of  February  19,  1902,  the  two  Governments  had  not  been  in 
friendly  diplomatic  relation.  This  fact  is  named  as  an  explanation  of 
delays  which  have  occurred  in  the  presentation  and  pursuit  of  this 
claim  diplomatically. 

In  the  preceding  attempt  to  present  the  salient  facts  of  this  case 
much  time  has  been  taken  and  many  words  have  been  used,  and  yet 

much  which  tends  to  throw^  light  upon  it  has  been  omitted  in  order  to 
condense  and  shorten  the  statement.  It  is  hoped  that  the  bases  upon 
which  a  decision  must  rest  are  sufficiently  apparent.  The  umpire 
must  acknowledge  his  indebtedness  to  the  company  for  the  valued  aid 
of  its  counsel  Mr.  Poincar6,  and  to  the  honorable  commissioners  for 
their  efficient  services  both  in  the  matters  of  fact  and  in  the  justice  and 

equity  to  be  evolved  therefroni  in  arriving  at  a  right  award. 
The  claimant  Government  asserts  its  right  of  recovery  because  of 

denials  of  justice  through  a  long  series  of  administrative  and  govern- 
mental measures,  notably  the  decrees  of  August  8  and  9,  1890,  and  the 

sequestration  of  1893;  also  finds  cause  therefor  in  the  unpunished 
WTongs  perpetrated  by  Valentin  Perez  and  in  the  abuses  of  the  powers  of 

the  governors,  notably  Mr.  d'Aubeterre,  and  the  decree  of  annulment 
by  pro  tempore  Governor  Page ;  likewise  in  the  decree  of  the  minister 
of  hacienda  in  April,  1890,  and  in  successive  acts  of  the  minister  of  the 
interior  in  the  same  year;  and,  fiulher,  in  a  multitude  of  acts,  of 

manceuvers,  of  outrages;  also  in  the  refusal  of  the  respondent  Govern- 
ment to  permit  assignments  of  the  concessions  of  the  company  and  its 

properties  to  the  English  company  formed  and  registered,  and  to  recog- 
nize and  allow  said  English  company  to  take  up  and  carry  on  the  con- 

tracts of  December  17,  1885,  and  of  April  1,  1887,  together  with  its 

unjust  silence  respecting  the  Colombian- Venezuelan  arbitration  and 
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its  acquiescence  in  the  large  expenditures  made  by  the  company  in  the 
extension  and  development  of  its  enterprise  after  the  knowledge  of  the 

Government  that  there  had  been  no  compliance  in  fact  with  the  pro- 
visions concerning  the  railroads  around  the  rapids  of  Atures  and  the 

rapids  of  Maipures,  and  to  the  general  attitude  of  the  Government  and 
its  administration  toward  the  company  after  the  year  1888,  whereby 
it  permitted,  if  it  did  not  incite,  attacks,  open  and  covert,  upon  the 
concessions  of  the  company. 

It  also  claims  denials  of  justice  through  violations  of  public  and  pri- 
vate right,  committed  not  only  in  the  course  of  the  process  (suit  of 

1890),  but  outside  of  every  judicial  instance.  Concerning  the  suit  for 

rescission,  it  is  alleged  to  be  a  nullity,  because  (a)  that  Mr.  Fiat, 'the 
attorney  of  the  company  in  Caracas,  received  no  citation  or  order  to 
appear  at  the  time  of  the  presentation  by  the  fiscal  nacional  de 
hacienda  before  the  high  Federal  court  of  the  demand  for  rescission 

of  the  contracts  and  payment  of  an  indemnity;  (b)  the  rogatory  com- 
missions issued  in  said  cause  on  the  motion  of  the  defendant  for  the 

investigation  in  Europe  were  irregular  in  the  issue  and  transmission 
and  ineffective  through  the  fault  of  the  court  or  the  Government ;  (c) 
the  failure  of  the  court  or  the  Government  to  forewarn  Mr.  Fiat  or  the 

advocates  of  the  defendant  of  the  day  set  for  the  oral  pleadings  in  the 
cause,  and  the  resultant  nonparticipation  of  the  defendant  in  such 
hearing;  (d)  the  sentence  of  the  court  October  14,  1891,  was  rendered 
in  the  absence  of  Mr.  Fiat  and  the  advocates  of  the  defendant  and 

without  citation  upon  them  or  either  of  them  to  be  present  and  without 
their  knowledge,  in  fact,  that  the  sentence  was  to  be  pronounced,  and 
without  other  knowledge  than  its  publication  in  the  Official  Gazette 
of  October  17,  three  days  after  the  decree  was  promulgated.  This 
procedure  was  said  to  be  in  violation  of  Title  5,  Venezuelan  Code  of 
Civil  Procedure  with  regard  to  citation. 

The  claimant  company  also  asserts  its  right  for  indemnity  arising 
from  requisitions  of  and  injuries  to  its  property  by  the  authorities  of 
the  respondent  Government  and  for  other  acts  contrary  to  the  law  of 
nations.  The  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela,  a  lawyer  of 
high  standing  in  the  courts  of  his  country,  skillful  in  his  profession, 
and  of  high  honor,  whose  opinion  in  such  a  matter  is  entitled  to  great 
weight,  finds  no  irregularities  in  the  preUminary  process  of  the  high 
Federal  court.     The  mnpire  fails  to  observe  any. 

However,  if  the  umpire  regarded  the  point  as  possessing  value,  he 

w^ould  more  carefully  study  the  question.  In  his  opinion  the  appear- 
ance of  Mr.  Fiat  as  disclosed  cures  all  irregularity  of  notice  or  entire 

lack  of  official  notification,  had  either  existed.  This  proposition  is 
elementary,  and  requires  no  authority  to  sustain  it.  It  effectually 
removes  the  first  objection  of  the  claimant  to  the  proceedings  of  the 
high  Federal  court. 
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The  second  objection  refers  to  the  issuing  of  the  rogatory  commis- 
sions from  the  court  direct  to  the  attorney  of  the  company  instead  of 

transmitting  them  through  diplomatic  channels  at  its  instance  and 

through  its  personal  procurement.  This  is  regarded  as  fatal  error  hy 
the  eminent  counsel  of  the  claimant  company.  Much  ingenuity,  ability, 
and  learning  is  displayed  in  an  effort  to  charge  the  failure  in  the  execu- 

tion of  some  of  these  commissions  upon  this  act  of  the  court  and  thereby 
to  find  cause  to  invaUdate  its  final  decree.  Without  entering  the 
domain  of  this  discussion  it  suffices  to  say  that  the  attorney  of  the 

company  accepted  these  commissions  from  the  hand  of  the  court's 
officer  without  objection  and  proceeded  to  make  use  of  them  in  his 
own  way.  It  was  he,  and  not  the  court,  who  sent  them  abroad  through 
other  than  diplomatic  channels.  He  had  always  the  right  and  the 
opportunity  to  obtain  the  aid  and  the  intervention  of  the  friendly 

diplomatic  powers  of  France.  He  had,  moreover,  the  unused  privi- 
lege of  preferring  to  the  high  Federal  court  a  petition  for  the  reissuing 

of  those  commissions  and  their  transmission  through  such  channels  as 
he  might  then  request  or  suggest.  There  were  many  months  in  which 
he  should  have  learned  the  necessity  of  such  procedure,  if  it  existed, 

and  in  which  he  might  have  appeared  before  the  court  for  such  pur- 
pose. So  far  as  appears  of  record,  every  request  he  made  in  court  was 

granted,  and  any  failure  to  educe  evidence  through  the  rogatory  com- 

missions must  be  charged  to  the  action  or  inaction  of  the  company's 
attorney,  and  not  to  the  high  Federal  court  or  the  respondent  Gov- 

ernment. Such  is  the  judgment  of  the  umpire  upon  the  second  point 
of  objection  to  the  judicial  process  in  question. 

Objections  ̂ *c"  and  ̂ M"  will  be  considered  together. 
The  first  point  to  be  recalled  is  that  the  recognized  and  accredited 

attorney  of  the  company  before  the  high  Federal  court  was  Andres 
Fiat.  His  power  of  attorney  had  been  presented  to  the  inspection 
of  the  court,  it  had  been  translated,  examined,  adjudged  to  be  ample 
and  correct,  and  in  virtue  thereof  he  was  accorded  a  representative 

character  for  said  company  in  said  court.  He  had  resigned.  His 
resignation  had  been  accepted  by  the  company.  Another  had  been 
appointed,  and  had  declined  to  serve.  It  does  not  appear  that  Mr. 
Berthier  was  constituted  an  attorney  with  letters  as  such.  If  he  were, 
he  failed  to  qualify  before  the  court.  Until  his  resignation  Mr.  Fiat 
was  the  attorney  of  the  company.  Doctors  Urbaneja  and  Feo  were 
his  counsel,  so  designated  and  named  by  him  in  court  and  so  recognized 
and  received.  It  is  also  true  that  so  far  as  the  umpire  knows  at  this 

time  there  was  no  duly  constituted  attorney  of  the  company  in  Vene- 
zuela. This  was  the  situation  September  25,  1891,  the  day  on  which 

selection  was  made  by  the  court  of  the  time  on  which  the  final  audi- 
ence was  to  take  place  and  the  parties  were  to  be  heard  orally  and  in 

writing  by  their  respective  advocates.  The  situation  was  the  same 

S.  Doc.  533,  59—1   23 
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September  29,  and  it  had  not  changed  October  14.  Was  the  high 

Federal  court  charged  with  any  duty  of  notice  to  the  company  under 

these  circumstances,  provided  such  notice  was  required  by  the  laws 

of  the  country  and  the  rules  of  the  court,  if  there  had  been  an  attorney 

of  the  company  known  to  the  court  within  reach  of  its  process?  The 

honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  holds  that  articles  109  and 

162  of  the  Code  of  Procedure  do  not  apply  to  such  a  case  as  is  here 

presented.  Article  109  refers  to  a  cause  in  suspension;  article  162, 

to  a  case  of  indefinite  delay.  In  his  opinion  he  gives  a  historical 

review  of  the  case  from  its  inception  to  the  decree,  and  from  this 

review  he  reaches  the  conclusion  that — 

the  sentence  was  thus  pronounced  by  the  high  Federal  court  after  complymg  rigorously 
with  the  legal  prescriptions,  and  with  all  the  formalities  of  the  proceedings  as  established 

by  law  on  behalf  of  l)oth  parties  interested  for  the  defense  of  their  respective  rights. 

He  holds  that  the  case  had  never  been  in  suspense;  that  the  day 

on  which  the  time  had  expired  for  producing  proofs  the  representative 
of  the  Government  moved  for  active  continuation  of  the  case  and  the 
court  acceded  to  his  motion. 

Similarl}^,  the  honorable  conunissioner  finds  no  indefinite  delay 
such  as  is  designated  in  and  covered  by  article  162. 

Doctors  Urbaneja  and  Feo,  also  learned  in  the  law,  gave  an  opinion 
sustaining  the  contention  of  the  claimants.  It  is  not  necessary  for 
the  umpire  to  decide  between  these  conflicting  opinions,  since  the 
company  had  opportunity  to  test  the  worth  of  its  contentions  by  a 
petition  to  the  high  Federal  court  to  invalidate  its  decision  under 
and  by  virtue  of  case  I,  article  538,  of  the  Code  of  Civil  Procedure  then 
in  force  in  Venezuela.  If  the  points  now  urged  before  the  mnpire 
were  of  the  character  to  come  under  that  article,  the  duty  of  the  court 
was  clear  and  its  action  certain.  Practically  it  must  come  under 
the  terms  of  that  article  or  else  it  had  not  the  vitality  now  claimed 
for  it. 

For  six  months  an  opportimity  existed  wherein  this  question  could 
be  considered,  the  proofs  marshaled,  and  the  petition  made.  If  there 
had  been  such  grave  fault  on  the  part  of  the  high  Federal  court  as 

in  the  opinion  of  the  company's  eminent  counsel  would  amount  to  a 
denial  of  justice,  why  was  not  an  effort  made,  based  upon  these 
grounds,  to  secure  an  invalidation  of  the  decree  ?  If  this  had  been 
done  and  there  had  resulted  a  refusal  on  the  part  of  the  court  to 
reopen  the  case,  then  the  duty  of  the  umpire  to  carefully  consider 
the  law  and  the  facts  relating  to  this  objection  would  be  paramount. 
There  is  not  a  single  act  of  the  high  Federal  court  in  connection  with 
the  suit  in  question  which  suggests  in  the  slightest  degree  any  other 
than  a  scrupulous  regard  for  the  rights  of  the  defendants  therein. 
With  this  judgment  formed  from  his  study  of  the  procedure  in  this 
case  the  umpire  would  be  peculiarly  constituted  if  he  should  hold 
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that  this  distinguished  body  would  necessarily  depart  from  its  well- 
ordered  course  when  there  was  presented  before  it  a  just  cause  for 
reconsideration. 

In  the  suit  to  rescind  the  contracts  of  December  17,  1885,  and  of 

April  1,  1887,  it  is  therefore  adjudged  that  the  decree  of  the  high 
Federal  court  of  October  14,  1891,  is  not  now  open  to  attack  by  the 
defendant  therein  through  the  intervention  of  the  claimant  Govern- 

ment, and  it  is  not  a  denial  of  justice  under  the  treaty  of  1885,  or 
in  virtue  of  the  rules  and  principles  of  public  law. 

It  follows,  therefore,  that  every  matter  and  point  distinctly  in 

issue  in  said  cause,  and  which  was  directly  passed  upon  and  deter- 
mined in  said  decree,  and  which  was  its  ground  and  basis,  is  con- 
cluded by  said  judgment,  and  the  claimants  themselves  and  the  claim- 

ant Government  in  their  behalf  are  forever  estopped  from  asserting 
any  right  or  claim  based  in  any  part  upon  any  fact  actually  and 
directly  involved  in  said  decree. 

The  general  principle  announced  in  numerous  cases  is  that  a  right,  question,  or  fact  dis- 
tinctly put  in  issue  and  directly  determin£d  by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdiction,  as  a  ground 

of  recovery,  can  not  be  disputed,  etc.. 

Southern  Pacific  R.  Co.  v.  U.  S.,  168  Sup.  Ct.  Rep.,  1.  (S.  C,  L.  C.  P.  Co.,  42, 377,  with 
extensive  annotations.) 

Also,  see  9  Encylc.  PI.  and  Pr.,  625,  and  the  notes. 
Is  this  holding  by  the  umpire  conclusive  of  this  claim?  The  answer 

is  affected  by  the  decision  which  he  will  make  upon  the  proposition, 
that  no  award  can  be  predicated  upon  any  other  ground  than  a  denial 
of  justice;  which  proposition  is  based  upon  the  ground  that  the  treaty 
of  1885  is  determinative  of  the  issues  which  may  be  decided  by  this 
honorable  commission.  If  the  treaty  of  1885  is  applicable  to  this  case, 
then  his  position  in  reference  to  the  decree  of  October  14,  1891,  decides 
adversely  this  claim. 

K  the  treaty  of  1885  was  before  the  umpire  he  would  interpret  its 
provisions  as  did  the  honorable  President  of  the  Swiss  Republic  in  the 
Fabiani  award.  Being  so  interpreted,  it  would  be  impossible  to  award 
damages  here.  There  has  been  no  denial  of  justice,  nor  such  a  delay 
of  justice  according  to  usage  or  to  law,  nor  such  exhaustion  of  the  legal 
means  available  to  the  claimants,  nor  such  a  violation  of  treaty  or  the 
rules  of  the  right  of  nations  as  would  admit  of  a  favorable  award,  if  the 

jurisdiction  of  this  honorable  commission  is  thus  limited.  Such,  how- 
ever, is  not  the  interpretation  placed  by  the  umpire  upon  the  conven- 

tion of  February  19,  1902.     Article  2  of  that  protocol  provides  that — 
Demands  for  indemnities  other  than  those  which  are  aimed  at  in  article  1,  but  based  upon 

facts  anterior  to  the  23d  of  May,  1899,  will  be  examined  in  concert  by  the  minister  of  foreign 
affairs  of  Venezuela  and  by  the  French  minister  at  Caracas,  etc. 

All  of  the  cases  which  came  before  this  honorable  commission  at 

Caracas  in  1903,  including  the  eight  reserved  for  the  consideration  of 
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the  umpire,  were  under  the  above  provisions  of  article  2,  which  con- 
cludes with  the  clause : 

It  is  intended  that  this  procedure,  Hke  that  which  is  adopted  for  the  claims  of  1892,  is 
instituted  as  an  exception  only  and  does  not  invalidate  the  covenant  of  November  26. 1885. 

The  provisions  of  the  treaty  of  1885  were  not  interposed  in  the  case 
of  Jules  Brun,  heirs  of  Maninat,  Frierdich  &  Co.,  heirs  of  Massiani, 
Fieri  &  Co.,  or  Antoine  Fabiani.  It  was  apparently  not  interposed  in 
Caracas  against  any  of  the  cases  heard  by  the  honorable  commissioners 

and  reported  in  Ralston  and  Doyle's  Venezuelan  Arbitrations  of  1903. 
None  of  the  six  cases  above  referred  to  and  now  before  the  umpire 

for  his  decision  rest  upon  denials  of  justice.  All  have  been  submitted 
upon  the  claim,  implied  or  stated,  that  the  treaty  of  1885  did  not  apply. 
The  Fabiani  claim  was  based  entirely  upon  this  proposition.  To  these 
positions  of  the  claimants  there  has  been  no  dissent  on  the  part  of  the 
respondent  Government.  The  umpire  has  been  permitted  to  proceed 
upon  this  theory  and  has  made  his  judgment  and  awards  in  accordance 
with  what  he  understood  to  be  the  admitted  construction  of  the  con- 

vention of  1902;  and  it  is  not  until  he  reaches  the  case  now  in  hand 

that  this  question  is  raised,  if  it  is  now  distinctly  raised,  by  the  respond- 
ent Government.  He  is  inclined  to  the  view  that  it  is  practically  in 

assent  to  the  assumption  of  the  eminent  counsel  for  the  claimants  that 

such  might  be  the  construction  of  this  treaty  that  the  respondent  Gov- 
ernment takes  the  position  it  has  seemed  to  take  in  this  case  and 

contends  for  the  paramount  authority  of  the  treaty  of  1885. 
Were  the  umpire  unaided  by  the  interpretation  which  in  practice 

has  been  placed  upon  the  protocol  of  1902,  he  would  have  no  serious 

difficulty  in  construing  it  adversely  to  the  contention  of  the  respond- 
ent Government.  In  effect,  if  not  in  express  terms,  the  treaty  of  1885, 

by  the  convention  of  1 902 ,  is  left  in  force  generally ;  but  for  the  purposes 
of  claims  to  be  considered  under  article  2  of  the  last-mentioned  con- 

vention the  treaty  of  1885  has  wholly  superseded  and  practically  abro- 
gated it  so  long  as  the  protocol  of  1902  remains  effective.  Such  must  be 

the  meaning  of  that  provision  in  article  1  of  the  protocol  of  1902,  which 

relates  to — 

examining  in  concert  the  demands  for  indemnity  presented  by  Frenchmen  for  damages 
sustained  in  Venezuela,  etc. 

Concerning  this  there  might  exist  a  doubt,  but  not  when  there  is 

considered  the  provisions  heretofore  quoted,  that  the  procedure  insti- 

tuted by  the  protocol  of  1902  is — 
as  an  exception  only  and  does  not  invalidate  the  covenant  of  November  26,  1885. 

The  umpire  holds,  therefore,  that  by  the  terms  of  the  convention  of 
February  19,  1902,  he  can  award  such  sum  in  damages  in  any  and  all 
of  the  cases  submitted  to  him  as,  in  his  judgment,  properly  clarified 
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and  steadied  by  the  ethical  precepts  of  international  law,  equity  and 
good  conscience  demand,  in  no  respect  limited  or  controlled  by  the 
treaty  of  1885. 

It  is  a  consequence  of  this  holding  that  if  there  were  aught  of  wrong 
toward  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  done  or  permitted  by  the 
respondent  Government  through  officials  or  persons  for  whose  acts  the 
Federal  Government  is  responsible  which  were  not  concluded  in  and 

determined  by  the  decree  of  October  14,  1891,  then  over  such  this  hon- 
orable commission  has  jurisdiction  and  for  such  there  may  be  an  award 

in  damages  if  justice  and  equity  so  permit  and  so  require. 
In  the  opinion  of  the  umpire  there  are  many  matters  anterior  to  May 

28,  1890,  which  might  seriously  affect  the  rights  of  the  contending  par- 
ties which  were  not  at  all  involved  in  the  decree  of  the  high  Federal 

court.  The  restrictive  quality  of  estoppel  by  judgments  is  well  under- 
stood. It  is  not  broader  than  the  rule  stated  by  the  umpire  in  this 

case.  It  is  only  the  particular  matter  in  controversy  which  is  decided. 
It  is  the  exact  issue  as  formed  which  is  determined.  There  must  be 

identity  of  cause,  the  same  questions  in  issue,  the  same  subject-matter. 

(9  Encycl.  PI.  and  Pr.,  622-623;  id.,  624,  625;  Story's  Eq.  Pleadings, 
par.  791 ;  24  Encycl.  of  Law,  2d  ed.,  775;  5  Encycl.  PI.  and  Pr.,  780.) 

What  was  afiirmed  in  the  case  in  question  by  the  plaintiff  therein  ? 
(1)  That  on  the  part  of  the  plaintiff  Government  it  had  fulfilled  the 

stipulations  agreed  to  in  both  contracts.  (2)  That  certain  articles 
and  parts  of  articles  of  both  contracts  as  set  out  in  the  declaration  had 
not  been  fulfilled  on  the  part  of  the  defendant. 

What  was  the  pleading  of  the  company?   (1)  That  it  had  performed. 
(2)  When  it  had  not  performed  it  had  been  prevented  by  main  force  or 
by  the  acts  and  neglects  of  the  Government  or  by  the  acts  and  neglects 
of  the  authorities  for.  whom  the  Government  wfis  responsible,  these 
acts  and  neglects  referring  to  the  matters  of  the  contract.  Such  were 
the  issues.  These  were  determined:  That  the  Government  had  ful- 

filled on  its  part  all  the  obligations  which  the  two  said  contracts  imposed 
upon  it;  that  the  defendant  had  not  fulfilled  the  obligations  contained 
in  Nos.  1,  2,  3,  4,  5,  6,  7,  and  9  of  the  contract  of  December  17,  1885, 
nor  the  stipulations  3,  4,  end  5  of  the  contract  of  April  1,  1887;  that  it 
was  not  prevented  from  fulfilling  these  obligations  by  insurmountable 
difficulties  constituting /orc^  majeure  nor  was  it  so  prevented  by  the 

acts  of  authorities  dependent  upon  the  Government  itself  and  con- 
trary to  the  stipulations  of  the  contract.  This  reference  to  the  acts 

of  authorities  dependent  upon  the  Government  in  the  answer  of  the 
defendant  in  excuse  for  its  failure  to  fulfill  certain  of  its  obligations  is 
understood  solely  to  refer  to  matters  springing  from  the  contracts  and 
referring  to  the  Government  as  the  other  party  thereto.  Such  also  in 
the  opinion  of  the  umpire  is  the  force,  extent,  and  value  of  the 
decree  upon  that  point.      However,  from  the  attitude  which  this 
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claim  has  assumed  in  the  mind  of  the  umpire  it  is  not  necessary  that 
he  make  critical  analysis  of  the  decree  or  of  the  elements  of  fact 
anterior  to  May  28,  1890,  which  may  or  may  not  be  included 
therein  and  concluded  thereby. 

The  answer  of  the  defendant  company  in  the  suit  for  rescission  was 
in  defense  only.  It  presented  and  suggested  no  counterclaims  or 

claims  in  set-off.  These  were  reserved.  They  were  not  plead,  not 
in  issue,  were  not  Utigated,  and  therefore  can  not  be  concluded  by  the 
decree. 

The  language,  therefore,  which  is  so  often  used,  that  a  judgment  estops  not  only  as  to  every 
ground  of  recovery  or  defense  actually  presented  in  the  action,  hut  also  as  to  every  ground 
which  might  have  been  presented,  is  strictly  accurate,  when  applied  to  the  demand  or  claim 

in  cx)ntroversy.  Such  demand,  or  claim,  having  passed  into  judgment,  can  not  again  be 
brought  into  litigation  between  the  parties  in  proceedings  at  law,  upon  any  ground  whatever. 

But  where  the  second  action  between  the  same  parties  is  upon  a  different  claim  or  demand, 

the  judgment  in  the  prior  action  operates  as  an  estoppel  only  as  to  those  matters  in  issue  or 
points  controverted,  upon  the  detennination  of  .which  the  finding  or  verdict  was  rendered. 
In  all  ra.ses,  therefore,  where  it  is  sought  to  apply  the  estoppel  of  a  judgment  rendered  upon 

one  cause  of  action  to  matters  arising  in  a  suit  upon  a  different  cause  of  action,  the  inquiry 
must  always  be  as  to  the  point  or  question  actually  litigated  and  determined  in  the  original 

action;  not  what  might  have  been  thus  litigated  and  determined.  Only  upon  such  matters 

is  the  judgment  conclusive  in  another  action.  (Cromwell  v.  Sac  County,  4  Otto  (U.  S.  Sup. 

Ct.),  3.51-371 ;  (S.  C,  L.  C.  P.  Co.,  24,  195-204,  and  note.) 
The  law  in  respect  to  estoppel  by  judgment  is  well  settled,  and  the  only  difficulty  lies  in 

the  application  of  the  law  to  the  facts.  The  particular  matter  in  controversy  in  the  adverse 

suit  was  the  triangular  piece  of  ground,  which  is  not  the  matter  of  dispute  in  this  action. 
The  judgment  in  that  ceise  therefore  is  not  conclusive  in  this  as  to  matters  which  might  have 
been  decided,  but  only  as  to  matters  which  were  mfact  decided.  (Jjast  Chance  Mining  Co.  v. 

Tyler  Mining  Co.  157  U.  S.  Sup.  a.,  683-685;  (S.  C,  L.  C.  P.  Co.  39,  862);  9  Encycl.  PI. 
and  I^.,  629-630;  24  Encycl.  of  I  .aw,  2d  ed.,  775.) 

Not  having  been  pleaded  and  passed  upon  in  the  suit  for  rescission, 
all  claims  or  demands  which  by  the  claimant  company  on  May  28, 1890, 

might  have  been  plead  as  counterclaims  or  claims  in  set-off  to  the  suit 
for  rescission  in  its  prayer  for  damages,  or  which  might  have  consti- 

tuted at  that  time  ground  for  an  independent  action,  are  proper  to  be 
presented  and  considered  in  this  honorable  commission  as  substantive 
ground  for  an  award.     (24  Encycl.  of  Law,  2d  ed.,  775;  id.,  791.) 

It  is  certain  that  a  claim  in  offset  would  not  be  concluded  by  a  judgment  when  it  was 

neither  placed,  considered,  nor  deducted  in  making  up  the  judgment.  (Sup.  Ct.  of  Vt., 
found  in  52  Vt.,  121.) 

For  the  same  reasons  as  have  already  been  given,  the  decision  of 
October  14,  1891,  settled  nothing  after  May  28,  1890,  the  day  on 
which  the  suit  to  rescind  was  entered  in  the  high  Federal  court  by  the 
fiscal  nacional  de  hacienda.  The  issues  were  formed  as  of  that  date. 
The  cause  of  action  had  then  accrued.  It  then  existed  or  the  court 

had  no  jurisdiction.  For  such  causes  as  accrued  after  that  date  the 

court  gained  no  jurisdiction  in  virtue  of  the  suit  then  pending.     The 
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actions  of  the  claimant  company  and  of  the  respondent  Government 
posterior  to  that  date  are  all  proper  subjects  of  inquiry  and  of  award. 

The  cause  of  action  does  not  accrue  until  the  existence  of  such  a  state  of  things  as  will 

enable  a  person  having  the  proper  relations  to  the  property  or  persons  concerned  to  bring 

an  action;     ♦     ♦     *.     (1  Bouv.  Law  Diet.,  295.) 
Causes  of  action  must  exist  at  time  of  commencement  of  suit.  (1  Encycl.  PL  and 

Pr.,  209). 

Ilence  a  judgment  against  a  defendant  is  not  conclusive  as  to  set-off  or  coimterclaim 
which  he  might  have  pleaded  to  the  action.  In  the  absence  of  statute  a  defendant  having 

a  cross-demand  against  the  plaintiff  may,  at  his  election,  either  use  it  in  the  pending  suits  as 
a  set-off,  or  reserve  it  t-o  be  used  as  the  basis  of  an  independent  action.  Ilis  failure,  there- 

fore, to  plead  it  does  not  preclude  him  from  bringing  a  subsequent  action  upon  it.  (24 
Encycl.  of  Law,  7a5.) 

Notwithstanding  the  clear  right  of  this  honorable  commssion  to 

weigh,  pass  upon,  and  merge  in  the  award  any  and  all  rightful  claims 
for  damages  inhering  in  the  claimant  company  for  wrongs  suflFered 
through  those  for  whom  the  respondent  Government  is  responsible  and 
which  occurred  prior  to  May  28,  1890,  it  does  not  become  necessary  to 
take  this  position  in  order  to  obtain  equity  in  this  claim,  and  for  that 
reason  only  none  such  will  be  considered  for  that  purpose. 

There  is  no  disagreement  that  in  the  spring  and  summer  of  1890 
arrangements  had  been  perfected  by  the  liquidator  of  the  company 
and  approved  by  its  shareholders  whereby  an  English  company 
regularly  organized  and  registered  was  to  take  over  the  properties 
and  franchises,  rights,  and  privileges  of  the  Company  General  of  the 
Orinoco,  assume  and  pay  its  indebtedness,  and  furnish  a  pecuniary 
basis  for  the  continuation  of  its  enterprise.  It  is  agreed  that  this 
compact  and  these  results  failed  to  be  consummated  solely  through  the 
absolute  refusal  of  the  respondent  Government  to  j>ermit  it.  There 
were  imquestionably  grave  reasons  of  state  which  animated  and 
inspired  this  action  of  the  respondent  Government  and  which  in  its 
judgment  required  and  compelled  it  to  take  this  course;  but  it  was  as 
fatal  to  the  interests  of  the  claimant  company  cs  though  differently 
inspired.  The  contention  which  had  been  very  threatening  and 
serious  between  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  and  Great  Britain 

over  the  right  of  the  latter  to  an  equal  control  with  the  former  Gov- 

ernment of  certain  mouths  of  the  Orinoco — a  right  claimed  largely 
through  alleged  occupancy  by  the  British  citizens  of  the  country 

contiguous  thereto — was  a  cogent  reason  why  the  former  Government 
should  seriously, object  to  any  relations  with  a  British  company  through 
a  contract  which  by  its  very  terms  gave  exclusive  rights  in  certain 
portions  of  that  river  and  peculiar  privileges  over  its  whole  extent. 
That  to  Venezuela  it  seemed  impossible  to  permit  such  a  condition  to 
exist  is  evident  from  its  acts.  That  it  was  wholly  justified  in  this 
assumption  is  the  opinion  of  the  umpire.  As  a  party  to  the  contract, 

however,  it  was  bound  by  its  terms,  and  one  of  its  provisions  spe- 
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cificiilly  permitted,  without  restriction  or  supervision,  just  such  an 
assignment  as  was  proposed. 

The  right  to  assign  was  the  sole  value  of  the  contract  to  the  original 
concessionary.  It  was  exercised  again  in  the  contract  passed  from 
the  syndicate  to  the  Qompany.  These  assignments  were  recognized 
by  the  respondent  Government.  The  interpretation  was  thus  and 
then  made  by  the  parties  thereto  and  especially  by  the  Government 
of  Venezuela  that  the  assignment  named  in  the  contract  was  not 
restrictive  in  its  operation  to  the  first  concessionary.  Without  such  an 
interpretation  by  the  parties  thereto  it  would  seem  to  the  umpire  to 
be  the  only  correct  inference  to  be  drawn  from  the  language  used  when 

the  purposes  and  conditions  are  considered. 
This  is  beyond  all  fair  question.  As  the  Government  of  Venezuela, 

whose  duty  of  self-preservation  rose  superior  to  any  question  of  con- 
tract, it  had  the  power  to  abrogate  the  contract  in  whole  or  in  part. 

It  exercised  that  power  and  canceled  the  provision  of  unrestricted 
assignment.  It  considered  the  peril  superior  to  the  obligation  and 
substituted  therefor  the  duty  of  compensation.  Had  there  been  no 
other  troublesome  question  of  State  entangled  with  the  contracts  of 

the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  it  is  quite  possible  that  this  gov- 
ernmental surgery  would  not  have  taken  the  life  of  the  claimant  com- 

pany.    Such  entanglements,  however,  existed. 
One  is  found  in  the  controversies  between  Venezuela  and  Colom- 

bia over  the  terms  of  those  contracts,  the  territory  involved,  and  the 
claims  of  the  company  in  connection  therewith.  A  careful  student  of 
the  situation  quickly  discerns  the  delicate  position  occupied  in  that 

matter  by  the  respondent  Government.  It  is  not  difficult  to  under- 
stand the  supreme  confidence  of  Gen.  Guzman  Blanco  and  of  Vene- 

zuela in  general,  concerning  the  favorable  final  outcome  of  the  arbi- 
tration then  resting  in  the  hands  of  His  Majesty  the  King  of  Spain. 

This  belief  was  so  intense,  so  complete,  that  it  is  evident  that  the 

dispute  over  the  boundary  and  the  pending  arbitration  were  not  dis- 
turbing factors  in  the  plans  of  Venezuelans  or  of  their  Government. 

This  easy  and  perfect  confidence  begot  a  carelessness  of  conduct  in 
reference  to  the  territories  involved,  readily  understood  but  none  the 
less,  even  more,  disturbing  to  the  other  party  litigant.  The  position 
of  Colombia  was  undeniably  correct.  Venezuela  could  not  question 
it.  The  serene  confidence  of  Gen.  Guzmto  Blanco  and  his  compatriots 
had  unintentionally  betrayed  the  Republic  into  a  seeming  serious 
affront  to  Colombia.  The  contracts  were  susceptible  of  no  other 
interpretation  than  that  through  them  there  was  an  assumption  in 

Venezuela  of  exclusive  control  over  the  upper  Orinoco  and  its  impor- 
tant confluents  entering  it  from  the  west  and  over  large  areas  of  terri- 
tory to  the  west  of  the  Orinoco.  Equally,  there  was  an  assumption 

that  this  control  was  to  exist  indefinitely.     Notwithstanding  the 
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pending  litigation  over  the  boundary,  the  Company  General  of  Ori- 
noco was  permitted  to  enter  into  unquestioned  and  absolute  possession 

of  these  litigated  areas.  From  the  view  point  of  nations  the  respond- 
ent Government  had  been  led  into  grave  error.  This  error  it  must 

repair.  It  could  only  repair  by  receding.  It  could  only  recede  by 
compromise  with  the  company  or  by  annulment.  Every  day  that  the 
contract  was  continued  it  was  more  or  less  a  menace  to  the  peaceful 
relations  then  existing  between  those  two  countries.  That  which  had 
been  held  as  a  valued  enterprise,  a  boon  to  Venezuela,  for  the  reasons 
stated  had  become  a  source  of  serious  national  danger.  The  changed 
position  of  the  respondent  Government  toward  the  claimant  company, 

a  change  not  at  all  obscure  or  doubtful,  is  thus  easily  and,  as  the  um- 
pire believes,  correctly  explained.  No  other  than  a  paramount  rea- 
son, in  the  belief  of  the  State,  can  explain  the  ministerial  decree  of 

May  17,  1890;  the  suit  for  rescission  of  May  29,  1890;  the  guberna- 
torial decree  of  June  16,  1890;  the  administrative  decree  of  August  9, 

disaffirming  the  action  of  the  governor  only  because  it  was  a  usurpa- 
tion of  power,  but  displacing  it  with  the  ministerial  decree  of  August 

9,  1890;  the  successive  and  progressive  acts  of  the  ministers  and  the 

governors  of  similar  tenor  and  effect  together  substantially  annihi- 
lating the  enterprise.  No  ordinary  cause  would  have  suggested  or 

permitted  this  destruction  of  an  internal  improvement  possessing 
such  potentialities  for  the  future  of  Venezuela,  against  the  ordinary 
policy  of  the  country,  which  had  been  to  foster  and  encourage  such 
enterprises. 

The  umpire  does  not  question  that  there  was  an  intimate  relation 
between  these  administrative  and  official  acts  and  the  attitude  of 

Colombia  toward  the  respondent  Government  in  regard  to  these  con- 
tracts. The  prompt  report  made  by  the  minister  for  foreign  affairs  to 

the  minister  plenipotentiary  of  Colombia  at  Caracas  has  deep  sig- 
nificance when  it  is  noticed  that  it  answered  a  communication  of  that 

same  Colombian  minister  of  date  January  24,  1890,  which  answer  had 
been  apparently  withheld  until  something  of  a  positive  and  decisive 
character  could  be  given.  Five  days  after  the  suit  was  entered  in 
court,  three  days  after  the  company  had  been  summoned,  the  day 
after  Mr.  Fiat  appeared,  this  notification  to  Colombia  was  made.  A 
suit  for  rescission  did  not  satisfy  Colombia.  Its  interests  were  still, 
in  its  judgment,  imperiled  and  would  remain  thus  imperiled  so  long 
as  the  company  had  power  or  opportunity  to  extend  its  exploitation 

over  the  debatable  groimd.  Colombia  by  its  reply  of  June  6  indi- 
cates this  very  precisely  and  emphatically  to  the  respondent  Govern- 

ment. Following  this  correspondence  there  were  the  gubernatorial 
and  administrative  decrees  of  June  16,  August  8  and  9,  the  telegrams 

of  the  minister  for  the  interior  of  August  29,  and  his  letter  of  Septem- 
ber 10.     Other  facts  might  be  easily  adduced  which  are  of  some  evi- 
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(lential  value,  all  tending  toward  the  same  end.  Enough  has  been 
said,  however,  to  suggest  the  ground  upon  which  the  umpire  bases 
his  judgment  that  the  strait  of  Venezuela  in  regard  to  the  Colombian 

incident  was  a  potent  cause  foi*  the  position  assumed  by  the  respondent 
Government  toward  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  in  1889, 
1890,  and  1891.  It  was  a  question  of  governmental  policy,  and  that 
Venezuela  decided  upon  this  plan  of  action  must  be  attributed  to  its 
solicitude  for  peace  with  a  sister  Republic. 

Running  as  a  not  unimportant  thread  in  this  warp  of  discomfort  and 
resulting  discontent  of  the  respondent  Government  was  the  attitude 
of  antagonism  toward  the  company  assumed  by  the  business  men  of 

the  Orinoco  from  Ciudad  Bolivar  through  the  Territories  of  Upper  Ori- 
noco and  Amazonas.  The  monopoly  in  the  natural  products  granted 

in  its  concessions  interfered  with  their  personal  enterprises.  These 
privileges  were  in  compensation  for  the  very  important  obligations 

resting  upon  the  company,  which  when  fulfilled  were  to  be  of  incal- 
culable value  to  the  country,  but  this  did  not  prevent  the  sense  of 

wrong  and  the  feeling  of  revolt  on  the  part  of  these  people.  That  this 
feeling  was  general  and  deep  on  their  part  is  readily  discerned.  The 
governors  and  officials  there  resident  were  naturally  sympathetic. 
The  President  and  his  cabinet  observed  and  were  disturbed  by  these 

manifestations  of  anger  and  dissatisfaction,  which  became  very  appar- 
ent. The  situation  in  this  regard  was  grave.  The  Perez  campaign 

was  perhaps  the  most  violent  and  destructive,  but  it  illustrates  the 

situation.  These  contracts  then  became  a  source  of  constant  annoy- 
ance to  the  administration  at  Caracas  and  of  menace  to  the  internal 

security  and  welfare  of  the  State.  It  is  quite  probable  that  the  natural 
hostility  of  the  business  men  of  that  section  of  the  country  was  increased 
and  made  bitter  and  rancorous  through  the  method  and  manner  of 

some  of  the  agents  of  the  company.  Where  concession  and  concilia- 
tion might  have  been  most  valuable  emollients,  they  were  not  always 

in  evidence,  but  instead  there  was  no  doubt  at  times  superciliousness 
and  arrogance. 

Such  is  the  purport  of  the  evidence  before  the  umpire.  It  is  too 
like  a  possible  fact  to  be  discredited.  It  is  not  strange  with  all  the 
cumulative  reasons  therefor  that  the  Republic  of  Venezuela  became 

very  weary  over  the  situation  which  its  contracts  had  created  or  per- 
mitted, or  that  it  sighed  for  relief  therefrom  at  whatever  cost. 

The  sum  to  be  awarded  the  claimant  Government  in  behalf  of  the 

liquidators  must  be  made  commensurate  to  the  damages  caused  by 

the  act  of  the  respondent  Government  in  denying  efficacy  to  the  con- 
tract of  assignment  from  the  Company  General  of  the  Orinoco  to  the 

English  company.  A  careful  study  of  the  events  connected  with  this 
Governmental  act,  and  of  those  which  followed,  reveals  nothing  which 

in  any  degree  lightens  the  responsibility  or  in  any  part  changes  the 
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relation  which  the  respondent  Government  assumed  toward  the  Com- 
pany General  of  the  Orinoco  and  its  creditors  when  it  exercised  this 

sovereign. right.  The  successive  struggles  of  the  company  for  exist- 
ence which  followed  this  act  have  been  collated  in  this  opinion;  they 

need  not  here  be  referred  to  in  detail.  Suffice  it  to  say  that  its  ruin 

was  not  its  fault.  It  fought  bravely  to  exist  either  in  its  own  or  in 

some  other  corporate  entitj^,  to  continue  in^its  contracts  as  they  then 
were  in  some  modified  form.  It  sought  these  ends  persistently  and 

patiently,  but  without  avail.  Eventually  there  came  the  revolutionary 

upheaval  of  1892-93,  the  unsettled  conditions  which  followed,  then, 
at  the  hands  of  the  executive  and  judicial  powers  of  the  Territory — 

Upper  Orinoco — the  finale. 
These  efforts  of  the  company  for  resuscitation  and  the  expense 

involved  were  necessary,  but  they  can  not  be  charged  against  the 
respondent  Government.  They  are  not  a  proximate  result  of  the 

primary  act  for  which  it  is  held  responsible  in  damages.  The  Venezu- 
elan Government  might  make  a  new  contract  but  it  was  not  boimd  to 

do  so.  It  might  recede  from  its  suit  for  rescission,  but  it  had  a  right 
to  refuse  to  do  so.  These  were  matters  of  negotiation,  and  that  they 

resulted  unfavorably  to  the  wishes  of  the  company  is  unfortunate, 
but  it  does  not  add  to  the  pecuniary  responsibility  of  the  respondent 
Government.  The  acts  of  administrative  authorities  in  1890  hereto- 

fore referred  to  only  quickened  the  process  of  dissolution.  There  was 
in  it  all  no  demonstrated  financial  loss  to  the  liquidators  on  the  basis 

upon  which  this  award  is  to  rest.  It  was  not  the  liquidators  but  the 

Liverpool  firm,  which  was  to  reap  the  pecuniary  benefit  of  the  conces- 
sion for  1890.  To  the  suggestion  that  there  was  undue  and  unneces- 
sary loss  of  the  property  because  of  the  acts  done  or  permitted  by  the 

respondent  Government  from  1890  to  1893,  both  inclusive,  there  is 
this  answer,  that  the  award  practically  covers  that  investment  so  far 
as  the  liquidators  are  concerned,  and  it  is  impossible  from  the  data  at 
hand  to  arrive  at  any  just  conclusions  concerning  the  pecuniary  loss, 

if  it  were  proper  or  necessary  to  consider  it  at  all .  To  the  possible  sug- 
gestion that  the  arrangement  with  the  English  company  might  have 

proved  illusory,  when  the  suit  for  rescission  had  become  known  to  this 

latter  company,  there  is  the  answer  that  there  was  then  ample  grounds 
for  the  successful  defense  of  that  suit,  had  defense  been  the  desired  policy 

of  the  company.  A  full  defense  lies  in  the  fact  that  there  was  in  this 

suit  for  rescission  no  oifer  to  restore  to  the  company  the  benefits  con- 

ferred by  it  upon  the  plaintifl"  when  coupled  with  the  uncontroverted 
fact  that  the  company  had  conferred  many  and  repeated  benefits  upon 

the  plaintiff  Government,  which  were  capable  of  being  measured  in 
money,  and  for  which  there  had  been  no  compensation.  Notably 
among  these  benefits  is  the  one  stated  in  the  suit  itself,  where  it  refers 

to  the  amount  paid  by  the  company  to  the  Government  under  its  con- 
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tracts  for  the  exploitation  and  exportation  of  india  rubber  and  sarra- 
pia.     {24  Encycl.  of  Law,  621.) 

Many  other  equally  pertinent  easily  discerned  facts  in  the  historical 
data  are  brought  into  this  case,  in  the  opinion  of  the  umpire.  It  is  not 
necessary  to  do  more  than  to  refer  to  them  in  this  general  way.  Again, 
it  was  easily  susceptible  of  proof  that  the  respondent  Government 

could  not  sustain  its  contention  that  it  was  without  fault  in  the  prem- 
ises, and  this  is  an  essential  fact  which  must  always  precede  and 

accompany  a  suit  for  rescission  and  without  which  there  must  always 
be  judgment  for  the  defendant. 

In  the  Encycl.  of  PI.  and  Pr.^  vol.  18,  page  752,  there  is  laid  down 
this  general  proposition: 

The  right  to  rascind  belongs  only  to  the  party  who  is  himself  without  default.  Thus,  if  one 

having  sufficient  ground  therefor  wishes  to  avoid  a  contract,  but  has  done  some  act  which 
hinders  performance  by  the  other,  or  has  failed  in  any  way  to  perform  his  own  part  of  the 

stipulations,  his  right  is  thereby  last  to  him. 

What  were  these  defaults  of  the  respondent  Government?  There 
was  the  Colombian  incident  bristling  with  points  along  this  Une;  there 
was  the  decree  of  the  minister  of  hacienda  of  May  17,  1890;  there 
were  the  unrecompensed  requisitions  of  1888  and  1889;  the  decree 
not  disaffirmed,  not  annulled,  of  Governor  Larrazabal,  October  31, 
1888,  an  indisputable  attack  upon  the  terms  of  the  contract;  the 

absorption  of  the  workmen  of  the  company  at  Caura  for  the  national 
defense,  which,  while  proper,  if  necessary  as  an  act  of  sovereignty, 
was  none  the  less  an  attack  upon  the  terms  of  the  contract,  when  the 

Government  is  viewed  in  its  proper  position  as  the  other  party  thereto ; 
its  neglect  to  allot  or  designate  lands  for  immigrants  as  and  when 

requested ;  its  neglect  to  allot  or  designate  lands  for  agricultiu'al  pur- 
poses as  and  when  requested ;  the  traffic  in  india  rubber  entered  into 

by  Governor  d'Aubeterre  in  direct  contravention  of  the  exclusive 
privileges  inherent  in  the  company  under  this  contract,  and  other 
incidents  not  so  important,  which,  taken  together,  add  force  and  value, 
yet  need  not  here  be  brought  forward. 

The  umpire  is  convinced  that  with  these  facts  proven  before  it  the 
high  Federal  court  would  have  rendered  a  judgment  for  the  defendant. 
Certainly  a  courageous  company,  conversant  with  these  facts,  would 
not  have  regarded  the  retention  of  the  contracts  as  a  very  debatable 

proposition,  and  for  that  reason  alone  would  not  have  regarded  them 
as  of  insignificant  value.  This  point  is  adverted  to  only  that  there 

may  be  negatived  any  proposition  that  on  knowledge  of  the  suit  for 
rescission  the  British  company  might  have  refused  to  go  on  with  its 
contract  on  the  terms  agreed  upon.  This  position  of  the  umpire 
does  not  at  all  reflect  upon  the  action  of  the  high  Federal  court, 
which  proceeded  to  pass  its  decree  upon  the  facts  which  were  before 
it  and  upon  a  cause  whose  defense  had  been  abandoned  because  its 
manager  believed  that  in  negotiations  there  existed  the  better  recourse. 
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What  were  the  damages  suffered  by  the  claimant  company  because 

of  the  injury  it  received  through  the  action  of  the  respondent  Govern- 
ment in  reference  to  the  contract  with  the  British  company?  These 

damages  were  substantially  the  value  of  the  concession  at  that  time. 
There  are  minor  matters  which  if  definitely  known  in  character, 
amoimt,  and  value  might  be  considered,  reckoned  with,  and  deducted 
from  this  sum,  but  they  are  left  all  too  vague  to  be  of  evidential  value, 
and  hence  they  are  omitted  from  consideration.  Approximate  equijby 
is  all  that  can  be  required  and  all  that  can  be  gained  from  a  case  so 
indefinite  in  many  of  its  important  facts.  Substantially  the  property 
of  the  company  was  dispersed  and  disposed  of  to  its  entire  loss,  though 
its  inabiUty  was  not  through  any  inherent  weakness  of  its  own,  but 
resulted  from  the  conditions  which  environed  it.  In  1890  it  was  in  a 

situation  to  be  relieved  of  its  indebtedness  through  aid  of  the  British 

company.  The  sovereign  act  of  the  respondent  Government  pre- 
vented this.  There  is  no  inequity  if  that  Government  be  asked  to 

take  up  the  load  just  as  it  was  when  this  act  of  sovereignty  was 
interposed.  The  value  of  the  concession  may  certainly  be  regarded 
as  equivalent  to  the  sum  which  the  British  company  was  about  to 
pay  for  it.  That  sum  was  the  amount  of  its  indebtedness  at  that 
time,  which  was  stated  at  1,636,078.17  francs,  to  which  may  be  added 
25,000  francs,  the  simi  representing  the  expense  attending  the  contract 
with  the  British  company,  which  was  thwarted  by  the  intervention 
of  the  respondent  Government.  This  makes  the  sum  of  1,661,078.17 
francs.  To  this  interest  for  fifteen  years  will  be  added  747,485.18 

francs,  which  is  the  approximate  length  of  time  during  which  this 
sum  has  been  in  default,  making  a  sum  total  of  2,408,563.35  francs, 
for  which  sum  the  award  will  be  drawn. 

These  figures  were  gathered  from  a  statement  made  by  the  liqui- 
dators, L.  Roux,  F.  Vial,  and  A.  Boulissifere  to  the  minister  of  foreign 

affairs  at  Paris,  July  10,  1902.  They  comprise  all  of  the  principal 
sums  there  named,  but  exclusive  of  the  interest  reckoned,  except  the 
charge  for  the  liquidation  bonds,  the  expenses  of  the  Belgian  society, 
and  the  different  expenses,  salaries  of  employees  unpaid  since  1891. 
The  latter  item  falls  outside  of  the  indebtedness  in  1890,  and  the 

umpire  understands  the  same  to  be  true  of  the  liquidation  bonds, 
which  were  for  that  reason  excluded.  The  reason  for  excluding  the 

expenses  of  the  Belgian  society  have  already  been  stated  in  the 
opinion.  This  conclusion  has  the  approval  of  Manager  Delort,  who 
said  to  the  Government  at  Caracas,  November,  1894,  that  it  was  only 
the  indebtedness  of  the  company  which  he  asked  to  have  canceled 
in  order  that  the  honor  of  the  company  and  of  its  shareholders  might 
be  sustained.  Then,  again,  this  claim  may  properly  be  regarded  in 

a  limited  sense  as  of  the  nature  of  a  creditor's  bill,  the  purpose  of 
which  is  to  recover  that  which  is  due  for  the  benefit  of  the  creditors 

that  it  may  be  distributed  pro  rata  among  them,  but  the  controlling 
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reason  is  the  one  stated  in  the  first  instance,  that  it  appears  to  be 
the  value  of  the  property  destroyed  by  the  act  of  the  Government. 

The  umpire  has  considered  the  propriety  and  importance  of  deduct- 
ing from  the  sum  allowed  the  damages  assessed  against  the  company 

in  a  suit  for  rescission;  But  he  can  not  disregard  the  fact  that  the 
respondent  Government  in  its  suit  for  rescission  admitted  the  receipt 

of  148,199.74  bolivars  as  its  share  of  the  products  exported  in  accord- 
ance with  the  rescinded  contracts  and  recovered  its  damages  solely 

on  the  ground  that  the  goods  imported  free  would,  but  for  the  con- 
tracts, have  paid  a  duty  to  the  amount  claimed.  Neither  can  he  fail 

to  consider  that,  except  for  the  rescinded  contracts,  the  respondent 
Government  would  have  received  no  part  of  the  148,199.74  bolivars, 
and  that  no  part  of  the  goods  in  question  would  have  been  imported. 
It  seems,  therefore,  ,e(|uitable  that  the  sum  set  as  damages  against 
the  company  in  the  suit  for  rescission  be  assimilated  in  and  absorbed 
by  the  sums  which  the  respondent  Government  directly  received 
from  the  company  solely  because  of  the  existence  of  said  rescinded 
contracts.  Hence  the  umpire  has  decided  to  make  no  such  deduction 
and  has  therefore  placed  the  award  at  the  amount  above  written. 

NoRTHFiELD,  July  Si,  1905. 



CLAIM  OF  THE  FRENCH  COMPANY  OF  VENEZUELAN  EAIL- 

EOADS.— No.  8.« 

HBAD  NOTES. 

It  was  one  of  the  claims  of  the  cdtnpatiy  that  the  respondent  Govem|pent  should  be  awarded 

to  pay  France  18,483,000;  (1)  on  the  basis  that  it  was  responsible  for  the  company's 
ruin;  (2)  that  the  company  renounce  its  concession  and  abandon  its  enterprise  to  the 
respondent  Government,  including  all  its  properties.  The  umpire  failing  to  find  the 

respondent  Government  responsible  for  the  ruin  of  the  company,  the  sum  claimed  can- 
not be  allowed  upon  that  basis. 

a  EXTRACT  FROM   THE   MINUTES  OF  THE   SITTING   OF   AUGUST  28,  1903. 

The  examination  of  the  claim  of  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads,  presented 

at  the  sitting  of  May  19  last  and  amounting  to  the  sum  of  18,483,000  bolivars,  was  then  taken 

liiid  ̂ rfekich  arbitrator  considering: 
lliat  the  nonexecution  of  the  obligations  contracted  by  the  Venezuelan  Government  with 

the  company  and  the  nonpayment  of  sums  which  it  owed  it  from  the  fact  of  its  engagements, 
and  its  requisitions  carried  on,  has  rendered  the  company  unable  to  continue  its  exploitation; 

That  the  inspection  of  the  line,  of  the  material,  and  of  the  buildings  demonstrates  clearly 

•  that  the  company  had  not  recoiled  before  any  expense  to  assure  excellent  conditions,  the 
service  of  merchandise  and  travelers; 

That  the  examination  of  the  accounts  establishes  that  the  exploitation  would  have  been 

remunerative  in  spite  of  the  obstacles  presented  by  the  civil  war  and  the  inclemencies  of  the 

climate  if  the  Venezuelan  Government  had  paid  over  the  amounts  due  from  it  and  that  con- 
sequently by  the  act  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  the  company  has  been  deprived  of  the 

legitimate  benefits  which  it  had  the  right  to  hope  for; 

That  according  to  the  said  contract  the  Venezuelan  Government  having  accorded  a  guar- 
anty o£7  per  cent  upon  a  kilometric  value  of  300,000  bolivars,  has  itself  implicitly  recognized 

that  the  value  of  the  exploitation  was  18,000,000  bolivars; 

That  the  Venezuelan  Government  seems  to  have  had  the  intention  of  annulling  the  con- 
tract and  of  according  the  concession  to  a  new  enterprise; 

That  the  company's  claim  for  indemnity  for  the  damages  suffered  by  its  maritime  service 
from  Maracaibo  to  Santa  B&rbara  is  perfectly  justified; 

Decides  that  the  Venezuelan  Government  ought  to  pay  to  the  French  Company  of  Vene- 
zuelan Railroads  the  sum  of  18,483,000  bolivars  demanded  by  it,  on  condition  that  the  latter 

renounce  the  concession  of  the  enterprise  and  abandons  to  the  Venezuelan  Govemmc^nt  its 
line,  its  buildings  of  exploitation  and  habitation,  its  stores,  and  its  terrestrial  and  inaritime 

material  in  the  condition  which  they  are  found,  by  means  of  which  payment,  renunciation^ 

and  abandon  the  two  parties  will  be  free  from  all  their  reciprocal  engagements  and  obliga- 
tions. .J. 

The  Venezuelan  arbitrator  considering,  on  the  contrary : 
That  the  true  reasons  for  the  suspension  of  the  exploitation  of  the  line  by  the  company 

are  of  economic  order^  the  latter  having  been  led  to  take  this  resolve  because  of  the  lack  of 
367 
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To  determine  the  other  question,  the  power  of  the  commission  under  the  protocol  of  Feb- 
ruary 19,  1902,  must  be  determined.  He  fails  to  find  such  power,  but  finds  it  limited 

to  providing  indemnities  for  damages  suffered  by  Frenchmen  in  Venezuela.  To  accom- 
plish this,  its  methods  of  procedure  must  not  contravene  the  general  and  established 

principles  of  the  law  of  nations,  nor  its  awards  be  opposed  to  justice  and  equity.  It  is 
given  no  power  to  revoke,  rescind,  modify,  or  limit  the  terms  of  a  contract  to  the 

very  least  degree.  Such  was  not  the  purpose  of  its  creation,  it  was  endowed  with  no 
such  powers.  Were  rescission  or  abandonment  agreed  upon  between  the  claimant 

company  and  the  respondent  Government,  then  it  might  be  competent  for  the  com- 
mission to  establish  the  indemnities  for  such  rescission  or  abandonment. 

The  contracts  in  issue  were  mutual  and  reciprocal,  and  neither  party  can  make  abandonment 
or  rescission  without  the  consent  of  the  other.  The  United  States  of  Venezuela  does 

not  consent.  Therefore  there  can  be  no  abandonment  by  the  claimant  company  of 

its  properties  for  which  redress  can  be  made  compulsory  upon  Venezuela. 

The  commission  is  utter||r  powerless  even  for  good  cause  to  decree  an  unaccepted  or  an  unac- 
ceptable abandonment  by  either  party  of  a  mutual  and  reciprocal  contract,  or  to  award 

an  act  of  rescission  which  has  not,  in  effect,  previously  taken  place. 
This  commission  can  not  order  something  to  be  done  which  would  cause  damage  to  the 

party  obeying  the  order  and  then  award  damages  therefor.  This  would  be  an  injury 
received  posterior  to  the  submission  and  it  would  be  damages  in  fact  suffered  by  the 
claimant  company  in  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  and  at  the  hands  of  the  umpire. 

The  contract  between  the  claimant  company  and  the  respondent  Government  that  all 

doubts  and  controversies  arising  from  that  contract  should  be  resolved  by  the  compe- 
tent tribunals  of  the  respondent  Government  can  not  be  entirely  ignored.  No  more 

serious  doubt  can  be  resolved  than  that  involved  in  the  question  of  rescission  and  noth- 
ing could  more  clearly  arise  out  of  the  contract  itself  than  such  a  question.  A  claim 

for  damage  may  be  regarded  as  ulterior  to  the  contract  especially  where  the  damage 
has  accrued  from  the  operation  of  the  parties  under  the  contract;  not  so  the  question 
of  rescission. 

traffic  due  to  the  troubled  state  of  the  country  and  by  the  impossibility  in  which  its  bad 

financial  position  had  placed  it  of  obtaining  new  funds  necessary  to  make  repairs  for  dam- 
ages caused  by  the  inclemency  of  the  weather  to  a  line  established  under  unfavorable  condi- 

tions; 

That  the  Venezuelan  Government  could  be  held  responsible  neither  for  damages  caused  to 
the  material  of  exploitation  by  a  voluntary  abandonment  nor  for  those  suffered  from  the 

fact  of  the  troubled  condition  to  the  country  or  of  accidents  of  war; 

That  the  arrangement  entered  into  by  the  company  with  the  Venezuelan  Government  on 
the  subject  of  the  guaranty  stipulated  in  the  contract  has  been  entirely  carried  out  and  that 
the  company  has  received  the  sums  accruing  from  the  sale  of  the  bonds  which  have  been 
remitted  to  it  in  execution  of  the  said  arrangement; 

That  the  Venezuelan  Government  has  never  refused  to  reimburse  the  company  for  the 
requisitions  and  damages  caused  by  them  to  the  material,  and  that  the  impossibility  in 
which  it  finds  itself  of  making  this  reimbursement  as  the  result  of  the  penury  of  the  treasury 
in  the  course  of  the  civil  war  obliges  it  only  to  pay  interest  after  demand; 

Decides  that  the  claim  of  the  company  is  without  foundation. 
It  recognizes  only  the  right  to  an  indemnity  of  10,000  bolivars  for  damages  done  to  their 

steamer  Santa  Bdrhara  during  the  time  when  it  was  requisitioned,  and  reserves  for  it  the 

privilege  of  claiming  from  the  Venezuelan  Government,  by  presenting  the  necessary  proofs, 

the  sums  due  for  the  requisitions,  with  interest  corresponding.  It  equally  reserves  the  right 
of  the  Venezuelan  Government  to  claim  for  the  fact  of  the  abandonment  of  tfee  exploitation. 

Consequently,  after  a  short  discussion,  it  is  agreed  that  the  claim  of  the  French  Company 
of  Venezuelan  Railroads  shall  be  submitted  to  the  examination  of  the  third  ̂ bitrator. 



OPINION    OF    VENEZUELAN    COMMISSIONER.  369 

The  protocol  of  February  19, 1902,  concerning  itself  only  in  the  question  of  damages  suffered 

by  Frenchmen  in  Venezuela,  can  in  no  sense  be  regarded  as  a  claim  on  the  part  of 
France  or  consent  on  the  part  of  Venezuela  that  these  restrictive  features  of  a  contract 

ar*)  to  be  abandoned  when  it  affects  questions  Hke  the  one  here  being  Considered.  Nor 
does  it  in  any  way  tend  to  give  the  power  to  rescind  were  no  such  restrictive  features  to 
be  found.  It  being  determined  therefore  by  the  umpire  that  he  can  not  declare  or 

direct  rescission  or  abandonment,  but  can  only  settle  the  question  of  damages  which  had 

been  suffered  by  Frenchmen  in  Venezuela  where  he  finds  responsibility  in  the  respond- 
ent  Government,  it  follows  that  the  second  basis  for  the  claim  of  18,483,000  francs  fails, 
and  the  award  can  not  be  made  for  such  sum. 

Neither  is  the  claim  of  the  company  considered  sound  that  the  contract  of  April  18,  1896, 

'  should  be  declared  void  in  equity  for  want  of  adequate  consideration,  as  l)eing  made 
against  the  desire  of  the  company,  and  under  irresistible  compulsion  of  circumstances 
which  were  availed  of  by  the  respondent  Government  to  drive  an  unconscionable  and 

bard  bargain,  for  the  umpire  finds  a  consideration,  also  an  apparent  desire  on  the  part 
of  the  company  to  make  the  contract,  and  does  not  find  the  compulsion  of  circumstances 
which  is  referred  to  and  claimed  by  the  company.  The  transaction  was  oi>en,  the 
negotiations  lengthy,  the  time  for  reflections  ample,  and  the  action  of  the  company 
taken  under  circumstances  which  permitted  entire  freedom  of  will  and  of  conduct. 

Courts  are  loath  to  interfere  where  there  is  an  executed  contract,  where  there  are  lacking, 

the  elements  of  fraud  or  mistake,  and  where  it  rests  in  fact  upon  the  mutual  assent  of 

parties  intelligent,  competent,  and  free  to  contract.  It  is  also  negatively  held  by  the 

umpire,  becausQ  the  company  appropriated  the  fund  paid  it  in  redemption  by  the  Grov- 
emment  after  a  great  length  of  time  and  opportunity  for  observation,  investigation,  and 

reflection,  thus  placing  itself  in  a  situation  where  It  could  not  restore  the  status  quo  by 
returning  the  funds. 

It  is  also  held  negatively,  because  there  is  no  offer  to  restore,  and  if  there  were  offer  to  re- 
store, this  commission  under  the  protocol  has  no  power  to  compel  its  acceptance. 

The  claimant  company  was  compelled  by  force  majeure  to  desist  from  its  exploitation  in  1899. 

The  respondent  Government  from  the  same  cause  was  prevented  from  paying  its  indebt- 
edness to  the  claimant  company.  This  was  the  sole  cause  of  the  acts  and  neglects  of 

the  respondent  Government.  Its  first  duty  was  to  itself.  Its  own  preservation  was 

paramount.     It  had  revenues  only  sufficient  to  that  end. 
The  respondent  Government  is  not  chargeable  with  the  loss  which  came  to  the  company 

through  the  confusion  and  havoc  of  war,  or  because  there  were  none  to  ride  and  no  prod- 
ucts to  be  transported.  This  was  a  part  of  the  assumed  risks  of  the  company  when  it 

entered  upon  its  exploitation.  Such  possible  disordered  conditions  of  a  country  are  all 
discounted  in  advance  by  one  who  enters  it  for  recreation  or  business. 

There  is  no  question  as  to  the  liability  of  the  respondent  Government  for  the  natural  and 

consequential  damages  which  resulted  to  the  railroad  properties  while  they  were  in  the 
use  and  control  of  the  titular  government.  There  is  unquestioned  responsibility  on 

the  part  of  the  respondent  Government  for  all  the  necessary  and  consequential  injuries 
which  resulted  to  the  railroads  and  its  properties  when  used  by  either  the  successful 
revolutionary  or  the  then  contending  governmental  forces. 

OPINION  OF  THE   VENEZTTELAN  COMMISSIONER. 

Mr.  Albert  Reynaud,  deputy  administrator  of  the  '^  Compafila 
Francesa  de  Ferrocarriles  Venezolanos/^  in  a  communication  which  he 
addressed  to  his  excellency  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  France, 
dated  the  21st  of  January,  1901,  introduced  before  said  department 

S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   24 
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the  claim  which  is  the  object  of  this  opinion,  in  the  following  form  and 
terms : 

As  we  liad  apprehended,  during  the  fifteen  months  which  have  just  elapsed  since  we  were 

compelled  by  the  revolutionary  events  to  suspend  our  exploitation,  and  our  last  resources 
being  already  exhausted,  the  tropical  temperature  and  depredations  of  the  inhabitants  have 

almost  completely  dejstroyed  our  railway  and  our  immovables;  our  bridges  have  been  carried 
away  by  the  waters ;  the  rails  have  been  broken  or  twisted  by  the  falling  of  the  trees  and  the 

intensity  of  vegetation :  our  warehouses  and  deposits  of  materials  have  fallen  down  or  are 

seriously  deteriorated;  our  rolling  stock,  deprived  of  any  care,  has  rusted  and  rotted. 
Of  our  three  steam  vessels,  one  was  used  as  target  by  the  combatants  of  the  two  parties 

and  sunk;  the  second  had  sustained  serious  damage  whilst  at  the  service  of  the  Government 
of  Maracaibo,  and  we  have  just  sold  it  for  the  twentieth  part  of  what  it  had  cost  us;  the  third 
and  at  the  same  time  the  most  important  has  remained  useless  since  several  months  past,  and 
we  have  not  been  able  to  repair  it  for  lack  of  resources.  It  must  be  in  deplorable  condition, 
which  would  require  large  expense  to  put  it  in  order. 

It  would  at  present  be  impossible  for  us  to  value  the  extent  of  the  damage  we  have  sus- 
tained and  still  more  to  estimate  the  cost  of  its  repairs. 

The  Venezuelan  authorities,  whether  or  not  legally  constituted,  have  ruined  us  by  their 

proceedings  during  these  last  years  and  especially  during  these  last  eighteen  months. 
From  a  financial  point  of  view,  they  have  compelled  us,  through  threats  of  grievous  cruelty 

and  imprisonment  of  our  agents,  to  employ  only  at  their  service  the  last  resources  of  our 
company. 

From  a  commercial  and  industrial  point  of  view,  they  have  placed  us  in  the  impossibility 
of  carrying  on  our  double  exploitation  of  the  railway  and  the  steamers  by  violently  taking 

possession  of  our  material  and  our  personnel. 
In  fact,  said  authorities  have  arbitrarily  dispossessed  us  of  our  rights  and  of  our 

property. 
We  shall  not  be  able  to  prevent  them  from  retaining  what  they  have  taken  from  us  or 

deteriorated,  but  we  consider  it  to  l>e  conformable  to  the  most  vulgar  equity  that  they 
reimburse  to  us  its  market  value. 

To  fix  that  value  we  could  not  make  a  more  moderate  and  less  discussable  estimation 

than  the  one  the  Venezuelan  authorities  themselves  have  fixed  in  their  Congress  of  1891. 

By  tlie  concession  granted  us  by  the  Venezuelan  Government  the  latter  thought  it  its 
duty  to  assign  to  us  an  interest  guaranty  of  7  per  cent  on  a  capital  of  300,000  francs  per 
kilometer.  The  length  of  our  line  was  60  kilometers;  the  estimation  of  the  value  of  our 

railway  amounted,  therefore,  according  to  that  calculation,  to  18,000,000  francs.  That  sum 
Venezuela  owes  us  for  the  railway. 

It  also  owes  us  an  indemnity  for  the  loss  or  detention  of  our  vessels.  (This  indemnity  the 

company  has  fixed,  of  late,  at  the  sum  of  483,000  francs.) 
We  again  apply,  Monsieur  le  Ministre,  to  your  high  and  powerful  intervention  to  obtain 

from  the  Venezuelan  authorities  the  payment  of  that  sum,  reduced  to  its  minimum.  We  .do 

not  think  wc  must  insist  upon  the  importance  which  that  restitution  has  for  the  Ti-ench 
holders  of  our  shares.  You  know  the  sad  situations  through  which  our  company  has  passed 
since  its  creation.  We  ask,  however,  that  you  should  allow  us  to  tell  you  the  present 
moment  is,  in  our  judgment,  the  most  opportune  to  act.  The  Government  of  General 

Castro,  according  to  the  latest  news,  desires,  it  appears,  to  reorganize  the  Venezuelan  credit. 
The  Gennan  and  American  authorities  have  expressed  and  continue  to  express  their  will 

to  cause  their  subjects  and  citizens  to  be  paid  what  is  owed  them. 
We  do  not  doubt  but  that  the  French  Government  will  act  in  the  same  manner. 

In  the  foregoing  statement  the  facts  are  summarized  upon  which 

the  demand  of  indemnity  against  Venezuela  rests,  as  well  as  the  man- 
ner in  which  the  amount  of  that  liability  with  reference  to  f^e  railwa^^ 

has  l)een  appreciated;  and  regarding  the  steamers  that  were  at  the 
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service  of  the  company  the  indemnity  is  based  on  the  primitive  cost 
of  said  vessels,  deducting  the  sum  of  11,100  francs  which  the  company 
received  for  the  sale  of  two  of  said  steamers,  the  Reliance  and  the 
Santa  Bdrbaru, 

The  representative  of  the  Venezuelan  Government,  in  his  reply  to  the 
foregoing  claim,  denies  any  proving  force  to  the  documents  presented 
by  the  company,  as  it  only  consists  in  a  statement  of  facts  which  the 

company  itself  narrates  without  any  proof  of  the  veracity  of  its  asser- 
tions; and  said  documents,  on  the  other  hand,  far  from  being  favorable 

to  the  company,  offer,  on  the  contrary,  sufficient  merits  to  support 

very  serious  chaises  against  the  said  enterprise  for  not  having  com- 
plied with  the  obligations  it  contracted  and  for  the  abandonment  of 

the  railway  without  any  reason  that  might  justify  a  measure  of  such  a 
significance,  which  latter  fact  renders  it  responsible  for  the  losses 

deriving  therefrom  to  the  commerce  of  the  regions  which  the  Govern- 
ment intended  to  benefit  by  the  railway  concession  in  question. 

The  agent  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  refers  in  his  reply  to  the 

technical  report  presented  by  Drs.  F.  Arroyo-Parejo  and  Ocanto,  which 
was  formulated  in  the  very  field  and  by  order  of  the  national  executive 

in  December  of  last  year,  appreciating  that  said  report  shows  clearly 
and  scientifically  that  the  larger  part  of  the  losses  sustained  by  said 
company  are  due  to  the  bad  construction  of  the  line  in  the  first  place, 
and  then  to  the  abandonment  of  it,  which  facts  are  proved  by  the 
official  documents  produced  by  the  Government  and  excluding  any 

responsibility  on  its  part;  that  what  he  has  said  of  the  line  must  be 
applied  to  the  steamers  the  company  had  at  its  service,  for  the  losses 
claimed  for  that  respect  are  due  to  causes  imputable  to  the  claimant, 
which  abandoned  the  exploitation  without  a  reason  warrantable  in 
law  and  without  taking  into  consideration  the  prejudice  which  by  so 
inconsiderate  a  step  it  had  to  cause  to  the  other  contracting  party, 
which  up  to  the  present  has  reserved  to  itself  the  action  which  pertains 
to  it  in  law  to  legally  claim  the  same ;  that  regarding  the  other  losses 
which  the  company  says  it  sustained  on  account  of  facts  imputable  to 

armed  factions  and  enemies  of  the  public  order  raised  against  the  law- 
ful authority  of  the  Government,  it  is  a  question  determined  in  accord- 

ance with  the  principles  of  international  law  that  lawfully  constituted 
Governments  which  have  endeavored  by  all  the  means  at  their  disposal 
to  reestablish  order  and  energetically  to  affirm  their  authority  are  not 
responsible  for  such  prejudice,  and  in  conclusion  the  representative  of 
the  Government  of  Venezuela  argues  that  the  claiming  company  itself 
is  the  cause  of  the  prejudice  which  it  says  to  have  sustained  and  of 
those  which  by  the  abandonment  of  the  concession  it  has  caused  to 
Venezuela. 

The  points  debated  in  this  claim  having  been  fixed,  it  pertains  to 
this  tribimal  to  examine  the  facts  that  may  appear  proved  and  to 
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estal)lish  the  responsibilities  which  those  facts  may  originate  as  sources 

of  obligations  reciprocally  affecting  the  parties  interested  in  this  issue. 
The  Congress  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela,  by  law  of  the  3d  of 

August,  1888,  gave  its  approval  to  the  contract  concluded  in  Caracas 
on  the  25th  of  July,  1887,  between  the  minister  of  public  works  and 

the  Duke  of  Morny,  which  had  for  its  object  the  construction  of  a  rail- 
way from  M6rida  to  the  Lake  pf  Maracaibo,  canalizing  the  rivers 

Chamas  and  Escalante,  or  some  other  navigable  river.  By  article  10 
of  said  contract  and  in  accordance  with  the  law  on  the  matter,  the 

Government  of  Venezuela  guaranteed  the  7  per  cent  of  the  capital  that 
the  contractor,  his  assigns,  or  successors  should  issue  in  bonds,  shares, 
or  obligations  in  representation  of  the  capital  of  the  company. 

On  the  13th  of  August,  1888,  Gen.  Guzm&n  Blanco,  envoy  extra- 
ordinary and  minister  plenipotentiary  of  Venezuela  in  Paris,  concluded 

with  the  Duke  of  Morny  an  amplification  of  said  contract,  and  by 
article  1  of  said  amplification  it  was  agreed  upon  that  the  railway  from 
M6rida  to  the  Lake  of  Maracaibo  woidd  be  divided  into  two  sections — 
the  first,  starting  from  the  point  on  the  Escalante  River  which  the 

concessionary  would  determine  and  developing  in  a  length  of  60  kilo- 
meters in  the  direction  of  M6rida;  and  the  second  section,  starting  from 

the  terminal  point  of  the  first  up  to  the  city  of  M6rida.  By  article  4  it 
was  agreed  upon  that  on  the  opening  of  the  first  section  of  60  kilometers 
to  the  exploitation  the  guaranty  provided  for  would  be  definitively 

acquired  by  that  first  part  of  the  line;  by  article  7  it  remained  estab- 
lished that  the  Government  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  guar- 

anteed the  7  per  cent  of  the  capital  of  the  company,  which  capital 
remained  from  that  moment  fixed  at  300,000  bolivars  per  kilometer 
for  the  60  kilometers  of  the  first  section  and  at  350,000  boUvars  for 
each  kilometer  of  the  second  section. 

By  a  commimication  which  the  same  Gen.  Guzm&n  Blanco  addressed 
on  the  9th  of  November,  1888,  to  the  minister  of  public  works,  this 

official  was  notified  that  the  Duke  of  Morny  had  on  the  28th  of  Sep- 

tember of  the  same  year  transferred  to  the  ''Compagnie  Franpaise  de 
Chemins  de  Fer  V6n6zu61iens "  the  rights  which  the  contract  of  the 
25th  of  July,  1887,  vested  in  him. 

The  Congress  of  Venezuela  approved  on  the  18th  of  June,  1891,  the 
contract  concluded  by  the  minister  of  public  works  on  the  16th  of 

April,  1891,  with  Mr.  Charles  Weber,  the  representative  of  the  ''Com- 
pagnie  Fran^aise  de  Chemins  de  Fer  V6n6zu6liens,''  modifying  that 
of  the  25th  of  July,  1887,  which  modification  contains  the  three  follow- 

ing articles :  ^ 
Article  1.  The  concession  shall  remain  confined  to  the  first  section  of  sixty  kilometers, 

which  will  extend  from  Santa  Barbara  to  the  high  road,  at  a  point  one  kilometer  distant 
from  La  Vigia,  where  the  line  will  terminate. 

Art.  2.  The  payment  of  the  guarantee  shall  be  made  at  the  close  of  each  quarter  of  exploi- 
tation in  accordance  with  the  primitive  contracts.    The  sum  owed  to  the  company  shall  be 
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calculated  at  the  rate  of  7  per  cent  on  the  sum  fixed  in  the  contract  of  the  13th  of  August, 

1888,  after  deducting  the  net  profits  realized  by  the  exploitation.  These  profits  will  be  the 

net  proceeds  of  the  receipts  of  any  kind  that  the  exploitation  of  the  railway  may  obtain 

after  deducting  the  general  expense  of  the  company  and  the  exploitation  expense. 
Art.  3.  The  sums  that  shall  be  paid  £b  the  company  by  way  of  interest  guarantee  will 

constitute  but  advances  which  the  Government  of  Venezuela  has  a  right  to  be  reimbursed,  as 

follows:  When  the  profits  realized  by  the  company  in  the  exploitation  of  the  railway  will 

exceed  the  7  per  cent  on  the  capital  guaranteed,  the  Government  will  have  one-half  of  the 
surplus  until  the  entire  reimbursement  of  its  advances;  when  the  Government  shall  have 
been  reimbursed  said  advances,  it  will  continue  to  participate  in  the  profits  to  which  this 

article  refers  until  completing  the  20  per  cent  thereof. 

The  company  also  obtained  by  said  concession  exemptions  of  duties 
for  the  importation  of  all  its  material,  machines,  implements,  and 
other  things  necessary  for  the  construction  and  exploitation  of  the 
railway,  and  in  fee  simple  a  zone  of  500  meters  of  land  on  each  side  of 

the  line  of  the  one  pertaining  to  the  nation  without  any  indemnifica- 
tion; it  was,  moreover,  granted  it  that  the  wood  necessary  to  the  com- 
pany for  the  construction  works  of  the  line  might  be  freely  taken  in 

the  national  woods  and  that  the  company  would  not,  at  any  time,  be 
biu'dened  with  national  or  State  taxes.  There  was  also  secured  to  the 

company  by  said  contract  the  exploitation  and  enjoyment  of  the  reve- 
nue of  the  enterprise  during  ninety-nine  years,  at  the  end  of  which  it 

was  to  become  with  all  its  appurtenances  the  property  of  the  nation 

without  any  indemnification.  In  return  the  company  agreed  to  termi- 
nate the  work  undertaken  within  a  term  of  two  years  from  the  13  th  of 

August,  1888,  excepting  that  a  compensation  would  be  given,  if  nec- 
essary, for  loss  of  time  occasioned  by  main  force;  to  transport  the  mail 

free  of  charge,  and,  for  one-half  of  the  tariff  price,  which  would  be 
estabUshed,  the  employees  on  commission,  the  military  officers  on  service 
and  the  troops  and  war  ammunitions. 

The  ̂ ^Compagnie  Fran^ise  de  Chemins  de  Fer  V6n6zu61iens^^  was 
constituted  in  Paris  on  the  28th  of  September,  1888,  with  a  share 
capital  of  300,000  francs,  the  Duke  of  Momy  contributing  thereto  the 
railway  concession  to  which  the  above  contracts  refer. 

The  construction  of  the  railway,  from  the  port  of  Santa  Barbara  to 

the  inland  having  been  imdertaken  early  in  January,  1889,  as  appears 
from  a  note  addressed  by  the  president  of  the  company,  under  date  of 
the  3d  of  January,  1880,  to  Gen.  Guzmto  Blanco,  the  works  went  on 
with  frequent  interruptions  and  serious  irregularities,  such  as  the 
freshet  of  the  Escalante  River  in  January,  1890,  which  complete^ 

inundated  all  the  works  of  the  line,  its  w^arehouses,  deposits  of  materials 
and  offices  at  Santa  Barbara,  compelling  the  company  to  abscilutely 
suspend  the  works. 

The  report  presented  on  that  account  by  Mr.  A.  Lacasette,  chief 
engineer  of  the  railway,  to  the  ministry  of  pubUc  works,  found  on  pages 

126  and  136  of  the  piece  of  records  No.  1  of  the  papers  which  said  min- 
ister has  handed  to  this  commission  for  its  examination,  details,  in  all 
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its  extent,  the  damage  caused  by  the  said  inundation,  and  concludes  by 
asking  for  an  extension  of  one  year  to  comply  with  the  engagement 
contracted  by  the  company,  which  extension  was  granted  by  the 
Government. 

By  the  month  of  March,  1891,  according  to  the  report  of  the 
inspector  of  the  railway,  transmitted  by  the  President  of  the  State  of 
Maracaibo,  with  a  note  addressed  to  the  minister  of  public  works,  the 

locomotive  arrived  at  the  site  called  ''Los  Canitos,*'  distant  50  kilome- 
ters more  or  less  from  the  Santa  Barbara  station,  the  starting  point. 

On  the  30th  of  September,  1891,  according  to  a  telegram  addressed 

by  the  same  inspector  to  the  ministry  of  public  works,  it  was  conamu- 
nicated  that  the  locomotives  had  arrived  at  kilometer  56,  but  soon 

after,  in  the  month  of  October  of  the  same  year,  according  to  report 
subscribed  by  the  chief  engineer  of  the  line,  Mr.  Curau,  inserted  on 
page  66  of  the  piece  of  records  No.  1  bis,  a  great  flood  produced  by  the 
swells  of  Caiionegro  River  made  the  water  fall  on  the  railway  line  on  a 
width  of  more  than  2  kilometers,  and  on  account  of  their  extreme 

violence  the  currents  destroyed  everything  on  the  way  and  covered  the 

distance  from  49.50  to  51.60  kilometers  up  to  a  height  of  50  centime- 
ters and  more.  In  said  report  it  is  added  that  the  inundation  also 

threatened  the  Cafionegro  station,  the  one  that  was  established  on  the 
highest  land  and  on  which  many  installations  had  been  made.  It  was 
impossible  to  save  a  train  formed  by  a  locomotive  and  three  platforms. 
This  situation  forced  the  company  to  suspend  the  exploitation  beyond 
kilometer  48,  it  only  remaining  between  Santa  Barbara  and  Los 
Canitos. 

In  a  telegram  of  the  21st  of  the  same  month  the  inspector  annoimces 
to  the  minister  of  public  works  that  the  inundation  having  continued 
with  heavier  force,  the  Cafionegro  station  had  disappeared,  as  well  as 
the  locomotive  that  was  there,  the  whole  space  being  now  converted 
into  a  marsh  with  very  powerful  current. 

The  works  of  reconstruction  at  50  to  53  kilometers,  which  were  inun- 

dated, lasted,  according  to  the  reports  and  returns  sent  by  the  com- 
pany to  the  ministry  of  public  works,  until  the  month  of  August,  1892, 

there  having  arrived  at  the  La  Vigia  station,  on  the  28th  of  July  of  the 
same  year,  a  train  that  inaugurated  the  traffic  between  the  initial 
station  a^  Santa  Barbara  and  the  terminal  station  at  kilometer  60. 

The  company  being  unable  to  pay  in  November,  1892,  the  coupon 

of  the  obligations  it  had  contracted  to  meet  the  expense  of  the  estab- 
lishment of  the  enterprise,  asked  for  the  benefit  of  the  French  law  of 

the  4th  of  May,  1889,  and  obtained  the  appointment  of  a  judicial 
liquidator.  At  the  same  time,  and  having  had  to  «nter  into  new 

engagements  with  the  Tives-Lille  Company  and  Dyle  &  Bacalan  Works 
Company  (Limited),  it  was  owing  said  company,  according  to  the 
balance  of  the  29th  of  October,  1892,  the  sum  of  864,482.69  francs.  In 
the  impossibility  to  meet  this  debt,  it  asked  for  an  agreement  with  its 
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creditors,  proposing  the  exchange  of  the  old  obligations  for  an  equiva- 
lent number  of  the  new  ones^  to  which  the  distribution  of  the  assets 

would  entitle  them,  or,  in  esse  of  the  nonacceptance  of  that  proposal, 

the  payment  of  the  20  per  cent  of  their  credits  in  fifty  annuities. 
Besides,  it  was  proposed  that  the  contractors  of  the  construction,  the 
only  creditors  of  the  company  besides  the  bondholders,  would  be 
entitled  to  receive  as  many  new  obligations  as  the  amount  of  their 
chirographic  credit  would  contain,  382.25  francs.  This  agreement 
having  been  approved,  the  liabilities  of  the  company  were  represented, 

according  to  the  balance  of  the  31st  of  December,  1893,  in  the  follow- 
ing manner: 

Francs. 

Shares       3, 000, 000. 00 

Obligations: 
Francs. 

1,811  old  ones          905,500 
42,757  new  ones   21,  378,  500 

     22,284,000.00 

Sundry  debts    40, 979. 31 

To-order  accounts    42, 392. 15 
Guarantee  owed  by  the  Venezuelan  Government  from  the  1st  of  April,  1892, 

to  the  31st  of  December,  1893       2,205,000.00 

Interest  due  up  to  the  31st  of  December,  1893  (obligations)       1, 781,  541. 60 

Total   29,353,913.12 

On  the  1st  of  May,  1893,  the  official  inauguration  of  the  railway 

from  Santa  Barbara  to  La  Vigia,  ordered  by  the  Government  of  Vene- 
zuela, took  place,  end  the  exploitation  service  of  the  whole  line,  which 

had  not  undergone  any  interruption  during  the  administrative  year  of 
1893,  was  violently  interrupted  about  the  close  of  the  month  of  April, 

1894,  by  the  earthquake  which  occurred  in  that  region.  The  extraor- 
dinary violence  of  the  seismic  phenomenon  caused  the  line  to  be 

injured  through  the  fall  of  large  trees,  and  the  superposed  works,  as 
bridges  and  buildings,  to  be  destroyed,  and  the  traffic  entirely 

piralyzed. 

It  was  necessary  at  any  price  to  remedy  without  delay  this  situation,  for,  if  the  railway 
was  left  in  such  a  condition,  the  power  of  vegetation  in  Venezuela  and  the  action  of  the 
tropical  rains  would  speedily  entirely  destroy  it  and  render  any  construction  very  difficult. 

The  available  resources  being  insufficient,  a  loan  is  indispensable. 
Consequently,  we  have  at  once  convened  the  gentlemen  commissaries  for  the  execution  of 

the  agreement  and  obtained  from  them,  as  the  representatives  of  the  bondholders,  the 
authorization  to  contract  for  an  effective  loan  for  300,000  francs,  which  sum  was  considered 

by  common  accord  as  the  maximum  for  the  reestablishment  of  the  exploitation.  Accx)rding  to 
the  data  furnished  by  the  direction  in  Venezuela,  we  therefore  propose  to  create  bonds  for  a 

nominal  value  of  500  francs  each,  bearing  interest  at  the  rate  of  6  per  cent,  which  bonds 

shall  be  redeemed  within  the  maximum  term  of  ten  years.  {Rapport  du  Conseil  d' Admin- 
istration, 189^.) 

The  debt  contracted  by  the  company  to  make  the  repairs  occa- 
sioned by  the  earthquake  of  1894  did  not  confine  itself  to  the  sum  of 

300,000  francs,  which  had  been  considered  as  the  rrmximum,  but 
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ascended  to  2,000,000  francs,  ls  appearing  from  the  following  para- 
graphs of  the  report  of  the  administration  council  corresponding  to  the 

year  of  1897: 

We  shall  remind  you,  gentlemen,  of  the  fact  that,  on  account  of  the  earthquake  of  1894  and 
of  numerous  inundations  which  were  the  consequence  thereof,  our  railway  sustained  from 
1895  to  1897  considerable  damage,  and  we  saw  ourselves  compelled,  in  order  to  raise  the 

resources  necessary  for  those  repairs,  to  create  privileged  bonds  bearing  interest  at  the  rate 
of  6  per  cent  a  year,  free  from  taxes  and  redeemable  within  ten  years  at  the  latest. 

The  creation  and  issue  of  4,000  of  those  bonds,  which  constitute  the  privileged  debt  of  a 

nominal  value  of  2,000,000  francs,  have  been  successively  authorized  by  you. 

The  balance  presented  on  the  31st  of  December,  1897,  offers  for 
that  date  the  following  situation : 

Liabilities. 
Francs. 

Shares    3,000,000.00 

Obligations  (44,569)    22,284,500.00 

6  per  cent  ten-year  bonds  (4,000)    2, 000, 000. 00 

Sundry  creditors'  accounts    102, 403. 09 
Interest  owed  to  bondholders  on  the  31st  of  December,  1896    6, 235, 175. 00 

Total    33,622,078.09 

On  the  18th  of  April,  1896,  between  the  citizen  minister  of  public 
works  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela,  sufficiently  authorized  by  the 

President  of  the  Republic,  and  with  the  vote  of  the  Government  coun- 
cil, on  the  one  part,  and  Mr.  Charles  Weber,  representative  of  the 

^'Compagnie  Fran^aise  de  Chemins  de  Fer  V6n6zu61iens,'^  according  to 
a  power  of  attorney  executed  before  the  notary  Dufour  and  his  col- 

league, of  Paris,  on  the  21st  day  of  March,  1898,  on  the  other  part,  a 
contract  was  entered  into  concerning  the  payment  and  redemption  of 
the  7  per  cent  guaranty,  the  preliminaries  and  definitive  provisions  of 
which  are  as  follows : 

6597. 

Contract  entered  into  on  the  18th  of  April,  1896,  between  the  Grovemment  of  the  United 

States  of  Venezuela  and  Mr.  Charles  Weber,  representative  of  the  "Compagnie  Franyaise  de 

Chemins  de  Fer  V^n^zu^liens,"  concerning  the  payment  and  redemption  of  the  7  per  cent 
guaranty. 

Between  the  citizen  minister  of  public  works  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela,  suflB- 

ciently  authorized  by  the  citizen  President  of  the  Republic,  and  with  the  vote  of  the  Govern- 

ment council  on  the  one  part,  and  Mr.  Charles  Weber,  representative  of  the  "Compagnie 
Fran^aise  de  Chemins  de  Fer  V^n^zu^liens,'*  hereinafter  called  "the  company,"  according 
to  a  power  of  attorney  executed  before  the  notary  Dufour  and  his  colleague,  of  Paris,  on  the 
21st  of  March,  1891,  which,  duly  legalized  and  translated,  is  hereto  annexed,  the  following 
contract  has  been  concluded: 

PRELIMINARIES. 

(a)  By  a  contract  of  the  25th  of  July,  1887,  entered  into  between  the  National  Govern- 
ment and  the  Duke  of  Momy ,  and  afterwards  approved  by  the  National  Congress,  on  the  30th 

July,  1888,  the  nation  granted  to  him  the  right  to  build  a  railway  from  M^rida  to  the  lake  of 
Maracaibo,  the  Government  guaranteeing  the  7  per  cent  on  the  capital  that  the  contractor, 

his  assigns  or  successors,  should  emit  in  bonds,  shares,  or  obligations,  and  which  would  rep- 
resent the  capital  of  the  company. 
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(b)  On  the  13th  of  August  of  the  same  year  the  minister  plenipotentiary  of  Venezuela  in 

Europe  made  some  reformations  in  the  above-mentioned  contract,  among  which  the  one 

that  the  total  line  of  the  railway  remained  divided  into  two  sections,  namely:  the  first,  start- 
ing from  a  point  on  the  Escalant^  River,  at  the  discretion  of  the  concessionary,  thence  to  pro- 

ceed in  the  direction  of  M^rida  on  an  extent  of  60  kilometers;  and  the  second,  starting  from 

the  point  where  the  first  terminates  and  proceeding  from  thence  to  the  city  of  M^rida.  And 

by  this  same  contract  of  explanation  and  amplifications  the  guaranty  of  7  per  cent  was  fixed 
on  a  capital  of  300,000  bolivars  per  kilometer  of  the  first  section  and  of  340,000  bolivars  per 
kilometer  of  the  second.  This  contract  was  approved  by  the  Federal  council  on  the  30th  of 
November  of  the  same  year. 

(c)  By  a  contract  of  the  17th  of  June,  1891,  reforming'those  of  the  25th  of  July,  1887,  and 
13th  of  August,  1888,  above  cited,  the  company,  as  the  cessionary  of  the  railway  from  M^rida 

to  the  lake  of  Maracaibo,  stipulated  with  the  National  Government:  First,  that  said  conces- 

sion would  remain  confined  to  the  first  section,  to  which  the  reformation  of  the  primitive  con- 

tract refers,  according  to  paragraph  b — i.  e.,  60  kilometers  from  Santa  Barbara  to  a  point 
distant  1  kilometer  from  El  Vigia;  second,  that  the  payment  of  the  7  per  cent  guaranty 

would  be  made  quarterly  on  the  sum  of  18,000,000  bolivars,  fixed  as  the  price  of  that  section, 
according  to  the  contract  of  the  13th  of  August,  1888. 

Bolivars, 
(d)  The  company  claims  from  the  National  Government  for  guaranty  due 

until  the  31st  of  December,  1895    4,725,000.00 

And,  besides,  for  damage  and  other  motives,  the  following  items:  Insuffi- 
ciency of  exploitation,  according  to  returns  and  notes         396, 921. 75 

Damage  sustained  on  account  of  the  forcible  conscription  of  the  laborers  of 

the  company         525, 509. 57 
Requisitions  according  to  voucher           96, 320. 00 

Damage  and  prejudices  through  nonpayment  of  the  7  per  cent  guaranty, 

which  occasioned  an  emission  of  2,616  ''obligations,"  supplementary,  of 
500  francs  each     1,  308, 000. 00 

which  forms  a  total  of   7, 051, 751.  32 

(Seven  million  fifty-one  thousand  seven  hundred  and  fifty-one  bolivars  and  thirty-two 
centimes.) 

The  Government  has  rejected  the  claim  of  the-guaranty  during  the  time  elapsed  from  the 
1st  of  April,  1892  (at  which  date  the  line  could  have  been  opened  to  traffic,  if  it  had  not  been 
for  the  forcible  conscription  of  the  laborers),  to  the  1st  of  May,  1893,  the  date  of  the  official 
inauguration;  and  it  has  likewise  rejected  the  claim  of  the  sum  of  two  million  three  hundred 

and  twenty-six  thousand  seven  hundred  and  fifty-one  bolivars  and  thirty-two  centimes 
(2,326,751.32  bolivars),  to  which  the  items  of  insufficiency,  damage,  etc.,  above  mentioned 
refer. 

The  company,  although  sustaining  in  principle  the  equity  of  the  claims  it  has  formulated, 
is  willing  to  make  important  concessions  with  a  view  to  arriving  at  an  arrangement,  and,  after 
long  discussions  regarding  the  accounts  presented,  the  Government  and  the  company,  by 

way  of  a  compromise,  have  agreed  upon  the  following: 
Abt.  1.  The  company  reduces  to  one  million  nine  hundred  and  fifty  thousand  bohvars 

(1,950,000  bolivars)  the  total  amount  of  its  claims  for  the  7  per  cent  guaranty,  liquidated 
up  to  the  31st  of  December,  1895,  and  for  any  other  cause  to  which  it  may  be  entitled. 

Abt.  2.  For  the  redemption  of  the  obligation  of  the  Government  to  continue  to  pay  the 
same  7  per  cent  guaranty  on  eighteen  milhon  bohvars,  guaranteed  capital,  for  the  remainder 

of  the  ninety-nine  years,  terms  of  the  contracts  referred  to,  the  company  agrees  to  receive 
twomiUion  five  hundred  thousand  bolivars  (2,500,000  bolivars),  articles  2,  3,  and  4  of  the 

above-mentioned  contract  of  the  17th  of  June,  1891,  remaining  in  virtue  thereof  without 
any  efifect. 
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Art.  3.  The  payment  of  the  one  and  the  other  sum  is  made  by  the  Govermnent  in  this  act 

delivering  to  the  representative  of  the  company  an  order  on  the  direction  of  the  Disconto 
Gresellschaft  of  Berlin  for  the  sum  of  four  million  four  hundred  and  fifty  thousand  bolivars 

in  par  bonds  of  the  Venezuelan  loan  of  1896  with  6  per  cent  yearly  interest  and  1  per  cent  of 
redemption,  which  order  shall  be  provided,  besides,  with  the  approval  of  the  representative 
of  the  Disconto  in  Caracas. 

Art.  4.  The  representative  of  the  company  declares  the  nation,  therefore,  free  from  all 

responsibility,  as  well  on  account  of  the  7  per  cent  guaranty  already  due  as  on  account  of  the 

obligation  to  pay  that  same  simi  in  future,  and  will  repeat  this  declaration  on  the  receipt  he 
will  give  the  direction  of  the  Disconto  Gesellschaft. 

Art.  5.  The  company  binds  itself  to  have,  within  the  term  of  six  months  from  the  date 

hereof,  any  imperfection  undergone  by  the  railvmy  line  on  account  of  the  change  of  the  course 

of  the  Chamas  River  repaired  and  to  Jceep  the  line  in  working  order  in  accordance  with  the  obli- 
gations contracted  in  the  contracts  above  referred  to,  subject  to  the  penalties  imposed  by  th^ 

laws  on  the  matter. 

Art.  6.  In  all  that  is  not  contrary  to  the  provisions  of  this  agreement  the  rights  and  obli- 
gations acquired  by  the  company  in  virtue  of  the  preceding  contracts  herein  referred  to 

remain  in  their  perfect  force  and  vigor. 

Done  in  duplicate  to  one  same  effect  in  Caracas,  this  eighteenth  day  of  April,  one  thousand 

eight  hundred  and  ninety-six. 
(Signed)  C.  Bruzual  Serea, 

The  Minister  of  Public  WorJcs. 
Ch.  Weber, 

The  Representative  of  the  **Compagnie  Franfuise  de  Chemins  de  Fer  Venezueliens.'* 

By  article  5  of  the  above-inserted  convention  the  company  was 
bound  to  have,  within  a  term  of  six  months  from  the  date  of  the  com- 

promise, any  imperfections  which  the  railway  line  might  have  under- 
gone on  account  of  the  change  of  the  course  of  the  Chamas  River 

repaired  and  to  keep  the  line  in  working  order  in  accordance  with  the 
obligations  contracted  in  the  contracts  referred  to  and  subject  to  the 
penalities  imposed  by  the  laws  on  the  matter. 

The  company  met  the  expenses  of  the  interest  service  and  of  the 
redemption  of  the  loan  contracted  by  it  to  meet  the  expense  of  the 

repairs  of  the  line,  occasioned  by  the  earthquake  of  1894,  and  numer- 
ous inundations  which  followed  in  the  years  1895  to  1897,  with  the 

proceeds  of  the  negotiation  of  the  4,450,000  bolivars  delivered  by  the 
Government  of  Venezuela  in  par  bonds  of  the  Venezuelan  loan  of  the 
Disconto  Gresellschaft  of  1896. 

The  company  collected  the  amount  of  the  interest  and  redemption 
of  the  bonds  of  the  loan,  corresponding  to  the  half  years  due  on  the 
31st  of  December,  1896,  and  30th  of  June,  1897,  and  having  kept 
in  its  possession,  when  negotiating  the  bonds  in  1898,  the  interest 
coupons  due  on  the  30th  of  June  of  that  year,  amounting  to  about 
79,000  francs,  it  received  from  the  Disconto  Gesellschaft  on  the  15th 

of  January,  1899,  a  payment  on  account  of  28,228.94  francs,  there 
remaining,  therefore,  on  the  said  date  as  a  balance  of  interest  in 
favor  of  the  company  a  sum  of  about  50,000  francs. 

These  data  appear  from  the  two  reports  presented  by  the  admin- 
istration council  to  the  ordinary  general  meeting  in  its  sittings  of 
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the  30th  of  June,  1898,  and  12th  of  March,  1900.     From  the  first  of 
them  the  following  paragraphs  are  copied: 

On  account  of  the  earthquake  of  1894  and  of  numerous  inundations  which  were  the  conse- 
quence thereof  in  1895  to  1897,  our  railway  having  sustained  considerable  damage,  we  were 

compelled,  in  order  to  raise  the  resources  necessary  for  their  repairs,  to  create  privileged 
bonds  bearing  interest  at  the  rate  of  6  per  cent  a  year,  free  from  taxes  and  redeemable  within 
ten  years  at  the  latest. 

The  creation  and  issue  of  4,000  of  those  bonds,  which  constitute  the  privileged  debt  of  a 

nominal  value  of  2,000,000  franca,  of  which  we  have  just  spoken  to  you,  was  successively 
authorized  by  you. 

We  propose  you,  therefore,  to  give  in  payment  of  this  privileged  debt,  to  which  they  are 
already  appropriated,  the  bonds  of  the  Venezuelan  5  per  cent  loan,  1896,  which  we  have 
received  from  the  Venezuelan  Government,  in  redemption  of  the  interest  guarantees  it  has 

promised  us  by  oiu*  concession  act,  which  bonds  figure  in  the  balance  you  have  just  approved 
as  stock  of  the  company,  for  a  value  of  3,152,000  francs. 

As  we  told  you  at  the  beginning,  we  have  a  buyer  of  these  bonds  of  our  stock,  which  bonds 

are  not  quoted  and  the  disposal  of  which  is  almost  impossible  for  a  sum  that  might  enable 
us  to  redeem  and  reimburse  the  4,000  bonds  that  are  outstanding  and  to  obtain  besides  the 
constitution  of  an  administration  fund  of  200,000  francs.  In  view  of  the  fact  that  the  3  per 

cent  revenue  of  Venezuela  is  quoted  in  London  at  from  31  to  33  per  cent,  you  will  see,  gentle- 
men, as  the  comptrollers  of  the  compromise  and  as  your  administration  coimcil,  that  the 

company  will  obtain  by  this  combination  a  realization  under  unexpected  conditions  of  these 
bonds  of  the  5  per  cent  Venezuelan  loan  of  1896,  since  these  realizations  will  take  place  at 

70  per  cent. 

And  from  the  second  report,  dated  the  I'ith  of  March,  1900: 
The  funds  that  had  remained  available  to  the  company  after  the  reimbursement  of  the 

ten  years'  bonds  would  have  constituted  for  it,  in  normal  times,  a  sufficient  administration 
fund,  but  the  revolutionary  events  which  almost  uninterruptedly  have  occurred  up  to  the 

present  have  rapidly  consumed  them. 
These  resources  having  been  exhausted  and  in  view  of  the  continuation  of  the  revolution 

the  commissaries  of  the  xjompromise,  on  the  16th  of  August,  1899,  authorized  the  council  to 
borrow  up  to  the  amount  of  100,000  francs,  the  sums  it  would  require  to  meet  the  situation, 

whether  there  vxis  a  possibility  to  proceed  with  the  exploitation  or  the  necessity  of  suspending  it. 

The  coupons  of  the  5  per  cent  Venezuelan  loan  of  1896,  due  on  the  1st  of  July,  1896,  repre- 
senting about  79,000  francs,  were  given  as  security  for  an  advance,  which  amounted  to 

58,215.95  francs. 

This  advance  was  reduced  28,228.94  francs  on  the  15th  of  January  last  through  the  part 
payment  made  to  us  on  that  date  on  the  coupons  given  as  security. 

In  short,  the  debt  we  have  in  favor  of  our  lender  is  this  day  of  29,987.01  francs. 

He  has  in  his  possession  a  pledge  of  about  50,000  francs,  nominal  value,  represented  by  the 
receivable  balance  of  the  aforesaid  coupons. 

From  the  narrative  above  made,  from  all  the  modifications  made 

in  the  primitive  contract  which  had  for  its  object  the  construction  of 
the  railway  from  M6rida  to  San  Carlos,  from  the  different  cases  of 
main  force  which  at  different  times  suspended  the  construction  works 
or  largely  destroyed  them,  from  the  agreements  concluded  between 

the  Contracting  parties  with  a  view  to  avoiding  the  sometimes  insur- 
mountable obstacles  which  nature  opposed  to  the  stability  of  the 

enterprise,  and,  finally,  from  the  compromise  concluded  on  the  18th 

of  April,  1896,  between  the  Government  of  Venezuela  and  the  repre- 
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sentative  of  the  ''Compagnie  Fran^aise  de  Chemins  de  Fer  V6n6- 
zu61iens/'  the  following  facts  appear  sufficiently  proved: 

On  the  1st  of  July,  1898,  which  date  it  is  convenient  to  establish 
for  the  due  separation  of  the  time  to  which  the  claim  presented  refers, 
all  the  engagements  contracted  by  the  Government  of  Venezuela 
with  respect  to  the  company,  as  the  concessionary  of  the  contract 
concluded  with  the  Duke  of  Momy  in  August,  1888,  and  in  virtue 

of  the  subsequent  convention  directly  concluded  between  the  Gov- 
ernment of  Venezuela  and  the  representative  of  the  company,  had 

been  exactly  compUed  with.  The  obligations  contracted  by  said 
Government  by  the  contracts  of  the  13th  of  August,  1888,  of  the  18th 
of  June,  1891,  and  the  18th  of  April,  1896,  were:  To  give  in  fee  simple 
to  the  contractor  500  meters  of  national  lands  on  each  side  of  the  line 

on  the  whole  length  thereof;  to  allow  it  to  take  in  the  national  woods 
all  the  timber  required  by  the  enterprise  for  the  construction  of  the 
works  of  the  line;  to  permit  the  introduction,  free  from  duties,  of 
the  machines,  materials,  implements,  and  other  utensils  necessary  for 
the  construction  of  the  railway;  not  to  impose  upon  the  enterprise 
at  any  time  any  national  or  state  contributions;  to  grant  extensions 
of  time  for  the  conclusion  of -the  work  in  cases  of  main  force  that 

might  stop  the  works  of  construction,  and,  finally,  to  deliver  to  the 
company  4,450,000  bolivars  in  par  bonds  of  the  Venezuelan  loan  of 
the  Disconto  Gesellschaft,  1896,  in  payment  of  the  sum  of  1,950,000 
bolivars,  to  which  it  reduced  the  total  amount  of  all  its  claims  for  the 

7  per  cent  guarantee,  liquidated  up  to  the  31st  of  December,  1895, 
and  for  any  other  cause  to  which  it  might  be  entitled,  and,  besides, 
for  the  redemption  of  the  obligation  of  continuing  to  pay  the  same 
7  per  cent  guaranty  on  18,000,000  bolivars,  guaranteed  capital,  for 

the  rest  of  ninety-nine  years,  for  which  respect  the  company  agreed 
to  receive  2,500,000  boUvars.  All  the  aforesaid  obligations  were 
in  due  time  complied  with,  as  appearing  from  the  voluminous  records 
relating  thereto,  and  as  is  acknowledged  by  the  company  itself.  The 
Government  of  Venezuela  appears  to  be  the  debtor  in  the  month  ot 
June,  1899,  only  of  the  sum  of  50,000  francs  for  balance  of  interest 

on  the  bonds  of  the  loan  of  50,000,000  bolivars,  which  the  company 
received,  which  interest  corresponded  to  the  first  six  months  of  1898, 
and  that  debt  is  not  one  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  as  a  con- 

tractor with  the  ̂ Tompagnie  Fran^aise  de  Chemins  de  Fer  V6n6- 
zu^liens,"  nor  said  Government  could  pay  it  separately  and  directly 
to  the  company,  as  the  latter  has  pretended,  but  it  formed  a  part 

of  an  obligation  contracted  by  the  Republic  with  the  Disconto  Gesell- 
schaft, of  Berlin,  with  which  the  loan  was  contracted  for  and  which 

is  called  by  the  same  contract  to  receive  the  funds  destined  to  the 
gradual  redemption  and  the  payment  of  interest. 
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Article  3  of  the  contract  concluded  on  the  18th  of  April,  1896, 
with  the  representative  of  the  French  company  explicitly  says: 

The  payment  of  the  one  and  the  other  sum  is  made  by  the  Government  in  this  act,  deliv- 
ering to  the  representative  of  the  company  an  order  on  the  direction  of  the  Disconto  Gesell- 

schaft  of  Berlin  for  the  stim  of  4,450,000  bolivars,  in  par  bonds,  etc.,  which  order  shall  be 
provided,  besides,  with  the  approval  of  the  representative  of  the  Disconto  in  Caracas. 

Payment  means  cancellation,  extinction  of  a  debt,  and,  therefore, 
between  the  Government  of  Venezuela  and  the  French  company,  as 

parties  to  the  ̂ ntract  which  had  for  its  object  the  construction  and 
exploitation  of  ̂ l^erailway  from  Santa  B&rbara  to  La  Vigia,  any  credit 

or  claim  that  on  account  of  the  guaranty  or  for  any  other  cause  was  pos- 
sessed by  the  company  against  the  Government  remained  legally  extin- 

guished in  virtue  of  the  provisions  of  articles  1,  2,  and  3  of  said  agree- 
ment of  the  18th  of  April,  1896.  Any  rights  pertaining  to  the  com- 
pany as  holder  of  coupons  of  interest,  due  and  unpaid,  of  the  loan 

of  50,000,000  bolivars  of  1896  are  a  subject  entirely  strange  to  the 
juridical  relations  established  between  the  Government  of  Venezuela 
and  the  company  on  account  of  the  railway  contract  and  completely 
alien  to  the  facts  connected  with  the  compliance  with  the  obligations 
derived  from  that  contract. 

As  a  proof  of  this  inference,  see  Article  VI  of  the  Venezuelan- 
German  protocol  signed  in  Washington  on  the  13th  of  February, 
1903,  which  runs  as  follows: 

The  Government  of  Venezuela  undertakes  to  make  a  new  satisfactory  arrangement  to 

settle  simultaneously  the  5  per  cent  Venezuelan  loan  of  1896,  which  is  chiefly  in  German 

hands  and  the  entire  exterior  debt.  In  this  arrangement  the  state  revenues  to  be  employed 
for  the  service  of  the  debt  are  to  be  determined  without  prejudice  to  the  obligations  already 
existing. 

For  the  more  precise  appreciation  of  the  grounds  on  which  it  is 
pretended  to  base  the  present  claim,  it  is  to  the  purpose  to  examine 

the  steps  taken  by  the  direction  of  the  ''Compagnie  Fran^aise  de 
Chemins  de  Fer  V6n6zu61iens^'  near  the  ministry  of  foreign  affairs 
of  France  posteriorly  to  the  arrangement  to  the  18th  of  April,  1896, 
steps  that  moved  the  chief  of  said  ministry  to  exercise  his  diplomatic 
action  through  the  consul  of  France  in  Caracas  based  on  the  data 
furnished  by  the  company. 

In  a  letter  addressed  by  the  administrator  of  the  company  to  the 
minister  of  foreign  affairs  in  Paris  on  the  29th  of  November,  1898, 
said  administrator  asked  for  the  intervention  of  the  French  Govern- 

ment to  secure  for  his  countrymen  in  the  employ  of  the  company 

in  Venezuela  the  protection  of  their  persons  and  property  and  com- 
pel the  Government  of  Venezuela  to  comply  with  its  engagements 

to  its  creditors,  adding  in  said  letter  that  the  administration  was 
informed  by  the  Disconto  Gesellschaft,  of  Berlin,  that  the  Imperial 
Government  would  simultaneously  interfere  to  the  same  purpose, 
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and  in  support  ot  his  request  he  recalled  the  letters  which  had  been 
addressed  to  the  ministry  dated  the  2d  and  the  25th  of  June,  1898. 
It  was  in  virtue  of  that  request  that  the  ministry  of  foreign  affairs 
addressed  on  the  7th  of  December,  1898,  to  Mr.  Qui6vreux,  in  charge 
of  the  archives  of  the  legation  of  France,  the  official  note  inserted 
in  these  records  under  No.  8,  in  which  the  following  instructions  are 
communicated  to  him: 

You  are  not  unaware  that  the  ''Compagnie  Fran^^&ise  de  Chemins  de  Fer  V^^zu^liens" 
was  placed,  in  April,  1896,  by  the  government  of  Caracas,  under  the  necessity  of  accepting 

for  the  redemption  of  the  guaranties  that  had  been  given  in  the  concession  of  the  enter- 
prise, certain  bonds  proceeding  from  an  especial  loan  of  50,000,000  bolivars,  negotiated  in 

Berlin.  The  Disconto  Gesellschaft,  in  chai^  of  the  operation,  distributed  those  recfeemable 

bonds  to  the  different  European  railway  companies  and  our  fellow-countrymen  for  all  pay- 
ment of  a  debt  already  due,  of  more  than  7,000,000  francs,  and  for  the  redemption  of  90 

annuities  of  1,260,000  francs  had  to  content  themselves  with  a  net  sum  of  3,200,000  francs, 

represented  by  bonds  of  said  loan. 
The  moneys  proceeding  from  the  payment  of  interest  and  from  the  sinking  service  have 

constituted  for  two  years  the  only  resources  with  which  the  French  company  has  been  able 

to  continue  its  exploitation.  But  the  deliveries  have  ceased  this  year,  or,  at  least,  the  Dis- 

conto Gesellschaft  has  not  been  able  up  to  the  present  to  meet  only  one  of  the  monthly  pay- 
ments of  1898. 

In  view  of  the  suspension  of  payments  of  this  5  per  cent  loan  of  1896,  our  countrymen 
declare  that  they  find  themselves  under  the  necessity  of  abandoning  their  enterprise,  which 
will  lead  to  the  definitive  loss  of  the  French  capital  which  has  been  invested  therein,  and  the 
amount  of  those  capitals,  I  am  assured,  is  not  less  than  33,500,000  francs. 

In  order  to  prevent  this  eventuality,  that  the  company  already  considers  as  inmiinent,  it 

is  necessary  that  the  Venezuelan  Government  determines  to  inmiediately  pay  a  sum  of 
210.000  francs,  including: 

Francs. 

For  interest  due     160, 000 
For  bonds  redeemed       50, 000 

If  the  information  given  me  corresponds  with  what  yourself  may  know  concerning  the 

financial  situation  of  the  French  company,  and,  in  case  you  know  that,  under  the  pressure  of 

the  legation  of  Germany,  the  ministers  of  Venezuela  may  be  compelled  to  comply  within  a 
short  delay  with  all  or  part  of  the  obligations  to  the  European  creditors,  you  must  procure 

that  the  rights  of  our  fellow-countrymen  are  taken  into  equitable  consideration. 

For  the  date  of  the  above-inserted  note,  the  7th  of  December,  1898, 
the  French  company  had  alienated  the  4,450,000  francs  in  bonds  of 
the  loan  of  1896  and  only  had  an  interest  of  about  79,000  francs  in 

coupons  due  on  the  1st  of  July,  1898;  so  that  it  induced  the  ministry 
of  foreign  affairs  of  France,  by  its  erroneous  indications,  to  ask  from 
the  Government  of  Venezuela  the  immediate  payment  of  210,000 

francs  as  owed  for  redemption  and  interest  of  bonds  which  no  longer 
pertained  to  it,  aflSrming,  however,  that  that  redemption  and  that 

interest  represented  for  the  company  a  vital  necessity  and  that  with- 
out their  payment  it  would  find  itself  in  the  imperious  case  of  aban- 

doning its  enterprise. 
It  thus  appears  from  the  resolution  passed  by  the  general  meeting 

of  shareholders  held  on  the  30th  of  June,  1888,  by  which  said  meeting. 
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approving  the  proposal  of  the  administration  council  and  of  the  com- 
mittee of  commissioners  of  the  obligations,  authorized  said  council : 

1 .  To  deliver  on  the  1st  of  July,  1898,  all  the  bonds  of  the  5  per  cent 
Venezuelan  Loan  of  1896  that  the  company  had  in  deposit  with  the 
Disconto  of  Berlin,  upon: 

(A)  The  deliver}^  of  3,619  ten-years'  privileged  6  per  cent  bonds  of 
the  company. 

(B)  A  cash  balance  of  390,500  francs. 
2.  To  invite  to  the  reimbursement,  on  the  15th  of  June,  1898,  at  500 

francs  par,  of  the  381  privileged  6  per  cent  bonds,  the  numbers  of  which 
are  indicated,  and  to  separate,  in  order  to  meet  this  reimbursement, 
the  sum  of  190,500  francs  from  the  390,500  francs  received  as  said  in 
article  1. 

The  balance  of  200,000  francs  was  to  serve  as  working  fund. 
Besides,  as  already  shown,  the  79,000  francs,  more  or  less,  left  in 

favor  of  the  company  for  interest  of  the  coupons  due  up  to  the  date  of 
the  negotiation  of  the  bonds  of  the  loan  remained  represented  in  the 

sum  of  50,000  francs,  more  or  less,  in  January,  1899,  for  a  part  pay- 
ment made  by  the  Disconto  of  28,228.94  francs  and  that  nominal 

value  of  the  coupons  was  utilized  by  the  company  in  obtaining  a  loan 
and  leaving  them  as  security  for  the  sum  of  30,000  francs,  more  or 
less. 

The  argument  that  the  company  has  adduced  against  the  Govern- 
ment of  Venezuela  by  making  the  existence  of  the  company  depend 

on  the  opportune  payment  of  the  redemption  and  interest  of  the  bonds 
of  the  loan  is  inconsistent,  for  it  is  a  fact  that  it  considered  convenient 

to  its  interest  to  negotiate  those  bonds  when  it  thought  it  opportune 
so  to  do,  availing  itself  of  an  offer  of  70  per  cent,  which  it  considered 

highly  advantageous. 
Regarding  the  imposition  which  it  is  adduced  the  Government  of 

Venezuela  exercises  against  the  company,  compelling  it  to  accept  the 
4,450,000  francs  in  bonds  of  the  loan  in  payment  of  a  debt  of  7,000,000 
francs  already  due,  and  for  the  redemption  of  ninety  annuities  of 
1,260,000  francs  each,  while  it  can  not  truly  be  maintained  that  the 

compromise  between  the  Government  of  Venezuela  and  the  represen- 
tative of  the  company  took  place  in  that  maimer,  as  it  was  the  result 

of  the  free  and  spontaneous  will  of  the  two  contracting  parties,  circum- 
stances may  certainly  be  pointed  out,  which  show  that  the  sum  paid 

in  bonds  by  the  Government  of  Venezuela  and  which  gave  the  com- 
pany the  opportunity  of  receiving  in  cash  the  sum  of  2,508,000  francs 

represents,  in  view  of  the  occasion  on  which  the  arrangement  was 
made,  the  only  possibility  the  company  could  obtain  to  find  itself  in 
a  position  to  undertake  and  carry  out  the  works  of  repairs  of  the  line, 
which  it  indispensably  required  to  put  it  in  working  order  on  account 
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of  the  damage  caused  by  the  earthquake  of  1894,  and  of  the  subse- 
quent inundations  until  1897. 

The  Government  of  Venezuela  had  contracted  the  obligation  of 

guaranteeing  the  company  the  7  per  cent  on  the  capital  of  the  enter- 

prise during  ninety-nine  years,  taking  as  a  basis  for  the  computation 
of  the  capital  the  sum  of  300,000  francs  per  kilometer  on  the  length  of 

60  kilometers — i.  e.,  18,000,000  francs — and  also  taking  as  a  basis  to 
fix  the  sum  corresponding  to  the  7  per  cent  the  proceeds  of  the  enter- 

prise in  its  exploitation,  deducting  from  the  income  the  general 
administration  expense  and  the  exploitation  expense.  The  very 
nature  of  this  engagement  shows  that  the  company  was  to  constitute 
itself  with  a  capital  of  at  least  18,000,000  francs,  at  which  the  cost  of 

the  construction  of  the  railway  was  estimated,  and  that  it  was  to  con- 
tribute, out  of  its  own  resources,  all  the  sums  indispensable  for  the 

completion  of  the  work  and  the  repairs  indispensable  for  keeping  it  in 
constant  exploitation.  The  articles  of  association  of  the  company 
and  documents  thereto  annexed  show  that  the  capital  with  which  it 
constituted  itself  was  only  3,000,000  francs;  that  it  immediately 
created  bonds  to  raise  resources,  which  amoimted  to  more  than 

18,000,000  francs,  bearing  interest  at  the  rate  of  6  per  cent,  and  that 
from  the  year  1892  the  company,  being  unable  to  pay  that  interest, 
had  to  ask  for  and  obtain  the  appointment  of  a  judicial  liquidator,  and 
the  following  year,  1893,  asked  for  the  conclusion  of  a  concord  with 
its  creditors. 

The  inauguration  of  the  railway  took  place  in  March,  1894,  and  in 

the  same  year,  in  the  month  of  November,  there  occurred  the  earth- 

quake that  destroyed  the  line  and  caused  the  suspension  of  the  exploi- 
tation, and  thereupon  other  great  inundations  took  place  until  the 

year  1897. 
These  disastrous  accidents  foimd  the  company  in  a  state  of  insol- 

vency, without  possibility  to  make  use  of  any  credit,  bound  as  it  was 
by  a  concord  with  its  creditors  and  without  any  other  basis  to  raise 
funds  to  undertake  the  works  of  reconstruction  than  the  guaranty 
promised  by  the  Government  of  Venezuela  that  could  not  be  rendered 
effective  until  the  exploitation  of  the  railway  had  been  perfectly 
assured,  in  permanent  conditions  by  the  firnmess  and  solidity  of  the 
railway  line  on  its  whole  length. 

The  conclusion  of  the  agreement  with  the  company,  which  put  an 
end  to  the  guaranty,  took  place  on  the  18th  April,  1896,  and  at  that 
time  the  suspension  of  the  traffic  of  the  railway  subsisted  on  account 
of  the  works  of  repairs  which  the  company  had  to  undertake  after  the 
earthquake  of  1894,  and  that  continued  until  1897.  Still,  in  the  month 
of  November,  1896,  the  national  executive  determined  to  defer  to  a 

request  presented  by  Mr.  J.  Brun,  as  director  of  the  railway,  having  for 
its  object  to  ask  for  the  extension  of  the  time  fixed  by  article  5  of  the 
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contract  of  the  18th  of  April  of  that  same  year,  in  order  to  have 
repaired  within  a  term  of  six  months  the  damage  that  the  Une  had 
sustained  through  the  change  of  the  course  of  the  Chamas  River,  and 
the  president  of  the  RepubHc  was  pleased  to  defer  to  that  request  by 
granting  an  extension  of  three  months,  from  the  15th  of  October  above 
referred  to. 

The  precarious  condition  of  the  works  of  repairs  .and  the  continual 
dangers  to  which  the  line  was  exposed  by  the  deviation  of  the  Chamas 
River,  are  technically  shown  in  the  report  addressed  by  the  inspector 
of  the  line,  Mr.  Leonidas  Vargas,  in  February,  1897,  to  the  ministry 
of  public  works.     From  said  report  are  taken  the  following  paragraphs : 

The  principal  station,  Santa  B&rbara,  is  14  meters  on  the  level  of  the  sea  and  5  meters 
on  the  low  waters  of  the  Escalante  River,  which  in  its  freshets  of  1890  ascended  3.50  meters 

over  its  level,  overflowing  in  all  its  length  and  inundating  the  farms  on  its  banks. 

The  terminal  station  at  kilometer  60,  "La  Vigia,''  is  128  meters  above  the  sea  level  on  a  high 
plain  having  a  2  per  cent  grade  as  far  as  kilometer  55,  where  the  railway  crosses  the  creek 

*'Bobuqui,"  then  comes  the  creek  '*  La  Arenosa,"and  on  the  distance  to  46  kilometer  there 
are  found  ̂ 'Cafionegro'*  and  "Los  Caflitos." 

In  the  year  1889,  in  December,  the  Chamas  River  had  a  large  freshet  by  which  corpulent 

trees  were  dragged  along  that  were  detained  near  "La  Vigia,"  obstructing  its  natural  bed 

with  heaps  of  dirt,  for  which  reason  the  current  broke  the  banks  that  sloped  "El  Vigia"  and 
inundated  all  the  woods  existing  between  kilometers  52  and  41  of  the  line  from  Santa  Bar- 

bara to  "La  Vigia." 
In  1890  the  work  of  repairs  began.  Every  one  did  his  duty,  but  according  as  the  river 

went  on  with  its  freshets  it  went  on  destroying  all  that  man  opposed  to  its  caprices,  always 

led  by  the  unevenness  of  the  ground,  which  presented  a  2  per  cent  grade,  and  the  waters 
invaded  the  woods  and  inundated  a  portion  of  the  line. 

Then  comes  the  earthquake,  the  trepidations  of  which  caused  many  a  damage  on  the  Cor- 
dilleras of  the  Andes  and  adjoining  plains,  producing  a  larger  unevenness  in  the  woods  lying 

between  La  Culebra  and  Cafio  del  Padre,  through  which  the  railway  passes,  leaving  rails  in 
the  form  of  Nos.3  and  5,  and  of  the  letter  S,  curves  straight  and  straight  curves;  springs  of 

dark  mud  having  a  nauseous  odor  in  the  drains  and  culverts,  flow  20  and  25  centimeters 

wide  and  incalculably  deep,  through  which  the  invading  waters  of  the  Chamas  entered,  exca- 
vating the  embankments  of  the  rails  and  separating  from  the  ground  the  sleepers  that 

remained  adhered  to  the  rails:  these  were  in  the  form  of  a  hammock  swinging  when  the  roll- 
ing stock  passed,  moved  by  force  of  arms,  that  the  mercantile  mtercourse  might  not  stop. 

From  the  year  1894  up  to  the  present  the  French  company  has  made  strenuous  efforts  to 
restore  the  line  to  its  normal  condition.  To  that  purpose  they  had  built  a  siding  from  43  to 

46  kilometers,  where  the  Chamas  forms  a  drain  consisting  of  two  curves,  through  mud  pits 
from  150  to  200  meters  wide  on  each  side.  In  November,  when  this  siding  was  completed 

and  tried,  another  freshet  of  the  Chamas  took  place,  stronger  than  the  preceding  ones,  and 

inundated  the  line,  dragging  along  an  alluvial  sediment  that  has  stopped  up  the  70  meters' 
light  of  the  "Los  Cafiitos"  bridge,  and  the  waters  have  spread  on  the  banks  and  left  the 
neighboring  villages  in  a  flood  three  and  four  feet  deep  and  the  rails  with  20  or  40  centi- 

meters of  water  over  them.    This  I  saw  in  my  last  visit  to  the  line. 

Now  the  company  again  undertakes  the  reconstruction,  according  to  a  document  I  have 
before  me,  and  also  undertakes  to  carry  the  Chamas  to  its  former  bed,  the  only  remedy  which^ 

in  my  judgment y  can  save  the  line  of  the  railrmy,for  else  all  the  ballast  that  the  Cordilleras  of 

the  Andes  may  give  will  not  he  sufficient  to  resist  the  violence  of  60  meters  in  a  minute  that  the 

Chamas  possesses  in  the  currents  of  the  Tm  Libertad  straight  line,  from  43  to  46  hUometers,  as 
it  vxmld  be  dragged  away  according  as  it  would  be  put  in  place. 

S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   25 
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The  situation  of  the  company  regarding  its  repair  works  and  the 

reopening  of  the  railway  traffic  in  February,  1897,  after  the  expiration 
of  the  extension  granted  by  the  national  Government  by  its  resolution 
of  the  15th  October,  1896,  is  shown  by  the  following  letter  of  the 
director  of  the  exploitation : 

Line  from  San  Cdrlos  to  Mfyrida. — Direction  of  the  Exploitation. 

L.  R.,  No.  329.]  CoMPAGNiE  FitAN9Ai8E  DE  Chemins  de  Fer  Venezueliens, 
Santa  Barbara,  February  26,  1897. 

Citizen  Minister  op  Public  Works: 

We  have  the  hoDor  to  inform  you  that  communications  are  reestablished  and  that  the 

trains  and  locomotives  of  our  company  are  regularly  and  without  transfer  running  between 
Santa  B&rbara  and  El  Vigia /rom  this  date. 

Breysslou. 
For  the  Director. 

During  the  administrative  year  of  1897,  and  the  first  six  months  of 

1898,  the  railway  company  made'use  in  its  relations  with  the  national 
Government  of  the  exemptions  granted  it  by  the  concession  as  regards 
the  importation  of  materials  as  appearing  from  the  records  15  and  16 
of  the  archives  of  the  ministry  of  public  works.  The  direction  of  the 
exploitation  omitted  in  the  year  1897  to  send  to  said  ministry  the 
statistical  tables  which  it  was  its  duty  to  periodically  send  to  it,  con- 

formably to  article  99  of  the  regulations  on  railways.  The  agency  of 
the  French  company  at  Maracaibo  said  to  the  ministry  of  public  works, 
in  a  communication  dated  the  17th  of  May,  1897,  that  in  virtue  of 

instructions  communicated  to  him  from  Santa  Bfi,rbara  del  Zulia  by 
Mr.  Julio  Brun,  director  of  the  exploitation,  the  company  in  Paris  had 
since  long  ago  taken  charge  of  the  opportime  remission  of  said  data  to 
the  ministry. 

From  the  tables  sent  to  the  ministry  of  public  works,  corresponding 
to  the  months  from  January  to  November,  1898,  forming  the  records 
No.  17,  it  appears  that  the  exploitation  in  said  months  left  the  com- 

pany an  unfavorable  balance  amounting  to  the  sum  of  184,418.13 
francs. 

During  the  period  running  from  the  1st  of  January  to  the  20th  of 

May,  1899,  of  direct  and  regular  exploitation,  the  company  could  by 
dint  of  economies  and  in  full  crop  realize  a  favorable  balance  of  30,000 
francs,  the  receipts  amounting  to  172,593.01  francs  and  the  expenses 
to  141,883.28  francs.  From  the  20th  of  May  to  the  12th  of  October, 

at  which  date  the  actual  suspension  of  the  exploitation  took  place, 
owing  to  the  nonexistence  of  regular  traffic,  the  receipts  rapidly 
decreased  and  even  ceased  entirely,  while  the  expense  did  not  undergo 
any  reduction.  The  deficit  of  that  period  amounted  to  about  60,000 

francs,  the  receipts  amounting  to  83,153.33  francs  and  the  expense 
141,869.46  francs,  and  that  deficit  consuming  the  preceding  favorable 
balance  and  the  remainder  of  the  resources  of  the  company. 
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In  the  report  of  the  administration  council  presented  to  the  share- 
holders on  the  12th  of  March,  1900,  from  which  the  foregoing  data  are 

taken,  it  is  said  that  the  Government  of  Venezuela  was  owing  the  com- 
pany on  the  31st  of  December,  1898,  a  sum  of  174,097.20  francs  for 

expense  of  transportations,  regularly  ordered  by  its  official  manda- 
tories, and  that  on  the  31st  of  December,  1899,  the  same  Government 

was  owing  the  sum  of  203,529.70  francs. 

The  balance  contained  in  the  above-mentioned  report,  correspond- 
ing to  the  31st  of  December,  1899,  gives  the  following  indication  of  the 

assets  and  liabilities  of  the  company: 

Assets. 

First  establishment   
Deposit  of  stores  in  Venezuela   
Money  in  safe  and  in  banks   

Debtors:  Francs. 
Sundries    81,443.34 
Government  of 
Venezuela ...  203, 529 . 70 

Profit  and  loss        1 ,  010, 417 .  59 
Interest      owed 
bondholders     on 
31st  December, 
1889        8,439,083.35 

Total   

Francs. 

16,352,175.70 
84,757.98 
1,827.35 

284,973.04 

9,449,500.94 

26,173,235.01 

Liabilities. 

Shares   
Bonds,     44,569,    of      Francs. 

500  francs   22,284,500.00 
Diflference  between 

the  nominal  value 
and  the  proceeds 
realized     7,649,465.50 

Sundry  creditors   
Bondholders'  interest  on  the  31  st 
December,  1899  (article  2  of  con- 
cord)   

Francs. 

3,000,000.00 

14,635,034.50 

99,117.16 

8,439,083.35 

Total            26, 173, 235. 01 

The  foregoing  indication  throws  light  enough  to  make  the  financial 

situation  known  in  which  the  *^Compagnie  Fran^aise  de  Chemins  de 
Fer  V6n6zu61iens''  found  itself  on  the  12th  of  October,  1899,  at  which 
date  it  abandoned  its  exploitation  for  lack  of  resources  to  continue  to 
meet  the  most  indispensable  expense,  which  in  proper  commercial 
terms  is  called  state  of  bankruptcy. 
With  assets  represented  by  investments  or  dead  capital  of 

16,436,933.68  francs,  1,827.35  francs  in  cash,  and  284,973.04  francs  in 
credits  receivable,  and  liabilities  of  14,734,151.60  francs  in  bonds,  and 
8,439,083.36  francs  in  interest,  subject  to  a  concord  and  without  any 
credit,  the  company  could  not  but  abandon,  as  it  did,  the  exploitation 
of  the  enterprise  for  lack  of  resources. 

Such  is  the  situation  of  every  merchant  who,  being  in  want  of  the 
most  indispensable  means  to  continue  the  movement  of  his  business,  is 
constrained  to  suspend  it  and  call  his  creditors  to  the  liquidation  and 
distribution  of  their  credits. 

The  'Tonipagnie  Fran^aise  de  Chemins  de  Fer  V6n6zu61iens''  did 
not  act  in  this  way,  but,  protected  by  a  concord  which  favored  both  its 

interest  and  that  of  its  creditors,  preferred  to  the  liquidation  and  dis- 
tribution of  its  assets  declaring  the  Government  of  Venezuela  respon- 

sible for  the  bad  condition  of  its  finance,  for  the  lack  of  resources  to 

continue  the  traffic,  for  the  paralyzation  of  this  on  account  of  revolu- 
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tionary  movements,  of  the  use  of  its  steamers,  which  was  the  origin  of 
the  only  important  credit  contained  in  its  assets  and  the  cause,  through 
default  of  payment,  as  it  pretends,  of  the  ruin  of  its  concerns. 

The  charges  formulated  by  the  company  against  the  Government 
of  Venezuela,  and  as  appearing  from  the  reports  of  the  12th  of  March, 

1900,  and  the  30th  of  the  same  month,  1901,  and  from  its  communi- 
cations to  the  ministry  of  foreign  affairs  of  France,  are  summarized  in 

the  paragraphs  of  a  conmiunication  addressed  to  the  minister  of 
foreign  affairs  by  the  president  of  the  administration  council  on  the 
30th  of  March,  1901 ,  running  as  follows: 

Monsieur  le  Ministre:  We  have  just  been  oflScially  informed,  both  through  Mr. 

Qui^vreux,  consul  of  France  in  Caracas,  and  the  "Compagnie  Fran^aise  de  Cables  T^l^ 

graphiques,"  that  the  mifaister  of  public  workaof  Venezuela  intends  to  have  an  inventory  of 
our  goods  made  to  give  the  enjoyment  thereof  to  an  Italian. 
We  have  the  honor  to  transcribe  to  you,  hereinafter,  the  communication  such  as  it  was 

addressed  to  us: 
'Taris,  March  18,  1891. 

''COMPAONIE  FrAN^AISE  DE  ChEMINS   DE  FeR  VeNEZUEUENS, 
15  Avenue  Martignon,  Paris. 

* 'Gentlemen:  As  a  complement  of  our  telephonic  communication  of  Friday  last,  we 
have  the  honor  to  convey  to  you  herein  the  copy  of  a  telegram  we  have  received  from  Mr. 

Qui^vreux,  charg^  d'aflfaires  de  France  in  Caracas. 
"Kindly  inform  the  'Compagnie  Fran^aise  desCheminsdeFerV^n^zu^liens'that  minister 

of  public  works,  considering  that  it  abandons  its  Santa  B&rbara  line,  has  just  appointed  a 
commission  in  chaise  of  proceeding  to  an  inventory,  this  with  a  purpose  to  give  this  line  to 
an  Italian  named  Salvatore  Botaro. 

* 'Kindly  accept,  gentlemen,  the  assurance  of  our  distinguished  consideration. 
''Compagnie  de  Cables  Telegraphiques." 

(Signed)    . 

This  decision  of  the  Venezuelan  minister  would  constitute  an  actual  and  definitive  spolia- 
tion of  the  rights  and  goods  of  our  fellow  countrymen,  share  and  bondholders. 

That  ministry  of  Venezuela  pretends  to  justify  its  decision  by  saying  that  we  abandon  our 
line.  It  does  not  even  do  us  the  honor  of  announcing  its  project  to  us,  as  it  did  not  do  us  the 

honor  of  acknowledging  the  receipt  of  our  claims  and  of  the  reasons  that  compelled  us  to 

suspend  our  exploitation  in  October,  1889. 

Those  reasons.  Monsieur  le  Ministre,  we  have  communicated  to  you'and  were  numerous  and 
important.  One  of  them  would  have  been  sufficient  to  justify  our  suspension.  Our  finance 
had  been  exhausted  only  to  satisfy  the  exactions  of  the  agents  of  Venezuela  who  did  not  cease 
to  seize  our  steamers,  trains,  material,  personnel,  and  who  even  in  the  moments  of  calm  in 
the  revolutionary  disturbances  opposed  our  transporting  merchandise  for  which  we  were 

organized. 
If  we  had  been  in  due  time  reimbursed  by  the  Venezuelan  authorities  the  expense  and  dis- 

bursements of  all  kinds  we  had  to  make  for  them,  we  would  have  been  able  to  continue, 

reorganize,  and  recommence  our  exploitation. 
But  nothing  of  that  has  happened. 

-We  have  never  been  honored  with  a  proposal  or  even  the  least  communication. 
Now,  only  because  we  are  French,  because  no  diplomatic  relations  exist  between  Venezuela 

and  France,  and  because,  according  to  the  idea  spread  over  all  the  country,  everything  can  he 
done  to  the  French  without  having  anything  to  fear,  it  is  finally  desired  to  rob  us  of  what 

remains  of  our  property,  violating  the  seals  with  which  we  have  provided  it  in  the  presence 
and  with  the  assistance  of  the  Venezuelan  authorities  and  our  consular  agent . 
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The  records,  certainly  too  voluminous,  that  our  company  possesses  in  the  ministry  of 
foreign  affairs,  teem  with  official  and  unofficial  evidence  of  the  vexations  suffered  by  our 

fellow  countrymen,  either  agents  or  not  of  our  French  company,  and  even  by  our  national 
flag.  It  would,  rigorously,  be  sufficient  for  us  to  respectfully  remind  you,  Monsieur  le 

Ministre,  of  the  fact  that  Mr.  Brun,  a  French  engineer,  vxis  murdered  in  May,  1898,  in  his 
post  as  director,  in  our  directive  house,  at  a  window  over  which  the  French  flag  was  floating, 
by  a  Venezuelan  soldier,  who  obeyed  the  orders  of  the  Venezuelan  general,  Eleazar  Montiel. 
The  flag  was  pulled  down  and  dragged  along  in  the  mud,  etc. 

Through  a  prudence  which  we  have  thought  would  be  appreciated  we  have  avoided  to 
revive  these  sad  incidents. 

Thenceforth,  in  1898  and  1899,  several  of  our  service  employees  have  been  arrested,  or 

threatened  to  be  arrested,  by  generals  and  even  by  the  brother  of  the  late  President  of  the 
Republic,  Mr.  Andrade,  the  president  of  the  State  of  Zulia.  Our  steamers  have  been  seized, 

deteriorated,  and  destroyed,  of  which  a  proof  is  offered  by  our  steamer  5an  Cdrlos  yMerida, 
which,  anchored  in  the  harbor  of  Maracaibo,  has  served  as  target  for  the  marksmen  of  both 

parties  and  finally  was  sunk  by  their  bullets. 

We  request  you,  Monsieur  le  Ministre,  to  excuse  our  insistence  in  asking  for  your  inter- 
vention. 

The  question,  in  effect,  is  the  interest  the  importance  of  which  is  considerable  for  our 

fellow  countrymen,  not  only  from  the  particular  point  of  view  of  the  millions  which  the 

bondholders  of  our  company  represent,  but  from  the  general  point  of  view  of  the  moral  and 
commercial  influence  that  France  possessed  in  Venezuela  and  which  it  is  about  to  lase 
forever. 

Venezuela  is  a  rich  country.  It  would  suffice  for  it  to  become  a  very  prosperous  country, 
that  its  interior  organization  should  be  regenerated. 

Monsieur  le  Ministre,  permit  that  we  finally  appeal  to  the  protection  of  France  in  favor  of 

the  French  interests  we  represent,  that  we  renew  to  you  the  claims  formulated  in  our  letter 

of  the  17th  of  January,  1901,  and  that  we  protest  with  all  our  force  against  the  new  abuse 
that  seems  to  threaten  us. 

Kindly  accept.  Monsieur  le  Ministre,  the  assurance  of  our  high  consideration. 
E.  Reynaud, 

The  President. 

The  integral  insertion  of  the  foregoing  note  will  facilitate  the 
chronological  examination  of  the  facts  therein  mentioned,  abstaining 
in  this  examination,  as  becomes  our  duty  of  an  impartial  judge,  from 
all  appreciation  that  is  not  entirely  conformable  to  truth,  that  does  not 
appear  proved  in  the  voluminous  records  to  which  the  aforesaid  note 
refers,  that  is  not  inspired  with  the  principle  of  justice  and  absolute 
equity  upon  which  the  arbitrator  must  base  his  decisions. 

In  this  examination  of  the  evidence  presented  by  the  very  claiming 
party,  consisting  in  the  declarations  of  the  employees  of  the  company 
themselves,  the  first  place  pertains,  by  order  of  dates,  to  the  accident 
of  the  killing  of  Mr.  Brun,  a  French  engineer,  which  took  place  on 
the  15th  of  July,  1898,  in  order  to  ascertain  whether  it  is  true,  as 

affirmed  by  the  president  of  the  company,  that  Mr.  Brun  was  mur- 
dered in  his  post  as  director  in  his  own  house,  at  a  window  over  which 

the  French  flag  was  floating,  by  a  Venezuelan  soldier,  who  obeyed 
the  order  of  the  Venezuelan  general,  Eleazar  Montiel,  and  pulled  down 
and  dragged  the  flag  along  in  the  mud,  etc. 
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On  the  1st  of  May,  1898,  (Jeneral  Eleazar  Montiel,  late  governor 

of  the  '' Colon  ̂ '  territory,  proceedmg  from  Maracaibo  on  the  steamer 
Progresoy  landed  with  troops  of  the  Government  at  Santa  B&rbara. 

The  said  steamer  went  down  the  river  Escalante,  carrying  120  con- 
scripts and  the  authorities  of  Santa  B&rbara.  The  following  day 

the  steamer  Santa  Barbara  arrived,  bringing  on  board  a  guard  of 
12  soldiers  of  the  Government.  On  Wednesday,  the  3d  of  May,  at 
midnight  150  insurgents,  commanded  by  a  General  Figuera,  took 
possession  of  the  steamer  Santa  Barbara  after  short,  but  severe 
fighting,  in  which  5  soldiers  of  the  Government  and  the  boatswain 
of  the  steamer  were  wounded.  During  the  4th,  5th,  6th,  and  7th  of 
May  the  revolutionaries,  masters  of  the  territory,  cut  the  telegraph 
and  made  the  steamer  Santa  Barbara  set  out  for  Santa  Cruz  del 

Zulia,  a  village  situated  up  the  Escalante  River,  with  some  of  their 
men,  scattering  their  partisans  in  guerrillas  along  the  rivers  to  wait 

for  the  arrival  of  the  troops  of  the  Government.  They  had  taken  pos- 
session of  6  empty  wagons  and  formed  a  barricade  on  the  landing 

pier.  On  Sunday,  the  8th  of  May,  at  6.30  in  the  morning,  a  lively 
musket  firing  was  heard  at  some  distance  from  Santa  Barbara,  while 

the  troops  of  the  Government  penetrated  by  the  bottom  of  the  vil- 
lage, and  a  lively  musket  firing  broke  out  in  the  streets. 

Now  comes  the  textual  part  of  the  report  of  Mr.  Peysselon,  chief 
agent  of  the  company  at  Santa  Bfi,rbara: 

Notwithstanding  that  the  French  flag  was  hoisted  on  all  the  windows  and  angles  of  the 

building  of  the  direction,  this  building  was  not  respected.  Five  bullets  of  a  precision  arm 
were  directed  to  the  windows  only,  and  while  Mr.  Brun  was  closing  the  shutters  of  one  of 
them  he  was  very  seriously  wounded  in  his  right  hand. 

Without  hesitation  and  without  a  deliberated  purpose  we  can  say  that  the  bullet  which  so 

unfortunately  wounded  Mr.  Brun  proceeded  from  one  of  the  arms  of  the  soldiers  of  the 
Government.  The  guerrilla  which  executed  this  sad  deed  was  commanded  by  Eleazar 

Montiel,  which  affirmation  I  am  in  a  position  to  make,  because  when  I  went  to  look  for  a 

physician,  almost  immediately  after  the  misfortune,  the  first  and  only  known  person  I  saw 
was  Montiel.  When  I  went  out  the  second  time,  I  found  his  lieutenants,  Beliais  and  Jos^ 

Acosta,  with  hin^.  To  make  the  first  cure  of  Mr.  Brun,  it  was  necessary  to  wait  a  mcment 

for  the  arrival  of  the  physicians.  Mr.  Brun  sustained  then  a  very  painful  and  long  opera- 
tion and  the  doctor  did  not  conceal  from  us  that  his  state  was  a  serious  one. 

Mr.  Peysselon  completes  his  statement  in  the  following  terms: 

Steps  were  taken  inunediately  near  the  generals  and  the  legal  authorities  to  obtain  the 
transportation  of  Mr.  Brun  to  Maracaibo  on  the  steamer  Proffreso.  These  steps  had  no 
result. 

At  2  o'clock  in  the  afternoon  the  troops  were  masters  of  Santa  Bdrbara.  On  Monday 
morning  Generals  Eleazar  Montiel  and  Zuleta  set  out  toward  Santa  Cruz  with  100  men  to 

retake  from  the  insurgents  our  steamer  Santa  Bdrbara.  Several  forces  took  part  with  them 

in  the  expedition  of  Tuesday.  Our  steamer,  which  the  revolutionaries  had  led  going  up  the 

Escalante  to  beyond  Santa  Cruz,  amidst  numerous  risks  which  that  waterway,  unnavigable 

in  that  part,  offered,  was  recovered  on  Wednesday  by  the  troops  of  the  Government  and 

brought  back  to  Santa  Bdrbara,  towed  by  barks,  as  the  revolutionaries  had  taken  away  the 
bearings  and  cushions  of  the  axle  in  order  to  immobilize  her. 
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By  order  of  the  legal  authorities  our  shop  immediately  made  the  necessary  pieces  and  within 

a  few  days  put  the  steamer  in  navigating  order. 

On  Thursday  morning  at  10  o'clock  our  director,  Mr.  Brun,  who  was  a  little  better,  was 
embarked  on  the  Progreso^  bound  for  Maracaibo,  and  died  on  board  at  8.45  p.  m.  on  account 

of  his  wound  having  gangrened. 

Such  was  the  information  which  the  agent  Peysselon  transmitted 
to  his  company  while  the  events  above  narrated  took  place,  affirming, 
without  hesitation  and  without  a  deliberated  purpose,  that  the  bullet 
which  wounded  Mr.  Brun  had  been  intentionally  directed  by  one  of 
the  soldiers  of  the  Government,  under  the  orders  of  Gen.  Eleazar 
Montiel. 

Let  us  now  see  which  was  the  declaration  made  by  the  same  Mr. 
Peysselon  before  the  consul  of  France  at  Maracaibo  on  the  19th  of 
May,  1898,  regarding  the  events  of  the  8th  of  May.     It  is  as  follows: 

On  Sunday,  the  8th,  the  legal  troops  carried  on  the  steamer  Progreso  arrived  at  12.30  at  the 
village.  Under  these  circumstances  we  must  foresee  a  battle  in  the  streets.  This  foresight 

advised  lis  to  immediately  shut  all  the  doors  and  windows  of  our  dwelling  house.  While  I 

was  closing  a  window  overlooking  the  square,  Mr.  Brun  was  closing  that  of  his  room,  which 
overlooked  the  Santo  Domingo  street.  At  the  same  moment  the  musket  firing  began  in  that 

street,  the  window  was  closed  already,  but  Mr.  Brun  had  not  yet  had  time  enough  to  remove 
his  hand  from  the  lock,  when  a  bullet  of  a  precision  arm  pierced  the  window  through,  twisted 

the  lock  in  an  extraordinary  way,  and  pierced  his  hand  through  and  through,  throwing  the 

chips  on  his  breast. 
Mr.  and  Mrs.  Crini^re,  who  inhabit  the  house  of  the  direction,  assisted  Mr.  Brun  in  this  sad 

circumstance.  On  my  part  I  immediately  went  out  to  the  square  to  have  a  physician  called, 

met  with  twenty  armed  men  of  the  Oovemment,  and  the  only  person  known  to  me  to  whom 
I  could  apply  was  Gen.  Eleazar  Montiel,  the  chief  of  the  force.  As  the  doctor  had  not 
arrived,  I  went  out  for  a  second  time  and  saw  the  same  General  Montiel,  with  Beliais  and 

Acosta,  his  lieutenants,  and  another  guerrilla  of  the  Government.  Then,  when  the  first  panic 
was  over,  Drs.  P.  Rosales  and  T.  Cohen  could  be  called  and  immediately  came  to  assist  our 
friend. 

To  complete  my  declaration,  I  address  you  a  copy  of  the  information  presented  by  Doctor 
Cohen,  the  physician  of  the  company,  who  assisted  Mr.  Brun  until  his  death.  I  must  add 
that  since  the  morning  we  had  heard  the  dull  noise  of  a  distant  musket  firing;  that  in  view 

of  the  situation  prudence  advised  us  to  hoist  the  French  flag  on  all  the  fronts  of  the  house, 

which  we  did  at  about  10  o'clock  in  the  morning,  when  the  public  rumor  announced  that  the 
Progreso  was  sailing  up  the  river  with  Government  troops.  In  spite  of  our  three  colors,  you 

see  it  well,  Monsieiu*  le  Consul,  our  house  was  not  respected  and  five  bullets  were  shot  on  our 
windows.  Mr.  Brun  remained  at  Santa  Bfirbara  until  the  first  occasion  that  presented  itself 

for  him  to  come  down  to  Maracaibo.  He  was  embarked  on  Sunday  at  about  10  with  the  great- 
est attention,  and  his  state  did  not  permit  us  to  foresee  so  fatal  and  prompt  an  end. 

The  bookkeeper  of  the  company,  M.  A.  Crini^re,  declares,  before 
the  same  consul  of  France,  at  Maracaibo,  in  the  following  words: 

In  the  morning  of  Simday,  the  8th  of  May,  fearing  a  serious  encounter  of  the  two  parties, 

we  hoisted  at  about  10  o'clock  on  the  house  of  the  direction  flags  with  our  French  colors, 
two  on  the  windows  of  the  hall  overlooking  the  square,  which  were  hoisted  by  Mr.  Brun 

himself,  helped  by  Miguel  Labarca,  and  two  others  which  were  hoisted  by  me,  a  very  large 
one  in  Santo  Domingo  street.  It  vxis  through  this  street  that  the  Oovemment  forces  fianked 

the  villagey  and  the  room  in  which  Mr.  Brun  vxis  vxmnded  while  dosing  a  window  overlooked 

this  street.  The  fifth  flag  was  placed  by  the  same  Labarca  on  the  entrance  barrier  overlook- 
ing the  road. 



392       FRENCH    COMPANY    OF   VENEZUELAN    RAILROADS    CASE. 

We  were  intranquil  because  we  did  not  see  or  hear  anything,  when  at  half  past  twelve  it  was 

known  that  the  steamer  Progreso  was  at  the  entrance  of  Santa  Bdrbara.  A  great  move- 
ment took  place  and  a  white  flag  was  seen  at  the  station,  which  tranqailized  us  a  little,  as  we 

thouglit  that  the  two  parties  would  make  terms.  Unfortunately  it  did  not  happen  so,  and 
a  strong  volley  broke  out  at  that  moment  in  Santo  Domingo  street.  It  was  that  the 

soldiers  sent  from  Maracaibo  arriving  by  the  bottom  of  the  village  attacked  the  forces  of 
Generals  Figuera  and  Pozo  in  rear.  Immediately  Messrs.  Brun,  Peysselon,  and  myself  ran 

in  order  to  protect  ourseleves  from  the  bullets  to  close  doors  and  windows.  I  had  already 

heard  behind  me  as  the  noise  produced  by  the  fall  of  gravel.  It  was  a  bullet  that  had  pierced 
through  the  window  of  the  hall,  on  which  there  were  two  flags  and  which  overlooked  the 

square;  almost  at  the  same  moment  I  heard  Mr.  Brun  cry,  "Ah!  I  am  wounded."  We  all 
ran  to  help  him  and  saw  his  right  hand  horribly  mutilated  by  a  bullet.  This  happened  in  one 

instant.  We  furnished  the  flrst  attentions  that  so  sierious  a  wound  required  and,  the  musket 
firing,  being  over  Mr.  Peysselon  ran  in  search  of  a  physician.  I  followed  him  in  search  of 
wat^r  and  saw  soldiers  of  the  Grovemment  keeping  the  entrance  of  the  house  of  the  direction 
whicli  overlooked  the  road  and  the  French  flag  floating  over  their  heads,  which  did  not 

prevent  them  from  preparing  to  fire  at  us,  and  fortunately  Mr.  Peysselon  had  presence  of  mind 

enough  to  cry  "French  company,"  which  was  sufficient  to  prevent  that  they  should  carry 
out  their  purpose,  and  then  Mr.  Peysselon  went  out. 

In  view  of  the  manner  in  which  the  two  presential  witnesses,  who 

were  high  employees  of  the  company,  relate  the  events  of  the  8th  of 
Miiy  and  the  manner  in  which  the  wound  of  Mr.  Brun  took  place, 
the  aflirmr.tion  of  Mr.  Peysselon  that  the  bullet  which  caused  the 
wound  of  Mr.  Brun  was  intentionally  directed  against  the  window 
where  the  latter  was,  can  only  be  considered  as  entirely  groundless 

and  precisely  suggested  by  the  deliberate  purpose  to  attribute  a  mis- 
chievous intention  to  a  merely  accidental  act.  The  declaration  of  the 

bookkeeper  of  the  company  that  on  hearing  the  musket  firing  in  the 
street  Monsieurs  Brun,  Peysselon,  and  himself  ran  to  close  the  doors 
and  windows  to  protect  themselves  from  the  bullets,  proves  to 

evidence  that  that  impulsive  movement  of  self-preservation,  the 
desire  of  protecting  themselves  from  the  manifest  danger  offered  by 

the  entrance  of  the  bullets  fired  in  all  directions  by  the  forces  com- 

bating around  the  house,  was  precisely  the  origin  of  Mr.  Brun's  pres- 
ence at  the  fatal  point  and  moment  to  be  a  victim  of  the  deplorable 

accident  that  occasioned  the  wound  of  his  right  hand.  To  style  this 
event  as  murder  of  the  director  of  the  company  in  his  post  of  director 
in  his  own  house,  at  a  window  over  which  the  French  flag  was  floating, 
by  a  Venezuehn  soldier,  who  obeyed  orders  of  General  Montiel,  is 
to  pretend  to  entirely  disfigure  the  natural  and  frequent  accidents 
of  a  deed  of  arms,  to  convert  them,  as  it  has  been  attempted  in  the 
present  declaration,  in  a  characterized  proof  of  outrages  suffered  by 
French  citizens,  agents  of  the  company,  and  even  by  the  French  flag 
itself. 

The  very  circumstance  that  the  flag  was  pulled  down  and  dragged 
along  in  the  mud  at  the  moment  of  the  wound  of  Mr.  Brun,  as  is 
roundly  affirmed  by  the  president  of  the  company,  in  his  note  to  the 

minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  France,  strongly  appealing  to  the  pro- 
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tection  of  France  in  favor  of  his  fellow-countrymen  and  of  the  French 
interests,  proves  to  be  a  mere  invention  destined  to  impress  the  mind 
of  a  high  French  officer  against  the  Venezuelan  nation. 
From  the  documents  inserted  in  the  records  it  appears  that  Gen- 

eral Montiel  was  the  chief  of  the  forces  that  went  up  the  Escalante 
River  and  recovered  from  the  revolutionaries  the  steamer  Santa  Bar- 

haray  the  property  of  the  company,  which  he  brought  back  to  the  har- 
bor of  the  same  name;  that  the  day  after  his  return  he  put  at  the  dis- 

posal of  the  company  the  steamer  Progreso  to  the  purpose  of  carrying 
Mr.  Brun  to  Maracaibo;  that  it  was  said  chief  who  approached  Mr. 
Peysselon  when  the  latter  went  out  from  the  house,  charging  him 
with  sending  for  a  physician  to  take  care  of  the  former;  that  Mr. 
Peysselon  durst  not  go  himself  in  search  of  the  physician,  but  returned 
to  the  house  to  wait  for  him;  that  seeing  that  the  physician  had  not 
arrived  he  went  out  again,  but  only  to  the  purpose  of  speaking  again 
to  General  Montiel,  returning  thereupon  to  the  house  and  waiting 
there  for  the  physicians  after  the  panic  of  the  first  moment  was  over, 
and  as  a  complement  of  the  credit  which  the  position  and  affirmations 
of  Mr.  Peysselon  in  this  matter  must  deserve,  it  suffices  to  reproduce 
the  note  that  he  himself  addressed  on  the  12th  of  May,  1898,  three 
days  before  the  death  of  Mr.  Brun,  to  Gen.  Mamerto  D.  Gonzalez,  the 
military  agent  of  General  G6mez  in  the  Santa  Barbara  district.  Said 
letter  runs  as  follows : 

Line  from  San  Cdrlos  to  Merida — Direction  of  the  Exploitation. 

L.  R.  No.  658.]  CoMPAGNiE  Fran^aise  de  Chemins  de  Fer  Venezueliens, 
Santa  Bdrhara,  May  12,  1898. 

Gen.  Mamerto  D.  Gonzalez. 

My  Dear  Sir:  As  the  agent  of  the  company  and  through  impediment  of  Mr.  Brun,  I  thank 
you  for  the  restoration  of  public  order  and  for  having  taken  the  necessary  steps  to  bring 
the  Santa  Bdrhara  steamer.  We  are  greatly  pleased  to  see  you  among  us  to  protect  our 
persons  and  interest.     I  am,  with  all  consideration,  your  respectful  servant. 

(Signed)  J.  B.  Peysselon, 

Insp^tor  of  the  Exploitation. 

%y 
The  Santa  Bdrhara  steamer  having  been  returned  to  the  company 

through  the  action  of  the  force  of  the  constituted  Government,  that 
protected  the  interest  of  the  former,  as  expressed  by  the  thanksgiving 
note  above  inserted,  the  public  order  having  been  restored  by  the 

disappearance  of  the  insurrectional  guerrillas,  the  company  reestab- 
lished the  traffic  on  its  railway  and  steamer's  lines  in  all  the  period 

of  the  subsequent  months  of  1898  and  in  the  first  months  of  1899  until 

the  20th  of  May,  with  the  result  shown  by  the  report  of  the  adminis- 
tration coimcil  of  the  30th  of  May,  1901,  already  referred  to. 

In  the  month  of  May,  1899,  there  arose  the  revolutionary  move- 
ment denominated  '*  Liberal  Restaurador,''  conducted  by  General 

Gastro,  and  its  first  field  of  action  was  the  Gordillera  of  the  Andes, 
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the  local  movements  affecting  the  region  of  the  railway  from  Santa 
Barbara  to  La  Vigia.  It  was  then  that  the  President  of  the  State 
of  Zulia  took  possession  of  the  steamers  Santa  Barbara  and  Reliance, 
upon  notification  to  Mr.  Decleva,  who  acted  as  the  director  of  the 
exploitation.  This  fact  was  commmiicated  by  cable  to  the  direction 
of  the  company  in  Paris  on  the  12th  of  June,  1899,  and  on  the  22d 

of  the  same  month  the  agent  at  Maracaibo  transmitted  to  the  com- 
pany the  following  cablegram: 

President  will  not  pay  navigation  salaries  or  opposes  our  dismissing  our  personnel. 
Receipts  none.  We  can  not  foresee  any  increase  of  income.  Steamer  Reliance  out  of 

service.     Give  orders.     I'll  keep  firm. 

In  a  letter  dated  the  28th  of  May,  the  same  agent,  Decleva,  writes 
to  the  direction  the  following: 

In  effect  the  movement  increases.  The  region  of  the  Cordillera  and  particularly  the  zone 
interesting  us  is  greatly  alarmed.  It  is  said  that  the  revolution  will  not  propagate  and  is 

the  result  of  merely  local  rivalries.  If  such  is  the  case,  the  evil  will  be  circumscribed  in  nar- 
row limits;  the  country  in  general  will  suffer  little,  but  we  shall  suffer  the  consequences — I 

mean  to  say  all  the  consequences  of  the  events.  I  am  informed  that  mules  coming  to  La 
Vigia  with  cargo  have  been  taken  by  the  revolutionists,  that  hundreds  of  others  have  taken  a 

different  direction  in  order  to  escape  from  the  revolutionary  bands.  Such  facts,  the  narra- 
tive of  which  spreads  from  village  to  village,  are  not  proper  to  encourage  transportation,  as 

you  will  well  judge.  Many  days  will  pass  so,  supposing  the  movement  is  of  a  short  duration, 
before  those  people  will  have  recovered  confidence  and  send  us  their  merchandise. 

In  the  bill  which  I  intend  to  present  to  the  Government  (I  have  already  prepared  it  for 

the  requisition  of  the  month  of  March)  it  is  my  purpose  to  charge,  besides  the  expense  occa- 
sioned by  the  immobilization  of  our  steamer,  the  damage  caused  to  our  traffic;  hut  what  a 

small  and  problematic  revoard! 

By  the  correspondence  of  the  agent,  Decleva,  the  following  facts  are 
evidenced:  That  he  agreed  with  the  President  of  the  State  of  Zulia 
that  that  Government  would  undertake  to  prepare  and  put  in  serving 
order  the  steamer  Reliance  and  that,  regarding  the  Santa  Bdrhara, 
Decleva  would  give  the  order  that  it  might  be  brought  to  Maracaibo 
without  delay  and  without  waiting  for  any  cargo;  that  he  delivered, 

purely  and  simply,  the  steamer  Reliance,  the  treasury  of  the  State  under- 
taking to  pay  theliffgineer,  helmsman,  fireman,  wood,  oil,  and  lamps ; 

that  he  wrote  an  order  to  Captain  Faria  to  the  effect  of  bringing  the 

Santa  Barbara  steamer,  availing  himself  of  all  the  circumstances  per- 
mitting him,  without  delaying  the  departure  of  the  steamer,  to  ship 

the  whole  or  part  of  the  cargo,  so  as  not  to  lose  the  voyage;  that  he  was 

permitted  to  embark  on  board  the  Santa  Barbara,  bound  for  San  Car- 
los del  Zulia,  with  the  purpose  of  giving  the  necessary  orders  for  the 

protection  of  the  interests  of  the  company,  affirming,  in  a  letter  dated 
the  29th  of  May,  that  perhaps  there  was  no  danger  for  the  employees  on 
the  line,  and  that  the  orders  he  might  give  from  Maracaibo,  under  the 
influence  of  contrary  information,  might  result  in  producing  disorder 
among  the  personnel;  that  it  appeared  from  the  information  received 
from  the  line  that  everything  wa^  in  peace  and  order  on  the  7th  of  Jime, 
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1899;  that  La  Vigia  was  placed  under  the  watch  of  an  inspector,  the 

Venezuelan  Lomonaco;  commissioner  of  the  Government,  near  the  com- 
pany, who  at  the  same  time  was  a  colonel,  commanding  15  armed  men; 

that  until  the  9th  of  June  the  Government  had  furnished  only  7  loads 
of  wood,  as  far  as  the  navigation  was  concerned;  and  regarding  the 
Reliance  Decleva  said : 

Yoii  know  that  I  have  been  able  to  disburden  myself  of  all  the  service  and  mainte- 
nance expense.  The  president  complains  that  the  small  steamer  costs  him  too  much.  I 

have  smiled  and  changed  the  conversation. 

The  correspondence  of  Mr.  Decleva,  in  a  letter  of  the  18th  of  June, 

1899,  goes  on  as  follows: 

I  have  returned  after  a  voyage  without  incidents.  At  Santa  B&rbara,  at  La  Vigia,  on  the 

line,  everything  is  quiet.  The  line  is  in  good  condition  and  the  material  complete.  All  our 
engines  have  entered  the  shop,  even  that  of  the  ballast  works  that  I  had  set  on  service,  and 

that  I  had  to  keep  by  order  of  the  civil  and  military  authority. 

The  traffic  continues  to  he  none.  It  is  now  more  than  twenty  days  that  not  one  load  is 
arrived  ;  our  engines  only  run  on  the  account  of  the  Government. 

Regarding  the  navigation,  you  know  that  I  have  been  able  to  obtain  that  the  Government 

provides  the  fuel  and  the  food  on  board. 
I  shall  be  compelled,  gentlemen,  to  ask  in  July /or  a  remittance  of  funds.  I  would  not  like 

to  alarm  you,  but  I  can  not  give  you  a  hope  that  I  do  not  possess  myself — the  hope  of  under- 
taking the  transactions  again. 

The  revolution  seems  to  be  spreading  itself  and  increasing  every  day. 

Our  exploitation  has  gone  through  other  crises  and  revolutions,  the  political  and  financial 
consequences  of  which  might  imperil  the  most  important  interests  and  even  the  existence  of 

this  country y  but  the  exploitation  had  never,  on  any  occasion,  been  so  directly  and  radically 

affected. 

A  letter  of  the  22d  of  June  says: 

In  view  of  the  daily  loss  that  we  are  sustaining,  the  imminent  deficit  of  our  resources  and  the 
difficulties  of  a  situation  which  complicates  itself  more  and  more  and  seems  to  be  prolonging 
itself  farther  and  farther,  I  have  desired,  as  I  informed  you  in  a  previous  letter,  to  reduce  our 

expense  as  much  as  possible.  The  dismissal  of  the  navigation  personnel  from  the  moment 
the  Government  was  not  willing  to  take  charge  of  it  presented  itself  to  me  as  a  mighty  and 

immediate  measure.  You  know  that  the  Government  opposed  this  project.  Not  knowing 
what  our  strict  right  is,  what  our  absolute  right  in  the  matter  is,  I  have  vainly  endeavored 

to  illustrate  myself  with  the  copy  of  the  concession  which  I  have  in  my  possession.  I  have 

not  been  willing  to  take,  on  my  own  account  only,  a  decision,  and  thus  engage  you  in  an 
affair  the  solution  of  which  did  not  appear  to  me  to  be  entirely  certain. 

All  the  subsequent  correspondence  of  the  agent,  Decleva,  with  the 
direction  of  the  company  confines  itself  to  the  discussion  with  the 
President  of  the  State  of  Zulia,  on  account  of  the  elimination,  which 
the  former  thought  convenient,  of  the  personnel  of  the  steamers,  to 

introduce  economies  in  the  expense  of  the  company,  in  which  dis- 
cussion there  interfered  the  consular  agent  of  France  at  Maracaibo, 

Mr.  d'Empaire,  and  the  vice-consul  at  Caracas,  Mr.  Qui6vreux,  who, 
on  that  account,  sent  to  Mr.  d'Empaire  the  following  telegram: 

President  of  the  Republic  communicates  me  a  dispatch  according  to  which  the  agent  of  the 

French  company  does  not  render  the  task  of  the  Government  easy  in  the  difficult  moments  the 
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latter  goes  through.  I  request  you  to  endeavor  without  delay  to  obtain  in  my  name  that 

the  director  of  the  company  cooperates  as  far  as  it  may  be  possible  in  the  restoration  of  order  ̂ 
thus  avoiding  disagreeable  incidents. 

In  the  absence  of  a  reply  from  the  direction  of  the  company  in  Paris 
to  the  cablegrams  sent  to  it  by  its  agent  asking  for  instructions  to  de- 

cide as  to  his  persisting  in  the  position  he  had  taken,  Decleva  con- 
strued this  silence,  according  to  his  letter  of  the  1st  of  July,  1899,  as 

follows : 

I  do  not  know,  I  regret,  your  projects,  your  purposes.  You  may  have  a  secret  one  which 
you  have  not  told  me,  which  you  have  no  reason  to  tell  me,  which  you  pursue  without  me,  as  it 

were,  and  of  which  the  orders  I  receive  are  the  consequence. 

If  such  is  the  case,  I  must  obey  your  instructions  at  all  events.  But  if,  on  the  contrary,  . 

it  is  your  intention  to  carry  things  only  to  the  limit  that  is  prudent  in  view  of  the  future  inter- 
ests of  the  company,  my  passive  obedience  would  prove  to  be  a  blindness.  You  do  not  ask 

for  my  opinion.  It  does  not  appear  that  you  are  willing  to  leave  the  decision  of  the  situation 
tome.  Yourordersareperemptoiy,  precise,  categorical;  hence  my  embarrassment.  What 

has  the  appearance  of  a  contradiction  is  only,  in  reality,  an  exceeding  care  in  serving  you, 
carrying  out  your  intentions. 

And  in  the  letter  immediately  following,  of  the  3d  of  July,  it  is  said : 
I  recur  to  what  I  told  you  yesterday.  You  may  be  pursuing  a  purpose  unknown  to  me, 

a  purpose  which  only  the  resistance  opposed  here  by  your  directors  to  the  requisitions  of  the 
Government  can  prepare. 

And  could  I  act  against  that  purpose?  No;  my  conscience  prohibits  me  to  do  so ;  my  duty, 
the  devotion  I  owe  to  your  interests,  everything  commands  me  to  obey  you. 

To  this  discussion  occasioned  by  salaries  of  the  personnel  of  the 
steamers,  amounting  to  the  sum  of  2,300  bolivars  monthly,  an  end  was 
put  by  the  following  telegram  from  the  direction  in  Paris,  dated  the 
4th  of  July: 

No  act  of  hostility;  of  the  salaries  pay  what  you  can  out  of  what  you  may  have.  It  is  well 
understood  that  the  Government  unll  pay  all  the  other  expense  and  previously  acknowledge 
its  former  and  present  debts.    Here  we  have  exhausted  all  the  resources. 

The  foregoing  decision  and  the  request  to  acknowledge  the  accounts 
having  been  communicated  to  the  President  of  the  State  by  the  agent 
of  the  company,  the  President  submitted  said  approval  to  the  National 
Government,  for  such  was  incumbent  upon  it.  Owing  to  this  reply, 
Mr.  Decleva  consulted  the  direction  as  to  whether  he  could  proceed 
to  Caracas  with  the  purpose  of  presenting  these  accounts,  and  was 
answered  by  cable  on  the  5th  of  the  same  month: 

It  is  not  possible  that  you  should  leave  Maracaibo  for  Caracas.  Mr.  Simon  will  stop  there 
In  his  next  voyage. 

According  to  a  telegram  from  the  consular  agent  of  France  at  Mara- 
caibo, dated  the  13th  of  August,  and  addressed  to  the  French  consul, 

the  Government  had  reestablished  traflBc  and  intended  to  return  the 

steamers  of  the  company,  but  revolutionaries  having  reappeared  at 
Tovar  and  M6rida,  precisely  in  the  line  of  exploitation,  the  French 
company  had  to  wait  for  the  result  of  the  further  operations  before  the 
restitution  could  take  place. 
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In  a  letter  dated  the  23d  of  August  of  the  same  year,  the  deputy 
administrator  of  the  company  in  Paris  informs  the  minister  of  foreign 
affairs  that  the  steamer  Reliance  had  been  returned  to  them,  as  he  had 
already  been  notified,  with  its  axle  broken  and  the  propeller  lost;  that 
the  steamer  Santa  Barbara  remained  in  the  possession  of  the  Govern- 

ment of  the  State  of  Zulia ;  that  the  railway  continued  to  be  in  the  same 
condition,  without  having  as  yet  a  free  traffic;  that  no  payment  had  been 
made  by  the  Venezuelan  authorities,  and  that  its  director,  Mr.  Gustavo 
Simon,  would  leave  on  the  26th  of  August  for  Venezuela  with  instruc- 

tions to^igo  to  Caracas. 

On  tti©'  15th  of  September  of  the  same  year,  said  director,  on  his 
arrival  at  Caracas,  asked,  through  the  vice-consul  of  France,  for  an 
audience  from  the  minister  of  finance,  which  was  granted  him  imme- 

diately for  the  next  day.  In  this  aiidience  Mr.  Simon  asked  the 
National  Government /or  a  settlement  of  accounts  or  a  part  payment,  in 
order  to  he  able  to  proceed  on  the  exploitation  of  the  enterprise.  Minister 
Olavarria  answered  that  there  was  no  money  in  the  safe  of  the  treasury 
and  that  he  could  not  foresee  when  he  could  have  funds,  and  that, 
therefore,  he  was  sorry  not  to  be  able  to  give  satisfaction  or  to  make 
any  promise  for  the  future,  however  small  the  sum  might  be. 

In  the  statement  addressed  on  the  10th  of  October  of  the  same  year 
to  the  President  of  the  Republic,  then  Gen.  Ignacio  Andrade,  by  the 
same  director,  Gustavo  Simon,  setting  down  the  motives  why  he  had 
determined  to  suspend  the  exploitation  of  the  railway  from  Santa 
Barbara  to  La  Vigia,  the  following  facts  are  made  to  appear: 

That  in  September,  1899,  there  was  a  moment  of  peace,  and  some  receipts  were  obtained, 

but  that  the  revolution  reappeared  on  the  27th  of  September^  and  thenceforward  the  traffic  was 

paralyzed  and  Maracaibo  incommunicated  with  Santa  Barbara;  that  meanwhile  the  Govern- 
ment did  nothing  to  free  the  company  from  the  revolutionaries  and  enable  it  to  proceed  on 

the  exploitation;  that  it  had  remained  without  one  cent  in  its  safe,  with  all  the  expense  in 

force  and  without  any  income;  that  in  Paris  the  coupons  of  the  5  per  cent  Venezuelan  loan 
of  1886  had  not  been  paid,  although  due  on  the  1st  of  July,  1898;  that  its  claims  presented  to 
the  Government  for  damage  and  prejudice  had  not  been  satisfied,  and  that  the  circumstance 
to  be  most  regretted  was  that  they  had  not  succeeded  in  obtaining  from  the  Government  the 

payment  of  the  accounts  for  freight,  money  lent,  sundry  effects  furnished,  etc.,  which 
amounted  on  the  30th  of  September,  1899,  to  200,000  bolivars,  as  there  existed  arrears  from 
the  year  1884,  and  that  on  the  3d  of  October  the  President  of  the  State  of  Zulia  had  asked  the 
company  for  the  Santa  Bdrbara  steamer  to  carry  a  conmiission  to  Encpntrados  and  had  not 

been  able  to  pay  for  two  piles  of  wood  available  on  board  and  a  sum  of  300  bolivars  on  account 

of  the  traveling  expense,  as  it  had  promised  to  do. 

In  virtue  of  the  facts  above  narrated,  the  director  of  the  company 
concluded  his  statement  to  the  President  of  the  Republic  with  the 
following  declaration: 

First.  There  is  no  possibility  of  realizing  any  revenue  in  the  exploitation  of  the  line,  a,9  the 
revolutionaries  are  masters  of  it,  and  until  this  date,  the  1st  of  October,  there  is  no  hope  that 
the  Government  may  recover  that  place. 

Second.  The  Government  of  Venezuela  can  not  pay  the  company  any  of  its  debts,  or  even 

the  least  sum,  or  any  sum  by  installments. 
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Third.  The  company  has  no  longer  any  reaowrceSy  as  they  have  all  been  exhaustedy  and  it  has 
sent  all  its  money  from  Paris  to  meet  the  expense  of  its  line,  whUe  there  was  no  revenue  on 

account  of  frequent  revolutions. 
The  company,  considering  that  this  state  of  things  has  caused  it  enormous  prejudice  and 

amage  and  that,  if  it  continues  to  make  the  expense  in  course,  it  will  directly  go  to  bank- 
ruptcy, it  is  compelled  through  main  force  to  suspend  the  exploitation  of  its  line  and  its  steamer 

Santa  Barbara  until  an  arrangement  has  been  entered  into  with  the  National  Government 

of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela,  and  declares  that,  in  the  meantime,  whether  the  railway 
is  or  not  in  the  hands  of  the  revolutionaries,  said  Government  is  responsible  for  all  damage, 
prejudice,  faults,  deteriorations  that  may  be  caused  to  the  rolling  stock,  the  permanent 

way,  the  stores  in  the  warehouse — in  short,  to  all  the  goods  representing  the  capital  of  the 
company. 

It  is  well  understood  that  the  company  does  not,  however,  abandon  its  rights  to  the  conces- 
sion of  said  railvxiy. 

The  foregoing  statement  was  addressed  in  like  terms  to  the  Presi- 
dent of  the  State  of  Zulia  and  Ik  the  minister  of  pubUc  works. 

The  President  of  the  State  of  ̂ uha,  in  acknowledging  to  the  con- 
sular agent  of  France  the  receipt  of  the  foregoing  statement,  thought 

it  to  be  his  duty  to  tell  him  that  whenever,  owing  to  the  necessities  of 
war,  it  had  been  necessary  to  make  use  of  the  Santa  Barbara  steamer, 
whether  to  mobilize  troops  or  to  avoid  that  the  enemies  should  take 

possession  of  it,  the  Government  had  always  furnished  the  fuel  as  well 
as  the  provisions  and  the  salary  of  the  employees  and  marines,  when 
the  direction  had  required  it,  and  made  several  repairs  on  the  steamer, 
which  was  in  a  very  bad  condition.  He  says  in  conclusion  that,  as 
soon  as  the  reasons  which  compelled  the  Government  to  retain  said 
steamer  had  ceased,  he  would  notify  the  consular  agent  that  it  might 
be  received  by  the  person  in  charge  of  receiving  it. 

From  the  document  appearing  as  subscribed  and  dated  in  Curasao 
on  the  22d  of  October,  1899,  by  Mr.  Simon,  and  certified  as  correct  by 
the  deputy  administrator,  M.  Reynaud,  it  is  apparent  that  all  the 
archives  and  printed  papers  of  the  company  had  been  closed  into 

boxes,with  a  detailed  inventory,  and  delivered  to  Mr.  d'Empaire;  that 
all  the  personnel  of  the  steamer  had  been  dismissed,  Captain  Matos 
having  made  the  inventory  of  the  Santa  Barbara  steamer,  together 
with  the  mechanical  engineer  and  the  bookkeeper;  that  the  company 
had  the  following  advertisement  published  in  the  papers  El  Fonografo^ 
El  Avisador,  and  La  Campania  Francesa, 

The  Compagnie  Fran^aise  de  Chemins  de  Fer  V^n^zu^liens  has  the  regret  of  informing  the 

public  and  commerce  that  on  account  of  force  majeure  it  suspends  the  exploitation  of  its  line 
and  its  steamer  Santa  Bdrbara. 

The  lack  of  income  during  more  than  four  years,  the  revolutions,  and  the  nonpa3mient  by 
the  Government  of  its  debts  to  the  company  are  the  motives  inducing  the  company  to  ask 

for  an  arrangement  vnth  ihe  National  Government  before  continuing  its  exploitation. 

It  is  apparent  that  from  the  ̂ th  of  September  the  railway  line  is  in  the  hands  of  the  revolu- 
ionaries  and  that  up  to  this  date,  the  12th  of  October,  there  is  no  hope  that  the  Government  may 
recover  this  place. 

The  director  of  the  exploitation,  E.  SiMONS. 
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At  the  end  of  this  document  Mr.  Simon  expresses  the  hope  that 
everything  might  be  settled  before  the  close  of  the  month,  because  he 
had  just  been  advised  that  the  President  of  the  Republic  of  Venezuela 
had  resigned  and  left  Caracas  on  a  ship  of  war  for  an  unknown 
destination. 

In  a  communication  addressed  by  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of 

France  to  Mr.  Qui6vreux,  vice-consul  in  Caracas,  Mr.  d'Empaire,  the 
consular  agent  in  Maracaibo,  appears  vested  with  the  commission  of 
watching  and  stating  the  state  in  which  the  goods  of  the  company 
were. 

The  steamer  Santa  Bdrbara  was  returned  to  the  company  on  its 
return  to  Maracaibo  after  the  expedition  made  on  it  by  President 
Andrade,  in  which  voyage  it  sustained  a  damage  in  one  of  the  wheels. 
Mr.  Glennie  was  appointed  overseer  of  the  seals,  and  Mr.  Aiguillon, 
late  chief  engineer  of  the  Santa  Bdrbara,  keeper  of  the  maritime  mate- 

rial. Mr.  d'Empaire  received  from  the  director  of  the  company  a 
sufficient  sum  to  pay  for  the  furniture,  rent,  and  the  salaries  of  the 
agents  Glennie  and  Aiguillon  and  of  the  one  at  Caracas,  during  six 
months  from  the  1st  of  December,  1899. 

In  the  fight  that  took  place  in  the  harbor  of  Maracaibo  in  the  month 
of  November,  1899,  between  revolutionary  nationalist  forces  and 
those  of  the  Government  of  General  Castro,  the  steamer  San  Carlos 
y  Merida,  at  anchor  in  the  harbor,  sustained,  on  account  of  bullets, 
damages  that  caused  it  to  sink,  and  the  steamer  Santa  Barbara  also 
suffered  deteriorations  on  its  top  part.  Such  appears  from  the  testi- 

monial investigation  carried  out  by  the  consular  agent  of  France  at 
Maracaibo  at  the  request  of  Mr.  Arguillon.  The  witnesses,  Edmond 
Hainel,  Antonio  Martinez  Pefta,  and  Jos6  Vincente  Gonzalez  declare 
that  the  steamer  San  Carlos  y  Meriday  at  anchor  opposite  the  stores 
of  Rafael  Morales  and  McGregor  &  Co.,  had  wrecked  in  the  night  and 
day  of  the  1st  and  2d  of  December,  1899,  on  account  of  the  bullets 
received  in  its  hull  on  the  port  and  starboard  sides  during  the  fight 
and  the  fire  between  the  forces  of  Gen.  Cipriano  Castro  (Maracaibo 
side)  and  the  forces  of  Gen.  Jos6  Manuel  Hernandez  (Los  Haticos  side). 

The  damages  sustained  on  its  sides  were  so  numerous,  that  the  afore- 
said steamer  sunk  at  4  p.  m.  on  the  2d  of  December,  1899. 

The  consular  agent,  Mr.  d^Empaire,  ordered  the  appointment  of 
experts  to  estimate  the  damages  sustained  by  the  steamer  Santa 
Bdrhara  during  the  time  it  was  at  the  service  of  the  State,  to  which 
purpose  Messrs.  Eugenio  Kreutzer,  a  French  mechanic  domiciled  in 
that  town,  and  Manuel  Maria  Loto,  a  captain  in  the  Venezuelan  navy, 

commander  of  the  Venezuelan  steainer  Progreso.  Said  experts — after 
having  examined  the  steamer  and  its  engines  and  considered  that  said 
vessel  has  been  kept,  from  the  last  days  of  May  of  the  preceding  year 
until  the  first  days  of  November,  constantly  in  motion  under  pressure. 
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without  giving  time  to  make  any  repairs  on  it  or  repaint  it,  which  cir- 
cumstance increased  the  value  of  the  repairs  required ;  that,  through 

a  constant  labor  the  engine  had  suffered  a  great  deal ;  that  during  the 

last  voyage  it  made  in  the  river  Zulia,  at  the  service  of  the  Govern- 
ment, a  piece  of  timber  entirely  broke  one  of  its  wheels^ — valued  the 

damages  at  10,000  bolivars,  without  being  able  to  make  an  especial 
mention  as  to  the  state  of  the  hold  of  the  steamer  that  was  submerged. 

On  the  20th  of  January,  1900,  Mr.  d'Empaire  communicates  to  the 
direction  that  there  was  an  individual  that  desired  to  know  the  lowest 

price  of  the  little  steamer  Reliance^  with  a  view  to  seeing  whether  he 
could  buy  it,  and  that  he  thought  that  the  company  would  transact  a 
good  business,  if  it  succeeded  in  selling  it  for  any  price. 

On  the  9th  of  December,  1899,  Mr.  Simon  left  Venezuela  for  Havre. 

It  is  equally  apparent  that  the  company  posteriorly  disposed, 
according  to  its  own  declaration,  of  the  two  steamers.  Reliance  and 
Santa  Barbara j  for  the  sum  of  1,100  francs  the  former  and  10,000 
bolivars  the  latter. 

On  the  3d  of  February,  1900,  the  administration  of  the  company 
addressed  a  letter  to  the  President  of  the  Republic,  proposing  to  him 
the  reorganization  of  the  exploitation  of  the  railway  and  maritime 
lines,  upon  the  delivery  which  the  Venezuelan  Government  was  to 
make  to  him  of  a  part  payment  of  at  least  300,000  francs  in.  cash, 
calculated  on  the  sums  which  he  considered  were  owed  to  said  lines 

both  by  the  nation  and  the  States,  as  follows:    . 
(A)  A  sum  of  300,000  francs  for  reimbursement  of  transportation 

expense  and  requisitions  carried  out  by  order  of  the  authorities. 
(B)  A  sum  of  250,000  bolivars,  at  which  the  company  valued  the 

minimum  of  the  indemnity  which  the  authorities  were  owing  to  it  for 

the  material  reparation  of  the  damage  done  to  all  its  properties,  rail- 
way, steamers,  immovables,  material,  etc.,  during  the  last  campaign. 

(C)  A  sum  of  105,000  francs  monthly  from  the  1st  of  July,  1899,  as 
indemnity  for  the  losses  that  said  lines  had  sustained  from  that  date 
on  account  of  the  almost  absolute  suppression  of  the  traffic  and  the 
immobilization  of  the  means  of  exploitation.  The  total  of  those 
monthly  debts  that  would  be  owed  to  them  on  the  1st  of  May,  1901, 
would  amount  to  1,  050,000  francs. 

The  true  motives  that  compelled  the  French  company  to  suspend 
the  exploitation  of  the  railway  line  and  of  the  steamer  Santa  Barbara^ 
as  appearing  explicitly  declared  by  the  director  of  the  company,  Mr. 
Simon,  in  his  statement  addressed  to  the  President  of  the  Republic,  on 

the  12th  of  October,  1899,  from  the  advertisements  published  in  dif- 
ferent newspapers  and  from  all  the  documents  of  this  claim,  were  only 

the  lack  of  resources  in  the  treasury  of  the  company,  of  funds  proceed- 
ing from  the  traffic,  owing  to  the  fact  that  this  had  ceased,  on  account 

of  the  revolutionary  events  which  recommenced  in  September  and 
continued  in  October  of  the  same  year.     The  company  e^9.uated  all 
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its  available  resources,  to  the  extent  of  being  forced  to  eliminate  the 

personnel  of  its  employees. 

The  requisitions  made  by  the  authorities  of  the  State  of  Zulia  con- 
cerning the  steamers  and  trains  of  the  company,  with  a  view  to  satis- 

fying the  necessities  of  the  public  service  and  restoring  order  consti- 
tute the  exercise  of  a  power  vested  in  the  authorities  of  a  State  with 

a  purpose  to  provide  for  the  security  of  lakes,  rivers,  and  ways  of  com-, 
munication  and  with  a  purpose  also  to  subtract  any  element  of  struggle 
from  the  revolutionary  action,  thus  cooperating  in  the  restoration  of 

order  and  the  consolidation  of  peace.  Those  requisitions  were  volun- 
tarily accepted  by  the  company,  as  it  was  by  its  contract  bound  to 

accept  them,  and  the  nature  of  its  business  and  its  own  advantage 
required  it  to  do  so.  They  could  only  give  rise  to  the  obligation,  on  the 
part  of  the  Venezuelan  authorities,  to  indemnify  the  company  for  the 
service  rendered  and  the  direct  damage  that  the  means  of  locomotion 
seized  might  sustain  during  that  service,  through  motives  that  might 

be  attributed  to  the  especial  nature  of  the  same  services,  which  obliga- 
tion was  determined  and  valued  by  the  administration  council  of  the 

company  in  its  report  rendered  before  the  general  meeting  of  share- 
holders, inserting  it  in  the  balance  of  the  31st  of  December,  1901,  for  a 

sum  of  203,529.70  francs. 

The  government  of  the  State  of  Zulia  and  therefore  the  National 
Government  contracted  the  obligation  of  paying  to  the  company  the 
amount  of  those  accounts,  and  this  debt  has  never  been  denied  by  the 
constituted  authorities.  The  local  government  of  the  State  of  Zulia 
could  not  in  the  days  the  aforesaid  requisitions  took  place  nor  could 
the  minister  of  finance  at  Caracas  at  the  date  he  was  visited  by  Mr. 

Simon  make  any  part  payment  on  account  of  what  might  be  owed  to 

the  company.  This  impossibility  is  comprehensible  under  those  cir- 
cumstances, under  which  every  resource  was  consumed  by  the  impera- 

tive necessities  of  war,  and  both  the  National  Government  and  the 
government  of  the  State  of  Zulia  were  deprived  of  a  large  portion  of 
the  ordinary  revenue  on  account  of  the  same  disturbance  which 
deprived  the  company  of  the  proceeds  of  its  ordinal  y  traffic  on  the  line. 

It  is  neither  just  nor  equitable,  therefore,  nor  is  it  based  on  any  law, 
that  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  because  it  could  not  pay  in 
moments  of  penury  of  its  revenues  the  sum  of  more  than  200,000 
boUvars  to  which  the  company  made  its  credit  amount,  and  of  which  it 
urgently  needed  to  continue  in  the  activity  of  its  transactions,  should 

be  responsible  for  the  sum  of  18,000,000  bolivars,  at  which  the  com- 
pany estimates  the  integral  value  of  its  capital  and  obligations  (bonds). 

When  a  debt  is  contracted  to  be  paid  in  cash,  it  is  a  universal  law 
that  the  nonpayment  thereof  in  due  time  only  constitutes  a  delay 
which  binds  the  debtor  to  pay  interest  at  the  rate  agreed  upon  or  at 
the  legal  rate,  this  when  liquidated  accounts  or  debts  are  the  question. 

S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   2Q 
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The  larger  part  of  the  credit  that  the  company  pretended  to  collect 
in  the  month  of  September,  1899,  from  the  minister  of  finance  at 
Caracas,  requiring  from  him  a  part  payment,  proceeded  from  debts 
contracted  by  the  government  of  the  State  of  Zulia  and  approved  by 

its  legislature  in  previous  years,  but  the  company  at  no  time  thereto- 
fore had  endeavored  to  obtain  the  payment  of  those  accounts  from 

the  National  Government,  nor  is  it  proved  that  the  steps  taken  near 
the  government  of  the  State  before  the  revolutionary  events  of  June 
and  July,  1890,  were  active. 

The  insistence  shown  by  the  company  in  those  moments,  placing 
the  government  of  the  State  in  the  alternative  of  delivering  a  sum 
which  it  had  not,  or  eliminating  the  personnel  of  its  steamers ;  the 
silence  kept  by  the  direction  in  Paris  for  several  days,  leaving  its  agent 
at  Maracaibo  engaged  in  a  discussion  which  grew  more  and  more 
bitter  with  the  authority,  and,  finally,  the  violent  determination  taken 
by  Mr.  Simon  of  entirely  suspending  traffic,  dismissing  all  the 
employees  of  the  line  and  placing  under  seal  all  the  appurtenances 
thereof,  precisely  when  a  change  of  administration  and  the  victory  of 
the  revolutionary  arms  promised  the  prompt  pacification  of  the  country, 
only  show  the  deliberate  purpose  of  abandoning  the  enterprise, 
creating  a  situation  entirely  alienate  from  the  conditions  of  the 
original  contract,  and  only  tending  to  accumulate  difficulties,  present- 

ing to  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  as  a  previous  condition  for  the 
reestablishment  of  traffic,  new  and  more  exacting  claims,  as  well  as 

demands  of  money.  It  wa^  therefore,  a  perfectly  voluntary  act,  due 
to  the  purely  financial  causes,  connected  with  the  state  of  insolvency 
in  which  the  company  had  been  for  some  years  past.  That  abandon- 

ment has  continued  since  the  suspension  of  the  exploitation  was 
determined  by  the  direction  of  the  company.  All  the  damages  that 
may  have  been  caused  by  that  abandonment  to  the  material  of  the 
line,  and  that,  it  is  natural,  must  have  been  very  considerable,  owing 

to  the  intemperatiu*e  in  which  it  has  remained  for  four  years  and  to 
the  want  of  all  care  on  the  part  of  its  owners,  only  affect  the  responsi- 

bility of  those  who  adopted  the  measure,  save  the  excuse  they  have 
adduced,  the  force  majeure  produced  by  the  exhaustion  of  means 
and  resources  to  continue  the  exploitation. 

The  free  disposal  of  its  property  has  always  remained  within,  the 
reach  of  the  company,  as  is  proved  by  the  circumstance  that  the  con- 

sular agent  of  France  at  Maracaibo  has  constantly  been  the  custodian 
thereof,  and  that  it  was  sealed  to  that  purpose. 

The  measure  projected  by  the  National  Government  in  March,  1901, 
of  making  an  inventory  of  the  line,  of  its  permanent  and  rolling  stock, 
and  of  the  vessels  and  other  appurtenances  which  the  construction 
company  had    abandoned,  as    appears  from  the  same  resolution, 
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was  tried,  taking  into  consideration  the  official  capacity  of  Mr.  Julio 

d'  Empaire  and  his  commission  as  custodian  of  the  property  of  the 
company,  and  to  that  purpose  the  National  Government  intrusted 
said  agent  with  the  commission  of  attending  to  the  formation  of 

the  inventory  and  reporting,  with  the  remarks  he  might  think  perti- 
nent, about  the  actual  state  of  that  property. 

Mr.  d' Empaire  declined  the  commission,  stating  that  he  had  been 
officially  designed  to  take  care  of  the  material,  tools,  and  archives  of 
the  company,  which  proved  that  they  were  not  abandoned  and  that 
the  company  had  but  suspended  the  exploitation. 

Mr.  d'Empaire  adds,  in  his  reply  to  the  Government,  dated  the  26th 
of  March,  1901,  that  whenever  he  has  to  apply  to  the  authorities, 
either  of  the  State  of  Zulia  or  of  that  of  M^rida,  in  his  capacity  of  in 
charge  of  taking  care  of  the  interests  of  the  company,  asking  for  the 

suppression  of  some  abuse  or  for  support  on  the  part  of  the  Govern- 
ment, Tie  has  always  been  answered  and  attended  to,  which  clearly  shows 

on  the  one  side  that  the  company  has  always  preserved  its  rights  to  the 
line  and  its  materialj  and  on  the  other  that  such  rights  have  at  all  times 
been  recognized  by  the  Government  of  Venezuela. 

In  view  of  this  reply,  the  Government  thought  it  advisable  to  leave 
things  in  the  same  state  they  were,,  as  it  does  not  appear  that  it  has  in 

any  sense  attempted  to  interfere  with  the  determinations  of  the  com- 
pany regarding  the  free  disposal  or  maintenance  of  its  goods  on  the 

railway  line. 
The  damage  those  goods  have  sustained,  according  to  the  technical 

report  presented  to  the  minister  of  pubUc  works  by  Drs.  Francisco 

Arroyo-Parejo  and  Eliodoro  Ocanto,  attorney-general  and  engineer, 
respectively,  at  the  orders  of  the  ministry,  is  due. 

"  besides  the  natural  causes  of  the  exposition  to  interaperature  and  the  weather,  to  the  very 
especial  one  that  the  company  did  not  carry  out  the  drawing  in  accordance  with  the  rules 

and  principles  ordered  by  science  in  enterprises  of  such  a  nature,  for  the  line  is  constructed 

on  lands  the  topographical  configuration  of  which  is  unfit  thereto/' 

and  said  report  adds  that 

"  if  it  is  certain  that  the  inundations  of  the  Chamas  River  have  cooperated  in  that  destruc- 
tion it  is  also  true  that  the  company  has  not  made  such  efforts  or  used  such  means  an 

were  necessary  to  prevent  the  damage. '' 

The  report  adds: 

Without  the  help  of  the  drains  cut  parallel  to  the  road  (during  the  construction)  in  order  to 
extract  therefrom  the  earth  necessary  for  the  embankments,  which  drains  will  always  be  the 
cause  of  the  destruction  of  the  line,  the  undermining  of  the  ground  would  not  have  taken  place, 

for  the  waters  proceeding  from  the  inundations  would  not  stagnate  on  each  side  of  the  plat- 
form, but  would  go  through  culverts  conveniently  situated,  following  the  natural  depres- 

sions of  the  ground,  to  be  lost  on  the  plains;  and  to  place  again  this  line  in  a  state  of  good 
service  it  is  necessary  either  to  make  the  Chamas  River  return  to  its  former  bed  or  to  stop 
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up  the  drains  parallel  to  the  line,  raising  the  level  of  the  line  with  good  materials,  and  to 
make  serious  repairs  to  the  rolling  stock,  which  is  almost  tantamount  to  renewing  it  in  its 
entirety. 

For  all  the  reasons  aforesaid  and  in  virtue  of  the  careful  examina- 

tion of  all  the  precedents  of  the  case  the  Government  of  Venezuela  can 

not  be  held  responsible  for  the  damage  that  the  ''Compagnie  Fran^aise 
de  Chemins  de  Fer  V6n6zu61iens''  may  have  sustained,  for  the  sus- 

pension of  the  exploitation  of  tho  line  and  the  abandonment  in  which 
it  has  kept  its  property,  or  for  the  consequences  that  nature,  the 
weather,  and  the  bad  construction  of  the  works  may  have  produced  in 
its  concerns. 

Neither  can  this  commission  fix  the  amount  owed  by  the  Govern- 
ment of  Venezuela  to  the  above-mentioned  company  for  services 

rendered  by  its  railway  and  line  of  steamers,  for  those  accounts  have 
not  been  presented  or  been  the  object  of  any  examination  in  this 
commission. 

With  regard  to  the  damage  done  by  revolutionary  parties  on  the  line 
from  Santa  B6,rbara  to  La  Vigia  during  the  time  it  was  occupied  by 
said  parties,  neither  this  fact  nor  the  responsibility  of  the  authorities 
then  constituted  in  the  State  of  Zulia  has  been  proved. 

The  only  thing  that  has  been  proved  is  the  damage  sustained  by  the 
steamer  Santa  Barbara  while  at  the  service  of  the  government  of  the 
State  of  Zulia,  which  damage  was  valued  at  the  sum  of  10,000  bolivars 
by  the  experts  appointed  by  the  consular  agent  of  France  at  Maracaibo. 

The  prejudice  caused  the  company  by  the  sinking  of  the  steamer 
San  Carlos  y  Meriday  which,  as  it  appears,  was  out  of  all  active  service 
since  long  before  and  which  was  not  apt  to  be  utilized,  does  not  affect 
the  responsibility  of  the  Government  of  Venezuela,  for  it  appears  from 
the  evidence  produced  that  the  sinking  took  place  on  accoimt  of  the 
firing  exchanged  in  a  deed  of  arms,  and  is  therefore  recognized  in 
international  law  as  an  accident  inefficient  to  cause  any  responsibility 
on  the  part  of  the  constituted  authorities. 

It  is  my  opinion,  therefore,  that  the  company  is  entitled  to  an 
indemnity  of  10,000  bolivars  and  interest  thereon  at  the  rate  of  3  per 
cent  from  the  12th  of  October,  1899,  which  the  Government  of  Vene- 

zuela will  pay  for  deteriorations  of  the  steamer  Santa  Bdrbara 
while  at  its  service;  that  its  rights  must  be  reserved  to  it  to  obtain 
payment  of  the  accoimts  for  freight,  transportation  of  troops,  and  the 
use  of  two  steamers  by  the  authorities  of  the  State  of  Zulia  duly 
formulated  and  proved  and  which,  as  expressed  in  the  balance  of  the 
31st  of  October,  1899,  amounted  on  that  date  to  the  sum  of  203,529.70 
francs  with  interest  thereon  from  the  respective  dates  at  which  they 
had  their  origin;  that  to  the  Venezuelan  Government  the  rights  and 
claims  must  also  be  reserved  which  may  pertain  to  it  for  the  suspension 
of  traffic,  the  abandonment  of  the  exploitation  and  ensuing  damage 
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caused  to  the  line  through  lack  of  maintenance,  and  that  for  all  the 
rest  the  claim  presented  must  be  disallowed. 

Caracas,  August  28,  1903. 

NOTE  BY  THE  VENEZUELAN  COMMISSIONER. 

This  opinion  was  presented  at  the  sitting  of  the  28th  of  August,  1903,  and  an  understanding 

was  not  arrived  at  with  the  French  arbitrator,  who  was  of  the  opinion  that  the  company 
must  be  allowed  the  sum  of  18,483,000  bolivars,  to  which  the  claim  amounted,  said  company 
abandoning  to  the  Government  of  Venezuela  the  railway  with  all  its  appurtenances  and  the 
concession.  The  two  commissioners  having  failed  to  agree,  this  claim  was  referred  to  the 
decision  of  the  umpire. 

OPINION  OF  THE  FRENCH  COMMISSIONER. 

I  have  accorded  to  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads 
an  mdemnity  of  18,483,000  bolivars,  considering  that  the  Venezuelan 
Government  is  responsible  for  the  ruin  of  the  company,  and  that  in 
equity  this  responsibility  carries  with  it  the  rescission  of  the  contract 
signed  between  the  company  and  the  Venezuelan  State. 

It  seems  to  me  beyond  doubt  that  the  Venezuelan  Government 
has  placed  the  company  in  the  necessity  of  ceasing  the  exploitation 
of  the  line  by  depriving  it  of  the  considerable  sums  which  it  owed  it 
from  the  fact  of  the  guaranty  and  from  the  fact  of  the  requisitions. 

According  to  the  contract  the  state  guaranteed  to  the  company 
the  7  per  cent  of  the  capital,  and  this  guaranty  wts  to  be  paid  in 
hard  cash.  These  provisions  are  repeated  in  the  three  stages  which 
the  contract  in  question  has  passed  through. 

But  from  1888  to  1896  the  State  neglected  to  fulfill  the  obligations 
accepted  at  the  time  of  the  signing  of  this  bilateral  act.  It  did  not 
pay  a  centime  of  the  guaranty  promised  of  which  the  part  falling 
due  December  31,  1895,  represented  already  4,725,000  bolivars.  It 
is  not  surprising  that  the  company,  deprived  of  this  sum  upon  which 
it  had  the  right  to  coimt,  then  found  itself  in  embarrassment.  It  had 
made  all  sacrifices;  with  only  the  resources  of  its  credit,  it  had  already 
finished  the  line  provided  in  the  contract  and  assured  for  three  years 
the  regular  exploitation,  in  spite  of  inundations,  earthquakes,  and 
revolutions,  factors  equally  unforeseen  and  very  capable  of  bringing 
trouble  to  the  most  wisely  established  provisions.  It  was  natural 
that  it  should  have  reached  the  limit  of  its  resources  and  appealed 
for  the  support  which  the  State  ought  to  have  lent  it  a  long  time 
previous. 

It  is  this  moment  that  the  Government  of  Caracas  chose,  taking 
advantage  of  the  circumstances  which  itself  had  prepared,  to  impose 
a  treaty  ruinous  to  the  company,  obliged  to  pass  under  these  Caudine 

Forks.  ̂     It  reduced  to  1,950,000  bolivars  the  total  amount  of  all  the 

a  Caudine  Forks  (Furculse  Caudinae),  the  name  of  an  Italian  village  famous  in  Roman  his- 

tory on  account  of  the  disaster  which  there  befell  the  Roman  army  during  the  second  Sam- 
nite  war.  in  321  B.  C. 
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claims  that  the  company  might  present,  as  well  from  the  point  of 

the  guaranty  as  from  any  other  point,  and  promised  2,500,000  boli- 
vars for  the  abandonment  in  the  future  of  every  right  of  guaranty. 

Then,  instead  of  paying  in  specie  these  promised  sums,  it  remitted 

them  in  bonds  which,  having  ceased  to  bear  interest,  are  to-day  no 
longer  negotiable,  so  that  certain  creditors  of  the  company,  whose 

borrowed  money  had,  instead  of  the  money  of  the  guaranty,  permit- 
ted the  finishing  of  the  construction  and  the  pursuit  of  the  exploita- 

tion, hold  these  depreciated  bonds,  which  are  only  in  their  hands 
a  lien  without  value. 

The  Venezuelan  State  has  then  found  the  means  to  free  itself  of 

its  contractual  obligations  without  opening  its  purse.  Not  only  did 
it  elude  in  this  way  the  clauses  of  the  contract  relative  to  the  guaranty 

in  reducing  the  latter  to  zero,  but  it  never  paid  the  numerous  requisi- 
tions for  which  at  different  times  the  company  had  sent  it  the  drafts. 

So  the  company,  deprived  of  the  millions  of  the  guaranty  and  of 
the  remuneration  of  the  services  rendered,  saw  itself  at  the  same  time 

dispossessed  of  its  rolling  stock,  employed  in  transporting  free  of 
charge  troops  and  military  equipments,  while  the  merchandise  lay 
in  the  storehouses  at  the  mercy  of  guerrillas,  while  its  personnel  was 
maltreated  or  imprisoned,  its  director  wounded  to  death,  its  boats 
requisitioned  or  destroyed,  its  real  estate  encroached  upon,  its  cash 
boxes  emptied. 

Is  it  not  evident  that  the  only  cause  of  the  arrest  of  the  exploitation 
was  the  situation  made  for  the  company  by  the  Government  itself, 

which  in  every  way  in  its  power  had  rendered  this  exploitation  impos- 
sible? 

Moreover,  the  more  time  passed  the  greater  the  increase  of  the 

debts  of  the  company  and  the  difficulty  for  it  to  resume  the  exploita- 
tion of  the  line;  in  fact,  the  interest  on  the  sums  due  is  accumulating, 

its  idle  machinery  damaged,  the  track  is  going  down  from  the  feet 
of  the  inclemencies  of  the  climate  and  from  the  use  which  the  inhabit- 

ants are  making  of  it. 
In  these  conditions  it  would  not  be  an  equitable  solution  to  compel 

the  company  to  resume  the  exploitation  in  consideration  of  the  mere 
payment  by  the  State  for  the  ravages  and  requisitions.  It  is  only 
by  the  rescission  of  the  contract  that  equity  can  be  satisfied.  The 
Venezuelan  State  could  not  complain,  since  it  has  never  executed 
it  even  after  having  strangely  corrupted  it. 

In  consequence  of  this  rescission,  the  Venezuelan  Government  will 

become  possessor  of  all  that  the  company  owns  in  Venezuela — that 
is  to  say,  of  the  concession,  of  the  line,  of  the  buildings,  of  the  rolling 
stock,  of  the  maritime  material,  in  the  condition  in  which  it  is  actually 
found.  In  exchange  it  would  have  to  reimburse  the  company  for 

the  sums  expended  by  it,  which  include  its  capital — say,  3,000,000 
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bolivars — and  the  value  of  the  obligations  and  bonds  emitted,  with 
arrears  of  revenues  due  to  the  bearers — say  30,500,000  bolivars. 

Moreover,  it  ought  to  take  account  of  the  interest  of  these  sums 
and  of  the  profits  of  which  the  company  has  been  deprived.  The 
indemnity  would  reach  without  doubt  two  score  millions.  But  for 
all  these  valuations  it  would  be  necessary  to  admit  the  aflSrmations 
of  the  company  or  to  engage  in  interminable  investigations,  which 
would  still  leave  many  of  the  points  in  doubt. 

It  is  the  most  simple  means  of  determining  the  value  of  the  con- 
cession; it  does  away  with  all  investigation  and  all  chance  of  error; 

it  has,  moreover,  the  advantage  of  being  drawn  from  the  contract. 

The  State  and  the  company  have  both  recognized  that  the  conces- 
sion was  worth  18,000,000  bolivars  for  a  Une  of  60  kilometers — the 

first  according  it,  the  second  accepting  the  payment  of  a  guaranty 
of  7  per  cent  upon  a  kilometric  value  of  300,000  bolivars.  Taking 
back  the  concession,  the  State  will  be  free,  so  far  as  the  company  is 
concerned,  paying  to  it  this  sum  by  way  of  indenmity. 

It  is  fitting  to  add  to  it  the-  value  of  the  maritime  material,  say 
483,000  bolivars;  the  service  of  navigation,  the  object  of  a  special 
article  of  the  contract,  not  having  entered  into  the  line  of  account 
at  the  time  of  the  establishment  of  the  calculation  of  the  guaranty. 

It  is  then  a  sum  of  18,483,000  bolivars  that  the  Government  ought 
to  pay  to  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads. 

The  company,  through  its  advocate,  claims,  besides,  the  adjudication 

of  interest  at  the  rate  of  7  per  cent,  which  in  my  opinion  does  not  har- 
monize with  the  manner  in  which  this  indemnification  may  be  esti- 

mated. We  are  now  dealing  with  a  simple  exchange  of  values  without 
any  consideration  of  profits  or  interest. 

If  the  interest  were  to  be  estimated  would  it  not  be  also  necessary  to 
take  into  account,  for  instance,  the  products  of  the  exploitation  of 
the  line  while  it  was  in  operation  and  deduct  them  from  the  amount  of 
the  indemnity? 

My  colleague  does  not  share  my  opinion.  He  has  declared  the 
claim  of  the  company  to  be  groundless  and  has  accorded  it  only  the 
right  to  an  indemnity  of  10,000  bolivars  for  the  damage  suffered  by 
the  steamer  Santa  Barbara,  and  reserved  the  privilege  of  claiming 

from  the  Venezuelan  Government,  by  presenting  the  necessary  justifi- 
cation, the  sums  due  for  requisitions,  with  the  corresponding  interest. 

He  has  reserved  equally  the  rights  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  for 
the  fact  of  the  abandonment  of  the  exploitation. 

Doctor  Patil  has  published  a  ''dictamen^'  which  is  a  regular  defense 
of  the  Venezuelan  State.  I  have  not  been  able  to  follow  him  on  this 

groimd,  the  position  of  arbitrator  not  authorizing  me,  in  my  opinion, 
to  produce  arguments  in  favor  of  one  of  the  two  parties  in  the  case. 
Moreover,  the  company  has  intrusted  to  an  advocate  at  the  court  of 



408       FRENCH    COMPANY    OF    VENEZUELAN    RAILROADS    CASE. 

appeal  at  Paris,  Mr.  Dacraigne,  the  care  of  replying  point  by  point  to 
the  plea  of  Doctor  Pafil. 

It  only  remains  for  me  to  call  the  particular  attention  of  the  umpire 
to  a  few  observations. 

In  the  first  place,  I  have  taken  it  upon  myself  to  get  information  de 
visu  of  the  condition  of  the  line  from  Santa  Barbara  to  El  Vigia.  I 
then  went  on  board  the  French  cruiser  Jouffroy  on  the  south  of  the 
lagoon  of  Maracaibo.  Then  I  went  up  the  river  Escalante  as  far  as 
Santa  Barbara.  There  I  inspected  in  detail  the  establishments  of  the 
company,  and  followed  the  line  on  foot  for  several  kilometers.  I 
observed  that  the  company  had  neglected  nothing  to  place  the  service 
of  merchandise  and  passengers  in  excellent  condition.  A  large  rolling 
stock  was  found  at  Santa  Barbara,  where  the  buildings  of  the  com- 

pany include,  besides  the  passenger  station,  the  depot  for  merchandise, 

the  director's  office,  vast  storehouses  for  the  materials,  and  large  work- 
shops supplied  with  machines,  tools;  and  material  for  repairs  of  all 

kinds.  In  spite  of  the  numerous  repairs  which  these  buildings  and 
this  material  would  require  after  five  years  of  abandonment,  they 
are  far  from  having  no  value  and  from  being  of  no  use. 

*  In  the  second  place,  it  is  not  superfluous  to  recall  that  a  claim  in  all 
points  analogous  to  the  claim  of  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan 
Railroads  has  been  presented  by  the  English  company  of  the  railroad 
from  Puerto  Cabello  to  Valencia  to  the  British- Venezuelan  Mixed  Com- 

mission which  sat  last  year  at  Caracas  under  the  presidency  of  an 
American  umpire. 

This  English  company  had  likewise  ceased  its  traffic,  which  it  has 
since  resumed,  because  of  the  nonpayment  of  a  guaranty  promised,  and 
because  of  requisitions.  It  obtained,  if  I  am  well  informed,  an  indem- 

nity of  7,000,000  bolivars  gold.  It  had  been  less  tried  than  the  French 
company,  whose  terminus  at  Santa  Barbara  is  upon  a  river  inaccessi- 

ble to  warships,  in  a  region  which  is  entirely  out  of  reach  of  action  of 
foreign  navies,  while  Puerto  Cabello,  head  of  the  line  of  the  English 
company,  can  be  visited  by  European  squadrons. 

Finally,  while  the  foreign  clairtiants  will  receive  in  gold  the  amount 
of  in(?emnities  which  have  been  allowed  them,  the  French  claimants 
will  have  to  be  satisfied,  according  to  the  terms  of  the  protocol  of 
Paris,  with  the  payment  in  bonds  of  the  diplomatic  debt. 

Thanks  to  the  concession  consented  to  by  the  French  Government 
to  allow  the  Venezuelan  Government  to  pay  its  debts  with  greater 
facility,  the  figure  of  the  French  indemnities  finds  itself  in  reality 
singularly  reduced. 

The  bonds  in  question  having  undergone  a  depreciation  of  60  per 
cent,  if  the  umpire  partakes  of  the  opinion  of  the  French  arbitrator,  it 
is  in  reality  only  a  sum  of  8,500,000  bolivars  in  gold  which  the  French 
company  wouM  be  entitled  to  receive  and  the  Venezuelan  Government 
obliged  to  pay. 
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The  value  of  the  concession  or  of  sums  disbursed  by  the  company  is 
far  from  this  amount. 

Pabis,  September  13,  1904. 

ADDinONAIi  OPINION  OF  THE  VENEZTTEIiAN  COMMISSIONEB. 

I  have  most  carefully  examined  the  brief  prepared  by  my  learned 

colleague,  bearing  date  of  September  13,  1904,  explanatory  of  his  opin- 
ion at  the  sitting  of  the  commission  held  in  Caracas,  August  28,  1903. 

I  have  also  read  the  brief  and  the  opinion  submitted  by  Maitre 
Dacraigne,  which  is  annexed  thereto.  But  I  have  not  been  able  to 
find  in  either  of  these  documents  sufficient  reasons,  based  upon  right 
and  justice,  to  convince  me  that  my  opinion  submitted  at  the  session 
above  mentioned  does  not  adhere  most  strictly  to  the  truth  as  estab- 

lished by  facts,  as  well  as  to  the  statutory  and  common-law  precepts 
which  are  applicable  to  such  facts  in  order  to  find  and  establish  the 
liabiUty  of  the  Venezuelan  Government,  while  rejecting  all  that  can 
not  be  held  as  good  and  sufficient  grounds  for  liability.  Under  such 
circumstances  I  am  satisfied  that  the  grounds  upon  which  my  opinion 
was  based  still  subsist  as  strong  as  ever,  and  I  may  say  stronger  than 
ever,  as  the  new  line  of  argument  introduced  by  the  French  commis- 

sioner and  Maitre  Dacraigne  seems  to  strengthen  my  former  opinion, 
as  stated. 

Both  these  gentlemen  hold  as  a  powerful  reason  to  grant  and  demand 
the  indemnification  under  discussion  that  the  agreement  made  between 
the  Venezuelan  Government  and  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan 
Railroads  imder  date  of  April  18,  1896,  by  virtue  of  which  the  7  per 
cent  guaranty  on  the  capital  of  18,000,000  francs  was  redeemed  and 
the  company  paid  up  to  December  31,  1895,  the  amount  of  her  claims 
due  as  per  balance  sheets  on  the  same  guaranty  and  settlement  made 
for  any  other  and  all  causes  the  company  may  have  a  right  to  invoice,  was 
a  ruinous  a^/reement  imposed  upon  the  company,  which  foimd  herself 
compelled  to  pass  imder  the  Caudine  Forks  of  said  compact.  This  new 
argument  is  of  such  character,  that  it  is  my  sincere  belief  that  no 
answer  whatever  is  needed  in  rebuttal.  Such  argument  offers, 
because  of  its  far-fetched  application,  the  most  telling  proof  of  the 
scarcity  of  grounds,  real  solid  grounds,  the  company  has  upon  which 
to  build  the  UabiUty  of  the  Venezuelan  Government. 

I  will  simply  remark  that  when  that  agreement — now  called  Caudine 
Forks  by  my  learned  colleague — ^was  entered  into,  the  company,  accord- 

ing to  the  statement  of  Mattre  Dacraigne,  page  14  of  his  opinion, 
foimd  herself  in  this  position: 

The  earthquake  of  April  (1894)  left  the  company  as  unexpectedly  as  unfortunately  with^ 
out  resource  of  any  Jcind.  In  order  to  attend  to  urgent  repairs  and  work  and  to  procure 

funds,  the  company  was  compelled  to  make  a  first  issue  of  500-franc  bonds,  drawing;  an 
interest  of  6  per  cent. 
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On  page  12  of  the  same  opinion  the  following  statement  is  found: 

The  company  issued  in  this  way  4,000,  the  largest  portion  of  which  was  held  by  the  Dyle 

and  Bacalan  and  the  Tives-Tille  companies.  It  was  agreed  with  these  two  companies  that 
the  payments  made  by  the  state  were  to  be  employed  in  preference  for  the  payment  of  said 
bonds.  It  was  therefore  in  execution  of  this  covenant  entered  into  by  the  company  because 
of  the  failure  of  the  state  to  keep  its  part  of  the  agreement  that  in  the  month  of  June,  1898, 

the  Venezuelan  Railroad  Company  transferred  to  the  other  two  companies  the  Venemelan 
revenues  received. 

About  the  30th  of  June,  1898,  the  general  assembly  of  stockholders  ratified  such  agree- 
ment, which  was  confirmed  by  the  bondholders,  and  after  payment  of  all  accounts  there 

remained  out  of  this  transaction  at  the  disposal  of  the  railroad  company  a  balance  of 

200,000  francs  as  working  capital. 

If,  notwithstanding  the  fact  that  the  Venezuelan  Government  had 
delivered  to  the  company  5  per  cent  bonds  of  the  1896  loan  to  the 
amount  of  4,450,000  bolivars,  thus  enabling  the  company  to  redeem 
its  debt,  amounting  to  2,000,000  francs,  in  stock  and  bonds,  the  largest 

portion  of  which  was  held  by  the  Dyle  and  Bacalan  and  the  Tives- 
Lille  Companies,  still  leaving  the  company  a  working  capital  of 
200,000  francs  if,  I  say,  notwithstanding  that  fact,  the  company  was 
unable  to  meet  the  ruinous  future  events,  it  is  plain  that  the  failure  of 
the  company  to  continue  repairs  and  to  defray  operating  expenses 
would  have  taken  place  sooner. 

This  clearly  shows  that  the  company,  in  view  of  its  critical  financial 
position  in  Paris,  its  credit  being  completely  exhausted,  found  it 

advantageous  to  its  interest  and  to  the  continuation  of  the  under- 

taking to  accept  the  propositions  made  by  the  Venezuelan  Govern- 
ment for  the  redemption  of  the  guaranty  and  the  payment  of  the 

amounts  due,  which  the  company  agreed  to  reduce  to  the  amount  of 
1,950,000  bolivars,  fixing  the  redemption  of  the  future  guaranty  at 

2,500,000  bolivars. 

In  this  agreement  made  by  the  French  Company  because  the  com- 
pany found  it  to  be  acceptable  and  advantageous,  Mr.  Dacraigne  finds 

grounds  to  hold  ̂^ without  possible  discussion^'  that  the  French  Com- 
pany is  authorized  to  ask  the  rescission  of  the  contract  and  the  reim- 

bursement of  all  the  expenses  that  such  action  entails,  plus  the  corre- 
sponding damages  and  respective  interest.  Thus,  he  says,  is  justified 

the  claim  for  the  18  millions  expended  and  the  interest  as  above 

specified. 
Thus  the  Venezuelan  Government,  because  of  the  fact  that  it  has 

canceled  its  obligations  up  to  the  date  of  the  convention,  after  having 
paid  a  heavy  sum  in  settlement  of  a  guaranty  which  could  remain 

undue  and  without  foundation,  as  the  company  was  unable  to  con- 
tinue operations  because  of  the  ruinous  future  events,  must  pay  again 

and  settle,  besides,  damages  and  interests  because  such  had  been  paid. 

The  Venezuelan  commissioner  has  been  unable  to  find  in  the  legisla- 
tion of  any  country,  nor  in  the  natural  law,  anything  that  may  lead 
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to  the  acceptance  and  holding  of  such  kind  of  Uabilities  as  established 

either  by  private  or  international  law. 
The  French  commissioner  holds  that  the  Venezuelan  Government, 

as  stated  in  the  opinion,  would  enter  into  possession  of  everything  the 

company  possesses  in  Venezuela,  and  details  such  possessions  as  ̂ Hhe 
line,  the  buildings,  the  rolling  stock,  the  maritime  property,  in  such 

condition  as  they  are  found  now/^  and  fixes  the  amount  of  the  indem- 
nity such  conveyance  would  represent  at  18,483,000  bolivars. 

I  have  also  been  unable  to  find  among  the  documents  and  papers  in 

the  case  reasons  justifying  such  forcible  transfer,  nor  any  advances 
whatever  on  the  part  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  which  might 
lead  to  the  supposition  that  the  Government  is  inclined  to  accept  such 
transfer  of  the  property  in  question  in  such  condition  as  it  is  found 
now  for  the  amount  demanded  by  the  claimant  company,  which  the 

French  commissioner  grants.  Such  transactions  are  always  con- 
trolled by  the  convenience  of  both  contracting  parties,  are  agreed  upon 

freely  and  spontaneously,  and  can  not  be  the  object  of  a  decision  of 
this  commission. 

I  think  it  my  duty  to  quote,  in  this  connection,  the  following  state- 
ment of  the  French  commissioner  as  having  special  significance : 

The  company,  through  its  legal  advocate,  claims,  besides  the  adjudication  of  interest  at 
the  rate  of  7  per  cent,  which,  in  my  opinion,  does  not  harmonize  with  the  manner  in  which 

this  indemnification  may  be  estimated.  We  are  now  dealing  with  a  simple  exchange  of 

values  without  any  consideration  of  profits  or  interest.  If  the  interest  were  to  be  esti- 
mated, would  it  not  be  also  necessary  to  take  into  account,  for  instance,  the  products  of  tlie 

exploitation  of  the  line  while  it  was  in  operation  and  deduct  them  from  the  amount  of  the 
indemnity? 

The  Paris  protocol  by  which  this  tribunal  has  been  vested  with 

arbitration  powers  by  special  commission  intrusted  to  the  legal  repre- 
rentatives  of  France  and  Venezuela  has  narrowed  the  scope  of  said 

commission  to  a  single  and  solitary  point — that  of  examining  and  decid- 
ing upon  the  claims  for  indemnification  entered  by  French  citizens 

for  octe  whibh  have  taken  place  at  a  certain  time.  Now,  to  grant  indem- 
nities/or a^ts  which  have  not  actually  taken  place  because  of  the  exchange 

of  values  which  were  to  be  made  by  virtue  of  a  sentence  of  the  com- 
mission, would  be  to  substantially  alter  the  terms  of  the  protocol  bind- 

ing the  contracting  parties  and  to  render  the  award  of  the  commission 

nugatory,  as  it  would  then  involve  a  violation  of  the  pact  which  con- 
trols the  commission. 

The  pactf  or,  in  other  words,  the  free  agreement  of  the  parties,  by  which  they  agree  to  sub- 
mit the  examination  and  settlement  of  differences  arising  among  them  to  an  impartial  third 

party,  controls  the  whole  arbitration  proceedings.  The  pact  previously  agreed  to  by  the 

contracting  parties  is,  in  fact,  the  essential  condition  for  the  institution  of  arbitration  pro- 
ceedings— is  the  starting  point,  the  rule  to  be  followed  by  the  arbitrators.  The  nature  of 

things  and  conunon  sense  thus  direct.  The  arbitrator  or  arbitrators  can  not  constitute 

themselves  as  judges  of  a  question.    The  limit  of  the  mission  intrusted  to  them  grows 
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exclusively  out  of  the  will  of  the  parties;  having  been  chosen  to  apply  the  law  to  a  question, 

they  themselves  can  not  create  the  rule  of  law  and  apply  it.  The  pact  detern^ines  and  circum- 
scribes the  object  of  the  dispute,  *  *  *.  (Pradier-Fod^r^,  Droit  International  Public, 

vol.  6,  section  2612.) 

The  pact  as  laid  down  by  the  French  court  of  cassation  in  its  judg- 

ment of  January  18,  1842  (Mauny  case — see  Dalloz,  Jurisprudence 
G6n6rale,  Vol.  IV,  Arbitrage,  No.  471,  note) — 

is  the  only  essential  thing  to  be  consulted  to  decide  whether  the  arbitrators  have  passed 
judgment  without  authority  or  jurisdiction. 

It  is  true  that  the  claim  of  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  rail- 
roads embodies  the  sum  of  18,430,000  bolivars  for  indemnities 

demanded  from  the  Venezuelan  Government,  and  this  commission  is 
vested  with  full  authority  to  determine  whether  the  amount  of  the 
indemnities  which  Venezuela  is  to  pay  for  such  acts  as  may  have 

directly  caused  actual  damages  to  the  company's  property  or  for 
actual  services  such  company  may  have  rendered  the  Government  of 
Venezuela,  such  damages  and  services  to  be  fully  established  and 

affecting  Venezuela's  liabilities.  Any  and  all  acts  partaking  of  either 
character,  be  it  damages  or  services  rendered  which  the  Government  of 
Venezuela  should  indemnify,  falls  under  the  action  of  this  commission. 

It  was  by  reason  of  this  application  of  the  terms  of  the  protocol, 
which  I  consider  the  right  application,  that  in  my  opinion  rendered  in 
Caracas  on  August  28,  1903,  I  differed  from  my  learned  colleague  and 
explained  the  acts  which  in  my  judgment,  and  in  conformity  with  the 
proofs  furnished  by  the  papers  in  the  case  the  Venezuelan  Government 
might  incur  a  liability  for,  concluding  my  opinion  with  the  following 
concrete  statement : 

I  am  therefore  of  the  opinion  that  the  company  is  entitled  to  an  indemnification  of  ten 
thousand  bolivars  (10,000  bolivars)  and  interest  at  the  rate  of  3  per  cent  from  October  12, 

1809,  which  the  Government  of  Venezuela  will  pay/cr  v^ar  and  tear  of  the  steamer  Santa 

Bdrbara  while  she  was  in  the  Government's  service;  that  the  company  should  reserve  her 
action  to  obtain  payment  of  the  bill  for  freight,  transportation  of  troops,  and  use  of  two  of  her 
steamers  by  the  authorities  of  the  State  of  Zulia,  duly  made  out  and  vouched  for,  and  that 

according  to  the  balance  sheet  of  December,  1899,  amounted  to  that  date  to  the  sum  of 
203,529.70  francs,  and  interest  from  their  respective  dates  of  origin,  and  that  the  Government 
of  Venezuela  should  also  reserve  the  actions  and  rights  that  might  concern  it,  because  of 

the  suspension  of  traffic,  abandonment  of  operation,  and  consequently  damages  suffered  by 
the  line  because  of  failure  to  maintain  and  preserve  it;  and  that  as  far  as  the  other  points  are 

concerned  the  claim  should  be  rejected  as  groundless.  (Comisii^n  Mixta  Venezolana- 
Francesa.  Protocolo  de  19  de  Febrero,  1902.  Dict&menes  del  Arbitro  Venezolano.  Edicidn 

Oficial,  1903,  p.  206.) 

During  the  oral  proceedings  had  at  the  sitting  of  August  28,  1903, 
(ibid. ,  p.  21 1 ),  the  grounds  for  my  decision  were  summarized  as  follows : 

The  commissioner  for  Venezuela  considering  in  opposition — 
That  the  actual  reasons  of  the  suspension  of  operation  of  the  line  by  the  company  are  of  an 

economic  character,  as  the  company  was  compelled  to  take  such  steps  because  of  the  lack  of 

traffic  due  to  the  state  of  revolt  of  the  country  and  because  of  the  impossibility  in  which  it 

(the  company)  was  placed  by  reason  of  its  bad  financial  situation  of  obtaining  the  neceesary 
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funds  to  repair  the  damages  caused  by  the  weather  to  a  line  built  under  unfavorable  condi- 
tions; 

That  the  Venezuelan  Government  covld  not  he  responsible  either  for  the  damages  suffered  by 

the  working  materials  because  of  voluntary  abandonment  nor  yet  of  such  damages  as  the 

company  may  have  suffered  on  account  of  the  state  of  revolution  in  the  country  or  by  an 
accident  of  war; 

That  the  ̂ reement  entered  into  by  the  company  and  the  Venezuelan  Government,  in 

regard  to  the  guaranty  stipulated  in  the  contract,  has  been  duly  and  fully  executed  and  that 

the  company  has  received  the  sums  resulting  from  the  sale  of  the  bonds  which  in  compliance 

with  the  terms  of  said  agreement  were  dehvered  to  the  company; 

That  the  GrOl^Bmment  of  Venezuela  has  never  refused  to  pay  the  company  the  value  of  the 

requisitions  (seizures)  and  the  damnges  resulting  therefrom  to  the  material  and  that  the  ina- 
bility of  the  Government  to  make  such  payments  because  of  the  exhausted  condition  of  the 

public  funds  during  the  civil  war  only  makes  the  Government  liable  for  the  payment  of 

unpaid  interests; 
The  commissioner  is  therefore  of  the  opinion  that  the  claim  of  the  company  lacks  proper 

grounds  and  only  acknowledges  to  the  company  the  right  to  an  indemnity  for  10,000 
bolivars  for  the  wear  and  tear  suffered  by  the  steamer  Santa  Bdrhara  while  she  was  in  the 

Grovemment's  service  and  reserves  to  the  company  the  right  to  claim  from  the  Venezuelan 
Grovemment  by  filing  the  proper  and  necessary  vouchers  the  amounts  due  by  requisitions 
(seizures)  and  the  corresponding  interests; 

Doctor  Padl  reserves  for  the  Venezuelan  Grovemment  all  its  rights  of  action  against  the 

company  because  of  the  abandonment  of  the  operation  of  the  line. 

The  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads  under  date  Septem- . 
ber  28,  1904 — that  is  to  say,  one  year  after  the  session  of  August  28, 
1903,  when  the  commission  closed  its  labors  in  Caracas — submitted  all 
the  documents  in  support  of  the  requisitions  or  services  rendered  by 
the  railways  and  the  ships  of  the  company  to  the  Grovemment  of  the 
State  of  Zulia  up  to  September  30,  1899.  I  have  examined  with  due 
care  and  attention  the  bills  and  annexed  vouchers  and  found  correct 

the  balance  due  to  the  company  by  the  government  of  Zulia,  accord- 
ing to  a  communication  addressed  by  the  manager  to  the  President  of 

the  State  on  the  date  aforesaid  and  found  under  No.  3  ''Dossier 

Requisitions — Jacket  No.  11.''  According  to  said  communication 
and  vouchers  submitted  the  balance  due  amounts  to  198,185,95 
bolivars^ 

In  a  commimication  addressed  imder  date  of  January  18,  1900,  by 
the  board  of  managers  of  the  French  company  to  his  excellency  the 
minister  of  foreign  affairs  in  Paris  a  copy  of  which  is  found  in  Exhibit  3, 

document  5,  the  following  statement  is  made: 
We  take  the  liberty  to  send  you  herewith  a  copy  of  the  report  of  our  chief  manager,  the 

engineer,  Gustave  Simon,  relating  to  his  mission,  which  said  gentleman  delivered  to  us  upon 
his  arrival  in  France. 

Every  day  that  passes  since  we  were  compelled  and  forced  by  the  revolutionary  events  to 
suspend  our  operations  in  Venezuela,  since  October  12,  1899,  will  render  more  difficult  and 

onerous  the  possibility  of  our  resuming  operations. 
The  failure  to  maintain  a  road  and,  above  all,  a  railroad  leads  to  its  rapid  destruction, 

especially  in  a  tropical  country  where  vegetation  is  powerful  and  of  almost  instantaneous 

growth. 
*  *  *  We  estimate  in  300,000  francs  the  minimum  cash  amount  necessary  to  renew, 

before  the  end  of  April  next,  the  operation  and  service  of  our  business. 
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Now  the  different  debts  of  the  national  Oovemment,  as  well  as  those  of  the  provincial 

governments,  due  to  our  company  may  be  resumed  as  follows : 

(a)  The  amount  of  300,000  francs,  in  round  numbers,  representing  reimbursement  cf  trans- 
portation expenses  and  requisitions  made  by  the  account  of  the  authorities. 

The  itemized  accounts  Jiave  heenfumished  to  the  authorities  according  to  forms  and  decrees. 

The  largest  portion  of  these  bills  have  received  proper  official  approval. 

(b)  The  amount  of  250,000  francs,  our  minimum  estimate  of  the  indemnification  due  by 

the  Grovemment  of  Venezuela  by  substantial  re{>airs  and  damages  caused  because- of  its  acts 
to  the  whole  of  our  property  during  the  last  revolution. 

(c)  The  amount  of  1,050,000  francs  which,  at  the  rate  of  105,000  francs  per  numth,  rep- 
resents the  amount  of  the  indemnification  which  the  Government  of  Venezuela  owes  us  because 

cf  suppression  by  its  act  of  our  traffic  during  the  ten  months  elapsed  between  July,  1899,  and 

May,  1900. 
We  have  taken  as  a  basis  for  this  estimate  of  the  indemnification  the  amount  of  the 

guaranty  of  1,260,000  francs  which  had  been  fixed  and  acknowledged  to  our  company  by  the 

concession-contract,  duly  approved  and  ratified  by  the  Venezuelan  Congress  and  the  Presi- 
dent of  the  Republic. 

Let  US  examine  now,  one  by  one,  these  charges  for  mdemnity 
requested  from  the  Government  of  Venezuela  under  date  of  January 

18,  1900 — that  is  to  say,  three  months  after  the  abandonment  or  sus- 
pension of  operations  on  the  part  of  the  board  of  managers,  on  the  12th 

day  of  October,  1899. 
The  first  item — that  is,  the  amount  of  300,000  francs  in  round  num- 

bers, as  reimbursement  for  transportation  and  requisitions  by  the 
authorities — exceeds  in  the  amount  of  106,864.05  bolivars  the  sum  of 
the  balance  sheet  submitted  by  the  same  board  of  managers  to  the  au- 

thorities on  September  30, 1899,  or  twelve  days  before  the  suspension 
of  operations  and  the  delivery  of  the  rolling  stock,  offices,  implements, 
and  other  property  of  the  company  to  the  consular  agent  of  France 

in  Maracaibo,  Mr.  A.  I.  d^Empaire.  The  claimant  has  produced  said 
bills  and  vouchers  before  the  commission.  In  this  regard,  the  Gov- 

ernment of  Venezuela  is  the  debtor  of  the  French  Company  of  Vene- 
zuelan Railroads,  as  per  bills  and  vouchers,  to  the  amount  of  193,135.95 

boUvars,  and  interest  at  the  rate  of  3  per  cent,  as  established  by  the 
company,  from  the  date  when  it  is  shown  such  transportation  and 
requisitions  took  effect  in  compliance  with  the  orders  of  the  local 
authorities  of  the  State  of  Zulia. 

The  dates  and  respective  balances  are  the  following,  as  shown  by  the 
examination  I  have  made  of  the  bills  in  the  record  of  the  case: 

Bolivars. 

Balance  approved  by  the  legislature  of  the  State  of  Zulia,  February  27, 1894 . .  2, 994. 85 

Balance  approved  by  the  legislature  of  the  State  of  Zulia,  January  23, 1895. .  6, 434. 60 
Invoice  as  per  statement  up  to  December  31,  1897    15, 443. 60 

Invoice,  etc.,  to  May  30,  1898    3, 886. 00 
Invoice,  etc.,  to  October  30,  1898    34,  618.  90 
Invoice,  etc.,  to  March  3,  1898    6  532. 00 

Invoice,  etc.,  to  April  6,  1899    9, 047. 00 

Invoice,  etc.,  to  September  30, 1899    114,679.00 

Total    193,635.96 
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An  estimate  of  the  interest  on  the  several  balances  from  their  respec- 
tive dates  until  that  when  the  company  may  probably  come  into  pos- 

session of  the  funds  by  virtue  of  the  execution  of  the  sentence  which 
may  be  finally  passed,  a  lapse  of  time  which  I  believe  to  be  reasonably 
within  three  months,  taking  into  consideration  any  inevitable  delay, 
will  show  that  the  company  in  this  regard  is  entitled  to  the  sum  of 
36,060  boUvars. 

Between  the  amoimt  of  193,135.95  bolivars,  which  is  established  by 

the  cgmpany's  statements,  and  that  of  203,529.70  bolivars,  balance  in 
the  company^s  statement  of  December  31,  1899,  as  due  by  the  Vene- 

zuelan Government  at  that  time,  as  shown  in  the  report  of  the  board  of 
managers  to  the  stockholders  in  the  company,  and  to  which  I  have 
made  reference  at  the  conclusion  of  my  opinion  of  August  28,  1903, 
there  is  a  difference  of  10,393.75  bohvars,  to  which  I  find  no  other 

explanation  in  its  support  than  that  it  represents  the  price  the  com- 
pany has  charged  the  Government  of  Venezuela  for  the  service  of  the 

steamer  Santa  Barbara  during  the  days  intervening  between  Septem- 
ber 30,  1899,  and  the  end  of  October  of  the  same  year,  when  it  appears 

the  steamer  was  returned  to  the  company  after  haying  taken  to  the 
island  of  Curasao  Doctor  Andrade,  the  President  of  the  State,  after 

the  so-called  "Liberal-Restauradora^'  revolution.  Such  amoimt,  even 
if  it  does  not  appear  in  a  specified  form,  cs  it  should  do,  I  deem  to  be  a 
fair  compensation  for  the  services  rendered  by  the  steamer  Santa 
Barbara  to  the  local  authorities  during  the  month  of  October,  as, 

according  to  documents  in  the  case,  the  company  had  suspended 
since  the  12th  of  the  same  month  all  operations  in  its  railroad  and 
steamer  service,  so  that  there  were  no  expenses  for  maintenance  of 
the  service. 

On  the  aforesaid  amount,  which  I  recognize  as  also  due  by  the  Gov- 
ernment of  Venezuela,  interest  at  the  rate  of  3  per  cent  should  be 

added  from  October  30,  1899,  to  the  date  of  the  execution  of  the  sen- 
tence as  aforesaid,  so  that  the  amount  of  the  indemnity  increases  to 

the  sum  of  1,767  boUvars. 

So  that  the  principal  and  interests  on  this  amoimt,  as  shown,  amoimt 
to  203,529.70  bolivars  as  principal  and  37,827  bolivars  as  interest, 
or,  in  all,  241,357.70  bolivars. 

I  do  not  think  that  the  indemnification  which  this  conunission  may 
award  the  company  should  exceed  such  sum  for  delay  in  payment  of 
services  rendered  the  authorities  of  the  State  of  ZuUa  at  different  times, 
because  such  services  as  are  represented  by  transportation  of  employees 

and  troops,  both  by  land  and  water,  during  the  time  intervening  be- 
tween 1893  and  March,  1899,  the  correspondence  and  other  papers 

submitted  in  the  case  show  they  were  a  portion  of  the  active  and 
frequent  business  transactions  of  the  company  carried  on  with  the 
local  authorities,  originating  debits  and  credits  in  account  current. 
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There  is  no  written  or  documentary  evidence  showing  that  the  com- 
pany did  ever  press  the  payment  of  the  periodical  balances  of  the 

account  by  means  of  any  of  the  measures  which  the  law  places  at  the 
disposal  of  the  creditor  to  obtain  or  enforce  the  payment  of  what  is  due 
him.  Under  such  conditions  there  was  no  denial  of  justice  nor  has 
such  claim  been  advanced.  On  the  contrary,  from  the  correspondence 
it  appears  that  such  activity  in  the  account  current  of  the  Govertiment 

with  the  company  during  the  six  years  mentioned  was  of  such  import- 
ance for  the  latter  that  it  could  well  afford,  as  it  happens  at  times  in 

this  kind  of  business  transactions,  to  take  into  consideration  certain 

circumstances  which  only  the  company  was  capable  of  appreciating, 
in  order  not  to  institute  legal  proceedings  to  compel  such  payment,  but 

willingly  to  wait  the  payment  of  such  sums  as  fell  due. 
It  must  be  stated  that  the  delay  in  the  payment  of  the  balances 

on  the  part  of  the  local  authorities  of  the  State  of  ZuUa  only  repre- 
sents in  a  period  of  over  six  years  the  amount  of  78,450.95  bolivars, 

out  of  which  sum  50,197.90  bolivars  belong  to  the  six  months  elapsed 
from  October,  1898,  to  April,  1899,  preceding  the  revolutionary  events 

of  May  of  the  latter  year.  It  is  also  worthy  of  notice  that  the  com- 
pany has  not  shown  the  total  movement  of  its  account  current  with 

the  government  of  the  State  of  Zulia  from  the  year  1893  up  to  the 
month  of  April,  1899,  when  the  government  of  the  State  appears  to 

be  the  company's  debtor  to  the  amoimt  of  78,456.95  boUvars.  The 
company  has  only  submitted  to  this  commission  the  balances  due 
at  certain  dates,  which  do  not  furnish  sufficient  data  to  find  out  the 

amount  represented  by  the  total  volume  of  the  business  transactions 
during  the  six  years  in  question  to  indicate  whether  the  government 
of  the  State  of  Zulia  is  as  remiss  in  the  payment  of  its  obligations 
as  represented. 

The  same  documents  and  correspondence,  which  I  have  had  before 
me,  show,  as  has  been  estabUshed,  that  the  larger  portion  of  the  total 
balance  for  freights  and  requisitions  due  by  the  government  of  the 
State  of  Zulia  on  September  30,  1899,  arises  from  services  rendered 
by  the  railways  and  the  steamers  of  the  company  to  the  authorities 
of  the  State  of  ZuUa  for  the  months  elapsed  from  May  of  the  same 

year  when  the  revolution  '^  Libertadora"  broke  out  in  the  Andes 
imtil  said  authorities  were  deprived  of  their  power,  because  of  the 
triumph  of  the  revolutionary  party.  It  was  during  these  months 
that  traffic  was  suspended  on  the  railroad,  because  of  the  interrupted 
commimications  with  the  interior  and  the  complete  cessation  of  all 
transportation  of  the  products,  which  made  the  normal  carrying  trade 

of  the  line  in  the  ordinary  course  of  business  transactions.  The  man- 
agers of  the  line  found  themselves  in  an  embarrassing  position  to 

meet  the  indispensable  expenses  for  the  want  of  the  income  produced 

by  such  transportation  operations,  and  it  was  then  that  the  govern- 
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ment  of  the  State  of  Zulia,  finding  itself  under  the  necessity  of  defend- 
ing the  didy  constituted  authoritiiBs  and  to  restore  public  order,  made 

use,  as  the  government  was  entitled  to  do  and  the  company  bound 

to  allow  by  the  terms  of  the  concession-contract  and  the  imperious 
military  necessity,  of  the  means  of  transportation  over  land  and  water 
that  the  company  had  at  a  standstill  at  that  moment  because  of  the 
lack  of  mercantile  traffic. 

Thus  the  debt  created  by  the  authorities  of  the  State  of  Zulia  in 
favor  of  the  company  under  such  circumstances  represents  the  sole 
industrial  profits  the  company  could  have  obtained  out  of  its  land 
and  water  transportation  facilities,  while  the  use  to  which  said  author- 

ities placed  such  means  of  transportation  afforded  the  only  possible 
means  to  protect  and  save  such  property  either  from  the  injurious 
action  of  a  protracted  period  of  idleness  or  from  the  risk  of  being 
seized  and  destroyed  by  the  revolutionary  party  in  order  to  prevent 
that  the  Government  they  were  opposing  might  make  use  of  it. 

I  do  not  find  that  the  impossibility  said  government  was  in  of 
satisfying  the  pressing  request  for  payment  which  the  agent  for  the 
company  in  Maracaibo  began  to  urge  precisely  at  the  very  moment 
said  authorities  were,  for  the  same  reasons  alleged  by  the  company; 
in  want  of  funds  and  when  the  Government  was  compelled  to  spend 

whatever  revenues  might  be  collected  to  defray  the  expensive  opera- 
tions of  war — I  do  not  find,  I  say,  that  such  impossibility  can  be  made 

a  cause  to  justify  the  claim  of  liability  which  the  company  pretejids 
affects  the  national  Government  and  settlement  of  which  by  an 
indenmity  amoimting  to  milUons  of  boUvars  has  been  demanded. 

If  the  managing  board  of  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Rail- 
roads found  itself  compelled  to  suspend  operations  because  of  the 

lack  of  funds,  and  neither  the  company  nor  the  board  of  directors 
can  be  made  responsible  for  such  state  of  affairs,  as  it  is  due,  the 

company  avers,  to  a  case  of  force  majeure^  why  is  the  national  Gov- 
ernment of  Venezuela  to  be  made  responsible  because  the  local  author- 

ities of  the  State  of  ZuUa  were  in  the  impossibility  to  make  disburse- 
ments to  the  company  in  payment  of  its  debts  when  such  authorities 

were  also  under  the  force  majeure  of  impossibility  on  account  of  the 
war? 

In  an  interview  had  in  Caracas  between  the  manager,  Mr.  Simon, 
and  the  minister  of  finance,  Mr.  Olivarria,  in  September  (16),  1899, 
when  for  the  first  time  a  direct  request  for  a  payment  on  account  of 
the  sum  due  the  company  by  the  sectional  government  of  Zulia  was 
made  to  the  national  Government,  the  aforesaid  minister  of  finance 
gave  as  a  reason  for  not  making  the  payment  then  requested  lack  of 
funds  and  impossibility  to  promise  to  make  such  payment  in  the  near 
future.  At  the  time  of  this  interview  the  national  Government  of 

Venezuela,  represented  by  the  president  general  Ignacio  Andrade, 
S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   27 
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was  reduced  to  the  capital  of  the  Republic  after  the  armed  conflict 
of  Tocuyito,  September  12,  when  the  Government  forces  were  defeated 
by  the  army  imder  the  command  of  Gen.  Cipriano  Castro,  the  present 
provisional  President  of  Venezuela.  General  Andrade  and  those  who 
composed  the  Federal  executive  could  not  at  that  moment  be  in  a 
position  to  satisfy  other  needs  than  those  the  precarious  conditions 
of  the  disorganized  Government  exacted  as  of  vital  importance.  A 
month  after,  which  was  spent  in  gathering  new  troops  and  directing 
military  operations,  to  which  effect  new  war  contributions  were  levied 
and  requisitions  issued  on  the  inhabitants  of  Caracas  for  horses,  mides, 
and  provisions  for  the  army.  General  Andrade  found  himself  in  the 
impossibility  of  continuing  the  struggle  and  abandoned  the  capital, 
accompanied  by  some  officers  and  soldiers,  on  October  19.  From 
these  facts,  which  are  in  perfect  accord  with  historic  truth,  by  the 
simple  appUcation  of  common  sense  free  from  any  passion  or  preju- 

dice whatever,  it  is  concluded  that  there  has  not  existed  on  the  side 
either  of  the  sectional  government  or  of  the  national  authorities  any 
deliberate  purpose  of  doing  any  injury  to  the  prosperity  and  the 
business  of  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads  by  delaying 
without  any  justifiable  cause  the  payment  of  the  amounts  due. 

The  Uability  which  by  all  possible  law  and  by  all  principles  imiver- 
sally  established  affects  the  debtor  who  does  not  pay  his  obligations  in 
due  time  is  solely  that  of  paying  interest  to  his  creditor  for  the  time 
of  the  delay  at  the  rate  agreed  upon  and,  in  the  absence  of  an  agree- 

ment on  this  point,  at  the  legal  rate. 
The  provisions  of  the  Venezuelan  Civil  Code,  which  in  this  matter 

agree  with  those  of  the  French  and  Italian  Civil  Codes  and  with  the 
civil  law  of  all  countries,  establish  that  there  exist  obligations  with 
penal  clause  when  the  debtor,  to  secure  the  fulfillment  of  an  obligation 

agrees  to  give  or  to  do  something  in  case  of  failiu'e  or  delay  in  the 
execution  of  such  obligation,  and  that  the  penal  clause  is  the  compen- 

sation for  damages  growing  out  of  the  failure  to  fulfill  the  principal 
obligation.    (Articles  1 175  and  1 178  of  the  Venezuelan  Code  of  1896).  * 
When  the  government  of  the  State  of  ZuHa  made  a  compact  with 

the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads  for  the  service  of  trans- 
portation of  troops,  ammunition,  etc.,  and  the  requisitions  which 

created  the  Government's  debt,  no  penal  clause  was  stipulated  to 
seciu^e  the  fulfillment  of  the  contracted  obligation,  nor  did  the  Gov- 

a  Abt.  1175.  Hay  obligadones  con  cl&usula  penal  cuando  el  deudor,  para  asegurar  el 
cumplimiento  de  una  obligacidn,  se  compromete  4  dar  6  hacer  alguna  cosa  para  el  caso  de 
inejecucidn  6  retardo  en  el  cumplimit-nto  de  la  obligacidn. 

Abt.  1178.  La  cUlusula  penal  es  la  compensacidn  de  los  dafios  y  perjucios  causados  por 
la  inejecucidn  de  la  obligacidn  principal. 

El  acreedor  no  puede  reclamar  i  un  mismo  tiempo  la  cosa  principal  y  la  pena,  si  no  la 
hubiere  estii^ulado  por  el  simple  retardo« 
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eminent  become  bound  to  pay  damages  in  case  of  delay  in  the  pay- 
ment diflFerent  from  those  the  law  in  all  coimtries  grant  the  creditor 

against  the  debtor  of  an  amount  of  money — i.  e.,  interest  either  in  con- 
formity with  the  contract  or  with  the  law. 

The  following  provisions  of  the  Venezuelan  Civil  Code  mentioned, 
which  agree  with  the  identical  prescriptions  in  the  French  Civil 
Code,  from  which  they  were  adopted,  are  pertinent  to  the  case: 

Art.  1191.  The  debtor  is  not  under  obligation  to  pay  damages  when  as  the  consequence 
of  fortuitous  events  or  force  majeure  he  has  failed  to  give  or  to  perform  that  which  he  is  bound 
to  do,  or  has  performed  that  which  was  forbidden. 

Art.  1192.  Damages  are  generally  due  to  the  creditor  for  the  loss  sustained  or  the  benefits 

which  he  has  been  deprived  of,  according  to  the  provisos  and  exceptions  hereunder. 

Art.  1193.  The  debtor  is  not  liable  except  for  such  damages  as  have  been  foreseen  or  that 

could  have  heen foreseen  the  time  the  contract  was  made,  when  the  failure  to  fulfill  the  obliga- 
tion is  not  due  to  fraud  or  deceit  {dole). 

Art.  1194.  Even  in  cases  where  the  failure  to  execute  an  obligation  may  he  the  result  of 

fraud  or  deceit  on  the  part  of  the  debtor  the  damages  for  the  loss  suffered  by  the  creditor  or 

from  the  loss  of  profits  of  which  he  might  have  been  deprived,  can  not  extend  beyond  the 
immediate  and  direct  consequences  of  the  failure  to  fulfill  the  obligation. 

Art.  1196.  When  in  the  obligations /or  a  certain  sum  of  money  there  exists  no  special 

agreement,  sv^h  damages  as  are  the  result  of  delay  in  the  execution  are  ipdemnified  by  the  pay- 
ment of  interest  ai  the  legal  rate,  except  when  otherwise  specified.  Such  damages  are  due 

'  from  the  day  of  delay,  the  creditor  not  being  under  obligation  to  establish  any  loss  by  proof  .a 

These  prescriptions  which  are  based  on  universal  rules  of  civil  and 
commercial  law  of  all  civiUzed  countries  are  the  only  ones  appUcable 
to  this  case.  And  it  is  based  upon  such  rules  that  I  have  held  and  do 
still  hold  that  the  Venezuelan  Government  is  not  liable  to  the  French 

Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads  for  any  other  damages  for  failure 
to  pay  the  amoimts  due  on  the  contracts  for  services  rendered,  except 
the  payment  of  the  sum  of  money  due  for  such  services  and  the  corre- 

sponding interest  at  the  legal  rate.  To  hold  otherwise  would  be  to 
apply  to  Venezuela  a  penalty  which  has  not  been  established  by  any 
codes  of  any  of  the  nations  existing  imder  international  law.  I, 
therefore,  limit  the  UabiUty  of  the  Government  of  Venezuela  on  this 

a  Art.  1191.  El  deudor  no  est^  obligado  &  pagar  daflos  6  perjuicios  cuando  es  &  con- 
secuencia  de  un  caso  fortuito  6  de  fuerza  mayor  que  ha  dejado  de  dar  6  de  hacer  aquello 
6  que  estaba  obligado  6  que  ha  ejecutado  lo  que  le  estaba  probibido. 

Art.  1192.  Los  dafios  y  perjuicios  son  debidos  generalmcnte  al  acrcedor,  por  la  p^rdida 
que  ha  sufrido  y  por  la  utilidad  de  que  ha  sido  privado,  saWo  las  modificaciones  y 

excepciones  establecidas  &  continuacidn. 
Art.  1193.  £1  deudor  no  queda  obligado  sino  por  los  dafios  y  perjuicios  que  han  sido 

previstos  6  que  han  podido  preverse  al  tiempo  de  la  celebracidn  del  contrato,  cuando  la 
falta  de  cumplimiento  de  la  obligacidn  no  proviene  de  dolo. 

Art.  1.194.  Aunque  la  falta  de  cumplimiento  de  la  obligacidn  resulte  de  dolo  del  deudor 

los  dafios  y  perjuicios  relativos  4  la  p^rdida  sufrida  por  el  acreedor  y  4  los  que  son  con- 

secuencia  inmediata  y  directa  de  la  falta  de  cumplimiento  de  la  obligacidn* 
Art.  1.196.  A  falta  de  convenio  en  las  obligaciones  que  tienen  por  objeto  una  cantidad 

de  dinero  los  dafios  y  perjuicios  resultantes  del  retardo  en  el  cumplimiento,  se  satisfacen 

con  el  page  del  int^:^  legal,  salvo  di^x)6icione8  especiales. 
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account  to   the  amount  above  mentioned — 241,357.70  boilvars — as 
principal  and  estimated  interest  on  the  debt. 

As  the  final  complement  in  the  discussion  of  this  part  of  the  indem- 
nification claim,  I  am  pleased  to  quote  the  high  authority  of  the 

opinion  of  my  honorable  and  learned  colleague  in  the  American  and 
Venezuelan  Commission,  Mr.  WilUam  E.  Bainbridge,  in  the  case  of 
Ford  Dix  against  the  Venezuelan  Government : 

Goveniments  like  individuals  are  responsible  only  for  the  proximate  and  natural  conse- 
quences of  their  acts.  International  as  well  as  municipal  law  denies  compensation  for 

remote  consequences  in  the  absence  of  evidence  of  deliberate  intention  to  injure.  In  my  judg- 

ment the  loss  complained  of  in  this  item  of  Dix's  claim  is  too  remote  to  entitle  him  to  com- 
pensation. The  military  authorities,  under  the  exigencies  of  war,  took  part  of  bis  cattle, 

and  he  is  justly  entitled  to  compensation  for  their  actual  value.  But  there  is  in  the  record 
no  evidence  of  Kay  duress  or  constraint  on  the  part  of  the  mUitary  to  compel  him  to  sell  his 

remaining  cattle  to  third  parties  at  an  inadequate  price.  Neither  is  there  any  special 
animus  ̂ own  against  Mr.  Dix  nor  any  deliberate  intention  to  injure  him  because  of  his 

nationality.  If  the  disturbed  staU  of  the  country  impelled  Mr.  Dix  to  sacrifice  his  property, 
he  thereby  suffered  only  one  of  those  losses  due  to  the  existence  of  war  for  which  there,  is 

unfortunately,  no  redress.     (Venezuelan  Arbitrations  of  1903,  Ralston's  Report,  p.  9.) 

The  same  reasoning  is  applicable  to  the  necessity  of  the  company  to 

suspend  operations,  which  the  company  made  dependent*  from  force 
majeure,  because  of  the  lack  of  revenues  dimng  four  months  by  reason 
of  the  revolution  and  the  failure  of  the  Government  to  pay  its  debts  to 
the  company  and  because  after  September  27,  1899, 

the  raUroad  line  uxis  in  the  hands  of  the  insurgents,  and  until  the  day  of  the  suspension 
(October  12)  there  were  no  hopes  that  the  Government  would  recover  the  place. 

See  the  notice  of  the  manager  annoimcing  to  the  public  that  traffic 
had  been  suspended  published  in  the  newspapers  called  El  FondgrafOy 
El  Anunciadorj  and  La  Compania  Francesa. 

The  second  charge  made  by  the  board  of  directors  of  the  company, 
resuming  the  claim  for  indemnification  demanded  from  the  Govern- 

ment of  Venezuela,  January  18,  1900,  reads  as  follows: 

(b)  The  amount  of  250,000  francs,  our  minimum  estimate  of  the  indemnification  due  by 
the  Oovemment  of  Venezuela  for  substantial  repairs  and  damages  caused  because  of  its  acts 
to  the  whole  of  our  property  during  the  last  revolution. 

In  my  opinion  of  August  28,  1903, 1  granted  the  claimant  company 
an  indemnification  of  ten  thousand  (10,000)  boUvars  and  interest 
irma  October  12,  1899,  for  damages  caused  the  steamer  Santa  Bdr- 
hara  while  in  the  service  of  the  government  of  the  State  of  ZuUa  by 
reason  of  the  revolutionary  movement  at  that  time.  Said  estimate  is 
based  on  the  documentary  evidence  produced  by  the  company  or,  in 
other  words,  on  the  estimate  of  the  damages  suffered  by  the  steamer, 
as  directed  to  be  made  by  the  French  consular  agent  in  Maracaibo, 

Mr.  A.  J.  d'Empaire,  on  January  2,  1903,  Messrs.  Eugene  Creutzer,  a 
French  mechanical  engineer,  and  Manuel  Maria  Soto,  a  captain  in  the 
Venezuelan  merchant  marine;  being  intrusted   as  experts  with  the 
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appraisement  of  said  damages.  The  report  of  these  experts  to  the 
consular  agent  January  2,  1900,  which  bears  the  signature  of  said 
consular  agent,  fixes  the  amount  of  damages  at  the  sum  of  ten  thousand 
bolivars.  There  is  no  other  evidence  on  record  purporting  to  estab* 
lish  the  existence  of  damages  to  the  raihoad  material  of  the  company, 
while,  on  the  contrary,  from  the  correspondence  of  Mr.  Decleva,  acting 

as  manager  of  the  company,  it  appears — 
that  peace  and  order  reigned  on  the  7th  of  June,  1899,  according  to  the  n^ports  neceiyed 
from  the  line. 

Under  date  of  Jime  18  the  same  manager  reports  to  the  company: 

I  am  back  after  an  uneventful  trip.  In  Santa  Barbara,  in  La  Vigia,  along  the  line,  every- 
thing is  quiet.  The  road  is  in  good  condition  and  the  material  complete.  All  our  engines  have 

come  back  to  the  shops,  even  those  employed  in  the  hallast  work,  which  I  had  pressed  into 
service  and  kept  hy  order  of  the  civil  and  military  authorities. 

The  only  thing  that  the  record  establishes  in  reference  to  damages 
sustained  by  the  maritime  property  of  the  company,  besides  the 
damages  done  to  the  steamer  Santa  Bdrharaj  valued  at  10,000 
bohvars,  is  the  loss  of  the  steamer  San  Cdrhs  y  M6rida,  at  anchor  in 
the  harbor  of  Maracaibo.  The  witnesses,  Edmond  Hainst,  Antonio 
Martinez  Pefla,  and  Jos6  Vicente  Gonz&lez  declared  at  the  inquest 
held  by  direction  of  the  French  consular  agent — 
that  the  steamer  San  Cdrlos  y  Merida  at  anchor  opposite  the  warehouse  of  McGregor  &  Co., 
and  of  Rafael  Morales,  had  foundered  during  the  evening  of  the  1st  and  the  day  of  the  2d  of 
December,  1899,  because  of  the  shots  received  in  her  hull,  both  on  the  port  and  starboard 
sides,  during  the  engagement  and  shots  exchanged  between  the  forces  under  Gen.  C^priano 
Castro  (on  the  Maracaibo  side)  and  the  forces  under  Gen.  Jos^  Manuel  Hernandez  (on  the 
Haticos  side). 

What  is  the  liabiUty  affecting  Venezuela  for  the  above-mentioned 
events?  The  answer  is  the  same  Mr.  Evarts,  Secretary  of  State,  gave 

Mr.  Hoffman  July  18,  1879  (Wharton's  Int.  Law  Dig.,  section  224) : 
As  a  principle  of  international  law,  the  view  that  a  foreigner  domiciled  in  the  territory  of  a 

belligerent  can  not  expect  exemption  from  the  operations  of  a  hostile  force,  is  amply  sustained 
hy  the  precedents  you  cite,  and  many  others.  Great  Britain  admitted  the  doctrine  as  against 
her  own  subjects  residing  in  France  during  the  Franco-Priissian  war;  and  we,  too,  have 
asserted  it  successfully  against  similar  claims  of  foreigners  residing  in  the  Southern  States 
during  the  war  of  secession. 

I  do  not  deem  it  necessary  to  quote  numberless  decisions  of  arbitra- 
tion courts  or  commissions  in  support  of  the  views  of  the  eminent  Sec- 

retary of  State. 
Taking  as  a  basis  the  above-quoted  principle,  I  have  not  been  willing 

to  admit  liabiUty  on  the  part  of  Venezuela  for  the  foundering  of  the 
steamer  San  Cdrlos  y  Merida,  which  was  not  occupied  by  the  Govern- 

ment forces,  but  was  anchored  in  the  Maracaibo  harbor,  imfortxmately 
placed  between  the  belUgerent  forces  during  an  engagement  at  a  point 
where  the  cross  fire  damaged  her  hull  to  the  extent  that  she  foundered. 
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Under  such  circumstances,  the  indenmification  I  have  granted  for 

substantial  damages  to  the  company's  property  is  limited  to  what  has 
been  established  as  affecting  the  responsibihty  of  the  Venezuelan 

Government — i.  e.,  the  damages  sustained  by  the  steamer  Santa 
Barbara  while  in  the  service  of  the  local  authorities  of  the  State  of 

ZuUa,  appraised  by  experts  at  the  sum  of  ten  thousand  (10,000)  boli- 
vars. The  interest  on  this  sum  at  the  rate  of  3  per  cent  from  the 

date  of  the  retiun  of  said  vessel,  about  the  end  of  October,  1899,  until 
the  time  before  stated,  represents  an  amount  of  1 ,675  bolivars  or  a  sum 
total  for  the  whole  item  of  11,675  boUvars. 

The  third  and  last  charge  for  indemnification  contained  in  the 
report  of  the  director  of  the  company  under  discussion  is  as  follows: 

(c)  The  amount  of  1,0.50,000  francs,  which,  at  the  rate  of  105,000  francs  per  month,  repre- 
sents the  amount  of  the  indenmification  which  the  Government  of  Venezuela  owes  us  because 

of  suppression  hy  its  cLcts  of  our  traffic  during  the  ten  months  elapsed  between  July,  1899, 
and  May,  1900. 

The  above-mentioned  allegation  is  based  on  the  suppression  of  the 

traffic  of  the  company,  a  fact  which  is  attributed  to  an  act  of  the  Gov- 
ernment of  Venezuela.  From  all  the  documents  submitted  to  this 

commission  .by  the  company,  the  only  established  fact  is  that  the  sus- 
pension of  traffic  from  the  month  of  July,  1899,  to  October  12  of  the 

same  year,  was  due  to  the  state  of  revolution  then  existing  in  the 
Cordillera  de  los  Andes  and  localities  contiguous  to  the  State  of  ZuUa, 

such  revolution  causing  interruption  of  the  carrying  trade  and  paraly- 
zation  of  all  such  commercial  transactions,  and  that  such  suspension 
of  traffic  from  October  12  on  was  due  to  the  determination  taken  by 
the  manager  of  the  operations  of  the  company,  as  published  in  the 
newspapers  in  the  State  of  Zulia,  to  such  causes  as  were  made  public 

by  Manager  Simon — i.  e.,  the  lack  of  receipts.  It  is  in  no  way  estab- 
lished that  the  suspension  of  the  railroad  and  steamer  traffic  operations 

since  the  month  of  July  were  due  to  the  direct  individual  act  of  the 
Venezuelan  Government,  whether  by  government  is  understood  the 
one  which  terminated  on  October  19, 1899,  with  the  fall  of  Gen.  Ignacio 
Andrade  or  thed^/octo  government  succeeding  it  under  Gen.  Cipriano 
Castro. 

Neither  the  authorities  of  the  government  of  General  Andrade  nor 

the  revolutionary  forces  led  by  General  Castro,  which  afterwards  con- 
stituted the  government,  did  ever  perform  any  direct  act  which  may 

render  the  Venezuelan  Government  liable  for  the  suspension  of  traffic 

both  by  land  and  by  water  of  the  company  during  the  months  elapsed 
from  July,  1899,  to  October  12, 1899,  while  it  is  fully  estabUshed  that 
the  management  directed  the  suspension  of  the  operations  of  the  lines, 
and  this  constitutes  an  act  of  its  own  volition. 

Even  in  the  event,  which  is  not  the  present  casej  that  the  govern- 
mental authorities  should  have  directed  the  traffic  of  the  trains  to 
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stop  temporarily  because  of  the  needs  of  war,  such  determination 
could  not  have  made  the  Government  of  Venezuela  incur  a  liability 
to  indemnify  the  damages  sustained. 

There  can  be  no  reasonable  doubt  that  it  is  the  right  of  a  government,  in  situations  of  dan- 
ger or  organized  rebellion  and  revolution,  to  take  such  measures  as  it  may  deem  proper  to 

prevent  the  passage  of  persons,  either  for  travel  or  business,  from  one  point  to  another  in 
the  localities  where  there  are  armed  and  organized  troops  of  insurrectionists,  and  to  this  end 

it  certainly  has  the  right  and  the  power  to  suspend  traffic  upon  any  line  of  transportation; 
but  this  right  is  coupled  with  a  corresponding  duty,  which  is  to  make  proper  compensation 

to  the  company  in  cases  other  than  those  where  the  territory  traversed  by  the  railroad  is  the 
theater  of  active  warlike  operations  between  armed  forces.  (Opinion  of  the  Hon.  Henry 

M.  Duffield,  umpire  in  the  German-Venezuelan  Claims  Commission  in  the  case  of  the  Great 

Railroad  of  Venezuela  against  Venezuela,  Ralston 's  Report,  p.  636.) 

That  the  authorities  of  the  State  of  Zulia  directed  the  suspension  of 
traffic  on  the  railroad  line,  as  alleged,  has  not  been  established.  But 
even  in  such  case,  the  operations  of  war  being  active  precisely  within 
the  territory  over  which  the  railroad  runs,  the  right  to  suspend  traffic 
rested  with  said  authorities,  the  Government  of  Venezuela  not  having 
obligation  on  that  score  to  indemnify. 

The  interruption  of  the  ordinary  course  of  business  is  an  inevitable 
consequence  of  the  state  of  war,  to  which  both  natives  and  foreigners 
must  submit,  and  therefore  the  losses  suffered  imder  such  circum- 

stances do  not  create  any  liability  for  indemnification  to  the  govern- 
ment of  the  territory  where  the  war  takes  place.  This  is  the  same 

rule  controlUng  the  case  of  liability  when  the  property  of  neutrals 
suffers  a  direct  injury  or  is  destroyed  during  an  engagement  of  the 
belligerent  forces. 

No  government  compensates  its  subjects  for  losses  or  injuries  suffered  in  the  course  of 

civil  commotions    *     ♦    *.     (Hall,  4th  edition,  p.  232.) 

The  reason  for  this  is  obvious.  If  the  damages  suffered  by  natives  as 
well  as  aUens  in  consequence  of  a  war  were  to  be  indemnified,  the  sum 
total  would  be  so  great  that  whatever  the  war  might  have  left  standing 
would  not  be  sufficient  to  indemnify  the  claimants  for  direct  damages. 

Payment  would  have  to  be  made  with  their  own  property,  and  per- 
haps even  this  would  not  suffice. 

If  governments  were  under  obligations  to  accept  such  liabihties  as 
the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads  has  pretended  should 
be  charged  against  the  Venezuelan  Government  because  of  the  war, 
claiming  for  the  value  of  the  capital  invested  in  the  operation  of 
the  Santa  B&rbara  and  El  Vigia  Railroad  an  indemnification  of 
18,000,000  francs,  because  the  state  of  war  compelled  the  company  to 
suspend  operations,  suppressing  all  its  revenues,  and  pretending 
besides  that  Venezuela  should  receive  in  exchange  both  the  railroad 
and  the  maritime  property  of  the  company  in  such  a  condition  as  it 
is  now,  why  should  it  not  be  admitted  also  that  all  railroad,  maritime, 
commercial,  industrial  companies,  even  the  undertakers  and  funeral 
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directors  who  have  been  compelled  to  suspend  in  Venezuela  their 
active  business  transactions  on  account  of  a  state  of  war,  are  entitled 
to  transfer  to  the  State  their  several  business  properties  in  exchange 
for  an  indemnity  equivalent  to  their  working  capital  ?  The  claim  of 
the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads  for  18,430,000  bolivars 
leads  to  such  absurdity. 

The  foregoing  statements  are,  I  beUeve,  sufficient  to  firmly  estab- 
lish that  the  lack  of  groimds  to  base  the  claim  for  an  indemnification 

upon,  larger  than  the  two  I  have  acknowledged,  relieves  the  Vene- 
zuelan Government  from  other  liabilities  to  the  French  Company  of 

Venezuelan  Railroads  than — 
First.  Indemnity  for  transportation  and  requisitions  as  established 

and  estimated  interest,  241,357.70  bolivars. 
Second.  Indemnity  for  damages  to  the  steamer  /Santo  Barbara  and 

interest,  11,675  bolivars. 

Or  a  sum  of  two  himdred  and  fifty-three  thousand  and  thirty-two 
bolivars,  rejecting  the  other  claims,  as  they  are  not  fully  established. 
In  this  connection  I  beg  to  reaffirm  in  each  and  every  particular  my 

opinion  of  August  28,  1903. « 
Before  closing  this  paper  I  desire  to  be  allowed  to  make  two  remarks 

in  reference  to  the  opinion  submitted  by  my  learned  colleague  in  sup- 
port of  his  decision. 

The  first  remark  is  that  the  claim. my  colleague  quotes  in  his  opinion 

of  the  English  Company  of  the  Puerto  Cabello  and  Valencia  railroads,^ 
which  by  the  award  of  the  umpire  in  the  British- Venezuelan  mixed 
commission  obtained  an  indemnification  of  £231,794  7s.  lid.,  has 
no  similarity  whatever  with  the  present  claim,  as  my  learned  colleague 
avers,  but,  on  the  contrary,  it  essentially  differs  as  regards  the  grounds 
upon  which  it  rests.  Such  claim,  as  the  honorable  umpire  knows 
better  than  we  do,  as  he  passed  the  final  judgment  upon  the  matter, 
was  entered  before  the  commission  by  the  English  Government  in 
behalf  of  the  Puerto  Cabello  and  Valencia  Railroad  Company,  demand- 

ing from  the  Venezuelan  Government  the  amoimt  of  £319,381  4s.  9d. 
as  arrears  on  the  guaranty  that  the  Venezuelan  Government  had 
given  the  English  railroad  company,  and  their  interest,  besides  a 
small  sum  for  freights.  The  English  Government  coiJd  not  have 
submitted  to  an  international  arbitration  court  a  claim  similar  to 

that  submitted  to  this  commission  by  the  French  Company  of  Vene- 
zuelan Railroads. 

The  second  remark  is  that  it  was  not  Doctor  Patil  who  published 

a  volume  entitled '  *  Dictdmenes  del  Arbitro  Venezolano ' '  (Opinions  of  the 
Venezuelan  Commissioner)  ,among  which  is  found  that  which  my  learned 

o  See  pp.  369-405. 
6  Herein,  p.  408,  and  citing  Venezuelan  Arbitrations  of  1903,  Ralston's  Report,  p.  455. 



ADDITIONAL   OPINION   OF   FRENCH   OOMMSSIONEB.  425 

colleague,  with  a  certain  amount  of  fitness,  perhaps,  calls  ''a  formal 
defense  of  the  Venezuelan  nation/^  It  is  the  Venezuelan  Grovem- 
ment  which  made  the  pubUcation,  and  it  may  be  possible  that  such 
step  has  been  taken  with  the  puri)ose  that  the  French  commissioner 
or  the  counsel  for  the  claimant  companies  may  have  an  opportunity 
to  learn  as  far  in  advance  as  possible  the  arguments  therein  contained, 

so  as  to  be  able  to  contradict  them  with  convincing  proofs  and  argu- 
ments before  the  umpire.  I  will  simply  say  to  my  learned  colleague 

that  it  is  not  our  opinions  which  are  to  be  submitted  to  the  judg- 
ment of  the  honorable  umpire.  It  is  the  mass  of  papers  and  docu- 
ments aroimd  which  the  claimant  has  woven  the  net  of  its  preten- 

sions which  will  give  no  little  trouble  to  the  honorable  umpire  to 
unravel.  It  is  the  claims  for  indemnification  against  the  Venezuelan 
Government  which  are  to  be  sifted  to  attain  the  ends  of  justice. 

I  also  submit  herewith  five  exhibits  translated  into  English,  marked, 

respectively,' with  the  numbers  2,  3,  4,  5,  and  6,  containing  several 
reports  from  the  railroad  inspectors  during  different  stages  of  the 
construction  and  operation  of  the  road  and  during  the  suspension 

of  traffic,  as  well  as  other  communications  from  the  company's  agents, 
addressed  to  the  department  of  promotion  (ministerio  de  fomento) 
of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela,  relating  to  the  facts  dealt  with 
in  the  present  case. 

NoBTHFiELD,  Vt.,  February  IS,  1906. 

ABBrnOlTAL  OPDnOK  OF  THE  FBSKOH  OOMHISSIONEB. 

After  having  read  the  additional  memoir  presented  by  my  honorable 
colleague,  I  can  only  maintain  the  position  which  I  took  at  the  meet- 

ing of  the  commission  of  August  28,  1903,  and  explained  in  the  prior 
memoir. 

Although  Doctor  Patil  speaks  of  my  ''arguments,''  I  maintain  that 
I  have  rendered  my  opinion  according  to  my  conscience,  as  my  posi- 

tion as  an  ''arbitrator"  requires.  The  protocol  of  1902  gives  us  the 
title  of  ''arbitrators''  and  not  "commissioners"  or  "advocates." 

I  have  no  arguments  to  furnish.  I  am  satisfied  to  examine  those 
of  the  company  and  its  defender,  Mr.  Dacraigne. 

I  have  judged  them  to  be  convincing.  I  have  read  the  two  memoirs 
presented  by  my  honorable  colleague,  not  to  combat  them,  but  to 
find  reasons  for  changing  my  convictions.  After  having  read  them 
my  conviction  remains  intact.  The  Venezuelan  Government  has 

failed  in  its  contractual  obligations  in  never  having  paid  to  the  com- 
pany the  guaranty  of  interest  as  agreed;  it  has  imposed  upon  the 

company,  which  was  forced  to  accept  it,  a  leonine  contract  of  which 
judges  in  equity  could  not  recognize  the  existence  any  more  than 
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ordinary  judges  can  accord  value  to  a  signature  given  imder  threat; 
it  has  paid  the  pittance  which  it  has  kindly  given  on  this  occasion 
in  paper  without  value;  it  has  used  the  materials  of  the  company 
for  its  needs;  it  has  deprived  it  of  its  ordinary  resources  and  employees; 
it  has  not  even  paid  the  price  for  services  demanded.  Consequently 
it  has  obliged  the  company  to  suspend  operations.  It  is,  then,  respon- 

sible for  its  ruin,  and  it  owes  it  an  equitable  compensation.  The 
manner  which  I  have  adopted  for  calculating  this  compensation  seems 
to  me  to  be  the  only  one  which  meets  the  requirements  of  equity 
and  avoids,  as  the  spirit  of  the  protocol  desires,  a  new  claim  being 
held  after  the  arbitral  sentence  is  rendered.  Besides  this  estimation 
is  made  in  accordance  with  the  terms  of  the  contract,  and  in  this 
mode  of  settlement  the  Venezuelan  Government  would  find  advan- 

tages, since  it  would  acquire  a  concession  and  a  line  of  railroad  at  a 
price  inferior  to  the  contract  price  estimated  by  itself. 

My  colleague  considers  that  my  decision  is  contrary  to  the  protocol 
and  that  the  commission  could  not  pronoimce  the  rescission  of  a  con- 

tract.    Such  is  not  my  opinion.     What  are  the  terms  of  the  protocol  ? 

The  commission  will  unite  for  the  purpose  of  examining  *^the  claims 
for  indemnities  presented  by  Frenchmen."  If  the  two  arbitrators 
''do  not  agree  upon  the  amoimt  of  indemnities  to  be  allowed,  the 
demands  will  be  submitted  by  them  to  an  umpire/'  who  ''will  decide 
without  appeal."  The  protocol  says  nothing  else,  and  it  would  be  to 
take  from  it  all  the  efficacy  which  the  signers  wished  to  give  it  to 
restrain  the  powers  of  the  umpire  contrary  to  the  letter  and  to  the 
spirit  of  this  diplomatic  act.  The  protocol  was  intended  to  terminate 
all  the  diflFerences  existing  between  Frenchmen  and  the  Grovemment 
of  Venezuela,  and  has  placed  no  limitation  upon  the  sovereign  power 
of  the  arbitrators  to  weigh  and  decide  and,  in  case  of  disagreement 
between  the  latter,  that  of  the  umpire.  In  pronoimcing  the  rescission, 
besides,  the  conamission  would  only  cause  a  condition  of  fact  to  be 
registered,  solemnly,  and  consecrated,  the  Venezuelan  Government 
having  treated  the  contract  in  question  as  nonexisting^  since  it  has 
never  executed  its  clauses. 

Finally,  I  ought  to  remark  to  the  honorable  Mr.  Plumley  that  Doc- 
tor Pa61  has  not  always  been  of  the  opinion  that  the  rescission  of  the 

contract  was  beyond  the  jurisdiction  of  the  commission,  since  at  the 
sitting  of  the  commission  of  May  12, 1903,  relative  to  the  Pieri  claim,  he 
decided  that  this  Frenchman  should  obtain  an  indemnity  in  exchange 
for  the  concession  which  he  held  of  a  contract  with  a  mimicipality. 
The  umpire  can  refer  to  the  extract  of  the  minutes  of  the  said  meeting, 
which  he  will  find  in  the  dossier  of  the  Pieri  claim. 

As  to  the  foimdation  of  the  claim,  it  is  not  for  me  to  defend  the  com- 
pany of  which  I  am  not  the  advocate  but  the  judge ;  I  can  only  pray 

the  umpire  to  go  over  the  dossier  and  the  argument  of  Mr.  Dacraigne. 
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It  only  remains  for  me  to  express  a  few  ideas  which  are  suggested  to 
me  by  the  additional  memoir  of  my  honorable  colleague,  additional 

memoir  which,  with  the  memoir  printed  in  the  *'Dict6,menes,"  form  so 
well  an  argument  in  favor  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  that  the 
latter  has  presented  no  other  defense. 

In  support  of  his  opinions  Doctor  Patil  cites  passages  from  known 
authorities  and  decisions  of  arbitrators  whose  science  and  impartiahty  I 

respect;  he  calls  to  his  aid  international  law  and  the  law  of  all  coun- 
tries. I  reply  that  these  authors,  these  arbitrators,  and  these  laws  agree 

in  proclaiming  that  States,  like  individuals,  are  bound  to  keep  their 

engagements  solemnly  made  and  to  pay  their  debts,  and  are  responsi- 
ble, like  individuals,  for  damages  which  their  faults  have  caused  to 

others. 

Doctor  Patil  asks  why  the  Venezuelan  Government  should  not  also 

reimburse  their  capital  to  all  enterprises,  ̂ ^even  funerals,' '  which  have 
suffered  in  Venezuela  from  operations  of  war.  And  to  this  question  I 
make  the  same  reply  as  he :  We  are  agreed  upon  the  above.  It  is  not  a 
question  of  that  in  the  claim  of  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan 
Railroads,  which  was  bound  to  the  Government  by  a  formal  contract 
and  has  rendered  it  service  worthy  of  remuneration. 

Doctor  Patil  maintains  that  there  is  no  possible  comparison  between 
this  claim  and  that  of  the  English  Company  of  Railroads  between 
Puerto  Cabello  and  Valencia.  It  seems  to  me,  however,  that  both 
cases  relate  to  the  nonpayment  of  a  guaranty  of  interest.  Only  they 
did  not  dare,  because  of  the  easy  access  of  English  fleets  to  Puerto 
Cabello,  to  impose  upon  the  English  company  the  conditions  which  the 
French  company  was  obliged  to  accept  under  penalty  of  obtaining 
nothing  for  the  sums  due  it.  A  look  cast  upon  the  map  of  Venezuela 
is  more  instructive  than  all  the  explanations. 

It  is  also  known  that  France  is  opposed  to  using  force  against  the 
weak  to  have  her  rights  respected.  Besides,  the  umpire  knows  better 
than  anyone  the  claim  of  the  English  company,  which  I  have  merely 
heard  spoken  of,  and  he  will  be  able,  knowing  the  case,  to  decide  if 
what  has  been  granted  the  one  can  be  refused  the  other  because  the 
other  is  less  fortimate  or  less  feared. 

Doctor  Patil  courteously  observes  to  me  that  it  is  the  Venezuelan 

Government  that  has  had  the  ̂ 'Dictdmenes  del  drhitro  venezolano^^ 
published,  perhaps  to  permit  the  French  arbitrator  and  the  advocates 
of  the  parties  to  understand  its  arguments,  and  besides  that  the  honor- 

able umpire  ought  to  pass,  not  upon  our  respective  decisions,  but  upon 
the  claims  themselves,  of  which  he  ought  to  become  conversant 
integrally. 

On  the  first  point,  I  reply  to  my  honorable  colleague  that  I  have 

never  criticized  the  publication  of  the  "Dict6,menes'' — I  have  no 
authority  at  all  to  do  so.    I  am  content  to  state  that  this  publication 
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emphasizes  the  character  of  the  arguments  of  the  '^Dict6,meiies"  and 
gives  to  the  French  claimants  the  right  of  replying,  as  certain  of  them 
have  done. 

On  the  second  point  I  am  happy  to  share  completely  the  opinion  of 
my  honorable  colleague.  It  will  be  necessary  to  remember  on  this 
occasion  that  it  is  not  the  first  time  that  we  have  agreed  since  we  have 
already  settled  together,  without  recourse  to  an  umpire,  72  claims  out 
of  the  80  that  were  submitted  to  us  under  the  protocol  of  1902. 

NoRTHFiELD,  Fehfuary,  I4,  1906. 

OPINION  OF  THE  X7MPIBE. 

July  25,  1887,  the  minister  of  public  works  of  the  United  States  of 
Venezuela,  duly  authorized,  executed  a  contract  with  the  Duke  of 
Momy,  a  French  citizen,  which  contract  was  duly  approved  by  the 
Congress  of  that  Republic  August  3,  1888.  It  contained  provisions 
which  are  summarized  by  the  umpire  as  follows: 

The  Government  of  Venezuela  conceded  to  the  party  above  named 

the  right  to  build  a  railroad  fi-om  M6rida  to  the  Lake  of  Maracaibo; 
canalizing  the  river  Chamas,  the  Escalante,  or  any  other  navigable 
river  whatsoever;  the  exploitation  and  the  enjoyment  of  the  revenues 

of  the  enterprise  for  a  term  of  ninety-nine  years;  a  strip  of  500  meters 
of  land  on  each  side  of  the  railroad  track  without  payment  therefor  to 
be  taken  from  the  lands  of  the  nation;  the  right  to  avail  himself  of  the 
lands  belonging  to  individuals  which  might  become  necessary  for  the 
construction  of  the  railroad,  stations,  and  the  like,  in  conformity  with 
the  laws  governing  the  taking  of  lands  for  public  use  and  subject  to 
compensation  therefor;  the  wood  and  timber  necessary  for  the  con- 

struction of  the  works  to  be  taken  from  the  national  forest  without 

compensation  therefor;  the  right  to  introduce  into  the  coimtry  free  of 
import  duties  the  engines,  material,  instruments,  and  everything 
necessary  for  the  construction  of  the  line,  subject  only  to  proceeding 
in  reference  thereto  in  conformity  with  the  provisions  of  article  177  of 
the  code  of  finances;  the  right  of  exemption  from  assessments  at  all 
times  by  the  nation  and  the  State;  a  right  to  extension  of  the  time 
allowed  for  the  beginning  and  the  completion  of  the  works  when  delay 
was  caused  hj  force  majeure  j  the  entire  extension  not  to  exceed  one 
year;  a  guaranty  of  7  per  cent  on  the  capital  in  shares,  bonds,  or  obU- 
gations;  the  right  to  construct  such  branch  lines  as  he  should  deem 
necessary;  the  privilege  of  transferring  the  contract  thus  executed  to 
any  other  person  or  company  at  his  pleasure  on  notice  to  the  Vene- 

zuelan Government. 

The  Duke  of  Momy  obligated  himself  in  said  contract  to  begin  the 
said  railroad  and  the  canalization  of  the  river,  in  case  it  be  necessary, 
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within  one  year  from  the  date  of  the  contract  and  to  finish  the  line  in 
three  years  thewlrom;  to  yield  up  to  the  Government  of  Venezuela  at 
the  expiration  ei  the  said  ninety-nine  years,  without  indemnity  there- 

for, the*  enterjwpise  with  all  its  annexes  and  properties;  to  carry  the 
mail  free  of  charge ;  to  transport  for  one-half  the  established  rates  the 
employees  of  the  Government,  its  soldiers,  troops,  and  elements  of 
war;  to  the  resolution  by  the  competent  tribunals  of  the  RepubUc,  in 
conformity  with  its  laws,  of  all  doubts  and  controversies  which  might 
arise  from  the  contract. 

August  13,  1888,  certain  declarations  and  amplifications  to  the  fore- 
going were  made  by  Gen.  GuzmAn  Blanco,  envoy  extraordinary  and 

minister  plenipotentiary  for  Venezuela,  to  and  with  the  said  Duke  of 
Momy ,  which  are  summarized  by  the  umpire  as  follows :  The  Govern- 

ment of  Venezuela  thereby  and  therein  conceded  to  the  other  party 
that  the  railroad  from  M6rida  to  Lake  Maracaibo  was  to  be  divided  into 

two  sections;  the  first  section  was  to  start  from  a  point  upon  the  river 
Escalante,  which  point  the  concessionary  was  to  determine,  and  to  be 
continued  for  a  length  of  60  kilometers  in  the  direction  of  M^rida;  the 
second  section  was  to  start  from  the  terminal  point  of  this  first  section 
and  continue  to  the  city  of  M6rida;  an  extension  of  the  time  fixed  in 
said  modification  of  the  contract  for  the  building  of  the  first  section 
equal  to  the  delay  suffered,  if  the  delay  was  caused  hj  force  majeure; 
the  guaranty  of  7  per  cent  provided  for  in  the  original  contract  to 
begin  when  the  first  section  was  opened  for  exploitation;  an  extension 
of  the  time  fixed  in  this  modification  to  the  original  contract  for  the 
building  of  the  second  section  was  to  be  made  equivalent  to  the  delay 
suffered,  if  the  delay  was  caused  by  force  majeure;  establishing  the 
capital  at  an  estimate  of  300,000  boUvars  per  kilometer  for  the  first 
section  and  at  350,000  bolivars  per  kilometer  for  the  second  section, 
the  guaranty  of  7  per  cent  to  rest  upon  the  amoimt  of  this  estimate;  to 
pay  the  said  guaranty  in  three  equal  parts  at  equal  periods  diwing  the 
year;  to  add  to  the  material  which  was  to  be  imported  free  of  duty 
under  the  terms  of  the  original  contract  the  engines,  material,  and 
instruments  necessary  for  the  running  of  the  railroad;  and  that  during 
the  period  of  twelve  years  from  the  date  of  the  said  modification  of  the 
original  contract  the  Government  would  not  establish  a  service  of 
navigation  to  carry  on  traffic  between  the  terminal  point  of  the  rail- 

road or  any  points  upon  the  Escalante  and  the  different  ports  of  the 
Lake  of  Maracaibo. 

The  concessionary  was  obligated  therein  to  begin  the  work  of  build- 
ing the  first  section  of  said  railroad  within  six  months  from  August  13, 

1888,  and  to  complete  the  same  within  two  years  therefrom;  to  com- 
plete the  construction  of  the  second  section  within  four  years  from  the 

date  named,  and  to  introduce  the  material  which  was  to  come  in  duty 
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free  in  conformity  with  the  provisions  of  the  law  of  finances  provided 
for  in  such  matters. 

April  16,  1891,  further  modifications  of  the  contract  were  made  by 
the  Congress  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  by  and  with  the  repre- 

sentative of  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads,  which 
latter  had  succeeded  to  the  rights  of  the  original  concessionary,  which 
modifications  are  sunamarized  by  the  umpire  as  follows:  The  Republic 
ratified  in  behalf  of  said  company  the  contract  of  August  13,  1888,  and 
confirmed  the  original  contracts  except  where  they  were  contrary  to 
the  conditions  named  in  that  modification.  The  company  renounced 
and  declared  null  and  void  Article  X  of  the  contract  of  August  13, 

1888,  which  gave  exclusive  navigation  privileges  on  the  river  Esca- 
lante  and  the  different  ports  of  the  Lake  of  Maracaibo.  It  was  mutu- 

ally stipulated  that  the  concession  was  to  be  limited  to  the  first 
section,  which  was  to  extend  from  Santa  B6.rbara  to  Camino  Real,  a 
point  1  kilometer  distant  from  La  Vigia.  The  guaranty  of  7  per  cent 
was  to  be  reduced  by  the  amoimt  of  the  net  benefits  received  by  the 
company,  these  being  composed  of  the  net  product  of  the  receipts  of 

every  natm*e  made  by  the  exploitation  of  the  railroad  after  deducting 
the  general  expenses  of  the  company  and  of  its  management;  the 
sums  paid  on  accoimt  of  said  guaranty  to  be  treated  as  advances  only, 
to  be  returned  as  and  when  the  benefits  received  by  the  company 
exceeded  7  per  cent  on  the  guaranteed  capital  by  applying  one-half 
of  such  excess  in  liquidation  of  said  advances  imtil  all  was  reim- 

bursed; that  after  said  advances  had  been  fully  reimbursed  the  Gov- 
ernment was  to  continue  to  share  in  said  benefits  to  the  extent  of  20 

per  cent  thereof.  There  was  added  to  the  provision  in  regard  to  the 
resolution  of  all  doubts  and  controversies  by  the  tribimals  of  the  Re- 

public the  further  agreement  that  in  no  case  were  these  doubts  and 
controversies  to  give  place  to  international  claims. 

It  will  be  observed  that  by  the  modification  of  the  original  contract 
made  August  13,  1888,  the  capital  of  the  company  for  the  purpose  of 
reckoning  the  guaranty  was  estimated  at  18,000,000  francs. 

Following  this  arrangement  a  French  company  was  formed  Sep- 
tember 28,  1888,  taking  the  name  of  French  Company  of  Venezuelan 

Railroads,  with  headquarters  at  Paris,  and  its  dm^ation  limited  to 
ninety-nine  years.  The  concessions  obtained  by  the  Duke  of  Momy 
were  taken  over  by  this  company.  The  social  fund  was  fixed  at 
300,000  francs,  divided  into  6,000  shares  of  500  francs  each;  the 

other  resom*ces  of  the  company  necessary  to  the  enterprise  were  to  be 
raised  by  a  loan.  The  laws  of  the  company  provided  that  from  the 
guaranty  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  of  7  per  cent  there  should  be 
set  aside  annually  a  sufficient  sum  to  insure  the  payment  of  interest 
on  the  capital,  which  was  to  be  obtained  by  loans.    This  guaranty  w^B 
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reckoned  to  produce  126,000  francs  annually  on  the  estimated  capital 
of  18,000,000  francs. 

October  26,  1888,  the  company  created  41,664  obligations  of  a 
nominal  value  of  500  francs,  each  representing  25  francs  annual 
interest. 

With  the  capital  thus  provided,  a  syndicate  undertook  to  construct 
the  railway,  pay  the  interest  in  the  meantime,  and  reserve  finally  to 
the  company  for  current  funds  at  the  time  the  first  section  was  ready 
for  exploitation  the  sum  of  300,000  francs.  The  building  of  the  road 
was  in  progress  from  1889  to  1892. 

It  is  complained  by  the  company  that  on  April  16,  1891,  the  Gov- 
ernment, by  the  rule  of  the  stronger,  compelled  in  the  agreement  of 

that  date,  the  provisions  of  which  have  already  been  stated,  the  intro- 
duction of  the  clause  into  the  original  contract  that  there  was  to  be 

deducted  from  the  amoimt  of  the  guaranty  the  actual  net  profits  of 
the  company. 

September  29,  1891,  the  first  section  was  nearly  completed  and 
about  ready  for  use,  when  there  occurred  a  very  serious  immdation, 
causing  a  considerable  delay  and  the  expenditure  of  a  large  sum  of 
money  to  reconstruct  the  parts  destroyed.  It  was  April  1,  1892, 
when  the  company  considered  the  work  of  construction  completed 
and  demanded  of  the  Government  its  acceptance.  But  the  State  of 
Andes  was  then  in  revolt,  while  that  of  Zulia  was  loyal  to  the  titular 
Government.  A  portion  of  the  railroad  was  in  each  State.  To  whom 
should  it  apply  ?    Which  was  its  Government  ? 

August  5,  1892,  the  company  made  publication  in  the  local  papers 
of  the  fact  of  the  completion  of  the  railroad  and  that  it  had  begun 
business. 

The  company  suffered  badly  from  the  insurrection,  in  requisitions 
from  both  sides,  in  the  dispersions  of  its  workmen,  in  the  disappear- 

ance of  its  traffic,  while  the  Government  in  the  midst  of  this  intestine 
war  paid  neither  requisitions,  damages,  nor  guaranties.  The  line 
was  repaired  from  the  resources  of  the  company,  but  it  thereby 
exhausted  its  capital,  and  November  1,  1892,  judicial  liquidation 
resulted.  The  creditors  accepted  the  proposition  made  by  the  com- 

pany to  pay  them  pro  rata  and  permitted  it  to  continue  its  enter- 

prise. 
February  23,  1893,  the  engineer  of  the  Government  examined  the 

line  and  declared  it  to  be  well  constructed  and  advised  that  by  April 
1,  1893,  it  would  be  in  a  situation  to  be  accepted  by  the  Government. 
March  23,  1893,  the  decree  of  inauguration  was  published,  and  on 
May  10,  1893,  the  record  was  made  of  its  definite  acceptance  by  the 
Venezuelan  Government,  dated  back  to  April  1  of  that  year.  As 
a  matter  of  fact,  the  line  had  been  in  operation  since  1892,  with 

Receipts  for  ̂ e\,i,  yeiir  aggregating  149,241.21  francs,  for  1893  the 
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receipts  being  570,061.37  francs,  and  in  1894  they  were  458,525.24 
francs. 

An  earthquake  in  1894  did  great  damage  to  the  roadbed  and  to 
the  bridges,  which  required  large  expenditures  to  restore.  The 

receipts  through  its  traffic  were  insufficient  to  meet  these  expendi- 
tures, and  the  national  Government,  though  repeatedly  urged  so 

to  do,  paid  neither  guaranties  nor  indemnities  nor  requisitions.  At 
the  general  meeting  of  the  shareholders  of  the  company,  held  Jime 
30,  1894,  its  reports  showed  a  claim  against  the  Venezuelan  Govern- 

ment amounting  to  2,205,000  francs.  In  fact,  the  repairs  which  were 
required  by  the  earthquake  had  been  made  only  by  the  issue  of  bonds 
of  the  denomination  of  500  francs,  drawing  interest  at  6  per  cent,  to 
be  reimbursed  by  the  sums  to  be  received  from  the  respondent  Gov- 

ernment. On  June  20,  1895,  the  report  to  the  general  meeting  of  the 
shareholders  showed  a  claim  against  this  Government  of  5,820,785.47 
francs.  In  1894  the  company  issued  800  of  the  bonds,  which  have 
been  mentioned,  and  in  1895  it  made  a  further  issue  of  400.  In  the 

month  of  December  of  this  last-named  year  requisitions  by  the 
national  Government  began  again;  the  financial  condition  of  the 
company  became  more  strenuous.  It  sought  diplomatic  aid  through 
its  own  Government,  but  obtained  no  results.     December  31,  1895, 
it  claimed  of  the  Government  of  Venezuela  as  follows: Bolivars. 

For  guaranty  to  December  31,  1895   4,725,000.00 
Damage  to  the  exploitation         396, 924. 75 
Damage  for  recruiting  its  workmen         525,  509. 57 
Requisitions          96,320.00 
Damage  resulting  from  the  nonpayment  of  the  guaranty  for  the  issue  of 

bonds    1,308,000.00 

Total   7,051,754.32 

The  years  1892  to  1894,  both  inclusive,  were  involved  more  or  less 
in  the  successful  Crespo  revolution.  It  was  February  20,  1894,  that 
General  Crespo  became  constitutional  President  of  the  Republic  for 
a  term  of  four  years.  But  it  was  not  imtil  the  year  1895  that  his 
authority  was  everywhere  recognized,  and  up  to  that  time  there 
were  occasional  revolutionary  outbreaks,  entailing  large  expense  upon 
the  Government  and  lessening  and  interrupting  its  sources  and  means 
of  revenue. 

The  answer  of  the  national  Government  to  the  repeated  and  urgent 
requests  of  the  company  for  the  recognition  and  payment  of  its  credits 
was  always  a  lack  of  funds,  of  which  fact  there  could  be  no  real  denial. 
The  respondent  Government  had  not,  however,  agreed  to  the  sums 
demanded  of  it  by  the  company. 
By  1896  the  financial  condition  of  the  national  Government  had 

greatly  improved,  and  in  April  of  that  year,  together  with  Mr.  Charles 
Weber,  the  duly  constituted  representative  of  the  Freuch  Company 
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of  Venezuelan  Railroads,  it  took  up  the  claims  of  that  company. 
Substantially  the  same  figures  were  presented  to  the  respondent 
.Grovemment  as  have  been  here  produced  of  date  December  31,  1895. 
The  consideration  and  discussion  of  these  affairs  resulted  in  a  formal 

convention  made  April  18,  1896,  when  was  brought  in  first  a  rehearsal 
of  the  salient  matters  of  the  previous  contracts  and  then  the  state- 

ment of  the  claim  of  the  company  against  the  respondent  Govern- 
ment.    This  statement  is  succeeded  by  the  language  which  follows: 

(e)  The  Government  has  refused  the  payment  of  this  guaranty  during  the  time  between 

April  1,  1892  (date  upon  which  the  line  would  have  been  opened  to  traflBc  had  it  not  been 
for  the  forced  recruiting  of  workmen),  and  June  1, 1893,  date  of  the  official  inauguration;  and, 
furthermore,  it  has  refused  the  payment  of  the  amount  of  2326,751.32  bolivars,  which  treats 

of  damages  not  well  founded. 

The  company,  although  maintaining  in  principle  the  good  foundation  of  the  daim,  shows 

itself  disposed  to  make  important  concessions  in  view  of  arriving  at  an  agreement,  and  after 

lengthy  discussions  upon  the  accounts  presented  the  Government  and  the  company  by  way 
of  a  transaction  have  agreed  upon  that  which  follows: 

Abt.  1.  The  company  reduces  to  1,950,000  bolivars  the  total  amount  of  all  its  claims  for 

*  the  guaranty  of  7  per  cent,  liquidated  until  December  31,  1895,  for  every  other  cause  which 
it  would  have  the  right  to  invoke. 

Art.  2.  For  the  redemption  of  the  obligation  by  which  the  Government  has  to  continue 
to  pay  the  same  guaranty  of  7  per  cent  upon  18,000,000  bolivars  guaranteed  capital  during 

ninety-mne  years,  the  term  of  the  above-mentioned  contract,  the  company  consents  to 
receive  2,500,000  bolivars.  Articles  2,  3,  and  4  of  the  said  contract  of  June  17,  1891, 

become  by  this  fact  without  force. 

Art.  3.  The  payment  of  both  these  amounts  is  to  be  made  by  the  Government  simultane- 
ously with  the  present  act  and  by  remitting  to  the  representative  of  the  company  an  order 

upon  the  Disconto  Gesellschaft  of  Berlin  for  the  amoimt  of  4,450,000  bolivars  in  bonds  at 

par  of  the  Venezuelan  loan  of  the  EHsconto  Gesellschaft  of  1896  bearing  5  per  cent  interest 

annuaUy  with  1  per  cent  amortization,  the  same  order  bearing  moreover  the  signed 

approval  of  the  agent  of  the  Disconto  at  Caracas. 
Art.  4.  The  representative  of  the  company  declares  in  consequence  the  nation  to  be  free 

from  every  responsibility,  as  weD  upon  the  guaranty  of  7  per  cent  already  due  as  for  the  obli- 
gation to  pay  this  same  guaranty  in  the  future,  and  he  will  repeat  this  same  declaration  in 

the  receipt  which  he  will  give  to  the  direction  of  the  Disconto  Gresellschaft. 
Art.  5.  The  company  binds  itself  within  six  months  from  this  date  to  repair  whatever 

deteriorations  have  been  sustained  by  the  railroad  from  the  changing  of  the  course  of  the 

river  Chamas,  and  to  keep  the  line  in  a  good  condition  for  use,  in  conformity  with  obligations 
assumed  in  the  previous  contracts,  and  submitting  itself  to  the  penalties  which  the  law, 
inflict  in  this  matter. 

Art.  6.  In  all  that  which  is  not  opposed  to  the  stipulations  of  this  convention  the  rights 

and  obligations  resulting  for  the  company  from  anterior  contracts  to  which  reference  has 
been  made  retain  all  their  force  and  all  their  vigor. 

Made  in  duplicate  at  Caracas,  April  18, 1896. 

Two  days  thereafter  the  ministers  of  finance  and  of  pubUc  works 
for  Venezuela  made  the  following  commimication: 

Caracas,  April  20y  1896. 
To  the  Direction  op  the  Disconto  Gesellschaft,  Berlin. 

Gentlemen:  In  conformity  with  the  provisions  of  article  5  of  the  contracts  of  the  loans 

passed  between  our  Government  and  your  direction,  the  citizen  President  of  the  Republic 

informs  you  that,  in  accordance  with  the  contract  passed  between  the  national  Government 

and  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads,  you  will  have  to  remit  to  the  said  com- 

S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   28 
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pany  the  sum  of  4,450,000  bolivars  in  bonds  of  Venezuelan  loan  of  1896  at  5  per  cent  annual 
interest,  with  1  per  cent  amortization. 

It  is  to  be  noted  that  in  giving  you  the  receipt  for  this  amount  the  French  Company  of 
Venezuelan  Railroads  is  obliged  to  make  the  following  declarations:  , 

''That  it  recognizes  as  annulled  all  its  credits  against  the  Venezuelan  Government  for  the 
guaranty  of  7  per  cent  due  up  to  December  31,  1895,  and  that  it  renounces  absolutely 

this  guaranty  during  the  remainder  of  the  ninety-nine  years,  the  term  of  its  concession; 

that  in  consequence  it  declares  the  nation  freed  from  all  responsibilities. '^ 

.  June  27,  1896,  there  was  a  general  meeting  of  the  shareholders  of 
the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads,  and  the  council  of 
administration  made  its  report.     In  that  report  is  found  the  following : 

At  the  beginning  of  this  year,  1896,  the  Venezuelan  Government,  being  desirous  of  mak- 
ing a  settlement  of  its  debts  with  the  di£Perent  railroad  companies  of  Venezuela,  negotiated 

with  the  Bank  of  Berlin,  the  Disconto  GeseDschaft,  for  the  creation  of  a  loan,  c^ed  the 

Venezuelan  loan  of  1896,  bearing  5  per  cent  annual  interest  and  with  1  per  cent  amortiza- 
tion, and  payable  within  the  term  of  thirtynsix  years  and  a  half.  The  loan  was  guaranteed 

by  custom-house  receipts.  The  nominal  amount  of  this  loan  was  fixed  at  50,000,000 
bolivars. 

Each  of  the  German,  French,  English,  and  other  railroad  companies  were  invited  by 
the  Venezuelan  Government  to  negotiate  simultaneously  the  payment  of  what  was  due 

them  and  the  redemption  of  the  guaranty  which  had  been  conceded.  Each  of  these  eom- 
panies,  after  lively  debates,  accepted  the  cofiditions  imposed  ly  the  Venezuelan  Government^ 

harsh  as  they  were,  under  penalty  of  seeing  themselves  eliminated  forever  from  the  only  com- 
hination  which  might  terminate  their  credit  upon  this  Government. 

like  the  other  companies,  we  then  accepted  the 'conditions  which  were  imposed  upon 
us.  However,  we  did  not  authorize  our  mandatary  at  Caracas  to  give  our  acceptance 

until  after  we  had  taken  counsel  and  received  the  authority  of  the  controllers  appointed  by 
the  shareholders. 
*  *  *  *  «  «  « 

Seeing  the  necessity  of  keeping  the  social  assets  up  to  their  full  value  and  with  the  author- 
ity of  the  controllers  appointed  in  execution  of  the  concordat  to  represent  the  creditors, 

the  company  has  had  to  issue  up  to  this  date  2,500  privileged  bonds  of  500  francs  to  procure 
funds  for  repairing  the  line,  repairs  which  are  not  yet  finished. 

Recently  the  Venezuelan  Government,  having  shown  a  desire  to  settle  with  the  different 

companies  of  railroads  in  Venezuela,  our  company,  following  the  example  of  the  German, 
English,  and  other  companies,  sent  to  Venezuela  its  formal  representatives,  and  after  a  long 
negotiation  it  succeeded  in  obtaining  from  the  Government  of  Venezuela  the  remittance 

for  the  balance  of  credits  and  for  the  redemption  of  the  guaranty  for  the  future  of  its  con- 
cession a  net  sum  of  3,200,000  bolivars  in  bonds  of  Venezuelan  loan  of  5  per  cent,  1896, 

above  mentioned. 

The  able  patronage  of  the  Disconto  Gesellschaft  of  Berlin  assures  the  actual  value  of 
this  title. 

However  grievous  such  a  transaction  has  seemed  to  us,  we  had  to  resign  oiuselves,  after 

having  been  authorized  by  the  official  representatives  of  the  shareholders  to  accept  it, 

like  other  railroad  companies,  as  the  only  means  of  obtaining  any  indemnity  what- 
ever.   *    *    * 

We  shall  request  of  you,  gentlemen,  to  ratify  the  transaction  between  the  Venezuelan 
Government  and  your  company. 

After  the  reading  of  this  report  the  shareholders  passed  the  resolu- 
tion which  follows: 

The  special  assembly,  after  having  heard  the  report  of  the  coimcil  of  administration 
read,  ratifies  the  transaction  between  the  Venezuelan  Government  and  the  council  of  admin- 
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istration  of  the  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads,  assuring  regularly  the  debts  of  the 
said  Government  toward  the  said  company  and  the  redemption  of  the  guaranty,  in  favor 

of  the  said  company  by  act  of  concession  which  had  been  attributed  to  it. 

June  25,  1897,  there  was  an  annual  meeting  of  the  shareholders  of 
the  company,  and  among  its  proceedings  is  found  a  resolution  which  is 
here  reproduced : 

Second  resolution.  The  general  assembly,  approving  the  measures  taken  by  the  council 

of  administration  following  the  disturbances  caused  by  the  inundations  which  succeeded 
the  earthquake  of  1894,  authorizes  it,  so  far  as  it  has  need,  to  realize  in  the  best  measures 

possible  a  complement  of  the  loan  voted  in  1894,  which  will  be  represented  by  1,500  privi- 
leged bonds  of  the  nominal  value  of  500  francs,  bearing  6  per  cent  annual  interest  and 

redeemable  in  at  least  ten  years  from  January  15,  1897,  raising  thus  from  2,500  to  4,000 

the  total  number  of  these  ten-year  bonds. 

Jime  30, 1898,  there  occurred  an  annual  meeting  of  the  shareholders 
of  the  company.  There  was  a  report  of  the  management  of  the  line 
for.  the  year  then  past,  from  which  it  is  learned  that  the  exploitation 
suffered  a  loss  of  10,401.75  francs,  and  that  the  finishing  of  the  repairs, 

bridges,  buildings,  etc.,  amoimted  to  499,805.70  francs.  There  fol- 
lowed certain  resolutions,  the  second  of  which  is  here  quoted : 

Second  resolution.  The  general  meeting  of  the  shareholders  authorizes  the  council  of 

administration,  first,  to  remit,  July  1, 1898,  the  full  amount  of  the  bonds  of  the  Venezuelan 

loan,  5  per  cent,  1896,  which  the  company  possesses  on  deposit  under  its  name  at  the 

Disconto  Oesellschaft  at  Berlin,  contra:  (a)  the  remission  qf  3,619  ten-year  privileged 
bonds,  6  per  cent,  of  the  company,  (6)  a  balance  in  cash  of  390,500  francs;  second,  to  call 

on  July  15, 1898,  for  the  redemption  at  par  of  500  francs  on  381  privileged  bonds,  6  per 
cent,  of  the  following  numbers,  and  to  raise,  to  meet  this  payment,  the  sum  of  190,500 
francs  of  the  390,500  francs  received  as  in  article  1.  The  balance  of  200,000  francs  will 
be  used  as  current  fund.     (Numbers  of  the  bonds  here  given.) 

June  29,  1899,  there  again  occurred  the  company's  annual  meeting. 
The  directors  presented  their  report,  from  which  is  taken  the  following 

quotation: 
Our  railroad  has  given  us  an  income  of  8,966.23  francs,  while  our  service  of  navigation 

has  caused  us  a  loss  of  22,324.83  francs.  There  is,  then,  a  net  loss  of  13,358.60  francs. 

We  have  finished  the  repairing  of  the  damages  which  were  caused  by  the  earthquake  of  1894 

and  by  the  floods  which  up  to  1897  were  the  consequence.  The  special  expenses  paid  for 
this  in  1898  reached  149,191.86  francs,  which  were  settled  by  means  of  funds  at  hand;  the 

latter  were  reduced  December  30  last  to  51,344.86  francs.  The  somewhat  unsatisfac- 
tory results  are  attributable  almost  exclusively  to  the  consequences  of  the  political  crisis 

which  had  been  going  on  in  Venezuela  for  the  greater  part  of  the  year.  *  *  ♦  Among 
the  256,126.14  francs  of  the  different  debits  found  in  the  balance  sheet  which  we  are 

going  to  submit  to  you  the  Venezuelan  Government  is  set  down  for  174,077.20  francs. 
For  some  months  quiet  seems  to  have  been  reestablished  in  the  country.  We  hope  that 

with  it  the  commercial  situation  will  resume  normal  conditions  and  that  our  exploitation 

will  profit  from  it. 
The  first  months  of  1899  seemed  to  justify  this  hope. 

The  reimbursement  of  our  privileged  bonds  has  been  carried  on  regularly  and  in  con- 
formity with  your  decision  of  June  30,  1898. 

Earlier  in  this  opinion  the  gross  receipts  of  the  railroad  for  1894 
were  stated.     The  net  result  for  that  year  was  72,332.15  francs.     In 
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1895  the  net  receipts  were  101,676.97  francs  and  in  1896  they  were 
102,3  r9. 28  francs.  In  1897  the  respondent  Government  employed  the 
Une  to  transport  its  troops  and  materials,  but  paid  nothing  and  did  not 
answer  the  claims  presented  by  the  company.  As  a  result  the  year 
1897  showed  a  loss;  similarly,  the  year  1898. 

The  4,000  bonds  issued  by  the  company,  under  authorization  which 
has  been  quoted,  were  largely  held  by  the  companies  Dyle  &  Bacalan 

and  of  Tives-Lille,  and  with  these  companies  it  had  always  been  under- 
stood that  the  payments  made  by  the  State  were  to  be  used  first  of  all 

in  payment  of  these  bonds ;  it  was  for  this  reason  and  under  the  author- 
ity above  quoted  and  by  reason  of  the  general  inexecution  of  the 

engagements  of  the  State  toward  the  company,  that  in  the  month  of 
June,  1898,  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads  tiuned  over 
to  these  financial  companies  the  Venezuelan  loan  of  1896,  which  was 
arranged  through  the  Disconto  Gesellschaft,  of  Berlin.  And,  as  has 
been  seen  in  the  quotation  last  made,  there  was  left  for  the  current  use 
of  the  railroad  company  a  balance  of  200,000  francs.  In  June,  1898, 
there  was  a  new  revolutionary  movement  affecting  especially  the 
States  of  Zulia  and  Andes.  The  general  in  charge  of  the  Federal 
forces  drafted  the  workmen.  The  director,  Mr.  Brun,  was  shot  at 
Santa  Barbara  in  the  midst  of  a  conflict,  and  died  of  his  wounds;  there 
were  requisitions  of  ̂ late^ial,  of  trains  for  the  transfer  of  troops,  of 
war  material,  etc.  The  passenger  and  freight  service  was  paralyzed; 
the  claims  of  the  railroad  received  no  attention  from  the  Government ; 

there  was  no  payment  for  the  services  and  sacrifices  required  of  and 
imposed  upon  the  company,  and  its  very  existence  was  seriously 
threatened.  It  appealed  to  its  own  Government,  it  rehearsed  its 

wrongs  and  grievances  but  it  obtained  no  relief.  Just  as  the  exploita- 
tion began  again  to  yield  some  income  and  the  revenues  ot  the  national 

Government  began  to  quicken,  the  successful  revolution  of  General 
Castro  broke  out.  Requisitions  were  again  in  evidence  and  more  than 
ever  before-  Destruction  was  manifest  on  all  sides ;  grave  losses  were 
caxised  to  the  boats;  while  the  revolutions  took  from  it  its  traific,  the 
Government  maxle  requisitions  and  neither  paid  anything. 

This  successful  revolution  of  General  Castro  which  began  in  the 

spring  of  1899  brought  serious  disaster  to  the  railroad  in  many  ways. 
A  letter  of  date  October  12,  1899,  to  the  French  minister  of  foreign 
affairs  by  Mr.  Reynaud  of  the  administrative  board  vividly  portrays 
the  situation.     Selections  therefrom  are  quoted: 

The  political  and  revolutionary  crisis  which  exists  in  Venezuela  has  not  diminished  in 
intensity  since  the  last  communication  which  we  had  the  honor  of  addressing  to  you  August 
23  last. 

Our  property  and  all  our  possessions — our  railroad  material. and  our  boats — have  not 
ceased  for  several  months  to  be  arbitrarily  seized  or  sequestered  by  the  authorities,  now  said 

to  be  legale  now  revolutionary.  The  future  of  the  exploitation  of  our  railroad  and  boats  iu 

grievously  oompromised  in  the  source  of  its  receipts. 



OPINION    OF   THE    UMPIRK.  43*1 

The  harvests  are  destroyed,  abandoned,  or  lost;  the  workmen  are  pursued  and  tracked  in 
the  forests;  the  owners  and  merchants  in  flight  or  ruin. 

Finally,  our  resources  are  exhausted. 
We  have  been  obliged,  then,  to  suspend  our  exploitation. 

It  was  two  days  anterior  to  the  date  of  the  above  letter  that  Mr. 
Simon,  general  manager  of  the  railroad,  informed  the  citizen  president 

of  Zulia  in  writing  that  ̂ 'because  ot  force  majeure/'  all  operations  of 
the  steamers  and  of  the  railroad  from  Santa  B&rbara  to  La  Vigia  were 
suspended.  In  this  communication  the  force  majeure  referred  to  is 
thus  explained: 

1.  All  the  resources  which  the  company  had,  whether  at  Paris  or  at  Maracaibo,  have  been 
completely  exhausted  in  paying  the  expenses  of  this  railroad  and  its  steamer  Santa  Bdrbara 
during  aU  of  the  revolutions,  and  then  the  Venezuelan  Government  and  the  insurgents  used 

these  means  of  transfer  until  little  by  little  they  became  masters  of  them. 
2.  Since  September  27,  1899,  the  revolutionists  have  again  taken  possession  of  the  line, 

and  consequently  we  can  have  no  receipts  except  from  our  steamers  and  of  these  the  Govern- 
ment is  constantly  taking  possession. 

3.  All  our  efforts  with  the  national  Government  at  Caracas,  as  well  as  with  the  govern- 
ment of  Zulia,  to  recover  the  large  sums  which  they  owed  the  company,  hav6  had  no  success, 

not  even  for  the  little  sums  of  300  and  144  bolivars,  which  were  to  be  paid  October  3, 1899. 
4.  In  these  conditions  if  the  company  continued  the  exploitation  it  would  be  obliged  to  go 

into  bankruptcy. 

6.  It  suspends  its  exploitations  vnthout  renouncing  its  rights  on  that  account  upon  the  con- 
cession of  the  railroad  from  Santa  Bdrbara  to  La  Vigia  vntU  the  special  settlement  takes  place 

between  the  French  company  and  the  Government. 

A  communication  to  the  same  effect  was  sent  to  the  national  Gov- 
ernment through  its  minister  of  public  works.  In  it  Mr.  Simon  stated 

that  the  revolution  had  made  it  impossible  for  the  railroad  to  receive 
any  benefit  during  the  months  of  June,  July,  and  August.  It  was  there 
stated  that  in  September  there  was  a  suspension  of  hostilities  and  there 
were  some  receipts;  but  that  the  new  revolution  broke  out  September 
27,  since  which  time  the  traffic  had  ceased.  The  use  of  the  steamer 
plying  between  Santa  Barbara  and  Maracaibo  had  terminated, 
because  of  the  order  of  the  customs  officer  forbidding  its  use  and  of  the 
confirmation  of  the  same  by  the  president  of  the  State. 

The  situation  is  there  summarized  by  Mr.  Simon  as  follows: 
1.  It  is  not  possible  for  the  exploitation  to  gain  any  receipts  since  the  revolutionists  are 

masters;  and  up  to  this  day,  October  10,  there  is  not  hope  that  the  Government  can  retake 
this  city. 

2.  The  Venezuelan  Government  can  not  pay  the  company  any  of  its  debts  nor  even  give  it 
an  account  nor  make  any  promises  for  the  future. 

3.  The  company  has  no  longer  any  resources,  having  exhausted  everything  by  which  it 

may  meet  expenses  of  the  line,  while  it  has  made  no  receipts  because  of  the  frequent  revo- 
lutions. 

Considering  that  this  state  of  affairs  has  caused  it  prejudices  and  enormous  damages,  and 
that  if  it  continued  its  expenses  it  would  be  led  into  bankruptcy,  the  company  sees  itself 

because  oi  farce  majeure  obliged  to  suspend  the  exploitation  of  its  line  and  its  steamers  until 
a  settlement  may  be  made  with  the  national  Government  of  the  United  States  of  Venezuela; 

that  the  company  does  not  abandon  its  right  upon  the  concession  of  the^said  railroad  from 
Santa  B&rbara  to  La  Vigia. 
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October  22,  1899,  by  communication  of  Mr.  Simon  to  the  company 
at  Paris  it  is  learned  that  the  archives  and  records  of  the  company  had 
been  locked  up  in  the  safes  and  a  detailed  inventory  had  been  given 
the  consular  agent  of  France  at  Maracaibo;  that  the  entire  personnel 
of  the  boats  had  been  paid  and  discharged,  and  the  copy  of  the  notice 
to  the  pubUc  which  had  been  given  it  through  the  newspapers  was 
therein  remitted.     It  is  added  that — 

The  lack  of  income  during  more  than  four  months,  together  with  the  revolutions  and  lack 

of  payment  by  the  Government  of  its  obligations  to  the  company,  are  the  reasons  which 
lead  the  company  to  ask  for  a  settlement  with  the  national  Government  before  continuing 
anew  the  exploitation. 

It  appears  that  since  the  27th  of  September  the  railway  is  in  the  hands  of  the  insurrec- 
tionists, and  that  until  this  date,  October  12,  there  is  no  hope  that  the  Government  may 

recover  this  place. 

■i 

The  Government  of  France  through  its  foreign  office  directed  its 
consular  agent  at  Maracaibo  to  safeguard  the  interest  and  properties 
of  the  railroad  company  during  its  suspension  of  activities. 

December  2,  1899,  there  was  an  armed  conflict  on  the  shores  of  the 
bay  of  Maracaibo  between  the  forces  of  General  Castro  and  those  of 
General  Hernandez.  A  steamer  of  the  company,  the  Ban  Cdrlos  y 
Merida,  was  lying  at  anchor  in  the  bay  and  the  armed  forces  were  so 
situated  toward  one  another  that  the  steamer  lay  in  their  line  of  fire; 
as  a  result  the  damage  to  the  hull  of  the  steamer  was  so  serious  that  it 
sank  during  the  afternoon  of  that  day.  These  facts  concerning  the 
steamer  are  taken  from  the  report  of  the  French  consular  agent  at 
Maracaibo  in  a  communication  made  by  him  of  date  Decem- 

ber 30, 1899. 
January  2, 1900,  the  appraisers  specially  appointed  for  the  purpose 

of  estimating  the  damages  suffered  by  the  Santa  Bdrbara  while  in  the 
service  of  the  national  Government  made  their  report,  naming  these 
damages  at  10,000  bolivars. 

January  18,  1900,  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads 
addressed  the  minister  of  foreign  affairs  of  France  and  referred  to  its 
communication  of  the  previous  month  to  the  same  official  and  asserted 
a  claim  which  is  reproduced  in  the  additional  opinion  submitted  by 
the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  to  the  umpire  at  North- 
field,  Vt.,  February  13,  1905,**  and  it  need  not,  therefore,  be  repeated 
here. 

.  February  3, 1900,  the  railroad  company  addressed  itself  to  the  Presi- 
dent of  the  Republic  of  Venezuela,  informing  him  of  the  grave  dis- 

asters which  had  overtaken  the  company  and  declaring  that  any 
considerable  delay  in  the  settlement  of  the  sums  due  it  from  the 
national  Government  might  prove  fatal. 

January  18,  1901,  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads, 
having  received  no  payment  from  the  respondent  Government  and 

aPage413. 
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no  encouragement  that  payment  would  be  made,  came  to  believe 
that  its  efforts  were  forever  compromised,  and  it  then  presented  to 
the  French  minister  of  foreign  affairs  a  claim  for  18,000,000  francs, 
the  ensemble  of  the  losses  which  the  action  of  the  respondent  Govern- 

ment was  held  to  have  brought  upon  it.  To  this  was  added  the  serv- 
ice of  the  boats,  which  had  been  destroyed  or  injured,  and  a  part  of 

the  material  of  the  dredging  machine,  which  had  been  stolen,  making 
a  total  of  483,900  francs,  deduction  having  been  made  of  11,100  boU- 
vars,  that  sum  being  the  price  for  which  the  Santa  Barbara  and  the 
laimch  had  been  sold.  This  claim  was  brought  to  the  attention  of 

the  consul-general  of  Venezuela  at  Paris,  whose  response  was  that 
the  new  president  up  to  that  time  had  been  able  to  concern  himself 
only  with  matters  poUtical  and  martial. 

It  is  claimed  on  the  part  of  the  company  that  in  March,  1901,  the 
respondent  Government  had  planned  to  cede  or  let  the  line  and  its 

accessories  to  a  Mr.  Bolaro,  and  to  that  end  had  appointed  a  com- 
mission for  making  estimates.  The  action  of  the  Government  met 

with  a  very  vigorous  protest  from  the  company,  and  if  results  were 
intended  there  were  none. 

In  behalf  of  the  company  there  is  also  presented  by  Counselor 
Dacraigne  in  his  very  able  and  valuable  brief  the  claim  that  it  was 
ruined  at  the  hands  of  the  respondent  Government;  that  this  ruin 
was  practically  consummated  by  what  he  is  pleased  to  denominate 
the  culpable  removal  of  the  guaranty.  He  insists  that  the  exchange 
made  between  the  company  and  the  Government  was  without  any 
equivalent  and  was  brought  about  only  by  such  pressure  that  it  was 
invalid  and  should  be  declared  a  nullity.  He  lAso  asserts  that  it 

should  be  declared  a  nulUty  by  default  of  execution,  since  the  respond- 
ent Government  has  not  paid  the  arrears  of  the  bonds  which  it  has 

given  the  French  company  in  exchange  for  its  guaranty.  The 
respondent  Government,  as  the  essential  part  of  that  exchange,  was  to 
furnish  bonds  bearing  5  per  cent  interest,  the  bonds  having  no  other 

value  than  their  interest-bearing  qualities.  The  interest  not  being 
paid,  the  bonds  were  without  value;  hence  there  was,  in  fact,  no  con- 

sideration for  the  surrender  of  the  guaranty  by  the  company,  and 
the  respondent  Government  having  thus  failed  to  perform  that  which 

was  essential  in  the  contract  for  the"  surrender  of  the  guaranty,  the 
company  has  a  right  to  demand  the  rescission  of  that  portion  of  the 
convention  of  1896.  He  includes  in  the  right  of  rescission  a  claim 
for  damages  in  behalf  of  the  company,  which  is  in  the  nature  of  a 
reimbursement  of  all  the  expenses  which  have  been  imposed  upon 

it,  with  interest  at  7  per  cent.  He  urges  that  the  guaranty  be  liqui- 
dated from  May  10,  1893,  up  to  the  date  of  this  award,  less  the  suind 

paid  thereon,  with  a  charge  of  7  per  cent  interest  annually  for  the 
default.  The  claim  for  18,000,000  francs  is  presented  on  behalf,  of  the 
company  in  another  view.    The  reasons  given  are  that  the  respondent 
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Government  by  requisitioning  the  material  and  the  personnel  of 

the  company  deprived  it  of  its  rights  and  its  property.  The  Gov- 
ernment had  power  to  take  it,  but  it  is  equity  that  the  company  be 

reimbursed  for  it.  The  damage  thus  consiunmated  is  estimated  at 
the  price  set  upon  it  by  the  Congress  of  Venezuela  in  1891,  which, 
it  is  urged,  is  the  amount  of  the  claim  here  presented. 

Sununarized,  then,  the  claim  of  the  French  company,  as  presented 
by  its  counsel,  is  as  follows: 

1 .  For  the  loss  of  its  line  the  sum  of  18,000,000  francs,  with  interest  at  7  per  cent  upon  the 

capital  of  15,000,000. 
2.  For  the  loss  of  its  maritime  exploitation,  the  sum  of  483,000  francs,  with  interest  at  7 

per  cent.    The  interest  on  both  of  these  items  should  be  reckoned  from  March  23, 1893. 

This  rfeum^  of  the  facts  appearing  in  this  claim  and  forming  the 
body  of  it  is  perhaps  sufficient  to  rnake  intelligent  the  opinions  of  the 
honorable  commissioners,  and  later,  the  views  and  holdings  of  the 
umpire.  He  thinks  that  he  can  best  make  to  appear  the  divergent 

paths  by  which  the  honorable  commissioners  approached  the  ques- 
tions involved  by  quoting  liberally  the  record  of  their  proceedings, 

which  is  as  follows: 

The  examination  of  the  claim  of  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads,  presented 

at  the  sitting  of  May  19  last,  and  amounting  to  the  sum  of  18,483,000  bolivars,  was  then  taken 

up- 
The  French  arbitrator  considering:  That  the  nonexecution  of  the  obligations  contracted  by 

the  Venezuelan  Government  with  the  company  and  the  nonpayment  of  sums  which  it  owed, 
from  the  fact  of  its  engagements  and  its  requisitions  carried  on,  have  placed  the  company  in 

the  imposibility  of  continuing  its  exploitation;  that  the  inspection  of  the  line,  of  the  material, 
and  of  the  buildings  demonstrates  clearly  that  the  company  had  not  recoiled  before  any 

expense  to  assure  in  excellent  condition  the  service  of  merchandise  and  travelers; 
That  the  examination  of  accounts  permits  to  establish  that  the  exploitation  would  have 

been  remunerative  in  spite  of  the  obstacles  presented  by  the  civil  war  and  the  inclemencies 
of  the  climate  if  the  Venezuelan  Government  had  paid  over  the  amounts  due  from  it,  and 

that  consequently  by  the  act  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  the  company  has  been  deprived 
of  the  legitimate  benefits  which  it  had  the  right  to  hope  for; 

That  according  to  the  said  contract  the  Venezuelan  Government  having  accorded  a 

guaranty  of  7  per  cent  upon  a  kilometric  value  of  300,000  bolivars,  has  itself  implicity  recog- 
nized that  the  value  of  the  exploitation  was  18,000,000  bolivars; 

That  the  Venezuelan  Government  seems  to  have  had  the  intention  to  annul  Ihe  contract 

and  to  accord  the  concession  to  a  new  enterprise; 

That  the  company's  claim  for  indemnity  for  the  damages  suffered  by  its  maritime  service 
from  Maracaibo  to  Santa  Barbara  is  perfectly  justified; 

Decides  that  the  Venezuelan  Grovemment  ought  to  pay  to  the  French  Company  of  Vene- 
zuelan Railroads  the  sum  of  18,483,000  bolivars  demanded  by  it,  on  condition  that  the  latter 

renounce  the  concession  of  the  enterprise  and  abandon  to  the  Venezuelan  Government  its 
line,  its  buildings  of  exploitation  and  habitation,  its  stores,  and  its  terrestrial  and  maritime 
material  in  the  condition  in  which. they  are  found,  by  means  of  which  payment,  renunciation, 

and  abandonment  the  two  parties  will  be  free  from  all  their  reciprocal  engagements  and  obli- 

gations. 
The  Venezuelan  arbitrator,  considering  on  the  contrary: 
That  the  true  reasons  for  the  suspension  of  the  exploitation  of  the  line  by  the  company 

are  of  economic  order,  the  latter  having  been  led  to  take  this  resolve,  because  of  the  lack  of 
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traffic  due  to  the  troubled  state  of  the  country  and  by  the  impossibility  in  which  its  bad 

financial  position  had  placed  it  to  obtain  new  funds  necessary  to  make  repairs  for  damages 

caused  by  the  inclemency  of  the  weather  to  a  line  established  under  unfavorable  conditions; 
That  the  Venezuelan  Government  could  be  held  responsible  neither  for  damages  caused 

to  the  material  of  the  exploitation  by  a  voluntary  abandonment  nor  for  those  suffered  from 
the  fact  of  the  troubled  condition  of  the  country  or  of  accidents  of  war; 

That  the  arrangement  entered  into  by  the  company  with  the  Venezuelan  Crovemment  on 

the  subject  of  the  guaranty  stipulated  in  the  contract  has  been  entirely  carried  out  and  that 
the  company  has  received  the  sums  accruing  from  the  sale  of  the  bonds  which  have  been 
remitted  to  it  in  execution  of  the  said  arrangement; 

That  the  Venezuelan  Government  has  never  refused  to  reimburse  the  company  for  the 

requisitions  and  damages  caused  by  them  to  the  material,  and  that  the  impossibility  in 
which  it  finds  itself  of  making  this  reimbursement  as  the  result  of  the  penury  of  the  treasury 

in  the  coilrse  of  the  civil  war  obliges  it  only  to  pay  interest  after  demand ; 
Decides  that  the  claim  of  the  company  is  without  foundation. 

It  recognizes  only  the  right  to  an  indemnity  of  10,000  bolivars  ̂ or  damages  done  to  their 
steamer  Santa  Bdrhara  during  the  time  when  it  was  requisitioned,  and  reserved  for  it  the 

privilege  of  claiming  from  the  Venezuelan  Government  by  presenting  the  necessary  justifi- 
cations, the  sums  due  for  the  requisitions  with  interest  corresponding.  It  equally  reserves 

the  right  of  the  Venezuelan  Government  for  the  fact  of  the  abandonment  of  the  exploitation. 

Thus  disagreeing,  the  claim  was  presented  to  the  umpire  at  a  sitting 
of  the  honorable  commission  held  at  Northfield,  Vt.,  February  14, 
1905. 

During  the  sitting  of  the  honorable  commission  at  Caracas  and  on 
August  28,  1903,  the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  presented 
an  able  memoir  or  opinion  relating  to  this  case,  giving  the  reasons  of 
fact  and  equity  which  prevented  him  from  allowing  smy  of  the  claim 

except  the  sum  of  10,000  boUvars  for  the  appraised  injury  done  the 

steamer  Santa  Barbara  while  in  the  service  of  the  respondent  Govern- 
ment. Many  of  the  facts  brought  out  in  his  opinion  are  not  repeated 

in  the  statement  of  facts  preceding,  as  reference  may  be  had  to  them 
as  thus  set  out  in  the  opinion  of  the  said  honorable  commissioner. 
The  memoir  has  been  of  valued  service  to  the  umpire. 

September  13,  1904,  at  Paris,  the  honorable  commissioner  for 

France  wrote  a  memoir  or  opinion  in  regard  to  this  claim  for  the  con- 
sideration of  the  umpire,  in  which  he  reviewed  the  memoir  or  opinion 

of  the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  and  wherein  he  gave  more 
in  detail  than  is  set  out  in  the  records  of  the  proceedings  at  Caracas, 
the  beUef  which  he  entertained  in  reference  to  this  claim  and  his 

inability  to  accede  to  the  position  of  his  honorable  colleague.  It  has 
been  of  great  value  to  the  umpire  in  his  study  of  the  claim.  The 
services  of  the  eminent  counsel  of  the  company,  Mr.  Dacraigne,  have 
been  of  large  value  in  placing  before  the  umpire  in  concrete  form  the 

facts  of  the  case  and  their  bearing  upon  the  question  in  issue.  Follow- 
ing the  brief  of  Mr.  Dacraigne  is  an  additional  opinion  by  the  honor- 
able commissioner  for  Venezuela,  in  which  he  reviews  the  utterances 

of  his  honored  colleague  and  the  ailments  of  the  company^s  learned 
counsel. 
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He  also  brings  to  the  attention  of  the  umpire  the  contents  of  the 

dossier,  requisitions,  jacket  No.  11,  which,  among  other  things,  con- 
tains the  required  proofs  from  the  company  concerning  its  claims 

against  the  respondent  Government  for  requisitions,  transportation 
of  troops  and  material,  and  other  services  rendered  the  respondent 
Government  by  the  company  after  December  31,  1895,  the  date  of 
the  last  settlement.  As  the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela 

does  not  question,  but,  on  the  contrary,  fully  accepts  the  evidential 
force  of  the  proofs  thus  adduced,  they  were  not  earlier  brought  into 
the  statement  of  this  case  and  are  not  here  brought  forward,  except  to 
name  the  annual  balances,  the  total,  and  the  conclusion  and  the  allow-: 
ance  which  are  made  by  the  honorable  commissioner  aforesaid. 

The  dates  and  respective  balances  are  the  following,  as  shown  by  the  examination  1  have 
made  of  the  bills  in  the  record  of  the  case: 

Bolivars. 

Balance  approved  by  the  legislature  of  the  State  of  Zulia,  February  27, 1894. .  2, 994. 85 

Balance  approved  by  the  legislature  of  the  State  of  Zulia,  January  23,  1895. .  6, 434. 60 
Invoice  as  per  statement  up  to  December  31,  1897    15, 443. 60 

Invoice,  etc.,  to  May  30,  1898    3,886.00 
Invoice,  etc.,  to  October  30,  1898    34,618.90 
Invoice,  etc.,  to  March  3,  1898    6,532.00 

Invoice,  etc.,  to  April  6,  1899    9,047.00 
Invoice,  etc.,  to  September  30, 1899    114,679.00 

Total    193.635.95 

An  estimate  of  the  interest  on  the  several  balances  from  their  respective  dates  until  that 

when  the  company  may  probably  come  into  possession  of  the  funds  by  virtue  of  the  execu- 
tion of  the  sentence  which  may  be  finaUy  passed,  a  lapse  of  time  which  I  believe  to  be  reason- 
ably within  three  months,  taking  into  consideration  any  inevitable  delay,  will  show  that  the 

company  in  this  regard  is  entitled  to  the  sum  of  36,000  bolivars. 

Between  the  amount  of  193,635. 95  bolivars,  which  \a  established  by  the  company's  states 
ments,  and  that  of  203,529.70  bolivars,  balance  in  the  company's  statement  of  December  31, 
1899,  as  due  by  the  Venezuelan  Government  at  that  time,  as  shown  in  the  report  of  the  board 

of  managers  to  the  stockholders  in  the  company  to  which  I  have  made  reference  at  the  con* 
elusion  of  my  opinion  of  August  28, 1903,  there  is  a  difference  of  10,393.75  bolivars,  to  which 
I  find  no  other  explanation  in  its  support  than  that  it  represents  the  price  the  company  has 

charged  the  Government  of  Venezuela  for  the  service  of  the  steamer  Santa  Bdrhara  diuring 

the  days  intervening  between  September  30, 1899,  and  the  end  of  October  of  the  same  year, 
when  it  appears  the  steamer  was  returned  to  the  company  after  having  taken  to  the  island  of 

Curasao  Doctor  Andrade,  the  president  of  the  State  after  the  so-called  liberal  (restaurar 
dora)  revolution.  Such  amount  even  if  it  does  not  appear  in  a  specified  form ,  as  it  should  do, 

I  deem  to  be  a  fair  compensation  for  the  services  rendered  by  the  steamer  Santa  Bdrhara  to 
the  local  authorities  during  the  month  of  October,  as  according  to  documents  in  the  case  the 

company  had  suspended  since  the  12th  of  the  same  month  aU  operations  in  its  railroad  and 
steamer  service,  so  that  there  were  no  expenses  for  maintenance  of  the  service.  On  the 
aforesaid  amount,  which  I  recognize  as  also  due  by  the  (Government  of  Venezuela,  interest  at 
the  rate  of  3  per  cent  should  be  added  from  October  30, 1899,  to  the  date  of  the  execution  of 
the  sentence  as  aforesaid,  so  that  the  amount  of  the  indenmity  increases  to  the  sum  of 

1,767  bolivars. 

As  the  honorable  commissioner  for  France,  in  his  supplementary- 
statement  made  at  Northfield,  Vt.,  on  February  14,  1905,^  reviews 

app.  42&-428. 
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this  additional  opinion  of  his  colleague,  Doctor  Patil,  and  does  not 
suggest  any  error  in  the  figures  presented  by  him  as  above  set  out, 
the  umpire  has  accepted  them  without  carefully  studying  the  original 
proofs  and  has  adopted  them  as  a  basis  upon  which  that  feature  of 
the  case  can  safely  rest. 

The  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads  contends  for  an 
allowance  of  18,483,000  francs,  (a)  on  the  basis  that  the  Venezuelan 
Government  is  responsible  for  the  ruin  of  the  company  and  that  in 
equity  this  responsibility  carries  with  it  the  rescission  of  the  contracts 
signed  between  the  said  company  and  the  respondent  Government,  as 

stated  in  the  first  paragraph  of  the  opinion  of  the  honorable  commis- 
sioner for  France;  (6)  on  the  basis  that  the  French  Company  of  Vene- 

zuelan Railroads  renounces  the  concession  of  the  enterprise  and 
abandons  to  the  Venezuelan  Government  its  line,  its  buildings  of 
exploitation  and  habitation,  its  stores,  and  its  terrestrial  and  maritime 

material  in  the  condition  in  which  they  are  found  by  means  of  which — 
payment  on  the  one  hand,  renunciation  and  abandonment  on  the 

other — the  two  parties  will  perform  all  their  reciprocal  obligations 
and  engagements,  as  stated  in  the  record  of  the  proceedings  of  the 
honorable  conmaission  at  Caracas  in  defining  the  position  of  the 
honorable  commissioner  for  France  in  regard  to  the  said  claim. 
These  two  statements  of  the  claim,  although  differing  in  form,  are 
understood  by  the  umpire  and  will  be  treated  by  him  as  in  essence  one 
and  the  same. 

In  event  of  failing  to  impress  this  view  upon  the  honorable  commis- 
sion the  company  asks  for  a  large  allowance  in  the  way  of  deferred 

guaranties  and  other  losses,  together  with  an  allowance  of  the  sums 
approved  and  accepted  by  the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela. 
In  order  to  reach  the  consideration  of  these  deferred  guaranties,  it 
urges  upon  the  honorable  commission  the  duty  to  declare  that  portion 
of  the  convention  of  April  18,  1896,  which  refers  to  the  redemption  of 
the  guaranty  to  be  null  and  void,  because  it  was  obtained  in  a  manner 
so  conscienceless  that  it  can  not  be  sustained  in  the  forum  of  equity. 
If  this  view  is  upheld,  the  honorable  commission  is  asked  to  pass  in 
detail  upon  the  elements  composing  this  claim. 

To  take  these  several  propositions  in  their  order,  it  becomes  neces- 
sary to  consider  first  the  claim  of  18,483,000  francs,  which  is  the  sum 

demanded  provided  tlie  imipire  decides  in  favor  of  the  rescission  of  the 
contract. 

It  would  seem  to  the  umpire  that  the  question  first  occurring  is  one 
of  jurisdiction — ^in  other  words,  of  competency.  For  however  deeply 
the  sympathies  of  the  trier  may  be  stirred  in  behalf  of  those  who  have 
bravely  struggled  and  who  have  seriously  lost  there  is  an  imperative 
duty  whicn  is  primary.  That  duty  is  to  determine  the  limits  which 
circxunscribe  hiTn  and  keep  him  within  the  set  and  required  boimds. 
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The  limits  of  this  honorable  commission  are  found  and  only  found 
in  the  instrument  which  created  it,  the  protocol  of  February  19,  1902. 
An  arbitral  tribimal  is  one  of  large  and  exclusive  powers  within  its 
prescribed  limits,  but  it  is  as  impotent  as  a  morning  mist  when  it  is 
outside  these  limits.  A  reference  to  the  convention  which  created 

this  commission  will  disclose  its  purpose  and  purview. 
Article  I  declares: 

That  the  first  two  arbitrators  shall  meet  *  *  ♦  for  the  purpose  of  examining  in  con- 
cert the  demands  for  indemnity  presented  by  Frenchmen  for  damages  sustained  in  Venezuela, 

etc. 

Article  II  provides  that: 

Demands  for  indemnities  other  than  those  which  are  aimed  at  in  Article  I  or  based  upon 
facts  anterior  to  the  23d  of  May,  1899,  will  be  examined  in  concert  by,  etc. 

Article  II,  then,  would  permit  this  liberal  reading: 

The  arbitral  tribunal  here  constituted  shall  meet  for  the  purpose  of  examining  in  concert 
the  demands  for  indemnity  presented  by  Frenchmen  for  damages  sustained  in  Venezuela, 

but  exclusive  of  those  which  grew  out  of  the  "  insurrection  events''  of  1892. 

The  sole  scope  and  sweep  of  the  authority  given  is  to  provide  indem- 
nities for  damages  suffered  by  Frenchmen  in  Venezuela.  It  is  not 

defined  but  it  is  assumed  that  its  methods  of  procedure  will  not  con- 
travene the  general  and  established  principles  of  the  law  of  nations, 

nor  its  awards  be  opposed  to  justice  and  equity.  This  much  can  be 
assumed,  but  to  assume  that  it  has  power  to  revoke,  rescind,  modify, 

or  limit  the  terms  of  a  contract,  even  so  much  as  by  a  hair's  breadth,  is 
impossible.  It  was  created  for  no  such  purpose;  it  was  endowed  with 
no  such  powers.  So  far  as  a  Frenchman  has  suffered  damages  in 
Venezuela  for  which  Venezuela  is  responsible,  the  indenmities  may  be 
stated  and  the  decision  be  final.  The  arbitral  tribunal  thus  consti- 

tuted may,  as  a  means  to  the  end  provided,  ascertain  and  declare  the 
responsibility  of  Venezuela,  it  may  pass  upon  its  own  jurisdiction 
within  the  scope  of  its  charter,  but  it  can  not  step  in  the  least  outside 
the  path  prepared  for  it,  which  is  and  only  is  the  path  which  leads 
from  damages  to  indemnities.  If  the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan 

Railroads  and  the  respondent  Government  did  but  agree  that  rescis- 
sion should  be  had,  or  that  abandonment  should  be  made  of  the  con- 

cessions and  the  properties  of  the  company  to  Venezuela,  then  this 
honorable  commission  might  be  considered  competent  to  pass  upon 
and  establish  the  indemnities  thus  required.  Otherwise  there  is 

incompetency  absolute  and  entire.  This  commission  is  not  only  des- 
titute of  primary  authority  which  is  enough,  but  it  is  equally  desti- 

tute of  all  capacity  to  compel  the  parties  to  carry  into  effect  any  such 
award  were  it  made,  which  is  more. 

The  contracts  in  issue  were  mutual  and  reciprocal  and  neither  party 
thereto  can  make  abandonment  thereof  without  the  consent  of  the 
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other.  The  United  States  of  Venezuela  does  not  consent.  Therefore 

the  French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads  can  not,  by  right, 
abandon  its  contracts  or  its  properties. 

If  it  be  held  that  the  respondent  Government  has  wrought  the  utter 
ruin  of  the  company  and  that  this  was  done  in  a  manner  and  by  means 
which  charge  upon  the  nation  the  full  measure  of  responsibility,  then 

there  is  a  case  for  damages  only,  and  the  smn  awarded  might  be — it  is 
not  said  would  be — the  smn  of  18,483,000  francs,  the  amount  claimed. 
But  it  is  always  and  only  on  the  basis  of  indemnities  for  damages  that 
this  honorable  commission  has  jurisdiction,  and  it  is  utterly  powerless, 

even  for  good  cause,  to  decree  an  unaccepted  and  unacceptable  aban- 
donment by  either  party  of  a  mutual  and  reciprocal  contract,  or  to 

award  an  act  of  rescission  which  has  not,  in  effect,  previously  taken 

place. 
The  lunpire  finds  ample  warrant  for  his  conclusions  regarding  his 

powers  in  the  authorities  to  which  he  makes  reference,  and  that  their 

pertinency  may  at  once  appear  he  quotes  briefly: 

The  authority  of  the  arbitrator  *  *  *  is  derived  exclusively  from  the  submissioD, 
and  every  part  of  it,  as  well  as  the  documents  referred  to  therein,  must  be  taken  into  con- 

sideration in  order  to  determine  the  extent  of  such  authority.  ̂   Am.  and  Eng.  Encyd. 

of  Law,  €69  (2d  ed.) 
It  has  been  held  that  the  arbitrator  can  consider  only  the  precise  question  submitted  to 

him,  that  he  can  neither  modify  the  question  nor  add  other  controversies  to  it,  no  matter 
how  cognate  to  the  matter  submitted.     Id.,  671. 

However,  it  is  within  the  arbitrator's  power  to  award  in  regard  to  all  matters  which  are 
necessarily  or  properly  incidental  to,  or  included  within,  the  terms  of  the  submission,  etc.    Id. 

But  he  can  not  lawfully  go  beyond  the  terms  of  the  submission  in  order  to  do  general 

justice.    Id.,  672. 

For  this  honorable  commission  to  order  something  to  be  done  which 
would  cause  damage  to  the  party  obeying  the  order  and  then  to  award 
damages  therefor  would  be  opposed  to  the  terms  of  the  convention. 
It  would  be  an  independent  act  posterior  to  the  convention,  and  were 

this  to  be  done  by  the  umpire  it  would  require  a  payment  by  Vene- 
zuela to  the  claimant  company  for  damages  in  fact  suffered  in-  the 

United  States  of  America  at  the  hands  of  the  umpire. 

A  submission  of  all  matters  in  difiference  means,  as  a  rule,  all  matters  in  difference  down 

to  ike  date  of  the  submission  hat  not  after.    Id.f  610. 

The  umpire  can  not  entirely  ignore  the  restrictive  features  of  the 

contract  between  the  claimant  company  and  the  respondent  Govern- 
ment, which  in  terms  and  in  fact  strictly  required  and  still  requires 

that  all  doubts  and  controversies  arising  from  that  contract  should  be 
resolved  by  the  competent  tribunals  of  the  respondent  Grovemment. 
Certainly  to  consider  and  determine  the  question  of  its  rescission  is 
the  most  serious  doubt,  the  most  important  controversy,  which  could 

grow  out  of  or  arise  from  the  contract  in  question.  A  claim  for  danv- 
age  may  be  regarded  as  ulterior  to  the  contract,  especially  where  the 
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damage  has  accrued  from  the  operation  of  the  parties  under  the  con- 
tract, but  the  question  of  its  rescission  is  an  entirely  different  propo- 

sition. The  unrestricted  agreement  to  submit  to  an  arbitral  tribunal 
the  question  of  damages  suffered  by  Frenchmen  in  Venezuela  may 
properly  be  considered,  if  necessary,  as  equivalent  to  a  suspension  of 
the  provision  in  the  contract,  were  the  damages  claimed  to  be  such  as 
arose  or  grew  out  of  the  contract;  but  the  a^eement  to  submit  a 
question  of  damages  arising  through  operations  performed  under  a 
contract,  in  no  sense  suggests  a  purpose  to  arm  that  tribunal  with 
plenary  power  to  consider  and  settle  the  question  involved  in  the 
rescission  of  a  contract,  and  therefore  does  not  suggest  an  intent  on 
the  part  of  the  high  contracting  powers  to  ask  on  the  one  hand  or  to 
grant  on  the  other  the  suspension  of  the  restrictive  features  referred 
to,  which  are  contained  in  said  contract.  What  is  here  said  concern- 

ing the  matter  of  rescission  appUes  with  equal  force  to  the  matter  of 
abandonment.  It  is  therefore  the  deliberate  and  settled  judgment 
of  the  umpire  that  he  can  not  determine  this  claim  on  the  basis  of  a 
declared  and  directed  rescission  or  of  abandonment,  and  can  only 
decide  the  amount  of  the  award,  this  to  depend  upon  the  ordinary 
bases  of  damages  which  have  been  suffered  in  Venezuela  by  the  French 
Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads  at  the  hands  of  those  for  whom  the 
respondent  Government  is  responsible. 
By  the  claimant  company  the  redemption  of  the  guaranty  as 

settled  by  the  compact  of  April  16,  1896,  is  declared  void  in  equity, 
(a)  for  want  of  adequate  consideration  and  as  being  made  against  the 
desire  of  the  company  and  under  the  irresistible  compulsion  of  circum- 

stances which  were  availed  of  by  the  respondent  Government  to  drive 
a  bargain  so  hard  and  so  unconscionable  that  it  should  be  set  aside  by 
this  tribunal;  (6)  as  a  default  of  the  Government  in  neglecting  to  meet 
its  obligations  of  interest  as  they  fell  due  upon  the  bonds  which  were 
given  to  redeem  such  guaranty,  being  a  total  failure  to  comply  with 
and  carry  out  the  terms  of  that  agreement  which  renders  the  agree- 

ment itself  nugatory  and  void;  and  for  these  reasons  the  rescission 
thereof  should  be  declared  by  this  honorable  commission. 

The  agreement  effected  to  redeem  this  guaranty  of  the  French  Com- 
pany of  Venezuelan  Railroads  was  only  a  part  of  a  general  plan  intro- 

duced by  the  United  States  of  Venezuela  in  1896,  to  be  made  appli- 
cable to  all  similar  enterprises  wherever  located  in  that  country  and 

by  whomsoever  exploited.  To  this  end  it  had  arranged  with  tbe 
noted  and  conservative  German  house,  the  Disconto  Gesellschaft,  to 
float  a  loan  of  50,000,000  bolivars,  secured  upon  the  custom-houses 
of  the  nation  and  bearing  5  per  cent  interest  annually,  the  proceeds  of 
said  funds  to  be  devoted  to  the  purpose  named. 

It  was  accepted  generally  by  the  different  guaranteed  enterprises, 

the  claincLan't  company  beiiig  one  of  the  several. 
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Examination  of  the  reports  made  by  the  company  to  the  share- 
holders at  its  annual  meetings  for  the  years  1894,  1895,  and  1896 

shows  a  successive  and  continuing  ability  on  the  part  of  the  claim- 
ant company  to  raise  money  by  loans.  June  27, 1896,  was  noteworthy 

in  this  regard,  since  at  this  annual  meeting  successful  provision  was 

made  for  floating  a  loan  of  1,300,000  francs.  In  1895,  the  year  pre- 
ceding the  redemption  of  the  guaranty,  there  was  raised  by  loan 

200,000  francs,  and  in  the  year  1897,  a  year  and  more  succeeding  the 
settlement,  there  was  negotiated  a  loan  of  1,500,000  francs.  Hence 
it  was  not  an  overwhelming  financial  necessity  which  confronted  the 
company  nor  an  utter  inabiUty  to  obtain  money  otherwise  which 

compelled  the  acceptance  of  the  ofl'ered  redemption. 
The  redemption  of  the  guaranty  on  the  terms  provided  did  not 

mean,  on  the  part  of  the  claimant  company,  the  relinquishment  of 
1,260,000  francs  annually  for  the  sum  of  2,500,000  francs  in  hand. 
It  was  only  the  relinquishment  of  such  sum,  if  any,  as  might  remain 
when  the  net  annual  revenue  was  deducted  from  this  annual  guaranty. 

The  net  revenue  had  been  growing  for  the  years  prior  to  April  16, 
1896.  In  1894  it  was  72,332.15  francs;  in  1895,  101,676.97  francs. 
Both  parties  had  contemplated  and  apparently  believed  that  it  would 
finally  exceed  the  guaranty  and  had  provided  for  that  contingency, 
as  will  be  seen  by  reference  to  the  contracts  which  arranged  to  meet 
and  eventually  to  cancel  the  guaranty  which  had  theretofore  been 

paid,  directing  that  one-half  of  the  net  annual  revenue  in  excess  of 
1,260,000  francs  be  used  in  payment,  and  also  agreeing  that  after  the 
said  advances  had  been  canceled  fully  the  respondent  Government 

should  continue  to  enjoy  20  per  cent  of  such  excess  in  perpetuity. 
By  this  redemption  the  right  of  Venezuela  to  participate  in  any  way 
in  the  net  profits  of  the  company  was  canceled.  That  this  right 
was  considered  as  of  some  value  is  evident  or  it  never  would  have 

been  placed  in  the  contract.  In  fact,  by  its  terms  the  annual  guar- 
anty was  only  in  advance,  an  indebtedness  of  a  peculiar  character, 

payable  only  in  certain  contingencies  and  in  a  particular  way,  but  still 

it  was  an  indebtedness.  By  the  agreement  constituting  the  redemp- 
tion these  conditions  were  all  changed,  to  the  effect  that  the  arrears 

then  provided  for  and  the  2,500,000  francs  then  paid  were  not  debt 
producing,  but  debt  reducing.  They  were  gifts,  purely  and  simply, 
so  far  as  any  duty  of  repayment  was  concerned.  In  another  sense 

they  were  not  gifts.  They  were  the  nation's  estimate  of  the  value 
of  the  railroad  and  the  steamboats  to  its  commerce  and  to  its  agri- 

culture, also  to  the  means  of  communication  between  different  parts 
of  the  coimtry.  The  transaction  itself  was  open,  the  negotiations 

lengthy,  the  time  for  reflection  ample.  The  cooperation  of  the  direc- 
tors of  the  company  and  of  the  representatives  of  the  creditors  was 

solicited  and  received,  and  all  was  done  with  due  deUberation  under 
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circumstances  which  permitted  entire  freedom  of  will  and  of  action. 
The  approval  just  mentioned  took  recorded  form  on  June  27,  1896, 
after  a  lapse  of  more  than  two  months  and  after  a  full  and  expUcit 
report  of  the  action  taken,  with  the  reasons  therefor  fully  set  forth. 
It  was  referred  to  approvingly  at  the  annual  meeting  of  1897,  and  on 

June  30,1898,  two  years  and  two  months  after  the  agreement  of  redemp- 
tion was  made,  the  bonds  which  had  been  issued  in  accordance  with 

that  agreement  were  appropriated  by  the  deliberate  action  of  the 
company  to  the  payment  of  a  special  indebtedness.  They  were 
accepted  by  two  of  the  vigilant  and  sagacious  financial  houses  of 

France  in  place  of  the  obligations  of  the  company.  There  are  appar- 
ent none  of  the  features  which  accompany  and  signalize  bargains 

which  the  courts  undertake  to  set  aside.  The  freedom  of  contracts 

is  one  of  the  bulwarks  of  business,  and  courts  are  loath  to  interfere 

where  a  contract  is  executed  and  where  are  lacking  the  elements  of 
fraud  or  mistake,  and  where  it  rests  upon  the  mutual  assent  of  parties 
intelligent,  competent,  and  free  to  contract. 

It  is  elementary  law  that  every  person  of  sound  and  dispoeing  mind  and  under  no  legal 

disability  has  the  absolute  right  of  disposing  of  his  property  in  any  way  not  expressly  or 

impliedly  forbidden  by  law  and  to  any  person  legally  capable  of  taking  it. 
Hence,  where  a  person  competent  to  convey  has  fairly  and  knowingly  made  a  complete 

conveyance  of  his  land  to  another  person  competent  to  receive  it,  and  no  fraud,  accident, 
mistake,  or  undue  influence  was  involved  in  the  transaction,  the  fact  that  the  conveyance 

was  wholly  voluntary  and  without  consideration  constitutes  no  ground  for  rescinding  the 
conveyance  and  canceling  the  deed;  and  in  such  a  case  the  fact  that  the  disposition  of  the 

property  was  unwise,  improvident,  or  absurd  will  not  be  considered  by  a  court  of  equity. 
$J^  Am.  and  Eng.  Encyd.  of  Law,  611  {2d  ed.). 

Where  the  contract  has  been  fully  and  voluntarily  performed  before  relief  by  rescission  is 

sought,  it  is  only  where  the  most  forceful  reasons  exist  for  granting  equitable  relief  that  a 
court  of  equity  or  a  court  exercising  equitable  powers  will  interpose  to  decree  the  rescission 
of  the  contract,  etc.  Indeed  it  has  been  frequently  held  that  nothing  short  of  actual  fraud 

or  mistake  will  justify  the  court  in  granting  rescission  of  an  executed  contract.     Id.,  612. 
Although  the  consideration  of  simple  contracts  and  of  certain  forms  of  real  conveyances 

must  be  valuable,  it  is  not  essential  that  the  consideration  should  be  adequate  in  point  of 
value.  The  law  does  not  weigh  the  quantum  of  consideration,  deeming  it  unwise  to  interfere 

with  the  facility  of  contracting  and  the  free  exercise  of  the  judgmept  and  will  of  the  parties, 

but  allows  them  to  be  the  sole  judges  of  the  benefits  to  be  derived  from  their  bargains,  pro- 
vided there  be  no  incompetency  to  contract  and  the  agreement  violates  no  rule  of  law.  6  Am. 

and  Eng.  Encyd.  of  Law,  694  (^  ed.). 

^  The  final  appropriation  and  use  of  the  redemption  fund  after  such 
length  of  time,  after  such  opportunity  for  observation,  investigation, 
and  reflection,  without  a  murmur  of  dissent  in  the  meanwhile  or  a 
request  for  rescission  or  an  offer  to  restore  the  statu  quo  is  too  palpably 
a  solemn  acceptance  to  admit  of  doubt,  while  the  absorption  of  the 
funds  precludes  return.  There  is  also  no  offer  to  restore.  If  there 

were  such  ofl'er  this  honorable  commission  has  no  power  to  compel  its 
acceptance. 
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Moreover,  in  order  to  render  valid  the  compromise  of  a  claim,  it  is  not  essential  that  the 
matter  should  be  reaUy  in  doubt.  It  is  sufficient  if  the  parties  consider  it  so  far  doubtful  as 

to  make  it  the  subject  of  a  compromise.  6  Am.  and  Eng.  Encycl.  of  Law  ̂   7  IS  (M  ed.),  citing 
Union  Bank  v.  Geary,  5  Peters  (U.  S.  Sup.  Ct.),  99. 

The  parties  to  a  contract  may  at  any  time  rescind  it,  either  in  whole  or  in  part,  by  mutual 
consent,  and  the  surrender  of  their  mutual  rights  is  a  sufficient  consideration.  6  Am.  and 

Eng.  Encycl.  of  Law,  729  {2d  ed.),  note. 

An  agreement  by  one-party  to  a  contract,  at  the  instance  of  the  other  party,  to  modify  its 
terms,  is  a  valuable  consideration.    Id.,  738. 

A  prepayment  of  interest  before  it  is  due  is  a  valuable  consideration  for  an  agreement  to 
extend  the  time  of  payment.     (Summaiized.)     Id.,  704- 

It  is  a  valuable  consideration  if  the  promisee,  having  the  right  to  refuse  permission,  is 
moved  by  the  promise  to  allow  a  certain  thing  to  be  done.  The  question  is  not,  did  the 

promisor  derive  any  benefit  from  the  permission  or  did  the  promisee  suffer  any  detriment 
from  giving  it?  but  merely  was  it  something  the  latter  had  the  right  to  refuse. 

Consideration  arises  from  the  permission,  irrespective  of  the  benefits  derived  from  it.  Id., 

741. 

The  umpire  is  unable  to  accept  the  contention  of  the  claimant  com- 
pany that  the  respondent  Government  was  the  sole  cause  of  its  ruin. 

This  is  nowhere  asserted,  or  even  suggested,  by  its  agents  and  managers 
during  the  progress  of  the  events  which  culminated  in  its  suspension, 
nor  until  the  lapse  of  many  months  thereafter.  It  is  entirely  opposed 
to  the  expressions  of  Mr.  Reynaud,  of  the  administrative  board  of  the 
company,  in  his  careful  and  analytical  statement  of  the  claims  of  the 
company  on  February  3,  1900,  since  which  time  it  is  not  claimed  that 
there  is  to  be  found  any  direct  injury  received  from  the  respondent 
Government,  unless  it  occurs  in  its  delay  to  pay  its  debts.  The  claim 

then  put  forth  was  (a)  payment  of  300,000  francs  as  the  full  amount 
due  for  expenses  of  transportation  and  requisitions  on  account  and  by 
order  of  the  authorities  of  the  nation  and  the  States;  (b)  payment  of 
the  sum  of  250,000  francs,  estimated  as  the  minimum  amount  of  the 

indemnity  due  for  damages  which  had  been  occasioned  upon  its 
property;  (c)  the  sum  of  105,000  francs  a  month  on  account  from 

July  1,  1899,  to  indemnify  the  company  for  the  loss  which  it  had  suf- 
fered since  that  date  from  the  almost  absolute  suppression  of  its  traffic 

and  for  the  immobilization  of  its  railroad  and  boats.  This  sum  is 

obtained  by  taking  the  amount  originally  stipulated  as  an  annual 
guaranty,  viz,  126,000  francs,  and  dividing  it  by  12,  the  number  of 

months  in  a  year,  the  quotient  being  105,000  francs.  This  communi- 
cation from  its  authorized  agent  must  be  taken  as  the  voice  of  the 

company  speaking  its  honest  and  deliberate  convictions  and  asserting 

its  claims  in  their  most  broad  and  comprehensive  sense.  This  state- 
ment was  made  when  all  the  facts  were  fresh  in  the  minds  of  both 

parties  and  when  there  were  no  reasons  for  concealment,  reservation, 
or  dissimulation.  The  umpire  will  accept  it  as  the  maximimi  of  the 

claimant  company's  demands  for  those  matters  which  had  occurred 
at  that  time.  He  will  allow  so  much  of  the  300,000  francs  as  he 

S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   29 
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ascertains  to  be  well  founded.  He  will  grant  so  much  of  the  250,000 
francs  as  is  determined  to  exist  in  a  claim  properly  attributable  to  the 

respondent  Government.  He  will  allow  nothing  of  the  claim  for 
105,000  francs  a  month,  as  he  finds  no  lawful  responsibiUty  in  the 
respondent  Government.  It  can  not  be  charged  with  responsibility 

for  the  conditions  which  existed  in  1899,  prostrating  business,  par- 

alyzing trade  and  conunerce,  and  annihilating  the  products  of  agricul- 
ture; nor  for  the  exhaustion  and  paralysis  which  followed;  nor  for  its 

inability  to  pay  its  just  debts;  nor  for  the  inability  of  the  company  to 
obtain  money  otherwise  and  elsewhere.  All  these  are  misfortunes 
incident  to  government,  to  business,  and  to  human  life.  They  do 
not  beget  claims  for  damages. 

The  claimant  company  was  compelled  by  force  majeure  to  desist 
from  its  exploitation  in  October,  1899;  the  respondent  Government, 
from  the  same  cause,  had  been  prevented  from  paying  its  indebtedness 
to  the  claimant  company.  The  umpire  finds  no  purpose  or  intent  on 
the  part  of  the  respondent  Government  to  harm  or  injure  the  claimant 
company  in  anyway  or  in  any  degree.  Its  acts  and  its  neglects  were 
caused  and  incited  by  entirely  different  reasons  and  mptives.  Its 
first  duty  was  to  itself.  Its  own  preservation  was  paramount.  Its 

revenues  were  properly  devoted  to  that  end.  The  appeal  of  the  com- 
pany for  funds  came  to  an  empty  treasury,  or  to  one  only  adequate  to 

the  demands  of  the  war  budget.  When  the  respondent  Government 

used,  even  exclusively,  the  railroad  and  the  steamboats  it  was  not  out- 

side its  contractual  right  nor  beyond  its  privilege  and  the  company^s 
duty  had  there  been  no  contract.  When  traffic  ceased  through  the 
confusion  and  havoc  of  war,  or  because  there  were  none  to  ride  and  no 

products  to  be  transported,  it  was  a  dire  calamity  to  the  country  and 
to  all  its  people;  but  it  was  a  part  of  the  assumed  risks  of  the  company 
when  it  entered  upon  its  exploitation. 

When  revolution  laid  waste  both  country  and  village,  or  seized  the 
railroad  and  its  material,  or  placed  its  hands  j^pon  the  boats  and 
wrought  serious  injury  to  all,  it  is  regrettable,  deplorable,  but  it  is  not 
chargeable  upon  the  respondent  Government,  unless  the  revolution 
was  successful  and  unless  the  acts  were  such  as  to  charge  responsibility 

under  the  well-recognized  rules  of  public  law.  These  possible  dis- 
ordered conditions  of  a  country  are  all  discounted  in  advance  by  one 

who  enters  it  for  recreation  or  business.  It  is  no  reflection  upon  the 
respondent  Government  to  say  that  the  claimant  company  must  have 
entered  upon  its  exploitation  in  ̂ 11  view  of  the  possibility,  indeed, 

with  the  fair  probability,  that  its  enterprise  would  be  obstructed  occa- 
sionally by  insurgent  bands  and  revolutionary  forces  and  by  the 

incidents  and  conditions  naturally  resulting  therefrom. 
The  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  allows,  as  has  already 

been  shown  in  this  opinion,  24 1 ,357.70  boUvars.    This  includes  interest 
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on  the  annual  balances  appearing  in  the  claimant  company's  state- 
ment to  the  national  and  sectional  governments,  also  interest  for  the 

use  of  the  steamer  Santa  Barbara. 

The  umpire  sees  no  reference  by  the  honorable  commissioner  in  his 
additional  opinion  to  the  appraised  damage  done  the  steamer  Santa 
Barbara^  which  said  honorable  commissioner  allowed  in  his  original 
opinion.  The  umpire,  by  a  cursory  examination  of  the  vouchers 
which  support  the  claims  allowed  by  the  said  commissioner,  does  not 
find  that  it  is  included  therein.  Hence  the  umpire  concludes  that 

there  can  be  no  mistake  in  adding  that  sum,  with  interest  from  Octo- 
ber 1,  1899,  which  makes  an  amount  of  11,750  francs.  The  sinking  of 

the  steamer  San  Carlos  y  Merida,  as  stated  by  the  consular  agent  of 
France,  was,  without  doubt,  an  accident  of  war.  No  circumstance  is 

suggested  which  takes  it  out  of  the  usual  rule  of  nonresponsibility  on 

the  part  of  the  respondent  Grovernment,  and  hence  it  must  be  dis- 
allowed. 

The  injuries  done  the  railroad,  the  buildings  and  the  material,  by 
use  in  war,  must  have  been  considerable,  and  since  the  revolution  was 

successful,  the  respondent  Government  is  properly  chargeable  for  its 
use  and  for  the  injuries  and  damages  which  resulted.  There  is  no 

question  as  to  the  liability  of  the  respondent  Government  for  the  nat- 
ural and  consequential  damages  which  resulted  to  the  railroad  proper- 

ties while  they  were  in  the  use  and  control  of  the  titular  Government. 
Hence  there  is  unquestioned  and  complete  responsibihty  on  the  part 

of  the  respondent  Government  for  all  the  necessary,  natural,  and  con- 
sequential injuries  which  resulted  to  the  railroad  and  its  properties 

when  used  by  either  the  revolutionary  or  the  governmental  forces.  The 
imapire  is  destitute  of  data  upon  which  he  can  safely  base  his  judgment 
as  regards  the  just  amount  of  that  damage,  but  that  it  is  considerable 

is  unquestionable. 
He  will  approach  the  subject,  however,  from  another  standpoint. 

It  is  not  right  that  the  claimant  company  be  paid  only  the  regular  one- 
half  rate  for  services  performed  at  such  times  and  under  such  circum- 

stances. There  is  no  clear  proof  just  how  much  this  service  was,  and 
any  conclusion  can  in  fact  be  only  conjectural  and  at  best  only 
approximate.  The  umpire  accepts  as  the  best  basis  obtainable  the 
last  item  of  charge,  viz,  114,679  bolivars.  He  assimies  that  this 

represented  the  usual  charge  to  the  Government  at  one-half  rate.  He 
considers  full  rate  as  none  too  much  and  he  adds  to  the  sum  allowed  by 
the  honorable  commissioner  for  Venezuela  1 14,679  francs  and  interest, 
which  he  reckons  at  20,069  francs,  making  in  all  134,748  francs. 
Where  the  respondent  Government  can  be  chaVged  with  no  other 
offense  than  a  neglect  to  pay  its  debts  through  inability  so  to  do,  no 
greater  responsibility  rests  upon  it  than  the  payment  of  interest  for  the 
delay  thus  caused.  Such  is  the  situation  in  this  case,  as  it  appears  to 
the  imapire. 
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The  facts  brought  upon  the  record,  the  facts  placed  in  this  opinion, 
do  not  disclose  any  relation  of  the  respondent  Grovemment  to  the 
claimant  company  which  makes  the  former  chargeable  financially  for 
the  ruin  of  the  latter;  and  the  award  can  not,  in  justice  and  equity,  be 
placed  upon  any  such  basis.  The  several  sums  allowed  for  the  differ- 

ent causes  mentioned  constitute  the  maximum  amount  which  can.be 

named  in  the  sentence.  The  aggregate  of  these  sums  is  387,875.70 
francs,  and  the  award  will  be  prepared  for  that  sum. 

NORTHFIELD,  JullJ  SI,  1906. 



SXJICMABT  OF  AWARDS  BT  TJMPIBE. 

No. Claimaats. 

Heirs  of  Jules  Bran   
Frierdich  &  Co   
Heirs  of  Maninat   

Antoine  Fabiani   '.   f  Fieri  Dominique   
\Pierl  Dominique  &  Co   
Heirs  of  Masslani   
Company  General  of  the  Orinoco   
French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads 

Amount 

claimed. 

Bolivars. 

500,000.00 
176,080.10 

2,000,000.00 
9,509,728.30 
3,370,000.001 280,400.00/ 

728,476.48 

5,616,098.62 
18,483,000.00 

Amount 
awarded. 

Bolivars. 
100,000.00 Dismissed. 

100,000.00 
Dismissed. 

350,000.00 Dismissed. 

2,408,563.35 
387,875.70 
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OPINIONS   OF  COMMISSION  BENDEBED  IN  C ABACAS,  a 

[Paris  Protocol.] 

LEDUO,  ST.  IVES,  FISCHER  A  CO.  CASE. 

Commission  doclared  without  jurisdiction  because  claims  arose  subsequent  to  May  23, 1899. 

PaCl,  Commissioner: 

This  claim  arose  out  of  a  debt  by  the  Government  of  Venezuela  in  f aver  of  Mr.  Domingo 

R.  Wetto,  a  tailor  domiciled  in  Caracas,  for  the  price  of  uniforms  for  the  national  army, 

which  debt  was  assigned  by  said  Mr.  Wetto  on  September  6,  1901,  to  the  firm  of  Leduc, 

St.  Ives,  Fischer  &  Co.,  as  appears  by  a  document  authenticated  by  the  parochial  court 
of  this  city  on  the  23d  of  said  month  and  year. 

The  orders  of  {myments  drawn  by  the  minister  of  war  and  marine  in  favor  of  Wetto  are 

dated  August  1,  September  12  and  14,  and  October  19,  1899. 
As  appears  from  the  dates  of  these  orders  they  are  all  subsequent  to  May  23,  1899,  and 

consequently  the  examination  of  this  claim  does  not  belong  to  this  conmiission,  in  conformity 
with  Article  II  of  the  protocol  of  Paris,  which  determines  its  jurisdiction,  wherefore  the 

Venezuelan  arbitrator  is  of  opinion  that  the  commission  should  declare  itself  without 

jurisdiction  to  examine  it. 

ROGB  CASE. 

Damages  aIIo\«ed  for  unlawful  imprisonment. 

Pai^,  Commissioner: 

From  the  documents  presented  following  the  facts  are  proven: 
That  Dr.  J.  M.  Aveledo,  as  attorney  of  Alfonso  Santerre  and  Carlos  Luciani,  on  the  17th 

of  October,  1888,  before  the  court  of  the  first  instance,  of  the  first  judicial  circuit  of  Ciudad 

Bolivar,  instituted  a  suit  for  libel  against  Ernesto  Rog6,  superintendent  of  the  syndicate 

Alto  Orinoco.  The  judge  of  the  first  instance  received  testimony  requested  by  the  com- 

plainant and  that  of  said  Mr.  Rog^,  and,  not  finding  any  merit  from  the  summary  pro- 
ceedings to  follow  up  the  suit,  issued  a  decree  on  November  5  of  said  year  discontinuing 

the  action  and  declaring  that  it  did  not  injure  the  defendant  in  any  manner  as  to  his  repu- 
taton. 

This  decision  having  been  called  to  the  attention  of  the  superior  judge  in  the  ordinary 

manner,  the  latter  official  by  a  decree  dated  January  7,  1889,  revoked  the  decree  issued  by 
the  judge  of  the  first  intsance  and  made  an  order  for  detention  against  the  citizen  Ernesto 

a  See  Venezuelan  Arbitrations  of  1903,  Ralston 's  Report,  pp.  490-510,  inc.  Decided  by 
commission  under  Protocol  of  1902.  While  the  French  Commissioner  generally  concurred 

in  the  result  indicated  by  the  following  opinions,  they  were  not  submitted  to  him  and  he 
accepted  no  responsibility  for  their  reasoning. 
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Rog^.  Dr.  F.  A.  Hammer  and  Ramdn  Barrios  Gdmez  having  certified  that  Rog6  was 

suffering  from  rheumatism  in  the  praecordial  region,  which  prevented  him  from  remaining 

in  the  pubHc  jail  as  a  prisoner  of  that  city,  said  superior  judge  made  an  order  to  the  judge 
of  the  first  instance  that  he  should  transfer  said  Rog6  to  the  hospital  for  men  of  that  city. 

The  judgment  of  the  superior  judge  having  been  appealed  from  in  turn  by  Rog6,  the 
record  passed  to  the  supreme  court,  which  in  a  judgment  dated  February  13,  1889,  revoked 
in  all  its  parts  the  judgment  rendered  by  the  superior  court,  and  confirmed  the  decree 

issued  by  the  court  of  the  first  instance  on  November  5,  1888,  ordering  that  the  proper 
order  be  issued  so  that  the  defendant,  Rog^,  might  be  placed  at  liberty,  which  order  was 

made  on  the  same  day.  E.  Rog6  bases  his  claim  for  indemnity  upon  the  injury,  which  he 
asserts  was  conmiitted  against  his  person,  in  ordering  his  detention  and  committing  him 

to  be  deprived  of  his  liberty  for  the  space  of  thirty-seven  days,  the  superior  judge  of  Ciudad 
Bolivar  violating  by  thus  proceeding  the  definite  provisions  of  article  271  of  the  code  of 
criminal  procedure. 

On  July  4,  1892,  Ernesto  Rog6  addressed  himself  to  the  minister  of  foreign  relations  of 
France,  asking  that  his  claim  be  pressed  against  the  Government  of  Venezuela  for  damages 
and  injuries  which  he  estimated  at  the  sum  of  200,000  bolivars. 

During  the  detention  of  Rog^  notes  were  exchanged  between  the  representative  of  France 
in  Venezuela  and  the  minister  of  foreign  relations  of  the  latter  country,  the  minister  of 

France  interposing  his  diplomatic  action  in  order  to  procure  the  prompt  release  of  Rog6 
and  reserving  in  said  notes  all  rights  concerning  the  moral  and  material  satisfaction  that 

the  Government  of  France  on  the  one  part,  or  Mr.  Rog6  on  the  other,  might  believe  they 
were  entitled  to  obtain  from  the  Government  of  Venezuela  with  reference  to  the  attempt 

consunmiated  against  the  liberty  of  a  French  citizen. 
Proof  also  exists  in  the  record,  which  shows  that  the  President  of  the  Repubhc  and  the 

minister  of  foreign  relations,  then  in  authority,  addressed  themselves  by  telegraph  concern- 
ing the  actions  of  the  French  minister  to  the  president  of  the  State  of  Bolivar,  asking  the 

necessary  information  for  a  correct  understanding  of  the  matter,  of  which  demand  the 

said  representative  was  duly  advised.  There  exists  also  a  telegram  dated  on  January  16, 
from  Mr.  Saint  Chaffray,  minister  of  the  French  Republic,  addressed  to  Mr.  Delort  at  Ciudad 
Bolivar,  which  says: 

"Relying  upon  the  intentions  and  sentiments  of  equity  of  the  Government,  I  do  not 
doubt  that  what  is  necessary  will  be  done  in  order  to  assure  Mr.  Rog^  of  the  benefits  of 

constitutional  guaranties  and,  on  this  occasion,  to  give  a  new  proof  of  its  benevolent  inten- 

tions toward  the  Alto  Orinoco  Company." 
The  superior  judge  of  Ciudad  Bolivar,  in  ordering  the  detention  of  E.  Rog^,  violated  the 

provisions  of  articles  200  and  271  of  the  code  of  criminal  procedure,  it  being  expressly 

provided  by  said  articles  that — 

"In  every  case  of  discontinuance  if  the  act  in  controversy  has  warranted  the  detention 
of  the  defendant,  and  if  said  detention  has  been  effected,  the  person  or  persons  released 

from  responsibility  shall  immediately  be  placed  at  liberty,  under  bond,  while  the  superior 

tribunals  affirm  or  overrule  the  judgment,  as  they  are  empowered  to  do  by  this  code." 
Rog^  not  having  been  properly  imprisoned  in  accordance  with  the  discontinuance  of 

the  judge  of  the  first  instance,  because  the  conunitting  magistrate  did  not  find  any  reason 
to  order  his  detention  in  conformity  with  article  137  of  said  code,  the  superior  judge  could 
not  order  the  arrest  of  the  accused,  because  he  had  not  been  put  at  liberty,  but  he  ought 
to  have  limited  himself  to  referring  his  judgment  to  the  supreme  court,  and  until  it  was 

rendered  final  by  its  confirmation  it  was  the  place  of  the  committing  magistrate  or  the  judge 
of  the  first  instance  to  fulfill  what  had  been  definitely  adjudged,  and  his  place  to.  decree 
the  detention  of  the  accused. 

The  arbitrator  considers  this  violation  of  the  law  as  an  unjust  and  illegal  act  perpetrated 

by  the  superior  judge  of  Gudad  Bolivar;  but  at  the  same  time  he  can  not  help  but  appreciate 

the  attitude  of  the  judge  of  the  first  instance,  who  in  a  truly  justified  and  honorable  judg- 
ment gave  ever}  sort  of  guaranty  and  satisfaction.    Likewise  he  considers  the  proceeding 
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of  the  supreme  court  entirely  in  accord  with  the  law  and  the  acts  which  the  President  of  the 

Republic  and  his  ministers  of  interior  and  foreign  relations  performed  with  all  diligence  in 
order  to  satisfy,  as  far  as  possible,  the  demand  of  the  minister  of  France  in  favor  of  Rog6 
showing  without  any  doubt  what  the  said  representative  expressed  in  his  telegram  copied 

above,  the  good  intentions  and  sentiments  of  equity  of  the  Government^  and  that  the  necessary 

steps  were  being  taken  to  assure  Mr.  Roge  of  the  benefit  of  the  constitutional  guaranties. 
The  amount  of  indemnity  which  is  demanded  is,  under  every  aspect,  disproportionate, 

seeing,  as  it  is  demonstrated,  that  relief  was  sought  to  be  given  by  the  national  Government 

for  the  illegal  act  in  question  with  the  least  possible  delay,  and  it  was  corrected  by  the  judg- 
ment of  the  supreme  court  in  the  State  of  Bolivar. 

The  Venezuelan  commissioner  considers  that  it  would  be  a  reasonable  and  equitable  com- 
pensation for  the  damage  suffered  by  Rog^  on  account  of  his  detention  in  the  hospital  of 

Ciudad  Bolivar  for  thirty-seven  days  to  award  him  the  sum  of  10,000  bolivars. 

DECAUVILLB   COMPANY   CASE. 

Demand  that  claim  be  paid  for  the  amount  demanded  in  bonds  of  diplomatic  debt  at  40  per  cent  of  their 
face  value  refused.  Held,  that  the  commission  had  no  jurisdiction  to  change  manner  of  payment 
prescribed  by  protocol. 

Pall,  Commissioner  : 

This  claim  for  indemnity  is  made  up  of  the  following  amounts: 
Bolivars. 

Balance  of  the  debt  of  the  Government  of  Venezuela  to  the  Decauville  Associa- 

tion, due  May  15,1889    10,923.46 
Installment  due  September  15, 1889   25,  923.  47 
Interest  at  6  per  cent,  in  accordance  with  the  liquidation       9, 896.  55 
Difference  on  account  of  the  value  which  is  contained  in  the  claim  of  the  bonds 

of  the  diplomatic  debt,  estimating  them  at  60  per  cent   31, 162. 32 

77. 905. 80 

The  document  presented  in  support  of  this  claim  consists  of  a  contract  made  between  Mr. 

Alberto  Smith,  minister  of  public  works,  with  the  authorization  of  the  Persident  of  the 

Republic,  and  the  Vicomte  Gonzague  de  la  Baume,  as  representative  of  the  Decauville  du 

Petit  Bourg  Company,  whereby  the  indebtedness  which  said  company  held  against  the  Gov- 
ernment of  Venezuela  for  the  sale  of  four  iron  bridges  was  liquidated  and  the  amount  of  said 

indebtedness  was  fixed  at  the  sum  of  77,770.39  bolivars,  inclusive  of  interest  to  the  dates  of 

the  respective  expirations  of  the  three  terms  agreed  on  in  said  contract  for  the  total  payment 
of  the  debt. 

It  appears,  from  a  conmiunication  addressed  by  the  citizen  minister  of  the  treasury  to  the 
minister  of  foreign  relations,  dated  June  5  of  the  present  year,  and  numbered  284,  a  copy  of 
which  has  been  transmitted  to  this  commission,  that  the  account  which  the  representative 

of  the  Decauville  company  makes  of  the  {myments  made  by  the  Government  of  Venezuela 

upon  the  dates  therein  indicated  on  account  of  the  debt,  is  correct,  and  the  balance  which 
results  as  being  owed  on  account  of  this  debt  at  the  date  of  the  termination  of  the  respective 

obligations,  amounting  to  36,848.93  bolivars,  is  likewise  correct.  Notwithstanding  that 
the  liquidation  of  interest  made  in  the  contract  between  the  minister  of  public  works  and 

the  representative  of  the  Decauville  company  was  made  at  the  rate  of  6  per  cent  annuaUy 

up  to  the  dates  established  for  the  subsequent  payments  of  the  debt,  there  is  no  proof  that 
it  was  agreed  to  make  any  agreement  in  the  future  for  interest  upon  the  sums  which  mi^t 

remain  oi^ng  at  the  same  rate,  wherefore  the  rate  established  by  this  commission  ought  to 

govern  in  this  case — that  is  to  say,  that  in  the  cases  in  which  there  is  no  express  agreement 
concerning  interest  there  will  be  allowed  upon  liquidated  debts  or  obligations  for  loans  of 
cash  at  the  legal  rate  of  3  per  cent,  in  conformity  with  article  1720  of  our  code,  which  is  in 
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accord  with  article  1907  of  the  French  civil  code.  This  liquidation  being  carried  into  eflfect 

from  the  respective  dates  upon  the  balances  which  have  remained  owing,  a  result  of  4,530.85 
bolivars  is  obtained. 

The  contention  which  the  claimant  makes  that  he  should  be  allowed  40  per  cent  more 
upon  the  amount  of  the  principal  debt  and  upon  the  interest  because  of  the  fact  that  the 
payment  was  made,  in  conformity  with  the  terms  of  the  protocol,  in  bonds  of  the  3  per  cent 

diplomatic  debt,  instead  of  in  cash,  is  entirely  inadmissible,  because  the  party  claimant  has 
spontaneously  submitted  his  demand  to  this  commission,  whose  authority  is  limited  to 
examining  the  claims  presented  by  Frenchmen,  founded  upon  facts  prior  to  May  23,  1899, 

fixing  the  andount  thereof  in  conformity  with  the  proofs  which  relate  to  the  facts  upon  which 
they  are  based  and  in  conformity  with  the  grounds  that  may  justify  them. 

The  method  of  payment  established  by  Article  III  of  the  protocol  is  a  fact  entirely  sepa- 
rated from  the  duty  of  judging  concerning  the  justice  or  injustice  of  the  demand. 

This  fact  relates  solely  to  the  execution  of  the  judgment  which  the  arbitrators  may  pro- 
nounce, and  this  conclusion  is  clearly  deduced  from  the  terms  of  said  article,  which  reads 

as  follows: 

**  Awards  [those  which  the  arbitrators  or  the  umpire  may  allow]  shall  be  paid  to  the  French 
Grovemment  in  bonds  of  the  3  per  cent  diplomatic  debt  within  three  months  after  the  agree- 

ment or  judgment."  a 
The  provision  which  Article  IV  of  the  protocol  contains  is  of  the  same  character,  and 

provides: 

"  That  the  Government  of  Venezuela  shall  ask  Congress  to  include  in  the  provision  for 
expenses  the  sums  necessary  for  the  payment  of  the  monthly  installments  in  arrears  of  the 
diplomatic  debt,  and  the  holders  of  bonds  of  that  debt  shall,  besides,  participate  in  all  the 
advantages  which  may  accrue  to  them  from  the  strict  application  of  the  Venezuelan  laws 

applicable  to  the  premises." 
The  definite  provision  of  Article  III  and  that  which  Article  IV  of  the  protocol  contains 

relate  solely  to  negotiations  of  government  with  government,  which  refer  to  the  manner  of 
paying  obligations  incurred,  be  it  by  contract,  by  former  arbitral  decisions,  or  by  those  which 

the  present  commission  may  pronounce.  It  is  solely  for  the  respective  governments  to  deter- 
mine the  manner  of  payment  by  special  agreement,,  and  in  no  way  can  this  be  attributed 

to  the  arbitrators,  who  are  only  called  upon  to  decide  concerning  the  justice  of  the  claim  and 

to  determine  tiie  amount  which  the  Government  of  Venezuela  has  to  pay,  in  case  it  has  to 
pay,  taking  into  consideration  the  facts  and  foundation  of  the  claim. 

It  is  to  be  observed  that  among  the  40  claims  which  have  been  presented  before  this 

commission  up  to  date,  embraced  in  Article  II  of  the  protocol  signed  at  Paris  February  19, 

1902,  the  claim  concerning  which  this  decision  is  given  is  the  first  to  set  up  the  extraordinary 
and  rash  contention  that  there  be  attributed  to  the  diplomatic  debt  by  the  arbitrators  a 

value  of  40  per  cent,  thereby  causing  a  notorious  injury  to  the  actual  holders  bf  said  debt  and 
to  those  who  are  authorized  by  the  findings  of  this  commission  to  receive  in  payment  of  their 

debt,  according  to  the  terms  of  the  protocol,  bonds  of  the  said  diplomatic  debt.  Such  an 
arbitrary  proceeding  would  cause  the  continued  depreciation  of  the  value  of  the  debt  until  it 

destroyed  it  completely,  and  the  holders  of  it  would  be  the  first  to  suffer  the  consequences  of 
the  values  established  against  the  economic  rules  which  govern  public  securities. 

Therefore  this  portion  of  the  claim  is  disallowed,  and  it  is  admitted  for  the  principal  and 
interest  estimated  until  the  15th  of  September  of  the  present  year,  or,  say,  three  months 

after  the  date  of  the  present  award,  amounting  to  41,377.78  bolivars. 

o  Page  3. 
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LALANNE   AND   LEDOUR   CASE. 

Damages  allowed  because  of  unjustified  refusal  of  customs  officials  to  clear  ship  from  Venezuelan  port. 

Paul,  Commissioner: 

This  claim  is  composed  of  34,376.40  bolivars  demanded  by  G.  Lalanne  for  damages  and 

injuries  resulting  from  the  fact  that  the  head  of  the  custom-house  of  Ciudad  Bolivar  did  not 
permit  the  shipment,  in  June,  1886,  on  the  steamer  Dieu  Merci,  of  120  head  of  cattle  which 

Gen.  G.  Battistini  held  ready  to  send  to  Guayana,  as  had  been  done  in  other  prior  shipments, 

in  order  to  fulfill  the  contracts  made  by  Lalanne  with  the  governor  of  French  Guiana,  for 

furnishing  meat  to  the  penitentiary,  garrison,  and  other  administrations  of  Guiana,  and  for 
14,400  bolivars  which  the  owner  of  the  steamer  Dieu  Merci  demands  for  the  freight  which 

the  cargo  of  120  head  of  cattle  ought  to  have  produced  him  at  120  francs  each,  of  which  he 
was  deprived. 

From  the  documents  presented  in  this  claim  and  in  that  of  G.  Battistini,  which  is  joined 
with  it,  it  is  seen  that  G.  Lalanne  periodically  sent  to  Ciudad  Bolivar  a  steamship  to  load 

cattle  destined  for  Guiana  for  the  purpose  of  complying  with  contract  with  the  governor  of 
said  colony;  that  a  contract  being  in  existence,  made  between  Messrs.  Fonseca,  Navarro  & 
Co.,  merchants,  of  Ciudad  Bolivar,  with  the  national  Government,  which  accorded  them  the 

exclusive  privilege  of  exporting  cattle  by  steamships,  which  said  firm  ought  to  have  put  in 
operation  for  the  navigation  of  the  Orinoco  River  between  Ciudad  Bolivar  and  the  West 

Indies;  that  they  had  consented  to  the  exporting  of  cattle  in  steamers  sent  by  Lalanne, 

charging  for  each  shipment  8  bolivars  per  head;  that  in  its  turn  the  national  custom-house  in 
Ciudad  Bolivar  required,  in  order  to  give  permission  for  shipments  of  cattle,  that  there  be 

presented  by  the  shipper  the  order  or  permission  of  Fonseca  &  Co.,  showing  the  payment  to 
them  of  the  tax  imposed;  that  in  accordance  with  this  rule  G.  Battistini  had  been  permitted 
to  ship  cattle  for  Cayena  in  steamships,  by  order  and  for  the  account  of  Lalanne,  up  to  the 
number  of  767  head,  from  September,  1885,  to  March,  1886,  Battistini  having  paid  to 

Fonseca,  Navarre  &  Co.  the  sum  of  6,136  bolivars,  as  is  proven  by  the  receipt  of  cash  by 
Alejandro  Mantilla,  as  attorney  for  FonsecA  &  Co.;  that  in  the  month  of  June,  1886,  the 

steamer  Dieu  Merci  arrived  at  Ciudad  Bolivar  to  load  the  customary  120  head  of  cattle 
which  G.  Battistini  had  ready  for  this  journey  upon  the  order  and  for  the  account  of  Lalanne, 

and  that  it  was  not  possible  to  complete  the  shipment  because  the  custom-house  had  refused 
to  permit  it,  alleging  that  the  order  of  Fonseca  &  Co.  had  not  been  presented  to  it,  as  was 
necessary;  that  it  was  impossible  to  obtain  this  order  because  Messrs.  Fonseca  &  Co. 

refused  to  give  it,  notwithstanding  that  payment  of  the  tax  was  offered  them,  as  had  been 
done  before,  and  even  Battistini  had  offered  to  buy  from  Fonseca  &  Co.  their  own  cattle 

and  ship  them  in  place  of  those  Battistini  held  ready;  that  these  refusals  of  Fonseca  &  Co. 

and  that  of  the  maritime  government  house  at  Ciudad  Bolivar  caused  the  detention  for  sev- 
eral days  of  the  steamer  Dieu  Merci  in  the  harbor  of  Ciudad  Bolivar,  and  caused  it  to  depart 

from  the  port  without  loading  the  cattle  under  the  protest  of  the  captain;  and,  finally,  it 
is  also  proven  that  in  the  months  following,  the  voyages  of  the  steamer  and  the  shipments  of 
cattle  were  continued  for  the  account  of  Lalanne,  the  shipment  being  permitted  by  the 

Government  custom-house  at  Ciudad  Bol.'var,  because  the  hindrances  placed  upon  traffic  in 
cattle  on  the  Orinoco  by  the  house  of  Fonseca  &  Co.  had  in  fact  ceased. 

During  the  period  of  the  first  events  the  president  of  the  State  of  Guiana  was  Gen.  Rai- 
mundo  Fonseca,  an  active  member  of  the  firm  of  Fonseca,  Navarro  &  Co.,  and  at  the  time 

when  the  opposition  of  said  house  to  the  shipment  of  cattle  in  Ciudad  Bolivar  ceased  General 

Fonseca  ceased  to  be  president  of  that  section,  being  called  by  Gen.  Guzm^  Blanco  to  form 
a  part  of  his  cabinet  in  September,  1886.  These  facts  being  taken  into  consideration  in  the 

light  of  an  impartial  and  just  appreciation,  the  conviction  results  that  an  abuse  of  authority 
was  committed  by  the  president  of  the  State  of  Guiana  by  refusing,  in  his  capacity  as  an 

associate  of  the  firm  of  Fonseca  &  Co.,  to  permit  the  shipment  of  cattle  under  the  same  con- 
ditions that  his  commercial  firm  had  adopted  in  prior  shipments,  and  that  this  abuse  was 

arbitrarily  sustained  by  the  chief  of  the  customs  of  Ciudad  Bolivar,  who  ought  to  have 
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authorized  the  shipment  upon  learning  that  the  owners  of  the  cattle  were  disposed  to  pay  to 

Fonseca  &  Co.  the  same  duties  or  taxes  w^hich  in  prior  shipments  they  had  received.  This 
dual  entity  of  first  magistrate  of  a  body  politic  and  partner  of  a  commercial  firm  putting  in 

action  the  influences  of  his  power  in  order  to  obtain  pecilniary  benefits  at  the  cost  of  legiti- 

mate interests  created  under  the  protection  of  the  constitutional  guaranties  naturaUy  pro- 
duced a  disturbance  in  the  dealings  established  at  Ciudad  Bolivar  by  Lalanne  for  the  ship- 

ment of  cattle,  and  gave  rise  to  the  present  claim  which,  even  if  excessively  exaggerated,  has 
in  its  favor  the  principle  of  equity.  Having  admitted  this  in  the  claim  of  Lalanne  and 

Ledour,  the  former  a  contractor  in  the  purchase  and  exportation  of  cattle  for  Cayena  and  the 
latter  the  owner  of  the  steamer  Dieu  Merci,  the  Venezuelan  commissioner  proceeds  to 
estimate  the  damage  suffered  by  both. 

The  death  of  the  29  head  of  cattle,  which  Lalanne  claims  took  place  in  the  journey  from 
Demerara  to  Cayena,  is  not  proven,  and  it  is  only  proven  that  the  Dieu  Merci  took  on  board 

at  Cayena  75  head  of  cattle  coming  from  Demerara.  Nor  is  the  difference  in  price  between 

the  cost  of  the  cattle  bought  at  Demerara  and  the  cost  of  the  cattle  in  Ciudad  Bolivar  des- 
tined for  the  shipment  proved.  The  prospective  profits  of  122.50  bolivars  for  each  head  of 

cattle  which  the  contractor  believed  he  would  obtain  for  the  120  head  which  ought  to  have 

been  shipped  from  Ciudad  Bolivar  is  exaggerated,  since  it  is  equivalent  to  100  per  cent  on  the 

price  of  the  cattle  in  that  city;  besides  this,  damage  can  not  be  demanded  except  for  45 

head,  since  75  were  unloaded  in  Cayena  upon  that  voyage  of  the  Dieu  Merci,  and  upon  them 

the  contractor  realized  the  profit  which  they  ought  to  have- yielded.  There  is  likewise  an 
exaggeration  in  the  demand  of  the  shipowner  for  14,400  bolivars  for  the  freight  upon  120 
head  of  cattle  which  he  did  not  take  on  at  Ciudad  Bolivar,  since  this  damage  is  reduced  to 

the  freight  on  45  fewer  cattle  loaded  upon  said  voyage,  to  the  expenses  of  delay  during  his 
stay  at  Ciudad  Bolivar,  and  to  those  of  the  journey  and  stay  at  Demerara. 

Taking  these  points  into  consideration,  the  Venezuelan  commissioner  allows  G.  Lalanne 

an  indemnity  of  4,000  bolivars,  and  the  owner  of  the  ship  Dieu  Merci  4,000  bolivars — in  all, 
for  the  tptal  claim,  8,000  bolivars. 

BA-rnSTINI   CASE. 

Damages  allowed  claimant  for  unjustified  refusal  of  customs  officials  to  clear  ship,  whereby  claimant 
suffered  injury. 

Damages  allowed  for  wrongful  imprisonment. 
Claim  for  payment  of  outstanding  bonds  disallowed  because  of  want  of  proof  of  ownership  thereof. 
Claim  allowed  against  Federal  Government  for  supplies  furnished  the  State  of  Guayana. 

Pai&l,  CommissioTier: 

This  claim  is  composed  of  ten  distinct  items,  which  the  petitioner  classifies,  estimating  the 
amount  of  each  one  of  them,  wherefore  this  opinion  will  refer  particularly  to  each  of  them, 

examining  the  origin  and  the  proofs  upon  which  they  are  based,  and  will  indicate  the 
opinion  which  the  corresponding  demand  for  indemnity  may  merit. 

1 .  For  hindrances  opposed  to  the  departure  of  the  French  steamer  Dieu  Merci  with  a  cargo 

of  cattle  destined  for  Demerara  and  Cayena,  and  the  consequent  necessity  of  leaving  this 

cargo  on  shore  where  the  cattle  were  destined  for  the  provision  of  the  government  of 
Cayena,  the  claimant  demands  100,000  bolivars. 

A  claim  on  account  of  these  same  facts  has  been  presented  before  this  commission  by 

Messrs.  G.  Lalanne  and  H.  Ledour,  the  former  a  contractor  for  the  furnishing  of  cattle  for 

the  Government  of  French  Guayana,  and  the  latter  the  owner  of  the  steamer  Dieu  Merci, 
and  that  claim  was  decided,  an  allowance  of  8,000  bolivars  being  made  for  the  damages, 

because  the  custom-house  at  Ciudad  BoLvar  did  not  allow  the  shipment  of  120  head  of  cattle 
destined  by  Battistini  to  fulfill  the  order  of  shipment  for  his  constituent,  Lalanne.  The 

cattle  appear  to  have  been  the  property  of  Battistini,  who  sold  them  to  Lalanne  at  a  given 

price.     It  does  not  appefir  that  these  cattle  were  lost  or  decreased  in  value  as  a  consequence 
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of  remaining  in  Ciudad  Bolivar,  and  it  is  proved  that  the  voyage  of  the  steamers  and  ship- 
ment of  cattle  continued  without  interruption,  Battistini  himself  carrying  out  said  shipment 

for  the  account  and  by  order  of  Lalanne. 

The  injury  suflfered  by  Battidtihi,  who  is  the  owner  of  pasture  lands  on  the  banks  of  the 
Orinoco,  was  nothing  but  his  returning  these  cattle  to  the  pastures  or  their  sale  in  Ciudad 

Bolivar  at  a  price  not  so  high  as  the  transaction  of  Lalanne  assured  him.  Estimating  this 

expense  or  loss  conservatively,  the  sum  of  5,000  boHvars  is  allowed  in  this  respect. 
2.  For  the  matter  of  Caliman,  civil  chief  of  Ciudad  Bolivar,  who  (according  to  the  record) 

has  committed  injustices  in  detriment  to  his  interests,  20,000  bolivars. 

From  the  record  it  appears  only  that  the  civil  chief,  Caliman,  ordered  the  withdrawal  from 

public  market  of  Ciudad  Bolivar  of  a  quantity  of  raw  meat,  which  Battistini  had  sent  there  for 

its  sale,  disobeying  positive  orders  not  to  do  so,  because  this  act  was  contrary  to  a  contract 
made  with  certain  persons  for  the  furnishing  of  meat  in  the  market.  The  meat  withdrawn 

was  attached  and  sold  at  public  auction  by  the  police  officer.  There  exists  no  other  proof 
referring  to  the  action  of  the  civil  authority  against  the  interests  of  claimants,  and  no 
claim  against  the  nation  can  be  founded  upon  this  procedure  of  municipal  regulation. 

3.  For  the  claim  of  Pereira  Alvarez,  judge  of  the  first  instance  at  Ciudad  Bolivar,  who,  as 

Battistini  says,  has  committed  abominable  injustices  against  his  person  and  against  his 
interests,  for  which  he  has  not  been  able  to  obtain  any  reparation  before  the  tribunals,  40,000 
bolivars. 

It  is  proven  that  because  Battistini  had  protested  against  the  action  of  the  civil  chief, 
Caliman,  in  withdrawing  from  the  market  his  raw  meat,  a  protest  which  the  subtreasurer  of 

Ciudad  Bolivar  did  not  wish  to  record,  because  he  considered  it  offensive  to  the  authority, 
Judge  Pereira  Alvarez  rendered  judgment  for  calumny  and  injuries  against  Battistini,  and 

issued  an  order  of  arrest  against  him  and  a  mandate  to  all  the  authorities  to  carry  it  into 

effect.  Battistini  fled  from  the  locality  and  came  to  the  capital  of  the  Republic  seeking  pro- 
tection. The  son  of  Battistini  complained  to  the  judge,  and  the  latter  revoked  the  order  of 

detention,  because  the  offense  had  not  been  proven;  that  is,  because  there  was  nothing 

injurious  or  calumnious  in  Battistini's  protest.  Battistini  sued  the  judge,  Pereira  Alvarez, 
before  the  court  for  neglect  in  the  exercise  of  his  duties,  but  the  court  could  not  move  because 

Battistini  was  not  able  to  obtain  the  necessary  copies  of  documents  which  the  judge  in  ques- 
tion ought  to  have  ordered  to  be  issued  to  him,  and  his  solicitations  in  this  regard  before  the 

president  of  the  State  and  other  local  officials  were  futile.  These  facts  proved  the  denial  of 

justice,  because  the  local  authorities  deprived  Battistini  of  the  legal  means  of  instituting 
before  the  competent  tribunals  the  actions  which  the  laws  would  authorize  him  in  case  he 

might  improperly  have  been  condemned  to  a  criminal  judgment.  In  this  respect  the  Vene- 
zuelan commissioner  believes  that  Battistini  is  entitled  to  an  indemnity  which,  in  relation  to 

the  offense  and  the  injuries  which  the  arbltraryorderof  detention  of  the  judge  caused  him, 
he  estimates  at  25,000  bolivars. 

4.  This  item  of  the  claim  is  a  demand  for  indemnity  amounting  to  75,000  bolivars  for 

principal  and  interests  for  a  certain  number  of  coupons  or  bonds  of  the  debt  of  the  State  of 

Guayana,  of  which  Battistini  says  he  is  the  owner,  and  that  by  decree  of  President-General 
Fonseca,  it  was  ordered  that  they  should  not  be  admitted  as  had  been  the  custom  in  payment 
in  the  tax  offices  of  the  State  unless  they  had  ̂ en  redeemed  up  to  date.  The  claimant  has 

not  presented  the  original  bonds  or  any  part  of  them  which  he  may  have  in  his  possession. 
The  failure  to  present  said  bonds  makes  an  appreciation  regarding  the  legitimacy  of  the 
claim  impossible,  because  its  essential  foundation,  which  is  the  ownership  or  existence  under 
the  cx)ntrol  of  Battistini  of  such  certificates  or  bonds  and  the  exact  ascertainment  of  their 

amount,  is  wanting.  Besides  this  circumstance,  which  by  itself  alone  nullifies  the  claim,  it 
appears  from  the  claim  of  Battistini  himself  that  these  bonds  are  nothing  else  but  bonds  of  a 

public  debt  <^f  the  State  of  Guayana  extinguishable  from  the  time  of  their  issue  in  1878  by  10 
per  cent  of  the  ordinary  receipts  of  the  treasury  of  the  State;  that  later,  in  November,  1882, 
the  president  of  the  State  suspended  the  circulation  of  said  bonds,  and  on  December  9  of 

said  year  he  issued  a  decree  ordering  their  redemption  by  means,  of  payments  to  be  made 
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out  of  an  allotment  of  25  per  cent  of  the  special  revenue  of  the  State  of  Bolivar  destined  for 
the  section  of  Guayana  on  June  7,  1884,  and  payment  was  made  whereby  the  value  of  the 
bonds  was  reduced  from  104,837  bolivars,  the  amount  of  the  first  issue,  to  the  sum  of  49,507 

bolivars,  which  sum  BattLstini  says  was  completely  in  his  possession ;  tliat  the  effects  of  the 

^^.^ancial  crisis  that  took  place  at  that  time  and  the  reduction  of  25  per  cent  in  tb»B  revenue 
of  the  allowance  and  by  the  territorial  revenues  hindered  the  continuation  of  the  extinguish- 
ttient,  and  finally  that  the  legislature  of  the  State  by  a  legislative  act  of  1888  passed  a  law 
concerning  the  public  debt  which  had  as  an  object  to  consolidate  all  the  debts  of  the  State. 

It  is  to  this  decree  that  the  judgments  of  the  court  in  the  various  grades  of  jurisdiction  of  the 

State  of  Bolivar  have  remitted  Mr.  Battistini  in  the  suit  which  he  instituted  against  the 
treasury  of  the  State  for  the  payment  of  the  bonds  which  were  in  his  possession.  In  May, 
1890,  Battistini,  the  claimant,  instituted  a  proceeding  of  cassation  against  this  decision  in 

the  supreme  court  of  Ciudad  Bolivar  as  a  court  of  last  resort,  and  on  the  16th  of  that  month 

the  court  of  cassation  granted  the  appeal  which,  as  appears  from  the  statement  of  Battistini, 
was  allowed  to  lapse. 

There  are,  therefore,  final  judgments  which  decree  that  Battistini,  like  any  other  holder 
of  the  internal  debt  of  the  State  of  Guaiana,  is  obliged  to  submit  himself  to  the  laws  or 

decrees  which  govern  the  extinguishment  of  said  debt. 

It  is  a  principle  of  public  international  law  that  the  internal  debt  of  a  state,  classified  as  a 
public  debt,  Vhich  is  subject  to  speculations  current  among  that  sort  of  values  which  are 

acquired  freely  and  spontaneously  at  very  different  rates  of  quotations  which  mark  great 
fluctuations  of  their  rise  and  fall,  can  never  be  the  subject  of  international  claims  in  order  to 

obtain  their  immediate  payment  in  cash  a  just  as  they  can  not  be  the  subject  of  judgments 
before  the  tribunals  of  the  country  in  order  that  their  holders  may  obtain  the  payment  of 

their  nominal  value.  To  establish  such  a  principle  would  be  to  put  a  premium  upon  stock 

jobbing,  which  would  be  often  possible  with  this  sort  of  public  values,  and  would  place 
nations  at  the  mercy  of  speculators  who  might  obtain  control  of  all  their  internal  debt. 

The  certificates  or  bonds,  in  question  in  the  matter  of  the  claim  of  Battistini,  in  this  sub- 
division, are  in  the  same  condition  as  the  internal  debt  of  the  nation,  which  amounts  to 

many  millions  and  bears  interest,  and  it  is  more  than  four  years  since  payment  for  its 
extinguishment  and  the  payment  of  interest  has  been  suspended  on  account  of  the  abnormal 
condition  caused  by  the  war.  Could  these  mixed  commissions  have  jurisdiction  to  decide 

claims  which  the  foreign  holders  of  this  internal  debt  might  present  to  them  in  order  to 

obtain  the  payment  of  the  principal  and  interests? 
This  could  not  be  sustained  even  with  respect  to  the  foreign,  or  as  it  is  called  diplomatic 

debt,  of  3  per  cent,  nor  with  respect  to  any  public  debt  which  has  been  put  upon  the  specu- 
lative market  and  may  therefore  pass  from  hand  to  hand  by  virtue  of  transactions  prompted 

daily  by  those  who  profit  from  the  rise  and  fall  of  public  securities. 
This  portion  Of  the  claim  is  declared  inadmissible,  because  it  can  not  be  prosecuted  before 

this  Conunission. 

5.  This  portion  of  the  claim  arises  out  of  the  recovery  of  a  private  debt  which  Mr.  Hernan- 
dez Lopez  contracted  in  favor  of  Battistini,  amounting  to  the  sum  of  12,228  bolivars,  and 

which  gave  rise  to  a  suit  prosecuted  before  the  competent  judge  of  Ciudad  Bolivar,  in  which 

judgment  was  rendered  and  ordered  to  be  executed  ordering  the  attachment  of  the  property 

of  the  debtor.  This  attachment  could  not  be  carried  into  effect  because  Hernandez  disap- 
peared from  the  place  of  execution  and  the  property  of  the  debtor  could  not  be  found  upon 

which  to  lay  it.  Battistini  seeks  to  make  the  nation  responsible  for  the  insolvency  of  his 
private  debtor,  an  unsustainable  and  evidently  rash  pretension,  which  only  indicates  in  the 
petitioner  a  true  monomania  for  claims.  The  amount  of  this  portion  of  the  claim  therefore 
is  disallowed,  which  is  25,000  bolivars. 

6.  The  claim  of  35,000  bolivars  for  a  certain  quantity  of  sarrajna,  which  was  declared 

contraband  after  a  formal  judgment  which  was  twice  appealed  and  terminated  in  the  full 

a  In  the  Italian  Commission  of  1903  (Boccardo  case,  not  reported)  judgment  was  given  on 

internal  bonds  on  authority  of  Aspinwall  case,  Moore's  International  Arbitrations,  p.  3616. 
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Federal  court  confirming  the  judgments  of  the  first  and  second  instances,  which  condemned 

Battistini  to  lose  the  sacks  of  sarrapia,  a  contraband  article,  and  to  the  payment  of  double 

duties,  lacks  all  foundation,  because  there  is  upon  this  matter  res  judicata,  and  it  ought 
therefore  to  be  disallowed. 

(Items  7,  8,  and  9  dismissed  for  want  of  proof.) 
10.  For  the  value  of  a  certificate  issued  in  favor  of  Domingo  Maria  Battistini  April  29, 

1891,  by  the  general  internal  treasurer  of  the  State  of  Bolivar,  recognizing  the  debt  against 
the  old  State  of  Guayana,  amounting  to  13,780  bolivars,  for  supplies  made  to  the  State  of 

Guayana  and  by  order  of  the  citizen  president  of  the  same  State,  No.  2307.  This  is  admitted 
for  said  sum. 

For  interests  upon  this  receipt  and  other  general  injuries  there  is  allowed  by  the  arbitrators 
the  sum  of  6,220  bolivars. 

(This  claim  was  allowed  for  50,000  bolivars.) 

PITON    CASE.O 

Prescription  unless  pleaded  by  the  debtor  will  not  be  taken  into  consideration  by  the  Commission. 

Paul,  Commissioner  : 
The  claimants,  in  their  capacity  of  French  citizens,  and  sole  and  legitimate  children 

of  P.  Claudius  Piton  and  Augustina  Piton,  n^  Leraoine,  as  appears  from  the  public  docu- 
ments which  have  been  presented  before  this  commission,  demand  from  the  Grovemment 

of  Venezuela  the  payment  of  the  sum  of  489,468.64  bolivars  for  capital  and  interest  accrued 
since  the  date  of  their  claim,  arising  out  of  the  acknowledgment  made  by  the  minister 

of  interior  and  justice  on  January  7,  1868,  and  by  a  resolution  of  the  same  date  marked 
No.  5,  in  favor  of  Messrs.  A.  Lemoine  &  Co.,  for  the  following  amounts:  For  the  balance 

due  on  a  credit  of  $50,000,  to  which  they  have  a  right  by  the  contract  of  July  20,  1856, 

made  with  the  honorable  municipal  council  of  La  Guaira,  and  approved  by  the  govern- 
ment of  the  former  province  of  Caracas  on  August  28  of  the  same  year,  said  contract  having 

as  an  object  the  furnishing  of  drinkable  water  to  the  city  of  La  Guaira  by  means  of  an  iron 
pipe,  the  construction  of  various  public  fountains,  the  building  of  a  reservoir  for  the  storage 
of  the  waters,  and  the  repairing  of  the  aqueduct  in  various  places,  $38,411.16. 

For  interest  accrued  upon  this  balance  at  the  rate  of  6  per  cent  per  annum 
from  June  1,  1860,  until  December  31,  1867   $16,751.50 

For  damages  and  injuries  which  A.  Lemoine  &  Co.  claim  for  the  breach  of  the 
contract  (it  being  remembered  that  this  amount  is  much  less  than  what 

the  profit  of  1  per  cent  per  month  would  have  been  which  was  indicated 
as  simple  interest  in  the  original  contract)        7, 500. 00 

62, 662. 66 

It  was  moreover  resolved  that  this  sum  of  $62,662.66  should  be  paid  by  the  administra- 
tion of  the  revenues  of  the  department  of  Vargas  by  the  receipts  from  the  public  maricet 

of  said  city  of  La  Guaira,  and  by  the  tariff  for  pure  water  which  should  be  collected  at  that 

place,  the  payments  having  to  be  made  monthly  and  the  account  to  bear  interest  at  said 
rate  of  6  per  cent  per  annum  only  upon  the  balance  of  $38,411.16,  since  in  no  case  could 
interest  be  paid  upon  interest. 

As  appears  from  the  documents  registered  at  La  Guaira  on  January  28,  1868,  under 
No.  4,  protocol  8,  the  collector  of  revenues  of  the  municipal  council  of  the  department 

of  Vargas,  Mr.  G.  Quevedo,  by  virtue  of  the  special  authorization  of  said  body,  by  said 
instrument,  put  Messrs.  A.  Lemoine  &  Co.  into  possession  of  the  receipts  of  the  market 

and  of  pure  water  which  might  be  collected  by  the  administration  of  municipal  revenues 

of  the  department  of  Vargas,  its  product  to  be  delivered  monthly,  without  any  other 
reduction  except  what  might  be  caused  by  its  collection. 

a  Reported  in  Venezuelan  Arbitrations  of  1903,  p.  507,  as  "  Daniel "  case. 
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It  appears  from  the  documents  presented  that  the  administrative  council  of  the  depart- 
ment of  Vargas  carried  on  with  A.  Lemoine  &  Co.  an  open  account  in  fulfillment  of  the 

resolution  of  the  ministry  of  the  interior  and  justice,  under  the  division  of  districts  until 
November  1,  1871,  when  the  change  of  application  of  the  funds  destined  for  the  extinction 

of  the  capital  acknowledged  to  be  due  A.  Lemoine  &  Co.,  and  the  interest  on  said  capital 

at  one-half  per  cent  per  month.  From  this  last  account  it  appears  that  upon  the  above 
date,  November  1,  1871,  the  municipal  council  of  the  department  of  Vargas  owed  A. 
Lemoine  &  Co.  the  following: 

For  capital   $31,944.04 
Interest       25, 234.  62 

Damages  and  injuries  acknowledged         7, 500. 00 

64, 678. 66 
An  account  has  been  presented  bearing  date  April  17,  1882,  showing  an  amount  due 

of  $84,643.66  as  the  balance  of  the  capital  and  interest  in  favor  of  A.  Lemoine  &  Co.,  and 

a  note  addressed  by  the  president  of  the  municipal  council  of  the  district  of  Vargas,  dated 
June  1,  1883,  No.  188,  to  Mr.  Daniel  Dibble,  in  order  that  he  might  transmit  it  to  the  heirs 

of  A.  Lemoine,  deceased,  wherein  he  announced  to  them  that  said  municipal  council  at 

its  session  of  June  7,  1883,  had  resolved  with  reference  to  the  claim  presented  by  said 

heirs  upon  March  31  of  said  year,  to  approve  the  opinion  of  representative  Manuel  F.  Sojo 
couched  in  the  following  terms: 

''That  it  being  a  matter  of  the  greatest  importance,  and  his  many  duties  not  permitting 
him  to  examine  it,  he  returned  it,  indicating  that  he  thought  it  would  be  well  to  have  the 

advice  of  a  lawyer.** 
The  president  of  the  council  in  said  communication  also  announced  that  the  body  had 

postponed  until  another  session  the  choice  of  the  lawyer  to  be  consulted. 
Under  letters  D  and  E  two  plain  copies  of  the  two  communications,  the  first  addressed 

in  July,  1895,  by  C&rlos  Piton  in  his  own  right,  and  Santiago  Carias  as  the  representative 
of  Amelia  and  Isabel  Piton  to  the  municipal  council  of  the  department  of  Vaigas,  in 

which  they  requested  that  order  be  given  that  a  liquidation  might  be  made  showing  the 
indebtedness  of  said  council  to  the  heirs  of  Augusto  Lemoine  on  account  of  the  iron  pipe 

line  at  La  Guaira,  in  accordance  with  the  contract  in  the  premises  which  appeared  in  evi. 

dence  in  said  record,  and  they  demanded  that  a  certified  copy  be  issued  to  them  of  such 

liquidation. 
The  second  communication,  dated  at  Caracas  in  September,  1896,  is  written  by  the 

same  petitioners  and  was  addressed  to  the  president  of  the  State  of  l^liranda,  of  which 

State  the  city  of  La  Guaira  then  formed  a  part,  asking  said  ofiBcial  that  he  examine  the 
documents  which  the  demand  mentioned  and  that  he  might  signify  that  he  considered  it 

just,  and  that  he  might  fix  upon  a  fortnightly  payment  for  the  gradual  extinguishment 
of  the  debt.  It  is  not  proved  that  these  two  demands  have  reached  their  destination, 

and  that  consequently  any  determination  with  respect  to  them  was  reached. 
From  the  facts  stated,  it  appears  that  an  agreement  duly  recorded  existed  by  which 

the  National  Government  through  its  official,  the  minister  of  the  interior  and  justice,  acknowl- 
edged an  indebtedness  in  favor  of  Messrs.  A.  Lemoine  &  Co.  of  $66,682.66,  as  capital,  inter- 

est, and  damages,  and  injuries  in  January,  1868,  ordering  the  gradual  extinction  of  this 
debt  by  means  of  the  receipts  of  the  rents  of  the  market  and  pure  water  of  the  eity  of 
La  Guaira;  that  this  agreement  was  performed  for  the  space  of  three  years  and  ten  months, 
Messrs.  A.  Lemoine  &  Co.  receiving  from  the  municipal  rents  of  the  district  of  Vargas 

various  sums  from  said  rents,  which  extinguished  in  part  the  balance  owed  upon  the 

capital,  and  that  portion  owed  for  interest  increased,  whereby,  by  November  1,  1871, 
the  general  balance  ol  the  running  account  in  favor  of  A.  Lemoine  &  Co.  amounted  to 
$64,678.66;  that  from  this  last  date  it  aoes  not  appear  that  there  has  ever  been  any  action 

taken  by  the  owner  of  the  debt  directly,  nor  by  their  legitimate  successors  in  interest, 
before  the  competent  tribunals  or  officials  of  the  country,  demanding  the  fulfillment  of  the 
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agreement  made  with  the  municipal  corporation  of  La  Guaira.  It  is  not  possible  to  leave 
out  of  consideration  this  notable  circumstance  which  as  a  consequence  has  caused  the  default 

in  payment  of  a  debt,  recognized  by  a  public  instrument,  for  the  extinguishment  of  which 

the  party  debtor  had  set  aside  certain  receipts  of  the  municipal  revenues,  thus  constituting 
a  pledge  which  in  law  establishes  a  legal  right  in  favor  of  the  creditor. 

It  is  a  notorious  fact  that  the  district  of  Vargas  has  since  the  year  1871  passed  through  a 
series  of  political  and  economic  changes  which  have  radically  altered  its  organization  and 
greatly  decreased  for  various  reasons  the  receipts  of  the  municipal  revenues. 

The  liability  which  might  attach  to  the  National  Government  to-day  for  a  debt  which  was 
originally  contracted  by  the  municipal  council  of  the  district  of  Vargas,  of  the  former  pro- 

vince of  Caracas,  and  which  debt  should  be  paid  by  these  very  municipal  revenues  which  said 

corporation  administered,  can  not  be  founded  legally  except  in  the  ultimate  territorial  dis- 
tribution sanctioned  by  the  constitution  of  1901  whereby  the  States  obligated  themselves  to 

cede  to  the  nation,  among  other  cities,  that  of  La  Guaira. 

Upon  the  date  of  this  session  the  debt  due  the  successors  in  interest  of  A.  Lemoine  hao  for 

a  great  many  years  remained  without  action,  without  their  having  been  presented  before  this 

commission  any  sufficient  reason  or  motive  to  show  that  that  situation  was  not  owing  to  the 
neglect  of  the  creditor  and  his  legitimate  successors  in  interest.  The  reason  upon  which  all 

legislations  base  the  right  of  the  debtor  to  invoke  prescription  as  a  means  of  extinguishing 
an  obligation  is  the  abandonment  in  which  the  creditor  has  for  a  number  of  years  left  the 

exercise  of  his  right,  the  legal  presumption  of  payment  arising  therefrom.  Prescription  has 

not  been  invoked  before  this  commission  in  the  present  case  by  the  Government  of  Vene- 

zuela, wherefore  it  can  not  of  its  own  motion  take  it  into  consideration,  in  conformity  with 
the  principles  which  govern,  but  there  is  no  right  for  the  allowance  of  interest  upon  the 
amount  of  the  debt;  and  taking  moreover  into  consideration  that  the  amount  shown  to  be 

due  by  the  liquidation  of  November  1, 1871,  includes  an  item  of  $7,500  for  damages,  and  at 

the  same  time  another  amount  for  interest  up  to  that  date  upon  the  capital  at  6  per  cent, 

which  amounts  to  the  sum  of  $25,234.62;  and  that  in  all  equity  this  double  indemnity  should 
not  be  allowed  for  interest  and  for  damages,  there  should  be  deducted  from  the  total  amount 

of  said  liquidation  the  sum  of  $7,500,  and  the  balance  in  favor  of  the  successors  in  interest  of 
A.  Lemoine  should  be  allowed,  say,  the  sum  of  228,714.64  bolivars,  without  interest. 

Summary  of  Claims  Adjudicated  by  the  Commissioners  at  Caracas  in  1903. 

Number  of  claims  submitted           75 
Number  of  claims  withdrawn       1 

Number  of  claims  in  which  awards  were  given   37 
Number  of  claims  dismissed  for  want  of  jurisdiction       2 
Number  of  claims  disallowed   27 

Number  of  claims  referred  to  umpire       8 

—  75 

Bolivars. 

Amount  of  claims  presented   61, 334, 352.  45 
Bolivars. 

Amount  of  claims  withdrawn           336, 000. 00 
Amount  of  claims  dismissed  for  want  of  jurisdiction    22, 311. 00 
Amount  of  awards  made       1, 437, 021. 01 
Amounts  of  claims  disallowed       9, 068, 908. 08 
Amount   of  reduction  of  claims   in   which   awards  were 

made       7,482,064.86 
Amount  of  claims  referred  to  umpire    42, 988, 047. 50 

   61, 334, 352. 45 
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Claims  Referred  to  the  Umpire  under  the  French  Protocol  of  1902. 
Bolivars. 

1.  Pieri  Dominique  &  Co    4,010,400.00 
2.  Compaflla  General  del  Orinoco    7, 616, 098. 62 
3.  Compafila  de  Betunes  del  Orinoco    176, 080. 10 

4.  Massiani  Sucesores.  .*.    692, 740. 48 
5.  Maninat,  Pedro,  y  Hermanas    2, 000, 000. 00 
6.  Compafiia  francesa  de  ferrocarriles  venezolanos    18, 483, 000. 00 
7.  Jules  Bnin    500,000.00 
8.  Fabiani,  Antonio   1    9,509,728.30 

Total    42,988,047.5a 

On  these  eight  claims  the  French  commissioner  favored  judgments  for  36,868,541. 8d 
bolivars,  while  the  Venezuelan  commissioner  rejected  all  except  180,000  bolivars. 

S.  Doc.  533,  59-1   30 
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Attorney: 

Appearance  of,  cures  irregularities  in  proceedings         244 

Awards  (see  Plumley ,  Umpire) : 
Can  not  be  increased  because  of  reduction  in  market  value  of  the  securities  set 

aside  under  the  protocol  for  payment  of  such  claims    5 
Text  of,  in  Fabiani  case,  of  Swiss  Arbitrator  under  convention  of  1891         147 

Text  of,  in  Venezuelan-Colombian  boundary  dispute         268 
Summary  of,  by  umpire         453 

Battistini  case         459 
Brun  case: 

Opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner    6 

Opinion  of  French  Commissioner    9 
Additional  opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner           13 
Additional  opinion  of  French  Commissioner           20 

Opinion  of  Umpire           21 
Burden  of  proof.     (See  Evidence.) 
Citizenship  (see  Nationality): 

Laws  of  Venezuela  concerning,  not  peculiar   '     212 
Of  widow  of  French  citizen         211 

Of  children  of  French  citizen  born  and  domiciled  in  Venezuela         212 

Claimant  (seeC\fk\ms;  Evidence): 

If  rightfully  in  a  case,  however  informally  present,  case  should  be  decided  on  the 
merits,  the  decision  to  be  fully  binding  upon  all  parties    5 

Burden  of  proof  rests  upon,  to  establish  his  nationality           44 
Nationality  of,  at  inception  of  claim  alone  to  be  considered           45 

Claims  (see  Claimant): 

Changed  from  individual  to  national  character  upon  intervention  of  claimant's 
government           82 

Claims,  schedule  of: 
BruD  case    5 

Frierdich  &  Co.  case           31 
Maninat  case           44 
Fabiani  case          81 

Dominique  &  Co.  case         185 
Leduc,  St.  Ives,  Fischer  &  Co.  case         454 

Rog^  case   1   ^         454 

467 
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Claims,  schedule  of — Continued.  Page. 
Decauville  case    4^6 
Battistini  case    459 

Piton  case   .'    462 
French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads    367 
Massiani,  heirs  of    211 

Orinoco,  Company  General  of,  case    244 
Commission : 

Personnel    4 

Company  General  of  the  Orinoco.     {See  Orinoco,  Company  General  of.) 
Conflict  of  laws: 

In  case  of  disagreement  as  to  nationality,  place  of  domicile  shall  prevail    45 
Contracts: 

Being  mutual  and  reciprocal,  neither  party  can  abandon    245 

What  constitutes  breach  of,  by  government    245 
Abandonment  or  rescission  without  consent  of  other  party  thereto    368 

Commission  powerless  to  decree  abandonment  by  either  party  to  mutual  or 
reciprocal  contract    368 

Damages: 

Government  responsible  for  interference  by  chief  of  custom-house  with  benefi- 
cial use  of  concession    185 

Government  not  responsible  for  indirect    186 

Through  havoc  of  war,  respondent  government  not  liable  for    369 
Measure  of,  in  a  case  where  claimant  is  a  widowed  mother  and  the  claim  is  for 

unlawful  killing  of  her  son,  is  the  amount  necessary  to  meet  pecuniary  losses 
sustained  when  exemplary  damages  can  not  be  demanded    5 

Distribution  of,  rests  with  claimant  government    45 
Commission  can  not  make  order  which  would  cause  damages  to  accrue  and 

then  give  award  therefor    368 
Decauville  case   s    456 

Domicile.     {See  Citizenship.) 

Dominique  &  Co.  case: 
Opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner    186 

Opinion  of  French  Commissioner    193 
Additional  opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner    195 
Additional  opinion  of  French  Commissioner    198 

Opinion  of  Umpire    201 
Errors  or  irregularities.     {See  Rescission,  suit  for;  Rogatory  Commissions;  Federal 

court.) 

Evidence  {see  Presumptions) : 

Record  proof  not  essential  if  there  be  other  proof  that  is  convincing    44 

Claimant  must  prove  nationality    44 

It  is  upon  the  claimant  to  fully  establish  unlawfulness  of  government  acts  com- 
plained of    31 

Fabiani  case: 

Opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner    81 

Opinion  of  French  Commissioner    83 
Additional  opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner    97 

Additional  opinion  of  French  Commissioner    103 

Opinion  of  Umpire    110 
Exhibit:  Award  of  Swiss  Arbitrator  under  convention  of  1891    147 

False  imprisonment  as  ground  of  indemnity    186 
Federal  court,  error  in  action  of,  cured    245 
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French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads    367 

Opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner    369 

Opinion  of  French  Commissioner    405 

Additional  opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner    409 

Additional  opinion  of  French  Commissioner    425 

Opinion  of  Umpire    428 
Frierdich  &  Co.  case: 

Opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner.    32 

Opinion  of  French  Commissioner    32 
Additional  opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner    33 

Additional  opinion  of  French  Commissioner   ."    36 
Opinion  of  Umpire    37 

(jovemment  {see  Intervention;  Liability): 
Will  only  treat  with  citizen  of  another  nation  through  his  government    144 

Government,  respondent,  not  responsible  for  loss  or  damages  through  havoc 
of  war    369 

Interpretation.    {See  Treaty.) 
Intervention: 

Should  not  be  resorted  to  in  a  case  of  conflict  of  laws  respecting  citizenship ...  45 

Should  not  be  had  if  defendant  government  conformed  to  its  own  laws  in  its 

own  ports,  said  laws  being  such  as  are  the  product  of  civilization    31 

Should  not  be  had  unless  defendant  government  conmiitted  some  legal  wrong .  31 
Jurisdiction: 

Commission  has  none  to  rescind  contract    369 

Leduc,  St.  Ives,  Fischer  &  Co.  case   *    454 
Liability: 

A  government  is  liable  for  injuries  suffered  by  an  alien  through  an  act  of  a  sub- 
ordinate oflBcer,  committed  while  former  is  in  the  presence  of  a  commanding 

general  by  order    44 
In  such  case,  if  the  government  declines  or  neglects  to  punish  the  guilty  person, 

the  actual  damages  suffered  may  be  claimed  and  an  additional  sum  for  the 

indirect  affront  to  claimant's  government    44 
A  government  is  liable  for  casualties  resulting  from  warfare  when  such  casual- 

ties could  have  been  avoided    5 

Maninat  case: 

Opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner    45 
Opinion  of  French  Commissioner    50 
Additional  opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner    55 
Additional  opinion  of  French  Commissioner    67 

Opinion  of  Umpire    69 
Marriage.     {See  Nationality.) 
Massiani,  heirs  of    211 

Opinion  of  Venezuelan  Conmiissioner    212 
Opinion  of  French  Commissioner    217 
Additional  opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner    223 

Additional  opinion  of  French  Commissioner    233 

Opinion  of  Umpire    235 
Measure  of  damages.    {See  Damages.) 
Nationality: 

Attempts  to  change  after  date  of  inception  of  claim  not  valid  to  affect  rights. .  45 
Of  claimant  at  inception  of  claim  is  alone  to  be  considered    45 
By  birth  in  a  coimtry  a  reasonable  rule    45 
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Nationality — Continued.  Page. 
Of  the  citizens  of  a  government  must  be  determined  by  the  country  of  residence, 

inasmuch  as  governments  must  be  permitted  to  regulate  their  own  internal 
affairs           45 

Marriage  of  a  woman  to  a  Frenchman  establishes  her  nationality  under  French 
law,  both  during  her  marriage  and  after  the  death  of  her  husband           45 

Establishment  of,  is  on  the  claimant           44 

Orinoco,  Company  General  of         244 

Opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner         246 
Opinion  of  French  Commissioner         282 
Additional  opinion  of  Venezuelan  Commissioner   -       286 
Additional  opinion  of  French  Commissioner         314 

Opinion  of  Umpire         322 
Patil,  Jos^  de  Jestis,  Venezuelan  Commissioner  {see  Commission) : 

Opinions — Brun  case       6, 13 
Frierdich  &  Co.  case   32,33 

Maninat  case   45, 55 

Fabiani  case   83, 97 

Dominique  &  Co.  case    186, 195 
Leduc,  St.  Ives,  Fischer  &  Co.  case         454 

Rog6  case         454 
Decauville  case           456 
Battistini  case         459 

Piton  case         462 

Massiani,  heirs  of,  case   212,  223 

Orinoco,  Company  General  of,  case   244, 286 
French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads   369,  409 

Peretti,  Count  de,  French  Commissioner  {see  Commission): 

Opinions — Brun  case       9,20 
Frierdich  &  Co.  case   32,36 

Maninat  case    50, 67 
Fabiani  case       93,103 

Dominique  &  Co.  case    193, 198 
Massiani,  heirs  of,  case   217, 233 

Orinoco,  Company  General  of,  case   282, 314 
French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads  case   405,  425 

Piton  case         462 

Plumley,  Frank,  Umpire  {see  Commission) : 

Opinions — Brun  case          21 
Frierdich  &  Co.  case   1           37 

Maninat  case   *           69 
Fabiani  case         110 

Dominique  &  Co.  case         201 
Massiani,  heirs  of,  case         235 

Orinoco,  Company  General  of,  case         322 

French  Company  of  Venezuelan  Railroads         428 
Presumptions: 

Acts  of  governmental  agents  must  be  presumed  to  be  regular  and  proper  until 
the  contrary  is  clearly  shown           31 

Are  in  favor  of  regularity  and  propriety  of  acts  of  governmental  agents  as  neces- 
sary to  the  public  interests           31 
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Protocols:  Page. 
Text  of  convention  of  1902    1 

Text  of  Fabiani  protocol  of  1891        110 
Rescission  or  abandonment  {see  Contracts;  Jurisdiction): 

Rescission,  suit  for,  irregularities  in,  cured        244 
Date  of  entry  is  date  on  which  issues  are  formed         245 

Res  judicata: 
Effect  of  judgment  or  award  as   82, 245 

Rogatory  commissions: 
Error  in,  cured         245 

Rules  as  to,  of  Institute  of  International  Law        258 

Rog4  case. ..'.         454 
Sovereignty : 

To  maintain,  a  country  must  be  master  of  its  internal  policy        212 
Treaty: 

To  be  interpreted  in  manner  least  onerous  to  party  to  be  charged          45 
War.     {See  Damages;  Grovernment;  Liability.)  j^ 
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